



Hydrometric Register and Statistics 1996-2000

CENTRE FOR ECOLOGY AND HYDROLOGY • BRITISH GEOLOGICAL SURVEY WALLINGFORD

HYDROLOGICAL DATA UNITED KINGDOM

HYDROMETRIC REGISTER AND STATISTICS 1996–2000

© 2003 Natural Environment Research Council

Published by the Centre for Ecology and Hydrology, Wallingford, Oxon OX10 8BB

ISBN 1 903741 06 8

Editors: Terry J. Marsh and Martin L. Lees

The acquisition, archiving and validation of the bulk of the hydrological data featured in this publication was undertaken as part of the National River Flow Archive project at the Centre for Ecology and Hydrology, Wallingford. Martin Lees is the project manager and liaison with the measuring authorities (see page 201) is undertaken by a team of regional representatives. In addition to the editors, this team currently includes:

Matt Holmes, Jim Hudson, Jamie Hannaford and Felicity Sanderson.

Over the period covered by the publication other important contributions have been made by Henry Gunston, Karen Croker, Samantha Green, Jackie Carr, and Patricia Sheffield. Rebecca White, Renata Moraes and Cedric Laize were responsible for the production of the gauging station maps and Ned Hewitt provided valuable proof-reading assistance. Jamie Hannaford supervised the editing and updating of data on the National River Flow Archive – a major undertaking.

The style and contents of the Hydrometric Register and Statistics 1996–2000 volume, and the scope of the data retrieval service which complements it, reflect over 20 years of archive system development supervised, latterly, by Oliver Swain.

The British Geological Survey is responsible for the acquisition, appraisal and archiving of the featured hydrogeological information. Andrew McKenzie is the National Groundwater Level Archive manager and Rosemary Fry is responsible for data archiving and the associated liaison with the measuring authorities; Rose Hargreaves and Melinda Lewis provide technical guidance.

Some of the features displayed in the maps contained in this report are based on the Ordnance Survey BaseData GB and 1:50 000 digital data (Licence no. GD03012G/01/97) and are included with the permission of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution.

Printed in the United Kingdom by Alden Group Ltd, Osney Mead, Oxford, OX2 OEF

The materials used in the production of this volume are made from the pulp of softwood trees in managed Scandinavian forests in which every tree cut down is replaced by at least one more, thus replacing the Earth's resources.

HYDROLOGICAL DATA UNITED KINGDOM

HYDROMETRIC REGISTER AND STATISTICS 1996–2000

A catalogue of river flow gauging stations and observation boreholes together with summary hydrometric statistics

Centre for Hydrology and Ecology Wallingford **British Geological Survey**

Cover Photographs

The photographs have been selected to illustrate the dramatic change in hydrological conditions over the 1996–2000 period. The exceptionally hot and dry summer of 1995 and the following very dry winter established widespread drought conditions, which in some parts of southern Britain extended well into 1997. Thereafter, a sequence of wet seasons generated a prolonged recovery in river flows and aquifer recharge rates. This recovery culminated in the remarkably extensive and persistent flooding which began in October 2000 and, in some areas, continued through the spring of 2001.

Details of the individual photographs are given below:

- Top left:River Pang at Bucklebury Ford. Although the river is not perennial at this site, the absence of flow
across Bucklebury Ford is an indicator of significantly low groundwater levels. This shot from the
bridge at the ford, shows the river bed still moist from the groundwater recession in May 1997.
Photo: Martin Lees
- Top right: River Findhorn at Forres, Highland Region, 12 km east of Nairn. This gauging station is notable for recording one of the highest gauged flow in the UK; however, this picture shows the Findhorn in more tranquil mood on 22/05/1998. It was the start of a sequence of low flows from May to September; accumulated runoff over this period was the second lowest on record in a series from 1958. *Photo: Patricia Sheffield*
- Middle left: River Avon at Evesham. This famous picture, at the junction of Port Street and Waterside immediately by the bridge over the Avon in the centre of Evesham, illustrates graphically the severe character of the flood of 9/04/1998. The flood was notable from Northampton, along the Warwickshire Avon through to Wales and south down the Cherwell. It prompted a significant review of flood warning and alleviation measures throughout England and Wales. *Photo: Courtesy of the Evesham Journal (http://www.journal.freeuk.com/contact.html)*
- Middle right: River Ouse at York. York is known to be susceptible to flooding whenever the whole of the Ouse catchment contributes high runoff. The protracted rainfall through the autumn and early winter of 2000 was no exception and the river recorded its highest level at the Viking Hotel in York in a series from 1885. *Photo: Courtesy of the Ridings Area of the North East Region of the Environment Agency*
- Bottom left: River Culm at Stoke Canon, looking south towards Exeter, about 10km distant. This was the morning of 8/12/2000. The Culm normally flows in two channels at this point, but they are barely discernible given the widespread floodplain inundation. The road crossing in the middle ground is the A396 and the main SW railway link is to the top right. *Photo: Marc Hill, courtesy of Apex News and Pictures (http://www.apex-photos.co.uk)*
- Bottom right: Watery Lane, Skirmett, Oxfordshire in December 2000. This is an aptly named road for this example of clear water flooding (resulting from aquifer discharge from unusually high groundwater levels). Many areas of the Chalk aquifer in southern Britain were affected by this phenomenon. Unlike fluvial flooding, some such flows were maintained for months on end. *Photo: Terry Marsh*

FOREWORD

Hydrometric data provide the foundation for both the science of hydrology and for water management generally. Skilful management and manipulation of hydrometric data underpins the development of improved engineering design procedures and more effective strategies to reconcile the often competing water demands of man and the aquatic environment. Drought and flood episodes during the period reviewed in this publication have underlined our continuing vulnerability to extreme weather conditions. In many areas the range of recorded river flows and groundwater levels were extended over the five years beginning with 1996. Hydrometric data assume an increased importance in circumstances where hydrological change is underway or anticipated. Their strategic value will be well demonstrated as, through time, they contribute to reducing the current uncertainty regarding the impact of global warming on hydrological conditions across the UK.

River flows and groundwater levels in the United Kingdom reflect more than just the intensity and distribution of rainfall and the magnitude of evaporation losses. Geology and land use influence river runoff and aquifer recharge patterns, and the natural variations of each are often substantially disturbed by the complex and evolving pattern of water utilisation. Careful stewardship is therefore required to maximise the utility of the substantial volume of nationally archived hydrometric data.

The primary objectives of the Hydrometric Register and Statistics 1996–2000 publication are to document recent water resource variations, to set them in a historical context and to serve as a primary reference source for a rapidly expanding community of data users. Information is structured and presented to allow the selection of appropriate datasets for particular projects, and to assist in the interpretation of analyses based on the basic river flow and groundwater level data.

This report has been assembled with the active cooperation of measuring authorities – principally the environment agencies – across the UK. It stands as a testament to the expertise and commitment of hydrometric field and office personnel in maintaining the continuity and integrity of the featured river flow and groundwater level data.

The work of the National River Flow and Groundwater Level Archives is overseen by a steering committee that includes representatives of Government departments, the environment agencies and the water industry from England, Wales, Scotland and Northern Ireland. Their support for, and contribution to, this publication is gratefully acknowledged.

Professor J. S. Wallace Director, CEH Wallingford





CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION Sources of Information	1 1
SURFACE WATER – REGISTER AND STATISTICS The UK Gauging Station Network	3 3
The Acquisition, Computation and Accuracy of Gauged Flows River Flows 1996–2000	3 3
Scope of the Register and the Statistical Tabulations Data Presentation	4 4
The Gauging Station Register Hydrometric Statistics	4 9
HYDROMETRIC REGISTER AND STATISTICS 1996-2000	13
Scotland (based on the Scottish Environment Protection Agency regions) North	14
East West	22 34
England (broadly based on the regional hydrological divisions of the Environment Agency) North East	44
Midlands	58
Anglian	72
1 names Southern	104
South West	114
North West	140
Environment Agency Wales (based on the hydrological division of EA Wales)	128
Northern Ireland	152
CONCISE REGISTER OF GAUGING STATIONS Summary of Archived Data	159 165
GROUNDWATER – REGISTER AND STATISTICS	175
Background	175
The Observation Borehole Network	178
Factors Affecting Level Observations	178
Groundwater Levels 1996–2000	178
Scope of the Register and the Statistical Tabulations Well Register and Statistics	181 184
THE NATIONAL RIVER FLOW AND GROUNDWATER LEVEL Archive data retrieval services	197
DIRECTORY OF MEASURING AUTHORITIES	201
PUBLICATIONS – in the Hydrological data UK series	203
The National River Flow Archive Website	203
The National Hydrological Monitoring Programme	203
Hydrological data UK publications Other Publications	203 204
	204
Abbreviations	205 207

Page

The Hydrometric Register and Statistics 1996-2000 report is the fourth such five-year volume in the Hydrological data UK series. It provides a comprehensive range of hydrometric statistics relating to the featured period, and serves as a reference source for hydrometric information that does not change materially from year to year. Details of the gauging stations, the catchments they command and observation boreholes in the national hydrometric networks are presented together with summary statistical data to allow an examination of the variation in surface and groundwater resources both within the period 1996-2000 and by comparison with the long term average conditions. Information in the Surface Water – Register and Statistics section is grouped according to the major hydrological divisions in the UK (see below) - these may not correspond to the administrative regional divisions of the principal measuring authorities (see Frontispiece I and page 201). In all, details are given of more than 1500 gauging stations and 160 observation boreholes.

The National River Flow Archive (NRFA) is maintained by the Centre for Ecology and Hydrology Wallingford (formerly the Institute of Hydrology) and the National Groundwater Level Archive is maintained – also at Wallingford – by the British Geological Survey. Both CEH Wallingford and BGS are component bodies of the Natural Environment Research Council.

A description is given of the National River Flow and National Groundwater Level Archives together with details of the associated data retrieval facilities.

Constraints of space have required a number of abbreviations and acronyms to be used, particularly in the descriptive material in the Surface Water section. These, together with selected technical terms, are defined in the Glossary.

A major proportion of the hydrological data previously published in Yearbooks in the Hydrological data UK series – together with substantial additional information – is now published electronically on the National River Flow Archive website. Page 203 gives details of all publications in the Hydrological data UK series, together with an outline of the data and other information accessible via the website.

Sources of Information

The hydrometric data presented in this volume have been abstracted primarily from the National River Flow Archive and National Groundwater Level Archives. In England and Wales responsibility for the

collection and initial processing of the data rests principally with the Environment Agency. Responsibility for a small proportion of the featured monitoring sites - including a number with lengthy records - rests with the water services companies and a number of public and private organisations. In Scotland, the acquisition and processing of hydrometric data rests principally with the Scottish Environment Protection Agency (SEPA). On 1st April 2001 SEPA's regional structure was replaced by a national structure with the regions replaced by areas with the same geographic borders (see page 201); the hydrometric functions are co-ordinated by the National Hydrology Manager. In Northern Ireland primary responsibility rests with the Rivers Agency (Department of Agriculture and Rural Development). Additional data have been provided by the Geological Survey of Northern Ireland, the Borders Regional Council, Water Supply Companies and by various research bodies and public undertakings (see page 201).

River flows in the United Kingdom are often difficult to measure precisely – particularly in flood or drought conditions – and can be substantially affected by artificial influences. These influences range from a large diminution in flows caused by a major abstraction immediately upstream of the gauging station to the often subtle impact of land use change on river flow patterns. Groundwater levels may also be heavily influenced by man's activities – abstraction rates in particular. An appreciation of these effects is necessary to exploit the archived data most effectively. For this publication important material relating to the impact of changing patterns of water utilisation on river flow regimes and groundwater level behaviour was supplied by the UK environment agencies.

Apart from the figures for CEH Wallingford's own experimental basins, the great majority of the areal rainfall data presented in this volume is derived from validated rainfall data provided by the Met Office.

Some slight variations from contributors' figures may occur; these may be due to different methods of computation or the need for uniformity in presentation.

The Natural Environment Research Council acknowledge and extend their appreciation to all who have assisted in the collection and provision of information for this publication; the community at large gains considerably from the efforts of those who take the initial field observations and those who process them in hydrometric offices.

.

SURFACE WATER — REGISTER AND

REGISTER AND STATISTICS

The UK Gauging Station Network

The national gauging station network - currently comprising over 1300 stations - is very dense in global terms; a necessary response to the dense drainage network and the diversity of the UK in terms of its climate, geology, land use and patterns of water utilisation. A distinguishing characteristic of the network is the variety of flow measurement techniques deployed¹. The modest size of UK rivers is reflected in the widespread use of flow measurement structures (of many different designs and configurations). Many stations are 'hybrid' (exploiting different flow measurement techniques for different flow ranges) and a significant minority are multi-site (e.g. where high and low flow measurement is undertaken at separate sites). Such gauging arrangements normally require more complex data processing procedures to derive flows for archiving purposes.

The Acquisition, Computation and Accuracy of Gauged Flows

Gauged flows are generally calculated by the conversion of the record of stage, or water level, using a stagedischarge relation, often referred to as the rating or calibration. Stage is measured and recorded against time by instruments usually actuated by a float in a stilling well. The instrument records the level either digitally - solid state loggers are deployed at over 95% of the operational gauging stations featured in this volume - or continuously by pen and chart. At the majority of the gauging stations in the United Kingdom provision is made for the routine transmission of river levels directly to the processing centre, by telephone line or, less generally, by radio; on occasions satellites have been used to receive and re-transmit the radio signal. The rapid growth in the use of the public telephone network for the transmission of river level and flow data is enabling hydrometric data acquisition to proceed on a near real-time basis in most areas. Typically, levels are recorded at 15-minute intervals and stored on-site for overnight transmission to allow the initial processing to be completed on the following day. Normally, both digital and analogue recording devices are deployed at gauging stations to provide a measure of security against loss of record caused by instrument malfunction.

The stage-discharge relation is obtained either by installing a gauging structure, usually a weir or flume with known hydraulic characteristics, or by measuring the stream velocity and cross-sectional area at points throughout the range of flow at a site characterised by its ability to maintain the relationship. The accuracy of the processed gauged flows therefore depends upon several factors:

- i. accuracy and reliability in measuring and recording water levels,
- ii. accuracy and reliability of the derived stagedischarge relation, and
- iii. concurrency of revised ratings and the stage record with respect to changes in the station control.

Flow data from ultrasonic gauging stations are computed on-site where the times are measured for acoustic pulses to traverse a river section along an oblique path in both directions. The mean river velocity is related to the difference in the two timings and the flow is then assessed using the river's cross-sectional area. Accurate computed flows can be expected for stable river sections and within a range in stage that permits good estimates of mean channel velocity to be derived from a velocity traverse set at a series of fixed depths.

Flow data from electromagnetic gauging stations may also be computed on-site. The technique requires the measurement of the electromotive force (emf) induced in flowing water as it cuts a vertical magnetic field generated by means of a large coil buried beneath the river bed or constructed above it. This emf is sensed by electrodes at each side of the river and is directly proportional to the average velocity in the cross-section.

British and International Standards are followed as far as possible in the design, installation and operation of gauging stations. Most of these Standards include a section devoted to accuracy and many include recommendations for reducing uncertainties in discharge measurements and for estimating the extent of the uncertainties which do arise.

The National River Flow Archive (NRFA) exists to provide not only a central database and retrieval service but also an extra level of hydrological validation. To further this aim, project staff at CEH Wallingford liaise with their counterparts in the measuring authorities and, by visiting gauging stations and data processing centres, endeavour to maintain the necessary knowledge of local conditions and problems which is essential to help identify and rectify anomalous flow data.

The NRFA is principally a database of daily and monthly flows. Monthly peak values are archived to provide a guide to overall flow variability but their accuracy can vary widely. The primary source of nationally archive flood data are the UK Flood Event Archive and the Flood Estimation Handbook² (see page 204).

River Flows 1996-2000

The 1996–2000 period was characterised by very large spatial and temporal variations in river flows. Over wide

areas the range of recorded variation in runoff rates was extended as the focus of hydrological concern switched from the persistent drought conditions of the mid-1990s to the remarkably widespread flooding in the autumn and early winter of 2000 - the most severe flooding in England and Wales since the snowmelt-generated flooding of March 1947³. Daily river flow variations for 1996–2000 are illustrated on pages 6 and 7 for a representative set of 12 catchments across the UK; the location of the featured gauging stations is given on the respective regional maps – see below. The daily flow hydrographs are shown together with the pre-1996 daily

Scope of the Register and the Statistical Tabulations

day running mean (broken trace).

maxima and minima (the shaded envelopes) and the 10-

Hydrometric and hydrological information is presented for the major hydrological regions in Britain, and for Northern Ireland (where some catchments extend into the Irish Republic). The regional divisions follow catchment boundaries and are shown in Frontispiece II (the administrative boundaries of the EA, SEPA and the Rivers Agency are featured on Frontispiece I). Details of those few gauging stations operated by other organisations are included in the relevant hydrological regions. For each of the major hydrological regions data are presented in three parts:

A Gauging Station Location Map ; the scale varies between maps in order to make the most effective use of the available space. 100 km grid squares are identified by standard letter and numeric codes (see Frontispiece I). Hydrometric Areas (see below) are referenced by large green numerals. In England and Wales, the administrative boundaries of the EA regions are shown as a grey trace; in some areas these correspond with national boundaries. To improve clarity, a few stations are shown slightly displaced from their true national grid location. Concentric open circles are used to identify gauging stations for which no post-1998 data are held on the NRFA; a few decommissioned gauging stations with limited record lengths have been omitted. Map inserts have been provided for additional clarity in areas where the local network is especially dense.

ii. A Gauging Station Register. Stations are tabulated in Hydrometric Area sequence. Within each Hydrometric Area stations are listed according to their position in the drainage network – downstream from headwaters to the tidal limits – this allows for easy comparisons between stations in the same catchment or sub-catchment. A list of stations ordered according to their NRFA number (see below) is given in the Concise Register of Gauging Stations (pages 159 to 164).

iii. A tabulation of Hydrometric Statistics together with reference information relating to the gauging station, its flow record and the catchment it commands. The stations are featured in the same order as they are listed in the Gauging Station Register.

In addition a 'Summary of Archived Data' details the river flow and catchment rainfall data held on the NRFA for individual gauging stations and catchments (see pages 165 to 173).

The following explanatory notes are provided to assist in the interpretation of particular items in the tabular material.

Data Presentation

Some slight variations from contributors' figures may occur; these may be due to different methods of computation, differing record lengths or completeness of datasets, or the need for uniformity in presentation. For some gauging stations estimated daily mean flows (but not monthly peak flows) have been included, particularly over the 1996–2000 period, to create more complete datasets – such data are labeled as estimates on the National River Flow Archive.

THE GAUGING STATION REGISTER

Flow measurement stations are normally featured in the Register when they have at least two complete years of river flow data held on the NRFA up to and including 2000. The organisation with operational responsibility for each gauging station is given in the Hydrometric Statistics table.

The quality and completeness of the flow data for individual stations may have changed through time, for instance where a station has been upgraded to primary status. The status of a few featured stations is currently under review; refer to the individual station 'Comment' (see page 11) for further details.

Station Number (NRFA)

The gauging station number is a unique six digit reference number which serves as the primary identifier of the station record on the NRFA. The first digit is a regional identifier being 0 for mainland Britain, 1 for the islands around Britain and 2 for Ireland. This is followed by the Hydrometric Area number given in the second and third digits. Hydrometric Areas are either integral river catchments having one or more outlets to the sea or tidal estuary, or, for convenience, they may include several contiguous river catchments having topographical similarity with separate tidal outlets. In mainland Britain they are numbered from 1 to 97 in clockwise order around the coast commencing in northeast Scotland – see Frontispiece II. Ireland has

^{*} For the EA Midlands Region separate maps have been provided for the Severn and Trent basins – this allows several clusters of gauging stations to be shown with greater clarity.

a unified numbering system from 1 to 40 commencing with the River Foyle catchment and circulating clockwise; not all Irish Hydrometric Areas, however, have an outlet to the coast. The numbers and boundaries of the UK Hydrometric Areas are shown on Frontispiece I and appear on the regional maps.

The fourth, fifth and sixth digits comprise the number, usually allocated chronologically, of the gauging station within the Hydrometric Area. An asterisk following the station number identifies those gauging stations for which no data are held on the NRFA after 1998 – in the majority of cases the stations have been closed or are no longer of primary status. For some, however, flow data have been combined with those for a more recently commissioned – but not necessarily coincident – gauging station.

River Name / Station Name

The river and station name assigned by the appropriate measuring authority. Space constraints require that abbreviations be used for a number of gauging stations; for the majority of monitoring sites the full river and station names are given in the table of Hydrometric Statistics.

Grid Reference

Standard two-letter and six figure map (100 m) reference using the National Grid in Great Britain and the Irish Grid in Northern Ireland. (The Irish Grid has only one prefix letter but it is common practice to precede it with the letter I to make identification clear.)

Catchment Area

The surface catchment area, projected onto a horizontal plane, draining to the gauging station in square kilometres. Most of the quoted areas have been derived using the Institute of Hydrology's Digital Terrain Model (IHDTM)⁴ the remainder derive from a variety of sources and are not of uniform precision. Delineation of catchment boundaries can be especially difficult in areas of very subdued relief. The IHDTM utilises information on drainage directions supplied by the measuring agencies to construct catchment boundaries. Errors in the assessment of the areas of small catchments can substantially affect runoff values. There are a substantial number of gauging stations where, because of geological considerations, or as a result of water transfers (for instance, the use of catchwaters to increase reservoir yield), the actual contributing area may differ appreciably from that defined by the topographical boundary. In consequence, the river flows, whether augmented or diminished, may cause the runoff values (as a depth in millimetres) to appear anomalous.

Station Type

The gauging station type is coded by the list of abbreviations given below – two abbreviations may be

applied to each station relating to the measurement of low or high flows.

- B Broad-crested weir
- C Crump profile (triangular, 1:2 upstream, 1:5 downstream slopes) single-crest weir
- CB Compound broad-crested weir. The compounding may include a mixture of types such as rectangular profiles, flumes and Flat Vs and with or without divide walls
- CC Compound Crump weir
- EM Electromagnetic gauging station
- EW Essex weir (single Crump weir modified with angled, sloping, triangular profile flanking crests) in trapezoidal channel
- FL Flume
- FV Flat V triangular profile weir (variety of cross slopes 1:10-1:40)
- MIS Miscellaneous
- TP Rectangular thin-plate weir
- US Ultrasonic gauging station
- VA Velocity-area gauging station
- VN Triangular (V notch) thin-plate weir

Period of Record

The first and last year for which daily river flow data are held on the NRFA up to and including 2000. Where the flow record is sensibly continuous (fewer than six missing days occurring in any one year) the first and last years are separated by a dash; otherwise dots are substituted. A detailed breakdown of the data available for each gauging station is given in the Summary of Archived Data (see page 165). Earlier data, often of a sporadic nature or of poorer quality, may occasionally be available from the measuring authority or other sources (see the corresponding station 'Comment'). Areal rainfall data and, particularly, monthly peak flows may not be available for the full period of record.

An 'n' following the period of record indicates that the flow and runoff entries have been derived using naturalised flows.

Emboldening

Where the pre-1996 period of record equals, or exceeds, five complete years, emboldening is used to highlight new maximum and minimum annual and monthly runoff totals or river flows established during the 1996–2000 period.

Mean Annual Rainfall

The average annual rainfall over the catchment in millimetres. Generally the mean relates to the period of record given in the previous column (rainfall data preceding the start of the corresponding river flow record are ignored); the mean rainfall is shown in italics where monthly catchment rainfall totals are available for less than 80 per cent of the corresponding runoff record.

HYDROLOGICAL DATA: 1996-2000





SURFACE WATER-REGISTER AND STATISTICS





The mean annual rainfall is derived from the monthly catchment rainfall totals held on the NRFA. Beginning with January 1986 these totals have been derived from a one kilometre square grid of rainfallvalues generated from all daily and monthly rainfall data available from the Met Office. The method used conforms with that recommended in the British Standard's Institution's Guide to the Acquisition and Management of Meteorological Precipitation Data⁵. Validation procedures allow for the rejection of obviously erroneous raingauge observations prior to the gridding exercise. A computer program then calculates catchment rainfall by averaging the values (either in millimetres or as percentages of the 1961–90 average) at the grid points lying within the digitised catchment boundary*.

Up to and including 1985, monthly catchment areal rainfall totals were normally computed by, firstly, obtaining the long period (1941-70) average annual rainfall for each catchment – this was derived by the Met Office based on isohyets mapped at a scale of 1:250,000. Then, for each of a selected number of raingauges chosen to represent the catchment, the monthly rainfall was expressed as a percentage of its annual average rainfall. The percentage values of rainfall for each raingauge were summed and their mean obtained to give a catchment percentage value for the month, which was then converted to monthly mean rainfall.

The mean annual rainfall is computed from the monthly mean rainfalls using data only for years where the rainfall record is complete. Accuracy depends largely on the reliability of the assessment of the areal annual average and on the adequacy of the network of raingauges used to represent an area. Where, as for instance in some mountainous catchments, raingauges are few, their siting and exposure is not ideal, and particularly where snowfall is common, great precision in the areal rainfall assessments cannot be expected. Under such circumstances rainfall can often be significantly underestimated. More generally, some underestimation of mean rainfall may occur — the catch of standard raingauges is known to be systematically lower than that for co-located ground-level raingauges.

Changes in the raingauge network can affect the accuracy of the monthly catchment rainfall totals and the homogeneity of the time series.

Mean Annual Runoff

The notional depth of water in millimetres over the catchment equivalent to the mean annual flow as measured at the gauging station. It is computed using the relationship:

Runoff in mm =

 $\frac{\text{Mean Flow in cubic metres per second} \times 86.4 \times 365}{\text{Catchment Area (km²)}}$

The total runoff is rounded to the nearest millimetre.

* Note: This method has also been used to fill gapes in the earlier catchment rainfall record.

As a consequence of missing data there will not be full equivalence between the mean annual rainfall and the mean annual runoff for some catchments. Runoff statistics and the corresponding mean flow are computed on the basis of naturalised flows for the minority of catchments where sensibly continuous daily, or monthly, naturalised data are held on the NRFA. Naturalised flows are derived from the corresponding gauged discharges by taking account of the net affect of upstream abstractions and discharges. The uncertainty in the magnitude of the necessary adjustment may be considerably greater than the uncertainty associated with the gauged flow.

The net impact of abstractions and discharges may result in unrepresentative mean annual runoff figures. More commonly, a lack of coincidence between the topographical catchment divide and the true extent of the contributing area (which may be substantially different for permeable catchments) can produce anomalous mean annual runoff totals. Note also that measurement limitations – especially precipitation assessments in very wet upland catchments – may give rise to runoff which approaches, or even exceeds, the corresponding catchment rainfall. Guidance as to how representative the mean annual runoff is of the natural flow regime may be found in the Factors Affecting Runoff (F.A.R.) codes (see page 10) and the 'Comment' section in the Hydrometric Statistics tables (see page 11).

Mean Annual Loss

The difference between the mean annual catchment rainfall and the mean annual catchment runoff. Entries are confined to catchments where there is good agreement between the periods for which rainfall and runoff are held on the National River Flow Archive. The mean annual loss provides a guide to average annual evaporative losses but limited precision in the rainfall and runoff figures, the net effect of artificial influences on the mean runoff and, particularly, a lack of congruency between the topographic and the true catchment areas (see above) may all combine to produce unrepresentative mean losses. For those few catchments where computed mean runoff exceeds computed mean rainfall no mean annual loss is given. The F.A.R. codes (see page 10) and the relevant 'Comment' section in the Hydrometric Statistics tables should be consulted to assess the credibility of the featured mean annual losses.

Maximum Annual Runoff / Year of Occurrence

The maximum calendar year runoff in the period of record. The selection is based only on those years with complete flow records on the NRFA.

Minimum Annual Runoff / Year of Occurrence

The minimum calendar year runoff in the period of record. The selection is based only on those years with complete flow records on the NRFA.

Mean Flow

The average, weighted to account for the different number of days per month, of the mean monthly flows for the period of record.

Minimum Monthly Flow / Month and Year of Occurrence

The minimum monthly mean flow in the period of record; where the minimum recurs, the latest occurrence is featured. Minimum monthly flows greater than zero but less than 0.005 m^3s^{-1} appear as '>0.0'. It should be emphasised that river flow measurement tends to become more imprecise at very low discharges. Very low velocities, heavy weed growth and the insensitivity of stage-discharge relations combine with the difficulty of accurately measuring limited water depths to increase the uncertainty associated with the computed flows.

Median Annual Flood (QMED)

The median of the annual peak discharges in the period of record. Generally, QMED has been computed using a dataset compiled originally as part of the Flood Studies project⁶ and updated during the Flood Estimation Handbook project²; significant further updating remains to be done. QMED values have been computed only when at least five water-year (October-September) peaks have been recorded. In the FSR (and previous Hydrometric Register and Statistics volumes), the mean annual flood (QBAR) was used as the index flood. QMED is now preferred because it is unaffected by the size of an exceptionally large flood event and can be directly interpreted as the two-year return period. For a few stations (indicated by an asterisk following the QMED value) the QMED has been determined on the basis of the highest daily mean flows. The QMED has been omitted for some stations where catchment changes - normally the construction of a major reservoir - make the computed QMED unrepresentative of current conditions.

Accurate high flow measurement can present severe logistical and hydrometric difficulties and flood discharges may often be based on substantial extrapolations of the stage-discharge relation. The precision may vary greatly from station to station; some relevant additional information may be found in the station 'Comment' section (see page 11).

Base Flow Index

The Base Flow Index (BFI) was developed at the Institute of Hydrology (now CEH Wallingford) during the Low Flow Study to help assess the low flow characteristics of rivers in the United Kingdom (for details of the procedures used to compute the BFI, see Gustard *et al.*, 1992^7). In this volume, the BFI has been computed using the archived record of gauged daily mean flows and may be thought of as a

measure of the proportion of the river runoff that derives from stored sources; the more permeable the rock, drift and soil material of a catchment the higher the baseflow and the more sustained the river's flow during periods of dry weather. Thus, the BFI is an effective means of indexing catchment geology. For instance, rivers draining impervious clay catchments (with minimal lake or reservoir storage) typically have baseflow indices in the range 0.15 to 0.35, whereas a Chalk stream may well have a BFI greater than 0.9 as a consequence of the high groundwater component in the river discharge.

10 Percentile

The flow in cubic metres per second which was equalled or exceeded for 10 per cent of the specified term – a high flow parameter which, when compared with the mean, may give a measure of the variability, or 'flashiness', of the flow regime. The 10 percentile is computed using daily flow data only for those years with five days, or less, missing on the NRFA.

95 Percentile

The flow in cubic metres per second which was equalled or exceeded for 95 per cent of the specified term; a significant low flow parameter particularly relevant in the assessment of river water quality consent conditions. The same conditions for completeness of the annual records apply as for the 10 percentile flow. Ninety-five percentile flows greater than zero but less than $0.005 \text{ m}^3 \text{s}^{-1}$ appear as '>0.0'.

The reliability of the 95 percentile flows – as with the minimum monthly mean – must be considered carefully as representative measures of low flow. The values should be used with caution in view of the problems associated with both the measurement of very low discharges and the increasing proportional variability between the natural flow and the artificial influences, such as abstractions, discharges and storage changes as the river flow diminishes.

HYDROMETRIC STATISTICS

Flow measurement stations are, generally, featured in this section where at least three complete years of data are available on the NRFA over the period 1996–2000. A significant minority of the stations which appear in the Gauging Station Register have been omitted from the Hydrometric Statistics section. These include stations decommissioned prior to 1996, those where the hydrometric data are of poor quality, or because of the limited value to the national network of a particular gauging site; e.g. a gauging station immediately below a reservoir.

Certain key reference details are repeated from the Register of Gauging Stations. See page 5 for details of the Station Number, Station Name and Catchment Area.

Measuring Authority - M.A.

An abbreviation referencing the organisation responsible for the operation of the gauging station. A list of measuring authority codes together with the full name and address of the organisation is given in the Directory of Measuring Authorities (page 201).

Local Number.

The station reference number adopted by the measuring authority, for a few areas truncation has been necessary due to space constraints. For some regions the local number is identical to the NRFA station number.

Station Sensitivity - Sens.

The percentage change in flow associated with a 10 mm increase in stage at the 95% exceedance flow; the higher the sensitivity, the greater the error in computed flow associated with systematic errors in flow measurement. The limited depth of many UK rivers, especially during periods of low flow, places a premium on the accurate measurement of water levels. Systematic errors in the measurement of stage – resulting, for instance, from imprecise datum settings, algal growth on weir crests or ice on natural controls – are the major factor influencing discharge uncertainty. The sensitivity index provides a guide to the susceptibility of low flows at individual stations to errors arising from imprecise stage measurement; commonly these produce an overestimation of flows.

B-full (Bank-full) / S-full (Structure-full)

The flow in cubic metres per second at which the river begins to overlap the banks, or the wingwalls of a structure, at a gauging station. The discharges have been obtained from stage-discharge relations and since they are at the upper limit of the in-bank flow they may be derived by extrapolation. At a few weirs and flumes, the upstream channel capacity may be less than the capacity of the structure. Under such circumstances bypassing will commence before structurefull is reached.

This item is unavailable for a substantial number of gauging stations and may be omitted where the bankfull and structurefull discharges are considered unreliable.

Factors Affecting Runoff - F.A.R.

An indication of the various types of abstractions from, and discharges to, the river operating within the catchment which alter the natural flow is given by a standard set of code letters. For some areas the allocation of F.A.R. codes is incomplete and for all catchments the codes are subject to continuing review. The absence of F.A.R. codes does not imply a natural flow regime. An explanation of the code letters is given below. With the exception of the induced loss in surface flow resulting from underlying groundwater abstraction, these codes and descriptions refer to quantifiable variations and do not include the progressive, and difficult to measure, modifications in the regime related to land-use changes.

Except for a small set of gauging stations for which the net variation, i.e. the sum of abstractions and discharges, is assessed in order to derive the 'naturalised' flow from the gauged flow (see page 8), the record of individual abstractions, discharges and changes in storage as indicated in the code above is not held centrally.

CODE EXPLANATION

N Natural, i.e. there are no abstractions and discharges or the variation due to them is so limited that the gauged flow is considered to be within 10% of the natural flow at, or in excess of, the 95 percentile flow.

Storage or impounding reservoir. Natural river flows will be affected by water stored in a reservoir situated in, and supplied from, the catchment above the gauging station.

R Regulated river. Under certain flow conditions the river will be augmented from surface water and/or groundwater storage upstream of the gauging station.

> Public water supplies. Natural river flows are reduced by the quantity abstracted from a reservoir or by a river intake if the water is conveyed outside the gauging station's catchment area.

> Groundwater abstraction. Natural river flow may be reduced or augmented by groundwater abstraction or recharge. This category includes catchments where mine-water discharges influence the flow regime.

Effluent return. Outflows from sewage treatment works will augment the river flow if the effluents originate from outside the catchment. Industrial and agricultural abstractions. Direct industrial and agricultural abstractions from surface water and from groundwater may reduce the natural river flow.

Hydro-electric power. The river flow is regulated to suit the need for power generation; catchment to catchment diversions may also significantly affect average runoff.

Level

The level of the station: generally, the level of the gauge zero in metres above Ordnance Datum, or above Malin Head Datum for stations in Northern Ireland. Although gauge zero is usually closely related to zero discharge, it is the practice in some areas for an arbitrary height, typically one metre, to be added to the level of the lowest crest of a measuring structure to avoid the possibility of false recording of negative values by some digital recorders.

Urban Extent – UE

A measure of the extent of urban and suburban land cover in each catchment derived from the Centre of Ecology and Hydrology's Land Cover Map⁸. The Urban Extent index lies between 0 and 1 and is a composite of the urban and suburban fractions (the latter being weighted by 0.5). It corresponds to the URBEXT index developed for the Flood Estimation Handbook².

Flood Attentuation Index – FAI

All lakes and reservoirs in a catchment affect flood response to some degree. This index takes account of each on-line lake or reservoir, and its position in the catchment (those in the headwaters having a lesser effect than those close to the gauging station), to provide a measure of their overall attenuation effect. The index lies in the range 0 to 1, with the attenuation effect diminishing as the value approaches unity. In some cases, the algorithm used to calculate the index treats water bodies close to the river (e.g. floodplain gravel pits) as on-line. In all cases, the values derive from water bodies shown on the 1:50,000 Ordnance Survey maps. The FAI corresponds to the index of flood attenuation by reservoirs and lakes (FARL) developed for the Flood Estimation Handbook² – reference to which should be made for further details of its derivation.

Comment

A short commentary providing a guide to the characteristics of the station, its flow record and the catchment it commands; the catchment description is normally separated from the rest of the material by a '#' symbol. The objectives of this summary information are to assist data. users in the selection of gauging station records appropriate to their needs and to assist in the interpretation of flow data for individual gauging stations particularly where the natural flow pattern is significantly disturbed by artificial influences.

The 'Comment' is under continuing review – reflecting the availability of more information and in response to changing hydrometric conditions at the measuring site, and changing water use and land use within the catchment (date of last revisions: August 2002).

Reference to the Glossary should be made for an explanation of technical terms, abbreviations and acronyms used in the Comment section.

1996-2000 Hydrometric Statistics

Hydrometric statistics are presented both for the period of record, up to and including, 1995[•] and for each calendar year 1996 to 2000. Rainfall and runoff data for individual years are featured only where a sensibly complete annual record is held on the NRFA (see below). Period of record statistics are given only if at least five years of pre-1996 data are held on the NRFA. Peak or minimum flow data may be featured for incomplete years provided the featured extreme flows may reasonably be expected not to have been eclipsed over the period for which directly measured flows are not available. In a few cases – indicated by an 'f' flag – the pre-1996 peak flow has been taken from the Flood Estimation Handbook (see pages 9 and 12).

When comparing period of record values with those given in the Gauging Station Register it should be noted that the figures given in the latter table relate to the full period of record up to and including 2000. This allows the impact of the 1996–2000 rainfall and runoff patterns on the long term averages to be examined.

Emboldening

The period of record statistics are shown emboldened where they are based on five or more complete years of data. Emboldening is also used to highlight new maximum or minimum flows established over the 1996-2000 period.

Period

The range of years on which the period of record statistics are based. Normally the end year is 1995 but for some recently decommissioned gauging stations an earlier year may be given. Where the flow record is sensibly continuous (less than six missing days occurring in any single year) the first and last years are separated by a dash; otherwise dots are substituted.

Rainfall

The rainfall over the catchment for each year and for the period of record (see page 5 for the method of derivation). '% of pre-1996' expresses the individual yearly totals as a percentage of the period of record average. The period of record rainfall is italicised where data cover a significantly different period to that for the runoff data.

Runoff

The catchment runoff for each year and for the period of record. '% of pre-1996' expresses the individual yearly totals as a percentage of the period of record average. Generally, gauged flows have been used to compute runoff totals but for a few gauging stations – those flagged in the Gauging Station Register – runoff has been computed using naturalised flows. Runoff totals for individual years are featured only where there are five, or fewer, missing days in the year; the annual totals for incomplete years are italicised (and are based on the average flow on the days for which data are available on the NRFA).

^{*} Underlining is used to identify those flow records commencing before 1900.

Mean Flow

The POR mean flow is based on all available pre-1996 daily mean gauged flows; for the method of computation see page 9. The same conditions for completeness apply to the individual annual mean flows as for runoff.

Peak Flow / Date of Peak

The peak flow in cubic metres per second during the term indicated together with the date of occurrence, normally the water-day (which commences at 09.00 hours). Where the peak flow recurs, the date normally corresponds to the last occurrence. Generally, the peak flows are derived from the record of monthly instantaneous maximum flows stored on the NRFA. Some peak flows for years with incomplete flow data have been included (where, for example, they exceed the pre-1996 peak flow); such entries appear in italics. Where instantaneous flows are not recorded or where the peak value in an incomplete series is exceeded by the highest daily mean flow, the latter is substituted; such substitutions are indicated by a 'd' flag. A similar approach may be used where the peaks are considered to be especially unreliable (for example where local processing procedures provide for peak flows to be truncated at the maximum value of the stage-discharge relationship). As a result of particular flow measurement difficulties in the flood range, the peak flow series (on the NRFA) is often incomplete and the recorded discharges may be of limited accuracy. Reviews of high flow data in many parts of the United Kingdom are currently being undertaken. Some revised peak flows resulting from these reviews are featured in the Hydrometric Statistics Tables.

Reference to the reprint of Volume IV of the Floods Study Report⁶ or the Flood Estimation Hand-

References

- Marsh, T. J. 2002. Capitalising on river flow data to meet changing national needs – a UK perspective. Flow Measurement and Instrumentation, vol. 13, 5–6, pp 291–298.
- Institute of Hydrology. 1999. Flood Estimation Handbook, 5 volumes and associated software. Institute of Hydrology.
- Marsh, T. J. and Dale, M. 2002. The UK Floods of 2000-2001: A Hydrometeorological Appraisal. Jour. CIWEM. 16. 180-188.
- Morris D. G. and Flavin, R.W. 1990. A Digital Terrain Model for Hydrology. Proc. 4th Int. Symposium on Spatial Data Handling. Zurich, 1, 250–262.

book² should be made to check for historical flood events which may exceed the peak falling within the gauged flow record. An excellent source of additional historical river-flow (and groundwater)-information is the British Hydrology Society's Chronology of British Hydrological Events website:

http://www.dundee.ac.uk/geography/cbhe/

Note: Monthly peak flows are stored on the NRFA primarily to provide a guide to the range of flows expected at individual monitoring sites. They are not subject to the degree of quality control applied to the daily flow values and the precision of the peak flows is very variable. Caution should therefore be exercised in interpreting the featured values – particularly those associated with the widespread flooding in late-2000; some of the peak flows remain provisional, most should be regarded as estimates.

Minimum Daily Flow / Date of Minimum

The value and date of occurrence of the lowest daily (normally, a water-day) mean flow in cubic metres per second during the term indicated. In a record in which the value recurs, the date is that of the last occasion. Estimated flow values are identified by a question mark.

Percentiles: 10%, 50% and 95%

The flow in cubic metres per second which was equalled or exceeded for the specified percentage of the term indicated. See page 9 for details of the computation of the 10 and 95 percentiles; the 50 percentile is also known as the median value.

- 5. British Standards Institution, 1996. Guide to the Acquisition and Management of Meteorological Precipitation Data. BSI 743.
- Flood Studies Report. 1975. Natural Environment Research Council (5 vols). Reprinted 1993.
- Gustard, A., Bullock, A. and Dixon, J. M., 1992. Low Flow Estimation in the United Kingdom. Institute of Hydrology Report No. 108.
- Fuller, R.M., Groom, G.B. and Jones, A.R. 1994. The Land Cover Map of Great Britain: an automated classification of Landsat Thematic Mapper data. Photogrammetric Engineering and Remote Sensing, Vol. 60, No.5, pp. 553–562.

HYDROMETRIC REGISTER AND STATISTICS 1996–2000

MAPS AND TABLES

Map 1: SEPA — NORTH



Gauging Station Register

Station number	River nome	Station neme		Grid raference	Catchment area (eq km)	Station type	Period of record	Mean มณา. เมโกโลไ (กก.)	Mean ann. runoff (mm)	Mean ann. Iosa (mm)	Max, ann, runoff (mm)	Year of max.	Min. ann. runoff (mm)	Year of min.	Menn flow (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	Min. mon. Now (m's-')	Month/Year of min.	Median snn. flood (^{m's-'})	Base Flow Index	10 Percentile (m's-')	95 Percentile (m's**)
001001 002001 002002 003001-* 003005 003003 003004 003002 004003 004006	Wick Heimsdale Brora Shin Shin Shin Oykel Cassley Carson Ainess Bran	Tarroul Kitphedir Bruachrobie Lairg Inveran Easter Turnaig Rosehall Sgodachail Ainess Dosmucheran	222222222 2222222222	262549 997181 892039 581062 574974 403001 472022 490921 654695 205602	161.9 551.4 434.4 494.6 575.0 330.7 187.5 241.1 201.0 116.1	VA VA VA VA VA VA VA	1995-00 1975-00 1993-00 1953-57 1981-00 1977-00 1977-00 1974-00 1974-00 1974-00 1989-00	993 1125 1319 1525 1624 2022 2235 1952 1451 2376	598 745 929 956 251 1573 1216 1189 973 1937	395 380 390 569 1373 449 1019 763 478 439	764 958 1103 1238 394 1931 1655 1596 1304 2564	98 98 54 00 81 81 90 98 90	480 496 660 836 172 1085 847 787 671 1252	97 89 55 96 96 96 96 96 96	3.07 13.03 12.80 14.99 4.57 16.50 7.23 9.09 6.20 7.13	0.11 2.17 0.46 0.66 1.49 0.75 0.46 0.77 0.51 0.34	08/96 09/89 08/95 08/55 11/93 06/82 06/82 08/95 08/76 08/92	179.3 62.8 374.9 193.5 83.9	.38 .47 .60 .64 .23 .23 .30 .44 .28	7.9 28.9 33.0 33.4 5.5 40.2 17.0 21.0 13.7 17.9	0.12 3.10 0.83 1.89 1.64 1.06 0.72 0.95 0.84 0.50
004005 004007 004004 004001 004009 004008 005004 005003 005002 005001	Meig Blackwater Blackwater Conon Peffery Newhall Burn Glass Glass Farrar Beauty	Glenmeannie Garve Contin Moy Bridge Strattpeffer STW Newhall Bridge Fasnakyle Kerrow Wood Struy Erchless	NH H H H H H H NH NH NH NH NH NH NH NH N	286528 396617 455563 482547 492586 702652 315288 354321 390405 426405	120.5 289.0 336.7 961.8 17.3 41.0 277.5 481.8 311.3 849.5	VA VA VA VA VA VA	1986-00 1989.00 1981-00 1947.00 1995.99 1996.00 1990-00 1988-00 1988-00 1988-00 1953-62	2349 1851 1708 1855 1136 882 2382 2467 2338 2194	1828 551 574 1601 417 423 538 2159 2011 1694	521 1300 1134 254 719 459 1844 308 327 500	2414 805 818 2541 580 486 663 2739 2753 2057	90 92 90 98 98 99 90 90 54	1116 328 367 983 292 372 394 1210 1133 1294	96 96 63 96 97 96 96 96 60	6.99 5.05 6.12 48.82 0.23 0.55 4.74 32.99 19.85 45.64	0.49 1.40 2.96 0.03 0.04 0.98 7.22 5.99 7.69	06/92 07/92 07/92 07/49 08/97 09/96 08/99 05/91 08/96 08/55	312.0 316.1	.25 .36 .40 .58 .41 .45 .41 .55 .56	16.9 11.9 13.4 96.1 0.4 1.2 9.5 63.0 42.9 82.8	0.56 1,12 1.46 10.08 0.01 0.05 1.06 9.00 6.17 13.70
006006 * 006003 * 006009 006008 006001 * 006007 007004 007001 007005 007002	Alit Bhlaraidh Moriston Enrick Ness Ness Naim Findhom Divie Findhom	Invermorision Invermorision Levishie Mill of Tore Ness Castle Frm Ness-side Finhal Shenachie Dunphail Forres		377168 416169 404175 450300 639410 645427 882551 826337 005480 018583	27.5 391.0 403.1 105.9 1792.3 1839.1 313.0 415.6 165.0 781.9	CB VA VA VA VA VA VA	1953-62 1929-45 1994-00 1979-00 1935.63 1973-00 1979-00 1960-00 1977.00 1958-00	1653 2242 1449 1755 1917 1024 1264 900 1099	1009 1674 607 989 1298 1536 568 1048 538 776	644 1635 460 457 381 456 216 362 323	1226 2637 1430 1486 1829 2255 749 1450 724 1051	54 38 90 38 90 90 90 85 00	765 1168 239 531 875 917 316 628 331 484	55 33 96 96 37 96 72 89 72	0.88 20.75 7.76 3.32 73.78 89.59 5.64 13.81 2.81 19.23	0.02 1.69 0.89 0.01 8.19 12.46 0.55 1.43 0.38 2.47	08/55 06/32 11/97 08/95 08/55 08/84 08/95 08/84 08/95 08/95	16.7 313.6 49.7 370.7 372.1 239.7 358.9	.30 .45 .30 .54 .61 .45 .36 .43 .40	2.1 50.3 23.5 8.6 154.0 184.9 12.3 31.4 5.9 42.2	0.06 1.85 0.84 0.07 12.05 19.46 0.84 2.03 0.51 3.25
007006 007003 008007 008003 008008 008013 008002 008005 008005 008009 008010	Lossie Lossie Spey Spey Tromie Feshie Spey Spey Dufnain Spey	Torwinny Sheriffmills Invertruim Ruthven Bridge Tromie Bridge Feshie Bridge Kinrara Boat of Garten Balnaan Bridge Grantown		135489 194626 687962 759996 789995 849047 881082 946191 977247 033268	20.0 216.0 400.4 533.8 130.3 231.0 1011.7 1267.8 272.2 1748.8	VA VA VA VA VA VA VA	1987-00 196300 1952-00 1951-73 195200 1992-99 1951-00 1951-00 195200 1953-00	937 830 1493 1364 1435 1373 1338 1286 1012 1192	577 384 465 551 609 1083 698 727 691 679	360 446 1028 813 826 290 640 559 321 513	741 583 876 836 1045 1227 1083 1059 930 934	88 66 90 54 90 94 90 90 60	397 182 310 420 394 790 474 477 411 477	96 72 87 69 87 96 55 72 96	0.37 2.63 5.90 9.32 2.52 7.93 22.38 29.22 5.96 37.63	0.08 0.49 0.85 1.66 0.52 1.10 3.04 5.18 0.74 7.02	08/95 08/76 08/84 08/55 08/84 08/95 08/84 08/55 08/84 08/95	40.5 95.9 102.3 58.8 134.7 158.2 101.3 245.8	.45 .52 .51 .61 .48 .55 .60 .45 .59	0.7 5.0 10.0 18.1 3.8 16.0 44.5 55.4 12.9 72.6	0.10 0.71 1.56 2.73 1.20 1.69 5.84 8.58 1.08 10.61
008016 * 008011 008004 008017 * 008001 * 008015 * 008006 009006 * 009005 009004	Conglass Water Livet Avon Carron Burn Spey Fiddich Spey Deskford Burn Allt Deveron Bogie	Auchriachan Minmore Delnashaugh Dailuaine Aberlour Auchindoun Boat o Brig Cullen Cabrach Redcraig	222222222	175191 201291 186352 237415 278439 355399 318518 504667 378291 519373	40.8 104.0 542.8 15.2 2654.7 44.5 2861.2 46.5 67.0 179.0	VA VA VA VA VA CB VA	1992-95 197800 1952-00 1991-94 193874 199198 1952-00 196998 194800 1980-00	992 1014 1079 834 1094 1036 1122 797 1067 983	621 667 845 560 669 659 717 328 733 538	371 347 234 274 425 377 405 469 334 445	649 888 1120 602 840 882 946 441 1034 770	94 66 93 54 98 00 95 00	633 380 513 481 488 582 487 277 395 236	93 89 92 64 96 72 90 89 89	0.80 2.20 14.55 0.27 56.28 0.93 65.05 0.48 1.56 3.06	0.21 0.64 2.87 0.06 9.95 0.25 11.31 0.05 0.35 0.75	08/94 08/94 08/76 09/91 08/55 08/94 08/55 08/95 09/59 08/94	30.3 224.7 407.9 517.0 23.1	.56 ,64 ,56 ,44 .58 .57 .60 .47 .50 .69	1.6 4.0 27.3 0.5 105.2 1.8 122.5 1.0 3.0 5.8	0.23 0.76 4.07 16.86 0.29 19.01 0.08 0.43 0.88
009001 009003 009002 009007 * 010002 010001 * 010003 011005 * 011003 011002	Deveron Isla Deveron Forgue Burn Ugie Ythan Ythan Don Don Don	Avochie Grange Muiresk Inverkeithny Inverugie Ardlethen Ellon Mill of Newe Bridge of Alford Haughton	22222222222222222222222222222222222222	532484 494506 705498 627469 101485 924308 947303 371121 566170 756201	441.6 176.1 954.9 88.3 325.0 448.1 523.0 187.0 499.0 787.0	VA VA VA VA VA MIS VA VA	1959-00 1969-00 1960-00 199095 1971-00 1965-82 1983-00 1989-94 1973-00 1969-00	994 874 928 849 807 850 829 951 992 921	618 475 542 321 453 473 475 670 641 568	376 399 386 528 354 377 354 281 351 353	888 761 346 687 676 754 738 883 814	60 85 94 98 66 98 91 00 00	289 231 249 315 201 258 169 608 331 268	89 89 91 89 73 89 92 89 89	8.65 2.65 16.42 0.90 4.67 6.72 7.88 3.97 10.14 14.17	1.62 0.37 2.58 0.14 0.86 1.17 1.25 1.28 2.43 3.31	08/76 08/76 08/94 08/76 08/76 08/84 08/89 08/76 08/76	119.2 41.6 230.4 41.0 48.6 63.3 92.9 106.1	.59 .53 .57 .72 .64 .72 .73 .67 .68 .67	16.4 5.3 32.3 2.0 9.2 13.4 15.9 6.8 18.8 27.6	2.25 0.57 3.60 0.17 1.09 1.59 1.68 1.34 3.16 4.01
011004 011001 012007 012004 012003 012006 012005 012001 012009 012008	Urie Don Dee. Gimock Burn Dee Gairn Muick Dee Water of Dye Feugh	Pitcaple Parkhill Mar Lodge Littlemill Polhollick Invergaim Invermuick Woodend Charr Heugh Head	55500000555 50000000555	721260 887141 098895 324956 344965 353971 364947 635956 624834 687928	198.0 1273.0 289.0 30.3 690.0 150.0 110.0 1370.0 41,7 229.0	VA VA VA VA VA F VA	1989-00 1969-00 1962-00 196900 1975-00 1978-00 1978.00 1929-00 195700 1985-00	863 891 1442 997 1308 1024 1335 1125 1276 1151	458 502 1355 546 1077 818 1077 848 987 784	405 389 87 451 231 206 258 277 289 367	693 723 1702 840 1412 1129 1482 1207 1235 1063	00 85 00 00 00 00 00 88 00	194 219 1032 297 842 492 722 557 759 388	89 96 73 89 89 89 73 92 89	2.88 20.25 12.42 0.52 23.57 3.89 3.76 36.84 1.30 5.70	0.69 4.57 1.16 0.02 2.83 0.61 0.35 4.67 0.12 0.58	08/94 10/72 08/84 06/92 08/83 08/84 08/95 08/95 08/95 08/95	19.9 118.8 196.3 21.8 311.6 58.7 66.8 428.6 137.5	.75 .69 .45 .38 .50 .54 .50 .54 .38 .45	5.5 39.9 25.6 1.1 49.0 7.5 7.4 73.6 2.7 11.4	0.78 5.39 1.99 0.04 4.59 0.82 0.61 8.25 0.18 0.87
012002 013001 090003 091002 092001 093001 094001 095002 095001 096004	Dee Bervie Nevis Lochy Shiel Carron Ewe Broom Inver Strathmore	Park Inverbervie Claggan Camisky Shielfoot New Kelso Poolewe Inverbroom Little Assynt Alfnabad	2002 2 2 2 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 2 0 0 1 2 0 0 0 1 2 0 0 0 1 2 0 0 0 0	798983 826733 116742 145805 686702 942429 859803 184842 147250 453429	1844.0 123.0 76.8 1252.0 256.0 137.8 441.1 141.4 137.5 105.0	VA VA VA VA VA VA VA	1972-00 1979-00 1982-00 1980-00 1995-00 1979-00 1970-00 1985-00 1987-00	1113 906 3133 2457 3017 2824 2475 2167 2226 2628	801 535 2714 1545 2568 2515 2128 1647 1947 2237	312 371 419 912 449 309 347 520 279 391	1070 802 3722 2334 3036 3375 2961 2560 2502 2826	00 84 90 99 90 99 90 90 90 90	462 225 1833 818 2069 1728 1386 945 1452 1611	73 89 96 96 96 72 96 96 96	46.85 2.09 6.61 61.34 20.85 10.99 29.76 7.39 8.49 7.45	5.94 0.31 0.74 3.85 3.63 0.70 3.73 0.44 1.66 0.59	08/76 09/94 02/86 06/88 06/97 05/80 06/88 06/92 05/60 08/99	572.2 37.0 741.5 187.3 125.7	.53 .54 .26 .39 .60 .26 .64 .26 .64 .20	96.4 4.3 16.2 156.3 44.7 27.0 63.6 17.9 16.5 18.3	8.58 0.34 0.63 5.41 3.34 1.03 5.49 0.55 1.86 0.46

.

SEPA NORTH

16										Н	ΥI	D R (OL	O G	ICA	LD	ATA	1: 1	996	-20	000
Station number	River name	Station name		Grid reference	Catchment area (sq km)	Station type	Period of record	Mean ann. rainfall (mm)	Mean ann. runoff (กก)	Mean ann. losa (mm)) Max.ann.runoff (mm)	Year of max.	Min, ann, runoff (mm)	Year of min.	Mean flow (^{m¹} s' ¹)	Min, mon, flow {m²a-1}	Month/Year of min.	Median ann. flood (m³* ⁻¹)	Base Flow Index	10 Percentile (m³e-1)	95 Percentile (m³s ⁻¹)
096002 096003 096001 097002 106001	Naver Strathy Halladale Thurso Creed	Apigill Strathy Bridge Halladale Halkirk Creed Bridge	NC NC ND NB	713568 836652 891561 131595 403325	477.0 111.8 204.6 412.8 43.4	VA VA VA CC	1977-00 1985-00 1976-00 1972-00 199300	1475 1123 1148 1071 1588	1049 764 782 674 1304	425 359 366 397 284	1306 1020 991 920 1494	3 90 9 90 9 98 9 98 1 99	772 589 513 392 1368	96 91 89 89 00	15.86 2.71 5.08 8.82 1.79	0.52 0.14 0.19 0.31 0.14	07/92 08/95 08/63 07/76 05/98	153.6 140.1 107.1	.43 .30 .26 .46	37.0 6.5 13.1 20.6 4.4	1.22 0.19 0.27 0.58 0.15
Ну	dron	netric St	ati	istic	25				Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runaf (mm)	% af pre-1996	Mean flow (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	Peak flow (m³e.')	Date of peak	Min. dally flow (m³s⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m³e·¹)	95 Percentile (m³=-1)
001001	DA N	Wi	ck at Ta	arroul			C.A: 161.9	km²	9595	i					21.8	27/11	1.23	18/12			
F.A.R: Commen passed; I over large	nt: Velocity-a MAF probab ely to agricul	Level: m rea station with cableway by contained. Natural flor ture (arable and pasture	U r in relat v regime).	E: ively straig a. # Relativ	ht (forma vely dry a	F; lised) s and flat	AI: section. Rare t catchment	ly by. given	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	898 933 1173 1003 954		524 480 764 660 631		2.68 2.47 3.92 3.39 3.23	39.6 35.3 36.3 24.5 26.6	04/11 16/03 16/10 25/12 27/04	0.04 0.07 0.13 0.19 0.11	28/09 02/10 05/06 11/08 08/08	7.6 6.4 9.1 8.6 7.7	1.00 1.11 2.76 2.13 2.12	0.06 0.10 0.22 0.33 0.13
002001 M.A: SEF	PA-N	Heims Local No: 108	dale at S	Kilphedir ens.: 9.1			C.A: 551.4	km²	75-95	1102		732		12.80	286.9	06/10 1993	0.81	06/09 1976	28.0	7.87	3.05
F.A.R: R Commen Adequate fisheries) structure upland m several n	nt: 40m wide ly gauged to utilising 30° on Loch An- nix of hill pas medium size	Level: 17m a river section with flow bankfull. Loch Badanloci % of catchment, reduces Ruethair. Data available sture and moorland with lochs.	U vs outfla n and Ar 1 to 24% on stora some 2	E: <.01 InRuathair i Kin Nov 1 ge change 0 sq.km ol	leway or used for r 986 follo s in both ' surface	Fi i rb at iver reg wing r lochs storag	Al: 0.880 t extreme st gulation (to b ernoval of o # Typical Sc e distributed	ages. enefit ontrol ottish I over	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	980 1109 1374 1325 1310	89 101 125 120 119	616 614 958 901 928	84 84 131 123 127	10.75 10.74 16.76 15.75 16.18	176.1 104.2 164.2 197.2 202.4	10/02 27/11 20/10 06/12 10/10	1.76 2.11 2.69 3.20 3.00	27/09 03/10 07/10 05/09 07/08	24.3 23.2 37.4 36.3 35.2	5.29 6.40 11.03 9.82 9.83	2.60 2.85 3.51 3.43 3.30
002002 M.A: SEI	PA-N	Brora Local No:	at Bru S	achrobie ens.:			Ċ.A: 434.4	km²	9395	1299		980		13.50	174.6	29/09 1994	0.36	18/08 1995	35.7	6.44	0.58
F.A.R: Commer reach, Ni	nt: Velocity-a atural regime	Level: m rea station with relativel apart from a small head	U y stable lwater d	E: cobble col iversion int	ntrolatth otheShi	F. ne end in catc	AI: of the meas hment.	suring	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1057 1219 1485 1458 1386	81 94 114 112 107	662 715 1103 1087 1022	68 73 113 111 104	9.09 9.85 15.20 14.97 14.04	123.9 85.3 125.3 205.5 176.7	02/12 01/03 13/03 06/12 07/03	0.53 0.84 0.87 0.84 0.68	17/08 25/08 05/06 12/08 26/07	23.8 26.2 40.1 35.9 32.8	4.40 4.31 8.98 8.72 7.45	0.65 1.14 1.43 1.18 1.01
003003 M.A: SEF	i PA-N	Oykel Local No: 113	at Easte S	er Turnalg ens.: 12.0			C.A: 330.7	km²	7795	i 2022		1594		16.72	847.5	06/10 1978	0.35	21/08 1995	40.4	8.34	1.02
F.A.R: N Commen 1978), Ro stable, 10 rough gra	nt: 40m wide ock armourin 00% natural azing and me	Level: 16m river section. Flows fully g of the bed immediately flow regime with little lo porland with some affore:	Containe d/s (Feb ch stora station in	E: <.01 ed except in 1986) has ige. # Cato n middle re	rendered chrient is aches.	F. circur i the lo typica	AI: 0.919 nstances (e.c w flow rating al Highland n	g. Oct more nix of	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1523 1813 2329 2356 2077	75 90 115 117 103	1088 1260 1811 1721 1620	68 79 114 108 102	11.38 13.21 18.99 18.05 16.95	309.0 359.7 290.8 657.7 340.4	15/02 04/04 12/02 05/12 29/10	0.80 0.72 0.96 0.67 0.80	24/06 10/06 08/10 11/08 16/05	27.8 31.7 43.6 44.0 41.8	5.02 6.15 11.63 9.69 8.59	1.00 1.39 1.48 1.16 1.11
003004 M.A: SEF	A-N	Casa Local No: 116	ley at F S	tosehall ens.: 12.8			C.A: 187.5	km²	7995	5 2213		1223		7.27	261.3	29/09 1994	0.17	13/06 1992	17.1	3.11	0.72
F.A.R: H Commer gabion gi spillage) storage.	nt: Cableway royne contro from 14% c # Typical Hig	Level: 3m at 35m wide river section adequately gauged to the of upper catchment dive shland mix of rough graz	U on locate ankfull. rted to ing and	E: ed 400m d/ Runoff (ap Shin hydro moorland y	s of stag art from scheme with some	F. e mea compe e. No s e affore	AI: suring site, S insation flow significant su estation.	Stable s and urface	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1766 2096 2543 2698 2457	80 95 115 122 111	849 1057 1358 1384 1308	69 86 111 113 107	5.03 6.29 8.08 8.23 7.75	113.6 174.9 150.0 314.2 160.8	15/02 04/04 15/09 05/12 29/10	0.44 0.29 0.68 0.36 0.69	24/06 10/06 22/05 11/08 27/07	11.6 14.7 20.4 18.3 19.8	2.29 2.63 4.27 3.97 3.44	0.56 0.74 0.93 0.69 0.92
003002 M.A: SEF	PA-N	Carro Local No: 107	n at Sg S	odachail ens.; 13.4			C.A: 241.1	km²	7 4-9 5	1964		1189		9.09	340.3	20/09 1981	0.35	22/08 1995	20.8	4.61	0.91
F.A.R: H Commer control ne about 80 Valley hy tams but	nt: River sec ecessitating % of catchm dro scheme, no significat	Level: 71m tion, well gauged to bank revised rating from time t ent; remainder of headwa # Much of this remote h nt storage.	U full, Gra o time, (aters are fighland	E: <.01 ivel bed wit Computed diverted a catchmen	th problem low flows t low and t is above	F ms of s are na I mediu 8 600m	AI: 0.978 stability in low atural in relat um flows to C n with a few l	v flow íon to Conon hilltop	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1405 1665 2246 2197 1979	72 85 114 112 101	789 903 1404 1402 1458	66 76 118 118 122	6.02 6.90 10.73 10.72 11.12	152.6 165.3 147.4 203.1 215.5	15/02 01/07 16/10 29/11 06/03	0.73 0.96 1.24 0.64 0.91	19/08 10/06 08/10 11/08 24/07	12.4 15.6 25.4 25.0 27.5	3.34 3.32 5.86 5.99 5.45	0.91 1.22 1.65 0.87 1.29
004003 M.A: SEF	B PA-N	Air Local No: 106	ess at / S	Alness ens.: 10.1			C.A: 201.0	km²	74-95	1445		956		6.09	248.8	06/10 1993	0.32	05/09 1976	13.2	3.82	0.77
F.A.R: SI Commer flows. Ad Morie, th benefit fis	k ht: 20m wide lequately ga rough which sheries). # N	Level: 12m fully contained river sect uged to MAF but upgrad 45% of catchment drain lost of the catchment is t	U ion with ing of hi ns, was ypically	E: <.01 stable bou igh flow ra constructe Highland a	ider cont ting antic id in 197 ind rough	Fi rol, Dif ipated. 9 for r 1 grazii	AI: 0.908 ficulties in c/i . Barrage on iver regulationg.	m kow Loch on (to	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1056 1312 1776 1678 1607	73 91 123 116 111	680 806 1304 1179 1288	71 84 136 123 135	4.32 5.14 8.31 7.51 8.18	52.1 109.1 102.7 85.6 78.7	06/11 01/07 16/10 30/11 07/01	0.38 0.91 0.97 0.94 1.16	24/09 03/11 10/07 04/09 27/07	9.1 11.7 17.9 17.5 18.3	2.56 2.73 5.05 5.09 4.82	0.91 1.19 1.43 1.25 1.45
004006 M.A: SEE) PA-N	Bran Local No:	at Dosn S	ens.:			C.A: 116.1	km²	8995	5 2436		2033		7.48	117.6	01/01 1992	0.14	18/08 1995	18.5	3.82	0.43

15186212566219838115727726081072144105293612122861122435100187392

 4.61
 76.8

 5.79
 86.0

 7.89
 77.6

 8.42
 111.4

 6.88
 86.4

03/11 0.32 01/03 0.41 12/02 0.44 05/12 0.29 01/01 0.35

23/09 10/06 07/10 11/08 27/07

10.92.280.6413.92.720.5518.04.890.9520.15.410.6918.93.220.45

 004006
 Bran at Dosmucheran
 C.A.'116.1 km²

 M.A: SEPA-N
 Local No:
 Sens.:

 F.A.R: N
 Lavel: 119m
 UE:

 Comment: Velocity-area station with gravel control. Cableway capacity considerably exceeds bankfull. Substantial storage in Loch Croisg (commands 45% of catchment); lochans also common between 300-400 m, but flow regime is responsive and natural. # Very wet, rugged. Highland catchment developed mainly on Moinian metamorphics. Moorland and rough grazing predominate, little afforestation; Achnasheen is the only significant settlement.

.

					Period	Rainfail (mm)	% of pre-1998	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	Peak flow (^{m¹e⁻¹)}	Date of peak	Min. delly flow (^{m*e*1})	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m ³ a ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m ² a ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m ³ e ⁻¹)
004005 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No: 124	Meig at G	ilenmeannie Sens.:	C.A: 120.5 km B/full: 150.0m³s"	r² 86-95	2389		1873		7.16	222.2	16/01 1993	0.15	11/08 1995	17. 2	3.55	0.52
F.A.R: N Comment: 25m wide Adequately gauged to influences thereby pro Loch Beannacharain	Level: 121m e river section w bankfull, Levels oviding a useful i through which 70	hich overlop may drop be ndication of r % of catchm	UE: us the lb during e ow tapping pipe in natural runoff. Only ent drains. # Typic	FAI: xtreme floods (rb is erodin extreme droughts. No artific y significant surface storage al Scottish upland catchine	g). 1996 ial 1997 in 1998 nt. 1999 2000	1513 2064 2679 2756 2338	63 86 112 115 98	1120 1483 2091 2103 1912	60 79 112 112 102	4.27 5.67 7.99 8.04 7.28	71.2 111.4 73.3 127.9 97.4	02/11 01/03 11/02 05/12 01/01	0.31 0.47 0.54 0.33 0.47	24/09 22/07 07/10 11/08 26/07	10.6 13.1 19.5 19.8 18.7	2.03 2.46 4.73 4.19 3.82	0.51 0.59 0.82 0.58 0.68
004004 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No: 120	Blackwat	er at Contin Sens.: 11.3	C.A: 336.7 km	² 81-95	1713		584		6.24	192.8	06/02 1989	0.75	13/12 1989	13.7	3.28	1.42
F.A.R: H Comment: 50m wide flows. Runoff from 50 Carron amounting to 2 Loch Luichart. Storay # Typical Highland mi	Level: 20m river section with % of natural cate 20% of natural cate 20% of natural cate ges in Loch Vai is of rough grazin	h unstable gr hment, along chment, byp ch and Loch g and moork	UE: avel control requir) with interbasin tra ass station for pow I Glascamoch cor and with some affic	FAI: ing regular recalibration at k ansfers from rivers Broom a re generation and discharge trolled for power generatio restation in middle reaches.	bw 1996 nd 1997 to 1998 on. 1999 2000	1175 1494 1961 1984 1836	69 87 114 116 107	368 435 598 600 720	63 74 102 103 123	3.92 4.64 6.39 6.40 7.67	37.7 61.9 76.6 89.5 100.4	02/12 01/03 16/10 06/12 06/03	1.52 1.25 1.15 1.28 1.42	25/01 10/01 28/09 28/08 02/10	7.3 8.7 13.8 13.5 18.9	2.44 2.82 3.99 3.81 3.50	1.67 1.59 1.62 1.51 1.72
004001 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No: 110	Conon at	Moy Bridge Sens.: 5.1	C.A: 961.8 km	² 4795	1854		1584		`48.30	1076.0	17/12 1966	0.57	24/09 1956	93.1	40.04	9.61
Comment: 80m wide resited 20m u/s in Jai 20% by transfers fro Extensive volumes of after 1960). Hydrogra catchment.	Ever. form e-river section. B n 1976, early flow om the Orrin, Ev surface storage aph dominated by	ypassing, via rs less reliab we, Broom a controlled fo r influence o	a right floodbank, le. Gauged to ban and Carron catch r power generatio f Torr Achilty pow	rAL 0.164 during extreme flows. Stati kfull. Catchment enhanced ments for power generation n (but no further developme er station. # Typical Highla	on 1996 by 1997 xn. 1998 xt 1999 nd 2000	1270 1648 2139 2245 1966	69 89 115 121 106	1102 1419 2087 2130 1996	70 90 132 134 126	33.52 43.29 63.64 64.96 60.70	228.4 351.5 190.8 411.1 322.4	06/11 01/03 11/02 06/12 07/03	12.30 12.97 11.37 11.21 11.64	11/05 03/08 04/06 25/06 10/05	73.1 91.5 110.5 115.3 131.2	18.63 32.35 54.29 55.45 51.49	13.32 14.02 13.48 15.98 12.70
005003 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No:	Glass at K	errow Wood Sens.:	C.A: 481.8 km	² 8895	2594		2269		34.66	320.8	05/02 1990	6.29	20/06 1989	67.0	27.28	9.23
F.A.R: H Comment: Velocity- extensive floodplain of generation (station d/) transfers via two tun developed mostly on I substantial afforestation	Level: 53m area station, 50 on (b. Very comp s of Fasnaklye Pr nels. But no net Moinian Series m on below 400m.	n wide, with lex flow regi ower Station) import or e etamorphics	UE: n gravel control. I me: substantial lo compensation flo kport of water. # . Predominately m	FAI: Flows >200 m ³ s ⁻¹ inunda ch storage exploited for HE ws from Loch Mullardoch au Rugged, Highland catchme oorland and rough grazing b	te 1996 EP 1997 nd 1998 ent 1999 out 2000	1608 2104 2576 2698 2324	62 81 99 104 90	1213 1731 2238 2525 2342	53 76 99 111 103	18.49 26.45 34.19 38.58 35.68	157.7 302.6 163.7 226.4 194.6	06/11 01/03 11/02 29/11 05/01	6.07 6.88 7.09 5.63 7.34	21/07 28/06 14/09 26/06 20/07	37.4 45.1 59.7 66.2 71.3	13.52 20.35 31.78 36.26 28.18	6.61 10.35 10.96 7.57 9.27
005002 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No: 127	Farrar	at Struy Sens.:	C.A: 311.3 km	² 8695	2393		2087		20.60	216.1	05/03 1990	4.44	04/07 1995	42.7	14.74	6.25
F.A.R: Comment: Velocity-a releases from Loch I station <1.5km u/s. S the catchment. # Typ	Level: 51m rea station. Flows Beannacharain a Substantial HEP : ical Scottish upla	s well contair nd flow regi storage in Lo nd catchmer	UE: led at all stages. L me is heavily infli ch Monar but no i ht with some affore	FAI: ow flows reflect compensatii uenced by operation of HE mport/export of water to/fro estation in lower reaches.	on 1996 P 1997 m 1998 1999 2000	1571 2087 2565 2627 2296	66 87 107 110 96	1136 1466 2280 2243 2255	54 70 109 107 108	11.18 14.47 22.51 22.14 22.20	83.5 159.3 111.2 191.1 70.6d	06/11 01/03 11/02 05/12 07/01	5.38 5.89 6.06 5.96 5.82	24/01 21/04 07/07 02/08 28/06	22.9 27.4 48.4 42.8 49.1	7.21 9.67 16.85 17.66 15.54	5.65 6.13 6.88 6.10 6.21
006008 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No: 117	Enrick at	Mill of Tore Sens.:	C.A: 105.9 km	² 7995	1468		985		3.31	83.6	16/01 1993	>0.00	23/08 1995	8.5	1.52	0.06
F.A.R: N Comment: 15m wid established, stable rai through Loch Meiklie flows below station; afforestation (approx.	Level: 109m le river section. ting up to bankfut (1 sq.km). Flows # Typical upland 25% of catchme	Prior to 19 Computed recede to un catchment nt) especially	UE: <.01 91, bypassing or flows 100% natur expected low leve (rough grazing ar y around Loch Me	FAI: 0.852 n rb at extreme flows. W. al but whole catchment drai ls possibly due to sub-surfar id moorland) with increasio klie.	ell 1996 ns 1997 ce 1998 ng 1999 2000	897 1293 1551 1704 1448	61 88 106 116 99	533 885 1134 1310 1150	54 90 115 133 117	1.78 2.97 3.81 4.40 3.85	30.1 105.3 53.6 69.4 . 63.5	06/11 01/03 17/10 23/12 05/01	0.03 0.11 0.15 0.05 0.09	06/08 09/08 08/10 09/08 24/07	4.6 6.3 9.8 11.9 10.8	0.79 1.24 2.05 1.82 1.68	0.04 0.20 0.24 0.09 0.20
006007 M.A: SEPA-N F.A.R: H	Local No: 105 Level: 7m	Nes s at	Ness-side Sens.: 6.3 VE: <.01	C.A: 1839.1 kr FAI: 0.871	n ² 73-95	1924		1542		89.91	801.2	07/02 1989	7.86	03/07 1977	182.7	66.74	19.55
Comment: 80m wide alteration of stop-log recorded flow. HEP s catchment. Caledonia damped by influence	fully contained r configuration of chemes on Gam in Canal lockage of Loch Ness. #	iver section. n weir which /, Moriston a s bypass sta Large SW/N	Frequent recalibra forms control. I ind Foyers tributan tion but, overall, s E trending Highlar	ation of low flow rating due Fully calibrated to maximu ies utilise runoff from 56% small net impact. Hydrograp id catchment.	to 1996 m 1997 of 1998 oh 1999 2000	1278 1740 2088 2306 2035	66 90 109 120 106	919 1347 1602 1917 1769	60 87 104 124 114	53.47 78.56 93.44 111.81 102.87	347.7 548.2 359.5 471.0 483.2	06/11 02/03 12/02 30/11 07/01	9.41 19.63 18.98 19.89 9.66	22/09 05/10 07/10 06/05 04/07	110.3 149.3 189.1 238.5 237.8	33.35 51.07 77.90 76.58 77.02	14.93 26.15 20.35 24.93 18.48
007004 M.A: SEPA-N F A R' PN	Local No: 114 Level: 7m	Nairn a	at Firhall Sens.: 9.3	C.A: 313.0 km	² 79-95	1022		574		5.70	270.4	06/10 1993	0.47	21/08 1995	12.6	3.36	0.82
Comment: 20m wide bankfull and a rock pr regime; only net abstr upper catchment drain to Jan 1976. # Catchr which is cultivated.	e river section wi rotection to a d/s action is PWS foi is. No other signifi- ment comprises f	th overbank pipeline prov r Inverness fr icant surface hill pastures a	flow at extreme I vides a stable low rom Loch Duntelch storage. Daily levi and peat moorland	evels. Adequately gauged flow control. Sensibly natur laig through which only 7% el observations from Apr 197 I except for 20% of d/s read	to 1996 al 1997 of 1998 74 1999 ch 2000	727 940 1139 1153 1144	71 92 111 113 112	317 495 614 641 676	55 86 107 112 118	3.13 4.91 6.10 6.36 6.69	44.8 328.3 83.9 103.9 168.2	06/11 01/07 14/11 06/06 26/04	0.62 0.90 1.20 0.86 0.88	19/08 03/10 08/10 05/09 22/07	6.5 9.7 12.3 12.9 14.1	1.82 2.47 4.16 4.15 3.85	0.68 0.98 1.46 1.06 1.13
007001 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No: 102	Findhorn a	t Shenachie Sens.: 15.3	C.A: 415.6 km ²	² 6095	1263		1040		13.70	577.7	21/09 1981	1.08	27/08 1984	31.1	7.95	2.03
F.A.R: N Comment: 50m wide: to 3.9m. Liable to ext cableway 500m d/s of blanket peat over long	Level: 252m river section adec remely rapid rise f present site. 10 h, narrow, steep-s	uately gauge s in level. Pr 0% natural m ided catchm	UE: <.01 ed to bankfull, Flow rior to Jan 1978, s unoff with minimal ent which is nested	FAI: 0.992 contained under cableway u station tocated 700m u/s ar surface storage. # Extensiv d within that of station 7002.	up 1996 nd 1997 ve 1998 1999 2000	895 1099 1412 1443 1460	71 87 112 114 116	766 931 1226 1236 1386	74 90 118 119 133	10.06 12.28 16.15 16.29 18.22	258.7 274.4 202.8 326.6 317.8	06/11 17/02 16/10 30/11 08/11	1.37 2.16 2.54 1.80 1.50	20/07 12/08 05/10 05/09 23/07	22.7 26.8 36.6 38.8 44.3	5.93 6.22 10.49 9.70 10.01	1.55 2.36 3.05 2.09 2.10
007005 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No: 122	Divle at	Dunphail Sens.: 13.3	C.A: 165.0 km ²	2 7795	893		532		2.78	118.7	24/09 1984	0.32	21/08 1995	5.9	1.59	0.49
Comment: 15m wide f flows following flood ev drains through Lochin mainly peat moortand.	Level: 117m fully contained rive rents. Calibrated t dorb (surface are	er section. Ur o 60 m ³ s ⁻¹ . (ea: 2.3 sq.kr	ustable gravel contr Somputed flows 10 n) the only signific	FAI: ol requires recalibration of lo 0% natural. 20% of catchme cant storage. # Catchment	w 1996 nt 1997 is 1998 1999 2000	683 866 1009 949 1048	76 97 113 106 117	390 455 645 591 698	73 86 121 111 131	2.03 2.38 3.37 3.09 3.64	51.5 1 38.8 45.5 59.0 113.5	04/12 01/07 16/10 28/11 08/11	0.40 0.54 0.72 0.56 0.59	20/07 09/10 24/05 11/08 22/07	4.3 4.9 6.7 6.1 7.2	1.12 1.25 2.26 1.93 2.05	0.48 0.57 0.86 0.63 0.70
007002 M.A: SEPA-N F A R: N	Local No: 101	Findhorn	at Forres Sens.: 5.7	C.A: 781.9 km ²	5895	1099		766		19.00		17/08 1970	1.75	23/08 1976	41.8	11.53	3.23
Comment: 50m wide of low flow rating. Fic High flow gauging is o floods, sig. overestima catchment with minin catchment drains the	river section in m niver section in m www.contained ur difficult – high ve ttion likely; magni hal surface stora Monadhliath Mou	obile gravel ider cablewa locities and : tude of the A ige. # Other intains; exter	reach which neces y up to 3.8m. Ad substantial rating ugust 1970 flood i than a narrow a nsive blanket peat	equately gauged to bankfu equately gauged to bankfu extrapolation needed for rai s under review. 100% natur igricultural coastal plain th cover.	n 1996 II. 1997 re 1998 al 1999 re 2000	794 1003 1240 1232 1274	72 91 113 112 116	550 729 961 929 1054	72 95 125 121 138	13.59 18.07 23.83 23.03 26.07	304.2 514.4 314.7 418.3 750.3	09/08 01/07 17/10 30/11 08/11	2.45 3.47 4.47 3.18 2.79	18/08 03/10 08/10 05/09 23/07	30.0 38.6 51.1 52.2 57.5	7.64 9.38 16.07 14.48 14.21	2.70 3.85 5.34 3.55 3.74

17

HYDROLOGICAL DATA: 1996-2000

					Pariod	Rainfail (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m³s⁻¹)	Peak flow (m ³ s ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m ¹ = ¹)	50 Percentile (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m³s ⁻¹)
007006 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No:	Lossie at	Torwinny Sens.: 15.2	C.A: 20.0 km ²	8795	892		580		0.37	26.4	28/10 1990	0.07	21/08 1995	0.7	0.20	0.10
F.A.R: N Comment: Velocity-are calibration. Natural reg catchment; some rough superficial cover.	Level: 199m ea station with ime, no abstra moortand rem	gabion contro ctions. # Sma nains in heady '	UE: I (sloping). Curved ap all, heavily forested (vaters; developed on	FAI: oproach but good low flow 1989: about 75%) upland metamorphics with some	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	809 928 1109 1025 1189	91 104 124 115 133	399 503 658 593 731	69 87 113 102 126	0.25 0.32 0.42 0.38 0.46	6.9 31.7 8.6 8.1 15.0	04/12 01/07 13/07 06/06 08/11	0.08 0.11 0.12 0.11 0.11	21/07 27/04 02/04 03/08 22/07	0.5 0.5 0.7 0.7 0.8	0.16 0.16 0.26 0.24 0.25	0.09 0.12 0.13 0.12 0.13
007003 M.A. SEPA-N	Local No:	Lossie at :	Sheriffmills Sens.: 10.6	C.A: 216.0 km ² B/full: 35.7m ³ s ⁻¹	6395	822		376		2.58	89.8	17/08 1970	0.36	26/08 1976	4.9	1.60	0.69
F.A.R: P Comment: Cableway r moved 150m u/s in Sej station. Glenlatterach F (approx. 20% of the 95' Moorland, substantial a	Level: 18m rated. The main o 1978. Levels Res. provides : % exceedance ifforestation in	n control is a recorded from supply for Elg flow). # Schis headwaters a	UE: <.01 long and insensitive s a 20/06/58, flows from in. Abstraction has n ts, gneisses and valle nd arable in valley bo	FAI: 0.989 stone weir 350m d/s. Site n 01/10/63. Flood warning moderate impact on flows y gravels with some ORS. ttoms.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	684 859 983 887 1020	83 105 120 108 124	277 393 507 428 571	74 105 135 114 152	1.89 2.69 3.47 2.93 3.90	46.1 102.4 36.9 51.2 78.4	04/12 02/07 14/11 06/06 26/04	0.62 0.89 1.16 0.78 1.02	19/08 09/10 09/07 05/09 22/07	3.5 4.4 6.1 5.4 7.1	1.31 1.63 2.41 1.92 2.33	0.68 0.95 1.29 0.89 1.15
008013 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No:	Feshie at F	ashie Bridge Sens.: 8.9	C.A: 231.0 km ²	9295	1391		1165		8.54	173.6	16/01 1993	0.88	21/08 1995	17.5	5.53	1.42
F.A.R: N Comment: Velocity-are movement in extreme s operated between 1951 of Grampian Mountain moorland catchment, p	Level: 232m a station with a pates. All flows -1975 (no flow is overlain with astoral with so	a boulder cont s contained. C data publishe glacial mate me forestry in	UE: ableway rated. Naturi d) 0.5km u/s. # Geolog arial and granite of 0 lower reaches.	FAI: but liable to considerable al flow regime. Old station gy: Moinian metamorphics Caimgorms. Mountainous	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1090 1298 1499 1511 1450	78 93 108 109 104	792 996 1137 1164	68 85 98 100	5.79 7.29 8.33 8.53	110.3 195.6 109.7 222.5	08/01 17/02 30/12 23/12	1.30 1.80 2.21 1.59	06/08 03/01 08/10 04/09	12.5 15.2 15.7 17.1	3.69 3.67 6.07 5.40	1.45 1.94 3.04 1.88
008002 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No:	Spey at	Kinrara Sens.: 7.3	C.A: 1011.7 km ² B/full: 161.2m ³ s ⁻¹	5195	1332		688		22.08	317.0	18/12 1966	2.42?	22/08 1984	43.5	15.59	5.82
F.A.R: H Comment: Cableway r of confluence with R. F re-laid Mar 1987, 380 s export. # Moinian metal grazing.	Level: 210m ated to bankful eshie. Well inle q.km develope morphic and gra	II, natural cont It pipes fractur d for hydro-po anites, High m	UE: <.01 rol; frequent rating ch red in early 1980s (giv wer with diversions ar rountain and moorland	FAI: 0.938 hanges. Station is 5km d/s ing some data problems), nd storage; substantial net d, some forestry and valley	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1025 1289 1537 1620 1500	77 97 115 122 113	529 708 837 916 923	77 103 122 133 134	16.92 22.70 26.85 29.39 29.53	109.7 217.5 125.2 213.6 201.3	06/11 02/03 30/12 30/11 07/03	3.86 4.76 7.19 5.89 5.12	24/09 26/08 08/10 05/09 25/07	36.7 45.8 53.1 59.8 67.9	11.44 13.20 21.09 19.58 17.12	4.47 5.79 8.66 6.21 6.45
008005 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No:	Spey at Bo	at of Garten Sens.: 6.0	C.A: 1267.8 km ² 8/full: 402.0m ³ s ⁻¹	5195	1276		722		29.02	373.6	18/12 1966	4.08	06/09 1976	54.7	21.80	8.65
F.A.R: H Comment: Cableway developed for hydro-p Moinian metamorphics.	Level: 197m rated with nat ower with dive High mountain	ural control, rsions and st I, moorland, si	UE: <.01 relatively frequent ra orage; substantial ne ome forestry, pastoral	FAI: 0.929 ting changes. 380 sq.km at export. # Granites and and some arable farming.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1012 1256 1500 1564 1460	79 - 98 118 123 114	533 , 671 805 885 966	74 93 111 123 134	21.38 26.98 32.38 35.57 38.74	126.1 257.3 127.1 229.5 210.2	06/11 02/03 14/11 01/12 08/03	5.40 7.50 8.39 7.94 7.35	24/09 12/08 25/05 11/08 06/07	44.1 50.1 64.8 70.6 89.5	15.67 16.16 25.39 24.78 24.92	6.28 8.24 11.58 9.20 9.36
008009 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No:	Dulnain at B	alnaan Bridge Sens.: 8.8	C.A: 272.2 km ² B/full: 100.0m ³ s ⁻¹	5295	1008		686		5.92	230.0	17/08 1970	0.60	21/08 1995	12.8	3.69	1.09
F.A.R: N Comment: Cableway r good low flow calibrati Moinian metamorphic.	Level: 224m ated with natur on. Natural reg Highland, moo	al control, sul ime, not affec rland and pas	UE: <.01 bject to relatively freq ted by diversions or tora).	FAI: 0.997 uent change but generally storages. # Granites and	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	756 919 1164 1197 1199	75 91 115 119 119	453 599 813 879 933	66 87 119 128 136	3.90 5.17 7.01 7.59 8.03	81.5 128.1 92.0 135.9 149.2	06/11 01/03 17/10 30/11 08/11	0.65 1.06 1.55 1.15 1.00	19/08 04/10 10/07 05/09 23/07	8.4 10.5 14.9 17.0 17.8	2.34 2.67 4.62 4.63 4.39	0.77 1.19 1.75 1.26 1.21
008010 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No:	Spey at	Grantown Sens.: 5.9	C.A: 1748.8 km ² B/full: 520.0m ³ s ⁻¹	5395	1183		675		37.44	527.6	06/02 1990	6.01	07/09 1976	71.9	28.31	10.59
Comment: Cableway I and cableway to a uni power with diversions Mountain, high moortai	rated with natu ted site (NJ03 and storage; s nd, forestry, pa	rai controi. Im 3268) in mid- ignificant net storal and ara	proved data quality fi 1987. 22% of catchn export. # Granites a ible in valley bottoms	nni 0.347 ollowing move of recorder nent developed for hydro- ind Moinian metamorphic.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	944 1157 1396 1448 1379	80 98 118 122 117	478 603 747 830 883	71 - 89 111 123 131	26.45 33.45 41.42 46.04 48.84	182.1 302.1 186.2 297.7 319.9	06/11 02/03 17/10 30/11 08/11	7.05 9.43 12.66 10.40 10.73	24/09 26/08 08/10 05/09 07/07	53.6 64.5 82.0 89.2 105.1	19.40 20.58 33.43 33.83 33.02	7.84 10.24 14.89 11.64 12.89
008011 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No:	Livet at	Minmore Sens.: 9.5	C.A: 104.0 km ² B/full: 45.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAL: 1.000	7895	999		649		2.14	60.2	13/10 1982 -	0.53	14/12 1989	3.9	1.62	0.74
Comment: Velocity-and calibration. Tapping p significant abstractions complex basement geo	ea station with ipe shortened s. # Upland ci blogy - metamo	boulder/rubble in 1986 to a atchment: Mo orphics and ig	a control (remnant of a avoid velocity drawd iorland with some al neous; some superfic	an old weir); good low flow lown. Natural regime, no fforestation developed on jal cover.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	874 952 1165 1063 1252	87 95 117 106 125	607 586 847 668 891	94 90 131 103 137	2.00 1.93 2.79 2.20 2.93	26.4 42.7 29.5 25.1 43.2	04/12 01/07 04/04 20/09 08/11	0.67 0.78 1.02 0.75 0.76	18/08 05/10 06/03 05/09 06/08	3.6 .3.5 4.9 3.9 5.1	1.62 1.43 2.05 1.75 2.10	0.72 0.81 1.30 0.86 0.88
008004 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No:	Avon at D	einashaugh Sens.: 4.9	C.A: 542.8 km ² B/full: 364.5m ³ s ⁻¹	5295	1072		840		14.45	525.0	17/08 1970	2.13	27/08 1976	27,1	10.42	4.02
Comment: Velocity-ar recorded 1981-84 (fel hydrometric performar underestimated, # Gn catchment draining N arable farming in valles	Eevel, room ea station with I below inlet p ice following s elsses and me side of highest y bottom.	cableway, na ipe). Rating I tation reconsi atamorphosed t Cairngorm p	tural control; unstable liable to change afte truction (1985). Catcl I tst with some igner eaks with moorland i	a rating. Lowest levels not ir major floods. Improved hment rainfall is probably ous, some s'st. Mountain and rough grazing; a little	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	967 1048 1236 1163 1343	90 98 115 108 125	718 772 1032 .853 1120	85 92 123 102 133	12.32 13.29 17.76 14.68 19.22	142.7 300.6 185.3 211.5 231.5	08/01 01/07 14/11 28/11 26/04	2.95 4.26 7.51 3.84 4.46	18/08 05/10 24/05 05/09 06/08	22.9 23.8 31.2 28.0 38.4	9.56 9.38 13.32 10.66 13.17	3.50 4.62 8.45 4.52 5.30
008015 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No:	Fiddich at	Auchindoun Sens.: 10.6	C.A: 44.5 km ²	9195	1009		627		0.88	30 .1	09/09 1995	0.23	20/07 1992	1.7	0.66	0.26
F.A.K: N Comment: Velocity-an by children building g otherwise by wading. N gauge 700m d/s record plateau and drains an	Level: 180m ea station on de ravel dams. A Nell is erected is from Feb 19 area of mixed	eep, wide pool . new d/s brid in channel be 74 - Jun 1990 metamorphic	UE: I. Rock bar provides o dge provides high fk shind a tree and rests . # The Fiddich rises i geology. Mixed farmi	FAI: ontrol but is interfered with ow gauging opportunities, s on bedrock. Former post in hills to NE of Caimgorm ng and forestry.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	929 987 1283 1136 1302	92 98 127 113 129	583 882 668	93 141 107	0.82 1.25 0.94	15.8 33.4 22.9 16.0	04/12 01/07 04/04 26/11	0.27 0.29 0.47 0.31 0.34	18/08 08/10 25/02 05/09 06/08	1.4 2.2 1.9	0.60 0.89 0.69	0.29 0.55 0.34
008006 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No:	Spey at E	Sens.: 3.9	C.A: 2861.2 km ² B/full: 730.8m ³ s ⁻¹	5295	1116		712		64.58	1675.0	17/08 1970	9.31	16/08 1955	121.1	50.01	18.94
Comment: Lowest sta natural control, extrem diversions and storage; metamorphics. Geolog northern slopes of Cair	tion currently on the floods bypas (limited net imp y: Dalradian with ngorms), moor	perating on the ss station on act on annual th a little Old F land, hill grazi	the Spey. Cableway ra Ib. 380 sq.km develor runoff (small loss). # N Red Sandstone. Land Ing, arable and forestr	ted 65m wide section with sped for hydro-power with fainly granites and Moinian use: mountain (includes ali ty.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	908 1072 1298 1296 1321	81 96 116 116 118	562 635 812 853 949	79 89 114 120 133	50.83 57.61 73.70 77.39 85.86	325.8 704.9 363.2 474.4 680.2	04/12 01/07 14/11 28/11 08/11	13.84 16.22 25.25 19.01 22.36	26/09 05/10 25/05 05/09 26/07	98.4 108.8 133.3 148.5 166.2	39.21 38.32 60.34 61.83 64.14	15.73 18.76 30.32 21.76 26.40

	Perlod	Rainfail (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mesn flow (m³e*')	Peak flow (m³e*')	Date of peak	Min, daily flow (^{m1} a ¹¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentlle (m ¹ e ¹³)	50 Percentile (^{m²} a'¹)	95 Percentile (m²∎⁺¹)
009005 Ath Deveron at Cabrach C.A: 67.0 km² M.A: SEPA-N Local No: Sens.: 4.4 B/full: 18.0m³s ⁻¹	4895	1054		727		1.54	43.2	07/09 1995	0.25	08/10 1959	3.0	0.95	0.43
FALCN Level: 288m UE: FAI Comment: Compound broad-crested wei (no divide piers). C/m rating from 1984, earlier record is of inconsistent quality - faulty recorder operation. Overspill onto to floodplain during high flows. Natural regime. # Rugged lopography. Mostly moortand developed on complex basement geology - principally metamorphics.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	928 1032 1295 1179 1352	88 98 123 112 128	662 610 945 724 1036	91 84 130 100 143	1.40 1.30 2.01 1.54 2.20	24.9 30.7 35.5 27.4 35.7	15/02 01/07 04/04 20/09 26/04	0.36 0.39 0.66 0.39 0.47	27/09 31/10 09/07 05/09 06/08	2.7 2.6 3.6 3.1 4.3	0.91 0.77 1.26 1.01 1.31	0.38 0.45 0.75 0.44 0.60
009004 Bogle at Redcraig C.A: 179.0 km² M.A: SEPA-N Local No: Sens.: 7.2 B/tdl: 50.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A. P: N Level: 100m UE < 01	8095	959		518		2.94	60.0	11/09 1995	0.67	22/08 1994	5.7	2.14	0.87
Comment: Velocity-area station with broken rubble weir control; stable. Cableway rated. Good low flow calbration. Gaugeboard read record for d/s site, 1973-81. Natural regime, no abstractions. # Geology: Dalradian metamorphics but large areas of ORS. Some high moorland, pastoral and arable in valleys.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	867 939 1144 1089 1258	90 98 119 114 131	470 434 748 578 772	91 84 144 112 149	2.66 2.46 4.25 3.28 4.37	27.0 32.2 59.8 34.7 7 9.6	10/02 01/07 04/04 24/12 26/04	0.73 1.00 1.73 1.02 1.30	30/09 31/10 09/07 05/09 06/08	5.2 4,4 7.0 6.0 7.8	1.92 1.83 3.35 2.55 2.98	0.78 1.08 2.01 1.16 1.45
009001 Deveron at Avochie C.A: 441.6 km² M.A: SEPA-N Local No: Sens.: 9.0 B/tull: 350.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A. R: N Level: 80m UE: < 0.1	5995	982		612		8.57	236.5	17/08 1970	1.29	26/08 1976	16.3	5.97	2.22
Comment: Cableway rated with stable rubble weir, rather insensitive. Inlet pipes, periodically silted in early 1980s, extended in Mar 1985. No artificial influences on flow. # Complex granites and basic intrusives with Dalradian metamorphics. Moorland, pastoral and arable in valley. Huntly is the only substantial settlement.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	895 962 1196 1105 1261	91 98 122 113 128	525 495 785 621 889	86 81 128 101 145	7.33 6.93 11.00 8.69 12.41	99.7 148.3 150.3 104.9 220.4	04/12 01/07 04/04 28/11 26/04	1.93 2.14 4.08 2.17 2.69	28/09 08/10 09/07 05/09 06/08	14.1 12.4 18.4 16.6 22.0	5.29 4.80 8.26 6.29 8.29	2.08 2.31 4.74 2.56 3.31
009003 Isla at Grange C.A: 176.1 km² M.A: SEPA-N Local No: Sens.: 8.4 Bjfull: 35.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: N Level: 92m UE: <.01	6995	853		459		2.56	94.1	28/10 1990	0.28	26/08 1976	5.2	1.61	0.56
Comment: Velocity-area station with cableway. Problems with weed growth pror to 1969. Former NERPB operated the station since 1978. Sensibly natural regime. # Compact, upland catchment. Mainly Moinian metamorphic, small amounts of intrusive basic. Some forestry, mainly pastoral and arable.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	816 886 1060 978 1128	96 104 124 115 132	421 435 647 553 745	92 95 141 120 162,	2.35 2.43 3.61 3.09 4.15	64.6 92.1 56.6 79.6 78.4	04/12 01/07 13/07 24/12 27/05	0.49 0.60 0.93 0.57 0.87	18/08 04/10 22/06 05/09 06/08	4.9 4.4 6.3 6.0 6.6	1.39 1.50 2.47 1.92 2.54	0.54 0.69 1.14 0.70 1.02
009002 Deveron at Muiresk C.A: 954.9 km² M.A: SEPA-N Local No: Sens.: 6.6 B/full: 261.9m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: N Level: 25m UE: <.01	6095	916		533		16.13	506.6	06/05 1968	2.06	27/08 1976	32.0	10.96	3.56
Comment: Cableway rated, natural control, water abstraction point immediately d/s. No visible effect on level records. Floodplain flows have been measured at this site. # Complex granite and older basic intrusives with Dalradian metamorphics. Some ORS. Some high moortand, mainly pastoral and arable.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	850 919 1114 1035 1160	93 100 122 113 127	490 484 737 577 758	92 91 138 108 142	14.79 14.65 22.33 17.46 22.89	206.1 340.5 239.8 246.1 337.4	04/12 01/07 04/04 24/12 26/04	3.10 2.69 5.70 3.96 4.48	28/09 08/10 10/07 05/09 07/08	31.9 30.3 37.5 34.2 39.0	9.66 9.39 17.61 12.15 16.12	3.38 3.14 7.82 4.44 5.32
010002 Ugie at Inverugie C.A: 325.0 km² M.A: SEPA-N Local No: Sens.: 11.4 B/full: 73.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: N Level: 9m UE: <.01	7195	789		434		4.47	107.0	12/09 1995	0.74	26/08 1976	8.8	3.17	1.05
Comment: Cableway rated. Previously controlled by long and broken weir, unstable and insensitive, severe weedgrowth also, hence complicated history of rating changes, but weir rebuilt in Sep 1996. Very minor export from headwater reservoir but sensibly natural regime. # Grantes and older basic intrusives surrounded by Dairadian metamorphics. A little moorland, but mostly lowland in character with arable agriculture and relatively high population density.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	723 858 1005 855 1002	92 109 127 108 127	397 425 687 557 671	91 98 158 128 155	4.08 4.38 7.08 5.74 6.89	68.6 33.6 43.8 87.2 123.9	10/02 02/07 17/10 25/12 26/04	1.18 1.62 2.37 1.65 1.74	19/08 09/10 10/07 05/09 12/08	7.4 9.3 12.3 10.5 13.5	2.85 2.83 5.74 4.49 4.45	1.29 1.73 2.87 1.83 1.99
010003 Ythan at Ellon C.A: 523.0 km² M.A: SEPA-N Local No: Sens.: 7.1 B/full: 80.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.P. N Level: 4m UE: < 01	8395	800		427		7.07	94.4	04/11 1984	0.94	30/08 1984	14.2	5.31	1.57
Comment: Velocity-area station with natural control, replacement for 10001 (2.5km u/s, 1965-1983 with chart records back to 1939). Some bypassing on Ib during extreme flows. Cableway rated, fairly stable S-D relationship. # Atypical Scottish catchment (very high BFI). Gentiy undulating, relatively low lying, developed on impermeable metamorphic Lower Dalradian formations overlain with Boulder Clay and morainic drift. Intrusion of ORS in NW. 95% of catchment given over to agriculture (pastoral and arable).	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	794 851 1021 885 1015	99 106 128 111 127	496 461 754 579 709	116 108 177 136 166	8.21 7.64 12.50 9.60 11.72	108.4 52.7 58.6 66.3 82.2	10/02 27/11 05/04 25/12 26/04	1.49 2.47 3.80 2.94 3.40	01/10 08/10 09/07 05/09 12/08	16.7 16.1 20.6 17.8 23.1	5.95 5.51 10.68 7.75 9.06	1.81 2.67 4.69 3.36 3.90
011003 Don at Bridge of Alford C.A: 499.0 km² M.A: SEPA-N Local No: Sens.: 6.0 B/full: 240.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.P: N Level: 133m UF < 01	7395	978		630		9.98	201.0	15/10 1976	1.76	15/12 1989	18.6	7.51	3.08
Comment: Most u/s primary station on the Don. Cableway rated. Stable natural control with few changes in rating since flow records began in 1973. Natural regime. # Mainly Dalradian metamorphics, some older basic intrusives and a small pocket of ORS. High moorland, forestry, hill grazing and some arable in the valley bottom.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	876 918 1142 1045 1245	90 94 117 107 127	610 512 788 657 885	97 81 125 104 140	9.62 8.09 12.46 10.40 13.96	76.1 64.9 146.3 95.0 147.7	15/02 01/07 04/04 20/09 26/04	2.75 3.18 5.25 3.53 3.66	30/09 31/10 09/07 05/09 06/08	17.7 14.5 20.2 17.6 24.5	7,61 6.12 9.86 8.87 10.54	2.94 3.34 6.21 4.08 4.30
O11002 Don at Haughton C.A: 787.0 km² M.A: SEPA-N Local No: Sens.: 4.7 B/full: 200.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.P: N Local No: Sens.: 4.7 B/full: 200.0m³s ⁻¹	6995	906		555		13.84	322.8	13/10 1982	2.43	15/12 1989	27.2	10.21	3.92
Comment: Cableway rated, natural control. Flow records from 1/07/69. Continuous recording since 1971, Transferred from Grampian Regional Council in 1984. Levels can be affected by ice. High flows 1969-83 reprocessed in 1986. Natural regime. # Mainly Dalradian metamorphics with large amounts of basic intrusives and a small pocket of ORS. High moortand, forestry, pastoral and arable in lower valleys.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	844 892 1088 978 1187	93 98 120 108 131	572 482 744 589 816	103 87 134 106 147	14.23 12.04 18.57 14.70 20.32	133.9 95.0 190.0 111.3 222.3	10/02 01/07 04/04 24/12 26/04	3.56 4.10 6.68 4.36 4.79	01/10 31/10 10/07 05/09 06/08	27.2 24.3 31.2 26.2 36.9	10.75 8.48 15.22 12.39 14.83	3.91 4.55 8.39 5.14 5.51
011004 Urie at Pitcaple C.A: 198.0 km² M.A: SEPA-N Local No: Sens.: 12.2 B/full: 30.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.P: N Level: 67m UF < 01	89-95	783		386		2.42	70.7	11/09 1995	0.61	22/08 19 94	4.6	1.85	0.73
Comment: Velocity-area station with natural control and cableway, replaced 11801. All flows contained. Good low flow performance. Natural regime, no abstractions. # Moorland headwaters, substantial areas of mixed and arable farming below. Geology: dominately metamorphic.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	813 858 1087 970 1135	104 110 139 124 145	501 400 677 529 695	130 104 175 137 180	3.14 2.51 4.25 3.32 4.35	39.3 23.0 33.2 32.1 55.1	10/02 01/07 04/04 24/12 26/04	0.71 0.93 1.61 1.00 1.29	30/09 31/10 09/07 05/09 12/08	6.4 5.2 6.8 5.8 7.7	2.22 1.91 3.59 2.87 3.39	0.77 0.99 2.04 1.16 1.48
O11001 Don at Parkhill C.A: 1273.0 km² M.A: SEPA-N Local No: Sens.: 6.8 B/full: 460.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: N Level: 32m UE: < 0.1	6995	877		488		19.70	301.4	12/09 1995	3.55	15/12 1989	39.1	14.50	5.28
Comment: Lowest of three gauging stations on the Don. Cableway rated with natural control. Complex rating history. Weed growth a problem during summer half-year. Flow records for 1969-86 reprocessed in 1987; significant revisions in high and low flow range. Natural regime. # Mainly Dalradian metamorphics with large amounts of basic intrusives and a small pocket of Old Red Sandstone. High moortand, forestry, pastoral and arable in lower valleys.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	828 883 1062 936 1133	94 101 121 107 129	511 442 678 520 723	105 91 139 107 148	20.59 17.83 27.36 20.99 29.11	255.2 122.3 286.2 139.8 343.6	10/02 21/11 05/04 25/12 27/04	4.84 5.99 8.81 5.64 6.31	01/10 31/10 10/07 31/08 23/07	39.9 39.2 46.7 36.7 52.6	14.87 12.10 22.37 17.61 21.17	5.32 6.53 11.52 6.51 7.35

HYDROLOGICAL DATA: 1996-2000

						Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pr e -1996	Mean flow (^{m1} s ⁻¹)	Peak flow (^{m3} a ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Mín. daily flow ^{(m3} a ⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m³s ¹)	50 Percentlie (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m³s ⁻¹)
012007 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No:	Dee at M	ar Lodge Sens.: 12.5	E	C.A: 289.0 km ² Mull: 250.0m ³ s ⁻¹	8295	1461		1356		12.43	307.8	04/02 1990	0.64	22/08 1994	25.3	8.54	1.96
Comment: Highest Catchment rainfall t metamorphic and grad	gauging station otals may be nite mountains, f	on the Dee significantly Mountain, mod	 Cableway rated underestimated. orland, some fores 	r d, unstabl # Dalrad stry.	an: 0.990 e natural control. lian and Moinian	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1126 1344 1494 1482 1490	77 92 102 101 102	1035 1239 1402 1405 1707	76 91 103 104 126	9.46 11.36 12.85 12.88 15.60	177.7 216.6 138.6 199.7 194.3	08/01 01/03 22/04 23/12 30/01	0.91 1.34 3.02 1.48 2.13	23/09 26/08 09/07 04/09 27/07	22.7 23.1 26.7 25.5 34.0	5.83 6.86 9.12 8.86 10.69	1.35 1.96 3.68 1.92 3.13
012004 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No:	Girnock Bur	at Littlemill Sens.: 21.7	E	C.A: 30.3 km² l/full: 40.0m³s ⁻¹	69 95	996		529		0.51	100.1	09/09 1995	0.01	22/06 1992	1.0	0.28	0.04
F.A.R: N Comment: Velocity-a moorland, pastoral. Da	Level: 245m rea station rated alradian and olde	by wading. Re er basic intrusi	UE: <.01 ecalibrated in 1994 ve rocks.	F 4. Natural f	AI: 1.000 low regime. # High	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	850 976 1090 940 1228	85 98 109 94 123	576 550 639 529 842	109 104 121 100 159	0.55 0.53 0.61 0.51 0.81	55.3 28.7 18.1 21.2 19.8	08/01 19/02 05/04 22/12 10/10	0.04 0.08 0.09 0.03 0.06	21/07 26/08 24/09 03/09 22/07	1.0 1.1 1.2 1.0 1.6	0.25 0.21 0.34 0.25 0.48	0.05 0.09 0.11 0.03 0.09
012003 M.A: SEPA-N F.A.R: N	Local No:	Dee at P	olhollick Sens.: 7.3	8	C.A: 690.0 km ² /full: 250.0m ³ s ⁻¹	7595	1311		1063		23.25	469.2	04/02 1990	2.10	01/09 1983	48.1	16.32	4.52
Comment: Velocity-a # Dalradian and Moin	area station, ca ian metamorphic	bleway rated s with basic in	with natural co htrusions, Mountai	entrol. Nat in, moorlar	ural flow regime. Ind and pastoral.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1058 1238 1375 1333 1449	81 94 105 102 111	926 1037 1174 1142 1416	87 98 110 107 133	20.20 22.70 25.69 24.98 30.89	313.4 354.5 213.1 334.0 263.7	08/01 01/03 22/04 22/12 10/10	3.07 4.03 6.36 3.54 4.45	19/08 26/08 09/07 04/09 27/07	45.8 49.8 52.1 45.3 65.1	13.28 13.21 19.45 18.39 21.25	3.70 4.98 7.97 4.36 5.79
012006 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No:	Gairn at l	Nvergairn Sens.: 8.9	B	C.A: 150.0 km ² //ull: 40.0m ³ s ⁻¹	7895	1005		810		3.85	95.1	02/10 1981	0.45	04/08 1982	7.5	2.78	0.82
Comment: Velocity-a construction (broken natural regime. Catc) mainly granite intrusiv	rea station with up by spate of ment rainfall m e. Pastoral and t	cableway, nai Nov 1978). G lay be unden mountain moo	ural control includ ood site for low f estimated. # Som rland.	rubble flow meas ne` Dalradi	Al: 0.997 from early gabion urement. Sensibly an metamorphics,	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	920 1001 1153 1103 1289	92 100 115 110 128	648 692 934 843 1132	80 85 115 104 140	3.08 3.29 4.44 4.01 5.37	39.9 31.6 57.8 58.3 71.8	08/01 01/07 04/04 20/09 08/08	0.58 0.77 1.15 0.63 0.82	18/08 05/10 09/07 04/09 26/07	5.9 6.6 7.6 7.3 9.7	2.25 2.10 3.35 3.21 3.83	0.66 0.86 1.50 0.80 1.05
012005 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No:	Muick at li	vermuick Sens.: 9.0	8	C.A: 110.0 km ² /full: 60.0m ³ s ⁻¹	7695	1326		1052		3.67	470.6	02/10 1981	0.30	21/08 1995	7.2	2.50	0.60
Comment: Cableway winters (flows may be Pastoral and mountain	rated, natural co estimated). Nat moorland.	ntrol. Problem tural regime -	ue: <.ui s with silting in we no abstractions. #	⊢ ell (until 19 # Dalradia	AI: 0.991 80) and ice in cold n intrusive basics.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1170 1320 1473 1244 1601	88 100 111 94 121	1066 1138 1158 1033 1486	101 108 110 98 141	3.71 3.97 4.04 3.60 5.17	96.4 99.3 49.7 119.4 92.6	08/01 18/11 24/10 20/09 19/09	0.43 0.59 0.83 0.37 0.65	19/08 05/10 31/08 04/09 27/07	8.4 8.7 7.5 6.7 11.3	2.54 2.09 3.07 2.51 3.46	0.48 0.71 1.14 0.51 0.98
012001 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No:	Dee at V	Sens.: 5.1	B	C.A: 1370.0 km ² /full: 1000.0m ³ s ⁻¹	2995	1121		640		36.49	1133.0	24/01 1937	3.54	27/08 1976	72.8	25.81	8.24
Comment: Cableway earlier station (flow measurements at Wo 1911. No regulation metamorphics along r pastoral and some are	Leve: 71m rated, fairly sta records from odend establishe , little natural nost of valley, fl able in valley bot	ble natural co 1929, chart ed by Capt. <i>N</i> storage, min anked by igni- tom.	OE: <.01 ntrol. Present stat records from 19 cClean. Earlier stat or abstractions. cous`intrusives. M	H tion (built 34) on s affgauge # Dalrad lountain, n	Al: 0.985 in 1972) replaced ame reach. C/m record dates from ian and Moinian noorland, forestry,	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	990 1124 1259 1178 1355	88 100 112 105 121	809 843 1004 922 1210	96 100 120 110 144	35.03 36.62 43.63 40.05 52.42	473.4 456.2 392.2 470.8 469.4	08/01 18/11 04/04 20/09 10/10	4.96 7.27 11.42 6.20 7.73	19/08 04/10 09/07 05/09 26/07	78.7 79.2 81.2 72.0 108.8	25.97 20.67 33.42 31.04 36.43	5.97 8.12 14.57 8.00 9.90
012009 M.A: SEPA-N F.A.R: P	Local No: Level: m	Water of D	ve at Charr Sens.: 8.2 UE:	B	C.A: 41.7 km² /full: 30.0m³s ⁻¹ Al:	5795	1251		979		1.29	42.7	09/11 1994	0.09	20/08 1994	2.6	0.61	0.17
Comment: Compound 1983). Large capacity naturalised and gauge Stonehaven) - export Peak flows from Aug (exclusively) catchment	f critical-depth fit flows >30 m ³ s of flows. Very re of approx. 0.05 1990 only. Inc nt developed prin	ume (construct ⁻¹ estimated, esponsive regim ³ s ⁻¹ (aroun complete charan ncipally on gra	ted by Grampian F Mixed flow series me - natural apar 1 5% of mean run t records from 19 nite.	Regional C s comprisi t from PW loff), signif 963. # A	iouncil, repaired in ng lengthy runs of /S abstraction (for icant at low flows, rugged moorland	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1284 1310 1494 1198 1615	103 105 119 96 129	1067 935 1141 832 1215	109 96 117 85 124	1.41 1.24 1.51 1.10 1. 6 0	33.3 37.0 35.2 37.0 31.7	04/02 18/11 04/04 20/04 30/07	0.15 0.20 0.23 0.13 0.16	18/08 02/05 09/07 03/09 27/07	3.4 2.3 3.1 2.1 3.7	0.73 0.50 0.76 0.61 0.81	0.17 0.23 0.31 0.18 0.22
012008 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No:	Feugh at H	eugh Head Sens.: 6.6	B	C.A: 229.0 km ² /full: 250.0m ³ s ⁻¹	' 85 9 5	1106		734		5.33	271.5	30/11 1985	0.43	20/08 1994	10.7 ~	3.08	0.81
Comment: Velocity-ar Charr, PWS for Ston moorland and upland metamorphics.	ea station with ca ehaven) accour pasture (some a	ableway, Good its for <5% ifforestation in	i site for low flow r of Q95 flow: # F Glen Dye) develo	neasureme Rugged to oped large	Al. 0.399 ent. Abstraction (at pography, mostly ly on granites and	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1136 1179 1356 1105 1459	103 107 123 100 132	911 801 1001 701 1066	124 109 136 96 145	6.60 5.82 7.27 5.09 7.72	167.8 159.6 193.4 138.4 200.9	10/02 18/11 04/04 24/12 26/04	0.75 0.93 1.25 0.78 0.74	19/08 08/10 09/07 05/09 27/07	13.4 12.1 13.8 9.2 15.2	3.88 2.52 4.35 3.20 4.24	0.88 1.02 1.68 1.03 1.04
012002 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No:	Dee at	Park Sens.: 5.5	В	C.A: 1844.0 km² /full: 500.0m³s ^{∼1}	7295	1101		786		45.96	922.4	13/10 1982	3.66	27/08 1976	94.4	33.29	8.43
Comment: Cableway for PWS of approximat of Q95 flow). # Dalra intrusives. Mountain, r	rated, unstable n ely 0.7 m ³ s ⁻¹ be dian and Moinia noorland, forestr	atural control atween Woode in metamorph y, pastoral an	causing frequent of nd (12001) and Pa ics along most of d some arable in v	r. hanges in ark (accour f valley, fla valley bott	Al: 0.987 rating. Abstraction hts for almost 10% anked by igneous om.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	995 1108 1247 1132 1339	90 101 113 103 122	761 767 954 819 1073	97 98 121 104 137	44.37 44.85 55.79 47.88 62.59	576.3 623.7 612.0 552.9 662.0	08/01 18/11 04/04 22/12 10/10	5.47 7.67 13.81 6.64 8.40	24/09 05/10 10/07 05/09 27/07	95.1 101.0 105.1 87.6 123.7	32.44 23.99 42.39 37.67 42.81	6.67 9.17 17.92 9.07 11.17
013001 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No:	Bervie at li	iverbervie Sens.: 15.1	B	C.A: 123.0 km ² /full: 44.0m ³ s ⁻¹	7995	894		521		2.03	61.0	13/10 1982	0.24	31/08 1983	4.2	1.23	0.33
Comment: Cableway floods bypass the stati hills and some forestry	rated. De-stabili on (via the rb flo , ORS.	ised artificial (odplain). Natu	ontrol replaced by rai flow regime. #	y gabions Arable in v	n 1989. Extreme valley, pastoral on	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	845 919 1051 835 1065	95 103 118 93 119	548 490 720 475 681	105 94 138 91 131	2.13 1.91 2.81 1.85 2.65	41.7 36.8 34.7 32.8 52.0	10/02 27/11 04/04 24/12 26/04	0.28 0.46 0.61 0.39 0.40	23/09 13/10 10/07 12/08 07/08	4.9 3.9 4.9 3.5 5.3	1.33 1.03 2.01 1.43 1.53	0.31 0.50 0.78 0.45 0.46
090003 M.A: SEPA-N F.A.R: P	Local No: 121	Nevis at	Claggan Sens.: 9.2 LIE:	F	C.A: 76.8 km ²	8295	3173		2761		6.72	219.0	18/09 1990	0.13	12/06 1992	16.4	3.39	0.62
Comment: 20m wide r flows results in a scat sq.km of the headwate PWS). # Wet, steep-si storage. Prolonged wit	iver section with tered low flow ra rs diverted to Lo ded, high altitud ater snow cover.	boulder contra ating. Comput ch Trieg and, le catchment d	ol. All flows contair ed flows very larg further d/s, around training southern s	r ned. Diffici gely natura 15% of Q9 slopes of 6	ulty in gauging low al (runoff from 6.7 5 is abstracted for 3en Nevis with no	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	2276 2852 - 3430 3490 3074	72 90 108 110 97	1838 2366 2840 3093 2847	67 86 103 112 103	4.46 5.76 6.92 7.53 6.91	89.4 101.6 141.1 162.4 110.4	02/11 05/12 11/02 05/12 29/11	0.33 0.50 0.31 0.32 0.45	23/09 04/06 05/06 12/08 27/07	11.1 15.8 17.1 18.2 18.3	2.29 2.45 4.01 3.98 3.26	0.60 0.70 0.62 0.95 0.74

					Perlod	Reinfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (^{m1} **)	Pesk flow (^{m1} s ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. dally flow (^{m*e*1})	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m's'1)	50 Percentile (m's*')	95 Percentlie (m*s**)
092001 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No:	Shiel at	Shielfoot Sens.:	C.A: 256.0 km²	9595	i					64.8	25/10 1995	1.85	23/08 1995			
F.A.R: Comment: Velocity-an weedgrowth, but relativ mountainous catchmer	Level: m ea station with ca ely stable rating a it with some affo	ableway, d/s and sensibly restation in I	UE: of Loch Sheil. Grav a full range station. the glens.	FAI: rel bed and some seasonal Natural flow regime. # Wet,	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	2451 2814 3264 3479 3071		2075 2390 2880 3036 2703		16.80 19.40 23.38 24.65 21.88	72.7 67.1 112.9 78.1 73.4	06/11 20/02 13/02 06/12 10/03	1.90 1.86 1.72 4.01 2.01	23/09 30/06 07/06 12/08 30/07	37.5 43.7 43.6 45.6 52.6	12.84 15.19 19.06 21.22 15.97	3.11 3.40 3.31 6.23 2.71
093001 M.A. SEPA-N	Local No: 115	Carron at	New Kelso Sens.: 15.4	C.A: 137.8 km ²	79-95	2897		2549		11.14	337.4	18/09 1990	0.43	24/06 1982	27.2	5.59	1.02
F.A.R: N Comment: 40m wide r over 30m wide floodpla range. Adequately gau through Loch Dughaill moorland. One of the v	Level: 6m iver section with in on left bank. U ged to bankfull. (with little addition wetter Highland of	floodbank o nstable grav Computed flo xnal surface atchments o	UE: <.01 n right. Any bypassii el control requires re ws are 100% natura storage. # Typical currently gauged.	FAI: 0.884 ng in extreme floods will be gular calibration of low flow al. 70% of catchment drains mix of rough grazing and	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1943 2409 3082 2949 2478	67 83 106 102 86	1732 2058 2811 2945 2419	68 81 110 116 95	7.55 8.99 12.28 12.87 10.54	166.7 129.1 186.7 223.7 185.6	02/11 12/01 11/02 05/12 06/03	0.65 0.81 0.83 0.61 0.79	24/09 09/06 07/10 11/08 26/07	18.7 22.3 28.6 30.0 25.5	3.50 3.91 7.44 7.72 5.41	0.94 1.13 1.31 1.18 1.01
094001 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No: 103	Ewe at	Poolewe Sens.: 3.4	C.A: 441.1 km ²	7095	2502		2133		29.83	247.7	06/02 1989	1.96	18/05 1974	63.8	22.07	5.35
F.A.R: N Comment: 50m wide infrequently resulting in installation of cableway a surface area of 30km catchment diverted to 6	Level: 5m river section with n recalibration of in 1970. In exce which dominates Conon hydro sch	h stable (roi f low flows. ss of 95% of the flow reg eme. # Cate	UE: <.01 ck amoured) contro No overbank flow. the catchment drain ime. Low to medium chment is typical Hig	FAI: 0.670 I which has been modified Rating improved following is through Loch Marce with flows from 3% of the upper phand uplands.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1672 2144 2755 2782 2322	67 86 110 111 93	1519 1934 2456 2479 2131	71 91 115 116 100	21.19 27.05 34.35 34.67 29.72	126.1 140.6 188.7 125.8 129.4	03/11 01/03 13/02 06/12 07/03	4.17 5.52 5.59 5.06 3.63	07/02 11/06 07/06 14/08 17/05	42.0 58.5 63.8 67.3 72.4	14.78 19.48 27.44 28.27 17.10	5.12 6.76 8.10 7.18 4.96
095002 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No: 123	Broom at I	Sens.: 18.2	C.A: 141.4 km ²	8595	2172		1700		7.62	237.4	05/02 1989	0.21	21/08 1995	18.3	3.74	0.53
F.A.K: H Comment: 25m wide r gravel control, significa calibrated to bankfull (Droma to Conon HEP storage in Loch a' Bhra band on the lower valle	Level: 5m iver section. Flox nt low flow gaugi 150 m ³ s ⁻¹). 20% scheme. 25% of oin. # Catchment y floor.	odbarik on Ib ngs scatter. of natural o upper catchi typically Sci	UE: protects a wide cul Slightly skew veloci atchment diverted (ment drains through ottish upland except	FAI: tivated floodplain. Unstable ty in high flows. Adequately except overflows) via Loch the only additional surface for a very narrow cultivated	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1527 1976 2462 2525 2270	70 91 113 116 105	948 1350 1788 1852 1720	56 79 105 109 101	4.24 6.06 8.02 8.30 7.69	96.3 153.7 108.7 147.7 137.0	18/10 01/03 09/01 05/12 30/01	0.38 0.42 0.44 0.34 0.40	24/09 10/06 08/10 11/08 04/08	9.9 14.7 18.6 19.7 20.2	1.93 2.59 4.79 4.87 3.31	0.53 0.54 0.60 0.63 0.64
095001 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No: 111	Inver at Li	ttle Assynt Sens.: 6.3	C.A: 137.5 km ²	7795	2211		1956		8.53	63.6	06/02 1989	0.57	27/05 1995	16.7	6.92	1.69
F.A.R: N Comment: 30m wide of in excess of MAF. Flo fisheries purposes. The and can result in very I and moorland with man	Level: 60m completely contain w regime completely gates are immer ow flows (see, for hy lochans.	ned river se etely natura tiately u/s at r example, l	UE: ction with adequate I except for occasic outlet to Loch Assy May/June 1998). # 0	FAI: y gauged stable calibration onal operation of gates for nt (surface area: 7.9 sq.km) Catchment is rough grazing	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1800 2088 2585 2555 2366	81 94 117 116 107	1455 1650 2303 2123 2017	74 84 118 109 103	6.33 7.20 10.04 9.25 8.77	37.4 30.4 58.4 38.2 38.4	03/11 01/03 12/02 06/12 10/03	1.02 1.63 0.98 1.15 1.08	09/02 11/06 04/06 28/08 04/08	12.7 13.0 17.4 17.1 19.7	4.36 6.22 8.42 8.13 5.54	1.34 2.59 2.18 1.62 1.66
096004 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No: 128	Strathmore	at Alinabad Sens.:	C.A: 105.0 km ²	8795	2611		2283		7.60	255.3	11/12 1990	0.13	21/08 1995	18.9	3.64	0.42
F.A.N: N Comment: Velocity-are s (C.A. increase: 7 sq.k lochans. # Wet, rugged Series. Moorland and r	Level: 87m ea station with de m). Natural and v d, upland catchrr ough grazing do	graded gabie ery respons ent develop minate land	UE: on control. Extreme l ive flow regime; moo ed principally on me use.	FAI: low flows measured 2 km d/ lerate storage in headwater stamorphics of the Moinian	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1967 2624 2905 2940 2856	75 100 111 113 109	1616 1975 2454 2498 2294	71 87 107 109 100	5.36 6.58 8.17 8.32 7.62	147.1 232.6 185.7 311.4 174.5	02/11 04/04 15/09 05/12 10/03	0.34 0.35 0.50 0.27 0.22	24/09 10/06 07/10 11/08 16/05	14.2 16.0 18.8 18.5 18.0	2.51 3.04 4.83 4.56 3.95	0.50 0.61 0.73 0.47 0.44
096002 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No: 112	Naver a	t Apigili Sens.: 10.9	C.A: 477.0 km ²	7795	1476		1042		15.76	234.0	04/10 1981	0.33	04/07 1992	36.3	10.21	1.12
F.A.R: N Comment: 40m wide contained. Gravel con Computed flows 98% Several small high leve of 13 sq.km. 50% of the rough grazing and mod	Level: 5m river section w trol - regular no natural with sm l lochs in addition e catchment drain rrland. Relatively	ith short 6r eed to reas all interbasin to the total is through th little loch st	UE: <.01 n floodplain on rb sess low flow ratin transfer to the Si surface area of Loch le latter. # Catchmer orage.	FAI: U.843 but otherwise completely ng. Calibrated to bankfull. hin hydro-electric scheme. Is Coire, Meadie and Naver nt is typical Highland mix of	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1132 1329 1651 1680 1545	77 90 112 114 105	774 851 1242 1270 1219	74 82 119 122 117	11.67 12.87 18.78 19.21 18.39	127.9 140.1 102.4 175.8 162.1	02/12 01/03 12/02 06/12 08/11	0.68 1.21 1.34 1.01 1.49	20/08 24/08 06/06 04/09 12/08	28.1 29.0 41.9 40.0 47.5	5.44 7.18 13.88 14.32 9.95	0.89 1.95 2.37 1.73 2.00
096003 M.A: SEPA-N	S Local No: 125	itrathy at Si	sens.:	C.A: 111.8 km ² B/full: 30.0m ³ s ⁻¹	8595	1087		745		2.64	84.3	16/08 1990	0.10	05/07 1992	6.4	1.38	0.17
COMMENT: 15m wide ri Comment: 15m wide ri So m ³ s ⁻¹ . Stable pitch Adequately gauged to I severat small hill loch afforested from the late	ver section with t ed river bed cont bankfull. Comput s on a low altit 9 1970s.	ypassing on rol with gabi ed flows 100 tude, gently	the rb during extrem on mattress constrict 1% natural. # No sig sloping peat-cover	ne flood events in excess of tion to increase sensitivity, nificant surface storage but red catchment extensively	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	953 1136 1351 1333 1196	88 105 124 123 110	603 715 982 887 854	81 96 132 119 115	2.13 2.53 3.48 3.14 3.02	35.2 52.9 49.8 45.8 58.5d	02/12 01/07 12/02 28/11 08/11	0.13 0.18 0.25 0.20 0.26	20/08 07/08 05/06 04/09 31/07	5.5 5.6 8.9 7.7 6.7	0.73 1.32 2.18 1.72 1.62	0.15 0.25 0.38 0.24 0.30
096001 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No: 109	Halladale a	It Halladale Sens.: 21.3	C.A: 204.6 km ²	76-95	1140		775		5.03	189.1	21/09 1981	0.12	26/08 1984	12.9	2.30	0.26
F.A.R: N Comment: 20m wide r # Catchment is largely	Level: 23m iver section ade moorland with a	quately gaug peat based	UE: <.01 ged to bankfull. Coπ cover. Extensive aff	PA: 0.969 iputed flows 100% natural. orestation from late 1970s.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	924 1102 1380 1317 1251	81 97 121 116 110	621 672 991 938 839	80 87 128 121 108	4.02 4.36 6.43 6.08 5.43	58.1 104.6 86.3 113.4 97.7	10/02 01/07 27/12 05/12 29/10	0.22 0.31 0.31 0.22 0.28	24/09 09/06 04/06 04/09 13/08	11.4 11.1 17.8 15.4 13.3	1.49 1.94 3.63 3.18 2.24	0.24 0.42 0.45 0.40 0.41
097002 M.A: SEPA-N	Local No: 104	Thurso a	t Halkirk Sens.: 19.1	C.A: 412.8 km ²	72-95	1061		660		8.64	173.1	06/10 1993	0.22	22/08 1976	20.2	5.09	0.54
F.A.R: RP Comment: 30m wide r Adequately rated to ba More which is used for r computed long-term av blanket peat cover. Ext	Lever: 30m iver section with nkfull but difficult river regulation. # rerage runoff. # tensive afforestat	full contain y in c/m low werage net a Catchment of ion of upper	UE: <.01 ment and a complet r flows. 50% of catcl abstraction from Loc characterised by sm r catchment from lat	FAI: 0.872 ely stable rock bar control, hment drains through Loch h Calder of some 5% of the all lochs on predominantly e 1970s. \	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	930 1039 1322 1168 1138	88 98 125 110 107	565 595 920 810 809	86 90 139 123 123	7.38 7.79 12.04 10.60 10.56	98.0 91.4 89.0 107.4 92.1	04/11 16/03 17/10 06/12 14/12	0.44 1.12 1.47 1.24 0.59	19/08 09/10 05/06 05/09 12/08	18.9 18.1 28.2 25.0 25.0	3.53 4.40 7.81 6.77 6.22	0.52 1.49 2.42 2.14 0.71
106001 M.A: SEPA-N F.A.R: IN	Local No: Level: 37m	Creed at C	reed Bridge Sens.: UE:	C.A: 43.4 km ² FAI:	9394	1464		1017		1.40	10.8	21/03 1994	0.06	18/09 1993			
comment: Asymmetric immediately d/s of shar flood peaks. Levels mo readings. Small fish-ha entirely natural regimu moorland developed or catchment. Some future	al compound Cn p rh bend. Theor nitored by press tchery abstractio e. # Gently-slop ancient metam e afforestation like	ump weir - 8 retical rating ure transduc n immediate xing peat-co orphics mos rely, current	6m main crest with Structure capacity: er - monthly offsets ly u/s - can influenc overed catchment tty Lewisian gneiss. land-use mostly sho	0.6m low flow crest on lhs - c15 m ³ s ⁻¹ , overtopped by applied, based on dip-flash se low flows - otherwise an near Stornaway. Heather Many lochans in S of the sep-grazing.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1281 1543 1638 1740 1633	88 105 112 119 112	1494 1372	147 135	2.06 1.88	15.8 28.1	27/11 29/10	0.15 0.06	07/05 06/08	4.6 4.1	1.54 1.25	0.16 0.13

Map 2: SEPA — EAST



Area: 17,810 km²

Average Rainfall (1961-90): 1132 mm

Gauging Station Register

Station number	River name	Station name		Grid reference	Catchment area (eq hm)	Station type	Period of record	Mean ann. rainfall (mm)	Mean ann. runoff (mm)	Mean ann. Ioss (mm)	Max. ann. runoff (mm)	Year of max.	Min, ann, runoff (mm)	Year of min,	Mean flow (^{m*} e ^{*1})	Min. mon. flow (m ¹ = ⁻¹)	Month/Year of min.	Median ann. ftood (m's-')	Base Flow Index	10 Percentile (m*e**)	95 Percentile (m²a*')
013009 013002 013007 013012 013004 013003 013008 013005 013017 013010	West Water Luther Water North Esk South Esk South Esk South Esk South Esk Lunan Water Colliston Burn Brothock Water	Dathouse Bridge Luther Bridge Logie Mail Gella Bridge Prosen Bridge Stannochy Br Brechin Kirkton Mail Colliston Arbroath	00000000000000000000000000000000000000	592680 658674 699640 372653 396586 583593 600596 655494 609466 639418	127.2 138.0 732.0 130.0 104.0 487.0 488.0 124.0 8.4 50.0	VA VA VA VA VA VA VA	1985-00 1982-00 1976-00 1991-00 1985-00 1979-82 1983-00 1981-00 1994-00 1989-00	1150 928 1127 1485 1280 1192 1152 795 791 703	941 508 827 1320 943 861 788 408 462 324	209 420 300 165 337 331 364 387 329 379	1211 774 1074 1710 1231 1063 995 625 634 450	00 84 00 00 82 00 85 98 00	591 237 476 1088 698 679 537 158 360 132	89 89 92 89 89 89 89 89 89	3.60 2.22 19.19 5.44 3.11 13.30 12.19 1.61 0.12 0.51	0.55 0.30 2.33 0.62 0.45 1.98 1.40 0.12 >0.00 0.08	08/95 08/95 08/95 08/95 08/95 08/81 08/84 08/95 09/94 08/95		.54 .58 .52 .47 .57 .53 .55 .52 .33 .47	7.8 4.5 39.3 11.6 6.2 26.8 25.2 3.6 0.3 1.1	0.79 0.40 3.17 0.94 0.66 2.25 2.13 0.18 >0.00 0.08
014006 * 014007 014002 014010 014005 014005 014009 014001 015024 015016 015018 *	Monikie Burn Craigmill Burn Dighty Water Motray Water Motray Water Eden Eden Eden Dochart Tay Lyon	Panbride Craigmili Balmossie Mill Kilmany Strattmigio Kemback Killin Kennore - Moar	0000000 000000 00000000000000000000000	574361 575360 477324 387217 441224 226102 415158 564320 782467 534448	16.0 29.0 126.9 33.0 60.0 26.0 307.4 239.0 600.9 161.4	VA VA VA VA VA VA VA VA	1987-91 1987-00 1969-00 1991-00 1984-00 1991-00 1967-00 1967-00 1974-00 1973-58	749 802 788 761 745 1027 806 2781 2257 2077	367 337 288 283 603 401 2149 2490 1983	382 465 409 473 462 424 405 632 94	591 551 456 805 578 2681 3025 2853	88 93 85 93 85 93 93 90 90 54	171 141 121 217 119 480 148 1552 1837 1500	89 89 73 99 89 96 73 87 96 55	0.19 0.31 1.53 0.30 0.54 0.50 3.90 16.29 47.45 10.15	0.01 0.01 0.17 0.01 0.06 0.08 0.73 0.88 2.07 0.51	08/89 08/94 08/84 08/95 08/95 08/95 08/95 08/95 08/84 08/55	43.3 187.0	.44 .59 .53 .57 .55 .62 .26 .65 .22	0.4 0.7 3.3 0.7 1.2 1.0 8.1 42.2 101.1 26.1	0.01 0.02 0.23 0.02 0.08 0.10 0.96 1.16 6.72 0.66
015041 015011 015007 015038 015035 015039 015034 015012 015017 015023	Lyon Lyon Tay Gaur Tummel Titt Garry Tummel Braan Braan	Camusvrachan Comrie Bridge Pitnacree Bridge of Gaur Kinloch Rannoch Marble Lodge Killiecrankie Pitlochry Ballinkoan Hermitage	NN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN	620477 786486 924534 497570 663588 892717 901637 947574 979406 014422	237.0 391.1 1149.4 247.0 647.0 165.0 745.0 1670.0 197.0 210.0	VA VA VA VA VA VA VA VA	1992-00 1958-00 1957-00 1992-00 1991-00 1991-00 1991-00 1973-00 1973-00 1975-80 1983-00	2403 2002 1950 2194 1927 1385 1479 1570 1329 1495	884 980 1575 1890 2163 1374 732 1384 959 1058	1519 1022 375 304 11 747 186 370 437	979 1602 2147 2393 2453 1588 865 1692 1058 1245	00 58 90 92 94 90 94 90 77 88	752 672 1152 1225 1569 1117 529 1023 914 820	96 73 96 96 96 96 96 80 87	6.64 12,15 57.41 14.80 44.37 7.19 17.29 73.27 5.99 7.05	2.12 2.22 4.32 1.18 9.66 1.00 2.27 13.84 0.36 0.26	08/95 08/84 08/95 09/96 08/95 08/95 08/95 09/96 07/77 08/95	331.6 120.1	.49 .45 .64 .33 .59 .42 .43 .63 .38 .44	13.2 27.1 116.1 33.2 84.2 15.9 35.6 145.4 15.6 16.5	2.14 2.98 12.64 1.21 9.33 1.24 3.14 19.05 0.38 0.55
015003 015001 * 015002 * 015004 * 015029 * 015010 015008 015008 015030 015014	Tay Ista Newton Burn Melgan Inzion Alyth Burn Isla Dean Water Dean Water Ardle	Caputh Forter Newton - L of Lintrathen L of Lintrathen Pitcrocknie Wester Cardean Coolkston Dean Bridge Kindrogan	NO N	082395 187647 230605 275558 280559 257485 295466 340479 293458 056631	3210.0 70.7 15.4 40.9 24.7 32.0 366.5 177.1 230.0 103.0	VA FL TP VA VA VA VA	1947-00 195368 195968 192768 192768 192768 1991-94 1972-00 195800 1959-00	1638 1405 1303 1151 1115 943 1133 843 833 1285	1368 1207 997 767 710 419 655 468 487 1011	270 198 306 384 405 524 478 375 346 274	1850 1496 1392 1164 1052 497 919 673 652 1248	90 62 60 93 82 60 93 93 00	883 752 696 561 499 367 349 261 341 792	55 64 64 91 73 89 90 87	139.20 2.71 0.49 1.00 0.56 0.43 7.61 2.63 3.55 3.30	9.60 0.66 0.14 0.07 0.09 0.03 0.96 0.42 0.44 0.30	08/55 07/64 08/68 09/68 08/33 07/94 08/95 08/95 08/95 08/95 08/95	784.0 43.7 6.9 15.5 6.4 100.8 30.0	.64 .57 .59 .58 .63 .46 .54 .58 .56 .41	274.8 5.2 1.0 2.1 1.1 1.0 16.1 5.6 8.0 7.5	35.47 0.74 0.14 0.24 0.04 1.51 0.60 0.65 0.44
015025 015021 015006 .015032 * 015027 015028 015015 015013 016002 * 016003	Encht Lunan Burn Tay Ordie Burn Garry Burn Ordie Burn Almond Almond Eam Ruchill Water	Craighall Mill Bank Ballathie Jackstone Loakmill Luncarty Newton Bridge Almondbank Aberuchill Cultybraggan	NO NO NO NO NO NN NN NN NN	174472 182400 147367 070337 075339 090312 888316 068258 754216 764204	432.0 94.0 4587.1 20.0 20.0 54.0 84.0 174.8 176.9 99.5	VA VA VA VA VA VA VA VA VA	1985-00 1984-00 1952-00 1990-96 1987-00 1986-00 1985-00 1955-00 1955-77 1970-00	1251 945 1463 1049 1035 1036 1777 1463 1699 2057	953 508 1149 724 643 662 1174 952 1804 1621	298 437 314 325 392 374 603 511 436	1133 660 1479 948 878 917 1479 1522 2406 2087	00 88 90 93 93 93 90 61 61 82	746 327 738 550 522 892 489 1292 1040	87 89 55 91 89 89 87 73 56 73	13.06 1.51 167.20 0.46 0.41 1.13 3.13 5.28 10.12 5.11	1.17 0.08 14.70 0.01 0.05 0.27 0.37 1.10 0.16	08/95 08/95 08/95 08/95 08/95 08/95 08/95 08/84 06/57 08/84	951.1 119.5 57.7 165.0	.49 .65 .64 .38 .46 .45 .42 .45 .45 .46 .30	28.8 3.4 332.5 1,1 1.0 2.6 7.0 11.4 24.2 12.8	1.90 0.15 42.54 0.02 0.04 0.09 0.45 0.72 1.26 0.35
016001 016007 016004 017015 017008 017018 017016 017004 017002 017001	Eam Ruthven Water Eam 4. North Queich South Queich Greens Burn Lochty Burn Ore 4. Leven 4. Carron 4.	Kinkell Bridge Aberuthven Fortaviot Bridge Lathro Kinross Damleys Cottage Whinnyhall Balfour Mains Leven Headswood	NN NO NO NO NT NO NT NO NS	933167 975154 044183 114042 122015 157040 220985 330997 369006 832820	590.5 50.0 782.2 23.1 33.6 10.5 14.0 162.0 424.0 122.3	VA VA VA FV FV VA FV VA FV	1948-00 1990-00 1972-00 1987-00 198800 198600 196000 196900	1528 1399 1494 1297 1281 1194 933 899 954 1606	1184 880 1159 1009 958 598 493 412 480 892	344 519 335 288 323 596 440 487 474 714	1628 1106 1418 1297 1247 631 642 575 691 1276	48 99 93 93 00 87 98 85 94	696 722 625 784 713 553 318 110 169 544	55 96 73 99 99 99 73 73 72	22.17 1.39 28.74 0.74 1.02 0.20 0.22 2.12 6.46 3.46	1.09 0.19 2.46 0.04 0.05 0.05 0.02 0.16 0.79 0.42	08/55 08/95 08/84 07/89 09/96 08/99 07/00 08/75 10/72 10/72	193.5 250.5 29.2 81.7	.50 .52 .43 .43 .62 .54 .56 .67 .35	49.0 3.1 65.5 1.7 2.3 0.4 4.6 13.7 8.5	2.99 0.25 3.59 0.08 0.12 0.05 0.04 0.32 1.11 0.56
017012 017003 017005 018023 • 018017 • 018018 • 018008 018008 018015 018003 018019 •	Red Burn Bonny Water Avon Monachyle Monachyle Kirkton Burn Leny Eas Gobhain Teith Corner Burn	Castlecary Bonnybridge Polmonthili Up Monachyle Balquhidder Balquhidder Anie Loch Venachar Bridge of Teith Comer	25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 2	788780 824804 952797 480250 475230 532219 585096 602070 725011 387042	22.0 50.5 195.3 2.2 7.7 6.8 190.0 202.0 517.7 0.9	VA VA FV C VA TP VA CB	198600 197100 197100 198796 198296 1983-96 1973-00 1986-99 195700 1987-88	1258 1225 1034 2645 2575 2351 2382 2254 2053 2746	988 821 658 2238 2109 1970 2123 1131 1443 2908	270 404 376 407 466 381 259 1123 610	1257 1135 942 2717 2797 2343 2669 1512 1993 3399	90 90 94 90 90 86 90 88 90 88	767 495 333 1760 1655 1593 1551 742 919 2453	96 96 73 87 96 87 75 87 69 87	0.69 1.31 4.07 0.16 0.51 0.43 12.79 7.25 23.69 0.08	0.13 0.21 0.54 >0.00 0.01 0.03 0.34 2.61 3.14 0.01	07/89 08/83 08/75 08/95 06/82 08/83 08/84 08/95 08/84 06/88	59.2 89.9 183.2	.34 .45 .41 .14 .39 .37 .51 .43 .16	1.6 2.9 9.7 0.4 1.5 1.0 32.2 19.5 56.4 0.2	0.12 0.26 0.63 0.01 0.02 0.05 0.83 2.72 4.20 >0.00
018020 018021 018022 018016 018010 018011 018001 018005 018014 018007 *	Loch Ard Burn Loch Ard Burn Avon Dhu Kelty Water Forth Forth Allan Water Allan Water Bannock Burn Devon	Duchray Eirig Milton Clashmore Gargunock Craigforth Kinbuck Bridge of Allan Bannockburn Fossoway Bridge	NS N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N	468987 469987 503014 468968 714953 775955 792053 786980 812908 011018	0.9 1.5 44.5 2.7 397.0 1036.0 161.0 210.0 23.7 69.5	FLB FLB VA FL VA VA VA VA VA	199000 1990-00 199099 198600 1986-00 1981-00 1987-00 1971-00 1986-00 1986-01	2210 2204 2342 2249 1811 1921 1378 1359 1485 1758	1744 1631 1938 1332 1228 1486 1012 1025 1176 938	468 573 404 917 583 435 366 334 309 820	2263 1957 2634 1740 1428 1803 1295 1370 1473 1117	92 98 92 86 98 90 94 98 90 90	1373 1218 1535 1063 985 1051 674 641 901 738	96 95 87 96 75 75 96 87	0.05 0.08 2.73 0.11 15.46 48.83 5.16 6.82 0.88 2.07	>0.00 >0.00 0.26 >0.00 0.86 3.57 0.53 0.65 0.17 0.41	08/95 05/91 05/91 05/91 08/95 08/84 07/84 08/84 08/99 07/89	65.6 96.4	.20 .17 .46 .15 .33 .40 .45 .50 .52	0.1 0.2 7.0 0.3 41.7 120.3 11.6 15.7 2.0 4.9	>0.00 >0.00 0.21 >0.00 1.06 5.32 0.84 0.92 0.20 0.43

													-								
Station number	River name	Station name		Grid reference	Cotchment area	Station type	Period of record	Mean ann, rainfail (տո)	Mean ann. runoff (mm)	Mean ann, losa (mm)	Max. ann. runoff (mm)	Year of max.	Min, ann. runoff (mm)	Year of min.	Mean flow (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	Min. mon. flow (m ⁱ a*')	Month/Year of min.	Median ann. flood (^{m*} a ⁻¹)	Base Flow Index	10 Percentile (m³s¹¹)	95 Percentile (^{m1} s ⁻¹)
018002 018013 019020 019002 019003 019009 019005 019005 019017 019001 019012	Devon Black Devon Almond Almond Breich Water Bog Burn Almond Gogar Burn Almond War of Leith	Glenochil Fadd Mil Whitburn Almond Weir Breich Weir Cobbinshaw Almondell Turnhouse Craigiehall Colinton	NS N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N	858960 914924 948655 004652 014639 026591 086686 161733 165752 212688	181.0 56.2 30.3 43.8 51.8 8.5 229.0 38.8 369.0 72.0	VA CB MIS CB FL FV MIS VA FV	1959-00 1986-00 1986-00 1961-80 1963.00 1962-00 1986.00 1986.00 1986.00	1346 1038 1182 1091 949 998 992 836 919 1011	791 525 790 685 538 568 568 568 419 513 572	555 513 392 406 411 430 426 417 406 439	1184 691 1124 1009 751 790 898 600 760 782	98 98 00 62 85 00 98 00	425 397 544 412 328 301 267 266 247 413	73 89 96 73 75 73 73 96 73 89	4.54 0.94 0.95 0.88 0.15 4.11 0.51 6.00 1.30	0.75 0.13 0.04 0.05 >0.00 0.39 0.03 0.67 0.26	10/72 07/87 09/96 09/96 08/76 09/92 10/72 08/95 10/72 06/92	40.8 15.5 19.8 77.5 120.2	.54 .40 .29 .33 .31 .63 .35 .40 .39 .53	9.4 2.1 1.8 2.3 2.1 0.3 9.6 1.1 13.6 2.7	1.03 0.17 0.08 0.14 0.09 0.01 0.56 0.05 0.94 0.32
019006 019010 019004 019008 019021 019011 019007 020002 020004 020005	Wtr of Leith Braid Burn North Esk South Esk South Esk South Esk Esk W Peffer Brn Birns Water	Murrayfield Liberton Daimore Weir Prestonholm Cowbridge Dalkeith Palace Musselburgh Luffness Lochhouses Satioun Hall		228732 273707 252616 325623 338678 333678 339723 489811 610824 457688	107.0 16.2 81.6 112.0 136.0 137.0 330.0 26.2 31.1 93.0	VA C+C MIS C VA VA MIS VA	1963-00 196900 1960-00 1964-89 1998-00 196300 1962-00 1966-00 196793 196500	896 791 974 861 1017 932 862 621 609 752	436 333 600 377 477 507 404 159 208 324	460 458 374 484 540 425 458 462 401 428	651 705 866 576 529 764 606 317 444 474	00 00 85 00 93 98 85 84 00	155 113 303 114 406 222 156 11 15 98	73 73 73 99 73 73 73 73 73 73	1.48 0.17 1.55 1.34 2.36 2.20 4.23 0.13 0.20 0.95	0.26 0.02 0.25 0.28 0.62 0.47 0.84 >0.00 0.01 0.13	10/73 09/96 08/75 09/73 08/99 09/96 08/95 07/96 07/90 09/73	30.9 0.8 20.3 18.9 40.6 69.7 3.5 4.4 22.0	.49 .59 .54 .53 .53 .53 .47 .37 .48	3.0 0.3 3.3 2.7 4.6 4.3 8.8 0.3 0.4 1.9	0.35 0.03 0.35 0.33 0.56 0.97 0.01 0.01 0.18
020003 020007 020001 020006 021001 021028 021014 021018 021005 021019	Tyne Gifford Water Tyne Biel Water Fruid Water Menzion Bm Tweed Lyne Water Tweed Manor Water	Spilmesford Lennoxlove East Linton Belton House Fruid : Menzion Farm Kingledores Lyne Station Lyne Ford Cademuir	א זי א א א א א א א א א א א א א א א א א א א	456689 511717 591768 645768 088205 092234 109285 209401 206397 217369	161.0 64.0 307.0 51.8 23.7 5.7 139.0 175.0 373.0 61.6	VA VA TP TP VA VA VA	196500 1973-00 196100 1973-98 195968 1948-52 1961-00n 1968-00n 1968-00n	736 791 730 757 1744 1658 978 1340 1449	273 354 285 340 894 1123 1234 585 901 848	463 437 445 417 850 424 393 439 601	423 600 426 451 1066 1278 1612 857 1213 1126	00 63 83 63 50 90 00 00	72 98 73 96 770 874 719 288 509 419	73 73 73 66 52 73 73 73 73	1.39 0.72 2.78 0.56 0.67 0.20 5.44 3.25 10.66 1.66	0.20 0.10 0.43 0.12 0.10 0.03 0.52 0.50 1.26 0.23	08/76 07/92 08/95 08/95 06/61 07/49 08/95 08/95 08/95 08/84	31.2 15.3 48.9 14.7 19.1 124.3 24.7	.50 .57 .53 .62 .31 .44 .45 .58 .56 .58	2.8 1.4 5.5 0.9 1.8 0.4 9.3 6.5 20.0 3.5	0.27 0.15 0.56 0.14 0.12 0.03 0.91 0.69 2.04 0.30
021003 021030 021034 021020 021011 021017 021026 021007 021006 021013	Tweed Megget Water Yarrow Wtr Yarrow Wtr Yarrow Wtr Ettrick Water Tima Water Ettrick Water Tweed Gala Water	Peebles i Henderland Craig Douglas Gordon Arms Philiphaugh Brockhoperig Deephope Lindean Boleside Galashiels	NT NT NT NT NT NT NT NT	257400 231232 288244 309247 439277 234132 278138 486315 498334 479374	694.0 56.2 116.0 155.0 231.0 37.5 31.0 499.0 1500.0 207.0	VA FL VA VA VA VA VA VA	1959-00n 1968-00n 1968-00n 1967-00n 1965-00 1965-00 1973-00 1961-00n 1961-00n 1964-00	1221 1725 1631 1557 1418 1904 1763 1399 1235 961	779 1318 1178 1134 974 1591 1382 976 814 556	442 407 453 423 444 313 381 423 421 405	1068 1768 1542 1488 1263 2067 1786 1235 1083 751	00 90 90 90 82 90 82 90 82 00 98	405 750 627 619 507 896 1008 507 422 238	73 73 73 73 73 73 73 73 73 73	17.14 2.35 4.33 5.58 7.14 1.36 15.44 38.71 3.65	2.17 0.02 0.18 0.22 0.45 0.11 0.04 0.93 3.83 0.29	08/95 06/92 08/83 08/83 07/84 07/84 07/84 07/89 08/84 08/95	175.4 85.9 31.7 52.1 82.5 63.5 52.8 232.9 399.6 50.6	.56 .49 .49 .48 .47 .34 .26 .41 .52 .52	33.8 4.3 8.6 11.4 15.1 4.4 34.6 80.4 8.0	3.30 0.32 0.71 0.86 1.11 0.19 0.08 1.95 6.93 0.52
021015 021010 021012 021025 021024 021008 021021 021023 021009 021027	Leader Water Tweed Teviot Ale Water Jed Water Teviot Tweed Leet Water Tweed Blackadder	Earlston Dryburgh Hawick Ancrum Jedburgh Ormistion Mill Sprouston Coldstream Norham Mouth Bridge	NT NT NT NT NT NT NT	565388 588320 522159 634244 655214 702280 752354 89396 898477 826530	239.0 2080.0 323.0 174.0 139.0 1110.0 3330.0 113.0 4390.0 159.0	VA VA VA VA VA VA VA VA	1966-00 196080 1963-00 1972-00n 1971-00 1960-00 1969-00n 1970-00 1962-00n 1973-00	842 1098 1216 966 924 986 1052 659 996 762	449 643 854 505 523 565 633 237 580 343	393 455 362 461 401 421 419 422 416 419	626 827 1102 688 697 739 863 386 770 513	00 67 63 00 63 63 63 63 63 98 00 98	155 330 408 203 242 250 306 32 255 134	73 73 73 73 73 73 73 73 73 89	3.40 42.43 8.75 2.79 2.30 19.87 66.89 0.85 80.75 1.73	0.29 6.34 0.56 0.06 0.31 1.92 6.34 0.01 7.86 0.16	08/95 10/72 08/95 08/95 08/76 08/95 08/95 08/95 08/95	59.7 448.7 183.7 42.6 58.6 342.6 738.8 48.4 751.1 38.6	.50 .51 .43 .41 .46 .52 .35 .53 .50	7.4 92.4 19.9 6.6 5.2 44.0 145.6 2.0 169.7 3.5	0.45 8.08 1.01 0.22 0.40 2.80 10.62 0.02 14.25 0.26
021002 * 021004 * 021022 021016 ·	Whiteadder Watch Water Whiteadder Eye Water	Hungry Snout Watch Wtr Res Hutton Castle Eyemouth Milt	NT NT NT NT	663633 664566 881550 942635	45.6 10.7 503.0 119.0	MIS TP CC VA	1959 - 68 1965 - 68 1969 - 00n 1967 - 00	969 1031 802 711	694 383 411 326	275 648 391 385	1074 395 604 488	; 63 67 98 85	393 206 130 62	64 66 73 73	1.00 0.13 6.55 1.23	0.11 0.03 0.78 0.05	10/59 01/66 09/96 08/95	21.1 117.3 34.0	.51 .58 .53 .45	2.0 0.2 13.1 2.7	0.15 1.11 0.13

Hydron	netric St	atistics		Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (^{ma} a' ¹)	Peak flow (^{m³s-1})	Date of peak	Min. dally flow (^{m3} a ⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m³=^1)	50 Percentlle (m ^s e ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m ³ s ⁻¹)
013009 M.A: SEPA-E F.A.R: N Comment: Velocity-ar was affected by abstra-	C.A: 127.2 km ² FA): el control which until 1990 ficant spring snowmelt is puedeo so dece	85-95 1996 1997	1086 1173 1192 1279	108 110	913 997 859	109 94	3.68 4.01 3.46	153.9 53.6 71.1	19/10 1988 08/01 18/11	0.52 0.61 0.97	21/08 1995 19/08 12/10	7.5 8.7 7.3	2.53 2.47 1.79	0.68 1.08		
common. # No loresu	was arected by abstraction of gravel by farmers. Hows are natural. Significant spring showin common. # No forestry. Rough grazing. Uplands are peaty and flat. Valley sides are steep.							95 133	4.30 3.51 4.88	169.9 149.5	20/09 20/09	0.92 0.70 0.85	03/09 27/07	0.3 7.1 10.1	2.23 3.08	0.83
013002 M.A: SEPA-E F.A.R: N	Luther Wat Local No: 36 Level: 25m	er at Luther Bridge Sens.: 13.0 UE:	C.A: 138.0 km ² FAI:	82-95	897		495		2.17	72.4	01/12 1985	0.27	04/08 1982	4.4	1.43	0.38
Comment: Velocity-arr island d/s, but stage-di control at low flows. # moderate slopes. Low grazing at higher level	rea station with cableway. ischarge relation is regular Upper third of catchment ver 80% is on ORS, the Is; arable and cattle elsew	10m wide. Situation not i ty reviewed using routine is fairly steep (Grampian rest is metamorphic. Lar there.	deal due to bend u/s and gaugings. Stable bedrock Mountains), the rest has Id use: forest and rough	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	949 931 1133 916 1149	106 104 126 102 128	546 417 655 454 659	110 84 132 92 133	2.38 1.83 2.87 1.99 2.87	50.0 34.2 43.1 39.6 40.5	10/02 27/11 04/04 24/12 07/11	0.37 0.54 0.65 0.46 0.41	19/08 12/10 09/07 15/09 27/07	5.5 3.6 4.9 3.6 6.0	1.50 1.05 2.15 1.56 1.69	0.40 0.60 0.87 0.53 0.48

_
	Perlod	Rainfati (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m***)	Peek flow ("'e'")	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (^{m1} ** ¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (^{m1} s ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m ¹ s ^{*1})	95 Percentile (m ¹ e ⁻¹)
013007 North Esk at Logie Mill C.A: 732.0 km M.A: SEPA-E Local No: 48 Sens.: 10.0 F.A.R: SPI Level: 11m UE: FAI:	² 76- 9 5	1111		813		18.86	462.1	10/11 1984	2.03	06/09 1976	38.8	12.30	3.05
Comment: Compound Crump profile fibreglass weir, width 41m. Cableway - current met cabbration used. Daily flows of limited precision (based on single stage readings) from 175 to 44 derived from two nearby sites; high flows overestimated. Usually has significant spring snowme Minor abstractions for PWS and irrigation. Naturalised monthly flows available 1976-87. # Drail south-east flank of Grampians. Steeply sloping apart from lower 30% which is mostly Old Ri Sandstone, rest is igneous and metamorphic. Rough grazing on open moorland; cattle and arable lower levels.	ter 1996 83 1997 ett 1998 ns 1999 ed 2000 at	1078 1122 1281 1073 1401	97 101 115 97 126	857 767 975 743 1077	105 94 120 91 132	19.85 17.80 22.63 17.24 24.93	283.7 369.1 357.5 442.7 385.8	08/01 18/11 24/10 20/09 20/09	2.68 4.05 4.14 3.32 3.20	17/08 02/11 10/07 24/08 27/07	42.8 37.6 41.4 30.8 55.0	12.62 8.42 16.48 11.37 15.37	3.21 4.36 5.75 3.74 3.86
013012 South Esk at Gella Bridge C.A: 130.0 km M.A: SEPA-E Local No: Sens.: 13.9 F.A.R: N Level: m UE: FAI:	² 91-95	1449		1237		5.10	108.6	31/10 1991	0.52 :	18/08 1995	10.5	3.57	0.85
Comment: Velocity-area station located on straight reach between bridges. Bed and control a mixture of large boulders, sand and bedrock. Natural flows. Opened in 12/90 as part of South E: Flood Warning Scheme. Usually experiences significant spring snowmett. # Geology: predon nantly Datradian metamorphics. Long, narrow valley supporting rough grazing.	ne 1996 sk 1997 ni- 1998 1999 2000	1341 1452 1647 1356 1788	93 100 114 94 123	1279 1314 1464 1247 1715	103 106 118 101 139	5.26 5.42 6.04 5.14 7.05	68.6 93.4 50.6 76.1 64.2	09/01 20/11 04/04 20/09 20/09	0.58 0.96 1.48 0.93 1.11	18/08 09/08 09/07 04/09 07/08	12.6 12.1 12.4 8.8 15.7	3.54 2.71 4.39 3.74 4.46	0.70 1.22 1.83 1.11 1.41
013004 Prosen Water at Prosen Bridge C.A: 104.0 km M.A: SEPA-E Local No: 37 Sens.: 13.1 F.A.R: N Level: 109m UE: FAI:	² 85-95	1256		914		3.01	B7,1	25/10 1988	0.43	18/08 1995	6.1	2.19	0.65
Comment: Velocity-area station with cableway. 16m wide. Fairly stable rock and boulder contro Usually has significant spring snowmelt. # Metamorphic. Mostly rough grazing with about 20 forest cover.	ol. 1996 1% 1997 1998 1999 2000	1197 1255 1437 1191 1579	95 100 114 95 126	984 884 1082 854 1234	108 97 118 93 135	3.24 2.92 3.57 2.82 4.06	61.2 68.7 78.5 65.5 78.2	08/01 20/11 24/10 20/09 20/09	0.50 0.65 0.81 0.56 0.64	18/08 18/08 09/07 03/09 07/08	7.0 6.3 6.7 5.3 8.2	2.04 1.36 2.83 2.06 3.00	0.55 0.75 1.02 0.65 0.76
013008 South Esk at Brechin C.A: 488.0 km² M.A: SEPA-E Local No: 47 Sens.: 9.4 F.A.R: I Level: 18m UE: FAI:	² 83-95	1132		771		11.93	200.9	17/01 1993	1.21	26/08 1984	24.5	8.64	2.06
Comment: Velocity-area station with cableway. 20m wide. High flows can cut off access to the cableway. Summer flows can be affected by agricultural abstractions. Supersedes 1300 Stannochy Bridge (1979-82), 3km u/s. Usually has significant spring snowmelt. # A long narro catchment draining the SE flank of the Grampians. The upper 2/3 are steeply sloping. Land use: mix of rough grazing on open moortand, forestry and, at lower levels, arable. The lower half lies or ORS, the rest is metamorphic.	ne 1996 3, 1997 7w 1998 a 1999 on 2000	1073 1113 1303 1075 1435	95 98 115 95 127	801 724 927 708 997	104 94 120 92 129	12.36 11.21 14.34 10.95 15.39	122.2 169.8 153.2 134.5 124.5	08/01 20/11 04/04 20/09 09/10	1.51 2.29 2.74 2.03 2.24	19/08 26/08 10/07 04/09 27/07	27.3 26.4 27.8 21.0 30.6	8.07 5.27 10.93 7.88 10.95	1.70 2.52 3.68 2.38 2.89
013005 Lunan Water at Kirkton Mill C.A: 124.0 km² M.A: SEPA-E Local No: 39 Sens.: 12.9 EA.P.L Level: 9m LIE: EAI:	² 8195	780		405		1.59	32.4	26/09 1981	0.07	18/08 1995	3.6	0.88	0.17
Comment: Velocity-area station with cableway. 6m wide. Control at low and medium flows unstable gravel bed. # A moderately sloping catchment typically rising to 250m, divided in almo equal proportions between ORS and igneous rocks. Land use: pasture and arable.	is 1996 st 1997 1998 1999 2000	, 762 934 735 973	94 98 120 94 125	436 305 508 305 539	108 75 125 75 133	1.71 1.20 2.00 1.20 2.11	25.4 19.4 29.0 29.4 35.7	10/02 19/12 04/04 24/12 08/12	0.15 0.16 0.34? 0.17 0.10	06/08 03/10 07/07 09/08 06/08	4.1 2.7 3.6 2.6 5.0	0.80 0.53 1.38 0.73 1.01	0.19 0.18 0.45 0.22 0.19
013017 Colliston Burn at Colliston C.A: 8.4 km² M.A: SEPA-E Local No: Sens.: F.A.R: Level: m UE: FAI;	94-95	739		443		0.12	2.7	27/02 1994	>0.00	02/09 1994	0.3	0.04	>0.00
Comment: Velocity area station installed in Oct 1993 as part of flood warning scheme for Arbroatt Tipping bucket raingauage installed at site in Oct 1994. # Geology: Old Red Sandstone - local important aquifer, with Boulder Clay cover. Low lying catchment of subdued relief supportin agriculture. Entirely rural.	h. 1996 Ily 1997 1g 1998 1999 2000	719 754 926 725 944	97 102 125 98 128	440 395 635 362 524	99 89 143 82 118	0.12 0.11 0.17 0.10 0.14	2.6 2.5 3.4 4.0 5.8	10/02 27/11 16/10 24/12 08/12	>0.00 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01	18/08 07/08 07/07 04/08 26/07	0.3 0.2 0.4 0.3 0.3	0.04 0.02 0.08 0.03 0.05	0.01 0.01 0.03 0.01 0.01
013010 Brothock Water at Arbroath C.A: 50.0 km² M.A: SEPA-E Local No: Sens.: F.A.R: I Level: m UE: FAI:	89-95	655		299		0.47	14.4	07/10 1993	0.05	23/08 1995	1.0	0.24	0.08
Comment: Station opened as part of Arbroath flood warning scheme, faunched winter 1993/9. Station is located on straight reach, immediately u/s of road bridge. Bed is a vegetated mix of san and gravel, with high flows controlled by bridge. Debris thrown from bridge causes rating problem: # A gently-sloping, low-lying catchment, with fertile soils supporting a variety of crops and som forestry. Minor agricultural abstractions. Geology: mostly ORS with some lavas and tuffs.	4. 1996 nd 1997 s. 1998 ne 1999 2000	680 717 874 694 892	104 109 133 106 136	353 272 459 252 461	118 91 154 84 154	0.56 0.43 0.73 0.40 0.73	9.6 10.2 11.9 10.4 14.4	10/02 19/12 16/10 24/12 08/12	0.06 0.06 0.13 0.09 0.09	28/08 24/08 10/07 06/08 11/08	1.3 0.9 1.3 0.8 1.6	0.29 0.18 0.45 0.24 0.31	0.07 0.07 0.16 0.10 0.11
014007 Craigmill Burn at Craigmill) C.A: 29.0 km² M.A: SEPA-E Local No: Sens.: 55.0 F.A.R: SI Level: 11m UE: FAI;	87-95	783		332		0.31	12.2	31/03 : 1992	>0.00	18/08 1995	0.7	0.16	0.02
Comment: Velocity-area station. 5m wide. No cableway. Catibrated to 0.7m (medium flow). Ker weir control constructed Oct 1996 to attempt to make more sensitive at low flows. Previousi unstable silt and gravel control. Fairly slow flows. Weed growth is a problem. Abstractions fo irrigation. Recreational reservoirs (formerly PWS) affect flows when being cleaned out. # Lo- undulating catchment on ORS. Mainly used for arable farming.	rb 1996 ly 1997 or 1998 w 1999 2000	738 770 975 729 968	94 98 125 93 124	324 234 509 251 411	98 70 153 76 124	0.30 0.21 0.47 0.23 0.38	3.1 6.0 6.4 5.1 8.5	23/04 18/05 03/04 24/12 08/12	0.01 0.01? 0.03 0.01 >0.00	13/07 25/04 11/07 16/08 25/07	0.8 0.4 1.0 0.5 1.0	0.14 0.09 0.29 0.14 0.16	0.01 0.03 0.08 0.02 0.01
014002 Dighty Water at Balmossie Mill C.A: 126.9 km² M.A: SEPA-E Local No: Sens.: 13.3 B/full: 55.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: SI Level: 16m UE: FAI;	6995	779		377		1.52	35.0	31/03 1992	0.10	17/08 1995	3.3	0.92	0.23
Comment: Velocity-area station with cableway. 8m wide. Summer weed growth necessitate frequent revisions to the stage-discharge relation. Very flashy. # Gently sloping catchment except for the far N and W edges which drain 5 flank of Sidlaw Hills (up to 450m). The lower 10% is urbat (Dundee), the rest mainly arable. Geology: predominantly Devonian S'st.	es 1996 pt 1997 en 1998 1999 2000	734 744 997 748 922	94 96 128 96 118	388 286 510 294 493	103 76 135 78 131	1.56 1.15 2.05 1.18 1.98	15.0 15.9 21.7 19.6 21.9	07/01 18/12 04/04 24/12 06/11	0.19 0.28 0.36 0.21 0.21	19/09 02/10 11/07 04/09 11/08	3.7 2.4 3.6 2.6 4.5	0.97 0.69 1.61 0.81 1.17	0.21 0.30 0.52 0.25 0.28
014010 Motray Water at Kilmany C.A: 33.0 km² M.A: SEPA-E Local No: Sens.; F.A.R: I Level; m UE; FAI;	91-95	747		291		0.31	ˈ 11 . 8	31/03 : 1992	>0.00	08/08 1995	0.7	0.14	0.02
Comment: Station established to monitor spray irrigation abstractions in fertile area of NE Fife Banks to 1.5m will contain all flows; cobble bed is rather uneven but stable. A wooden foothridge u/ allows measurement of high flows > 2.1 m ³ s ⁻¹ . Abstractions for irrigation are mainly at a singl point and produce marked steps in the hydrograph. # Geology of intermediate/basic extrusives of Devonian/ORS age, with fertile soils supporting a variety of crops at lower levels.	e. 1996 /s 1997 /e 1998 of 1999 2000	683 709 893 715 865	91 95 120 96 116	246 227 396 217 337	85 78 136 75 116	0.26 0.24 0.41 0.23 0.35	1.7 2.3 5.7 2.6 3.8	18/12 2 20/12 05/04 24/12 08/12	>0.00 0.03 0.06? 0.02 0.02	09/08 08/08 10/07 11/08 06/08	0.7 0.6 0.9 0.6 0.8	0.17 0.11 0.23 0.13 0.21	0.01 0.04 0.08 0.03 0.05
014005 Motray Water at St Michaels C.A: 60.0 km² M.A: SEPA-E Local No: 3 Sens.: 18.7 F.A.R: I Level: m UE: FAI:	84-95	741		288		0.55	14.9	01/04 1992	0.05	29/06 1990	1.2	0.31	0.08
Comment: Velocity-area station 4m wide. No cableway; gauged from bridge. Controls: kerbstone at low flow, channel at medium flow, bridge at high flow. Kerb weir rebuilt in Nov 1995, statio recalibrated. Abstractions for irrigation. Also abstractions and discharges from sand and grave workings though these have little net effect on daily means. # Geology: ORS and igneous. Low undulating hills to about 250m. Arable and rough grazing.	s 1996 n 1997 al 1998 w 1999 2000	660 684 868 699 847	89 92 117 94 114	226 212 360 208 346	78 74 125 72 120	0.43 0.40 0.69 0.40 0.66	2.7 4.5 10.4 3.6 8.7	18/12 20/12 05/04 25/12 08/12	0.05 0.09 0.15? 0.08 0.10	19/08 09/08 28/06 09/08 08/08	1.0 0.9 1.4 0.9 1.4	0.31 0.22 0.39 0.26 0.40	0.06 0.10 0.18 0.10 0.13

.

						Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow ("'s"m)	Peak flow (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (mis.*)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m***)	50 Percentile (m*a*1)	95 Percentile (m'a'1)
014009 M.A: SEPA-E	Local No:	Eden at S	trathmiglo Sens.:	C.A: 26	6.0 km²	91-95	1002		585		0.48	25.5	16/01 1993	0.07	26/08 1995	0.9	0.31	0.09
F.A.R: N Comment: Velocity-a cobble bed with gra- recalibration. Strathmi only minor above stati Lomonds to S. Mixed	Level: 48m rea station. Al bu ssy island provid glo STW effluent ion). # Much of ca geology of ORS a	It highest flo ling control; (minor) bypa tichment is q ind various ig	UE: ws contained; by-p growth of vegeta sses station. Increa uite flat, with gentle meous types. Arabl	FAI: assing is very min tion necessitates sing spray intigatio hills rising to N an e agriculture at low	nor. Sand/ seasonal on d/s (but nd steeper wer levels,	1995 1997 1998 1999 2000	895 958 1162 1061 1182	89 96 116 106 118	482 489 711 618 808	82 84 122 106 138	0.40 0.40 0.59 0.51 0.66	12.4 9.7 11.8 12.4 17.2	28/10 20/02 13/11 28/02 08/12	0.07 0.07 0.11 0.10 0.10	19/09 31/10 29/09 23/08 30/07	0.8 0.8 1.1 1.1 1.2	0.28 0.26 0.36 0.31 0.42	0.08 0.05 0.15 0.12 0.13
014001 M.A: SEPA-E	Local No:	Eden at	Kemback Sens.: 8.4	C.A: 30 B/full: 47.	07.4 km² 0m³s ⁻¹	6795	795		395		3.85	71.3	11/02 1977	0.57	04/08 1989	8.0	2.52	0.93
F.A.K. SGEI Comment: Velocity abstractions and effit stage-discharge relati- use is mainly arable. ¹ north; some igneous (Level: 6m area station with vent returns. Sum on. # A gently slo Very mixed geolo plus Carboniferou	h cableway. nimer weed ping basin ly gy: Old Red is Limestone	DE: <.01 15m wide. Abst growth necessitate ing between the Ta Sandstone along th and sandstone to	FAI: 0.903 ractions for irrig: s frequent revisio y and Forth estua: he central valley; i the south.	9 ation; gw Ins to the ries. Land gneous to	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	750 806 979 821 991	94 101 123 103 125	368 365 506 395 536	93 92 128 100 136	3.58 3.56 4.93 3.85 5.21	23.1 32.2 52.6 33.7 54.8	03/12 20/02 03/04 11/12 06/11	0.90 1.18 1.46 1.10 0.92	17/08 04/11 31/08 04/09 08/08	7.9 7.3 9.4 8.1 10.2	2.81 2.36 3.52 2.69 3.89	0.96 1.23 1.67 1.17 1.07
015024 M.A: SEPA-E F.A.R: I	Local No: 40 Level: 130m	Dochari	at Killin Sens.: 9.8 UE:	C.A: 23 FAI;	39.0 km²	82-95	2817	74	2175	70	16.48	328.7	04/02 1990	0.28	15/08 1983	42.4	8.19	1.11
level d/s of station, c HEP, # A mountainou moortand with some i predominantly metam	rea station with ca utminating in the s, mainly steeply forestry at the hea iorphic. Adjacent	Dochart Fall sloping catcl ad of the cat to the IH exp	n wide, Stable bean is. Some exports to ament. Land use: m chment and along berimental Balquhid	but control, sharp the Loch Lyon s ainly rough grazing the valley bottom. der catchments.	g on open Geology:	1995 1997 1998 1999 2000	2522 2835 3193 2804	90 101 113 100	1876 2196 2460 2306	86 101 113 106	14.22 16.64 18.64 17.43	218.4 258.0 211.6 184.9	01/03 11/02 22/12 05/01	0.97 0.81 0.93 0.60	04/06 05/06 10/08 25/07	40.8 41.3 47.0 48.9	6.38 10.14 10.67 7.96	1.43 1.34 1.87 1.28
015016 M.A: SEPA-E F.A.R: H Comment: Velocity-a	Local No: Level: 100m real station with c	Tayati ableway 60r	Sens.: 6.4 UE: <.01 mwide: no control d	C.A: 60 B/full: 34.i FAI: 0.989 an main channet. 1	00.9 km² 0m³s ⁻¹ 9 120 sa km	7 4-95 1996	2252	78	2488 1842	74	47.40	369.1 184.4	17/01 1993 06/11	1.75 2.90	20/08 1984 24/09	100.8 73.2	36.69 29.25	6.50 5.02
controlled for HEP. W over Loch Tay (2km u flows available 1974-E valley bottom. Almost	ater imported from (s) can affect flow 37. # The catchmo all metamorphic.	m Lyon catcl s. Daily gaug ant is in the f Land use: r	ment - evident in v geboard readings 19 Grampians and is st ough grazing.	vater balance. Stro 359-74. Naturalise septy sloping exce	ong winds id monthly ept for the	1997 1998 1999 2000	2100 2411 2665 2416	93 107 118 107	2161 2593 3013 2915	87 104 121 117	41.18 49.41 57.41 55.40	239.6 199.5 227.8 209.3	02/03 12/02 24/12 07/01	5.78 5.01 8.66 3.66	26/07 05/06 12/08 28/07	83.1 102.0 111.6 140.4	27.13 40.81 46.13 42.51	8.43 7.73 12.11 7.75
015011 M.A: SEPA-E	Local No:	Lyon at Co	mrie Bridge Sens.: 5.4 •	C.A: 39 B/fuil: 370 EAI:	91.1 km²).0m³s ^{~1}	58-95	1990		976		12.10	377.9	04/02 1990	1.70	02/09 1976	27.0	7.15	2.97
Comment: Velocity pressure recorder (in: Banks 3.2m high cont HEP (major developm ramp readings: 6/37 tr catchment (Grampian (schist, quartzite and	area station with stalled 1972, star tain all flows. Tre- nent 1951-59) sto o 9/72. Naturalise mountains). Lan marble).	cableway. (t of peak fic es on banks rage in Loci ad monthly fi id use: roug	Driginally hydro-boa ws) to full network hinder flood gaugir hs Lyon, An Daimh ows available from h grazing and fores	and station, upgra status in 1983. 4 yg. 170 sq.km con and Stronuich. Tr 1973-87, # Steep stry. Geology: met	ided from forn wide, strolled for wice-daily bly sloping tamorphic	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1597 1959 2289 2353 2276	80 98 115 118 114	800 899 1045 1158 1144	82 92 107 119 117	9.90 11.15 12.96 14.36 14.15	166.6 239.6 156.0 235.3 220.5	08/01 17/02 11/02 22/12 05/01	2.79 2.76 2.94 2.55 2.88	23/09 19/08 09/07 23/08 22/07	22.9 23.6 26.9 30.1 34.0	5.92 5.73 8.46 8.87 7.88	2.89 2.93 3.45 3.03 3.31
015007 M.A: SEPA-E F.A.R: H	Local No: Level: 61m	Tay at F	Pitnacree Sens.: 4.4 UE: <.01	C.A: 11 B/full: 610 FAI: 0.960	149.4 km²).0m ³ s ⁻¹ 0	5795	1936		1557		56.76	732.3	16/01 1993	3.57	24/08 1984	114.3	43.95	12.77
Comment: Velocity-a catchment) controlled available from 1973 to Land use: mainly roug	rea station with ca l for HEP but no 1987. # Most of t gh grazing and fo	ableway, 70n further dev he catchmen restry, Geok	n wide. Unstable gra elopmet post-1960. It is steep, comprisir ogy: almost entirely	ivel bed. 293 sq.kr Naturalised mon ng mountains and i metamorphic.	m (25% of thly flows moortand.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1609 1926 2219 2385 2229	83 99 115 123 115	1294 1489 1773 2058 1955	83 96 114 132 126	47.05 54.26 64.63 75.01 71.04	310.0 476.8 305.3 426.9 398.6	06/11 01/03 26/12 23/12 05/01	6.36 10.00 11.50 12.93? 7.30	24/09 28/07 05/06 12/08 28/07	97.1 112.0 126.5 144.5 164.2	37.70 36.77 53.24 59.29 53.58	8.52 12.82 13.90 16.51 12.72
015038 M.A: SEPA-E	Local No:	Gaur at Bri	dge of Gaur Sens.:	C.A: 24	47.0 km²	92-95	2286		2086		16.34	373.7	16/01 1993	0.31	30/08 1995	34.9	9.49	1.23
Comment: Flood war right-hand bend, with dominated by dischar so runoff volumes una mountains (> 1000m)	The station with large boulders p ge from Gaur Pov iffected by HEP, #	cableway in rotruding fro ver Station ir Catchment	Tummel headwater m gravel bed. Larg nmediately u/s, how covers Rannoch Mit L Geology mostly o	rs. Stable section e floods contained rever, no imports o cor (300m) and su ranitic	on gentle d. Flow is or exports irrounding	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1623 2108 2442 2325 2233	71 92 107 102 98	1229 1674 1941	59 80 93 93	9.60 13.11 15.20	115.7 251.8 165.7	06/11 01/03 11/02	0.96 1.40 1.26 0.66	24/08 26/08 01/10 24/08	28.6 30.1 32.1 40.3	4.39 6.17 9.24 8.42	1.19 1.90 1.67
015039 M.A: SEPA-E	Local No:	Tilt at Ma	ble Lodge Sens.: 10.8	C.A: 16	65.0 km²	92-95	1421	•••	1384		7.24	253.7	16/01 1993	0.87	21/08 1995	15.3	4,44	1.21
F.A.R: N Comment: Velocity a high flow controls are : gauge hut and acce: estimated. # Geology grazing.	Level: 238m rea station, with (shoals and rock si ss road. All flow y: Moinian and f	cableway, in teps, respect s contained Dalradian M	UE: a straight reach, 1 ively. Steep rb exte . Natural catchmer etamorphics. Land	FAI: 7m wide, Separate nds up a hillside; It nt, Rainfatt may t use: predominan	e low and b contains be under- htly rough	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1079 1275 1444 1493 1510	76 90 102 105 106	1120 1231 1434 1455 1592	81 89 104 105 115	5.84 6.44 7.50 7.61 8.31	148.9 177.0 109.9 144.6 134.0	08/01 01/03 22/04 22/12 30/01	0.98 0.92 1.62 1.19 0.96	19/09 26/08 09/07 24/08 24/07	14.9 13.9 14.7 16.6 21.0	3.30 3.28 5.00 4.75 5.14	1.10 1.18 1.93 1.46 1.26
015012 M.A: SEPA-E	Local No:	Tummel a	t Pitłochry Sens.: 3.2	C.A: 16	670.0 km²	73-95	1568		1386		73.39	1049.0	16/01 1993	12.68	02/09 1976	145.0	55.14	18.98
F.A.R: H Comment: Original s (1649 sq.km) in 1978. Data 9/9/93-11/4/95 e with cableway, below major storage in Loct 19 m^3s^{-3} . Naturalise (Grampians >1000m)	Level: 74m site 15804 Balink . Control scoured est. from 15045. S Faskally Dam. U: is Ericht, Rannoc di monthly flows). Land use: main	ig (1720 so by Jan 1993 Superseded sed for flood h, Tummel a from 1973- ily rough gra	UE: ,km) moved 8km 8 flood, low flow lev by Pitlochry 700 m warning. Entire cat and Faskally. Flows 87. # Most of cat uzing and forestry.	FAI: u/s to 15012 Por els thence below i d/s on 11/4/95. V ichment controlled ; maintained abov tchment is steepl Geology; metamo	t-na-craig inlet pipe. A station, I for HEP; e approx. ly stoping wphic.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1184 1514 1715 1748 1722	76 97 109 111 110	1026 1194 1435 1649 1570	74 66 104 119 113	54.18 63.25 76.01 87.35 82.92	478.3 744.2 292.6 570.8 555.0	06/11 01/03 24/10 30/11 07/01	11.19 19.17 18.41 19.72 19.43	27/09 26/08 28/09 23/08 29/06	119.5 137.6 144.4 160.8 189.1	45.51 38.76 64.94 73.50 64.67	13.95 20.10 19.50 20.67 19.86
015023 M.A: SEPA-E	Local No: 46	Braan at	Hermitage Sens.: 12.9	C.A: 21	10.0 km²	83-95	1496		1059		7.05	244.2	29/03 1993	0.18	28/08 1984	16.6	4.00	0.52
F.A.R: N Comment: Velocity-a weir, is sometimes alt are natural, # Catchm open moorland with metamorphic with glad	rea station with c ered by children, ent is in the Gran rough grazing; cial Drift in lower	ableway, 30 Supersedes ipians (> 80 forestry is catchment.	m wide. The low fit Ballinloan (15017) Om) and has steep being developed	EAL: ow control, a dere 5km u/s (197 sq.kr or moderate slope (25% in 1992).	elict stone m). Flows es. Mainly Geology:	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1249 1366 1556 1630 1638	63 91 104 109 109	897 955 1097 1157 1175	85 90 104 109 111	5.96 6.36 7.31 7.71 7.80	114.6 181.0 96.6 146.6 150.2	08/01 19/02 24/10 20/09 19/09	0.30 0.58 0.73 0.53 0.48	20/09 09/08 11/07 05/09 27/07	14.9 15.7 15.4 17.4 17.4	3.59 2.68 4.82 3.91 5.10	0.37 0.79 1.24 0.74 0.69
015003 M.A: SEPA-E	Local No:	Tay at	Caputh Sens.: 3.3	C.A: 32	210.0 km²	4795	1627		1356		138.00	1873.0	17/01 1993	8.07	12/08 1955	271.2	106.70	35.89
F.A.N: SH Comment: Velocity-a developed from 1930: readings from 7/37, cc flood flow for 17/2/50 (flows expected. # Mo forestry. Geology: m Rannoch, Tummel an	Level: 36m rea station with c s to 1957. Substa ontinuous from 10 1503 m ³ s ⁻¹) is to st of catchment e costly metamorph d Tay.	ableway, 95 antial surface (51, Monthly be revised, f steep; mount lics and gr	UE: <.01 m wide. 62% of cat e storage. Net wate naturalised data an Recalibration unden ains and moorfand anites. Numerous	FAI: 0.869 chment controlled ir import. Twice di vaitable 1973-87. I way, signif. change . Mainly rough gra lochs, largest ai	e I for HEP; aily stage Estimated es to peak azing and re Ericht,	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1322 1619 1847 1929 1865	81 100 114 119 115	1091 1283 1556 1765 1723	80 95 115 130 127	110.74 130.64 158.36 179.69 174.87	761.0 1238.0 604.5 977.2 926.9	06/11 01/03 03/01 23/12 05/01	18.30 30.58 33.79 36.23 29.16	23/09 29/07 10/07 12/08 28/07	230.3 268.2 300.0 343.7 392.7	95.56 86.56 131.21 144.38 138.90	24.99 33.63 38.66 40.82 35.57

			Perlod	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m ¹ a' ¹)	Peak Now (m'e'')	Date of peak	Min. daily Now (^{m1} ** ¹)	Date of min,	10 Percentile (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m ¹ a ⁺⁺)	95 Percentile (m³e**)
015010 Isla at We: MA: SEPA-E Local No: F.A.R: P1 Level: 42m	ster Cardean Sens.: 8.2 UE: <.01	C.A: 366.5 km² B,fu#: 57.0m³s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.959	72-95	1117		646		7.51	158.7	17/01 1993	0.83	17/08 1995	15.8	4.94	1.49
Comment: Velocity-area station with cableway. 25 Backing-up can effect the rating. Significantly infl Reservoirs (supply for Dundee). Appreciable net e 1973 to 87, # Catchment lies on S edge of Gram Land use: rough grazing and forestry in uplands, ca rest is metamorphic and igneous.	m wide. Upgraded to full ne benced by Loch of Lintra sport. Naturalised monthal pians (> 1000m) and is m ttle and arable in lowlands.	twork status in 1984. then and Blackwater flows available from ainly steeply sloping. Southern 35% is a'st,	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1057 1104 1308 1123 1367	95 99 117 101 122	629 573 798 618 868	97 89 124 96 134	7.29 6.66 9.27 7.19 10.06	95.8 104.1 115.0 116.0 131.7	08/01 20/11 01/09 20/09 20/09	1.24 1.55 1.88 1.51 1.41	20/09 19/08 10/07 04/09 25/07	16.2 15.3 18.4 14.2 22.1	4.85 3.32 6.85 4.98 5.72	1.29 1.74 2.45 1.86 1.74
015008 Dean Water M.A: SEPA-E Local No: F.A.R: EI tevel: 45m	r at Cookston Sens.: 11.8 UE: .01	C.A: 177.1 km² B/full: 52.0m³s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.992	5895	840		462		2.59	39.9	23/10 1960	0.38	05/08 1982	5.5	1.67	0.60
Comment: Velocity-area station with cableway. 10 Forfar discharges treated effluent into Forfar Loch is ista. Naturalised monthly flows available 1973-87. drains N flank of Sidlaw Hills (350m). Land use: m (Forfar) around head of main channel. Geology: n	m wide. Weed growth is a n the upper catchment; this # Gently sloping catchmen ainly arable. Predominant early all ORS.	problem. The town of is an import from the nt except for S which y rural, but urbanised	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	764 781 991 767 1009	91 93 118 91 120	512 400 624 410 643	111 87 135 89 139	2.87 2.25 3.50 2.30 3.60	25.0 20.2 27.9 23.8 25.4	07/01 18/12 04/04 24/12 08/12	0.49 0.69 0.68 0.57 0.49	05/08 31/10 11/07 03/09 22/07	6.6 5.2 6.2 5.2 8.2	1.84 1.32 2.62 1.48 2.18	0.56 0.73 0.90 0.60 0.60
015030 Dean Water M.A: SEPA-E Local No: F.A.R: Level: m	at Dean Bridge Sens.: UE:	C.A: 230.0 km² FAI:	90-95	815		458		3.34	60.2	16/01 1993	0.39	12/08 1995	7.2	1.91	0.63
Comment: Velocity-area station 12m wide. Cab effauent into Forfar Loch in the upper catchment; t Gently sloping catchment except for the S which d mainly arable. Predominantly rural, but urbanised	leway. The town of Forfa his is an import from the Is rains N flank of Sidlaw Hills (Forfar) around head of th	r discharges treated sta. # Geology: ORS. s (350m). Land use is e main channel.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	752 765 988 785 989	92 94 121 96 121	517 402 628 416 647	113 88 137 91 141	3.76 2.94 4.58 3.03 4.70	34.8 26.7 51.9 37.7 33.5	07/01 18/12 04/04 24/12 08/12	0.52 0.72 0.83 0.63 0.58	05/08 08/10 11/07 11/08 22/07	9.3 7.6 8.6 7.3 11.2	2.26 1.61 3.20 1.85 2.75	0.62 0.76 1.11 0.68 0.77
015014 Ardie at M.A: SEPA-E Locai No: 29 F.A.R: N Level: 248m	Kindrogan Sens.: 8.4 UE:	C.A: 103.0 km ² FAI:	85-95	1303		988		3.23	87.5	19/10 1988	0.19	04/08 1989	7.4	1.94	0.43
Comment: Velocity-area station. 14m wide, Gaug gravel control. Natural flows. # Mountainous ca outcrops. Steep slopes. Mainly rough grazing. Incl	ed from bridge; cableway : itchment on metamorphic reasing forestry (10% of ca	planned. Boulder and rock with some l'st atchment in 1992}.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1037 1172 1309 1316 1384	80 90 100 101 106	924 939 1073 1120 1251	94 95 109 113 127	3.01 3.07 3.51 3.66 4.08	63.3 65.5 51.5 70.2 90.4	08/01 01/03 01/09 20/09 20/09	0.33 0.39 0.49 0.49 0.32	19/09 26/08 07/07 24/08 24/07	8.0 6.9 7.4 7.9 9.4	1.81 1.35 2.28 2.21 2.63	0.35 0.54 0.61 0.56 0.44
015025 Ericht a M.A: SEPA-E Local No: 49 E A P: N Lovel: 76m	t Craighail Sens.: 9.1 UF:	C.A: 432.0 km ²	85-95	1258		948		12.99	381.0	16/01 1993	0.96	17/08 1995	28.5	8.61	1.87
Comment: Velocity-area station with cableway. natural. # Mountainous steeply sloping catchmen grazing with a small amount of forestry.	46m wide, Stable bedroc t on metamorphic rock. U	k control. Flows are lsed mainly for rough	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1049 1160 1313 1259 1361	83 92 104 100 108	864 840 999 990 1136	91 89 105 104 120	11.81 11.51 13.69 13.56 15.52	190.0 185.9 142.4 227.7 253.1	08/01 20/11 01/09 20/09 20/09	1,11 1,65 2,02 1,76 1,60	20/09 26/08 10/07 04/09 25/07	27.5 27.0 29.2 26.6 33.5	7.86 5.01 9.86 9.49 11.24	1,41 2,13 3,04 2,26 2,14
015021 Lunan Bur M.A: SEPA-E Local No: 19 E A P: IN Level: m	n at Mill Bank Sens.: 14.0	C.A: 94.0 km ²	84-95	937		503		1.50	16.8	17/01 1993	0.05	16/08 1995	3.4	1.06	0.14
Comment: Velocity-area station, 7.5m wide. No e under a bridge; bridge is high flow control. Not gau abstractions for irrigation, # Undulating hilly catch rough grazing with some natural woodlands. Five	ged at very high flows, HIF ment to about 400m. Mixe small natural lochs in the o	bed control (old ford) record patchy. Minor ed arable farming and catchment.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	842 881 1082 967 1080	90 94 115 103 115	476 417 624 574	95 83 124 114	1.41 1.24 1.86 1.71	8.3 8.4 10.9 9.7	09/01 02/03 25/10 09/12	0.08 0.19 0.39 0.16	24/09 07/08 11/07 30/07	3.1 3.4 3.6 3.7	1.18 0.67 1.39 1.26	0.11 0.23 0.49 0.24
015006 Tay at M.A: SEPA-E Local No: F.A.R: SPIH Level: 26m Comment: Velocity-area station with cableway. 90	Ballathie Sens.: 1.8 UE: <.01 m wide. The most d/s statio	C.A: 4587.1 km ² B/full: 620.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.890 on on the Tay, records	5295 1996	1455 1207	83	11 36 990	67	1 65.20 143.58	2268.0 874.1	17/01 1993 06/11	11.45 23.07	06/08 1955 23/09	327.4 297.2	130.00 119.98	43.00 30.58
highest mean flow in UK. Since end of 1957, 1980 : control prior to this. 73 sq.km controlled for water a mountains and moorfand; exceptions are lower vall mainly metamorphics and granite, but lower 20%	sq.km (43%) controlled for supply. # Catchment is mo eys. Mainly rough grazing a (Isla Valley) is Old Red Sa	HEP; there was some stly steep, comprising and forestry. Geology; andstone.	1997 1998 1999 2000	1431 1651 1667 1669	98 113 115 115	1093 1339 1451 1472	96 118 128 130	158.95 194.72 210.99 213.54	1363.0 742.0 1106.0 1022.0	01/03 24/10 24/12 05/01	38.66 40.46 43.04 35.84	19/08 10/07 12/08 25/07	343.7 363.6 401.9 474.7	102.04 161.49 172.16 172.24	41.40 47,23 46.85 42.65
015027 Garry Bur M.A: SEPA-E Local No: F.A.R: (Level: m	n at Loakmili Şens.: 35.3 UE:	C.A: 20.0 km ² FAI:	87-95	1018		631		0.40	18.8	16/01 1993	0.01	16/08 1995	0.9	0.22	0.04
Comment: Velocity-area station. 4m wide. No cat control formed from sleepers in a Flat V configur Significant abstractions for irrigation. # Moderate metamorphic and ORS. Land is used for mixed fa	xleway; high flows gauged ation; bridge is high flow d ly sloping catchment risin rming.	from bridge. Low flow control. Fully gauged, g to 400m. Geology:	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	954 989 1170 1071 1171	94 97 115 105 115	545 593 844 632 706	86 94 134 100 112	0.34 0.38 0.53 0.40 0.45	3.9 9.8 7.4 10.4 4.5	28/10 19/02 24/10 24/12 08/12	0.01 0.03 0.067 0.03 0.03	13/09 26/08 10/07 03/09 27/07	0.9 0.9 1.1 0.9 1.0	0.23 0.19 0.36 0.21 0.29	0.02 0.04 0.09 0.04 0.04
015028 Ordie Bur M.A: SEPA-E Local No: 1 E.A.B.: (Level: m	n at Luncarty Sens.: 10.7	C.A: 54.0 km²	88-95	1027		638		1.09	53.5	16/01 1993	0.03	16/07 1989	2.5	0.60	0.09
Comment: Velocity-area station with cableway, provides a stable control at all flows; the weir off catchment rising to 400m. Geology: metamorphic	7m wide. Fully rated. Ok take has been closed off. and ORS. Land is used to	d mill weir 1,5m high # Moderately sloping or mixed farming.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	937 964 1152 1065 1159	91 94 112 104 113	579 637 853 689 805	91 100 134 108 126	0.99 1.09 1.46 1.18 1.37	16.6 29.8 22.6 38.1 17.2	28/10 19/02 13/11 24/12 08/12	0.03 0.09 0.13 0.08 0.08	19/09 25/08 11/07 24/08 21/07	2.5 2.6 3.0 2.7 3.1	0.61 0.55 0.92 0.63 0.94	0.05 0.14 0.21 0.12 0.11
015015 Almond at MA: SEPA-E Local No: 22	Newton Bridge Sens.; 12.3	C.A: 84.0 km ²	86-95	1757		1195		3.18	134.5	18/10 1988	0.21	23/08 1995	7.0	1.82	0.45
Camment: Velocity-ere station with cableway, stones. 30 sq.km controlled for HEP otherwise na catchment on metamorphic rock. Rough grazing v	15m wide. Stable control tural regime - very flashy. with hardly any forestry.	# Steep mountainous	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1540 1597 1898 2020 2012	88 91 108 115 115	985 992 1156 1281 1260	82 83 97 107 105	2.62 2.64 3.08 3.41 3.35	68.7 91.5 53.1 155.1 101.0	08/01 19/02 24/10 20/09 05/01	0.28 0.37 0.55 0.42 0.40	20/09 18/08 11/07 24/08 27/07	6.1 5.3 6.2 8.1 7.8	1.63 1.39 2.03 1.89 2.11	0.31 0.50 0.64 0.51 0.51
015013 Almond at M.A: SEPA-E Local No: F.A.R: PH Level: 20m	: Almondbank Sens.: 10.9 UE: <.01	C.A: 174.8 km ² B/full: 195.0m ³ s ¹ FAI: 0.996	5 5-95	1452		948			233.2	16/01 1993	0.14	01/08 1955	11,6	3.18	0.71
Comment: Velocity-area station with cableway. 1 73. Very flashy. Lowest Tay tributary above til abstraction from Fendoch Burn for water supply. # Long narrow catchment draining Glen Almond in sloping. Rough grazing in upper parts, some cattl	5m wide, Daily read gauge dal limit. 30 sq.km contro Naturalised monthly flows SE of Grampians (>900m e in the lower. 2/3 is metai	board from 1/55 to 1/ olled for HEP, Minor available from 1973.). Upper 2/3 is steeply morphic; rest is s'st.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1328 1358 1643 1682 1710	91 94 113 116 118	827 890 1055 1065 1091	87 94 111 112 115	4.57 4.93 5.85 5.90 6.03	83.4 130.6 91.1 225.3 112.1	26/10 19/02 01/09 20/09 05/01	0.41 0.80 0.93 0.79 0.71	20/09 09/08 10/07 24/08 25/07	10.8 10.2 12.4 12.2 13.0	3.04 2.77 3.99 3.56 3.99	0.49 0.99 1.13 0.94 0.94

۰,

-

:

						Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	3+1+3% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	Park flow (ⁿ³ -')	Date of peak	Min. dally flow (m*e'')	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m'a'')	50 Percentile (m²a'1)	95 Percentile (m ¹ a'')
016003 M.A: SEPA-E F.A.R: N	R Local No: Level: 62m	uchill Water	at Cultybraggan Sens.: 15.2 UF: < 01		C.A: 99.5 km ² B/full: 159.4m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 1.000	70_ 9	i 2048	I	1596		5.04	250.4	13401 1975	0.09	25/08 1954	12,7	2.34	0.34
Comment: Velocity-a gauging. Flows are na rough grazing and ar geological fault: sand	rea station with atural. # A mount my ranges. This stone (40%) to i	cableway, 20 tainous catol ik peat on th ts south, me	m wide. Flashiness iment with steep si e flatter hill tops. J tamorphic (60%) to	s and rem lopes. Lan Main chan b its north.	nteness hinder flood id is used mainly for mel follows a major	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1763 1989 2284 2343 2176	86 97 112 114 106	1485 1566 1898 1927 1858	93 98 119 121 116	4.68 4.94 5.99 6.08 5.85	144.8 229.4 163.9 169.3 114.0	11/03 19/02 20/10 28/11 05/01	0.22 0.38 0.52 0.38 0.36	20/09 18/08 05/06 24/08 27/07	12.8 11.7 12.7 15.7 15.9	2.29 2.07 3.37 2.86 2.93	0.24 0.46 0.69 0.62 0.56
016001 M.A: SEPA-E	Local No:	Earn at K	sens.: 7.6		C.A: 590.5 km ² 8/full: 147.7m ³ s ⁻¹	48-95	1517	,	1169	':	21.89	357.7	16/01 1993	0.72	06/08 1955	48.4	14.86	2.93
F.A.R: PH Comment: Velocity-a which bypass gauged Turret used for PWS, slopes plus extensive grazing in W. Metamo	Level: 15m rea station with section. Weed (Monthly natura flatter areas in orphic in W; s'st	cableway, 35 prowth can be lised flows an lower parts, elsewhere w	UE: <.01 m wide. An allowan a problem. 189 so raitable 1963-87, # Mixed agricuttural ith Onft in valley. F	nce is mad q.km contr # Drains S use in E; Roughly 5	FAI: 0.952 le for any high flows offed for HEP. Loch i Grampians. Steep forestry and rough 0% pervious.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1392 1519 1757 1831 1757	92 100 116 121 116	1133 1146 1394 1506 1461	97 98 119 129 125	21.16 21.45 26.10 28.20 27.27	152.9 257.9 240.9 230.4 211.9	28/10 19/02 20/10 28/11 05/01	2.52 2.98 3.39 3.027 3.17	12/09 19/08 04/06 24/08 25/07	48.6 50.9 51.8 58.1 58.6	15.54 11.75 21.76 19.64 20.45	3.01 3.38 4.07 3.97 3.74
016007 M.A: SEPA-E	R Local No:	uthven Wate	sens.: 15.9		C.A: 50.0 km ²	90-95	1387		858		1.35	46.5	, 14/01 1993	0.11	26/08 1991	3.0	0.77	0.23
Comment: Velocity-a Gleneagles and Auch side of the Ochil Hilts.	Level: 25m area station, 9r terarder, Largé Land use: mixe	n wide, with floods bypas od grazing an	UE: cableway. Water s the station. # Ge ki arable.	r imported ology: Lon	FAI: J through STW at wer ORS. Drains N	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1166 1255 1606 1522 1530	84 90 116 110 110	724 753 987 960 1109	84 88 115 112 129	1.14 1.19 1.56 1.52 1.75	16.9 30.4 25.9 34.5 27.4	28/10 19/02 24/10 24/12 26/04	0.18 0.24 0.33 0.25 0.27	17/09 26/08 30/08 03/09 25/07	2.6 2.7 3.1 3.5 3.7	0.77 0.62 1.07 0.87 1.23	0.20 0.27 0.39 0.28 0.32
016004 M.A: SEPA-E F.A.R: PH	Local No:	Earn at For	teviot Bridge Sens.: 6.1 UE: <.01	ł	C.A: 782.2 km ² B/full: 130.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.961	7295	1482		1140		28.27	415.0	16/01 1993	2.12	26/07 1984	64.9	18.29	3.45
Comment: Velocity-a Cableway too close to HEP. Loch Turret use southern Grampians. the valley. Steep slop lowland east; forestry	rea station. 50m bridge. Big flow d for PWS. Natu Metamorphics d es plus extensiv and rough grazi	i wide, Rebui ods (>70 yea iralised mont lominant in w e flatter area ing in west.	itt with cableway in ar RP) bypass stat hly flows available rest, sandstones in s in lower catchme	n 1991. Br son. 189 s from 1975 n the east; ent. Mixed	idge forms control. eq.km controlled for 5 to 1987. # Drains substantial Drift in I agricultural use in	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1300 1420 1665 1707 1650	88 96 112 115 111	1034 1075 1345 1418 1371	91 94 118 124 120	25.58 26.68 33.37 35.17 33.90	196.6 308.7 253.4 274.2 234.1	28/10 02/03 21/10 24/12 05/01	3.08 4.24 5.04 3.87 3.79	13/09 19/08 08/07 24/08 25/07	59.0 62.2 67.9 78.3 76.9	18.70 14.10 25.61 23.71 25.13	3.88 4.75 5.92 4.90 4.56
017015 M.A: SEPA-E	Local No: 61	North Quei	ich at Lathro Sens.:		C.A: 23.1 km ²	87-95	1263		1027		0.75	35.0	16/01 1993	0.03	24/07 1989	1.8	0.38	0.07
F.A.R: N Comment: Velocity-au gauged accurately at I mainly arable catchrine	Level: 114m rea station, Fain high flows, Insta ant with some sh	y stable cont lied to asses leep farming	UE: rol dominated by s s inflows to Loch L on the higher grou	f harp bend even, Flor und,	FAI: I d/s of station. Not ws are natural. # A	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1115 1202 1563 1417 1511	88 95 124 112 120	786 921 1182 1021 1198	77 90 115 99 117	0.57 0.67 0.87 0.75 0.87	15.3 6.0d 7.1d 6.9d	28/10 25/10 28/02 26/04	0.05 0.13 0.08 0.09	04/08 20/06 03/09 22/07	1.3 1.2 1.7 1.8 1.9	0.32 0.34 0.55 0.44 0.52	0.05 0.15 0.17 0.09 0.11
017008 M.A: SEPA-E F.A.R: N	, Local No: 64	South Quel	ch at Kinross Sens.:	E	C.A: 33.6 km² B/full: 104.9m³s ⁻¹	88-95	1249		948		1.01	126.8	16/01 1993	0.09	09/08 1989	2.1	0.51	0.12
Comment: Velocity-a contained. Not rated a (apart from effect of a these had a minor infli	rea station with t high flow (typic pricultural drains uppose # Rural (h stable cor al high flows Ige); previou: atchment	trol. U/s of road probably accurate sly contained sand	bridge. / to within 2 and grave	All recorded flows 20%). Natural flows el workings though	1996 1997 1998 1999	1078 1175 1525	86 94 122 113	818	86	0.87	20.0 17.64	20/02	0.15	26/08	1.9	0.41	0.17
017018	Gree	ens Burn at	Damleys Cottage		C.A: 10.5 km ²	2000	1479	118	1079	• 114	1.15	9.7d	26/04	0.11	30/07	2.5	0.65	0.13
M.A: SEPA-E F.A.R: Comment: Flat V weir. laval, Responsive regi	Local No: Level: m . Upstream of lar me. Research s	ge capacity of the station of the st	Sens.: UE: ulvert - allows weir	F r to operation	FAI: e as control to high ven (objective is to	1996 1997												
assess phosphorus ar below headwaters in th	nd other nutrien he Lornond Hills	t loadings). ‡ _	∉ Relatively flat, in	ntensively	farmed catchment	1998 1999 2000	1212 1119 1251		605 553 633		0.20 0.18 0.21	1,7d 1.6d 1.7d	03/04 28/02 08/12	0.06 0.04 0.02	26/09 10/08 20/07	0.4 0.4 0.4	0.15 0.14 0.16	0.07 0.04 0.05
017016 M.A: SEPA-E F.A.R: GI	L Local No: 54 Level: 76m	ochty Burn	at Whinnyhall Sens.: UE:	F	C.A: 14.0 km ²	8695	909		536		0.24	9.5	23/01 1993	0.01	27/07 1 994	0,4	0.17	0.08
Comment: Concrete F control was a gabion v opencast coal mine; th	lat V weir situat veir 5m d/s of th is has a signific	ed under a b he bridge. Th ant influence	idge which will cor e site is immediate on flows, particula	ntain all fic any cl/s of t any as a m	ows. Until 1991 the , the large Westfield esult of gw issuing	1996 1997 1998	778 688 1098	86 98 121	388 399	72 74	0.17 0.18	3.0 7.9	03/12 20/02	0.01 0.02	02/10 08/08	0.3 0.3	0.13 0.12	0.05 0.06
from breached faults. #	≠ Calchment is (cominated by	opencast coal mil	neu/soft	the station.	1999 2000	982 1147	108 126	318 445	59 83	0.14 0.20	1.9d 4.1d	28/02 06/11	0.01 0.01	03/09 29/07	0.3 0.4	0.08 0.12	0.02 0.01
017004 M.A: SEPA-E F.A.R: El	Local No: 42 Level: 23m	Ore at Bat	four Mains Sens.: UE:	E F	C.A: 162.0 km² 3/full: 26.3m³s ⁻¹ Al:	7295	883		404		2.08	52.8	10/02 1977	0.09	21/08 1973	4.5	1.36	0.28
comment: Open river railway embankment f moderately affected by outlet. # The catchmer rocks. Land use: arabit	section with sta forms the rb, w pumping from c nt is in the coal a farming.	ible rock bar hilst the lb i: xollieries. May mining area	low flow control, h s steep to the floo y 1994 flows affect of W Fife and is a	as shown odplain at ted by wor composed	Instability at rb. A 1.6m. Low flows k at the Loch Fitty of Carboniferous	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	771 891 1107 975 1132	87 101 125 110 128	320 379 575 423 543	79 94 142 105 134	1.64 1.95 2.95 2.18 2.78	17,1 22.4 22.0d 13.3d 20.0d	03/12 20/02 03/04 03/12 07/11	0.29 0.44 0.77 0.41 0.44	02/10 03/10 30/08 22/08 30/07	3.4 4.2 5.6 4.5 5.6	1.10 1.25 2.27 1.44 2.04	0.35 0.52 0.98 0.55 0.52
017002 M.A: SEPA-E F.A.R: SRFL	Local No: 41	Leven a	t Leven Sens.: 8.3	B	C.A: 424.0 km ² /full: 660.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6995	936		476		6.39	128.0	10/02 1977	0.40	27/07 1974	13.7	4.53	1.09
Comment: River section was formerly a gravel Possible movement in c	n in a straight rea bar, now stabili	ach with artific ised with gat	xally heightened and xions to form an ir	d steeped rregular bi	banks. The control road-crested weir.	1996 1997	861 966	92 103	367 576	77	4.92	25.1	03/12	0.78	13/09	10.1	3.42	0.87
the catchment plus Lo seemingly anomalous fl lowland arable farming.	ch Leven whose low hydrographs	outflow is a	predominantly Car	e gates (ti rboniferou	erage reservoirs in hese can produce s rocks. Land use:	1999 2000	1073 1213	115 130	483 649	101 136	6.49 8.70	24.4d 44.8d	05/01 07/11	2.45 1.09 1.16	23/08 19/07	14.0 16.3	5.19 7.99	3.27 1.40 1.45
017001 M.A: SEPA-E F.A.R: SE	Local No: 32 Level: 18m	Carron at H	leadswood Sens.: 22,5 UF: < 01	B	C.A: 122.3 km² /tull: 150.0m³s ⁻¹ AI: 0.848	6995	1589		873		3.38	179.7	11/12 1994	0.18	01/09 1986	8.4	1.48	0.55
Comment: Flat V weir station: instability in rati	installed in Oct ng caused by d/s	1988 in an ar s deposition.	tificial meander cut Straight, uniform ch	toff. Previc hannel (co	ncrete walls) lined	1996 1997	1373 1476	86 93	693	79	2.68	95.7	28/10	0.44	07/08	6.5	1.17	0.56
with gabions; banks are operation can significan Campsie Felts. Geology valley.	steep to 2.5m. (tly influence flow /: composed of i	Catchment co patterns, # T gneous rocks	ntains Carron Valle he upper part of the i in headwaters and	ey Res e catchmer d Carbonif	xport of water and ht drains part of the lerous rocks in the	1998 1999 2000	2000 1822 1811	126 115 114	1270 1088 1108	145 125 127	4.93 4.22 4.29	131.1 33.3d 65.3d	20/10 24/12 01/02	0.57 0.55 0.49	11/07 15/07 04/07	11.4 10.6 10.7	2.54 2.10 1.73	0.97 0.81 0.63

	Perlod	Rainfai) (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m*e*1)	Peak flow (^{m3} a ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (^{m1} a ⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentite (m'a' ¹)	50 Percentile (m'e'')	95 Percentile (m'a'')
017012 Red Burn at Castlecary C.A: 22.0 km² M.A: SEPA-E Local No: 45 Sens.: B/full: 37.1m³s ⁻¹	86_95	1248		999		0.70	46.8	06/10 1990	0.09	04/09 1993	1.5	0.34	0.12
FAR: E Level 45m UE: OE: An OE: An OE: Comment: Velocity-area station. Low flow control is a gravel bar 20m d/s. Large boulders probably control is a gravel bar 20m d/s. Large boulders probably control flow source flow STW.	1996 1997	972 1117	78 90	769	Π	0.54	20.1	28/10	0.10	03/10	1.2	0.28	0.11
discharges account for half of the flow, # A gently sloping catchment rising to 185m. Geology: entirely Carboniferous with much Boulder Clay cover. Land use: mixed agriculture except for the 16% covered by Cumbernauld New Town. There are two small locks in southern headwaters.	1998 1999 2000	1555 1335 1430	125 107 115	1227 941 1055	123 94 106	0.86 0.66 0.73	7.5d 6.8d 7.7d	22/10 30/11 26/04	0.11 0.09 0.10	07/07 24/08 05/07	2.0 1.5 1.6	0.52 0.31 0.39	0.14 0.10 0.11
017003 Boniny Water at Bonnybridge C.A: 50.5 km² M.A: SEPA-E Local No: 31 Sens.: Brist: 18.0m²s ⁻¹	7195	1218		829		1.33	51.5	06/10 1990	0.09	01/07 1992	2.9	0.75	0.26
FAR: EI Levet 23m UE: FAI: Comment: Open river section with rock bar low flow control. Possible shift in control. Floodplain at 2.1m on b. Severe congestion by aquatic weeds in summer necessitates large correction to recorded stage. Low flows affected by effluent discharge. # Catchment composed of Carboniferous rocks with igneous intrusions. Land use: predominantly rural with urban development at Cumbenaud in the headwaters.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	951 1115 1524 1335 1404	78 92 125 110 115	496 588 1079 904 849	60 71 130 109 102	0.79 0.94 1.73 1.45 1.36	18.4 17.2 13.9d 12.8d 9.2d	28/10 20/02 22/10 30/11 31/01	0.17 0.24 0.39 0.40 0.33	03/09 03/10 24/05 15/09 22/07	1.6 1.8 3.7 3.2 2.8	0.51 0.59 1.14 0.82 0.84	0.21 0.28 0.48 0.46 0.39
017005 Avon at Polmonthill C.A: 1953 km² M.A: SEPA-E Local No: 30 Sens.: B/tult: 138,7m³s ⁻¹	7195	1021		643		3.98	132.9	06/10 1990	0.44	26/07 1984	9.4	1.96	0.61
F.A.R. El Level: 4m UE: .02 FAI: 0.979 Comment: Velocity-area station; the river takes a sharp left turn u/s at a site of river capture. Unstable gravel control replaced by gabion weir in 1990. There is a small island in mid-channel immediately below the station which forms the high flow control. The banks have contained all recorded flows. Low flows are moderately affected by effluent discharges. Extensive moorland drainage schemes in headwaters. # Geology: Carboni/erous sedimentaries. The catchment is oredominantly rural with a few small former coal-mining towns.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	844 958 1304 1137 1272	83 94 128 111 125	511 538 900 768 944	79 84 140 119 147	3.16 3.33 5.57 4,75 5.83	44.8 52.5 34.1d 49.1d 60.0d	28/10 11/12 11/02 28/11 26/04	0.60 0.94 1.17 0.98 0.81	03/09 02/10 26/05 15/09 26/07	7.5 7.2 12.8 11.0 13.9	1.76 1.82 3.50 2.13 2.65	0.65 1.00 1.38 1.06 0.92
018008 Leny at Ania C.A: 190.0 km ² M a: SEPA-E Local No: 35 Seps: 10.2 B/hdf: 127.0 m ³ s ⁻¹	7395	2385		2106		12.69	168.3	16/01 1993	0.16	25/08 1984	32.2	7.21	0.76
F.A.R. N Level: 120m UE: <.01 FAI: 0.785 Comment: Well sited station on a natural section of an upland gravel bed river draining steep stopes. As site is adjacent to a picnic area the gravel bar low flow control is susceptible to rearrangement by children. Catchment response is damped by two large natural storage lochs. # Catchment is underfain by metamorphic rocks with igneous intrusions. Mostly open heather moortand; rugged topography.	1996 , 1997 1998 1999 2000	1928 2190 2546 2693 2497	81 92 107 113 105	1742 2133 2344 2488 2286	83 101 111 118 109	10.46 12.85 14.12 14.99 13.74	91.3 145.5 80.1d 101.4d 81.2d	04/11 02/03 12/02 24/12 01/02	0.34 0.68 0.74 0.75 0.60	23/09 19/08 30/05 12/08 26/07	26.8 31.7 32.0 35.1 35.5	5.71 7.10 10.26 10.19 7.81	0.71 1.38 1.55 1.44 1.24
O18003 Teith at Bridge of Teith C.A: 517.7 km² M.A: SEPA-E Local No: 34 Sens.: 6.5 B/full: 163.0m³s ⁻¹	5795	2035		1417		23.26	378.3	16/01 1993	2.07	19/09 1959	55.3	13.25	4.16
F.A.R: SPI Level: 15m UE: <.01 FAI: 0.834 Comment: Well sited station on straight, natural river section 70m wide. On 6/6/56 recorder was moved d/s to its current position. No rating available for earlier period from 7/4/40. Steep banks of 3m have contained all recorded floods. Six large lochs in catchment - some supplying water to Glasgow. Abstractions for industry in Doone. Regulation for HEP affects hourty, but not daily, flows. # Complex geology: predominantly metamorphic rocks. The Teith drains from the Trossachs.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1798 1974 2363 2438 2296	88 97 116 120 113	1255 1407 1817 1947 1806	89 99 128 137 127	20.54 23.10 29.82 31.97 29.57	216.0 346.5 311.8 193.3d 150.9d	04/11 19/02 22/10 24/12 06/01	3.22 3.88 3.94 4.37 3.41	22/09 19/08 30/05 12/08 27/07	47.3 53.5 68.7 85.0 79.0	12.03 12.09 19.39 19.94 15.79	3.63 4.73 4.79 5.72 4.60
018020 Loch Ard Burn at Duchray C.A: 0.9 km ² M.A: SEPA-E Local No: Sens.:	90-95	2270		1816		0.05	2.5	08/01 1993	>0.00	01/09 1995	0.1	0.02	>0.00
F.A.R: N Level: 80m UE: FAI: Comment: Flume affected by gravel sediment. # Geology: impermeable Pre-Cambrian strata, Drift free. Small catchment with max, attutude of approx. 220m, within Loch Ard Forest.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1751 1820 2443 2403 2274	77 80 108 106 100	1393 2012 1797	77 111 99	0.04 0.05 0.05	1.8 0.7d 0.4d	31/12 11/02 02/01	>0.00 >0.00 >0.00	26/06 23/05 18/08	0.1 0.1 0.1	0.01 >0.00 >0.00	>0.00 >0.00
018021 Loch Ard Burn at Elrig C.A: 1.5 km² M.A: SEPA-E Local No: Sens.: B/full: 4.3m³s ⁻¹	90-95	2266		1653		0.08	3.8	08/01 1993	>0.00	08/08 1995	0.2	0.03	>0.00
F.A.R: N Level: 80m UE: FAI: Comment: Flume, requires constant maintenance to clear d/s gravels. # Geology: impermeable Pre-Cambrian strata, Drift free. Small catchment with max. altitude of approx. 220m, within Loch Ard Forest.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1743 1809 2437 2395 2254	77 80 108 106 99	1230 1300 1947 1827	74 79 118 111	0.06 0.06 0.09 0.08	2.1 2.2 1.3d 0.7d	28/10 16/09 11/02 02/01	>0.00 >0.00 >0.00 >0.00 >0.00	18/07 19/08 26/05 22/08	• 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2	>0.00 >0.00 .>0.00 >0.00 >0.00	>0.00 >0.00 >0.00 >0.00
018010 Forth at Gargunnock C.A: 397.0 km² M.A: SEPA-E Local No: 40 Sens.: 4.4 B/bill: 137.8m³s ⁻¹ Chin: Chin: Chin: Chin: Chin:	86-95	1825		1235		15.55	134.0	11/12 1994	0.29	05/07 1995	42.5	7.64	1.02
F.A.K.N Level and Level	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1482 1554 2009 1978 1873	81 85 110 108 103	996 999 1428 1365 1288	81 81 116 111 104	12.51 12.58 17.98 17.18 16.17	105.5 105.4 114.4d 101.9d 94.0d	29/10 20/02 12/02 28/11 30/10	0.41 1.01 1.20 0.52 0.67	23/09 28/07 05/06 24/08 28/07	36.4 34.2 - 40.5 45.2 43.9	5.93 5.53 11.30 8.86 8.25	0.71 1.38 1.93 1.41 1.12
018011 Forth at Craigforth C.A: 1036.0 km² M.A: SEPA-E Local No: 55 Sens.: B/full: 190.1m³s ⁻¹	8195	1918		1537		50.48	966.0	16/01 1993	2.96	16/08 1984	125.7	28.00	5.36
F.A.R: N Level an UE: FAI: Comment: Originally opened in 1972 - known as Orip Bridge, Rebuilt on same site in 1982. 70m wide section - part of a large meander just above the tidal limit. Left bank floods at high stages. Low flows measured d/s in tidal section. Large tides can influence levels for short periods; data corrected. Flow velocities low, but stable control. A good rating exists over the whole range. # Geology: Devonian and Carboniferous sedimentaries in lower catchment; melamorphic rocks with igneous intrusions above. Mostly heather moorland; rugged.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1602 1722 2127 2155 2032	84 90 111 112 106	1053 1165 1526 1556 1425	69 76 99 101 93	34.51 38.27 50.14 51.10 46.67	335.4 529.7 420.7d 330.3d 220.1d	04/11 20/02 22/10 24/12 01/02	3.06 4.45 4.00 4.79 3.03	23/09 19/08 05/06 23/08 26/07	86.1 93.4 113.5 123.2 120.2	20.93 20.73 31.71 31.73 28.12	4.39 5.68 5.90 7.12 4.81
018001 Allan Water at Kinbuck C.A: 161.0 km² M.A: SEPA-E Local No: 37 Sens.: 7.1 B/full: 34.0m³s ⁻¹	5795	1356	•	999		5.10	130.0	16/01 1993	0.35	19/09 1976	11.5	3.05	0.83
F.A.R: N Level: 93m UE: <.01 FAI: 0.984 Comment: Velocity-area station; stage recorder stied 40m u/s of twin-arch bridge which acts as control at all stages. Gabions installed in 1980 beneath one arch to stabilise control. Steep section contains all foods. Stable rating, well defined throughout full range. Flows are broadly natural. River level protected by SOAEFD. # River flows through broad flat valley. Lateral tributaries drain steep hillsides. Geology: predominantly ORS.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1306 1411 1714 1684 1604	96 104 126 124 118	881 881 1242 1292 1248	88 88 124 129 125	4.49 4.50 6.34 6.60 6.35	68.4 66.1 44.2d 46.8d 64.8d	28/10 17/02 21/10 24/12 29/10	0.55 0.76 1.16 1.01 0.83	20/09 29/08 11/07 24/08 28/07	10.4 10.4 13.3 14.6 13.8	2.72 2.44 4.07 3.78 4.01	0.64 0.89 1.36 1.26 1.09
018005 Altan Water at Bridge of Allan C.A: 210.0 km² M.A: SEPA-E Local No: 36 Sens.: 8.7 B/full: 230.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A. P.I Lavel: 11m LIF: < 0.1	71., 9 5	i 1334		1007 :	•	6.70 ;	194.3	16/01 1993	0.58	27/08 1984	15.5	4.01	Q.89
Comment: Velocity-eres station; recorder sited in natural reach with vertical stone wall on rb. Lb steep to 2.6m. Flood rating stable but large boulders make c/m a problem at low flows. As site is within a caravan park the low flow control is susceptible to rearrangment by children. Station useful for obtaining flood data, as flooding frequently occurs in the town of Bridge of Allan, # The Allan Water occupies a broad flat valley with steep lateral tributaries. Geology: predominantly Old Red Sandstone.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1259 1347 1645 1624 1539	94 101 123 122 115	914 908 1370 1195 1194	91 90 136 119 119	6.07 6.05 9.12 7.96 7.93	106.5 109.4 156.7 56.9d 50.1d	28/10 20/02 20/10 28/11 28/11 27/02	0.69 0.95 1.57 1.13 0.93	21/09 26/08 08/07 24/08 27/07	13.9 13.8 19.0 18.0 18.4	3.52 3.18 5.69 4.56 5.17	0.79 1.08 1.94 1.42 1.22

•

.....

						Perlod	Raintail (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	mean flow) (", "tow)	Peak flow (^{m1} s ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. dally flow (^{m*e*1})	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m³e *1)	50 Percentile (^{m1} a ⁻¹)	95 Percentle (^{m1} a ⁻¹)
018014 M.A: SEPA-E	Bann Local No: 51	ock Burn	at Bannockburn Sens.: 14.1		C.A: 23.7 km ² B/full: 12.4m ³ s ⁻¹	85-95	1488	1	1202		0.90	38.1	01/01 1991	0.13	14/07 1992	2.0	0.50	0.21
PARCP Comment: Gabion n reservoirs in catchine moortand.	Level: 12m iver control initial? ent have a slight e	y showed ≊ffect on ot	UE: signs of instabilit herwise natural fi	ty, but is lows.#(FAI: now stable, Small Catchment is mostly	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1219 1271 1644 1676 1575	82 85 110 113 106	903 906 1337 1186 1296	75 75 111 99 108	0.68 0.68 1.00 0.89 0.97	14.9 22.0 10.6d 8.0d 6.5d	28/10 17/02 20/10 24/12 27/02	0.17 0.17 0.21 0.15 0.21	01/08 10/09 05/06 03/09 02/07	1.4 1.2 2.0 2.3 2.4	0.37 0.37 0.60 0.43 0.52	0.18 0.20 0.24 0.16 0.22
018002 M.A: SEPA-E F.A.R: SI	Local No: 38 Level: 6m	Devon at	Glenochil Sens.: 4.3 LIE: < 01		C.A: 181.0 km ² B/full: 59.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.942	59-95	1320)	776	•	4,45	115.0	16/01 1993	0.53	25/09 1976	9,2	2.80	1.01
Comment: Natural see under road bridge 100 measurement difficult. moderated by Castleh waters are steep and o	ction with steep ban Im d/s. Severe wee . RAFT rising air-bi ill Res. in headwat composed of extrus	ks and good of growth in ubble techn ers, commis sive igneous	I stable flood rating summer and very ique has been us ssioned in 1977. F procks; lower valle	g. Low flow y low velo ed unsuc River leve ey is broa	v control is gravel bar cities make low flow cessfully. Low flows I protected. # Head- d and very flat.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1266 1285 1755 1647 1670	96 97 133 125 127	664 637 1184 989 1075	86 82 153 127 139	3.80 3.65 6.80 5.67 6.15	51.3 64.1 64.5d 42.5d 43.2d	28/10 21/02 21/10 06/12 01/02	0.75 1.24 1.51 1.27 1.05	20/09 08/08 05/06 15/09 21/07	8.0 7.4 13.1 12.0 13.8	2.39 2.00 4.68 3.55 4.11	0.89 1.33 1.77 1.62 1.28
018013 M.A: SEPA-E F.A.R: P	Bi Local No: 44 Level: 9m	ack Devon	at Fauld Mill Sens.: 19.8 UE:		C.A: 56.2 km ² B/fuīl: 32.6m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI:	86-95	1021		513		0.91	41.9	18/03 1991	0.07	06/05 1987	2.1	0.45	0.15
Comment: Concrete interference by childs unsatisfactory flume s water supplies for Ali # Flows W from Cleish	weir control which ren damming with tation further u/s a oa. Upstream min h Hills to join Forth	n is stable, bricks in it Little Sali ewater pun Estuary be	good full-range o summer). Statio ne. Lade takeoff t aping sustains hig elow Clachmanna	rating (bu n commi to Gartmo gher than n.	t control subject to ssioned to replace one Dam for potable normal baseflows.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	872 909 1239 1134 1195	85 89 121 111 117	438 409 691 525 683	85 80 135 102 133	0.78 0.73 1.23 0.94 1.21	16.6 27.3 11.1d 9.8d 8.9d	28/10 20/02 03/04 28/11 08/12	0.19 0.21 0.29 0.30 0.32	20/09 24/05 22/05 04/09 11/08	1.8 1.5 2.7 1.9 2.7	0.44 0.36 0.75 0.44 0.62	0.21 0.26 0.33 0.33 0.35
019020 M.A: SEPA-E F.A.R: EN	Local No: 24 Level: 156m	Almond at	: Whitburn Sens.: UE:		C.A: 30.3 km ² B/full: 27.7m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI:	86-9 5	1186		750		0.72	37.0	06/10 1990	0.04	18/07 1986	1.7	0,29	0.08
Comment: Small cor agricultural drainage s station on the Almond, drainage, Several ope	ncrete weir in fair cheme. All flows a . # Land use: mainl ncast coal sites, b	ly steeply I re contained ly agricultur ly these ha	banked channel d. U/s of Whitburn al with increasing ve all been filled i	which wa I STW an amounts in.	as realigned for an d is the only natural of forestry and land	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	881 1046 1376 1201 1368	74 88 116 101 115	546 706 1103 858 1127	73 94 147 114 150	0.52 0.68 1.06 0.82 1.08	13.3 18.6 8.3d 9.6d 14.8d	28/10 13/08 16/10 28/11 06/11	0.02 0.09 0.08 0.06 0.07	17/07 02/10 27/05 21/08 23/07	1.3 1.6 2.5 2.2 2.6	0.17 0.31 0.55 0.30 0.42	0.02 0.10 0.15 0.09 0.09
019002 M.A: SEPA-E F.A.R: E	Al Local No: 14 Level: 128m	imond at A	I mond Weir Sens.: UE: .03		C.A: 43.8 km ² S/full: 24.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.998	62-95	1083		678		0.94	26.5	03/11 1984	0.07	30/07 1992	2.3	0.44	0.14
Comment: The contro The sluice is perman cableway. Structureful use changes may har drained) - substantial mining communities in	I is a broad-creste ently closed. The I: 1.4m has been e ve affected the flo afforestation in th the valley.	d masonry structure t exceeded so w regime, w headwat	weir of a former p has been rated b everal times durin # Mainly plateau ers. Predominant	iumping s by c/m to ng the per u moorlar tly rough	tation intake works. 0.6m, there is no riod of record. Land id (much artificially pasture with small	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	870 1028 1361 1187 1354	80 95 126 110 125	430 531 886 771 1012	63 78 131 114 149	0.60 0.74 1.23 1.07 1.40	12.6 16.8 10.1d 11.4d 17.3d	12/10 04/05 08/04 28/11 06/11	0.08 0.09 0.16 0.23 0.08	22/09 31/01 07/07 23/08 20/07	1.4 1.6 2.8 2.7 3.6	0.21 0.31 0.63 0.46 0.65	0.10 0.12 0.21 0.25 0.16
019005 M.A: SEPA-E F.A.R: PFI	Local No: 5 Level: 74m	Almond at	Almondell Sens.: UF: 03		C.A: 229.0 km ² B/full: 700.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.957	6295	975		548		3.98	214.6	06/10 1990	0.19	14/10 1972	9.3	1.93	0.54
Comment: Informal Fi incorporated - Jun 197 c/m. Immediately abov Low flows - significant is composed of mainly and several small coal	at V weir - installe 1. Previous control we the station a me y increased by disc / Carboniferous ro- mining towns in c	d at the site - natural ba asured qua charge from cks. Land u atchment.	e in Jun 1970. Str ar with large bould antity of water is a i East Calder sew ise: predominanth	ructure wi lers, Calit abstracted age work y rural, L	idened and a sluice oration is entirely by to supply a canal. s. # The catchment ivingston new town	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	816 992 1299 1129 1302	84 102 133 116 134	448 585 861 670 901	82 107 157 122 164	3.25 4.25 6.25 4.86 6.52	68.1 45.5d 61.1d 112.8d	18/12 16/10 28/11 06/11	0.45 0.76 0.71 0.52	17/05 25/05 22/08 30/06	7.0 9.4 14.2 12.0 14.7	1.32 2.14 3.78 2.20 3.11	0.61 0.63 1.08 0.83 0.75
019017 M.A: SEPA-E F.A.R: P	Go Local No: 29 Level: 32m	gar Burn a	t Turnhouse Sens.:		C.A: 38.8 km² B/full: 100.0m³s ⁻¹	8695	824		413		0.51	23.1	14/05 1993	0.01	14/09 1990	1.1	0.26	0.04
Comment: Rated sec controlling higher flows hydrographs. Small ne Edinburgh, and urban f development. The rest	tion with small lo s. The river tends t it impact on runoff fraction is increasir is agricultural.	w flow con to flood u/s due to airp ng. 1.5km o	oE. htrol and large m of the station with wort discharges. # f the river has been	nasonry I h conseq Catchme en culveri	r AL broad crested weir uent damping of its ent includes part of led because of new	1996 1997 - 1998 1999 2000	648 809 1018 798 1037	79 98 124 97 126	267 430 600 340 516	65 104 145 82 125	0.33 0.53 0.74 0.42 0.63	8.2 9.8 6.2d 6.0d 17.9d	18/12 01/07 02/11 28/11 26/04	0.02 0.05 0.14 0.04 0.05	20/07 03/10 21/09 15/09 29/06	0.8 1.2 1.6 0.9 1.2	0.18 0.24 0.48 0.20 0.32	0.03 0.07 0.19 0.06 0.06
019001 M.A: SEPA-E F.A.R: PEI	A Local No: 3 Level: 23m	limond at (Craiglehall Sens.: UE: .03	ļ	C.A: 369.0 km ² B/full: 215.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.969	57-95	906		503		5.68	220.0	06/10 1990	0.24	09/10 1959	13.4	2.93	0.92
Comment: Recorder is floods. Stable rating. N substantially affected b STWs. Abstraction at A catchment. # Geology: development around Li	s well sited on stra Weed growth in su y sewage effluent e Vimondell to feed a predominantly Ca ivingston, esp. indu	ight even re ummer - so esp. from M canal. A nu urboniferous ustrial estat	each with steep b me adjustment to id Calder and Nev umber of storage i rocks, Land use es, and several sa	anks con o stage n vbridge S reservoirs : rural, wi mall minia	taining all recorded equired. Low flows TW and six smaller are situated in the ith extensive urbaning towns.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	759 920 1200 1019 1206	84 102 132 112 133	388 488 751 581 762	77 97 149 116 151	4.52 5.71 8.79 6.79 8.89	87.3 111.0 117.3 84.1d 125.4d	18/12 11/12 02/11 28/11 26/04	0.88 0.93 1.60 1.31 0.99	03/08 02/05 25/09 24/08 01/07	10,1 12,1 19,3 16,4 20,0	2.24 3.03 5.36 3.33 4.38	1.07 1.10 2.08 1.46 1.22
0 19012 M.A: SEPA-E	Wa Local No: 23	ter of Leith	at Colinton Sens.: 19.9		C.A: 72.0 km ²	8695	995		553		1.26	122.5	06/10 1990	0.19	21/03 1993	2.7	0.67	0.32
Comment: Flat V we compensation flows fro Uses theoretical rating of the catchment is stee s some forestry and tw	eir. Flows fully c m reservoirs in the (confirmed by gauge (Pentland Hills) to major reservoirs	ontained in Lothian reg ging), # Cat rising to over	vertical channe ion; these domina chment is almost er 500m; the rest	el walls. te the sur entirely r has mode	Built to measure mmer hydrographs. ural. The SW edge erate slopes. There	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	752 940 1240 1030 1290	76 94 125 104 130	512 745 532 784	93 135 96 142	1.17 1.70 1.21 1.79	22.8 12.6d 12.5d 65.4d	<i>30/06</i> 12/11 12/12 26/04	0.25 0.34 0.22 0.22	22/09 25/05 08/08 30/07	2.7 3.3 2,7 3.2	0.52 1.31 0.58 0.87	0.32 0.52 0.27 0.35
0 19006 M.A.: SEPA-E F.A.R.: SR	Wate Local No: 4 Level: 38m	er of Leith a	at Murrayfield Sens.: 12.3	Ê	C.A: 107.0 km² 3/full: 86.0m³s ^{−1} =41: 0.943	63-95	887		426		1,44	87.2	06/10 1990	0.13	20/07 1978	2.9	0.81	0.34
Comment: Velocity-are vertical wall and the Ib is 0.5km d/s. The catchmo are in the Pentland Hills	ea station in a stra s steep to 2.6m. Th ent contains severa s. The lower part o	aight even le high flow al storage re of the catch	reach 50m u/s of control is possibly eservoirs. # The h ment has undergo	a road t the piers leadwater one urbar	oridge. The rb is a of a railway bridge rs of the catchment n development.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	692 885 1143 926 1180	78 100 129 104 133	342 439 618 471 653	80 103 145 111 153	1,16 1,49 2,10 1,60 2,21	18.4 25.7 14.1d 15.5d 51.8d	18/12 30/06 02/11 12/12 26/04	0.41 0.32 0.40 0.30 0.23	12/09 22/09 25/05 28/07 30/07	2.3 3.4 4.2 3.5 4.2	0.65 0.71 1.63 0.80 1.30	0.43 0.40 0.62 0.37 0.45
)19010 /.A: SEPA-E A.R: N	Bi Local No: 16 Level: 50m	raid Burn a	et Liberton Sens.: JÉ: .15	5	C.A: 16.2 km ² S/full: 20.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6995	778		298		0.15	11.2	28/05 1983	0.02	12/10 1989	0.3	0.09	0.03
Comment: Flows were barallel. The flume suf eplaced in Oct 1985 by ributaries are steep risi Several small reservoir gneous intrusions.	e originally measu fered from choking a second Crump p ng in the Pentland s in headwaters. C	red by a (g by dome profile weir a Hills, whilst Complex ge	Crump profile wei stic refuse and c at a lower level tha the lower part of ology - Silurian/D	ir and tra hildrens an the firs the catch Devonian	apezoidal flume in dams and so was t. # The headwater ment is urbanised. sedimentaries and	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	625 833 1033 805 1063	80 107 133 103 137	281 473 596 542 706	94 159 200 182 237	0.14 0.24 0.31 0.28 0.36	1.9 3.4 1.3d 1.4d 8.0d	18/12 10/12 31/05 11/12 26/04	0.01 0.05 0.08 0.10 0.06	17/09 24/04 11/01 24/08 07/07	0.3 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6	0.12 0.18 0.27 0.25 0.32	0.02 0.08 0.16 0.12 0.08

					Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Wean flow ('''∎'m)	Peak flow (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min, dalfy flow (^{m*e*1})	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m ¹ e* ¹)	50 Percentile (m ¹ e ¹¹)	95 Percentile (m³u*1)
019004 M.A. SEPA-E	Local No: 11	North Esk at	Dalmore Weir Sens.: 36.9	C.A: 81.6 km ² B/full: 110.0m ³ 5 ⁻¹	60-95	957		586		1.52	52.1	06/10 1990	0.10	30/07 1992	3.2	1.00	0.3
F.A.R: SEI Comment: The control There is no cableway reservoirs in the headw	Level: 132m is a dog-legge and the gaugin raters. # The ca	d 25m wide o ng is correlati atchment drai	UE: .02 gee section masonry ed to a stage of 0.34 ns the SE slopes of th	FAI: 0.978 weir rated entirely by c/m. m. Several small storage le Pentland hills. Geology:	1996 1997 1998	789 976 1294	82 102 135	467 597 862	80 102 147	1.21 1.54 2.23	15.8 18.9 10.7d	18/12 20/02 02/11	0.26 0.34 0.61	10/09 28/10 07/07	2.6 3.6 4.3	0.71 0.91 1.73	0.3 0.4 0.8
carbonnerous and Dev grazing.	orian seconer	ianes wan ign	eous matisions. Rurai	calcriment - mostry rough	2000	1326	139	868 868	148	2.24	22.3d	26/04	0.43	15/09 06/08	4.6	1.58	0.49
019011 M.A: SEPA-E F.A.R: GN	N Local No: 18 Level: 29m	lorth Esk at i	Daikeith Palace Sens.: 9.0 UE: .02	C.A: 137.0 km ² B/full: 150.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.967	63-95	914		498		2.16	113.9	06/10 1990	0.33	29/08 1965	4.3	1.35	0.5
Comment: The record Flow velocities are fast effluent pumped from m	er is sited on a ter near the rig	bend in a nat ht bank, esp fbe rb is a ver	ural river reach imme ecially in floods. The tical stone wall, whilst	diately u/s of a footbridge. water is stained red from the lb slopes gently to the	1996 1997 1998	752 946 1223	82 104 134	357 528	72 106	1.55 2.29	31.5 39.2	18/12 20/02	0.41 0.87	02/10 26/10	3.0 4.6	1.16 1.36	0.44 0.96
hut at 2.5m. # Geology headwaters drain the s	y: Carboniferou teep slopes of	is and Devon the Pentland	ian sedimentaries wit Hills. Mostly rough gi	h igneous intrusions. The razing.	1999 2000	1008 1271	110 139	531 761	107 153	2.31 3.30	14.8d 58.0d	12/12 26/04	0.73 0.88	15/09 06/08	4.6 6.0	1.56 2.06	0.80 0.94
019007 M.A: SEPA-E	Local No: 2	Esk at Mi	Sens.: 7.2	C.A: 330.0 km ² B/full: 200.0m ³ s ^{−3}	62-95	852		392		4.10	175.6	14/08 1966	0.67	08/08 1989	8.4	2.48	0.9
F.A.R. SPEI Comment: Velocity-are periodic dredging and a mill lade were monitore 1891 and 1948 react predominantly exposed predominantly exposed	Level: 3m ea station in a s accretion of a b ed (until late 194 hed about 1m 1 moorland (on	ection with st ar on the rb. F 80s) - summa above ban Carboniferou	UE: .02 eep banks. High ratin Flows abstracted u/s o tion needed to give to kfull at Inversesk M is sediments) of the M	FAI: 0.952 gappears to oscillate with of the main station along a stal basin runoff. Floods of All. # The catchment is door foothills with several	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	709 890 1097 904 1154	83 104 129 106 135	316 447 606 486 627	81 114 155 124 160	3.29 4.68 6.34 5.08 6.54	55.1 46.3d 36.3d	18/12 03/11 12/12	0.83 1.36 0.97	17/09 10/07 15/09	6.6 10.1 12.5 11.7 12.3	2.20 2.81 4.47 2.98 3.90	0.91 1.41 1.81 1.20 1.63
	Vana No: 1	/est Peffer B	um at Luffness	C.A: 26.2 km ²	6695	619		160		0.13	5.9	04/01	0.00	15/08	0.3	0.06	0.0*
F.A.R: 1 Comment: The sector Flows are measured t severely reduced by ab arable land. A mainly in	Level: 4m s is within steep by a trapezoida straction for sp mpervious cate	banks on a s al fturne and ray inigation o hment with a	UE: <.01 straight reach of a sm. Crump profile weir i Juring dry summers. # n extensive Boulder C	FAI: 0.995 all ditch with low gradient. n parallel. Low flows are The catchment drains flat Xay cover.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	461 639 747 569 767	74 103 121 92 124	66 140 226 118 225	41 88 141 74 141	0.05 0.12 0.19 0.10 0.19	3.3 2.8 3.4d 1.5d 2.6d	03/12 01/07 13/11 25/01 07/11	0.00 0.02 0.04 0.01 0.01	16/07 11/08 27/05 30/07 04/08	0.1 0.2 0.4 0.2 0.4	>0.00 0.06 0.09 0.06 0.10	>0.00 0.02 0.05 0.02 0.03
020005 M.A: SEPA-E	Local No: 9	3irns Water a	at Saltoun Hall Sens.: 8.2	C.A: 93.0 km ² B/full: 58.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6595	739		318		0.94	94.6	03/11 1984	0.07	08/09 1969	1.9	0.52	0.17
F.A.R: N Comment: A natural si irregular broad-crested flow rating was calculat bridge 100m u/s. There natural. # The catchme Devonian sedimentarie	Level: 71m ection on a stra weir. Rating is ted by correlati e are a faw sm ent drains the u is.	ight, well defi entirely by c, on with Spilm all storage re pland moorla	UE: <.01 ined reach. The low fil (m. Before installation ersford (20003) and c iservoirs in the catchr nd of the Lammermu	FAI: 0.993 ow control is a compound of the cableway the high ifm measurements from a ment, otherwise flows are ir Hills. Geology: Silurian/	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	636 810 920 742 1003	86 110 124 100 136	256 353 436 276 475	81 111 137 87 149	0.75 1.04 1.29 0.81 1.40	20.8 36.3 21.1d 8.4d 49.5d	03/12 28/06 02/11 12/12 07/11	0.13 0.22 0.28 0.20 0.16	31/08 29/10 25/05 14/09 08/08	1.5 2.1 2.7 1.6 1.9	0.40 0.53 0.74 0.48 0.69	0.18 0.28 0.37 0.23 0.23
020003 M.A: SEPA-E	Local No: 7	Tyne at Sj	Sens.: 26.3	C.A: 161.0 km ² B/full: 130.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6595	728		267		1.36	131.2	03/11 1984	0.14	01/09 1976	2.8	0.76	0.27
F.A.K: (Comment: The channe an irregular broad-crest The gauge board was k Haddington flood warni	Level: 69m el reach is within ted weir was ins owered by 0.12 ing system. # 1	n steep, high f stailed. Before 5m on 1/9/69 The headwate	OE: <.01 loodbanks which cont e that date the low flow . Flows from this stati rs drain exposed mod	FAI: 0.993 ain all floods. In Sep 1975 v control was a gravel bar. on are used as part of the orland.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	604 788 884 702 961	83 108 121 96 132	213 297 391 251 424	80 111 146 94 159	1.09 1.51 2.00 1.28 2.16	20.7 37.7 20.9d 11.6d 60.0d	18/12 30/06 02/11 12/12 07/11	0.20 0.32 0.55 0.30 0.37	25/09 02/10 18/08 03/08 08/08	2.3 3.4 3.9 2.6 3.3	0.59 0.79 1.28 0.78 1.17	0.22 0.35 0.60 0.33 0.44
020007 M.A: SEPA-E	G Local No: 13	ifford Water	at Lennoxlove Sens.: 19.7	C.A: 64.0 km ²	73-95	782		340		0.69	75.6	28/05 1983	<i>.</i> 0.08	07/08 1992	1.4	0.40	0.15
F.A.K: N Comment: Velocity-are bend in a natural chan # Geology: predominan slopes of the Lammern	Level: 51m ea station. The nel. The low f ntly Silurian and nuir Hills:	recorder is s low control is I Ordovician b	DE: <.01 ited immediately d/s c a stable rock bar. T ieds. The catchment c	FAI: 0.960 of a footbridge on a slight he flow regime is flashy. drains the steep moorland	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	697 800 934 706 992	89 102 119 90 127	316 382 498 289 601	93 112 146 85 177	0.64 0.77 1.01 0.59 1.22	19.0 31.3 14.4d 5.2d 34.8d	03/12 30/06 02/11 12/12 06/11	0.13 0.20 0.31 0.17 0.24	18/08 29/10 07/09 05/09 19/07	1,4 1,5 1,8 1,1 1,8	0.40 0.47 0.67 0.40 0.64	0.14 0.23 0.36 0.19 0.28
020001 M.A: SEPA-E	Local No: 6	Tyne at E	ast Linton Sens.: 8.4	C.A: 307.0 km ² B/full: 300.0m ³ s ⁻¹	61-95	725		282		2,75	148.5	06/10 1990	0.33	06/09 1969	5.5	1.58	0.56
Comment: The low fit constructed but did not	w control is a unduly influenc	gravel bar s e the rating. D	ome 100m d/s. In 19 ouring 1982 recorded s	970 a pipe crossing was stage was adjusted during	1996 1997	603 764	83 105	222 -	79	2.15	57.7	03/12	0.45	18/07	4.1	1.31	0.51
rebuilding of the road bi for weed growth durin catchment is character valleys, Geology; Siluria	ndge 200m d/s ng the summer ised by steep an and Ordovid	. This provide r when abstr headwaters i dan sediment	s a stable high-flow or action for irrigation a n the Lammermuir H ary rocks.	ontrol. Allowance is made also takes place. # The ills and broad flat arable	1998 1999 2000	858 673 923	118 93 127	398 247 402	141 88 143	3.88 2.40 3.90	74,7 26.0d 88.0d	02/11 12/12 07/11	1.18 0.70 0.84	31/08 11/08 22/07	7.0 4,4 6.1	2.57 1.58 2.23	1.32 0.80 0.93
021014 M.A: SEPA-E F A D: SP	Local No: Level: 214m	Tweed at P	Gingledores Sens.: 8.3	C.A: 139.0 km ² B/full: 210.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI:	61,.95	1634		922		4.06	226.5	18/10 1987	0.46	06/10 1972	9.0	2.15	0.90
Comment: Natural sec Kingledores Burn 10m reduction in runoff - mo upland catchment giver	tion on upper below station. anthly naturalise n over mainly to	Tweed, Coars Exports from ed flows avail o hill grazing	se gravel bed. Variabl Fruid and Talla Rese able. # Impervious (m and forestry.	le backwater effects from rvoirs cause a significant lostly Silurian formations)	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1439 1704 1811 2047 2157	88 104 111 125 132	847 993 1148 1104 1261	92 108 125 120 137	3.72 4.38 5.06 4.87 5.54	77.8 169.4 62.1 139.2 116.8	08/01 19/02 20/10 28/11 24/10	0.73 1.02 0.99 0.96 0.92	23/09 26/08 08/10 24/08 23/07	9.2 10.7 10.1 10.7 12.5	2.19 1.99 3.56 2.55 2.75	0.83 1.11 1.29 1.13 1.06
021018 M.A: SEPA-E	L Local No:	yne Water a	t Lyne Station Sens.: 7.7	C.A: 175.0 km ² B/full: 36.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6895	958		543		3.01	83.5	11/12 1994	0.49	23/08 1976	6.4	1.97	0.69
Comment: Velocity-are in - and abstraction fro overall impact on annu shale with Old Red Sar catchment. Mostly hill g	a station. Flow m - Baddingse al runoff is limi ndstone and co grazing and gra	fully concentr gill and Watch ited - monthly insiderable su ssland.	ated by arches of brid water Reservoirs in aturalised flows av anface deposits of san	ge below station. Storage ifluence the flow regime; ailable. # Mainty Siturian id and gravel in centre of	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	807 928 1206 1120 1254	84 97 126 117 131	401 496 746 639 769	74 91 137 118 142	2.22 2.75 4.14 3.55 4.26	24.3 29.2 44.9 36.3 65.3	18/12 11/12 03/11 09/12 07/11	0.53 0.65 1.08 0.75 0.69	20/09 03/10 25/05 14/09 23/07	4.9 5.7 7.7 8.0 8.6	1.23 1.71 3.18 2.05 2.74	0.58 0.75 1.27 0.89 0.79
021005 M.A: SEPA-E	Local No:	Tweed at	Lyne Ford Sens.: 9.0	C.A: 373.0 km ² B/full: 227.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6195	1327		775		9.16	266.0	16/01 1962	1.15	27/08 1984	19.5	5.85	2.02
F.A.K: SP Comment: Natural sect large floods. Slight sea: Fruid and Talla Reservo flows available. # Upla valley bottoms. Land us	Level: 167m tion on straight sonal weed gro birs - compensa nd catchment se: principally h	gravel beddeo with effect on ition releases developed ma ill grazing.	UE: <.01 I reach. Cableway. Lei rating. Runoff diminis also influence flow req ainly on Silurian shale	FAI: 0.965 If bank overtopped during thed by abstractions from gime. Monthly naturalised a - with alluvial gravel in	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1127 1319 1474 1598 1665	85 99 111 120 125	671 830 981 1977 1120	87 107 127 126 145	7.91 9.82 11.61 11.55 13.21	88.9 181.5 78.8 191.2 146.2	08/01 19/02 20/10 28/11 25/10	1.41 2.29 2.68 1.87 1.73	23/09 05/10 26/05 05/09 23/07	18.4 21.0 22.5 25.6 28.4	4.77 5.20 9.32 6.90 8.39	1.71 2.57 3.21 2.42 2.21

					Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m ¹ a'1)	Peak flow (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (^{m1} s ⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (^{m1} e ¹¹)	50 Percentile (m ³ a ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m ¹ e ')
021019 M.A: SEPA-E	Local No:	Manor Water	at Cademuir Sens.: 14.5	C.A: 61.6 km ² B/full: 58.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6895	1448		817		1.60	40.2	30/10 1977	0.16	27/08 1984	3.4	1.07	0.30
Comment: Velocity-ar Site situated at end of abstraction (Langhaug on Siturian shale, Lan	ea station with straight reach v h Intake); mon d use: mostly h	artificial contra with bend just b thy naturalised will grazing.	ol - flat concrete bar with skow bar, Runoff is slightly flows available. # Steep c	diminished by an u/s atchment developed	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1185 1345 1550 1539 1715	82 93 107 106 118	745 864 994 966 1128	91 106 122 118 138	1.45 1.69 1.94 1.89 2.20	18.7 28.4 16.0 29.0 28.5	08/01 19/02 26/12 28/11 19/09	0.22 0.32 0.57 0.23 0.33	23/09 30/08 11/07 05/09 27/07	3.4 4.0 3.7 4.2 4.5	0.95 0.96 1.49 1.25 1.73	0.25 0.36 0.69 0.31 0.43
021003 M.A: SEPA-E	Local No:	Tweed at	Sens.: 6.6	7 C.A: 694.0 km ² B/full: 220.0m ³ s ⁻¹	5995	1212		698		15.37	481.1	15/01 1962	1.93	07/10 1959	33.0	9.87	3.26
F.A.R: SP Comment: Natural see Priorsford Bridge abou and Watch Water Re: # Upland catchment de Drift cover in the valle	Level: 155m tion with stable t 360m u/s; rec servoirs - over eveloped on im ys. Hill grazing	e gravel bed. Ca xords correlated all runoff is dir pervious Patae predominates;	UE: <.01 ableway. From 1939 to 198 from 1950. Storage in Ta ninished; monthly natural ozoic and igneous formatio some improved grasslan	FAI: 0.975 58 flows measured at Ita, Fruid, Baddinsgill ised flows available ons - with substantial d to N.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1014 1170 1371 1400 1507	84 97 113 116 124	587 694 889 853 996	84 99 127 122 143	12.88 15.28 19.57 18.77 21.87	103.3 208.3 132.0 202.2 169.1	08/01 19/02 03/11 28/11 25/10	2.17 3.33 4.59 3.61 3.36	23/09 05/10 26/05 11/09 24/07	33.4 33.8 36.6 42.5 45.1	7.41 8.87 15.68 11.44 15.13	2.67 3.94 5.54 3.81 3.72
021030 M.A: SEPA-E F.A.R: S	l Local No: Level: 254m	Megget Water	at Henderland Sens.: 14.3 UE: <.01	C.A: 56.2 km² B/fút: 76.0m³s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.817	6895	1696		1068		1.90	104.4	11/12 1972	0.11	09/07 1977	4.3	1.11	0.31
Comment: Velocity-a Reservoir; station was impoundment began i developed on impervic	rea station wi Installed to pro n 1982; month ous Silurian for	ith rock and g ovide data for re hty naturalised mations. Land	ravel bar acting as con servoir design - flows are flows available, # A stee use: mostly hill grazing,	trol. D/s of Megget highly artificial since pupland catchment	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1381 1772 1902 2074 2237	81 104 112 122 132	553 988 1333 567 1157	52 93 125 53 108	0.98 1.76 2.37 1.01 2.06	13.0 34.0 11.3 24.2 32.5	08/01 01/03 16/08 27/11 27/02	0.25 0.44 0.31 0.20 0.34	30/03 05/10 02/02 14/07 26/01	2.0 4.2 5.4 1.8 5.2	0.69 1.09 1.56 0.64 0.87	0.32 0.49 0.43 0.28 0.47
021034 M.A: SEPA-E	Y: Local No: Loual: 229m	arrow Water a	t Craig Douglas Sens.:	C.A: 116.0 km ² B/full: 145.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.769	6895	1608		1035		3.81	113.3	31/10 1977	0.13	28/08 1976	8.6	2.36	0.65
Comment: Large trape in 1982. St Mary's Loc # Silurian formations of	zoidal flume. S h 2km u/s atter jive impervious	Sensibly natural nuates floods si s catchment su	Incuroff until impounding fo gnificantly. Monthly natura oporting hill grazing and s	in Megget Res. began lised flows available ome forestry.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1333 1659 1801 1890 2033	83 103 112 118 126	822 1132 1353 939 1248	79 109 131 91 121	3.02 4.16 4.98 3.45 4.58	20.2 58.7 21.2 65.8 48.5	16/02 01/03 26/12 28/11 05/12	0.69 0.86 0.89 0.62 0.99	18/09 05/10 29/09 03/08 25/07	6.6 8.0 8.5 7.0 10.1	1.95 2.82 4.62 2.33 2.43	0.82 1.18 1.23 0.80 1.08
021020 M.A: SEPA-E	Y Local No:	arrow Water a	t Gordon Arms Sens.: 9.0	Č.A: 155.0 km² B/full: 90.0m³s ⁻¹	6795	1550		1040		5.11	166.0	30/10 1977	0.15	28/08 1976	11.6	3.09	0.81
F.A.R: SP Comment: Velocity-au natural runoff until imp attenuates floods sign prior to gravel extraction catchment given over	Level: 226m rea station d/s counding for M ificantly. Espe- on. Monthly nal to bill grazing	of road bridg tegget Res. be cially low flow i turalised flows a with a little fore	UE: <.U1 e on section with rough (gan in 1982 but St Mary' n August 1976 due to da available. # An impervious stry.	FAI: 0.821 gravel bed. Sensibly s Loch (few km u/s) mmning of gravel bar (Silurian formations)	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1295 1578 1727 1779 1917	84 102 111 115 124	762 1064 1329 911 1201	73 102 128 88 115	3.73 5.23 6.53 4.48 5.89	30.2 75.5 31.9 110.9 66.7	08/01 19/02 26/12 28/11 05/12	0.73 0.87 0.99 0.91 0.93	18/09 05/10 26/05 03/08 25/07	8.7 10.1 11.0 9.7 13.4	2.15 3.78 6.37 2.92 3.31	0.84 1.30 1.61 1.11 1.07
021011 M.A. SEPA-E	, Local No:	Yarrow Water	at Philiphaugh Sens.: 11.2	C.A: 231.0 km ² B/full: 296.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6395	1408		919		6.73	272.5	31/10 1977	0.39	05/09 1976	15.2	4.08	1.08
F.A.R: S Comment: Natural c regime before Megget flood peaks are also a catchment developed principal land use.	Level: 128m oarse gravel I Res. began im ittenuated by S mainly on Silur	bedded straigh pounding in 19 St Mary's Loch; ian shale (with	UE: <.01 t section. Control unstat 82 (small overall impact or monthly naturalised flows alluvial gravel in the valley	FAI: 0.952 ble. Sensibly natural water balance), and s available. # Upland ys), Hill grazing is the	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1185 1404 1547 1558 1703	84 100 110 111 121	712 907 1104 857 1003	77 99 120 93 109	5.20 6.65 8.09 6.28 7.33	41.6 107.6 57.5 128.4 80.8	12/02 19/02 02/11 28/11 11/09	0.97 1.04 1.28 0.75 1.06	19/09 05/10 26/05 10/08 22/07	12.2 13.7 13.9 14.9 16.9	3.03 4.69 7.49 3.73 4.27	1.09 1.56 1.95 1.20 1.23
021017 M.A: SEPA-E	E Local No:	Ettrick Water a	t Brockhoperig Sens.: 18.1 LIE: < 01	C.A: 37.5 km ² B/full: 200.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 1.000	6595	1892		1563		. 1.86	145.2	30/10 1977	0.07	26/08 1984	4.3	1.00	0.19
Comment: Velocity-air and falls. Turbulent fi catchment containing impervious Silurian for	ow at higher s much moortan mations).	straight reach v stages. Heavy nd and some f	with rocky bed. Control by gravel load in floods. # f orestry. Very responsive	series of rocky bars Natural steep upland (geology: principally	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1598 1903 2163 2072 2159	84 101 114 110 114	1488 1727 1942 1744 1909	95 110 124 112 122	1.76 2.05 2.31 2.07 2.26	62.1 82.8 61.8 54.5 76.0	26/10 19/02 20/10 28/11 05/12	0.11 0.25 0.32 0.17 0.20	13/09 04/06 29/09 24/08 27/07	4,6 5,2 5,1 4,8 6.0	0.95 0.96 1.47 1.08 1.26	0.13 0.30 0.43 0.34 0.27
021026 M.A: SEPA-E	Local No:	Tima Water	at Deephope Sens.: 29.5	C.A: 31.0 km ² B/full: 80.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 1.000	7395	1769		1366		1.34	100.0	30/10 1977	0.03	26/07 1984	3.4	0.61	0.07
Comment: Velocity-ai to rearrangement of b define rating. Natural shale. Now mainly for	rea station at n ed material (ev flow regime. # ested.	atural river sec ven in modest t High rainfall, s	tion. Control is gravel bed lows), frequent low flow g teep, upland catchment d	; unstable - sensitive auging necessary to leveloped on Silurian	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1435 1670 1917 1772 1857	81 94 108 100 105	1122 1397 1670 1441 1676	82 102 122 105 123	1.10 1.37 1.64 1.42 1.64	39.0 52.5 41.0 50.5 62.2	26/10 19/02 20/10 28/11 24/10	0.04 0.10 0.09 0.10 0.06	23/09 19/08 26/05 24/08 28/07	3.1 3.5 4.3 3.5 4.7	0.46 0.50 0.86 0.57 0.76	0.05 0.12 0.19 0.15 0.11
021007 M.A: SEPA-E	Local No:	Ettrick Wate	r at Lindean Sens.: 11.5	³ C.A: 499.0 km ² B/full: 300.0m ³ s ^{−1}	6195	1386		941		14.89	560.0	31/10 1977	0.57	07/09 1976	34.3	8.62	1.92
Comment: Natural se control by d/s gravel r impact on the flow re (mostly Silurian forma grazing.	cever: sem ection with cal iffle that is slow gime. Monthly tions) catchme	bleway about 1 wly accreting, 5 naturalised flo ent - typical of	Wei with the second	ith Tweed, Low flow at Res, have a minor y narrow impervious and use is mostly hill	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1199 1391 1566 1502 1638	87 100 113 108 118	807 966 1169 988 1177	86 103 124 105 125	12.74 15.29 18.50 15.63 18.58	118.7 333.8 173.5 360.0 233.1	12/02 19/02 02/11 28/11 11/09	1.23 2.05 2.40 1.63 1.58	19/09 05/10 26/05 24/08 23/07	32.5 34.6 35.7 37.1 42.4	7.50 7.98 15.08 8.62 11.12	1.54 2.86 3.85 2.06 2.25
021006 M.A: SEPA-E	Local No:	Tweed at	Boleside Sens.: 6.7	C.A: 1500.0 km ² B/full: 808.0m ³ s ⁻¹ EAI: 0.975	61 9 5	1227		761		36.21	1019.0	31/10 1977	3.46	27/08 1976	79,2	23.43	6.86
Comment: Velocity-ar weed growth affects r minor; monthly natura divide between hilly u with significant Drift or	tavel, som rea station with ating. Reserve fised flows av plands and loo over. Hill grazin	cableway on s ir storage moo ailable. # Gaug wand areas. G ig with some fo	raight section with stable ; iffes natural flow regime ;ing site is central in Twe eology: mainly imperviou prestry and a little arable i	gravel bed. Seasonal but overall impact is sed basin and marks s Silurian formations and.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1055 1207 1396 1366 1491	86 98 114 111 122	672 770 980 866 1033	88 101 129 114 136	31.85 36.63 46.63 41.21 48.99	270.1 554.3 408.3 579.2 407.2	12/02 19/02 02/11 28/11 25/10	4.45 7.27 10.74 6.53 6.37	24/09 05/10 26/05 06/09 23/07	78.9 79.0 83.1 91.2 102.8	18.76 21.51 38.34 25.16 34.09	5.26 9.27 13.81 8.64 7.82
021013 M.A: SEPA-E	Local No:	Gala Water a	t Galashiels Sens.: 19.0 UE: < 01	C.A: 207.0 km ² B/full: 180.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.999	6495	953		547		3.59	171.2	03/11 1984	0.24	22/08 1995	8.0	2.28	0.51
Comment: Concrete-l concrete haunching ov The catchment is main	ined reach in in rer sewage pip nly impervious	ndustrial part of e. # Natural upl (Silurian) and g	Galashiels. Gravel bed wand catchment draining fro ind catchment draining fro iven over to hill grazing w	vith control formed by om the Moorfoot Hills. ith some arable land.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	807 908 1118 958 1201	85 95 117 101 126	499 523 751 536 749	91 96 137 98 137	3.26 3.44 4.93 3.52 4.90	36.7 52.0 64.0 45.0 96.2	12/02 20/02 02/11 05/11 08/11	0.36 0.47 1.12 0.52 0.73	18/09 08/10 25/05 15/09 08/08	8.1 8.3 10.1 8.0 8.8	1.71 1.88 3.39 2.17 3.47	0.39 0.55 1.52 0.63 0.88

ç

.

			Perlod	Rainfai (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Meen flow (^{m3} *'')	Peak flow (^{m1} e ¹¹)	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentlia (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	50 Percentite (m ¹ s ¹³)	95 Percentile (π ¹ s ⁻¹)
021015 Leader M.A.: SEPA-E Local No:	Water at Earlston Sens.; 27.5	C.A: 239.0 km ² B/full: 120.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6695	834		442		3.35	229.2	03/11 1984	0.25	18/08 1995	7.3	1.91	0.45
FAR:N Level: 103m Comment: Velocity-area section. Gravel bed low flows. Natural flow regime. # Upland catch Silurian shale and ORS. Hill grazing with arab	UE: <.01 with bar giving low flow con iment draining from the Lam lie farming at lower levels.	FAI: 0.999 trol. Fairly insensitive at mermuir Hills. Geology:	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	750 793 1039 817 1072	90 95 125 98 129	431 412 605 391 627	98 93 137 88 142	3.26 3.12 4.59 2.96 4.74	54.1 42.0 117.4 46.4 92.0	18/12 30/06 02/11 05/11 07/11	0.38 0.47 1.06 0.51 0.66	16/09 05/10 25/05 15/09 23/07	8.6 7.6 9.1 6.7 9.3	1.54 1.69 3.23 1.74 2.95	0.39 0.52 1.25 0.60 0.81
021012 Ten M.A: SEPA-E Local No: F.A.P. N. Level 20m	viot at Hawick Sens.: 11.1	C.A: 323.0 km ² B/full: 134.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.004	6395	1204		843		8.64	273.4	31/10 1977	0.44	24/07 1989	19.7	4.94	0.99
Comment: Natural section. Low flow control required due to weed growth. # Natural upland shale. Hill grazing is the dominant land use but only significant settlement.	UE: <.01 I by gravel shoal below ga I catchment. Geology compr forestry is important in the here	FAI: 0.994 uge. Frequent rerating ises of (mostly) Silurian adwaters. Hawick is the	i 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1099 1217 1443 1295 1409	91 101 120 108 117	762 850 1050 914 1061	90 101 125 108 126	7.79 8.71 10.75 9.37 10.84	131.3 292.5 159.2 241.6 167.1	05/11 17 /02 24/10 24/01 24/10	0.64 1.08 1.67 0.79 1.05	24/09 19/08 26/05 05/09 28/07	19.3 19.3 23.3 22.5 24.5	4,44 4,16 7,48 4,99 6,80	0.77 1.48 2.43 0.99 1.44
021025 Ale M M.A: SEPA-E Local No: F.A.R: SP Level: 61m	Ater at Ancrum Sens.: 16.6 UE: < 01	C.A: 174.0 km ² B/full: 52.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.955	7295	955		476		2.62	80.2	01/04 1992	0.10	17/08 1995	6.5	1.36	0.22
Comment: Velocity-area station at natural m close to gauge. Runoff is marginally diminish naturalised flows available. # An uptand predominates.	er section. Low flow control ed by a small reservoir in th catchment - mostly Siluria	by solid rock bar very be headwaters; monthly an shale. Hill pasture	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	881 967 1136 973 1169	92 101 119 102 122	429 493 618 527 669	90 104 130 111 141	2.36 2.72 3.41 2.91 3.68	36.0 59.3 65.7 55.3 62.5	12/02 17/02 03/11 25/01 11/09	0.19 0.25 0.46 0.20 0.25	24/09 05/10 26/05 15/09 22/07	6.2 6.3 7.0 7.5 8.2	1.13 1.29 2.25 1.30 2.30	0.20 0.36 0.69 0.23 0.36
021024 Jed W M.A: SEPA-E Local No: F.A.R: N Level: 66m	ater at Jedburgh Sens.: 10.2 UE: < 01	C.A: 139.0 km ² B/full: 112.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.996	7195	916		516		2.27	167.1	03/11 1984	0.26	20/08 1995	5.2	1.18	0.39
Comment: Velocity-area station on straight re under higher flow conditions control passes uncontrolled. # An upland, mainly Old Red Sar forestry.	each. A rock ledge is the cou to d/s channel bar. Flows a idstone catchment. Land use	ntrol for very low flows; are largely natural and b: hill grazing with some	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	859 895 994 936 1122	94 98 109 102 122	438 510 603 540 699	85 99 117 105 135	1.93 2.25 2.66 2.38 3.07	45.8 110.4 65.1 74.8 51.0	12/02 17/02 02/11 24/01 12/12	0.35 0.43 0.60 0.40 0.46	25/09 02/10 29/09 03/08 27/07	4.3 4.9 5.4 4.9 6.5	0.99 1.06 1.65 1.19 1.85	0.36 0.47 0.68 0.45 0.56
021008 Teviot M.A: SEPA-E Local No: E A P. N. Local X:	at Ormiston Mill Sens.: 8.4	C.A: 1110.0 km ² B/full: 411.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6095	978		558		19.64	578.6	03/01 1982	1.41	31/08 1984	43.5	11.72	2.80
Comment: Natural channel control. Rock and low flow control. Rating subject to appreciable w but runoff is sensibly natural. # Mainly Silunan grazing with some arable farming towards the	gravel section at gauge with veed growth. Catchment conf shale and ORS. Land use: c confluence with the Tweed.	FAI: 0.969 h d/s gravel riffle giving ains two small storages hiefly moorland and hill	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	883 954 1129 1002 1171	90 98 115 102 120	485 573 698 562 739	87 103 125 101 132	17.03 20.16 24.59 19.79 25.94	260.8 505.0 383.0 438.3 298.5	12/02 17/02 03/11 25/01 07/11	1.78 3.01 4.76 2.27 5.66	22/09 06/10 26/05 05/09 04/09	41.2 48.5 47.4 46.9 51.1	9.29 11.13 17.93 11.03 17.67	2.39 3.80 6.12 2.70 7.51
021021 Twee M.A: SEPA-E Local No: E A P: SP Local 25m	d at Sprouston Sens.: 6.6	C.A: 3330.0 km ² B/full: 1600.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6995	1038		600		63,40	1410.0	04/01 1982	6.34	02/09 1995	144.1	40.16	10.34
Comment: Wide section on gentle bend in riv seasonal weed growth effects on rating. Rese on the flow regime; monthly naturalised flows a Silurian formations (with some Drift). Hill gri arable farming in the lower catchment.	er. Natural channel controls rvoirs in the headwaters hav vailable. # The geology is do azing predominates with im	- Cableway. Significant ve a very minor impact ominated by impervious proved grassland and	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	927 1028 1220 1122 1288	89 99 118 108 124	535 603 800 657 842	89 101 133 110 140	56.38 63.70 84.47 69.33 88.62	577.7 849.1 829.7 659.1 772.0	12/02 19/02 03/11 25/01 07/11	8.09 12.31 17.99 14.30 12.34	24/09 05/10 26/05 06/09 23/07	136.5 138.5 154.6 160.7 174.4	33.97 39.13 67.22 42.26 65.39	9.60 14.45 25.30 15.49 14.93
021023 Leet Wa M.A: SEPA-E Local No: F.A.R: N Level: 12m	ter at Coldstream Sens.: 11.9 UE: <.01	C.A: 113.0 km ² S/full: 3.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.999	7095	650		231		0.83	51.7	01/04 : 1992	>0.00	27/08 1976	2.0	0.2 9	0.02
Comment: Velocity-area station with artificial measurement. Backwater effects from bridge be relatively flat (for this region) catchment deve Mainly arable farming.	control containing trapezoi elow station and R. Tweed, N eloped on Boulder Clay ove	dal flume for low flow latural flow regime. # A artying calciferous s'st.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	586 609 853 663 854	90 94 131 102 131	179 197 386 220 369	77 85 167 95 160	0.64 0.71 1.38 0.79 1.32	20.3 17.1 51.3 17.0 39.2	04/12 11/12 03/11 12/12 07/11	0.01 0.03 0.16 0.04 0.06	19/09 04/10 26/05 12/08 22/07	1.4 2.0 2.9 1.8 2.6	0.25 0.19 0.75 0.37 0.58	0.02 0.04 0.21 0.06 0.09
021009 Twee M.A: SEPA-E Local No: F.A.R: SP Level: 4m	ed at Norham Sens.: 3.9 UE: <.01	C.A: 4390.0 km ² B/full: 1300.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.986	6295	993		559		77.86	1518.0	04/01 1982	7.43	28/08 1976	167.0	51.20	14.10
Comment: Lowest station on R. Tweed. Velocit control. Moderate seasonal weed growth effec small impact on the flow regime - monthly r principally impervious Palaeozoic formations i grasslands and arable farming below Melrose.	y-area station at very wide na ts on rating. Reservoirs in h laturalised flows available. Moorland and hill pasture pi	atural section. Complex eadwaters have only a # Geology: mixed but redominates; improved	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	861 955 1178 1041 1211	87 96 119 105 122	485 541 729 607 754	87 97 130 109 135	67.38 75.37 101.42 84.44 104.72	694.9 953.3 1065.0 778.2 1193.0	12/02 19/02 03/11 25/01 08/11	9.43 13.60 22.29 14.74 12.94	25/09 06/10 26/05 11/08 25/07	162.1 174.6 187.8 191.2 209.9	43.50 47.74 80.25 52.44 79.89	11.48 16.65 30.94 17.82 17.04
021027 Blackadder V M.A: SEPA-E Local No: E A B: N Level 57m	Vater at Mouth Bridge Sens.: 15.5	C.A: 159.0 km ² B/full: 21.0m ³ s ⁻¹	7395	751		333		1.68	94.1	31/03 1992	0.14	21/08 1995	3.4	0.96	0.26
Comment: Velocity-area station. Natural river growth effects rating. Natural flow regime. # N land. Mostly Old Red S'st and calciferous s'st o	section with rock control. Mo atural catchment. Grazing of overlain by Boulder Clay.	oderate seasonal weed n hills, arable on lower	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	679 716 977 743 979	90 95 130 99 130	308 299 513 327 484	92 90 154 98 145	1.55 1.51 2.59 1.65 2.44	49.2 27.2 92.7 24.1 83.0	03/12 11/12 02/11 24/01 06/11	0.22 0.27 0.69 0.32 0.34	25/09 05/10 25/05 10/08 22/07	3.2 3.3 4.8 3.3 4.0	0.92 0.76 1.76 1.06 1.41	0.23 0.31 0.78 0.37 0.43
021022 Whiteadder V M.A: SEPA-E Local No: 5 A P: SP Lovel: 20-	Vater at Hutton Castle Sens.: 7.2	 C.A: 503.0 km² S/full: 175.0m³s⁻¹ FAU: 0.002 	69.,95	787		387		6.17	279.8	03/11 1984	0.42	26/11 1973	12.8	3.52	1.09
Comment: Compound Crump profile weir with and Watchwater Reservoirs which can have sut (e.g. 26/11) due to river icing over during freez # Mixed geology, mostly impervious Palaeozoic high levels with arable farming below about 150	OE: <.01 theoretical rating. Catchmer ostantial effects. Extremely k ing conditions. Monthly natu formations with significant Dr Dm.	FAI: 0.966 It contains Whiteadder ww winter flows in 1973 ralised flows available. ift cover. Hill grazing at	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	720 786 1046 771 1049	91 100 133 98 133	373 382 604 351 558	96 99 156 91 144	5.94 6.09 9.63 5.60 8.87	151.9 129.6 258.2 93.4 284.5	03/12 01/07 02/11 20/04 07/11	0.88 1.02 2.48 1.34 1.36	21/09 05/10 25/05 10/08 22/07	13.8 13.8 18.1 11.2 14.5	3.72 3.16 6.70 3.76 5.01	0.93 1.22 3.00 1.47 1.67
021016 Eye Water M.A: SEPA-E Local No:	at Eyemouth Mill Sens.: 23.8	C.A: 119.0 km ² B/full: 92.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6795	698		323		1,22	88.6	02/10 1981	0.04	17/08 1995	2.7	0.57	0.12
Comment: Former mill weir converted to serve a 600m u/s from Eyemouth harbour; high spring I ORS with tracts of Drift. Agriculture is the prime below.	UE: <.U1 s informal control. Steep hig lides can reach site. # Geolo ary land use; hill grazing in t	rai: 0.998 In banks on both sides, xgy: Silurian shale and he headwaters, arable	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	617 757 946 685 886	88 108 136 98 127	246 342 462 254 431	76 106 143 79 133	0.93 1.29 1.74 0.96 1.62	26.6 58.4 28.2 26.7 54.2	03/12 01/07 03/04 24/01 28/08	0.09 0.16 0.32 0.14 0.20	19/08 02/10 24/05 12/08 21/07	2.1 3.1 3.8 1.9 2.9	0.47 0.50 1.12 0.59 0.80	0.12 0.19 0.45 0.18 0.24

Map 3: SEPA — WEST



Average Rainfall (1961-90): 1603 mm

Gauging Station Register

•

Station number	River name	Station name		Grid raferance	Catchment area (we km)	Btation type	Period of record	Mean ann. rainfail (mm)	Mean ann. runoff (mm)	Mean ann. Ioss (mm)	Max. ann. runoff (mm)	Year of max.	Min. Bnn. runoff (mm)	Year of min.	Mean flow (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	Min, mon. flow (m's*')	Month/Year of min.	Median ann. Rood (^{m1} e*')	Base Flow Index	10 Percentile (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	95 Percentlle (m ¹ e**)
077003 077002 077004 078006 078004 078005 078001 - 078003 079007 079001 -	Liddel Water Esk Kirtle Water Annan Kinnel Water Annan Annan Lochar Water Atton Water	Rowanburnioot Canonbie Mossknowe Woodfoot Redhall Bridgemuir Saint Mungo's Brydekirk Kirkblain Bridge Afton Reservoir	** ** ** ** ** ** ** ** ** ** ** ** **	415759 397751 285693 099010 077868 091845 125755 191704 026695 631050	319.0 495.0 72.0 217.0 76.1 229.0 730.3 925.0 125.0 8.5	VA VA VA VA VA VA VA VA	1973-00 1962-00 1979-00 1983-00 196300 1979-00 1958-61 1967-00 199299 196581	1415 1502 1261 1711 1500 1542 1403 1388 1115 2209	1011 1104 781 1315 1140 1103 922 1009 616 735	404 398 480 396 360 439 481 379 499 1474	1291 1430 964 1577 1457 1295 1090 1335 704 1109	85 98 86 86 60 98 98 77	743 645 552 1129 625 895 835 559 489 293	76 73 89 73 89 73 89 73 93 73	10.23 17.33 1.78 9.05 2.75 8.01 21.34 29.61 2.44 0.20	0.84 1.27 0.09 0.59 0.39 3.22 1.95 0.34 >0.00	08/95 07/84 08/84 08/84 07/84 08/84 09/59 07/84 04/97 12/71	260.6 360.3 69.4 128.9 296.5	.32 .38 .31 .42 .28 .37 .42 .44 .51 .10	25.5 40.7 4.5 21.4 7.1 19.2 55.7 69.8 5.8 0.6	1.06 2.15 0.13 0.97 0.13 0.69 2.61 3.46 0.38 0.01
079003 079006 079004 079002 079005 080001 080004 080003 080005 080006	Nith Nith Scar Water Nith Cluden Water Urr Green Burn White Laggan Dargall Lane Blackwater	Hall Bridge Drumtanrig Capenoch Friars Carse Fidders Ford Datbeattie Loch Dee Loch Dee Loch Dee Loch Dee	NS NX NX NX NX NX NX NX NX NX	684129 858994 845940 923851 928795 822610 481791 468781 451787 478797	155.0 471.0 142.0 799.0 238.0 199.0 2.6 5.7 2.1 15.6	VA VA VA VA VA VA VA	1959-00 1967-00 1963-00 1957-00 1963-00 1963-00 1983-00 1983-00 1983-00	1656 1606 1719 1552 1456 1354 2637 2670 2580 2610	1167 1148 1238 1081 1055 938 2377 2296 2538 2450	489 460 481 471 401 416 260 374 42 160	1599 1488 1599 1397 1488 1325 3081 2705 3274 2943	90 94 00 00 82 98 98 98 98	673 718 787 681 614 493 1904 1804 1804 1952 1953	71 71 73 71 73 84 89 89	5.73 17.12 5.57 27.38 7.96 5.92 0.20 0.41 0.17 1.21	0.23 0.84 0.16 1.54 0.25 0.09 >0.00 0.01 0.01 0.05	08/95 08/84 08/95 08/84 08/95 08/95 05/84 08/95 08/95	75.9 315.7 148.5 454.0 109.3 102.2 8.8	.28 .34 .39 .38 .36 .18 .19 .28 .47	15.7 44.2 14,0 67.3 19.5 15.0 0.6 1.1 0.4 2.7	0.35 1.38 0.32 2.77 0.52 0.25 0.01 0.02 0.01 0.09
080002 081007 081006 081002 081004 081001 081003 081005 082003 082001	Dee Water of Fleet Minnoch Wtr Cree Bladnoch Penwhim Bm Luce Piltanton Bm Stünchar Girvan	Glenlochar Rusko Minnoch Bridge Newton Stewarl Low Malzie Penwhim Res Airyhemming Barsolus Banowlant Robstone	NX NX NX NX NX NX NX NX	733641 592590 363746 412653 382545 128694 180599 107564 108832 217997	809.0 77.0 141.0 368.0 334.0 18.2 171.0 34.2 341.0 245.5	VA VA VA VA VA VA VA VA	1977-00 1988-00 1985-00 1963-00 1965-68 1967-00 1985-00 1985-00 197300	1915 1918 2269 1822 1415 1556 1509 1172 1640 1408	1634 1448 1772 1350 964 891 1125 701 1013 845	281 470 497 472 451 665 384 471 627 563	2026 1724 2032 1663 1182 995 1460 871 1261 1149	00 98 98 00 88 67 98 87 82 98	1358 1124 1342 854 694 962 681 479 577 542	96 89 71 89 66 71 95 75 73	41.93 3.54 7.92 15.75 10.21 0.51 6.10 0.76 10.95 6.58	2.06 0.10 0.43 0.11 0.09 0.19 0.05 0.30 0.20	08/84 08/95 06/92 05/80 08/95 07/66 07/84 08/95 08/76 08/95	225.0 155.1 196.6 87.1	41 28 28 34 22 23 39 32 34	103.2 8.8 19.7 39.3 26.2 1.5 16.5 1.9 26.5 16.4	3.67 0.23 0.50 0.95 0.40 0.07 0.29 0.06 0.55 0.47
082002 083003 083004 083006 083010 083013 083005 083008 083002 *	Doon Ayr Lugar Water Ayr Irvine Irvine Irvine Annick Water Garnock Garnock	Auchendrane Catrine Langholm Mainholm Newmilins Kitmarnock Shewalton Oreghom Datry Kilwinning	NS N	338160 525259 508217 361216 532372 430369 345369 352384 293488 307424	323.8 166.3 181.0 574.0 72.8 218.0 380.7 90.6 88.8 183.8	VA VA VA F B B A A A A A	1974-00 1970-00 1972-00 1976-00 1977.00 1962.00 1972.00 1980.00 1963-77 1978-00	1701 1354 1341 1309 1486 1339 1277 1442 1656 1665	731 975 1000 869 1054 959 804 1260 980 1128	970 379 341 440 432 380 473 182 676 537	852 1282 1348 1089 1205 1028 1772 1214 1478	99 90 90 98 90 92 90 66 98	542 677 659 562 656 527 522 955 701 832	76 96 96 96 96 96 83 69 89	7.51 5.14 5.74 15.82 2.43 6.63 9.71 3.62 2.76 6.57	2.27 0.41 0.25 1.15 0.16 0.19 0.33 0.11 0.16 0.15	06/89 08/84 07/76 08/83 08/95 08/95 08/95 08/95 08/84 04/74 07/84	128.2 150.0 251.1 215.3 54.6	57 .30 .26 .30 .28 .25 .27 .30 .22 .23	15.6 13.2 15.3 41.5 6.4 16.8 25.5 8.8 7.3 16.6	2.71 0.55 0.32 1.45 0.21 0.31 0.50 0.25 0.16 0.27
083007 084022 084004 084037 084018 084009 084003 084003 084029 084014	Lugton Water Duneaton Clyde Douglas Water Clyde Nethan Clyde Watstone Brn Cander Water Avon Water	Eglinton Castle Maidencots Sills of Ckyde Happendon Tulliford Mill Kirkmuinhill Hazelbank Watstone Candermill Fairholm	N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N	315420 929259 927424 855333 891404 809429 835452 763470 765471 755518	54.6 110.3 741.8 97.0 932.6 66.0 1092.9 5.0 24.5 265.5	BVA VA C VA CC VA C VA VA	1977-00 1966.00 1957.00 1969-00 1969-00 1966.00 1956.00 1956-00 1986-93 1975.00 1964.00	1442 1408 1273 1421 1266 1248 1211 1148 1092 1303	1006 899 806 911 878 776 804 132 743 923	436 509 467 510 388 472 407 1016 349 380	1302 1208 1165 1077 1174 1099 1144 240 1036 1226	98 94 92 99 98 90 91 90 90	773 578 454 599 504 522 462 63 444 582	97 73 73 96 73 69 73 87 96 96	1.74 3.14 18.95 25.95 1.62 27.86 0.02 0.58 7.77	0.08 0.22 2.07 0.30 2.51 0.12 2.92 >0.00 0.03 0.27	06/84 07/84 09/96 08/76 08/95 09/96 06/92 08/84 08/95	198.5 239.8 38.7 271.9 188.1	.26 .43 .51 .36 .50 .32 .30 .27	4.6 7,4 42.2 6.9 59.5 4.0 62.4 0.0 1.5 20.3	0.09 0.45 3.51 0.41 4.16 0.17 5.31 >0.00 0.05 0.50
084007 084005 084024 084027 084019 084008 084013 084016 084025 084023	S Calder Wtr Clyde N Calder Wtr N Calder Wtr N Calder Wtr Rotten Calder Clyde Luggie Water Luggie Water Bothlin Burn	Forgewood Blairston Hillend Calderbank Calderbank Redlees Daldowie Condorrat Oxgang Auchengeich	NS N	751585 704579 828678 765624 681625 679604 672616 739725 666734 680717	93.0 1704.2 19.9 60.6 129.8 51.3 1903.1 33.9 87.7 35.7	CC FV MIS VA CC VA CB VA C	196500 195800 197200 196800 196300 1966-00 1963-00 196600 197500	971 1184 1119 1039 1012 1236 1170 1115 1123 1065	669 790 561 540 601 974 807 829 896 700	302 394 558 499 411 262 363 286 227 365	986 1088 796 1063 921 1721 1167 1132 1263 900	98 90 99 92 99 00 98 98 98	417 501 236 254 355 579 512 501 592 489	73 73 72 73 69 73 72 75 89	1.97 42.67 0.35 1.04 2.47 1.58 48.68 0.89 2.49 0.79	0.55 4.54 0.09 0.01 0.12 8.57 0.12 0.21 0.21	09/96 08/84 05/91 06/77 08/95 06/68 08/84 09/96 07/84 07/84	21.2 382.8 39.1 30.0 391.5 21.6 26.3 11.2	60 .45 .64 .33 .47 .33 .46 .40 .42 .51	3.8 100.4 0.8 2.4 5.4 4.1 112.6 2.0 5.8 1.8	0.70 7,74 0,10 0.02 0.54 0.17 9,76 0,14 0.35 0,16
084006 * 084020 084015 084026 084001 084035 084035 084030 084021 * 084033	Kelvin Glazert Water Kelvin Allander Wtr Kelvin Eam Water Kittoch Water Wht Cart Wtr Wht Cart Wtr Wht Cart Wtr	Bridgend Mitton of Camp" Dryfield Milngavie Killermont Letham Waterside Overfee Netherlee MacQuisten Br	NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS	672749 656763 638739 558738 558705 567549 596562 579575 587597 568614	63.7 51.9 235.4 32.8 335.1 19.8 16.8 111.8 91.6 120.0	VA VA FVVA VA VA MIS MIS VA	196383 196800 196099 197400 194800 199100 199100 198100 198100 196974 199100	1304 1629 1316 1558 1271 1648 1319 1500 1174 1479	981 1257 919 1299 795 1413 1181 1022 1495 982	323 372 397 259 476 235 138 478 497	1604 1754 1389 1675 1231 1808 1415 1277 2084 1148	82 98 94 54 99 90 70 94	538 824 537 878 521 1038 792 638 1900 708	72 72 97 97 97 96 96 71 97	1.98 2.07 6.86 1.35 8.44 0.89 0.63 3.62 4.34 3.74	0.22 0.09 0.80 0.07 1.36 0.05 0.06 0.22 0.18 0.25	10/72 07/84 10/72 08/76 05/84 07/00 05/00 08/99 08/74 08/96	15.8 58.1 61.8 32.8 95.6	.44 .31 .43 .36 .33 .34 .35 .32 .50 .32	4.6 5.1 15.6 3.2 19.4 2.1 1.4 9.4 13.6 9.1	0.30 0.17 1.21 1.68 0.05 0.08 0.40 1.69 0.34
084034 084032 * 084012 084002 084017 085003 085004 085002 085001 086002 *	Auldhouse Brn Bagabout Brn Wht Cart Wtr Calder Bik Cart Wtr Falloch Luss Water Endrick Wtr Leven Eachaig	Spiers Bridge Giffnock Hawkhead Muirshiel Miltiken Park Glen Falloch Luss Gaidrew Linnbrane Eckford	NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS	544589 556596 499629 309638 411620 321197 356929 485866 394803 140843	17.2 4.9 234.9 12.4 103.1 80.3 35.3 219.9 784.3 139.9	VA TP VA TP VA B VA VA VA VA	1991-00 198497 1963-00 195299 1967-00 197600 197600 196300 196300 196898	1498 1228 1325 2210 1804 3005 2502 1519 2124 2540	526 615 911 1643 1454 2360 2431 1059 1756 2608	972 613 414 567 350 645 71 460 368	660 942 1229 2235 1935 3364 2946 1381 2175 4340	94 95 90 61 98 99 86 94 98 94	369 423 593 1101 796 1744 2075 677 1235 1660	96 69 72 72 97 69 69 71	0.29 0.10 6.79 0.65 4.75 6.01 2.72 7.38 43.67 11.57	0.07 >0.00 0.40 0.05 0.21 0.13 0.14 0.41 4.55 0.50	08/96 07/84 08/95 04/74 06/78 05/80 05/80 08/83 08/84 05/80	123.5 16.3 27.7 154.6 119.2 104.8 80.0	.47 .25 .35 .15 .37 .16 .29 .30 .76 .39	0.6 0.3 17.2 1.8 12.3 16.9 7.0 19.2 85.4 27.7	0.07 >0.00 0.81 0.03 0.42 0.24 0.19 0.62 8.26 0.88

36		·								Н	ΥC	R	ΟL	O G	ICA	LD	ATA	: 1	99 <i>6</i>	5-20	00
Station number	River name	Station name		Grid reference	Catchment area (sq km)	Station type	Period of record	Mean ann. rainfall (mm)	Mean ann. runoff (mm)	Mean ann. Ioss (mm)	Max. ann. runoff (mm)	Yeer of mex.	Min. ann. runoff (mm)	Year of min,	Mean flow (m ⁴ a - ¹)	Min. mon. flow (m³a**)	Month/Year of min.	Median ann, flood (m³e*')	Base Flow Index	10 Percentle (m ¹ a ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m³e*')
086001 089002 089003 089005 089008 089009 089004 089007 089006 090002 *	Little Eachaig Linne nam Be' Orchy Lochy Eas Daimh Eas a' Ghail Strae Abhainn A Bhe River Avich Creran	Datinlongart Victoria Br Glen Orchy Invertochy Eas Daimh Succoth Glen Strae Braevallich Barwallich Bamaline Lodge Taraphocain	NS NN NN NN NM NM NN	143821 272422 239310 197274 239276 146294 957076 971139 019468	30.8 50.5 251.2 47.7 4.5 9.7 36.2 24.1 32.1 66.1	VA VA B C C B C B C B C B C B C B C B C B C	196800 198100 197700 197800 198192 198193 197800 198100 198000 1977-81	2419 3133 2784 3075 3326 3041 2939 2811 2627 2801	1807 3022 2864 2631 3210 2399 2571 2329 1918 2275	612 111 444 116 642 368 482 709 526	2756 3648 3700 3216 3861 2828 3016 2876 2265 2588	99 92 83 98 90 90 92 91 90 80	1001 2294 1848 2122 2663 1993 2048 1947 1539 1434	69 87 77 84 87 87 87 96 96 78	1.76 4.84 22.81 3.98 0.46 0.74 2.95 1.78 1.95 4.77	0.05 0.19 0.90 0.25 0.05 0.05 0.13 0.08 0.17 0.21	05/80 06/82 05/80 05/80 05/84 05/84 05/84 05/84 05/80 05/80	53.1	.23 .16 .23 .25 .29 .20 .24 .23 .54 .20	4.8 12.4 59.0 10.6 1.2 2.0 7.6 4.5 4.3 12.1	0.09 0.18 1.29 0.35 0.04 0.04 0.20 0.12 0.24 0.27
Ну	irome	etric St	at	isti	cs				Pariod	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	Peak flow , (m'a-'!)	Date of peak	Min. dally flow (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	Date of mIn.	10 Percentile (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	50 Percentia (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m³∎-')
077003		Liddel Wat	er at F	Rowanbur	afoot		C.A: 319.0	km² 3 1	739	5 1413	L	1002		10.14	404,4	01/01	0.62	26/07	25.2	4.94	1.04
M.A: SEP F.A.R: N Commen control. C Siturian st Clay in th	A-W Lo Le t: Velocity-area ableway. Highes hales, often with p e valleys. Land u	cal No: 125 vel: 27m station on straight (t floods overtop righ seat cover, form the se: dairy and hill far	gravel nt hand hills; Lo ming w	Sens.: 8.8 UE: <.01 bedded re d floodbani ower Carbo vith some f	each. Gri c. Natura oniferous orestry.	avel st i flow i series	FAI: 230.0m FAI: 1.000 toal, gives low regime. # Geo overtain by Bo	r flow ology: oulder	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1170 1266 1582 1500 1614	83 90 112 106 114	832 954 1206 1030 1250	83 95 120 103 125	8.39 9.65 12.20 10.42 12.61	278.6 447.5 290.1 293.8 268.5	05/11 17/02 20/10 25/01 25/10	0.52 1.08 1.30 1.08 1.18	20/09 20/08 26/05 15/09 28/07	20.3 24.1 30.1 25.0 31.2	4.05 3.94 7.64 4.93 6.77	0.82 1.35 1.71 1.27. 1.49
077002 M.A: SEP	A-W Lo	Esi cai No: 124	at Ca	in onble Sens.: 8.0			C.A: 495.0 B/full: 400.0m	km² ³s-1	629	5 1490	I	1088		17.08	648.3	31/10 1977	1.03	19/06 1978	40.2	9.48	2.13
F.A.R: SF Commen Steep bec about 1%	Le t: Velocity-area s I, not high bariks of flows for expo	vel: 22m Itation located on str but all bar highest flo irt. # Natural upland	l raight n ods cor catchn	JE: <.01 reach with ntained. Gr ment area :	natural c avel bed around E	hannel . Black skdale	FAI: 0.994 control. Cable Esk Res. impo muir.	eway. ounds	1996 1997 1998 1999 - 2000	1344 1454 1791 1611 1796	90 98 120 108 121	926 1085 1430 1203 1423	85 100 131 111 131	14.49 17.03 22.45 18.88 22.28	254.9 577.2 339.3 297.9 441.7	05/11 17/02 20/10 25/01 25/10	1.23 2.22 2.51 1.91 2.04	23/09 22/07 26/05 05/09 28/07	35.4 40.1 47.6 43.5 48.1	8.15 8.68 15.26 10.74 13.97	1.47 3.06 4.11 2.58 3.56
077004 M.A: SEP	'A-W Lo	Kirtle Wa cal No: 123	ater at	Mosskno Sens.: 17.8	wa		C.A: 72.0 k B/full: 50.0m ³ s	(m² s ⁻¹	799	5 1246	•	780		1.78	195.6	11/03 1979	0.05	24/08 1984	4.5	0.80	0.13
F.A.R: N Commen acting as o Carbonife Clay, Lan	Le t: Velocity-area : control, Natural fli rous series, then d use: mixed dai	vel: 21m station with cablewa ow regime. # Silurian to Triassic s'sts in ry and hill farming.	U y. Site shales the low	JE: d on straig s of the upp wer catchn	ght.reach Ier catchi Ient, ger	n abovi ment gi ierally i	FAI: e fall over roc ve way briefly overlain by Bo	k bar to the builder	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1071 1172 1461 1273 1545	86 94 117 102 124	628 651 964 756 943	81 83 124 97 121	1.43 1.49 2.20 1.73 2.15	50.2 51.5 62.7 50.0 71.9	05/11 17/02 24/10 03/12 25/10	0.07 0.09 0.17 0.14 0.12	20/09 22/07 26/05 15/09 29/07	3.6 3.7 5.2 4.3 5.4	0.64 0.60 1.24 0.84 1.08	0.10 0.17 0.27 0.18 0.19
078006 M.A: SEP	A-W Lo	Anna cal No: 121	in at W	Voodfoot Sens.: 9.9			C.A: 217.0 B/full: 120.0m	km² ³s ⁻¹	839	5 1678	l	1309		9.01	166.9	11/12 1994	0.43	26/08 1984	21.5	5.05	0.91
F.A.R: N Commen immediate catchmen Clay and	Le t: Velocity area s e rb and subsidu t draining Silurian alluvium, sands a	vei: 82m tration. Cableway sp Jary flood bank. Re slates, shales and m Ind gravels near the	an 52n Isponsi Iudstor Station	UE: n. Good ap ive, natura nes. Appred i.	oproach, Licatchm ciably Dri	steep ient. # ft free;	FAI: ib. Cableway : High relief u valleys with Bo	spans Ipland Duider	1996 1997 1998 1999 . 2000	1533 1677 1865 1914 2000	91 100 111 114 119	1153 1266 1457 1324 1473	88 97 111 101 113	7.91 8.71 10.02 9.11 10.11	132.6 151.4 138.0 158.2 145.8	26/10 17/02 20/10 28/11 25/10	0.53 1.20 1.42 0.98 0.84	21/09 26/08 26/05 24/08 28/07	20.0 21.8 20.5 20.6 23.9	4.55 4.02 7.31 5.30 5.88	0.69 1.42 1.87 1.35 1.28
078004 M.A: SEP	A-W Lo	Kinnel cal No: 119	Water	at Redhal Sens.: 31.2	נו !		C.A: 76.1 k B/full: 170.0m	m² 3s ⁻¹	639	5 1477		1113		2,69	110.9	30/10 1977	0.03	21/08 1984	6.9	1.19	0.12
F.A.R: N Comment control ins on modula catchmen	Le t: Velocity-area s stalled in 1966 - g arity. # Geology: t. Predominantly	vel: 54m tation located in stra lood hydraulic perfor Silurian shales in u hill pasture.	ight gra mance oper ca	UE: <.01 avel-bedde atchment; [°]	d reach. eam grav Triassic :	Inform el had sandsto	FAI: 0.999 al concrete lov a short-term ir one aquifer in	v-flow mpact lower	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1487 1557 1779 1614 1768	101 105 120 109 120	1170 1209 1457 1326 1410	· 105 . 109 131 119 127	2.82 2.92 3.52 3.20 3.39	89.7 97.1 95.6 80.1 93.8	26/10 18/11 20/10 28/11 25/10	0.03 0.07 0.17 0.20 0.07	20/09 22/07 27/05 24/08 23/07	7.7 8.1 8.1 8.1 8.8	1.07 1.00 2.07 1.45 1.68	0.09 0.17 0.30 0.39 0.21
078005 M.A: SEP	A-W Lo	Kinnel W cal No: 120	later al	t Bridgem Sens.: 12.4	uir		C.A: 229.0 B/full: 120.0m	km² ³ s ⁻¹	7 9 -95	1537		1089		7.91	157.6	22/09 1985	0.29	25/08 1984	19.1	4.16	0.66
F.A.R: N Commen straight at s'st aquife of Ae).	/ Le t: Velocity-area : gauge. Natural o r in lower catchm	vel: 45m station on small cha channel control. Cabl ent. Natural catchme	annel a leway. entsup	JE: <.01 at well con # Silurian : porting hill	fined se shales in pasture a	ction. I upper and for	FAI: 0.997 Large bend u/ catchment; Tr estry (Drains F	/s but iassic Forest	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1397 1463 1694 1532 1698	91 95 110 100 110	1056 998 1286 1135 1298	97 92 118 104 119	7.65 7.25 9.34 8.24 9.40	114.1 152.6 140.7 129.4 146.9	27/10 18/11 20/10 28/11 25/10	0.37 0.66 0.94 0.99 0.67	21/09 22/07 27/05 24/08 25/07	21.2 18.8 19.6 18.8 ; 23.2	3.72 2.99 6.30 4.47 5.59	0.49 0.85 1.45 1.48 1.06
078003 M.A: SEP	A-W Lo	Anna cal No: 122	in at B	Sens.: 7.3			C.A: 925.0 B/full: 420.0m	km² 3s ⁻¹	679	5 1368		982		28.81	499 .1	31/10 1977	1.35	23/07 1984	68.5	16.99	3.36
F.A.R: N Comment slightly cu Centre of smaller rit	Le t: Velocity-area s irving channel bo catchment is do obon aquifer exte	ver: 10m station with cablewa slow, # Silurain shal minated by Triassic nding up the valley t	L les in t sandsi to Moffi	u≞: <.01 ted on stra the north; tone aquife at. Natural	aight sec Carbonifi ar of the agricultu	tion be erous s Lochr iral cat	FAI: 0.992 slow bend and series in the s haben basin, v chment.	d with south. with a	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1325 1398 1641 1498 1658	97 102 120 110 121	1024 1012 1336 1146 1320	104 103 136 117 134	29.94 29.67 39.20 33.62 38.62	251.4 325.2 275.1 338.3 350.1	10/02 17/02 21/10 28/11 25/10	2.05 3.69 5.07 4.29 3.46	22/09 22/07 27/05 24/08 27/07	70.8 72.0 81.6 82.1 84.9	17.23 14.45 29.79 20.34 25.52	2.57 4.77 7.36 5.72 4.77
079007 M.A: SEP	A-W Lo	Lochar Wat	er at K	(irkblain B Sens.:	iridge		C.A: 125.0 B/full: 20.0m ³ s	km² s ^{−1}	929	5 1068		556		2.20	20.2	02/12 1992	0.27	01/08 1992	5.4	1.25	0.36
r.A.R: N Commen bridge. Flo by weed of tidal limit, to enable aquifer. H	Le t: VA station, na pod flows contain prowth. River mai treat 1997 flows recalibration. # N eadwaters drain	ver: m tural channel contro ed by bridge used fo nagement scheme a with extreme caution latural low lying cato Silurian shales. Land	L I. Shor Ir gaugi nd tide). HIF r hment d use: i	ue: t, straight ing. Muddy is affect flo record dubi draining Li mixed farm	reach be r bed. Su w regime ious, free ochar Mo ning and	llow sh mmer t (river uent g oss, ov pastur	r AI: arp bend and flows badly aff dredged to be augings under ertying Permia e.	l road fected eyond taken in s'st	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1064 1101 1299 1183 1354	100 103 122 111 127	685 615 704 639 713	123 111 127 115 128	2.71 2.44 2.79 2.53 2.82	17.9 17.1 16.2 18.5 12.0	12/02 17/02 20/10 29/11	0.15 0.23 0.54 0.64	24/06 01/05 26/05 18/06	6.9 6.1 5.8 5.6	1.52 1.80 1.81 1.30	0.32 0.24 0.67 0.72

					Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m ¹ a ¹¹)	Peak flow (m ^t e ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (m'a'')	Date of min.	10 Percentile {m ¹ e ⁻¹ }	50 Percentile {m's''}	95 Percentile (m ¹ e ⁻¹)
079003 M.A: SEPA-W	Local No: 118	Nith at H	ati Bridge Sens.: 33.2	C.A: 155.0 km ² B/full: 100.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.086	5995	1647		1143	•	5.62	212.4	15/01 1962	0.12	23 /08 1995	15.4	2.42	0.34
Comment: Velocity-a high flow control. Low natural with controller shales and Coal Mea:	flows controlled by flows controlled by d storage of Afton sures. Upland catcl	s container riffles near Res. havin hment supp	I by bridge opening belo I by bridge opening belo bridge. Straight and un g occasional signif. effi iorting pasture and roug	w station which is likely idorm approach. Largely sct. # Geology: Silurain th grazing.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1378 1500 1896 1881 1937	84 91 115 114 118	999 1074 1517 1546 1559	87 94 133 135 136	4.90 5.28 7.45 7.60 7.64	53.8 82.9 65.0 81.9 80.6	10/02 18/11 24/10 22/12 09/03	0.19 0.33 0.51 0.52 0.25	18/09 26/08 27/05 24/08 26/07	15.8 15.0 18.5 21.8 20.6	1.66 1.98 3.93 3.34 3.40	0.29 0.40 0.67 0.64 0.39
079006 M.A.: SEPA-W	Local No: 117	Nith at D	rumlanrig Sens.: 6.0	C.A: 471.0 km ² B/full: 300.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0 995	6795	1589		1128		16.84	538.4	18/10 1982	0.61	26/08 1984	43,4	8.24	1.35
Comment: Velocity-a Gravel and rock bed. small influence. # Ge bottom; rough grazing	Eevel 3211 rea station on long . Natural channel c sology: Silurian sha g, moortand and for	straight re ontrol, Ser iles and m estry in up	ach at particularly well o sibly natural flow regim udstones. Mixed farmin and areas.	and pasture in valley	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1397 1534 1825 1824 1905	88 97 115 115 120	1003 1075 1353 1391 1462	89 95 120 123 130	14.93 16.06 20.21 20.77 21.78	215.3 494.6 370.7 384.7 332.3	05/11 19/02 20/10 23/12 25/10	0.71 1.33 1.62 1.37 0.95	21/09 22/07 27/05 24/08 27/07	44.2 42.7 46.0 54.6 55.2	7.40 6.90 13.10 10.70 11.43	1.04 1.67 2.62 2.04 1.58
079004 M.A: SEPA-W	S Local No: 116	car Water	at Capenoch Sens.: 16.9	C.A: 142.0 km ² B/futl: 187.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6395	1687		1217		5.48	232.1	30/10 1977	0.08	26/08 1976	13.6	2.70	0.31
Comment: Velocity-a during winter of 1986, Well confined for all catchment supporting	Teve: 49m area station with c /7 replacing earlier but extreme flow hill pasture.	ableway. (1981 gabi rs. # Geol	ontrol of pre-cast con on control. Fairly straig ogy: Siturian shales a	rations installed trate sections installed tragravel bedded reach. and mudstones. Natural	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1657 1782 2012 2050 2200	98 106 119 122 130	1 169 1224 1452 1446 1604	96 101 119 119 132	5.25 5.51 6.54 6.51 7.20	100.4 149.9 146.5 163.9 166.2	05/11 19/02 20/10 28/11 25/10	0.17 0.33 0.42 0.35 0.24	21/09 22/07 27/05 24/08 27/07	14.6 14.7 15.2 15.6 19.3	2.40 2.26 3.96 3.11 3.72	0.22 0.47 0.80 0.61 0.54
079002 M.A: SEPA-W	Local No: 114	Nith at Fe	iars Carse Sens.: 7.6	C.A: 799.0 km ² B/full: 590.0m ³ s ⁻¹	5795	1537		1062		26.90	1274.0	16/01 1962	1.15	27/08 1984	65.9	14.71	2.70
F.A.R: SPN Comment: Velocity-a which probably contri influence on the flow r mixed farming in the v	Level, 20m irea station with cal ol higher flows. Si regime. # Geology: valley bottom.	bleway. Sti nallow sec Silurian sh	aight approach with bea aight approach with bea bon with gravel bed. A ales and mudstones. La	rM. 0.994 nds 150m below station fton Res. has a minor nd use; hill pasture with	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1408 1522 1776 1786 1889	92 99 116 116 123	1033 1085 1326 1294 1401	97 102 125 122 132	26.11 27.49 33.59 32.79 35.40	310.9 623.3 542.6 581.4 543.2	05/11 19/02 20/10 28/11 25/10	1.73 2.46 4.90 3.59 2.81	21/09 22/07 27/05 24/08 28/07	73.8 74.9 72.6 79.6 87.7	13.94 12.42 23.87 17.95 21.01	2.15 3.18 6.17 4.64 3.90
079005 M.A: SEPA-W	Clud Local No: 115	en Water	at Fiddlers Ford Sens.: 13.8	C.A: 238.0 km ² B/futt: 82.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6395	1425		1029		7.77	278.0	01/11 1977	0.17	18/08 1977	19.0	4.10	0.50
F.A.R. SP Comment: Velocity-a Cableway. Contains mudstones in upper c Pasture giving way to	Level: 23m area station under Glenkin Res. 1-2ª atchment; Permian rough grazing on I	natural ch % of flows I basal bred higher grou	annel control. Straight abstracted. # Geolog cias, sists and mudsto nd, some forestry.	reach with gravel bed. y: Siturian shales and nes in lower catchment.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1437 1496 1725 1738 1956	101 105 121 122 137	1065 1033 1273 1253 1492	103 100 124 122 145	8.02 7.79 9.61 9.46 11.23	90.7 121.7 137.5 140.8 139.4	26/10 17 /02 20/10 28/11 25/10	0.32 0.27 0.61 0.68 0.48	18/08 22/07 27/05 24/08 27/07	23.5 21.2 21.9 21.9 29.1	3.71 3.54 6.09 4.82 6.67	0.40 0.62 1.39 1.15 1.07
080001 M.A: SEPA-W	Local No: 112	Urr at D	albeattle Sens.: 9.6	C.A: 199.0 km ² B/full: 95.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6395	1330		924		5.83	164.3	20/12 1982	0.05	20/08 1995	14.8	2.99	0.24
F.A.N: N Comment: Velocity-a flow control. Cableway with granite intrusion grazing and some for	Level: 4m irea station located y. Occasional tidal p in Dalbeattie area. estry.	between h eaks recor Extensivel	vo sharp bends. Gravel ded. # Geology: Silurian y Boulder Clay covered	And rock bar forms low shales and greywackes Land use: pasture, hill	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1321 1309 1609 1594 1782	99 98 121 120 134	923 805 1114 1036 1273	100 87 121 112 138	5.81 5.08 7.03 6.54 8.01	103.5 101.8 150.8 112.6 126.6	27/10 17/02 20/10 28/11 25/10	0.10 0.23 0.56 0.43 0.28	22/09 16/08 27/05 24/08 27/07	17.4 13.5 16.0 16.8 20.7	2.42 2.17 4.46 3.18 4.43	0.18 0.36 0.93 0.43 0.62
080004 M.A: SEPA-W	G Local No: 110	reen Burn	at Loch Dee Sens.: 18.7	C.A: 2.6 km ² B/full: 3.0m ³ s ⁻¹	8395	2577		2244		0.19	7.2	28/03 1987	>0.00	22/08 1995	0.5	0.07	0.01
F.A.K: N Comment: Velocity-a relief moorland catchn Young coniferous plan	Leve: 220m irea station with an nent draining granit ntations cover 60-7	informal ti e; Bouider 0% of the c	De: Control. Natural fi Glay and peat superficia catchment.	rAl. ow regime. # Moderate I cover on lower slopes.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	2396 2458 3071 2864 3093	93 95 119 111 120	2303 2317 3076 2650 2973	103 103 137 118 132	0.19 0.19 0.25 0.22 0.24	3.9 3.4 3.5 4.3 4.4	11/10 02/09 20/10 05/11 24/10	>0.00 0.01 0.01 >0.00 >0.00	20/07 04/06 22/05 10/08 27/07	0.6 0.5 0.8 0.7 0.7	0.06 0.07 0.10 0.08 0.09	0.01 0.01 0.02 0.01 0.01
080003 M.A: SEPA-W	White Local No: 108	Laggan B	Sens.: 44,4	C.A: 5.7 km ² B/full: 5.0m ³ s ⁻¹	8095	2613		2279		0.41	9.7	26/09 1980	>0.00	22/08 1995	1.1	0.18	0.02
F.A.R: N Comment: Velocity-a Occasional backwater section with gravel be- catchment metamorph greywackes to the S. 2	Level: 220m area station. Inform r effects from Loch d and low grassy ba nosed country rocks 20% of catchment of	al wooden Dee after anks. # Geo giving way covered by	assymetrical Flat V we prolonged wet periods. blogy: Lower catchment to unaltered Ordovician young forestry plantation	FAI: 0.990 eir controts most flows. Gauge on long straight Loch Doon Granite; mid and Siturian shales and n, rest is rugged upland.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	2479 2484 3158 2949 3228	95 95 121 113 124	2161 2066 2707 2329 2599	95 91 119 102 114	0.39 0.37 0.49 0.42 0.47	10.1 7.7 6.4 5.4 5.8	09/02 02/09 02/08 24/01 28/11	0.01 0.02 0.01 0.01 0.01	· 19/09 04/06 24/05 01/08 22/07	1.2 1.0 1.4 1.1 1.4	0.13 0.15 0.21 0.19 0.23	0.02 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.02
080005 M.A: SEPA-W	Da Local No: 111	argali Lane	at Loch Dee Sens.: 30.6	C.A: 2.1 km ² B/full: 4.0m ³ s ⁻¹	8395	2519		2448		0.16	11.3	29/01 1984	>0.00	24/08 1984	0.4	0.09	0.01
F.A.R: N Comment: Natural m Natural flow regime. # Clay cover on lower s	Level: 259m ver section with bo # High relief moorla lopes.	ulder cont Ind catchm	UE: rol. Reasonable approa ent, draining granite; sh	FAI: ch, gauged by wading. allow peat and Boulder	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	2349 2331 3011 2797 3077	93 93 120 111 122	2503 2355 3273 2561 3049	102 96 134 105 125	0.17 0.16 0.22 0.17 0.20	5.4 4.4 3.2 4.3	09/02 02/09 20/10 22/12 27/09	0.01 0.01 0.02 0.01 0.01	19/09 04/06 27/05 10/08 23/07	0.5 0.3 0.5 0.4 0.5	0.07 0.07 0.13 0.09 0.12	0.02 0.02 0.03 0.02 0.02
080002 M.A: SEPA-W	Local No: 107	Dee at G	lentochar Sens.: 10.8	C.A: 809.0 km ² B/full: 400.0m ³ s ⁻¹	7795	1888		1616		41.46	352.8	12/12 1994	1.38	16/05 1978	102.7	28.87	3.38
F.A.R. H Comment: VA station section. Gravel bed w distribution of flows of Ordovician and Siluri deposits on lower gro way to rolling lowland	Level: 43m n on gentle bend ab vith some large bou controlled by Gienk an shales and gre aund. Scenic catcher pastures.	out 500m c Iders. Cab ochar Barr ywackes, v nent with n	UC: is of Genlochar Barrag leway. Lowest gauge of age faeding Glenlec H with two major granitic ugged peaks and exten	FAI: e. All flows contained at n highly regulated river: EP station. # Geology: intrusions. Glacial drift sive afforestation giving	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1706 1783 2121 2117 2299	90 94 112 112 122	1361 1440 1921 1775 2031	84 89 119 110 126	34.83 36.94 49.28 45.53 51.96	202.9 233.9 321.1 289.4 330.0	28/10 19/02 21/10 23/12 25/10	1,45 2,84 5,91 4,63 5,71	05/08 23/07 22/06 06/09 27/07	100.7 98.3 102.7 108.0 120.0	17.46 21.01 39.03 28.98 36.79	2.63 4.55 6.29 7.07 7.09
081007 M.A: SEPA-W	V Local No: 106	later of Fl	etat Rusko Sens.: 6.0	C.A: 77.0 km ² B/full: 70.0m ³ s ⁻¹	8895	1909		1424		3.48	99.3	21/12 1991	0.07	21/08 1995	8.4	1.68	0.20
Comment: Velocity-a Flows well contained which forms highest p some forestry.	vite station on show with help from rt fle point in catchment :	t straight r oodbank. # at Cairnsm	each with gravel bed ai Geology: Silurian shale ore of Fleet. Rugged m	or of the shoal control. I granitic intrusion with granitic intrusion oorland catchment with	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1756 1603 2143 2057 2114	92 84 112 108 111	1442 1275 1724 1404 1642	101 90 121 99 115	3.51 3.11 4.21 3.43 4.00	67.1 71.7 89.4 79.7 86.1	12/10 03/09 20/10 05/11 25/10	0.10 0.16 0.30 0.25 0.11	21/09 22/07 27/05 12/07 28/07	10.7 7.2 11.0 9.2 9.6	1.32 1.32 2.25 1.61 1.98	0.17 0.30 0.47 0.35 0.24

SEPA WEST

				Perlod	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runaf (mm)	% of pre-1996	Maan flow ("**")	Peak flow (m***)	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (^{m1} a ⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m ¹ a ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m ¹ e ⁻¹)
081006 M.A: SEPA-W F.A.R: N	Water of Minnoch Local No: 105 Level: 27m	at Minnoch Bridge Sens.: 24.0 UE:	C.A: 141.0 km² B/full: 150.0m³s ⁻¹ FAI:	8695	2276		1783		7.97	332.1	30/03 1993	0.07	30/06 1992	19.1	4.22	0.40
Comment: Velocity-are floodbank occasionally shales and greywackes Forest).	ea station on straight reach wi breached. Cableway spans s. Natural catchment include:	th gravel bed below steep across th floodbank. # s rugged uplands. Extensi	rocky section. Rh low Geology: Ordovician ive forestry (Glentrool	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1936 1977 2481 2273 2617	85 87 109 100 115	1656 1473 2032 1745 2016	93 83 114 98 113	7.38 6.59 9.09 7.80 8.99	122.7 138.4 236.2 218.0	12/10 03/09 20/10 22/12	0.23 0.31 0.38 0.33 0.41	22/09 22/07 08/10 12/08	20.9 17.5 21.8 18.7 23.7	3.15 3.21 5.80 4.20 5.31	0.48 0.53 0.73 0.69 0.70
081002 M.A: SEPA-W	Cree at New Local No: 104	rton Stewart Sens.: 7.6	C.A: 368.0 km ² B/tull: 330.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6395	1800		1337		15.60	347.2	30/03 1993	0.14	01/09 1976	38.7	8.11	0.91
F.A.R: N Comment: Velocity-ar Cableway. Natural cont with a few small lochs,	Level: 5m rea station located on long trots, gravel riffle 50m below moorland and forest.	UE: <.01 (, reasonably straight, g site controls lower flows.	FAI: 0.944 ravel bedded reach. # Natural catchment	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1736 1710 2185 1983 2283	96 95 121 110 127	1297 1196 1650 1376 1667	97 89 123 103 125	15.09 13.95 19.26 16.05 19.40	192.3 197.7 307.6 276.9 396.4	12/10 03/09 20/10 22/12 25/10	0.38 0.67 0.83 0.82 0.59	22/09 22/07 28/05 12/08 14/05	40.9 35.2 48.8 39.0 49.0	5.95 6.74 11.74 8.08 10.91	0.89 1.14 1.31 1.50 1.15
081004 M.A: SEPA-W	Bladnoch a Local No: 103	t Low Malzie Sens.: 21.5	C.A: 334.0 km ² B/futt: 70.0m ³ s ⁻¹	7795	1399		961		10.18	144.4	02/10 1981	0.04	23/08 1995	25.8	5.78	0.37
F-A-R: N Comment: Velocity-arr pastures. Long cablews control. # Geology: Silu peat. Natural catchmen	Lever: 1 m ea station on straight reach ay ensures flows over berms rian shales and greywackes o at in lowland area.	in a meandering section gauged. Weedy islands werlain by Boulder Clay ar	FAI: n of river situated in below gauge. Naturat Id substantial areas of	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1359 1254 1624 1424 1666	97 90 116 102 119	924 744 1160 934 1121	96 77 121 97 117	9.76 7.88 12.29 9.90 11.84	110.6 93.8 118.8 73.6 160.5	12/03 06/12 21/10 03/12 25/10	0.23 0.34 0.45 0.46 0.29	05/08 22/07 28/05 12/08 30/07	29.2 22.0 31.2 28.1 30.7	4.40 3.92 7.03 4.99 6.07	0.28 0.52 0.84 0.62 0.65
081003 M.A: SEPA-W	Luce at Ai: Local No: 102	ryhemming Sens.: 15.4	C.A: 171.0 km ² B/full: 64.0m ³ s ⁻¹ Fal: 0.978	67-95	1485		1108		6.01	283.6	13/08 1987	0.09	26/07 1984	16.0	2.50	0.28
Comment: Velocity-are channel control. Cable # Geology: Silurian sha Southern Uplands.	ea station on long straight a away. Penwhim Reservoir ales and greywackes. Natura	I moorland catchment dra	pprox. 2% of flows. aining westerty end of	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1522 1421 1863 1571 1859	102 96 125 106 125	1148 958 1460 1120 1437	104 86 132 101 130	6.21 5.20 7.92 6.07 7.77	163.6 138.4 175.0 90.4 198.9	12/03 05/12 01/01 25/01 25/10	0.23 0.26 0.37 0.23 0.17	20/09 22/07 27/05 12/07 30/07	17.4 15.4 20.3 17.6 20.8	1.99 1.87 3.74 2.39 3.34	0.31 0.37 0.48 0.33 0.31
081005 •M.A: SEPA-W	Piltanton Bur Local No: 101 Level: 6m	n at Barsolus Sens.: 28.0	C.A: 34.2 km ² B/full: 19.0m ³ s ⁻¹	8595	1150		688		0.75	20.0	22/10 1994	0.02	20/09 1995	1.8	0.40	0.07
Comment: Artificial cha control to low flows. F requiring complicated ra # Geology: Ordovician	Innel maintained by statutory flood flows generally contain ating (not yet applied to 1997 shales and greywackes. Low	drainage scheme. Station ed. Cableway. Major we dmfs, treat with caution). (land agricultural catchme	tot: utilizes check weir as eed growth problems Good high flow rating. nt.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1147 1010 1343 1189 1250	100 88 117 103 109	707 781 593 871	103 114 86 127	0.76 0.49 0.85 0.64 0.94	18.5 14.6 16.4 10.7 20.1	24/11 24/10 19/09 10/10	0.05 0.04 0.08 0.05 0.04	17/09 27/05 02/08 30/07	2.2 1.9 1.6 2.7	0.29 0.44 0.30 0.31	0.06 0.10 0.06 0.05
082003 M.A: SEPA-W	Stinchar at Local No: 145	Balnowlart Sens.: 13.0	C.A: 341.0 km ²	73 9 5	1642		1008		10.90	273.0	19/12 1982	0.03	08/07 1975	26.3	6.11	0.50
Comment: Velocity-arc contained. Hydrometric abstractions cause sma dominated by metamorp overlain with Peat and (Carrick Forest); hill pas	e es station in long straight r performance has been mo- all reduction in runoff. Very lin phosed s'st and shales (Ordo Boulder Clay, Rural catchm- sture elsewhere.	each; riffle control. Ail bi destiy affected by a leaki nited storage within the ci vician) with igneous outcro ent with extensive foreste	t exceptional floods ng stilling well. PWS atchment. # Geology: ops in the headwaters, ed upland areas in W	1996 1997 1998 1999 * 2000	1427 1420 1807 1611 1880	87 86 110 98 114	907 881 1184 1040 1171	90 87 117 103 116	9.78 9.53 12.80 11.24 12.63	144.6 150.5 220.4 209.9 249.7	12/10 31/12 01/01 22/12 25/10	0.45 0.54 0.93 0.78 0.42	22/09 21/07 21/06 12/08 30/07	26.0 24.0 29.2 27.9 30.2	4.68 5.18 8.51 6.40 7.05	0.70 0.83 1.20 1.18 0.70
082001 M.A: SEPA-W	Girvan at Local No: 146	Robstone Sens.: 10.9	C.A: 245.5 km ² B/full: 90.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6395	1395		833		6.48	183.0	19/12 1982	0.03	- 11/07 1977	16.0	3.28	0.48
Comment: Velocity-are Flood banks now conta Loch Bradan. Additional Forest. Complex geolog peat also. Land use: mo headwaters.	as station with gravel bar con- in all flows, previously inunda Istorage in a few high level loc ty: Ordovician/Carboniferous i sstly hill pasture with some mi	trol - subject to regrading ated rb. Runoff diminished hs. # An upland catchment metamorphics and igneous xed farming in the valley a	in substantial floods. I by abstractions from t draining from Carrick s formations; Drift and nd afforestation in the	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1134 1283 1621 1595 1750	81 92 116 114 125	574 714 1149 1119 1053	69 86 138 134 126	4.46 5.56 8.95 8.71 8.17	86.3 94.1 104.0 103.3 84.4d	12/10 06/12 01/01 06/12 08/03	0.08 0.19 0.42 0.69 0.24	22/09 23/07 04/07 24/08 04/07	11.3 15.7 22.7 23.6 21.2	1.82 2.31 4.79 3.93 3.23	0.15 0.29 0.59 1.06 0.37
082002 M.A: SEPA-W	Doon at Au Local No: 147	chendrane Sens.: 6.2	C.A: 323.8 km ²	7495	1678		728		7.47	121.5	31/10 1977	2.00	19/06 1989	15.4	4.98	2.68
F.A.R: P Comment: Velocity-are high discharges. Wide regulation releases fro substantially. # Upland (Ordovician and Carbor use, some afforestation	Level: 22m as station in straight section; r floodplain u/s but all flows om Loch Doon (129.5 sq.) d catchment developed on 1 inferous) and igneous formati - mostly in headwaters.	UE: iffle control at low flows, r contained. Flow regime (m) ¹ large export of w basement rocks - metam ons; Drift also. Hill pasture	FAI: ock boulder control at heavily influenced by vater reduces runoff horphosed sediments e is the principal land	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1365 1571 1935 1946 2138	81 94 115 116 127	577 620 843 852 849	79 85 116 117 117	5.91 6.36 8.65 8.75 8.70	37.2 46.8 60.4 78.8 94.3	10/02 06/12 11/02 06/12 08/03	2.59 2.31 2.73 3.17 2.75	31/08 30/06 28/05 23/08 27/07	12.7 13.3 17.9 19.5 18.3	3.79 4.10 6.15 5.55 5.75	2.80 2.55 3.11 3.38 2.91
083003 M.A: SEPA-W	Ayr at Local No: 144	Catrine Sens.: 16.7	C.A: 166.3 km ² B/full: 500.0m ³ s ⁻¹	7095	1334		967		5.10	201.0	10/12 1994	0.21	26/05 1974	13.1	2.28	0.53
F.A.R: H Comment: Velocity-are crested control (sornew) flow pattern is modestly # A catchment of rugge Carboniferous sediment main land use.	Level: 90m va station in a long straight rea hat insensitive). All flows con affected (esp. at low flows) by ed topography draining W fn ts and igneous outcrops prede	UE: <.01 ach with a large pipe formi tained. A responsive, natu y the operation of a small h orm Southern Uplands. Go ominating; Drift and peat a	FAI: 0.992 ng an informal broad- iral catchment but the IEP scheme 1km u/s. eology: complex with Iso. Hill grazing is the	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1076 1272 1718 1648 1598	81 95 129 124 120	678 801 1209 1192 1182	70 83 125 123 122	3.57 4.22 6.37 6.28 6.21	56.7 90.1 76.7 142.7 172.5	18/02 05/05 28/10 06/12 09/03	0.46 0.51 0.72 0.70 0.54	15/08 26/08 26/05 24/08 23/07	10.8 10.6 15.3 17.1 15.6	1.30 1.68 3.54 2.74 2.82	0.52 0.58 0.85 0.85 0.66
083004 M.A: SEPA-W	Lugar Water Local No: 148	at Langholm Sens.: 10.0	C.A: 181.0 km ² B/full: 153.3m ³ s ⁻¹	7295	1327		1004		5.76	261.7	02/01 1981	0.07	03/09 1981	15.4	2.48	0.30
F.A.R: N Comment: Velocity-are a thin-plate weir in the flows are archived. Ve station). # An upland Measures) and igneous	Level: 81m a station with rock/boulder co mill lade (Langholm B, local ry responsive, natural catcl catchment developed, main formations; Drift also. Hill gr	UE: <.01 ntrol (may be subject to ei no. 140, station level 84 nment (minor effluent dis ly, on Carboniferous sed azing is the major land us	FAI: 0.993 rosion/accretion) plus .17mOD). Combined- icharge close to the liments (chiefly Coal se; some forestry.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1052 1197 1619 1585 1559	79 90 122 119 117	709 775 1149 1162 1100	71 77 114 116 110	4.06 4.45 6.59 6.67 6.30	97.8 115.7 122.3 103.2d	18/11 24/10 06/12 08/03	0.29 0.37 0.27 0.33	27/09 27/05 11/08 23/07	12,7 12,1 16,8 19,1 15,7	1.33 1.52 3.48 2.74 2.81	0.34 0.35 0.46 0.35 0.42
083006 M.A: SEPA-W	Ayr at M Local No: 149	ainhoim Sens.: 8.1	• C.A: 574.0 km ² B/full: 574.5m ³ s ⁻¹	7695	1299		872		15.87	415.2	12/12 1994	0.79	24/06 1989	41.7	7.53	1.42
Comment: Velocity-are flows contained - overs Carboniferous sediment Permian sists in upper re centres. Hill grazing in t	Level, and as station in long straight sec spilling occurs on Ib. Respon is (chiefly Coal Measures) pr eaches. Drift and peat cover a headwaters, mixed farming a	ve: <.ui ction; channel control. Vei isive, natural catchment. redominate, but some ign also. Low lying rural catchi t lower levels.	r AL 0.394 ry steep banks; most # Complex geology:* eous formations and ment, no major urban	' 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	996 1151 1576 1524 1488	77 89 121 117 115	564 636 990 1016 1092	65 73 114 117 125	10.23 11.57 18.02 18.48 19.82	143.8 214.1 231.3 311.9 324.3	18/12 06/12 11/02 06/12 25/10	0.92 1.30 1.66 1.58 1.97	22/09 14/08 27/05 24/08 24/07	28.3 30.2 43.5 52.8 46.4	3.40 4.36 9.26 7.68 9.82	1.13 1.45 2.07 1.99 2.48

•

.

~

					Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (^{m1} a ⁻¹)	Peak flow (^{m1} s ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (******)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m²u·¹)	50 Percentlie (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (^{m1} 1')
083010 M.A. SEPA-W	Local No: 139	Irvine at I	lewmilns Sens.: 19.2	C.A: 72.8 km ² Brind: 126.1m ³ s ⁻¹	77. .95	1495		1055		2.45	163.5	10/09 1978	0.09	25/08 1984	6.4	1.10	0.21
F.A.H: N Comment: Flat V weir an unstable gravel bar flow regime. # Upland ((mostly Carboniferous afforestation in the no settlements.	Level: 61m within broad-creste control. Stage data atchment develope and ORS); Drift als rth, mixed farming	ed flanks in collected f d on basal so. Moorla in the va	UE: a a long straight reach, s or this site dates back to ts and metamorphosed s nd and rough pasture p illey - Greenholm and I	r AI: uperseded (Sep 1976) 1959, Sensibly natural ædimentary formations redominate, significant Darvel are the largest	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1082 1203 1714 1655 1616	72 80 115 111 108	658 779 1299 1189 1161	62 73 122 112 109	1.52 1.80 3.00 2.75 2.67	39.7 36.4 47.5 84.4 68.5	12/10 10/10 21/10 06/12 08/03	0.10 0.17 0.27 0.24 0.21	01/08 24/08 07/07 23/08 22/07	4.0 4.7 7.6 7.0 6.5	0.54 0.75 1.66 1.38 1.32	0.16 0.19 0.34 0.33 0.27
083013 M.A. SEPA-W	Local No: 164	Irvine at	Glenfield Sens.:	C.A: 218.0 km ² B/fu#: 85.0m ³ s ⁻¹ Fat	8295	1344		997		6.89	435.8	11/12 1994	>0.00	15/08 1984	17.1	2.90	0.35
Comment: River section Contained, Natural flow ORS, Drift covers lower main valley (Darvel, Ne	cevel: 21m on with broad crests v regime. # Predom r reaches. Rural cat wmilns, Galston an	ed masoni ninantiy Ca tohment w id Kilmami	veir acting as control, arboniferous and igneou ith forested areas in NE ock).	All but very high flows s rocks, with localised and urbanisation along	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	983 1089 1574 1497 1450	73 81 117 111 108	528 631 1122 1041 981	53 63 113 104 98	3.64 4.36 7.75 7.20 6.76	126.8 127.8 194.1 289.0 289.0	12/10 06/12 21/10 06/12 25/10	0.16 0.21 0.28 0.27 0.11	18/08 26/08 05/06 24/08 24/07	11.1 11.7 19.7 19.1 17.3	0.91 1.59 3.91 2.64 2.46	0.19 0.26 0.42 0.41 0.21
083005 M.A: SEPA-W	Local No: 142	Irvine at S	Sens.: 8.3	C.A: 380.7 km ² B/futi: 431.3m ³ s ⁻¹ Fat: 0.982	7295	1264		811		9.79	341.2	18/01 1974	0.14	24/06 1989	25.5	4.21	0.54
Comment: Velocity-ar All flows contained. A i # Generally an upland Carboniferous sedimer and hill grazing; some f area.	ea station with rock responsive, sensibly catchment but topo nts with basalt tracts forestry in the upper	bar/bridge natural fi graphy mo towards f catchmen	e debris control - channe ow regime (but affected I re subdued below Green readwaters; Drift also. La t. Kilmarnock (12km u/s)	a control at high flows. by effluent from STW), tholm. Geology: mostly ind use: mixed farming is the only large urban	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	994 1091 1585 1504 1445	79 86 125 119 114	524 570 998 906 866	65 70 123 112 107	6.31 6.89 12.04 10.94 10.43	146.8 142.7 178.1 237.7 211.4	12/10 06/12 21/10 06/12 25/10	0.16 0.34 0.34 0.21	16/09 30/08 27/05 24/08 23/07	19.1 19.3 29.9 29.1 25.4	1.88 2.66 6.01 4.44 4.40	0.25 0.22 0.57 0.64 0.37
083008 M.A: SEPA-W	Anr Locat No: 159	iick Wate	r at Dreghorn Sens.: 17.5	C.A: 90.6 km ² B/full: 36.3m ³ s ⁻¹	8095	1438		1255		3.61	110.4d	10/12 1994	0.07	19/08 1984	8.8	1.68	0.23
r.A.K: N Comment: Velocity-ar Various temporary con 1982). Calibration che # Geology: mainly Co deposits along river Urbanisation limited to	Level: m ea station with ope trols have been site cked regularly. Long al Measures overlai channel. Land use Stewarton and Irvin	n channel ed in the ri g Loch an in by Boul e: predom ne.	section; some control fi ver following the remova d Corsehouse Res. can der Clay, with river terra inantly grazing with iso	rom a bridge 30m d/s. I of an earlier weir (Jut affect the flow regime, uces and raised beach plated forested areas.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1142 1199 1726 1637 1564	79 83 120 114 109	966 988 1762 1221	77 79 140 97	2.77 2.84 5.06 3.50	53.9 56.3 61.1 57.7	12/10 06/12 28/11 02/03	0.22 0.16 0.33	19/09 25/07 05/06	7.1 7.1 11.6 8.7	1.01 1.23 3.36 1.60	0.26 0.32 0.47 0.26
083009 M.A: SEPA-W	G Local No: 138	arnock at	Kilwinning Sens.: 9.0	C.A: 183.8 km ² B/full: 379.4m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI:	78-95	1658		1122		6.54	380.6	11/12 1994	0.09	17/08 1984	16.5	2.66	0.24
r.A.K. Comment: River sect acting as the control. A responsive catchment headwaters - small ne overlying igneous form Mainly rural with urbar	ion with long round All flows contained, notwithstanding set t diminution in runo ations), mostly Cart tisation along main	d-crested Exceptions veral resei ff. # Rugg coniferous valley at H	Masonry weir (with cen masonry weir (with cen ally high tides may influe voirs (including Muirhea ed upland headwaters (sediments covered by D ülbimie, Dalry and Kilwir	ral rectangutar notch) ince water levels. Very d and Camphill) in the peat and Boulder Clay rift in lower catchment. ning.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1442 1397 1983 1886 1745	87 84 120 114 105	971 871 1478 1287 1151	87 78 132 115 103	5.64 5.08 8.62 7.50 6.69	125.2 119.7 305.8 173.7 237.2	28/10 06/12 22/10 03/12 25/10	0.21 0.22 0.42 0.28 0.19	21/07 26/07 07/07 11/08 29/07	15.6 12.6 20.3 20.3 16.7	2.10 2.20 4.27 3.13 2.60	0.33 0.28 0.69 0.45 0.29
083007 M.A: SEPA-W	Local No: 137	n Water af	Eglinton Castle Sens.: 55.2	C.A: 54.6 km ² B/full: 54.4m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI:	7795	1435		1006		1.74	44.7	05/11 1986	0.03	27/07 1982	4.6	0.72	0.09
Comment: Velocity-ar flows; algae can accun Very responsive flow p basalts predominate in Loch Liba has little affe	ea station with a br pulate on crest. Cabi pattern. # A linear ca the headwaters, Ca ect on flows.	road-creste leway (in a atchment e arboniferou	ed masonry weir as con- straight reach) used for of subdued relief, rural in us sediments below; sign	trol - insensitive at low rating. Wide floodplain. character. Impervious ificant spreads of Drift.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1183 1218 1728 1639 .1543	82 85 120 114 108	833 773 1303 1141 1022	83 77 130 113 102	1.44 1.34 2.26 1.98 1.76	22.6 31.1 35.0 38.2 31.0	12/02 06/12 28/11 06/12 25/10	0.13 0.06 0.15 0.08 0.03	17/07 20/07 26/05 03/09 20/07	4.0 3.6 6.0 5.3 4.5	0.42 0.57 1.12 0.77 0.70	0.16 0.08 0.23 0.11 0.06
084022 M.A: SEPA-W F.A.R: N	Local No: 118 Level: 228m	ineaton at	Maidencots Sens.: 14.8 UE:	C.A: 110.3 km ² B/full: 185.6m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI:	6695	1397		881		3.08	120.4	12/12 1994	0.13	26/07 1984	7.3	1.89	0.44
Comment: Velocity-a sensitive. Bypassing is data available from 19 older) formations. Som	rea station with a unlikely. No signific 165. # An upland ca the forestry.	ragged ro cant storag atchment (ck bar control - conside Jes or (currently) abstrac developed mainly on Dri	ered to be stable and stions. Some early flow ift overlying ORS (and	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1157 1368 1626 1624 1671	83 98 116 116 120	716 847 1072 1175 1200	81 96 122 133 136	2.50 2.96 3.75 4.11 4.19	38.9 96.4 50.7 101.2 101.6	08/01 18/11 21/10 05/11 09/03	0.26 0.42 0.73 0.55 0.43	20/09 12/08 08/10 05/09 27/07	6.2 6.9 8.2 9.4 9.3	1.43 2.41 2.40 2.36	0.31 0.54 0.88 0.70 0.54
084004 M.A: SEPA-W F.A.R:	C Local No: 122 Level: 183m	lyde at Si	lls of Clyde Sens.: 5.9 UE: <.01	C.A: 741.8 km ² B/full: 411.3m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.976	5795	1258		784		18.43	410.4	14/08 1966	1.51	27/08 1984	40.7	11.58	3.50
Comment: Sited on a control is a riffle 30m or some turbulence. Stati Uplands, with several sedimentary rocks. La	200m straight natu I/s. Section rated by on transferred from small storage rese nd use: rough grazi	ural reach y c/m to 2. SDD to Cl ervoirs in 1 ng with ind	between two sharp opp 9m. Flows are straight a yde RPB in Jul 1969. # [neadwaters. Geology: S preasing afforestation.	osing bends. Low flow t cableway but there is Drains part of Southern Ilurian and Ordovician	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1100 1272 1490 1524 1567	87 101 118 121 125	692 826 1100 1090 1168	88 105 140 139 149	16.23 19.43 25.88 25.65 27.40	132.9 262.2 193.8 283.6 281.8	09/01 20/02 21/10 29/11 25/10	1.71 3.64 5.14 4.70 3.18	20/09 12/08 26/05 05/09 23/07	41.1 42.0 52.2 58.1 63.8	9.69 9.07 19.14 14.26 15.89	2.01 4.21 6.22 5.37 3.80
084037 M.A: SEPA-W	Doug Local No: Level: m	las Water	at Happendon Sens.: UE	C.A: 97.0 km ² B/full: 27.7m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI	8995	1424		919		2.83	71.7	11/12 1994	0.26	07/08 1995	7.0	1.7 0	0.42
Comment: Crump wei of Lower ORS, intrude afforestation. Two sma	r. All flows containe of by basattic and c all lochs in catchmer	d. # Geold Joleritic dy nt but flow	gy: Carboniferous rocks kes. Rural catchment ha pattern remains respon	with local occurrences aving undergone some sive.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1060 1283 1584 1571 1573	74 90 111 110 110	601 745 1051 1072 1048	65 81 114 117 114	1.84 2.29 3.23 3.30 3.21	18.1 34.8 18.9d 51.0 58.9	19/12 18/11 11/02 28/11 09/03	0.25 0.38 0.52 0.38 0.34	20/09 12/08 07/07 05/09 23/07	4.5 5.5 7.1 7.9 8.0	0.92 1.15 2.28 1.83 1.81	0.28 0.41 0.63 0.47 0.41
084018 M.A: SEPA-W	C - Local No: 125	lyde at T	alliford Mill Sens.: 16.3	、 C.A: 932.6 km ² B/full: 587.5m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.979	69-95	1249		860		25.43	558.6	31/10 1977	1.48	27/08 1984	58.5	15.86	4.02
Comment: Velocity-ar Catchment includes a naturalised flows availa headwaters; mostly ig height from 180-800m	ea station with a nat number of PWS gat able. # Mixed geolog neous formations b . About one third is	tural contro thering gro yy - ancien pelow. Sul cultivated	a. Banks overtopped at f sunds from which the yie t sedimentaries (ORS/Or istantial Drift cover. The the remainder is hill gra- the remainder is hill gra-	ows in excess of MAF. Id is exported. Monthly dovician) dominate the e catchment ranges in azing and moorland.	, 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1066 1247 1478 1502 1532	85 100 118 120 123	650 798 1119 1174 1129	76 93 130 137 131	19.16 23.59 33.09 34.71 33.29	128.6 281.9 236.3 309.1 297.0	09/01 20/02 21/10 29/11 25/10	3.18 4.91 6.31 6.71 4.54	20/09 31/08 26/05 05/09 23/07	50.6 49.9 65.3 79.2 76.9	10.37 12.12 25.44 22.28 20.68	3.55 5.48 7.20 8.00 5.08
084009 M.A: SEPA-W F.A.R: PN	N Local No: 107 Level: 122m	lethan at l	(Irkmuirhill Sens.: 14.4 UE: <.01	C.A: 66.0 km ² B/full: 92.4m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.976	6695	1231		759		1.59	80.1	31/10 1977	0.01	28/08 1967	3.9	0.78	0.17
Comment: Compound u/s of rh crest. Theor contained; the channel Nethan drains from Nu large areas of Drift o pasture below.	I Crump profile weir etical rating - confil is deeply incised in tberry Hill. Complex over; a mainly imp	(centre cr rmed by g to rock. R geology - ervious ca	est: 2.44m, flanks: 4.27n Jaugings, Flows remain unoff is diminished by PV mostly Old Red S'st and tchment. Afforestation i	is significant accretion modular and are fully VS abstractions. # The Carboniferous L'st with- n the headwaters, hill	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	956 •1194 1549 1532 1493	78 97 126 124 121	549 . 683 1099 992 997	72 90 145 131 131	1.15 1.43 2.30 2.08 2.08	20.1 30.9 34.3 26.0 43.0	19/12 11/12 11/02 06/12 25/10	0.11 0.16 0.26 0.22 0.15	18/09 30/08 07/07 05/09 23/07	2.7 3.2 5.4 5.2 4.8	0.47 0.66 1.48 1.17 1.14	0.13 0.19 0.35 0.32 0.20

-

					Period	· Raintail (مس)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m ¹ = ')	Peak flow (^m a ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. daily now (mia ^{**})	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m ³ e ¹¹)	95 Percentile (m³a*')
084003 M.A.: SEPA-W F.A.R: H	Local No: 123 Level: 52m	Clyde at	Hazelbank Sens.: 5.5 UE: <.01	C.A: 1092.9 km ² B/full: 181.9m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.981	56_95	1198		785		27.20	606.5	12/12 1994	2.20	11/10 1959	60.6	16.89	5.30
Comment: Velocity-ar net impact of antacial i u/s HEP station (Stor geology: Metamorphic Skm u/s.	ea station in a stra influences (some r nebyres Falts), # s/igneous/Drift, Hill	ight section aduralised Catchment I grazing is	. Well calibrated, All fi data) but flow pattern drains from the Sou principal land use; thir	ows contained. Very minor is affected by operation of othern. Uplands. Complex ily populated but Lanark is	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1021 1203 1435 1446 1479	85 100 120 121 123	674 812 1080 1088 1123	85 103 138 139 143	23.28 28.12 37.43 37.71 38.83	158.8 325.4 253.0 352.6 337.6	06/11 20/02 21/10 05/11 25/10	2.33 5.39 8.61 6.09 4.69	23/09 12/08 26/05 05/09 24/07	58.1 59.4 70.5 87.4 89.2	14.52 15.19 27.80 22.36 23.40	2.91 6.60 10.15 7.81 6.11
084029 M.A: SEPA-W	Ca Local No: 131	nder Wate	r at Candermili Sens.: 34.3	C.A: 24.5 km ² B/full: 119.3m ³ s ⁻¹	75.,95	1083		741		0.58	60.9	31/10 1977	0.01	13/08 1983	1.5	0.22	0.04
Comment: Non-stand flows spill onto bank Responsive flow regim Measures, with ORS (gravels along the Can	Level. In ard Flat V broad-o s. High flow ratin e. # Small, northw Greywacke Congli der Water. Quarry	rested weir ng under r and draining omerate) oc ing activity	. no wing walls; current eview following mod g, rural catchment dev curring on some hills. in S. of catchment.	rn. t meter calibration. Flood works involving the rb. eloped on productive Coal Boulder Clay and terrace	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	791 993 1314 1292 1281	73 92 121 119 118	445 597 889 947 868	60 81 120 128 117	0.35 0.46 0.69 0.74 0.67	11.5 27.4 22.0 17.8 26.5	06/11 17/02 27/12 28/02 20/09	0.03 0.05 0.07 0.08 0.04	20/09 24/08 26/05 05/09 30/06	0.8 1.0 1.6 2.0 1.8	0.13 0.18 0.32 0.28 0.23	0.03 0.06 0.10 0.11 0.05
084014 M.A: SEPA-W F.A.R:	1. Local No: 104 Level: 54m	von Water	at Fairholm Sens.: 15.3 UE: <.01	C.A: 265.5 km ² B/futl: 397.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.989	6495	1294		918		7,73	397.3	13/08 1966	0.16	17/08 1984	20.2	3,17	0,49
Comment: Velocity-ar the control. All flows of flow pattern remains formations. Hill grazing	ea station in a very ontàined. Some na responsive. # An g is the main land	v straight un aturalised fi impervious use.	iform reach. Rock plat ows. Two small reser catchment - mostly	form below a bridge forms roirs in the catchment but ORS and Carboniferous	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	981 1189 1618 1589 1553	76 92 125 123 120	584 731 1175 1130 1188	64 80 128 123 129	4.90 6.15 9.89 9.51 9.98	92.2 162.8 165.2 197.2 212.0	19/12 17/02 21/10 06/12 25/10	0.22 0.46 0.87 0.67 0.67	19/09 27/08 05/06 24/08 23/07	12.7 16.1 23.6 26.0 27.1	1.62 2.46 5.50 3.95 4.30	0.27 0.60 1.22 0.96 0.87
084007 M.A: SEPA-W F.A.R: El	Souti Local No: 105 Level: 44m	h Calder W	tr at Forgewood Sens.: 7.3 UE: .06	C.A: 93.0 km ² B/futl: 87.9m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.989	6595	962		665		1.96	61.1	24/01 1993	0.26	17/10 1994	3.8	1.38	0.71
Comment: Compound avoid drowning. All f influenced by industrial subdued topography Measures); extensive urban - the gauging st	I Crump profile we lows contained. abstractions and o developed on sec Drift. Land use: a ation is located in	ir (centre: 3 Theoretical discharges timentary fi trable and Motherwell	3.658m, flanks: 13.404 rating confirmed by - net import of water fn ormations of Carbon pasture plus significa	im). Gradient sufficient to gaugings. Flow pattern om the Clyde. # Relatively ferous age (chiefty Coal nt woodland and > 15%	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	730 917 1187 1087 1211	76 95 123 113 126	444 598 986 692 734	67 90 148 104 110	1.31 1.76 2.91 2.04 2.16	11.9 23.9 30.0 23.0 25.3	18/12 14/08 08/04 03/12 07/11	0.45 0.62 0.83 0.62 0.62	29/08 11/08 05/07 14/09 22/07	2.3 3.0 5.2 4.1 4.4	0.92 1.30 2.26 1.37 1.48	0.51 0.73 1.15 0.71 0.74
084005 M.A: SEPA-W	Local No: 108	Ciyde at	Blairston Sens.: 6.9	C.A: 1704.2 km ² B/full: 830.0m ³ s ⁻¹	5895	, 1169		778		42.05	830.9	12/12 1994	3.37	23/08 1984	99.0	24.01	7.72
Comment: Velocity pr 300m d/s. Steep grass Several upland tribs in naturalised flows availa processed. # Geology: other upland areas Ca moorland on high grou	ofile slightly uneven and tree covered b inpounded for PW able. Station burnt predominantly Ord arboniferous basal und, some affores	en due to u anks. Rated S. River hy down Feb lovician s'st lovician s'st loci lavas. V tation; fruit	(a) s bend. Control: pier l by c/m to 3.4m, just b rdropower schemes u 1997, temp. gauge ins is and shales. Lowther fariable Drift cover. L farming in valley. Ra	s of redundant rail bridge elow max. recorded stage. (s of New Lanark. Some talled, level data yet to be Hills in S are Silurian L'st, and use: hill grazing and pid urbanisation in lower	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	'962 1148 1421 1414 1439	82 98 122 121 123	610 993 954 1015	78 128 123 130	32.89 53.66 51.57 54.70	293.3 346.4 381.9 390.0	19/12 27/12 09/12 25/10	4.60 7.69 6.67 6.41	20/09 05/06 05/09 24/07	75.2 111.7 127.3 133.3	18.49 37.93 28.27 30.20	5.37 11.32 8.22 7.60
084024 M.A: SEPA-W	No Local No: 128	rth Calder	Wtr at Hillend Sens.:	C.A: 19.9 km²	7295	1100		54 7		0.34	3.2	12/12 1994	>0.00	06/03 1988	0.8	0.19	0.10
F.A.R. S Comment: Flat V fibre flooded out at extreme from Hillend Res. (but Lower Coal Measures,	Level: Toom -glass Crump we high flows (very - flood releases via with some quartz	ir. Suscepti rare). Flow a second sp -dolerite int	ble to minor weed gro is totally artificial, bei pillway bypass). # Ge rusions.	rat: wth in summer. Channel ng controlled by releases ology: mainly Upper and	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	895 1054 1397 1229 1397	81 96 127 112 127	523 481 796 622	96 88 146 114	0.33 0.30 0.50 0.39	2.0 1.9 2.4 2.5	12/02 11/12 17/10 03/12	0.08 >0.00 0.18 0.16	25/01 04/06 08/07 04/11	0.7 0.6 1.0 0.9	0.19 0.22 0.33 0.25	0.14 0.10 0.18 0.16
084027 M.A: SEPA-W	North Local No: 117	Calder W	tr at Calderbank Sens.:	C.A: 60.6 km ²	6895	1022		485		0,93	31.3	06/10 1990	>0.00	01/07 1987	1,4	0.35	0.01
F.A.R: S Comment: Fibre-glass susceptible to blockage gauging planned. Cana uplands. Reservoired h Boulder Clay and local	Level: m s flume for low by vandals (but ch al offtake just u/s. eadwaters. Geolo ised riverine depos	flows, broa tecked daily # Urbanise gy: principa sits.	UE: d-crested control for (). High flow calibration ed catchment with rou by Upper and Lower C	FAI: higher flows. Flume is is poorly defined - further rgh grazing remaining on coal Measures overlain by	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	820 976 1301 1173 1307	80 95 127 115 128	399 467 876 1063 838	82 96 181 219 173	0.77 0.90 1.68 2.04 1.61	12.5 11.6 17.2 27.5 18.2	12/02 11/12 08/04 03/12 07/11	0.08 0.14 0.22 0.22 0.27	14/09 19/07 28/09 29/07 16/05	1.6 1.9 5.9 7.7 5.4	0.32 0.37 0.57 0.45 0.54	0.09 0.16 0.29 0.26 0.34
084019 M.A: SEPA-W	North Local No: 102	1 Calder W	tr at Calderpark Sens.: 8.5	C.A: 129.8 km ² B/full: 21.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.930	6395	1003		600		2.47	134.3	12/12 1994	0.06	10/08 1995	5.3	1.49	0.56
Comment: Recorder s steep cliff being underc Canal drains through several small storage k	ited on U-shaped i sut by river. The in catchment. # Lies ochs. Geology: se	bend so vel ner bank is in Scottisf dimentary r	ocity profile is not syn quite steep. Rated by a central lowlands ea ocks of Carboniferous	metrical. Outer bank is a c/m to 1.12m. Monkland st of Glasgow. Contains t age.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	782 920 1245 1136 1244	78 92 124 113 124	405 479 754 622 777	68 80 126 104 130	1.66 1.97 3.10 2.56 3.19	24.3 26.6 41.4 67.0 32.6d	12/02 11/12 08/04 03/12 06/11	0.36 0.48 0.69 0.52 0.44	30/08 02/10 05/06 05/05 20/07	3.9 3.9 6.4 6.0 6.9	0.81 1.22 1.99 1.08 1.75	0.39 0.57 0.81 0.60 0.68
084008 M.A: SEPA-W	Rott Local No: 103 Level: 17m	en Calder	Wtr at Rediees Sens.: 11.9	C.A: 51.3 km ² S/full: 72.0m ³ s ⁻³ FAI: 0.998	6695	1224		958		1.56	60.8	13/01 1984	0.07	11/08 1968	4.0	0. 6 8	0.17
Comment: Compound confirmed by gaugings. sewage and industria predominate; Drift cov growth in the lower cat	Crump profile we River gradient ob # effluent. # A er). Moorland and chment (East Kilb	ir (central c viates drow mainly imp 1 hill pastur ride}.	vest: 1.83m, flanks: 4 ning. All flows contain pervious catchment re in the headwaters	.88m). Theoretical rating ed. Runoff augmented by (Carboniferous deposits , some significant urban	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	914 1086 1524 1532 1476	75 89 125 125 121	729 815 1323 1721 755	76 85 138 180 79	1.18 1.33 2.15 2.80 1.22	20.5 37.8 43.2 48.2 29.1	06/11 17/02 21/10 03/12 25/10	0.10 0.09 0.18 0.24 0.05	29/12 26/08 08/10 20/10 21/04	3.1 3.3 5.5 6.8 3.1	0.44 0.50 0.83 1.88 0.51	0.18 0.13 0.26 0.43 0.11
084013 M.A: SEPA-W	Local No: 101	Clyde at I	Daldowie Sens.: 4.7	C.A: 1903.1 km ² B/fu#: 370.0m ³ s ⁻¹ EAI: 0.966	6395	1158		785		47.37	1107.0	12/12 1994	6.09	19/08 1984	109.3	27.56	9.61
Comment: Velocity-are flows available. # Larg Carboniferous with Drift farming and urbanisatio	e astation; lowest of e catchment deve cover below the h on in the lower val	on the Clyde Hoped on a Headwaters. Hey.	e. Well calibrated. Cat mixed geology - Orc Hill pasture is the ma	Neway. Some naturatised lovician (in the south) to jor land use; some mixed	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	945 1128 1409 1393 1423	82 97 122 120 123	631 769 1067 1110 1170	80 98 136 141 149	38.00 46.38 64.36 66.99 70.40	339.8 408.6 430.9 515.4 475.3	19/12 20/02 11/02 03/12 25/10	6.86 12.47 12.41 15.15 13.01	20/09 04/06 26/05 24/08 23/07	91.4 106.6 135.0 157.9 158.3	20.88 25.86 45.44 37.82 41.45	8.05 13.64 15.67 17.79 15.43
084016 M.A: SEPA-W F.A.R: N	Lug Local No: 106 Level: 68m	ggie Water	at Condorrat Sens.: 13.7	C.A: 33.9 km ² B/full: 32.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.998	6695	1103		820		0.88	51.3	11/12 1994	0.06	08/08 1967	2.0	0.48	0.14
Comment: Compound Data prior to March 196 and boggy areas. # Get of the catchment is ag (Cumbernauld).	broad-crested we 58 is of poor qualit blogy: mostly Coal nicultural in chara	ir, central k y. No contri Measures t cter but urt	with intrusive basalt an oled storages but sign with intrusive basalt an oan development in t	ted by current metering, nificant local depressions nd substantial Drift. Much he north has been rapid	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	904 1010 1434 1256 1331	82 92 130 114 121	627 696 1132 926 1012	76 85 138 113 123	0.67 0.75 1.22 1.00 1.08	17.0 19.5 27.6 44.9 32.4	28/10 21/02 22/10 03/12 29/10	0.09 0.12 0.23 0.15 0.14	24/09 24/08 07/07 03/09 20/07	1.6 1.5 2.5 2.2 2.4	0.34 0.44 0.74 0.47 0.57	0.11 0.16 0.29 0.19 0.15

SURFACE WATER - REGISTER AND STATISTICS

<u>.</u> -

				Perlod	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (^{man-1})	Peak flow (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min, dally flow (m's')	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m³e**) ·	50 Percentile (m ³ e ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m³e'')
084025 M.A.: SEPA-W	Luggie W. Local No: 130	ater at Oxgang Sens.:	C.A: 87.7 km ² B/full: 77.8m ³ s ⁻¹	75_95	1115		885		2.45	110.0	11/12 1994	0.12	26/07 1984	5.8	1.30	0.34
F.A.RC E Comment: Velocity-are not thought to affect flo predominantly Coal Me urban development.	Level: 38m a station with informal Flat ws. Most flows contained assures with some dolerite	UE: 106 V control. Some sign of we but some spillage in flood and basalt intrusions. Mi	FAI: 0.999 ir undercutting in 1992, conditions. # Geology: xed land use, farming/	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	873 976 1396 1235 1282	78 88 125 111 115	622 689 1263 1055 1106	70 78 143 119 125	1.73 1.92 3.51 2.93 3.07	27.7 31.5 42.2 59.7 48.2	28/10 21/02 23/10 03/12 29/10	0.27 0.34 0.56 0.46 0.39	09/09 25/08 05/06 03/09 21/07	4.0 4.2 7.4 7.1 7.1	0.93 1.06 2.36 1.33 1.71	0.30 0.40 0.74 0.57 0.49
084023 M.A: SEPA-W	Bothlin Bun Local No: 127	n at Auchengeich Sens.:	C.A: 35.7 km ² B/fuß: 36.1m ³ s ⁻¹	7395	1056		700		Ó.79	17,4	11/12 1994	<u>0</u> .08	20/07 1989	1.8	0.47	0.16
F.A.R: E Comment: Crump pro natural regime but moti undulating catchment, o (overlain with Drift).	Level: 57m Sile weir. Theoretically rations onway (M73) runoff and Silon containing three old mining	UE: .09 ed. Flow contained over the IW effluent may influence villages, developed on Sco	FAI: 1.000 he full range. Sensibly flow pattern. # A small ttish Carboniferous L'st	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	834 930 1335 1202 1238	79 88 126 114 117	511 564 900 733 800	73 81 129 105 114	0.58 0.64 1.02 0.83 0.90	6.2 8.1 10.9 11.2 8.7	28/10 20/02 22/10 03/12 29/10	0.15 0.10 0.23 0.14 0.10	10/10 26/08 07/07 23/08 21/07	1.2 1.4 2.0 1.9 2.1	0.39 0.41 0.76 0.46 0.60	0.18 0.15 0.27 0.18 0.12
084020 M.A: SEPA-W	: Glazert Water a Local No: 126 Level: 39m	t Milton of Campsie Sens.:	C.A: 51.9 km ² B/futl: 137.4m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.995	6895	1618		1234		2.03	87.1	11/12 1994	0.06	26/08 1984	5.0	1.01	0.17
Comment: Velocity-are control (gaugings confii following the 1990 spate naturalised flows avai Carboniferous series ()	ea station; broad-crested i m the theoretical rating bu es; reconstruction schedule liable. # An upland catu principally the Scottish Ca A small area is niven over	weir with rectangular low at significant structure eros ad). No significant lochs or s chment draining the Car rboniferous L'st) predomin to forestry	flow notch acts as the ion evident - especially torages. Some (1970s) npsie Fells. Geology: late - overlain by Drift.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1372 1430 2052 1751 1815	85 88 127 108 112	1093 1753 1489 1429	89 142 121 116	1.80 2.89 2.45 2.35	43.7 67.3 57.0 52.9	19/02 11/02 30/11 25/10	0.13 0.24 0.21 0.11	26/08 05/06 24/08 27/07	4.5 6.5 6.3 5.7	0.86 1.67 1.21 1.17	0.18 0.34 0.32 0.17
084015 M.A. SEPA-W	Kelvin Local No: 120	at Dryfield Sens.: 7.1	C.A: 235.4 km ² B/full: 189.5m ³ s ⁻¹	6095	1315		899		6.71	91.5	12/12 1994	0.34	25/09 1986	15.5	3.99	1.17
F.A.R: E Comment: Recorder s river was canalised duri section is affected by w to 2.97m. Cableway ins low lying central valley age.	Level: 31m ited in straight even reach ing last war and floodbanks eed growth and requires of talled in 1960 so no high m of Scotland. Geology: Mills	UE: .05 where erosion has made s made on both banks from onstant attention. Rated by easurements prior to this d stone Grit and coal bearing	FAI: 0.981 banks very steep. The dredged material. The c/m measurements up ate. # Catchment in the rocks of Carboniferous	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1057 1149 1648 1432 1479	80 87 125 109 112	804 919 1389 1196	89 102 155 133	5.98 6.86 10.37 8.93	66.0 55.2 68.1 64.5	28/10 12/02 11/02 30/11	1.25 1.50 2.31 2.04	07/04 22/04 19/05 05/05	12.3 13.2 20.5 18.8	3.84 4.84 7.75 5.69	1.64 2.15 2.62 3.14
084026 M.A: SEPA-W	Allander Wa Local No: 129	ater at Milngavle Sens.:	C.A: 32.8 km ² B/full: 14.7m ³ s ⁻¹	7495	1535		1300		1.35	49.8	10/03 1990	0.01	14/07 1977	3.2	0.70	0.12
F.A.R: S Comment: Velocity-are a number of natural and developed mostly on predominate); some Dr development (Milngavie	Level: 34m as a station with Flat V low flo d artificial storages but the t Carboniferous formations ift. Upland grazing is the r a) near the outfall.	UE: .04 w control (installed 1973). T flow regime remains respor (basaltic lava and Scotti nain land use; some affore	FAI: 0.935 The catchment contains Insive. # Hilly catchment ish Carboniferous L'st estation and also urban	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1344 1343 1957 1852 1832	88 87 127 121 119	925 878 1610 1427 1651	71 68 124 110 127	0.96 0.91 1.67 1.48 1.71	36.0 18.6 33.3 28.6 34.1	28/10 19/02 11/02 03/12 24/09	0.07 0.06 0.13 0.18 0.09	23/09 26/08 28/05 11/06 22/07	2.3 2.1 3.7 3.6 3.9	0.46 0.45 1.05 0.77 1.07	0.08 0.08 0.19 0.23 0.12
084001 M A: SEPA-W	Kelvin a Local No: 121	at Killermont Sens.: 6.6	C.A: 335.1 km ² B/full: 31.4m ³ s ⁻¹	4895	1259		796		8.45	265.7	12/12 1994	0.74	17/07 1962	19.5	5.15	1.67
Comment: Velocity-ar- contained within steep canal drains through the runs along the northern block to the north - rem use: moorland to urban	Level: 27m ea station with channel o banks. Station moved 300 e catchment. Some monthin n edge of the Central Low ainder of catchment is chier concentrations.	UE: .06 ontrol; vigorous seasonal Im u/s (from Killermont) in Iy naturalised flows availab vlands taking tributaries fro sfty Carboniferous sedimen	FAI: 0.975 weedgrowth. All flows 1962. Forth and Clyde le. # The main channel om the faulted igneous ts and Dnft. Mixed land	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1080 1157 1669 1481 1510	86 92 133 118 120	611 620 956 881 884	77 78 120 111 111	6.47 6.59 10.16 9.37 9.37	71.7 65.8 84.7 77.6 80.8	28/10 12/02 12/02 30/11 01/02	1.00 1.30 1.69 1.85 0.92	22/09 26/08 05/06 01/09 27/07	14.0 14.9 22.2 21.0 22.8	3.60 3.94 7.13 5.28 5.52	1.33 1.61 2.19 2.36 1.36
084036 M.A: SEPA-W	Earn Wa Local No:	ter at Letham Sens.:	C.A: 19.8 km ²	9195	1633		1395		0.88	67.3	18/03 1991	0.01	31/05 1991	2.0	0.45	0.06
F.A.R: N Comment: Velocity-ar # Geology: extrusive ig: rocks of Upper L'st Gr Lochcraig Res. and Be	Level: m rea station with open ch neous rocks overlain with to oup. Small, rural catchme nnen lochan are located in	UE: lannel section. Quick, re Soulder Clay, also local out nt. A number of small PM n catchment.	FAI: sponsive flow regime. crops of Carboniferous VS reservoirs including	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1251 1348 1936 1944 1834	77 83 119 119 112	854 1038 1808 1732 1617	61 74 130 124 116	0.53 0.65 1.14 1.09 1.01	11.0 12.6d 31.0 18.8	17/09 11/02 30/11 02/03	0.02 0.09 0.09 0.01	26/08 05/06 25/06 22/07	1.2 1.6 2.7 2.6 2.5	0.26 0.37 0.70 0.50 0.48	0.05 0.03 0.13 0.14 0.04
084035 M.A: SEPA-W	Kittoch Wa Local No:	ter at Waterside Sens.:	C.A: 16.8 km ²	9195	1342		1224		0.65	25.2	26/10 1995	0.06	28/05 1991	1.5	0.34	0.10
F.A.R: N Comment: Velocity-ard impact from sewage wo balance. # Carbonifero rurai catchment having 1960's.	Level: m ea station with open chai rks u/s of catchment. The u us Coal Measures and ou undergone rapid land use	UE: nnel section. Flood warnin urban drainage system prod tcrops of Basalt overlain b change since the expansion	rAi: ng station. Very minor duces misleading water y Drift deposits. Small, n of East Kilbride in the	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	931 1094 1511 1521 1412	69 82 113 113 105	795 1039 1391 1415 1050	65 85 114 116 86	0.42 0.55 0.74 0.75 0.56	14.9 18.1 21.2 28.6 27.4	06/11 17/02 16/10 03/12 29/10	0.08 0.11 0.13 0.11 >0.00	07/09 20/07 26/05 02/09 01/07	0.9 1.0 1.6 1.8 1.5	0.23 0.31 0.42 0.33 0.21	0.09 0.13 0.16 0.13 0.01
084030 M.A: SEPA-W	White Cart Local No: 160	Water at Overlee Sens.:	C.A: 111.8 km ²	8195	1499		1049		3.72	152.7	31/12 1983	0.21	20/08 1984	9.7	1.62	0.40
F.A.K: S Comment: Rectangula Confirmatory gaugings modular. Thin-plate da flashy nature of the rive mostly basaltic lava and river channel. Land use catchment and upper c	Level: 40m ar thin-plate low flow no not yet available for the f maged and removed in 1 er. There are several reser d Carboniferous L'st overfa : predominantly grazing, ho alchment is becoming fore	UE: tch in a broad-crested (ill flow range. Good fall b 999. Frequent flooding d/s voirs and lochs within the in with Boulder Clay and ri owever, there has been rap seted.	FAI. V cross-section) weir. elow weir,flows remain a of the gauge reflects catchment. # Geology: ver gravels along main id urbanisation of lower	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1097 1240 1756 1780 1654	73 83 117 119 110	640 699 1081 1026 1255	61 67 103 98 120	2.26 2.48 3.83 3.64 4.44	53.4 56.6 82.8 98.3 96.6	12/10 17/02 21/10 30/11 29/10	0.26 0.37 0.26 0.41	21/09 17/08 05/06 24/08 22/07	5.6 5.9 9.5 10.5 11.5	1.01 1.24 1.94 1.38 1.90	0.31 0.43 0.38 0.20 0.51
084033 M.A: SEPA-W	White Cart Water Local No:	at MacQuisten Bridge Sens.:	C.A: 120.0 km ²	9195	1495		1042		3.97	108.7	11/12 1994	0.24	07/08 1995	9.6	1.81	0.35
F.A.R: Comment: Velocity-are Catchment prone to fre upper reaches but have Carboniferous Coal M afforestation in upper re	Level: m as station with well confine quent flooding. Flood warr insignificant effect at station leasures and basalts. Ru paches and rapid urban ex-	UE: d open channel. Very resp ning station. A number of si on. # Predominantly Drift cx ural catchment undergoin cpansion of East Kilbride ai	FAI: onsive, natural regime. mall PWS reservoirs in overed with outcrops of g land use changes: nd Castlemilk.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1068 1206 1707 1728 1608	71 81 114 116 108	600 708 1135 1120 1086	58 68 109 107 104	2.28 2.69 4.32 4.26 4.12	68.5 100.8 109.7 97.8	17/02 21/10 30/11 29/10	0.29 0.47 0.28 0.26	26/08 05/06 23/08 22/07	5.4 6.1 10.4 11.6 10.2	1.04 1.34 2.35 1.76 1.84	0.18 0.40 0.59 0.43 0.35
084034 M.A: SEPA-W	Auldhouse Bu Local No:	m at Spiers Bridge Sens.:	C.A: 17.2 km ²	9195	1504		559		0.31	15.8	11/12 1 9 94	0.04	07/09 1991	0.6	0.17	0.08
F.A.R: N Comment: Velocity-are or discharges, howeve # Carboniferous Coal urbanisation.	Level: m a station with artificial cont r, proportion of runoff div Measures and outcrops of	UE: rol: broad crested weir. No verted out of catchment d of Basalt, covered by Dri	FAI: significant abstractions ue to urban drainage. ft deposits. Significant	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1118 1237 1724 1751 1632	74 82 115 116 109	370 389 566 632 548	66 70 101 113 98	0.20 0.21 0.31 0.34 0.30	3.3 4.1 8.4 13.5 10.8	12/10 17/02 21/10 03/12 29/10	0.05 0.05 0.04 0.04 0.03	20/07 08/07 07/07 21/08 26/07	0.3 0.4 0.7 0.8 0.6	0.14 0.14 0.19 0.18 0.17	0.06 0.07 0.06 0.07 0.07

10 Percentile (m³a⁻¹) 50 Percentile (m³a⁻¹) 95 Percentile (m³e ⁻¹)

11.3 12.1 20.7 23.1 19.5

12.1 2.69 0.41

11.9 11.1 14.4 15.2 13.8 1.78 2.01 4.70 3.91 3.18 0.43 0.51 0.72 0.54 0.42

16.4

15.3 16.4 20.9 27.2 22.5 1.65 1.70 3.22 3.43 2.33 0.10 0.18 0.15 0.25 0.25

7.0

6.9 5.6 7.5 8.4 7.8 1.10 1.05 1.71 1.74 1.57 0.09 0.17 0.28 0.37 0.18

19.0 3,19 0.59

16.2 16.7 23.3 25.9 23.0 2.42 2.57 5.08 4.01 3.83 0.69 0.79 1.17 0.98 0.83

83.9 39.78

72.137.629.5182.120.4811.1396.753.989.45102.851.158.24101.455.447.56

4.6 0.75 0.08

4.9 4.7 5.7 7.3 5.5 0.65 0.62 1.21 1.45 0.74 0.11 0.12 0.15 0.22

12.8 1.76 0.18

9.6 11.7 12.1 14.3 13.9 1.02 1.09 2.18 2.19 1.68 0.10 0.21 0.16 0.27 0.18

44.0 58.2 64.0 66.6 72.2

9.2 9.4 12.4 1.27 1.29 2.95 0.33 0.37 0.36

11,1

72

8.0

57.2 8.51

9.06 1,30

10.6 1.82 0.34

1.61 0.33

0.94 1.76 0.22 0.19

7.2 1.41 0.22

0.20 1.44 7.7

2.18 0.25

1.43 0.19

8.21

0.10

1.26

1.18 1.71 1.27 2.02 6.27 7.28 10.38 11.50

17.3 3.26 0.87

1.79 2.45 5.28 3.98 4.04 0.33 0.44 1.00 0.77 0.60

				Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (^{m3} a ⁻¹)	Peak flow (m²e*)	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (^{m3} a ⁻¹)	Date of min.
084012 M.A: SEPA-W	White Ca Local No: 109 Level: 5m	urt Water at Hawkhead Sens.: 3.9	C.A: 234.9 km ² B/tul: 155.0m ³ s ⁻¹	63_95	1304		908		6.76	187.1	18/12 1965	0.15	17/08 1995
Comment: Velocity-au weed growth causes I available. # Carbonifer also. Much of the catch urbanised (Glasgow).	ea station in a straigh ow flow rating variatio rous rocks (basalt in th iment is open pasture (t reach of uniform cross-secti ns. Complex water utilisation e headwaters) predominate; I with several small lochs) but th	From 0.584 on. Rock bar control but ; some naturalised flows Drift and terrace deposits te northern part is heavily	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1079 1212 1695 1703 1583	83 93 130 131 121	616 705 1160 1132 1059	68 78 128 125 117	4.57 5.25 8.64 8.44 7.87	82.0 103.5 124.1 145.6 119.5	12/10 17/02 11/02 03/12 29/10	0.26 0.26 0.69 0.50 0.39	16/09 26/08 05/06 21/08 23/07
084017 M.A: SEPA-W	Black Car Local No: 111	t Water at Milliken Park Sens.: 19.0	C.A: 103.1 km ² B/tu#: 47.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6795	1787		1430		4.67	110.1	11/12 1994	0.08	27/08 1984
Comment: Velocity-a rating. Overtopping of Rowbanks) provide stc (fed by Calder Water), principally impervious of Clay. Peat in some up	rea station with inform to can occur when s rrage, flows signif, affec evident on the hydrogn catchment - Carbonifer land areas, river grave	al (dished) concrete control, lage exceeds 1m. Several lo ted by operation of Castle Se aph trace. Wonthly naturalised ous basalt and igneous intrus I on floodplains. Rural land us	FALUTYS length: 26.52m. Stable chs and reservoirs (e.g. mple Loch and Barr Loch I flows available. # A wet, ions, overlain by Boulder ie, urbanisation in valley.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1608 1599 2223 2116 1999	90 89 124 118 112	1247 1273 1935 1888 1630	87 89 135 132 114	4.07 4.16 6.32 6.17 5.31	31.4 31.0 54.0 42.7 44.8	28/10 06/12 11/02 03/12 01/02	0.24 0.32 0.42 0.48 0.31	25/09 30/08 03/06 20/08 26/07
085003 M.A: SEPA-W	Fallo Local No: 124	ch at Glen Falloch Sens.:	C.A: 80.3 km ²	7095	3003		2291		5.83	226.7	22/10 1971	0.02	21/08 1995
F.A.R: N Comment: Velocity-ar control - installed Feb central notch. All but responsive regime, # W northern slopes of Bein with isolated outcrops headwaters, but have	Level: 10m ea station with long by 1975. Damage to part of very high flows conta- /ery wet mountainous in a Chroin and Beinn O of igneous intrusions. I tittle affect on flows.	UE: < 01 oad-crested weir (with rectar if main crest results in a small ined. No significant abstracti catchment draining southern habair. Developed on ancient Peat deposits in upland areas	FAI: 0.993 gular notch) as low flow discharge bypassing the ons or discharges. Very slopes of Benn Oss and metamorphic formations as Small lochans in some	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	2375 2858 3243 3552 3051	79 95 108 118 102	1960 2309 2934 3364 2968	86 101 128 147 130	4.98 5.88 7.47 8.57 7.54	149.1 185.3 176.9 203.4 162.3	04/11 19/02 11/02 08/09 29/10	0.03 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.10	20/09 04/06 05/06 09/08 25/07
085004 M.A: SEPA-W F.A.R: N	Lu: Local No: 132 Levet: m	s Water at Luss Sens.: UF:	C.A: 35.3 km ² B/full: 57.2m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI:	7695	2507		2427		2.72	111.8	20/08 1987	0.06	21/08 1995
Comment: Velocity-ar notch, slight damage to very wet, mountainous areas and localised gra	ea station with artifici centre section repaire catchment developed avels in valleys.	al low fow control: broad-cre d in autumn 1992. Very respor mainly on Dalradian schists, o	ested weir with low flow sive, natural regime. # A verlain by Peat in upland	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	2046 2144 2683 2810 2722	82 86 107 112 109	2109 2075 2665 2764 2603	87 85 110 114 107	2.35 2.32 2.98 3.09 2.91	34.0 54.0 59.0 54.7 53.9	04/11 16/09 20/10 30/11 17/10	0.04 0.11 0.18 0.18 0.10	19/09 25/07 05/06 24/08 24/07
085002 M.A: SEPA-W	Endric Local No: 113	k Water at Gaidrew Sens.: 10.0	C.A: 219.9 km ² B/full: 133.8m ³ s ⁻¹	6395	1498		1042		7. 27	142.4	30/09 1985	0.28	20/06 1970
F.A.R: P Comment: Velocity-an flood discharges are of approach to the measu the Forth system. Sor Campsie Fells, develop	Level: 10m ea station with channel of a lesser accuracy (d ring reach). Runoff is d me naturalised flows a ped on ORS overlain v	UE: <.01 control. Low and medium flow due to overspill on to the lb iminished by the export of wa available. # An upland catch /ith Drift; large tracts of sand	FAT: 0.984 rs considered reliable but floodplain and a curved ter from Carron Res. into ment, draining from the and gravel also.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1346 1402 1946 1800 1767	90 94 130 120 118	920 944 1379 1329 1273	88 91 132 128 122	6.39 6.58 9.61 9.27 8.85	133.8 124.9 135.1 133.9 128.7	28/10 17/02 21/10 22/12 29/10	0.56 0.69 0.98 0.77 0.69	21/09 19/08 05/06 23/08 24/07
085001 M.A. SEPA-W	Lev Local No: 112	en at Linnbrane Sens.: 3.9	C.A: 784.3 km ² B/full: 124.6m ³ s ⁻¹	6395	2112		1731		43.05	196.8	11/03 1990	3.31	29/08 1984
Comment: Velocity-are erosion caused by maj control weir built in 19 1974. # Large, wet, uj overlain by Drift in the	ea station with channel or floods in 1990 nece 71, now substantially r pland catchment. Geol west.	DET <.01 control at outflow from Loch L ssitated recalibration. Natural egulated. Naturalised monthl ogy dominated by ancient m	rAI: 0.009 omond. Stable rating but regime until loch outfall y flows Oct 1963 - Sept etamorphic formations -	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1791 1965 2471 2484 2344	85- 93 117 118 111	1607 1684 2175 2107 2029	93 97 126 122 117	39.84 41.88 54.09 52.39 50.33	143.0 146.8 125.5 140.8 126.5	06/11 02/03 16/02 09/12 08/01	8.81 8.81 8.09 7.24 7.05	25/06 28/08 09/06 09/08 09/05
086001 M.A: SEPA-W	Little Ea Local No: 116 Lexel: 10m	chaig at Dalinlongart Sens.: 22.5	C.A: 30.8 km ² B/full: 83.1m ³ s ⁻¹	6895	2383		1750		1.71	91.2	03/11 1979	0.01	14/07 1977
Comment: Velocity-ar flanks), Cableway on si runoff volume to Loch catchment - very wet -	ea station with compo ite. Flood flows contain Tarsan. Very respon- developed on ancient	bund artificial control (low fic ed. Natural flow regime but ca sive flow pattern. # A compa metamorphic formations; son	w notch, broad-crested atchwaters divert a small act, steep, mountainous ne Drift.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	2272 2194 2862 2978 2814	95 92. 120 125 118	1776 1699 2394 2757 2057	101 97 137 158 118	1.73 1.66 2.34 2.69 2.00	33.8 84.9 45.8 15.0d	06/12 20/10 22/12 11/09	0.09 0.10 0.12 0.06	30/06 05/06 11/08 24/07
089002 M.A: SEPA-W	Linne nam Be Local No:	sathach at Victoria Bridge Sens.:	C.A: 50.5 km ²	8195	3141		3067		4.91	167.7	20/09 1989	0.04	27/08 1984
Comment: Velocity-are installed as part of HE catchment draining to couple of small lochs in	ea station with a spillw P programme. No art Loch Tulla. Geology: h the catchment.	ay crested weir. Calibration gu ificial influences to the flow i Dalradian metamorphics with	ood at low flows. Initially regime. # Rural, upland n igneous extrusions. A	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	2413 3042 3479 3544 3072	77 97 111 113 98	2045 2641 3176 3393 2993	67 86 104 111 98	3.27 4.23 5.09 5.43 4.78	143.2 138.1 120.3 93.9	<i>19/02</i> 11/02 06/12 30/01	0.08 0.09 0.06 0.07	05/06 05/06 11/08 25/07
089003 M.A: SEPA-W	Orci Local No: 150	y at Glen Orchy Sens.:	C.A: 251.2 km ²	7795	2763		2831		22.55	607.9	02/03 1979	0.06	30/11 1977
Comment: Velocity-are contained. Initially insta rural, forested catchine Oalradian L'st.	a station with low flow lied as part of HEP pro- ant. Geology: Predomi	v control (broad-crested weir) ramme. Very responsive natu nantly metamorphic rocks wi	r Al. . All but very high flows ral flow regime. # Steep, ith local occurrences of	1996 1997 1998 1999	2180 2737 3153 3289 2020	79 99 114 119	2441 2624 3162 3308	86 93 112 117	19.39 20.91 25.19 26.35	395.0 558.4	02/03 11/02	0.94 0.63	05/06 05/06
089005	Loc	hy at invertochy	C.A: 47.7 km ²	7895	3095	100	2607	114	3.94	227.4	02/03	0.15	04/08
M.A: SEPA-W F.A.R: N Comment: Velocity-are 1995 due to instrument programme. # Linear (Local No: 152 Level: m a station with low flow failure. All but the very catchment draining we	Sens.: 41.5 UE: control (broad-crested weir). high flows contained. Initially stward from Lochan na Bi.	FAI: Dmfs unavailable June installed as part of HEP Geology: predominantly	1996 1997 1998	2440 2777 3183	79 90 103	2108 2174 3216	81 83 123	3.18 3.29 4.86	34.2 37.1	1979 06/12 12/02	0.24 0.25	1991 04/06 05/06
Uatradian metamorphic	s with local outcrops o	r middle ORS. Rural catchme	int with forested slopes.	1999 2000	3575 3045	116 98	3036	116	4.58	223.9	29/10	0.24	26/07
089004 M.A: SEPA-W F.A.R: N	Stra Local No: 151 Level: m	e at Glen Strae Sens.:: UE:	C.A: 36.2 km ² FAI:	7895	2936		2600		2.98	70.7	01/04 1991	0.11	18/05 1980
Comment: Spillway cree effects on the flow regin draining to Loch Awe. Dalradian L'st. Land use	ested weir. Initially instance during the early reco Geology: predominant e: rough grazing.	lled as part of HEP programm rd. High flow rating unconfirm y Dalradian metamorphics w	e. No significant artificial ed. # A linear catchment ith local occurrences of	1996 1997 1998 1999	2416 2773 3257 3404	82 94 111 116	2278 2784	88 107	2.61 3.20	60.1 69.4	15/09 11/02	0.14 0.13	03/06 04/06
				2000	2872	98	2496	96	2.86	56.0	31/01	0.17	04/07

				Period	Roinfell (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean Row (m's'')	Peak flow (m'a'')	Date of peak	Min. delly flow (m's'')	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m³e.1)	50 Percentile (m*e*1)	95 Percentlia (m³e**)
089007 M.A: SEPA-W F.A.R: N	Abhainn a' Local No: 154 Level: m	Bhealaich at Braevallich Sens.: 9.8	C.A: 24.1 km²	81_95	2839		2358		1.80	91.5	07 /04 1991	0.05	10/06 1984	4.5	0.99	0.12
Comment: Compound rounded crest with dec HEP programme. No metamorphics with ign	I weir. Low flows mea: reasing accuracy. All estificial effects on eous intrusions. A sta	sured over a broad crest notch but highest flows contained. In flow regime. # Geology: p ep, forested catchment drainin	h; high flows over a long itially installed as part of predominantly Datradian ig into Loch Awe.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	2278 2303 3019 3174 2866	80 81 106 112 101	1952 1972 2459 2536 2308	83 84 104 108 98	1.49 1.51 1.88 1.94 1.76	35.0 40.2 68.1 44.3 42.2	16/02 05/04 20/10 05/12 17/10	0.05 0.08 0.06 0.05 0.07	24/09 30/06 05/06 11/08 14/05	3.8 4.0 4.5 5.0 4.5	0.73 0.64 1.02 1.00 0.83	0.13 0.12 0.10 0.11 0.11
089006 M.A: SEPA-W F.A.R: S	River Av Local No: Level: m	ich at Barnaline Lodge Sens.: UE:	C.A: 32.1 km ² FAI:	8095	2632		1905		1.94	16.4	11 /04 1991	0.12	23/08 1995	4.3	1,47	0.25
Comment: Compound walls. Low flows are w installed as part of H intrusive and extrusive dominated by presence	I weir; broad crest low well rated, accuracy lo IEP programme, # G igneous outcrops. Fo e of Loch Avich appro	 flow notch set in level round st progressively with floods at eology: predominantly Datrac rested catchment draining into x, 2km u/s. 	ded crest weir with wing bove main crest. Initially dian metamorphics with o Loch Awe. Catchment	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	2162 2202 2855 3170 2715	82 84 108 120 103	1543 1569 2235 1994	81 82 117 105	1.57 1.60 2.28 2.02	8.2 6.3 20.0 12.0	03/11 06/12 12/02 01/02	0.15 0.10 0.12 0.14	22/09 30/06 05/06 30/07	3.7 3.6 5.1 4.9	1.15 1.25 1.69 1.37	0.27 0.17 0.21 0.19

Map 4: NORTH EAST



Area: 22,777 km²

Average Rainfall (1961-90): 834 mm

Gauging Station Register

Station number	River name	Station name		Grid reference	Catchment area (eq hm)	Station type	Pariod of record	Mean ann. rainfail . (mm)	Mean ann, runoff (mm)	Mean ann. Ioas (mm)	Мах, влп. гилоћ (тт)	Year of max.	Min. ann. runoff (որո)	Year of min.	Mean flow ("1e")	Min. man. Now (m³a*1)	Month/Year of min.	Median ann. flood (m*∎*1)	Base Flow Index	10 Percentlle (m³e-')	95 Percentile (m ¹ e ⁻¹)
021032 021031 - 022004 - 022002 - 022003 - 022009 022001 022007 022006	Gien Til Aln Coquet Usway Burn Alwin Coquet Coquet Wansbeck Blyth	Kirknewton Etal Hawkhall Bygate Shilmoor Clennell Rothbury Morwick Mitford Hartford Bridge	NT NT NT NT NT NT NZ NZ	919310 927396 211129 870083 886077 925063 067016 234044 175858 243800	198.9 648.0 205.0 59.5 21.4 27.7 346.0 569.8 287.3 269.4	FVVA VA MIS TP FV VA VA MIS FVVA	196600 195680 196680 195780 195780 1969-83 1972-00 1968.00 1968.00	880 815 744 985 1039 953 912 873 802 709	456 412 370 637 812 641 519 470 353 247	424 403 374 348 227 312 393 403 449 462	717 616 571 889 1226 1137 741 664 557 450	98 63 69 63 79 70 79 98 00 00	178 129 119 352 447 312 264 206 133 63	73 73 73 73 73 73 89 73 73 73	2.88 8.47 2.40 1.20 0.55 0.56 5.69 8.50 3.21 2.11	0.18 1.03 0.38 0.12 0.05 0.06 0.56 0.80 0.13 0.07	07/94 08/76 07/76 09/59 09/59 08/76 08/95 08/95 08/76 08/76	42.5 81.3 63.9 28.6 15.2 13.9 139.9 94.8 47.0	.47 .58 .46 .47 .40 .46 .47 .44 .37 .35	6.3 17.1 4.5 2.5 1.3 1.2 12.0 18.6 7.1 4.9	0.32 1.43 0.46 0.20 0.09 0.08 0.80 1.19 0.22 0.12
023011 023014 * 023022 023005 * 023008 023008 023003 023015 * 023009 023006	Kielder Burn North Tyne North Tyne North Tyne Tarset Burn Rede North Tyne North Tyne South Tyne South Tyne	Kielder Kielder temp Uglydub Tarset Greenhaugh Rede Bridge Reaverhitt Barrasford Alston Featherstone	N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N	644946 631931 713875 776861 789879 868832 906732 906732 924721 716465 672611	58.8 27.0 241.5 284.9 96.0 343.8 1007.5 1043.8 118.5 321.9	FVVA VA FV VA FVVA FVVA FL VA FL VA CC	197000 1960-74 198200 1963-87 1970-80 196800 195900 194259 196900 196600	1277, 1195 1357 1254 929 958 1070 996 1489 1375	1032 952 1012 886 575 540 657 537 1128 1039	245 243 345 368 354 418 413 459 361 336	1326 1256 1270 1220 852 766 906 653 1751 1324	00 65 00 85 79 79 00 58 00 00	644 642 798 537 366 251 354 486 864 703	73 64 96 81 73 73 73 53 71 96	1.92 0.81 7.75 8.01 1.75 5.89 20.99 17.78 4.24 10.61	0.22 0.09 1.15 0.60 0.12 0.45 1.36 1.93 0.14 0.89	08/95 10/72 12/83 08/76 08/76 08/95 08/76 08/55 08/95 08/95	60.4 213.8 61.5 125.8 402.6 456.4 248.1	.34 .35 .50 .33 .28 .33 .37 .30 .28 .33	4.5 1.8 16.1 19.1 4.3 14.1 48.0 42.2 10.5 25.4	0.29 0.10 1.49 0.90 0.14 2.55 2.39 0.35 1.35
023013 * 023012 * 023004 023023 023001 023002 023007 023018 023016 023017	West Allen East Atlen South Tyne Tyne Derwent Derwent Ouse Burn Ouse Burn Team	Hindley Wrae Wide Eals Haydon Bridge Bywell Eddys Bridge Rowlands Gill Wootsington Crag Hall Team Valley	N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N	791583 802583 856647 032617 038617 041508 168581 196700 254674 249585	75.1 88.0 751.1 2174.5 2175.6 118.0 242.1 9.0 55.0 61.9	VA VA CB VA FLB CC VA TPB	1971-80 1971-80 196200 1968-00 195600 195400 196200 198900 198900	1024 1038 1182 1058 1044 962 855 697 651 705	693 771 499 653 284 332 228 167 463	331 267 411 559 391 678 523 469 484 242	891 1161 1073 643 971 742 726 413 295 607	77 79 00 00 60 60 60 98	541 592 489 387 375 95 146 147 120 390	75 73 96 73 89 73 94 94 92	1.65 2.15 18.37 34.41 45.06 1.06 2.55 0.06 0.29 0.91	0.03 0.15 1.39 6.01 3.41 0.63 >0.00 0.02 0.33	05/80 08/76 08/95 08/95 08/76 10/89 09/79 08/95 07/89 06/91	53.2 79.6 415.7 883.6 42.1 38.2	.27 .35 .34 .52 .38 .52 .57 .33 .31 .62	4.2 5.0 43.1 69.1 103.5 2.1 5.1 0.1 0.7 1.3	0.06 0.24 2.08 6.63 5.99 0.28 0.81 >0.00 0.03 0.50
024011 024006 * 024003 024004 024008 024002 * 024007 * 024007 024007 024009	Wear Rookhope Wear Bedbum Beck Wear Gauniess Browney Browney Wear Wear	Burnhope Res. Eastgate Stanhope Bedburn Witton Park Bishop Auckland Lenchester Burn Hall - Sunderland Br Chester le Street	N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N	856395 952390 983391 118322 174309 215306 165462 259387 264376 283512	20.5 36.5 171.9 74.9 455.0 93.0 44.6 178.5 657.8 1008.3	TP B CC CC CC CC VA C CC CB CB FV	1992-00 1957-80 1958.00 1959.00 1972.00 1958-83 1968-83 1954.00 1957.00	1616 1167 1306 894 1054 727 747 750 951 885	903 668 515 544 310 392 302 541 460	713 499 625 379 510 417 355 448 410 425	1389 1021 1029 640 799 474 585 491 822 693	98 79 00 68 69 60 00	455 334 404 281 349 138 209 139 294 271	96 59 73 75 73 73 73 89 73 89	0.59 0.77 3.71 1.22 7.84 0.92 0.55 1.71 11.28 14.70	0.08 0.03 0.28 0.09 0.09 0.06 0.21 1.21 2.95	09/96 08/59 08/95 08/76 08/76 10/70 10/59 09/59 07/84	24.6 119.0 24.9 181.5 19.2 12.6 31.0 174.6 228.0	.22 .36 .35 .46 .44 .51 .45 .51 .42 .47	1.7 1.8 8.7 2.8 17.6 1.9 1.3 3.6 25.9 32.7	0.09 0.07 0.49 0.15 1.21 0.14 0.07 0.28 1.97 3.04
025003 025023 025012 025011 * 025002 * 025018 025022 * 025008 025006 025010 *	Trout Beck Tees Harwood Bk Langdon Bk Tees Balder Tees Greta Baydale Beck	Moor House Cow Green Res Harwood Langdon Dent Bank Middleton Balderhead Res Bamard Castle Rutherford Br Mowden Bridge	NY NY NY NY NZ Z	759336 813288 849309 852309 932260 931280 931182 047166 034122 260156	11.4 58.2 25.1 13.0 217.3 242.1 20.4 509.2 86.1 31.1 1	CC FV FVVA FV CC VA CC CC CC MIS	195700 197100 1969-00 1969-83 195674 197100 197480 196600 196600 196774	1883 1785 1617 1478 1665 1555 1177 1341 1135 646	1527 1547 1236 1014 1114 1163 '935 858 829 224	356 238 381 464 551 392 242 483 306 422	2902 2012 1670 1499 1517 1468 1180 1238 1177 334	79 00 79 67 00 79 00 69	1051 901 873 713 776 794 640 558 530 60	71 96 73 64 73 75 73 73 73	0.55 2.86 0.98 0.42 7.68 8.93 0.61 13.85 2.26 0.22	0.01 0.40 0.02 0.21 2.34 0.00 3.05 0.04 0.01	08/95 03/96 08/95 08/76 06/57 05/89 12/76 06/70 08/95 06/73	15.5 31.2 15.5 280.4 180.5 225.1 73.6 6.0	.15 .53 .20 .24 .43 .27 .42 .22 .28	1.5 6.0 2.6 1.1 18.8 19.1 1.7 31.0 5.9 0.4	0.02 0.48 0.06 0.03 0.68 2.51 3.68 0.11 0.01
025001 025007 * 025021 025020 025004 025009 025019 * 025005 025013 * 026005	Tees Clow Beck Skerne Skerne Skerne Tees Leven Leven Billingham Gypsey Race	Broken Scar Croft Bradbury Preston le Skerne South Park Low Moor Easty Leven Bridge Thorpe Thewles Boynton	NZ Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z	259137 282101 318285 292238 284129 364105 585087 445122 408237 137677	818.4 78.2 70.1 147.0 250.1 1264.0 14.8 196.3 61.4 240.0	CC TP VA CB VA FV C B VA FV FV	1956-00 1961-80 197300 197200 195600 196900 1971-96 195900 196974 1981-00	; 1156 727 673 655 661 977 803 744 584 724	651 300 171 177 199 469 405 297 156 25	505 427 502 478 462 508 398 447 428 699	925 471 301 324 336 780 650 540 134 65	00 79 79 69 00 79 00 72 00	362 123 50 57 75 284 177 94 134	73 73 89 89 75 89 75 89 72 89	16.89 0.74 0.38 0.83 1.58 18.79 0.19 1.85 0.30 0.19	0.46 0.06 0.04 0.29 2.37 0.04 0.13 0.03 0.03 0.00	08/59 08/76 09/90 08/90 08/76 08/76 08/90 08/76 03/73 10/96	362.2 13.8 5.8 17.2 21.0 341.8 6.1 37.8	.32 .55 .43 .40 .51 .38 .59 .44 .33 .93	41.0 1.7 0.8 1.8 3.3 44.5 0.4 4.1 0.5 0.5	1.74 0.09 0.05 0.10 0.36 2.88 0.05 0.25 0.02
026004 * 026007 * 026003 026006 026009 026001 * 026002 * 026002 * 026002 * 027050 * 027054 *	Gypsey Race Catchwater Foston Beck Eimswell Bk West Beck West Beck Hufl Mires Beck Esk Swale	Bridlington Withernwick Foston Mill Little Onffield Snakeholme Lock Wansford Bridge Hempholme North Cave Sleights Richmond	TA TA TA TA TA SNZ NZ	165675 171403 093548 009576 066555 064560 080498 890316 865081 146006	253.8 15.5 57.2 136.0 242.2 192.0 378.1 41.9 308.0 381.0	C FL TP EM MIS MIS C B VA VA	197185 196579 195900 1980-00 1988-00 195374 196196 1986-00 197097 196180	737 648 719 746 711 729 689 666 880 1211	33 210 347 127 245 410 286 154 490 857	704 438 372 619 466 319 403 512 390 354	79 401 707 263 427 688 451 253 776 1217	79 69 81 66 80 86 86 67	79 78 21 103 156 83 60 228 543	74 73 90 90 73 90 89 89 75	0.26 0.10 0.63 0.55 1.88 2.49 3.43 0.20 4.79 10.35	0.00 0.07 0.00 0.23 0.38 0.32 0.02 0.27 0.45	10/85 08/76 11/90 11/96 11/90 02/65 10/96 06/92 08/76 05/80	0.6 1.7 1.7 5.5 12.1 237.3	.87 .33 .96 .98 .97 .96 .85 .86 .39 .36	0.8 0.3 1.3 1.4 4.6 5.4 6.7 0.4 10.1 24.2	0.13 0.28 0.54 0.49 0.03 0.60 1.26
027090 027075 027069 027008 * 027082 027082 027082 027034 027034 027059 027086	Swale Bedale Beck Wiske Swale Cundall Beck Snaizeholme Ure Laver Skell	Catterick Bridge Leerning Kirby Wiske Leckby Grange Crakehil - Bat Bridge Low Houses Kilgram Bridge Ripon Alma Weir	SE SE SE SE SE SE SE SE SE	226993 306902 375844 415748 425734 419724 833883 190860 301710 316709	499.4 160.3 215.5 1345.6 1363.0 23.5 10.2 510.2 87.5 119.5	US FV VA FV FV FV FV FV FV FV	1992-00 198300 198000 195584 195500 198700 197200 1967-00 196700 198400	1189 713 651 856 628 1800 1371 944 911	837 463 554 472 228 1744 977 385 400	352 250 97 379 394 400 56 394 559 511	1183 1143 1472 610 859 366 2310 1510 661 703	00 00 58 00 95 00 00 00	602 223 136 261 258 102 1135 645 241 274	96 89 64 97 96 75 89 96	13.25 2.35 3.79 20.14 19.96 0.17 0.56 15.80 1.07 1.52	1.22 0.28 0.16 2.08 1.96 0.02 0.01 0.50 0.06 0.10	07/94 09/89 08/95 09/59 08/76 08/95 08/95 08/95 08/95 08/95	174.6 224.3 21.4	.40 .41 .16 .50 .47 .44 .19 .33 .43 .43	32.2 3.9 9.7 41.9 45.2 0.2 1.5 39.1 2.5 3.6	1.50 0.32 0.18 3.78 3.37 0.03 0.02 1.13 0.10 0.16

•

NORTH EAST REGION

Station number	River name	Station name		Grid reference	Catchment area (sq hm)	Station type	Period of record	Meen ann. rainfail (mm)	Mean ann. runoff (mm)	Mean ann, loss (mm)	Max. ann. runoff (mm)	Үеа г of max.	Min, ann, runoff (mm)	Year of min,	Mean flow (m*e*')	Min. mon. flow (^{m³} a ⁻¹)	Month/Year of min.	Median ann. flood (^{m*} a*')	Base Flow Index	10 Percentile (m²s²¹)	95 Percentile (^{m1} e ⁻¹)
027007 027005 027053 027051 027001 027062 027009 027083 027083 027032 027063	Ure Nidd Nidd Crimple Nidd Nidd Ouse Foss Hebden Beck Dibb	Westwick Lock Gouthwate Res Birstwith Burn Bridge Hunsingore Weir Skip Bridge Sketton Huntington Hebden Grimwith Res	SE SE SE SE SE SE SE SE SE SE	356671 141683 230603 284519 428530 482561 568554 612543 025643 058639	914.6 113.7 217.6 8.1 484.3 516.0 3315.0 118.0 22.2 25.5	B VA MIS VA FV B FV US EM MIS FV	195800 193600 197500 197200 197900 197900 196900 1987-00 196600 198000	1140 1382 1277 848 979 989 914 638 1462 1434	733 731 703 424 526 520 473 205 250 975	407 651 574 424 453 469 441 433 1212 459	1169 1378 1157 732 929 875 774 361 373 1515	00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00	446 399 422 269 296 332 284 89 172 371	75 96 89 64 96 75 89 73 96	21.25 2.63 4.85 0.11 8.07 8.51 49.76 0.77 0.18 0.79	1.29 0.28 0.49 >0.00 0.84 1.06 4.36 0.05 0.01 0.00	08/76 09/59 08/95 08/95 08/95 08/95 08/95 08/95 08/95 08/93 10/84	271.6 154.7 4.8 127.1 356.8 3.6	.40 .50 .45 .31 .49 .30 .46 .44 .44 .36	50.7 7.1 12.2 0.3 18.8 19.3 125.0 1.9 0.4 1.5	2.78 0.47 0.81 >0.00 1.60 1.50 7.35 0.06 0.03 0.01
027043 027027 027011 027002 027089 027055 027049 027058 027010 027054	Wharfe Washbum Wharfe Wharfe Rye Rye Riccal Hodge Beck Hodge Beck	Addingham Ildey Lindley Wood Fint Mil Weir Tadcaster Broadway Foot Ness Crook Ho Farm Bransdale Weir Cherry Farm	SE SE SE SE SE SE SE SE SE	092494 112481 219488 422473 477441 560883 694792 661810 627944 652902	427.0 443.0 87.3 758.9 818.0 131.7 238.7 57.6 18.9 37.1	C VA VA B VA US C FV FV FV	197300 196175 1953-76 1955-00 1991-00 1974.00 1974.00 1974.00 193679 1974.00	1419 1330 1006 1162 1181 913 872 848 1001 962	1044 980 209 716 676 529 461 240 586 553	375 350 797 446 505 384 411 608 415 409	1491 1326 430 1094 1099 851 749 358 844 779	00 67 60 00 00 00 00 60 00	663 702 71 433 411 254 217 137 259 298	96 64 75 96 89 89 89 64	14.13 13.77 0.58 17.24 17.54 2.21 3.49 0.44 0.35 0.65	1.14 1.85 0.05 0.99 1.78 0.42 0.57 0.16 0.04 0.10	08/76 06/75 01/76 08/95 09/89 09/90 10/96 09/59 08/95	262.6 266.2 230.6 59.9 48.8 11.3 9.4 12.4	.33 .37 .38 .39 .41 .59 .67 .50 .54	35.4 33.0 1.0 41.1 43.2 3.9 6.8 0.8 0.7 1.3	1.63 2.12 0.16 2.35 2.28 0.49 0.73 0.18 0.06 0.13
027042 027014 027057 027056 027038 027048 027048 027073 027087 027041 027015	Dove Rye Seven Pickering Bk Costa Beck Derwent Brompton Bk Derwent Derwent Derwent	Kirkby Mills Little Habton Normanby Ings Bridge Gatehouses West Ayton Snainton Ings Low Marishes Buttercrambe Stamford Bridge	SE SE SE SE SE SE SE SE SE SE	705855 743771 737821 791819 774836 990853 936794 833774 731587 714557	59.2 679.0 121.6 68.6 7.8 127.0 12.9 457.5 1586.0 1634.3	FV CCCCP CM VA	1972-00 195871 197400 197000 197000 197200 198100 1989-00 1973-00 196175	926 805 910 860 708 870 740 735 779 729	579 429 488 395 97 599 241 322 316	347 376 422 465 773 141 494 457 413	947 624 706 659 245 951 412 522 454	00 60 99 00 79 98 00 00 00 66	307 206 182 177 1524 43 149 149 157 188	89 64 89 90 89 89 90 89 64	1.09 9.23 1.88 0.86 0.58 0.39 0.25 3.50 16.21 16.39	0.15 1.41 0.08 0.16 0.00 >0.00 >0.00 0.67 3.08 3.79	08/95 09/59 08/76 08/76 09/90 09/91 10/90 08/89 09/90 09/90	29.3 85.1 1.2 1.3 82.0 81.6	.58 .63 .65 .96 .71 .92 .80 .68 .70	2.1 19.1 3.3 1.5 0.8 0.9 0.5 7.1 33.6 32.0	0.21 1.74 0.17 0.20 0.37 0.04 0.03 0.91 3.90 5.25
027044 027076 027035 027084 027072 027077 027028 027080 027081 027012	Blackfoss Bk Bielby Beck Aire Eastburn Beck Worth Bradford Bk Aire Aire Oulton Beck Hebden Wtr	Sandhills Bridge Thormton Lock Kildwick Bridge Crosshills Keighley Shipley Armley Lemonroyd Farrer Lane High Greenwood	SE SE SE SE SE SE SE SE SD	725475 760444 013457 021452 063408 151375 281340 381282 365281 973309	47.0 103.1 282.3 43.3 71.7 58.0 691.5 865.0 25.1 36.0	FV FV FV FV B C FV FV FV FV FV FV FV	197400 1983-00 196800 1988-00 198000 1983-00 196100 1961.00 1985-00 1986-00 1984-73	664 695 1164 1107 1254 945 1069 988 660 1402	270 123 706 643 596 351 688 657 181 611	394 572 458 464 658 594 381 331 479 791	611 240 1206 1013 830 469 1002 962 320 910	00 00 00 00 86 00 00 00 66	91 42 408 432 372 254 432 483 106 315	89 89 71 96 97 71 96 89 71	0.40 0.40 6.32 0.88 1.35 0.65 15.09 18.01 0.14 0.70	0.01 0.29 0.04 0.22 0.15 2.28 4.26 0.02 0.22	08/76 08/90 08/76 08/95 10/95 08/95 08/95 08/95 08/95 09/55	60.9 138.7 12.3	.44 .61 .37 .51 .51 .55 .53 .44	0.8 0.9 15.9 2.2 3.1 1.4 34:1 39.7 0.3 1.7	0.04 0.03 0.58 0.06 0.16 3.33 4.96 0.02 0.23
027018 * 027019 * 027068 027029 027061 027039 * 027065 027031 027074 027004 *	Ryburn Booth Dean Ryburn Calder Colne Hoime Hoime Colne Spen Beck Calder	Rybum Res Booth Wd Mill Ripponden Eiland Longroyd Bridge Digley Reservoir Queens Mill Colne Bridge Narthorpe Newlands	SE SE SE SE SE SE SE SE SE SE	025187 033166 035189 124219 136161 112069 142157 174199 225210 365220	10.7 15.9 33.0 341.9 72.3 9.1 97.4 245.0 46.3 899.0	TP CCV FV VN FV C C VA FV C C VA	1956-74 195674 198100 196100 1967-73 197900 196400 1982-00 196076	1336 1386 1414 1290 1359 1444 1290 1168 808 1053	463 446 572 787 626 301 705 567 522 625	873 940 842 503 733 1143 585 601 286 428	781 744 944 1208 878 367 1033 859 653 883	58 66 81 00 68 66 94 66	121 238 282 494 360 267 442 318 340 399	73 96 96 96 71 96 99 99 75	0.16 0.22 0.60 8.53 1.44 0.09 2.18 4.41 0.77 17.81	0.00 0.08 0.12 1.66 0.27 0.06 0.39 0.37 0.13 4.51	06/73 10/59 08/84 09/89 09/89 09/89 09/89 08/76 07/99 10/72	140.8 31.7 117.3 209.6	.33 .30 .53 .50 .41 .38 .50 .39 .58 .52	0.3 0.4 1.2 18.7 3.2 0.1 4.8 9.9 1.5 36.2	0.04 0.17 2.08 0.29 0.03 0.45 0.57 0.25 4.89
027079 027003 027040 027052 027026 027025 027020 • 027016 • 027013 • 027017 •	Calder Aire Doe Lea Whitting Rother Rother Scout Dike St Little Don Ewden Beck Loxley	Methley Beal Weir Staveley Sheepbridge Whittington Woodhouse Mill Scout Dike Res Underbank Res More Hall Res Damflask Res	5 E E K K K K K K K K K K K K K K K K K	408257 535255 443746 376747 394744 432857 236047 253992 289957 286906	930.0 1932.1 67.9 50.2 165.0 352.2 15.2 38.6 26.4 43.5	US B VA FL C VA VA VN MIS MIS	1988-00 195800 1970-00 197600 196300 196400 195680 195680 195480	1045 987 715 847 812 771 1038 1177 1159 1145	692 584 269 511 371 374 230 523 352 410	353 403 446 336 441 397 808 654 807 735	1013 832 404 707 528 570 421 794 564 623	00 66 79 00 81 66 80 80 60 66	488 347 141 332 189 227 56 120 91 115	96 75 76 96 75 64 76 76 76 76	20.41 35.76 0.58 0.81 1.94 4.17 0.11 0.64 0.29 0.56	5.51 5.05 0.12 0.20 0.69 >0.00 0.12 0.06 0.09	08/95 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 10/72 11/78 12/75 01/76 12/59	10.1 15.7 41.5 50.3	.57 .52 .49 .47 .52 .11 .41 .38 .34	43.5 76.9 1.2 1.9 4.3 8.9 0.2 1.5 0.6 0.9	5.83 8.89 0.13 0.17 0.31 0.97 0.14 0.05 0.11
027067 027006 027066 027022 027023 027030 027021 027064 027070 027085	Sheaf Don Blackburn B Don Dearne Dearne Don Went Eller Beck Cod Beck	Highfield Road Hadfields Weir Ashlowes Rotherham Weir Bamsley Weir Adwick Doncaster Walden Stubbs Skipton Dalton Bridge	SK SK SE SE SE SE SE	357863 390910 393914 427928 350073 477020 570040 551163 984502 422766	49.1 373.0 42.8 826.0 118.9 310.8 1256.2 83.7 35.3 209.3	FV B VA FV CB C VA VA FV CC EM	1981-00 1965-00 1981-00 196071 196000 196300 195900 195900 198100	910 1030 777 869 788 715 812 627, 1081 697	394 456 217 465 374 344 409 209 219	516 574 560 404 414 371 403 418 478	570 682 365 607 573 534 612 340 404	00 00 66 00 69 00 00 00	277 246 119 298 197 212 223 100 631 138	85 76 85 64 75 76 75 97 89 97	0.61 5.39 0.29 12.18 1.41 3.39 16.29 0.56 1.73 1.46	0.07 0.88 0.01 3.15 0.13 0.70 3.80 0.13 0.05 0.13	08/95 09/85 09/64 09/90 08/76 09/59 09/96 08/95 09/91	85.1 121.5 28.9 38.7 153.5	.45 .50 .35 .52 .48 .57 .55 .59 .17 .48	1.4 11.2 0.7 24.1 3.0 7.0 35.0 1.0 1.9 3.6	0.08 1.43 0.02 3.27 0.24 0.94 4.92 0.16 0.09 0.16
027088	Calder	Caldene Bridge	SE	012260	171.7	us	1996-00	1446	755	691	1066	00	473	96	4.11	0.88	08/97		42	9.4	0.74

ı.

Hydrometric Statistics

Hydron	ıetric	Sta	tistics		Perlod	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runaff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (^{m²a·1})	Peak flow (^{m3} e ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (^{m****})	Date of min.	10 Percentile (^{m1} e ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m's**)	95 Percentite (m ⁵ e ⁻¹)
021032 M.A: EA F.A.R: N	Local No: Level: 54m	Gien at K	irknewton Sens.: 26.2 UE: <.01	C.A: 198.9 km ² B/full: 145.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.987	66_95	859		445	~	2.81	141.3	02/10 1981	0.12	23/07 1994	6.1	1.54	0.34
insensitive). Logger in 1989 reprocessed in 2 review. Natural flow r developed mostly on it	real station with statled in 1991 (1 2002: low flows in egime, no abstr gneous formation	informal Fia very limited o actions. # U is.	tata 1983-90 but charts a me peak flows decreased pland catchment, drainin	it 1.100 closs-stope, available). Flows from 1; 1994 minima under 1g from The Cheviot,	1997 1998 1999 2000	854 1223 921 1161	99 142 107 135	· 717 434 644	98 145	4.52 2.74 4.05	75.9 22.9 92.7	03/11 24/01 06/11	0.84 0.25 0.50	05/03 03/08 27/07	8.9 6.1 8.0	3.01 1.83 2.65	1.02 0.34 0.62
022009 M.A: EA	Local No:	Coquet at	Sens.: 10.6	C.A: 346.0 km ²	7295	693		506		5.55	265.9	01/04 1992	0.44	04/08 1990	11.7	3.25	0.78
F.A.R: N Comment: Velocity-ai control. Well confined computed high flows is and Fell S'st.	Level: 71m rea station with section with str anticipated. # N	cableway; ir aight approa atural catchr	UE: formal mill weir below s ach. Calibration under re- nent located on Cheviot Ig	FAI: tation provides good view - a reduction in gneous, Cementstone	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	809 851 1179 972 1179	91 95 132 109 132	443 446 737 539 726	88 88 146 107 143	4.84 4.89 6.08 5.91 7.94	140.1 100.0 207.6 93.9 209.6	01/05 19/02 02/11 25/01 06/11	0.65 0.81 1.66 0.77 1.18	24/09 05/10 19/08 03/08 23/07	10.3 11.1 16.2 12.4 14.0	3.09 2.34 4.97 3.74 4.98	0.70 0.93 1.95 0.98 1.51
022001 M.A: EA F.A.R: N	Local No: Level: 5m	Coquet a	t Morwick Sens.: 6.6 UE: <.01	C.A: 569.8 km ² B/full: 175.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.985	6395	863		465		8.40	365.8	01/04 1992	0.69	18/08 1995	18.3	4.69	1.18
Comment: VA station with pre-cast segments earlier station at Guyza except for annual flu # Predominantly upla Carboniferous Limesto	with 34m wide or s (installed 1973), ance. Dmf flow re sh and drain of and catchment of one and Devonia	ncrete inforr Cableway, F petitions (rea dam u/s o draining fror n Igneous se	nal Flat V weir (approx. 1: Fairly straight section with alistic) prior to 1967. Resp f gauge on Duke of No n Cheviots with some a ries.	20 cross-slope) made high banks. Replaced onsive natural regime inhumberland estate. afforestation. Largely	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	741 804 1113 903 1098	86 93 129 105 127	372 378 664 458 659	80 81 143 98 142	6.71 6.82 12.00 8.27 11.88	170.2 114.4 216.7 102.1 309.1	01/05 28/06 03/11 05/01 06/11	0.91 0.88 2.04 1.02 1.89	21/09 25/04 19/08 03/08 05/07	13.7 15.4 27.0 18.3 23.9	4.09 3.05 6.58 4.96 6.81	0.99 1.21 2.55 1.20 2.24
022007 M.A: EA	Local No: Level: 31m	Wansbeck	at Mitford Sens.: 7.6 UF: < 01	C.A: 287.3 km ² S/full: 35.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.977	6895	793		347		3.16	237.0	03/01 1982	0.10	20/08 1976	6.9	1.30	0.21
Comment: Velocity-a (installed 1974). Repla flow rating produced s (export from headwate catchment located on	rea station with aced older broad substantial reduc er reservoir); Mit Miltstone Grit, U	Flat V weir -crested wei tion in flood ford abstract oper, Middle	and central flume for lo r also with central flume. flows. Modest net effect tion closed by mid-1990s and Lower L'st.	w flow measurement Recalibration of high of artificial influences , # A mainly lowland	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	655 749 996 812 1039	83 94 126 102 131	260 267 516 328 558	75 77 149 95 161	2.36 2.43 4.70 2.99 5.07	103.2 84.1 178.5 59.9 194.4	01/05 30/06 02/11 07/03 06/11	0.18 0.29 0.43 0.22 0.35	05/08 04/10 19/08 16/08 18/08	5.5 5.4 11.6 6.9 9.9	1.04 0.96 2.38 1.34 2.59	0.21 0.33 0.59 0.25 0.43
022006 M.A: EA	Local No:	Blyth at Ha	tford Bridge Sens.: 23.8	C.A: 269.4 km ² B/full: 190.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6695	698		241		2.06	139.2	01/04 1992	0.05	23/08 1976	4.8	0.73	0.11
F.A.R: PE Comment: Velocity-ar 24.4m wide, reduced in sq.km of headwaters maintained into the Po	Level: 25m rea station with f n width in early 19 diverted to Wh ont since 1996). #	Flat V weir fe 80s and reca ittle Dean c ¥ Mostly Mill:	UE: 01 or low flow control installe alibrated. Small net export atchment/but a compens stone Grit and Coal Meas	FAI: 0.969 ed in 1968. Originally - runoff from about 20 sation flow has been sures.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	604 670 880 726 960	87 96 126 104 138	160 178 380 240 451	66 74 158 100 187	1.36 1.52 3.25 2.05 3.84	49.7 34.2 72.9 26.3 153.3	12/02 01/07 03/11 18/08 06/11	0.10 0.15 0.28 0.12 0.21	19/08 05/10 31/08 12/08 12/08	3.2 3.9 7.7 4.9 8.9	0.62 0.48 1.67 1.06 1.72	0.13 0.18 0.38 0.15 0.25
023011 M.A: EA	Local No:	Kielder Bu	m at Kielder Sens.: 19.3	C.A: 58.8 km ² B/fuil: 46.0m ³ s ⁻¹	7095	1269		1012		1.89	106.7	03/11 1984	0.12	05/07 1970	4,4	0.93	0.28
F.A.R: N Comment: Flat V wei (0.61m). Cableway u/s flows; overspill of banl lower levels - Kielder F faults and dykes; thick	Level: 214m ir 12m broad (1:2 s (straight reach) ks in very high fk forest. Geology of c covering of Bou	2 u/s and d/s - rating base ows. # The c omprises ma Ider Clay in	UE: <.01 a slopes; 1:20 cross-slope a on gaugings; possible of atchment embraces Kield ainly Carboniferous format the valley, peat on the hil	FAI: 1.000 e) with low wing walls overestimation of high lerhead Moor and - at tions cut by numerous ls.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1096 1141 1404 1378 1536	86 90 111 109 121	890 960 1261 1181 1330	88 95 125 117 131	1.65 1.79 2.35 2.20 2.47	39.6 79.1 62.1 66.3 55.9	05/11 17/02 24/10 24/01 09/07	0.23 0.32 0.44 0.31 0.32	20/09 20/08 25/05 03/08 23/07	3.9 4.3 5.4 5.5 5.5	0.89 0.77 1.36 1.10 1.35	0.25 0.36 0.49 0.38 0.38
023022 M.A: EA	Local No:	North Tyne	at Uglydub Sens.:	C.A: 241.5 km ²	82,.95	1351		1010		7.74	87.4	11/12 1994	0.33	29/02 1984	16,1	5.81	1.47
P.A.R. SR Comment: Flat V weir prescribed flows, abstr max. release of 15.4 dmfs. # Geology: pred afforested with moorta	Level: 135m . Owned by North actions and overs m ³ s ⁻¹ gives pul- dominantly shales nd headwaters.	n East Water, spill from Kie sed hydrogra s and s'sts c	operated by EA. Measure (der Res.; also releases to aph but sub-daily pulses of the Lower Carboniferou	to 1992 concealed in us series. Extensively	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1115 1222 1492 1423 1564	83 90 110 105 116	800 842 1165 1038 1274	79 83 115 103 126	6.11 6.45 8.92 7.95 9.73	29.9 85.9 41.2 42.6 41.4	01/11 19/02 09/01 24/12 12/12	1.41 1.45 1.46 1.58 1.52	13/12 05/02 28/12 27/11 26/06	11.5 14.1 15.9 16.0 17.0	3.21 2.70 10.43 5.69 10.08	1.46 1.64 2.13 1.80
023008 M.A; EA	Local No:	Rede at R	ede Bridge Sens.: 13.8	C.A: 343.8 km ² B/full: 65.0m ³ s ⁻¹	68 <i></i> 95	946		533		5.81	266.8	03/01 1982	0.38	26/08 1976	13.9	2.52	0.60
Comment: Flat V wei (commands 40 sq.km Carboniferous rocks m	ir constructed wi n) has an appre- nostly covered by	th pre-fabric: eciable influe / Boulder Cla	ated crest units. Width 24 ence on flows; modest ay and alluvium. Forestry	4.3m. Catcleugh Res. net export. # Lower and grazing.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	824 887 1168 1023 1216	87 94 123 108 129	424 445 711 562 767	80 83 133 105 144	4.61 4.86 7.75 6.13 8.34	137.0 132.1 178.7 142.3 164.8	01/05 19/02 02/11 05/01 06/11	0.48 0.60 0.97 0.56 0.69	18/08 02/10 11/07 03/08 23/07	10.8 11.6 17.9 14.4 18.8	2.28 1.91 3.96 2.63 4.74	0.52 0.70 1.11 0.64 0.92
023003 M.A: EA	Local No:	North Tyne	at Reaverhill Sens.: 7.2	C.A: 1007.5 km ² B/full: 560.0m ³ s ⁻¹	5995	1063		649		20.74	738.0	30/08 1975	0.96	25/08 1976	48.0	11.16	2.42
F.A.R: S Comment: Velocity-ar Predominantly natural hydropower releases; in catchment (also inte developed mainly on pasture, some afforest	Level: 65m rea station with na regime but affe overall impact me emittent abstract formations of the tation.	atural channe ected by Kie ost evident al ion at Barras e Carbonifere	UE: <.U1 el control. Replaced earlier ider releases (see 2302 (low flows. Catcleugh and ford) - net export of water pus L'st Series. Rugged	FAI: 0.936 r station at Barrasford. 3) - including pulsed Colt Crag Reservoirs r: # Upland catchment moorland and upland	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	878 978 1249 1126 1310	83 92 117 106 123	527 562 852 721 908	81 87 131 111 140	16.79 17.97 27.21 23.02 28.93	245.8 337.6 333.2 361.4 277.4	01/05 19/02 02/11 05/01 06/11	2.72 2.83 4.80 3.38 2.71	18/06 28/09 26/05 15/09 20/07	32.6 35.0 51.5 47.3 56.9	12.37 11.83 20.21 16.33 22.46	3.68 3.11 6.69 4.51 5.10
023006 M.A: EA	Se Local No:	outh Tyne a	t Featherstone Sens.: 12.1	C.A: 321.9 km ² S/full: 500.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6695	1374		1037		10.59	384.3	31/01 1995	0.71	26/08 1976	25.3	5.37	1.35
F.A.R. N Comment: Compoun- rating, Structure conta # Linear, north trending	d Crump profile ains all flows. Ex g catchment in no	weir. Lower treme peaks orthern Penni	crest 15.2m, upper crest may be underestimated. nes. Geology: mainly Cart	N. 0.355 st 29.5m. Theoretical Natural flow regime. boniferous Limestone.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1004 1243 1531 1483 1652	73 90 111 .108 120	705 909 1203 1328	68 88 116 128	7.17 9.28 12.28 13.52	177.5 241.9 256.7 343.3	05/11 19/02 26/10 11/01	0.86 1,47 1.93 1.20	24/09 20/08 25/05 27/07	16.6 21.4 27.6 35.8	3.89 4.45 7.35 6.88	0.99 1.69 2.36 1.54
023004 MA: FA	So Local Nor	uth Tyne at	Haydon Bridge Sens: 7.9	C.A: 751.1 km ² B/full: 500.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6295	1181		769	-	18.31	760.9	31/01 1995	1.262	23/08 1995	42.9	⁻ 9.57	2.07
E.A.R. N Comment: Velocity-ai earlier low flows of limi overspill onto lb durin natural regime. # Upla iferous (Carb. L'st and	Level: 59m rea station with i ted accuracy; 19g g floods. Recalib and catchment dr i Millstone Grit).	informal Flat 58 and 1969 ration under aining Northe	UE: <.01 V weir as low flow contr minima estimated at 2 m ³ way - expected to increa em Pennines. Geology p	FAI: 0.989 rol installed in 1972 - s ⁻¹ . Cableway. Some se flows. Responsive redominantly Carbon-	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	884 1082 1341 1261 1447	75 92 114 107 123	490 638 902 845 1076	64 83 117 110 140	11.64 15.20 21.48 20.13 25.55	269.6 508.1 446.1 475.7 573.0	05/11 19/02 24/10 02/12 11/01	1.08 2.08 2.74 1.75 2.63	25/09 30/10 26/05 04/08 08/08	27.2 38.2 45.8 45.3 61.8	6.21 6.81 13.65 10.69 13.88	1.28 2.30 3.84 2.58 3.25

					Perlod	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m's'')	Peak flow (^{m1} e ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. dally flow (m'a'')	Date of min,	10 Percentile (^{m1} **)	50 Percentile (m³#*')	85 Percentile (m²a·1)
023001 M.A: EA	Local No:	Tyne at	Bywell Sens.: 11.8	C.A: 2175.6 km²	5695	1039		643		44.38	1586.0	17/10 1967	2.48	07/09 1976	102.2	24.44	5.84
F.A.R: S Comment: Velocity-ai releases maintain low Riding Mill abstraction 1990s. Dmf flow repeti pulsed hydropower re catchment (largely Ca significant afforestation	Level: 14m rea station. Pri flows (4.2 m ³ s point is 500m i titions (realistic) leases from K irboniferous Li n; arable farmiu	ncipal gauging ⁻¹ min.) and su u/s. Blockage/d prior to 1967. S ielder, but limit mestone) draini ng confined to	UE: <.01 station on the Tym poort transfers to the amage to stating pick some export of wate ed impact on anning from north Per the lower valley.	FAI: 0.961 e. In drought years, Kielder he Derwent, Wear and Tees. pe caused problems in early er, and regime influenced by all runoff, # An impervious inines. Extensive moorland,	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	829 961 1216 1107 1299	80 92 117 107 125	481 582 876 747 974	75 91 136 116 151	33.10 40.16 60.42 51.53 66.99	425.1 865.5 817.0 846.0 978.9	12/02 19/02 24/10 05/01 06/11	5.17 5.45 9.96 7.27 7.09	15/09 28/09 26/05 04/08 21/07	69.3 86.8 123.1 111.4 147.9	21.37 22.33 40.90 30.08 44.26	5.64 7.15 15.13 9.09 11.40
023002 M.A: EA F.A.R: SP Comment: Broad-cree controlled by Derwent net export of water. # overlain by Boulder Cl	Local No: Level: 181m sted weir with Reservoir 2kn ¢ Geology: mix ay and morain	Derwent at E central low flo o u/s, stark con dure of Carbor ic drift. Upland,	ddys Bridge Sens.: 7.3 UE: <.01 w fume. Model c trast with previous iderous Limestone morainic catchme	C.A: 118.0 km ² S/full: 126.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.835 alibration. From 1965 flows natural regime. Substantial and Millistone Gnt partially nt used for rough grazing.	5495 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	953 832 922 1092 998 1306	87 97 115 105 137	295 137 141 154 160 405	46 48 52 54 137	1.10 0.51 0.53 0.58 0.60 1.51	58.0 4.6 8.9 8.8 7.4 93.4	15/07 1961 15/02 20/02 03/11 09/12 06/11	0.40 0.39 0.36 0.40 0.18	15/10 1989 19/07 03/04 19/09 06/08 15/08	2.2 0.6 0.8 0.8 3.2	0.48 0.47 0.45 0.50 0.46 0.47	0.27 0.43 0.40 0.41 0.41 0.38
023007 M.A: EA	Local No: Level: 29m	Derwent at R	owlands Gill Sens.: 11.9	C.A: 242.1 km ²	6295	843		332		2.55	98.0	05/11 1967	0.28	18/04 1972	5.2	1.53	0.81
Comment: Two Crum bridge. Flow regime s significant net export.	p profile weirs ubstantially inf # Carboniferou	with slightly dif luenced by Dei is L'st (upper c	ferent crest levels l went Reservoir (si atchment), Millston	peneath the two arches of a larted impounding in 1965); e Grit and Coal Measures.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	739 826 1012 872 117B	88 98 120 103 140	234 239 332 265 585	70 72 100 80 176	1.79 1.83 2.55 2.04 4.48	30.3 41.6 44.7 24.1 136.4	12/02 30/06 02/04 09/12 06/11	0.79 0.75 0.89 0.90 0.89	19/08 02/10 21/09 01/08 15/08	3.1 3.0 5.1 3.8 9.5	1.33 1.19 1.71 1.41 1.92	0.83 0.81 0.94 0.94 1.09
023018 M.A: EA F.A.R: N	Local No: Level: 63m	Ouse Burn at	Woolsington Sens.: UE:	C.A: 9.0 km ² FAI:	92-95	662		196		0.06	2.8	01/04 1992	0.00	02/08 1994	0.1	0.02	>0.00
Comment: Informal Fil in 2001 to calibrate hig Agricultural headwater	at V weir (3m b gh flows. Flood s, substantially	road). Structure is rarely overto urbanised bek	edrowns at modera p wingwalls. # Rel ow.	te flows. Ultrasonic installed atively low-lying catchment.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	566 620 839 684 931	85 94 127 103 141	157 322 200	80 164 102	0.04 0.09 0.06	2.6 2.2 1.6	12/02 02/11 03/03	>0.00 0.01 >0.00	18/08 09/08 10/08	0.1 0.2 0.1	>0.00 0.05 0.03	>0.00 0.01 0.01
023016 M.A: EA E A R: E	Local No: Level: 36m	Ouse Burn :	at Crag Hall Sens.: UF	C.A: 55.0 km ²	8995	595		142		0.25	16.1	01/04 1992	>0.00	10/08 1990	0.6	0.10	0.02
Comment: Rectangula 18.6 recorded on 28/2 developed on Carbonit	79. # Agriculti ferous formatio	eir with broad-o ural headwater: ns (Coal Meas	rested flanks. The s but a largely urba ures).	oretical rating. Peak flow of an (around 40%) catchment	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	579 632 839 690 906	97 106 141 116 -152	150 145 254 162 296	106 102 179 114 208	0.26 0.25 0.44 0.28 0.51	11.8 9.8 10.4 17.0	12/02 02/04 18/08 06/11	0.03 0.04 0.02 0.04	19/08 15/08 16/08 24/08	0.5 0.5 1.1 0.6 1.1	0.14 0.12 0.19 0.13 0.19	0.03 0.04 0.06 0.03 0.05
023017 M.A: EA F.A.R:	Local No: Level: 9m	Team at Te	am Valley Sens.: UE:	C.A; 61.9 km ² FAI:	9195	670		426		0.84	23.1	14/05 1993	0.19	09/11 1991	1.2	0.69	0.45
Comment: Velocity-ar by pre-existing weir. To record reprocessed in regime. # A primarily r	ea station in cu emporary ultra 2002. Sewage ural catchment	viverted section sonic installatio effluent and p ton the SW ed	below road bridge n providing full cal umped minewaters ge of Newcastle.	, low flow control exercised bration. Flows for period of affect the very responsive	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	580 668 859 681 915	87 100 128 102 137	409 438 607 460 593	96 103 142 108 139	0.80 0.86 1.19 0.90 1.16	11.5 13.7 12,7 10.1 23.2	12/02 30/06 02/11 04/03 03/06	0.35 0.45 0.44 0.38 0.49	03/08 15/05 23/05 01/08 04/02	1.0 1.2 2.1 1.3 1.9	0.72 0.70 0.92 0.78 0.75	0.49 0.52 0.64 0.56 0.53
024003 M.A: EA F.A.R: SE	Local No: Level: 202m	Wear at S	itanhope Sens.: 14.6 UE: <.01	C.A: 171.9 km² S/full: 180.0m³s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.979	5895	1295		670		3.65	297.0	31/01 1995	0.23	06/09 1959	8.5	1.70	0.48
Comment: Compound rocky section. Wing w (catchment area: 19 sq Mainly Lower Carbonif	Crump profile alls raised in .km) has notice erous L'st. Sor	weir overall wi 1967; no bypa able effect; net ne arable farm	dth 19.1m central i ssing, Very flashy export, # Steep Pe land but mostly sh	ow crest width 7.6m. Steep response. Burnhope Res. nnine moorland catchment. eep grazing.	1996 1997 1998 1999	1060 1217 1476 1408	82 94 114 109	507 628 856	76 94 128	2.76 3.42 4.67	63.1 160.4 162.6	05/11 19/02 24/10	0.37 0.49 0.81	14/09 04/10 25/09	6.1 9.3 11.3	1.45 1.42 2.48	0.41 0.54 0.85
024004		Bedburn Bec	k at Bedburn	f C.A: 74.9 km²	2000 5995	1713 880	132	1032 510	154	5.61 1.21	116.1 46.2	03/06 26/0 8	0.57 0.07	08/08 22/08	14.2 2.7	2.83 0.69	0.62 0.15
M.A: EA F.A.R: N Comment: Compound bypassing. Natural regi arable farming and she	Local No: Level: 109m Crump profile ime. # Millstone sep grazing.	weir, 2.4m low e Grit in north a	Sens.: 13.6 UE: <.01 crest, 10.3m over nd Coal Measures	Sffull: 70.0m ³ s ⁻¹ ' FAI: 0.999 all. Set in a deep valley; no to south. Coniferous forest,	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	814 884 1073 916 1261	93 100 122 104 143	399 427 626 474 843	78 84 123 93 165	0.94 1.01 1.49 1.13 2.00	12.9 27.4 25.4 28.6 125.1	1986 19/12 20/02 02/04 15/01 03/06	0.11 0.14 0.19 0.14 0.16	1995 19/08 05/10 19/08 15/09 - 25/08	2.2 2.6 3.4 2.8 3.6	0.55 0.50 0.92 0.60 1.08	0.13 0.16 0.24 0.16 0.20
024008 M.A: EA	Local No:	Wear at W	tton Park Sens.: 9.3	C.A: 455.0 km ² S/full: 7.0m ³ s ⁻¹	7295	1039		539		7.78	283.0	31/01 1995	0.70	07/09 1976	17.1	4.06	1.21
Comment: Velocity-ar Cableway. Catchment of from Kielder (Tyne cato Carboniferous L'st and in the lower valley.	real station wit contains three i chment) in drou Millstone Grit.	h informal Fla reservoirs (inclu ght years - ente Pennine headw	t V low flow cont ding Burnhope), ne ring the Wear at Fr aters with extensiv	rol of rectangular section. et export of water. Transfers osterley. # Geology: mainly e moorland, mixed land use	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	904 1006 1222 1107 1421	87 97 118 107 137	416 448 625 543 801	77 83 116 101 149	5.98 6.46 9.02 7.83 11.53	89.7 218.0 205.9 224.3 251.6	16/02 19/02 24/10 15/01 03/06	0.91 1.02 1.42 0.94 1.15	15/07 05/10 25/09 06/09 17/08	14.1 16.7 20.8 20.4 26.1	3.69 3.11 5.22 3.96 6.41	1.12 1.13 1.63 1.13 1.33
024005 M.A: EA	Local No:	Browney at	Burn Hall Sens.: 13.7	C.A: 178.5 km ² S/full: 60.0m ³ s ⁻¹ Fat: 1.000	5495	744		300		1.70	81.0	26/08 1986	0.13	01/10 1989	3.5	0.98	0.30
Comment: Compound having a steep fall d/s. check gaugings. Artifici impact on annual runof # Geology: Coal Measu	broad-crested Divide piers in al influences (i f is limited. Engures.	weir (17.6m br iserted and win mports, minewa gineering works	oad, low crest 5.5r g walls raised in 1 ater discharges) ev 28/10 - 21/11/88:	n) within a deep valley and 968. Theoretical rating with ident at iow flows, although dmfs removed from NRFA.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	637 714 945 744 1026	86 96 127 100 138	229 227 412 251 470	76 76 137 84 157	1.29 1.29 2.33 1.42 2.65	37.2 30.5 40.6 27.3 75.8	12/02 28/06 03/04 07/03 03/06	0.20 0.24 0.27 0.20 0.21	02/10 05/10 23/09 04/08 30/08	2.9 2,9 5.3 2.9 5.6	0.80 0.63 1.34 0.81 1.09	0.23 0.27 0.36 0.22 0.31
024001 M.A: EA F.A.R: SRGE	Local No: Level: 40m	Wear at Sunde	rrland Bridge Sens.: 8.4 UE: .01	C.A: 657.8 km ² FAI: 0.962	5795	943		535		11.15	366.8	05/11 1967	0.90	04/10 1959	25.4	5.89	1.96
Comment: Compound vertical walls of bridge of Flows reprocessed - us	broad-crested openings and ta sing a single r	weir within the apping point wit ating - in 2001	arches of road br hin drawdown effec . Significant artifici	idge. High flows are above it. Weed growth in summer, al influences: reservoirs in	1996 1997 1998	817 908 1108	87 96 117	430 684	80 128	8.95 14,27	128.6 249.0	12/02 24/10	1.72 2.58	26/07 24/09	21.4 33.8	5.39 8.19	1.92 2.86
catchment, minewater transfer. # Geology: ma	discharges ar ainly Carbonife	id, in drought rous (Carb. L's	years, minimum fl t, Millstone Grit an	lows supported by Kielder d Coal Measures).	1999 2000	974 1253	103 133	553 824	103 154	11.53 17.14	214.9 375.8	15/01 04/06	1.72 1.77	15/09 12/08	27.4 37.8	5.90 8.86	1.98 2.08

•

.

	Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Кипоћ (тт)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m'a'')	Peak flow (m'a'')	Date of peak	Min. dally flow (m'**')	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m'e`')	50 Percentlle (m ¹ e.*)	'95 Percentile (m***')
024009 Wear at Chester le Street C.A: 1008.3 km ²	7795	874		453		14.47	354.4	26/08	2.29	16/07 1984	31.9	7.71	3.03
FAR: RG - Level: 6m UE: 02 FAI: 0.974 Comment: Flat V weir (12, 1:2 profile). Structure drowns but calibrated by c/m at high flows. Reservoirs in catchment include Burnhope. In drought years low flows supported by Kielder transfer (flows maintained >2 m ³ s ⁻¹). Overall impact of artificial influences is modest. $\#$ Geology: Carbon/erous Linestone and Millstone Gril. Pennine headwaters with extensive moorland, mixed land use in lower valley.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	740 833 1040 884 1156	85 95 119 101 132	343 377 572 450 695	76 83 126 99 153	10.93 12.05 18.29 14.39 22.17	189.5 241.8 280.1 244.9 368.1	12/02 19/02 24/10 15/01 07/11	2.59 2.85 3.52 2.76 3.23	17/07 03/10 24/09 16/09 17/08	23.5 27.5 42.1 35.5 42.6	6.93 6.17 10.34 7.85 11,17	2.88 3.08 4.33 3.17 3.66
025003 Trout Beck at Moor House C.A: 11.4 km ² M.A: EA Local No: 3509 Sens.: 25.0 S/fult: 41.3m ³ s ⁻¹	5795	1915		1521		0.55	45.5	25/03 1979	0.01	03/06 1959	1.5	0.19	0.03
F.A.R: N Level: 533m UE: <0.1 FAI: 1000 Comment: Compound Crump weir 12.8m broad (low crest 1.5m). Large capacity structure (originally >70 m ³ s ⁻¹). UIs shoaling and low winter temperatures affected precision of flows. Discontinued in 1980 but recommissioned in 1991 as part of a global environmental research initiative. Responsive natural regime, flows from 1991 subject to reprocessing based on a revised rating, # Small, relatively remote, catchment located in a nature reserve in upper Teesdale. Peaty moortand developed mainty on Carboniferous L'st.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1285 1441 1921 1949 1896	67 75 100 102 99	1131 1298 1809 1631 1902	74 85 119 107 125	0.41 0.47 0.65 0.59 0.69	11.4 15.2 21.2 16.1 14.8	15/02 19/02 10/09 15/01 17/09	0.01 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.02	27/06 01/06 24/05 03/08 15/05	1.3 1.4 1.7 1.7 2.0	0.11 0.15 0.31 0.22 0.32	0.01 0.02 0.04 0.03 0.03
025012 Hanwood Beck at Harwood C.A: 25.1 km² M.A: EA Local No: 3581 Sens.: 25.0 Sfnat: 17.5m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: N Level: 374m UE: <.01	6995	1612		1239		0.99	75.0	02/01 1976	0.01	12/10 1995	2.6	0.40	0.06
Comment: Flat V weir (1:2 creat slopes, 1:10 cross-slope) for low flow control at velocity-area station. Shallow gravel bedded reach. Natural, responsive regime. Low flows in 1995 due to repair work on weir resulting from boulder damage during high flow periods - flows to be reprocessed. # Small Pennine catchment developed mostly on Carboniferous L'st.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1201 1424 1818 1771 2011	75 88 113 110 125	875 1006 1352 1240 1675	71 81 109 100 135	0.69 0.80 1.08 0.99 1.33	20.0 27.7 59.7 46.1 28.0	17/02 19/02 26/10 02/12 11/01	0.04 0.05 0.10 0.05 0.07	19/08 07/07 03/08 22/07	1.6 2.1 2.7 2.6 3.4	0.35 0.30 0.56 0.41 0.65	0.03 0.07 0.12 0.06 0.08
025018 Tees at Middleton in Teesdale C.A: 242.1 km² M.A: EA Local No: 3505 Sens.: 6.1 B/full: 360.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: SR Level: 211m UE: <.01	7195	1553		1167		8.96	389.1	31/01 1995	0.88	01/07 1976	19.2	4.96	2.51
Comment: Velocity-area station with informal Flat V weir (limited modular range) for low-flow control constructed in 1972. Cableway. Replaced earlier station at Dent Bank. Straight reach, gravel and rock bed. Steep gradient. Flows affected by Cow Green Res. Maintenance on weir winter 1995/6 - flows to be reprocessed. # Mostly an upland catchment draining from the Pennines. Geology: largely Carboniferous L'st, some Millstone Grit.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1 153 1336 1719 1656 1901	74 86 111 107 122	824 965 1311 1164 1472	71 83 112 100 126	6.31 7.41 10.07 8.93 11.27	124.4 322.9 291.0 310.4 198.8	17/02 19/02 26/10 15/01 03/06	1.82 1.70 1.84 2.60 1.54	08/02 10/01 20/06 18/11 15/05	13.2 16.2 20.5 18.3 28.4	4.10 3.88 6.64 5.10 6.30	2.47 2.18 2.68 3.20 2.34
025008 Tees at Barnard Castle C.A: 509.2 km² M.A: EA Local No: 3504 Sens.: 3.9 S/fvill: 625.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.P. SPI Lawel: 133m UF: < 01	6695	1335		842		13.60	509.7	23/03 1968	1.81	03/06 1970	30.3	7.32	3.52
Comment: Compound Crump weir 52.4m broad with central low flow crest (7m). Theoretical calibration (check gaugings up to medium flows). Full range and modular. Responsive regime. Six reservoirs in catchment including Cow Green (59 sq.km) which regulates flow for PWS abstractions and maintains min. d/s flows. Net export of water. Augmentation by Kielder transfer in drought years. # Predominantly an upland Pennine catchment developed mostly on Carboniferous L'st and Millstone Grit.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1018 1173 1504 1417 1720	76 88 113 106 129	580 760 1125 959 1241	69 90 134 114 147	9.35 12.27 18.17 15.48 19.99	132.0 374.0 318.7 367.4 335.0	17/02 19/02 08/01 15/01 03/06	3.58 3.68 4.19 4.82 4.20	07/02 19/10 21/03 11/08 18/06	19.4 25.3 40.0 32.0 49.5	5.84 6.25 11.11 8.61 11.50	4.19 4.26 5.20 5.24 4.69
025006 Greta at Rutherford Bridge C.A: 86.1 km² M.A: EA Local No: 3523 Sens.: 19.9 B/full: 98.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A. P. M. Local No: 3523 UE: < 0.1	6095	1126		823		2.25	210.5	25/08 1986	0.04	22/08 1995	5.8	0.78	0.11
Comment: Compound Crump profile weir, total width 19.2m, low flow crest 3m broad. Theoretical rating with check gaugings. Flows reprocessed from 1982 onwards in 2002. Responsive, natural regime. # An eastward draining Pennine catchment developed largely on Mittstone Grit.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	916 1006 1250 1210 1547	81 89 111 107 137	617 719 968 913 1180	75 87 118 111 143	1.68 1.96 2.64 2.49 3.21	41.0 115.5 82.7 69.7 120.2	05/11 19/02 24/10 15/01 03/06	0.06 0.09 0.16 0.08 0.10	22/07 05/10 25/05 03/08 12/08	4.9 5.7 6.9 6.2 8.7	0.64 0.58 1.19 0.88 1.38	0.09 0.12 0.19 0.11 0.13
025001 Tees at Broken Scar C.A: 818.4 km² M.A: EA Local No: 3501 Sens.: 5.2 Sf/tull: 420.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: SRP Level: 37m UE: <.01	5695	1150		646		16.77	679.3	23/03 1968	0.02	16/10 1959	40.9	7.84	1.61
Comment: Compound Crump profile weir with total crest length of 63.9m. Two low-flow crests total 9.1m. Rating review completed by HR Wallingford in 1998. Revised rating serves to reduce high flows and has been used to reprocess flows back to 1992. Significant export of water from direct supply reservoirs and u/s abstraction. Some regulation from Cow Green Res. Transfers of water from Kielder in drought years. # A mainly impervious catchment developed on Millstone Grit and Carboneferous Limestone. Headwaters drain the Pennines. Moorland and rough pasture give way to more intensive agriculture in the lower reaches.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	912 1028 1305 1222 1525	79 89 113 106 133	396 535 894 683 927	61 83 138 106 143	10.24 13.89 23.19 17.72 24.00	135.8 602.3 482.0 518.5 663.6	17/02 19/02 24/10 15/01 03/06	3.13 3.15 4.00 4.08 3.50	31/08 01/05 18/05 03/08 06/08	22.7 30.7 53.9 38.3 63.4	5.94 6.74 14.14 9.05 12.48	3.37 3.85 4.97 4.57 4.31
025021 Skerne at Bradbury C.A: 70.1 km² M.A: EA Local No: 3707 Sens.: 20.5 Sffuil: 1.4m³s ⁻¹ 5. A D: 60C5 Local No: 3707 JE: 04 Fal: 0.962	7395	662		166		0.37	21.0	29/03 1979	0.02	03/08 1992	0.8	0.19	Q.05
Comment: Velocity-area station with informal Flat V low-flow weir constructed in 1973. High flow control by bridge invert 10m below weir. Cableway, Small net export of water from headwater reservoirs. Several anomalous low flows in 1995 have been removed from NRFA. # SW trending catchment developed mostly on Magnesian L'st.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	559 655 823 696 919	84 99 124 105 139	98 146 248 163 286	59 88 149 98 172	0.22 0.32 0.55 0.36 0.63	5.4 6.0 5.6 5.6 11.1	12/02 02/07 03/11 07/03 07/11	0.05 0.05 0.05 0.09 0.05	09/11 04/11 13/05 06/10 12/09	0.4 0.7 1.5 0.7 1.6	0.10 0.08 0.25 0.18 0.19	0.05 0.05 0.11 0.10 0.11
025020 Skerne at Preston le Skerne C.A: 147.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: 3705 Sens.: 28.9 Ext: 0.021	7295	544		174		0.81	26.6	28/03 1979	0.03	01/08 1992	1.7	0.39	0.10
F.A.K.E - Level: odm UE: .04 - DE: .04 - PAI. 0361 Comment: Velocity-area station with informal low-flow control constructed in 1978. Cableway. Straight approach. All flows contained in channel. Small export of water from 2 headwater reservoirs (servicing Harliepocol), minewater additions affect parts of the early record. # Relatively dry catchment developed mainly on Magnesian Limestone, some Coal Measures. Mixed land use below moorland headwaters.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	565 635 797 668 886	88 99 124 104 138	113 129 240 164 318	65 74 138 94 183	0.52 0.60 1.12 0.76 1.48	16.3 12.9 14.9 15.2 23.3	12/02 19/12 03/11 07/03 07/11	0.08 0.09 0.16 0.13 0.17	23/10 29/10 20/09 13/10 18/03	1.3 1.6 2.6 1.7 3.4	0.22 0.17 0.51 0.33 0.38	0.09 0.09 0.20 0.15 0.19
025004 Skerne at South Park C.A: 250.1 km² M.A: EA	5695	652		199		1.58	59.2	29/03 1979	0.20	02/08 1990	3.2	0.94	0.36
Comment: Compound broad-crested weir. Significant sawage effluent component in low flows. Pumped minewaters can also augment flow (a declining contribution). Excess flow from the Cocker Beck diverted (u/s of Darlington) directly to the Tees. Fish pass constructed winter 1995/6 flows to be reprocessed. Channel rehabilitation u/s to improve aquatic habitat and maintain low flows. # A catchment of mixed land use developed mostly on Magnesian L'st. Moorland headwaters, considerable urban development - with some industry - d/s.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	562 626 760 846 882	86 96 117 99 135	122 216 168 295	61 109 84 148	0.96 1.71 1.33 2.33	16.0 <i>15.0</i> 19.1d 41.8	12/02 <i>03/11</i> 07/03 04/06	0.24 0.37 0.30 0.37	10/10 13/08 16/09 07/08	1.9 3.9 2.6 5.2	0.59 0.98 0.73 . 0.80	0.27 0.41 0.35 0.40
025009 Tees at Low Moor C.A: 1264.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: Sens.: 9.5 S/ruft: 20.0m²s⁻¹ F.A.R: SRPGEI Level: 4m UE: .02 FAI: 0.959	69 <i></i> 95	968		457		18.31	484.5	31/01 1995	1.57	30/05 1978	43.5	9.35	2.81
Comment: Velocity-area station with Flat V low flow control constructed in 1974. Good calibration, confirmed at high flows. Lowest station on R. Tees. Substantial artificial influences on the flow regime - significant net export of water (but benefit of Kielder transfers during droughts). # Geology: mostly Carboniferous (Millstone Grit and Carb. L'st), some Magnesian L'st. Mixed land use below Pennine headwaters.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	787 893 1113 1024 1311	81 92 115 106 135	321 405 627 521 782	70 69 137 114 171	12.82 16.25 25.14 20.88 31.27	153.8 398.4 424.3 401.0 469.7	19/12 19/02 24/10 15/01 04/06	3.02 2.15 4.25 3.05 3.32	08/09 11/09 18/05 12/08 07/08	29,4 42,0 56,1 48,1 69,7	7.38 7.34 14.78 10.83 16.79	3.40 2.88 4.91 3.78 4,28

	Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Meen flow (^{m3} s'')	Peak flow (m**')	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (m ¹ a ⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (^{m3} e ⁺¹)	50 Percentile (m³e**)	95 Percentije (^{m1} e ⁻¹)
025005 Leven at Leven Bridge C.A: 196.3 km² M.A: EA Local No: 3802 Sens.: 23.0 S/tult: 70.0m³s ⁻¹	5995	736		292		1.82	107.4	28/03 1979	0.09	04/09 1976	4.0	0.83	0.25
FAR: EN Level: 5m UE: <0.1 FAI: 0.998 Comment: Compound broad-crested weir, width 17.4m, with a bypass Crump profile weir width 4.6m. Theoretical rating (further confirmatory gaugings needed). Flows reprocessed from 1982. Sharp bend and road bridge just t//s of weirs and large drop below; suffers from stillation upstream of the weir which may affect calculated flows. Sensibly natural regime. # Mixed geology of mostly Permian/Jurassic age. Headwaters drain from the Cleveland Hills. Arable agriculture and some urban development in the lower valley.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	610 681 825 820 998	83 93 112 111 136	203 196 349 380 542	70 67 120 130 185	1.26 1.22 2.17 2.36 3.36	48.7 32.4 47.0 57.8 124.6	12/02 01/07 11/04 05/03 02/11	0.18 0.22 0.37 0.29 0.37	02/08 05/10 21/09 03/08 25/08	3.0 2.7 5.0 4.3 7.2	0.53 0.50 1.29 1.12 1.18	0.21 0.24 0.40 0.37 0.44
026005 Gypsey Race at Boynton C.A: 240.0 km ² M.A: EA Local No: 8913004 Sens.: 54.0 B/fuff: 3.8m ³ s ⁻¹ F.A. O. Cl Lower 12 FAL FAL	8195	697		24		0,18	2.4	17/01 1994	0.00	05/10 1995	0.5	0.03	
Comment: Flat V weir. Replaced the gauge d/s at Bidlington (26004). Following providence abstractions, Baseflow dominated regime; the Gypsey Race ceases to flow during prolonged droughts. Topographical and groundwater divides not coincident. # Predominantly rural, pervious (Chalk) catchment draining northern side of the Yorkshire Wolds.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	617 706 836 805 1039	89 101 120 115 149	1 27 44 65	4 113 183 271	0.01 0.01 0.20 0.33 0.49	0.1 0.1 0.9 1.6 3.0	19/12 30/06 21/04 25/03 20/12	0.00 0.00 >0.00 >0.00 0.03	13/06 30/05 11/10 14/09 01/01	0.0 0.0 0.5 0.9 2.0	0.00 0.00 0.16 0.19 0.17	0.01 0.01 0.05
026003 Foston Beck at Foston Mill C.A: 57.2 km² M.A: EA Local No: 6913120 Sens.: 14.1 S/full: 6.4m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: GN Level: 6m UE: <.01	5995	712		346		0.63	3.3	15/02 1979	0.06	24/03 1992	1,3	0.51	0.12
Comment: Flows measured by a sharp-edged weir sluice gate. Theoretical rating, Pre-1976 the sluice position was not accurately recorded and the computed flows are less accurate. Small amount of groundwater abstractions (naturalised flows available from EA from 1980). # A predominantly rural catchment draining southern Chalk outcrop of the Yorkshire Wolds.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	592 698 802 780 986	83 98 113 110 138	181 137 444 445 561	52 40 128 129 162	0.33 0.25 0.81 0.81 1.01	1.2 0.9 1.7 2.2 2.8	12/02 01/07 18/01 25/03 22/11	0.12 0.17 0.36 0.30 0.47	16/12 03/01 12/10 20/10 04/10	0.7 0.3 1.3 1.6 2.0	0.26 0.24 0.76 0.61 0.80	0.13 0.18 0.38 0.32 0.51
026006 Eimsweil Beck at Little Driffield C.A: 136.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: 8913185 Sens.: 128.0 F.A.R: GN Level: m UE: FAI:	8095	724		124		0.53	4.1	20/05 1981	0.00	01/12 1995	1.4	0.24	
Comment: Thin-plate weir. Subject to occasional drowning due to weedgrowth - dy's chart recorder will enable non-modular flows to be revised if necessary. Largely natural, baseflow dominated regime but, possibly, a minor net export may occur (resulting from gw abstraction). The Beck is dry during prolonged drought conditions. # A rural catchment in the Yorkshire Wolds (Chalk).	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	633 760 841 830 1035	87 105 116 115 143	53 45 190 156 238	43 36 153 126 192	0.23 0.19 0.82 0.67 1.02	1.2 1.1 2.2 2.0 3.9	04/03 31/12 18/01 21/03 21/11	0.00 0.05 0.05 0.06 0.14	27/09 24/06 21/10 17/10 02/10	0.8 0.3 1.8 1.6 2.4	0.05 0.17 0.70 0.42 0.89	0.06 0.06 0.07 0.16
026009 West Beck at Snakeholme Lock C.A: 242.2 km² M.A: EA Local No; Sens.; F.A.R: Level: m UE; FAI;	8895	660		203		1.56	8.1d	21/01 1994	0.20	11/11 1990	3.9	0.93	0.26
Comment: Electromagnetic station - buried coil in the West Beck. Calibration incomplete; provisionally, flows up to around 8 m ³ s ⁻¹ appear reasonable. Some spray irrigation but otherwise the net impact of artificial influences is trivial. Station adjacent to site measuring Driffield Canal. Estimated naturalised flows (1985-94) available from EA. # A rural catchment draining from the Yorkshire Wolds (Chalk). Catchment includes a SSSI.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	613 731 816 809 995	93 111 124 123 151	154 377 330 428	76 186 163 211	1.18 2.90 2.54 3.28	3.8d 7.1d 6.3d 7.5d	26/02 18/01 21/03 28/11	0.25 0.73 0.69 0.87	09/11 12/10 24/09 06/10	3.0 5.4 5.2 6.6	0.80 2.60 1.86 3.13	0.28 0.82 0.75 0.99
026008 Mires Beck at North Cave C.A: 41.9 km ² M.A: EA Local No: Sens.:	86-95	638		147		0.19	4.1	13/09 1993	0.01	29/06 1992	0.4	0.14	0.03
Comment: Crump weir. D/s analogue recorder maintained to monitor non-modular conditions. Baseflow dominated; abstractions can influence the pattern of low flows - net diminution in runoff. # On SW edge of Yorkshire Wolds. Spring source on scarp slope. Jurassic strata 50% in W, Upper Cretaceous Chalk in E. Completely Drift free. Rural catchment, mostly arable, some forest.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	576 645 713 793 885	90 101 112 124 139	64 100 202 217 253	44 68 137 148 172	0.08 0.13 0.27 0.29 0.34	2.5 0.8 2.0 1.0 2.1	19/12 19/12 22/10 09/03 07/11	0.02 0.06 0.09 0.10 0.14	13/09 07/06 12/10 14/09 12/09	0.1 0.2 0.4 0.5 0.6	0.07 0.11 0.26 0.25 0.28	0.02 0.08 0.11 0.11 0.16
027050 Esk at Sleights C.A: 308.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: 8912903 Sens.: 7.9 S/full: 16.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: N Level: 5m LIF: FAI:	7095	885		493		4,82	358.7	25/03 1979	0.12	26/08 1976	10.1	2.23	0.58
Comment: Velocity-area station with broad-crested masonry weir control (25m broad with fish-pass on lb, 0.71m lower). Flow records 1970-76 based on formula only - may be inaccurate. C/m rating developed by 1989 - reprocessing of data from 1977 completed. Sensibly natural flow regime. Superseded (1998) by new station at Brigsworth d/s. # Permeable headwaters (North York Moors - Jurassic) thence mainly Middle Oolite and Middle Lias, extensive Drift cover. A rural catchment with moorland headwaters.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	755 847 1062 1049 1290	85 96 120 119 146	428 480	87 97	4.17 4.69	113.0 251.3	19/12 26/06	0.59 0.74	20/08 05/10	10.4 9.1	1.76 1.89	0.66 0.83
027090 Swale at Catterick Bridge C.A: 499.4 km² M.A. EA Local No: Sens.t F A P: N Local m UF:	9295	1152		ō⊦i		12.85	484.5	31/01 1995	0.81	16/08 1994	32.9	6.09	1.30
Comment: Velocity-area station with cableway plus two-path ultrasonic to monitor low flows. Full range, all flows contained. Supersedes 27024 (decommissioned in 1980). Abstraction for Catterick Camp u/s, otherwise natural regime. Flows from 1991 reprocessed in 2002 - all flows reduced. # Typical responsive Pennine catchment. Mostly upland pasture with some afforestation (and considerable gripping).	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	909 1089 1292 1234 1564	79 95 112 107 136	603 706 926 649 1186	74 87 114 105 146	9.53 11.17 14.66 13.44 18.73	198.8 348.3 273.8 295.4 416.5	05/11 19/02 08/01 03/12 03/06	1.31 1.50 1.98 1.13 1.74	22/07 05/10 26/09 18/09 12/08	21.3 24.2 35.2 31.6 45.7	6.20 5.43 8.61 7.13 10.37	1.61 1.86 2.88 1.52 2.22
027075 Bedale Beck at Leeming C.A: 160.3 km² M.A: EA Local No: 8912330 Sens.: 12.6 F.A.R: Level: 24m UE: FAI:	8395	692		419		2.13	121.3	26/08 1986	0.23	30/09 1989	3.5	0.89	0.31
Comment: Flat V weir, 1:10 cross-slope. High flow record is suspect - the structure drowns as a result of backing-up from the Swale (a chart recorder monitors d/s levels but processed flows assume modularly). Considerable spray irrigation in the lower reaches otherwise minimal artificial impact on flow recime 25/02-08/03/09 & 12-15/03/99 no records as instruments removed while work	1996 1997 1998 1999	593 639 822 720	86 92 119 104	254 386 650	61 92 155	1.29 1.96 3.30	36.9 108.2 98.4	19/12 19/02 09/01	0.28 0.30 0.54	20/08 05/10 17/09	2.2 2.9 6.8	0.78 0.65 1.48	0.34 0.34 0.56
on site in progress. # Rural, W-E trending catchment draining from Bellerby Moor. 027071 Swale at Crakehill C.A: 1363.0 km ²	2000 55.,95	1026 849	148	1146 451	274	5.81 19.50	127.7 255.7	04/06 07/03	0.53 0.86	08/09 27/09	11.2 43.5	1.42 11.74	0.60 3.34
M.A: EA Local No: 8912302 Sens.: 7.6 F.A.R: N Level: 12m UE: FAI: Comment: Crump profile weir with high flow calibration based on u/s cableway (at Leckby Grange).	1996	697	82	326	72	14.05	138.9d	1963 13/02	2.51	1959 22/07	30.2	9.18	, 2.71
Flows prior to Jun 1980 derived exclusively from Leckby Grange (27008, C.A.: 1345.6 sq.km - variable low flow control, weedgrowth especially severe in 1976 - Jul/Aug flows estimated). Sensibly natural regime, flashy response. # Aural catchment draining N Yorkshire Dales, lower catchment in the flat Vale of York. Mixed geology - mainly lists, sists (especially below Richmond) and shales; covering of Boulder Clay.	1997 1998 1999 2000	804 979 908 1192	95 115 107 140	395 622 540 861	88 138 120 191	17.06 26.90 23.36 37.12	201.1d 201.7 190.2 246.1	21/02 09/01 16/01 03/11	3.04 4.31 3.35 4.52	05/10 26/09 18/09 12/08	47.5 68.9 60.7 94.7	7.95 15.50 11.77 17.77	3.43 5.64 4.01 5.26
027082 Cundall Beck at Bat Bridge C.A: 23.5 km² M.A: EA Local No: 8912311 Sens.: 32.0 F.A.P: IN Level: 14m L/E	87-95	598		223		0.17	27.3	01/02 1995	0.02	15/06 1992	0.2	0.08	0.03
Comment: Flat V weir, 1:10 cross-slope(superseded an original sharp-edged weir). Drowning is rare and flow regime is largely natural. Flow augmentation tests from boreholes have affected flows since 1989. # A low-lying, relatively flat catchment - developed on Permo-Triassic sandstones - draining to the Swale. Land use: dominantly agricultural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	511 584 770 647 908	85 98 129 108 152	118 102 293 239	53 46 131 107	0.0 9 0.08 0.22 0.18	7.0 3.7 7.2 13.3	13/02 22/02 10/01 16/01	0.02 0.02 0.04 0.03	25/06 04/10 21/09 28/08	0.1 0.1 0.3 0.2	0.05 0.05 0.10 0.09	0.02 0.02 0.04 0.04

	Period	Rainfall (am)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean Now (m ¹ s'')	Peak flow (m's'')	Oate of peak	Min. dally flow (^{m1} a ⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Parcentlla (m ¹ a ¹)	50 Percentile (m'e'')	95 Percentlle (m'e'')
027047 Snaizsholme Back at Low Houses C.A: 10.2 km² M.A: EA Local No: 8912290 Sens: 36.1 S/luit: 7.0m³s ⁻¹	7295	1773		1741		0.56	15.4	31/01 1995	0.01	22/08 1995	1.5	0.19	0.02
PARCN Level: 200m DE: FAI: Comment: Concrete Flat V weir superseded (in 1985) a limited capacity, wooden trapezoidal flume (installed late-1950s); structureful now 0.95m - bypassing now less common. Flashy, natural regime. Systematic underestimation of rainfall may contribute to unrealistic Toss'. Also possibility of minor increase in unnoff due to spring water deriving from outside the topographical catchment (see geology). # Wet, steep catchment in the Pennines developed mainly on Carboniferous Limestone; some Millstone Grit on south-east boundary. Land use is mostly rough grazing.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1313 1725 2030 2084 2458	74 97 114 118 139	1138 1513 1963 1865 2317	65 87 113 107 133	0.37 0.49 0.63 0.60 0.75	16.3 14.7 14.7 15.3 14.2	05/11 01/03 24/10 02/12 03/06	0.02 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.01	25/07 22/07 25/05 02/08 28/07	1.1 1.6 1.7 1.5 2.2	0.14 0.12 0.28 0.23 0.29	0.02 0.02 0.04 0.03 0.03
027034 Ure at KBgram Bridge C.A: 510.2 km² M.A: EA Local No: 8912206 Sens.: 17.6 B/tult: 375.0m³s ⁻¹ E.A. P: Local No: 8912206 Sens.: 17.6 B/tult: 375.0m³s ⁻¹	6795	1361		960		15.53	380.4	31/01 1995	0.28	25/08 1976	38.5	7.69	1.09
Comment: Velocity-area station rated by c/m. Low flow control is exercised by the sill of Kigram Bridge 70m d/s. Flows <1 m ³ s ⁻¹ underestimated, data has been reprocessed. Some floodplain storage. Thorton Steward abstraction (operational from 1977) is just u/s. # Geology: mainly Carboniferous L'st and Millistone Grit. Rural catchment draining from the Pennines.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1041 1228 1531 1507 1887	76 90 112 111 139	664 841 1198 1149 1514	69 88 125 120 158	10.72 13.61 19.38 18.59 24.43	185.7 269.6 243.4 287.4 298.8	06/11 19/02 24/10 03/12 04/06	0.79 1.08 1.71 1.27 1.37	27/07 22/08 24/09 17/09 27/07	25.0 30.8 44.8 43.9 61.6	5.85 5.00 11.45 9.35 13.74	0.91 1.39 2.40 1.59 1.70
027059 Laver at Ripon C.A: 87.5 km² M.A: EA Local No: 8912220 Sens.: 13.4 S/full: 39.1m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: SP Level: 30m UE: <.01	7795	930		377		1.05	39.1	28/12 1978	0.05	18/08 1995	2.4	0.51	0.09
Comment: Crump profile weir, 10m wide. Theoretical rating, Insensitive at low flows, but a notch in the stilling basin toe wall could be used for very low flow measurement. Small export of water, # Geology: mostly Millstone Grit and Magnesian L'st. A predominantly rural catchment below moortand (Pennine) headwaters. There are some swallow holes in the lower part of the catchment.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	788 852 1120 918 1238	85 92 120 99 133	242 292 513 354 663	64 77 136 94 176	0.67 0.81 1.42 0.98 1.83	16.1 19.1 20.9 28.8 62.7	19/12 20/02 08/01 03/12 02/11	0.09 0.09 0.17 0.11 0.11	19/08 04/10 21/09 04/09 08/09	1.5 2.1 3.6 2.6 4.0	0.37 0.33 0.77 0.46 0.90	0.11 0.13 0.22 0.12 0.20
027086 Skell at Alma Weir C.A: 119.5 km² M.A: EA Local No: 8912216 Sens.: 20.6 F.A.R: G Level: 23m UE: FAI:	8495	886		382		1.45	42.6	17/04 1986	0.06	06/09 1991	3.3	0.80	0.14
Comment: Flat V weir. Considerable accretion on u/s apron. Substantial modular range. Offtake to Ripon Canal feeder is u/s. Swallow holes u/s of Laver/Skell confluence greatly reduce summer flows. # A rural catchment below moortand (Pennine) headwaters. Developed mostly on Millstone Grit and Magnesian L'st.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	787 840 1108 909 1225	89 95 125 103 138	275 304 539 385 704	72 80 141 101 184	1.04 1.15 2.04 1.46 2.66	22.8 24.5 33.8 35.9 76.6	19/12 20/02 27/10 03/12 02/11	0.11 0.14 0.20 0.10 0.20	25/09 29/09 21/09 12/09 08/09	2.1 2.9 4.7 3.7 5.8	0.65 0.49 1.22 0.75 1.46	0.14 0.17 0.28 0.14 0.26
027007 Ure at Westwick Lock C.A: 914.8 km² M.A: EA Local No: 8912202 Sens.: 10.6	5895	1133		722		20.95	628.6	01/02 1995	0.88	25/08 1976	50.1	10.85	2.71
FARS SP Level: 14m UP (2000) PALE (2000) P	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	904 1024 1302 1222 1568	80 90 115 108 138	531 642 911 801 1172	74 89 126 111 162	15.37 18.63 26.41 23.24 33.90	168.9 289.9 282.6 304.1 439.1	06/11 20/02 09/01 03/12 03/11	2.55 2.68 3.74 2.53 2.92	21/08 19/08 25/09 06/09 24/07	37.0 45.5 62.6 55.4 76.9	9.70 8.04 15.98 12.24 20.27	2.73 3.37 4.81 2.88 3.53
027053 Nidd at Birstwith C.A: 217.6 km ² M.A: EA Local No: 8912106 Sens.: 9.9 E.A.P: SPR Local: 67m UE⊂ 01 EAL: 0.016	7595	1259		695		4.80	203.4	08/03 1979	0.46	21/08 1984	12.1	2.38	0.78
Comment: Velocity-area station approximately 17m wide, rated by current meter to 83 m ³ s ⁻¹ from the bridge at the section. Riffle control, may be subject to erosion. Heavily reservoired catchment (Couthwaite) with substantial effect on flows. Record has been reworked from 1982. Rating revised in 1999 to account for a change in channel dimensions caused by the 1991 flood; flows reworked. # Geology: mostly Millstone Grit. Rural catchment.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1071 1154 1499 1318 1723	85 92 119 105 137	423 533 856 735 1160	61 77 123 106 167	2.91 3.68 5.91 5.07 7.98	41.0 91.9 119.2 92.4 154.1	19/12 20/02 27/10 06/12 30/10	0.71 0.85 0.82 0.86 0.78	19/08 05/10 26/09 15/09 20/08	7.2 11.2 14.4 13.4 17.9	1.51 1.33 2.67 2.35 4.00	0.77 0.88 0.90 1.09 0.88
027051 Crimple at Burn Bridge C.A: 8.1 km² M.A: EA Local No: 8912120 Sens.: 54.0 F.A.R: N Level: 112m UE: <.01	7295	833		417		0.11	7.4	09/12 1983	>0.00	01/09 1995	0.3	0.04	0.01
Comment: Flat V weir, 3.5m wide. Theoretical rating. Subcatchment flows have been measured by Leeds University. No artificial influences. Low flows may be affected by structural leakage (but wooden wingwalls upgraded to concrete in 1999 - construction work affected recorded levels). # Geology: Carboniferous shales and grits. Rural catchment, mainly used for pasture.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	776 793 988 846 1202	93 95 119 102 144	288 302 529 392 736	69 72 127 94 176	0.07 0.08 0.14 0.10 0.19	2.8 2.8 5.5 3.6 7.6	19/12 25/06 02/06 07/06 01/11	>0.00 0.01 0.01 >0.00 0.01	21/07 09/08 19/08 04/09 04/09	0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.5	>0.00 0.03 0.07 0.04 0.09	>0.00 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01
027001 Nidd at Hunsingore Weir C.A: 484.3 km² M.A: EA Local No: 6912104 Sens.: 11.4 B/dul: 376.0m³e ⁻¹ F.A.R: SRPE Level: 18m UE: .03 FAI: 0.954	3595	971		522		8.01	282.3	15/09 1993	0.22	28/08 1943	18.7	4.44	1.60
Comment: Broad-created weir, breadth 49.8m. Rated by formulae, subsequently by C/M gaugings. Insensitive. Operation of by-pass sluice in the 1980s caused difficulties; flows subsequently revised. High flows overestimated. Low flows monitored d/s at Skip Bridge since 1979 - 12 m ³ s ⁻¹ is a sensible split between the two records. Heavily reservoired headwaters (Angram, Scar House, Gouthwaite influence runoff, the latter especially significant during drought conditions). Overall net export of water. # Geology: Mainty Millstone Grit, Magnesian L'st and some marts. Predominantly rural, rugged in headwaters.	1998 1997 1998 1999 2000	856 914 1166 1029 1363	88 94 120 106 140	339 396 672 509 932	65 76 129 98 179	5.19 6.09 10.32 7.82 14.27	89.6 197.6 209.8 101.7 444.2	20/12 21/02 24/10 15/01 31/10	1.21 1.52 1.76 1.50 1.42	19/09 29/10 22/09 14/09 25/08	11.3 16.2 22.3 19.9 27.6	3.21 2.75 5.65 3.97 6.95	1.32 1.63 2.00 1.72 1.60
027009 Ouse at Skelton C.A: 3315.0 km ² M.A: EA Local No: 8912405 Sans.: 3.2	6995	901		466		48.97	6 22.0	05/01 1982	3.69	23/08 1995	122.7	26.45	7.29
P.A.C. SKPGI Developmin Dec. 101 PAT: Use3 Comment: Multi-path (cross-configuration) US from 1992. Previously: VA station, control exercised mainly by Naburn weir - but rating independent of sluice-gate settings was employed 1982-92. Pre-1982 records are less reliable, esp. at low flows, and will be reprocessed. PWS abstraction u/s - increasing impact on very low flows: some artificial groundwater augmentation now a counterbalancing influence. # Mixed geology. Predominantly rural catchment draining north parts of Vale of York and Yorkshire Dales.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	745 844 1049 972 1268	83 94 116 108 141	310 373 598 513 777	67 80 128 110 167	32.50 39.18 62.66 53.97 61.41	232.8d 394.7d 331.4d 314.7d 513.8d	13/02 21/02 09/01 16/01 03/11	5.22 6.70 9.36 6.82 8.38	20/08 05/10 25/09 18/09 13/08	75.1 111.1 153.7 151.2 197.1	21.64 19.47 38.67 30.14 49.06	5.97 7.45 12.61 7.93 10.15
027083 Foss at Huntington C.A: 118.0 km² Μ.Α: ΕΑ Local No: 8912470 Sens.:	8795	600		184		0.69	10.2d	26/02 1994	0.03	29/06 1992	1.7	0.27	0.05
F.A.R. EN Level: 8m UE: FAI; Comment: Electromagnetic gauging station. Buried coil (small relative to channel width under high flow conditions); no cableway. Backing-up from Foss Barrier (in York). All flows contained. Data under review. # Headwaters on Yearsley Moor but catchment is mostly located in Vale of York. Mixed geology and dominantly rural above the lowest reaches.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	512 595 713 679 852	85 99 119 113 142	132 262 249 362	72 142 135 197	0.49 0.98 0.93 1.35	7.0d 7.0d 10.1d 15.6d	20/12 03/01 08/06 03/11	0.06 0.09 0.07 0.08	16/08 19/08 02/08 12/08	1.2 2.4 2.4 3.2	0.23 0.54 0.48 0.60	0.08 0.11 0.09 0.10
027032 Hebden Beck at Hebden C.A: 22.2 km² M.A: EA Local No: 8911960 Sens.: 4.2 Sfull: 6.0m³s ⁻¹	66.,95	1437		246		0.17	5.9	12/01 1984	0.01	19/08 1983	0.4	0.10	0.03
Comment: Thin-plate V notch (half 90 degree) in parallel with 3.35m wide Crump profile wer. V notch capacity limited by horizontal cut-off wall, at high flows it acts as a submerged onfice. Steep stream with heavy bedicad - substantial u/s accrebon, some erosion evident on wer surfaces. Some substantial (27032 monitors residual flow), but predominantly natural flow regime. Numerous swallow holes and resurgences; true drainage area uncertain. # Upland catchment; mostly moortand developed on Carb. L'st, Millstone Grit and shales.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1249 1345 1760 1584 2081	87 94 122 110 145	201 220 320 247 374	82 89 130 100 152	0.14 0.15 0.23 0.17 0.26	2.6 3.4 10.2 5.2 6.3	05/11 04/05 2 6/10 02/12 30/10	0.03 0.03 0.04 0.03 0.04	22/09 22/08 06/12 13/09 10/08	0.3 0.4 0.5 0.4 0.7	0.08 0.09 0.13 0.08 0.13	0.03 0.04 0.05 0.03 0.04

				Period	Roinfail (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m's'1)	Peak flow (m's'')	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (m's'')	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (^{m1} e ⁺¹)	95 Percentile (m ¹ a ⁻¹)
027043 M.A: EA	Wharfe a Local No: 8911903	nt Addingham Sens.: 10.0	C.A: 427.0 km ²	7395	1395		1038		14.05	413.3	02/01 1982	0.82	25/08 1976	35.0	6.55	1.57
F.A.R: SP Comment: Crump p width. C/m cablewa significantly reduce (Grimwith monitation	Leve: 80m profile crest, 12m wide (theore y 4km d/s (fikey), Revised r high flows, Flashy flow regim a releases from the 1984)	UE: <.01 etical rating), in a broad- ating still to be applied be substantially influence Sign uts abstraction a	FAI: 0.975 crested weir, 48m overall to pre-1982 data - it will ad by reservoir operation t Johumod (from 1980)	1996 1997 1998 1999	1190 1296 1667 1543	85 93 119 111	665 848 1246 1103	64 82 120 106	8.97 11.48 16.87 14.94	177.0 195.1 142.8d 295.3	05/11 19/02 08/01 06/12	1.25 1.56 2.76 1.66	30/01 12/08 11/07 05/08	21.9 27.2 40.0 36.2	4.01 5.04 9.38 7.33	1.62 2.12 3.16 2.10
# Geology: Carboni 027002	ferous l'st, shales and s'sts. F	Predominantly rural catc	C A: 758 0 km ²	2000	1958	140	1495	144	20.19	378.1	30/10	1.73	30/07	52.7	10.47	2.28
M.A: EA F.A.R: SRPI	Local No: 8912004 Level: 14m	Sens.: 14.2 UE: .01	B/full: 600.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.905	1000	1000	60	435	61	17.10	162.0	1995	· • • •	1957	40.3	3.34	2.04
station at Tadcaster 1965) completed bu opened in early 199 evident at low flows Carboniferous Limes headwaters.	in 1990). Insensitive at low (in 1990). Insensitive at low (ut flows reprocessed from 19 (0s (not rated) so flows not re i. Small net export of water (stone, grits and Coal Measure	oe, chi cadeway 1.547 lows. Level data: 1936- 982 only. Pre-1965 dat eliable. Regulation effec (inc. Bradford supply). # es. Predominantly rural	I us (moved to hew US 1955, Recatibration (from a less reliable, Mill race t of headwater reservoirs i Mixed geology - mainly catchment with moorland	1990 1997 1998 1999 2000	1023 1081 1377 1259 1629	94 120 110 142	435 561 868 765 1097	79 122 107 154	13.50 20.88 18.40 26.32	102.2 187.6 255.8 263.7 414.9	19/02 07/03 06/12 31/10	2.26 3.44 2.39 2.64	23/07 19/08 27/05 06/08 23/07	32.8 51.6 45.7 58.6	4.81 6.79 11.85 9.55 14.97	2.66 3.97 2.92 3.03
027089 M.A: EA	Wharfe Local No:	at Tadcaster Sens.:	C.A: 818.0 km ²	9195	1121		605		15.68	209.0d	01/02 1995	1.23	13/09 1991	38.2	7.44	2.08
F.A.R: SRPI Comment: Multi-par (1997). Attenuation 4 1991 flood necessita small net export of v Coal Measures, sor (Pennine) headwate:	Level: 7m th ultrasonic gauging station of US signal can be a problen ted recalibration. Regulation e water. May supersede Flint M me Magnesian L'st above T rs, significant development in	UE: (cross configuration). R n in summer due to sita effect of headwater reser all (27002). # Mainty Car adcaster. A largety run the lower valley.	FAI: ating has been reworked tion. Bed scouring during voirs evident at low flows, toniferous L'st, grits and al catchment - moorland	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	998 1057 1340 1225 1578	89 94 120 109 141	413 559 890 767 1102	68 92 147 127 182	10.67 14.49 23.09 19.88 28.51	120.5d 105.1d 145.3d 150.3d 254.7d	06/11 21/02 07/03 03/03 31/10	0.91 2.51 4.31 3.10 3.61	19/08 21/08 29/09 06/08 25/07	25.2 35.1 54.8 47.1 62.9	5.15 7.71 13.98 11.05 17.18	1.49 3.53 5.38 3.68 4.20
027055 M.A: EA	Rys at B Local No: 6912508	roadway Foot Sens.: 22.3	C.A: 131.7 km² S/futl: 8.0m³s ⁻¹	7495	899		515		2.15	82.3	21/03 1981	0.36	15/09 1990	3.8	1.36	0.49
F.A.R: N Comment: Limited higher flows are un Jurassic l'st, shales	Level: 38m range Crump profita wair, 1. nreliable – substantial overe and s'sts. Rural catchment (UE: <.01 5m wide. Theoretical ra istimation. Sensibly nat draining the Cleveland I	FAI: 0.998 ating. Low modular limit, ural regime. # Geology: filts.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	744 833 1046 1019 1203	83 93 116 113 134	386 377 607 711 864	75 73 118 138 168	1.61 1,57 2.54 2.97 3.60	37.9 39.0 76.8 129,2 141.1	12/02 30/06 10/04 07/03 02/11	0.40 0.50 0.67 0.58 0.61	19/08 05/10 26/09 04/08 09/09	3.3 3.2 4.7 4.4 6.5	1.00 1.00 1.75 1.71 1.80	0.42 0.53 0.78 0.65 0.66
027049 M.A: EA	Rye Local No: 8912505	at Ness Sens.: 8.0	C.A: 238.7 km ² S/full: 32.1m ³ s ⁻¹	74.,95	862		452		3.42	74.1	12/09 1976	0.50	15/09 1990	6.6	2.50	0.73
F.A.R: GN Comment: Flat V we I'st, clays and s'sts. F	Level: 26m eir, 12m wide, Theoretical ratin Predominantly rural catchmen	UE: `<.01 g. Significant gw abstrac t with moorland headwat	FAI: 0.999 tions. # Geology: Jurassic ers.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	689 788 988 964 1138	80 91 115 112 132	303 301 568 586 751	67 67 126 130 166	2.29 2.28 4.30 4.44 5.67	35.8 27.2 64.9 96.3 104.3	12/02 01/07 11/04 07/03 03/11	0.53 0.76 1.17 0.82 0.95	19/09 05/10 26/09 15/09 09/09	5.0 4.7 8.7 7.0 10.7	1.47 1.56 3.31 3.22 3.17	0.59 0.80 1.43 0.98 1.06
027058 M.A: EA	- Riccal at Cr Local No: 8912580	ook House Farm Sens.: 15.0	C.A: 57.6 km ² S/full: 3.5m ³ s ⁻¹	7495	832		240		0.44	18.4	03/01 1982	0.16	28/08 1976	0.8	0.27	0,19
F.A.R: N Comment: Limited r are only approximate Moors.	Level: 30m range Flat V weir, 4m wide. T e. # Geology: shales, s'sts ar	UE: <.01 heoretical rating. Low m nd l'sts. Rural catchmen	FAI: 1.000 nodular limit, higher flows t draining the North York	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	690 816 999 986 1148	83 98 120 119 138	154 154 269 268 359	64 64 112 112 150	0.28 0.28 0.49 0.49 0.65	6.1 12:0 10:8 16:8 22,7	12/02 31/08 10/04 07/03 30/10	0.15 0.17 0.21 0.21 0.21	02/10 26/09 12/10 02/09 14/09	0.5 0.4 1.0 0.8 1.3	0.20 0.21 0.30 0.28 0.32	0.15 0.18 0.23 0.22 0.22
027054 M.A: EA	Hodge Beck Local No: 8912570	s at Cherry Farm Sens.: 16.7	C.A: 37.1 km ² S/full: 3.6m ³ s ⁻¹	7495	941		550		0.65	17.4	21/03 1981	0.09	23/08 1976	1.3	0.41	0.13
Comment: Limited of Bransdale (27010). I Rural catchment.	Flows unaffected by artificial	Theoretical rating. Superinfluences, # Geology:	resided the gauge u/s at mainly shales and s'sts.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	813 932 1140 1102 1295	86 99 121 117 138	399 422 610 650 782	73 77 111 118 142	0.47 0.50 0.72 0.76 0.92	8.1 21.0 12.8 17.2 30.5	12/02 31/08 10/04 20/04 30/10	0.09 0.13 0.14 0.13 0.16	19/08 05/10 19/08 02/08 25/08	1.1 1.6 1.6 2.0	0.25 0.28 0.47 0.46 0.52	0.10 0.14 0.16 0.14 0.18
027042 M.A: EA	Dove at Local No: 8912560	Kirkby Mills Sens.: 13.6	C.A: 59.2 km ²	7295	912		563		1.06	56.4	12/09 1976	0.13	22/08 1995	2.0	0.74	´0.21
F.A.R. N Comment: Flat V we from R. Seven catc # Jurassic limestone	Level: 36m eir, 8m wide. Theoretical ratin hment (27057) may represe , days and sandstone. Rural	UE: <.01 g. Predominantly natural nt a significant proporti catchment with moorlat	FAI: 1.000 flows. Subsurface inflow on of summer baseflow. Id headwaters.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	779 892 1074 1040 1231	85 98 118 114 135	423 441 693 765 950	75 78 123 136 169	0.79 0.83 1.30 1.44 1.78	25.5 25.0 50.9 49.5 65.9	12/02 31/08 10/04 07/03 30/10	0.15 0.20 0.25 0.20 0.31	19/08 05/10 26/09 03/08 28/07	1.8 1.7 2.5 2.3 2.9	0.48 0.50 0.92 0.86 0.95	0.17 0.23 0.28 0.24 0.36
027057 M.A: EA	Seven a Local No: 8912540	sens.: 22.3	C.A: 121.6 km ² S/futl: 6.1m ³ s ⁻¹	7495	898		466		1.80	145,4	1 <i>3/</i> 09 1993	0.04	14/08 1976	3.3	0.79	0.17
F.A.R: N Comment: Limited Assumption of modu water underground t # Geology: Jurassic significant areas of fe	Level: 29m range Crump profile weir, 8 ilarity implies high (and, possi to the adjacent R. Dove (270 L'st, shales and s'sts. Rural orestry.	UE: Im wide. Theoretical ra ibly, lower) flows are of 42) has significant impa catchment with moortal	FAI: ting. Low modular limit. limited precision. Loss of ct on summer baseflow, nd headwaters. Contains	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	732 849 1022 999 1206	82 95 114 111 134	368 387 632 706	79 83 136 152	1.42 1.49 2.44 2.72	89.2 87.2 136.1 114.5 141.8	12/02 30/06 10/04 07/03 30/10	0.10 0.18 0.22 0.13	05/08 27/08 16/08 02/08	2.5 2.6 4.6 3.5	0.49 0.53 1.09 0.94	0.14 0.21 0.27 0.23
027056 M.A: EA	Pickering Be Local No: 8912515	ck at Ings Bridge Sens.: 21.2	C.A: 68.6 km ² S/full: 4.0m ³ s ⁻¹	7495	B43		389		0.85	40.2	14/09 1993	0.14	24/08 1976	1.5	0.56	0.20
F.A.K. N Comment: Limited ra flows are only approx Rural catchment drai	Level. 20m ange Crump profile weir, 7m v cimate. Flow unaffected by arti ining parts of the North York	oe. vide. Theoretical rating. ficial influences. # Geok Moors.	гді. Low modutar limit, higher ygy: mostly grits and l'sts.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	717 790 1002 971 1175	85 94 119 115 139	250 246 426 521 661	64 63 110 134 170	0.54 0.54 0.93 1,13 1,43	9.0 13.9 28.3 39.6 34.3	20/12 30/06 11/04 06/03 08/11	0.17 0.20 0.26 0.28 0.36	11/10 03/10 22/09 18/09 26/07	1.0 0.8 1.6 1.4 2.0	0.37 0.34 0.68 0.66 0.70	0.18 0.21 0.30 0.30 0.38
027038 M.A: EA F.A.R: G	Costa Beck Local No: 8912518 Level: 22m	at Gatehouses Sens.: 12.8 UE: .03	C.A: 7.8 km ² FAI: 0.983	7095	699		2317		0.57	4.9	14/09 1993	0.28	11/09 1990	0.8	0.54	0.36
Comment: Crump p Missing data for May weed growth. Some I greatly exceeds topo Keldhead Spring and catchment on souther	profile weir Sm wide. Theore y-June in both 2000 and 200 bypassing of gauge via West I graphical catchment. Flows pi d abstractions/returns from si em edge of North York Moors	stical rating. Weedgrow 1; values removed from Drain. Data indicates tha redominantly natural apa ome cress beds and a s. Geology: permeable (th can cause drowning. archive due to effects of t groundwater catchment in from some pumping at trout farm. # Small rural Dolitic Limestone.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	580 687 830 794 948	83 98 119 114 136	1798 1753 2772 2741	78 76 120 118	0.44 0.43 0.69 0.68	0.9 0.9 2.4 2.3 4.21	12/02 31/08 27/07 06/03 30/10	0.35 0.36 0.41 0.48	27/08 01/10 29/09 17/11	0.6 0.5 1.0 0.9	0.42 0.43 0.67 0.64	0.36 0.37 0.44 0.50

	Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1986	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (''-"('')	Peak flow (^{m*s*1})	Uste of peak	Min. daily flow (^{m*} **)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m ¹ a ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	95 Percentlia (m ³ s ⁻¹)
027048 Derwent at West Ayton C.A: 127.0 km² M.A. EA Local No: 8912708 Sens.: 36.4 S/full: 7.2m³s ⁻¹	7295	6 853		80		0.32	4.2	07/12 1995	0.00	10/09 1992	0.6	0.26	0.04
FAR: PG Level: 34m UE: <.01 FAI: 1.000 Comment: Compound thin-plate weir, 11m wide. Theoretical rating. Catchment contains swallow holes; significant losses between 27048 and a nearby u/s monitoring site (Forge Valley). High flows are diverted down the Sea Cut (27033) resulting in sudden drop in flow. # Jurassic s'st, I'st and shales. Predominantly rural catchment with substantial forest cover.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	751 779 1022 1012 1243	88 91 120 119 146	117 98 245 219 176	146 123 306 274 220	0.47 0.40 0.98 0.88 0.71	3.3 3.4 3.9 5.2 3.5	19/12 30/06 02/06 06/03 04/06	0.00 0.00 0.14 0.07 0.19	16/09 10/06 26/09 04/08 18/08	1.1 0.9 1.7 1.5 1.2	0.41 0.25 1.02 0.92 0.63	0.01 0.17 0.12 0.27
027073 Brompton Beck at Snainton Ings C.A: 12.9 km ² M.A: EA Local No: 8912760 Sens.: 43.2 E A B: CN Locati Lister Lister CAL	8195	713		579		0.24	1.2	08/01 1982	0.00	08/10 1990	0.5	0.17	0.02
Comment: Crum Wein: Full range and modular. Stable and sensibly natural regime. Topographical and gw divides may differ considerably. # A mainly permeable (Corallion) catchment. Rural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	649 684 873 849 1094	91 96 122 119 153	397 388 802 740 954	69 67 139 128 165	0.16 0.16 0.33 0.30 0.39	0.6 0.4 0.9 1.3 0.8	23/12 30/12 14/04 10/03 10/11	0.01 0.03 0.10 0.10 0.13	08/11 10/11 25/09 03/08 12/09	0.4 0.3 0.6 0.5 0.6	0.12 0.13 0.30 0.21 0.36	0.02 0.05 0.12 0.11 0.16
027087 Derwent at Low Marishes C.A: 457.5 km² M.A: EA Local No: Sens.: F.A.R: PGI Level: 15m UE:	8995	672		205		2.98	16.2d	09/12 1990	0.40	27 <i> </i> 07 1989	6.4	2.35	0.86
Comment: Electromagnetic (overhead coil) gauging station in formatised reach. Cableway. Station installed between old bridge abutments, railway embankments ensure all flows pass through measuring section. Calibration incomplete (early problems with tapping pipe sillation). Flow regime is sensibly natural apart from the flood diversion to the Sea Cut (027033) and the effect of spray irrigation. # The catchment drains the eastern part of the North York Moors (mostly permeable Ooste and Corattian formations). Largely rural with considerable moortand and wooded headwaters.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	643 678 871 854 1078	96 101 130 127 160	191 168 352 314 413	93 82 172 153 201	2.77 2.44 5.10 4.56 5.97	14.8d 8.9d 16.2d 12.3d 27.5d	20/12 20/12 09/01 09/03 09/11	0.75 0.91 1.81 1.52 2.34	06/08 11/06 23/08 05/08 10/09	5.6 4.2 8.9 8.1 10.2	2.24 1.83 4.54 4.03 4.56	0.86 1.15 1.91 1.67 2.59
027041 Derwent at Buttercrambe C.A: 1586.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: 8912807 Sens.: 6.1 S/fulk: 74.8m³s ⁻¹ F.A. B: RP1 Level: 10m LIE: < 0.1	7395	766		317		15.93	124.8	05/01 1982	2.70	23/08 1976	32.9	11.57	3.91
Comment: Crump weir, 20m wide; high flow rating derived from limited number of gaugings. Structure drowned and bypassed in March 1999 (& Nov 2000 floods. Non-modular flow at approx 55 m ³ s ⁻¹ . Pre-Oct 1973 data (monthly only) of poorer quality; derives from 27015 (C.A.: 1634.3 km ²). Peak flows from the headwaters u/s of Forge Valley (8% catchment) are diverted down the Sea Cut (27033). Minor net impact of artificial influences (spray irrigation is appreciable). # Mixed geology of clays, shales and limestone. Rural catchment draining the North York Moors.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	637 725 890 868 1065	83 95 116 113 139	217 213 399 392 524	68 67 126 124 165	10.86 10.73 20.08 19.70 26.27	87.0d 57.7d 108.2 158.3 172.1	14/02 20/12 12/04 09/03 09/11	3.11 4.16 5.93 5.29 6.71	14/10 05/10 27/09 15/09 26/08	23.3 21.4 41.5 36.3 53.1	7.78 7.13 15.62 14.80 15.74	3.34 4.43 6.48 5.63 7.28
027044 Blackfoss Beck at Sandhills Bridge C.A: 47.0 km ² M.A: EA Local No: 8912835 Sens.: 29.3 E A B: EL Local Karal Gene LUC	7495	653		258		0.38	15.9	21/01 1985	>0.00	20/08 1976	0.8	0.15	0.03
Comment: Flat V weir, 4m wide. Theoretical rating, Low flow gauge, subject to drowing. High flows should be treated with caution. In summer 1984 the weir crest was lowered for land drainage requirements and its modular limit was reduced. Significant agricultural abstractions in summer. # Low-lying, rural catchment draining from W of Yorkshire Wolds.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	554 645 705 746 871	85 99 108 114 133	186 191 299 342 613	72 74 116 133 238	0.28 0.28 0.45 0.51 0.91	14.9 12.0 13.5 10.4 18.3	20/12 19/12 11/04 07/03 06/11	0.03 0.05 0.06 0.04 0.06	22/07 08/06 19/08 03/08 13/09	0.4 0.5 0.9 1.0 1.5	0.10 0.14 0.24 0.26 0.28	0.04 0.06 0.07 0.06 07
027076 Bielby Beck at Thornton Lock C.A: 103.1 km² M.A: EA Local No: 8912830 Sens.: 40.9 F.A.R: 1 Level: 6m UE:	8395	670		109		0.36	9.6	09/12 1983	0.01	01/09 1991	0.8	0.18	0.02
Comment: Flat V weir, 1:10 cross-stope. Drowns at high flows (backing-up from the Derwent). Complementary to Pocklington Canal (27861) - summation of flows plus u/s canal abstraction required for total catchment response. Significant spray irrigation in spring/summer, Anomolous flows can be caused by British Waterway interventions at the sluice near the weir, # Headwaters below the scarp of the Yorkshire Wolds but catchment is low-lying. Predominantly rural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	601 694 755 819 918	90 104 113 122 137	92 126 146 179 241	84 116 134 164 221	0.30 0.41 0.48 0.58 0.79	10.6 9.7 6.0 5.0d 11.7	20/12 01/07 18/01 26/09 07/11	0.04 0.11 0.03 0.03 0.04	03/08 04/06 18/08 03/08 12/09	0.6 0.7 1.0 1.2 1.5	0.17 0.29 0.37 0.48 0.48	0.05 0.14 0.04 0.04 0.05
027035 Aire at Kildwick Bridge C.A: 282.3 km² M.A: EA Local No: 8911503 Sens.: 15.8 B/full: 77.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.B: S Level: 87m LIF: < 0.1	6895	1150		685		6.13	110.9	01/02 1995	0.18	23/08 1976	15.6	2.93	0.54
Comment: Velocity-area station rated by c/m cableway 150m d/s. The bridge sills provide the low flow control. Washland storage, minor reservoirs, and the Leeds-Liverpool Canal can influence the flow pattern but small overall impact; minor net export. # Geology: mainly Carboniferous Limestone with some Millstone Grit series. Rural catchment draining part of the eastern Pennines.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	930 1026 1331 1275 1616	81 89 116 111 141	475 595 959 879 1209	69 87 140 128 176	4.24 5.33 8.58 7.87 10.79	53.8 58.2 68.5 73.7 1 63.3	05/11 25/12 06/03 06/12 30/10	0.59 0.58 1.04 0.61 0.73	19/08 12/08 26/05 18/09 25/07	10.2 12.7 20.1 18.3 27.8	1.85 2.18 4.60 3.73 5.73	0.69 0.76 1.40 0.83 0.93
027084 Eastburn Beck at Crosshills C.A: 43.3 km ² M.A: EA Local No: Sens.: EA Public Local No: Sens.:	8895	1074		613		0.84	50.4	19/12 1993	0.03	22/08 1995	2.1	0.31	0.06
Comment: Flat V wei, 1:10 cross-slope. All flows contained. Heavy sediment/gravel loads. Natural regime. Backing-up from the Aire causes drowning at high flows; d/s levels monitored but processed flows assume modularity. # Steep Pennine catchment, developed on Millstone Grit, draining to the Aire. Largely moorland with rough grazing the principal land use.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	912 915 1232 1255 1513	85 85 115 117 141	433 482 765 783 1015	71 79 125 128 166	0.59 0.66 1.05 1.08 1.39	30.0 25.7 23.0 33.7 50.7	05/11 25/12 06/03 02/12 03/06	0.05 0.05 0.14 0.06 0.08	19/08 20/08 24/05 13/09 24/08	1.4 1.7 2.6 2.4 3.4	0.26 0.26 0.54 0.49 0.65	0.06 0.07 0.16 0.08 0.10
027072 Worth at Keighley C.A: 71.7 km² M.A: EA Local No: 8911403 Sens.: 13.1 - FA.B: SR Level: 97m LE: FAI:	8095	1234		592		1.35	27.9	05/01 1992	0.14	19/08 1984	3.1	0.76	0.26
Comment: Limited range Flat V weir, 1:10 cross-slope. At higher flows the structure is substantially bypassed. A largely natural regime but reservoir storage (and compensation flows of 14 Mid) and mill operation can be influential. # Steep Millstone Grit catchment draining peat moortand.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1038 1040 1416 1441 1642	84 84 115 117 133	372 418 711 677 833	63 71 120 114 141	0.84 0.95 1.62 1.54 1.89	10.5 12.3 17.5 23.8 33.2	05/11 25/12 06/03 07/05 01/11	0.19 0.27 0.39 0.28 0.34	17/08 19/08 27/09 31/07 14/09	1.8 2.1 3.7 3.5 4.1	0.51 0.50 0.98 0.85 1.15	0.21 0.30 0.45 0.32 0.37
027077 Bradford Beck at Shipley C.A: 58.0 km ² M.A: EA Local No: 8911650 Sens.: E A PL Lowel m 155	8395	915		356		0.65	41.2	08/09 1993	0.12	27/08 1984 -	1.4	0.37	0.16
Comment: Flat V weir, 1:10 cross-slope in a relatively steep channel. Processed flows assume modularity. Some import of water (storm overflows which make for an even flashier regime) otherwise net effect of abstractions and discharges is small. # A heavily urbanised catchment.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	864 822 1116 1056 1236	94 90 122 115 135	259 254 394 344 450	73 71 111 97 126	0.48 0.47 0.72 0.63 0.83	17.6 35.2 20.9 27.5 37.7	11/02 11/06 08/01 07/05 03/06	0.14 0.14 0.17 0.13 0.16	19/08 03/10 18/08 09/09 08/09	1.0 1.0 1.5 1.4 1.7	0.30 0.29 0.45 0.39 0.55	0.15 0.17 0.20 0.14 0.18

				Perlod	Rainfai (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m ^a n')	Peak flow (m ¹ e ¹¹)	Date of peak	Min. daliy flow (^{m1} a ¹¹)	Data of min,	10 Percentile (m ¹ e ⁺¹)	50 Percentile (^{m1} e ¹¹)	95 Percentile (m ¹ ='1)
027028 M.A: EA	Aire a Local No: 8911707 Level: 26m	t Armiey Sens.: 9.4	C.A: 691.5 km ²	6195	1061		685		15.01	212.4	17/10 1967	1.50	04/07 1965	34.0	9.16	3.29
Comment: Broad-cres data are less reliable. Carboniferous L'st in th Rural headwaters, con 27035.	terver, 20m wide, rated k Station prone to heavy we te headwaters down to Skipt siderable urban and industr	r all flows by cableway at i vedgrowth. # Geology com on, and Millstone Grit and L ial development d/s. Catch	the section. Pre-1971 prises predominantly ower Coal Measures. ment includes station	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	894 925 1216 1170 1439	84 87 115 110 136	479 526 796 755 1005	70 77 116 110 147	10.46 11.54 17.46 16.56 21.98	110.6 104.4 140.9 143.1 252.8	20/12 25/12 06/03 06/12 31/10	2.64 3.11 3.78 2.99 3.11	23/06 10/08 25/05 08/08 24/07	21.4 26.1 37.8 37.5 43.3	6.56 6.72 11.04 9.51 13.35	3.39 3.47 4.53 3.23 3.77
027080 M.A: EA	Aire at I Local No: 8911702	Lemonroyd Sens.:	C.A: 865.0 km ²	8595	955		635		17,41	209.5	13/09 1993	3.79	09/10 1989	38.8	10.70	4.78
F.A.R: PEI Comment: Crump weii fish pass) a short distai Complex pattern of wa Leeds STW u/s: Aire catchment developed Measures. Rough gra industrial development	Level: m rapprox. 27m wide which su noce u/s - data from 1985 (flo ater utilisation in lower catcl and Cakler Navigation car mainly on Carboniferous L' zing in Pennine headwater below Skipton.	UE: ws incorporated in Lemonn wnent - significant disturba nal bypasses the station. J st (headwaters), Millstone rs contrasts with very con	FAI: Weir (30m Crump with oyd series on NRFA). nce to runoff regime: # Largety impervious Grit and Lower Coal siderable urban and	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	847 874 1138 1086 1347	89 92 119 114 141	485 540 805 733 965	76 85 127 115 152	13.25 14.81 22.08 20.12 26.39	152.6 111.9 157.4 142.1 231.6	19/12 25/12 06/03 11/12 31/10	4.37 4.88 6.15 4.88 5.27	04/08 20/08 27/09 14/09 22/07	25.1 31.7 47.4 45.3 54.9	8.88 9.55 14.68 12.66 17.24	5.07 5.44 7.00 5.35 5.89
027081 M.A: EA	Outton Beck Local No:	at Farrer Lane Sens.:	C.A: 25.1 km ²	8695	631		171		0.14	2.9	07/04 1987	0.01	07/09 1991	0.3	0.08	0.02
F.A.R: Comment: Flat V weir of the catchment. # A : development. Catchme	Lever: m - 1:10 cross-slope. Substar small impervious (Coal Mes ent is traversed by both the	UE: thial modular range. Stormy ures) catchment with signif M1 and M62.	FAI: water drainage in part içant urban/suburban	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	588 632 782 685 900	93 100 124 109 143	110 129 256 185 321	64 75 150 108 188	0.09 0.10 0.20 0.15 0.25	2.3 2.0 3.3 1.3 4.3	19/12 31/08 03/03 06/03 06/11	0.01 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.04	27/07 09/06 20/09 10/09 13/09	0.2 0.2 0.4 0.3 0.5	0.05 0.07 0.13 0.10 0.14	0.02 0.03 0.04 0.04 0.05
027068 M.A: EA	Ryburn a Local No: 8911240	t Ripponden Sens.: 25.7	C.A: 33.0 km ²	8195	1388		547		0.57	17.7	31/01 1995	0,10	02/09 1984	1.2	0.32	0.20
F.A.R: SP Comment: Flat V we catchments - of limited	Level: 97m eir, 1:20 cross-slope. Site I hydrological value. Flow is	UE: d close to the confluence compensation releases fro	FAI: 9 of two reservoired 9m the reservoir.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1161 1171 1676 1608 1829	84 84 121 116 132	283 468 799 763 947	52 86 146 139 173	0.30 0.49 0.84 0.80 0.99	6.7 6.9 19.4 11.6 16.4	03/12 19/02 06/03 02/03 06/11	0.10 0.19 0.24 0.23 0.24	10/03 19/06 25/02 04/07 15/05	0.5 0.9 1.7 1.8 2.4	0.17 0.29 0.41 0.40 0.50	0.13 0.21 0.28 0.24 0.27
027029 M.A: EA	Calder Local No: 8911203	at Elland Sens.: 3.9	C.A: 341.9 km ²	6195	1280		786		8.52	411.3	27/10 1980	1.11	26/08 1984	18.5	4.88	2.06
F.A.R: SPI Comment: Broad cress c/m rated, cableway 20 in 1982 necessitating a high flows and a decrea of lower catchment a predominantly covered	Level: 58m tad masonry weir 53m wide 00m d/s. Water level recorde a new rating curve. Flows re ase in low flows. Numerous i re heavily urbanised and i I by peat. Geology comprise	UE: .03 (Crump profile notch for low resited nearer the river in processed, resulting in a s reservoirs within the catchm ndustnatised. Valleys rise as Upper Carboniferous Mil	FAI: 0.930 flow measurement) - 1980. Weir breached ubstantial increase in tent. # Valley bottoms steepty to moortand listone Grit Series.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1072 1103 1483 1462 1672	84 86 116 114 131	495 560 943 673 1100	63 71 120 111 140	5.35 6.07 10.22 9.47 11.89	88.0 70.3 153.2 110.9 227.2	05/11 19/02 06/03 06/12 03/06	1.80 1.89 2.74 1.75 2.02	23/06 12/08 19/08 04/09 24/08	10.8 13.1 21.5 21.9 27.0	3.05 3.22 5.95 5.36 7.20	1.97 2.20 2.94 2.04 2.23
027061 M.A: EA	Coine at Lo Local No: 8911104	ngroyd Bridge Sens.: 12.3	C.A: 72.3 km ² S/full: 22.1m ³ s ⁻¹	7895	1347		622		1.43	38.9	21/03 1981	0.11	25/08 1984	3.2	0.74	0.29
F.A.R: SPGI Comment: Limited ra # Geology: Millstone G catchment.	Level: 7 am inge Flat V weir, 12m wid rit. Moorland headwaters wi	 B. Theoretical rating. Rest B. Theoretical industrial dev 	ervoirs in catchment. elopment in the lower	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1146 1129 1528 1473 1690	85 84 113 109 125	361 447 754 768 880	58 72 121 123 141	0.83 1.03 1.73 1.76 2.01	26.1 16.7 44.2 29.0 37.3	05/11 19/02 06/03 06/12 06/11	0.17 0.37 0.37 0.34 0.39	19/08 18/08 20/09 04/09 30/08	1.6 2.1 3.5 3.8 5.0	0.41 0.58 0.84 0.91 1.06	0.21 0.40 0.45 0.41 0.42
027065 M.A: EA	Holme at Local No: 8911003	Queens Mill Sens.: 9.7	C.A: 97.4 km ² S/fut: 6.5m ³ s ⁻¹	7995	1276		695		2.15	62.1	08/12 1993	0.27	26/08 19 84	4.7	1.17	0.44
F.A.R: SRI Comment: Flat V we compensation releases catchment. # Predomir in the lower catchment	Level: 68m eir, 11m wide, 1:10 cross- s from Holdge group ; nantly Millstone Grit. Moorlar t.	UE: slope, Full range, Reserv slope, Full range, Reserv affects flow pattern, Net ex affects flow pattern, Net ex affects flow pattern affects flow pattern	FAI: oirs in headwaters - port of water from the ndustrial development	1996 1997 . 1998 1999 2000	1054 1075 1464 1453 1644	83 84 115 114 129	444 520 867 823 1035	64 75 125 118 149	1.37 1.61 2.68 2.54 3.19	20.6 24.9 59.9 38.0 77.2	20/12 19/02 06/03 03/12 06/11	0.27 0.48 0.52 0.46 0.55	20/09 22/08 28/09 14/09 20/08	2.9 3.3 5.4 6.3 7.2	0.71 0.99 1.40 1.48 2.06	0.33 0.52 0.62 0.51 0.60
027031 M.A: EA	Coine at (Local No: 8911102	Coine Bridge Sens.: 7.9	C.A: 245.0 km ² S/full: 42.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6495	1158		564		4.38	272.1	16/10 1967	0.03	13/02 1992	9.7	2.30	0.58
F.A.R: SPGi Comment: Curved bir more accurate low flow rating under review (19 Feb 1992 due to a lan canal. # Mixed geology part. Catchment comp	Level: 48m cad-crested weir 52m wide w measurement. Rated by c 1977. Substantial artificial infl d slip event causing pondin y with Millstone Grit in the u vises moorland headwaters	UE: .08 with central Crump profile urrent meter at a cableway uences due to numerous re g u/s of station. Flows bype pper catchment and Coal M with heavily urbanised vatil	FAI: 0.957 notch 3.8m wide for 0.2km d/s. High flow iservoirs. Low flows in assed through nearby deasures in the lower eys.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	999 1005 1357 1327 1505	86 87 117 115 130	319 383 724 687 842	57 68 128 122 149	2.47 2.97 5.62 5.34 6.52	59.7 56.7 127.1 90.4 149.4	20/12 19/02 06/03 03/12 06/11	0.11 0.48 0.59 0.59 0.66	18/09 19/08 25/09 04/09 19/08	6.0 7.4 11.5 13.6 15.1	0.95 1.53 2.41 2.52 3.64	0.21 0.61 0.82 0.68 0.90
027074 M.A: EA	Spen Beck Local No: 8911385	at Northorpe Sens.: 20.2	C.A: 46.3 km ²	8295	789		551		0.81	20.3	09/12 1983	0.23	26/08 1984	1.5	0.54	0.32
F.A.R: E Comment: Crump We Calder causes occasio beginning of 1999 artifi mine water discharges largely urban catchme	Level: 41m ir. D/s recorder, but process nal drowning. Sewage efflu- icial influences have been gr s upstream; substantial con nt developed mostly on Co	UE: ed flows assume modularity ent component evident on eatly reduced - closure of S sequent reduction in runoi of Measures.	FAI: r; backing-up from the hydrograph but since iTWs and reduction of ff and low flows. # A	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	752 719 926 892 1025	95 91 117 113 130	459 445 602 340 392	83 81 109 62 71	0.67 0.65 0.88 0.50 0.57	13.8 9.3 16.2 9.6 16.9	19/12 31/08 03/03 03/12 06/11	0.29 0.27 0.31 0.08 0.07	03/08 04/10 16/08 04/09 08/09	1.1 1.3 1.7 1.2 1.3	0.47 0.47 0.56 0.30 0.29	0.33 0.31 0.33 0.09 0.10
027079 M.A: EA	Calder Local No: 1301	at Mathley Sens.:	C.A: 930.0 km²	8895	1004		659		19.42	200.8d	28/01 1995	4,47	23/09 1995	41.4	11.57	5.73
F.A.R: SR Comment: Multi-path suspended solids. Cate draining moorland hea	Level: m uttrasonic gauging station - chment area is provisional dwaters with extensive pea	UE: - signal attenuation problet # Impermeable - mainly Mil t cover.	FAI; ms at high flows/high Istone Grit catchment	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	899 908 1214 1175 1358	90 90 121 117 135	489 537 877 808 1015	74 81 133 123 154	14.39 15.84 25.85 23.84 29.86	134.6d 91.9d 169.2d 136.7d 251.0d	19/12 20/02 06/03 03/12 06/11	4,44 5.14 7.24 5.58 5.70	26/07 01/11 19/08 05/09 20/08	25.7 32.3 52.2 52.7 59.4	9.56 10.84 17.18 15.21 20.78	5.35 5.97 8.39 6.21 7.10

SURFACE WATER - REGISTER AND STATISTICS

• •

•

.

•

				Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (^{1,} " ¹)	Peak flow (m's'')	· Date of peak	Min. dally flow (^{m*a*1})	Date of min.	10 Percentile (^{m1} a ¹³)	50 Percentile (m³eri)	95 Percentile (m³u*¹)
027003 M.A: EA	Aire at I Local No: 8911806	Seal Webr Sens.: 6.0	C.A: 1932.1 km ² B/full: 280.0m ³ s ⁻¹	58_95	976		583		35.72	339.6	01/04 1969	3.45	18/10 1959	76.0	23.02	8.90
F.A.R. SPEI Comment: Broad-crest u/s (led to limited low 1993 (combined recom Aire and Calder canal Complex water utilisati in the upper catchmen	Level: bm sted masonry weir, 33m wide flow accuracy); improved pe d). Very high flows inundate e (flows now measured). Cato on; net import. # Mixed geolo it; Magnesium L'st and Mari a	UE: , Gauged catibration - orig rformance using new site extensive N bank washland hment is heavily reservoire gy: Carb. L'st, Millstone Gri and Triassic S'st at the low	FAI: inal cableway 4.5km (1km u/s) from June s. By-passing via the ed and industrialised. it and Coal Measures rer end.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	852 871 1147 1098 1316	87 89 118 113 135	403 431 689 617 810	69 74 118 106 139	24.63 26.43 42.24 37.81 49.51	282.3 199.4 290.2 277.4 294.8	20/12 26/12 07/03 16/01 06/11	7.06 7.77 9.10 6.91 8.18	18/08 11/08 27/09 15/09 25/08	46.5 58.8 93.5 91.2 111.2	16.09 16.77 25.70 21.63 29.83	7.77 8.91 11.05 8.04 9.45
027040 M.A: EA F.A.R: GEI Comment: Rectangut by mining subsidence 1996;1982-95 data n influences include a n Measures, Permian Ma reaches.	Doe Lea : Local No: 8910103 Level: 48m ar flume; turoat width: 3m. Th ;; the flume tilted. Subseque processed (all flows reduc processed (all flows reduc vater inducting m arts and Magnesium L'st. Prec	at Staveley Sens.: 14.2 UE::06 eoretical rating used but th ently, c/m rating develope xed) but 1970-81 awaits ine drainage. # Mixed geol dominantly rural catchment	C.A: 67.9 km ² Sifufi: 9.8m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.972 en structure affected and applied from reworking. Artificial logy comprising Coal and urbanised lower	7095 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	709 604 682 762 757 920	85 96 107 107 130	271 173 194 309 271 354	64 72 114 100 131	0.58 0.37 0.42 0.67 0.58 0.76	8.8 4.2 7.3 6.3 11.9	16/07 1973 19/12 24/02 27/10 09/03 06/11	0.13 0.14 0.15 0.12 0.13	27/08 1976 16/10 07/08 09/08 26/07 04/09	1.2 0.7 0.8 1.3 1.3 1.6	0.34 0.23 0.27 0.42 0.38 0.42	0.13 0.14 0.16 0.16 0.14 0.15
027052 M.A: EA F.A.R: SE	Whitting at Local No: 8910220 Level: 70m	Sheepbridge Sens.: 25.5 UE: .09	C.A: 50.2 km ² FAI: 0.995	7695	836		511		0.81	49.2	22/06 1982	0.11	04/09 1976	1.9	0.44	0.17
Comment: Crump we shales. Industrialised of	eir, 5.98m wide. Theoretical catchment with moorland hea	rating. # Geology: Coal I dwaters.	Measures: s'sts and	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	699 817 928 903 1100	84 98 111 108 132	333 423 606 498 709	65 83 119 97 139	0.53 0.67 0.96 0.79 1.13	- 12.7 20.5 31.7 11.2 25.5	19/12 31/08 27/10 02/03 06/11	0.14 0.19 0.19 0.19 0.19 0.19	12/10 29/09 23/09 05/09 12/09	1.1 1.5 2.1 1.8 2.6	0.28 0.38 0.49 0.47 0.62	0.15 0.20 0.22 0.20 0.22
027026 M.A: EA	Rother at 1 Local No: 8910203 Level: 58m	Whittington Sens.: 13.5	C.A: 165.0 km² B/full: 180.0m³s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.975	6395	806		369		1.93	79.9	15/07 1973	0.13	27/07 1976	4.3	1.01	0.31
Comment: Shallow V using cableway 50m u Wheeldon mill lock sin 1996 (reduction in low exports of water. # Ger comer. R. Rother foll District, Chesterfield is	veir replaced in Nov 1979 by //s. Flows bypassing station ce Oct 1963 and are stored s and highest lows). Runoff affi- ology: mainly Coal Measures ows a synclinal axis. Rural immediately u/s of station.	velocity-area station a shor via Chesterfield Canat hav eparately. Flows from Nov ected by reservoirs in Roth with underlying Millstone G headwaters: R. Rother ris	t distance d/s. Rated te been measured at 1979 reprocessed in er valley and imports/ rit outcropping in SW ses in eastern Peak	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	679 784 898 870 1053	84 97 111 108 131	255 305 442 378 527	69 83 120 102 143	1.33 1.60 2.31 1.98 2.75	30.7 33.8 43.9 23.9 62.6	19/12 31/08 27/10 24/12 06/11	0.24 0.31 0.33 0.33 0.28	27/09 05/10 12/08 29/07 16/08	2.9 3.4 4.9 4.8 6.2	0.69 0.85 1.10 1.07 1.38	0.27 0.37 0.39 0.37 0.35
027025 M.A: EA	Rother at We Local No: 8910304	Sens.: 8.2	C.A: 352.2 km ² B/full: 250.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6195	767		377		4.21	105.4	23/06 1982	0.43	12/10 1970	9.0	2.50	0.99
RAR SREET Comment: Velocity-ar washland storage sche flow. Subsidence due t (but realistic). # Mixe moorland headwaters	tever, 2511 terrers as tation, 15m wide, with c eme controlled by regulator ga o mining necessitates re-ratin d geology: principally Coal and urbanised valleys.	(m cableway 35m d/s. The tre on the channel to pond v g. Sequences of identical k Measures, some valley	a gauge is d/s of the water at times of high ow flows in the 1960s alluvium. Land use:	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	643 732 833 805 988	.84 95 109 105 129	233 275 409 350 486	62 73 108 93 129	2.59 3.07 4.57 3.91 5.41	58.6 42.6 71.3 37.5 135.2	20/12 31/08 27/10 24/12 06/11	0.63 0.88 0.82 0.79 1.30	17/09 03/10 26/09 30/07 12/09	5.0 6.2 9.3 8.8 10.8	1.55 1.84 2.36 2.36 2.91	0.72 1.00 0.92 0.90 1.39
027067 M.A: EA	Sheaf at Hi Local No: 8910402	ghfield Road Sens.: 20.5	C.A: 49.1 km ²	8195 ,	893		389		0.61	119.4	21/12 1991	0.05	04/09 1990	1.4	0.31	0.08
Comment: Flat V wei Don (culvert blockage catchment. # Steep c Measures. Very subst	r, 1:10 cross-slope. Structure may also be significant). Mi atchment developed on Carl antial urban development (Sh	or an an a secult of bar odular limit to be determin boniferous formations: Mill leffield) below Pennine her	cking-up from the R. ed. No reservoirs in Istone Grit and Coal adwaters.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	762 863 1028 987 1154	85 97 115 111 130	296 338 486 371 572	76 87 125 95 147	0.46 0.53 0.76 0.58 0.89	19.9 48.7 48.2 8.9 37.0	19/12 31/08 22/10 25/09 06/11	0.06 0.10 0.09 0.07 0.07	19/08 05/10 18/08 10/09 17/08	1.0 1.2 1.6 1.3 1.9	0.24 0.30 0.36 0.37 0.52	0.07 0.13 0.11 0.08 .0.11
027006 M.A: EA	Don at Had Local No: 8910605	dfields Weir Sens.: 22.2	C.A: 373.0 km ² B/full: 350.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6595	1020		455		5.39	265.1	12/04 1970	0.68	03/09 1976	11.0	3.05	1.45
Comment: Broad-cree (destroyed in 1989). F this period, plus some the impact on the flow # Mixed geology. Moo less industrial).	Level. Joint sted masonry weir, 45m wid lows from 1982 reprocessed reduction in low flows. The u w regime is substantial - sig rland headwaters contrast wi	e, rated by a c/m from a in 2002. Substantial reduc pper catchment is consider nificant net loss of water th the heavily urbanised lo	cableway 100m d/s cition in high flows for rably reservoired and from the catchment. wer catchment (now -	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	887 937 1189 1129 1347	87 92 117 111 132	256 332 567 477 683	56 73 125 105 150	3.02 3.93 6.71 5.64 8.06	64.9 106.7 96.9 48.4 160.3	20/12 31/08 22/10 07/03 06/11	0.76 1.52 1.61 1.33 1.59	17/09 04/10 26/09 15/09 13/09	6.1 7.2 14.8 12.4 17.8	1,74 2.68 3.51 3.27 4.61	0.81 1.65 1.83 1.69 1.75
027066 M.A: EA	Blackburn Bro Local No: 8910660	ok at Ashlowes Sens.: 53.8	C.A: 42.8 km ²	8195	765		208		0.28	41 .1	22/06 1982	>0.00	01/10 1985	0.7	0.12	0.02
F.A.R: Comment: Flat V weir result of backing-up fro Urban stormwater dra Carboniferous formatio	. All flows contained but flow om the Don (flows assume m inage in lower part of the c ons (Coal Measures). Large t	DE: record suspect - weir subj odularity; overestimation c atchment. # Catchment d rrban fraction (N Sheffield)	r AL ect to drowning as a an be considerable). leveloped largely on t.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	671 701 873 827 996	88 92 114 108 130	156 172 274 257 366	75 83 132 124 176	0.21 0.23 0.37 0.35 0.50	8.3 13.5 9.6 5.9 31.1	19/12 31/08 22/10 02/07 06/11	0.01 0.04 0.04 0.02 0.04	18/09 24/09 23/09 21/08 13/09	0.4 0.6 0.9 0.8 1.1	0.10 0.12 0.17 0.15 0.24	0.02 0.05 0.05 0.04 0.05
027023 M.A: EA	Dearne at B Local No: 8910806	arnsley Weir Sens.: 13.5	C.A: 118.9 km ²	6095	776		369		1.39	68.9	13/04 1970	0.08	03/08 1990	2.9	0.72	0.23
F.A.R: GI Comment: Compound gain of drainage wat Predominantly rural ca	Level: 43m I broad-crested weir, 12m wid er pumped from coal mine: tchment.	UE: .06 le, rated by model tests. So s. # Mixed geology of U	FAI: 0.954 orne abstractions and pper Carboniferous.	,1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	694 713 959 879 1055	89 92, 124 113 136	267 276 511 409 575	72 75 138 111 156	1.00 1.04 1.93 1.54 2.16	33.6 15.8 37.5 20.9 46.9	20/12 18/12 09/04 17/04 06/11	0.17 0.20 0.40 0.15 0.35	23/06 01/11 20/09 18/09 13/09	1.9 2.2 4.2 3.3 4.9	0.59 0.64 1.04 0.86 1.19	0.25 0.34 0.46 0.35 0.42
027030 M.A: EA	Dearne a Local No: 8910803	at Adwick Sens.: 7.4	C.A: 310.8 km ² B/full: 45.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6395	709 •		343		3.38	66.3	29/12 1978	0.51	18/08 1976	7.0	2.13	0.95
P.A.R: PGEI Comment: Crump pro capacity of the Crump flows reduced, high flow and sewage effluent a Measures. Land use: (Leve: 13m file weir 5.5m wide with broad profile weir rated by cablew ws increased. The flow regime sugmentation (appreciable no urban in valleys, moorland pa	dec: 10 d-crested flanking weirs. Fl ay. Post-1975 flows repro a is substantially affected by at import of water). # Geo isture in headwaters.	rAi: 0.909 ows greater than the cessed in 1996: low y industrial water use plogy: primarily Coal	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	614 638 832 772 937	, 87 90 117 109 132	227 241 422 355 505	66 70 123 103 147	2.23 - 2.37 4.16 3.50 4.96	55.5 27.3 48.7 44.2 106.3	20/12 31/08 09/04 17/04 07/11	0.58 0.86 0.98 0.78 0.97	27/07 11/08 21/09 14/09 13/09	4.0 4.9 8.8 6.9 10.8	1.38 1.62 2.43 2.04 2.60	0.66 0.97 1.12 0.98 1.09

NORTH EAST REGION

	Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runo ff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean Row (m's'')	Pask flow (m'a'')	Date of peak	Min. dally flow (^{m1} • ¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m's'')	05 Percentile (m's'')
027021 Don at Doncaster C.A: 1256.2 km² M.A: EA Łocal No: 8910908 Sens.: 4.4	5995	802		406		16.18	219.6	23/06 1982	2.62	27/09 1959	34.8	10.25	4.96
F.A.R: SPEI Level: 4m UE: .12 FAI: 09.31 Comment: Velocity-area station, 24m wide, with cableway. Recalibrated in late 1970s following removal of rubble weir (low flow control). By-passing via the Sheffield and South Yorks navigation - flow now measured at Long Sandail Lock. Post-1977 flows reprocessed in 1996 (increased flows >150 m ² s ⁻¹). Numerous artificial influences e.g. effect of the Don Valley reservoirs and imports of water for the urban areas. # Mixed geology: Millstone Grit (headwaters), Coal Measures, Magnesian L'st and Trias s'sts. Moorland headwaters, urbanised valleys.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	699 753 928 881 1060	87 94 116 110 132	276 314 503 431 614	68 77 124 106 151	10.95 12.49 20.03 17,17 24.38	199.4 124.3 180.5 135.0 267.9	20/12 31/08 02/06 07/03 07/11	3.07 4.51 4.17 3.98 5.06	19/08 29/10 29/09 14/09 18/08	20.4 24.3 42.4 37.7 55.3	7.21 8.43 11.10 10.06 13.56	3.63 5.21 5.44 5.13 5.56
027064 Went at Walden Stubbs C.A: 83.7 km² M.A: EA Local No: 8910920 Sens.: 14.7 Syfull: 11.3m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: EI Level: 6m UE: FAL Comment: Flat V weir, 7m wide, 1:10 cross-slope. All but highest flows contained. Weir can become non-modular. EA hold naturalised flows for 1984-95. Pumped minewater discharge	7995 1996 1997	622 506 539	81 87	215 101 100	47 47	0.57 0.27 0.27	21.7 9.1 2.9	01/06 1983 20/12 18/12	0.10 0.11 0.13	27/06 1992 20/08 03/06	1.1 0.4 0.4	0.35 0.20 0.21	0.17 0.12 0.14
significant prior to 1994 (now ceased). # Geology comprises shales, s'sts and l'sts. Rural catchment.	1998 1999 2000	701 636 833	113 102 134	233 185 341	108 86 159	0.62 0.49 0.90	6.4 5.2 36.6	11/04 07/03 07/11	0.18 0.16 0.18	17/09 03/08 12/08	1.2 0.9 1.8	0.40 0.35 0.42	0.20 0.18 0.21
027085 Cod Beck at Dation Bridge C.A: 209.3 km² M.A: EA Local No: Sens.: F.A.R: Level: m UF:	8995	640		196		1.30	21.7d	21/02 1991	0.07	03/09 1991	3.3	0.62	0.15
Comment: Electromagnetic gauging station. Calibration incomplete. Backing-up from the Swale. No cableway. Sensibly a natural regime but spray inigation can have an appreciable effect on summer flows. # A linear, N-S trending, catchment draining largely Lower Lias formations in the Vale of York (but baseflow from the Coralian of the Hambleton Hills also important). Apart from Thirsk, a very rural catchment.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	594 656 845 789 992	93 103 132 123 155	144 138 305 269 405	73 70 156 137 207	0.96 0.92 2.03 1.78 2.68	22.5d 9.7d 12.1d 12.8d 23.8d	12/02 20/12 11/04 07/03 13/04	0.10 0.18 0.29 0.27 0.30	17/09 29/10 20/09 03/08 25/08	2.1 2.1 4.5 3.8 6.7	0.46 0.50 1.26 1.08 1.11	0.14 0.20 0.36 0.32 0.34
027088 Cater at Caldene Bridge C.A: 171.7 km² M.A: EA Local No: Sens.: F.A.R: SR Level: m UE: FAI: Comment: Multi-path utrasonic gauging station (cross configuration). Full range but suspended solids cause signal attenuation in some floods. Further validation of data is needed (1997). Net export of water; Hebden Water Reservoirs provide supply to Halifax. Effluent discharge can affect flow pattern. Rochdale Canal (offlake is u(s) bypasses the station. # Steep, Pennine cathment with extensive moodand developed mostly on Millstone Grif. Heavity urbanised in parts of the lower validation.	1996 1997 1998 1999 · 2000	1135 1174 1582 1545 1796		474 513 899 826 1069		2.57 2.79 4.89 4.50 5.80	27.2d 20.9d 50.4d 38.0d 63.6d	05/11 19/02 06/03 06/12 30/10	0.50 0.57 0.94 0.62 0.77	24/09 14/08 24/05 14/09 20/07	5.1 7.0 9.8 10.2 13.5	1.47 1.45 2.84 2.51 •3.47	0.59 0.75 1.14 0.71 0.91

. . .

Map 5a: MIDLANDS — TRENT



Gauging Station Register

•

Station number	River name	Station name		Grid reference	Catchment area (eq.km)	Station type	Parlod of record	Mean ann. reinfall (mm)	Mean ann. runoff (مس)	Mean ann. Ioas (mm)	Мах. алп. гипо? (тт)	Year of max,	Min. ann. runoff (mm)	Year of min.	Mean flow (m's ')	Min. mon. Now (m's-')	Month/Year of min,	Median ann, flood (m²e・¹)	Base Flow Index	10 Percentile (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m***)
028040 028083 028006 028079 028052 028053 028014 028002 028012 028081	Trent Trent Trent Meece Brook Sow Penk Sow Bithe Trent Trent Tame	Stoke on Trent Darlaston Great Haywood Shallowford Great Bridgford Penkridge Millord Hamst'l Ridware Yoxal Bescot	3333333 888	892467 685355 994231 874291 683270 923144 975215 109192 131177 012958	53.2 195.2 325.0 86.3 163.0 272.0 591.0 163.0 1229.0 169.0	C US VA FVVA FVVA VA FL EMVA US	1968-00 198200 1957-64 1981-00 1971-00 197600 197600 193784 195900 198200	871 822 762 781 764 725 733 789 772 745	383 595 432 224 226 271 322 238 337 444	488 227 330 557 538 454 411 551 435 301	592 807 641 425 441 472 631 430 670 572	00 60 00 00 51 99 83	194 410 324 108 138 167 82 190 279	96 96 96 96 96 76 76 96	0.65 3.68 4.45 0.61 1.17 2.34 6.03 1.23 13.12 2.38	0.13 1.41 1.85 0.09 0.14 0.35 1.00 0.28 2.48 0.68	08/95 08/95 09/64 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 09/76 08/76 09/76 08/76	10.3 28.9 9.5 26.6 30.5 26.2 70.5	.45 .64 .70 .65 .58 .66 .50 .70 .66	1.4 6.7 7.8 1.2 2.2 4.4 11.6 2.8 24.5 4.0	0.13 1.48 2.32 0.13 0.34 0.62 1.44 0.32 4.84 0.91
028087 028039 028003 028003 028006 028102 028004 028080 028025 028025	Tame Rea Tame Cole Bythe Tame Tame Sence Anker Tame	Perry Park Cathorpe Park Water Orton Coleshill Whitacre Lea Marston Lea Marston Ratcliffe Culey Polesworth Elford	SP SP SP SP SP SP SP SP SF SF SF SF SF SF SF SF SF SF SF SF SF	061919 071847 169915 183874 212911 206935 207937 321996 263034 173105	196.1 74.0 408.0 130.0 194.3 795.0 799.0 169.4 368.0 1475.0	FL CB CVA EM VA CC CC CVA VA	1989-93 196700 195500 1973-00 198796 195682 195582 1966-84 196600 1955-84	700 804 748 748 701 728 735 675 673 698	412 343 436 232 205 532 542 282 259 410	288 461 312 516 496 193 393 414 288	473 452 628 315 297 688 705 366 421 535	92 60 89 66 80 80 80 60	363 216 271 153 115 385 383 106 104 279	90 96 96 91 76 76 76 64	2.58 0.81 5.64 0.96 1.26 13.40 13.74 1.51 3.02 19.19	1.62 0.21 2.02 0.17 0.12 6.37 0.11 0.34 5.91	07/90 09/96 08/95 08/95 07/76 07/76 08/76 07/76 07/76 07/84	29.8 71.6 16.1 63.9 41.5 120.3	.72 .47 .62 .44 .42 .69 .70 .42 .50 .65	3.9 1.6 10.0 2.8 23.0 23.1 3.0 6.2 35.4	1.41 0.24 0.20 0.22 6.87 7.32 0.25 0.67 8.25
028019 028033 028046 028038 028041 028031 028031 028058 028068 028068	Trent Dove Dove Manifold Hamps Manifold Henmore Brk Henmore Brk Dove Churnet	Drakelow Park Hotlinsclough Izaak Walton Hutme End Waterhouses Ilam Carsington O/f Ashbourne Rocester Weir Basford Bridge	SK SK SK SK SK SK SK SJ	239204 063668 146509 106595 082502 140507 242501 176463 112397 983520	3072.0 8.0 83.0 46.0 35.1 148.5 15.8 42.0 399.0 139.0	VA C C FV FV C FV FV VA FVVA	196600 196500 1969-00 196982 1968-82 1968-00 1998-00 197400 1953-00 1975-00	730 1424 1123 1158 1080 1091 1125 901 1036 972	373 1009 738 782 645 746 78 354 590 417	357 415 385 376 435 345 1047 547 446 555	564 1399 986 981 851 1021 82 502 871 657	00 81 81 81 81 99 81 66 00	222 646 448 505 381 475 74 194 314 207	96 75 75 75 96 98 59 96	36.36 0.26 1.94 1.14 0.72 3.51 0.04 0.47 7.47 1.84	10.81 0.02 0.34 0.03 0.02 0.39 0.03 0.03 0.67 0.35	08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 09/59 07/96	183.5 3.8 12.6 49.0 26.9 54.6 16.2 81.8 25.5	.66 .45 .79 .30 .35 .54 .85 .47 .62 .47	65.9 0.6 3.6 2.8 1.7 7.6 0.0 1.0 15.8 4.1	14,55 0.04 0.54 0.09 0.06 0.59 0.03 0.07 1.68 0.42
028020 * 028018 028076	Chumet Dove Tutbury Milt/leam	Rocester Marston Rolleston	SK SK SK	103389 235288 243283	236.0 883.2 23.0	VA FVVA FV	195482 196100 198000	1003 948 718	485 499 856	518 449	717 702 1438	81 00 00	282 274 411	76 96 97	3.63 13.98 0.62	0.54 1.87 0.10	09/59 08/76 08/95	41.0 128.1	.55 .60 .50	7.6 28.2 0.9	0.95 3.47 0.11
028007 028075 * 028073 * 028001 028037 * 028070 * 028043	Trent Derwent Ashop Derwent Derwent Burbage Brk Derwent	Shardiow Stippery Stones Ashop diversion Yorkshire Bridge Mytham Bridge Burbage Chatsworth	8 K K K K K S K S K	448299 169951 171896 198851 205825 259804 261683	4400.0 17.0 42.0 126.0 203.0 9.1 335.0	US FV VA FL FL L TP VA	1957,.00 1979-82 197684 1933-00 197896 196582 196800	780 1692 1510 1382 1378 1023 1182	375 1096 747 527 782 589 600	405 596 763 855 596 434 582	579 1302 851 1047 1036 794 1012	60 81 79 00 81 79 00	212 1067 677 222 558 426 309	96 80 81 96 93 76 76	52.26 0.59 1.00 2.11 5.03 0.17 6.37	10.46 0.11 0.03 0.22 0.85 0.02 0.93	09/59 05/80 10/78 05/74 07/92 08/76 08/84	4.3 64.5	.66 .38 .42 .47 .45 .46 .55	109.9 1.5 2.4 4.8 11.6 0.4 14.2	16.54 0.09 0.13 0.48 1.03 0.02 1.48
028023 028011 028117 028048 028055 028085 028085 028085	Wye Derwent Derwent Amber Ecclesbourne Derwent Derwent	Ashford Matlock Bath Whatstandwell Wingfield Park Duffield St. Marys Bridge Longbridge Weir/	5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	182696 296586 331545 376520 320447 355368 356363	154.0 690.0 755.0 139.0 50.4 1054.0 1054.0	FVVA VA FVVA FV US VA	196500 195800 1997-00 1971-00 197100 193500 193586	1185 1117 1249 799 870 1009 1001	652 582 680 314 405 521 529	533 535 569 485 485 488 472	989 972 885 447 593 755 754	00 00 00 00 54 66	352 341 443 156 209 274 288	71 64 97 76 76 96 76	3.19 12.73 16.28 1.39 0.65 17.40 17.69	0.35 1.61 4.77 0.21 0.05 3.65 3.65	08/76 09/59 08/99 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76	16.3 102.3 16.8 12.9 140.9	.76 .64 .65 .50 .50 .62 .62	6.0 26.9 33.5 2.8 1.5 36.2 36.3	0.94 3.29 4.70 0.36 0.10 4.49 4.98
028021 * 028067 028082	Derwent Derwent Soar	St.Mary's Bridge Draycott Church Wilne Littlethorpe	SK SK SP	443327 438316 542973	1175.0 1177.5 183.9	VA FV EM	196577 1973-00 1971-00	973 1002 652	551 506 242	422 496 410	771 754 366	75 00 80	318 275 110	76 96 76	20.54 16.89 1.41	4.59 3.96 0.16	08/76 08/76 07/76	104.3 146.2 21.5	.69 .65 .49	34.8 39.8 3.2	5.43 5.01 0.28
028086 028054 * 028028 * 028024 028056 028030 * 028093 028074 028093 028074 028029 * 028027	Sence Sence Soar Wreake Rothley Brk Black Brook Soar Soar Kingston Brk Erewash	South Wigston Blaby Waniip Syston Mill Rothley Onebarrow Pillings Lock Kegworth Kingston Hall Sandiacre	\$P \$S \$S \$S \$S \$S \$S \$S \$S \$S \$S \$S \$S \$S	588977 566985 603109 615124 580121 466171 565182 492263 503277 482364	113.0 133.0 480.0 413.8 94.0 8.4 1108.4 1292.0 57.0 182.2	EM FVVA CC EM FVVA FL US US CC US	197100 1971-84 197281 196700 197300 196784 196600 197800 197800 197800	650 623 633 641 693 737 665 681 604 709	276 265 178 219 263 297 274 298 209 335	374 358 455 422 430 440 391 383 395 374	458 389 255 335 369 435 376 373 314 575	80 80 79 80 77 00 79 79 74	128 118 121 70 87 109 159 164 65 190	96 76 76 76 96 96 96 96	0.99 1.12 2.70 2.88 0.78 0.08 9.62 12.20 0.38 1.93	0.05 0.10 0.31 0.12 0.06 0.01 2.29 3.23 0.02 0.31	08/84 07/76 08/75 08/95 08/95 08/91 08/95 08/95 08/76 09/90	26.2 35.6 13.5 19.5	.41 .40 .36 .41 .46 .44 .55 .39 .55	2.3 2.5 6.4 6.9 1.7 0.2 23.0 26.8 0.7 3.9	0.14 0.16 0.38 0.31 0.12 0.01 2.55 3.46 0.03 0.49
028035 028009 028060 028072 028017 * 028022 028059 * 028115 028116 028145 *	Leen Trent Dover Beck Greet Devon Trent Maun Maun Maun Maun Mederl/Maun	Nottinghem Cotwick Lowdham Southwell Cotham North Muskham Mansfield STW Mansfield (Dykes) Whitewater Br Bo'stall/H'ton	***********	549392 620399 653479 711541 787476 801601 548623 559636 663704 681732	111.0 7486.0 69.0 46.2 284.0 8231.0 28.8 31.5 157.0 262.6	US VA FVVA FV VA USVA FLVA FV FLVA	196799 1958-00 197200 197500 196678 1968-00 196684 1996-00 1997-00 196584	677 776 678 637 561 761 733 757 744 713	199 357 66 221 173 345 498 653 165 202	478 419 612 416 388 416 235 104 579 511	226 527 110 328 281 519 667 800 202 263	82 79 79 77 00 79 00 69	128 198 33 104 119 196 347 547 132 102	96 76 76 76 76 76 97 97 76	0.70 84.67 0.14 0.32 1.56 90.02 0.46 0.65 0.82 1.68	0.11 18.44 0.04 0.05 19.37 0.20 0.40 0.47 0.39	09/90 08/76 09/90 08/76 04/76 08/76 06/76 07/96 07/98 08/76	446.7 2.2 26.7 452.9 11.7 9.8	.67 .64 .53 .65 .71 .77 .72 .78	1.2 173.8 0.3 0.6 3.6 182.7 0.7 1.0 1.4 2.7	0.22 27.15 0.05 0.10 0.15 28.15 0.23 0.38 0.43 0.82
028032 028044 028036 028015 028049 028091 028091 028047 028047 028050	Meden Poutter Poutter Idle Ryton Ryton Oldcoates Dk Torne	Church Warsop Cuckney Twytord Bridge Mattersey Worksop Blyth Seriby Park Blyth Auckley	5K 5	558680 570713 700752 690895 575794 631871 641897 615876 646012	63.0 32.2 128.2 529.0 77.0 231.0 231.0 85.2 135.5	VA C US EM FV EM VA FVVA FVVA	196500 196900 196998 196500 197000 198400 1965-78 197000 197100	725 688 630 658 660 639 647 643 611	301 309 155 172 187 207 239 248 213	424 379 475 486 473 432 408 395 398	450 527 238 309 350 319 425 397 322	79 79 70 69 79 69 79 80	169 160 76 82 60 119 96 106 117	96 76 97 76 96 76 76 76	0.60 0.31 0.63 2.89 0.46 1.51 1.75 0.67 0.92	0.18 0.12 0.11 0.34 0.05 0.36 0.22 0.11 0.21	11/78 08/76 07/96 07/96 08/76 08/90 09/75 08/76 08/76	5.6 15.1 6.0 13.2 10.4	.78 .92 .87 .79 .62 .71 .70 .71 .69	1.0 0.5 1.0 4.8 1.0 2.8 3.1 1.1 1.6	0.24 0.16 0.23 0.82 0.08 0.43 0.43 0.24 0.31

MIDLANDS REGION

Map 5b: MIDLANDS — SEVERN



Area: 11,102 km²

Average Rainfall (1961-90): 796 mm
Station number	River name	Station name		Grid reference	Catchment area (sq km)	Station type	. Parlad of record	Mean ann. rainfati (mm)	Mean ann. runoff (mm)	Mean ann. Iosa (^{mm})	Max, enn. runoff (mm)	Year of max.	Min. ann. runoff (mm)	Year of min.	Mean flow (m***)	Min, mon, flow (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	Month/Year of min.	Median ann, fìood (m²a*')	Base Flow Index	10 Percentile (m³e ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m ¹ e ⁻¹)
054091 054090 054097 054092 054022 054025 054081 054042 054013 054080 054080 054014	Severn Tanliwyth Hore Hore Severn Dulas Clywedog Clywedog Clywedog Severn Severn	Hafren Flume Tanilwyth Flume Upper Hore Burne Hore Flume Phritinon Burne Rhos-y-pentref Bryntail Chwedog Dam Cribynau Dohren Abermule	5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	843878 843876 831869 845873 853872 950824 913868 914867 944855 996851 164958	3.6 0.9 1.6 3.2 8.7 52.7 49.0 49.0 57.0 187.0 580.0	R.R.R.R.R.P.P.P.S VA	1976-99 197399 198599 195399 195399 196900 197700 197177 1959-79 197783 1962-00	2616 2557 2838 2651 2500 1321 2048 1814 1888 1709 1293	2006 2208 2129 1981 1899 865 1575 1014 1250 1120 794	610 349 709 670 601 456 473 800 638 589 499	2698 3224 2957 2740 2668 1200 2247 1238 1885 1139 1164	98 98 98 98 98 00 74 74 81 00	1253 1647 1715 1202 1149 535 1144 1005 801 1036 507	76 75 76 76 75 97 75 67 82 64	0.23 0.06 0.11 0.20 0.52 1.45 2.45 1.58 2.26 6.64 14.61	0.02 >0.00 0.01 0.03 0.01 0.22 0.14 0.14 0.68 0.98	07/84 07/84 08/95 08/76 08/76 08/76 02/96 01/77 09/59 05/80 06/70	6.3 2.3 6.3 11.8 21.6 69.5 199.6	.39 .30 .32 .34 .40 .51 .64 .48 .48 .44	0.5 0.2 0.5 1.3 3.8 5.8 5.8 5.2 16.9 36.2	0.03 0.01 0.02 0.05 0.29 0.24 0.25 0.85 1.75
054003 054038 054028 054005 054045 054069 054069 054069 054070 054070 054020 054018	Vyrmwy Tanat Vyrmwy Severn Perny Springs Brook Perny War Brook Perny Rea Brook	Vymwy Res Llanyblodwel Llanymynech Montford Perry Farm Lower Hordley Ruyton Bridge Walford Yeaton Hookagate	*****	019191 252225 252195 412144 347303 387297 403223 432198 434192 466092	94.3 229.0 778.0 2025.0 49.1 10.4 155.0 22.5 180.8 178.0	TP FV VA USVA FV VA FV C FLVA	192099n 197300 1970-00 195300 1974-79 1974-78 1975-78 1974-83 1963-00 196200	1909 1265 1365 1189 830 713 690 766 767	1420 915 870 676 389 176 246 205 281 310	489 350 495 513 441 467 485 485 485 457	1950 1370 1299 1073 482 230 338 275 455 514	54 00 00 77 77 78 00 00	768 576 565 426 302 127 212 101 141 139	33 75 64 75 75 76 75 64 64	4.25 6.64 21.46 43.42 0.06 1.21 0.15 1.61 1.75	0.03 0.19 1.01 2.54 0.13 0.01 0.16 0.00 0.21 0.11	08/76 08/76 08/75 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76	87.2 78.1 280.7 303.5 9.3 22.6	.37 .49 .45 .47 .73 .65 .69 .57 .66 .51	10.4 16.1 50.2 110.7 1.1 0.1 2.9 0.4 3.4 4.2	0.26 0.51 2.23 5.70 0.19 0.01 9.000 0.40 0.24
054044 054052 054061 054062 054058 054041 054087 054059	Tern Bailey Brook Hodnet Brk Stoke Brook Stoke Park B Tern Alford Brook	Ternhäll Ternhäll Hodnet Stoke Stoke Park Eaton On Tern Childs Ercall Allford	<u>ឧភភភភភភ</u> ភ	629316 629316 628288 637280 644260 649230 667228 657228 654223	92.6 34.4 5.1 13.7 14.3 192.0 4.7 10.2	TPVA TP FV FV C C VN FV	1972-00 197000 197277 197283 1972-78 1972-00 197300 197278	754 705 677 699 647 729 677 627	287 400 111 196 203 277 107 182	467 305 566 503 444 452 570 445	410 859 117 274 201 401 215 254	00 68 73 60 74 00 73	188 166 80 94 150 160 13 114	96 76 76 75 96 73 75	0.84 0.44 0.02 0.09 0.09 1.68 0.02 0.06	0.29 0.07 >0.00 0.02 >0.00 0.44 0.00 0.01	08/76 08/76 10/75 08/76 08/76 08/76 01/91 08/76	4.7 2.5 0.2 0.5 2.6 11.2 0.9	.76 .72 .76 .74 .56 .70 .66 .66	1.4 0.9 0.0 0.1 0.2 3.0 0.0 0.1	0.40 0.11 0.03 0.02 0.66 >0.00 0.01
054099 054040 054066 054060 054083 054094 054065 0540165 054012 054095	Coley Brook Meese Platt Brook Potford Brk Crow Brook Strine Roden Roden Tern Severn	Coley Mill Tibberton Platt Sandyford Br Horton Crudgington Stanton Rodington Walcot Buildwas	ភ្លុកស្ត្ត ស្ត្តស្ត្ត ស្ត្ត ស្ត្ត ស្ត្រ ស្ត្ ស ស សា សា សា ស សា ស សា ស	779192 680205 628229 634220 678141 640175 565241 589141 589141 592123 644044	37.3 167.8 15.7 25.0 16.7 134.0 210.0 259.0 852.0 3717.0	TP C FV FV EM FLVA FLVA FV US	1997-00 1973-00 1973-83 197200 1978-83 198200 197379 1961-00 1960-00 198400	834 708 678 682 742 684 679 696 709 990	333 222 149 174 281 165 211 238 256 526	501 486 529 508 481 519 468 458 458 453 464	434 309 205 275 287 240 215 389 380 791	99 80 93 82 00 74 00 66 00	172 129 96 238 96 142 122 139 371	97 96 97 97 97 97 75 64 64 97	0.39 1.18 0.07 0.14 0.70 1.41 1.96 6.91 61.98	0.12 0.25 0.01 0.02 0.08 0.16 0.20 0.22 1.17 11.22	08/98 08/76 08/76 09/79 07/95 08/76 08/76 08/76 05/87	5.5 0.9 13.9 14.6 40.5	.60 .79 .75 .68 .72 .66 .67 .63 .70 .55	0.8 2.1 0.2 0.2 1.4 2.6 4.3 13.5 159.9	0.12 0.45 0.03 0.05 0.07 0.20 0.26 0.41 2.29 11.81
054046 054024 054034 054001 054067 054063 054006 054096 054096 054011 054056	Worfe Worfe Dowles Brook Severn ' Smestow Brk Stour Hadley Brook Satwarpe ' Clun	Cosford Burcote Dowles Bewdley Swindon Prestwood Hosp Kidderminster Wards Bridge Harford Hill Clungunford	SJ SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO	781046 747953 768764 782762 861906 865858 830768 870631 868618 393786	54.9 258.0 40.8 4325.0 81.3 89.9 324.0 53.4 184.0 195.0	TP C FVVA USVA VA FV US FV FVVA VA	197500 1969-00 1971-00 1921-00 1974-78 197200 195300 199000 199000 197276	722 699 745 924 631 743 714 690 687 830	111 144 299 451 209 391 273 270 226 323	611 555 446 473 422 352 441 420 461 507	227 240 456 691 266 476 403 535 341	00 00 60 77 60 60 00	43 80 186 266 168 284 182 107 117	97 97 73 64 75 96 75 97 97	0.19 1.17 0.39 61.83 0.54 1.12 2.80 0.46 1.32 2.00	0.01 0.09 0.02 7.46 0.18 0.41 0.89 0.08 0.27 0.26	07/90 08/76 07/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 09/91 07/76 08/74	6.8 9.6 357.3 17.4 20.3	.58 .70 .53 .61 .64 .71 .63 .54	0.4 2.2 1.0 149.0 1.9 4.7 0.7 2.4	0.03 0.32 0.03 10.74 0.17 0.49 1.28 0.07 0.39
054054 * 054053 * 054008 054055 * 054029 054043 * 054032 054019 054004 054050	Onny Corve Terne Rea Terne Severn Severn Avon Sowe Learn	Onibury Ludlow Tenbury Nean Sollars Knightstord Br Upton Saxons Lode Stareton Stoneleigh Eatborpe	50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 5	455789 510752 597686 664724 735557 863399 863390 333715 332731 388688	235.0 164.0 1134.4 129.0 1480.0 6850.0 6850.0 6850.0 347.0 262.0 300.0	VA VA MIS FVVA VA US C VA CC FLCB	1972-76 1972-76 1956-00 1972.76 1970.00 1955.70 1970-00 1962-00 1962-00 1962-00	759 720 866 732 843 852 878 673 686 664	294 195 234 377 445 400 231 365 149	465 525 461 498 468 407 478 442 321 515	401 268 662 224 602 676 577 357 516 267	74 74 73 00 60 00 00 00	226 156 202 194 239 309 268 99 209 46	75 73 64 75 75 75 75 75 76 53 96	2.19 1.01 14.56 0.96 17.70 96.58 86.96 2.55 3.03 1.42	0.26 0.09 0.74 0.22 1.00 14.77 9.93 0.25 0.89 0.25	09/75 10/75 08/76 10/75 08/76 09/59 08/76 07/76 08/61 08/61	145.7 183.3 470.0 462.3 35.1 31.2	.51 .60 .57 .55 .55 .55 .58 .49 .61 .39	4,6 2.2 35.3 1.6 41.1 258.2 221.1 5.8 5.5 3.3	0.23 0.09 1,54 0.19 25.22 15.14 0.47 1.13 0.24
054049 054048 054010 054007 054023 054002 054036 054015 054089 054057	Leam Dene Stour Arrow Badsey Brook Avon Isbourne Bow Brook Avon Severn	Princes Drive Wellesbourne Alscot Park Broom Offenham Evesham Hinton on Green Besford Bridge Bredon Haw Bridge	SP SP SP SP SP SP SP SO SO SO	307654 273556 208507 086536 063449 040438 023408 927463 921374 844279	: 362.0 102.0 319.0 95.8 2210.0 90.7 156.0 2674.0 9895.0	TPBC FV TP+CB C FV VA C VA FVVA US VA	197900 197600 195983 195700 196800 196800 197200 196900 196900 196900	671 645 671 708 666 668 706 656 656 856 807	188 190 218 278 213 222 223 228 198 341	483 455 453 430 453 446 483 428 458 458 466	291 301 380 437 378 377 377 537 266 545	00 77 60 99 00 99 00 99 99 99	55 57 77 143 79 98 93 114 101 225	96 97 73 64 97 44 76 97 97 97	2.16 0.61 2.21 2.82 0.65 15.55 0.64 1.13 16.76 107.10	0.19 0.03 0.06 0.51 0.03 1.93 0.02 0.01 2.07 12.28	07/84 08/76 08/76 07/76 06/44 07/76 07/76 08/95 08/76	38.5 42.2 10.2 147.0 15.5 493.4	.40 .44 .52 .54 .52 .54 .35 .53 .53	5.0 1.5 5.3 5.5 1.6 35.2 1.4 2.5 42.4 259.7	0.27 0.06 0.26 0.76 0.07 2.98 0.09 0.10 3.15 19.43
054026 * 054017 054027 054098 054085 * 054084 *	Chelt Leadon Frome Cam Cannop Brk Cannop Brk	Slate Mill Wedderburn Br Ebley Mill Cambridge Cannop Cross Parkend	\$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0	892264 777234 831047 754035 609115 616075	34.5 293.0 198.0 29.3 10.4 31.5	FL FLVA CBVA FV FV C	196983 1962-00 1969-00 1998-00 1979-83 1978-83	742 710 864 1045 969 963	543 216 402 622 418 343	199 494 462 423 551 620	654 422 651 731 519 421	77 00 00 82 82 :	400 99 183 495 358 272	73 73 76 98 83 83	0.59 2.01 2.52 0.58 0.14 0.34	0.27 0.10 0.33 0.15 0.02 0.05	06/72 07/76 08/76 08/98 08/82 11/78	9.0 21,7 11,1	.71 .51 .87 .68 .62 .61	1.0 4.6 4.7 1.2 0.3 0.8	0.29 0.31 0.77 0.21 0.02 0.06

,

SURFACE WATER - REGISTER AND STATISTICS

.

Hydrometric Statistics

Trent	at Stoke on Trent	C.A: 53.2 km ²
Local No: 4040	Sens.: 18.3	S/full: 45.0m ³ s ⁻¹
Level: 113m	UE: .14	FAI: 0.980
profile weir, 4.12m wide,	modular throughout rang	e. Liable to collect rubbish
nding res., discharges from	n three WRW, plus mine	drainage. Substantial flow
y record but reduced to sig	nificant through '80s. Flo	w affected by STW closure
diverted to other STW d/s	of gauge. # Moderate re	lief catchment, significantly
ulph and Stoke on Trent	, draining the Coal Me	asures; approx. quarter o
I with Boulder Clay. Respo	nsive.	
	Trent Local No: 4040 Level: 113m profile weir, 4.12m wide, nding res., discharges fror y record but reduced to sig diverted to other STW d/s ulph and Stoke on Trent with Boulder Clay. Respo	Trent at Stoke on Trent Local No: 4040 Sens.: 18.3 Level: 113m UE: .14 profile weir, 4.12m wide, modular throughout rang dring res., discharges from three WRW, plus mine y record but reduced to significant through '80s. Flo- diverted to other STW d/s of gauge. # Moderate re ulph and Stoke on Trent, draining the Coal Meri with Boulder Clay. Responsive.

028083	Τ	rent at Darlaston	C.A: 195.2 km ²
M.A: EA	Local No: 4083	Sens.:	
F.A.R: PEI	Level: 86m	UE:	FAI:
Comment: M	lultipath US gauge installed	beneath A34 road	bridge on gentle curve. Station
	4007 ferral recommendation of 400	NOIS Out of book As	was a second by stranged years he by some

ungermined in 1987 flood, reconstructed 1990/1. Out-of-bank flow gauged by transducers between bridge abutments. Subject to silitation. Flow regime dominated by Strongford WRW discharge (Stoke-on-Trent). Quite responsive. # Moderate relief catchment, substantially urbanised with Potteries, Bidduiph and Leek. Geology: Coal Measures and Marls, Milstone Grit and subordinate Shearword Sci. widdle. Commender De Audies Charles and States Sherwood S'st, widely covered by Boulder Clay. Mining, industrial and mixed agricultural land use

028079	Meece B	C.A: 86.3 kn		
M.A: EA	Local No: 4079	Sens.:		
F.A.R: EI	Level: 81m	UE:	FAI:	

Comment: Crump profile Fait V weir, 5m wide, 1:10 cross-slopes, with crest tapping. Cableway for out-of-bank flows. Backs up from d/s bridge. Moderate interference from gw pumping and sewage effluent. Baseflow maintained by glacial valley gravel. # Low relief, agricultural catchment, draining Sherwood S'st in the headwaters, Mercia mudstone otherwise.

028052	Sow a	t Great Bridgford	C.A: 163.0 km ²
M.A: EA	Local No: 4052	Sens.: 11.6	B/full: 10.0m ³ s ⁻¹
F.A.R: GE	Level: 77m	UE: <.01	FAI: 0.963
Comment: Crun	np profile Flat V weir, 9.1m wi	de, in trapezoidal channel	, with floodbanks to contain
out of channel flo	ws. Cableway. Rating proble	ms; weed growth causes	variable drowning, affecting
high flow quality	. Minimal interference from s	ewage effluent and groui	dwater pumping for PWS.
# Low relief agrid	ultural catchment, primarily o	n Mercia Mudstone, with :	some Sherwood Sandstone
in headwaters a	nd glacial gravel in valleys wi	hich maintain baseflows.	

028053	Per	ık at Penkridge	C.A: 272.0 km ²
M.A: EA	Local No: 4053	Sens.: 10.6	B/full: 110.0m ³ s ⁻¹
F.A.R: EI	Level: 76m	UE: .09	FAI: 0.968
Comment: Origi	nally VA station, 10m wide, ca	ableway span 56m, u/s of	A449 road bridge. Probler
	· · · · ·		

site subject to weed growth and bed movement, improved after 1976 regrading. Closed 1983, level only site until 1990, when Crump profile Flat V weir in trapezoidal channel (V-full width 8.8m) installed. Sustantial augmentation of flows from WRW. # Low to moderate relief catchment, glacial gravels over Mercia Mudstone to W, Boulder Clay over Sherwood S'st to E. W catchment rural; part of Wolverhampton in S, Cannock in E. Mixed farming, some forestry

028014	5	Sow at Milford	C.A: 591.0 km ²
M.A: EA	Local No: 4014	Sens.: 5.6	B/full: 35.0m ³ s ⁻¹
F.A.R: GE	Level: 69m	UE: .06	FAI: 0.975

Comment: VA station immediately d/s of Holdiford road bridge. Cableway spans 38m. Channel 25m broad, subject to severe weed growth (retrospective correction of rating made) and siltation; variable and imprecise low flows. Channel regraded 1964-7. Flows not processed between 1977-92. Flows significantly augmented from WRW (Cannock, Stafford). Slow response, # Low relief catchment, rural west, urbanised south and east; Penk drains NW Wolverhamplon. Keuper Marl in west, Triassic sandstones in east, appreciable Boulder Clay in south. Mixed farming, light industrial, some forestry.

028012	т	rent at Yoxall	C.A: 1229.0 k		
M.A: EA	Local No: 4012	Sens.: 4.1	B/full: 165.0m ³ s ^{-*}		
F.A.R: SRPGE1	Level: 56m	UE: .07	FAI: 0.957		
Comment: Electro	mognotic course realacer	VA station in 1995 bu	t has undernetimated flow		

Comment: Electromagnetic gauge replaced VA station in 1995 but has underestimated flows >20m³s⁻¹. Two gauging sites have been used: the 1st closed after river regrading in 1976, the 2nd began in 1974. Earliest record indifferent. Modest bypassing at highest flows. Weed growth severe, needed summer rating adjustments. Substantial flow modification. # Large diverse catchment with Coel Measures in the headwaters and Mercia Mudstone elsewhere, with extensive superficial Over invessures in the measurements and mercia muostone elsewhere, with extensive superficial cover. Large gravel terraces provide storage alongside the main river. Mixed farming, sand and gravel extraction, industrial development.

028081	Т	ime at Bescot	C.A: 169.0 km ²
M.A: EA	Local No: 4081	Sens.:	
F.A.R: EI	Level: 107m	UE:	FAI:

Comment: Trapezoidal fume, ineffective as d/s regrading work not carried out. Converted to EM with poor results. Bed insulation removed and station converted to US in 1989. High flow rating subject to hysteresis. Substantial imports from WRW. Above 45 m³s⁻¹ washland overspill u/s operates. # Entirely urbanised catchment just below confluence of upper Tame branches. Solid geology: Coal Measures, about 50% covered by Boulder Clay and sand and gravel. Very responsive.

028039	Rea a	t Calthorpe Park	C.A: 74.0 km ²
M.A: EA	Local No: 4039	Sens.: 11.5	B/full: 128.0m ³ s ⁻¹
F.A.R: E	Level: 104m	UE: .33	FAI: 0.956
Comment: Crun	np profile weir, 3.66m wide, v	with flanking broad-creste	d weirs set in a formalised
roughly rectangu	lar channel, Model rated. Hig	h flow gauged off nearby	footbridge, but hazardou

owing to high velocities. Prone to u/s siltation. Significant imports modify flow regime. # Almost totally urbanised catchment overlying clay except in the headwaters in the Lickey Hills. Very responsive, used for flood forecasting

028003	Tam	C.A: 408.0 km ²	
M.A: EA	Local No: 4003	Sens.: 3.3	B/full: 100.0m ³ s ⁻¹
F.A.R: El	Level: 74m	UE: .40	FAI: 0.959
• · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	0	محر محمد المحمد المحم المالية	an an antional V(A an una autoina

to backwater influence and weed growth in 1993. Just u/s of Minworth WRW and trunk sewerage to backwater initiative and week grown in 1953, data up of winitiout verve and during severage system. Fast responding catchment with effluent baseflow and substantial regime disturbance from imports. # Almost fully urbanised catchment of moderate relief in Birmingham. Solid geology: Mercia Mudstone but subordinate to extensive cover of Boulder Clay and glacial sands and gravel.

028066		Cole at Coleshill	C.A: 130.0 km ²
M,A: EA	Local No: 4066	Sens.: 26.7	
F.A.R: El	Level: 79m	UE: .31	FAI: 0.981

F.A.R. El Level: /9/m UE: 31 FAI: 0.961 Comment: Crump profile Flat V weir in trapezidal channel, 10.9m at V-full, with floodbanks to contain out-of-channel flow. Cableway span 48m, extends across floodbanks. Highest flows inundate narrow floodplain. Moderate modification to flows from effluent returns... # Substantially urbanised catchment (S slimingham suburbs). Underlying geology: Mercia Mudstone with extensive coverings of Bouider Clay and glacial sand and gravel. Responsive.

Perlod	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m³s⁻¹)	Peak flow (m ³ s ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. dally flow (^{m3} 4 ⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m³s ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m³s-¹)	95 Percentile (m³s ⁻¹)
6895	861		380		0.64	48.4	23/08	0.08	11/08	1.3	0.37	0.13
00	007		000		0.04	40.4	1987		1990			0.70
1996 1997	659 856	77 99	195 305	51 80	0.33 0.51	10.8 9.3	06/08 31/08	0.10 0.11	05/08 10/08	0.6 1.2	0.19 0.26	0.12 0.13
1998 1999	1006 1026	117 119	458 460	121 121	0.77 0.78	26.9 12.5	22/10	0.12 0.11	25/07 31/07	1.7 1.8	0.36 0.45	0.15 0.12
2000	1129	131	594	156	1.00	29.7	05/11	0.12	24/08	2.5	0.49	0.16
8295	794		584		3.61	71.8	23/08 1987	1.25	29/08 1994	6.5	2,73	1.48
1996	639	80	411	70	2.54	22.3	06/08	1.24	21/07	4.1 ·	2.01	1.34
1997 1998	838 948	106 119	529 665	91 114	3.28 4.12	36.8 62.0	31/08 22/10	1.37 1.46	16/08 09/08	6.5 7.6	2.26 2.84	1.57 1.63
1999 2000	996 1079	125 136	694 809	119 139	4.30 4.99	37.7 77.6	01/10 06/11	1.09 1.51	31/07 24/08	8.1 10.7	3.34 3.47	1.65 1.65
									- ,			
8195	755		206		0.56	10.8	30/12 1981	0.07	20/08 1995	1.1	0.37	0.12
1996 1997	617 797	82 106	108 196	52 95	0.29 0.54	5.0 11.1	19/12 26/06	0.07 0.17	26/07	0.5 0.8	0.20	0.10 0.19
1998	890	118	308	150	0.84	10.6	23/10	0.17	08/08	1.5	0.55	0.23
2000	1020	135	. 426	207	1.16	9.0	06/11	0.20	25/08	2.6	0.68	0.31
7195	750		215		1.11	18.8	11/02 1977	0.12	25/08 1976	2.1	0.79	0.33
1996	610	81	118	55	0.61	6.0	19/12	0.22	27/07	0.9	0.50	0.29
1998	874	117	282	131	1.46	10.4	23/10	0.41	13/08	2.7	0.96	0.50
- 2000	941 1008	125	375 442	174 206	1.94 2.28	10.1 19.3	01/10 06/11	0.46 0.55	31/07 25/08	3.8 4.9	1.40	0.53
7695	706		259		2.24	38.6	30/12 1981	0.19	25/08 1976	4.2	1.45	0.64
1996 1997	547 696	77 99	139 205	54 79	1.19, 1.77	10.9 30.1	19/12 26/06	0.42 0.47	18/09 03/06	2.1	0.99- 1.06 ·	0.46 0.63
1998	750	106	284	110	2.45	23.9	10/04	0.61	13/08	4.5.	1.60	0.70
2000	950	135	473	183	4.07	68.1	06/11	0.82	11/09	8.5	2.29	0.96
6095	716		289		5.42	50.1	05/12 1960	0.39	16/11 1965	9.9	3.92	1.41
1996 1997	563 717	79 100	181 236	63 82	3.38 4.43	19.0 31.6	20/12 27/06	0.76 1.39	05/08 22/07	6.0 8.7	2.87 3.03	1.15 1.85
1998	788	110	558	193	10.46	35.0	25/10	4.33	02/03	16.1	9.75	4.93
2000	962	134	633	219	11.83	77.1	06/11	4.43	31/03	20.7	9.21	5.08
5995	766		327		12.73	128.4	24/08 1987	1.90	27/08 1976	22.8	9.73	4.79
1996	581 744	76 97										
1998	844	110	320	98	12.46	59.2d	07/03	3.98	13/08	23.7	9.56	4.73
1999 2000	936 998	122	424	205 130	26.10 16.50	63.00 91.0d	07/11	5.16	09/04 25/08	39.6 31.9	23.19 12.04	5.63
8295	718		469		2.51	45.7	23/08 1987	0.72	18/10 1995	4.0	2,01	1,10
1996	566 737	79 103	280	60 64	1.50	21.1	22/04	0.57	09/09	2.5	1.30	0.64
1998	828	115	371	79	1.99	29.2	02/06	0.72	13/08	3.6	1.37	0.84
2000	969 994	135	485	103	2.46	40.8 56.8	05/11	0.62?	29/08	4.4 5.0	1.79	0.87
6795	793		345		0.81	63.0	23/08 1987	0.17	01/09 1991	1.5	0.50	0.26
1996	631	80	216	63	0.51	20.5	06/08	0.17	10/07	1.0	0.34	0.18
1997	904	114	243 359	104	0.84	54.8 67.9	26/09	0.19	13/08	1:8	0.29	0.18
1999 2000	1011 1063	127 134	399 463	116 134	0.94 1.08	65.6 43.6	02/06 07/12	0.17 0.21	31/07 24/08	1.7 2.4	0.50 0.59	0.21 0.24
5595	737		445		5.76	109.0	30/12 1981	1.54	30/07 1982	10.1	4.35	2.63
1996	580	79	271	61	3.50	38.2	06/08	1.80	10/09	5.6	2.85	1.91
1997 1998	728 845	99 115	317 378	/1 85	4.11 4.89	69.2	26/09	1.90 2.05	03/10 19/08	6.6 8.4	2.70 3.33	2.01
1999 2000	971 1007	132 137	453 504	102 113	5.86 6.51	105.9 85.0	08/08 05/11	2.27 2.24	25/07 11/08	10.3 13.2	4.0B 4.22	2.54 2.46
7395	733		232		0.95	24.4	30/05 1979	0.07	22/08 1976	2.0	0.58	0.20
1996	564	77	153	66	0.63	8.7	11/02	0.14	22/07	1.3	0.45	0.15
1997 1998	681 875	93 119	162 259	70 112	0.67 1.07	14.6 16.0	11/06 25/12	0.15 0.16	11/08 13/08	1.5 2.3	0.34 0.63	0.18 0.22

968 132 316 136 1.30 19.6 29/10 0.18 13/09 3.1

2000

0.71 0.23

·

				Period	Rainfail (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (*** ^m)	Paak flow (m's ')	Date of pesk	Min. dally flow (m***')	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m'a'')	50 Parcentile (^{m1} s ⁻¹)	95 Percentle (m ¹ a ⁻¹)
028080 M.A: EA F.A.R: El	Tame at Lea : Local No: 4980 Level: 66m	Marston Lakes Sens.: UE:	C.A: 799.0 km² B/tutt: 80.0m³s ⁻¹ FAI:	57. .95	725		538		13.63	219.2	30/12 1981	4.93	09/08 1959	22.7	10.80	7.28
Comment: Unusual M into an infine settleme conditions. Replaces 2 Solid geology Mercia rand and geology Mercia	vin bay, chevron shaped Cru ent lagoon. Bypassed at ven 8004. Substantial flow modifi Mudstone but subordinate to und emportion	mp profile weirs, 21.5m tr y high flows, poor flow e cation, large imports. # Si o extensive cover of Boo	otal width, discharging stimation under these ubstantially urbanised. dder Clay and glacial	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	559 696 848 933 970	77 96 117 129 134	437 471 595 661 707	81 88 111 123 131	11.04 11.94 15.06 16.74 17.87	59.2 84.1 99.1 160.9 152.5	11/02 26/06 25/12 08/08 06/11	6.60 7.15 7.04 7.61 7.95	03/08 10/08 09/08 31/07 12/09	16.2 19.9 25.7 28.8 34 2	9.51 9.15 11.47 12.88 12.95	7.19 7.53 7.80 8.54 8.35
028026	Anker at I	Polesworth	C.A: 368.0 km ² B/h/l: 47.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6695	668		253	,01	2.95	75.6	24/01	0.23	26/08	6.0	1.66	0.65
F.A.R: GE Comment: Crump pro	Level: 60m	UE: .07 anks to contain out-of-cha	FAI: 0.991 annel flows. Cableway	1996	488	73	167	66	1.94	15.0	12/02	0.69	20/08	3.6	1.33	0.77
and d/s recorder. Low uncertainty with high fi responsive. # Predom Lower reaches drain s over the remainder of	v modular timit and prone to ows. Substantial modification inantly agricultural catchmen andstone of the Coal Measur the catchment are widely bla the catchment are widely bla	weed grown, causing v owing to PWS imports to at (although containing N es. Sherwood sandstone anketed with Boulder Cla	anable arowning and the catchment. Quite uneaton and Hinkley). and Mercia Mudstone y.	1997 1998 1999 2000	772 793 833	92 116 119 125	354 374 422	140 148 167	4.13 4.37 4.91	52.7 78.4 100.6	25/12 16/01 06/11	0.83 0.86 0.89	13/08 01/08 11/08	3.3 8.5 9.5 11.8	2.28 2.67 2.54	0.88 1.04 1.00 0.97
028019 M.A: EA	Trent at Dr Local No: 4019	akelow Park Sens.: 3.5	C.A: 3072.0 km ² B/futt: 200.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6695	724		368		35.81	363.2	31/12 .1981	6.00	23/08 1976	63.9	26.93	14.59
Comment: Velocity-ar	Lever: 43m rea station. Complex rating hi	story owing to river regra	ding (1965 and 1973).	1996	541	75	223	61	21.64	102.6	20/12	10.62	13/10	36.1	17.66	11.42
imports into the Tame of Coal Measures in I gravel, terraces and a industrial areas, other	system. Much storage in valle the Stoke area; about 25% of alluvium. Drift free areas m wise mixed farming.	to: Prows substantially fin ay gravels. # Very large c covered with Boulder Cla ostly Mercia Mudstone a	atchment, Small areas ay and 10% by valley and s'st. Large urban	1998 1998 1999 2000	818 890 938	95 113 123 130	456 508 565	124 138 154	44.39 49.53 54.93	180.2 210.6 385.3	12/04 17/01 07/11	19.49 19.76 19.46	25/09 11/09 13/09	80.8 94.6 112.7	32.68 39.98 - 37.75	21.46 22.45 22.97
028046 M.A: EA	Dove at iz Local No: 4046	aak Walton Sens.: 9.4	C.A: B3.0 km ² S/full: 47.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6995	1118		740		1.95	28.5	21/12 1991	0.30	09/09 1976	3.6	1.62	0.55
F.A.R: N Comment: Crump pro	Level: 131m file Flat V weir, 7.59m wide,	UE: <.01 deep vertical sidewalls, r	FAI: 1.000 nodular to bankfutl. At	1996	840	75	458	62	1.20	8.1	30/11	0.33	16/10	2.3	0.94	0.35
high flows may bypasi cleaning. Natural catch and sandstone. Lh w	s on the lb. Excellent station, ment. # Long narrow catchin atershed is formed by a sti	, narrower than the main nent. Upper reaches on M eep Carboniferous Lime:	channel and thus self illistone Grit mudstone stone ridge. Passage	1997 1998 1999 ,	994 1284 1204	89 115 108	521 899 769	70 121 104	1.37 2.37 2.02	5.8 27.4 12.7	28/12 22/10 01/03	0.48	29/09 18/09	2.3 4.0 3.6	1.15 2.01 1.77	0.57
028031	ed by deep gorges (Wolfscol Manifol	d at llam	C.A: 148.5 km ²	2000 6895	1400	125	988 7 44	134	2.59 3.50	23.3 160.5	21/12	0.59	27/08	5.1 7.5	2.10	0.59
M.A. EA F.A.R: N Comment: Coump or	Level: 131m ofie weir: 125m wide, mer	UE: <.01 Idea to backfull in straid	FAI: 1.000	1996	838	78	476	64	2 24	375	25/11	<u> </u>	24/09	46	1 28	640
somewhat insensitive i # Headwaters of mode reach has cut deep g grazing and moorland	but good quality data through erate relief and drain sandsto gorges through Carboniferou	iout the range. Minimal in one and mudstone of the us Limestone. Responsio	terference from PWS. Millstone Grit; middle ve catchment. Sheep	1997 1998 1999 2000	1015 1284 1227 1408	94 119 114 130	580 924 826 999	78 124 111 134	2.73 4.35 3.89 4.69	26.4 154.1 54.4 87.7	07/05 22/10 01/10 06/11	0.70 0.97 0.59 0.66	05/10 01/06 18/09 13/09	5.5 8.8 8.3 10.9	1.77 2.80 2.79 3.24	0.78 1.09 0.74 0.73
028058 M.A: EA	Henmore Broo Local No: 4058	k at Ashbourne Sens.: 13.3	C.A: 42.0 km ²	7495	874		375		0.50	21.6	25/01 1995	0.02	23/08 1976	1.1	0.26	0.06
F.A.R: SP Comment: Crump pro into low floodbank. Mo Contains Carsington p of moderate relief in S Descensive catheman	Level: 116m shie Flat V weir, 6.0m wide, v odular limit high, but no arrai ump storage reservoir. Statio 8 Pennines, draining Drift fre 4 Prodominantly, forest and	UE: .01 within vertical wing walls. ngements to deal with nc n closed between 1984 a e Millstone Grit and Cart seture, some meerland	FAI: 0.977 Rb approach built up on-modular discharge, nd,1993. # Catchment poniferous Limestone.	1996* 1997 1998 1999 2000	739 834 1072 1007 1197	85 95 123 115 137	195 203 353 314 422	52 54 94 84	0.26 0.27 0.47 0.42 0.56	8.0 5.8 18.0 7.8 25.4	03/12 28/11 22/10 15/01 05/11	, 0.07 0.08 0.08 0.06 0.09	19/08 16/08 10/08 04/09 04/09	0.6 0.6 1.0 0.9 1.1	0.14 0.17 0.25 0.27 0.33	0.07 0.08 0.10 0.09 0.10
028008 M A: FA	Dove at Ro	cester Weir Sens.: 14.7	C.A: 399.0 km² S/full: 50.0m³s ⁻¹	5395	1029		586		7.42	141.6	04/12 1960	0,62	09/09 1959	15.6	5.23	1.67
F.A.R: N Comment: Velocity-a	Level: 86m rea station approx. 19.8m w	UE: <.01 ide; old mill weir as rath	FAI: 0.997 er insensitive control.	1996 1997	796 942	77 92	381 465	65 79	4.81 5.88	49.6 42.0	29/11 28/11	1.30	18/09 16/08	9.3 12.0	3.29 3.98	1.36
adjustments. # Predor ous Limestone. Lower stone. Some superficie	ninantly upland catchment; h reaches are Carboniferous als, Moorland, forestry and p	eadwaters drain Millston and Sherwood Sandsto asture.	e Grit and Carbonifer- nes and Mercia Mud-	1998 1999 2000	1206 1143 1328	117 111 129	773 666 838	132 114 143	9.78 8.42 10.57	122.4 66.9 133.1	23/10 02/03 06/11	2.63 1.88 1.98	20/08 15/09 25/08	18.9 17.6 22.7	6.95 6.50 7.72	3.14 2.07 2.15
028061 M.A: EA	Churnet at B Local No: 4061	asford Bridge Sens.: 35.2	C.A: 139.0 km ² B/full: 67.0m ³ s ⁻¹	75-95	954		413		1.82	65.5	23/08 1987	0.28	27/10 1991	4.0	1.11	0.43
F.A.R: SP Comment: Crump pro Substantial modificatio	Level: 133m file Flat V weir in trapezoida on to flow regime by export	UE: .02 al channel. Drowns out o s from reservoirs and in	FAI: 0.931 wing to weed growth. nports via WRW and	1996 ~ 1997	744 931	78 98	208 307	50 74	0.91 1.35	18.1 13.9	25/11 27/12	0.27 0.35	15/09 09/08	1.7 3.1	0.54 0.72	0.31 0.42
industrial usage. Pres- with mixed geology; p blanketing of Boulder otherwise low grade a	cribed flow point. Replaced 2 rimarily s'st and shale of the Clay and glacial sand and g griculture or pasture.	28042 in 1975, # Catchm Millstone Grit and Coal ravel, Contains Leek and	ent of moderate relief Measures, with some I Tittesworth Res. but	1998 1999 2000	1132 1125 1277	119 118 134	518 472 659	125 114 160	2.28 2.08 2.89	45.5 27.2 58.3	23/10 01/10 06/11	0.36 0.34 0.47	10/08 29/07 19/08	4.8 4.8 7.6	1.10 1.20 1.32	0.44 0.41 0.53
028018 M.A: EA	Dove at Mar Local No: 4018	ston on Dove Sens.: 5.8	C.A: 883.2 km ² B/full: 130.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6195	941		500		14.00	215.2	11/02 1977	1.62	23/08 1976	28.0	9.85	3.51
F.A.R: SRPG Comment: VA station not reliable at high flo	Level: 4/m up to 1974 when Flat V Crur ws; drowns out, very wide	UE: <.01 np profile weir installed. F floodplain. Small bypass	FAI: 0.984 Prone to weed growth; (Tutbury Mill Fleam)	1996 1997	726 882	77 94	275 348	55 70	7.69 9.75	75.0 73.8	25/11 29/11	2.30 3.29	17/09 05/10	14.4 18.8	5.44 6.76	2.41 3.60
included in naturalised alluvium, terrace and t Carboniferous Limest Rocester, Sherwood S	flow series (<10% of flow), k fluvio-glacial gravel, # Middle óne and Millstone Grit, Lo Sandstone and Mercia Mudst	Adderately affected by imp and upper reaches drai wer reaches broad and one. Pasture, forestry an	oorts. Much storage in n peat moorland over I meandering. Below Id mixed farming.	1998 1999 2000	1099 1066 1233	117 113 131	604 555 704	121 111 141	16.92 15.54 19.66	158.5 113.4 187.1	07/03 03/03 06/11	4.13 3.65 3.81	20/08 10/09 14/09	30.8 30.9 43.2	11.72 12.90	4.92 4.06 4.35
028007 M.A: EA	Trent at Local No: 4007	Shardlow Sens.: 5.9	C.A: 4400.0 km ² B/full: 150.0m ³ s ⁻¹	5795	766		374		52.23	447.4	05/12 1960	9.12	05/10 1959	110.8	34.19	16.49
Comment: Originally a Derwent confluence 2	VA station reliable in the low km d/s. Closed 30/11/66. M	v to medium range but lial ultipath, cross-path US s	ble to backing up from station installed 1991.	1996 1997	577 724	75 95	213 255	57 68	29.64 35.51	142.4 155.1	20/12 30/11	12.74 16.30	19/07 11/08	53.2 64.2	24.02 26.54	14.28
catchment. Trent head Carb. L'st. 25% cover areas largely Keuper I	aneo: Substantial flow modifi twaters have small outcrops ed by Boulder Clay, 10% va Marl and s'st. Diverse land us	ication, which storage in of Coal Measures; Dov alley gravels, terraces ar se from moorland to indu	e - Millstone Grit and alluvium. Drift free Istrial.	1999 2000	922 993	120 130	449 536	120 143	62.62 74.61	254.6 419.0	18/01 08/11	16.80 18.96	01/08 13/09	128.6 158.8	47.64 49.87	20.38
028001 M.A: EA	Derwent at Yo Local No: 4001	Sens.: 8.8	C.A: 126.0 km ²	33-95	1373		522		2.09	150.6	09/12 1965	0.10	05/05 1974	4.7	0.94	0.48
r.A.K: SRP Comment: Two shallo	Level: 159m w profile trapezoidal flumes v	vie: with a whaleback divide s	ince 1936; compound	1996	1174	86	223	43 62	0.89	16.4	20/12	0.39	10/02 17/04	0.7	0.68	0.40
snarp-edged weir prev basin diversions (Ash Monthly naturalised flo much hilltop peat. Sha (Middle Carboniferous)	housiy, below a cascade of 3 op) and imports (Noe); PW ws 1905-1950 derived from a le and sandstone form the lo).	s reservoirs (built in 1912 S exports, Long naturali different source, # Steep wer parts of the valleys, g	c, 1910, 1940). Within ised series available, moorland catchment, gritstone tops the hills	1997 1998 1999 2000	1249 1663 1540 1857	91 121 112 135	725 629 1049	03 139 120 201	2.90 2.51 4.18	20.5 67.6 42.7 111.7	06/03 01/03 06/11	0.60 0.62 0.71	18/07 09/04 30/08	6.8 6.4 10.8	0.69 0.79 0.92 1.41	0.68 0.74 0.73

MIDLANDS REGION

				Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m ^a = ')	Peak flow (m ¹ a ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min, daily flow (^{m3} s ⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (^{m³e-1})	50 Percentile (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m³a-')
028043 M.A: EA F.A.R: SRP	Derwent a Local No: 4043 Level: 99m	t Chatsworth Sens.: 12.9 UE: <.01	C.A: 335.0 km² B/full: 208.0m³s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.913	68 95	1171		587		6.23	175.4	12/04 1970	0.60	19/08 1984	13.9	3.47	1.4
Comment: Velocity-ar control, but shoal and affected by Derwent headwaters. Some rb forecasting station. Pr	ea station approx. 36m wide I rating are not too stable, reservoirs. # Upland cate tributaries drain the Carbon edominantly pasture,	at bankfull. Cableway s All but extreme flows of chment with peat cove niferous L'st. Quite resp	pan 51m. D/s shoal as a contained. Substantially ared moorlands in the consive. Important flood	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	960 1088 1377 1283 1543	82 93 118 110 132	354 462 842 705 1015	60 79 143 120 173	3.75 4.91 8.94 7.49 10.75	51.5 36.5 148.2 79.6 204.3	20/12 19/02 27/10 01/03 06/11	1.20 1.89 2.10 1.82 2.19	16/09 29/09 20/08 14/09 25/08	7.5 10.1 17.6 16.0 23.6	2.26 3.42 4.97 4.88 6.38	1.2 2.0 2.4 1.9 2.3
028023 M.A: EA	Wye at Local No: 4023	t Ashford Sens.: 9.3	C.A: 154.0 km ² B/full: 32.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6595	1155		624		3.05	41.1	16/07 1973	0.30	31/08 1976	5.5	2.45	0.9
F.A.R: PGE Comment: 1:20 Flat \ 11m wide, cableway s growth led to closure c limited value. Modest catchment in S Penni Isolated hill top peat an main valley.	Level: 139m / weir commisioned in 1994. pan 25m. Inundates Ib but b / original VA station in 1977 net augmentation to flows f nes. Carboniferous L'st with d Boulder Clay. Buxton in he	UE: .01 Just d/s of bridge in mex- ridge stops bypassing. (telemetry of levels mair rom WRW and PWS. # 1 basic sills and intrusio adwaters, otherwise mod	FAI: 0.984 andering reach; channel Severe seasonal weed- tiained). Early record of Moderate to high relief ns in upper catchment. oriand, grazing, forested	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	933 1106 1424 1319 1566	81 96 123 114 136	448 544 908 759 992	72 87 146 122 159	2.18 2.66 4.43 3.71 4.83	12.1 11.8 44.3 15.4 32.3	30/11 - 27/12 27/10 01/03 06/11	0.78 1.08 1.37 0.95 1.04	27/09 05/10 29/09 17/09 13/09	4,4 4,4 8.5 7.5 10.1	1.57 2.19 3.32 3.03 3.96	0.8 1.2 1.5 1.0 1.1
028011 M.A: EA	Derwent at Local No: 4011	Matlock Bath Sens.: 6.6	C.A: 690.0 km ² B/full: 170.0m ³ s ⁻¹	5895	1104		573		12.54	436.1	09/12 1965	0.86	14/10 1959	26.4	8.37	3.3
Comment: Velocity-ar bypass along the adja upland catchment wit Millstone Grit; the larg	ea station about 20m wide in cent A6 road. Substantially h peat covered moorlands est tributary, the Wye, drain	affected by Derwent re in the headwaters. Ma is Carboniferous L'st. Fo	rAt: 0.951 ated. Highest floods will servoirs. # Responsive ain Derwent drains the prestry and pasture.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	904 1045 1322 1225 1474	82 95 120 111 134	352 438 797 667 975	61 76 139 116 170	7.68 9.59 17.45 14.59 21.27	73.7 52.0 242.0 103.9 346.4	20/12 19/02 27/10 01/03 06/11	2.26 3.36 4.03 2.91 3.40	17/09 29/09 29/09 14/09 13/09	16.1 18.2 35.8 32.3 46.9	4.86 6.82 10.91 10.29 13.65	2.4 3.7 4.7 3.2 3.6
028117 M.A: EA F.A.R: SRPGEI Comment: Large Flat u/s of Ambergate/Cars year flows. Flows sub: peat covered moorlar	Derwent at 1 Local No: Level: 69m V weir, 25m wide, u/s of A6 ington intake point. Cablewa stantially affected by Derwe dis in headwaters. Main [Whatstandwell Sens.: UE: i road bridge. Built to pro ay installed for futl-range nt reservoirs. # Respon Dervent drains the Mill	C.A: 755.0 km ² FAI; vote accurate flow info. a cationation up to 1:100 sive upland catchment, stone Grit: the largest	1996 1997 1998 1999	1032 1300 1210		443 762 631		10.62 18.23 15 11	52.0 282.3 93.5	19/02 27/10 01/03	4.21 4.75 4.02	29/09 29/09 29/09	19.0 35.7• 31.8	7.93 12.09 10.85	4.64 5.43
tributary, the Wye, dra 028048	ins Carboniferous L'st. Land Amber at V	d use mainly pasture an Vingfield Park	d forestry. C.A: 139.0 km ²	2000 7195	1456 788		887 312		21.18 1.38	238.3 32.6	06/11 25/01	4.02 4.02 0.19	13/09 09/08	45.1 2.8	14.43	4.6
M.A: EA F.A.R: SRPG Comment: Crump pro from bridge u/s. Extre reservoir; substantial : moorland headwaters Boulder Clay, Bisects	Local No: 4048 Level: 71m file Flat V weir, 5.49m at V-f me flows bypass on rb. Fa augmentation from mine pu Upper half of catchment 'st and tuff inlier of Asbover	Sens.: 22.0 UE: .04 (ult, in trapezoidal channi airly low modular limit, imping and sewage. # drains Millstone Grit, p f Dome. Lower half - Co	B/full: 21.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.947 el, Higher flows gauged Contains Ogston PWS Upland catchment with partially blanketed with al Measures	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	682 775 891 888 1052	87 98 113 113	220 252 371 346 448	71 81 119 111	0.96 1.11 1.63 1.53 1.97	16.4 14.8 23.9 31.7 42 5	1995 19/12 20/11 24/10 16/01 06/11	0.34 0.43 0.39 0.39	1976 06/10 07/08 13/08 12/09 10/09	1.8 2.1 3.3 3.4	0.64 0.71 0.91 0.92	0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4
028055 M.A. EA F.A.R: PE	Ecclesbour Local No: 4055 Level: 69m	ne at Duffield Sens.: 15.8	C.A: 50.4 km ² B/full: 32.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.997	7195	851		402		0.64	33.8	25/01 1995	0.03	26/08 1976	1.5	0.35	0.1
Comment: Crump pro V-full. Likely to be mo PWS abstraction and relief catchment; solid tially rural; Wirksworth	file Flat V (1:10) weir set in s dular to structurefull. High f WRW discharge cancel to geology Coal Measures. Min in headwaters.	sloping (1:1) 1.25m high lows gauged from d/s b yield substantially natur or Boulder Clay cover in	sidewalls, 7.2m wide at ridge. Closed 1983-89. ral regime. # Moderate mid catchment. Essen-	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	723 806 1000 976 1155	85 95 118 115 136	242 295 493 446 594	60 73 123 111 148	0.38 0.47 0.79 0.71 0.95	8.8 9.9 14.4 10.8 30.5	03/12 31/08 24/10 15/01 05/11	0.06 0.09 0.10 0.09 0.10	22/07 16/08 19/08 10/09 25/08	0.9 1.1 1.8 1.8 2.2	0.20 0.27 0.42 0.41 0.56	0.0) 0.1) 0.1) 0.1) 0.1)
028085 M.A: EA	Derwent at S Local No: 4085	t. Marys Bridge Sens.:	C.A: 1054.0 km ² B/full: 92.0m ³ s ⁻¹	3595	1001		521		17.41	334.2d	10/12 1965	1.82	30/08 1952	36.0	11.72	4.5
F.A.R: SKPGEI Comment: Ten-chann Longbridge Weir (2801 but bypassing small. S abstractions. # Large, Limestone. Lower read the rb. Peat moorland	Level: 44m el, interleaved cross path U 0). Record continuous with ubstantial flow modification predominantly upland catch thes drain Coal Measures o headwaters: forestry, pastu	UE: IS gauge in the centre of 28010. Peaks from 1976 owing to Derwent reser ment draining Millstone in the Ib and Triassic sa re and some arable	FAI: of Derby, 1.75km u/s of 5 only. Derby may flood voirs, milling and PWS Grit and Carboniferous ndstones and maris on	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	830 957 1185 1123 1342	83 96 118 112 134	275 369 646 549 754	53 71 124 105 145	9.17 12.35 21.57 18.37 25.14	104.1 62.3 205.4 116.9 294.0	20/12 19/02 28/10 15/01 06/11	3.54 4.62 4.22 4.42 4.25	05/07 22/09 12/08 05/09 25/08	18.5 24.7 42.7 39.9 53.0	5.89 8.67 14.09 12.61 16.83	4,00 5,54 5,50 4,69 5,09
028067 M.A: EA	Derwent at Local No: 4067	Church Wilne Sens.: 5.4	C.A: 1177.5 km ²	7395	991		502		18.73	215.7	25/02 1977	2.76	22/09 1976	39.4	12.68	5.00
Comment: Crump pro floodplain. 20km d/s o flows of variable quali gaugings at Draycott. moorland headwaters Sandstone and Mercia	Level: 31m file Flat V weir, 27m wide, in f St Mary's Bridge; substan y as weir drowns; calculate Can back up from Trent. F on Carboniferous Grit ar Mudstone. Valley broadens	UE: .03 I trapezoidal channel. Nk titial abstractions and re ed by extrapolation from Prescribed flow point. # nd Limestone. Lower r i considerably below Der	FAI: 0.953 p cableway. Very broad turns in between. High n St Mary's Bridge and Large catchment with reaches on Sherwood rby with extensive sand	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	602 929 1151 1093 1302	81 94 116 110 131	275 376 673 561 756	55 75 134 112 151	10.26 14.04 25.12 20.94 28.16	99.7 62.1 248.6 146.5 277.6	20/12 20/02 28/10 16/01 06/11	3.48 5.48 5.96 5.00 4.61	27/07 22/09 18/08 30/08 25/08	20.2 26.6 47.3 44.0 57.7	6.82 10.32 16.19 15.14 18.95	4.14 6.37 7.10 5.56 6.00
and gravel terraces. R 028082 M.A: EA	Soar at L Local No: 4082	ustral activity. .ittlethorpe Sens.;	C.A: 183.9 km² B/full: 5.5m³s ⁻¹	7195	646		245		1.43	24.5	02/02 1979	0.11	26/08 1976	3.1	0.75	0.30
F.A.R: E Comment: Electromag just u/s. Prone to wee Bypassed at high flow combined. # Predomin and glacial gravel cox	Level: 61m netic station in a straight rei d growth. Very low velociti s. Substantial imports via V antiy agricultural catchment rer; Mercia mudstone sedit p lowers reaches	UE; .04 ach. Flood relief channel es; at lowest flows may VRW. Replaced Narbord just south of Leicester. I ments in some valley f	FAI: 0.987 I joins on the right bank y yield unreliable data. Jough (28051) - records Extensive Boulder Clay lanks. Significant river	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	491 629 728 743 817	76 97 113 115 126	134 127 261 288 336	55 52 107 118 137	0.78 0.74 1.52 1.68 1.95	9.7 7.5 15.3 26.2 21.3	09/01 29/11 10/04 16/01 06/11	0,14 0.17 0.20 0.23 0.22	14/07 03/06 12/08 12/09 13/09	1.5 1.5 3.9 4.2 4.9	0.47 0.45 0.75 0.90 1.01	0.18 0.2 0.28 0.28
028086 M.A: EA	Sence at Se Local No: 4086	outh Wigston Sens.:	C.A: 113.0 km ²	7195	642		280		1.00	39.7	13/01 :	>0.00	02/09	2.3	0.44	0.14
F.A.R: El Comment: EM gauge (dismantied railway bria augmented by WRW i (28054). # Moderate to and l'sts) but wholly bit bottom end. otherwise	Level: 67m set in 1:1 formalised banks dge). Sharp bend immediate discharges, particularly Wig low relief catchment to E an inketed by Boulder Clay and arable and orazinn land use	UE: and flood embankment, sty d/s, mill stream conflu- ston. Moderately respo d S of Leicester, Mainty i d alluvium except for her e.	FAI: 20m d/s of the control ience u/s. Substantially nsive. Replaces Blaby Lower Lias (mudstones adwaters. Urbanised at	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	457 648 721 741 816	71 101 112 115 127	129 149 301 319 393	46 53 108 114 140	0.46 0.53 1.08 1.14 1.40	8.2 6.1 25.6 , 23.4 39.7	09/01 29/11 10/04 16/01 06/11	0.10 0.12 0.13 0.15 0.13	13/07 10/08 09/08 31/07 12/08	0.9 1.1 2.4 2.8 3.3	0.23 0.28 0.46 0.54 0.66	0.12 0.16 0.16 0.18 0.18
028024 M.A: EA	Wreake at Local No: 4024	Syston Mill Sens.: 15.7	C.A: 413.8 km² B/full: 4.8m³s ⁻¹	6795	637		216		2.84	99.8	09/03 1975	0.09	27/08 1976	6.7	1.11	0.3
r.A.N: GE Comment: Originally, gauge. Difficult to gau overestimate flows. F catchment, draining we Liassic clays. Rural cat	Level: 48m Crump profile weir 4.6m wi ge; very low velocities at lo sat response. Significant a st from the Oolitic Limeston Chment, mixed farming, cor	UE: .02 ide, low modular limit, r w flows, station bypass augmentation from WR he scarp. Predominantly ntaining Melton Mowbray	FAI: 0.941 eplaced 1982 with EM sed at high flows. May W. # Moderate relief Boulder Clay overtying y.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	448 665 762 716 784	70 104 120 112 123	98 151 324 279 327	45 70 150 129 151	1.28 1.99 4.25 3.66 4.28	22.8 24.0 52.7 37.3 41.1	12/02 29/11 10/04 08/03 04/04	0.22 0.29 0.30 0.34 0.19	05/06 02/06 20/09 11/09 30/01	2.7 5.3 11.1 10.7 11.7	0.53 0.92 1.64 1.40 1.74	0.26 0.34 0.51 0.45 0.51

.

	Period	Raintail (mm)	% of pre-1896	Runoff (тт)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow ("'a'n)	Peak flow (^{m*} **')	Date of peak	Min. delly flow (^{ma} a' ¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentite (m'a'')	50 Parcentlia (m'a' ¹)	95 Percentile (m'='1)
028056 Rothley Brook at Rothley C.A: 94.0 km² MA: EA Local No: 4056 Sens.: 17.7 B/folt: 23.0m³s ⁻¹	73_95	684		264		0.79	18.8	24/02 1977	0.05	21/08 1995	1.7	0.42	0.14
FAR:SE Level: 47m UE::06 FAI:09/9 Comment: Crump profile Flat V weir in a trapezoidal channel. Possibility of bypassing on to. Well rated, but backs up from d/s road bridge at highest flows. Substantial imports enter the river from WRW. # Predominantly rural, but drains a portion of NW Leicester and contains number of small towns. Mostly Boulder Clay covered, but ancient Chamwood Forest rocks outcrop to the N.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	519 660 815 811 870	76 96 119 119 127	134 137 337 336 346	51 52 128 127 131	0.40 0.41 1.00 1.00 1.03	6.0 5.0 15.7 16.5 15.9	19/12 09/07 25/12 16/01 05/11	0.05 0.08 0.10 0.09 0.10	22/07 08/08 20/08 13/09 12/09	0.9 0.9 2.2 2.6 2.4	0.22 0.23 0.46 0.52 0.54	0.07 0.10 0.13 0.11 0.13
028093 Soar at Pillings Lock C.A: 1108.4 km ² M.A: EA Local No: 4093 Sens.: E A B: 60EL Locati 20m UE: EAL	8695	655		269		9.45	113.4	24/01 1988	1.47	25/08 1991	23.2	5.56	2.55
Comment: Multipath US set in Soar Navigation (merges with Grand Union Canal) 100m u/s of Pillings Lock. Low banks. US transducers on the broad floodplain to calibrate out of bank flows. Very substantial flow modification from WRW and reservoirs in Charmwood Forest. H Moderate low relief calchiment with Triassic Marts and Sist to the W and Lias calay and fists to the E, widely blanketed in Boulder Clay. Ancient hard rocks outcrop in Charmwood Forest. Lower catchiment dominated by Leicester, headwaters rural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	470 649 755 742 811	72 99 115 113 124	160 191 357 329 379	59 71 133 122 141	5.60 6.73 12.56 11.58 13.27	46.3 46.6 143.5 120.4 115.7	12/02 29/11 10/04 17/01 06/11	1.99 1.90 2.57 2.46 2.60	22/09 04/08 22/08 12/09 13/08	10.1 14.3 28.6 27.9 32.3	3.93 4.33 6.70 6.68 7.25	2.29 2.74 2.89 2.74 2.77
028074 Soar at Kegworth C.A: 1292.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: 4074 Sens: F.D: Cort Local No: 4074 Sens:	7895	678		306		12.52	105.6	14/01 1993	2.48	16/09 1979	27.5	8.04	3.56
Comment: Multi-patt US gauge rebuilt in 1991 (no data Jan and Feb 1991) to improve on accuracy of existing single-path gauge (1978-84). Replaced VA site at Zouch. Reach at station is canalised part of Soar navigation, has low velocities and wide floodplain. Bypassing possible above bankfull (>3.15m). Flows substantially modified by inputs from VRW along Soar valley. # Moderate to low relief. Geology: Mercia Mudstone and S'st in W; Lias clays and I'sts in E, overlain with Boulder Clay. Ancient hard rocks outcrop in Chamwood Forest. Catchment predominately nural but contains Leicester and Loughborough. Agricultural land use.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	477 644 764 751 815	70 95 113 111 120	164 193 346 335 374	54 53 113 109 122	6.70 7.90 14.19 13.72 15.29	43.3 58.3 133.1 113.1 122.7	12/02 24/08 11/04 17/01 07/11	2.85 3.35 3.49 2.53 3.00	18/08 01/06 20/08 22/08 13/08	11.5 15.9 31.4 33.5 37.9	4.98 5.41 7.84 7.52 8.63	3.13 3.75 3.94 3.18 3.37
028027 Erewash at Sandiacre C.A: 182.2 km² M.A: EA Local No: 4027 Sens.: 18.3 B/full: 730.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.B: GEI Level: 33m LIF: 11 FAI: 0.915	6595	711		351		2.03	39.9	22/06 1982	0.20	02/09 1990	4.1	1.43	0.48
Commant: Two rectangular concrete flood drainage channels, each 3.9m wide, 3.09m deep, separated by divide wall 1.2m high. Unstable ratings. Informal low flow controls installed 1981; data improved but use with care (esp. two flows). Closed 1984, reopened 1991 as multiple US opera- tion. Stop boards can dose one channel at low flows. All flows contained. Substantial augmentation from mine drainage and mining towns' STW. # Low to moderate relief catchment draining Carbon/ferous Coal Measures with Permian and Trassic rocks on E and S boundaries. Significant urban fraction, otherwise arable and grazing land use.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	550 700 789 779 926	77 98 111 110 130	190 213 311 331	54 61 89 94	1.09 1.23 1.80 1.91	13.3 10.2 15.6 32.8	20/12 28/11 06/03 10/03	0.47 0.33 0.42 0.49	13/10 11/08 12/08 11/09	2.0 2.3 4,1 4.5	0.79 0.82 0.99 1.16	0.51 0.49 0.47 0.54
028035 Leen at Triumph Road Nottingham C.A: 111.0 km ² M.A: EA Local No: 4035 Sens.: 18.1 E A D: CEL Local: 4005 LIE: EAL:	6795	679		214		0.75	17.1	31/07 1994	0.05	03/08 1990	1.2	0.52	0.22
Comment: Two rectangular concrete flood drainage channels, each 3.05m wide, 2.75m deep, separated by divide wall tim high. Unstable ratings. Informal low flow controls installed 1981; data improved but use with care (esp. low flows). Cosed 1984, reopened in 1991 as multiple US opera- tion. All flows contained. Minor net disturbance to baseflow dominated flow regime. # Moderate to low relief catchment draining south into Notlingham. Geology: Magnesian Limestone, Permian Marl and Sherwood Sandstone. Significant urban fraction in lower catchment, otherwise arable and grazing land use.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	539 647 780 714 890	79 95 115 105 131	128 139 213 194	60 65 100 91	0.45 0.49 0.75 0.68	7.7 11.4 10.2	19/12 26/07 09/03	0.12 0.19 0.17	22/07 05/06 29/07	0.7 0.8 1.3 1.3	0.39 0.38 0.57 0.53	0.18 0.25 0.31 0.23
028009 Trent at Colwick C.A: 7486.0 km ² M.A: EA Local No: 4009 Sens.: 2.6 B/full: 550.0m ³ s ⁻¹ E A D: SPECEL Level: 16m LIE: 0.8 EAI: 0.926	5895	769		355		84.28	956.7	25/02 1977	14.70	23/08 1976	171.4	58.81	27.17
Comment: Velocity-area station in navigable Trent. Main channel approx. 62m wide; cableway span 99m. Holme sluices 750m u/s affect water levels up to medium flows. Bypassed at high flows on to when gravel workings inundated, but bank mods. and construction of Holmepierpoint canceing course make this less likely. Use highest and lowest flows with care. Very substantial flow modifications owing to imports, WRW, cooling water and industrial usage. # Predominantly impervious glacial clay and Mercia Mudstane, but some sandstone and limestone. Extensive terrace gravels and alluvium maintain baseflow.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	587 734 890 901 996	76 95 116 117 130	205 245 434 438 529	58 69 122 123 149	48.65 58.21 102.96 103.88 125.17	295.8 272.9 484.3 424.0 1019.0	20/12 30/11 08/03 17/01 08/1 1	22.62 26.66 25.60 28.94 29.16	23/07 05/10 21/08 31/07 25/08	94.2 109.9 215.1 224.6 275.1	36.37 •41,44 67,59 77,14 82.07	23.88 28.34 31.16 32.30 31.92
028060 Dover Beck at Lowdham C.A: 69.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: 4060 Sens.: 8.0 EA B: C Local No: 4060 Sens.: 8.0	7295	671		67		0.15	11.6	27/05 1972	0.03	22/08 1995	0.3	0.10	0.05
Comment: Crump profile Flat V weir (1:10) in a trapezoidal (1:1) channel. Subject to weed growth: low modular limit. Stuggish response, baseflow dominated. Affected by spray irrigation abstraction and minor WRW effluent. # The river drains SE from a moderate to low relief catchment. The bulk of the catchment comprises outcrop Trassic s'st; flanking hills nearer the gauge are of Mercia Mudstone. Entirely rural, mixed farming	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	537 623 781 725 892	80 93 116 108 133	43 39 75 76 88	64 58 112 113 131	0.09 0.08 0.16 0.17 0.19	1.3 0.7 3.0 3.4 3.1	19/12 26/07 10/04 15/01 06/11	0.03 0.04 0.05 0.04 0.04	02/10 09/09 18/08 21/07 09/09	0.1 0.1 0.3 0.3 0.4	0.09 0.08 0.14 0.11 0.11	0.04 0.04 0.06 0.05 0.05
028002 Trent at North Muskham C.A: 8231.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: 4022 Sens.: 7.9 B/full 250.0m³s ⁻¹ E.A. B: SPDCEL Local No: 4022 Sens.: 7.7 B/full 250.0m³s ⁻¹	6895	753		342		89.29	1006.0	26/02 1977	15.43	23/08 1976	179.6	63.40	27.95
Comment: US gauge augmented VA station for low flows in 1996. Cableway span 105m; lowest Trent gauge above idal limit. Backwater from Cromwell Lock d/s affects high flow rating. Above 7.8m station bypassed on rb; volumes not great. Very substantial flow modifications owing to imports, WRW; cooling water and industrial usage. # Largest gauged catchment on Trent, with gamut of land use. Predominantly impervious owing to glacial clay and Mercia Mudstone, but some s'st and i'st (Dove, Derwent and d/s Nottingham).	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	577 722 875 881 980	77 96 116 117 130	202 241 427 419 520	59 70 125 123 152	52.58 62.84 111.32 109.33 135.36	291.1 274.7 488.2 451.2 1079.0	21/12 30/11 07/01 17/01 08/11	23.43 29.55 31.34 29.57 31.72	22/07 10/06 13/08 31/07 25/08	100.6 114.8 223.4 236.4 280.8	40.61 46.65 73.83 80.12 89.43	25.54 31.00 35.72 32.95 35.47
028115 Maun at The Dykes, Mansfield C.A: 31.5 km² M.A: EA Local No: Sens. F.A.R: Level: 69m UE: FAI:													
Comment: Crump profile Flat V (1:10) weir, 4.8m wide, low vertical wingwalls set in wider channel. Lb at about 2m, rb higher. Fully contained. Weir prone to u/s sittation - affects calibration; range based on gaugings. Superseded 28059. Low flows dominated by sewage effluent (approx. 3 times natural flow) and augmented by runoff from urban area - catchment area increases by approx. 5 sq.km. # Moderate relief catchment near headwaters of Maun. Rises on Magnesian Limestone and crosses onto Sherwood S'st. Rural headwaters, but Mansfield immediately u/s.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	597 674 790 782 940		554 547 648 718 803		0.55 0.55 0.65 0.72 0.80	8.1 15.5 ,12.6 15.1 9.9	06/08 31/08 30/09 02/07 05/11	0.31 0.34 0.34 0.42 0.43	27/07 09/08 08/08 06/08 12/09	0.8 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3	0.50 0.47 0.55 0.62 0.64	0.37 0.38 0.40 0.45 0.47
028116 Maun at Whitewatar Bridge C.A: 157.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: Sens.: F.A.R: GE Level: 32m UE: FAI:													
Comment: Flat V weir, 5.2m wide with 0.64m high wingwalts. Built to measure flows d/s of Sherwood Sandstone aquifer and to complement gauge at Mansfield (28115) which measures flows u/s of aquifer.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	621 741 723 886		162 165 203		0.81 0.82 1.01	5.5 5.2 10.1	<i>10/04</i> 16/01 06/11	0.34 - 0.32 0.39	09/08 01/08 22/07	1.3 1.3 1.7	0.68 0.70 0.76	0.42 0.39 0.47
······································									міг)LAN	JDS	REG	

,

.

.

65

MIDLANDS REGION

.

.

					Period	Rainfalf (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	Peak flow {m³* ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. daliy flow (^{m*s*1})	Date of mln.	10 Percentile (m³a ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m ¹ = ¹)	95 Percentile (m ¹ s ⁻¹)
028032 M.A: EA	Mede Local No: 4032	en at Chun Se	ch Warsop ens.:7.8 F∙00	C.A: 63.0 km ² S/full: 45.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.972	6595	722		312		0.62	11.6	25/02 1977	0.14	03/11 1978	1.1	0.51	0.25
Comment: Non-stan measure flows enteri drowning of flume ur watering, giving recess between 1984 and 19 Ust, subordinate Perr Sutton in Ashfield in I	dard trapezoidal flun ing Sherwood S'st ou ntil d/s channel regra ssions stepped appea 90. # Ribbon-like, SW 90. # Ribbon-like, Sherwo headwaters, also part	ne, treated utcrop. Mini ided in 198 rance. <60' V-NE catchr vod S'st. Mil t of Mansfie	as VA station an ng subsidence in 1. Flows signit. af % of low flows com nent of moderate n ning was dominant Id Woodhouse.	d rated by cfm. Built to 1976 caused permanent fected by u/s quarry de- prised of effluent. Closed elief, rising on Magnesian industry; many spoil lips.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	578 652 763 770 924	80 90 106 107 128	170 172 272 280 347	54 55 87 90 111	0.34 0.34 0.54 0.56 0.69	3.7 2.3 3.3 4.2 9.7	19/12 31/08 10/04 09/03 06/11	0.18 0.19 0.24 0.22 0.24	18/08 16/08 20/09 12/09 12/09	0.5 0.5 0.9 1.0 1.4	0.29 0.30 0.46 0.44 0.45	0.20 0.22 0.26 0.24 0.26
028044 M.A: EA F.A.R: GE	P Local No: 4044 Level: 47m	oulter at C Si	uckney ens.: 19.4 F'	C.A: 32.2 km ² S/full: 228.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI:	6995	688		319		0.33	1.9	08/04 1979	0.08	29/07 1976	0.5	0.29	0.16
Comment: Crump pr the Poulter entered th water gardens further from WRW. # Catchm Subordinate outcrops	ofile weir 3.71m broad ne Bunter S'st outcrop r damp response. U/s ent of moderate relief of Permian Marl. Sor	d, modular t b. High base farm abstra draining from me urban de	o bankfull. Designe flow component, s action, Minimal mo m the scarp of the M avelopment and co	ed to measure the flow as ubdued hydrographs. U/s difications to flow regime fagnesian L'st eastwards. al mining spoil heaps.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	552 622 708 719 877	80 90 103 105 127	186 196 286 321 329	58 61 90 101 103	0.19 0.20 0.29 0.33 0.34	0.5 0.5 0.7 0.7 1.3	19/12 31/08 31/07 09/03 06/11	0.10 0.14 0.19 0.20 0.21	10/07 11/10 24/07 29/07 13/09	0.2 0.2 0.4 0.5 0.6	0.19 0.20 0.29 0.30 0.28	0.14 0.16 0.22 0.22 0.23
028036 M.A: EA F.A.R: SRGE	Pout Local No: 4036 Level: 17m	terat Twyf Si U	ord Bridge ens.: 13.2 E:	C.A: 128.2 km ² S/full: 17.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI:	6995	641		176		0.72	5.0	09/03 1975	0.04	23/07 1971	1.1	0.60	0.31
Comment: Original 4 regrading late 1981 nx oring to resume. Patc Minor augmentation response. # Catchmu underlain by Sherwo headwaters.	.88m wide Crump prof o solution. Single path thy record. Gauge sitk from sewage; inline t ent rises on Magnesi xod Sandstone. Pred	file weir suba US gauge a ed where Pe lakes in Clu ian Limesto lominantly	nerged from late 19 attached to wing wa pulter leaves Shen imber and Welbec ine with subordina rural; part of Bols	172 by mining subsidence; Ills in 1992 allowed monit- wood Sandstone outcrop. & Parks ensure sluggish nt Permian Marl; mainly sover and Shirebrook in	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	513 592 673 678 824	80 92 105 106 129	94 76 112	53 43 64	0.38 0.31 0.46	0.9 0.6 1.1d	21/12 25/12 14/07	0.05 0.10 0.09	28/07 09/08 10/09	0.6 0.4 0.6	0.40 0.32 0.43	0.10 0.15 0.25
028015 M.A: EA F.A.R: SRGE	Local No: 4015 Level: 4m	idle at Mat Si U	tersey ens.: E: .07	C.A: 529.0 km ² B/full: 15.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.920	6595	652		189		3.16	18.5	02/06 1983	0.46	06/08 1992	5.2	2.52	0.92
Comment: Originally gauge since 1982 in r telemetered to West catchment, moderate outcrop of Sherwood Predominantly rural, a	VA station prone to a each between two bri Stockwith PS, Slow n in headwaters. Trit Sandstone. Lower n arable farming; Mansi	severe seas dges and the esponse. Libutaries rise reaches un field in head	onat weed growth apezoidal flood bar pwest flows may b on Magnesian L denain by alluviun dwaters.	and unstable ratings; EM iks. Fully contained. Data e unreliable. # Low relief imestone, then traverse n and Mercia Mudstone.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	516 594 691 694 844	79 91 106 106 129	83 82 119 127 147	44 43 63 67 78	1.39 1.38 1.99 2.13 2.46	8.0 4.8 8.9 9.5 17.8	20/12 27/06 11/04 10/03 07/11	0.19 0.53 0.72 0.59 0.76	21/07 05/06 14/08 01/08 23/07	2.3 2.0 3.2 3.5 4.6	1.28 1.28 1.76 1.89 1.92	0.32 0.66 0.85 0.79 0.99
028049 M.A: EA	F • Local No: 4049	Ryton at W Si	orksop ens.:	C.A: 77.0 km² B/full: 30.0m³s ⁻¹	7095	654		191		0.47	15.7	01/08 1982	0.04	07/08 1976	1.0	0.29	0.08
Comment: Crump pr early non-modularity. Significant flow aug: # Catchment of mode Marl near gauge. Higi mixed farming, forest	ofile Flat V weir, 4.57 Modified stage disch mentation via gw pu erate relief on dip sloj h baseflow componen ry.	im at V-full, harge curve umping and pe of Magn It and subdi	in trapezoidal char produced for non- l WRW, and abs esian L'st outcrop; ued hydrographs. E	rel. D/s bridge provokes modularity at high flows. tractions for canal use. narrow band of Permian Extractive industries in W;	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	539 646 704 678 853	82 99 108 104 130	76 117 208 179 270	40 61 109 -94 141	0.19 0.29 0.51 0.44 0.66	5.4 2.7 4.6 3.4 10.4	20/12 24/02 02/06 09/03 07/11	0.04 0.07 0.11 0.08 0.10	1 8/08 04/10 23/09 14/09 12/09	0.3 0.6 1.0 0.8 1.6	0.12 0.19 0.38 0.33 0.34	0.05 0.09 0.13 0.10 0.14
028091 M.A: EA	Local No: 4091	Ryton at I S	Blyth ens.:	C:A: 231:0 km ²	8495	629		206		1.51	21:8	07/04 1987	0:15	05/08 1990	2.9	1.11	0:40
F.A.K: El Comment: EM station pumping station to c banks. Deep, slow, t flows by WRW and Magnesian Limestone Apart from Worksop,	Level: 8m n in a straight reach, c ontrol regime to the baseflow dominated f l abstraction. # Moo a; bulk underlain by Pe wholly rurai, mainly a	d/s of a gent tidal Trent. flow regime derate and ermian Mari arable farmi	E: Je bend. Data trans Extreme events (. Replaces 28016 low relief catchr and Sherwood Sa ng.	FAI: smitted to West Stockwith only would overtop flood . Moderate net effect on nent. Headwaters drain ndstone. Mainly drift free.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	513 618 694 678 829	82 98 110 108 132	120 153 224 230 320	58 74 109 112 155	0.87 1.12 1.64 1.69 2.33	14.7 7.6 11.4 10.6 22.9	20/12 31/08 09/04 09/03 07/11	0.20 0.45 0.48 0.61 0.81	21/08 04/06 19/08 31/07 11/09	1.3 1.8 2.8 2.8 4.4	0.75 0.96 1.36 1.41 1.58	0.32 0.57 0.60 0.73 0.93
028047 M.A: EA F.A.R: F	Olde Local No: 4047 Level: 11m	coates Dyk Si Li	e at Blyth ens.: 13.0 F: 07	C.A: 85.2 km ² .B/full: 14.9m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.959	70 9 5	634		246		0.66	43.3	02/05 1983	0.08	25/08 1976	1.1	0.46	0.24
Comment: Crump pri approach d/s of a roa weed growth. Low m augmentation of low f the Triassic s'st outo Marl s'sts. Rural cate	ofile Flat V weir set in to bridge. Wading gau todular limit but rarel flows from WRW. # M rop, mostly draining chment, arable farmin	1:2 sloping ugings taket y exceeds loderate rel Magnesian ng.	sidewalls (7.3 wide n u/s of bridge sho vee full. Base flow ief catchment, site L'st but includes i	e at vee full). Reasonable uld site back up owing to v dominated. Substantial d where the river crosses Coal Measures, Permian	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	522 637 718 691 842	82 100 113 109 133	158 189 281 277 392	64 77 114 113 159	0.43 0.51 0.76 0.75 1.06	12.1 8.0 11.2 5.6 28.2	19/12 17/08 09/04 06/03 06/11	0.17 0.23 0.31 0.31 0.35	20/07 - 16/08 20/08 29/07 24/08	0.6 0.8 1.2 1.2 1.8	0.37 0.42 0.60 0.62 0.68	0.19 0.28 0.35 0.37 0.38
028050 M.A: EA	Local No: 4050	Torne at A S	uckley ens.: 12.5	C.A: 135.5 km² B/full: 76.0m³s ⁻¹	7195	607		217		0.93	29.6	17/07 1973	0.16	06/09 1976	1.6	0.66	0.32
F.A.R: GE Comment: Crump pri removed. Affected by of drowning under re summer weed growth drainage. # R. Tome Trent/Humber ancien	Level: 2m ofile Flat V weir in trap subsidence in 1990s, view, High range uar h. Sluggish response rises on dip slope o t floodplain. Tidally di	U pezoidal cha , second we reliable from . Substantia of Magnesia rained. Con	E: annel, 8.9m wide a' Il installed d/s. Byp n backing up from al flow augmentation Il flow augmentation L'st and Sherwitains mine working	FAI: t V-full. Original cableway assing unlikely but extent artificial drainage and/or on from WRW and mine bod S'st but soon enters is and agriculture.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	491 604 649 644 782	81 100 107 106 129	118 155 205 216 283	54 71 94 100 130	0.51 0.67 0.88 0.93 1.21	6.8 6.0 5.8 7.4 10.5	20/12 18/08 18/01 17/04 07/11	0.17 0.24 0.29 0.28 0.32	02/08 10/06 28/07 27/07 16/08	0.8 1.1 1.5 1.5 2.5	0.43 0.57 0.73 0.76 0.75	0.21 0.29 0.36 0.39 0.37
054091 M.A: CEHW	Sev Local No: 113	ern at Hafr Si	en Flume ens.:	C.A: 3.6 km ²	76-95	2586		1980		0.23	22.3	15/08 1977	0.01	04/09 1976	0.5	0.13	0.03
F.A.R: Comment: Rectangu bave supercritical flo deposited d/s. Natura avaitable. # Upper th incised valleys with m Very wet (>2500mm) monitoring network.	Level: m Jlar, side contracted i w regimes. Drownin al, IH research catche ind has rounded, pe tature conifer plantation b. Rainfall, evaporation	on critical dept g may occ ment neste- at moorfani ons. Geolog n and soil m	E: <.01 h flume designed ur following big fli d within 54022. Pr d headwaters; low gy: Palaeozoic shal loisture estimates a	FAI: 1.000 to gauge streams which bods owing to sediment imary 15 minute dataset er two thirds has steep, les, grits and mudstones, also available from dense	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	2168 2295 3460 3199 3498	84 89 134 124 135	1650 1658 2699 2365 2850	83 84 136 119 144	0.19 0.19 0.31 0.27 0.33	6.0 4.3 7.3 6.7 5.8	31/10 09/12 27/10 28/02 29/10	0.03 0.03 0.04 0.03 0.04	17/08 22/04 30/05 31/07 30/07	0.4 0.4 0.7 0.6 0.8	0.11 0.11 0.18 0.14 0.20	0.03 0.04 0.06 0.04 0.06
054090 M.A: CEHW F.A.R:	Taniiw Local No: 111 Level: 357m	ryth at Tani Si Ui	l wyth Flume ens.: E: <,01	C.A: 0.9 km ² FAI: 1.000	7395	2535		2172		0.06	5.6	15/08 1977	>0.00	26/08 1984	0.2	0.03	0.01
Comment: Rectangu supercritical flow reg performance. Natural and very wet (2500m and grits: Rainfall, ev network.	lar, side contracted ch imes. U/s sediment catchment nested wit im). Mature coniferous aporation and soil me	tical depth f trap for sea hin 54022. I s plantation oisture estir	lume designed to g diment yield studie Primary 15 minute o s cover catchment, nates also availab	auge streams which have es assists in maintaining tataset available. # Steep Geology: Silurian shales le from dense monitoring	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	2120 2199 3333 3067 3359	84 87 131 121 133	1816 1900 3232 2796 3371	84 87 149 129 155	0.05 0.05 0.09 0.08 0.10	2.3 1.7 2.6 2.5 1.8	31/10 09/12 22/10 28/02 30/01	>0.00 0.01 0.01. 0.01 0.01	15/08 07/01 03/02 17/07 27/01	0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3	0.02 0.03 0.05 0.04 0.05	0.01 0.01 0.02 0.01 0.02

.

	Period	Rainfail (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (^{m³} a'')	Peak flow (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. dally flow (^{m*} e* ¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m's'')	95 Percentile (^{m3} ='')
054097 . Hore at Upper Hore flume C.A: 1.6 km² M.A: CEHW Local No: Sens.:	8595	2796		2089		0.11	3.9	25/10 1989	0.01	24/07 1989	0.2	0.05	0.01
F.A.R: N Level: m UE: FAI: Comment: Rectangular,side contracted critical depth flume designed to gauge streams which have supercritical flow regimes. Drowning may occur following big floods owing to sediment deposited d/s. Natural catchment nested within 54022. Researchers should note the availability of the primary 15 minute dataset. # The highest and southern lateral fringes of catchment are peat moortand. Remaining 70% has mature conferous forest planted in 1958 and 1960. Geology: Palaeozoic grits and shales. Very steep gradients, 2700 mm rain. Raintal, evaporation and soil moisture estimates also available from dense monitoring network.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	2334 2456 3673 3347 3660	83 88 131 120 131	1724 2955 2512	83 141 120	0.09 0.15 0.13	2.8 3.7 3.3	09/12 22/10 28/02	3.5 0.01 0.02 0.01	31/10 20/04 31/05 30/07	0.2 0.3 0.3	0.05 0.08 0.06	0.02 0.03 0.02
054092 Hore at Hore Flume C.A: 3.2 km² M.A: CEHW Local No: 115 Sens.: F.A.R: Level; m UE: <.01	73 <i>.</i> .95	2624		1961		0.20	8.5	28/10 1989	0.01	03/09 1976	0.5	0.10	0.02
Comment: Rectangular, side contracted critical depth flume designed to gauge streams which have supercritical flow regimes. Drowning may occur following big floods owing to sediment deposited d/s. Natural, IH research catchment nested within 54022. Primary 15 minute dataset available, # Highest and lateral fringes of catchment are peat moortand. The remaining 78% had mature conferous forest until 1985, when the lower two thirds was dear felled. Replanting has taken place. Geology: Palaeozcic grits, shales and mudstones. Very steep gradients, 2600mm rain. Rainfall, evaporation and soll moisture estimates also available from dense monitoring network.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	2213 2300 3483 3196 3496	84 88 133 122 133	1594 1630 2737 2333 2832	81 83 140 119 144	0.16 - 0.17 0.28 0.24 0.29	7.4 5.1 7.8 7.2 5.7	31/10 09/12 22/10 28/02 30/01	0.03 0.02 0.03 0.02 0.03	17/08 21/04 30/05 14/09 29/07	0.4 0.4 0.6 0.6 0.8	0.08 0.08 0.14 0.11 0.15	0.02 0.03 0.04 0.03 0.04
054022 . Severn at Plynlimon flume C.A: 8.7 km² M.A: CEHW Local No: 2103 Sens.: 19.0 St/tult: 43.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: N Level: 331m UE: <.01	5395	2473		1881		0.52	32.2	15/08 1977	0.01	06/05 1957	1.3	0.28	0.05
Comment: Since 1968, trapezoidal flume with side contractions, capacity 43 m ³ s ⁻¹ : U/s silt trap (installed Oct 1971) improved station performance but extreme low flows suspect. A compound sharp-edged weir, capacity 10 m ³ s ⁻¹ , with flanking broad crests provided poor quality data from 1953-58. Natural flow regime. IH (now CEH Wallingford) experimental catchment; 15 min. runoff totals available, also rainfall, evaporation and soil data from a dense monitoring network. # Very wet (2400mm), responsive catchment on Palaeozoic shales, grits and mudstones. 67% of catchment afforested up to 1985 when some clear felling took place. Forest slopes very steep, peat moorland hiltops.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	2157 2253 3411 3145 3442	87 91 138 127 139	1588 1615 2669 2356 2846	84 86 142 125 151	0.44 0.45 0.74 0.65 0.78	13.6 11.7 17.7 16.8 13.8	31/10 09/12 27/10 28/02 29/10	0.05 0.07 0.08 0.06 0.10	18/08 19/08 30/05 27/07 30/07	1.0 1.0 1.6 1.6 2.0	0.22 0.24 0.40 0.33 0.44	0.07 0.09 0.13 0.09 0.13
054025 Dulas at Rhos-y-pentref C.A: 52.7 km² M.A: EA Local No: 2025 Sens.: 22.5 B/fult: 133.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: N Level: 179m UE: <.01	6995	1300		846		1.41	38.5	18/10 1987	0.01	28/08 1995	3.7	0.73	0.04
Comment: Trapezoidal flume, 15.9m wide, with side contractions to 13.7m in critical section, between 1.5m wing walls. Structurefull discharge of 146 m ³ s ⁻¹ should contain most flows. Shoals of shale fragments u/s need annual clearing and also block intake pipes; 3 separate intakes increase chances of maintaining reliable stage recording throughout the range. Natural catchment, # A high relief, wet and responsive catchment on Silurian shales and slates with Boulder Clay on valley sides. Pasture, forest and moortand.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1144 1168 1637 1586 1747	88 90 126 122 134	779 729 1094 1057 1203	92 86 129 125 142	1.30 1.22 1.83 1.77 2.00	19.6 14.3 47.0 37.1 37.9	11/02 17/02 27/10 01/03 29/10	0.01 0.04 0.10 0.12 0.10	18/08 19/08 31/05 02/08 11/08	3.2 3.1 4.4 4.6 4.5	0.71 0.50 0.78 0.78 1.27	0.02 0.10 0.22 0.21 0.19
054081 Clywedog at Bryntail C.A: 49.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: 2109 Sens.: S//full: 47.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: SR Level: 212m UE: FAI:	7795	2004		1541		2.39	42.4	05/03 1985	0.01	24/05 1978	5.5	1.58	0.29
Comment: Flat V weir, 16m wide; 1:20 cross-slope, immediately below the reservoir. Installed for the purpose of measuring the compensation and regulation releases from Clywedog reservoir. Drawn down over winter months to flatten flood peaks. # Steep, wet catchment draining Ordovician and Silurian shales and slates. Substantially Drift free. Most tributaries afforested on valley sides.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1652 1691 2565 2452 2707	82 84 128 122 135	1144 2048 1799 2253	74 133 117 146	1.78 3.18 2.80 3.49	14.2 61.0 54.2 44.0	23/02 06/03 02/03 11/12	0.21 0.21 0.34 0.22	28/01 24/02 03/08 16/04	3.5 7.3 7.2 9.0	1.70 1.83 1.79 1.84	0.22 0.31 0.35 0.33
054014 Severn at Abermule C.A: 580.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: 2014 Sens.: 9.1 Bf/tull: 225.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: SRI Level: 83m UE: <.01	6295 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1269 1125 1130 1637 1598 1762	89 89 129 126 139	778 629 625 1141 981 1167	81 80 147 126 150	14.31 11.53 11.49 20.99 18.04 21.40	419.1 144.8 128.0 323.6 238.6 239.6	13/12 1964 12/02 19/02 27/10 01/03 29/10	0.41 1.12 1.60 1.61 0.45 1.39	20/09 1976 10/07 18/04 31/05 05/09 13/09	35.4 25.6 28.3 43.7 47.2 47.3	7.66 6.23 5.24 10.95 9.12 13.82	1.78 1.80 1.94 3.59 1.23 2.58
054003 Vyrnwy at Vyrnwy Reservoir C.A: 94.3 km² M.A: EA Local No: 2003 Sens:: EA P: SP Lowel: 226m UE: < 01	2095	1932		703		2.10	99.0	09/12 1965	0.01	19/07 1979	5.0	0.50	0.46
Comment: Rectangular notch, 24.4m long on the Vyrnwy River; stone cili overflow weirs on the rivers Cownwy and Marnant (whose flows are mostly diverted into the reservoir). Cownwy diversion has Flat V weir. Naturalised monthly record available from 1879, daily record from 1920. Direct supply to Liverpool. # Steep, very wet catchment draining Drift free, Silurian and Ordovician slates and shales.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1669 1786 2530 2349 2594	86 92 131 122 134	266 353 1084 979 1290	38 50 154 139 183	0.79 1.06 3.24 2.93 3.85	3.8 43.3 70.4 61.8 77.6	02/12 19/02 08/01 15/01 29/10	0.18 0.17 0.28 0.28 0.00	09/11 10/10 27/08 26/10 1 5/03	2.5 1.4 6.6 7.1 9.7	0.42 0.52 0.92 0.60 0.68	0.27 0.28 0.31 0.49 0.29
054038 Tanat at Llanyblodwel C.A: 229.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: 2038 Sens.: 10.7 F.A.R: EIN Level: 77m UE: <.01	7395	1225		889		6.45	123.1	01/01 1991	0.09	07/09 1976	15.4	3.89	0.48
Comment: From Feb 1992 Crump profile Flat V (1:20) weir, 12.4m wide, 0.72m high wing walls, replaced VA station with natural rock step control approx. 150m d/s of cableway. Gravel bed. Right bank floodplain approx. 50m wide, partially crossed by cableway. Sewage effluent has insignificant effect upon flow regime. # High relief headwaters and broad bottomed valleys of moderate slope with Boulder Clay and fluvial gravel. Solid geology: Ordovician slates and shales. Moorland, forestry, pasture.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1146 1212 1612 1567 1735	94 99 132 128 142	759 732 1154 1159 1373	85 82 130 130 154	5.50 5.32 8.38 8.41 9.95	57.5 62.4 100.7 82.2 152 .1	11/02 19/02 08/01 15/01 06/11	0.35 0.53 0.93 0.44 1.04	19/08 19/08 22/08 31/07 12/08	13.1 15.1 19.4 22.4 22.1	3.66 2.44 4.15 4.76 5.95	0.44 0.74 1.20 0.72 1.35
054028 Vyrnwy at Llanymynech C.A: 778.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: 2028 Sens.: 8.6 B/full: 160.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: SRPł Level: 62m UE: <.01	6 995	1332		839		20.71	409.3	06/08 1973	0.42	28/07 1984	48.7	11.66	2.03
Comment: Velocity-area station, 35m wide, in a substantially straight reach with natural sheal control. Out-of-bank flows gauged from a cableway extension over the floodplain. Whole record reprocessed 2002. Three major PWS abstractions in the catchment have a substantial effect on the flow regime, notably the export to Liverpool from L. Vyrmy, # Steep headwater streams and broad- bottorned valleys; storage in valley sands and gravels. Moorland, forestry and grazing.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1162 1233 1681 1644 1827	87 93 126 123 137	675 656 1138 1093 1340	80 78 136 130 160	16.60 16.19 28.08 26.97 32.97	175.2 191.3 375.4 308.9 451.4	12/02 17/02 27/10 15/01 30/10	1.49 1.96 4.25 2.51 3.89	22/09 19/08 20/08 18/07 12/08	37.5 40.6 61.7 65.4 69.5	10.97 8.21 14.30 13.88 18.83	2.11 3.11 5.33 3.06 4.80
054005 Seven at Montford C.A: 2025.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: 2005 , Sens.: 4.3 Byfull: 220.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: SRPE Level: 52m UE: <.01	5395	1174		660		42.37	467.2	05/12 1960	1.98	10/05 1954	106.9	24.16	5.61
Comment: VA station to 1994, when cross-path US installed to bankfull. Fully contained; since 1985 all floods can be gauged (earlier, to only). Very prone to weed growth; considerable variations recorded in summer S-D relations. High flows from US and gauging need reconciling. Low flows significantly affected by reservoir and PWS. Limited series of naturalised flows available. # High relief headwaters. Valleys are broad bottomed with moderate slope and feature Boulder Clay, floval gravel and extensive washlands which slow response. Outcrop solid geology Ordovician and Silurian shales, grits and mudstones. Moorland, forestry, grazing, low grade agriculture.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1011 1048 1439 1432 1583	86 89 123 122 135	876 834 1076	133 126 163	56.23 53.53 68.89	276.5d 333.8d 464.0d	28/10 03/03 31/10	7.83 5.14 8.08	01/06 06/09 13/08	148.5 148.0 158.5	31.44 25.40 45.00	10.03 6.16 9.98

				Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m³=¹)	Peak flow (^{m1} a ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min, daily flow (^{m3} e ⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentlle (^{m1} s ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (^{m1} s ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m³e ⁻¹)
954020 M.A: EA	Perry a	at Yeaton Sens : 13.1	C.A: 180.8 km² Ց#սվ։ 15 0m³s ^{~1}	6395	757		280		1.61	17.7	07/02 1990	0.16	25/08	3.4	1.06	0.42
F.A.R: GEI Comment: Crump prof. growth: may suffer from effect. Effluent returns i Millstone Grit and tra complicated by glacial s	Level: 61m le weir, 6m wide with (unu) silitation u/s. All floods co n catchment may have su iverses. Sherwood Sands sand and gravel; some ma	UE: <.01 sed) crest tapping. Channe ntained. Substantial gw ab bostantial effect at lowest fac tone and Mercia Mudsto rshlands with artificial drain	FAI: 0.965 is very prone to weed straction has indirect ows. # River rises on one, although much hage.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	651 687 869 973 1014	86 91 115 129 134	168 150 312 359 456	60 54 111 128 163	0.96 0.86 1.79 2.06 2.61	7.2 5.7 12.5 11.5 16.5	12/02 25/02 08/01 16/01 06/11	0.24 0.30 0.37 0.28 0.48	27/07 19/08 10/08 30/07 22/07	1.9 1.8 3.6 4.8 5.8	0.71 0.64 1.19 1.48 1.67	0.30 0.32 0.42 0.42 0.57
054018 M.A: EA	Rea Brook Local No: 2018	at Hookagate Sens.: 11.2	C.A: 178.0 km ² B/full: 24.5m ³ s ⁻¹	6295	751		305		1.72	38.5	09/12 1965	0.08	23/08 1976	4.1	0.90	0.24
F.A.K: N Comment: Model test sidewalts 7.3m apart. reasonable. All flows or from sewage at lowes Complex geology; sists and fluvio-glacial sand	Level: 55m ted trapezoidal flume and Lb inundated at high flow nutained by d/s road bridge t flows. # Broad, flat main and shales (Pre-Cambria and gravel, Moorland and	UE: <,01 d flanking broad-crested vs but velocities tow and . Substantially natural cato to channel flanked by stee n to Siturian) entirely cove low grade agriculture.	FAI: 1.000 weirs: within vertical rating extrapolation hment. Minor effects ply graded streams. wed by Boulder Clay	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	690 748 881 951 1059	92 100 117 127 -141	236 203 348 403 515	77 67 - 114 132 169	1.33 1.15 1.97 2.28 2.90	16.1 15.0 24.5 22,7 45.2	12/02 28/11 04/01 25/12 06/11	0.19 0.23 0.25 0.22 0.37	21/09 05/10 12/08 31/07 13/09	3.1 2.5 4.5 5.9 6.5	0.86 0.64 1.08 1.33 1.57	0.20 0.27 0.30 0.30 0.45
054044 M.A: EA F.A.R: GEL	Tern a Local No: 2044 Level: 62m	t Ternhill Sens.: 9.1 LIE: 01	C.A: 92.6 km ² S/fuil: 2.0m ³ s ⁻¹	7295	735		286		0.84	21.8	11/02 1977	0.26	26/08 1976	1.4	0.69	0.41
Comment: Rectangula flows. Not yet out of bar effluent from Market C # Agricultural, low relie Boutder Clay typifies th	r notch 4m wide by 0.43m nk. Significant ground and s mayton. Shares a records f catchment, high baseflow e right hand bank geology	deep with side contraction surface water abstractions i er hut with the adjacent is r from Bunter s'st and glac	s. Cableway for high in the catchment with Bailey Brook gauge, dal sand and gravel.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	598 734 863 955 1026	81 100 117 130 140	188 208 309 346 411	66 73 108 121 144	0.55 0.61 0.91 1.02 1.20	3.3 3.7 12.1 7.2 18.4	20/12 27/06 23/10 02/10 06/11	0.28 0.33 0.43 0.41 0.51	01/08 09/06 20/08 31/07 25/08	0.8 0.9 1.5 1.7 2.2	0.50 0.49 0.71 0.87 0.88	0.31 0.37 0.47 0.47 0.55
054052 M.A: EA F.A.R: GEN	Bailey Bro Local No: 2052 Level: 62m	ok at Temhili Sens.: 18.2 UE: <.01	C.A: 34.4 km ²	70 <i>.</i> .95	689		417		0.46	15.1	14/08 1971	0.04	09/07 1976	0.9	0.31	0.12
Comment: Rectangula crested weirs above not R. Tern, Confluence 10 instrumented for monito extensively overlain by	r notch, 1m wide, 0.63m d ch full. Stays in bank. Shar m d/s. Minimal flow augmen ring the Shropshire Ground Boulder Clay and glacial s	eep with side contractions, as a recorder hut with the g ntation from WRW, # Small, Iwater Scheme. Solid gook and and gravel. High base	which act as broad- auge on the adjacent low relief catchment ogy Triassic s'sts but flow, slow response.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	604 667 810 903 954	88 97 118 131 138	165 181 364 410 457	40 43 87 98 110	0.18 0.20 0.40 0.45 0.50	2.5 2.8 3.9 2.5 7.5	19/12 28/12 23/10 01/10 06/11	0.06 0.08 0.12 0.12 0.12	05/08 08/08 17/08 31/07 29/08	0.3 0.3 0.8 0.9 1.0	0.16 0.15 0.28 0.37 0.34	0.08 0.09 0.14 0.14 0.15
054041 M.A: EA	Tern at Ea Local No: 2041	ton On Tern Sens.; 9.3	C.A: 192.0 km ² B/full: 13.0m ³ s ⁻¹	7295	712		276		1.68	20.0	26/01 1990	0.34	02/07 1976	3.0	1.30	0.69
Comment: Two-bay C tapping, set into old m Groundwater Scheme # Agricultural, low relie intermittent Boulder Cla	Level: S4m rump profile weir with ide III sluices. U/s cableway. t network. Agricultural and f catchment. Outcrop Tria y and glacial sand and grav	ntical crest heights, 6m to Significant gw abstractions PWS abstractions balar ssic and Coal Measures s vel become dominant over t	FAI: 0.968 otal width, with crest s. Part of Shropshire toe effluent returns. 'sts near the gauge; the upper catchment.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	588 700 824 919 987	83 98 116 129 139	161 176 303 354 402	58 64 110 128 146	0.98 1.07 1.85 2.16 2.44	6.9 8.2 18.0 15.9 23.1	20/12 28/12 24/10 03/10 06/11	0.41 0.50 0.64 0.62 0.85	05/08 03/10 19/08 31/07 25/08	1.5 1.6 3.1 3.8 4.5	0.84 0.85 1.32 1.69 1.65	0.49 0.57 0.75 0.75 0.75
054087 M.A: EA F.A.R: GI	Allford Brook Local No: 2151	at Childs Ercall Sens.:	C.A: 4.7 km ²	7395	654		101		0.01	0.3	27/01 1990	0.00	01/01 1991	0.0	0.01	
Comment: 90 degree 1 section., Standard, and, abstraction point. # Agri	Vee notch with side contra tipping_bucket_raingauges cultural catchment on Sher	ctions set in an access ch adjacentClose.to.a.Shr wood sandstone and glacia	amber to a culverted opshire GW scheme Il sands and gravels.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	533 656 723 844 916	80 99 109 127 138	123 160 215	122 158 213	0.02 0.02 0.03	0.1 0.2 0.3	<i>08/01</i> 06/01 06/11	>0.00 >0.00 >0.00	08/08 24/07 19/08	0.0 0.0 0.1	0.01 >0.00 0.02	>0.00 0.01
054099 M.A: EA F.A.R: PG Comment: Rectangula brick lined channel. No affected by u/s PWS ab	Coley Broo Locai No: Levei: 69m r thin plate weir 1.9m wide n standard approach (shan stractions and spray irrigat	k at Coley Mill Sens.: UE: with concrete side contrac p bend u(s), Weir drowns on. High baseflow compon	C.A: 37.3 km ² FAI: ctions, set in existing at high flows. Flows ent.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	718 718 927 965		172 306 434 421		0.20 0.36 0.51 0.50	1.9 2.1 3.1 4.8	27/06 05/01 25/12 06/11	0.08 0.09 0.11 0.16	10/06 09/08 28/07 26/07	0.3 0.8 1.2 0.9	0.16 0.23 0.31 0.30	0.11 0.12 0.14 0.17
054040 M.A: EA	Meese a Local No: 2040	t Tibberton Sens.: 13.7	C.A: 167.8 km ²	7395	692		225		1.20	8.2	31/12 1981	0.18	27/08 1976	2.1	0.98	0.46
Comment: Crump pro affected by large PWS moderate effect. # Agri outcrop Sherwood Sand	Lever, som file weir, 6m wide, for thi gw abstractions; otherwise cultural, very low relief cal dstone; intermittent Boulde	 b) Shropshire Groundwatel b) Shropshire Groundwatel c) Spray imigation and canal c) Shroh Shropshire Groundwatel c) Shropshire Groundwatel	FAI; 0.935 r Scheme, Indirectly l impoundment have v component. Drains d gravel.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	560 709 747 895 958	81 102 108 129 138	130 143 205 253 298	58 64 91 112 132	0.69 0.76 1.09 1.35 1.58	2.7 3.3 4.3 4.4 9.6	20/12 28/06 05/01 28/01 06/11	0.23 0.30 0.42 0.45 0.58	05/08 09/06 13/08 28/07 23/07	1.1 1.1 2.0 2.1 2.8	0.65 0.65 0.87 1.25 1.16	0.29 0.41 0.49 0.58 0.67
054060 M.A: EA F.A.B: G	Potford Brook at Local No: 2060	Sandyford Bridge Sens.: 30.0	C.A: 25.0 km ²	7295	670		180		0,14	7.4	27/01 1990	0.02	11/07 1976	0.2	0.10	0.05
Comment: Prefabrical Groundwater investigati affected when the Sever on mixed geology: She	led Flat V Crump profile on. Repositioned 1987 to a m augmentation is in opera rwood S'st, Boulder Clay a	 weir, initially installed void backing up. Low flows tion. Unresponsive catchmi nd glacial sands and grave 	for the Shropshire is may be significantly ent. # Flat catchment el.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	560 652 745 840 911	84 97 111 125 136	94 76 148 176 264	52 42 82 98 147	0.07 0.06 0.12 0.14 0.21	0.6 -0.6 1.0 0.9 8.3	12/02 28/12 08/01 01/10 05/11	0.03 0.03 0.05 0.05 0.07	20/09 09/06 19/08 31/07 25/08	0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3	0.07 0.05 0.09 0.12 0.13	0.03 0.03 0.05 0.06 0.07
054094 M.A: EA F.A.R: GEL	Strine at (Local No: 2170	Crudgington Sens.:	C.A: 134.0 km ²	8295	662		165		0.70	8.4	07/02 1990	0.12	23/07 1995	1.3	0.46	0.19
Comment: Electromag channel. Very low veloc Early record not availabl catchment draining Wea Newport in headwaters.	Level. III energy using a bubbl ities experienced. Replace e. Substantial modification ald Moors. Geology: Sherw Includes part of Telford.	d poor weed-affected open to flow regime from WRW d bod S'st overlain by various	rnen, in trapezoidal channel site in 1981. ischarges. # Very flat superficial deposits.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	537 683 692 877 924	81 103 105 132 140	97 143 190 240	59 87 115 145	0.41 0.61 0.81 1.02	3.1 4.6 4.4 6.2	29/11 04/01 24/12 07/12	0.13 0.21 0.22 0.32	09/06 18/07 12/07 24/08	0.68 1.1 1.6 2.1	0.30 0.46 0.63 0.70	0.19 0.24 0.27 0.35
054016 M.A: EA E.A.R: GI	Roden at Local No: 2016 Level: 48m	Rodington Sens.: 7.5	C.A: 259.0 km ² B/full: 18.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6195	684		238		1.96	30.6	02/07 1968	0.18	26/08 1976	4.3	1.24	0.43
Comment: Model test sidewalls 7.3m apart. T effect of general gwiab irrigation. Shropshire Gi rural catchment of sub through to Llassic ag	eed trapezoidal flume and apping to measure tailwai istractions and returns insi N scheme affects (augmen dued relief, underlain by a blanketed extensively by E	I flanking broad-crested vi er levels. Channel prone i gnificant; minor seasonal i (s) low flows when in opera sandstones, marts and cla loutder Clay and morainic:	weirs within vertical weirs within vertical to weed growth. Net influence from spray tion. # Unresponsive tion. # Unresponsive tion of Carboniferous sand and gravel.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	587 639 772 889 942	86 93 113 130 138	126 124 260 311 390	53 52 109 131 164	1.03 1.02 2.13 2.55 3.20	7.5 8.4 14.9 16.7 22.2	29/12 29/12 05/01 03/10 06/11	0.18 0.37 0.37 0.31 0.60	22/07 03/10 19/08 31/07 30/08	1.9 1.9 4.8 - 5.4 6.9	0.79 0.76 1.40 1.84 1.83	0.25 0.40 0.45 0.42 0.65

.

•

,

					Perlod	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m's'')	Peak flow (m'a'')	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (^{m3} e ⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m³+'')	50 Percentile (m's'')	B5 Percentile (m'a'')
054012 MA: EA	Local No: 2012	Tem a	t Walcot Sens.: 2.8	C.A: 852.0 km ² B/tut: 26.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6095	702		256		6.90	60.0	28/01 1990	0,94	26/08 1976	13.3	5.01	2.33
Comment: Initially rat weed growth leading flushing crest tapping low or zero flows. Ray Wellington and Newp nantly agricultural, low	Levez 43m ted section (1959-76 to unstable S-D rela chamber. Bypass ch gional gw pumping I ort; abstractions for v relief catchment. M	i), then (tion; nor annel: ca ior PWS spray in lixed gla	DE: 02 pabion control (1976-19 w Flat V weir 15m wid in be drained to enable and Severn regulation igation. Net result only cial geology overlying	PAR 0.900 978), both very prone to e. Automatic system for work on weir, producing I. Industrial effluent from y moderate. # Predomi- Triassic series.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	571 675 759 890 947	81 96 108 127 135	148 166 278 342 357	58 65 109 134 139	3.99 4.48 7.52 9.25 9.62	28.1 27.0 42.6 47.9 35.7	20/12 29/12 05/01 03/10 07/11	1.38 1.80 2.25 2.08 3.21	27/07 09/06 13/08 31/07 13/09	6.5 7.4 15.5 19.6 19.4	3.38 3.35 5.00 6.89 6.58	1.57 2.19 2.62 2.69 3.37
054095 M.A: EA F.A.R: SRPGEI	S Local No: 2134 Level: 36m	ievern a	t Buildwas Sens.: UE:	C.A: 3717.0 km² B/full: 285.0m³s ⁻¹ FAI:	8495	959		501		59.01	520.8	02/06 1992	8.97	14/10 1989	154.0	32.13	11.48
Comment: Multiple U Substantial modificati Groundwater Scheme forestry in wet headwa and east - where Drift	IS cross-configuratio ons of lowest flows contensise artificial aters (Palaeozoic for cover can be subst	n gaugin by Clyw effects mations) antial.	ig station. Fully contain edog and Vymwy Re: modest. # Diverse ca), mixed farming and si	ned by Buildwas Bridge, servoirs and Shropshire trchment: moorland and ome towns in drier north	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	822 883 1145 1189 1304	86 92 119 124 136	371 641 646 794	74 128 129 158	43.72 75.53 76.11 93.27	214.1 450.2 365.7 638.9	27/02 29/10 04/03 01/11	11.76 11.42 10.49 13.77	05/10 21/08 12/07 13/08	104.8 187.5 200.9 207.4	24.87 42.77 44.17 62.48	13.00 15.45 12.01 16.39
054046 M.A: EA F.A.R: Gi	Local No: 2046 Level: 60m	Worfe a	t Cosford Sens.: 47.5 UE:	C.A: 54.9 km ² B/full: 3.5m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI:	7595	704		110		0.19	9.6	10/01 1986	>0.00	25/06 1992	0.4	0.12	• 0.04
Comment: Originally substantial leakage, r abstractions. Affected tions for PWS (Cosing draining Sherwood S' Shifnal, Albighton and	a rectangular weir ebuilt in 1990: weir by Stropshire Grou Stream), and irriga st; intermittent Bouk l east of Madety.	, 3.05m 4m wide ndwater tion. # F der Clay	wide, with side cont e. Station installed to Scheme. Substantial i redominantly agricultu and glacial sand and	ractions. Suffered from monitor affects of PWS impact from gw abstrac- ral, low relief catchment I gravel cover. Contains	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	562 722 750 947 961	80 103 107 135 137	44 42 100 165 228	40 38 91 150 207	0.08 0.07 0.17 0.29 0.40	0.4 1.4 1.8 2.6 7.4	19/12 26/06 10/04 25/12 06/11	0.01 0.00 0.02 0.04 0.07	20/07 04/06 13/08 27/07 25/08	0.1 0.1 0.4 0.6 0.8	0.06 0.04 0.11 0.21 0.23	0.02 0.01 0.03 0.06 0.09
054024 M.A: EA F.A.R: PGEI	Local No: 2024 Level: 33m	Worfe a	t Burcote Sens.: 13.5 UE: .03	C.A: 258.0 km² B/full: 16.0m³s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.954	6995	687 E		143		1.17	16.1	25/05 1969	0.05	14/08 1976	2.1	0.89	0.33
Comment: Crump p Substantial impact fin abstraction for PWS draining Triassic sand restricted to 4 small to	rofile weir, 5.5m w om groundwater at and spray imgetiou istones; intermittent wms and some villag	ride, wit ostraction n. # Pre Boulder ges.	h crest tapping. Flow is for PWS, industry dominantly agricultura Clay and glacial sand a	vs generally contained. and irrigation; surface al, low relief catchment and gravel cover. Urban	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	545 699 730 917 941	79 102 106 133 137	84 80 135 191 241	59 56 94 134 169	0.69 0.65 1.10 1.56 1.97	3.3 5.4 5.8 7.4 18.8	09/01 28/06 05/01 26/12 06/11	0.17 0.13 0.22 0.32 0.51	21/07 05/06 11/08 31/07 20/07	1.2 1.1 2.1 2.9 3.9	0.61 0.49 0.84 1.29 1.27	0.23 0.23 0.32 0.47 0.56
054034 M.A: EA	Dowles Bro Local No: 2034	ook at C	ak Cottage, Dowles Sens.: 33.3	C.A: 40.8 km ² S/full: 10.0m ³ s ⁻¹ Fai: 0.000	7195	732		297		0.38	21.6	10/06 1993	0.01	23/08 1976	1.0	0.16	0.03
Comment: Flat V Cru banks on a 36m wide f dubious quality. No sig catchment is substant age. The river bisects	Interven. 2411 Imp profile weir 6m v loodplain should con mificant abstractions tially Drift free, situa the Wyre Forest; all	vide, with tain mos or return ted on s l but the	to 2. <.01 a a cableway to allow to t flows but bypassing do s but regime affected b andstones and marks headwaters are affore	FAI. 0.999 high flow gauging. Flood oes occur - high range of y sluice operation. # The of Upper Carboniferous sted.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	626 721 801 914 966	86 98 109 125 132	211 208 295 383 458	71 70 99 129 154	0.27 0.27 0.38 0.50 0.59	6.2 8.8 8.2 11.3 18.5	08/01 26/06 08/01 15/01 07/12	0.02 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.02	05/08 16/08 31/08 30/07 12/09	0.6 0.6 1.0 1.2 1.6	0.12 0.09 0.15 0.25 0.20	0.03 0.03 0.02 0.04 0.03
054001 M.A: EA F.A.R: SRPGEL	5 Local No: 2001 Level: 17m	levern s	t Bewdley Sens.: 3.3	C.A: 4325.0 km ² B/full: 420.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.975	2195	919		449		61.61	637.1d	21/03 1947	5.99	04/09 1976	148.5	36.97	10.79
Comment: 20-path US 1972. Stage monitorir 1921-68. Pre-1968 r generation; minimum Shropshire g/w. Natur g/w support. Some ear 50% from impermeabl Carboniferous to Liass	S gauge. VA station in going site relocated in ecords of modest flow maintained by alised flow series, for liter records adjusted e Palaeozoic rocks a sic sandstones and r	with rock 1950 an precisio releases om 1968 for Vyrn and river marls. M	control prior to 1989. P d 1968; lowest flows r n. Significant exports is from Clywedog and only, accommodates r wy (1966-7). # Diverse gravels; drier northern porland, forestry, mixed	teak flows available from reprocessed in 1976 for for PWS and power Vyrnwy Reservoirs and major usages other than catchment; wet westem 50% from Drift covered d farming.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	789 860 1088 1154 1256	86 94 118 126 137	314 301 530 550 683	70 67 118 122 152	42.92 41.29 72.66 75.40 93.44	228.0 207.2 412.0 338.0 551.7	12/02 26/02 30/10 18/01 02/11	8.16 9.69 11,21 9.46 13,68	17/07 12/08 21/08 11/07 12/08	93.6 99.0 172.3 193.2 205.4	30.85 22.05 41.65 46.23 63.91	9.48 10.43 13.89 10.71 16.14
054063 M.A: EA	Stour Local No: 2063	at Presi	wood Hospital Sens.:	C.A: 89.9 km ²	7295	725		399		1.14	41.2	14/06 1977	0.36	18/08 1975	1.9	0.88	0.56
Comment: Original se weir, 11m wide, 1:20 c bypassed on lb behind Brook tributary more r	condary velocity-are cross slopes, wing w the hut, Gw for PW9 ural; can give rise to	ea statio alls at 0. S signific respons	n replaced in 1995 with 9m in a good reach. C antly augments low flor sive hydrographs.	n a Flat V Crump profile ontained on rb, possibly ws as effluent. Smestow	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	585 708 826 923 944	81 98 114 127 130	335 397 437 425	84 99 110 107	0.95 1.13 1.24 1.21	38.6 27.9 50.5 38.8	26/06 25/12 08/08 05/11	0.45 0.45 0.23 0.28	01/06 09/08 13/11 28/06	1,5 2,0 2,1 2,5	0.64 0.81 0.79 0.69	0.48 0.49 0.49 0.33
054006 M.A: ÉA F. A .R: FL	Stour at Ca Local No: 2167 Level: 30m	allows L	ane, Kidderminster Sens.: 6.2	C.A: 324.0 km² B/full: 40.0m³s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.986	5395	706		275		2.82	81.6	27/03 1955	0.55	25/08 1976	4.7	2.30	1.29
Comment: Original V- out-of-bank flows estir PWS and industry lear relief, 20% urbanised. but a faulted trough of gravel.	A station in formalise nated. US gauge at ds to substantial aug Higher ground on fla I Sherwood Sandsto	d trapezo a new s imentatio nks of m ne is the	vicial channel; variable, ite operational from Ju on from sewage and in ver drain marts and s'st major feature. Some	weed affected low flows; I 1990. Gw pumping for dustrial effluents. # Low {Upper Coal Measures} Boulder Clay and valley	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	563 687 784 920 925	80 97 111 130 131	207 244 314 312	75 89 114 113	2.13 2.51 3.22 3.19	19.0 16.2 18.4 22.0	27/06 25/12 02/10 08/12	1.04 0.96 1.18 1.03	03/06 13/08 31/07 12/09	3.6 4.5 5.7 6.0	1.63 1.91 2.52 2.24	1.15 1.08 1.36 1.12
054096 M.A: EA E.A.D: RDC	Hadley Local No: 2193	Brook a	t Wards Bridge Sens.:	C.A: 53.4 km ²	9095	656		241		0.41	13.7	17/01 1995	0.04	29/06 1992	0.7	0.18	0.07
Comment: Crump pro Reasonably responsiv compensation flows fro # Low to moderate reli S'st outcrops. Wholly it	file Flat V (1:10) wei re; out of structure om a compensation t ief catchment princip rural with mixed fam	r set in k flows co corehole ally on f ning.	ow 0.5m vertical wingw wid be gauged from a as substantial gw abstr Aercia Mudstone; Head	valls. Straight approach. an u/s bridge. Monitors action in the catchment. dwaters have Sherwood	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	537 648 733 840 904	82 99 112 128 138	128 108 272 368 536	53 45 113 153 222	0.22 0.18 0.46 0.62 0.91	4.1 7.5 11.8 11.4 14.6	09/02 28/11 26/12 25/12 07/1 2	0.05 0.06 0.06 0.07 0.10	18/09 04/08 11/08 31/07 07/09	0.4 0.3 0.7 0.9 2.3	0.14 0.11 0.20 0.27 0.28	0.07 0.06 0.08 0.10 0.11
054011 M.A. EA F. A .R: CEU	Sah Local No: 2011 Lavel: 10m	varpe st	Harford Hill Sens.: 12.9	C.A: 184.0 km ² B/full: 34.0m ³ s ⁻¹ Fal: 0 992	6195	674		227		1.32	105.6	14/01 1968	0.16	24/08 1976	2.4	0.93	0.40
Comment: Original V/ weir, 7m wide, cross cableway. Fully contai flows of variable qualit from sewage; spray im draining Clent and Lic inant geology: Mercia	A station with bed of slopes 1:20, wing w ned. VA station very y, Gauged to bankfu igation abstraction s key hills. Contains E Mudstone in lower m	stone bi valls at 1 prone to ull only, (easonall bromsgro eaches.	ocks replaced in 1992 0.7m in reasonably st 0 weed growth, summe Gw for PWS leads to s y significant. # Genera wee and Droitwich. Virti Mainly agriculturat.	by Flat V Crump profile raight reach. Additional r corrections made: low significant augmentation illy low relief catchment, ually Drift free, predom-	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	549 655 758 867 927	81 97 112 129 138	142 117 224 288 342	63 52 99 127 151	0.83 0.68 1.31 1.68 1.99	6.6 9.2 18.0 19.8 27.2	09/02 28/11 09/04 02/06 07/12	0.31 0.29 0.35 0.39 0.47	18/09 10/08 12/08 28/07 25/08	1.4 1.2 2.4 3.2 4,1	0.62 0.47 0.85 1.04 1.15	0.34 0.32 0.40 0.49 0.55

				Perlod	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	Peak flow (m³s⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (m ³ s ⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m³s⁻¹)	50 Percentile {m³s⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m³s-1)
054008 M.A: EA	Teme at Local No: 2008	Tenbury Sens.: 6.4	C.A: 1134.4 km ² B/full: 200.0m ³ s ⁻¹	5695	856		397		14.29	266.5	04/12 1960	0.65	27/08 1976	34.5	8.34	1.52
F.A.R: EN Comment: Velocity-ar from year to year. Ran bank characterised by mainly Palaeozoic sed free; some valley graw	Level: 48m ea station with gravel control. ely out of bank. Adjustments high relief hills and broad val iments with Pre-Cambrian on el and Boutder Clay in the low	UE: <.01 U/s shoaling may render lo small and dispersed; natur leys. Steep and narrow on stalline rocks of the Longn ver reaches. Forestry, graz	FAI: 0.995 w flow rating variable al catchment. # Left right bank. Geology: nynd. Relatively Drift ing.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	761 802 984 1058 1141	89 94 115 124 133	309 274 507 568 664	78 69 128 143 167	11.10 9.87 18.24 20.44 23.63	97.4 86.9 149.7 149.3 212.0	12/02 29/11 28/10 25/12 30/10	1.19 1.67 1.91 2.03 2.01	12/10 05/10 31/08 31/07 13/09	24.5 23.5 50.0 50.8 57.9	7.21 4.88 9.55 12.33 12.36	1.24 1,96 2.32 2.48 2.51
054029 M.A: EA	Teme at Knig Local No: 2029	htsford Bridge Sens.: 20.2	C.A: 1480.0 km ² B/full: 190.0m ³ s ⁻¹	7095	828		366		17.19	284.6	28/12 1979	0.72	27/08 1976	40.5	9.47	1.95
F.A.R: N Comment: Velocity-a: banks contain higher returns insignificant N	Level: 21m rea station, Gravel control a flows, Cableway for full rang atural catchment, Construction	UE: <.01 flected by weed growth at ge calibration. PWS abstra on of a Elat V: mission data	FAI: 0.995 low flows. Training actions and sewage Nov and Dec 1998	1996 1997 1998	738 792 951	89 96	298 248	81 68	13.93 11.64	133.7 117.9	09/01 29/11	1.08 1.51	13/10 06/10	29.9 26.2	9.20 6.06	1.15 1.99
# Left bank: high relie Palaeozoic sediments some valley gravel an	af hills and broad valleys. R with Pre-Cambrian crystallin d Boulder Clay in lower reac	ight bank: steep and nam e rocks of the Longmynd. hes. Moorland,forestry, gra	ow. Geology mainly Relatively drift free; azing.	1999 2000	1031 1115	125 135	509 604	139 165	23.90 28.26	151.1 158.9	25/12 08/12	2.61 2.65	31/07 13/09	55.1 70.1	14.32 14.78	3.18 3.42
054032 M.A: EA	Severn at S Local No: 2032	Sens.; 10.2	C.A: 6850.0 km ² B/full: 340.0m ³ s ⁻¹	7095	863		395		85.89	505.4	11/02 1977	7.20	23/08 1976	216.9	53.24	15.11
F.A.R: SRPGET Comment: Originally Multipath US gauge fr significant bypassing Tewkesbury. Substant the R. Stour and Word agriculture and forestr	Level: 3m velocity-area station betwe om 1987. High flows mostly at the highest flows. Affecte ial modifications to flow owin ester). # Very large diverse o y, with subordinate industrial	OE: 02 en abutments of demolis contained by embankmer d by high tides and tidal g g to PWS exports, and eff activent, broad flood pea development in the east.	FAI: 0.982 hed railway bridge. Its to the bridge but gates on R. Avon at luent returns (chiefly iks. Land use mainly	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	741 818 1009 1086 1174	86 95 117 126 136	294 277 477 507 579	74 70 121 128 147	63.75 60.24 103.72 110.12 125.32	356.5 306.7 427.1 387.7 503.8d	13/02 29/11 31/10 17/01 13/12	11.59 13.32 15.42 13.36 18.54	17/07 06/10 22/08 24/07 13/09	139.1 149.6 263.5 284.1 283.1	47.80 33.75 61.43 69.35 86.70	13.45 15.16 20.85 16.77 22.00
054019 M.A: EA	Avon at Local No: 2019 Level: 55m	Stareton Sens.: 14.5	C.A: 347.0 km² B/full: 33.5m³s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.954	6295	667		231		2.54	71.4	11/07 1968	0.15	17/08 1976	5.8	1.33	0.47
Comment: Crump pro Highest floods overtop sewage outfall diverte Moderate influence fro contains Rugby. Wide argillaceous rock of Liz	file weir, 7.3m wide with cress oright bank and follow old riv ad through station. Augmen mabstractions and returns. # covering of superficial deposit as and Keuper Mart.	t tapping. Current metering er channel. Early record to tation by gw pumping an Predominantly agricultural, is on higher ground. Geolog	from footbridge u/s. 1971 had Coventry d surface transfers. low relief catchment, gy in lower reaches is	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	495 655 751 776 847	74 98 113 116 127	122 126 278 287 358	53 55 120 124 155	1.34 1.39 3.06 3.16 3.92	12.2 14.5 84.2 37.3 56.4	13/02 30/11 10/04 16/01 06/11	0.38 0.35 0.39 0.45 0.48	19/07 12/08 10/08 01/08 12/08	2.5 2.8 7.1 7.8 9.9	0.84 0.62 1.36 1,79 2.11	0.43 0.45 0.49 0.55 0.56
054004 M.A. EA	Sowe at a Local No: 2004	Stoneleigh Sens.: 5.3	C.A: 262.0 km ² B/full: 55.0m ³ s ⁻¹	5295	682		362		3.01	54.7	30/12 1961	0.51	30/07 1961	5.4	2.11	1.09
F.A.R: GEI Comment: Up to 1976 measured discharge. F profile weir with crest Coventry result in low 1 half on outcrop Coal M sand and gravel.	Level: 55m) two humped invert flumes, to ating dubious when overflow tapping. Prone to weed grow flows dominated by sewage e easures; E half Mercia Muds	UE: .13 otal width 7.16m, and an ov weir in operation. Since 19 th. Gw pumping, bulk impt ffluent. # Substantially urba tone Group overlain by Bou	FAI: 0.982 verflow weir at 1.45m 79 compound Crump orts and proximity to anised catchment. W Ilder Clay and glacial	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	498 628 778 794 856	73 92 114 116 126	276 274 437 451 517	76 76 121 125 143	2.28 2.27 3.63 3.75 4.28	16.4 23.1 45.5 58.1 47.6	20/08 08/10 10/04 08/08 30/10	1.26 1.13 1.34 1.39 1.43	18/08 17/08 22/09 31/07 12/08	3.6 3.8 6.6 7.0 9.3	1.83 1.68 2.40 2.62 2.72	1.37 1.28 1.50 1.46 1.55
054050 M.A: EA	Leam at Local No: 2050	Eathorpe Sens.:	C.A: 300.0 km ² B/full: 6.5m ³ s ⁻¹	87-95	649		140		1.33	60.9	26/09 1992	0.09	24/09 1994	3.0	0.46	0.25
Comment: Side-contr reach. Exceeds bankf regime dominated by t - abstraction and supp in the lower catchmen has abundant glacial :	acted central low flow flume ull but not bypassed. Flashy he operation of Draycote Res ort. Important flow forecasting t is overlain by river terraces, sands and gravels. Wholly ru	bL. a, flanked by broad crester response. Rated by mode ervoir via the Eathorpe inta g site. # Low relief catchme otherwise Lower Lias class rail apart from south Rugb	d weirs in a straight el test and c/m. Flow ike approx. 100m u/s int. Mercia Mudstone s and silts. The north y. Mixed farming.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	468 616 762 778 819	72 95 117 120 126	46 66 206 240 268	33 47 147 171 191	0.44 0.62 1.96 2.28 2.54	7.3 10.4 116.2 33.4 40.6	12/02 29/11 09/04 24/12 30/10	0.17 0.18 0.20 0.23 0.22	25/12 10/03 31/08 26/07 24/08	0.6 1.2 4.4 5.2 6.5	0.29 0.30 0.65 0.94 0.96	0.22 0.22 0.22 0.31 0.29
054049 M.A: EA E.A.R: SRPGE	Learn at Prin Local No: 2049 Level: 46m	ces Drive Welr Sens.: 16.1	C.A: 362.0 km ²	79.,95	664		189		2.17	53.5	30/12 1981	0.05	11/07 1984	4.9	0.98	0.29
Comment: Up to 197 crested weir. Record p has led to improved da measure releases fro substantial modificatio low relief, substantial underlain by Liassic ar	y rectangular thin-plate weir poor, high flows unreliable. Si ta. Station very important for r m Draycote pumped storage of flow regime. Some natura y Drift free. Lower fifth of c gillites.	A.7m wide, set in a 32.9m nce 1979 compound rectar nonitoring PWS abstraction reservoir; imports of wat lised data from 1989. #Agri atchment drains Mercia M	wide curved, broad- ngular thin-plate weir son the Leam and to er and gw pumping; cultural catchment of Idstn; the remainder	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	466 613 762 780 824	70 92 115 117 124	56 64 248 259 292	30 34 131 137 154	0.64 0.73 2.84 2.97 3.34	12.7 13.5 217.1 36.8 40.8	13/02 29/11 10/04 25/12 31/10	0.22 0.19 0.22 0.23 0.23	02/09 07/10 28/02 26/07 30/08	0.7 1.7 6.3 7.4 8.3	0.35 0.32 0.94 1.47 1.60	0.25 0.23 0.31 0.37 0.38
054048 M.A: EA	Dene at W Local No: 2048	ellesbourne Sens.:	C.A: 102.0 km ² B/full: 27.0m ³ s ⁻¹	7695	641		193		0.62	31.7	27/12 1979	0.03	11/08 1976	1.5	0.28	0.06
r.A.R. El Comment: Flat V C contained. Moderate dominantly agricultura argillaceous rocks of t	Level: 4111 rump profile weir, 7.97m wi influence from effluent disc t catchment draining Edge Hi the Liassic series are at outc	de; cross-stope 1:20, lar harges and seasonal spr II. Some Boulder Clay to th rop.	r Al. ge d/s fall, all flows ay irrigation. # Pre ae east, but generally	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	435 566 726 773 776	68 88 113 121 121	78 57 214 247 295	40 30 111 128 153	0.25 0.19 0.69 0.80 0.95	3.6 3.3 47.3 23.2 24.5	09/01 28/11 09/04 24/12 30/10	0.04 0.04 0.05 0.06 0.07	16/09 28/07 21/09 26/07 06/09	0.5 0.4 1.3 2.0 2.3	0.12 0.09 0.30 0.43 0.46	0.05 0.05 0.07 0.09 0.10
054007 M.A: EA	Arrow : Local No: 2104	at Broom Sens.: 10.4	C.A: 319.0 km ² B/futl: 29.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.964	5795	. 700		273		2.76	90.8	30/12 1981	0.22	21/08 1976	5.4	1.63	0.75
Comment: Up to 1976 in 1976 with a Crump significantly augments predominantly agricult eastern headwaters. F	frated section; not rated above profile weir, 12m wide with low flow through effluent retur ural catchment upon Mercia N Responsive; sewage effluent i	e bankfull when extensive i a higher flow capacity. G ns. Contains Redditch and ludstone, with small glacial naintains low flows.	inundation. Replaced w pumping for PWS Alcester. # Low relief, gravel deposits in the	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	514 668 818 857 909	73 95 117 122 130	166 170 349 363 438	61 62 128 133 160	1.68 1.72 3.53 3.67 4.42	18.5 45.0 1 38.6 78.0 85.6	12/02 28/11 09/04 16/01 30/10	0.72 0.67 0.91 0.85 0.94	18/09 11/08 12/08 30/07 11/08	2.6 2.8 6.2 7.9 9.8	1.29 1.08 1.79 2.17 2.15	0.76 0.75 1.00 0.98 1.08
054023 M.A. EA F.A.R: PFI	Badsey Broc Local No: 2023 Level: 24m	k at Offenham Sens.: 10.0 UE: .03	C.A: 95.8 km ² \$/tufl: 12.0m ³ s ⁻¹ `FAI; 0.992	6895	660		207		0.63	14.0	22/12 1995	0.02	27/08 1976	1.5	0.28	0.07
Comment: Original In in 1995 by Flat V Cr Cableway. Flood bank PWS from beadwater result moderate, signi headwaters. Drift free	apezoidal flume replaced (str ump profile (1:10) weir 5m is contain all but highest flows springs; river abstractions fo ificant at low flows. # River , mostly Liassic argitlaceous	ucture detenioration and w wide, wing walls at 0.7m but inundation u/s. Earlier r horticulture. Sewage wor rises from springs on Cot rocks, Agriculture and hor	eedgrowth problems) in straightened cut. record under review. ks short way u/s. Net swolds Scarp; steep ticutture dominate.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	453 605 742 818 833	69 92 112 124 126	109 79 278 378 370	53 38 134 183 179	0.33 0.24 0.85 1.15 1.12	4.8 2.7 41.7 22.2 14.6	09/02 29/11 09/04 24/12 30/10	0.05 0.04 0.09 0.09 0.12	22/07 16/08 12/08 29/07 12/09	0.7 0.5 1.5 2.7 2.9	0.16 0.14 0.36 0.51 0.54	0.07 0.07 0.11 0.13 0.15

				Period	Rainfall (mm)	A of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (^{m*a*1})	Peak flow (m's'')	Oate of peak	Min. daily flow (m*s**)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m³e ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m*e**)	95 Percentile (^{m1} e ⁻¹)
054002 M.A: EA	A Local No: 2002	von at Evesham Sens.: 15.0	C.A: 2210.0 km² B/ful: 125.0m³s ⁻¹	3695	665		219		15.38	371.0	11/07 1968	1. 2 7	04/10 1959	34.6	8.34	2.94
F.A.R: SPGEI Comment: VA station site where all flows or lock d/s. Coarse early from abstractions and exclusively. Contains	Level: 20m . Recording site, contr ontained. Gauge site low flow record owing returns. # Large catc many large towns, bu	UE: .04 rol and gauging site are widel can measure out-of-bank flo to crude rating. Extensive m hment of low relief, draining a t chief land use is agriculture	FAI: 0.977 y separated; recording at ws. Navigation control at octification to flow regime argillaceous rocks almost h.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	474 625 760 1 794 1 840 1	71 94 14 19 26	134 127 295 321 378	61 58 135 147 173	9.37 8.88 20.65 22.48 26.41	74.9 85.5 427.0 175.2 200.7	12/02 29/11 10/04 25/12 30/10	3.82 3.57 4.28 4.66 4.79	22/09 11/08 13/08 31/07 13/09	17.1 17.9 42.9 50.3 62.4	6.16 5.30 10.32 14.09 14.85	4.00 4.01 4.52 5.28 5.37
054036 M.A: EA	Isbourne Locai No: 2036	at Hinton on the Green Sens.: 33.0	C.A: 90.7 km ² B/full: 11.0m ³ s ⁻¹ Fai: 0.991	7295	698		218		0.63	31.4	13/11 1974	0.00	25/08 1976	1.4	0.33	0.08
Comment: Crump pi Cableway for high flo PWS from headwater lowest flows. # Steep the catchment drains I gauge in flood forecas	Level. 2011 notile weir, 4.5m wide ws. Commonly excee r springs; spray imiga headwaters; rise from Lias clays. Agriculture sting system.	be	sed trapezoidal channel. Id. Insensitive low flows. Id. Insensitive low flow flows. Id. Insensitive low flow flow flow flow flow flow flow	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	506 656 765 1 892 1 926 1	72 94 10 28 33	134 111 267 333 378	61 51 122 153 173	0.38 0.32 0.77 0.96 1.09	9.3 3.9 38.0 22.9 21.3	12/04 28/11 09/04 24/12 30/10	0.05 0.09 0.12 0.17 0.16	22/07 31/05 22/08 31/07 12/09	0.8 0.7 1.5 2.0 2.3	0.18 0.17 0.46 0.65 0.62	0.07 0.10 0.13 0.19 0.20
054015 M.A: EA	Bow Br Local No: 2015 Local: 13m	ook at Besford Bridge Sens.: 22.0	C.A: 156.0 km² 8/fu8: 19.0m³s ⁻¹ FAI:	6995	648		206		1.02	57.3	13/01 1993	0.00	09/08 1976	2.4	0.39	0.10
Comment: Prefabrica 0.67m, replaced full measurement. Cables flows. Problems with bridge and the R Avor recorded flood (3.3m, draining Mercia Muds	ted Flat V Crump pro- width (2.44m) recta way retained. Importat weedgrowth and silit a. Signif. abstractions (09/04/96) likely overest tone in headwaters and	Re weir, 4.01m wide, 1:10 cr ngular thin plate weir, thu nt gauge for monitoring ab ation. Extensive floodplain g for spray irrigation plus seway torismated. # Low lying, agricult nd Lias clays otherwise. Fairl	oss slopes, wing walls at is improving flood flow straction licences at low lus backing up from d/s e augmentation. Highest ural catchment. Drift free, y responsive catchment.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	504 633 720 1 827 1 852 1	78 98 11 28 31	133 114 468 536 374	65 55 227 260 182	0.66 0.56 2.31 2.65 1.84	15.9 25.1 357.9 97.5 58.4	09/01 29/11 09/04 16/01 30/10	0.06 0.05 0.09 0.09 0.11	24/07 17/08 30/08 27/07 13/09	1.3 0.9 4.0 7.1 5.4	0.27 0.18 0.42 0.75 0.72	0.08 0.08 0.10 0.13 0.13
054089 M.A: EA	Local No: 2128	Avon at Bredon Sens.:	C.A: 2674.0 km ²	8895	653		200		16.95	144.6	01/12 1992	1.60	28/08 1995	42.7	8.84	3.04
E.A.R: SPGEI Comment: Ultrasonic in 1988 by multipath reassessed. Data pro- very high flows use catchment of low relie but chief land use is a	Level: 9m single path instrumen o cross path US in duced valid to bankful 54002. Extensive flow f, draining angilfaceous gniculture.	UE: t installed in 1979, unsuccess broad reach. US has unde t; river inundates hams on lb v modification by abstractio s rocks almost exclusively. Cl	FAI: ful experiment. Replaced in remeasured, data being extensively in flood. For ns and returns. # Large ontains many large towns	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	475 624 752 1 800 1 841 1	73 96 15 23 29	101 221 266	51 111 133	8.53 18.75 22.52	101.7 125.0 127.3	29/11 09/04 16/01	2.24 3.21 3.82	13/08 21/08 31/07	16.3 47.4 53.1	5.00 10.70 13.77	2.92 3.90 4.34
054057 M.A: EA F.A.R: SRPGEI Comment: Velocity-a Tidally affected; subst u/s Deerhurst US n modification to flow or Avon and Thames). Welsh headwaters, P from the Avon catchm	Sev Local No: 2057 Level: 6m rea station at a road antial bed movement. scord (installed 12:1 wing to PWS exports t Very large, diverse of ermo-Triassic sedime- ient.	em at Haw Bridge Sens.: 4.4 UE: .03 bridge (B4213). Difficult site Both restrict accuracy. Likely 995) when satisfactory me and effluent returns (chiefly catchment, lowest on the Se nts in middle reaches and Ju	C.A: 9895.0 km ² B/full: 460.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.977 but includes Avon flow, to be combined with the thod found. Substantial to the Stour, Worcester, vern. Paleozoic slates in urassic and Llassic clays	7195 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	793 662 757 931 1 996 1 1073 1	83 95 17 26 35	334 243 225 433 454 547	73 67 130 136 164	104.70 76.05 70.75 135.83 142.54 171.11	677.2 416.1 405.7 562.4 513.4 872.6	03/02 1990 13/02 30/11 11/04 27/12 14/12	8.70 15.57 16.22 20.38 16.31 22.53	23/08 1976 17/07 10/08 19/08 27/07 12/08	249.3 158.5 170.4 378.4 364.3 403.5	56.82 56.12 39.56 73.79 96.51 106.73	19.31 17.66 19.08 25.15 21.64 27.44
054017 M.A: EA	Leadon Local No: 2017	at Wedderburn Bridge Sens.: 10.6	C.A: 293.0 km ² B/futl: 14.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6295	698		211		1.96	48.4	10/02 1977	0.07	17/08 1976	4.5	0.97	0.30
F.A.R: GEN Comment: Trapezoid includes drowned con Weed growth may ca pumping, spray irriga agricultural catchment Triassic age, some F reaches.	Level: 9m - : al flume flanked by bro ditions; when the Sev ause drowning. Cable tion may become sig . Virtually Drift free; he alaeozoic mixed sed	UE: .01 ad-crested weirs within vertic ern is high backing up occur way for high flows. Minima nificant at Q95. Mostly natu eadwaters and middles reach iments to the north, Mercia	FAI: 0.995 al sidewalls. Model rating s as flap valves operate. I augmentation from gw ral regime. # Low relief, es s'sts of Devonian and Mudstone in the lower	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	585 682 5 778 1 850 1 977 1	81 98 11 22 40	161 105 233 309 424	76 50 110 146 201	1.49 0.98 2.17 2.87 3.92	19.1 13.2 37.4 25.2 29.9	09/01 28/11 09/04 16/01 07/12	0.28 0.27 0.30 0.28 0.37	23/07 22/07 22/09 31/07 12/09	3.2 2.1 5.1 7.6 12.5	0.56 0.50 1.07 1.44 1.42	0.31 0.31 0.33 0.37 0.42
054027 M.A: EA	Fro Local No: 2027	ome at Ebley Mill Sens.: 8.3	C.A: 198.0 km² B/full: 18.0m³s ^{∼1}	6995	850		394		2.47	19.4	30/05 1979	0.26	25/08 1976	4.7	1.98	0.75
Comment: Velocity-a River inundates widel industrial abstractions Scarp of Oolitic L'st ar clays. The station is in	rea station on a curve y at gauging section. and significant sewa id Lias s'st. Valley bott n Stroud.	ed reach. Control is a compa Substantial headwater abstr ge outfall. # Steep headwat oms are considerably urbanis	PAL 0.551 burd broad-crested weir, actions for PWS; further ters drain the Cotswolds and underlain by Llas	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	676 788 967 1 1074 12 1198 14	80 93 14 26 41	298 266 456 552 653	76 68 116 140 166	1.87 1.67 2.86 3.47 4.09	4.9 5.6 10.6 14.3 19.9	12/01 25/12 07/01 23/12 29/10	0.65 0.73 0.83 1.30 1.08	16/10 19/08 23/09 14/09 12/09	3.3 2.7 4.9 6.1 7.9	1.63 1.49 2.65 3.14 3.22	0.73 0.86 0.96 1.50 1.21
054098 M.A: EA	Ca Local No:	im at Cambridge Sens.:	C.A: 29.3 km ²													
r.A.K: 1 Comment: Flat V we accretion u/s. Owned 06 - 08/07/98 - gaug Sharpness Canal. Uni	Level: 11m ir, 6m wide with 2.29! and built by British Wa ge house rebuilding. responsive flow regime	UE: 5m wing walls and integral a 5terways but operated by EA Cam acts as important fer e. # Drains Cotswold escarp	FAI: ccess bridge. Subject to since 1992. No dmfs 17/ eder for Gloucester and ment.	1996 1997 1998 - 1999 2000	959 1063 1116		640 733		0.59 0.68	10.1 18.2	23/12 29/10	0.18 0.18	14/09 12/09	1.0 1.2	0.46 0.50	0.23 0.20

Map 6: ANGLIAN



Gauging Station Register

Station number	River name	Station name		Grid reference	Catchment area (eq km)	Station type	Parlod of record	Mean ann. rainfail (mm)	Mean ann. runoff (กก.)	Mean ann. losa (mm)	Max. ann. runoff (mm)	Year of max.	Min. ann, runoñ (mm)	Year of min.	Mann flow (''a'm)	Min. mon. flow (^{m3} n ¹¹)	Month/Year of min	Median san. Rood (^{m1} s ⁻¹)	Base Flow Index	10 Percentile (m'e ⁻⁺)	95 Percentile (m's**)
029009 029004 029005 029001 029003 029002 030004 030017 030015 030005	Ancholme Ancholme Rase Wathe Beck Lud Great Eau Lymn Witham Cringle Brook Witham	Toft Newton Bishopbridge Bishopbridge Bishopbridge Claythorpe Mill Partney Mill Colsterworth Stoke Rochford Saltersford total	TF TF TA TF F SK SK SK	033877 032911 032512 253016 337679 416793 402676 925297 927335	27.2 54.7 66.6 108.3 55.2 77.4 61.6 51.3 50.5 126.1	FV3 CFL CV3 CF FPB	197400 1968-99 197100 196000 196200 196200 196200 1976-00 1976-00 196800	611 616 641 693 697 688 689 665 692 660	160 347 211 88 255 276 253 147 184 200	451 269 430 605 442 412 436 518 508 460	293 642 419 173 402 387 386 216 274 293	50 98 69 69 79 69 79 79 00	51 93 82 23 123 115 63 85 59	96 75 91 91 91 76 91 91 96 76	0.14 0.60 0.45 0.30 0.45 0.68 0.50 0.24 0.29 0.80	0.00 >0.03 0.02 0.09 0.18 0.08 0.01 0.03 0.05	10/90 09/70 08/76 09/91 10/96 08/76 08/91 08/94 10/90 08/76	2.0 6.2 7.3 2.0 2.9 4.1 7.1 5.6 1.7 7.8	.52 .53 .85 .89 .65 .50 .89 .78	0.4 1.4 1.0 0.7 0.9 1.2 0.9 0.5 0.6 1.7	>0.00 0.02 0.06 0.12 0.28 0.14 0.02 0.07 0.12
030018 030001 030033 030013 030002 030002 030002 030011 030003 030006 030014	Honington Bk Witham Brant Heigh ton Bk Stainfield Bk Barlings Eau Bain Bain Bain Slea Pointon Lode	Honington Claypole Mill Brant Broughton Heighington Stainfield Langworth Br Gouldeby Bridge Fulsby Lock Leasingham Mill Pointon	SK SK SK FF FF FF FF FF FF	936433 842480 929545 042696 127739 066766 246795 241611 088485 128313	22.3 297.9 65.8 21.2 37.4 210.1 62.5 197.1 48.4 11.9	FV B FV C C FV A B TP C	198300 1959-00 199000 197600 197600 196000 1971-00 196200 197400 197200	593 624 585 610 631 616 690 666 617 601	173 190 104 187 202 200 172 201 346 193	420 434 481 423 429 416 518 465 271 408	 332 315 147 308 349 435 304 326 636 315 	00 99 80 79 80 80 80 80	78 63 36 79 51 65 51 62 1 42	89 76 92 89 91 91 91 76 76	0.12 1.80 0.22 0.13 0.24 1.33 0.34 1.26 0.53 0.07	0.01 0.06 >0.00 0.01 >0.00 0.01 0.04 0.02 0.00 0.00	08/96 07/76 08/91 08/76 08/91 08/76 09/96 07/76 10/96 09/96	14.7 10.2 20.3 2.5 18.1 1.9 2.5	.67 .68 .35 .75 .46 .45 .74 .58 .89 .49	0.3 3.9 0.7 0.3 0.6 3.3 0.7 2.9 1.5 0.2	0.02 0.35 0.01 0.02 0.01 0.04 0.06 0.10 >0.00
031022 031017 - 031021 031001 031007 031020 - 031010 031025 031026 031028	Jordan Stonton Brk Welland Eye Brook Welland Morcott Brk Chater Gwash S Arm Egleton Brk Gwash	Mkt Harborough Weiham Rd Br Ashley Eye Brook Res Barrowden South Luffenham Fosters Bridge Manton Egleton Church Bridge	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	740867 759918 819915 853941 948999 939018 961030 875051 878073 951082	20.8 42.7 250.7 60.1 411.6 19.6 68.9 24.5 2.5 76.5	C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	197000 197085 197000 193799 196800 197085 196800 197800 197800 197800	660 649 661 656 659 632 668 699 686 669	127 100 161 120 169 148 238 247 240 71	533 549 500 536 490 484 430 452 446 598	256 131 317 320 281 262 379 355 416 107	96 72 00 87 79 74 77 00 00 86	138 114 79 12 76 97 91 95 88 47	75 96 44 96 73 96 96 96 00	0.08 0.14 1.28 0.23 2.20 0.09 0.52 0.19 0.02 0.17	0.00 0.09 >0.00 0.09 0.01 0.02 >0.00 0.00 0.07	08/95 07/76 08/95 11/40 07/72 07/76 07/76 08/95 09/83	29.6 9.3 11.1 0.8	.36 .52 .40 .44 .55 .52 .28 .34 .79	0.3 0.6 3.4 0.6 4.6 0.3 1.2 0.5 0.0	>0.00 0.01 0.13 0.03 0.22 0.01 0.07 0.01 0.08
031016 031006 031004 031023 031024 031009 031013 031008 031027 031002	North Brook Gwash Weiland West Glen Holywell Brk West Glen East Glen East Glen Bourne Eau Glen	Empingham Belimesthorpe Tallington Easton Wood Holywell Shillingthorpe Irmham Manthorpe Bourne Kates Bridge	SK TF SK TF FF FF FF FF	957089 038097 095078 965258 026148 074113 038273 068160 107199 106149	36.5 150.0 717.4 4.4 22.3 173.0 71.5 136.2 10.6 341.9	C CB+2C FV C C FV FV FV FV FV+FL	196900 196700 196700 1972-00 197100 197000 196900 196800 198183 196000	636 645 653 654 620 622 618 595 629	206 160 174 165 170 53 53 69 443 109	430 485 479 489 450 567 569 549 152 520	335 300 296 251 293 117 121 194 485 215	79 69 00 79 00 79 80 87 79	99 72 57 14 23 22 22 485 14	73 76 73 76 73 73 96 87 76	0.24 0.76 3.95 0.02 0.12 0.29 0.12 0.30 0.15 1.18	0.03 0.20 0.14 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.03 0.03	07/76 09/76 10/95 08/00 11/76 11/90 08/76 08/00 10/85 07/76	12.5 41.4 1.9 18.7	.92 .83 .52 .14 .91 .68 .34 .28 .73 .60	0.5 1.4 9.2 0.1 0.2 0.8 0.3 0.6 0.3 2.9	0.07 0.29 0.57 0.02 0.02
032008 032029 * 032031 032006 032012 032007 032019 032023 * 032004 032003	Nene/Kistingb' Flore Wootton Brk Nene/Kistingb' Wootton Brk Nene/Brampt' Siade Brook Grendon Brk Ise Brook Harpers Brk	Dodford Experimental Wootton Park Upton Lady Bridge St Andrews Kettering Ryehoimes Br Harrowden Mill Old Mill Bridge	ያ ው ው ው ው ው ው ው ው ው ው ው ው ው ው ው ው ው ው ው	627607 655604 726577 721592 736571 747617 873763 883633 898715 983799	107.0 73.8 223.0 53.3 232.8 58.3 47.5 194.0 74.3	C FL FV FL+C C FV C FV C C C	194500 197379 198200 1939.00 196800 193900 197000 197085 194300	672 606 635 670 641 664 656 605 648 637	183 198 131 192 165 263 67 220 177	489 408 504 478 476 509 393 538 428 460	311 171 96 320 374 315 445 102 380 318	00 74 91 79 98 41 98 74 60 - 00	76 144 53 77 93 57 179 74 69 67	76 78 97 44 97 76 97 72 44 44	0.62 0.04 0.31 1.36 0.28 1.14 0.49 0.10 1.35 0.42	0.05 0.00 0.03 0.13 0.01 0.04 0.04 0.00 0.09 0.05	09/49 08/76 08/95 08/44 08/76 08/44 08/95 09/71 08/95 08/44	10.0 2.5 14.5 18.2 15.0 7.8	.57 .48 .60 .42 .58 .60 .57 .54 .49	1.4 0.1 2.8 1.0 2.4 1.3 0.4 3.0 0.9	0.12 0.04 0.26 0.04 0.22 0.06 0.19 0.07
032002 032020 * 032001 * 033005 * 0330357 033030 * 033058 033058 033015 033037	Willow Brook Wittering Brk Nene Bedford Ouse Tove Ouzel Clipstone Brk Ouzel Ouzel Bedford Ouse	Folheringhay Wansford Orton Thomborough Cappenham Br Leighton Buz'rd Clipstone Bletchiey Willen Newport Pagnell	Т. Т. Т. S.	067933 089995 166972 736353 714488 917241 933255 883322 882408 877443	89.6 46.9 1634.3 388.5 138.1 119.0 40.2 215.0 277.1 800.0	FL C MIS CB C C C FV FV CC+C	193800 1970-85 193996 1951-91 196200 197600 195780 197800 196200 1969-00	619 576 626 658 682 659 640 673 658 665	275 151 179 206 241 209 184 276 231 185	344 425 447 452 441 450 456 397 427 480	437 229 312 448 360 288 339 407 350 324	79 79 51 79 79 79 79 00 79 79	85 86 54 72 103 71 36 98 86 51	44 73 44 76 97 73 97 73 97	0.78 0.22 9.28 2.54 1.06 0.79 0.23 1.88 2.03 4.69	0.09 0.03 0.48 0.04 0.09 0.14 0.01 0.41 0.19 0.17	08/44 07/76 08/44 08/76 07/76 08/76 09/73 08/97 08/76 08/76	5.5 22.0 15.9 7.6 9.2 22.7 16.1 63.9	.73 .85 .51 .54 .68 .41 .44 .55 .47	1.3 0.4 24.2 6.1 2.3 1.5 0.5 3.8 4.5 11.7	0.25 0.09 1.12 0.24 0.19 0.21 0.02 0.48 0.47 0.41
033009 • 033002 033039 033065 033033 033028 033022 033012 033026 033020	Bedford Ouse Bedford Ouse Hiz Hiz Fit Ivel Kym Bedford Ouse Alconbury B	Harrold Mil) Bedford Roxton Hitchin Arlesey Sheflord Blunham Meagre Farm Offord Brampton	\$P1111111111111	951565 055495 160535 185290 190379 143393 153509 155631 216669 208717	1320.0 1460.0 1660.0 11.9 108.0 119.6 541.3 137.5 2570.0 201.5	CB MIS FV CC FL CB MIS MIS	195593 1933-00 1972-00 198099 1973-00 1966-00 195900 1960-00 196300	659 655 646 635 618 617 594 610 624 594	226 223 217 90 194 222 172 143 169 122	433 432 429 545 424 395 422 467 455 472	381 408 342 159 265 325 253 240 271 274	60 37 00 83 94 00 79 77 79 00	82 52 76 101 111 69 24 43 17	76 34 73 97 73 97 73 76 73	9.46 10.32 11.40 0.03 0.67 0.84 2.96 0.62 13.77 0.78	0.51 0.04 0.34 >0.00 0.23 0.18 0.56 >0.00 0.69 >0.00	09/59 08/34 08/76 09/97 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76	85.9 82.4 96.2 3.5 5.9 21.2 16.5 13.1	.53 .58 .86 .85 .73 .73 .26 .49 .29	22.7 26.8 27.8 0.1 1.1 5.3 1.4 33.3 2.1	1.55 1.01 1.97 0.01 0.34 0.34 1.04 2.00 0.01
033001 • 033035 033040 033068 033067 033064 033062 033061 033021 033051	Bedford Ouse Ely Ouse Rhee Cheney Water Rhee Whaddon Brk Guilden Brk Shep Rhee Cam	Brownshill St'nch Deriver Complex Ashwell Gatley End Wimpole Whaddon Fowlmere Fowlmere Fowlmere One Burnt Mill Chesterford	ኪ ፑ ኪ. ኪ ኪ ኪ ኪ ኪ ኪ ኪ ኪ ኪ	369727 588010 267401 296411 333485 359466 403457 402460 415523 505426	3030.0 3430.0 2.0 5.0 119.1 16.0 3.4 3.4 303.0 141.0	MIS FL FL FL C C B	193662 195800 196500 198299 1965-00 198000 196400 196400 196400	616 587 592 578 584 566 554 574 609	151 111 957 101 133 166 519 566 121 131	465 476 491 445 418 47 453 478	332 236 1585 177 250 235 1002 900 206 215	37 69 79 88 79 00 79 00 79 00	56 13 345 13 18 108 148 186 29 40	44 96 97 97 97 97 97 97 97	14.49 12,10 0.06 0.02 0.50 0.08 0.06 1.17 0.59	0.79 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.04 >0.00 0.01 0.08 0.14	09/49 11/00 03/97 12/99 08/76 08/98 09/97 08/97 08/97 08/97	5.1 9.2 8.1	.40 .48 .98 .97 .64 .90 .97 .91 .74	35.5 30.2 0.1 0.0 1.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 2.4 1.1	0.99 0.02 0.06 0.04 0.02 0.02 0.25 0.17

Station number	River name	Station name		Grid reference	Catchment area (sq km)	Station type	Period of record	Mean ann. rainfail (mm)	Mean ann. runoff (mm)	Mean ann. Ioss (^{mm)}	Max. ann. runoff (mm)	Year of max.	Min. ann. runoff (^{mm})	Year of min.	Mean flow (m ^a = ')	Min. mon. flow (m³s¹¹)	Month/Year of min.	Median ann. flood (m³s ¹)	 Base Flow Index 	10 Percentile {m³*-1)	95 Percentile (m³s - 1)
033024 033066 033055 033053 033016 033003 033056 033052 033067 033050	Carn Granta Granta Carnta Cam Cuy Water Swaffham New River Snail	Demford Linton Babraham Stapieford Jesus Lock Bottisham Lode Swaffham B1beck Burwell Fordham	ππππππππ	466506 570464 510504 471515 450593 508657 531627 553628 608696 631703	198.0 59.8 98.7 114.0 761.5 803.0 76.4 36.4 19.6 60.6	TP CC FV MIS MIS MIS C C FV	194900 198100 196300 194900 195983 193687 196500 196300 198200	597 615 601 586 582 591 569 566 586 586 589	149 94 73 61 118 143 77 133 399 153	448 521 528 525 464 448 492 433 187 436	240 198 160 156 184 325 163 222 1146 236	79 87 87 79 51 88 69 99 83	42 7 5 2 38 42 8 29 171 69	97 91 97 73 73 65 97 97 97	0.94 0.18 0.23 0.22 2.86 3.64 0.19 0.15 0.25 0.29	0.14 0.00 >0.00 0.34 0.60 0.02 0.02 0.09 0.07	09/97 12/91 10/76 11/97 09/64 08/57 10/72 08/76 10/96 08/92	8.2 4.0 0.3 1.8	.77 .46 .55 .57 .64 .65 .78 .91 .95 .88	1.6 0.4 0.5 6.5 7.0 0.5 0.3 0.4 0.5	0.29 0.01 0.01 0.81 0.89 0.01 0.04 0.09 0.10
033014 033023 033004 033046 033048 033045 033044 033019 033063 033011	Lark Lea Brook Lark Thet Larling Brook Wittle Thet Thet Little Ouse Little Ouse	Temple Beck Bridge Isleham Red Bridge Stonebridge Quidenham Bridgham Melford Bridge Knettishall Euston		758730 662733 648760 996923 928907 027878 957855 880830 955807 892801	272.0 101.8 466.2 145.3 21.4 28.3 277.8 316.0 101.0 128.7	CB C MIS C FL CB C MIS CB	196000 1962-00 193688 1967-00 196999 1967-00 1967-00 1962.00 1962.00 1980-00 194800	613 570 609 629 629 624 639 625 617 595	145 74 122 194 81 147 180 185 140 101	468 496 487 445 548 477 459 440 477 494	233 153 260 311 181 265 283 295 227 194	69 51 00 88 69 87 87 87	60 7 41 81 25 47 82 88 53 30	97 91 73 97 73 73 73 97 97	1.25 0.24 1.80 0.89 0.05 0.13 1.59 1.85 0.45 0.41	0.26 >0.00 0.13 0.07 >0.00 >0.00 0.21 0.16 0.06 >0.00	09/91 10/91 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/90 08/49	8.4 2.7 7.7 0.3 1.2 7.9 7.2 4.3 3.1	.78 .71 .65 .62 .80 .65 .75 .78 .70 .74	2.2 0.6 3.3 2.0 0.1 0.3 3.4 3.7 0.9 0.8	0.48 0.02 0.44 0.14 0.01 0.39 0.49 0.12 0.08
033013 033008 033034 033049 033006 033029 033007 033025 033054 033032	Sepiston ' Little Ouse Little Ouse ' Stanford Wtr Wissey Stringside Nar Babingly Babingley Heacham	Rectory Bridge Thetford Staunch Abbey Heath Buckenham Tofts Northwold Whitebridge Marham W Newton Mill Castle Rising Heacham	TL TL TL TL TT TT TT TT TT TT TT TT TT	896791 860832 851844 834953 771965 716006 723119 696256 680252 685375	205.9 699.0 688.5 274.5 98.8 153.3 39.6 47.7 59.0	TP MIS C B FL FL FL FL FV C	1949,.00 1958-68 1968.00 1973-60 1955.00 1955.00 195300 196376 1976-00 196500	603 602 615 633 658 638 638 686 671 681 687	103 136 169 191 204 154 235 288 319 110	500 466 446 442 454 484 451 383 362 577	182 179 260 270 317 253 342 401 443 183	60 69 75 69 66 58 66 81 94	22 92 77 124 88 36 96 143 134 30	91 64 96 73 91 91 91 91 91	0.67 3.01 3.69 0.26 1.77 0.48 1.14 0.36 0.48 0.21	0.01 0.39 0.62 0.08 0.26 0.01 0.21 0.11 0.10 0.02	10/91 09/64 08/76 09/91 08/95 09/91 09/73 10/91 12/91	5.3 17.9 0.7 6.9 2.7 3.5 1.0 0.4	.65 .73 .80 .89 .82 .85 .91 .92 .94 .96	1.4 6.1 7,1 0.5 3.4 1,1 2.1 0.6 0.8 0.4	0.09 0.66 1.09 0.11 0.45 0.04 0.41 0.16 0.16 0.05
034012 034018 034003 034019 034008 034011 034004 034004 034005 034001	Burn Stiffkey Bure Ant Wensum Wensum Tud Yare	Bumham Overy Warham All Sts Ingworth Horstead Mill Honing Lock Fakenham Swanton Mortey Costessey Mill Costessey Park Colney	TF TG TG TG TG TG TG TG	842428 944414 192296 267194 331270 919294 020184 177128 170113 182082	80.0 87.8 164.7 313.0 49.3 161.9 397.8 570.9 73.2 231.8	CC FV MIS C MIS CC MIS FL MIS	196600 197200 195900 197400 196600 196700 196999 196000 196100 195900	678 672 680 667 656 703 679 684 668 658	121 184 210 217 198 169 208 220 146 190	557 488 470 450 458 534 471 464 522 468	203 487 285 278 264 297 318 236 303	69 75 69 87 69 87 69 69 69	38 70 144 160 144 79 109 105 76 93	91 91 91 91 91 91 91 91 91	0.31 0.51 1.10 2.15 0.31 0.87 2.62 3.98 0.34 1.39	0.06 0.05 0.47 0.09 0.15 0.52 0.52 0.52 0.04 0.19	09/91 08/91 08/91 01/97 05/96 09/91 08/91 08/91 08/90	0.6 3.0 5.6 1.1 4.1 19.8 3.0 10.8	.95 .79 .83 .76 .87 .83 .75 .74 .65 .66	0.5 0.9 1.7 3.2 0.4 1.6 4.9 7.2 0.7 3.1	0.09 0.10 0.56 0.78 0.16 0.27 0.91 1.27 0.08 0.32
034002 034010 034007 034006 034013 035013 035003 035004 035002 035014 *	Tas Waveney Dove Waveney Biyth Alde Ore Deben Mill River	Shotesham Billingford Br Oakley Park Needharn Mill Eilingham Mill Holton Farnham Beversham Br Naunton Hall Newbourn	тм тм тм тм тм тм тм	226994 168782 174772 229811 364917 406769 360601 359583 322534 270420	146.5 149.4 133.9 370.0 670.0 92.9 63.9 54.9 163.1 27,1	FV MIS CC US CC US CC MIS	195700 196800 196300 197296 197000 196100 196500 196400 194869	623 606 589 600 580 597 603 612 600 603	156 155 155 150 27 133 138 172 143 176	467 451 434 450 553 464 465 440 457 427	280 281 291 287 38 237 260 299 274 230	69 87 87 75 00 87 87 61	60 41 49 46 7 41 40 65 39 142	73 73 73 96 73 73 73 73 50	0.72 0.73 0.66 1.75 0.57 0.39 0.28 0.30 0.74 0.15	0.11 0.04 0.13 0.24 0.10 0.04 0.03 0.05 0.04 0.10	07/86 07/76 07/90 07/90 10/96 08/90 08/90 07/76 08/49	7.8 12.6 12.5 23.0 7.9 5.6 0.5	.60 .45 .47 .83 .36 .37 .46 .35 .92	1.6 1.7 1.4 4.1 0.8 0.8 0.6 1.7 0.2	0.17 0.07 0.14 0.30 0.12 0.06 0.04 0.07 0.09 0.11
035008 035010 035001 * 036012 036011 036010 036008 036002 036004 036007	Gipping Gipping Sipping Stour Stour Brook Bumpstead B Stour Glem Chad Brook Belchamp Brk	Stowmarket Bramford Constantine Wr Kedington Sturmer Broad Green Westmill Glemsford Long Melford Bardfield Bridge	TM TM TL TL TL TL TL	058578 127465 154441 708450 696441 689418 827463 846472 868459 848459 848421	128.9 298.0 310.8 76.2 34.5 28.3 224.5 87.3 47.4 58.6	CC MIS ÉW EW FL FL EW FL EW FL	196400 196900 196496 1968-00 196800 196800 196000 196000 196000	584 594 615 604 606 603 605 595 566	150 122 137 351 209 153 186 165 168 94	434 459 457 264 395 453 417 440 427 472	279 211 223 830 399 313 305 296 319 213	00 87 97 00 87 87 87 87 87	36 28 92 156 56 19 90 48 35 17	73 96 85 73 91 64 73 73 73	0.61 1.15 1.35 0.85 0.23 0.14 1.32 0.46 0.25 0.17	.0.07 0.09 0.02 0.04 >0.00 0.07 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.01	08/90 08/76 08/65 08/76 10/72 08/76 08/76 10/97 08/94 09/64	14,7 14,7 19.3 13.1 6.2 6.8 19.8 8.2 5.3 4.4	.38 .51 .47 .54 .38 .23 .43 .44 .48 .42	1.4 2.6 3.1 2.4 0.5 0.3 2.6 1.0 0.5 0.4	0.08 0.17 0.20 0.05 >0.05 >0.00 0.13 0.07 0.03 0.02
036015 036006 036003 036003 036009 036005 036001 037030 037022 037029	Stour Stour Box Brett Brett Brett Stour Holtand Brk Holtand Brk St Osyth Brk	Lamarsh Langham Polstead Higham Cockfield Hadleigh Straffrd St Mary Cradle Bridge Thorpe le Soken Main Road Br	TL TM TL TM TM TM TM TM	897358 020344 985378 032354 914525 025429 042340 171217 179212 134159	480.7 578.0 53.9 195.0 25.7 156.0 844.3 48.6 54.9 8.0	MIS FL FL EW EW MIS TP EW FL	197200 1962.00 1960.00 197192 196800 196892 196200 192892 196270 197000 196076	596 589 573 614 584 597 558 545 537	158 160 122 63 148 135 115 104 125 122	438 429 459 510 466 449 482 454 420 415	276 279 219 333 257 267 157 327 225	00 87 00 00 87 66 87 69	65 78 48 16 27 37 62 17 24	73 73 97 73 73 34 65 73 73	2.41 2.94 0.21 0.39 0.12 0.67 3.09 0.16 0.22 0.03	0.23 0.19 0.04 0.06 0.00 0.04 0.14 0.01 >0.00 >0.00	08/76 07/76 08/76 08/90 10/97 08/76 07/76 09/64 08/76 06/70	32.9 33.8 3.7 3.7 11.4 29.9	.50 .53 .64 .57 .32 .47 .50 .48 .42 .39	4.6 6.1 0.9 0.3 1.5 7.7 0.5 0.4 0.1	0.60 0.56 0.06 0.05 0.08 0.56 0.02 0.01 >0.00
037028 • 037026 • 037027 • 037012 037025 • 037024 037005 037021 • 037016 037017	Bentley Brook Tenpenny Brk Sixpenny Brk Coine Bourne Brook Colne Colne Roman Pant Blackwater	Saltwater Bridge Tenpenny Bridge Ship House Br Poolstreet Perces Bridge Earls Colne Lexden Bounsteed Br Copford Hall Säisted	TM TM TL TL TL TL TL	109193 079207 054214 822276 855298 962261 985205 668313 793243	12.1 29.0 5.1 65.1 32.1 154.2 238.2 52.6 62.5 139.2	TP TP FL FP EW EW EW	196076 196176 196071 196300 196573 197100 195900 195900 196900	539 - 551 562 571 577 578 551 613 587	89 90 161 130 142 136 155 199 184	450 461 450 453 435 442 396 414 403	159 141 260 245 140 287 242 276 412 279	69 66 70 87 67 00 88 97 00	29 28 136 14 101 48 48 49 110 131	73 73 68 73 65 73 73 73 85 85	0.03 0.08 0.03 0.27 0.12 0.69 1.03 0.26 0.39 0.81	0.00 0.01 >0.00 0.03 0.06 0.09 0.05 >0.00 0.07	06/76 06/74 10/64 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/65 08/76 08/76 09/94	11.1 12.3 3.1 7.6 13.3	.64 .63 .28 .49 .45 .52 .58 .42 .52	0.1 0.2 0.1 0.7 0.3 1.4 2.1 0.5 1.1 1.6	0.01 0.01 >0.00 0.03 0.10 0.20 0.06 0.02 0.16

74

_

-

SURFACE	WATER-	REGISTER	AND	STATISTICS
				* * *

Station number	River name	Station name		Grid reference	Catchment ares (sq km)	Station type	Parlod of record	Mean ann. rainfai) (നന)	Mean ann. runaff (mm)	Mean ann. Iosa (^{mm})	Мех, влп. гипо f (mm)	Year of max.	Min. ann. runoff (ուտ)	Year of min.	Mean flow (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	Min, mon, flow (^{m1} e ⁻¹)	Month/Year of min.	Median ann, Rood (^{m1} a ¹¹)	Base Flow Index	10 Percantile (m'a-')	95 Percentile (m*e*')
037010	Blaciovater	Annieford Bridge	т	845158	247 3	FI	1962-00	580	161	419	245	00	105	76	125	П 16	0875	11.5	57	24	0.34
037009	Brain	Guthavon	ñ	818147	60.7	EW	196200	584	193	391	310	00	97	73	0.37	0.12	08/76	3.6	.67	0.6	0.15
037004 *	Blackwater	Langford	n	836092	337.0	MIS	1932-68	577	128	449	248	60	37	34	1,37	0.13	08/35		.45	2.9	0.23
037011	Cheimer	Churchend	n	629233	72.6	FL	1963-00	595	153	442	292	00	39	73	0.35	0.02	07/76	9.7	.43	0.8	0.05
037020	Cheimer	Feisted	TL.	670193	132.1	EW	197000	594	159	435	232	79	56	73	0.67	0.09	07/76	13.4	.51	1.3	0.15
037008	Chetmer	Springåeld	TL.	713071	190.3	EW	196500	593	171	422	285	00	58	73	1.03	0.18	08/76	14.5	.57	2.0	0.28
037038 *	Wid	Margaretting	TL	672000	98.6	MIS	195174	593	165	428	231	68	84	73	0.52	>0.00	08/52		.43	1.3	0.05
037007	Wid	Writtle	п	686060	136.3	EW	196400	606	197	409	321	00	68	73	0.85	0.09	08/76	15.6	.41	2.0	0.13
037006	Can	Beach's Mill	n	690072	228.4	FL	1962-00	592	171	421	297	00	62	73	1.24	0.10	08/76	19.7	.43	2.8	0.19
037013	Sandon Brk	Sandon Bridge	π	755055	75.1	EW	1963-00	571	122	449	253	95	30	73	0.29	0.02	06/76	8.4	.36	0.6	0.03
037002	Chelmer	Rushes Lock	TL	794090	533.9	FV	193200	590	111	479	223	00	25	34	1.88	0.01	08/55		.45	4.8	0.12
037003	Ter	Crabbs Bridge	TL	786107	77.8	FL	193200	582	106	476	239	00	17	34	0.26	0.02	08/35	4.6	.49	0.5	0.03
037031	Crouch	Wickford	ΤQ	748934	71.8	C VA	197600	597	148	449	242	00	80	96	0.34	0.05	08/95	9.4	.31	0.7	0.05
037033	Eastwood Brk	Eastwood	TQ	859888	10.4	MIS	197500	564	167	397	552	96	100	76	0.05	0.01	08/83	4.8	.33	0.1	0.01
037034 *	Mar Dyke	Stifford	ΤQ	596804	90.7	EW	197498	558	170	388	370	98	64	96	0.49	0.03	08/76		.22	0.9	0.05

Hydrometric Statistics

Hydrometric Statistics	Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean Row (m³∎*¹)	Peak flow (^{m1s.'})	Date of peak	Min. dally Row (m³=⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m³s¹¹)	95 Percentile (m³=¹1)
029009 Ancholme at Toft Newton C.A: 27.2 km² M.A: EA Local No: Sens.: 74.8 S/full: 10.0m³s ⁻¹ E.A.P: GI Level: 8m UE-c: 01 EAt: 1000	7495	602		162		0.14	7.1	26/04 1981	0.00	01/08 1995	0.4	0.05	>0.00
Comment: Flat V weir (3.03m vide) with theoretical calibration confirmed by check gaugings. There is no drowning or bypassing, and the station is immediately u/s of entry point of flows from Toft Newton reservoir. No major abstractions or returns. # The catchment is on LincoInstirre L'st and claws and is flat and niral.	1996 1997 1998 1999	493 589 684 695	82 98 114 115	51 74 177	31 46 109	0.04 0.06 0.15	0.5 0.7 2.0	19/12 24/12 18/01	>0.00 0.01 0.01	17/07 05/06 20/08	0.1 0.1 0.4	>0.00 0.02 0.08	>0.00 0.01 0.02
	2000	782	130	294	181	0.25	2.5	06/11	0.01	12/09	0.6	0.14	0.02
029004 Ancholme at Bishopbridge C.A: 54.7 km² M.A: EA Local No: Sens.: 63.3 S/full: 20.9m³s⁻¹ F.A.B: SRGI Level: 4m UE: <.01	6895	620		318		0.55	23.0	26/04 1981	0.00	01/09 1972	1.2	0.38	0.02
Comment: Compound Crump profile weir, with central crest 2.448m wide and total width of 9.131m. Theoretical rating confirmed to 5.5 m ³ s ⁻¹ , but structure drowns in high flows and is affected by weed growth in summer. Flows are very heavily augmented in summer from Trent-Witham-Ancholme transfer scheme. # Catchment is 53% clay, 47% Lincolnshire L'st, flat and rural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	493 585 679 691 784	80 94 110 111 126	485 506 642 549	153 159 202 173	0.84 0.88 1,11 0.95	2.1 2.8 6.9	06/08 19/12 18/01	0.08 0.12 0.13	05/11 07/06 22/10	1.7 1.5 2.4 1.5	0.75 0.95 0.92 0.96	0.15 0.23 0.23 0.23
029005 Rase at Bishopbridge C.A: 66.6 km² M.A: EA Local No: Sens.: 39.1 S/fuil: 18.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: PGE) Level: 4m UE: .02 FAI: 1.000	7195	633		207		0.44	21.4	26/04 1981	0.02	27/08 1976	1.0	0.23	0.06
Comment: Crump profile weir (crest length 3.658m) with theoretical calibration. Station drowns	1996	529	84	100	48	0.21	5.6	20/12	0.05	22/07.	0.4	0.12	0.06
above about 9 m's ⁻¹ , and relationship between u/s and d/s levels depends on weed growth and the	1997	623	98	137	66	0.29	5.0	19/12	0.08	21/08	0.5	0.18	0.09
disposition of siluces and gates at Haram Weir d/s. Abstractions for public supply in upper reaches has some effect on summer low flows. # Catchment is rural and 89% clay.	1998 1999 2000	720 716 856	114 113 135	244 420	118 203	0.52 0.88	12.5 17.9	18/01 07/11	0.11 0.11	31/08 12/09	1.1 1.7	0.33 0.39	0.12
029001 Waithe Beck at Brigsley C.A: 108.3 km² M.A: EA Local No: Sens.: 2.9 S/full: 17.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A. B: PGEL Level: 16m UF < 0.1	6095	687		88		0.30	7.2	26/04 1981	0.01	01/09 1991	0.7	0.19	0.06
Comment: Broad trapezoidal flume (1.83m wide at base) with theoretical rating confirmed to 0.9	1996	558	81	25	28	0.09	1,4	19/12	0.01	30/07	0.1	0.07	0.02
m3s ⁻¹ . All recorded flows have been contained within the structure. Gw abstraction near Grimsby	1997	649	94	36	41	0.12	0.9	19/12	0.05	02/11	0.2	0.10	0.06
and irrigation abstractions have significant effect on low flows. # The catchment is 81% Chalk and	1998	763	114	93	106	0.32	1.7	18/01	0.09	29/09	0.6	0.28	0.11
largely rural.	1999 2000	926	113 135	144	164	0.49	4.1	06/11	0.15	06/10	1.1	0.31	0.18
029003 Lud at Louth C.A: 55.2 km² M.A: EA Local No: Sens.: 25.9 S/full: 20.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: G Level: 15m UE: .02 FAI: 0.962	6895	687		258		0.45	6.6	02/11 1968	0.07	11/12 1991	0.9	0.33	0.12
Comment: Crump profile weir, 4.569m wide, at u/s end of long culvert. Theoretical rating confirmed	1996	606	88	98	38	0.17	2.3	19/12	0.08	13/10	0.2	0.15	0.08
by current metering, capacity limited to 20 m ³ s ⁻¹ - not yet exceeded by culvert. Flows recorded	1997	700	102	140	54	0.24	3.1	23/08	0.12	20/08	0.3	0.20	0.13
1966-1968 at sharp-crested weir at Bridge Street. No major abstractions or returns, but mili- regulation produces short term spikes. 1920 flood estimated at about 140 m ³ s ⁻¹ . # Catchment is	1998 1999	835 769	122 112	297 315	115 122	0.52 0.55	3.9 2.5	14/06 15/01	0.18 0.17	29/0 9 19/10	0.9 1.1	0.47 0.42	0.21 0.19

2000 890

62..95

1996 1997

1998

1999

2000 888 131

62..95 682

1996

1997 1998

1999

2000

140 0.63 3.5 03/04

275

356 129

382 139

254

148 182 58 72 0.29 0.35 6.3 5.8 19/12 19/12

283 111 340 134

130 360

87 101 152 195 55 71

122 114

84

101 119

678

576 689 814

766 860 112 126

F.A.R. G Level: Ibm UE: J02 Level: Ibm UE: J02 FAR: 0.952 Comment: Crump profile weir, 4.569m wide, at u/s end of long culvert. Theoretical rating confirmed by current metering, capacity limited to 20 m³s⁻¹ - not yet exceeded by culvert. Flows recorded 1966-1968 at sharp-created weir at Bridge Street. No major abstractions or returns, but mill regulation produces short term spikes. 1920 flood estimated at about 140 m³s⁻¹. # Catchment is 73% Chalk and largely rural.

029002	Great	Eau at Claythorpe Mill	C.A: 77.4 km ²
M.A: EA	Local No:	Sens.: 11.6	B/full: 12.8m ³ s ⁻¹
F.A.R: GI	Level: 7m	UE: <.01	FAI: 0.952
o	1. I A On me and it.	-1-A A7A	B

Comment: Simple low flow Crump profile weir 3.073m wide with flanking broad-crest sections. Total width 9.687m. Crump portion is theoretically rated and upper portion rated theoretically assuming it to be a broad-crested weir. Flows to May 1973 suspect due to error in gauged head and rounding of crest during cleaning. Small amounts of abstraction for irrigation in summer. # The catchment is 81% Chalk and predominantly rural.

030004	Lyı	mn at Partney Mill	C.A: 61.6 km ²
M.A: EA	Local No:	Sens.: 23.7	S/full: 18.0m ³ s ⁻¹
F.A.R: PI	Level: 15m	UE: .01	FAI: 0.980
Comment: Crun	np weir with 5m crest rated	by model tests and confirr	ned by check gaugings. The
weir is probably	non-modular at very high flo	ws due to backing up behi	nd struts and a bridge, but is
bypassed just be	fore this point. Abstraction	for irrigation in upper read	thes may have effect on low

flows in summer. # Equally divided between sandstone and Boulder Clay and wholly rural.

..

٠	5	•	
₹	Ξ.		

0.55

0.82 0.54

0.28

12 0.48 0.28

1.2

0.5 0.6 0.35 0.44 0.25 0.33

1.3 0.81 0.45

1.4

0.9 0.34 0.14

0.5 0.7 0.20 0.24 0.10 0.13

1.1 1.3 0.43 0.44 0.16 0.19

06/10

26/08 1976

30/08 1994

25/07

11/08

02/08

13/08

0.25

0.17

0.24 0.29 27/09 11/08

0.50 13/09

0.05

0.09 0.11

0.13 0.17

11/07 1968

13.3

3.3 2.6 19/12 19/12

3.6 28/05

11/07 1968

15/01

03/04

0.68

0.37 0.48 0.87

0.94

0.50 13.4

0.55 0.66 8.0 8.8

	Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m ³ s ⁻¹)	Peak flow (m³s⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (^{m3} 8 ⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m³x ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m³s ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m³s ¹)
030017 Witham at Colsterworth C.A: 51.3 km²	7895	- 656		148		0.24	11.5	25/06		02/08	0.5	0.12	0.02
M.A: EA Local No: Sens. 29.0 S/full: 9.4m ³ s ⁻¹ F.A.R: R Level: 07m UE: <.01	1996	459	70	64	43	0.10	2.6	1982 12/02	0.02	1994 18/09	0.3	0.04	0.02
by transfers from Rutland Water unbil Jun 1985, when direct Rutland/Saltersford pipeline opened. # Rural catchment underlain by Ist and Boulder Clay.	1997 1998 1999	721 747 746	110 114 114	113 183 169	76 124 114	0.18 0.30 0.27	2.9 9.4 5.5	20/11 02/01 16/01	0.03 0.03 0.03	02/06 26/09 31/08	0.4 0.7 0.7	0.08 0.13 0.13	0.04 0.03 0.03
030015 Cringle Brook at Stoke Rochford C.A: 50.5 km ²	7695	688	123	185	129	0.31	2.1	27/04	>0.03	30/10	0.6	0.14	0.03
M.A: EA Local No: ". Sens.: 20.8 S/full: 63.m*s=" F.A.R: N Level: 76m UE: <.01 FAI: 0.933 Comment: Sharp-crested weir 2.74m wide in tunnet under A1. Weir drowns above about 0.25	1996	479	70	85	46	0.14	0.5	1981 25/02	0.04	1990 05/11	0.3	0.10	0.05
m [*] s ⁻ , but flows depend on position of weirs and sluices immediately d/s. Rating includes an allowance for drowning using assumed positions of d/s weirs and sluices. Major supply abstraction point d/s of station. Site moved u/s in 1987. # Rural catchment, underlain by Oolitic L'st and Lias clay.	1997 1998 1999 2000	720 767 753 836	105 111 109 122	128 224 223 226	69 121 121 122	0.21 0.36 0.36 0.36	3.8 2.0 1.9	10/04 16/01 06/11	0.09 0.08 0.10	29/09 11/10 13/09	0.4 0.8 0.8 0.7	0.18 0.28 0.25 0.28	0.09 0.09 0.09 0.11
030005 Witham at Saltersford total C.A: 126.1 km² M.A: EA Local No: 30029 Sens.: 17.0	6887	651		195		0.78	10.2d	15/08 1980	0.04	16/08 1976	1.6	0.51	0.12
F.A.K: RPG Level; 58m UE: <.01 FAI: 0.976 Comment: Compound weir with round-crested low flow weir (1.83m wide) and broad-crested high flow portion (8.25m wide). Discharge computed from a single stage recorder to 1973, when it was discovered that a trout screen diverted flow over high flow weir. Second recorder installed, which was removed in Feb 1985 when trout screen was removed. Major abstractions for PWS immediately u/s, with significant reflect on low flows. # Catchment is underlain by i'st and clay and is predominantly rural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	469 714 755 746 818	72 110 116 115 126	96 151 286 281 294	49 77 147 144 151	0.38 0.60 1.14 1.12 1.17	2.0 3.0 10.0 5.3d	09/01 30/11 10/04 16/01 03/04	0.09 0.16 0.25 0.26 0.32	09/09 01/01 19/10 16/10 12/09	0.8 1.3 2.5 2.7 2.6	0.23 0.46 0.86 0.73 0.78	0.11 0.21 0.29 0.28 0.38
030001	5995	618		186		1.75	37.5	11/02 1977	0.02	24/07 1976	3.8	1.07	0.35
F.A.R. RPE Level: 17m UE: 0.2 FAI: 0.979 Comment: An old three level weir, total width of 24.99m converted to a standard broad-crested Lea design. Rated by c/m; no bypassing or drowning. Fairly insensitive but range and gauge quality good Substantial modification of low flows by transfer to Rutland Water and PWS at Sattersford; >50% of low flows may be abstracted representing between 10 and 30% ADF. # The catchment is clay (50%) with limestone (40%) and gravel. Largely rural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	446 660 720 696 803	72 107 117 113 130	97 153 283 273 316	52 82 152 147 170	0.91 1.45 2.67 2.58 2.97	5.7 7.3 24.6 23.1 31.1	12/02 19/12 25/12 10/03 06/11	0.22 0.36 0.62 0.60 0.69	23/07 30/05 09/08 12/09 12/09	1.8 2.7 5.3 5.7 6.3	0.63 1.12 1.93 1.65 1.89	0.27 0.52 0.73 0.72 0.81
030033 Brant Brant Broughton C.A: 65.8 km ²	9095	555		91		0.19	14.6	25/01	>0.00	01/09	0.4	0.04	>0.00
F.A.R: Level: 10m UE: FAI: Comment: Crump profile Flat V (1:10) weir, 6m wide, set in vertical wingwalls 1.5m high. U/s and sidewall tappings for non-modular flow estimation (not used). Channel u/s formed by training banks circa 1m higher than walts. Station under investigation. # Low relief catchment to W of Lincoln Edge. Geology: Lower Lias cays and subordinate I'sts with some Middle Lias on eastern watershed. Broad band of river sands and gravels forms much of western catchment. Wholly rural; agricultural land use and disused airfield.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	439 597 660 656 758	79 108 119 118 137	142 147	156 162	0.30 0.31	13.8. 15.1	10/04 09/03	0.01 0.01	21/08 11/09	0.7 0.7	0.09 0.08	0.01' 0.02
030013 Heighington Beck at Heighington C.A: 21.2 km² M.A: EA Local No: Sens.: 61.1 S/full: 8.8m³s ⁻¹	7695	604		187		0.13	1.2	13/02 1977	⁴ >0.00	26/08 1976	0.3	0.08	0.02
Comment: Crump profile weir 3.51m vide with theoretical calibration. Expected to drown at high flows. Summer low flows may be heavily influenced by gw abstraction for irrigation. # Very slow responding nermeable (1992) (14) licit calibration to granalize a strange of the strain of	1996 1997 1998	461 611 659	76 101 109	104 142	56 76	0.07 0.10	0.4 0.6	19/12 28/12	0.01 0.03	27/07 09/06	0.1 0.2	0.05 0.08	0.01 0.04
	1999 2000	682 772	113 128	232 264	124 141	0.16 0.18	1.0	11/11	0.03	13/09	0.4 0.4	0.10 0.11	0.03 0.04
030012 Stainfield Beck at Creampoke Farm C.A: 37.4 km² M.A: EA Local No: , Sens.: 63.6 S/MU > 2m³s ⁻¹ F.A.BN Local No: , UFL 05.6 S/MU > 2m³s ⁻¹	7095	621		207		0.25	21.5	21/01 1985	0.00	02/09 1991	0.6	0.10	0.01
Comment: Before 1998, compound Crump profile weir with (non-processed) crest tapping which became non-modular above about 2 m ³ s ⁻¹ . Central weir 1.225m wide, total width 5.791m. Divide	1996 1997 1998	532 642 731	86 103 118	92	44	0.11	4.4	19/12	>0.00	22/07	0.2	0.03	0.01
major abstractions or returns. # Flat, rural catchment underfain by Kimmeridge Clay.	1999 2000	695 815	112 131	180 250	87 121	0.21 0.30	5.9 5.9	15/01 06/11	. 0.00 0.01	04/06 24/08	0.6 0.7	0.08 0.12	0.01
030002 Barlings Eau at Langworth Bridge C.A: 210.1 km² M.A: EA Local No: 30902 Sens.: 29.6 B/full: 22.5m³s ⁻¹ F.A E. CL Local No: 30902 Sens.: 29.6 B/full: 22.5m³s ⁻¹	6095	609		193		1.28	36.3	21/01 1985	>0.00	26/08 1976	3.2	0.48	0.04
Comment: A natural section was replaced in Nov 1965 by a low flow compound Crump profile weir, which ceased operating in Sept 1978. The present Flat V weir has been operating since June 1980 and the theoretical rating is confirmed by check gaugings. Structure drowns at about 19 m ³ s ⁻¹ . Irrigation abstractions reduce summer low flows. # Mostly Boulder Clay with some limestone in the headwaters. Flat and predominantly rural but with some new urban development.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	499 600 684 679 797	82 99 112 111 131	65 133 277 285 436	34 69 144 148 226	0.43 0.89 1.84 1.90 2.90	15.6 19.7 31.9 31.8 31.9	19/12 19/12 18/01 16/01 11/11	0.02 0.08 0.03 0.06	21/08 02/06 22/08 11/09 12/09	1.0 1.6 5.2 6.1 8.1	0.14 0.31 0.63 0.65 0.88	0.03 0.11 0.07 0.08 0.10
0300111 Bain at Goulceby Bridge C.A: 62.5 km ² M A: FA Local No: Sens: 31.6 Stiful: 30 0m ³ e ⁻¹	7195	676		174		0.34	16.4	26/04	0.02	01/09	0.7	0.22	· 0.06
FA.R: SGI Level: 52m UE: <0.1 FAI: 0.962 Comment: Free-fail drop under bridge calibrated by c/m until Dec 1969 and standard full-range Crump profile weir (crest length 4.877m) since Aug 1971 (no records between). Abstraction for irrigation could have significant effect on low flows in dry summers. # Rural catchment underlain by Chalk (50%) and s'st (20%) on the scarp slope of the LincoInshire Wolds.	1996 1997 1998 1999	593 686 -812 752	88 101 -120 111	68 93 193 187	39 53 111 107	0.14 0.18 0.38 0.37	2.2 1.3 2.6 2.6	20/12 19/12 .18/01_ 09/03	0.03 0.06 	19/08 11/08 13/08	0.3 0.3 0.8 0.9	0.10 0.13 0.30 0.26	0.03 0.07 - 0.10 0.09
020003 Bela at Fulshu Lask 0. 5 4 407.4 km²	2000	894	132	270	155	0.53	4,4	06/11	0.12	12/09	1.1	0.36	0.14
M.A: EA Local No: Sens.: 24.2 B/UII: 42.0m ³ s ⁻¹ F.A.R: SPI Level: 10m UE: .01 FAI: 0.969 Comment: Broad-greated weir 4 6m wide eitusted in add tooks stated by model tools. Sensiti human	0290 100-	550	¢٩.	£ŲŹ	40	1.20	97.U	1981	/0.00	1976 24/07	Z. 9	V.00	0.00
Channel us feeds original river course and a disused model flume, gauged by sharp-created weir. Flows over bypass not processed since 1981 and subsequent low flows therefore underestimated. Revesby Reservoir has a very minor influence, and abstractions for irrigation may be significant in dry summers. # Rural catchment, mostly clay with Chaik and s'st in the headwaters.	1997 1998 1999 2000	669 773 726 833	101 117 110 126	125 241 218 304	62 119 108 150	0.78 1.51 1.36 1.89	10.6 14.7 15.7 20.3	19/12 03/01 16/01 06/11	0.07 0.13 0.05 0.17	21/08 19/08 04/08 13/09	1.6 3.6 3.6 4.3	0.45 0.82 0.84 1.11	0.00 0.13 0.17 0.11 0.25
030006 Siea at Leasingham Mill C.A: 48.4 km² M.A: EA Local No; Sens.; S/full; 2.1m³s ⁻¹ FA D: DCI Local No; Sens.; S/full; 2.1m³s ⁻¹	7495	608		339		0.52	12.6d	01/05 1990	0.00	01/12 1995	1.5	0.26	
F.A.R: PGI Level: 12m UE: .03 FAI: 0.968 Comment: Rectangular thin-plate weir 1.372m wide set in old gate site, modified in 1984. Theoretical rating, with section above thin-plate treated as broad-crested weir. No drowning. Gw abstraction has potential for reducing summer low flows. # Unresponsive catchment, predominatly	1996 1997 1998	446 637 706	73 105 116	86 98 516	25 29 152	0.13 、0.15 0.79	0.9 1.1 2.9	. 11/03 31/12 18/01	0.00 0.00 0.02	01/08 27/01 15/10	-0.5 0.3 1.8	0.02 - 0.03 0.66	0.03

76

- - - -

-

					Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runof (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	Peak flow (m ³ e ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. dally flow (^{m1} *')	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m ¹ a ⁻¹)
030014 M.A: EA F.A.R: I	Local No: Level: 3m	Pointon Lo	de at Pointon Sens.: UF: < 01	C.A: 11,9 km² S/full: 5.7m³s ⁻¹ FAI: 1.000	7295	586		188		0.07	4.9	08/03 1975	0.00	01/10 1995	0.2	0.04	>0.00
Comment: Crump pr flows. Abstractions fo lying area draining hi covered by Boulder C	clive: 344 offie weir 2.445 r imigation have ghland limesto Xay.	im wide with the minor effect of ne, although la	eoretical cafibration. Ex in summer low flows. # Itter outcrops over only	pected to drown at high Drainage channel in low 21% of catchment: rest	1995 1997 1998 1999 2000	442 692 696 709 769	75 118 119 121 131	53 137 287 299 295	28 73 153 159 157	0.02 0.05 0.11 0.11 0.11	0.9 4.2 5.6 3.6	09/01 28/06 02/01 09/03 28/05	0.00 >0.09 0.01 >0.00 >0.00	22/07 07/06 29/08 19/04 02/09	0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3	0.01 0.02 0.07 0.06 >0.00	0.01 0.01 0.01 >0.00
031022 M.A: EA	Local No:	Jordan at Mar	ket Harborough Sens.:	C.A: 20.8 km ²	7095	649		94		0.06	1.1	20/12 1972	0.00	01/09 1995	0.2	0.02	>0.00
Comment: Simple Cr flows only, Post-1996	Leva, 75m ump profile we flows truncate	ir, crest 1.47m d.	broad. Rated up to 0.3:	raı, 54m (0.673 m³s ^{−1}). Low	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	505 676 789 777 856	78 104 122 120 132	256 <i>106</i> 196 199 237	272 113 209 212 252	0.17 0.07 0.13 0.13 0.16	15.3 0.7 0.7 0.7	09/01 13/12 30/12 01/12	>0.00 0.01 >0.00 >0.00	16/07 19/08 27/07 30/08	0.1 0.2 0.4 0.4 0.5	>0.00 0.03 0.05 0.05 0.07	>0.00 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01
031021 M.A: EA F.A.R: REI	Local No: Level: 56m	Weiland	at Ashley Sens.: 32.4 UE: <.01	C.A: 250.7 km ² B/full: 22.1m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.993	7095	654		153		1.21	39.6	02/02 1979	0.03	25/08 1976	3.3	0.51	0.13
Comment: Crump pro and is theoretically ca including all floods - in and reservoir for main 85% Boulder Clay.	ofile weir in rea librated to wing fluenced by brid tenance of can	ligned channel wall height wi lige soffit and a al flow. # Large	beneath bridge. Weir h th rated section above. re therefore unreliable. / ely rural with Market Har	as crest length of 6.97m Flows above 22 m ³ s ⁻¹ - Abstractions for irrigation rborough in headwaters:	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	466 656 756 756 839	71 100 116 116 128	79 93 241 237 318	52 61 158 155 208	0.63 0.74 1.92 1.88 2.52	15.3 14.4 22.0 22.0 22.1	09/01 29/11 05/01 25/12 11/10	0.09 0.11 0.14 0.12 0.16	25/09 10/08 10/08 12/09 13/09	1.5 1.6 4.4 4.8 6.5	0.25 0.34 0.75 0.69 1.00	0.10 0.14 0.18 0.14 0.19
031007 M.A: EA F.A.R: SEI	Local No: Level: 35m	Welland at	t Barrowden Sens.: 13.5 UE:	C.A: 411.6 km ²	6895	649		177		2.32	107.8	10/03 1975	0.03	19/08 1972	5.3	0.94	0.22
Comment: Crump we syphon and are meas rating depending on pr influenced by overban abstractions. # Mostly	eir 3.04m wide sured d/s at Tix osition of d/s sk k spillage u/s. E r Boulder Clay	measures flow over (31005), vices: assumed ve Brook reserverving l'st. F	vs to 4.2 m ³ s ⁻¹ . Highe Tixover is a rated section lopen in floods. Very high voir has little influence, l Rural catchment.	er flows bypass weir via on about 18m wide with th Tixover flows possibly but low flows reduced by	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	462 656 758 754 844	71 101 117 116 130	76 <i>80</i> 151 148 181	43 45 85 84 102	0.99 1.05 1.97 1.94 2.35	17.1 4.3 4.3 4.3	09/01 09/12 30/12 <i>01/12</i>	0.16 0.28 0.26 0.29	22/07 19/08 28/07 16/08	2.3 2.8	0.43 0.56 1.30 1.39 2.00	0.19 0.27 0.32 0.31 0.32
031010 M.A: EA	Locat No:	Chater at Fo	Sens.:	C.A: 68.9 km ² S/full: 19.2m ³ s ¹	6895	661		236		0.51	20.8	15/08 1980	0.02	16/08 1976	1.2	0.26	0.06
Comment: Compoun total width 6.077m. abstractions or returns and sandstone (9%).	d Crump profil Not drowned s. # Rural catch	e weir with the but possibly l iment. Geology	voretical calibration. Ce bypassed in very extr variable -includes clay	rAI: 0.990 ntral weir 1.054m wide, eme floods. No major (75%), limestone (13%)	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	470 671 778 755 851	71 102 118 114 129	113 151 315 289 371	48 64 133 122 157	0.25 0.33 0.69 0.63 0.81	3.9 3.9 18.1 12.1 19.0	09/01 18/12 10/04 16/01 06/11	0.06 0.07 0.14 0.15 0.12	19/08 10/08 12/08 01/08 06/08	0.5 0.7 1.4 1.4 1.8	0.15 0.20 0.35 0.35 0.42	0.06 0.08 0.16 0.17 0.17
031025 M.A: EA F.A.R: NI	Local No: Level: 84m	Gwash South	Arm at Manton Sens.: 50.0 • UE: <.01	C.A: 24.5 km² S/full: 16.1m³s ^{−1} FAI: 0.995	7895	691		246		0.19	22.5	02/06 1981	>0.00	01/09 1991	0.5	0.05	0.01
Comment: Flat V wei calibrated and never # Rural catchment on	r (crest length drowns, althou Boulder Clay.	5m) measuring gh is bypasseo) inflows to Rutland Wa 1 at high flows. No abs	ter. Weir is theoretically tractions, small returns.	1996 1997 1998 1999	476 709 826 776	-69 103 120 112	96 330 274	39 134 111	0.07 0.26	3.0 16.9	09/01 02/01	>0.00 0.01	21/07 11/08 31/07	0.2 0.6	0.02	0.01
031026		Egiston Bro	ok at Epieton	C.A: 2.5 km ²	2000	835 680	121	356	145	0.28	16.8	05/11	0.01	09/09	0.8	0.08	0.01
M.A: EA F.A.R; N Comment: Flat V wei drown at bich flows di	Local No: Level: 84m r 2m wide mea	suring inflows t	Sens.: UE: <.01 to Rutland Water. Theor	S/full: 3.6m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 1.000 retically rated, but could	1996	482	71	87	36	0.01	0.3	1993 11/02 26/06	0.00	1995 13/07	0.0	0.00	>0.00
natural regime. # Rura	al catchment or	Bouider Clay			1998 1999 2000	778 773 815	114 114 120	353 346 419	147 144 175	0.03 0.03 0.03	1.5 1.7 2.3	27/10 25/08 05/11	0.00 0.00 0.00	05/08 24/07 05/08	0.1 0.1 0.1	0.01 >0.00 >0.00 0.01	>0.00
031016 M.A: EA E.A.B: SI	Local No: Level: 50m	North Brook :	at Empingham Sens.: LIF	C.A: 36.5 km ²	6995	628		205		0.24	1.9	25/02 1977	0.03	13/08 1976	0.5	0.18	0.07
Comment: Simple Cri flows only. Catchmer Limestone; Boulder Cl	ump profile wei it contains two ay on highest	r, crest 2.36m artificial lake ground. Entirely	broad. Rated up to 0.58 s. # Geology: virtually y rural catchment with s	4m (2.503 m ³ s ⁻¹). Low r drift free Lincolnshire small wooded areas.	1996 1997 1998	458 681 745	73 108 119	102	50	0.12	0.3	11/03	0.02	31/10	0.2	0.11	0.04
034005				1	2000	742 796	118 127	328 296	160 144	0.38	1.50	03/04 D6/11	0.14	25/05 04/09	0.9 0.6	0.24 0.28	0.15
M.A: EA F.A.R: SRP Comment: Full-range	Local No: Levei: 24m Crump profile	weir (crest ler	elmesthorpe Sens.: 23.0 UE: .01 hoth 8.5m) with no drow	C.A: 150.0 km ⁻ S/full: 24.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.758 wning problems, Site is	6795 1996	637 462	73	165 83	50	0.79	40.7	09/12 1969 26/01	0.15	06/09 1976 04/10	1.5	0.63	0.29
13km d/s of Rutland W affected by Gwash-Gle	ater and flows an transfer sch	have been ven eme. # 51% cl	y significantly influenced ay and 40% l'st.	since 1975. Flows also	1997 1998 1999 2000	680 759 742 809	107 119 116 127	89 152 164 160	54 92 99 97	0.42 0.72 0.78 0.76	0.9 2.4 2.3 2.1	18/12 10/04 16/01 08/12	0.28 0.26 0.33 0.29	02/06 19/10 20/10 06/10	0.6 1.3 1.6 1.5	0.39 0.62 0.55 0.65	0.33 0.30 0.36 0.34
031004 M.A: EA F.A.R: SPEI	Local No: 31 Level: m	Welland at 304	: Tallington Sens.: UE: .01	C.A: 717.4 km ² FAI: 0.926	6795	646		181		4.11	77.3d	10/03 1975	0.01	03/10 1995	9.3	2.37	0.65
Comment: Flows mea Crump profile weirs (b flow is sum of three. A Significant quantities o on low flows. # Gaug containing Rutland Wa	asured over be oth with 6.1m of Weir at Lolham f water abstract ing site where iter (controls 1	bad-crested we rest length) on drowns in sur ted u/s for trans river becomes 1%).	eir (total width 28.35m) West Deeping and Loll nmer due to weeds, an smission to Rutland Wat Fenland river. Rural c	on main river and two ham Mill streams. Total id true flows estimated. ter with significant effect atchment, largely clay,	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	465 666 760 746 834	72 103 118 115 129	65 71 192 125 214	36 39 106 69 118	1.46 1.62 4.37 2.85 4.86	10.5d 14.1d 77.4d 29.0 80.3	25/02 30/11 11/04 18/04 07/11	0.48 0.09	12/10 10/12	2.0 2.5 9.7 8.9 14.5	1.22 1.18 2.10 0.94 1.54	0.70 0.89 0.14 0.18 0.33
031023 M.A: EA	Local No:	West Glen at	Easton Wood Sens.:	C.A: 4.4 km ² S/fuli: 10.7m ³ s ⁻¹	7295	646		158		0.02	7.8	14/08 1980	0.00	01/12 1995	0.1		
Comment: Flat V weir of study into recharge Boulder Clay: flows dis	with crest leng of Lincolnshire sappear into l's	th of 8.05m the L'st. No abstra t d/s of gauging	ctions or returns. # Rura g station.	m ³ s ⁻¹ . Installed as part al catchment entirely on	[•] 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	457 721 743 755 825	71 112 115 117 128	59 131 222 201 253	37 83 141 127 160	0.01 0.02 0.03 0.03 0.04	0.5 1.1 5.4 2.4 2.5	19/12 08/10 10/04 15/01 05/11	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00	23/01 27/03 18/05 17/05 13/05	0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01	

				Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (^{m1} s ⁻¹)	Peak flow (m³s⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min, daily flow (m³s ⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m ¹ s- ¹)	50 Percentile (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	95 Percentite (^{m1} a ⁻¹)
031024	 Holywel	II Brook at Holywell	C.A: 22.3 km ²	 , 7195	- 607		- 163		0.12	1.7	09/02	0.00	07/11	0.2	0.09	0.01
M.A: EA F.A.R: G Comment: Crump wei flow regime. # Geolog	Local No: Level: 27m ir, 2.498m wide. Calibrai y: Jurassic I'st with son	Sens.: UE: ted up to around 1.8 cume ne drift cover. Land use: I	FAI: es only. Baseflow dominated ural with some woodland.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	455 701 744 732 770	75 115 .123 121 127	70 89 289 280 277	43 55 177 172 170	0.05 0.06 0.20 0.20 0.20	1.0 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8	1974 12/02 09/10 09/04 20/04 25/12	0.01 0.02 0.01 0.05 0.05	13/11 09/01 06/10 18/11 27/09	0.1 0.1 0.3 0.4 0.4	0.05 0.05 0.16 0.15 0.13	0.01 0.02 0.07 0.06 0.06
031013 M.A: EA	East Local No:	t Glen at Imham Sens.:	C.A: 71.5 km ²	6995	612		47		0.11	13.5	15/08 1980	0.00	03/08 1995	0.3	0.03	
F.A.R: G Comment: Flat V weir 2 cumecs. # N-S trer lower catchment over Entirely rural.	Level: 42m replaced simple Crump iding catchment of sub lying Combrash and Oc	UE: profile weir in Nov 1977, dued relief. Geology: Up lite Series of Mid Jurass	FAI: Currently low flows only – to per Jurassic Oxford Clay in sic. Predominantly drift free.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	448 689 736 731 811	73 113 120 119 133	22 70 - 85 63 113	47 149 181 177 240	0.05 0.16 0.19 0.19 0.25	2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0	12/02 18/12 15/04 28/01 11/10	0.00 >0.00 0.01 >0.00 0.01	22/07 02/06 05/08 27/07 06/08	0.1 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.7	>0.00 0.04 0.06 0.06 0.09	>0.00 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01
031002 M.A: EA	Gien at Ka Local No: 31802	ates Br and King St Br Sens.: 68.0	C.A: 341.9 km ²	6095	621		110		1.19	23.6d	27/04 1981	0.00	01/08 1976	2.8	0.54	0.04
F.A.R: GI Comment: Broad-cre standing-wave flume recorded flows within irrigation abstractions outside the catchmen becomes a Fenland m in headwaters.	Level: 6m sted weir replaced Nov at King Street. US gau modular limits. The Gle , influenced by pumpio t. Flows also affected t rer below the gauging st	UE: <.01 1971 by 9.7m wide Flat ge for high flows installe in is influent in upper rea ng from gravel works an y Gwash-Glen transfer ations. Rural catchment, o	FAI: 0.983 V weir at Kates Bridge, plus d at Kates Bridge 1999. All ches. Low flows reduced by nd groundwater abstraction scheme since 1989. # Gien clay 59% and limestone 30%	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000,	446 692 737 718 790	72 111 119 116 127	27 45 146 139 156	25 41 133 126 142	0.29 0.49 - 1.59 1.51 1.69	6.6 8.1 17.8 14.8d 17.8	09/01 30/11 10/04 10/03 06/11	0.03 0.03 0.13 0.16 0.15	16/09 10/06 29/09 18/09 13/09	0.6 1.4 3.6 3.7 4.1	0.13° 0.14 1.02 0.88 0.89	0.07 0.05 0.16 0.20 0.21
032008 M.A: EA E.A.B: E	 Nane/Kit Local No: Leval: 79m 	slingbury at Dodford Sens.: 20.8	C.A: 107.0 km ² S/fúll: 10.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.982	4595	672		180		0.61	11.6	01/05 1983	0.04	07/09 1949	1.4	0,34	0.11 ,
Comment: Crump pro 1967. Weir theoretica flows. Low flows influe	ofile weir with 2.667m cr Ily calibrated, but bypas enced by returns from S	est replaced broad-creste sing begins at 7 m³s ⁻¹ iTW. # Mostly clay (73%)	ed weir with low flow notch in and the weir drowns in high and predominantly rural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	463 642 728 743 836	69 96 108 111 124	104 107 256 252 312	58 59 142 140 173	0.35 0.36 0.87 0.86 1.05	6.1 5.1 11.6 10.1 11.3	12/02 28/11 10/04 24/12 06/11	0.11 0.12 0.16 0.19 0.19	05/08 04/08 19/08 28/07 13/09	0.7 0.7 1.9 1.9 2.5	0.22 0.22 0.49 0.50 0.57	'0.13 0.14 0.17 0.21 0.22
032006 M.A: EA E.A.R: E	Nene/K Local No: 32806 Level: 62m	islingbury at Upton Sens.: 20.5 UE: 01	 C.A: 223.0 km² EAI: 0.986 	3995	667		195		1.38	38.2d	17/03 1947	0.06	28/09 1944	2.9	0.78	0.25
Comment: Main cha bypass channel meat produce total. Before and total flows based flows bypass both cha (72%) and predomina	nnel flow measured in sured at Crump profile i 1969 flows through bypi on average relationship annels. No major abstra- intly rural.	3.2m wide standing wav weir (crest 6.12m) since ass controlled by broad-c between levels in main ch ctions but several sewage	re flume under mill. Flow in 1969 and flows summed to rested weir with no recorder, annel and bypass. Very high a work returns. # Mostly clay	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	464 639 750 739 838	70 96 112 111 126	98 107 217 164 196	50 55 111 84 101	0.69 0.76 1.54 1.16 1.38	4.6 6.5d 13.2d 6.0 6.0	12/02 29/11 03/01 20/01 08/12	0.27 0.25 0.39 0.38 0.43	19/08 08/08 24/09 28/07 12/09	1.2 1.5 2.9 2.2 2.7	0.51 0.48 1.05 0.95 1.14	0.29 0.29 0.43 0.42 0.49
032007 M.A: EA	Nene Bra Local No: 32807	Sens.: 25.8	C.A: 232.8 km ²	3995	660		157		1.16	30.0	15/08 1980	0.01	12/08 1944	2.5	0.62	0.21
Comment: Main char bypass channel meas recorder on bypass t levels in flume and by from three water supp	neel flow measured in 2 ured at 9.11m wide broa before 1969, and total pass. Bypassing of both oly reservoirs reduce low	743m wide standing-wav id-crested weir and flows flows estimated using av structures commences at v flows. # Mostly clay (76	re flume in mill race. Flow in summed to produce total. No verage relationship between about 17 m ³ s ⁻¹ . Abstraction 5%) and predominantly rural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	477 657 756 767 837	72 100 115 116 127	70 100 171 145	45 64 109 93	0.52 0.74 1.26 1.07	2.2 7.4d 24.5d 6.3	12/02 29/11 10/04 06/11	0.25 0.09 0.28 0.37	16/10 30/10 22/08 30/08	0.8 1.3 2.2 1.8	0.47 0.50 0.83 0.90	0.29 0.25 0.33 0.41
032019 M.A: EA	Slade Local No: 32033	Brook at Kettering Sens.:	C.A: 58.3 km ²	7095	629		175		0.32	3.7	01/02 1995	0.02	25/08 1976	1.1	0.15	0.04
rated up to 0.3m: 0.8 prior to 1988. No data catchment.	Flat V weir. Replaced I 48 m³s ⁻¹) in early 1988 a 1988-1995. # Catching	ow flow simple Crump pro 3, following river improve ent is 48% clay and 48%	offie weir (crest 2.42m broad, ments. Low flow station only s'st. Kettering lies within the	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	497 650 776 763 861	79 103 123 121 137	179 445 429 350	102 254 245 200	0.33 0.82 0.79 0.65	4.2 28.6 6.6 9.9	28/06 10/04 <i>01/06</i> 05/11	0.04 0.07 0.08 0.08	18/08 13/08 08/09 09/08	0.8 1.6 1.7 1.3	0.15 0.56 0.62 0.46	0.06 0.08 0.11 0.11
032004 M.A: EA F.A.R: SI	ise Brook Local No: Level: 45m	at Harrowden Old Mill Sens.: 58.3 UE: .04	C.A: 194.0 km² S/full: 26.0m³s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.980.	4395	641		219		1.35	28.4	17/03 1947	0.05	11/08 1944	3.0	0.73	0.19
Comment: Flume wit 1976, and theoreticall (but bypassed at 14.2 low flows; receives K but includes Kettering	h low flow notch and sid ly-rated Flat V weir with }). Flat V also bypassed attening effluent. # Unde].	te weir to 1965, compour 5.15m crest since. Crum; Two small storage reser rlain by clay (59%) and s	nd Crump profile weir to April weir modular to 15.6 m ³ s ⁻¹ voirs with minor influence on andstone (24%), mostly rurai	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	497 649 772 762 853	78 101 120 119 133	114 119 285 263 330	52 54 130 120 151	0.70 0.73 1.75 1.62 2.03	8.1 7.8 24.0 14.0 18.0	25/02 29/11 10/04 20/01 06/11	0.06 0.11 0.22 0.23 0.22	19/08 10/06 24/07 09/09 09/09	1.6 1.7 4.0 4.0 4.5	0.41 0.43 0.89 0.87 1.21	0.10 0.17 0.25 0.29 0.31
032003 M.A: EA	Harpers B Local No:	rook at Old Mill Bridge Sens.: 16.3	C.A: 74.3 km ² S/full: 15.2m ³ s ⁻¹ E.AI: 1.000	3895	630		175		0.41	22.0	26/04 1981	0.01	26/08 1976	0.9	0,19	0.07
Comment: Compoun crest length 3.657m. (bypassed in extreme	d Crump profile weir rep Calibration confirmed to floods, Replaced 1998	laced rated section in 196 4.8 m ³ s ⁻¹ , but weir drown by Flat V. 4.04m wide I	 Central crest 1.219m, total ned around 7 m³s⁻¹ and was between existing wing walls, 	1996 1997 1998	482 636 785	77 101 125	88 90	50 51	0.21 0.21	6.0 3.6	09/01 18/12	0.06 0.06	19/08 05/10	0.4 0.5	0,12 0.11	0.07 0.07
 modular to 20 m³s⁻¹ # Low lying imperviouring mines working until e 	- Catchment area increa us catchment (clay 90% arty 1980s.	ised by 8% after diversion), predominantly agricult.	n from Willow Brook in 1963. ural, but with some ironstone	- 1999 2000	- 739 849	-117 135	- · 253 319	- 145 182	0.60	- 14.5- 20.4	16/01- 06/11	0.11 0.12	-• 31/07 12/08	1.3 1.5	0.27 0.33	- 0.12- 0.13
032002 M.A: EA	Willow E Local No:	Brook at Fotheringhay Sens.: 8.2	C.A: 89.6 km² S/full: 7.4m³s ⁻¹	389	5 616		276		0.78	15.0	17/03 1947	0.06	08/08 1944	. 1.3	0.63	0.25
Comment: Flume (1. m ³ s ⁻¹ and is not allo significantly influence 1980. Three small re (75%) in headwaters	676m wide throat) with wed for. Lost 4.66 sq.ki d by extractions for Cor servoirs continue to ha and i'st (16.5%). Mostly	rating based on model te m, of catchment to Harpe by steelworks (including i ve minor influence on lov r rural but includes Corby	sts. Bypassing occurs at 6.5 ers Brook in 1963. Low flows mports from Eye Brook) until w flows. # Underlain by clay	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	458 635 751 713 816	74 103 122 116 132	189 208	68 75	0.54 0.59	3.9 3.6	09/01 27/06	0.25 0.27	02/08 23/10	0.8 1.0	0.46 0.47	0.31 0.33
033018 M.A: EA F.A.R: El	Local No: Local Sim	t Cappenham Bridge Sens.; 12.0 UE: <.01	C.A: 138.1 km ² B/full: 32.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.999	629	5 677		241		1.06	28.4	08/03 1975	0.07	24/08 1976	2.3	0.56	0.19
Comment: Compour Theoretical rating sin subject to drowning a use: agricultural.	nd broad-crested trape ice Aug 1970. Prior to t high flows. # Geology:	zoldal weir, 7.6m broad; that data hydraulic mode predominantly Chalk ove	central notch, 2.7m broad. I derived rating. The weir is rlain with Boulder Clay. Land	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	490 635 851 781 837	72 94 126 115 124	142 109 320 284 338	59 45 133 118 140	0.62 0.48 1.40 1.25 1.47	9.7 5.5 51.0 30.4 25.9	09/01 25/12 09/04 20/01 29/10	0.12 0.12 0.20 0.22 0.23	03/08 20/08 18/08 02/08 03/09	1.3 1.0 2.9 2.8 3.4	0.35 0.27 0.74 0.72 0.85	0.17 0.14 0.26 0.28 0.27

_

×

. -----

						Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Кипо П (тт)	% of pre-1998	Mean flow (ش ^و ه ')	Peak Now (^{m3} a ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. dally flow (^{m1} e ⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentlle (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	50 Parcentila (m³e*1)	95 Parcentila (m'a'')
033058 M.A: EA F.A.R: GEI	Local No: Level: 66m	Ouzel at	Bletchley Sens.: 9.3 UE: .02	S/ft FA	C.A: 215.0 km² d: 96.0m³s ⁻¹ : 0.994	7895	674		288		1.96	43.8	23/09 1992	0.35	03/08 1990	3.9	1.25	0.52
Comment: Flat V weiz (Milton Keynes). In a augmented by effluent Clay. Land use: arable	, 10m broad. Co country park a from Leighton E	nstructed to nd subject luzzard, # N	measure flows jus to vandatism. Sm fixed geology - Up	stu/sofurb naligwabs operGreens	an development tractions. Flows and and Oxford	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	452 524 823 661 848	67 78 122 98 126	167 98 326 247 408	58 34 113 86 142	1.13 0.67 2.22 1.69 2.77	14.6 4.1 33.8 37.8	24/02 25/02 09/04 30/10	0.38 0.33 0.49 0.59	28/08 15/08 15/08 13/09	2.0 1.1 4.4 3.7 5.8	0.74 0.56 1.16 1.03 1.47	0.44 0.36 0.55 0.53 0.66
033015 M.A: EA	Local No:	Ouzel a	t Willen Sens.: 8.9	Sft	C.A: 277.1 km² dl: 43.0m³s ⁻¹	6295	657		233		2.05	34.0	26/12 1985	0.03	20/09 1980	4.5	1.19	0.47
F.A.R: GEI Comment: 10m wide F in 1977 when river rea adjacent balancing res flows across the Greet towns in an otherwise	Level: 57m flat V Crump prof ligned. Radial lift ervoir which emp hsand and Oxfor rural catchment.	ile weir repla ing gate imm ties d/s of v d Ctay. Milto	UE: .04 iced compound bra nediately u/s of we veir. Annual floods on Keynes and Lei	FAI bad-crested v eir diverts ve do not byp ighton Buzz	: 0.979 weir, 10m broad, ery high flows to ass. # The river ard are the only	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	453 530 815 667 843	69 81 124 102 128	146 92 278 222 351	63 39 119 95 151	1.28 0.80 2.44 1.95 3.07	16.0 5.6 27.5 17.5d 21.7d	24/02 25/02 09/04 16/01 30/10	0.38 0.32 0.44 0.39 0.61	22/07 16/08 13/08 31/07 13/09	2.2 1.4 5.2 4.7 7.4	0.81 0.63 1.30 1.16 1.73	0.43 0.36 0.52 0.51 0.71
033037 M.A: EA	Bedfo Local No: 3313	ord Ouse at	Newport Pagnell Sens.: 6.4	B/fu EAI	C.A: 800.0 km² x11: 71.0m³s ⁻¹ : 0.951	6995	659		192		4.87	74.8d	16/03 1982	0.10	25/08 1976	12.0	2.00	0.45
Comment: Compound broad). Separate, comp constructed in old mill Abstractions for PWS arable and grassland.	Crump profile w kementary Crum throttle, 7m u/s o approx. 25km u/	eir (29.3m b o weir (3.7m of a double ; s. # Predon	oread), with crest ta broad), with crest ta broad), with crest t arch culvert; subject ninantly pervious of	pping and c apping (loca to drownir atchment (6	entral notch (3m i number 33237) ng at high flows. i0%). Land use:	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	481 606 824 721 854	73 92 125 109 130	81 51 205 153 248	42 27 107 80 129	2.05 1.28 5.21 3.87 6.28	33.2 17.0d 66.0 47.5d 59.3d	26/02 25/12 09/04 21/01 31/10	0.28 0.20 0.41 0.35 0.47	18/09 18/08 20/08 02/08 13/09	4.5 3.1 15.0 10.7 17.5	0.73 0.63 1.99 1.51 2.47	0.32 0.27 0.49 0.44 0.55
033002 M.A: EA E.A.B: SPGEL	E Local No: Level: 25m	edford Ous	e at Bedford Sens.: UF: 02	FAI	C.A: 1460.0 km ²	33-95	654		220		10.20	278.1d	15/03 1947	0.01	15/08 1934	26.6	4.81	0.98
Comment: 3 broad-cre open/closed). High flov based on daily gauge-t dmfs). Recommended groundwater abstractio predominantly clay. La	ested weirs, 30m w rating confirme woard levels and y flow record, fror ns in catchment f nd use: agricultur	, 20m and 1 of by curren gate opening n 1972, from or PWS, Milt ral with subs	2m wide + 3 vert t meter measuren s (limited accuracy n Roxton d/s (330 on Keynes' effluen tantial urban devel	ical sluice g nents. Reco , few hifs & 39). Signific t now signific lopment ove	ates (either fully rds before 1959 many replicated ant surface and cant. # Geology: r last 25 years.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	468 575 605 687 841	72 88 123 105 129	159 110 347 255 400	72 50 158 116 182	7.33 5.08 16.08 11.80 18.48	67.8 77.5 251.0 67.6d 99.6d	27/02 25/11 11/04 22/01 02/11	1.64 1.28 2.24 2.20 2.80	27/09 20/08 15/08 24/07 18/08	15.5 10.7 38.8 29.6 47.0	3.89 3.44 9.08 6.68 10.64	1.92 1.71 2.67 2.38 3.33
033039 M.A: EA	Local No:	Bedford Out	se at Roxton Sens.: 10.5	S/fu	C.A: 1660.0 km ² ill: 122.0m ³ s ⁻¹	7295	642		216		11.38	101.5	25/11 1974	0.21	25/08 1976	27.6	6.08	1.90
P.A.K. PGEL Comment: Flat V Crui confluence with R. Ivel. can spill on rare occasi to Bedford (33002) if pr agriculture. One of 3 s Grafham Water. # G Grafham Water. # G	Level: Iom mp profile weir (2 Drowns at very I ons. Adjacent loc ossible. Significar stations used to eology: predomi looment (Milton k	26m broad) high flows (e k acts as an it surface wa calculate Ot nantly Clay Kevnes).	with crest tapping, .g. during exception overspill in flood c ater and gw abstract ford flows to deter . Land use: prec	situated im nal Easter F conditions, U ctions for PV rmine abstra dominantly	v.990 mediately u/s of loods 1998) and se in preference VS, industry and action regime at agricultural with	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	460 566 795 674 833	. 72 88 124 105 130	143 93 270 219 343	66 43 125 101 159	7.51 4.90 14.21 11.54 18.01	66.1 30.5d 62.6d 84.1d	27/02 26/12 22/01 02/11	1.90 1.44 2.11 2.98	20/09 20/08 31/07 13/08	15.6 10.0 35.4 28.0 46.4	4.22 3.56 8.27 7.06 10.36	2.05 1.82 2.71 2.49 3.37
033033 M.A: EA	Local No:	Hiz at /	Arlesey Sens.:	(S/fu	C.A: 108.0 km ² III: 12.9m ³ s ⁻¹	7395	618		201		0.69	6.3	18/11 1974	0.20	27/08 1976	1. 1	0.58	0.36
F.A.R: GEI Comment: Crump pro effluent affects diurnal catchment. Land use: (Level: 36m file weir, 7m bro flow pattern. Sig agricultural with s	ad. Subject nificant gw ignificant url	UE: .06 to drowning at pe abstractions for PN pan development (FA: eak flows, A WS, # Pred Hitchin).	: 0.994 .ugmentation by ominantly Chalk	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	418 507 750 575 842	68 82 121 93 136	150 101 168 171 228	75 50 84 85 113	0.51 0.34 0.58 0.59 0.78	2.8 1.8 4.4 3.8 4.3	09/01 26/06 09/04 16/01 30/10	0.31 0.24 0.30 0.32 0.38	30/10 09/09 30/08 07/09 12/09	0.7 0.4 1.0 1.0 1.5	0.44 0.33 0.45 0.45 0.56	0.34 0.26 0.31 0.33 0.41
033028 M.A: EA 5 A R: GEL	Local No: Level: 37m	Flit at S	hefford Sens.: 10.5	(S/fu FAI	C.A: 119.6 km² III: 5.8m³s ⁻¹ • 0.991	6695	615		220		0.83	8.2	21/10 1987	0.14	24/08 1976	. 1.4	0.64	0.33
Comment: Trapezoida stage. Subject to drowr irrigation. Abstraction fi predominantly Greensa	I critical depth f ling. Flows affect or PWS closed 1 ind (60%). Land	lume, 9.8m ed by u/s mil 985. Flows use: agricult	broad; 2.1m throa l operation. Surface augmented by efflu ural.	e width. Stri e water abst uent from Lu	ucturefull 0.76m raction for spray iton. # Geology:	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	421 495 763 595 834	68 80 124 97 136	198 160 267 242 326	90 73 121 110 148	0.75 0.61 1.01 0.92 1.23	5.5 2.0 8.2d 5.6d 8.0d	09/01 24/02 09/04 16/01 30/10	0.41 0.39 0.42 0.43 0.50	16/07 13/08 14/08 28/07 13/09	1.0 0.8 1.7 1.5 2.3	0.66 0.57 0.74 0.71 0.88	0.46 0.42 0.45 0.50 0.54
033022 M.A: EA F.A.R: GEL	Local No: Level: 19m	ivel at B	lunham Sens.: 8.6 UE: .04	(S/ft FAI	C.A: 541.3 km ² III: 35.0m ³ s ⁻¹ : 0.987	5995	591		177		3.03	32.6	21/12 1960	0.41	19/08 1976	5.3	2.24	1.11
Comment: Crump pro correction). Significant maxima series. Hydrog low flows. Many abstr stations used to calcula rises near Hitchin and fl south of Bedford. Pred	file weir 7.31m v bypassing when raph reflects u/s actions for spray te Offord flows to ows north across owinantly rural la	ride, Drowni stage exce mill operatio irrigation, (determine a Greensand, nd use.	ng occurs at 0.91 eds 1.1m; 'truncati n. Effluent from ST Groundwater abstra bstraction regime a Chalk and Gault C	m (rating ind ion' effect e IW has sub- actions for l at Grafham V lays to meet	dudes drowning vident in annual stantial effect on PWS. One of 3 Vater. # The Ivei the Great Ouse	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	403 488 736 571 821	68 83 125 97 139	111 69 163 141 222	63 39 92 80 125	1.90 1,18 2,79 2,43 3,80	15.4 4.9 29.0 16.0 26.8	09/01 27/06 09/04 16/01 04/04	0.80 0.59 0.88 0.89 1.12	21/07 20/08 19/08 03/08 13/09	3.1 1.7 5.3 4.4 8.1	1.41 1.11 1.81 1.74 2.33	0.93 0.67 0.95 1.01 1.22
033012 M.A: EA	Local No:	Kym at Me	agre Farm Sens.: 66.0	B/fu	C.A: 137.5 km ² fil: 49.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6095	609		145		0,63	34.0	21/12 1960	0.00	22/08 1976	1.5	0.12	0.02
F.A.R: El Comment: Compound in a trapezoidal channe tailwater levels. Pre-19 date being confirmed). stations used to calcula predominately clar cat	Level: 1/m weir with triangu I, 8.5m wide. Ra 78 flows under re Predominantly na te Offord flow to (brmant - year, flat	lar profile ce ting modified eview. Ultras atural regime letermine ab	UE: <.U1 ntre section 3m wi I to correct for drow onic mounted on t b, modest abstraction straction regime at an standard L and	HAI de and broa wning by we bridge just d ons for agric Grafham W	: 0.992 d-crested flanks ed growth using ownsteam (start sulture. One of 3 ater. # Geology: hural	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	448 523 725 633 792	74 86 119 104 130	96 24 178 114 228	66 17 123 79 157	0.42 0.10 0.78 0.49 0.99	19.7 2.0 25.6 11.7 11.2	09/01 19/12 10/04 16/01 31/12	0.02 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.02	18/09 20/08 21/08 10/09 16/08	0.8 0.2 1.9 1.3 2.6	0.06 0.05 0.16 0.10 0.31	0.03 0.02 0.03 0.03 0.03
033026 M.A: EA	Local No:	Bedford Ou:	se at Offord Sens.: 5.7	(C.A: 2570.0 km²	7095	620		174		14,14	148.4d	22/11 1974	0.51	27/08 1976	35.0	6.66	2.08
F.A.R: SPGEI Comment: Complex o broad; compound broa	Level: 11m f automatic radia d-crested weir, 3	al tilting gate 22.7m broad	UE: h, 15.2m broad; tri l. Navigation lock	FAI iangular pro opened at	file weir, 14.8m flows above 40	1996 1997	443 540	71 87	98 47	56 27	7.99 3.85	81.6d 32.0d	25/02 26/12	1.42 0.67	16/08 28/05	18.1 8.1	3.31 2.51	1.95 1.64
m ⁻ s , Easter 1998 flo m ³ s ⁻¹), Substantial su abstractions, # Geology areas (Milton Keynes)	od >125 cumeo: rface water abstr y: predominantly	a. Abstractio ractions for Chalk. Land	n 2km u/s for Graf PWS, industry and use: mostly agricu	marn Water d agriculture dtural with s	rkes. (approx. 2 . Significant gw ubstantial urban	1998 1999 2000	767 639 822	124 103 133	158	91	12.88	74.0d	18/01	0.89	13/09	35.0	7.52	1.96
033020 M.A: EA	Alco Local No: 33080	onbury Broc	sk at Brampton Sens.: 74.1	G/fL	C.A: 201.5 km ² II: 42.5m ³ s ⁻¹	6393	594		118		0.76	36.6	20/12 1976	0.00	01/09 1991	2,1	0.14	0.01
F.A.R: El Comment: Flat V CP crest>1m., replaced (f 1993). Theoretical ratin flows under review. Dr measurement to correct impervious catchment.	Level: 9m weir in trapezo rom 3/6/95) broa g but hydraulic m owns at approx. t for drowning. H Land use; mainly	idal channe d-crested w todel calibra 1m [°] stage; s gh flows imp rable.	UE: UT I, plus ultrasonic eir with central low tion for flanks prior spills at 2m. Pre 1 beded by bridges u	FAI for use who v flow notch to Apr 197/ 993 rating r i/s and d/s. ;	in Loou an head above (closed in Sep 3. 1978-93 peak nodified by c/m # Predominantly	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	459 521 704 617 757	77 88 119 104 127	98 28 183 129 274	83 24 155 109 232	0.63 0.18 1.17 0.83 1.75	36.8 2.8 35.0 15.7d 42.4d	<i>09/01</i> 29/12 10/04 16/01 06/11	>0.00 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.03	22/07 03/06 13/08 27/07 13/08	1.2 0.4 3.1 2.1 3.8	0.07 0.07 0.22 0.15 0.48	0.01 0.02 0.03 0.03 0.05

ANGLIAN REGION

					Perlod	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean frow (m ³ s ⁻¹)	Peak flow (m³s⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (^{m³s-1})	Date of min.	10 Percentile (^{m³} * ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m ¹ a ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m³s ⁻¹)
033040 M.A: EA	- Local No:	Rhee at	Ashwell Sens.: 14,1	C.A: 2.0 km ² S/full: 1.1m ³ s ⁻¹	6595	591		1020		0.06	0.4	 30/05 1979	0.02	30/07 1973	 0.1	0.05	0.03
F.A.R: RG Comment: Trapezoi of source of R. Rhee m ³ s ⁻¹ maintained by topographic CA. Rur	Level: 40m dal standing wave flu e. Flows influenced b r artificial gw recharg- noff data unrealistic.	me in mou ly large gw e for conse # Geology	UE: Ided glass reinforced plast abstractions for PWS. Mi rvation purposes. Gw cont ; predominantly Chalk. La	FAI: lic. Situated 0.5km d/s in. spring flow of 0.03 tributing area exceeds nd use: agricultural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	381 493 681 581 804	64 83 115 98 136	480 341 498 805 798	47 33 49 79 78	0.03 0.02 0.03 0.05 0.05	0.1 0.0d 0.1 0.1d 0.1d	11/02 16/06 11/06 07/03 24/12	0.01 0.01 0.02 0.03 0.03	09/10 04/03 10/02 18/10 22/01	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1	0.03 0.02 0.03 0.04 0.04	0.02 0.01 0.02 0.03 0.03
033027 M.A: EA F.A.D. CEL	Local No:	Rhee at	Wimpole Sens.: 30.0	C.A: 119.1 km ² S/full: 6.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6595	577		138		0.52	9.2	13/10 1993	0.00	22/08 1976	1.2	0.28	0.07
F.A.R: GEI Comment: Trapezo levels; correction ind bridge abutments 2 # Predominantly Ch:	Level: 18m idal critical depth flu corporated into theoi 0m d/s. Some surf alk catchment with a	me, 6.6m retical ratin ace water pprox, 20%	broad; horizontal crest 3. g. Spills occasionally - hi and groundwater abstra & Boulder Clay cover, Lan	FAI: 1.000 .8m. Drowns at peak igh flows impeded by actions in catchment. id use: agricultural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	383 472 688 595 805	66 82 119 103 140	49 18 96 110 220	36 13 70 80 159	0.19 0.07 0.36 0.42 0.83	3.3 0.6 4.3 4,1 7,1	09/01 28/06 27/09 07/03 30/10	0.04 0.03 0.05 0.07 0.12	05/10 17/08 02/09 31/08 26/08	0.4 0.1 0.9 1.0 2.1	0.10 0.06 0.14 0.23 0.38	0.06 0.04 0.07 0.08 0.14
033064 M.A: EA	Wha Local No:	ddon Bro	ok at Whaddon Sens.: 12.5	C.A: 16.0 km ² S/full: 0.5m ³ s ⁻¹	8095	583		170		0.09	0.4	14/10 1993	0.03	04/12 1989	0.1	0.08	0.04
Comment: Pre-cast affected by effluent Chalk. Land use: rur	fibreglass flume set from Royston STW al.	in concre u/s of stat	te; long-crested flume cre te; long-trested flume cre ion. # The stream is larg	FAL ist 0.1m broad. Flows jely gŵ fed. Geology:	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	386 472 674 592 801	66 81 116 102 137	109 155 153 236	64 91 90 139	0.06 0.08 0.08 0.12	0.3 0.5 0.2d 0.4d	26/06 09/04 28/01 07/11	0.03 0.03 0.04 0.05	16/08 30/08 07/09 28/08	0.1 0.2 0.1 0.2	0.05 0.07 0.06 0.09	0.03 0.03 0.04 0.06
033062 M.A: EA F.A.B: G	Guilde Local No: Level: 19m	en Brook :	at FowImere Two Sens.:	C.A: 3.4 km ² S/full: 1.5m ³ s ⁻¹	6495	567		584		0.06	0.4	05/02 1984	0.02	21/08 1989	0.1	0.05	0.02
Comment: Trapezo Abstraction u/s for s Cambridge. Rural - (idal flume in trapez pray irrigation. # Sm grassland, orchard a	oidal, strai all, mainly nd deciduc	ght channel. Opened as gw fed, catchment draini us woodland.	part of gw scheme. ng the Chalk, SSE of	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	378 456 637 561 767	67 80 112 99 135	299 152 283 374	51 26 48 64	0.03 0.02 0.03 0.04	0.1 0.0d 0.1 0.1d	17/04 18/03 16/05 21/03	0.02 >0.00 0.02 0.02	29/10 21/08 22/08 27/07	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1	0.03 0.02 0.03 0.03	0.02 0.02 0.03
033061 M.A: EA	S Local No: Local 20m	hep at Fo	wimere One Sens.:	C.A: 3.4 km ² "S/full: 0.5m ³ s ⁻¹	9595	534					0.3	14/03 1995	0.03	09/08 1995			
Comment: Crump v operational from 197 may affect flow. Bri mainly gw fed, catch woodland.	veir 1.1m wide insta 78. Levels from 1964 dge invert immediate ment draining from th	lled in Ma . Station o ely d/s wo e Chalk, S	r 1983. Replaced a recta pened as part of gw sche uld cause drowning above SE of Cambridge. Rural -	ngular thin-plate weir me. Weed growth d/s e 0.4m ³ s ⁻¹ . # Small, grassland, marsh and	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	376 454 633 559 764	70 85 119 105 143	504 190 387 903		0.05 0.02 0.04 0.10	0.2 0.0d 0.1d 0.4d	21/02 22/01 23/12 23/11	0.01 >0.00 0.01 0.04	15/09 12/06 22/08 12/09	0.1 0.0 0.1 0.2	0.04 0.02 0.04 0.08	0.02 0.01 0.02 0.05
033021 M A: FA	Local No:	Rhee at	Burnt Mill Sens : 19.4	C.A: 303.0 km ² S/full: 14.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6295	570		126		1.21	19.4	29/03	0.05	21/08	2.5	0.79	0.27
F.A.R: GEI Comment: Trapezoi at high flows; rating drowning during su Augmentation from 30% overlain with B	Level: 9m dal cross-section we modified by c/m me immer due to we gw sources to regula outder Clay. Land us	ir with trian asuremen d growth ate river fic e arable.	UE:.01 igular profile crest, 6.1m bi ts to correct for drowning. d/s. Substantial gw ab ww. # Predominantly Chall	FAI: 0.997 road. Weir drowns out . Weir also subject to ostractions for PWS, k catchment - approx	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	387 471 672 593 792	68 83 118 104 139	59 29 89 99 196	47 23 71 79 156	0.56 0.28 0.86 0.95 1.87	3.7 1.1 7.0 6.7 11.2	09/01 28/06 16/04 08/03 08/11	0.17 0.15 0.15 0.28 0.36	18/09 19/08 20/08 09/09 15/08	1.1 0.4 1.8 2.0 4.6	0.35 0.26 0.53 0.61 1.03	0.24 0.17 0.25 0.31 0.46
033051 M.A: EA'	Local No:	Cam at C	hesterford Sens.: 13.9	C.A: 141.0 km ² B/fúll: 46.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6495	607		134		0.60	13.0	01/02 1979	0.07	26/07 1976	1.1	0.43	0.18
F.A.R: GET Comment: Compou 3m broad, 0.23m di approx. 70% Boulde	Level: 35m nd broad-crested we sep. Significant gw a r Clay cover. Land u	ir, 22.3m t abstraction se: arable.	DE: .02 proad (in trapezoidal sections s for PWS. # Geology: p	FAI: 0.993 on) with central notch predominantly Chalk -	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	443 495 702 642 832	73 82 116 106 137	65 40 107 133 216	49 30 80 99 161	0.29 0.18 0.48 0.60 0.96	5.5 0.8 9.1 7.1d 9.2d	12/02 25/02 15/04 28/01 30/10	0.12 0.11 0.14 0.20 0.22	06/10 22/08 22/08 02/08 12/09	0.4 0.2 1.0 1.1 2.1	0.23 0.17 0.27 0.36 0.56	0.14 0.13 0.17 0.22 0.25
033024 M.A: EA	Local No:	Cam at	Dernford Sens.: 14.6	C.A: 198.0 km ²	4995	596		153		0.96	14.1	02/02 1979	0.03	03/07 1949	1.7	0.75	0.32
F.A.R. GET Comment: Rectang flows. Weir subject abstractions for PWS within the catchmen arable.	Level, John ular thin-plate weir, 5 to drowning, tailwa S. Flow regime affect tt. # Predominantly	.8m broad. ter levels ed by indu: pervious c	Bridge pier may affect app measured to assist ratin strial effluent derived from atchment underlain by Ch	FAI: 0.995 proach velocity at high ng. Five groundwater groundwater pumped halk(60%). Land use:	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	430 488 685 626 819	72 82 115 105 137	74 42 96 129 204	48 27 63 84 133	0.46 0.26 0.60 0.81 1.27	5.1 0.8 6.9 8.1 9.2	12/02 25/02 16/04 28/01 31/10	0.16 0.10 0.19 0.29 0.31	06/10 24/08 31/08 03/08 26/08	0.8 0.4 1.0 1.4 2.7	0.36 0.27 0.43 0.54 0.85	0.18 0.14 0.26 0.34 0.39
033066 M.A: EA	Local No:	Granta	at Linton Sens.: 25.0	C.A: 59.8 km ² S/full: 3.9m ³ s ⁻¹	81. <i>.</i> 95	616		101		0.19	5.5	09/10 1987	0.00	01/09 1992	0.4	0.09	>0.00
water level exceeds approx. 0.03 m ³ s ⁻¹ ; on Chalk - land use	about 0.46m. S.3n about 0.46m. Some s zero flows occur who is principally agricult	n broad wit gw abstrac en pumps f ural (arabl	tion. River is pump suppor fail. # A small rural catchm e).	ture drowns when u/s ted to maintain flow at nent developed largely	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	424 495 672 642 814	69 80 109 104 132	38 14 58 83 179	38 14 57 82 177	0.07 0.03 0.11 0.16 0.34	3.5 0.4 3.9 3.3d 4.2d	09/01 19/12 02/11 07/03 06/11	>0.00 0.00 >0.00 0.02 0.02	26/09 07/06 11/01 01/08 12/09	0.1 0.0 0.3 0.4 0.8	0.03 0.03 0.03 0.05 0.12	0.01 0.02 0.01 0.02 0.03
033055 M.A: EA	{ Local No:	Granta at	Babraham Sens.: 36.0	C.A: 98.7 km ² S/full: 6.5m ³ s ⁻¹	6395	601		77		0.24	8.9	29/01 1988	0.00	06/11 1976	0.5	0.14	0.01
Comment: Triangul Comment: Triangul wing walls above on Land use: predomin	Level: 23m ar profile Flat V weir est - 0.6m. Significar antly arable.	, 8.3m bro nt gw abstr	ad; constructed on an old actions for PWS. # Geolo	PAL: 1,000 b brick weir. Height of ogy: Chalk catchment.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	413 487 665 628 799	69 81 111 104 133	5 35 63 131	6 45 82 170	0.02 0.11 0.20 0.41	0.3 2.8 3.0d 5.3d	25/02 25/12 07/03 06/11	>0.00 0.01 0.02 0.04	09/08 11/01 04/12 12/09	0.0 0.3 0.4 1.0	>0.00 0.04 0.10 0.19	>0.00 0.01 0.04 0.05
033053 M.A: EA	Local No: 33053	Granta at	Stapleford Sens.: 70.0	C.A: 114.0 km ² S/full: 7.5m ³ s ⁻¹	4995	586		63	-	0.23	9.6d	21/12 1960	0.00	01/10 1976	0.5	0.13	0.01
Comment: Compou superseded - in 19 considered valid. # H arable agriculture.	Level: 15m ind weir with Crump 81 - original thin-pla leadwaters drain the	notch (1.5 te weir; sc Chalk, ma	up: m broad) and broad-cress orme flows estimated, only ainly impervious below. La	FAI: ted flanks (3m broad) y monthly means are nd use: dominated by	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	410 481 660 621 791	70 82 113 106 135	28 2 32 63 131	44 3 51 100 208	0.10 0.01 0.11 0.23 0.47	2.8 3.2 2.8d 4.6d	12/02 16/04 07/03 07/11	0.00 0.00 0.01 0.02 0.04	18/08 28/05 22/08 02/08 12/09	0.2 0.0 0.3 0.5 1.1	>0.00 0.01 0.04 0.12 0.22	>0.00 0.01 0.04 0.05

. -

					Perlod	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (^{m1} a' ¹)	Peak flow (m ³ e ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min, dally flow (^{m1} ***)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m²a·1)	50 Percentile (m³e*')	95 Percentile (m³±'')
033056 M.A. EA F.A.R. GEI	Local No: Level: 3m	Quy Wat	er at Lode Sens.: 50.0 UE:	C.A: 76.4 km² Srfudi: 2.4m³s ⁻¹ FAI:	6595	569		79		0,19	2.7	07/08 1988	0.00	20/09 1976	0.5	0.14	0.01
Comment: Compound flows greater than 0.3 Pre-1975 data impred the fen and can dry up Greensand in lower encroaching into catch	d weir, 4.8m bro 32 m ³ s ⁻¹ flow o ise. Peak flow o . Three large ab catchment. Lan hment.	ad, with Crump occurs over bri lata from 1979 stractions in ca d use: mainly	profile centre section, 1 pad-crested flanks betw). In dry weather stream atchment for PWS. # Gen agricultural with easte	Im broad, 0.3m deep. At een vertical side walls. I leaks through bed into ology: Chalk with Upper im edge of Cambridge	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	384 491 638 625 713	67 86 112 110 125	21 49 98 139	27 62 124 176	0.05 0.12 0.24 0.33	0.7 0.9 0.8d 1.2d	20/04 26/12 08/03 28/11	0.02 0.03 0.03 0.04	25/08 20/09 02/08 27/08	0.1 0.2 0.5 0.9	0.05 0.10 0.15 0.26	0.03 0.03 0.03 0.06
033052 M.A: EA F.A.R: GE	Swaf Local No: Level: 3m	fham Lode at	Swaffham Bulbeck Sens.: UE: <.01 timmediately uts of ma	C.A: 36.4 km ² S/fuß: 2.6m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 1.000 ad bridge Prior to 1973.	6395	561 405	72	137		0.16	1.4	13/10 1993	0.02	07/09 1976	0.3	0.14	0.06
thin-plate weir, 1.45m Land use: arable.	broad. Significa	int gw abstract	ions for PWS. # Geolog	y: predominantly Chalk.	1997 1998 1999 2000	496 666 649 756	88 119 116 135	29 88 194	21 64 142	0.03 0.10 0.22	0.2 0.3 0.5d	13/08 31/12 28/11	0.02 0.04 0.12	02/10 01/01 12/09	0.0 0.2 0.4	0.04 0.08 0.21	0.02 0.06 0.13
033067 M.A: EA F.A.R: GEI	Local No: Levei: 3m	New River	at Burwell Sens.: 15.5 UE:	C.A: 19.6 km² S/full: 1.7m³s ⁻¹ FAI:	8295	587		373		0.23	1.0	30/01 1988	0.09	07/11 1989	0.4	0.21	0.10
Comment: Crump we level (0.32m). Flows a weed cutting machine graphic catchment. # I use.	ir 1.5m broad in ffected by groun ry onto land with Entirely drift free	straight, high dwater abstrac h crops. Runof Chalk catchm	banked ditch. Structure tions and weed growth (f suggests that contribut ent. Rural with arable far	drowns at relatively low (farmer will not allow EA ting area exceeds topo- ming the dominant land	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	389 511 645 660 721	66 87 110 112 123	198 170 278 1146 479	53 46 75 307 128	0.12 0.11 0.17 0.71 0.30	0.3 0.2d 0.8 1.8d 0.7d	02/10 28/06 08/10 11/08 28/05	0.08 0.08 0.11 0.14 0.14	31/07 05/06 15/10 17/10 06/10	0.2 0.1 0.2 1.4 0.5	0.11 0.10 0.16 0.58 0.26	0.08 0.08 0.13 0.15 0.15
033050 M.A: EA E A B: GI	Local No: Level: 10m	Snail at	Fordham Sens.: 21.4 UE: 04	C.A: 60.6 km ² S/full: 7.8m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 1.000	6095	583 ,		157		0.30	2.3	13/10 1993	0.05	06/08 1992	0.5	0.28	0.11
Comment: Flat V Cru broad) measured byp 84 and main weir ratin for PWS and surface of of catchment covered	imp profile weir, ass channel dis g adjusted to co water abstractio by Boulder Cla	, 4m broad. Pri charge. Flows mpensate (flow ns for spray irm y. Land use: 9	or to 1985 subsidiary C combined into single se vs increased by 2%). Sig igation. # Geology: pred 0% rural; 10% urbanise	nump profile weir (0.7m eries. Weir removed 12/ inificant gw abstractions iominantly Chalk; S part id (Newmarket).	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	425 528 682 695 784	73 91 117 119 134	92 69 124 165 208	59 44 79 105 132	0.18 0.13 0.24 0.32 0.40	0.9 0.9 2.4 1.2d 2.0d	09/01 11/06 09/04 07/03 06/11	0.09 0.08 0.10 0.16 0.17	21/08 03/06 20/08 02/08 13/09	0.3 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.6	0.15 0.12 0.21 0.31 0.35	0.09 0.08 0.12 0.18 0.20
033014 M.A: EA	Local No:	Lark at	Temple Sens.: 6.8	C.A: 272.0 km ² S/full: 25.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6095	610		148		1.28	22.1	17/09 1968	0.16	26/07 1991	2.3	1.04	0.52
F.A.R: GEI Comment: Compound 3m broad. Full range gauging station. Sign # Geology: predomina	Level: 9m d broad-crested e rating confirm hificant gw abs antly Chalk - 70	weir with recta ed by c/m me tractions in c % overlain with	DE: 02 ingular cross-section, 5.1 assurements. Flows affe atchment for PWS, inc boulder Clay, Land us	FAI: 0.955 8m broad, central notch ected by milling u/s of dustry and agriculture. e - agricultural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	477 531 686 729 795	78 87 112 120 130	74 60 121 155 209	50 41 82 105 141	0.64 0.52 1.04 1.33 1.80	3.7 9.0 7.3 11.4	19/12 10/04 24/04 08/11	0.13 0.36 0.50 0.62	18/08 22/08 02/08 05/09	0.9 0.8 1.7 2.0 3.5	0.64 0.49 0.85 1.15 1.34	0.34 0.23 0.48 0.70 0.79
033023 M.A: EA	Local No:	Lea Brook af	Sens.: 90.1	C.A: 101.8 km ² S/full: 4.2m ³ s ⁻¹	6295	562		77		0.25	5.4	13/10 1993	>0.00	02/10 1991	0.6	0.13	0.02
Comment: Crump pro highest flows are con doubt about the high condition. Some gw al cover.	Level: 4m ifile weir 4m wid tained. The low flow calibration fostraction for PV	e, situated app flow calibration n owing to two VS. # A rural C	OE: <.01 rox. 20m u/s of new road on has been confirmed o large concrete blocks chalk catchment with app	a bridge. All but the very by c/m. There is some s which spoil the entry prox. 70% Boulder Clay	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	439 539 685 715 798	78 96 122 127 142	15 8 39 75 135	19 10 51 97 175	0.05 0.03 0.13 0.24 0.44	1.2 0.4 5.7 3.2 3.8	25/02 19/12 10/04 24/04 30/10	0.01 0.01 0.03 0.05 0.04	23/10 17/11 01/01 05/12 12/09	0.1 0.0 0.2 0.4 1.0	0.03 0.02 0.06 0.18 0.26	0.02 0.02 0.03 0.06 0.08
033046 M.A: EA F.A.R: GI	Local No: Level: 20m	Thet at R	ed Bridge Sens.: 23.8 UE: .02	C.A: 145.3 km² B/full: 14.6m³s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.956	6795	633 ì		190		0.88	18.0d	17/09 1968	0.03	25/08 1976	1.9	0.52	0.14
Comment: Crump pi structurefull, thereafte industry; surface wate 1973. # Geology: pred	rofile weir 4m I er rating allows r abstractions fo dominantly Chal	broad. Theore for drowning or spray irrigati k overlain with	tical rating confirmed t and spilling. Gw abst ion. Highest instantaneo Boulder Clay. Land usi	by current metering to tractions for PWS and bus flows available from e: agricultural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	512 581 789 732 748	81 92 125 116 118	87 108 301 252 312	46 57 158 133 164	0.40 0.50 1.39 1.16 1.43	2.3 6.4 13.6 11.6d 12.3d	20/12 20/12 10/04 10/03 07/11	0.05 0.09 0.15 0.12 0.18	07/08 23/09 21/08 02/08 26/08	0.8 1.0 3.8 2.6 3.7	0.28 0.31 0.79 0.68 0.79	0.09 0.12 0.22 0.19 0.20
033045 M.A: EA F.A.R: GI	Local No: Lével: 24m	Wittle at C	Sens.: 32.4 UE: .01	C.A: 28.3 km ² S/fuil: 2.2m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.976	6795	617		146		0.13	3.2d	16/09 1968	0.00	06/10 1992	0.3	0.07	0.01
Comment: Compound situated under road bu by pumping of two bo Scheme (abstraction available from 1973, agricultural.	d broad-crested ridge. Theoretic preholes into riv point at Hockw # Geology: pr	weir (crest 3m al rating modifi er u/s of Quidi old on the Litt redominantly (), with central notch sepa ed by c/m measuremen enham to support Ely C de Ouse). Weir drowne- Chalk overlain with Bo	arated by splitter plates; its. Flow regime altered Juse to Essex Transfer d in 1968 floods. HIFs ulder Clay. Land use:	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	494 574 777 757 715	80 93 126 123 116	54 57 199 241 228	37 39 136 165 156	0.05 0.05 0.18 0.22 0.20	0.2 1.4 1.0 1.4d 1.3d	30/12 01/07 12/04 10/03 07/11	0.01 0.01 0.04 0.03 0.03	25/06 16/09 20/08 02/08 13/09	0.1 0.1 0.4 0.5 0.5	0.04 0.04 0.12 0.15 0.12	0.02 0.01 0.04 0.05 0.03
033044 M.A: EA	Local No:	Thet at E	Bridgham Sens.: 14.9	C.A: 277.8 km ² S/full: 10.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6795	632		179		1.58	13.8	04/02 1979	0.12	26/08 1976	3.3	1.09	0.39
Comment: Crump pr situated under double ments. Gw abstraction catchment with one of	Level: 15m ofile weir, 6m I-arch bridge. Th is in catchment. r two small towr	broad. Prior to heoretical ratin # Geology: Ch is.	 Oct 1979, broad-cres g for original weir confi ialk with approx. 90% Bc 	FAI: 0.952 ted weir (crest: 7.4m), irmed by c/m measure- bulder Clay cover. Rural	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	512 578 787 750 753	81 91 125 119 119	88 100 244 246 249	49 56 136 137 139	0.77 0.88 2.15 2.17 2.19	4.5d 13.1 11.5d 9.5d	20/12 11/04 12/03 09/11	0.21 0.46 0.37 0.50	20/09 19/08 02/08 17/08	1.3 1.5 4.5 4.1 4.4	0.67 0.74 1.72 1.68 1.79	0.37 0.27 0.57 0.61 0.55
033019 M.A: EA	Local No:	Thet at Mel	ford Bridge Sens.: 14.2	C.A: 316.0 km ² S/full: 14.5m ³ s ⁻¹	6295	618		184		1.84	15.2	29/04 1981	0.10	25/08 1976	3.7	1.34	0.49
Comment: Triangular to drowning during sur overlain by Boulder C	profile weir, 6.2 nmer due to we lay. Land use: a	m broad. Theo ed growth d/s. arable.	retical rating modified in # Predominantly Chalk o	Apr 1968. Weir subject catchment; approx 70%	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	515 576 786 756 753	83 93 127 122 122	98 104 248 251 252	53 57 135 136 137	0.98 1.05 2.49 2.52 2.52	3.1 5.4 14.1 12.9 9.9	25/02 21/12 13/04 12/03 10/11	0.26 0.29 0.51 0.46 0.58	20/06 22/09 22/08 02/08 18/08	1.6 1.7 5.2 4.7 5.2	0.84 0.91 2.08 2.03 2.11	0.46 0.33 0.73 0.71 0.66
033063 M.A: EA	Local No:	Little Ouse a	t Knettishali Sens.: 19.0	C.A: 101.0 km² S/full: 7.9m³s ^{−1}	8095	609		141		0.45	` 6.8	27/08 1987	0.05	31/08 1990	0.9	0.31	0.13
P.A.R. GEI Comment: Compound abstractions and return predominantly Chalk.	Level: 16m d Crump profile urns. 3 wells Land use: arabl	weir, 4.5m bro constructed ir le.	ad. Structure drowns at 1987 to augment to	FAL 0.962 bove 3.35 m ³ s ⁻¹ . Minor bw flows. # Geology:	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	481 544 716 740 710	79 89 118 122 117	59 53 148 204 223	42 38 105 145 158	0.19 0.17 0.48 0.65 0.71	0.8 2.2 4.9 4.4d 5.1d	20/11 19/12 11/04 25/04 08/11	0.05 0.05 0.13 0.19 0.16	26/08 21/08 20/08 02/08 13/09	0.3 0.2 1.0 1.2 1.3	0.18 0.16 0.35 0.50 0.43	0.09 0.06 0.15 0.23 0.18
																	<u> </u>

- - .

. _

	Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m³s ⁻¹)	Peak flow (m ³ s ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min daily flow (^{m³s-1})	Date of min.	10 Percentile $(m^{3} a^{-1})$	50 Percentile (m ³ s ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m ³ s ⁻¹)
033011 Little Ouse at County Bridge Euston C.A: 128.7.km² M.A: EA Local No: Sens.: 12.2 S/full: 30.0m³s^{-1}	4895	588		102		0.42	11.1d	10/03 1952	0.00	19/08 1976	0.8	0.29	 0.09
F.A.R: GEI Level: 13m UE: <.01 FAI: 0.985 Comment: Compound weir with triangular profile centre section, 3.4m broad; broad-crested flanks in trapezoidal channel - 9m. Gw abstractions for PWS and spray imgation. HIFs from Nov 1960. # Geology: predominantly Chalk with some clay. Land use: agricultural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	485 544 720 745 713	82 93 122 127 121	30 30 108 157 159	29 29 106 154 156	0.12 0.12 0.44 0.64 0.65	0.6 3.0 5.6 4.4d 5.8d	20/11 <i>20/12</i> 11/04 11/03 31/05	>0.00 0.00 0.09 0.12 0.13	03/08 03/10 22/08 02/08 30/08	0.2 0.2 0.9 1.1 1.3	0.12 0.10 0.32 0.50 0.45	, 0.03 0.01 0.11 0.20 0.15
033013 Sapiston at Rectory Bridge C.A: 205.9 km² M.A: EA Local No: Sens.: 40.4 S/full: 14.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.P. CEI Local No: Sens.: 40.4 S/full: 54.0.00	49.,95	599		102		0.67	15.6	17/09 1968	>0.00	05/10 1991	1.4	0.44	0.09
Comment: Rectangular thin-plate weir, 8.8m broad, suppressed end contractions. Minor gw abstractions for PWS and agriculture. HIFs on NRFA from May 1960. # Geology: predominately Chalk with Boulder Clay cover. Land use: agricultural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	468 523 669 702 744	78 87 112 117 124	51 49 114 136 182	50 48 112 133 178	0.33 0.32 0.74 0.88 1.19	1.9 '3.7 6.0 4.4 10.0	21/11 21/12 11/04 03/03 08/11	0.05 0.04 0.16 0.14 0.19	18/07 10/09 21/08 24/07 01/09	0.6 0.6 1.6 1.8 2.8	0.30 0.23 0.49 0.66 0.72	0.07 0.07 0.18 0.26 0.27
033034 Little Ouse at Abbey Heath C.A: 688.5 km² M.A: EA Local No: Sens:: 10.6 S/full: 40.0m³s ⁻¹ E.A.P: CEI Local X Life: 0.4 EAL: 0.27	6895	608		173		3.78	25.3	13/10 1987	0.48	28/08 1976	7.2	2.81	1.15
Comment: Rectangular section Crump profile weir with crest tapping. Replaced 33008 (Thetford Staunch) in 1968. Weir subject to drowning and spills on rare occasions. Since the late 1980s, low flows augmented with groundwater in drought conditions. Vandalised August 2000, estimated rebuild early 2002. # Geology: Chaik with approx. 85% Boulder Clay cover. Land use: predominately agricultural with large areas of forest and heathland.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	496 553 736 738 742	82 91 121 121 122	77 80 189 210	45 46 109 121	1.68 1.75 4.13 4.59	5.8 -8.8 21.1 18.2	21/11 21/12 12/04 12/03	0.63 0.51 1.22 1.18	20/06 27/09 22/08 02/08	2.7 2.7 8.3 8.3	1.53 1.58 3.45 3.74	0.85 0.67 1.38 1.61
033006 Wissey at Northwold C.A: 274.5 km² M.A: EA Local No: 33106 Sens: 9.2 Sfull: 11.5m³s ⁻¹ E.A.P.R.DEL Local No: 33106 Sens: 9.2 Sfull: 11.5m³s ⁻¹	56.,95	650		205		1.79	13.3	20/11 1974	0.18	19/09 1991	3.5	1.40	0.46
Commert: Rectangular critical depth flume, 4.9m wide, main weir (33106) with side weir (from March 1981 - 33206) taking approx. 10% runoff, streams rejoin just d/s of gauges. Combined flows from 1997. Drowning common - flows adjusted. Limited net impact of abstractions and discharges but spray irrigation increasing (substantial proportion from groundwater). # Geology: Chalk overlain by Boulder Clay (permeable in parts). Low population density. Largely arable, extensive heathland also.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	543 621 795 758 821	84 96 122 117 126	108 119 240 237 263	53 58 117 116 128	0.94 1.04 2.09 2.06 2.28	3.4d 4.3d 9.8d 6.9d 6.6d	26/02 21/12 12/04 11/03 09/11	0.25 0.38 0.59 0.56 0.74	21/08 27/09 26/09 10/09 31/08	1.6 1.7 4.1 3.8 4.1	0.86 0.92 1.86 1.63 2.06	0.30 0.43 0.63 0.65 0.82
033029 Stringside at Whitebridge C.A: 98.8 km² M.A: EA Local No: Sens.: 21.1 S/full: 3.9m³s ⁻¹	6595	629		158		0.49	4.6	29/01 1988	0.00	27/08 1995	1,1	0.36	0.04
F.A.K GI EAVE: 3m UELS (UI FAI: 0.993 Comment: A trapezoidal critical depth flume, calibrated by model and designed to operate in the non-modular range. High flows should be reliable in periods when the channel has been maintained. Two gw abstractions for PWS. # A rural catchment developed mainly on Chalk with some clay.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	542 602 784 709 795	86 96 125 113 126	43 64 198 170 204	27 41 125 108 129	0.14 0.20 0.62 0.53 0.64	0.6 1.4 5.4 3.2 3.2	19/12 19/12 09/04 10/03 26/04	0.02 0.05 0.13 0.05 0.11	21/07 30/09 26/09 04/08 30/08	0.3 0.3 1.2 1.1 1.3	⁺ 0.13 0.20 0.54 0.39 0.60	0.03 0.06 0.13 0.08 0.13
033007 Nar at Marham C.A: 153.3 km² M.A: EA Local No: Sens.: 12.0 S/full: 25.6m³s ⁻¹ E.A. B: DCEL Local Sens.: 10.1 CAL 0.030	53.,95	680		238		1.16	7.8	12/02 1977	0.14	24/08 1976	2.1	0.97	0.42
Commert: Chical depth filme, 7.16m wide. Prior to Apr 1982, flume (7.47m wide) contained low flow notch. Weed growth can be a problem during summer if not cut regularly. Surface water abstraction for PWS immediately u/s of station. Three small underground abstractions were- abandoned in 1986. # Geology: Chalk catchment overlain by clay in upper reaches. Land use - agricultural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	586 648 852 757 857	86 95 125 111 126	118 151 277 251 267	50 63 116 105 112	0.57 0.73 1.35 1.22 1.29	1.5 1.7 6.6 3.6 4.2	21/12 21/12 11/04 10/03 31/10	0.17 0.40 0.63 0.48 0.52	06/08 25/09 22/08 01/08 12/09	0.9 1.0 2.0 2.2 2.2	0.58 0.74 1.30 1.05 1.20	0.23 0.43 0.69 0.56 0.61
033054 Babingley at Castle Rising C.A: 47.7 km² MA: EA Local No: Sens.: S/full: 11.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: GEI Level: 5m UE: <.01	7695	670		315		0.48	2.1	28/03 1979	0.06	08/01 1995	8.0	0.42	0.15
Comment: Triangular profile Flat V Crump weir, 4.5m broad; level of wingwalls - 1.2m above crest. Subject to drowning. Significant gw abstraction for PWS. Access problems may force closure, # Geology: Chalk catchment. Land use: arable.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	590 613 823 785 828	88 91 123 117 124	157 220 405 442 441	50 70 129 140 140	0.24 0.33 0.61 0.67 0.66	1:2 1:1 1.4 1.4 1.3	27/05 05/05 11/04 26/01 25/11	0.08 0.23 0.34 0.30 0.36	09/08 20/08 13/08 02/08 06/10	0.4 0.4 0.9 1.0 1.0	0.22 0.33 0.60 0.58 0.65	0.13 0.24 0.37 0.33 0.39
033032 Heacham C.A: 59.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: Sens.: 33.5 S/full: 5.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: GI - Lave!: 9m LIF: 02 FAI: 1.000	6595	679		110		0.20	1.2	01/08 1980	0.01	10/12 1991	0.4	0.17	0 _. 04
Comment: Two Crump profile weirs in parallel, each 3m broad. Weirs never drown. Gw abstraction for PWS and irrigation. Topographical catchment area substantially exceeds the true contributing area (by a factor of about two). # Geology: predominantly Chalk (approx. 40%); overlain by Boulder Clay. Land use: agricultural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	577 629 844 803 816	85 93 124 118 120	50 56 119 163 166	45 51 108 148 151	0.09 0.11 0.22 0.31 0.31	0.5 0.2 0.6 0.8 0.7	22/04 22/04 01/05 26/01 05/12	0.05 0.07 . 0.07 0.13 0.14	23/10 14/11 19/10 09/09 05/10	0.1 0.1 0.4 0.6 0.5	0.09 0.10 0.21 0.22 0.30	0.05 0.07 0.08 0.14 0.15
034012 Burn at Burnham Overy C.A: 80.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: Sens.: 7.6 B/full: 2.8m³s ⁻¹ E.A.P: GEL Local No: Sens.: 7.6 B/full: 2.0m³s ⁻¹	6695	668		121		0.31	1,4	20/02 1977	0.05	19/09 1989	0.5	0.26	0.09
Comment: A Crump weir which bypasses at 2.3 m ³ s ⁻¹ . Can be affected by mill operations c 50m upstream. Annual hydrographs reflect high baseflow component from the Chalk aquifer. Gw abstractions have only a minimal impact on the natural runoff. May be a minor net import from outside the catchment due to effluent. # Predominantly Boulder Clay with underlying Chalk exposed in the valleys. Rural land use.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	553 627 830 805 825	83 94 124 121 124	58 63 131 184 164	48 52 108 152 136	0.15 0.16 0.33 0.47 0.41	0.6 1.4 	01/03 <i>30/04</i> <i>14/06</i> 19/04 17/12	0.09 0.06 0.18 0.20 0.24	20/08 05/11 01/01 07/08 06/10	0.2 0.2 0.5 0.8 0.6	0.15 0.16 .0.34 0.38 0.40	0.09 0.12 0.21 0.24 0.26
034018 Stiffkey at Warham All Saints C.A: 87.8 km² M.A: EA Local No: Sens.: 16.5	7295	657		185		0.51	12.5	11/02 1977	0.04	28/07 1976	1.0	0.38	0.09
F.A.R: PGI Level: 5m UE:01 FAI: 00.997 Comment: Flat V weir with crest tapping, drowns above 0.8 m ³ s ⁻¹ . Prior to 1978 (when dredging took place) d/s weed growth during summer months could cause complete drowning of gauging structure at lower flows. Large abstractions from gw for PWS causes a significant reduction in the natural runoff. # The catchment is predominantly Chalk and Boulder Clay. It supports rural land use.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	597 630 814 821 815	91 96 124 125 124	113 <i>134</i> 201	61 72 109	0.31 0.37 0.56	1.7 2.2d	20/12 11/04	0.06 0.14	08/08 21/08	0.6 0.6 1.1	0.25 0.32 0.50	0.08 0.16 0.19
034003 Bure at Ingworth C.A: 164.7 km² M.A: EA Local No: Sens: 8.6 B/full: 4.3m³s ⁻¹ FA PE OF Local Local No: Sens: 8.6 B/full: 4.3m³s ⁻¹	5995	.671		210		1.10	18,3	26/04 1981	0.38	24/08 1976	1.7	0.96	0.57
Comment: Two ogec profile weirs beneath bridge arches bypassed at 4.3 m ³ s ⁻¹ but maintains modularity. Occasionally drowns owing to lots of weed and read growth - some contention with coincident SSSI regime. Limited ground and surface water abstractions with some returns from public and agricultural uses. # Rural land use. Catchment comprises sands, gravels and loams.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	579 608 829 831 814	86 91, 124 124 121	162 154 232 256 264	77 73 110 122 126	0.84 0.81 1.21 1.34 1.37	4.2 3.6 5.0 4.6 6.0	12/11 27/06 15/04 03/07 28/05	0.40 0.48 0.53 0.62 0.77	19/08 20/08 13/08 01/08 13/09	1.3 1.2 2.1 2.0 2.0	0.70 0.70 0.99 1.21 1.23	0.46 0.51 0.60 0.76 0.84

4

,

					Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m's'')	Peak flow (m'a'')	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (^{m3} a ¹¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m'e'')	50 Percentile (m'a'')	95 Percentile (m***)
034011 M.A: EA F.A.R: GI	Local No: Level: 34m	Wensum a	tt Fakenham Sens.: 13.2 UE: .01	C.A: 161.9 km² B/tul: 11.0m³s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.997	6795	691		175		0.88	9.7	12/02 1977	0.12	16/09 1991	1.6	0.75	0.29
Comment: Compour sharp-crested weir. (of Boulder Clay with	nd Crump with lo Gw abstractions I large pockets of	w flow notch. A have a minima I sand and gra	Lifting gate for retainin I impact on runoff. # A vel.	g summer levels acts as a low lying rural catchment	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	615 653 851 817 855	89 95 123 118 124	80 94 188 208 211	47 55 110 122 123	0.41 0.48 0.96 1.07 1.08	2.8 3.6 5.9 3.5 4.7	11/03 19/12 11/04 10/03 26/05	0.12 0.22 0.36 0.37 0.38	22/07 05/10 20/08 11/09 13/09	0.8 0.8 1.6 1.8 1.9	0.31 0.40 0.85 0.87 0.99	0.14 0.23 0.40 0.43 0.44
034014 M.A: EA	We Local No:	insum at Swa	nton Morley Total Sens.: 7.0	C.A: 397.8 km ²	6995	674		209		2.64	31.4d	27 <i>j</i> 04 1981	0.40	31/08 1991	4.9	2.09	0.97
F.A.R: GEI Comment: Two str. Crump weirs which : Three Crump weirs a moderate reduction i arable agriculture.	Level; m actures 150m ap sometimes displi are sited in arche n the natural run	art operate in ay non-modula is beneath a s off. # A Boulde	UE: parallel. Beneath the ir flow as a result of s econd bridge (34214). ir Clay catchment of lo	FAI: two-arch bridge are two ummer weed growth d/s. Gw abstractions cause a w relief supporting mainly	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	610 650 844 807 854	91 96 125 120 127	132 142 253 255	63 68 121 122	1.66 1.79 3.19 3.22	8.0d 19.8d 11.3d	20/12 10/04 10/03	0.48 0.95 1.08	22/07 20/08 01/08	3.3 3.2 6.0 5.4	1.29 1.38 2.50 2.79	0.57 0.83 1.19 1.37
034004 M.A: EA F.A.R: GI	Local No: Level: 5m	Wensum at (Costessey Mill Sens.: UE: .02	C.A: 570.9 km² B/fuli: 18.8m³s ^{~1} FAI: 0.958	6095	676		223		4.03	36.8d	28/04 1981	0.30	07/08 1991	7.3	3.04	1.28
Comment: 'Complex Comp weir in the m	(structure comp ill channel. Gate	nising 30m Cr moved to ma	ump weir in main chai intain stable water lev	nnel; gate and 1.5m wide wel u/s; futiv automated in	1996 1997	596 639	88 95	137	61	2.47	11.4d	20/12	0.41	21/07	4.5	2.01	0.63
1998: constantly regi by sluice action at Ta of predominantly Bo	utating u/s levels aversham. Moder utder Clay with s	to maintain lev rate surface ar ome sands an	vel through the mill rac nd groundwater abstra d gravels.	e. Also artificial regulation ctions. # Rural catchment	1998 1999 2000	832 813 836	123 120 124	216 266 246	97 119 110	3.91 4.81 4.44	14.6d 10.5d	20/01 01/11	1.05 1.48	19/08 06/10	5.8 9.8 7.1	3.86 3.90 4.31	1.76 1.83 1.93
034005 M.A: EA	Local No:	Tud at Cos	stessey Park Sens.: 16.4	C.A; 73.2 km ²	6195	664		150		0.35	10.4	26/04 1981	0.02	25/08 1976	0.7	0.24	0.09
F.A.R: GI Comment: Four trap placed across the tw catchment is smalle catchments and low valley gravels. Rurat	Level: 9m bezoidal standing to outer arches t er than the top annual gauged i land use.	Hwave flumes to increase the ographical ca runoff. # Surfa	UE: 103 under a road bridge h sensitivity of low flow tohment with consequice geology is predom	FAI: 0.983 ave movable dam boards w measurements. The gw uent losses to adjacent inantly Boulder Clay with	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	559 617 784 777 801	84 93 118 117 121	108 164 99 88 109	72 109 66 59 73	0.25 0.38 0.23 0.20 0.25	2.2 4.3d 3.9 1.7 3.1	20/12 22/01 10/04 10/03 07/11	0.03 0.03 0.04 0.05 0.05	22/07 19/08 13/08 03/08 17/08	0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.5	0.16 0.08 0.13 0.15 0.18	0.06 0.04 0.05 0.06 0.07
034001 M.A: EA	Local No:	Yare a	t Colney Sens.: 9.1	C.A; 231.8 km ² B/full: 19.0m ³ s ⁻¹	5995	654		190		1.40	21.6	17/09 1968	0.10	18/09 1991	3.1	0.92	0.33
F.A.R: GI Comment: A compo- weir. The present stru- weir at a lower leve slucies artificially reg catchment of Boulde	Level: 8m und weir 11.9m v ucture has a Crur I. Topographical gulate flow. Gw	vide reconstru- np section 8.9 I catchment e is abstracted Chatk	UE: .02 cted in Jan 1964 from a m wide seperated by a xceeds contributing a for agricultural uses.	FAI: 0.965 single level broad-crested pier from a broad-crested rea (gw catchment). Mill # A predominantly rural	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	544 597 782 759 786	83 91 120 116 120	99 243 225 250	52 128 118 112	0.73 1.79 1.65 1.83	8.3 13.1 11.2 10.5	21/12 11/04 10/03 08/11	0.22 0.28 0.32 0.382	21/08 11/08 28/07 17/08	1.3 3.9 3.7	0.54 1,13 1,19	0.27 0.37 0.42
034002	i ciay overlying	Tas at S	hotesham	C.A: 146.5 km ²	5795	620	120	156	132	0.73	62.3	16/09	0.07	16/08	1.6	0.44	0.18
M.A: EA F.A.R: GEI Comment: Originally 1970 as a Flat V Crui only partially gauged augmentation of flow	Local No: Level: 10m a flume set betw mp and a bypass I as water divert s (sewage efflue	veen high roug s channel with s around the int). # Predom	Sens.: 15.8 UE: .02 h walls bypassed at 14 movable gates added station through the by inantly Boulder Clay w	FAI: 0.994 m^3s^{-1} . Reconstructed in in 1980. Some high flows pass channel. Small net ith some valley deposits.	1996 1997 1998 1999	492 563 781 726	79 91 126 117	80 87 207 192	51 56 133 123	0.37 0.41 0.96 0.89	3.0 5.3 10.3 7.9	1968 19/12 19/12 10/04 10/03	0.10 0.10 0.18 0.19	1986 18/08 24/08 20/08 03/08	0.7 0.8 2.3 2.0	0.26 0.25 0.53 0.61	0.12 0.13 0.22 0.22
034010	v	/aveney at Bl	llingford Bridge	C.A: 149.4 km ²	2000 6895	731 605	118	199 159	128	0.92 0.75	9.3 59.5	07/11 16/09	0.19 0.01	17/08 28/08	1.9 .1.7	0.60 0.29	0.22
M.A: EA F.A.R: REI Comment: Two gaug	Local No: Level: 20m jing stations loca	ted u/s of two	Sens.: 33.1 UE: .02 bridge arches: i) compo	B/full: 7.5m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 1.000 ound Crump with low flow	1996	464	77	53	33	0.25	2.7	1968 20/12	0.04	1990 21/07	0.5	0.16	0.06
notch (insensitive, su gate to retain higher s action at Hoxne M Groundwater Schem Clay supporting arab	ffers occasional summer levels, B ill, Surface and e between 1975 le and mixed age	drowning due lypassing occu gw abstract and 1979, # ricutture.	to d/s weedgrowth); ii) irs at 6.4 m ³ s ⁻¹ , drown ed, effluent returned. The surface geology i	simple Crump with lifting sing can result from sluice . Affacted by Waveney is predominantly Boulder	1997 1998 1999 2000	563 727 715 733	93 120 118 121	69 211	43 133	0.33 1.00	7.4d 21.7d	20/12 10/04	0.05 0.08	20/08 19/08	0.6 2.5	0.15 0.38	0.07 0.11
034007 M.A: EA	Local No:	Dove at C	akley Park Sens.: 10.1	C.A: 133.9 km ² B/fut: 23.6m ³ s ⁻¹	6695	581		154		0.65	38.5	16/09 1968	0.10	29/07 1990	1,4	0.29	0.15
Comment: Compour and bypassed at 18	d Crump weir wi m ³ s ⁻¹ . Gw abstr	ith low flow no actions and el	tch and crest tapping; i Tuent returns have a r	non-modular at 13 m ³ s ⁻¹ minor net effect on flows.	1996 1997	465 544	80 94	68	44	0.29	2.7	25/02	0.12	22/09	0.4	0.22	0.13
however, between 1 Scheme, # A rural ca	975 and 1979 atchment of Boul	effects more der Clay.	significant due to the	Waveney Groundwater	1998 1999 2000	673 686 751	116 118 129	187 179 283	121 116 184	0.79 0.76 1.20	18.5 14.4 23.2	16/04 10/03 06/11	0.12 0.13 0.16	25/07 01/08 10/09	1.8 1.9 2.5	0.28 0.42 0.54	0.14 0.16 0.18
034006 M.A: EA	Local No:	Waveney at	Needham Mill Sens.:	C.A: 370.0 km ² B/full: 23.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6395	595		150		1.76	113.3	16/09 1968	0.17	30/07 1990	4.0	0.76	0.31
Comment: Compour bypass. Sluice action growth problems. Sur	d Crump weir 8 at mill 2.4 km u	5m wide in n /s is infrequent	be: .01 nain channel with sing t but evident in flow re-	te crested Crump in mill cords. Suffers from weed	1996 1997 1998	462 554 701	78 93	54 171	36 114	0.63 2.01	20.0	10/04	0.25	13/09	1.2 5.2	0.43	0.24
but overall impact is r and 1979. # Predomi	ninimal. Record a nantly a Boulder	affected by the Clay catchine	Waveney Groundwate int with largely rural la	er Scheme between 1975 nd use.	1999 2000	701 743	118 125	183 244	122 163	2.14 2.86	24.2 31.5	10/03 07/11	0.31 0.32	02/08 14/08	5.1 7.0	1.21 1.34	0.38 0.40
035013 M.A: EA	Local No:	Blyth a	t Holton Sens.:	C.A: 92.9 km ² B/tuli: 31.8m ³ s ⁻¹	7095	592		133		0.39	32.2	01/02 1979	0.03	12/08 1990	0.8	0.13	0.06
Comment: An asym significant effect on th comprised of 44% Bo	metric compoun le natural runoff. ulder Clay; 42%	d Crump weir The river resp Crag and 139	with low flow notch. onds very rapidly to rai altuvium. The land us	Gw abstractions have a infall. # The catchment is se is predominantly rural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	452 515 722 697 755	76 87 122 118 128	60 55 176 155 238	45 41 132 117 179	0.18 0.16 0.52 0.46 0.70	4.7 10.5 17.6 7.7 16.8	19/12 19/12 15/04 02/03 28/05	0.05 0.05 0.06 0.08 0.08	22/08 20/08 21/08 11/09 20/08	0.4 0.3 1.5 1.3 1.6	0.09 0.08 0.12 0.17 0.24	0.05 0.06 0.07 0.08 0.09
035003 M.A: EA	Local No:	Alde at	Farnham Sens.: 17.4	C.A: 63.9 km ²	6195	599		141		0.28	15.6	10/12 1965	0.02	11/08 1990	0.6	0.10	0.04
F.A.R: GI Comment: Broad-cre Significant gw abstrac the surface topograpi rural land use.	Level: 5m ested weir of og ctions; some wat hy. # The catchr	ee section wit er exported. T nent is compr	UE: <.01 h low flow notch and he gw contours show a sed of Boulder Clay a	FAI: 0.990 steel plate divide walls. only token relationship to and sand. Predominantly	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	453 528 695 715 800	76 88 116 119 134	59 59 157 183	42 42 111 130	0.12 0.12 0.32 0.37	2.2 8.6 15.5 21.7	26/02 20/12 16/04 10/03	0.04 0.03 0.04 0.05	20/08 20/08 13/08 02/09	0.2 0.2 0.8 0.9	0.07 0.06 0.09 0.15	0.04 0.04 0.04 0.05

					Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m'a'')	Peak flow (m ^a a 1)	Date of peak	Min. dally flow (^{m1} s ⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentlle (m ¹ ±-1)	50 Percentile (m ¹ a ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m³e 1)
035004 M.A: EA	Local No: 1	Öre at Bevei	rsham Bridge Sens.: 11.9	C.A: 54.9 km ² B/full: 12.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6595	607		175		0.30	11.9	26/12 1985	0.02	26/06 1976	0.6	0.14	0.07
F.A.R: GI Comment: A compour as a result of d/s wee abstractions make a m and 40% sand and gra	Level: 2m nd Crump weir w odgrowth and si oderate reduction avel. Rural land	rith low flow n Itation. Gw ca on in the natur use.	UE: <.01 otch and crest tapping tha atchment exceeds topogr rat runoff. # The catchmen	FAI: 0.989 at occasionally drowns aphic catchment. Gw tt is 60% Boulder Clay	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	457 534 686 718 798	75 88 113 118 131	78 71 165 176 300	45 41 94 101 171	0.14 0.12 0.29 0.31 0.52	1.8 3.3 6.4 4.1 9.0	31/12 19/12 16/04 25/12 30/10	0.03 0.04 0.03 0.06 0.06	16/08 01/06 14/08 31/07 21/08	0.2 0.2 0.6 1.3	0.11 0.08 0.13 0.16 0.18	0.05 0.05 0.06 0.08 0.08
035002 M.A: EA	Local No:	Deben at N	aunton Hall Sens.: 10.6	C.A: 163.1 km ² B/full: 12.3m ³ s ⁻¹	6495	598		144		0.74	29.5	17/09 1968	0.01	10/07 1976	1.8	0.30	0.09
P.A.R. RGI Comment: A compou m ³ s ⁻¹ and seasonal wi boundary and some is reduce the natural rund use.	Level: 6m nd Crump (with eed growth caus abstracted fror off. # The catch	crest tapping es drowning. π within the c ment is largeh	UE: and low flow notch. By Some gw is transfered to l atchment. The overall im y Boulder Clay and sand a	FAI:, passing occurs at 12 beyond the catchment pact is to significantly and gravel. Rural land	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	446 537 668 715 771	75 90 112 120 129	45 55 172 170 246	31 38 119 118 171	0.23 0.29 0.89 0.88 1.27	11.6 20.9, 15.0 17.5	20/12 16/04 03/03 30/10	0.03 0.06 0.06 0.08	02/06 24/07 31/07 25/06) 0.6 0.5 1.9 2.1 3.2	0.16 0.14 0.25 0.36 0.50	0.04 0.05 0.09 0.11 0.12
035008 M.A: EA E.A.R: GEL	Local No:	Gipping at	Stowmarket Sens.: 11.2	C.A: 128.9 km ² B/full: 32.2m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.998	6495	579		150		0.62	34.4	01/02 1979	0.05	23/09 1989	1.4	0.22	0.08
Comment: Compound contained. Minimal na response. Abstractions been significantly affec sand and gravel. Predi	d Crump weir re atural storage v s from groundw cted by flood rel ominantly rural	built in 1966 vithin the cat ater and efflu ief scheme si land use.	form a compound broad- chment and the Boulder ient returns broadly bala ince the late 1980s. # Bo	r Clay gives a flashy r Clay gives a flashy nce. High flows have uider Clay with valley	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	435 500 650 673 770	75 86 112 116 133	59 62 172 171 279	39 41 115 114 186	0.24 0.25 0.70 0.70 1.14	5.6 9.4 17.6 11.0 28.5	25/02 19/12 15/04 15/09 30/10	0.06 0.06 0.08 0.08 0.10	22/07 16/08 12/08 02/08 17/08	0.5 0.5 1.9 1.8 2.8	0.13 0.13 0.25 0.36 0.46	0.07 0.07 0.09 0.10 0.12
035010 M.A: EA E A B: GI	Local No:	Gipping a	t Bramford Sens.: 16.2	C.A: 298.0 km ² B/full: 17.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.943	6995	575		123		1.16	42.4	02/02 1979	0.04	06/08 1976	2.6	0.54	0.18
Comment: Compound summer 2001) convert operation on the weir is the natural runoff. Flow # The catchment is 90 land use.	d Crump weir w is 12m section to s evident in the c ws significantly a % Boulder Clay	hith 2m, 5m 8 a sharp-edge laily flow reco affected by tp , the remainin	4 12m sections. Flood ga e weir. Bypassing occurs a rd. Gw abstractions have a swich flood relief scheme ig 10% is of Crag deposit:	the (automated during at $12 \text{ m}^3 \text{s}^{-1}$ and sluice a significant impact on since the late 1980s. s. Predominantly rural	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	431 509 657 694 765	75 89 114 121 133	51 44 133 158 212	41 36 108 128 172	0.48 0.41 1.26 1.49 2.00	5.5 8.4 14.0 23.8 28.0	26/02 20/12 16/04 25/04 30/10	0.10 0.06 0.22 0.22 0.28	09/08 13/08 14/08 31/08 17/08	1.0 0.7 3.1 3.7 5.0	0.36 0.27 0.54 0.92 1.06	0.14 0.11 0.25 0.28 0.34
036012 M.A: EA	Local No:	Stour at I	Kedington Sens.: 29.9	C.A: 76.2 km ² B/full: 10.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6895	607		321		0.78	42.0	16/09 1968	0.01	08/08 1976	2.2	0.35	0.04
F.A.R: RGEI Comment: 'Essex' pro- making modular limit u making station full rang beneath. Naturalised fi # Rural catchment on	Level: 53m offle (modified Fl uncertain until 1 ge. Ponding u/s lows 1968-1976 Upper Stour, Bl	at V Crump) v 970, when ch above 11.5 n . Post 76 adj pulder Clay o	UE: <.01 weir, insensitive. Crest tap annel improved for Ety/O n ³ s ⁻¹ . Structure built on p ustments made for Ety/Ou verlying Chalk, some outc	FAI: 0.990 oping prone to sitation use Transfer Scheme weat, some percolation use Transfer Scheme. cropping.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	445 521 701 701 836	73 86 115 115 138	633 830 461 303 332	197 259 144 94 103	1.53 2.00 1.11 0.73 0.80	6.6 5.1 8.4 10.7 15.6	09/01 19/12 25/12 07/03 06/11	0.03 0.25 0.02 0.07 0.03	23/06 29/09 24/06 20/06 03/09	3.3 4.0 3.3 2.6 1,7	1.13 1.13 0.61 0.32 0.35	0.25 0.39 0.13 0.12 0.05
036011 M.A: EA	Local No:	Stour Broo	k at Sturmer Sens.: 29.8	C.A: 34.5 km ² B/full: 5.7m ³ s ⁻¹	6895	602		210		0.23	25.3	15/09 1968	0.02	18/07 1973	0.5	0.10	0.05
Comment: 'Essex' pro d/s of Haverhill - urban 5.0 m ³ s ⁻¹ . Adjustmen 1968 to 1976. # Rural, Stour. Mostly Boulder	Eevel: 55m file (modified File n runoff and STV its were made it agricultural cat Clay with some	at V Crump) V discharges for industrial chment, with of the underl	weir with crest tapping, ins weir with crest tapping, ins cause short, sharp peaks, and sewage effluent and the exception of Haverhill, ying sand and gravel and	Modular limit approx. gw abstractions from , at the head of the R. I Chalk outcropping.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	434 500 667 664 823	72 83 111 110 137	119 77 203 226 399	57 37 97 108 190	0.13 0.08 0.22 0.25 0.44	3.6 2.6 5.5 6.1 17.3	27/08 13/07 10/12 28/01 05/11	0.03 0.03 0.04 0.05 0.05	25/09 06/08 01/08 30/08 12/09	0.2 0.1 0.6 0.5 0.9	0.08 0.06 0.09 0.13 0.19	0.05 0.04 0.06 0.07 0.07
036010 M.A: EA E A R: GIN	Bun Local No: Level: 56m	opstead Broo	ek at Broad Green Sens.:	C.A: 28.3 km ² B/full: 6.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 1.000	6895	604		155		0.14	21.0	15/09 1968	0.00	08/12 1990	0.3	0.02	>0.00
Comment: 'Essex' pro Modular limit approx. 6 to 1976, only minor ac catchment at the head	bolie (modified F 5.0 m ³ s ⁻¹ . Appro djustments need of the R. Stour,	lat V Crump) ox, limit of gau led to the gau Complete cov	weir with crest tapping a ging is 12.5 m ³ s ⁻¹ . Natura aged dmfs, virtually natura er of Boulder Clay over gla	alised flow spillway. alised flows from 1968 a) catchment. # Rural acial gravel and Chalk.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	434 493 656 650 809	72 82 109 108 134	58 30 141 155 310	37 19 91 100 200	0.05 0.03 0.13 0.14 0.28	3.5 2.0 9.6 7.5 11.2	12/02 19/12 15/04 27/01 30/10	>0.00 >0.00 >0.00 >0.00 >0.00	26/09 05/08 13/08 28/07 11/09	0.1 0.3 0.3 0.7	0.01 >0.00 0.03 0.03 0.08	0.01 >0.00 0.01 0.01 0.01
036008 M.A: EA F.A.R: RGEI	Local No: Level: 33m	Stour at	Westmill Sens.: 15.2 UE: .02	C.A: 224.5 km ² B/full: 25.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.986	6095	599		183		1.30	60.0	16/09 1968	0.02	10/09 1966	2,6	0.61	0.13
Comment: Compound growth but rarely drow into a spithway. Since 2 Scheme, archived flow agricultural catchment pervious Boulder Clay.	d trapezoidal cr ns out. Above 1 22/3/71 flow aug ws adjusted for situated on Upp	tical depth fit 15m some fit amented by in this until 197 ber Chalk ove	ume with d/s level record ow passes over a broad-o termittent pumping from 1 76. (Naturalised flows 190 rlain by sand and gravel y	der. Affected by weed crested weir 100m u/s the Ely/Ouse Transfer 60 to 1976.) # Rural, with a mantle of semi-	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	436 510 674 678 810	73 85 113 113 135	166 197 203 190 299	91 108 111 104 163	1.18 1.40 1.45 1.35 2.13	12.2 9.2 14.3 15.3 25.6	12/02 19/12 09/04 08/03 06/11	0.19 0.28 0.16 0.14 0.12?	16/06 01/11 22/08 14/07 17/08	2.2 2.6 2.9 2.8 5.0	0.93 0.84 0.74 0.75 1.11	0.33 0.38 0.30 0.23 0.18
036002 M.A: EA	Local No:	Glem at (Glemsford Sens.: 18.9	C.A: 87.3 km ² B/full: 20.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6095	600		168		0.46	24.1d	16/09 1968	0.04	03/08 1992	1.0	0.18	0.07
Comment: Trapezoid: recorder to allow for o gauged. Naturalised fi Chalk (exposed in riv Boulder Clay.	Level: 34m al flume with by drowning. Occa lows from 1960 fer valley sides)	passing at hi sional probler to Sep 1976. is overtain t	UE: 01 gh flows; modest modula ns with weedgrowth. Hig # Rural catchment of th by glacial sand and grav	FAI: 0.987 r limit; d/s water level hest floods unreliably e Upper Stour. Upper vel and semi-pervious	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	443 533 679 693 812	74 89 113 116 135	69 70 160 168 282	41 42 95 100 168	0.19 0.19 - 0.44 0.46 0.78	5.3 4.0d 8.2 7.7 11.6	25/02 19/12 10/04 23/12 30/10	0.02 0.01 0.05? 0.08 0.08	27/09 04/10 16/08 04/09 17/08	0.3 0.3 -1.2 1.1 1.8	0.14 0.16 - 0.14 0.22 0.36	0.03 0.02 0.06 0.09 0.09
036004 M.A: EA	C Local No:	ihad Brook a	t Long Melford Sens.:	C.A: 47.4 km ² B/full: 11.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6595	590		170		0.26	15.0	16/09 1968	0.00	04/08 1995	0.6	0.12	0.03
Comment: 'Essex' pri summer due to weed Naturalised flows from over Chalk.	cever: 35m ofile (modified F growth, High flo 1965 to 1976, a	Flat V Crump w spillway ac # Rural catchr) weir with low flow side xurate to 1.1m. Full rang nent, tributary of the Uppe	ear the second s	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	433 517 675 663 796	73 88 114 112 135	84 45 172 167 299	49 26 101 98 176	0.13 0.07 0.26 0.25 0.45	1.8 1.5 8.0 3.2 8.2	25/02 19/12 10/04 23/12 06/11	0.04 0.01 0.04 0.04 0.04	27/05 28/09 01/06 02/08 15/08	0.2 0.1 0.6 0.5 1.0	0.10 0.03 0.09 0.15 0.23	0.06 0.02 0.06 0.06 0.04
036007 M.A: EA F.A.R: GIN	Beich Local No: Level: 27m	amp Brook	at Bardfield Bridge Sens.: 33.9 LIF: < 01	C.A: 58.6 km ² B/full: 9.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.997	6095	562		95		0.18	12.1	29/01 1988	>0.00	27/07 1963	0.4	0.06	. 0.02
Comment: Trapezoida summer due to weed g to flows since then. # if the predominant Chall	al flume with thro rowth. Naturalis Rural. Tributary K.	bat tapping. Fe ed flows from of the Stour. f	ll range station in winter, (1965 to 1976, only minima Nixed geology: mostly gla	occasionally drowns in al adjustments needed cial deposits overlying	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	405 485 625 685 793	72 86 111 122 141	38 19 68 105 225	40 20 72 111 237	0.07 0.04 0.13 0.20 0.42	1.9 0.5d 2.1d 2.6d	25/02 19/12 15/04 28/01	0.01 >0.00 0.01 0.02	01/08 01/08 12/08 02/08	0.1 0.1 0.3 0.5 1.1	0.04 0.03 0.06 0.08 0.14	0.02 0.01 0.02 0.03 0.04

					Perlod	Rainfail (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (^{mis.')})	Peak flow (m ¹ a ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (^{m1} ** ¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m'='')	50 Percentile (m*a**)	95 Percentile (m*a**)
036015 M.A: EA F.A.R: RPGEI	Local No: Level: 18m	Stour at	Lamarsh Sens.: 3.5 UE: .02	C.A: 480.7 km² B/full: 35.0m³s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.970	7295	591		158		2.41	61.0	02/02 1979	0.19	28/08 1976	4.7	1.37	0.62
Comment: Flat V weir 35.0 m ³ s ⁻¹ . No spiłłwa then adjustments need Transfer Scheme adjus	with low flow st ay. Breaching u/s ed for abstraction stments atready.	arp-crested i s may cause is, discharge: made. # Prec	rectangular notch. Flo bypassing. Naturalise and PWS predominar forminantly rural catch	od banks contain approx. d flows 1972-1976, since tdy for Haverhall. Ely/Ouse ment except for Haverhall.	1996 1997 1998 1999	427 508 662 674	72 86 112 114	95 104 156	60 66 99	1.45 1.58 2.37	21.1 26.3 33.4	26/02 20/12 10/04	0.35 0.47 0.34	15/06 29/10 20/08	2.1 2.6 4.5	1.17 1.12 1.26	0.58 0.56 0.53
Upper Chalk beneath v	whole catchment	, covered ma	inly by Boulder Clay a	nd London Clay in S.	2000	803	136	277	175	4.21	38.3	31/10	0.51	17/08	10.8	1.77	0.62
036006 M.A: EA F.A.R: RPGI	Local No: Level: 6m	Stour at	Langham Sens.: 7.1 UE: .01	C.A: 578.0 km ² B/full: 40.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.962	6295	585		161		2.94	91.0	17/09 1968	0.09	09/07 1976	6.2	1.74	0.55
Comment: Twin-trapez 12/85 takes some flow occurs over opposite b events. Naturalised flo intermittent pumping fin Augmentation Groundw north, London Clay in s	zoidal flume, thro above 1.45m. R vank above 1.45m ws to 9/76. Occa om Ely/Ouse Tra vater Scheme) bi south, all covered	at tapping. Sp lating combin m. More byp asional high p ansfer Schern orehole pump d by semi-per	Silway channel with this es the elements. Exce assing possible from (beaks due to mill oper le. Occasional augmet ing. # Mainty rural cate vious Boulder Clay.	n-plate weir constructed in Ment site. Bypassing also).5km u/s during extreme ation and augmention by intation from SAGS (Stour chment. Chalk outcrops in	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	425 512 658 666 800	73 88 112 114 137	103 110 160 160 267	64 68 99 99 166	1.89 2.01 2.93 2.92 4.88	16.8 15.2 26.8 20.6 42.8	26/02 20/12 11/04 09/03 08/11	0.40 0.39 0.32 0.33 0.57	25/07 02/10 21/08 31/07 13/09	3.1 3.5 6.5 6.0 12.3	1.76 1.44 1.81 2.09 2.39	0.52 0.61 0.57 0.61 0.78
036003		Box at I	Polstead	C.A: 53.9 km ²	6095	583		124		0.21	10.1	29/01	0.03	26/08	0.4	0.13	0.06
M.A: EA F.A.R: GEI	Local No: Level: 16m		Sens.: 18.9 UE: <.01	B/futl: 11.0m³s ^{−1} FAI: 0.994								1988		1976			
Comment: Trapezoida reed/weed growth prob abstractions for agricu London Clay; Chalk in	I flume with high lems. Naturalise Itural purposes. N, all overlain b	flow rated sp d flows from " # Rural cat y superficial	illway. Throat tapping; 1961 to 1976, Minimal chment, tributary of t deposits.	rarely drowns. Subject to ground and surface water be Stour. Predominantly	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	398 489 647 627 770	68 B4 111 108 132	59 48 102 120 219	48 39 82 97 177	0.10 0.08 0.17 0.21 0.37	1.0 0.7 3.8 1.9 7.7	25/02 19/12 15/04 24/12 30/10	0.03 0.03 0.04 0.05 0.06	22/07 16/08 12/08 02/08 16/08	0.2 0.1 0.3 0.4 0.8	0.09 0.07 0.12 0.14 0.18	0.04 0.04 0.05 0.07 0.08
036009 M.A: EA	Local No: *	Brett at (Cockfield S.ens.:	C.A: 25.7 km ² B/full: 8.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6895	609		151		0.12	8.1 _.	15/09 1968	0.00	17/10 1991	0.3	0.03	>0.00
F.A.R: N Comment: 'Essex' pr theoretically derived. N minimal adjustments no of the R. Stour. Upper	Level: 59m ofile (modified f to telemetry but p eeded since. # S Chalk underlies	Flat V Crum blanned for fu mall, rural ca the whole ca	UE: <.01 p weir). No spillway. dure. Naturalised flows ttchment on headwate ttchment with a manti-	FAI: 1.000 Modular limit of 0.66m s from 1969 to 1976, only rs of the Brett, a tributary e of Boulder Clay above.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	448 517 689 672 822	74 85 113 110 135	30 25 148 156 334	20 17 98 103 221	0.02 0.02 0.12 0.13 0.27	0.8 1.3 6.1 1.9 7.2	25/02 19/12 15/04 24/12 30/10	0.00 0.00 >0.00 >0.00 0.01	15/07 06/08 16/09 02/08 14/09	0.1 0.0 0.3 0.3 0.6	0.01 0.00 >0.00 0.06 0.10	>0.00 0.01 0.01
036005 M A' FA	Local No:	Brett at	Hadleigh Sens	C.A: 156.0 km ² B/full: 25.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6295	582		137	ļ	0.68	26.6	10/10 1987	0.03	26/08	1.5	0.31	0.09
F.A.R: GEI Comment: 'Essex' pro	Level: 18m file (modified Fla	at V Crump) i	UE: <.01 weir with low flow side	FAI: 0.994 weir and high flow rated	1996	420	72	38	28	0.19	3.8	25/02	0.03	21/08	0.4	0.12	0.05
spillway. D/s water leve 76 adjustments, for gw made to the gauged da catchment underlain by	el recorder to alle abstractions for ally mean flows. I y Upper Chalk of	ow for drown r PWS and in Minor effluen overed mainl	ing. Naturalised flows dustrial abstraction fro t returns may affect flo y with semi-pervious E	from 1962 to 1976. Post om surface water, are not ow, # Predominantly rural Boulder Clay.	1997 1998 1999 2000	495 670 658 793	85 115 113 136	34 137 142 257	25 100 104 188	0.17 0.68 0.70 1.27	4.0 15.4 6.3 15.3	19/12 16/04 03/03 06/11	0.03 0.09 0.14 0.20	21/08 05/08 04/08 26/08	0.3 1.6 1.5 3.1	0.11 0.27 0.40 0.52	0.04 0.11 0.16 0.22
037022 M.A: EA	Holla Local No:	nd Brook at	Thorpe le Soken Sens.: 60.2	C.A: 54.9 km ² B/full: 9.0m ³ s ⁻¹	7095	537		125		0.22	13.5	29/01 1995	0.00	08/09 1990	0.4	0.06	0.01
F.A.R: GI Comment: 'Essex' pro influence way important	Level: 1m file (modified Fla t coucies limits	at V Crump)	UE: weir (very insensitive) to d/s tidal conditions	FAI: with crest tapping. Tidal with downing starting at	1996	396 503	74	38 81	30 65	0.07	2.6	10/11	>0.00	06/08	0.2	0.04	0.01
very low levels. Very g growth. Abstractions s covered with gravel sar area.	entle river gradie significant at low nds; gravel and lo	ant makes sil flows. Flow am with Long	tation a major problen vs naturalised 1970-1 don Clay being expose	n, accompanied by weed 976. # Rural catchment d in valleys and NE of the	1998 1999 2000	616 627 752	115 117 140	148 208	118 166	0.26 0.36	6.1 6.6	02/11 19/08	0.01 0.04	17/08 29/07	0.7 0.7	0.10 0.21	0.01 0.05
037012 M.A: EA	Local No:	Colne at l	Poolstreet Sens.:	C.A: 65.1 km ² B/full: 7.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6395	579		131		0.27	19.2	25/08 1987	0.00	10/07 1994	0.7	0.06	>0.00
F.A.R: GI Comment: Trapezoida flows High flow soith	Level: 43m flume with throa av (above 1.34)	at tapping. V m) Above 1	UE: <.01 notch plate installed in 6m flows are estimated.	FAI: 0.992 summer to measure low ited as major bypassing	1996 1997	414 492	72 85	53 30	40 23	0.11 0.06 ·	4.9	12/02	0.01	08/09	0.2 0.1	0.04	0.01
occurs. Rarely non-mod influence flows, but und upland (for East Anglia)	dular. Naturalised quantifiable. Peri catchment of the	d flows from od of Ely/Ou e R. Colne. U	1963-1976. Great Yeld se Transfer Scheme p Ipper Chalk underlies	tham PWS borehole may umping in 1982. # Rural, whole catchment, London	1998 1999 2000	650 712 802	112 123 139	199 293	152 224	0.41 *	5.4d	04/01	0.01	28/07	1.0 1.8	0.12 0.20	0.03
Clay present in souther 037024	m half, all overla	in with Bould	ier Clay. arts Coine	C.A: 154.2 km ²	7195	571		141		0.69	21.5	07/01	0.05	25/08	1.4	0.31	0.11
M.A: EA F.A.R: GEI	Local No: Level: 25m		Sens.: 20.1 UE:	B/full: 15.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI:								1993		1976			
Comment: 'Essex' pro are estimated when silt	file (modified Fla ation severely at	it V Crump) i ffects respon:	veir with crest tapping se of station. Low mod	ular limit - approx. 0.5m.	1996 1997	405	71 87	60 45	43 32	0.29	7.7	13/02	0.05	03/07	0.5	0.20	0.07
# Predominantly rural mostly overlain by Long	catchment, just don Clay with Bo	d/s of Halste builder Clay a	ead. Upper Chalk und bove.	terlies whole catchment,	1998 1999 2000	691 802	121 140	184 288	130 204	0.90 1.40	14.4 16.9	05/07 30/10	0.07 0.11 0.09?	02/08 23/09	1.9 3.8	0.42 0.49	0.15
037005 M.A: EA	Local No:	Coine at	Lexden Sens.: 9.7	C.A: 238.2 km ² B/full: 16.0m ³ s ⁻¹	5995	572		137		1.04	24.8	11/10 1987	0.03	30/08 1965	2.1	0.56	0.20
F.A.R: RPI Comment: Big trapezo	Level: 8m idal flume with d/	s level record	UE: .01 ler. Occasional weedg	FAI: 0.950 rowth problems. Spillway	1996	410	72	71	52	0.53	6.2	26/02	0.12	09/08	0.9	0.39	0.17
flow commences at 17. high flows. Naturalised catchment. Upper Cha arable cultivation predo	0 m ³ s ⁻¹ (1.75m) flows for period ik with surface o minate.	, flows above 1959 to 1976. cover of sem	this are estimated. B Provides flood warnin i-pervious Boulder Cla	ypassed on the lb at very g for Colchester. # Rural ay on which pasture and	1997 1998 1999 2000	500 637 678 790	87 111 119 138	54 122 153 243	39 89 112 177	0.41 0.92 1.15 1.83	5.6 10.3 10.7 21.3	19/12 16/04 07/07 31/10	0.10 0.10 0.19 0.21	24/08 20/08 03/08 17/08	0.8 2.1 2.5 4.5	0.32 0.57 0.74 0.64	0.13 0.19 0.29 0.27
037016 M.A: EA	Local No:	Pant at Co	pford Hall Sens.: 29.7	C.A: 62.5 km ² B/full: 12.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6595	612		191		0.38	16.8	16/09 1968	>0.00	13/08 1976	1,1	0,12	0.02
F.A.R: RGI Comment: 'Essex' prof to 12.0 m ³ s ⁻¹ , flows ab Intermittent pumping of the Great Sampford Ou on Upper Chalk, gravel	Level: 58m file (modified Flat ove this are estin Ely/Ouse Transf utfall, # Rural trib I exposed along	V Crump) we nated becaus fer Scheme h outary of the f the whole riv	UE: .01 eir (insensitive) with cru se of the spillway. Natu as major effect on stat R. Blackwater. Boulde er valley.	FAI: 0.998 est tapping. Measures up iralised flows 1965-1976. ion being only 5km d/s of r Clay over glacial gravel	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	437 493 676 637 800	71 81 110 104 131	222 412 251 170	116 216 131 89	0.44 0.82 0.50 0.34	4.8 2.7 7.7 7.0	12/02 25/02 15/04 28/01	>0.00 0.01 >0.00 0.01	13/01 12/07 07/05 28/06	1.3 1.9 1.2 1.1	0.09 0.51 0.28 0.11	0.02 0.06 0.02 0.04
037017 M.A: EA	Local No:	Blackwater	at Stisted Sens.: 17.8	C.A: 139.2 km ² B/full: 18.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6995	585		178		0.79	18.7	29/01 1995	0.03	05/09 1994	1.5	0.43	0.16
F.A.R: RGEI Comment: 'Essex' pro modular limit affected to Minor adjustments neer and Ely Ouse/Essex d Braintree. Upper two-th overlain with Boulder C	Level: 32m file (modified Flay y weed growth, led for ground an ischarges, net e hirds of catchme lay and glacial g	at V Crump) Urban runofi nd surface wa effect - minor nt Chalk, rer gravel.	UE: .02 weir with crest tappi f from Braintree. Natu iter abstractions; sewar export of water. # F mainder London Clay	FAI: 0.986 ng. No spillway. Modest ralised flows 1969-1976. Ige and industrial effluent redominantly rural, plus (exposed in valleys), all	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	420 498 666 644 795	72 85 114 110 136	198 223 214 175 280	111 125 120 98 157	0.87 0.98 0.95 0.77 1.23	10.1 5.3 19.2 15.4 19.9	26/02 19/12 15/04 28/01 07/11	0.08 0.07 0.13 0.13 0.13	25/06 12/07 24/06 30/07 24/08	1.6 2.0 1.7 1.5 2.9	0.60 0.65 0.55 0.40 0.47	0.25 0.23 0.22 0.19 0.16

					Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (^{m1} s ⁻¹)	Peak flow (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. dally flow (^{m1} a ¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m ³ = ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m³=*1)	95 Percentile (m³** ¹)
037010 M.A: EA	Local No:	Blackwater at J	Appleford Bridge Sens.: 9.3	C.A: 247.3 km ² B/full: 20.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6295	579		158		1.24	26.8	29/01 1988	0.09	06/10 1964	2.3	0.77	0.33
F.A.R: RPGI Comment: Double thr starting at 1.80m. Dro- flows from 1962-1976. significantly affected in for PWS. # Rural catch	Level: 15m roated trapez whing starts Intermittenth the late 198 hment. Bould	coidal flume with at 1.2m (13.0 m y affected, since Os and 1990s. A fer Clay over Lo	UE: .02 throat tappings and a ³ s ⁻¹), degree of drown 1971, by Ely/Ouse Tra bstractions from both C ndon Clay with Chalk in	FAI: 0.989 high flow rated spillway ing variable. Naturalised ansfer Scheme pumping, chalk and gravel aquifers n the headwaters.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	413 505 650 644 776	71 87 112 111 134	160 168 170 160 247	101 106 108 101 156	1.25 1.32 1.33 ⁻ 1.25 1.93	6.9 10.3 14.3 18.2	26/02 17/04 25/12 07/11	0.22 0.30 0.31 0.32?	14/06 09/10 31/07 25/08	2.1 2.4 2.4 2.2 4.7	1.04 0.95 0.89 0.83 0.95	- 0.51 0.38 0.38 0.37 0.40
037009 M.A: EA	Local No:	Brain at Gui	thavon Valley Sens.: 12.2	C.A: 60.7 km ² B/full: 17.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6295	582		195		0.38	11.5	16/10 1987	0.09	20/07 1954	0.6	0.26	0.16
F.A.R: GEI Comment: 'Essex' pro low levels but with mi	Lével: 16m sile (modified nimal effect.	l Flat V Crump) v Station prone to	UE: .06 weir with throat tapping. > vandatism. Some abs	PAI: 1.000 Drowning occurs at very stractions for agriculture;	1996 1997	400 520	69 89	120	62	0.23	1.9	25/02	0.12	16/08	0.3	0.20	0.14
naturatised flows avail Braintree, on a tributar	lable from 19 ry of the R. E	962 to 1976. # I Stackwater. Boul	Mainly rural catchment, der Clay over London (except for Witham and Clay,	1998 1999 2000	656 614 779	113 105 134	168 179 310	86 92 159	0.32 0.35 0.60	2.1d 4.0d 12.2	16/04 28/01 30/10	0.12 0.15 0.16?	19/08 27/07 04/09	0.6 0.6 1.1	0.23 0.26 0.32	0.13 0.16 0.18
037011 M.A: EA F.A.R: L	Local No: Level: 52m	Chelmer a	t Churchend Sens.; 17.0 UE: <.01	C.A: 72.6 km ² B/full: 9.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.993	6395	591		154		0.35	19.1	09/10 1987	0.01	14/07 1976	0.8	0.15	0.05
Comment: Trapezoid up to the 1 in 10 yea Naturalised flows from catchment at head of both overlain by Bould	al flume with r flood (appr 1963 to 1970 R. Chelmer, l ler Clay, Res	h throat recorder rox. 1.69m) abo 6. Minimal adjus Upper quarter of sponsive.	r and spillway for flows ve which bypassing oc tments needed. # Rural f catchment is Chalk, re	s over 1.42m. Measures curs. Drowning minimal. , upland (for East Anglia) mainder is London Clay,	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	438 511 711 660 848	74 86 120 112 143	65 <i>48</i> 171 159 293	42 31 111 103 190	0.15 0.11 0.39 0.37 0.67	4.9 14.1 10.7 23.0	12/02 16/04 28/01 30/10	0.01 0.03 0.05 0.06	01/08 13/08 02/08 17/08	0.3 0.2 1.0 0.9 1.7	0.08 0.07 0.15 0.17 0.28	0.04 0.03 0.05 0.06 0.07
037020 M.A: EA	Local No:	Cheimer	at Felated Sens.: 18.1	C.A: 132.1 km ² B/full: 12.0m ³ s ⁻¹	7095	587		160		0.67	20.5	29/01 1988	0.06	10/07 1976	1.3	0.33	0.16
F.A.R: EI Comment: 'Essex' pro limit of reliable gauge	Level: 40m ofile (modified ng, higher fl	a d Flat V Crump) lows estimated.	UE: .01 weir with crest tapping Flood plain storage s	FAI: 0.970 measuring up to 1.21m - tarts at 1.1m. Drowning	1996 1997	430 518	73 88	81	51	0.34	7.9	25/02	0.11	22/07	0.5	0.25	0.13
commences at 0.6m, adjustments needed f Boulder Clay and glad	and varies i for STW and tial gravel co	in severity. Natu I industrial efflue vering Chalk in (iralised flows 1970-197 int discharges, # Rural extreme N, London Cla	 Minimal abstractions, agricultural catchment. y elsewhere. 	1998 1999 2000	698 646 828	119 110 141	168 167 298	105 104 186	0.70 0.70 1.25	11.3d 14.9d	16/04 28/01	0.12 0.15	12/08 02/08	1.6 1.4 3.2	0.33 0.39 0.55	0.15 0.19 0.21
037008 M.A: EA F.A.R: PGI	Local No: Level: 23m	Chelmer a	t Springfield Sens.: 28.1 UE: .02	C.A: 190.3 km ² B/full: 6.0m ³ s ^{−1} FAI: 0.976	6595	589		173		1.05	27.2	10/12 1982	0,13	27/08 1976	2.0	- 0,59	0.28
Comment: Big trapeze flow commences at 17 high flows. Naturalised catchment, gauging si underlain by Upper Cl	oidal flume w 7.0 m ³ s ⁻¹ (1.7 I flows for pe tation in nort halk.	ith d/s level reco 75m), flows abor riod 1959 to 197 hern suburb of (rder, Occasional weedg ve this are estimated. B 6. Provides flood warnir Chelmsford, Bouider Cl	rowth problems. Spillway ypassed on the lb at very ng for Colchester. # Rural ay over London Clay, all	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	422 513 686 628 808	72 87 116 107 137	100 74 171 167 286	58 43 99 97 165	0.60 0.45 1.03 1.01 1.72	6.5 3.8 15.5 15.1 38.2	25/02 19/12 16/04 29/01 30/10	0.26 0.20 0.24 0.27 0.31?	22/07 22/08 13/08 03/08 24/08	0.9 0.7 2.3 1.9 4.1	0.52 0.38 0.60 0.64 0.84	0.29 0.23 0.28 0.33 0.34
037007 M.A: EA	Local No:	Wida	t Writtle Sens.: 19.5	C.A: 136.3 km ² B/full: 25.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6495	609		198		0.85	37.1	21/11 1974	0.05	26/08 1976	2.0	0.37	0.12
F.A.R: EI Comment: 'Essex' pri modular station. Weir i of STW discharge, o adjustments needed for rural catchment on Lo	Level: 27m ofile (modifie began to sub f which app or this, Flows ondon Clay w	n d Flat V Crump) side in 1991. Flo roximately 0.08 i naturalised from ith scattered are	UE: .05 weir. Rated spillway st w during summer month m ³ s ⁻¹ is derived from n 1964 to 1976. Respon eas of Boulder Clay abo	FAI: 0.996 arts at 1.25m. Full range, sconsists predominantly outside the catchment, sive regime. # Low-tying, we.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	425 527 700 595 787	.70 87 115 98 129	136 90 234 173 322	69 45 118 87 163	0.59 0.39 1.01 0.75 1.39	14.1 .7.7 16.7 8.7 24.7	29/01 19/12 01/11 25/12 30/10	0.13 0.14 0.16 0.16 0.17	17/07 30/07 28/07 18/07 15/08	0.9 0.7 2.7 1.9 3.7	0.24 0.25 0.45 0.38 0.61	0.16 0.16 0.18 0.18 0.18
037006 M.A: EA E A B: El	Local No: Level: 23rr	Can at E	leach's Mill Sens.: 8.1 UE: .03	C.A: 228.4 km ² B/fuli: 28.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.993	6295	592		172		1.25	35.9	12/11 1987	0.06	26/08 1976	2.8	0.56	0.19
Comment: Triple thro flows. Limit of station - for this not made in re and sewage effluent, j with R. Wid. London (ated compou 35 m ³ s ⁻¹ . S cord. Natura # Rural, agric Clay overlain	nd flume (built w pillway flow start lised flows from cultural catchme with Boulder Cl	ithin mill race). Trapezo is at 2.0m - very significa 1962 to 1976. Adjustment just W of Chelmsford ay in N, exposed in S.	idal centre section for low ant part of flow, allowance ents needed for industrial I, 350m d/s of confluence	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	414 514 686 596 790	70 87 116 101 133	67 66 203 156 298	39 38 116 91 173	0.49 0.48 1.47 1.13 2.15	13.1 12.4 22.0 16.2 37.0	25/02 19/12 15/04 24/12 30/10	0.15 0.16 0.20 0.20 0.23	19/07 30/07 26/07 29/07 25/08	0.8 0.8 4.0 2.9 5.5	0.35 0.31 0.60 0.55 0.94	0.17 0.19 0.23 0.24 0.27
037013 M.A: EA	Local No:	Sandon Brook	at Sandon Bridge Sens.: 32.6	C.A: 75.1 km ² B/full: 15.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6395	568		124		0.30	15.7	29/01 1988	0.01	16/09 1990	0.6	0.10	0.03
P.A.R: SRE Comment: 'Essex' p limit approx 0.6m. Si Hanningfield Reservoi water (0.011 m ³ s ⁻¹) catchment. Tributary Clay, Patches of Boul	Level: 201 rofile (modifi- ubject to we ir 10km u/s. M ir 10km u/s. M i and storm of R. Chelme Ider Clay in S	a ed Flat V Crum ed growth and Vaturalised flows overflows. Mir er. Glacial sand S.	p) weir with crest tapp accretion. CA includes (1963-1976) account for nor additions from ind and gravel form high gr	ing. Insensitive. Modular is 13.7 sq.km draining to or reservoir compensation tustrial effluent. # Rural round in NE over London	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	423 521 669 576 778	74 92 118 101 137	44 39 130 106 227	35 31 105 . 85 183	0.10 0.09 0.31 0.25 0.54	3.2 3.1 8.2 5.4 14.4	25/02 19/12 01/11 24/12 28/05	0.01 0.02 0.04 0.04 0.05	23/07 20/10 05/07 20/10 19/06	0.2 0.2 0.9 0.7 1.5	0.07 0.05 0.11 0.10 0.18	0.03 0.03 0.04 0.05 0.06
037002 M.A: EA	, Local No:	Chelmer at	Rushes Lock Sens.: 35.3	C.A: 533.9 km ² B/full: 13.0m ³ s ⁻¹	3295	i 590		111		1.88	20.0	07/03 1995	>0.00	02/07 1994	4.8	0.83	0.12
F.A.R: PGEI Comment: Sharp-cre 1972. Complex hydroi lack not measured. W or high flow, upper lin 1932 to 1976. # Rura overlain by semi-perv	Level: 11n sted, shallow metric history /eir repaired i nit is 0.7m (1 al catchment ious Boulder	n / V profile weir (ir /. Weir provides in 1982 because 9.99 m ³ s ⁻¹). By apart from Che · Clay.	UE: nsensitive), replaced bro head for lock (navigable of serious leakage. No passing begins at 0.57r Imsford, Brentwood an	FAI: bad-crested timber weir in a river), discharge through accurate measure of low m: Flows naturalised from d Billencay. London Clay	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	419 513 683 604 791	71 87 116 102 134	49 42 134 119 224	44 38 121 107 202	0.83 0.70 2.27 - 2.01 3.77	14.5 12.1 19.5 19.0 20.0	25/02 19/12 17/04 29/01 30/10	0.10 0.10 0.26 0.37 0.46	21/07 02/10 25/05 26/07 26/08	1.6 1.3 5.8 4.5 10.4	0.56 0.48 0.99 1.14 1.73	0.17 0.18 0.38
037003 M.A: EA	Local No:	Ter at Cr	abbs Bridge Sens.: 28.3	C.A: 77.8 km² B/full: 8.0m³s ⁻¹	329	581		106		0.26	10.1	22/11 1974	>0.00	05/08 1976	0.5	0,13	0.03
F.A.R: PI Comment: Trapezoid 900m d/s, in 1964. 1 (structurefull), Hatfield to 1976. Minor surfac export through PWS.	Level: 15n lal flume with Theoretically # Peverel rec æ water abst # Rural, agr	n htroat tapping, rated. Modular ord held with this tractions for spra icultural catchmo	UE: <.01 replaced less accurate limit 0.95m, no level y s station - 1932 to 1964 ay irrigation, small discr ant on London Clay over	FAI: 0.977 station - Hatfield Peveral, ret recorded above 1.6m . Naturalised flows - 1964 harges from STW but net ertain by Boulder Clay.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	394 513 650 585 752	68 88 112 101 129	43 33 118 112 240	41 31 111 106 226	0.10 0.08 0.29 0.28 0.59	1.7 2.1 5.3 5.2 9,4	25/02 19/12 01/08 29/01 30/10	0.01 0.02 0.03 0.04 0.05	01/07 29/05 29/08 03/08 23/08	0.2 0.1 0.6 0.5 1.6	0.07 0.07 0.15 0.13 0.24	0.03 0.03 0.05 0.05 0.07
037031 M.A: EA F.A.R: E	Local No: Level: m	Crouch 37031	at Wickford Sens.: 27.5 UE: .14	C.A: 71.8 km ² B/full: 40.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.975	769	5 600		151		0.34	24.6	09/12 1982	0.02	02/06 1987	0.7	0.15	0.05
Comment: Crump we calibrated by c/m and head. Significant urbi discharge. # Low lyin Basildon. London Cla	bir, very smal float measur an runoff from g, undulating y overlain by	I fall because ap rements. Low m m Billericay and I terrain supporti y alluvium. Resp	proaching tidal limit. Ra odular limit. Pre- 24/1/6 Basildon, Low flows hi ng agriculture. Catchme onsive catchment.	ted channel for high flows 9 add 0. 107m to recorded eavily influenced by STW ent includes Billericay and	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	438 507 682 567 787	73 85 114 95 131	80 89 173 124 243	53 59 115 82 161	0.18 0.20 0.39 0.28 0.55	4.3 6.6 18.3 5.4 30.0	25/02 19/12 31/10 18/04 28/05	0.04 0.04 0.05 0.05 0.03	18/08 02/08 09/08 20/10 13/09	0.4 0.4 1.0 0.7 1.4	0.09 0.10 0.15 0.13 0.21	0.05 0.05 0.06 0.06 0.04

SURFACE/WATER - REGISTER AND STATISTICS 87															87	
				Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff 	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	Peak flow (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (^{m³} = ⁻¹)	Date of min,	10 Percentile (^{m1} * ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m ¹ a ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m³e ⁻¹)
037033 M.A: EA	Eastw Local No: Level: 12m	rood Brook at Eastwood Sens.: 50.6 LIF: 30	C.A: 10.4 km ² B/full: 20.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 1.000	7595	564		152		0.05	10.1	02/10 1992	0.00	08/08 1990	0.1	0.02	0.01
Comment: Non-stan drowning, Full range s urbanised catchment London Clay.	dard weir, insensitiv station. Very flashy, c on an industrial esta	e at low Rows, however, a go composed almost entirely of urba ate on the outskirts of Southence	chi. 1000 sod stepped fall, so no an runoff. # Small, totally d. Underlying geology is	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	416 474 663 524 771	• 74 84 118 93 137	555 105 155 124 218	365 69 102 82 143	0.18 0.03 0.05 0.04 0.07	4.3 4.5	25/02 24/02	0.04 >0.00 0.01 >0.00 0.01?	18/08 22/07 07/08 28/05 13/08	0.4 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2	0.09 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.03	0.05 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01

• • •

,

Map 7: THAMES



Gauging Station Register

Station number	River name	Station name		Grid reference	Catchment area (eq km)	Station type	Period of record	Mean ann. rainfail (mm)	Mean ann. runoff (mm)	Metn ann. Ioas (mm)	Max. ann. runoff (mm)	Year of max.	Min, ann, runoff (mm)	Year of min.	Mean flow (m*e*)	Min, man, flow (^{m1} s**)	Month/Year of min,	Median ann, fìocd (^{m¹} e⁺¹)	Base Flow Index	10 Percantile (m³a-1)	95 Percentile (m³s-')
037014 037015 037023 037001 037019 037018 038013 038018 038017 038011	Roding Cripsey Brk Roding Beam Ingrebourne Upper Lee Upper Lee Winnram Mimram	High Ongar Chipping Ongar Loughton Redbnidge Bretons Farm Gaynes Park Luton Hoo Water Hall Whitwell Fulling Mill	ππορο τοροίο το το το το το το το το το το το το το	561040 548035 442955 415884 515853 553862 118185 299099 184212 225169	95.1 62.2 269.0 303.3 49.7 47.9 70.7 150.0 39.1 98.7	EW FV C EW EW TP B C C C	1963-00 196100 197100 1950-00 196500 1970-00 1970-00 1971-00 1970-00 195700	606 627 601 620 602 600 665 662 658 678	157 181 166 190 206 215 96 264 66 64	449 446 435 430 396 385 569 398 592 614	371 501 398 352 278 307 170 358 142 111	00 00 00 87 00 67 93 94 79	23 36 37 55 107 114 8 128 6 12	97 73 97 97 73 97 73 97 73 97	0.47 0.36 1.42 1.83 0.32 0.33 0.22 1.25 0.08 0.20	>0.00 0.02 0.08 0.17 0.04 0.07 0.00 0.29 0.00 0.00	07/76 10/72 08/76 08/95 08/76 08/76 11/97 08/76 11/97 02/98	11.2 23.0 9.2 4.6 3.0 7.9 0.4	.35 .30 .34 .39 .38 .49 .62 .82 .97 .96	1.1 0.9 3.2 4.4 0.7 0.7 0.5 2.1 0.1 0.4	0.02 0.03 0.09 0.23 0.07 0.09 0.49 0.01 0.02
038003 038012 038030 038029 038004 038006 038006 038002 038005 038016 038016 038028	Mimram Stevenage Brk Beane Ouin Rib Rib Ash Ash Stansted Sp Stansted Brk	Panshanger Park Bragbury Park Hartham Griggs Bridge Wadesmill Herts Train'g Sch Mardock Easneye Mountfitchet Gypsy Lane	ππππππππ	282133 274211 325131 392248 360174 335158 393148 380138 500246 506241	133.9 36.0 175.1 50.4 136.5 148.1 78.7 85.2 20.5 25.9	FL FV FV FV + C TP FV TP FV FV	195200 1974-00 1979-00 1978-00 1979-00 195682 1980-00 196081 1969-00 197200	653 640 636 631 632 633 628 631 632	123 83 101 91 133 113 119 88 90	530 557 539 545 521 499 520 509 543 543 542	199 120 148 163 181 207 214 161 149 192	94 79 88 79 58 00 74 75 00	54 56 39 15 41 19 31 5 26	73 76 97 97 73 97 73 97 73	0.52 0.09 0.56 0.14 0.48 0.63 0.28 0.32 0.06 0.07	0.14 0.01 0.14 >0.00 0.02 0.05 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.00 0.01	08/76 09/97 11/97 09/97 08/76 09/97 08/76 12/97. 08/97	2.0 12.2 6.8	.93 .27 .76 .42 .58 .52 .55 .98 .45	0.8 0.2 0.9 0.3 0.9 1.2 0.6 0.6 0.1 0.2	0.22 0.01 0.19 0.01 0.07 0.13 0.06 >0.00 0.01
038026 038007 038027 038031 038001 038020 038020 038024 038021 038019 038014	Pincey Brook Canons Brk Stort Lee Cobbins Brk Small R. Lee Turkey Brook Salmon Brk Salmon Brk	Sheering Hatl Elizabeth Way Gien Faba Rye Bridge Feildes Weir Sewardstone Rd Ordnance Road Albany Park Montague Road Edmonton	1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1	495126 431104 393093 385098 390092 387999 370988 359985 354932 343937	54.6 21.4 280.2 758.3 1036.0 38.4 41.5 42.2 33.9 20.5	FV FLUS US FL FV FL FV	1974-00 1953-00 1985.00 1993-00 7900n 197100 1973-00 1971-00 197176 195600	623 616 624 663 641 614 638 669 588 668	176 264 150 126 162 177 234 150 132 248	447 352 474 537 479 437 404 519 456 420	395 429 322 200 350 383 365 302 163 491	00 00 00 19 00 00 00 72 00	43 137 50 32 49 48 94 43 87 117	97 73 97 34 73 97 73 73 73	0.31 0.18 1.34 3.03 5.32 0.22 0.31 0.20 0.14 0.16	0.01 0.03 0.16 0.32 0.80 >0.00 0.05 >0.00 0.03 0.01	08/76 05/54 08/95 10/96 08/49 08/76 08/76 08/95 03/73 09/59	11.0 7.8 39.1 8.3 7.6	.39 .41 .44 .68 .57 .26 .47 .22 .31 .29	0.7 0.4 2.9 6.3 9.4 0.5 0.6 0.5 0.3 0.4	0.03 0.04 0.16 0.44 1.59 0.01 0.07 0.01 0.02 0.01
038025 • 038015 • 038022 038032 039100 • 039040 039040 039073 039035	Pymmes Brk intercept' Dr Pymmes Brk Lee ³ Swill Brook Thames Chum Chum Chum	Alcazar Enfield Edmonton Lea Bridge Oaksey Cricklade Perrott's Brook Cirencester Cerney Wick	TQ TQ TQ ST SU SP SU SU	340925 355932 340925 352872 997927 094942 022057 020028 076963	41,4 7,4 42,6 1364,0 53,3 185,0 59,0 84,0 124,3	VA FL C US EM CC FV CC	195474 1969-82 1954-00 199400, 198498 1972-00 199000 1979-00 1969-00	675 615 679 600 777 797 912 898 861	401 465 361 128 183 249 337 290 222	274 150 318 472 594 548 575 608 639	681 626 663 147 243 425 457 462 414	60 79 95 94 00 99 00	231 366 168 121 125 84 153 124 40	69 71 73 97 90 73 97 97 76	0.53 0.11 0.49 5.54 0.31 1.46 0.63 0.77 0.87	0.09 0.04 0.09 3.26 0.00 0.03 0.01 >0.00 0.00	10/69 02/71 10/69 07/96 09/91 08/76 09/95 10/95 09/76	22.9 8.1 3.5	.54 .50 .49 .76 .46 .68 .95 .89 .83	1.1 0.2 1.0 8.7 0.9 4.1 1.5 1.9 2.2	0.11 0.04 0.11 3.03 0.07 0.05 0.05 0.05
039087 039099 039074 039109 039020 039020 039110 039090 039042 039097	Ray Ampney Brk Ampney Brk Coln Coln Coln Cole Leach Thames	Water Eaton Ampney St Peter Sheepen Bridge Fossebridge Bibury Fairford Inglesham Lechlade Buscot	SU SP SP SP SP SU SU SU	121935 076013 105950 080112 122062 151012 208970 227994 230981	84.1 45.3 74.4 82.0 106.7 130.0 140.0 76.9 997.0	US FV C C EM CC C MIS	197400 1983-00 198000 199000 1963-00 199100 1997200 198098	725 825 798 889 822 874 702 737 757	491 400 329 179 398 491 268 310 290	234 425 469 710 424 383 434 427 467	703 678 599 244 645 605 372 458 367	00 00 94 00 99 98 77 82	297 242 178 58 118 293 98 139 204	76 97 90 97 76 97 97 76 96	1.31 0.57 0.78 0.47 1.35 2.02 1.19 0.76 9.17	0.33 0.00 0.03 0.20 0.53 0.11 0.02 0.83	08/76 10/96 10/96 08/95 09/76 10/96 08/95 09/90 08/95	3.6 [°] 10.8 3.5	.58 .76 .74 .92 .93 .95 .54 .79 .70	2.5 1.4 2.0 1.1 2.6 3.8 2.7 1.8 21.4	0.44 0.03 0.40 0.63 0.14 0.07 1.25
039142 039143 039076 039006 039129 039008 039034 039026 039144 039051	Windrush Dikler Windrush Windrush Thames Thames Thames Evenlode Cherwell Sor Sor Brook	Bourton on Wtr Bourton on Wtr Worsham Newbridge Farmoor Eynsham Cassington Mill Banbury Bodicote Adderbury	SP SP SP SP SP SP SP SP SP SP SP	160209 180196 299107 402019 438068 445087 448099 458411 462369 475346	65.5 90.7 296.0 362.6 1608.6 1616.2 430.0 199.4 87.7 106.4	C C MIS CB US MIS CC CC C C	1995-00 1995-00 194200 1950-00 195100n 195100n 1970-00 196600 1995-00 196788	870 827 781 765 804 749 721 690 678 673	350 335 260 285 306 289 274 170 232 251	520 492 521 480 498 460 447 520 446 422	512 529 437 446 473 720 419 318 352 336	00 00 60 00 00 00 00 79	225 205 166 105 132 121 117 41 101 86	97 97 76 97 76 76 76 97 76	0.73 0.96 2.44 3.28 15.63 14.83 3.73 1.07 0.64 0.85	0.31 0.19 0.36 0.19 0.62 0.59 0.15 >0.00 0.12 0.03	08/97 09/96 08/44 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 07/76 09/96 08/76	11.2 66.9 20.8 16.7	.95 .82 .80 .87 .68 .68 .71 .39 .74 .74	1.2 2.1 5.3 6.6 42.0 32.9 8.6 2.8 1.4 1.7	0.33 0.22 0.63 0.72 0.76 1.97 0.62 0.02 0.13 0.18
039021 039017 039140 039139 039112 039061 039113 039081 039046 039002	Cherwell Ray Ray Cherwell Letcombe Brk Letcombe Brk Manor Frm Brk Ock Thames Thames	Enslow Mill Grendon Islip Oxford Arabellas Lake Letcombe Bass. Letcombe Regis Abingdon S'ton Courtenay Days Weir	SP SP SU SU SU SU SU SU	482183 680211 523137 521061 374852 375853 383861 481966 516946 568935	551.7 18.8 290.1 906.8 3.1 4.0 1.4 234.0 3414.0 3444.7	CC FL US FV FV FV CC US MIS	1965-00 196200 199600 199600 199200 199200 196200 196200 197300n	690 644 674 666 796 747 775 658 712 717	219 164 198 326 670 293 206 273 292	471 480 476 486 470 77 482 452 439 425	322 319 215 108 590 962 428 350 316 470	00 99 97 00 94 93 00 79 60	78 29 88 108 81 55 45 76 125 94	76 73 97 97 97 76 97 76 97 73	3.84 0.10 1.83 5.18 0.03 0.09 0.01 1.53 29.54 31.93	0.13 0.00 0.20 1.11 0.00 >0.00 >0.00 0.13 2.41 0.39	08/76 09/97 10/96 08/97 12/96 08/76 10/97 08/76 09/90 08/76	25.9 5.5 11.9 142.2	.65 .17 .63 .93 .96 .68 .63 .64 .65	9.1 0.2 3.1 7.2 0.1 0.2 0.0 3.5 66.9 67.9	0.64 0.18 0.91 >0.01 >0.00 0.32 3.34 3,33
039147 039038 * 039105 039065 039146 039114 039115 039027 039116 039130 039037	Wendover Sp Thame Thame Ewelme Brk Mill Brook Pang Pang Pang Sulham Brook Thames Kennet	Wendover Shabbington Wheatley Eweime Biewbury Frilsham Bucklebury Pangbourne Sulham Reading Marlborough	SP SP SU SU SU SU SU SU SU SU	869083 670055 612050 642916 531864 537730 556711 634766 642741 718741 187686	9.5 443.0 533.8 13.4 2.0 89.8 109.0 170.9 3.0 4633.7 142.0	TP BUS FV FV FV CV SC	1989-00 196894 198900 197000 1996-00 199100 199100 199100 199200 1992-00	768 647 654 706 697 760 749 707 673 744 823	209 195 230 104 1514 66 57 116 725 265 192	557 452 424 602 694 692 591 479 631	339 267 373 160 2334 127 102 227 1514 403 388	94 79 93 00 94 00 94 00 00 00 00	120 62 88 12 315 1 9 49 158 111 12	97 73 97 97 97 97 92 91 97 97 97 76	0.06 2.74 3.89 0.04 0.10 0.19 0.20 0.63 0.07 38.90 0.86	0.02 0.16 0.73 0.00 0.01 0.00 0.11 >0.00 4.11 >0.00	11/90 08/76 09/90 11/97 07/97 12/97 08/92 08/76 08/97 08/95 10/76	24.4 2.1 3.1	.96 .54 .98 .95 .95 .87 .86 .63 .68 .94	0.1 6.0 10.3 0.1 0.2 0.5 0.6 1.1 0.2 101.3 2.1	0.03 0.43 0.87 0.01 0.01 0.19 >0.00 5.07 0.06

	River name	Station name		Grid reference	Catchment area (sq km)	Station type	Period of record	Mean ann. rainfall (mm)	Mean ann. runoff (mm)	Mean ann. Ioss (mm)	Max. ann. runoff (mn)	Year of max.	Min. ann. runoff , (สสา)	Year of min.	Maan flow (m³s²¹)	Min. mon. flow (m³s⁻¹)	Month/Year of min.	Median ann. flood (m³s⁻¹)	Base Flow Index	10 Percentile (m³s -1)	95 Percentile (m³s ⁻¹)
)77 101)43)28 103)32 •)31 •)33 319 025	Og Aldbourne Kennet Dun Kennet Lambourn Lambourn Winterbourne Lambourn Enborne	Mariborough Ramsbury Knighton Hungerford Newbury East Shefford Welford Bagnor Shaw Brimpton	รบ รบ รบ รบ รบ รบ รบ รบ รบ	194697 288717 295710 321685 472672 390745 411731 453694 470682 568648	59.2 53.1 295.0 101.3 548.1 154.0 176.0 49.2 234.1 147.6	FV C C S C C C C	1980-00 198200 196200 1968-00 1968-00 1966-83 1962-83 1962-00 1962-00 196700	816 807 802 790 822 758 762 730 745 814	169 123 269 224 275 157 183 106 231 282	647 684 533 566 547 601 579 624 514 532	341 196 486 286 446 225 249 185 345 426	00 94 00 00 69 67 82 00 99	14 51 106 132 17 62 38 100 140	97 97 76 76 76 76 65 76 73	0.32 0.21 2.52 0.72 4.78 0.77 1.02 0.17 1.71 1.32	>0.00 0.01 0.20 1.59 0.01 0.23 0.02 0.49 0.04	12/90 10/97 08/76 08/76 10/97 07/76 08/76 08/76 08/76	2.4 1.8 2.0 0.3 3.5 15.6	.95 .97 .95 .94 .98 .98 .98 .98 .96 .97	0.7 0.5 5.2 1.3 9.2 1.6 1.7 0.3 2.8 2.8	0.01 0.02 0.59 0.27 1.79 0.10 0.41 0.05 0.75 0.17
)16)22 23)15)44)07 38)39)23 (09	Kennet Loddon Blackwater Whitewater Hart Blackwater Loddon Wye Wye Thames	Theale Sheepbridge Famborough Lodge Farm Bramshil House Swallowfield Twyford - High Wycombe Hedsor Bray Weir	รบ รบ รบ รบ รบ รบ รบ รบ	649708 720652 879559 731523 755593 731648 778768 853936 896867 909797	1033.4 164.5 35.5 44.6 84.0 354.8 751.8 67.7 137.3 6915.3	C C EM C C CC US T C MIS	1961-00 196500 1996-00 1927-00 1972.00 1952-00 199500 199700 1964-00 1959-82	782 755 789 795 712 715 750 868 772 721	295 422 414 252 283 268 281 106 227 264	487 333 375 543 429 447 469 762 545 457	462 654 616 426 434 458 435 152 314 363	00 00 00 00 00 00 99 67 77	124 231 297 116 131 130 176 66 102 128	76 73 97 34 73 53 97 98 76 73	9.67 2.20 0.47 0.36 0.75 3.02 6.70 0.23 0.99 57.93	1.38 0.59 0.12 0.12 0.64 2.26 0.00 0.31 8.37	08/76 08/76 05/98 10/34 08/76 09/59 09/96 10/97 08/76 08/76	37.3 16.4 1.2 8.5 21.1 2.9	.87 .76 .94 .64 .67 .80 .92 .93 .70	16.9 3.8 0.9 1.5 5.6 14.1 0.6 1.5 126.3	3.76 0.95 0.13 0.17 0.22 0.96 2.62 0.08 0.46 15.72
052 072 125 126 014 013 089 030 088 010	The Cut Thames Ver Red Ver Colne Gade Gade Chess Colne	Binfield Windsor Park Redbourn Hansteads Berrygrove Bury Mill Croxley Green Rickmansworth Denham	5U 5U TL TL TQ TQ TQ	853713 982773 109118 107119 151016 123982 053077 082952 066947 052864	50.2 7046.0 62.6 18.5 132.0 352.2 48.2 184.0 105.0 743.0	MIS US FV CC CC FL CC C B	195700 197900 199300 199300 1956.00 195400 197500 1970.00 1974.00 197200	680 722 753 730 716 696 743 722 771 721	241 254 37 66 97 71 99 162 175 171	439 468 716 664 619 625 644 560 596 550	441 111 114 195 209 177 249 255 248	00 94 94 37 88 88 83 94	123 127 <1 17 23 9 22 56 61 68	73 97 97 76 73 97 73 76 73	0.38 56.73 0.07 0.04 0.41 0.79 0.15 0.94 0.58 4.02	0.03 13.23 0.00 0.02 0.01 0.01 0.09 0.09 0.93	09/64 08/95 08/98 05/97 08/76 11/73 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76	8.3 1.6 0.7 1.3 10.5	.46 .72 .93 .67 .87 .92 .87 .95 .87	0.8 124.4 0.3 0.1 0.8 1.6 0.3 1.6 1.0 6.4	0.06 15.21 0.08 0.13 0.02 0.34 0.22 1.81
)127 091 = 102 098)117)124)111)128)118)119	Misbourne Misbourne Pinn Colne Brook Wraysbury Thames Bourne (South) Wey Wey	Little Missenden Quarrendon Mill Denham Lodge Uxbridge Hythe End Staines Staines Addlestone Alton Kings Pond	SU TQ TQ TQ TQ TQ SU SU	934984 975963 046866 062826 019723 033718 034713 061650 717394 724395	47.2 66.3 136.0 33.3 929.5 55.7 8120.0 90.1 44.6 45.9	TPC B C EM C US VA FV TP	199300 197885 198400 198400 199100 199500 199000 199200 199100	817 799 765 670 738 663 724 712 918 918	77 59 55 181 60 225 208 305 48 66	740 740 710 489 678 438 516 407 870 852	134 119 99 418 77 516 352 488 109 135	94 83 98 95 00 00 00 00	6 34 13 87 24 87 81 210 4 14	97 84 97 97 97 97 97 97 97 92	0.12 0.24 0.19 1.76 0.40 53.65 0.87 0.07 0.10	0.00 0.02 0.03 0.01 0.36 0.13 10.00 0.28 0.00 0.00	09/97 09/80 09/97 08/95 10/96 01/97 07/97 08/95 09/97 10/97		.96 .83 .89 .19 .87 .73 .68 .75 .91 .90	0.3 0.4 0.5 3.7 0.8 138.1 1.3 0.2 0.2	0.02 0.02 0.06 0.01 0.43 0.12 10.43 0.33
9120 9078 9011 9122 9036 9029 9141 9079 9121 9054	Caker Stream Wey(north) Wey Cranleigh Wtrs Law Brook Tillingbourne Wey Wey Wey Thames Mole	Alton Framham Titford Bramley Albury Shalford Guildford Weybridge ~ Walton Gatwick Airport	SU SU SU TQ TQ TQ TQ TQ	729388 838462 874433 999462 045468 000478 994495 068648 099670 260399	88.1 191.1 396.3 109.5 16.0 59.0 689.6 1008.0 9291.5 31.8	FV MIS C US TP C US US US FLC	199100 197800 1954-00 1958.00 1968.00 1968.00 1966.00 197900 199100 196100	986 892 863 816 824 810 910 803 748 822	27 123 256 316 207 283 254 207 194 332	959 769 607 500 617 527 656 596 554 490	66 232 419 624 266 367 416 243 325 605	00 60 60 69 69 00 94 00 66	10 68 135 211 136 189 161 129 71 127	97 97 73 97 92 92 97 97 97 73	0.08 0.74 3.22 1.10 0.10 0.53 5.56 6.61 57.12 0.34	0.00 0.15 0.88 0.18 0.26 1.89 2.02 9.16 0.00	10/97 09/97 08/55 08/98 06/96 06/92 09/97 08/90 10/95 08/95	24.5 0.5 2.0	.40 .73 .72 .40 .93 .89 .69 .67 .67 .24	0.2 1.4 5.4 2.8 0.1 0.7 8.8 12.4 127.2 0.9	0.18 1.28 0.19 0.07 0.31 1.84 2.17 9.52 0.02
9024 * 9086 9053 9069 9068 9106 9104 9107 9012 9001	Gatwick St Gatwick St Mole Mole Mole Hogsmill Hogsmill Thames	Gatwick Gatwick Link Horley Kinnersley Mor Castle Mill Leatherhead Esher Ewell Kingston Kingston	TQ TQ TQ TQ TQ TQ TQ TQ	288402 285417 271434 262462 179502 161564 130653 216633 182688 177698	31.1 33.6 89.9 142.0 316.0 371.4 469.6 33.7 69.1 9948.0	VA C CBVA MIS C EM US FLVA B US	1952-77 1975-00 196100 197200 197100 198600 198800 198800 195600 83-00n	897 843 818 808 785 800 775 729 683 719	460 665 474 486 371 289 364 40 456 247	437 178 344 322 414 511 411 689 227 472	768 1123 652 970 683 320 542 92 772 418	60 94 00 98 00 94 00 51	281 481 233 211 159 234 258 3 298 98	53 76 73 73 97 91 91 73 34	0.45 0.71 1.35 2.19 3.72 3.40 5.41 0.04 1.00 77.87	0.03 0.13 0.17 0.67 0.90 0.74 >0.00 0.43 10.76	06/76 08/76 08/76 08/72 08/95 08/98 03/92 10/69 07/21	6.2 10.8 24.3 45.5 13.5 308.4	.56 .61 .45 .40 .42 .59 .51 .94 .74 .64	0.9 1.4 2.7 4.6 8.7 7.4 11.9 0.1 1.5 172.4	0.11 0.26 0.25 0.32 0.79 0.89 1.21 >0.00 0.53 18.71
9055 * 9145 9057 9094 9092 9084 9049 9096 9093 9131	Yeading Brk Yeading Brk Crane Dollis Brook Brent Silk Stream Weakdstone Brent Brent	Yeading West W Avenue Crantord Park Marsh Farm Hendon Lane Br Brent Cross Colindeep Lane Wembley Monks Park Greenford	TQ TQ TQ TQ TQ TQ TQ TQ	083846 111845 103778 154734 240895 236880 217895 192862 202850 149823	17.6 9.6 61.7 81.0 25.1 36.4 29.0 21.8 117.6 146.2	FV FL FL FV FL FV	197994 1995-00 197800 197700 197900 1989-00 197300 197900 197800 197800 199200	655 667 648 635 705 678 689 676 690 693	231 177 256 201 279 305 269 208 265 264	424 490 392 434 426 373 420 468 425 429	525 285 399 303 432 496 422 307 408 389	85 00 93 00 00 00 00 00	134 111 149 82 156 208 165 120 178 171	83 96 97 97 96 97 97 97 97	0.13 0.05 0.50 0.51 0.22 0.35 0.25 0.14 0.99 1.23	0.01 0.12 0.05 0.09 0.03 0.02 0.18 0.27	08/83 02/98 09/85 02/98 03/97 05/90 04/74 08/95 10/85 08/95	4,4 14.0 7,4 11.7 12.0 24.6	.43 .24 .36 .33 .29 .34 .33 .25 .24 .32	0.3 0.1 1.2 0.5 0.8 0.6 0.3 2.3 2.8	0.01 0.01 0.02 0.03 0.07 0.04 0.02 0.14 0.21
19005 19004 19085 * 19003 19134 19058 19056 19056 19135 19095	Beverley Brk Wandle Wandle Ravensbourne Pool Ravensbourne Quaggy Guaggy	Wimbledon Com. Beddington Park Wandle Park Connollys Mill Bromley S Winsford Road Catiord Hill Chinbrook Manor Ho Gdns	TQ TQ TQ TQ TQ TQ TQ TQ	216717 296655 266703 265705 406687 371725 372732 410720 394748	43.5 122.0 176.1 176.1 10.3 38.3 120.4 14.5 33.5	FL FM FL FL FL FL FL FL	193500 193600 193660 196200 199300 197800 197700 197700 1972.00	640 782 713 741 711 665 727 705 650	401 45 285 312 153 240 111 191 141	239 737 428 429 558 425 616 514 509	524 93 431 546 227 310 146 257 215	00 93 37 00 00 00 86 00 00	211 8 220 145 101 185 77 126 90	62 73 57 73 96 97 99 99	0.55 0.17 1.59 1.74 0.05 0.29 0.42 0.09 0.15	0.16 0.01 0.94 0.56 0.01 0.09 0.13 0.01 0.03	06/62 08/76 11/56 02/65 10/95 11/99 09/97 07/99 09/97	13.2 3.0 10.3 10.6 15.3 4.8	.67 .77 .82 .87 .39 .57 .56 .53 .48	0.9 0.3 2.5 2.8 0.1 0.5 0.8 0.2 0.3	0.24 0.01 0.92 0.74 0.01 0.11 0.13 0.02 0.03

Hydrometric Statistics

Hydrom	etric Sta	tistics		Perlod	Rainfail (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	Peak flow ("'a'n)	Date of peak	Min. delly flow (m*a**)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m***')	50 Percentle (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m*e**)
037014 M.A: EA F.A.R: GI	Roding at Local No: 5420 Level: 41m	High Ongar Sens.: 40.0 UE: <.01	C.A: 95.1 km² B/fult: 9.5m³s ^{~1} FAI: 0.986	63_95	604		158		0.48	15.0	15/03 1964	0.00	11 <i>]</i> 07 1976	1.1	0.13	0.02
Comment: 'Essex' (mo operates (>1,7m) into modularity - c/m rating corrected 1987-91. Nat imigation can substanti Clay/glacial deposits), a	dified Flat V) weir in an 11m a bypass channel. Structur under development. Evider uralised flows: 1964-76; mir ally deplete low flows. # gericultural catchment.	n wide section. Model-base e subject to drowning; cor nice of weir settlement disco nimal net import. Responsi- enerally low lying, largely i	id calibration, Overfall inputed flows assume overed in 1991, flows ve flow regime. Spray impermeable (London	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	402 506 687 622 828	67 84 114 103 137	43 23 161 140 372	27 15 102 89 235	0.13 0.07 0.49 0.42 1.12	3.3 0.9 10.8 8.0 19.5	25/02 25/12 16/04 04/01 30/10	0.01 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.04	05/08 11/08 26/07 29/07 25/08	0.2 0.1 1.4 1.0 3.2	0.05 0.04 0.14 0.13 0.34	0.01 0.02 0.03 0.04 0.05
037015 M.A: EA	Cripsey Brook a Local No: 5427	tt Chipping Ongar Sens.: 33.3	C.A: 62.2 km ² B/full: 25.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6195	625		176		0.35	40.2	10/06 1993	0.00	01/11 1975	0.9	0.10	0.02
Comment: Flat V weir firnited capacity, most estimation of flows duri Sewage effluent is an hydrograph. # Predomi glacial deposits). A rura	(5.5m broad) installed in 15 early flows truncated at a ng periods of drowned flow important component of lo inately impermeable catcha at catchment, agriculture is	B1 - superseded a compo around 2.5 m ³ s ⁻¹ . Modul (e.g. in autumn 2000). Re- w flows. Impact of abstra- nent (London Clay but wit the primary land use.	not thin-plate weir of lar casbration. Over- sponsive flow regime. ction also evident on th extensive areas of	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	421 526 698 649 873	67 84 112 104 140	76 55 215 180 503	43 31 122 102 286	0.15 0.11 0.42 0.35 0.99	8.7 2.5 15.4 10.5 77.1	09/01 25/12 15/04 24/12 29/10	0.03 0.02 0.02 0.03 0.04	06/08 27/11 20/08 03/11 07/09	0.3 0.2 1.2 0.9 2.2	0.07 0.06 0.12 0.12 0.29	0.04 0.03 0.03 0.04 0.04
037023 M.A: EA F.A.R: SEI	Roding a Local No: 5470 Level: 18m	t Loughton Sens.: 22.2 UE:	C.A: 269.0 km ² S/full: 35.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI:	7195	594		168		1.41	45.8	22/11 1974	0.02	09/09 1990	3.3	0.40	0.10
Comment: Crump wein subject to drowning. No catchment (London Cla areas.	r (single crest), installed 19 data from 1982-88. High fic ry and glacial deposits). Ma	89. C/m calibration. Prior t ws under review. # Predor in land use is agriculture	o 1983: 'Essex' weir ninantly impermeable with significant urban	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	413 510 700 622 839	70 86 118 105 141	60 37 195 147 <i>3</i> 97	36 22 117 89 239	0.51 0.32 1.67 1.26 3.38	18.6 5.4 25.8 24.3 54.6	09/01 25/12 16/04 25/12 30/10	0.07 0.07 0.06 0.07 0.11	18/07 11/08 22/08 18/07 16/08	0.9 0.6 4.1 2.7 10.6	0.25 0.18 0.44 0.45 0.96	0.09 0.08 0.10 0.13 0.14
037001 M.A: EA F.A.R: SEI	Roding at Local No: 5480 Level: 6m	t Redbridge Sens.: 13.8 UE: .05	C.A: 303.3 km ² B/full: 24.9m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.985	5095	621		193		1.85	62.4	22/11 1974	80.0	13/08 1990	4.5	0.78	0.24
Comment: 'Essex' prof in 1962. Calibration abo import of water (but di Pattern of low flows in impervious (London Cla development close to th	We (modified Flat V Crump) we 35 m ³ s ⁻¹ is based upon version of Luxborough ST/ fluenced by abstractions. N y and superficial deposits) of he gauging station.	weir superseded insensiti model tests. Flows augme N effluent, completed in 1 laturalised flows 1951-75. satchment, Land use: rural	ve broad-crested weir nted by moderate net 1987, reduced dmfs). # Low tying, mainly with significant urban	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	413 512 701 622 846	67 82 113 100 136	74 55 193 145 353	38 28 100 75 183	0.71 0.53 1.86 1.40 3.38	12.5 5.7 17.0 14.5 75 .1	09/01 22/06 17/04 04/01 30/10	0.13 0.14 0.15 0.11 0.19	19/07 10/08 22/09 18/07 07/09	1.3 1.1 5.2 3.3 9.6	0.39 0.34 0.70 0.62 1.39	0.16 0.16 0.19 0.18 0.24
037019 M.A: EA F.A.D: SEI	Beam at B Local No: 5541 Level: 2m	retons Farm Sens.: 25.7	C.A: 49.7 km ² B/full: 9.6m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.982	6595	601		213		0.34	17.8	02/10 1993	0.03	22/08 1976	0.7	0.16	0.07
Comment: 'Essex' (mo assumes modularity; dr Naturalised flows: 1966 influence flows patterns overlain in places by gl development in lower re	dified Flat V Crump) weir i owning is uncommon. Sepa -75; very small net diminutio (from late 1980s). # A prede acial deposits). Mainly rural aaches.	n 10.4m wide section. Mo arate spiliway accommoda on in runoff. Flood storage ominantly impermeable cat headwaters, substantial -	del-based calibration tes flow > 16 m ³ s ⁻¹ . lagoons (on R. Rom) chment (London Clay and growing - urban	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	416 497 690 597 828	69 83 115 99 138	123 121 229 173	58 57 108 81	0.19 0.19 0.36 0.27	7.8 5.9 8.4 7,4	22/08 26/06 31/10 24/09	0.06 0.06 0.08 0.06	15/07 16/09 18/08 26/07	0.3 0.4 0.9 0.6	0.12 0.11 0.17 0.14	0.07 0.07 0.07 0.07
037018 M.A. EA	Ingrebourne a Local No: 5550	t Gaynes Park Sens.: 23.3	C.A: 47.9 km ² B/full: 8.4m ³ s ⁻¹	7095	599		219		0.33	29.0	21/11 1974	0.06	17/08 1972	0.7	0.19	0.09
F.A.R: SEI Comment: 'Essex' prol floods contained. Mode about 7 m ³ s ⁻¹ . Natura (transfer from R. Beam headwaters but substar	Level: 7m ile (modified Flat V Crump) I-based calibration assume lised flow available for peri). # Largely impermeable c tital urban development aro) weir in 9.5m wide section s modulanity; however, dru iod 1970-75; minor net au atchment (London Clay/gli und lower reaches.	FAI: 0.987 n. All but exceptional owning occurs above igmentation of runoff actal deposits). Rurat	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	425 508 694 595 806	71 85 116 99 135	139 122 231 189 308	63 56 105 86 141	0.21 0.18 0.35 0.29 0.47	4.1 2.4 6.0 3.8 19.2	09/01 26/06 31/10 24/12 30/10	0.08 0.08 0.09 0.08 0.09	28/09 29/07 13/08 03/08 14/09	0.3 0.3 0.8 0.6 1.0	0.16 0.14 0.19 0.18 0.24	0.11 0.09 0.10 0.10 0.10
038013 M.A: EA F.A.R: G	Upper Lee : Local No: 4640 Level: 98m	at Luton Hoo Sens.: 10.6 UE: .28	C.A: 70.7 km ² B/full: 3.8m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.948	6095	661		100		0.22	9.1	17/08 1984	0.00	03/11 1995	0.5	0.17	
Comment: Rectangulai flows > 0.33 m ³ s ⁻¹ . Out overfall weir, Flows are Significant periods of ze plate weir). Pre-1966 dat	r thin-plate weir (0.92m wide fall from an ornamental lake i substantially reduced as i ro flow (occasionally interru la very suspect. # A Chalk ca	 plus insensitive broad-on Only very high floods excess result of gw abstractions pted by small releases via a stohment (with Drift) now su 	ested overfall weir for red the capacity of the s (significant export). sluice above the thin- bstantially urbanised.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	470 559 856 624 898	71 85 130 94 136	35 9 90 80 110	35 9 90 80 110	0.08 0.02 0.20 0.18 0.25	2.5 2.7 8.5 2.7 3.9	12/02 27/06 27/09 02/06 29/10	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00	17/06 01/01 03/02 14/07 21/01	0.2 0.0 0.4 0.5 0.6	0.04 0.12 0.09 0.12	
038018 M.A: EA F.A.R: GEI	Upper Lee - Local No: 4690 Level: 44m	at Water Hall Sens.: 12.9 UE: .16	C.A: 150.0 km² B/full: 8.3m³s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.946	7195	660		269		1.28	15.8	30/05 1979	0.24	23/08 1976	2.1	1.12	0.50
Comment: Crump weir flows contained. Some effluent augments flows # Catchment is mainty p agricultural with some in	6.0m wide in an artificial c early data (of limited quality and strongly effects the k ervious (Chalk) but with gtar mportant (expanding) urban	shannel. Modular througho y) for two nearby gauging two flow regime. Moderate tial Drift in the headwaters. centres.	ut the flow range, Ali stations, Luton STW net import of water, Land use: principally	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	492 554 802 635 884	75 84 122 96 134	177 141 253 270 349	66 52 94 100 130	0.84 0.67 1.20 1.28 1.66	5.6 4.0 7.6 5.7 14.1	08/01 25/02 15/04 15/01 29/10	0.41 0.44 0.56 0.64 0.77	18/08 14/09 22/08 01/08 25/08	1.4 0.8 1.8 2.1 3.0	0.72 0.62 1.05 1.07 1.27	0.44 0.48 0.65 0.68 0.84
038017 M.A: EA F.A.R: G	Mimram a Local No: 4730 Level: 88m	at Whitwell Sens.: 55.0 UE;	C.A: 39.1 km² B/futl: 0.3m³s ⁻¹ FAI:	70 <i></i> 95	656		72		0.09	0.7	13/10 1993	0.00 1	01/09 1992	0.2	0.09	0.02
Comment: Crump weir, modular. Low flows occ: due to gw abstraction Discharge sustained fro three months in late 195	1.0m crest (rather insensiti asionally augmented by pur is more characteristic. U/ m Chalk springs - hydrolog 97. # A predominantly pervi	ve) within wider section. At nping from local tube wells s cress-beds can influen ical catchment divide is ur ous (Chalk), rural catchme	I flows contained and but slight diminution ce low flow pattern. Icertain. Dry for over ent.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	485 567 826 571 880	74 86 126 87 134	36 6 23 63 58	50 8 32 88 81	0.04 0.01 0.03 0.08 0.07	0.4 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.2	23/07 23/02 25/12 01/06 31/12	0.02 0.00 0.01 0.03 0.03	31/12 09/08 02/01 06/12 30/01	0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1	0.05 0.01 0.03 0.08 0.07	0.02 0.01 0.04 0.04
038003 M.A: EA	Mimram at Pa Local No: 4790	nshanger Park Sens.: 6.6	C.A: 133.9 km ² 8/full: 2.3m ³ s ⁻¹	5295	654		127		0.54	3.8	12/10 1993	0.14	19/08 1976	0.8	0.50	0.22
Comment: Critical-dept calibration confirmed (considerable groundwa hows increasing due to overlain by glacial depos valley - the Mimram dra	b flurne; 5m wide. Perform by gaugings. All flows c iter abstraction in headwater o urbanisation. # A predon sits near headwaters); maind ins part of Welwyn Garden	ance of flume under review contained. Appreciable n ers). Very high baseflow c ninantly permeable catchn y rural but substantial urba City.	v (1999). Theoretical et 'export of water component, but peak nent (Upper Chalk - n growth in the lower	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	499 555 780 614 868	76 85 119 94 133	85 56 78 114 128	67 44 61 90 101	0.36 0.24 0.33 0.48 0.54	5.8 1.5 1.6 1.6 2.4	23/07 26/06 09/04 02/07 29/10	0.21 0.16 0.21 0.28 0.31	18/09 19/08 22/08 13/09 13/09	0.5 0.3 0.4 0.7 1.0	0.32 0.23 0.30 0.46 0.46	0.22 0.18 0.22 0.29 0.34
038012 M.A: EA	Stevenage Brook Local No: 4827 Level: m	at Bragbury Park Sens.: 60.0 UE:	C.A: 36.0 km² B/futl: 3.0m³s ⁻¹ FAI:	7495	640		84		0.10	6.1	13/10 1993	>0.00	04/09 1976	0.2	0.04	0.01
Comment: Flat V weir weir operated by Steven of poor quality. The Flat abstractions (net export lashy flow regime. # A	2.75m wide; constructed ii age Development Corporati t V weir remains modular u) and the release of water Chalk catchment now large	n 1974 to supersede the o ion - flow records prior to 10 p to 4.1 m ³ s ⁻¹ ; higher flow from flood storage lagooi ly urbanised.	riginal broad-crested 974 are sporadic and ods uncorrected. Gw ns can influence the	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	485 531 703 639 835	76 83 110 100 130	57 58 89 71 119	68 69 106 85 142	0.07 0.07 0.10 0.08 0.14	2.5 1.6 2.3 3.2 3.8	23/07 27/06 09/04 24/12 30/10	0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01	10/07 10/08 20/09 25/05 22/08	0.1 0.2 0.3 0.2 0.3	0.03 0.02 0.03 0.02 0.05	0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 .0.01

:

						Perlod	Rainfall (mm)	of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	of pre-1996	Mean flow (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	Peak flow (^{m3} s ⁻¹)	ate of peak	daily flow (m ¹ s ¹)	ate of min.	Percentile (m ³ 1)	Percentile {m³s -1)	Percentile (m ¹ a ⁻¹)
								*		8			Ö	Min	ä	₽	8	<u>9</u> 6
038030 M.A: EA F.A.R: PG	Local No: 4890 Level: 35m	Beane af	t Hartham Sens.: 16.3 UE:		C.A: 175.1 km ² S/full: 24.4m ³ s ⁺¹ FAI:	7995	641		108		0.60	30.6	13/10 1993	0.13	26/05 1992	0.9	0.49	0.20
Comment: Flat V weir, calibration adopted. Si Stevenage (see 3801 substantially overlain (Stevenage, Significant	8m wide, All flows gnificant gw abstra 2) influence river by boulder clay ar runoff generated fr	contained actions (p flows; m nd glacial om clays	. Modular througho articularly in the t coderate net expo I sands and grav high up the catchr	out the flo neadwate ort. # So rel. Mainl ment.	w range; theoretical ers) and runoff from blid geology: Chalk ly rural but contain	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	480 524 695 644 844	75 82 108 100 132	66 39 70 86 125	61 36 65 80 116	0.37 0.22 0.39 0.48 0.69	4.9 1.8 6.4 5.4 12.3	09/01 25/02: 09/04 25/12 30/10	0.18 0.12 0.18 0.22 0.25	06/10 23/09 22/08 03/09 13/09	0.5 0.3 0.6 0.7 1.3	0.31 0.19 0.30 0.43 0.42	0.19 0.14 0.20 0.24 0.28
038029 M.A: EA F.A.R: G	Q Local No: 4939 Level: 67m	uin at Gr	iggs Bridge Sens.: 30.0		C.A: 50.4 km ² S/full: 11.5m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI:	7895	540		99		0.16	13.8	13/10 1993	0.01	11/09 1992	0.3	0.07	0.02
Comment: Flat V weir, subject to drowning. Ne especially significant of sometimes detectable.	4.5m wide. Shallo et export of water - during droughts e. # A mainly impe	w depth o increasing, late-19 rvious ca	of approach, Calibi ig from the mid-19 390, Sewage efflu tchment (extensiv	ration as: 180s, gw uent disc ve glacial	sumes station is not abstractions can be sharge pattern also deposits overlying	1996 1997 1998 1999	430 482 694 656	67 75 108 103	31 7 51 62	31 7 52 63	0.05 0.01 0.08 0.10	3.6 0.6 6.8 5.3	09/01 24/02 15/04 24/12	0.01 > 0.00 0.01 0.02	02/11 22/11 01/09 22/11	0.1 0.0 0.1 0.2	0.03 >0.00 0.02 0.04	0.01 >0.00 0.01 0.02
038004 M.A: EA	Local No: 4980	Ribat W	/adesmill Sens : 12 ()		C.A: 136.5 km ² B/full: 13.5m ³ s ⁻¹	2000 7995	862 631	135	145 119	146	0.23 0.52	9.7 23.9	30/10 13/10 1993	0.04 0.04	07/09 07/08 1992	0.5 0.9	0.06 0.30	0.04
F.A.R: GI Comment: Trapezoida calibration has applied Daily flow data availal significant gw abstracti	Level: 47m al flume plus side- during rare period ble (1957-83) for (ons (net export). #	spilling C is of drow d/s limited Geology:	UE: .01 rump weir on the rned flow. All exce d range station (3 : U Chalk extensiv	overflow pt highe 18006). F vely overf	FAI: 0.999 w channel. Modular st floods contained, flows influenced by ain by boulder clay;	1996 1997 1998 1999	441 489 703 657	70 77 111 104	48 15 77 92	40 13 65 77	0.21 0.06 0.33 0.40	8.3 1,1 11.8 8.8	09/01 25/02 15/04 25/12	0.05 0.01 0.06 0.10	16/10 20/08 01/09 13/09	0.3 0.1 0.7 0.7	0.12 0.06 0.14 0.20	0.06 0.02 0.07 0.12
glacial sands and grav Buntingford, Thundridg 039002	vel in the valleys. e and clays high up	Predomin p the cato	hantly rural. Signif hment.	ficant nur	off generated from	2000	873	138	181	152	0.78	18.4	30/10	0.06	07/09	1.8	0.37	0.12
M.A: EA F.A.R: GI	Local No: 5080 Level: 36m 1	Ash at I	Mardock Sens.: 24.3 UE: .01		C.A: 78.7 km ^e B/full: 7.6m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 1.000	8095	626		120		0.30	13.0	29/01 1988	0.02	12/08 1992	0.6	0.15	0.05
was subject to bypassii 38005). Current station and gw abstractions ha extensively overlain by Significant runoff gener	ng and inaccurate a remains modular a ive a minor effect o boulder clay; glac rated from clays hig	at low flov and is virti on basefic ial sands ih up the	e constructed in 1 vs (hence discharg ually full range. U/s w dominated regir and gravel and al catchment.	979, repi ges asse s take sto me. # So Iluvium in	laced a flume which ssed at d/s station - brage, sluice activity áid geology U Chalk in the valleys. Rural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	452 502 738 671 922	72 80 118 107 147	56 19 83 97 215	47 16 69 81 179	0.14 0.05 0.21 0.24 0.54	5.0 1.0 8.2 4.6 13.6	09/01 25/02 15/04 28/01 30/10	0.05 0.01 0.04 0.05 0.08	29/09 1 5/09 20/09 13/09 12/09	0.2 0.1 0.4 0.5 1.4	0.08 0.04 0.09 0.11 0.21	0.05 0.02 0.04 0.06 0.09
038016 M.A: EA	Stan: Local No: 5106	sted Sp a	t Mountfitchet Sens.: 16.6		C.A: 20.5 km² B/full: 0.1m³s ^{−1}	6995	628		95		0.06	0.4	17/03 1980	<u>0</u> .00	01/09 1992	0.1	0.06	0.02
Comment: Two compl spring flow discharging discharge but station of >90mm rainfatl. Signi Hydrological catchmen	ementary thin-plate to the R. Stort. V no can be overwhelme ficant local gw al t cannot be readily	e weirs (n btch rebuil ed in exc bstraction y determin	ectangular and 90 t in 1989 and new l eptional floods. 21 producing subst ned hence runoff i	degree rating tab 1/10/2001 antial ne is not rej	PAI: V notch) measuring le used. Very stable I peak triggered by at export of water. presentative. # The	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	465 503 723 661 878	74 80 115 105 140	40 5 17 64 87	42 5 18 67 92	0.03 >0.00 0.01 0.04 0.06	0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1	09/03 08/04 29/12 04/02 28/11	0.01 0.00 0.00 0.02 0.03?	16/12 04/08 01/01 30/11 01/01	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1	0.02 0.00 >0.00 0.04 0.05	0.01 >0.00 0.02 0.04
038028 M.A: EA	Chalk springs is n Stanst Local No: 5129	ed Brool	al. cat Gypsy Lane Sens.: 40.0	:	C.A: 25.9 km² S/full: 5.5m³s ⁻¹	7295	624		89		0.07	4.0	09/10 1987	0.00	24/07 1992	0.2	0.04	0.01
F.A.R: SPG Comment: Flat V weir flows contained. Some abstractions in the cat	Level: 61m (1:10 cross-slope) early data (from chment but flows i	in slightly 1964) av influenced	UE: rtrapezoidal chanr ailable for a limite by motorway rul	nel (3.5m ed range noff and	FAI: wide). Modular. All weir d/s. Very few u/s storage tagoon	1996 1997 1998	464 522 752	74 84 121	48 28 105	54 31 118	0.04 0.02 0.09	0.7 0.3 2.7	12/02 25/02 15/04	0.01 0.00 0.01	18/06 28/05 25/07	0.1 0.0 0.2	0.03 0.02 0.04	0.01 0.01 0.02
flows - due to spring ou below Eccene clays; or	e dostre can resu tflows - but subject verlain by superficia	l to artifici al deposit	sional zero nows. al disturbance. # N s. Largely rural.	Aixed geo	scharge at very low blogy: Chalk dipping	1999 2000	931	109	93 193	217	0.08	1.7 4.6	28/01 30/10	0.01	10/09 13/08	0.2	0.04 0.07	0.02
038026 M.A: EA F.A.R; SPI	Pincey Local No: 5169 Level: 43m	y Brook a	at Sheering Hall Sens.: 40.0 UE: .01	:	C.A: 54.6 km ² S/full: 16.8m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.984	7495	627		177		0.31	17.6	09/10 1987	0.01	26/08 1976	0.7	0,11	0.03
Comment: Flat V weir (irrigation can be signifi Stansted Airport provi London Clay in lowest r Airport and Hatfield For	(1:10.9 cross-slope icant (especially in de some headwat reaches. Land use: rest.), width 4. the uppe er regula mainly aç	02m. Minor impact or part of the catc tion. # Pervious pricultural but the P	t of artifici thment). (Chalk) I Pincey Bri	ial influences. Spray Balancing ponds at headwaters, mainly ook drains Stansted	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	406 505 692 651 835	65 81 110 104 133	61 42 192 174 396	34 24 108 98 224	0.11 0.07 0.33 0.30 0.68	2.5 1.0 15.5 8.7 19.8	09/01 19/12 15/04 24/12 30/10	0.01 0.01 0.03 0.03 0.03	15/07 08/08 01/09 29/05 15/08	0.2 0.2 0.8 0.7 1.6	0.06 0.05 0.12 0.14 0.28	0.02 0.02 0.03 0.04 0.04
038007 M.A: EA F.A.R: N.	Canons Local No: 5189	s Brook a	at Elizabeth Way Sens.: 32.0		C.A: 21.4 km ² B/full: 9.0m ³ s ⁻¹	5395	611		264		0.18	14,4	10/06 1993	0.01	20/06 1954	0.4	0.09	0.04
Comment: Full range ci m ³ s ⁻¹ . Over the period Balancing reservoirs in there are no significant Rural headwaters; heav	ritical-depth flume in 1965-80 low flows Harlow (and the Ne abstractions or dis rity urbanised below	n rectangu were mor w Town d icharges. v.	alar section, Theore itored at a Crump levelopment itset() # The catchment i	etical calit weir in si influence is imperv	ration extends to 11 eries with the flume, the flow pattern but ious - London Clay.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	428 493 703 670 886	70 81 115 110 145	157 147 277 270 431	59 56 105 102 163	0.11 0.10 0.19 0.18 0.29	4.1 6.0 8.4 9.0 12 1	11/02 13/07 07/04 02/07	0.03 0.03 0.03 0.04 0.04	13/09 30/10 18/08 26/07 23/08	0.2 0.2 0.4 0.5 0.7	0.07 0.06 0.08 0.09 0.13	, 0.04 0.04 0.04 0.04
038027 M.A: EA	Local No: 5190	Stort at (Sen Faba Sens.:		C.A: 280.2 km ² B/full: 18.5m ³ s ⁻¹	8595	616		153		1.36	33.0	10/10.1 1987,-	0.05	07/08 1990	2.9	0.65	0.15
F.A.R: GI Comment: Multi-path u (canalised river) hamp malfunction. All but ex substantial gw abstract Clay dominates lower urban development from	Level: 26m Iltrasonic (cross-pa pered calibration, ceptional floods or ion in headwaters catchment (consid	th), super Some ea ontained. (a proport erable Dr	UE: seded a single-pat arty dmfs estimat Limited net impaction is exported). # ift cover). Rural u orth in the value.	th device. ted due ct of artit ¢ Chalk h ipper cat	FAI: . Very low velocities to instrumentation 5cial influences but weadwaters, London chment, substantial	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	437 501 714 670 876	71 81 116 109 142	69 50 138 154 323	45 33 90 101 211	0.61 0.44 1.22 1.37 2.86	10.0 5.1 17.7 12.7 39.7	09/01 27/06 16/04 <i>04/01</i> 30/10	0.09 0.09 0.10 0.09 0.17	13/06 12/08 22/09 07/10 08/06	1.0 0.8 3.1 3.0 7.1	0.46 0,36 0.60 0.82 1.49	0.15 0.14 0.24 0.35 0.49
038031 M.A: EA	Local No:	Lee at R	ve Bridge Sens.:		C.A: 758.3 km² B/full: 51.0m³s ⁻¹	9395	674		183		4.40	87.6	-: 13/10 1993	0.55	19/11 1995	8.0	2.68	0.75
F.A.R: Comment: Multi-path, provides a check on a	Level: m cross-configuration major component	ultrasoni t of 3800	UE: c gauging station. 1 flows. Sensibly	0.4km u continuo	FAI: /s of Feildes Weir - us record. Channel	1996 1997	476 527	71 78	53 32	29 17	1.27 0.78	25.1 12.1	09/01 25/02	0.23 0.22	28/09 02/10	2.2 1.2	0.90 0.64	3- 0.28 0.36
bypassed by separatel catchment. Predominar	ly monitored outflo ity rural beadwater	at rendes ws from rs. Signific	weir greatly restri Ryemead STW. cant urban growth	icts overt # A mai iπ lower	parik now. Station is nly pervious Chalk valley.	1998 1999 2000	743 644 878	110 96 130	110 120 201	60 66 110	2.63 2.90 4.81	39.7 25.6 63.8	15/04 25/12 30/10	0.64 0.56 1.31	31/08 18/11 06/10	4.3 5.2 10.6	2.01 2.26 2.74	0.79 0.77 1.58
038001 M.A: EA F.A.R: PGEI	Local No: 5290 Level: 28m	.ee at Fe	ll des Weir Sens.: 38.3 UE: .06		C.A: 1036.0 km ² B/full: 51.7m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.954	<u>79</u> 95	639		134		4.41	118.0d	16/03 1947	0.00	02/10 1949	8.5	2.69	0.57
Comment: From 1/1/9 (insensitive - 29m wide) precision. Model rated bypasses. Pre-1978: I especially); no peak flo by Beardmore in 1850s (New River abstraction	 flows normally and 3 vertical-lift sl All flows (bar lo barrage of gates/ ws prior to 1965, l Significant g/w all 	sum of (uices; con uckages) sluices (c low flows bstraction	38027 and 38031. npleted 1978 to im now contained bu probably under-es ; net export from c	Previou prove hys ut Ryem on hydr stimated. stichmen	sty: thin-plate weir drometric range and eads STW effluent ographs, pre-1930 Gauging instigated t. Naturalised flows Predominanti-ami	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	467 521 734 651 879	73 82 115 102 138	59 37 117 129 231	44 28 87 96 172	1.93 1.21 3.86 4.23 7.56	36.2 15.9 51.3 35.4 99.1	09/01 25/02 , 15/04 04/01 30/10	0.37 0.32 0.79 1.08 1.91	17/07 02/10 22/09 18/10 25/08	3.6 1.9 7.5 7.7 17.5	1.32 0.99 2.64 3.11 4.27	0.50 0.54 1.09 1.39 2.17
headwaters; significant	urban growth in los	wer valley	ormous (onaik) cai (.	windhit.	n south in a nay furai													

÷

92 ·

-

:

.

.

.

.

.

				Perlod	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Magn flow (^{m³e⁻¹)}	Peak flow (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. dally flow (^{m1} s ¹³)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m ³ e ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m ¹ e ⁻¹)
038020 M.A: EA F.A.R: P	Cobbins Brook at : Local No: 5329	Sewardstone Road Sens.: 50.0 HE: 04	C.A: 38.4 km ² S/full: 19.9m ³ s ⁻¹ Fal: 0.997	7195	611		179		0.22	40.0	29/07 1987	>0.00	26/09 1978	0.5	0.06	0.01
Comment: Trapezoidal	critical-depth flume, overall	width 10m, insensitive at	low flows. Drowning	1996	441	72	81	45 20	0.10	6.4	09/01	0.02	13/06	0.2	0.04	0.02
flows may be overestim	ates. Net impact of abstracti	ions and discharges on the	e natural, responsive	1998	700	115	192	107	0.23	9.3	15/04	0.01	30/08	0.6	0.07	0.02
impervious (London Cla development in the vicir	ay) catchment which include nity of the gauging station.	es part of Epping Forest a	and significant urban	2000	895	146	384	215	0.47	23.7	30/10	0.02	05/09	1.3	0.15	0.02
038024 M.A: EA F.A.R: G	Smatl River Lee a Local No: 5339 Level: 15m	at Ordnance Road Sens.: 22.9 UE:	C.A: 41.5 km ² S/full: 21.2m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI:	7395	633		243		0.32	18.7	31/05 1983	0.01	25/08 1976	0.6	0.21	0.07
Comment: Flat V weir operate effectively. Minc	(1:10 cross-slope), 8m wide or impact of artificial influence	 Subject to drowning - cri as on flows, low discharge 	est tapping does not es affected by gravel	1996 1997	502 523	79 83	133 94	55 39	0.17 0.12	4.0 2.3	08/01 26/06	0.03 0.03	17/09 10/09	0.3 0.2	0.13 0.08	0.05
workings and pumped (clay), responsive, cate headwaters with consid-	drainage from the M25 can shment with substantial sup erable woodland.	a be important. # A predo perficial cover. Suburban	minantly impervious in the valley, rural	1998 1999 2000	706 655 883	112 103 139	195 192 366	80 79 151	0.26 0.25 0.48	6.8 5.0 17.7	15/04 24/12 29/10	0.03 0.04 0.05	21/08 02/08 14/09	0.6 0.6 1.1	0.15 0.15 0.26	0.05 0.07 0.08
038021	Turkey Brook : Local No: 5349	at Albany Park	C.A: 42.2 km ² S/full: 16.8m ³ c ⁻¹	7195	669		152		0.20	20.7	30/05	>0.00	10/09	0.5	0.05	0.01
F.A.R: PG	Level: 17m	UE: .04	FAI: 0.950	4000	~~~	70	05	40			1919	- 0.00	00107		0.00	0.04
contained. Structure dra	om broad (insensitive) in a owns occasionality. Very res	concrete-lined channel. A ponsive flow regime. Min	libut extreme floods or net export due to	1996 1997	529 546	79 82	65 54	43 36	0.09	2.0	08/01 26/06	>0.00 0.01	22/07 20/08	0.2	0.03	0.01
groundwater abstraction (Tertiary clays and glac	is. Large omamental lake in ial deposits). The headwate	headwaters. # A largely in ers drain Enfield Chase bu	npervious catchment It there is significant	1998 1999	735 659	110 99	164 138	108 91	0.22 0.18	7.1 6.4	15/04 24/12	0.01 0.01	28/08 21/07	0.6 0.5	0.05	0.01 0.01
urban development nea	r the gauging station.		7	2000	879	131	303	199	0.40	19,1	29/10	0.01	07/09	1.1	0.12	0.01
038014 M.A: EA	Salmon Brook Local No: 5357	s at Edmonton Sens.: 60.0	C.A: 20.5 km² B/full: 6.0m³s ⁻¹	5695	669		243		0.16	11.4	30/05 1979	0.01	06/11 1964	0.4	0.06	0.01
F.A.R: P Comment: Flat V weir (Level: 12m (1:10 cross-slope), 5m wide	UE: (insensitive at low flows) i	FAI: n slightly trapezoidal	1996	504	75	180	74	0.12	4.5	08/01	0.04	07/08	0.2	0.07	0.04
section - superseded a structure in 1980. Back	a less effective (particularly inc-up behind the d/s culve	at very low flows) comp at can (rarely) result in di	cound broad-crested	1997 1998	539 750	81 112	161 292	66 120	0.10 0.19	5.2 4.7	26/06 05/01	0.03 0.03	29/10 28/08	0.2 0.4	0.06 0.08	0.03
conditions. No significa (London Clav) catchme	nt abstractions and dischar- ent. Salmons Brook rises (ges from/to the Salmon I on Enfield Chase, in the	Brook. # Impervious	1999 2000	656 892	98 133	271 492	112 202	0.18 0.32	7.4 . 12.4	09/08 29/10	0.02 0.03	26/05 07/09	0.4 0.8	0.07 0.14	0.03 0.04
catchment is heavily urt	banised.												,			
038022 M.A: EA	Pymmes Brook at Ed Local No: 5369	Imonton Silver Street Sens.: 42.0	C.A: 42.6 km ² B/futl: 22.6m ³ s ⁻¹	5495	681		363		0.49	37.1	20/07 1965	0.04	12/09 1969	1.0	0.29	0.11
F.A.R: N P Comment: Crump weir	Level: 11m (width: 6.16m) in concrete o	UE: .42 channet installed in 1972:	FAI: 0.982 superseded a rated	1996	496	73	287	79	0 39	12.9	11/08	0.19	17/09	0.7	0.27	0.20
section. Few confirmate	bry gaugings at high flows.	Rarely overtopped. Drow	ns regularly (c0.7m	1997	546 763	80	268	74	0.36	25.4 18.4	26/06	0.15	25/09	0.7	0.23	0.16
enhanced by sewage eff	fluent (now treated outside ca	atchment). Currently no sig	inificant abstractions	1999	663	97 133	319	88 140	0.43	18.3	08/08	0.13	25/05	0.9	0.23	0.15
catchment is now >80%	6 urban.	and Fynanes blook haes c	AT ETINEIO CHASE DOI	2000	300	133	501	140	0.00	20.0	23/10	0.10	31,05	1.4	0.55	0.20
039040 M.A: EA F.A.R: PGEI	Thames at Wes Local No: 190 + Level: 79m	t Mill Cricklade Sens.: 28.6 UE: <.01	C.A: 185.0 km² S/full: 20.3m³s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.999	72.95	783		246		1.44	10.8	09/02 1974	0.01	30/08 1995	4.0	0.69	0.07
Comment: Compound { more frequent at high fk	Crump weir (crests: 2.5m an ows. Bypassing during extre	d 4.5m wide) with crest-tap me floods. Runoff somewh	pping; drowning now at diminished by ow	1996 1997	608 729	78 93	158 142	64 58	0.92 0.83	5.1 4.8	24/02 25/02	0.04	04/10 24/07	2.6 2.7	0.36 0.35	0.05
abstractions but more the C	han compensated by effluer otswolds (Oplitic L'st): lower	nt imports from Cirencester r catchment is chiefly Oxf	er. # Mixed geology: ford Clay, Land use:	1998 1999	922 977	118 125	294 305	120 124	1.72 1.79	5.8 6.0	07/03 21/01	0.09 0.14	31/08 31/07	4.1 4.4	1.44 1.39	0.12
primarily agricultural. Ex	tensive gravel workings in th	he main valley.		. 2000	1088	139	426	173	2.49	7.2	05/11	0.12	03/09	5.6	1.89	0.16
039108 M A: EA	Churn at Per	Sens	C.A: 59.0 km ²	9095	876		331		0.62	3.3d	04/01 1994	0.00	01/09	1.6	0.43	0.03
F.A.R:	Level: 120m	UE: tone. Full rance - tailwate	FAI:	1996	601	79						0.00	n1/1 i			
facilitate flow computation	on in the non-modular range	e (but further gaugings re	equired to check the	1997	838	96 112	153 404	46	0.29	1.5	31/12	0.04	19/08	0.8	0.19	0.05
flow in severe drought	conditions. # Permeable (O	Olitic L'st) catchment on	the dip-slope of the	1999	1054	120	457	138	0.86	3.1	20/01	0.07	15/09	1.7	0.79	0.11
Colswords, Land Use, In	iosty agricultural, some woo	volanu in S or catchinent.	0.0.010	2000	1207	130			A 77	• •	22/02	> 0.00	13/09	4.0		0.05
M.A: EA I	Local No: 260	Sens.: 21.1	S/full: 9.4m ³ s ⁻¹	79.,95	003		290		0.77	3.4	1995	>0.00	1995	1.9	0.51	0.05
F.A.R: GE Comment: Flat V weir (*	Level: 111m 1:10 cross-slope, 4.5m broad	UE: d). Auxiliary d/s water level	FAI: recorder. Full range	1996	688	78	179	62	0.48	1.9	13/01	>0.00	13/10	1.3	0.20	
station; all flows contain natural catchment; some	ed but bypassing can occur a diminution of flow due to g	r at high flows (as in 2000 w abstractions. # Pervious	s (Oolitic L'st) catch-	1997 1998	836 987	95 112	123 320	42 110	0.33	1.6 2.5	30/12 22/01	0.03	21/08	1.0	0.21	0.05
ment on the dip-slope o	f the Cotswolds. Primarily ru	iral.		1999 2000	1049 1199	119 136	366 463	126 160	0.97 1.23	3.6 3.4	23/01 15/12	0.09	15/09 13/09	2.2 2.4	0.82 1.12	0.13 0.11
039035	Churn at Co	erney Wick	C.A: 124.3 km ²	6995	849		218		0.86	4.7	31/01	0.00	05/11	2.2	0.54	0.01
M.A:EA I F.A.R:GE∤ 7 I	Local No: 290 Level: 82m	Sens.: 90.0 UE: <.01	S/full: 15.9m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.864								1971		1995			
Comment: Asymmetric bypassing can occur at h	al compound Crump weir (igh flows (e.g. during 2000/0	crests: 1.8m and 3.7m w 1). Very limited head during	ride). Full range but g periods of low flow,	1996 1997	666 808	78 95	140 101	64 46	0.55 0.40	2.7 2.6	09/01 30/12	0.00 >0.00	02/08 18/08	1.5 1.3	0.19 0.21	0.01
hence sensitivity probler from gravel bits may als	ns. Gw abstractions result in to be a factor in recent year	 significant loss to the cat s. # Primarily a pervious (chment; evaporation (Jurassic colitic L'st)	1998 1999	968 1026	114 121	263 296	121 136	1.04 1.17	3.5 3.7	09/01 26/01	0.00 0.07	14/09 14/09	2.2 2.9	0.98 0.96	0.12
catchment but with Oxfor close to Cerney Wick.	rd Clay in lower reaches. Rura	al but Cirencester and the (Cotswold Water Park	2000	1165	137	415	190	1.63	4.1	13/12	0.04	12/09	3.7	1.37	0.09
039087	Rav at Wa	iter Eaton	C.A: 84.1 km ²	7495	711		481		1.28	32.2	27/09	0.26	28/08	2.5	0.82	·0.44
MA: EA	Local No: 390	Sens.: 14.0	FAI								1974		1976			
Comment: Multi-path ult	trasonic superseded (in 1989	9) a Crump weir (width: 5.1	195m) with crest and	1996	544 650	77 ⁻ 91	372	77 73	0.99	8.6 8 9	12/02 24/02	0.42	15/07 20/07	1.7 1.6	0.77	0.47
data is of limited precisio	on. Flows heavily influenced	by Swindon runoff (sewag	e effluent, balancing	1998	902	127	632	131	1.69	13.8	26/12	0.47	31/08	3.5	1.06	0.52
flat, mainly impervious,	catchment. Largely agricu	Itural land use but impor	rtant sub-catchment	2000	991	139	003	120	0.01	13.0	20/01	0.45	18/05	3.3	1,04	0.00
contrasts - urbanisation	in the neadwaters.		0.0.455.2		n										0.40	
MA: EA I	Ampney Brook at Local No: 470	Ampney St. Peter Sens.: 40.0	G.A: 45.3 km*	839 5	804		588		U.56	4.1	1994	0.00	1995	1.3	0.40	
F.A.R: I Comment: Flat V weir,	Level: 95m 1:10 cross-slope. Theoretica	UE: al calibration confirmed by	FAI: gaugings. Drowning	1996	612	76	263	68	0.38	1.6	01/01	0.00	21/09	0.9	0.23	
unlikely (but d/s stilling w Churn catchment is like	ell installed). Full range. Prim ly to have an impact. High	narily natural but gw abstra runoff suggests that the	ction lower down the contributing area >	1997 1998	777 939	97 117	242 477	62 123	0.35 0.69	2.0 3.1	28/02 06/01	0.02 0.01	22/08 24/09	1.0 1.6	0.19 0.63	0.03 0.03
opographical catchment developed principally on	 Station is located just d/s o the pervious Great Oolite of t 	of a fish farm (now closed). The Cotswolds; the Ampney	# A rural catchment Brook is a dip-slope	1999 2000	967 1095	120 136	495 680	128 175	0.71 0.97	4.6 5.0	19/01 05/11	0.04 0.04	17/09 18/09	1.8 2.1	0.55 0.70	0.07 0.05
stream.													١			

-

039074	Amo	nev Brook at Sheepen Bridge	C.A: 74.4 km ²
M.A: EA	Local No: 490	Sens.: 60.0	S#ull: 9.4m ³ s ⁻¹
F.A.R: P	Level: 78m	UE:	FAI:
Comment: Flat gaugings indica compensates for at highest flows catchment. # Th principally Oxfor	V weir (1:10 cross-slo te that the drowned r non-modularity. Limit s. Small diminution of e Ampney Brook rises d Clay. A rural catchn	ppe, 4.5m broad). Often drowned. (flow reduction factor (based o ted head at low flows therefore ins- flow due to abstraction, otherwis in the pervious Great Oolite series I tent.	Calibration under review - n tailwater levels) over- ensitive. Some bypassing e a naturally responding out the lower catchment is
039109		Coin at Fossebridge	C.A: 82.0 km ²
M.A: EA	Local No:	Sens.;	
F.A.R:	Level: 117m	UE:	FAI:
Concerns Concerns		والمستحتين مرم المحفور والمحموما الماليان	A REAL AND A

-

Comment: Crump-profile crest, 7.8m wide (constructed on original overfall). Modular until high flows but submerged in floods; some bypassing also - intermittent flow in small bypass channel not measured. 39020 and 39110 are d/s. # A rural, dip-slope, catchment developed on the Ooltik L'st of the Cotswolds.

039020		C.A: 106.7 km ²								
M.A: EA	Local No: 660	Sens.: 20.8								
F.A.R: GE	Level: 101m	UE: .01	FAI: 0.963							
Comment: Crump v	Comment: Crump weir (9.1m broad). Modular throughout the range. Some overspill onto floodplain									
before design capac	ity reached. Submerged	during floods. Limited imp	act of artificial influences on							
river flows - net im	port (sewage effluent). I	Baseflow dominated flow	regime. # Pervious (Oolitic							
Limestone) catchment on the dip-slope of the Cotswolds; predominantly rural.										

 039110
 Coin at Fairford
 C.A: 130.0 km²

 M.A: EA
 Local No:
 Sens.:

 F.A.R: E
 Level: 84m
 UE:
 FAI:

Comment: Electromagnetic gauging station (buried coil). C/m calibration to be completed. Station performance generally good to bankfull - reasonable velocities are maintained at low flows - but flows may be overestimated by around 10%. Levels affected by STW. # Permeable (Oolitic Limestone) catchment on the dip-slope of the Cotswolds. Rural.

039090	Ca	C.A: 140.0 km ²	
M.A: EA	Local No: 790	Sens.:	
F.A.R: G	Level: 73m	UE: .06	FAI: 0.970
Comment: Compo	ound Crump Weir (high ce	ntral crest). Channel div	vides immediately below weir;
part of the structure	e is subject to non-modular	conditions (this can cau	ise significant data processing

problems). # Chalk scarp headwaters but catchment is largely low-lying and impervious (clay). A mainly rural catchment, some urban growth below the headwaters.

020442	145- 4		0.4.05.5.1?		
otherwise artificia mainly pervious.	al influences are minimal. # .	A rural catchment on the d	ip-slope of the Cotswolds;		
Dec 2000. Efflue	uit in drowning. Bypasses at nt derived from outside the c	t high flows. Previous maxi atchment results in small n	ma exceeded during Nov/ let augmentation of runoff;		
Comment: Crun	p weir, 4.5m broad with crea	st-tapping. D/s weed growt	h and backing-up from the		
F.A.R: PE	Level: 72m	UE: <.01	FAI: 0.980		
M.A: EA	Local No: 890	Sens.: 32.0	S/full: 8.6m ³ s ⁻¹		
039042	Leach at	Leach at Priory Mill Lechlade			

000142	********								
M.A: EA	Local No:	Sens.:							
F.A.R:	Level: 132m	UE:	FAI:						
Comments Com	and Marke III and all the second	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	and a share on a break second as a						

 $\label{eq:comment: Crump Weir. U/s and d/s levels monitored; structure rarely drowns but submerged during exceptional floods. \# Station sited close to the edge of the Oolitic L'st outcrop.$

039143	Dikler at B	c.A: 90.7	km²	
M.A: EA	Local No:	Sens.:		
F.A.R:	Level: 124m	UE:	FAI:	
Comment:	Crump Weir, All flows contained,	no bypassing bu	t weir submerged during f	loods

Comment: Crump Weir, All flows contained, no bypassing but weir submerged during floods. # Mixed geology: Oolites and Lias.

039076	Wind	C.A: 296.0 km ²	
M.A: EA	Local No: 1080	Sens.: 13.5	
F.A.R: PN	Level: 91m	UE:	FAI:
Comment: Multi-	path ultrasonic commissione	d in Dec 1995. Previousl	y: Two adjustable radial gate
(sharp-crested) v	veirs - drowning very rare bu	t high flows unreliable;	principally a low flow station,
flood flows com	nonly not calculated. Some	early flow data (from 1	942) held by the measuring
	the second se	المحاد والمله والمحاد والمحاد المحالي	and Anno second second black second second

flood flows commonly not calculated. Some early flow data (from 1942) held by the measuring authority for the original rhymer weir. Negligible disturbance to the natural flow regime. # A pervious (Oolitic L'st) catchment on the dip-slope of the Cotswolds. Predominately rural - Witney is the largest settlement.

039006	Windr	Windrush at Newbridge					
M.A: EA	Local No: 1090	Sens.: 16.0					
E 4 10 0.00			E 1 0 000				

M.A. EA Codel No: 1090 Sens.: 10.0 F.A.R: PGI Level: 63m UE::02 FAI: 0.909 Comment: Compound broad-created weir (total creat width 8.3m) with complementary side-spilling weir (14.9m wide) into bypass channel. Subject to drowning; unreliable at high flows. Early data may be overestimated due to lack of weed cutting. From 1962 a calibration based upon gaugings was adopted. Improvements in the method of water level measurement made in 1969. Runoff diminished by a small net export of water (minor bypassing via side channels also occurs). # A predominantly pervious (Colitic L'st) catchment on the dip-slope of the Cotswolds. Mainly rural. Gravel pit development in the lower valley.

039129		C.A: 1608.6 km ²	
M.A: EA	Local No:	Sens.:	
F.A.R: P	Level: 60m	UE:	FAI:

F.A.K: P Level: 60m UE: FAI: Comment: Multi-path cross-configuration ultrasonic gauging station d/s of intake for Farmoor Res. Drought flow accuracy uncertain (v. low velocities) and gaugings suggest that flows may be overestimated by around 5%. Naturalised flows not routinely calculated. Substantial left-bank bypassing (not via the Thames itself) under flood conditions. Levels affected by d/s gate movements, abstractions and lockages. # Catchment is predominantly rural u/s of the station. Geology: mixed pervious headwaters (Oolitic I'st), Oxford Clay in the lower reaches.

ď	Rai	% of pre-	Ϋ́,	% of pre-	Mean (T	Peak (π	Date of	Min. dally m	Date of	10 Perce (m	50 Perce (T	95 Perce (m	
8095 _.	785		312		0.74	10.3	28/12 1994	0.00	01/11 1995	1.8	0.48		
1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	595 746 915 938 1063	76 95 117 119 135	240 441 413 600	77 141 132 192	0.57 1.04 0.97 1.41	3.8 4.3 4.5 5.0	26/02 08/01 20/01 07/11	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.01	08/08 29/07 01/09 18/09 13/09	2.0 3.5 3.2 3.9	0.20 0.71 0.67 0.88	0.05 0.02	
9095	851		180		0.47	2.2	18/02 1995	0.02	07/11 1995	1.3	0.27	0.04	
1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	662 833 941 1056 1166	78 98 111 124 137	123 58 191 240	68 32 106 133	0.32 0.15 0.50 0.62	1.1 0.9 1.5 2.2	16/01 30/12 22/01 23/01	0.02 0.03 0.02 0.04 0.04	25/10 19/08 23/09 04/09 12/09	0.8 `0.4 1.0 1.4	0.11 0.07 0.50 0.52	0.03 0.04 0.03 0.06	
6395	806		394		1.33	5.5	11/02 1990	0.19	19/08 1976	2.6	1.06	0.40	
1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	641 818 935 1023 1144	80 101 116 127 142	297 220 455 493 647	75 56 115 125 164	1.00 0.75 1.54 1.67 2.18	2.7 2.6 4.0 5.9 6.5	12/01 31/12 07/01 02/07 14/12	0.34 0.36 0.46 0.57 0.57	02/11 03/10 25/09 15/09 13/09	2.1 1.6 2.5 3.2 4.2	0.60 0.56 1.53 1.47 1.94	0.37 0.39 0.50 0.62 0.61	
9195	853		499		2.06	6.2	21/02 1995	0.51	31/10 1991	4.3	1.78	0.78	
1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	626 802 926 999 1124	73 94 109 117 132	392 293 583 605	79 59 117 121	1.61 1.21 2.40 2.49	4.4 4.0 5.9 11.9	13/01 30/12 08/01 19/01	0.49 0.46 0.65 0.87 0.63	26/10 04/10 25/09 18/09 06/10	3.3 2.5 4.0 4.4	1.05 0.91 2.44 2.26	0.52 0.57 0.73 0.96	
7695	692		265		1.17	26.3	28/12 1979	0.05	,13/10 1976	2.7	0.63	_、 0.15	
1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	504 599 856 798 910	73 87 124 115 132	160 98 372 353	60 37 140 133	0.71 0.43 1.65 1.57	9.2 6.7 16.7 16.4	12/02 25/02 03/11 20/01	0.08 0.07 0.16 0.14	05/09 23/07 24/09 29/07	1.6 1.0 3.8 3.5	0.39 0.23 0.90 0.90	0.10 0.08 0.18 0.19	
7295	7 22		312		0.76	5.1	30/12 1979	0.01	13/08 1990	1.8	0.48	0.07	
1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	538 734 877 857 1019	75 102 121 119 141	217 197 378 362	70 63 121 116	0.53 0.48 0.92 0.88	2.5 2.6 3.0 3.5	12/01 31/12 12/01 27/01	0.06 0.08 0.08 0.07 0.21	23/10 19/08 24/09 17/09 13/09	1.3 1.4 2.2 2.5	0.25 0.27 0.79 0.70	0.07 0.10 0.10 0.13	
9595	774					1.2	27/12 1995	0.34	04/11 1995				
1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	613 811 889 1013 1107	79 105 115 131 143	275 225 365 405 514		0.57 0.47 0.76 0.84 1.06	1.5d 1.1 1.7 1.9 2.9	24/02 30/12 08/01 26/12 14/12	0.31 0.30 0.37 0.42 0.44	24/10 18/08 25/09 15/09 12/09	1.0 0.8 1.3 1.2 1.8	0.46 0.40 0.73 0.81 0.93	0.32 0.32 0.40 0.46 0.47	
9595	728					4.2	22/12 1995	0.21	05/11 1995				
1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	576 782 866 949 1059	79 107 119 130 145	228 205 369 393 530		0.65 0.59 1.06 1.13 1.52	3.7 3.2 4.9 4.6 5.3	09/01 24/02 09/04 23/12 29/10	0.17 0.19 0.19 0.28 0.30	16/09 16/08 31/08 13/09 13/09	1.5 1.3 2.2 2.1 3.1	0.46 0.41 0.95 1.05 1.19	0.19 0.24 0.26 0.33 0.35	
4295	766		256		2.40	18.5d	08/02 1990	0.27	12/08 1944	5.3	2.17	0.62	
1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	579 789 877 941 1065	76 103 114 123 139	185 166 304 438	72 65 119 171	1.73 1.55 2.85 4.10	7.9 6.6 9.8 16.6 17.2	09/01 25/02 04/01 20/01 13/12	0.55 0.51 0.79 0.74 0.81	24/09 16/08 23/09 13/09 12/09	3.8 3.3 5.6 8.0	1.17 1.15 2.53 3.18	0.58 0.66 0.87 0.95	
5095	758		284		3.27	21.6	06/12	0.11	26/08	6.5	2.55	0.72	
1996 1997	560 762	74	197 167	69 50	2.26	7.9	10/01	0.50	1976 18/09	5.1	1.43	0.57	
1998 1999 2000	866 909 1029	114 120 136	332 333 445	117 117 157	3.82 3.83 5.10	10.1 15.0 22,3	20/12 07/01 22/01 15/12	0.88 0.94 0.94	23/09 13/09 04/09	7.1 7.8 9.2	3.86 3.21 4.32	0.98 1.16 1.13	
9295	803		325		16.56	90.8	06/01 1994	0.26	03/10 1995	42.8	. ^{9.13}	0.68	
1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	558 706 880 887 1012	69 88 110 110 126	162 132 358 - 474	50 41 -110 146	8.25 6.74 18.24 24.11	48.9 49.4 72.2 73.1 71.9	13/02 27/12 09/01 21/01 09/12	0.41 0.43 0.80 1.16 1.01	14/07 30/07 18/08 11/09 13/08	22.6 18.4 45.3 56.2	3.82 3.55 13.09 16.26	0.64 0.86 1.43 1.99	

				Period	Reinfell (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1995	Mean flow (m's'')	Pesk flow (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. dally flow (mis.*)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m ^s a ^{.1})	50 Percentlle (m*a**)	95 Percentile (m ³ e ⁻¹)
039008 M.A: EA F.A.R: SPE	Than Local No: 1200 Levet: 60m	nes at Eynsham Sens.: UE: .02	C.A: 1616.2 km² FAI: 0.924	51_95	740	75	265	84	13.61	82.6d	07/12 1960	0.12	01/09 1976	31.6	8.60	1.11
discharges when struc readings. Naturalised immediately u/s (oper Oxford Clay in lower re	ture can be submerged flows available for pr ating from 1955). # G eaches. Mainly tural with	. Early flow data derived from eriod of record; off-take for eology: mixed - pervious hin development concentrated	to bypassing at extreme in once-daily gaugeboard or Farmoor reservoir is eadwaters (Ooltic L'st), along the valley bottom.	1997 1998 1998 2000	537 706 879 687 1009	95 119 120 136	131 346 352 478	49 130 132 180	6.70 17.74 18.04 24.44	48.7 72.4 83.1 91.6	26/12 08/01 23/01 16/12	0.93 0.95 1.42 1.14	20/07 30/07 29/08 05/09 24/08	18.2 41.1 44.1 55.6	3.78 13.41 12.88 16.19	1.16 1.59 2.01 2.11
039034 M.A: EA	Eveniode Local No: 1290	e at Cassington Mill Sens.: 11.9	C.A: 430.0 km ² S/tull: 59.8m ³ s ⁻¹ FAL: 0.957	70_95	717		271		3.70	26.7	28/12 1979	0.12	25/08 1976	8.5	2.39	0.62
Comment: Complex o spilling weirs (broad-o section, Near-natural o Lake, # Headwaters la	Level. John onfiguration - compoun rested, 7.5m broad and atchment but small net i rgely impervious (Lias)	d Crump weir (crests: 4.0m a Crump 4.6m broad); the lat import of water and some lim Series), pervious Oolitic L'st	in lower reaches. Rural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	493 693 813 831 919	59 97 113 116 128	177 160 347 328 420	65 59 128 121 155	2.41 2.18 4.73 4.47 5.72	16.9 14.2 21.8 23.1 20.6	10/01 26/12 11/04 21/01 09/12	0.44 0.56 0.77 0.87 0.78	19/09 22/08 23/09 13/09 13/09	5.8 5.4 10.7 11.0 13.4	1.22 1.24 3.40 2.95 4.06	0.50 0.64 0.86 1.03 0.94
039026 M.A: EA	Cher Local No: 1420	well at Banbury Sens.: 12.0	C.A: 199.4 km ² S/tul: 50.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6695	687		167		1.05	54.1	26/12 1979	>0.00	02/08 1975	2.8	0.39	0.02
Comment: Asymmetr about 22 m ³ s ⁻¹ . April ' c1.5m). Approx. 50 sq returns (via an overfall (Grimsbury); this can # Catchment consists	ical compound Crump- igal compound Crump- 1998 peak estimated at it fun of the catchment dr weir) u/s of Banbury. R appreciably distort the mainly of Liassic format	VDE. 102 type weir (crest widths: 3.0 around 90 m ³ s ⁻¹ (but level e ains directly to the Oxford C tiver flows also diminished b flow hydrograph. Regime tions and is rural in characte	r, 8.9m). Modular limit xceeded structure-full by anal; some of this runoff y a large u/s abstraction is relatively responsive. r.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	496 621 814 807 845	72 90 118 117 123	72 62 251 234 319	43 37 150 140 191	0.45 0.39 1.59 1.48 2.01	9.0 6.9 90.8 20.5 39.0	12/02 24/12 09/04 25/12 30/10	0.01 0.01 0.05 0.02 0.07	23/10 09/08 11/08 02/08 24/08	1.1 1.0 3.8 3.8 5.3	0.10 0.12 0.61 0.81 0.93	0.01 0.02 0.08 0.09 0.08
039144 M.A: EA	So Local No:	er at Bodicote Sens.:	C.A: 87.7 km ²	9595	615					3.8	22/12 1995	0.14	05/11 1995			
Comment: Crump We April 1988, Significant 1998 flood estimated a in character.	ir (u/s and d/s levels mo abstraction u/s - but on it around 17 m ³ s ⁻¹ . # A	nitored); replaces Adderbury dy operates when flows > 0. Largely impermeable (Middk	(39051) which closed in (6 m³s ⁻¹ . Peak of April e Lias) catchment - rural	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	458 619 780 776 819	74 101 127 126 133	147 101 293 281 353		0.41 0.28 0.82 0.78 0.98	3.1 1.8 16.6 5.3 6.3	09/01 24/12 09/04 24/12 30/10	0.10 0.10 0.19 0.18 0.20	09/11 15/08 22/08 31/07 12/09	0.9 0.5 1.5 1.6 1.9	0.25 0.20 0.64 0.56 0.80	0.12 0.12 0.21 0.23 0.24
039021 M.A: EA	Cherw Local No: 1460	ell at Enslow Mill Sens.: 10.9	C.A: 551.7 km ² S/full: 74.0m ³ s ⁻¹	65-95	686		220		3.84	30.2	28/12 1979	0.08	27/08 1976	8.9	2.46	0.64
Comment: Asymmetri weir for for flows > 10 1967 and bypassing h (the true peak for the influences on the flow i Geology: mixed, predo	cal compound Crump (m ³ s ⁻¹ . Unsuitable for l as varied in magnitude April 1998 flood probab regime. # A largely rural minantly pervious Liass	(crests: 3.05m and 6.10m) v flood analysis; level measurn through time. Recorded pe ky exceeded 100 m ³ s ⁻¹). Li I catchment containing Banb sic formations.	with side-spliting overfall ement imprecise prior to taks are underestimates mited impact of artificial uny in its upper reaches.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	488 644 815 790 852	71 94 119 115 124	134 111 270 256 323	61 50 123 116 147	2.33 1.93 4.72 4.47 5.64	13.4 13.7 > 80? 16.8 18.7	11/01 27/12 10/04 25/12 14/12	0.47 0.48 0.85 0.88 0.86	17/09 19/08 19/09 01/08 12/09	5.2 4.4 10.5 10.1 12.4	1.32 1.25 3.38 3.22 3.94	0.57 0.65 0.95 1.08 1.01
039017 M.A: EA	Ray at G Local No: 1471	rendon Underwood Sens.:	C.A: 18.8 km² S/full: 6.6m³s ⁻¹	6295	643		168		0.10	15.4	10/07 1968	0.00	13/08 1995	0.2	0.01	
F.A.K: N Comment: Flat V repl. range following increas some data loss during Thames Water, now o recime – representati	Level: 56m aced a trapezoidal critic e in flume capacity in 19 1999 rebuild. Operate perated by EA. Negligil	UE: <.U1 cal-depth flume in 1999 in a 964. Data from 1982-86 less Id as an experimental basin ble artificial disturbance to t ant ion artificial disturbance to t	FAI: 1.000 channel 6.5m wide. Full reliable, and incomplete; i by IH until 1987, then he very responsive flow rms. # Relatively flat	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	468 531 727 699 871	73 83 113 109 135	92 33 320	55 20	0.05 0.02 0 19	2.7 0.8 7 1	12/02 26/02 12/04	>0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00	06/06 02/06 10/07 24/07 17/08	0.1 0.0	0.01 0.00	
impermeable (Oxford (039112	Clay) catchment given o Latcombe B	wer to agriculture. rook at Arabellas Lake	C.A: 3.1 km ²	9295	819		336		0.03	0.1	16/01	>0.0	09/07	0.1	0.02	
M.A: EA F.A.R: Comment: Flat V weir	Local No: Level: m at outfall of lake. Regim	Sens.: UE: ne of the Letcombe Brook is I	FAI: heavily influenced by gw	1996	539	66	182	54	0.02	0.1	1993 12/01	0.00	1995 13/07	0.0	0.01	
abstraction; now augm Terrain Model. The L Lambourn Downs (Cha	entation scheme in op etcombe Brook is fed alk); contributing area is	eration. # Catchment area from springs issuing from very rural.	derived from the Digital the scarp slope of the	1997 1998 1999 2000	660 893 825 963	81 109 101 118	350 376 592	104 112 176	0.03 0.04 0.06	>0.0 0.1 0.2 0.2	04/08 29/12 24/01 13/12	0.00 0.00 0.00	01/01 27/08 14/07 28/09	0.1 0.1 0.1	>0.00 >0.00 0.05	>0.00 >0.00 0.01
039061 M.A: EA F.A.R:	Letcombe Bro Local No: 1761 Level: 106m	ook at Letcombe Bassett Sens.: UE:	C.A: 4.0 km ² FAI:	7195	738		670		0.09	1.1	04/01 1971	0.00	01/07 1976	0.2	0.06	0.01
Comment: Flat V weil Baseflow dominated re- substantially reduced to in 1992, # Entirely rural for peat on the highest	r (3.0m wide) supersed gime. Runoff suggests th by pumping from the Ch i catchment on scarp sic hills in the S. Catchmen	led original rectangular notcl at the CA underestimates the aldray Warren boreholes; AL ape of the Lambourn Downs; t area derived from the Digitz	h (1.0 m wide) in 1981. contributing area. Flows F scheme implemented Chalk - Drift free except al Terrain Model.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	543 663 897 830 970	74 90 122 112 131	536 201 831	80 30 124	0.07 0.03 0.11	0.2 0.1 0.2 <i>0.3</i>	08/03 30/12 27/04 26/01	0.01 0.01 0.05 0.03	31/12 14/01 07/09 10/09	0.1 0.0 0.2	0.05 0.02 0.07	0.01 0.01 0.04
039081 M.A: EA F.A.B: CE	Oci Local No: 1790	k at Abingdon Sens.: 20.3	C.A: 234.0 km ² S/full: 22.7m ³ s ⁻¹	6295	656		205		1.52	15.8	06/03 1972	0.11	23/08 1976	3.4	0.85	0.32
Comment: Crump weir 1979. Weir drowns duri no flow adjustment mac Runoff augmented by s topographical catchme pervious; Chalk downla	7.79m wide (auxiliary d) og floods - overspill can le. Substantial channel in æwage effluent (derhved nt. # Flat, rural valley i ind forms southern wate	Is tapping) superseded origin occur into Sandford Brook - r mprovernents but drowning n from outside catchment). Cc in Vale of The White Horse strshed, remainder mostly Tei	al compound structure in more common pre-1979; ow more frequent again. patributing area exceeds . Mixed geology - 50% tiary clays.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	449 561 768 713 808	68 86 117 109 123	151 77 249 241 351	74 38 121 118 171	1,12 0.57 1.85 1,79 2,60	7.0 3.9 8.7 10.2 11.4	10/01 26/12 26/12 26/12 07/11	0.27 0.22 0.37 0.35 0.51	17/09 24/07 14/08 13/09 12/08	2.4 1.0 4.1 4.5 6.5	0.62 0.44 1.22 1.12 1.68	0.31 0.24 0.40 0.40 0.56
039046 M.A: EA	Thames a Local No: 1800	st Sutton Courtenay Sens.:	C.A: 3414.0 km ²	7395	703		230		24.85	221.0	18/11 1973	0.02	29/05 1976	67.2	13.79	2.17
F.A.R: PEI Comment: Multi-path u in 1982. Rectangutar d d/s shuices. Early data d (not archived). All but Power Station (naturali Clay below. Mainto pur	Level: 45m Iltrasonic gauging station hannel in straight, navig of lower precision - isolat highest flows contained sed daily flows available al with development opp	UE: neplaced original (first in thi able reach. Levels and velow led extreme minima and som 1. Station between offtake a 9). # Mixed geology: Oolitika Ventrated in the vallage	FAI: e UK) single path device city profile influenced by e negative flows in 1976 nd discharge for Didcot L'st headwaters, Oxford	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	514 665 834 820 932	73 95 119 117 133	150 116 304 288 413	65 50 132 125 180	16.16 12.51 32.86 31.18 44.61	98.5 87.6 154.0 152.1 181.4	10/01 26/12 12/04 23/01 16/12	1.62 1.74 2.28 2.46 3.50	14/10 29/07 31/08 12/09 14/08	41.9 32.3 80.4 81.1 101.2	7.85 7.13 22.34 19.50 27.82	1.98 2.39 3.01 4.23 4.80
039002 M.A: EA	Tham Local No: 1900	es at Days Weir Sens.:	C.A: 3444.7 km ²	3895	713		257		28.05	349.0d	17/03 1947	0.05	07/07 1976	67.8	15.94	3.18
F.A.R: PEi Comment: Adjustable and buck gates in 1969. > 70 m ³ s ⁻¹ ; above 100 gauged flows up to 1973 geology (Oolitic Limest concentrated along the	Level: 46m thin-plate weir (5.48m w Rating formulae based 0 m ³ s ⁻¹ overspill occurs)- allow for Didoct Power one beadwaters, Oxford valley.	UE: .03 ide) plus 15 radial gates, repi upon gaugings - taiwater cal s. Daily naturalised flows ava Station losses only. Ne ak flo I Clay below). Predominately	FAI: 0.944 laced a barrage of radial ibration applies for flows illable for POR (equal to we under review: # Mixed rural with development	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	514 662 831 818 929	72 93 117 115 130	166 128 331 311 432	65 50 129 121 168	18.07 14.01 36.13 33.95 47.08	116.0 105.0 158.0 164.0 195.6	11/01 25/02 12/04 25/01 16/12	2.50 2.26 3.15 3.67 4.52	18/09 29/07 09/08 12/09 15/08	44.8 36.0 91.3 90.9 111.4	9.41 8.34 24.43 22.50 28.59	2.96 3.14 4.19 5.52 5.72

			Perlod	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (^{m1} a ⁻¹)	Peak flow (m ³ e ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (^{ma} a ^{rt})	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	95 Percentlis (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	
039147 Wendover Spring M A: BW Local No:	gs at Wendover Wharf	C.A: 9.5 km ²	6995	750		219		0.07	0.2d	03/02 1994	0.02	04/12 1990	0.1	0.06	0.03	
F.A.R: Level: m Comment: Thin-plate weir (0.91m wide) monito issue from the Chalk scarp - into the Wendover / upstream of crest can affect levels - overestim processed flows from 1989 (microfilmed level monthly series available for 1841-1897, but met defined. Groundwater abstraction suspected to E	UE: ring outflow from the Wend um of the Grand Union Can- ating runoff. Station commis- charts for pre-1989 period), loads of flow measurement u e cause of runoff decline fro	FAI: over Springs - which al; algal/weed growth ssioned in the 1962, Important historical ised pre-1962 not yet im late 1880s.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	543 631 940 788 1044	72 84 125 105 139	198 118 171 206 285	90 54 78 94 130	0.06 0.04 0.05 0.06 0.09	0.1d 0.1d 0.1d 0.1d 0.2d	26/03 11/05 26/12 16/02 13/12	0.04 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.05	01/11 21/10 16/03 25/11 13/02	0.1 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1	0.06 0.03 0.05 0.06 0.07	0.04 0.03 0.03 0.05	
039105 Thame M.A: EA Local No:	at Wheatley Sens.:	C.A: 533.8 km ²	8995	641		231		3.90	53.1	04/02 1990	0.60	14/09 1990	10.0	2.02	0.97	
F.A.R; GE Level: 50m Comment: Multi-poth ultrasonic (cross- configu- temperature gradients can fimit accuracy. Full ra Supersedes 39038 (u/s). Some spring flow contri sewage effluent is a sig, component of low flow Oxford Clay, some Greensand also) vale NW agricultural (considerable grassland); Aylesbury i	UE: ration). Skewed flow, weed nge, railway embankment er subon but responsive regime s. # The Tharne drains a ty of the Chiltern escarpmen s the major town.	FAI: fgrowth and summer nsures no bypassing. Net import of water; pical clay (principally t. Land use: largely	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	460 544 782 697 869	72 85 122 109 136	153 88 295 242 374	66 38 128 105 162	2.59 1.50 5.00 4.10 6.31	27.5 12.2 35.7 25.5 47.8	26/02 26/02 27/12 17/01 31/10	0.66 0.73 0.92 0.74 1.04	20/09 04/06 20/08 28/07 23/07	5.6 2.3 12.9 10.9 15.8	1.45 1.18 2.44 2.24 3.36	0.79 0.80 1.02 0.87 1.11	
039065 Eweime B M.A: EA Local No: 1995 E A'P: N Level: 66m	rook at Ewelme Sens.;	C.A: 13.4 km ²	7095	699		106		0.05	0.3	14/08 1980	0.00	01/01 1974	0.1	0.04	0.01	
Comment: Flat V weir (width: 2m) installed in 19 (width: 1.524m). Limited head - algal growth on cr flow regime (but local surface runoff can produ Some pre-1950 artificial channel re-alignment. P farming and cress beds d/s (ceased activity in 1 # Land use is rural/agricultural. Ewelme village is	80 superseded (after 4-yr br est can be a problem - but mo ce sub-daily events). 2000/0 ristine scarp-slope chalk str 991). Gw catchment < topo i the only settlement.	reak) a thin-plate weir odular. Natural, stable 01 dmfs outstanding, eam, gravel bed, fish igraphical catchment.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	525 634 805 771 939	75 91 115 110 134	91 12 82 132 145	86 11. 77 125 137	0.04 0.01 0.03 0.06 0.06	0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1	07/06 17/05 01/08 01/06 31/12	0.01 0.00 0.01 0.03 0.04	31/12 21/10 01/01 02/11 01/01	0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1	0.04 0.01 0.03 0.05 0.06	0.01 0.02 0.03 0.04	
MAILERO M.A: EA Local No F.A.R: Level: m Comment: Flat V weir, Thames Water abst Groundwater catchment substantially exceeds unrealistic. # Rural catchment developed on the	k at Stewbury Sens.: UE: action u/s. Flow constrain the topograhical catchmer Chalk.	C.A: 2.0 km ⁻ FAI: t 40 Megalitres/day. nt; runoff totals are	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	488 591 769 737 900		323 1688 1935 2346		0.02 0.11 0.12 0.15	0.1 '0.3 0.3 0.4	15/12 27/04 19/05 30/12	0.01 0.05 0.04 0.07	24/07 11/10 12/11 16/10	0.0 0.1 0.2 0.2	0.02 0.11 0.11 0.15	0.01 0.06 0.06 0.08	
039114 Pang M.A: EA Local No:	at Frilsham Sens.:	C.A: 89.8 km ²	91,.95	760		72		0.21	1.1	26/04 1995	0.00	01/12 1992	0.5	0.13		
F.A.R: Level: /4m Comment: Flat V weir on ephemeral stretch of th causes occasional drowning (flows adjusted but) progress of Alleviation of Low Flows programme (t - having substantially reduced runoff). Effluent co largely permeable (Chalk) rural catchment; mostly Tertiary outcrops (in the S).	UE: e Pang, Floods exceed ban high submergence ratios limi eadwater abstractions - curre in form a significant compor arable and pasture with signif	FAI: ixfull and weedgrowth it accuracy). Monitors ently much diminished nent of low flows. # A ficant woodland on the	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	538 646 836 807 965	71 .85 110 106 127	47 2 40 88 128	65 3 56 122 178	0.13 >0.00 0.11 0.25 0.36	0.3 0.0 0.4 . 0.6d 1.0d	23/02 19/02 02/11 03/03 31/12	0.01 0.00 0.00 0.09 0.12	15/11 14/06 01/01 11/09 19/10	0.3 0.0 0.2 0.5 0.6	0.12 0.00 0.11 0.20 0.31	0.02 0.04 0.09 0.14	
039027 Pang at M.A: EA Local No: 2190	Pangbourne Sens.: 17.4	C.A: 170.9 km ² S/full: 16.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6895	702		114		0.62	6.5	22/11 1974	0.07	24/08 1976	1.1	0.52	0.1 9	
F.A.R. KGI Level: 40m Comment: Crump weir, 4.0m broad, Backi submergence (crest-tapping performance has d in 2001). No local bypassing but some overspill 1970s flows under review. Runoff substantially dir Compton abstraction from early 1990s]; occasis influences on flows. # Catchment is principally (Reading Beds, London Clay and Alluvium); Drift	UE: <,01 ng-up from Thames caus ectined through time, tail-wi occurs into Sufham Brook d ninished by gw abstractions (naal impact of WBGS but o pervious (Chalk) but about also. A largely rural catchm	FAI: 0.994 ses drowning, even ater tapping installed uring extreme floods. (but large reduction in therwise few artificial 15% is impermeable tent.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	536 631 819 800 943	76 90 117 114 134	101 53 110 145 227	89 46 96 127 199	0.55 0.28 0.60 0.79 1.23	1.8 1.2 2.0 3.5 8.1	24/02 19/02 13/04 23/01 13/12	0.21 0.13 0.28 0.32 0.47	17/10 04/10 22/09 13/09 14/09	0.9 0.5 0.9 1.3 1.8	0.43 0.26 0.54 0.62 0.91	0.22 0.15 0.30 0.36 0.50	
039116 Sulham B M.A: EA Local No:	rook at Sulham Sens.:	C.A: 3.0 km ²	9195	668		725		0.07	1.3	13/10 1993	>0.00	14/08 1995	0.2	0.04	0.01	
Comment: Flat V weir. Us and d/s levels mor capacity/sillation causes structure to drown f abstraction. Levels/flows can be affected by S ⁻ # A very rural catchment developed mostly on C	itored; modest d/s gradient itored; modest d/s gradient or substantial periods. Ru W until the mid-1990s (wh halk; some woodland on the	FAI: t and limited channel noff reduced by gw en effluent diverted). Fertiary outcrops.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	458 517 766 742 888	69 77 115 111 133	344 160 922 810 1513	47 22 127 112 209	0.03 0.02 0.09 0.08 0.14	0.3 0.1 1.0 1.8 4.3	08/01 19/02 01/11 16/01 30/10	>0.00 >0.00 >0.00 >0.00 >0.00	03/08 13/08 22/08 09/09 25/08	0.1 0.0 0.3 0.2 0.2	>0.00 0.01 0.03 0.03 0.06	>0.00 0.01 0.01 0.01	
039130 Thame M.A: EA Local No: EAR: Level: 30m	s at Reading Sens.:	C.A: 4633.7 km ²	9295	754		290		42.54	199.0	02/02 1995	3.18	18/08 1995	104,1	23.85	5.95	
Comment: Multi-path cross-configuration ultrasc flows outside the transducer piers). Good c/m cor beneath Reading Bridge. Levels a ffacted by d/ headwaters (Ooitic L'st) and Oxford Clay. Land growing, urban development in the valley (i.e. O	nic gauging station (incorp firmation of calibration throug s weir and lock. # Mixed ge use: predominantly rural bu (ford and Reading).	orates adjustment for ghout the range. Sited eology with Cotswold it with important, and	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	504 637 818 792 918	67 84 108 105 122	157 111 295 283 404	54 38 102 98 139	23.00 16.30 43.34 41.64 59.22	127.0 105.0 179.0 187.7 223.5	11/01 27/02 13/04 24/01 16/12	3.93 3.75 5.08 5.09 5.77	19/09 21/08 21/08 31/07 25/08	56.6 38.5 106.1 107.0 133.8	12.45 10.07 29.50 27.35 37.80	4.42 4.52 5.96 7.33 8.49	
039037 Kennet a M.A: EA Local No: 2210 E A P. C Local Viti 127m	t Marlborough Sens.: 54.2	C.A: 142.0 km ² S/full: 36.3m ³ s ⁻¹	7295	804		190		0.85	7.1	07/12 1992	>0.00	01/11 1976	2.0	0.52	0.08	
Comment: Crump weir, 6 th broad, with crest-te Full range and not subject to drowning. Runoff catchment is smaller than the topographical catch abstraction. # Chalk catchment, predominantly n	pping plus Crump crested si s low and baseflow domina ment; some diminution in flow rral.	de weir for high flows. ted. The hydrological _ w also results from gw	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	639 755 1016 1004 1184	79 - 94 126 125 147	113 25 238 245 389	59 13 125 129 205	0.51 0.11 1.07 1.10 1.75	1.4 0.5 2.7 4.8 8.9	25/03 31/12 18/01 20/01 13/12	0.06 0.01 0.23 0.25 0.44	31/12 .01/11 08/10 12/10 13/09	1.2 0.2 1.8 2.5 3.0	0.39 0.09 1.12 0.71 1.71	0.07 0.02 0.28 0.27 0.50	
039077 Og at Maribo M.A: EA Local No: 2219	rough Poulton Fm Sens.: 30.0	C.A: 59.2 km ² S/full: 3.3m ³ s ⁻¹	8095	790		167		0.31	2.0	07/03 1995	0.00	13/12 1990	0.8	0.19	0.01	
Comment: Flat V weir (width: 3.0m) with auxili drowning. Gw abstraction in the headwaters of baseflow. # The Og is a Chalk stream draining f	ary d/s recorder - seasonal erwise flow regime is natur rorn the Martborough Downs	weed growth causes ral and dominated by s. A rural catchment.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	618 742 1009 958 1145	78 94 128 121 145	90 14 213 232 342	54 8 128 139 205	0.17 0.03 0.40 0.43 0.64	0.5 0.1 0.8 2.1 3.1	25/03 30/12 ,18/01 26/01 13/12	>0.00 >0.00 0.07 0.06 0.06	24/12 21/10 15/10 31/10 15/10	0.4 0.1 0.7 1.1 1.0	>0.00 0.01 0.42 0.26 0.60	>0.00 0.09 0.07 0.08	
039101 Aldbourr M.A: EA Local No: 2229 E.A.B: N Level: 106m	e at Ramsbury Sens.: 40.5	C.A: 53.1 km ²	62,.95	791		127		0.21	1.2	07/03 1995	0.01	23/12 1990	0.5	0.09	0.03	
Comment: Two Flat V wers - 1:10 cross-slopes calibration. All flows contained. Sensibly natura downland catchment. Land use: predominantly settlement.	(one is located on a bypass i flow regime. # The Aldbo agricultural + Aldbourne is	s stream). Theoretical ourne drains a Chalk s the only significant	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	613 713 978 917 1064	77 90 124 116 135	73 14 115	57 11- 91	0.12 0.02 0.19	0.4 0.1 0.4	25/03 11/05 31/12	0.02 0.01 0.02	31/12 26/09 01/01	0.3 0.0 0.4	0.08 0.02 0.19	0.03 0.01 0.05	
				Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1096	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1990	Mean flow (m'e'')	Park flow (^{m1} ='1)	Date of peak	Min. dally flow (^{m*} e ⁻¹)	Date of min	10 Percentile (m*e**)	50 Percentile (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m ¹ e ⁻¹)
---	---	---	---	--	---	-------------------------------	---------------------------------	-------------------------------	---	--	---	--	--	-------------------------------------	--	--
039043 M.A: EA	K Local No: 2230	ennet at Knighton Sens.: 21.1	C.A: 295.0 km ²	6295	787		267		2.50	13.7	03/06 1975	0.10	21/07 1976	5.2	1.90	0.60
F.A.R: G Comment: Two Cr Stream. Very flat g ratios. Some pre-19 slightly diminished	Level: 105m ump weiss: 13.7m crest radient - main weir is su 380 flows uncorrected, d by gw abstraction. Bas	UE: on the main channel plus bject to frequent drowning lata under review. Some by eflow dominates the flow	FAI: a 1.7m crest on the Littlecote with very high submergence passing during floods. Flows regime, # Chafk catchment.	1996 1997 1998 1999	626 741 1002 965	80 94 127 123	180 80 319 351	67 30 119 131	1.68 0.75 2.98 3.28	3.9 1.5 5.5 9.8	24/02 31/12 27/12 26/01	0.52 0.41 1.19 1.16	30/12 23/10 12/10 19/10	3.1 1,1 4.4 6.5	1.48 0.69 3.21 2.29	0.59 0.50 1.28 1.23
Mainly rural (includ 039028 M.A: EA	es part of Savernake Fo Local No: 2239	orest) but some urban grou oun at Hungerford Sens.: 26.3	with in the vadley. C.A: 101.3 km² S/futi: 12.0m³s ⁻¹	2000 6895	1143 781	145	48/ 229	182	4.54 0.74	3.5	14/12 14/11 1974	1.52 0.19	20/09 1976	1,4	4.77 0.60	0.20
F.A.R: GN Comment: Crump minor significance, mainly pervious (Cl Savernake Forest).	Level: 99m weir, 10.7m broad. Full Small net loss, but ess halk) catchment of rural	UE: .01 range and modular. Abstra entially a natural baseflow character (chiefly agricultu	FAI: 0.990 actions and discharges are of -dominated flow regime. # A ral but the Dun drains part of	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	653 708 933 891	84 91 119 114	179 115 192 215 287	78 50 84 94	0.57 0.37 0.62 0.69	1.8 1.0 2.0 2.6	09/01 25/03 05/01 20/01 08/12	0.25 0.20 0.27 0.27 0.27	16/10 17/08 16/09 14/09	1.0 0.6 1.0 1.4	0.52 0.34 0.62 0.51	0.26 0.26 0.30
039103 M.A: EA	K Local No:	ennet at Newbury Sens.:	C.A: 548.1 km ²	8995	785	140	267	125	4.64	17.4	01/02 1995	1.59	06/11 1990	9.5	3.30	1.84
F.A.R: Comment: Ultrasc Relatively high velo hot weather). Ser Groundwater Sche (arable and mixed)	Level: 70m snic gauging station - icities. Full range. New is nsibly natural flow reg me during drought con farming) with some urba	UE: six pairs of transducers istrument klosk installed in jime but possible small ditions. # Principalty a C an growth concentrated ak	FAI: in cross-path configuration. 1996 (to improve reliability in impact of West Berkshire halk catchment. Mainly rural no the valley.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	631 724 962 931 1108	80 92 123 119 141	216 132 305 330 448	81 49 114 124 168	3.75 2.29 5.30 5.74 7.76	9.2 5.0 16.9 21,2	09/01 29/12 20/01 12/12	1.75 1.43 2.35 2.89	25/10 02/10 10/09 13/09	6.0 3.1 7.5 10.8 11.7	3.13 2.23 5.59 4.24 7.57	1.86 1.50 2.70 2.65 3.15
039033 M.A: EA	Winte Local No: 2264	erbourne St at Bagnor Sens.: 36.7	C.A: 49.2 km ² S/full: 0.9m ³ s ⁻¹	6295	723		106		0.17	0.7	31/03 1978	0.01	01/11 1969	0.3	0.14	0.0
F.A.R: RG Comment: Crump range. Runoff reduc pumping and flow a 1969/70, 1976, 198	Level: 81m weir, 3m broad - original ced by gw abstractions; augmentation associated 39 and 1998). # A Chalk	UE: <.01 ly 5.5m but reduced to imp for limited periods flows at with the West Berks Grou catchment; very rural cha	FAI: 1.000 rove sensitivity (in 1968). Full so substantially influenced by indwater Scheme (e.g. winter iracter.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	550 657 839 800 967	76 91 116 111 134	92 39 79 130 175	87 37 75 123 165	0.14 0.06 0.12 0.20 0.27	0.3 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.8	15/05 07/02 16/04 <i>05/02</i> 12/12	0.06 0.04 0.07 0.01 0.11	29/10 16/08 23/09 21/08 06/10	0.2 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.4	0.12 0.06 0.12 0.19 0.22	0.06 0.04 0.07 0.09 0.12
039019 M.A: EA	Local No: 2269	ambourn at Shaw Sens.: 13.8	C.A: 234.1 km ² S/full: 17.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6295	739		231		1.71	5.3	02/03 1995	0.41	22/08 1976	2.8	1.50	0.76
Comment: Crump high floods when s and d/s sluices (oc (apart from periods flow support). Flov primarily a rural cat	veir (10.67m broad) with isorage may be provided casionally) influence flor during which the West I v pattern is baseflow d tchment developed on th	h auxiliary d/s recorder. Po by Donnington Lake. PM ws, but net artificial disturt Berks Groundwater Schem Jominated. # Local subur ne Berkshire Downs (Chal	ssibility of a small overspill in /S abstraction in headwaters ance to the regime is limited ie is operating - providing low ban growth near station but k).	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	557 672 879 831 974	75 91 119 112 132	208 112 222 271 346	90 48 96 117 150	1.54 0.83 1.65 2.01 2.56	2.9 1.5 2.7 4.8 6.7	07/06 17/05 26/12 26/01 19/12	0.64 0.62 0.96 0.92 1.09	02/10 21/08 23/09 19/11 12/09	2.3 1.0 2.1 3.7 3.4	1.40 0.83 1.76 1.60 2.50	0.64 0.64 1.02 0.99 1.16
039025 M.A: EA F.A.R: GI Comment: Asymm occur above about under-estimated as very limited, but ove Scheme may be ev immensive (Terting	En Local No: 2279 Level: 59m tetrical compound Crun 10 m ³ s ⁻¹ ; d/s recorder banks are overtopped. arall there is a net export ident on low flows. # Cf v clave L and use infor	borne at Brimpton Sens.: 15.8 UE: <.01 np weir (crest widths: 3.0 used to calculate flows s Net impact of abstractions of dwater. From 1989 impar talk outcrops in the headw. isable andicultural	C.A: 147.6 km ² Syful: 32.0m ² s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.985 m and 4.6m). Drowning can ince 1992. Highest flows are (mostly gw) and discharges is t of West Berks Groundwater aters but catchment is mainly	6795 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	642 726 949 924 1080	80 90 118 115 134	273 196 157 415 426	72 58 152 156	1.28 0.91 0.73 1.94 1.99	30.6 20.2 9.1 24.7 29.0	20/01 1975 09/01 17/02 05/01 16/01	0.02 0.11 0.10 0.33 0.31 0.39	25/08 1976 18/09 17/09 01/09 03/11 12/09	2.8 2.0 1.8 3.9 4.1	0.72 0.54 0.40 1.23 1.22	0.18 0.12 0.37 0.37
039016 M.A: EA	Local No: 2290	Kennet at Theale Sens.: 8.5	C.A: 1033.4 km ²	6195	774		294		9.64	70.0	11/06 1971	0.93	21/08 1976	16.8	8.02	3.84
F.A.R: RGI Comment: Crump installed in 1999. A impact of abstracti from WBGS during R. Enbourne. Dmfs ment. # A mainly p growth) concentrate	Level: 43m weir (15.9m broad) equ XI but highest flows cor ions and discharges (n g droughts. High basel a 04-24/12/98 estimated pervious catchment (80' ed along the valley.	UE: .01 ipped with pressure tappi tained. Flood flows may hinor contribution to K & low component but resp by NRFA (using 39103) of % Chalk). Rural headwate	FAI: 0.956 FAI: 0.956 be underestimated. Little net A canal) but augmentation provide contribution from the bue to gauging hut refurbish- rrs; urban development (and	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	610 704 925 896 1057	79 91 120 116 137	231 153 325 342 464	79 52 111 116 158	7.54 5.03 10.65 11.21 15.16	31.5 19.1 45.7 45.1 55.3	09/01 25/12 27/12 25/12 08/12	3.17 2.34 4.20 4.09 5.28	25/10 20/08 23/09 08/09 13/09	12.5 8.1 15.6 20.8 28.8	5.99 4.60 10.39 8.89 13.59	3.36 2.69 4.91 4.68 5.96
039022 M.A: EA F.A.R: GEI	Lod Local No: 2420 Level: 42m	idon at Sheepbridge Sens.: 11.8 UE: .05	C.A: 164.5 km² S/full: 50.0m³s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.931	6595	751		415		2.16	26.4	16/09 1968	0.52	26/08 1976	3.7	1.66	0.94
Comment: Two Cr flume/side-spilling v extreme flows are of # Headwaters are predominantly rural	rump weirs (2.1m crest, weir (subject to bypassi contained, Net import of in the Chalk of the No catchment, containing	, plus 6.9m crest oblique ng) in 1970. Both Crumps water into the catchment rth Downs but the catch some important - and grow	to channel flow) superseded remain modular and all but (e.g. via Basingstoke STW), ient is targely impervious. A ving - urban centres.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	604 633 867 875 1004	80 84 115 117 134	296 474 502 655	71 114 121 158	1.54 2.47 2.62 3.41	8.4 17.8 20.4 22.4	24/02 05/01 16/01 30/10	0.93 0.89 1.10 1.23 1.24	10/09 04/10 21/09 12/09 13/09	2.3 4.0 4.1 6.5	1.34 1.98 2.09 2.51	0.94 1.18 1.35 1.31
039123 M.A: EA F.A.R: Comment: Electro channels. Calibratic in the headwaters including Famborou and woodland.	Black Local No: Level: m magnetic station install on to be completed. # Te and alluvium in the v ugh and Aldershot but k	water at Farnborough Sens.: UE: led as part of a R&D pr rrtiary geology - mainly Baj alley. Substantial and ex arge rural tracts remain; s	C.A: 35.5 km ² FAI: oject into flow in two-stage gshot Beds with London Clay panding urban development ignificant areas of heathland	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	634 637 825 811 1031		296 299 475 617		0.33 0.34 0.53 0.69	2,4 3.0 2.8 4.3	24/02 31/10 24/12 06/11	0.09 0.02 0.25 0.22	29/10 25/07 27/07 14/09	0.5 0.7 0.9 1.3	0.32 0.27 0.45 0.52	0.15 0.08 0.26 0.25
039015 M.A: EA	White Local No: 2442	water at Lodge Farm Sens.: 16.7	C.A: 44.6 km² S/full: 3.0m³s ⁻¹	27-95	785		251		0.35	2.2	03/02 1990	0.08	23/08 1949	0.6	0.32	0.16
F.A.R: G Comment: Crump rectangular thin-pla much poorer quality 1926 monthly flows, of the catchment of Whitewater catchme pattern, # Catchme	Level: 72m weir, full range (but d ite weir operated origin; y (e.g. resulting from clir , 1927-1963 daily (but 7- drains into the Basings ent. Stable regime, base nt is developed entirely	UE: <.01 rowns in summer), super ally by Mid-Southern Wate ging nappe and damaged day sequences of identical toke Canal: a proportion flow dominated, but some on Chalk. Rural character	FAI: 1.000 seded (1975) an insensitive er Co. Data prior to 1975 of crest). Archived data: 1910- flows), from 1964 dmfs. Part of this runoff returns to the minor u/s disturbance to flow	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	684 661 934 911 1103	87 84 119 116 141	226 176 261 290 428	90 70 104 116 171	0.32 0.25 0.37 0.41 0.60	1.2 0.9 1.2 1.6 2.3	08/01 24/02 05/01 24/12 07/12	0.15 0.13 0.19 0.24 0.26	15/10 01/10 06/09 02/08 16/09	0.5 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.9	0.32 0.24 0.39 0.38 0.57	0,17 0,16 0,21 0,26 0,29
039044 M.A: EA F.A.R: F	Hart Local No: 2458 Level: 50m	at Bramshill House Sens.: 18.1	C.A: 84.0 km ² S/ful: 12.1m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.942	7295	697		280		0.75	12.7	20/10 1987	0.10	24/08 1976	1.5	0.51	0.22
Comment: Crump v to weed-induced d derived from outsid overburden of glad woodland but includ	weir, 4.0m broad, with cu rowning. Banks overtop de the catchment. # A cial deposits) catchmer des growing urban deve	est and d/s tappings. Ever ped in extreme floods. F mainly impermeable (Eo ti, Mixed land use - lan lopment near headwaters.	so, poor low flow record due lows augmented by effluent cene formations with some jety rural with considerable	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	617 625 809 807 986	89 90 116 116 141	232 201 320 435	83 72 114 155	0.62 0.53 0.85 1.16	5.8 3.5 7.6 7.1	09/01 24/02 05/01 25/12	0.17 0.20 0.23 0.20 , 0.14	02/09 15/07 21/09 04/07 27/07	1,1 0.9 1,6 2,3	0.48 0.41 0.65 0.75	0.21 0.24 0.31 0.24
	· ·											T		re r		

	Perlod	Rainfall (տա)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	Peak flow (m³= ')	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (^{m1} a ⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m³** ¹)	50 Percentlle (m ¹ a ⁻¹)	95 Percentite (m³s-')
	5295	710		264		2.97	41.0	16/09 1968	0.45	18/08	5.6	2.18	0.93
FA.R: GE Level: 42m UE: .07 FAI: 0.895 Comment: Two Crump weirs (main 4.6m, side 2.7m wide) superseded original flume, plus side-spilling weir, in 1970. Weir capacity c27 m ³ s ⁻¹ . Minor bypassing of the side weir in flood conditions; overflows more frequent pre-1970. Sewage effluent is an important component of low flows (large STWs at Camberley and Sandhürst), also some net import of sewage effluent. Exact delineation of the hydrokogical catchment is difficult. # Chalk in the headwaters, clay, sands and alluvium in the valley. Substantial and expanding urban development in the catchment but some large rural tracts remain; significant areas of heath and woodland.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	613 614 809 805 987	86 86 114 113 139	246 203 294 315 459	93 77 111 119 174	2.76 2.28 3.31 3.55 5.15	24.1 16.2 23.4 26.7 , 35.6	09/01 25/02 05/01 25/12 06/11	1.13 1.13 1.20 1.21 1.33	26/07 30/07 22/08 30/07 25/08	4.6 3.7 5.8 6.3 11.1	2.23 1.92 2.53 2.71 3.36	1.21 1.26 1.29 1.39 1.50
039138 Loddon at Twyford C.A: 751.8 km² M.A: EA Local No: Sens.:	9595	696					25.4	23/12 1995	2.42	19/10 1995			
F.A.R: Level: 32m UE: FAI: Comment: Multi-path ultrasonic in cross configuration. Full range. Power supply and instrumenta- tion problems (e.g. difficulties have been encountered with the lowest of the six flight paths) - these are being addressed. # Chalk headwaters, mainly London Clay.	1996 1997 1998	589 - 605 815	85 87 117	176		4.21	37.6 31.3	10/01 22/09	2.03 2.25 2.69	16/07 31/07 21/08	6.9	3.45	2.47
• • • • • • • • • • • • •	1999 2000	810 967	116 139	308 439		7.35 10.44	58.7 67.7	26/12 07/11	2.95 3.12	28/07 25/08	12.6 21.9	5.52 6.78	3.21 3.68
039039 Wye at High Wycombe C.A: 67.7 km² M.A: EA' Local No: Sens.: Sf(IIII: 1.1m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: Level: m UE: FAI: Comment: Flat V (1:10 cross-slope) installed, in 1996, as part of ALF programme. Non-modular for significant periods - heavy weedgrowth in d/s section. Previously flows were monitored, from 1937, at the same site - Two thin-plate weirs, 1.8 and 1.4m broad, Discontinued in 1975 due to poor hydrometric performance - data unreliable (not held on NRFA).	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	691 937 838 1001		152 139		0.33 0.30	1.1 1.6 0.9	26/09 08/08 12/12	0.00 0.06 0.14	07/01 05/12 24/10	0.6 0.4	0.29 0.28	0.08 0.17
039023 Wye at Hedsor C.A: 137.3 km² M.A: EA Local No: 2590 Sens.: 13.8 S/full: 12.0m³s ⁻¹	6495	765		230		1.00	4.4	; 25/09 1981	0.25	25/12 1973	· 1.5	0.98	0.46
F.A.R: GI Level: 27m UE: 07 FAI: 0.983 Comment: Crump weir, 6.1m broad. Modular throughout the flow range. All but extreme floods contained. Low flows are significantly influenced by abstractions (particularly groundwater) and discharges (e.g. Wycombe STW); flashy response from urban fraction but regime remains baseflow dominated. # A mainly pervious (Chalk) catchment with an overburden of glacial deposits on the higher ground. Dip-slope valley in the Chilterns; contains several significant urban/suburban centres.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	589 666 935 831 995	77 87 122 108 130	174 115 201 270 282	76 50 87 117 123	0.75 0.50 0.87 1.18 1.22	2.5 2.0 2.6 2.8 2.9	08/01 06/08 26/09 09/08 07/12	0.40 0.36 0.55 0.64 0.89	17/10 23/08 25/01 05/12 14/09	1.0 0.6 1.1 1.6 1.7	0.76 0.49 0.86 1.13 1.17	0.48 0.38 0.62 0.70 0.93
039052 The Cut at Binfield C.A: 50.2 km² M.A: EA Local No: 2620 Sens.: 16.7 S/full: 26.0m³s ⁻¹	5795	677		234		0.37	18.1	01/06 1981	0.01	06/09 1967	0.8	0.21	0.06
F.A.R: EI- Level: 46m UE::12 FAI: 0.942 Comment: Broad-crested weir (crest: 13.7m wide) plus adjustable low flow notch (crest: 1.22m wide) at outfail from an ornamental lake. Early flow data (prior to installation of notch) less precise. Hydrograph shows mixed rural/urban response - including the effect of balancing ponds. Significant and increasing effluent component during periods of low flow (primarily from Ascot STW - this represents a net import of water). # An impermeable catchment (London Clay). Rural headwaters, including considerable woodland but major New Town (Bracknell) development below - almost 30 per cent urban overall.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	538 573 779 764 934	79 85 115 113 138	200 207 326 302 442	85 88 139 129 189	0.32 0.33 0.52 0.48 0.70	5.6 6.4 9.1 9.2 15.7	08/01 26/07 05/01 24/12 29/10	0.06 0.09 0.07 0.02 0.10	07/09 11/09 18/08 15/08 15/08	0.6 0.6 1.0 1.0 1.5	0.24 0.26 0.44 0.34 0.40	0.09 0.10 0.10 0.08 0.12
039072 Thames at Royal Windsor Park C.A: 7046.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: 2700 Sens.:	7995	714		254		56.67	331.0	09/02 1990	11.80	07/09 1991	120.4	40.52	16.42
F.A.F. RPGEI Level: 14m UE: 'FAI: Comment: Muti-path ultrasonic gauging station superseded, in 1968, original single-path con- figuration (installed 1978). Some gaps in record. Calibration confirmed by gaugings. All but excep- tional floods contained. Substantial baseflow from the Chalk and Ooltic List, quicker response from the Oxford Clay and Lower London Tertiaries. Station is u/s of the major PWS off-takes for London. # Scarp and vale topography developed on diverse geology. Predominately rural headwaters contrast with considerable suburban growth in the lower valley.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	532 638 836 809 944	75 89 117 113 132	177 127 281 287 415	70 50 111 113 163	39.49 28.40 62.79 64.08 92.53	193.0 133.0 199.0 252.0 317.5	10/01 26/02 04/11 27/12 15/12	12.90 11.00 14.30 15.10 18.50	18/09 22/07 10/08 01/08 14/09	80.1 58.2 137.0 150.8 196.9	26.09 21.60 48.13 46.49 62.08	13.63 12.13 16.32 20.56 22.38
039125 Ver at Redbourn C.A: 62.6 km² M.A: EA Local No: Sens.: EA BPE Level: 92m LIE:	9395	768		80		0.16	· ^{1.4}	13/10 1993	>0.00	01/03 1993	0.4	0.14	0.03
Comment: Flat-V weir (4.0m wide). U/s and d/s level measurements are routinely made - drowns but d/s reach regularly maintained by dredging to improve modularity. Gauging station initially constructed to monitor low flows. Runoff is reduced by gw abstraction - which has been greatly reduced since May 1993 (the Ver is included in the EA's Allaviation of Low Flows Programme). # A predominantly rural catchment on the dip-slope of the Chilterns (Chafk); land-use mainly arable and pasture.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	509 601 906 716 974	66 78 118 93 127	12 3 26 36	15 4 33 45	0.02 >0.00 0.01 0.05 0.07	0.2 0.2 0.1 <i>0.5</i> 1.9	23/07 11/06 22/10 <i>02/07</i> 08/08	0.00 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.02	05/10 01/01 01/01 24/11 05/10	0.1 0.0 0.1 0.2	0.01 0.00 0.05 0.04	0.02 0.02
039126 Red at Redbourn C.A: 18.5 km² M.A: EA Local No: Sens.:	9395	746		97		0.06	0.7	13/11 1993	0.01	09/12 1995	0.1	0.05	0.01
F.A.R: E Level: 92m UE: FAI: Comment: Flat-V weir (4.0m wide) which frequently drowns. U/s and d/s measurements are routinely made. D/s reach regularly maintained by dredging which improves modularity. Gauging station initially constructed to monitor low flows. Flow data for Feb 1995 unreliable due to weed.	1996 1997 1998	490 578 860	66 77 115	29 17	30 18	0.02 0.01	0.3 0.1	03/11 11/06	>0.00 0.00	27/09 08/01	0.0 0.0	>0.00 0.00	>0.00
growth. # A predominantly rural catchment on the dip-slope of the Chiltems (Chalk); land-use is mainly arable/pasture.	1999 2000	692 985	93 132	78 86	80 89	0.05 0.05	0.4 2.4	24/12 08/08	>0.00 0.01	21/11 12/09	0.1 0.1	0.05 0.03	0.01 0.01
039014 ··· · · Ver at Hansteads C.A: 132.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: 2819 Sens.: 22.2 S/fult: 9.8m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: G Level: 62m UE: .07 FAI: 0.946	5695	712		99		0.41 :	2.6	27/12 1979	0.01	02/09 1976	.0.8	0.38	0.08
Comment: Compound Crump weir - 2 crests, each 2.44m broad - superseded (in 1969) original broad-crested weir (plus bypass channel); the early flow data are of a lesser quality. Topographical catchment area significantly exceeds the hydrological catchment. Flows diminished by large groundwater abstractions (including PWS for Luton) - increased sharply since 1950 changing the river's character. Restoration programme (ALF) over the 1991-93 period; abstractions much reduced by late 1990s. # Pervious (Chalk) catchment. Rural headwaters, significant urban development in the lower valley.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	505 590 864 703 964	71 83 121 99 135	58 24 67 117 132	59 24 68 118 133	0.24 0.10 0.28 0.49 0.55	1.1 0.8 1.0 1.2 2.3	08/01 25/02 08/04 16/01 30/10	0.06 0.04 0.10 0.22 0.25	17/09 03/10 17/09 13/09 12/09	0.4 0.2 0.5 0.8 1.0	0.20 0.08 0.24 0.45 0.45	0.07 0.05 0.13 0.26 0.28
039013 Colne at Berrygrove C.A: 352.2 km² M.A: EA Local No: 2830 Sens.: 28.2 Sf/ult 7.4m³s ⁻¹ C.A.D: CI Local No: 2830 Sens.: 28.2 Sf/ult 7.4m³s ⁻¹	3495	696				0.79	15.2	28/12 1979	0.00	01/08 1974	1.6	0.56	0.12
F.A.K: GET Level: 55m UE: FAI: Comment: Compound Crump Weir superseded (in 1991) compound thin-plate weir (9.0m broad - often drowned and bypassed). Flows over the new weir include those for the Bucknall's Brook. Fiftuent (Blackbird's STW) is now a major commonent of low flows - can produce placed flow:	1996 1997 1998	507 573 820	73 82	40	56 80	0.44	3.6 6 5	26/02	0.02 0.01 0.09	16/09 23/08	0.7	0.35 n эр	0.13
changes. Groundwater catchment difficult to delineate; losses occur (to the Lee) via swallow holes. Runoff also diminished by long term gw abstraction (restoration progamme began in 1991). # A largely pervious (Chalk) catchment. Rural headwaters; considerable urban development in the valley. Extensive gravel workings.	1999 2000	692 919	99 132	86 144	121 203	0.96 1.61	7.6 25.6	16/01 30/10	0.17 0.34	09/09 21/08	2.0 3.5	0.63 0.88	0.23 0.39

.

					Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m's'')	Pesk flow (***)	Dete of peak	Min. dally flow (m'**')	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m³e ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	95 Percentite (m***)
039089 M.A. EA	Local No: 2841	Gade at I	Bury Mill Sens.: 23.3	C.A: 48.2 km ²	75_95	742		105		8.16	1.2	05/07 1983	>0.00	05/12 1976	0.3	0.14	0.03
F.A.R: Comment: Rectangula Corporation; urban runs area. Leak in stilling we # Dip-slope stream dra boulder clay cover. A r	Level: m at flume with side o off has a significant Il discovered in 191 aining the Chiltern mainly rural catchn	xontraction: t effect on f 90. Vandali s; solid ge xent drainir	UE: .03 s installed by Hernel I lood peaks. Balancing ism and debris in char ology Chalk with son ig to Hernel Hernpsta	FAI: 0.979 Hempstead Development jonds u/s within built-up inel can create problems. ne tertiary and extensive ad.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	518 601 897 720 1007	70 81 121 97 136	57 22 47 122 121	54 21 45 116 115	0.09 0.03 0.07 0.19 0.18	0.4 0.3 0.7 0.5 0.7	03/11 26/06 08/04 28/02 20/12	0.04 0.01 0.02 0.07 0.09	02/11 01/10 22/01 05/12 05/02	0.1 0.0 0.1 0.3 0.3	0.09 0.03 0.07 0.15 0.15	0.04 0.02 0.03 0.08 0.10
039030 M.A: EA F.A.R: GI	G Local No: 2849 Level: 50m	ade at Cri	scley Green Sens.: 26.8	C.A: 184.0 km² Sriuli: 14.8m³s ⁻¹ FAI:	7095	714		161		0.94	4.7	10/10 1987	0.05	03/09 1976	1.5	0.89	0.34
Comment: Compound from the Grand Unior abstractions and disch water, # Pervious head land use: rural hills, co	Crump-type weir (n Canal via an o larges is to make waters (Chaîk) with insiderable urban o	three secti vertall wei the runoff Tertiary d levelopmei	ons, total breadth 10. r is no longer moni rather unrepresentat eposits (mostly imper ht below.	1m), The negligible inflow tored. The net effect of ive; overall net export of vious) in the valley. Mixed	1996 1997 1998 - 1999 2000	527 606 876 738 1009	74 85 123 103 141	119 81 151 226 243	74 50 94 140 151	0.69 0.47 0.88 1.32 1.41	4.0 2.6 2.7 4.8 3.9	11/08 26/06 15/06 01/06 30/10	0.27 0.15 0.37 0.67 0.78	19/10 14/09 24/02 21/12 21/02	1.0 0.6 1.2 1.9 2.2	0.70 0.45 0.83 1.23 1.28	0.38 0.30 0.53 0.80 0.94
039088 M.A: EA F.A.R: PGE	Ch Local No: 2859 Level: 47m	ess at Ric	kmansworth Sens.: 22.3 UE: .03	C.A: 105.0 km² FAI: 0.960	7495	761		182		0.61	1.9	01/04 1993	0.05	28/08 1976	1.0	0.58	0.25
Comment: Crump wei dominated flow regime type with some gw abs Chafk stream draining i in the lower valley.	ir (6.0m broad) wit is influenced by se stractions for PWS the dip-slope of the	h auxiliary wage efflu ; small net : Chilterns.	d/s recorder. Full ran ant. Abstractions are of export from the cato Headwaters are rural	ge station. The baseflow of mainly low consumptive hment, # The Chess is a ; significant urban growth	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	570 651 927 816 1062	75 86 122 107 140	107 65 134 207 217	59 36 74 114 119	0.36 0.22 0.45 0.69 0.72	1.0 0.6 1.0 1.2 1.6	12/02 24/02 26/12 07/03 12/12	0.18 0.13 0.25 0.36 0.49	16/10 02/10 12/01 24/11 02/01	0.5 0.3 0.6 1.0 1.0	0.35 0.21 0.45 0.63 0.65	0.19 0.15 0.27 0.39 0.51
039010 M.A: EA F.A.R: GEL	Local No: 2870 Level: 34m	Coine at	Denham Sens.: 14.4 UE: .08	C.A: 743.0 km ² S/full: 17.5m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.786	5295	718		172		4.05	18.4	14/10 1993	0.74	26/08 1976	6.4	3.72	1.83
Comment: Twin semi- overall crest length 30 within the catchment, o effluent contribution (ir divides do not coincide extensive gravel tracts, lower reaches.	circular broad-cres bm. Few high flow considerable ground notuding Maple Lo e. # A largely Cha . Rural headwaters	sted weirs (gaugings, twater abs) dge STW) lik catchine with consi	(one section subject t All flows contained, i traction - net diminutio to low flows. Hydrol ant with clays in the derable suburban dev	o drowning). Insensitive - Complex water utilisation in in flows - but increasing logical and topographical walleys supplemented by elopment in the middle to	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	524 590 849 731 964	73 82 118 102 134	119 94 146 198 236	69 55 85 115 137	2.80 2.21 3.44 4.67 5.55	9,9 6,2 9,4 10,5 15,9	09/01 26/06 02/11 21/01 31/10	1.39 1.48 1.84 2.36 2.70	18/08 03/10 29/08 12/09 06/09	3.9 2.7 5.2 7.1 10.5	2.57 2.12 2.98 4.28 4.38	1.61 1.67 2.03 2.76 2.89
039127 MA: EA	Misbe Local No:	ourne at L	lttle Missenden Sens.:	C.A: 47.2 km ²	9395	. 806		128		0.19	0.9	26/04 1995	0.05	18/12 1995	Ó.4	0.15	0.08
F.A.R: Comment: Rectangula gaugings (more schedu Heavy gw pumping in t Low Flow Alleviation F	Level: 10 m ar thin-plate weir w uted to confirm cas the headwaters has Programme). # A 1	ith flanking bration). S s reduced t mostly rura	Crump crests. Theor creen u/s of weir requi base flows (the Misbo al catchment on the o	raing supported by ires regular maintenance. urne is included in the EA dip-slope of the Chilterns	1996 1997 1998 1999	588 662 968 831	73 82 120 103	37 90	29 70	0.06 0.13	0.2 0.2	08/04 07/03	0.01 0.00 0.03 0.08	29/10 09/07 01/01 05/12	0.1	0.05	0.02
(Chalk). '	Mist	iourne at l	Denham Lodge	C.A: 136.0 km²	2000 8495	1063 751	132	112 59	88	0.17 0.26	0.5 2.7	27/12 08/05	0.12 0.05	03/02 27/05	0.2 0.5	0.16 0.22	0.12 0.08
M.A: EA F.A.R: GE Comment: Crump we distributary. High flow i Baseflow dominated abstractions; counterau slope catchment in the acticulture with scatter	Local No: 2879 Level: 35m år (crest: 3.5m w/c range under reviev Chalk stream, inf cted by ALF schen e Chilterns. Urban red tracts of wood?	te) plus FL v but drown luent near ne from 19 v growth in aod	Sens.: 17.4 UE: at V (width: 2.0m, 1: ning rare. Bypassed o the Chalfonts. Run 92. Gw catchment: 8 valley but catchmer	FAI: 10 cross-slope) on small only in exceptional floods. I off diminished by PWS I sq.km. # Elongated dip- at is mostly Green Belt -	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	576 629 927 825 1021	77 84 123 110 136	28 13 33 63 90	47 22 56 107 153	0.12 0.06 0.14 0.27 0.39	0.5 0.2 0.5 0.7 1.4	09/01 24/02 03/11 24/12 30/10	0.04 0.02 0.07 0.17 0.19	02/10 21/09 24/02 12/09 07/09	0.2 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.7	0.10 0.05 0.11 0.26 0.30	0.04 0.02 0.07 0.18 0.20
039098 M.A: EA	Local No: 2889	Pinn at I	Uxbridge Sens.:	C.A: 33.3 km ²	8495	661		165		0.17	10.0	08/05 1988	>0.00	08/08 1993	0.4	0.04	0.01
F.A.R: N Comment: Electromag full-range performance floods contained. Flas (multiple 0.01 m ³ s ⁻¹ e Largely impermeable. Pinner, Ruislip and Ick	Level: 31m gnetic (overhead o e, more gaugings re- shy regime. Very I entries are an inst Headwaters rise in tenham.	oil) station equired to d imited imp numental a n countrysi	UE: in formatised trapezo xonfirm high flow calible act of artificial influen rtifact). # Surburban de but substantial de	FAI: idal section. Encouraging ration. All but exceptional noes on the flow pattern catchment W of London. velopment d/s - including	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	495 524 779 741 929	75 79 118 112 141	87 * 418 190	53 253 115	0.09 0.44 0.20	5.4 4.6 7.9 9.5	08/01 26/06 02/06 06/11	0.01 0.01 0.01 0.02	14/05 17/08 23/05 13/09	0.2 0.9 0.5	0.03 0.12 0.06	0.01 0.01
039111 M.A: EA	Local No:	Thames	at Staines Sens.:	C.A: 8120.0 km ²	9095	704		210		54.12	297.0	10/01 1994	4.50	16/10 1990	138.6	33.05	10.98
F.A.R: Comment: Ultrasonic - piles set in the chan calibration, Levels affe- deflect beams, Major	Level: 10m gauging station - m nel. Excellent agi cted by gate and ic PWS abstraction	- nulti-path (f reement b ick movem s u/s. # S	DE: a) in cross configurations etween multi-meter of ents. In hot weather to Scarp and vale topop	r Al. on; transducers located in check gaugings and US emperature gradients can graphy. Diverse geology.	1996 1997 1998 1999	530 632 836 801	75 90 119 114	132 81 239	63 39 114	34.02 20.89 61.52	202.0 144.0 223.0	10/01 26/12 <i>07/01</i>	6.20 6.60 10.00 11.00	12/11 21/07 16/08 24/07	77.0 46.5 141.3	15.67 13.54 45.87	9.11 9.24 12.31
Predominately rural he lower reaches.	adwaters contrast	with subsi	tantial urban and sub	urban development in the	2000	944	134	353	168	90.66	323.9	16/12	10.80	23/09	202.2	60.89	17.72
039128 M.A: EA F.A.R: E	Bour Local No: Level: 11m	ne (South) at Addlestone Sens.: UE: vested weir beneath :	C.A: 90.1 km* FAI: a mad bridge acts as the	9295	708	73	232	, 75	0.69	5.0	1994	0.22	21/08 1995 22/07	1.4	0.79	0.33
control. Approach not is R. Wey system (via the data may need reproce	deal but confirmatic e canal) at greater essing). # Geology	than appro	is up to approx. 10 m ³ ix, 9 m ³ s ⁻¹ . Rating ch igshot Beds with som	s ^{*1} . Some bypassing into ange in Oct 1993 (earlier e urban development d/s.	1997 1998 1999 2000	582 756 769 956	62 107 109 135	210 284 303	68 91 97	0.60 0.81 0.87	2.9 4.9 7.7	06/08 05/01 25/12	0.31 0.28 0.22	21/08 13/08 08/09	0.9 1.3 1.5	0.52 0.66 0.68	0.34 0.34 0.36
039118 M.A: EA F.A.R:	Local No: Level: 101m	Wey a	t Alton Sens.:. UE:	C.A: 44.6 km ² FAI:	9195	877		54		0.08	0.5	07/03 1995	0.00	01/12 1995	0.2	0.03	
Comment: Flat V we regime - the Upper We Upper Greensand outc arable.	eir (1:10) cross-sio ey is ephemeral. S rops in the east. Ai	pe. U/s a Significant i ton is the o	nd d/s levels monitor abstractions in the ca nly large settlement; la	red. Baseflow dominated tchment. # Mostly Chalk; and use is largely pasture/	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	764 734 1060 984 1236	87 84 121 112 141	16 4 33 61 109	+30 7 61 113 202	0.02 0.01 0.05 0.09 0.15	0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.9	22/04 09/10 26/05 13/04 29/10	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.03	01/01 01/01 06/01 10/10 06/10	0.1 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.3	0.01 >0.00 >0.00 0.13	>0.00 >0.00 0.03
039119 M.A: EA F.A.R:	, Local No: Level: 99m	y at Kings	Pond (Alton) Sens.: UE:	C.A: 45.9 km² FAI:	9195	877		69		0.10	0.6	19 /04 1995	0.00	01/11 1995	0.3	0.06	
Comment: Rectangula grill can cause minor flu # Mostly Chalk and Up	ar thin-plate weir at uctuations in level. per Greensand. Ru	outfall from Flow data Iral (apart f	n lake. Theoretical rati for Apr-Jul 1995 unrel from Alton).	ing. Debris obstructing u/s lable due to weed growth.	1996 1997 1998 1999	763 733 1060	87 84 121 112	• 30 18	43 26	0.04 0.03	0.2 0.6	24/02 25/02	0.00 0.00	20/08 14/06	0.1 0.1	0.03 0.00	
*			<u> </u>	<u>-</u>	2000	1238	141	136	197	0.20	0.6	12/12	0.04	06/10	0.3	0.17	0.05

;

						Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m's'')	Peak flow (m³4 ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. dally flow (m³s-*)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (^{m3} s ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	95 Percentia (m ¹ s ⁻¹)
039120 M.A: EA	Local No:	Caker Stree	m at Alton Sens.:		C.A: 88.1 km ²	9195 、	941		26		0.07	1.6	10/01 1993	0.00	04/11 1995	0.2	0.01	
Comment: Flat V we maintenance. Epheme: catchment.	ral stream but	i levels ma relatively n	onitored. Weedgro asponsive. # Geo	owth con ology mi	rat. Itrolled by regular xed. A very rural	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	842 788 1117 1044 1354	89 84 119 111 144	15 10 27 26	58 38 104 100	0.04 0.03 0.08 0.07	1.5 0.9 1.5 2.1	19/11 24/02 24/10 18/01	0.00 0.00 >0.00 0.00	15/07 01/06 10/08 05/09	0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2	0.01 0.00 0.02 >0.00	>0.00
039078 M.A: EA	Local No: 3020	Vey(north)	at Farnham Sens.: 38.9		C.A: 191.1 km ²	7895	870		120		0.73	22.6	03/02 1990	0.12	28/08 1984	1.4	0.52	0.18
F.A.R: GE Comment: Modified Cr theoretically based - a bypassing via culvert i diminished by gw abstra lower reaches. Predomi	Level: 64m ump weir (width: few confirmatol immediately u/s. ictions in the heal inately rural, som	9.14m) wit ry gaugings August 19 dwaters.#A ie urban der	UE: h thin-plate along Non-modular at 97 dmfs estimate mainly Chalk cato velopment on the	the crest high flow ed. Base chment wi watershe	FAI: line. Calibration is ws - also possible flows considerably th Gault Clay in the d.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	779 738 1051 984 1267	90 85 121 113 146	98 68 129 141 233	82 57 108 118 194	0.59 0.41 0.78 0.86 1.41	9.4 4.7 6.3 13.4 28.1	09/01 24/02 05/01 25/12 30/10	0.18 0.11 0.27 0.26 0.34	23/09 01/09 25/09 12/09 13/09	0.9 0.7 1.4 1.7 2.8	0.45 0.33 0.60 0.56 0.93	0.20 0.14 0.29 0.29 0.39
039011 M.A: EA	Local No: 3040	Wey at	Tilford Sens.: 10.4		C.A: 396.3 km ² \$/full: 37.5m ³ s ⁻¹	54.,95	858		258		3.25	79.0	16/09 1968	0.57	27/07 1956	5.4	2.45	1.30
F.A.R: GE Comment: Crump weir (incapable of precise flow High flows based on gau under review. Small net predominantly pervious the bandwater	Level: 48m (crest: 12m wid w measurement); ugings and estima export of water, catchment (Chal	e) replaced differing hyd ates of overt Topographi k and Uppe	UE: .02 (in 1972) an infor prometric performa ank flows; some h cal catchment exc r Greensand). Mai	nnal broa ance reflect istorical fl eeds the inly rural;	FAI: 0.969 d-crested structure tted in flow records. ood discharges are gw catchment. # A mixed woodland in	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	757 727 1011 955 1263	88 85 118 111 147	185 148 229 246 373	72 57 89 95 145	2.32 1.86 2.88 3.09 4.68	24.7 13.7 21.1 29.8 38.9	09/01 24/02 05/01 25/12 30/10	1.14 0.99 1.16 1.25 1.53	23/09 22/08 29/08 28/07 13/09	3.4 2.8 5.1 5.5 8.4	1.84 1.62 2.19 2.25 3.04	1.24 1.10 1.25 1.32 1.69
039122 M.A: EA	Cra Local No:	Nielgh Wate	ars at Bramley Sens.:		C.A: 109.5 km² ∤	9095	775		302		1.05	25.3	02/10 1993	0.15	04/09 1993	2.9	0.41	0.19
F.A.R: Comment: Multi-path cr station. Flashy response flows, but the record is or monitoring purposes. # Greensand in lower rea	Level: m ross-configuration a, long periods of consistent. Low fl Rural catchment ches. Situated S	very low flor very low flor ows influence predomina of Guildford	UE: gauging station be w. Low velocities in and by effluent retu- inity impervious W J.	i neath roa mpact on irms. Stati veald Cla	FAI: d bridge. Full range the precision of the on is used for flood y with some Lower	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	654 696 905 -872 1200	84 90 117 113 155	219 211 333 626	73 70 110 207	0.76 0.73 1.16 2.17	23.2 12.2 15.2 102.8	09/01 25/02 01/11 05/11	0.17 0.17 0.13 0.18	07/09 25/09 21/08 14/09	1.6 1.9 3.1 5.0	0.38 0.31 0.48 0.81	0.19 0.19 0.18 0.22
039036 M.A: EA	Local No: 3074	Law Brook	at Albury Sens.: 20.0		C.A: 16.0 km ² S/full: 0.9m ³ s ⁻¹	6895	817		215		0.11	0.8	06/08 1981	0.05	07/06 1993	0.1	0.11	0.07
F.A.R: G Comment: Rectangular and bypassing occurs o The baseflow dominate	Level: 57m r thin-plate weir, in the rb; some le id runoff is dimin	2.7m broad sakage belo ished by gv	UE: <.01 I. Flood discharge w weir plate also e v abstractions. # 5	is cari ex suspected Small, rel	-AI: U.961 ceed weir capacity 1 to have occurred. atively steep, rural	1996 1997 1998	675 712 896	83 87 110	149 167	69 78	0.08 0.08	0.3 0.3	08/01 09/11	0.04 0.06	23/06 25/01	0.1 0.1	0.07 0.08	0.04 0.07
catchment draining from but responsive on occa: 039029	n the Winterfold F sions.	Forest and H	lurtwood; mainly ;	pervious (Opper Greensand)	1999 2000	862 1203 801	108 147	172 218 289	80 101	0.09 0.11	0.5 0.8	22/09 05/11	0.05?	17/07 09/01	0.1 0.2	0.08	0.07
M.A: EA F.A.R: GIN Comment: Crump weir,	Local No: 3079 Level: 32m , 5.5m broad, Hig	h flows ofte	Sens.: 13.9 UE: <.01 n overestimated (b	l acking-u	FAI: 0.896	1996	663	83	289	77	0.54	1.8	1968 09/01	0.22	1992 16/07	0.7	0.38	0.32
drowning, crest-tapping artificial flow regulation, # Geology: dominated b heavy rainfall. The main terrain to the south; land	often blocked) but sensibly natury the Lower Gree reality is broad, d use is primarily	some futural runoff, ve ensand - nor but the hear agricultural	re revision of hig any minor effect of a minality pervious bu dwaters drain the	gh flows abstractio it catchmi North Do	anticipated. Some ins and discharges. ent is responsive to while scarp and hilly	1997 1998 1999 2000	711 884 862 1186	89 110 108 148	191 227 256 363	66 79 89 126	0.36 0.42 0.48 0.68	1.0 1.4 2.0 2.9	25/02 01/11 25/12 07/11	0.24 0.26 0.29 0.39	02/06 18/08 15/07 25/08	0.5 0.6 0.7 1.1	0.34 0.40 0.43 0.52	0.27 0.28 0.32 0.40
039141 M.A: EA F.A.R:	Local No: Level: m	. Wey at G	ulldford Sens.; UE;	1	C.A: 689.6 km² FAI:	÷												
Comment: Multi-path ul in the centre of Guilford rare flows contained.	Itrasonic gauging I where the river	station (cro and navigat	ss configuration). I ion channels are o	Installed t coinciden	pelow a road bridge t. All but extremely	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	721 715 964 918 1230		161 237 243		3.52 5.17 5.30	21.6 30.2 40.1d 66.7d	25/12 05/01 25/12 07/11	1.67 1.72 1.77	23/07 18/08 29/07	6.2 10.1 10.4	2.80 3.69 3.75	1.79 1.86 1.99
039079 M.A: EA F A R:	Local No: 3090 Level: 9m	Wey at W	eybridge Sens.: UF	,	C.A: 1008.0 km ²	7995	787		211		6.76	74.8	29/12 1979	1.30	12/08 1990	12.9	4.36	2.24
Comment: Ultrasonic (distribution can cause p with canal is just u/s, permeable upper catch Tertiary formations dor woodland; considerable	gauging station, problems but this U/s storage pro- iment (Chalk an- minate the lower suburban develo	single-path site does n duces some d Upper Gr catchment opment belo	(Harwell design), nonitor the completer flood attenuation eensand of the M Diverse land us withe headwaters	Weed-g ate Weys n. # Mixe North Dov se - nural	rowth and velocity system; confluence of geology; largely wns}; impermeable tracts with mixed	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	660 681 902 871 1152	84 87 115 111 146	155 193 206	73 91 98	4.95 6.16 6.58	37.2 34.3 34.3 47.6 83.4	10/01 05/01 05/01 27/12 07/11	1.76 1.26 1.85 1.50 2.30	22/07 24/07 11/08 31/07 13/09	8.2 12.2 12.6	3.95 4.27 4.59	2.01 2.21 2.11
039054 M.A: EA	N Local No: 3210	lole at Gaty	vick Airport Sens.: 20.0	5	C.A: 31.8 km ² S/full: 12.3m ³ s ⁻¹	6195	816		335		0.34	22.3	15/09 1968	0.00	01/09 1995	0.9	0.10	0.02
Comment: Rectangular overflow channel (built i range station. Ran dry fo natural flow regime (Gat (Weald Clay) catchment	r flume (2.74m bro in 1984, and app ir the first time in s wick Airport is no t; largely rural.	bad) in culve ears to influ summer of 1 t in the catcl	oe: It below airport run ence the bornoger 995. Very limited di ament); small net e	nway plus neity of th isturbanc export of v	AL Crump weir in new e flow record). Full a to the responsive, vater, # Impervious	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	690 766 895 821 1206	85 94 110 101 148	217 218 352 305	65 65 105 91	0.22 0.22 0.35 0.31	11.1 8.9 8.1 14.7	09/01 : 09/11 31/10 24/12	>0.00 0.01 0.01 0.01	21/07 31/05 20/08 28/07	0.4 0.6 1.1 0.8	0.08 0.05 0.09 0.08	0.01 0.02 0.02 0.02
039086 M.A: EA	Gatwi Local No: 3229	ick Stream	at Gatwick Link Sens.: 20.0		C.A: 33.6 km ²	7595	827		643		0.69	25.9	12/11 1976	0.11	15/08 1976	1.3	0.47	0.25
Comment: Crump weir sarlier velocity-area stat by sewage effluent and impervious (Weald Clay	(4.6m broad) with ion (u/s). Modula urban runoff; larg r). Mixed land us	n crest-tappi ir apart from je net import e with signif	ng; located at the e exceptional disch to the catchment. icant urban and fo	end of a c arges. Fi . # Mixed wested ar	Al: 0.954 ulvert. Superseded ow pattern affected geology but mainly eas.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	716 829 920 848 1220	87 100 111 103 148	598 616 756 674 1126	93 96 118 105 175	0.64 0.66 0.81 0.72 1.20	10.6 8.7 8.1 12.8 14.6	08/01 09/11 31/10 24/12 05/11	0.29 0.25 0.20 0.26 0.29	21/07 03/10 28/09 30/07 12/09	1.0 1.3 1.6 1.4 2.4	0.49 0.43 0.57 0.51 0.70	0.30 0.27 0.28 0.28 0.32
039053 M.A: EA E A R: PE	Local No: 3230	Mole at	Hortey Sens.: 13.0	5	C.A: 89.9 km ² S/full: 26.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6195	809		452		1.29	63.3	15/09 1968	0.11	22/08 1976	2.6	0.70	0.25
Comment: Compound t broad, rated section at effluent). # Catchment is urban component - inclu	broad-crested we high flows. Sewa a mainly imperme udes Crawley, G	ir. Central n ge effluent able (chiefly atwick Airpo	otch: 2.44m broad contribution is incr Weald Clay) with rt; considerable w	reasing, a mixed lar mixed lar codland a	nic 0.947 king crests: 10.96m itso small import of nd use and growing also.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	697 787 890 825 1199	86 97 110 102 148	444 486 646 560	98 108 143 124	1.26 1.39 1.84 1.60	32.1 25.5 27.8 40.7	09/01 09/11 31/10 24/12	0.39 0.47 0.50 0.31	18/09 24/09 14/08 30/07	2.1 2.8 4.0 3.2	0.82 0.77 1.04 0.89	0.42 0.50 0.55 0.40

-

	Perlod	Raintall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m's*)	Pask flow (m ¹ a ⁻¹)	Dete of peak	Min. dally flow (^{m1} s ⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m³a·1)	50 Percentile (m ³ e ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m'e' ¹)
039069 Mole at Kinnersley Manor C.A: 142.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: 3240 Sens.: 19.3	72.95	796		463		2.08	71.9	02/10 1993	0.12	01/09 1976	4.3	0.98	0.31
FAR: E Level: 48m UE: 07 FAI: 0.956 Comment: Rectangular flume, 7m wide at throat, plus 1.86m rectangular side sluice. Calibration based on current meter gaugings which extend beyond bankfull. Significant net import of water (sewage effluent - increasing through time) but otherwise moderate overall impact of artificial influences. # A largely impervious catchment (mostly Weald Clay). Very mixed land use - rural tracts	1996 1997 1998 1999	688 786 866 817	86 99 109 103	396 454 593 528	86 98 128 114	1.78 2.04 2.67 2.38	49.7 34.8 40.6 65.1	09/01 09/11 31/10 24/12	0.42 0.45 0.45 0.34	18/09 24/07 19/08 31/07	3.2 4.6 6.5 4.8	1.04 0.91 1.39 1.17	0.47 0.52 0.49 0.50
and urban centres; Crawley and Garwick Aupor, are in the calculateria. 039068 Mole at Castle Mill C.A: 316.0 km ²	2000 7195	770	140	362	210	3.63	100.0	28/12	0.45	04/09	8.4	1.77	0.76
M.A: EA Local No: 3270 Sens.: 19.4 F.A.R: GE Level: 39m UE: FAI: Comment: Crump weir (15.0m broad) superseded original mail weir (velocity-area rated) in 1978; no dmf data 03/76-01/78. Crump weir is modular to structurefull. All but very high flows contained. Small net import of water (sewage effluent). # Impervious (mostly Weald Clay) catchment. Mixed land use.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	675 767 862 824 1184	88 100 112 107 154	282 309 423 366 685	78 85 117 101 189	2.81 3.10 4.24 3.67 6.85	72.7 34.7 51.6 70.7 86.0	09/01 09/11 01/11 24/12 06/11	0.75 - 0.74 0.82 0.73 0.86	22/07 03/10 12/08 25/06 14/09	5.4 7.2 11.5 8.3 16.0	1.57 1.41 2.06 1.88 2.82	0.84 0.85 0.90 0.85 0.94
039012 Hogsmill at Kingston upon Thames C.A: 69.1 km ² M.A: EA Local No: 3390 Sens: 15.4 S/dull: 36.0m ³ s ⁻¹	5695	676		446		0.98	26.3	: 06/08 1981	0.33	09/09 1976	1.5	Q.81	0.52
F.A.R.'E Level: on DUE: 21 DE:	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	526 644 746 714 997	78 95 110 106 147	418 416 486 562	94 93 109 126	0.91 0.91 1.06 1.23	8.8 11.8 10.2 16.3	03/11 08/07 31/10 24/09	0.55 0.58 0.57 0.53	10/07 03/10 06/08 05/12	1.2 1.3 1.6 1.8	0.85 0.81 0.90 1.12	0.60 0.63 0.63 0.71
039001 Thames at Kingston C.A: 9948.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: 3400 Sens.: Bf/uil: 450.0m³s ⁻¹ EA D: CSDCCE Lauel: 5m UIE: 0.44 FAI: 0.913	<u>83</u> -95	718		209		66.00	800.0d	18/11 1894	0.01	09/10 1976	161.2	41.33	8.48
Comment: Ultrasonic station commissioned in 1974; multi-path operation from 1988. Full range. No peak flows pre-1974 when dmfs derived from Teddington weir complex (70m wide); significant structural improvements since 1883. Some underestimation of pre-1951 low flows. 1894 peak gdf re- assessed (800 m ³ s ⁻¹). Baseflow sustained mainly from the Chalk and the Oolites. Runoff decreased by major PWS abstractions - naturalised flows available. # Diverse topography, geology and land use which - together with the pattern of water utilisation - has undergone important historical changes.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	545 640 842 806 973	76 89 117 112 136	103 55 203 213 339	49 26 97 102 162	32.51 17.46 63.91 67.31 106.62	312.0 181.0 272.0 331.3 462.4	10/01 26/02 06/01 21/01 07/11	2.52 1.46 7.56 7.88 7.69	31/12 04/01 29/08 15/07 14/09	82.5 50.2 158.7 177.0 251.1	10.93 7.55 44.52 45.61 68.84	3.71 3.92 9.65 10.21 11.34
039145 Yeading Brook East at Western Avenue A40 C.A: 9.6 km ² M.A: EA Local No: Sens.:	9595	601					3.0	19/12 1995	0.01	09/12 1995			
F.A.R: Level: m UE: FAI: Comment: Flat V weir from 1974, removed in 1981. Replaced in Oct 1985. EA hold records from water year 1988. Rebuilt in 1993, with records from Sep 1993.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	469 520 753 718 927	78 87 125 119 154	113 121 209 177 287		0.03 0.04 0.06 0.05 0.09	2.8 3.8 4.0 5.4 4.4	07/06 26/06 26/09 01/06 05/11	0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01	12/09 02/06 22/08 22/06 26/06	0.1 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.2	0.01 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.03	0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01
039057 Crane at Cranford Park C.A: 61.7 km ² M.A: EA Local No: 3660 Sens.: 32.4	7895	641		261		0.51	18.5	08/04 1979	0.01	16/08 1982	1.1	0.26	0.11
F.A.R: Level: 23m UE: .35 FAI: 0.998 Comment: Non-standard critical depth flume improvised from the invert of a footbridge. Straight reach, banks stabilised by timber revetments. Theoretical calibration - gaugings needed to verify rating and determine the modular limit. Pre-84 flows less reliable. Bypassing (b) occurs above a stage of about 1.3m. Complex water utilisation. Small natural import of water from the Colne catchment. A relatively responsive regime. # A flat, generally impervious (mostly London Clay) catchment of suburban character - includes Northolt Airport.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	463 506 738 714 912	72 79 115 111 142	152 149 261 251 400	58 57 100 96 153	0.30 0.29 0.51 0.49 0.78	9.2 6.5 10.0 12.7 17.9	08/01 26/06 31/10 02/06 30/10	0.08 0.09 0.10 0.09 0.12	17/09 10/09 23/05 12/07 07/08	0.6 0.6 1.2 1.1 1.8	0.18 0.17 0.26 0.22 0.34	0.10 0.10 0.12 0.12 0.15
O39094 Crane at Marsh Farm C.A: 81.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: 3680 Sens.: 174.0 S/full: 28.0m³s ⁻¹	7795	631		209		0.54	13.4	28/12 1979	>0.00	05/12 1982	1.2	0.31	0.02
F.A.R: G Level: 7m UE: FAI: Comment: Rectangular critical depth flume (insensitive) in a straight concrete channel. Theoretical rating: modular limit to be determined. Capacity approx. 30 m ³ s ⁻¹ ; yet to be acceeded. Substantial artificial influence on flow pattern: automatic weir u/s diverts flow into the Duke's River, considerable area of gravel workings; some runoff gain from the Coine catchment. # Very flat - drainage network difficult to delineate. Mainly urban; catchment contains Heathrow Airport and several pumped storage res. (abstracting from Thames).	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	451 496 725 702 894	71 79 115 111 142	101 82 186 181 301	48 39 89 87 144	0.26 0.21 0.48 0.47 0.77	6.8 4.8 6.8 6.8 11.9	09/01 26/06 09/04 02/06 30/10	0.01 >0.00 >0.00 >0.00 0.00	28/09 04/10 10/08 03/08 01/08	0.6 0.5 1.2 1.2 2.0	0.13 0.11 0.24 0.25 0.43	0.02 0.01 0.02 0.01
039092 Dollis Brook at Hendon Lane Bridge C.A: 25.1 km² M.A: EA Local No: 3809 Sens.;	7995	708		288		0.23	16.4	22/09 .1992	0.00	01/10 1989	0.5	0.09	0,03
F.A.R: Level: 40m UE: .25 FAI: 0.950 Comment: Flat V weir has replaced a compound broad-crested weir with rectangular thin-plate inset (lack of confirmatory gaugings, severe u/s siltation - occasionally moderated by flushing via stuice below weir). # Catchment in NW suburbs of London: Barnet and Hendon but with significant rural tracts in western headwaters, Geology; entirely London Clay of Eccene age. Drift free.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	511 558 788 688 896	72 79 111 97 127	156 164 271 249 - 433	54 57 94 86 150	0.12 0.13 0.22 0.20 0.34	4.0 6.3 6.1 4,4 14,9	08/01 26/06 31/10 24/12 29/10	0.02 0.00 0.03 0.03 0.03	25/09 01/03 21/09 01/08 20/08	0.3 0.3 0.5 0.5 0.8	0.06 0.05 0.09 0.08 0.14	0.03 0.02 0.04 0.03 0.03
039084 Brent at Brent Cross C.A: 36.4 km ² M.A: EA Local No: Sens.:	89-95	671		299		0.34	35.0	12/10 1993	0.05	29/07 1990	8.0	0.13	0.07
F.A.R: Level: a lim UC: Comment: Rectangular notch. Limited number of check gaugings, frighest at 4.1 m ³ s ⁻¹ ; they suggest that calibration overestimates high flows. Debris in channel can be a problem. # Urbart/suburban catchment in N/W London.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	502 556 786 692 915	75 83 117 103 136	208 210 356 298 497	70 70 119 100 168	0.24 0.24 0.41 0.34 0.57	13.3 18.6 15.6 15.0 35.0	08/01 26/06 05/01 22/09 29/10	0.07 0.07 0.06 0.06 0.06	08/08 23/09 22/09 24/07 21/08	0.5 0.5 0.9 0.9 1.3	0,13 0,13 0,18 0,15 0,26	0.08 0.08 0.07 0.07 0.07
039049 Slik Stream at Colindeep Lane C.A: 29.0 km ² M.A: EA Local No: 3829 Sens: 27.5 CA Dir Local No: 3829 LS: 30 EAI: 0.973	7395	688		271		0.25	17.3	05/10 1984	0.01	04/06 1974	0.6	0.11	0.04
Comment: Flat V weir (1:10 cross slope, width: 8.5m). Theoretical rating. Further gaugings needed to establish modular range. Some bypassing during floods; d/s bridge acts as a control in high flows and may cause weir to drown. Poorer quality pre-1973 data available for two earlier stations on the river; significant river improvements undertaken in the 1950s. Responsive regime. Net impact of abstractions and discharges uncertain; artificial influences evident at low flows. # Catchment is largety London Clay. Rural/suburban headwaters, heavily urbanised below.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	507 550 780 718 908	74 80 113 104 132	175 165 271 263 423	65 61 100 97 156	0.16 0.15 0.25 0.24 0.39	11.2 12.3 5.6 12.8 13.9	11/08 26/06 15/06 01/06 14/05	0.05 0.04 0.04 0.05 0.05	07/08 01/06 08/08 12/09 21/08	0.4 0.3 0.6 0.7 0.9	0.09 0.07 0.11 0.10 0.21	0.05 0.04 0.05 0.05 0.05
039096 Wealdstone Brook at Wembley C.A: 21.8 km ² M.A: EA Local No: 3839 Sens.: 39.6 EA D: Level: 2000 UE: 42 EAU 1.000	7995	671		216		0,15	29.2	22/09 1992	0.00	03/04 1982	0.3	0.06	0.02
Comment: Flat V profile weir in a cuvert (below Olympic Way Wembley). Following modifications to the structure in 1978 it was refurbished but crest is sub-standard and a few gaugings suggest that the theoretical rating may not be applicable especially in high flow range. Data under review (as more confirmatory gaugings required). Responsive regime. # A largely impervious urban/suburban catchment.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	488 544 767 716 927	73 81 114 107 138	121 120 202 176 307	56 56 94 81 142	0.08 0.08 0.14 0.12 0.21	11.9 18.2 9.2 14.1 17.7	11/08 26/06 02/11 01/06 14/05	0.02 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01	12/09 29/10 13/08 15/07 12/08	0,2 0.2 0.4 0.3 0.5	0.03 0.03 0.05 0.03 0.07	0.02 0.02 0.02 0.01 0.01

t i

	Period	Rainfail (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (^{m³s°1})	Peak flow (^{m³} e ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. dally flow (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentite (m³e⁺1)	50 Percentlle (m³s^¹)	95 Percentlle (m³s' ¹)
039093 Brent at Monks Park C.A: 117.6 km² M.A: EA Local No: 3850 Sens:: 29.2 Sfolli: 34.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A. Pi Local No: 3850 Sens:: 29.2 Sfolli: 34.0m³s ⁻¹	7895	691		268		1.00	56.2	22/09 1992	0.06	29/09 1979	2.3	0.47	0.13
Comment: Critical depti fiume (rectangular) in a concrete channel, d/s of Brent Reservoir. # A largely urban/suburban catchment in NW London.	1996 1997 1998 1999	497 551 780 704	72 80 113 102	186 177 281	69 66 105	0.69 0.66 1.05	19.8 29.5 22.5	08/01 26/06 31/10	0.15 0.13 0.15	12/09 22/04 18/09	1.5 1.5 2.7	0.39 0.35 0.48	0.21 0.17 0.18
020121	2000	920	133	409	153	1.52	49.0	29/10	0.15	21/08	3.8	0.70	0.17
U33131 Brent at Costons Lane, Greenford C.A: 146.2 km* M.A: EA Local No: Sens.: F.A.R: Lavel: m UE: FAI:	9295	700		286		1,32	42,9	12/10 1993	0.19	03/08 1995	3.0	0.60	0.26
Comment: Flat V weir with vertical wing walls (bankfull: 2 m). Lowest flow recording station on the Brent. Flow does not incorporate the d/s Greenford tributary. Brent reservoir has significant impact on the flow regime. # A largely urban/suburban catchment in NW London, developed on London Clay.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	488 543 774 702 920	70 78 111 100 131	185 172 274 239 390	65 60 96 84 136	0.86 0.80 1.27 1.11 1.80	21.6 24.9 22.2 24.7 52.3	09/01 26/06 31/10 02/06 30/10	0.22 0.15 0.15 0.14 0.17	09/05 20/09 12/08 13/09 24/08	1.7 1.7 3.4 2.9 4.5	0.49 0.44 0.62 0.54 0.91	0.27 0.18 0.20 0.18 0.20
039005 Beverley Brook at Wimbledon Common C.A: 43.5 km² M.A: EA Local No: 4080 Sens.: 11.5 S/full: 28.3m³s ⁻¹	3595	636		398		0.55	15.9	09/10 1987	0.02	03/10 1970	0.9	0.44	0.22
F.A.R: GE Level: 11m DE::38 FAI: 1000 Comment: Trapezcidal chical-depth flume (overall channel width: 10m). Orginal station built 1935; flume commissioned in 1940 but no standing-wave formed until invert raised in 1961. Large capacity but bypassed during 1968 flood. Artificial flow pattern; runoff augmented by sewage effluent which has increased over the record. Topographic catchment slightly exceeds effective drainage area. # Chalk headwaters but a largely London Clay catchment of urban/suburban character.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	475 574 720 679 940	75 90 113 107 148	367 387 438 396 526	92 97 110 99 132	0.50 0.53 0.60 0.55 0.72	8.9 13.6 8.7 13.9 15.6	03/11 06/08 09/11 24/09 29/10	0.31 0.32 0.33 0.07? 0.31	09/09 03/11 23/07 16/10 27/06	0.7 0.8 1.0 0.9 1.3	0.43 0.43 0.45 0.43 0.50	0.34 0.35 0.36 0.29 0.37
039004 Wandle at Beddington Park C.A: 122,0 km ² M.A: EA Local No: 4150 Sens.; 120.0 S/full: 13.1m ³ s ⁻¹	3695	776		45		0.18	8.7f	30/11 1976	0.00	08/04 1973	0.3	0.14	0.01
F.A.R: G Lavel: 33m UE: 14 FAI: 0.994 Comment: Electromagnetic station (buried coil) replaced a compound Crump weir in 1991. Prior to 1964 the station was a very insensitive broad-created weir (constructed 1939). Historical record poor; uncertain calibration, algal growth on weir, inaccurate zero satting, etc. Hydrometric problems continued into the 1980s. Flows corrected to allow for siltation. Complex water utilisation; substantial gw pumping. Effective drainage area is smaller than topographical catchment. # The Wandle rises in Contribution of the record of the state	1996 1997 1998 1999, 2000	627 736 896 820 1118	81 95 115 106 144	27 14 43 44 71	60 31 96 98 158	0.11 0.05 0.17 0.17 0.27	4.7 5.8 6.7 5.2 4.4	23/07 08/07 01/08 29/05 02/11	0.02 0.01 0.07 0.06 0.08	01/11 22/09 22/09 28/11 30/01	0.2 0.1 0.3 0.3 0.6	0.11 0.04 0.15 0.18 0.20	0.03 0.02 0.09 0.07 0.10
O39003 Wandle at Connolitys Milli C.A: 176,1 km² M.A: EA Local No: 4180 Sens: 9.2 Sfull: 28.0m³s ⁻¹	6295	732		304		1.70	39.3f	16/09 1968	0.22	29/01 1963	2.8	1.72	0.70
F.A.R: GE Level: 10m UE: .20 FAI: 0.987 Comment: Rectangular critical-depth flume (5.5m wide). Theoretical calibration. Drowns (and bypassed) during notable floods. Superseded (following channel improvements) Wandle Park immediately u/s (sporadic data available 1939-60). Very artificial flow pattern; runoff enhanced by	1996 1997 1998	592 693 854	61 95 117	274 244 348	90 80 114	1.52 1.36 1.94	11.7 12.4 16.4	03/11 09/10 15/06	1.07 1.03 1.43	22/10 24/09 18/09	1.9 1.7 2.6	1.46 1.23 1.76	1.14 1.08 1.53
sewage effluent. Large baseflow component. Topographic catchment substantially exceeds effective drainage area. # The Wandle is spring-fed (Chalk) but catchment is largely London Clay. Urban/suburban with significant areas of parkland.	1999 2000	788 1071	108 146	548	180	3.05	25.2	29/10	1.51	14/09	5.6	2.38	1.64
039134 Ravensbourne East at Bromley South C.A: 10.3 km² M.A: EA Local No: Sens.: FAR: F.A.R: Level: m UE: FAI:	9395	700		·168		0.05	6.9	10/08 1994	0.01	02/11 1995	0.1	0.02	0.01
Comment: Flat V weir (1:10 cross slope) with vertical wing walls. Full range station, which has been theoretically rated. Straight approach with no significant modification to flow regime. # The Ravensbourne rises as Chalk springs (in Holwood Park; dry valleys extend into the North Downs).	1996 1997 1998	510 592 768	73 85 110	101 112 152	60 67 90	0.03 0.04 0.05	3.6 5.4 4.3	22/08 09/10 01/08	0.01 0.01 0.01	14/05 16/09 13/08	0.1 0.1 0.1	0.02 0.02 0.02	0.01 0.01 0.01
largely within London.	2000	994	142	227	135	0.07	5.1	15/09	0.01	15/07	0.2	0.03	0.01
039058 Pool at Winsford Road C.A: 38.3 km² M.A: EA Local No: 4369 Sens.: 24.9 EA.P: G Lawel: 17m UP: 43 EAL: 0.95	78.95	661		244		0.30	21.7	27/02 1979	0.06	12/09 1978	0.6	0.21	0.11
Comment: Trapezoidal flume; breadth at the critical section: 3.05m. Full range. Theoretical calibration. Flows reprocessed from Jan 1985. Runoff is reduced by gw abstractions and artificial influences evident at low flows. Some earlier data (1961-71) exist for an us site - Setworthy Road (39827). # The Pool River rises as Chatk springs (below Addington Hill) but flows mostly over impervious Eocene deposits. Land use: principally of a suburbanjurban character (S London).	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	481 569 769 698 944	73 86 116 106 143	186 189 246 204 312	76 77 101 84 128	0.22 0.23 0.30 0.25 0.38	9.1 9.9 14.5 8.9 10.2	22/08 09/10 01/08 04/08 09/10	0.05 0.10 0.09 0.02 0.07	05/08 15/09 10/08 18/09 23/06	0.3 0.4 0.6 0.5 0.8	0.18 0.16 0.20 0.17 0.22	0.10 0.11 0.11 0.05 0.10
039056 Revensiourne at Catford Hill C.A: 120.4 km ²	7795	718		114		0.43	28.4	09/06	0.09	23/05	0.8	0.31	0.14
F.A.R. G Level: 15m UE: 26 FAI: 0.993 Comment: Trapezoidal flume; breadth at the critical section: 4.267m; insensitive. Full range. Theoretical calibration - confirmatory gaugings required at medium and high flows. Flows reprocessed from Jan 1985. Artificial influences evident at low flows. Regime heavily affected by urbanisation. # The Ravensbourne rises as Chalk springs (in Holwood Park; dry valleys extend into the North Downs). The lower calchment is mainly impervious Eccene deposits. Below the bootwinter the antiferment in temposity within a calched by	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	553 637 830 748 1041	77 89 116 104 145	87 77 101 95 145	76 68 .89 83 127	0.33 0.29 0.39 0.36 0.55	12.3 15.2 16.3 12.4 17.4	1992 22/08 22/06 01/08 04/08 15/09	0.06 0.10 0.09 0.07 0.09	1992 05/08 15/09 01/09 12/09 07/09	0.6 0.5 0.8 0.8 1.2	0.24 0.18 0.22 0.22 0.29	0.10 0.12 0.10 0.09 0.12
O39135 Quaggy River at Chinbrook Meadows C.A: 14.5 km² M.A: EA Local No: Sens.:	9295	708		237		0.11	2.7	02/10 1993	0.02	02/08 1993	0.2	0.08	0.03
F.A.R: Level: m UE: FAI: Comment: Rectangular critical depth flurne, Flood walls added May 1982. Station subject to considerable gravel accretion. Sensibly continuous flow record. No significant modifications to flow regime. # Geology: London Clay, also Reading/Wootwich Beds. An urban/suburban catchment in S London.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	506 588 753 703 977	71 83 106 99 138	131 135 177 126 257	55 57 75 53 108	0.06 0.06 0.08 0.06 0.12	1.5 2.0 1.4 1.5 - 3.0	22/08 24/02 05/01 24/09 30/10	0.01 0.01 0.02 >0.00 0.02	17/08 16/09 29/08 21/07 04/09	0.1 0.1 0.2 0.1	0.05 0.04 0.05 0.03 0.06	0.02 0.02 0.02 0.01 0.02
039095 Quaggy at Manor House Gardens C.A: 33.5 km² M.A: EA Local No: 4389 Sens.: 40.8 S/full: 8.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: Level: 13m LIF- 37 EAL: 4.000	7895	647		144		0.15	7.8	09/06 1992	0.02	08/09 1984	0.3	0.09	0.04
Comment: A critical depth flume (width: 4m, wing wall height: 2m) in a concrete channel. The flume was constructed in 1961 and calibrated theoretically - the low flow rating has since been revised on the basis of c/m gauging results. Wodular range uncertain. The structure was overwhelmed by the 1968 flood but sensibly full range otherwise. # The catchment is a mixture of urban and suburban development.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	482 554 714 664 919	74 86 110 103 142	91 94 136 111 215	63 65 94 77 149	0.10 0.10 0.14 0.12 0.23	3.7 4.9 3.5 3.7 5.6	19/11 24/02 26/09 29/05 09/10	0.03 0.02 0.03 0.01 0.03	25/09 03/10 19/08 13/09 25/08	0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.5	0.06 0.05 0.08 0.07 0.12	0.03 0.02 0.03 0.02 0.04

Map 8: SOUTHERN



Area: 10,604 km²

Average Rainfall (1961-90): 776 mm

Gauging Station Register

Station number	River name	Station name		Grid referance	Catchment area (aq km)	Station type	Period of record	Mean ann, rainfall (mm)	Mean ann, runoff (mm)	Mean ann. Ioss (mm)	Мах. апп. гилоff (mm)	Year of mex.	Min, ann, runoff (mm)	Year of min,	Mean flow (m's'')	Min. mon. flow (^{m³} # ⁻¹)	Month/Year of min.	Median ann. Rood (^{m*e*1})	Base Flow Index	10 Percentile (^{m1} e ⁻¹)	95 Percentite (m ⁴ e-1)
040016 040013 040018 040012 040001 040020 040007 040007 040010 040006 040024	Cray Darent Darent Darent Medway Eridge Stream Medway Eden Bourne Bartley St	Crayford Otford Luftingstone Hawley Weir Wood Res Hendal Bridge Chafford Weir Penshurst Hadlow Bartley Mill	10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	511746 525584 530643 551718 407353 522367 517405 520437 632497 633357	119.7 100.5 118.4 191.4 26.9 53.7 255.1 225.1 224.3 50.3 25.1	CC CC FL FL FL FL FL FL B	196900 196900 196900 1963.00 1953.67 1973.00 196000 196100 195900 197481	693 774 763 738 906 884 867 766 731 908	- 130 186 176 100 195 427 381 261 238 452	563 588 587 638 711 457 486 505 493 456	211 460 351 198 312 763 626 513 322 456	00 00 58 00 00 60 79	33 80 61 17 88 274 161 114 152 386	73 73 73 65 96 73 73 96 78	0.49 0.59 0.66 0.61 0.17 0.73 3.08 1.85 0.38 0.36	0.07 0.09 0.06 0.00 0.04 0.06 0.43 0.18 0.10 0.04	08/76 09/91 08/76 10/76 03/62 08/76 08/76 07/76 07/97 08/76	8.2 3.3 2.7 30.3 46.2 28.1 6.8	.71 .57 .73 .72 .43 .44 .49 .37 .63 .49	0.9 1.1 1.3 1.3 0.4 1.6 6.3 4.1 0.7 0.7	0.11 0.12 0.02 0.04 0.05 0.05 0.23 0.14 0.05
040009 040005 040003 040029 040015 040023 040008 040011 040027 040014	Teise Beult Medway Len White Drain East Stour Great Stour Great Stour Sarre Penn Wingham	Stone Bridge Stile Bridge Teston Lenside Fairbrook Farm S Willesborough Wye Horton Calcott Durlock	TQ TQ TQ TR TR TR TR TR TR TR	718399 758478 7085350 765556 055606 015407 049470 116554 174625 276576	136.2 277.1 1256.1 69.7 31.8 58.8 230.0 345.0 19.4 37.7	FV MIS FV FL FV C VA FV FV VN	196100 195800 195600 196400 196200 196200 196400 196400 197594	814 703 762 710 696 772 741 760 631 699	310 234 278 304 46 392 303 289 150 17	504 469 484 406 650 380 438 471 481 682	572 511 562 424 91 653 475 483 164 25	00 00 94 87 00 66 93 89	129 91 150 197 19 251 166 151 68 8	73 96 96 73 90 73 96 89 85	1.34 2.06 11.09 0.67 0.73 2.21 3.16 0.09 0.02	0.10 >0.00 0.58 0.23 >0.00 0.01 0.34 0.83 >0.00 >0.00	08/76 08/76 12/96 09/97 05/76 07/76 09/97 08/90 07/96	29.5 38.8 130.2 23.0 20.2	.48 .24 .41 .70 .51 .43 .58 .70 .35 .60	2.6 5.8 24.8 1.1 1.9 4.6 6.0 0.2 0.0	0.20 0.07 1.51 0.01 0.06 0.52 1.02 >0.00
040033 040017 040002 040004 040021 041017 041001 041002 041013 041016	Dour Dudwell Darwell Rother Hexden Ch Combe Haven Nunningham Ash Bourne Huggletts St Cuckmere	Crabble Mill Burwash Darwell Res Udiam Sandhurst Crowhurst Tilley Bridge Hammer Wd Br Henley Bridge Cowbeech	TR TQ TQ TQ TQ TQ TQ TQ TQ	300430 679240 722213 773245 813290 765102 662129 684141 671138 611150	49.5 27.5 9.6 206.0 32.4 30.7 16.9 18.4 14.2 18.7	FV C TPFL FV FL CC TPFL TPFL CC	197600 197100 195875 196200 197500 196900 195000 195100 195100 195100	884 917 943 876 803 803 842 870 839 883	273 357 66 335 311 339 345 406 331 358	611 560 877 541 492 464 497 464 508 525	503 712 342 772 612 657 888 674 557 872	94 60 60 94 00 94 60 60	66 158 20 107 155 101 99 168 100 84	96 73 71 73 96 73 96 73 73 73	0.43 0.31 0.02 2.19 0.32 0.33 0.19 0.24 0.15 0.21	0.03 0.03 >0.00 0.12 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.01 0.01	11/90 09/97 12/71 10/89 08/76 09/90 09/96 05/97 09/97 08/76	29.3 41.9 5.4	.96 .45 .42 .35 .45 .41 .36 .50 .37 .40	0.9 0.6 0.0 5.5 0.8 0.7 0.4 0.6 0.3 0.5	0.05 0.04 >0.00 0.17 0.03 0.02 0.01 0.04 0.02 0.01
041029 041003 041024 041026 041005 041005 041006 041021 041020 041004 041037	Bull Cuckmere Shell Brook Cockhaise Brk Ouse Uck Clayhill St Bevern St Ouse Winterbourne St	Lealands Sherman Bridge Shell Brook Holywell Gold Bridge Isfield Old Ship Clappers Bridge Barcombe Mills Lewes	TQ TQ TQ TQ TQ TQ TQ TQ TQ	575131 533051 335286 376262 429214 459190 448153 423161 433148 403096	40.8 134.7 22.6 36.1 180.9 87.8 7.1 34.6 395.7 17.3	FV FVVA FV C FVVA FV C C C US CC	1978-00 195900 197100 197199 196000 196400 196999 196900 195600	857 838 880 849 872 844 799 897 842 933	359 319 346 342 387 420 360 430 321 190	498 519 534 507 485 424 439 467 521 743	728 691 511 721 890 591 912 652 835	00 60 74 00 74 00 74 60 60	153 105 181 136 163 172 107 156 123	96 73 78 73 73 73 73 73 73 96	0.47 1.36 0.25 0.39 2.22 1.17 0.08 0.47 4.03 0.10	0.01 0.02 0.01 0.02 0.16 0.11 0.00 0.01 0.14 0.00	08/95 08/76 12/95 09/90 08/76 08/76 08/76 09/90 08/76 09/90	32.5 10.0 30.7 32.2 3.7 12.1	.39 .28 .51 .52 .51 .40 .15 .28 .43 .60	1.1 3.2 0.5 0.9 4.9 2.3 0.2 1.2 9.2 0.3	0.03 0.07 0.01 0.05 0.32 0.17 0.02 0.32
041012 041028 041010 041031 041035 041019 041025 041018 041014 041027	Adur East Chess Stream Adur West Fulking Stream North Arun Loxwood St Kird Arun Rother	Sakeham Chess Bridge Hatterell Bridge Fulking Brookhurst Alfoldean Drungewick Tanyards Pallingham Quay Princes Marsh	TQ TQ TQ TQ TQ TQ TQ TQ SU	219190 217173 178197 247113 130325 117331 060309 044256 047229 772270	93.3 24.0 109.1 1.0 53.9 139.0 91.6 66.8 379.0 37.2	CC TPFL MIS VN FV CC CC FV CC FV	196799 196400 196898 198300 197000 197100 197100 197000 197000 197000	833 865 804 883 815 808 825 808 796 908	401 371 378 378 341 394 385 401 323 428	432 494 505 474 414 440 407 473 480	580 671 1119 473 727 645 897 1070 717 837	74 74 81 00 74 00 00 00	162 113 140 189 198 134 107 89 111 244	73 73 96 73 97 73 73 73 73 73 73	1.19 0.28 1.07 0.01 0.58 1.74 1.12 0.85 3.88 0.50	0.08 0.01 0.00 >0.00 0.08 0.01 0.00 0.20 0.11	08/76 08/73 09/96 10/90 08/95 08/76 08/95 08/90 08/95 08/76	21.0 7.0 35.0 20.0 70.9 11.6	.37 .38 .25 .91 .23 .31 .23 .17 .30 .60	2.7 0.7 3.1 0.0 1.4 4.1 2.5 1.9 9.9 0.9	0.15 0.02 0.03 >0.00 0.15 0.04 0.29 0.14
041011 041033 041022 041009 041023 041034 041015 042025 042017 042001	Rother Costers Brook Lod Rother Lavant Erns Erns Lavant Stream Hermitage Wallington	lping Mill Cocking Halfway Bridge Hardham Graytingwell Walderton Westbourne Leigh Park Havant North Fareham	SU SU SU SU SU SU SU SU SU	852229 880174 931223 034178 871064 786104 755074 721072 711067 587075	154.0 2.7 52.0 345.8 87.2 41.5 58.3 54.5 17.0 111.0	CC FVVA CC FV CC FV CC VA FV		940 1004 880 942 956 943 931 918 834 855	452 689 349 461 105 56 239 30 544 178	488 315 531 481 851 887 692 888 290 677	858 1028 516 750 353 146 631 57 1020 376	00 94 74 60 69 00 98 00 60	204 409 148 226 0 39 11 273 50	73 92 73 96 73 92 96 96 73	2.21 0.06 0.57 5.05 0.29 0.07 0.44 0.05 0.29 0.62	0.41 >0.00 0.01 1.15 0.00 0.01 >0.00 0.05 0.02	08/76 10/89 08/76 08/76 09/00 12/83 10/69 10/95 07/90 08/76	35.2 17.0 1.2 1.7 7.8 15.1	.61 .89 .36 .62 .86 .87 .92 .44 .48 .41	4.5 0.1 1.4 10.3 0.9 0.2 1.2 0.1 0.7 1.6	0.60 0.01 0.05 1.73 0.01 >0.00 0.04 0.04
042006 042011 042009 042007 042008 042016 042010 042018 042018 042023 042019	Meon Hamble Candover St Aire , Cheriton St Itchen Itchen Itchen Monks Brook Itchen Tanners Brook	Mislingford Frogmill Borough Bridge Alresford Sewards Bridge Easton Highbridge Stoneham Lane Riverside Park Millbrook	รบ รบ รบ รบ รบ รบ รบ รบ	589141 523149 568323 574326 574323 512325 467213 443179 445154 388133	72.8 56.6 71.2 57.0 75.1 236.8 360.0 43.3 415.0 16.0	FL C C C C EM C+TP FV US VA	1958-00 197200 1970-99 1970-00 197500 1955-00 1962-00 198299 197799	930 882 825 873 909 871 855 823 837 814	419 235 233 855 268 562 465 169 410 331	511 647 592 18 641 309 390 654 427 483	785 363 293 1085 481 762 670 277 515 443	60 95 95 00 00 00 94 84	145 80 135 442 158 384 317 105 321 158	73 73 92 92 92 92 91 91 91	0.97 0.42 0.52 1.55 0.64 4.22 5.30 0.23 5.40 0.17	0.07 0.05 0.22 0.55 0.17 2.30 2.33 0.02 1.94 0.01	08/76 09/89 07/92 08/76 08/76 08/91 08/95 09/91	2.7 8.5 1.0 2.3 1.3 8.8	.93 .67 .96 .98 .97 .98 .96 .41 .92 .69	2.0 0.8 0.8 2.1 1.0 6.0 7.8 0.6 8.8 0.3	0.20 0.10 0.27 1.03 0.27 2.66 2.92 0.02 2.83 0.03
042015 * 042024 042012 042005 042020 042004 042014 042003 101005	Dever Test Anton Wallop Brook Tadbum Lake Test Blackwater Lymington Eastern Yar	Weston Colley Chilbolton (Total) Fullerton Broughton Romsey Broadlands Ower Brockenhurst Budbridge	SU SU SU SU SU SU SU SZ	496394 386394 379393 311330 362212 354189 328174 318019 531835	52.7 453.0 185.0 53.6 19.0 1040.0 104.7 98.9 22.5	MIS EM C TP VA VA C VA MIS FV	197995 198900 1975-99 195599 197799 195700 1976-99 196000 198200	774 836 783 803 809 819 865 862 835	60 379 311 208 473 334 255 327 300	714 457 472 595 336 485 610 535 535	92 484 414 482 1223 487 341 591 470	82 94 60 90 61 79 00 00	39 253 172 63 151 200 156 130 226	89 97 76 83 76 97 73 83	0.10 5.45 1.82 0.35 0.28 11.01 0.85 1.02 0.21	0.00 2.37 0.55 0.00 0.02 3.71 0.12 0.01 0.05	08/92 09/97 08/76 11/90 11/78 07/76 08/89 07/62 09/97	3.5 1.0 17.8	.96 .97 .96 .94 .78 .94 .51 .36 .62	0.2 8.4 2.7 0.8 0.6 16.7 2.1 2.7 0.4	0.03 2.89 0.95 0.02 0.04 5.76 0.05 0.05 0.07

1

e

106									Н	YD	RC)L(D G	ICA	LD	ATA	: 1	99 <i>6</i>	5-20	000
Station number	River name	Station name	Grid reference	Catchment area (sq km)	Station type	Period of record	Mean ann. rainfall (mm)	Меап алп. гипоff (mm)	Mean ann. Ioss (mm)	Max, ann. runoff (mn)	Year of max.	Min. ann. runoff (mm)	, Year of min.	Mean flow (^{m¹} s ⁻¹)	Min, mon. flow (m ³ s ⁻¹)	Month/Year of min.	Median ann. flood (m ³ s ⁻¹)	Base Flow Index	10 Percentile (m³s ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m¹s⁻¹)
101006 * 101001 * 101007 * 101004 101002 101003	Wroxall St Eastern Yar Scotchells Brk Eastern Yar Medina Lukely Brook	Waightshale Alverstone Mill Burnt House Burnt House Upper Shide Newport	SZ 536839 SZ 577857 SZ 583852 SZ 583853 SZ 504881 SZ 491886	15.8 57.5 9.2 59.6 29.8 16.2	FV TP FV US CC	198295 1961–97 198296 1982–99 196500 198099	, 789 860 836 831 857 862	249 260 562 214 288 202	540 600 274 617 569 660	369 311 1059 371 452 419	9 88 1 75 9 93 1 94 2 94 9 94	152 164 247 123 129 72	85 73 84 89 73 92	0.12 0.47 0.16 0.41 0.27 0.10	0.03 0.06 0.01 0.01 0.04 >0.00	06/92 09/97 08/95 08/84 08/76 08/99		.54 .59 .25 .48 .63 .82	0.2 0.9 0.3 0.8 0.5 0.3	0.04 0.13 0.01 0.04 0.08 0.01
Ну	drome	etric Sta	tisti	CS				Period	Rainfall (നന	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm).	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m ³ s ⁻¹)	Peak flow (m ³ s ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (^{m³s-1})	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m³s ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m³ε⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m ¹ s ⁻¹)
040016 M.A: EA	Lo	Cray a cal No: 451220001	t Crayford Sens.: 27.8	ŀ	-	C.A: 119.7 ki	m²	6995	685		131	· ••	[~] 0.50	32.5	27/08 1977	>0.00	14/09 1973	0.9	0.44	0.11
F.A.R. G Commen limit abou substantia extensive catchmen	it: Asymmetrical of ut 9 m ³ s ⁻¹ . Cor ally affected by ar local gravel wor t. Urban land use	ver; om- compound Crump profile rection for drowing dia tificial influences; surfac rkings. Considerable ne e is significant and incre	weir (crests: scontinued (p and gw absi t export of w easing.	3.048m a robably a tractions, vater. # A	nd 7.62π Iround 1 stormwa mainly	n: 0.946 h broad). Mod 990). Flows ter overflows pervious (Ch	are and and alk)	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	549 624 775 720 1034	80 91 113 105 151	96 56 106 142 211	73 43 81 108 161	0.36 0.21 0.40 0.54 0.80	8.8 5.9 4.2 ,7.9 11.6	22/08 24/02 31/10 05/07 30/10	0.12 0.05 0.16 0.22 0.34	27/09 01/10 24/09 02/09 26/01	0.5 0.4 0.7 0.8 1.3	0.34 0.15 0.33 0.49 0.60	0.15 0.06 0.18 0.28 0.38
040013 M.A: EA	Lo	- Daren cal No: 451332001	t at Otford Sens.: 20.0)	s/	C.A: 100.5 k full: 9.0m ³ s ⁻¹	m²	6995	765		178		0.57	14,9	25/11 1992	0.05	20/09 1991	1.0	0.36	0.11
F.A.R: G Commen Supersed flows). Str g/w abstra flows duri Lower Gr	Le it: Compound C led original VA sta ation bypassed d actions, which sho ng dry periods. # eensand u/s of st	vel: 60m rump weir (crests: 3.0- ation in 1969. Modular ra uring floods and u/s accr owed a substantial histor A mainly pervious (Chal ation. Predominantly ru	UE: 4m and 2 x 2 ting only (gaug etion/bank en- rical increase, k) catchment w ral with some	2.286m b gings indic croachme have been vith consider expanding	road) wi ate over nt is sign n reduce derable a g urban o	II: th crest tapp estimation at l ificant. Upstre d to help incre treas of Gault centres.	bing. hìgh eam ease and	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	627 728 792 776 1209	82 95 104 101 158	122 114 249 216 461	69 64 140 121 259	0.39 0.36 0.79 0.69 1.47	6.5 4.3 8.0 13.1 15.9	08/01 09/11 31/10 24/12 30/10	0.07 0.10 0.14 0.17 0.20	03/10 25/09 31/08 01/08 27/08	0.7 0.8 1.4 1.2 3.2	0.28 0.26 0.58 0.46 0.71	0.11 - 0.12 0.23 0.21 0.29
040018 M.A: EA	La	Darent at cal No: 451320001	Eullingstone Sens.: 38.0	•	S/	C.A: 118.4 k full: 5.3m ³ s ⁻¹	.m²	6995	754		172		0.64	6.7	26/12 1985	0.01	14/07 1976	1.3	0.53	0.15
F.A.R: G Commen fitted, in t	it: Broad-crested the past, to incre	weir (total crest width: 1 ase low flow sensitivity.	In) at outfall Calibration b	of an om ased on g	amental augings	lake; stop bo: Baseflows v	ards were	1996 1997	621 723	82 96	114	66	0.43	2.8	09/01	0.06	04/10	0.8	0.38	0.10
diminishe Darent is Sevenoal use: agri Sevenoal	d by major gw a influent d/s. Se ks now piped dire icultural with wo ks).	abstractions, but Augmome water meadows i one water meadows i ct to Dartford. # Catchm wolland plus expanding	ientation Schu u/s (e.g. at S ient is predom g urban cent	eme now Shoreham inantly pe res in th	operate); sewaç rvious (C le head)	s (borehole i ge outflows f ;halk). Mixed i waters (inclu	u/s); from land ding	- 1998 1999 2000	782 770 1196	104 102 159	230 214 352	134 124 205	0.86 0.80 1.32	2.9 3.6 4,9	01/11 25/12 30/10	0.26 0.29 0.41	01/09 02/08 12/09	1.5 1.4 2.3	0.76 0.64 1.05	0.31 0.32 0.49
040012 M.A: EA	Lo	Darent cal No: 451321001	t at Hawley Sens.: 85.6)	S/	C.A: 191.4 k full: 27.0m ³ s ⁻	m² -1	63. <u>.</u> 95	732		99		0.60	13.1	15/05 1982	0.00	01/11 1976	1.3	0.47	0.02
Commen increases to and rei were grea ALF prog some sar	t: Crump weir (7 sensitivity, Station turns from gravel atly reduced by in ramme) now ope nd/clay; predomin	.62m broad). Crest widi n is bypassed in except workings u/s affect flow ncreasing gw abstractio rates. # A mainly pervio nately rural with some e	th may be res ional floods. In v - evident at I ns, but the Da us (Chalk and xpanding urba	tricted du ifluent u/s ow flow (+ arent Augi I Upper G in centres	ring perio . Stuices e.g. Oct mentatio reensand s.	and abstract and abstract 1989). Basefi n Scheme (in d) catchment	w to tions lows 1 the with	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	582 687 754 738 1127	80 94 103 101 154	62 41 120 112 199	63 41 121 113 201	0.37 0.25 0.73 0.68 1.20	2.4 1.4 2.5 3.2 • 5.3	09/01 18/12 05/01 26/12 14/12	0.01 0.01 0.18 0.14 0.25	31/10 23/10 19/07 19/07 12/09	0.8 0.6 1.4 1.4 2.4	0.27 0.19 0.62 0.49 0.85	0.06 0.05 0.23 0.20 0.33
040020 M.A: EA) La	Eridge Stream cal No: 453520001	n at Hendal B Sens.: 20.2	ridge 2	S/	C.A: 53.7 kn full: 2.2m ³ s ⁻¹	n ²	7395	870		423		0.72	34.1f	21/11 1974	0.05	27/08 1976	1.6	0.34	0.10
F.A.R: E Comment flow ratin recorder Kent, end Rural, ma	Le at: Flat V weir su g not defined. M only. Runoff incre compassing Hast ainly agricultural I	wel: 42m perseded velocity-area any peaks truncated at eased by effluent return ings Beds, Tunbridge V land use.	UE: .03 station (data: . around 17 m .s. # Catchme Wells Sand, V	1973-83) ³ s ⁻¹ (con nt drains Vadhurst	FA Theore nmon in Wealder Clay and	tically rated, late-2000). C area of Sus Ashdown B	high Chart Isex/ Ieds.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	706 918 898 876 1363	81 106 103 101 157	275 357 467 333 766	65 84 110 79 181	0.47 0.61 0.80 0.57 1.30	16.8 15.4 16.9 17.1 17.1	24/11 24/02 25/12 19/01 12/10	0.07 0.08 0.09 0.06 0.09	06/08 17/09 13/08 08/09 12/09	1.0 1.5 1.6 1.3 3.4	0.25 0.22 0.43 0.27 0.53	0.08 0.09 0.10 0.08 0.11
040007 M.A. [°] EA	, La	Medway at cal No: 453500001	t Chafford We Sens.: 10.1	əir 2	B/	C.A: 255.1 k full: 60.0m ³ s	2 1	6095	859		385		3.11	127.4	03/11 1960	0.28	01/10 1973	6.2	1.49	0.53
F.A.R: SI Commen Land Bri- Catchme Sluices u mixed bu	E Le ht: Humped trape dge; gaugings a nt includes Weir /s can influence le t mainly Ashdow	evel: 31m zoidal flume (capacity 8 bove bankfull included · Wood Res. (which p evels. Quite a responsiv n Sands and Wadhurst	UE: .02 .5 m ³ s ⁻¹) plus in the calibr rovides comp re regime des Clay. The Me	s rated se ation. Ch ensation pite signifi edway dra	F/ ction 0.8 annel su flows). \$ cant bas tins from	Al: 0.939 km d/s at Col bject to eros Small net ex eflow. # Geol Ashdown Fo	lliers sion. port. logy: prest	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	690 888 881 835 1294	80 103 103 97 151	219 265 358 307 628	57 69 93 80	1.76 2.14 2.89 2.48 5.06	46.2 28.6 87.2 88.1	09/01 25/02 11/05 05/11	0.297 0.327 0.497 0.47	23/10 02/05 12/09 29/08	2.8 5.6 7.0 5.5 9.7	1.04 0.94 1.89 1.30 2.31	0.37 0.49 0.61 0.54 0.60
and the c	atchment is pred	lominately rural in chara	acter. t Penshurst	·		C.A: 224.3 k		6195	760		260		1.85	64.4	11/02	0.03	14/09	4.1	0.74	0.24
M.A: EA F.A.R: SI Commer	Lo E Le st: Crump profile	ocal No: 453600001 ovel: 28m o weir (crest width: 4.8	Sens.: 18. UE: .02 377m), "measu	3 Jres flows	B/ F/ supto	full: 60.0m ³ s Al: 0.925 approx. 4 m	³ 5 ⁻¹	1996	631	83	144	55	1.02	20.4	1974 09/01	- 0.10	1962 20/08	2.1	0.49	0.21
complem 1995 flov exception some slig the Weal	ented by VA stati ws combined but hal flows containe pht regulation affo den Series - impe	on in straight reach belo combination of earlier d. Offtake for Bough Bee rded by Hever Lake. # A ervious types predomine	w Vexour Bridg dmfs is patcl ech Reservoir i vural catchme tte.	ge (3km u hy. Rating s u/s - sm ent develo	/s NGR: g well de all net ex oped on s	TQ510455). F efined and all port of water. ands and clay	Post- I but Also ys of	1997 1998 1999 2000	745 794 756 1145	98 104 99 151	156 285 227 514	60 110 87 198	1.11 2.02 1.61 3.65	18.2 29.7 56.0 81.6	16/12 01/11 25/12 30/10	0.07 0.107 0.17 0.24	03/03 05/10 14/09 25/08	3.0 4.7 3.6 8.6	0.51 0.70 0.53 1.37	0.22 0.22 0.22 0.28
040006 M.A: EA	j Lc	Bourn ocal No: 453310001	e at Hadlow Sens.: 9.6		S/	C.A: 50.3 km full: 12.7m ³ s ⁻	n ² - 1	5995	725		241.		0.38	14.7	01/08 1991	0.07	17/08 1976	0.7	0.26	0,14
F.A.R: E Commer flow reco	Le nt: Trapezoidal ci ord often incomp	ritical depth flume. Som lete (F&M restrictions	UE: .02 ne confirmator in spring 200	y gauging 1). Large	F/ js. Drow ly a bas	ns at high flo eflow regime	ws - but	1996 1997	570 725	79 100	153	. 63	0.24	5.6	09/01	0.10	24/07	0.4	0.18	0.12
capable (# A large mixed ge	or a flashy responsively rural catchment wology - pervious	nse. Some artificial rega nt (with a substantial ac formations cover a little	utation from a creage devote over half the	mill u/s. (d to orcha catchme	significar ards) dev nt.	n spray irriga veloped on a	кюп. very	1998 1999 2000	755 701 1074	97 148	281 241	100	0.45 0.38	12.6 14.1	24/12	0.13 0.11	12/08 03/08	0.6 -	- 0.24 0.25	0.15

				Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1995	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m ³ a ⁻¹)	Peak flow (m's'')	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (^{m¹a⁻¹)}	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m³e*1)
040009 M.A: EA	Tetse at S Local No: 453230001	tone Bridge Sens.: 22.1	C.A: 136.2 km ² B/full: 50.0m ³ s ⁻¹	61_95	803		304		1.31	48.3	28/12 1979	0.05	09/11 1990	2.6	0.79	0.19
F.A.R: RPGE Comment: Flat V weir weir capacity: approx. throughout the flow ra- responsive also. Bewl evident during periods of the Wealden Series	Level: 25m (commissioned 09/95) super 3 m ³ s ⁻¹) in trapezoidal s nge; gauging of 54 m ³ s ⁻¹ at Water Reservoir offtake is c of low flow, e.g. in 1989/90. #	UE: <.01 seded a broad-crested wei ection. Cableway at site - fter the 10/2000 peak. Sig 1km u/s. Augmentation (fm A rural catchment develop	FAI: 0.905 r (crest width: 5.95m; - calibration extends nificant baseflow but om Bewl Water) very ped on sand and clay	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	671 826 864 845 1285	84 103 108 105 160	235 257 369 325 574	77 85 121 107 189	1.01 1.11 1.59 1.41 2.47	9.1d 14.7d 19.1d 26.5d 104.0	12/02 18/12 02/01 24/12 12/10	0.19 0.18 0.30 0.21 0.21	30/08 08/08 06/09 05/10 17/09	1.3 1.5 3.2 2.2 5.1	0.91 0.90 0.99 0.97 0.95	0.40 0.29 0.38 0.51 0.39
040005 M.A: EA	Beult at \$ Local No: 453210001 Level: 12m	Stile Bridge Sens.: 11.4 UE: < 01	C.A: 277.1 km² B/full: 100.0m³s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.994	5895	693		233		2.04	81.0	04/11 1960	>0.00	03/08 1976	5.8	0.48	0.07
Comment: Compound flanking sections with c m ³ s ⁻¹ gauged during influences - abstraction (but includes some pen scattered settlements.	I structure - central flume sep ableway for high flows. Calib 10/2000 flood. Flood banking is agricutural (and, therefore, rious s'sts) - baseflow is very k	arated, by short divide piers ration based upon model te confines flows. Small over very variable). # Geology: p w for a Kent catchment. Pro	s, from broad-crested ists and gaugings; 78 rall impact of artificial principally Weald Clay edominately rural with	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	536 723 750 760 1059	77 104 108 110 153	91 183 251 206 512	39 79 108 88 220	0.80 1.61 2.20 1.81 4.49	23.2 48.0 38.2 55.0 84.6d	12/02 19/12 02/01 25/12 12/10	0.02 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03	23/07 11/07 18/08 21/07 14/09	1.6 4,6 6.7 4,9 11.6	0.27 0.25 0.50 0.39 0.75	0.06 0.05 0.08 0.09
040003 M.A: EA	Medway Local No: 453202001	at Teston Sens.: 11.8	C.A: 1256.1 km ² S/full: 14.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.949	5695	757		276		11.00	294.5	04/11 1960	0.38	22/08 1976	24.6	4.79	1.47
Comment: Crump we previous broad-creste calibrated; 226 m ³ s ⁻¹ Teston may not be oc utilisation; low flow au available. # Mixed geo land use with significa	ir plus sharp-crested weir d weir. Flows > c25 m ³ s gauged in 10/2000)- but some amplete. Responsive regime, agmentation from Bewt Wate kogy; impervious formations nt areas of woodland and or	(on flood gate); insensitiv "I measured 2km d/s at hysteresis problems. Com Bypassed by navigation tr (via R. Teise); >20 yrs constitute up to 50% of the chard.	re, but less so than East Farleigh (well bination of flows with lock. Complex water of naturalised flows a catchment. Diverse	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	608 767 790 767 1148	80 101 104 101 152	151 187 327 249 564	55 58 118 90 204	5.98 7.46 13.04 9.91 22.38	96.3 116.4 145.2 167.0 274.8	12/02 18/12 02/01 25/12 13/10	1.37 1.64 1.69 1.74 1.90	20/07 14/09 28/07 09/09 26/08	10.9 19.0 34.3 23.5 62.2	3.39 3.50 5.29 4.09 7.30	1.79 1.77 2.34 1.92 2.17
040029 M.A: EA	Len at Local No: 453120001 Level: 9m	Lenside Sens.: 15.6 LIE:	C.A: 69.7 km ²	8495	701		322		0.71	3.9	30/01 1988	0.18	28/12 1989	1.2	0.58	0.35
Comment: Flat V weir m ³ s ⁻¹ . Chart recorder from Leeds STW have and Hythe Beds. Pre confluence with the M	, theoretically rated. Most flor only. Reliable springs sustain substantial impact on flow pa dominantly rural land use, edway.	w contained but peaks trui nows through summer mo ittern. # Geology: Lower Gr although urbanised in lo	ncated at approx. 3.8 inths. Effluent returns reensand, Folkestone wer catchment near	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	543 686 742 669 992	77 98 106 95 142	198 227 321 301	61 70 100 93	0.44 0.50 0.71 0.67	2.2 2.6d 2.9 3.9	13/02 03/12 05/01 26/12	0.11 0.18 0.22 0.37	26/11 18/08 20/11 22/07	0.7 0.8 1.1 1.0	0.39 0.43 0.61 0.57	0.21 0.26 0.33 0.38
040015 M.A: EA	White Drain at Local No: 652421001	Fairbrook Farm Sens.: 16.4	C.A: 31.8 km ²	6995	684		46		0.05	2.9	31/08 1994	>0.00	26/08 1976	0.1	0.03	0.01
F.A.N: E Comment: Trapezoidi station. Occasional ovi stilling intake (e.g. in a Runoff diminished dua formed a major compo # Mixed geology: Cha London Clay.	Level: can al critical depth flume design ertopping onto wide alluvial flu autumn 2000) - impacting or to gw abstraction from the yoent of low flows until 199 alk and Lower London Tertia	de: ed for modular operation. I podplain. Flume tends to si t computed flows. Calibrat Chaik. Sewage effluent - d (treatment now undertaker trias provide baseflow, sur	FAN: Principally a tow flow It up, also blocking of ion limit c2.7 m ³ s ⁻¹ . lischarging 1km u/s - outside catchment). rface runoff from the	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	521 698 775 766 1072	76 102 113 112 157	20 33 45	43 72 98	0.02 0.03 0.04	1.8 2.7 1.5	19/11 27/06 14/11	0.01 0.00 >0.00 0.01 0.01	28/06 1 1/08 27/08 02/08 27/08	0.0 0.1 0.1	0.01 >0.00 0.03	0.01 >0.00 0.01
040023 M.A: EA F.A.R: E	East Stour at So Local No: 654210001 Level: 35m	uth Willesborough Sens.: 25.0 UE:	C.A: 58.8 km ² FAI:	7695	754		391		0.73	11.5	30/12 1993	0.00	01/07 1976	1.8	0.35	0.06
Comment: Flat V wei 1976. Theoretical ratin modular range. Almost operation and, from 19 by sewage effluent. # A the late 1980s (industr	ir, 1:10 cross-slope, superse rg - to 5.3 m ³ s ⁻¹ (under ra- t all flows contained but flood 90, food retention reservoirs A rural catchment, developed fial/commercial development,	ided a VA station (affecte view). Improved d/s condi- I alleviation scheme trunca provide a degree of regulat mostly on clay. Significant I By-pass etc) above Ashfe	d by weedgrowth) in tions have increased tes peaks. Mill stuice ton. Runoff increased land use change from and.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	652 761 842 838 1130	86 101 112 111 150	299 420 347 655	76 107 89 168	0.56 0.78 0.65 1.22	5.3 5.3 5.3 5.3	20/12 08/01 24/10 01/11	0.03 0.05 0.03 0.05	22/08 21/08 30/07 26/08	1.4 2.1 1.8 3.6	0.25 0.46 0.37 0.60	0.06 0.09 0.05 0.12
040008 M.A: EA	Great Str Local No: 654306001	Sens.: 15.1	C.A: 230.0 km ² S/full: 2.8m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.984	6295	739		304		2.22	35.0	20/09 1973	0.22	25/08 1976	4.7	1.37	0.53
Comment: Crump wei d/s} for high flows. V component of low flo	Veedgrowth can cause over ws; small net import of wa	<3 m ³ s ⁻¹ (no flow adjustmention of flows, Ashforter, Flood retention reserved.)	ent) - VA station (just ord effluent is a sig. voirs above Ashford	1996 1997 1998	600 766 820	81 104 111	178 268	59 88	1.30 1.95	16.4 23.1	12/08 19/12	0.35 0.30	08/08 25/09	2.6 4.1	0.97 1.06	0.44 0.48
(constructed 1990-2). I W branches of the Stor settlement) Chalk pred	Hydrographs show evidence (ur flow over impermeable (ma lominates, A rural catchment	of u/s mill sluice operation (sinly) Weald Clay; below As ; with mixed land use.	(declining), # The E & shford (the only major	1999 2000	813 1114	110 151	307	101	2.24	20.1	24/12	0.35	08/09	4,9	1.52	0.62
040011 M.A: EA	Great Stor Local No: 654400001	sens.: 9.5	C.A: 345.0 km ² S/full: 46.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6495	750		291		3.18	31.1	29/01 1988	0.66	19/09 1990	6.0	2.30	1,09
F.A.R. GE Comment: Broad-crest for flows >20 m ³ s ⁻¹ , impact of artificial influ abstractions in lower v regulation evident on to Clay; below the conflu	Level: 13m sted wei: (with: 10.7m, inse (EM installed 1992 - some t ences on runoff (import of 0 alley. Flood storage reservoi he hydrographs. # The east 4 ence (at Ashford) Chalk dom	, DE: .02 nsitive) in trapezoidal secti echnical difficulties). All fic .03 m ³ s ⁻¹ in 1988), modes rs above Ashford (construe and west branches of the S inates. A rural catchment	PAI: 0.902 on plus a VA section www.contained. Minor st PWS and imigation cted 1990-2). U/s mill stour flow over Weald with mixed land use.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	602 767 821 812 1131	80 102 109 108 151	152 203 285 269 484	52 70 98 92 166	1.66 2.22 3.11 2.94 5.28	10.4 23.9 16.7 20.8 32.4	20/11 19/12 02/01 25/12 07/11	0.56 0.50 0.88 0.87 1.48	08/08 01/10 30/08 09/09 25/09	3.0 4.6 6.2 5.9 13.0	1.34 1.34 2.44 2.14 2.98	0.75 0.68 0.96 1.10 1.66
040033 M.A: EA	Dour at C Local No: 654019001	Sens.: 42.3	C.A: 49.5 km ²	7695	862		282		0.44	1.6	09/02 1995	0.01	20/11 1990	0.9	0.26	0.06
Comment: Flat V wei section, ell flows conta Mar 1995 and in early telemetry also). VA st abstraction. # The Doo headwaters but signific	r (1:20 cross-slope, capacity ined. Modular. Theoretical ra 2001 - 1.73 m ³ s ⁻¹ gauged ation prior to 1984. Ornamen Irr is a spring-fed Chafk strea cant development in the lowe	cit: 1 m ³ s ⁻¹) within concrete ting - extends to 1.59 m ³ s d/s on 3/2/01). Initially cha tal lakes u/s. Runoff reduc m (two main branches) dra er valley above Crabble Mil	1 Al. berms in brick-lined ⁻¹ (exceeded in Feb) rt recorder only (now red by substantial gw eining to Dover. Rural a.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	768 830 945 1012 1267	89 96 110 117 147	66 140 356 304 395	23 50 126 108 140	0.10 0.22 0.56 0.48 0.62	0.6 0.9 1.5 1.3 1.3	11/08 26/12 10/06 18/07 12/10	0.03 0.03 0.19 0.20 0.30	08/11 31/10 22/10 11/11 06/10	0.2 0.4 0.9 0.8 0.9	0.09 0.21 0.52 0.43 0.62	0.03 0.05 0.21 0.21 0.33
040017 M.A: EA F.A.R: N	Dudweil - Local No: 556521001 Level: 28m	at Burwash Sens.: 54.0 UE: <.01	C.A: 27.5 km ² S/full: 29.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.994	7195	898		345		0.30	44.5	27/12 1979	0.02	29/08 1989	0.6	0.12	0.04
Comment: Crump pro Steep banks contain occurrences in 2000), variable permeability) from the High Weald.	file weir (crest: 4.88m) in stra all but exceptional flows. F Flow regime is essentially na and Purbeck Beds (about 20	aight reach, high flow rating Peak flows truncated at o turral. # Geology: Ashdown %). A relatively steep, run	g based on gaugings. 11 m ³ s ⁻¹ (repeated 1 Sands (about 80% - al catchment draining	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	696 937 1010 918 1385	78 104 112 102 154	175 318 431 340 714	51 92 125 99 207	0.15 0.28 0.38 0.30 0.62	6.5 11.4 11.7 11.7 6.76	08/01 18/12 02/01 19/01 29/10	0.01 0.03 0.04 0.04 0.04	02/11 21/09 23/09 02/08 23/08	0.3 0.7 0.7 0.6 1.6	0.09 0.09 0.18 0.13 0.24	0.03 0.03 0.05 0.05 0.05

•

				Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (^{m³a^1})	Peak flow (m ³ s ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (m³s ⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (^{m³} s ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m³s'')	95 Percentile (m ^s s ⁻¹)
040004 M.A: EA F.A.B: SGE	Rother Local No: 556505001	at Udiam Sens.: 23.8 UE: < 01	C.A: 206.0 km ² S/full: 2.5m ³ s ⁻¹	6295	864		339		2.21	56.4d	23/11 1984	0.06	13/10 1990	5.6	0.80	Ó.17
Comment: Flat V we upgrade flows truncat (65 m ³ s ⁻¹ gauged in to 1992, b-c weir (cree used. Flow confined (s Small net export of wa tracts of Ashdown Sat	ir with - since 12/2000 - m ed at approx. 5.9 m ³ s ⁻¹ (d/s 11/2000). Sig. underestimatio st deformation suspected, lov at Udiam) except in extreme f iter. # Responsive catchment nds also. Rural with sig. woo	tili-path ultrasonic to exte tidal sluice limits modula n of runoff; 1992-2000 flov v flows overestimated); cu loods. Offlake for Darwell ; mainly on clays of Wadhu dland.	ind the range. Before rity). Cableway at site ws under review. Prior ment meter calibration Res. u/s (on Dudwell). urst series, substantial	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	685 907 948 894 1360	79 105 110 103 157	109 195 277 212 774	32 58 82 63 228	0.71 1.27 1.81 1.39 5.04	5.9, 5.9 5.9 5.9 83.0d	30/11 12/12 29/12 14/12 12/10	0.12 0.13 0.23 0.15 0.24	16/11 22/10 30/08 19/10 25/08	2.0 4.6 5.4 4.8 13.1	0.30 0.35 0.93 0.54 1.37	0.16 0.16 0.26 0.21 0.29
040021 M.A: EA F.A.R:	Hexden Channel at I Local No: 556710001 Level: 5m	Hopemill Br Sandhurst Sens., 23.3	C.A: 32.4 km ² S/full: 7.3m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI:	7595	778		296		0.30	7.3	23/01 1984	>0.00	12/08 1995	0.7	0.15	0.03
Comment: Trapezoid considerably greater I relatively narrow catch Forest), Rural land us overlying Tunbridge W	al critical depth flume. Struc but bypassing on lb. Some iment trending SE from headv e - about 20% woodland - de vells Sands.	cture capacity 2.25 m ³ s ⁻¹ truncation of peaks at arr vaters in the High Weald (s veloped on Wadhurst Clay	, channel capacity is ound 5-7 m^3s^{-1} . # A source is in Bedgebury (about 50%) and the	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	627 828 855 844 1254	81 106 110 108 161	155 382 297 614	52 129 100 207	0.16 0.39 0.31 0.63	6.4 5.4 5.4 5.4	12/02 07/01 24/04 12/11	0.01 0.03 0.03 0.04	01/08 13/08 09/09 17/09	0.3 0.9 0.7 1.8	0.09 0.19 0.14 0.27	0.02 0.05 0.04 0.06
041017 M.A: EA	Combe Have Local No: 351110006	n at Crowhurst Sens.: 59.1	C.A: 30.7 km ² S/full: 21.8m ³ s ⁻¹	6995	787		326		0.32	9.1	26/01 1995	>0.00	18/10 1989	0.7	0.13	0.02
Comment: Compound drowning. Full range s sequences of 0.02 m ³ # Mixed geology - mai and Ashdown Sands.	a Crump profile weir (crests:) tation. Poor differentiation be s ⁻¹ being common). Earliest nly impervious (Wadhurst Cli A predominantly rural catchn	2.44m and 2 x 2.13m broa etween low flows over leng data less reliable due to se ay) but with significant are- nent with some urban cen	ad) subject to frequent thy periods (repeated ubsidence of the weir, as of Tunbridge Wells tres.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	585 889 867 840 1202	74 113 110 107 153	106 -318 420 332	33 98 129 102	0.10 0.31 0.41 0.32	2.4 7.1 7.8 9.4 10.7	06/01 18/12 07/01 26/12 31/10	0.01 • 0.02 0.02 0.02	13/09 21/09 26/08 07/09	0.2 • 0.7 0.7 0.6	0.06 0.08 0.19 0.11	0.01 0.02 0.02 0.02
041001 M.A: EA F.A.R: R	Nunningham Stre Local No: 351221005 Level: 4m	am at Tilley Bridge Sens.: 60.0 UE:	C.A: 16.9 km² S/full: 8.8m³s ^{−1} FAI:	5095	838		336		0.18	11.9	17/11 1963	0.01	12/09 1990	0.4	0.06	0.01
Comment: Compound used in summer to ov check data from plate reduced following d/s 41002. Essentially nati 1989/90). # Varied to Sands). Mainly arable	d thin-plate weir with comport ercome drowning of flume ar weir changeover days. Early channel improvements - unde ural regime, although STW up pography developed on Has with considerable woodland.	and critical depth flume. P nd increase depth for 'wet flow records unreliable. F er non-modular conditions sstream. Gw augmentatior tings Beds - some perme	Nate weir (insensitive) fencing' u/s. Need to requency of drowning flows estimated using during droughts (e.g. able strata (Ashdown	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	611 858 914 822 1269	73 102 109 98 151	124 307 488 307 891	37 91 145 91 265	0.07 0.16 0.26 0.16 0.48	4.3 4.1 5.9 8.8 6.8d	09/01 10/12 10/04 24/12 02/11	0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01	17/09 03/06 12/08 02/08 25/08	0.1 0.4 0.8 0.3 1.1	0.03 0.04' 0.10 0.05 0.12	0.01 0.01 0.02 0.01 0.02
041002 M.A: EA 5. A D: DO	Ash Bourne at Ha Local No: 351223005	mmer Wood Bridge Sens.: 22.5	C.A: 18.4 km² S/full: 8.8m³s ⁻¹	51.95	865 L		408		0.24	13.1	17/11 1963	0.02	13/09 1995	0.6	0.11	0.04
Comment: Compound used in summer (maint raising/lowering of plat Highest flows exceed th abstractions and discha # A mainly impervious	Level: 7m Htmplate weir with compound ains depth for wet fencing u/s) e. Frequency of drowning redu- es tructure calibration. Limite arges but significant gw augme catchment (Wadhurst Clay) d	deritical depth flume (within dictical depth flume (within insensitive and flow patter iced following d/s channel i distorage in Ashburnham Li nitation (from Ashdown Sai firural character, with cons	FAI: ninor tilting). Plate weir m can be erratic due to mprovements in 1953. ake. Minor net effect of nds) in most summers. siderable woodland.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	596 913 920 850 1246	69 106 106 98 144	168 377 402 318 675	41 92 99 78 165	0.10 0.22 0.23 0.19 0.39	2.8 8.5 5.9 8.8 8.9	12/02 18/12 07/01 24/12 05/11	0.03 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.01	25/08 13/05 01/09 25/07 26/07	0.2 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.9	0.07 0.07 0.12 0.08 0.15	0.04 0.02 0.03 0.03 0.02
041016 M.A: EA: F.A.R: PG	 Cuckmere : Local No: 351550005 Level: 30m 	at Cowbeech Sens.: 100.0 UE: .01	C.A: 18.7 km ² S/full: 10.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.966	3995	870		341		0.20	18.8	07/10 1987	>0.00	21/06 1976	0.5	0.08	0.01
Comment: Asymmetri tapping - not currently floods. Early data (193 on impervious fraction have ceased. # A rura	ical compound Crump profile used. Very limited head during (9-67) is of poorer quality and of catchment. STW discharg I catchment developed on m	weir (crests: 2.13m and 2. g droughts. Structure capa relates to low flows only. jes u/s, but earlier surface ixed geology (Hastings Be	97m broad) with crest city exceeded in large Responsive to rainfall a and gw abstractions eds predominate).	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	673 912 962 884 1354	77 105 111 102 156	180 370 465 `874	53 109 136 256	0.11 0.22 0.28 0.52	6.3 15.0 16.4 18.7	08/01 18/12 31/10 11/10	0.01 0.01 0.02 0.03	05/08 03/06 27/08 24/08	0.2 0.6 0.5 1.2	0.05 0.06 0.14 0.20	0.01 0.02 0.03 0.04
041029 M.A: EA	Bull at Local No: 351540001	Lealands Sens.: 35.0	.) C.A: 40.8 km² S/full: 58.9m³s ^{−1}	7895	834		358		0.46	30.0	30/12 1993	0.01	22/08 1995	1.1	0.20	0.03
Comment: Flat V weir most flows contained, draining the High Wea	(crest vidth: 5m, cross-slope Essentially natural flow regin Id. Mixed geology.	9 1:10) constructed in 197 ne with minimal abstractio	R: 8. Theoretically rated, m. # Rural catchment	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	651 888 940 856 1340	78 106 113 103 161	154 285 378 287 730	43 80 106 80 204	0.20 0.37 0.49 0.37 0.94	9.8 13.7 12.9 23.9 40.2	09/01 18/12 31/10 24/12 12/10	0.01 0.02 0.03 0.03 0.04	26/07 30/07 12/08 01/08 25/08	0.4 1.1 1.1 0.8 2.2	0.09 0.10 0.21 0.13 0.28	0.01 0.02 0.03 0.03 0.05
041003 M.A: EA	Cuckmere at S Local No: 351520004	Sherman Bridge Sens.: 16.3	* C.A: 134.7 km ² S/full: 50.6m ³ s ⁻¹	5995	829		313		1.34	83.6	30/01 1961	0.01	24/08 1976	- 3.1	0.41	0.07
Comment: Flat V weir truncated at c27 m ³ s ⁻¹ - 3/3/94) - drowned r (adjustment discon. 19 flows contained. Resp storage res. u/s: # Ge catchment with signific	(width 10m, cross-slope 1:10 - common in 2000. Replaced regularly (tidal influence); flor 81 - peaks truncated at arou onsive flow pattern. Limited sology mixed (mainly Hasting ant areas of woodland.), high flows from VA static d, in 1994, Compound b-c ws then assessed using f nd 5 m ³ s ⁻¹ until c1990, an net impact of variations t js Beds and Gault Clay).	PAI: 0.989 n u/s at Arlington, but weir (no flows 29/9/92 fall-discharge method id 27.2 thereafter). All but Arlington pumped Narrow, mainly rural	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	653 906 942 863 1304	79 109 114 104 157	128 293 379 288 679	41 94 121 92 217	0.54 1.25 1.62 1.23 2.89	21.9 27.2 27.2 27.2 27.2 27.2	09/01 10/11 27/12 27/12 03/11	0.04 0.05 0.05 0.04 0.09	23/07 03/06 18/09 20/08 22/06	1.1 3.4 4.0 2.9 8.1	0.14 0.17 0.41 0.25 0.78	0.05 0.07 0.09 0.07 0.12
041024 M.A: EA F.A.R: SRP	Shell Brook : Local No: 352835017 Level: 38m	at Shell Brook Sens.: 90.0	? C.A: 22.6 km² S/full: 23.3m³s ^{−1} FA	7195	866		340		0.24	11.3	21/11 1974	0.00	03/01 1990	0.5	0.15	0.01
Comment: Flat V wei profile weir (crest: 4.0) mentally following the permeable Hastings B	r, 1:10 cross slope, from su m broad), station level remai construction of Ardingly Res. eds with Wadhurst Clay in th	mmer 1995, modified fror ins unchanged. Runoff pa (1978) immediately u/s. # e valley. A rural, heavily v	n the existing Crump ttem changed funda- t Catchment is mainly vooded basin.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	723 902 957 880 1275	83 104 111 102 147	251 266 409 640	74 78 120 : 188	0.18 0.19 0.29 0.46	0.9 1.6 3.3 7.0	25/02 24/12 02/01 30/10	>0.00 >0.00 0.01 >0.00	14/01 15/10 16/07 03/10	0.5 0.4 0.6 1.0	0.12 0.11 0.20 0.27	0.01 0.01 0.03 0.03
041005 M.A: EA F.A.R: SRPGF	Ouse at G Local No: 352810006 Level: 11m	iold Bridge Sens.: 12.8 UF: 02	C.A: 180.9 km ² S/full: 12.2m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.924	6095	865		388		2.23	86.9	22/11 1974	Ó.12	21/08 1976	4.9	1.24	0.31
Comment: Flat V we compound short-create contained (two subsidit peak. Releases from A retention structures us with substantial permer rura) with significant we	ir (crest: 10m wide, cross ed weir (width 10.7m). Cable ary culverts used to accomodu Ardingly res. (from 1978) au , but otherwise artificial influe able outcrops - particularly Tu poodland but some urban cen	slope 1:10) commissione way for higher flows. All b ated overflow). 85 m ³ s ⁻¹ .g ment flows in most summ noes have a limited net imp inbridge Wells Sands. Dive tres.	4 7/92, superseding but exceptional floods lauged following 2000 mers. STW and flood pact. # Mixed geology erse land use - chiefly	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 -	670 897 928 826 1283	77 104 107 '95 148	194 296 399 298 723	50 76 103 77 186	1.11 1.70 2.29 1.71 4.13	19.3 25.6 56.1 100.0	23/11 02/01 24/12 <i>12/10</i>	0.41 0.42 0.39 0.51	01/06 14/09 16/09 19/07	2.0 3.9 5.1 3.6 8.8	0.74 0.69 1.33 0.83 1.74	0.35 0.45 0.53 0.48 0.61

z

2 .

ł.,

2

					Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m ¹ - 1)	Peak flow (m***)	Date of peak	Min. dally flow (^{m'a'1})	Date of min.	10 Percentle (m²a *1)	50 Percentile (m ¹ a ⁻¹)	95 Percentite (m*e**)
041006 M.A: EA	Local N	Uck a lo: 352910003	nt Isfield Sens.: 31.1 UF: 02	C.A: 87.8 km² S/fu#l: 76.0m³s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.983	6495	832		412		1.15	75.6	13/02 1974	0.06	27/06 1992	2.3	0.52	0.17
Comment: i crest tanoino	Flat V (1:10 cross-	slope) superseded, of the earlier Crum	in 1999, a Crump pro was 51 m ³ s ⁻¹ but st	file weir (7.62m wide) with ructure subject to drowning	1996 1997	666 890	80 107	232 356	56 86	0.64 0.99	51.0 47.4	09/01 18/12	0.11 0.12	19/08 03/10	1.1 2.3	0.35 0.33	0.12 0.14
in the medi abstractions flow change catchment is	ium flow range (c but discharge from s. # Catchment ge s rural with significa	10-30 m ³ s ⁻¹). Cal STW (and operatio ology is very mixed ant areas of woodla	bleway also installed n of Uckfield Mill flood ; Hastings Beds pred nd, but the Uckfield u	in 1999. No substantial gates) can produce abrupt forminate. Above Isfield the rban area is expanding.	1998 1999 2000	896 841 1337	108 101 161	503 893	122 217	1.40 2.48	52.2 57.4d	24/10 13/10	0.19 0.16	28/08 31/08	2.4 5.2	0.61 0.77	0.21 0.20
041021 M.A: EA	Local N	Clayhill Stre lo: 352712005	am at Old Ship Sens.:	C.A: 7.1 km ² S/full: 13.9m ³ s ⁻¹	6995	794		369		0.08	7.4	30/12 1993	0.00	11/12 1995	0.2	0.02	
F.A.R: N Comment: I	Level: I Crump profile weir	om (crest: 3.0m broad) cose, Some (croced	UE: <.01 with crest tapping - ic) early flow data and	FAI: 1.000 structure has proved to be atable (at Southern Water)	1996 1997	660 871	83 110	173	47	0.04	3.0	08/01	0.00	30/04	0.1	0.00	
from 1955. impervious (Extended periods Weald Clay) catchr	with zero flow. # T nent. Land use: atm	he Clayhill stream is ost exclusively rural w	ephemeral and drains an ith considerable woodland.	1998 1999 2000	920 881 1373	116 111 173	426 324	115 88	0.10 0.07	4.0 5.4	02/01 24/12	0.00 0.00	18/05 20/05	0.2 0.2	0.01 0.01	
041020 M.A: EA	Local N	Bevern Stream	at Clappers Bridge Sens.: 87.1	C.A: 34.6 km ² S/full: 25.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6995	874		420		0.45	20.7	22/11 1974	0.01	27 <i> </i> 09 1990	1.2	0.13	0.03
F.A.R: E Comment: I	Crump profile weir	(crest: 6.0m broad) we contained atthe	with crest tapping - r	iot currently used. Modular	1996 1997	740 980	85 112	263	63	0.29	15.0	09/01	0.01	06/08	0.6	0.07	0.01
Negligible in catchment t catchment w	mpact of artificial i but N flowing tribu with considerable w	nfluences on river taries from South oodtand.	flow. # Primarily an Downs provide a sig	impervious (Weald Clay) gnificant baseflow. A rural	1998 1999 2000	1037 911 1504	119 104 172	523 382 915	125 91 218	0.57 0.42 1.00	17.4 18.1 23.8	24/10 24/12 11/10	0.02 0.02 0.02	20/08 10/09 25/08	1.5 1.0 2.7	0.17 0.12 0.26	0.03 0.02 0.03
041037 M.A: EA	Local N	Winterbourne to:	Stream at Lewes Sens.:	C.A: 17.3 km ²	6695	916		177		0.10	3.4	04/02 1988	0.00	01/12 1995	0.3		
F.A.R: G Comment: (originally in)	Level: I Flat V replaced (in tended as temporar	m 1997) twin-crested vistoucture). Chart r	UE: I (both 1.22m) Crump ecorder only Modular	FAI: weir of steel construction except for very high flows -	1996 1997	732 992	80 108	0 63	0 36	0.00 0.03	0.0d 0.6d	01/01 31/12	0.00 0.00	01/01 01/01			
when drown reduced by g the South D valley.	ing can result from gw abstraction. Extension lowns. Some urban	backing-up due to ended periods with a lisation near the ca	d/s culvert. Baseflow ero flow. # The Winte tchment outfall. Signif	dominated regime. Runoff rbourne drains the Chalk of ficant arable farming in the	1998 1999 2000	1023 946 1468	112 103 160	279 177 837	158 100 473	0.15 0.10 0.46	2.2 1.1d 3.6d	<i>07/01</i> 23/01 08/11	0.00 0.00 0.00	27/06 02/05 01/01	0.4 0.5 1.9	0.03	
041012 M.A: EA	Local N	Adur E Bran Io: 253220001	ch at Sakeham Sens.: 5.3	C.A: 93.3 km ² S/full: 30.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6795	835		402		1.19	44.3	27/12 1979	0.02	28/09 1987	2.7	0.45	0.15
F.A.R: E Comment: I	Level: Compound Crump	3m profile weir (crests: is seenstructed bot	UE: .06 1.219m and 2 x 2.438 wood 11/93 and 4/94	FAI: U.964 Im, rh crest is 0.01m higher Elows rarely corrected for	1996 1997	659 867	79 104	276 400	69 100	0.81	33.5 20.9	09/01 09/11	0.14 0.14	23/07 21/08	1.5 2.9	0.39 0.35	0.15 0.16
frequent dro Burgess Hill headwaters urban growt	wring, high subme swage effluent h but predominantly h along the eastern	reconstructed ber rgence ratios. No su nas substantial imp Weald Clay in lower catchment bounda	ubstantial abstractions act on low flows. # Ner reaches. A largely ary.	s, small net import of water; Aixed geology - permeable rural catchment; significant	1998 1999 2000	935 827 1309	112 99 157	507 414	126 103	1.50 1.23	27.8 48.3	31/10 24/12	0.15 0.14	19/08 02/08	3.5 2.5	0.61 0.48	0.17 0.17
041028 M.A: EA F.A.R: N	i. Local N Level:	Chess Stream lo: 253211017 5m	at Chess Bridge Sens.: 11.8 UE: .01	C.A: 24.0 km² S/full: 13.0m³s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.984	6495	853		367		0.28	13.2	21/11 1974	>0.00	02/09 1989	0.6	0.11	0.02
Comment: the flume) f	Rectangular flume (for low flows - non	(3.35m width) with a mally in place May	compound thin-plate to Nov; can result in	weir (which is lowered onto n modest discontinuities in	1996 1997	675 891	79 104	353	96	0.27	6.1	18/11	0.01	21/08	0.8	0.08	0.02
processed fit to runoff. Uj southern wa land use.	lows. Flows remain /s penstock operati atershed provides b	modular. No signific ion can influence fi aseflow but catchme	cant abstractions, ven ow pattern. # Very m ent largely impervious	y minor effluent contribution ixed geology; Chalk along . Agriculture is predominant	1998 1999 2000	957 847 1359	112 99 159	408 280 665	76 181	0.31 0.21 0.50	6.6 13.5	26/12 24/12 04/11	0.02 0.02	09/08 11/07 25/08	0.7 0.5 1.4	0.13 0.09 0.13	0.02 0.02 0.03
041010 M.A: EA E A R: N	Local A	Adur W Branch lo: 253320002	at Hatterell Bridge Sens.: 23.3	C.A: 109.1 km ² S/full: 11.3m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI:	6195	796		294		1.02	19.8	18/03 1971	0.00	12/09 1983	2.9	0.29	0.03
Comment: be closed to	Three-bay rectange concentrate flow in	ular critical-depth sti the central bay (0.8	ructure; flanking section 364m). Stop-board rer	ons (each 2.16m wide) can moval can produce odd flow	1996 1997	625 747	79 94	140 224	48 76	0.48 0.78	11.3 11.4	12/02 17/02	0.01 0.01	16/09 06/10	1.0 2.5	0.11	0.01
patterns. Fk common in # A rurai ca	ood flows bypass t 2000/01; few high f itchment developed	he structure. Almos flow gaugings. Sens I principally on impe	st all flows truncated sibly natural - and ver ervious formations - W	at approx. 11 m ³ s ⁻¹ (very y responsive - flow regime. Veald Clay dominates.	1998 1999 2000	865 813 1231	109 102 155	336 241 1122	114 82 382	1.16 0.83 3.87	11.4 11.4 11.4	14/01 26/12 14/12	0.02 0.01 0.13	21/09 23/07 25/08	3.5 2.3 11.0	0.28 0.19 1.54	0.02 0.01 0.21
041035 M.A: EA	Local	North at No:	Brookhurst Sens.:	C.A: 53.9 km ²	8395	788		331		0.57	32.2	09/10 1987	0.00	08/08 1995	1.3	0.11	0.01
F.A.R: N Comment: discharges. impervious of	Elevel: Flat V weir, 1:10 cr Responsive regim catchment develop	25m oss-slope, 5m wide ie. Trace flows rec ed on Weald Clay (s	UE: Large modular rang orded in Aug 1995 ome Horsham Stone	FAI: e. No major abstractions or and Jul 1996. # A mainly giving very rapid response	1996 1997 1998	666 725 924	85 92 117	214 198 380 210	65 60 115	0.36 0.34 0.65	24.2 12.2 21.7 20.0	09/01 24/02 31/10 24/12	0.00 >0.00 >0.00 >0.01	01/07 20/08 18/08 29/07	0.7 1.1 1.9 1.4	0.07 0.03 0.11 0.13	0.01
times. Very woodland al	nd a number of sm	all lakes.	nt from upper catchi	neni, Rufai witi signincare	2000	1241	157	730	221	1.24	39.4	05/11	0.01	13/09	3.0	0.29	0.02
041019 M.A: EA F.A.R: E	Local N	Arun at No: 254250008 21m	Alfoldean Sens.: 23.6 UE:	C.A: 139.0 km² S/full: 84.5m³s ⁻¹ FAI:	7095	795		399		1./0	80.5	1994	0.05	1983	3.9	0.40	0.13
Comment: tapping not 1995 flows t artificial influ affect low fl	Asymmetrical com currently used; ov rruncated at c15 m ³ uences on runoff - s low patterns. # Pri	pound Crump proi er-estimation of hig s ⁻¹ . Stilling well leal mall net augmentati ncipally an impervi	hie weir (crests: 4.0r h flows (structure dro kage can influence wa on due to sewage effic ous (Weald Clay) ca	n and 6.0m broad). Crest owns frequently); but post- iter levels. Limited impact of uent, which can significantly tchment - mainly rural but	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	650 737 911 831 1221	93 115 105 154	239 273 423 332 601	68 106 83 151	1.03 1.20 1.86 1.46 2.64	14.5 14.6 14.6 14.6	25/11 08/12 02/01 25/12 10/10	0.13 0.14 0.17 0.15 0.15	17/09 18/08 25/07 25/08	3.1 5.4 3.7 7.6	0.43 0.40 0.76 0.61 1.19	0.16 0.20 0.17 0.19
includes Ho 041025	rsham.	Loxwood Stre	am at Drungewick	C.A; 91.6 km ²	7195	ا 811		373		1.08	56.8	27/12 1979	0.01	25/08 1995	2.5	0.23	0.04
F.A.R: N Comment: tapping. Ful	Level: Asymmetrical com Frange - all flows co	13m pound Crump profil potained - but drown	UE: <.01 e weir (crests: 2.0m a s (may result from co	FAI: 0.982 and 4.0m broad) with crest instruction of an aqueduct d/	1996 1997	670 721	83 89	246 231	66 62	0.71 0.67	38.6 42.6	09/01 04/03	0.01	10/09	1.4 1.7	0.18 0.09	0.02
s, high leve Abstractions behaviour a	els in the Arun c s and discharges h t low flow. # An im	an also be a facto ave a negligible im pervious (Weald Cli	or). New high flow i pact on overall runoff ay), rural catchment.	rating under development. but occasional anomalous	1998 1999 2000	934 902 1268	115 111 156	425 899	114 241	1.23 2.60	28.6 58.7	05/01 06/11	0.04 0.05	16/08 14/09	3.2 7.2	0.32	0.05
041018	¥ •	Kird at	: Tanyards	C.A: 56.8 km ²	6995	793		380		0.81	31.6	02/10	0.00	01/09 1995	1.9	0.13	
M.A: EA F.A.R: N Comment: tapping - no	Local * Level: Crump profile weir ot currently used. \$	vo: 254220010 9m ¹ (8.7m broad - fall of Structure is insensit	Sens.: UE: <.01 0.012m along crest d ive and subject to dri	Smull: 31.0m*s FAI: 0.967 lue to settlement) with crest owning. Station decommis-	1996 1997	650 733	82 92	246 272	65 72	0.52	26.3 16.5	09/01 25/02	0.00	26/06 28/05	0.9 1.3	0.07	
sioned in 2 impervious	001.∍Very minor in (Weald Clay) catch	npact of artificial ir ment given over to	ntuences on the resp agriculture; some exit	ponsive tiow regime. # An tensive woodland tracts.	1998 1999 2000	920 901 1295	116 114 163	487 484 1073	128 127 282	1.03 1.02 2.27	31.4 31.7	24/10 24/12 30/10	>0.00 >0.00 0.02	22/07 20/08	2.0 2.2 7.9	0.13 0.17 0.54	0.05

	Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m³s ⁻¹)	Peak flow (m³s⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (^{m²s-1})	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m³s ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m²s ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m³s⁻¹)
041014 Arun at Pallingham Quay C.A: 379.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: 254210010 Sens.: 26.5	7095	779		304		3.66	93.6	12/01 1972	0.12	13/09 1973	8.6	1.27	0.3
F.A.R: E Level: 4m .UE:.02 FAI: 0.973 Comment: Fial V weir (installed in 1994) with (from 2002) US for high flows. Superseded an insensitive broad-created weir (15m wide), with 0.03m fall along crest due to settlement. Despite cableway installation, velocity-area measurement is restricted by effects of tidal lag at high flows. J Tides also cause drowning. All but exceptional floods contained but most post-1979 peak flows truncated at about 55 m ³ s ⁻¹ . Relatively natural catchment. # Predominantly impervious (largely Weald Clay and Lower Greensand) catchment. Land use: mixed - basically rural. Up to 20% woodland. Growing urban fraction especially around Horsham.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	650 726 909 861 1244	83 93 117 111 160	240 278 458 375 719	79 91 151 123 237	2.88 3.34 5.50 4.50 8.61	57.5 57.5 57.5 57.5 57.5 57.5	09/01 25/02 01/11 20/01 10/12	0.13 0.23 0.21 0.21 0.26	06/08 04/10 21/08 29/07 13/09	7.3 11.9 17.2 13.7 23.3	0.83 0.64 1.28 1.14 .2.48	0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3
041027 Rother at Princes Marsh C.A: 37.2 km² M.A: EA Local No: 254360008 Sens.: 23.8 S/full: 43.5m³s^{-1} F.A.P. GE Level: 56m Lis: 01 Ext. no.2	7295	891		417		0.49	27.8	12/10 1993	0.08	29/06 1976	0.9	0.32	0.1
Comment: Crump profile weir (crest: 5.0m broad) with crest tapping - not currently used. Additional flow data available for prototype electromagnetic gauging station (1974-79) immediately d/s. Abstractions and discharges have a minor impact on flows - small net loss. # Mixed geology - 50% permeable; Chelk predominates in the headwaters. A rural catchment with large woodfand tracts.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	784 798 1054 995 1346	88 90 118 112 151	305 257 499 486 839	73 62 120 117 201	0.36 0.30 0.59 0.57 0.99	18.8 5.3 20.2 27.0 27.1	08/01 17/02 05/01 24/12 12/12	0.11 0.11 0.17 0.14 0.19	25/07 21/08 11/08 12/09 24/08	0.6 0.6 1.0 1.0 1.8	0.26 0.20 0.39 0.33 0.46	0.12 0.12 0.18 0.18 0.18
041011 Rother at Iping Mill C.A: 154.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: 254340011 Sens.: 6.9 S/full 67.0m³s^-1 F.A.P: GE Level: 27m UE: 0.0 Schule 0.014	6695	928		446		2.18	68.6	08/12 1994	0.37	24/08 1976	4.4	1.36	0.63
Comment: Compound Crump profile weir (crests: 3.05m and 2 x 5.03m broad). Non-modular during high flows (conveyance affected by growth of trees d/s). Bypassing during exceptional floods. Large baseflow component in river flows. Abstractions for spray irrigation and STW discharges affect the flow regime; limited impact overall. The Rother is influent above lping Mill. # Mixed geology; 60% pervious - large tracts of Lower Greensand. A mainly rural catchment with some urban development.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	783 852 1053 996 1405	84 92 113 107 151	328 <i>302</i> ,519 461 860	74 68 116 103 193	1.60 1.48 2.54 2.25 4.19	54.1 36.3 40.7 63.2	09/01 05/01 16/01 29/10	0.48 - 0.58 0.52 0.70	24/07 18/08 26/07 25/08	2.5 3.0 5.3 4.9 8.5	1.14 1.01 1.68 1.36 2.16	0.52 0.51 - 0.64 0.58 0.76
041022 Lod at Halfway Bridge C.A: 52.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: 254323017 Sens.: 68.6 S/5/UI: 41.0m³s^{-1} F.A.R: N Level: 14m UE: <0.01	7095	866		352		0.58	41.5	27/12 1979	>0.00	01/09 1976	1.4	0.22	0.05
Comment: Crump profile weir (crest: 7.0m broad) with crest tapping (not currently used). All but highest flows modular. Some bypassing in exceptional floods. Minor flow regulation associated with u/s mill. Flows are sensibly natural - small net export of water due to gw abstraction. # Primarily an impervious: catchment with Weald Clay more extensive than pervious Lower Greensand. Steep toppography in upper catchment. Rural with considerable woodland.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	708 776 967 933 1349	82 90 112 108 156	220 235 423	63 67 120	0.36 0.39 0.70	22.4 8.7 11.7 41.2	09/01 18/02 24/10 30/10	0.01 0.04 0.05 0.05	.10/09 01/06 20/09 03/07	0.7 1.0 1.9	0.15 0.12 0.26	0.02 0.05 0.08
041023 Lavant at Graylingwell C.A: 87.2 km² M.A: EA Local No: 255220018 Sens.:	7095	942		101		0.28	, 7.1	12/01 1994	0.00	01/12	0.9		
F.A.R: G Level: 21m UE: <.01 FAI: 1.000 Comment: Flat V weir; crest breadth 5m. Cross-stope 1:10. Extended periods with zero flow. Weir capacity is 6 m ³ s ⁻¹ , bypassing during extreme events (e.g. Jan 1994 flood peak estimated at 8.1 m ³ s ⁻¹ by gauging). Runoff is substantially reduced by gw abstraction. # The Lavant is an ephemeral stream draining the dip-slope of the South Downs (Chalk). A permeable catchment - sparsely populated in the headwaters. Land use: agricultural with significant woodland; some urban develop- ment close to Graylingwell.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	760 937 1039 997 1407	81 99 110 106 149	1 124 120 353	1 123 119 350	0.00 >0.00 0.34 0.33 0.97	0.0d 0.3d 2.2 2.5d 6.9	01/01 31/12 18/01 26/01 14/12	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00	01/01 01/01 05/07 03/06 22/08	.1.0 1.3 4.0	0.27 0.34	
041015 Ems at Westbourne C.A.: 58.3 km² M.A.: EA Local No: 255110010 Sens.: 25.0 S/full: 4.5m³s ⁻¹	6795	920		234		0.43	5.0	30/12 1993	>0.00?	07/01 1970	1.2	0.19	0.01
F.A.R.RG Level: 10m UE: <.01 FAI: 0.981 Comment: Asymmetrical compound Crump profile weir; crests: 0.61m (showing effects of erosion) and 4.12m broad. Modular throughout flow range. All flows contained. Differential drawdown can affect river level measurement. Significant net export of water from the catchment (gw abstractions) but low flows augmented by compensation water (from borehole). # The Ems - which is ephemeral over much of its length - is a Chalk stream draining the South Downs. Largely rural with significant woodland.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	728 907 1004 939 1378	79 99 109 102 150	46 45 317 297 633	20 19 135 127 271	0.09 0.08 0.59 0.55 1.17	1.1 0.6 2.4 2.5 5.1	08/01 18/12 18/01 19/01 11/12	0.01 0.01 0.02 0.01 0.10	15/08 22/09 07/10 02/09 13/09	0.2 0.2 1.5 1.8 3.5	0.04 0.06 0.52 0.14 0.78	0.01 0.01 0.04 0.02 0.15
042025 Lavant Stream at Leigh Park C.A: 54.5 km² M.A: EA Local No: Sens.:	8195	918	-	28		0.05	5.3	10/01 1993	0.00	11/12 1995	0.1	0.02	>0.00
F.A.K: Level: 12m UE: FAI: Comment: Velocity-area station in trapezoidal section. Rating poorly defined at low flows; gaugings also awaited to confirm rating for highest flows. Bypassed by flood flows above 3 m ³ s ⁻¹ . Responsive regime; evident urban influence. Topographical catchment exceeds groundwater catchment. # A largely impervious catchment, substantially urbanised below the headwaters.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	760 905 1026 944 1359	83 99 112 103 148	11 19 57 48	39 68 204 171	0.02 0.03 0.10 0.08	0.7 4.9 5.3 1.9	12/02 25/02 24/04 24/12	>0.00 >0.00 >0.00 0.01	07/08 23/04 08/10 15/07 -	0.0 0.1 0.2 0.2	>0.00 >0.00 0.03 0.06	>0.00 >0.00 0.01 0.03
042017 Hermitage at Havant C.A: 17.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: 153601001 Sens: 50.0 B/full: 22 6m³s^-1 F.A.B: N Level: 3m Life: 16 EAL: 0.02	87 9 5	801		575		0.31	8.2	03/02 1994	0.01	23/07 1995	0.8	0.20	0.03
Comment: Velocity-area station, trapezoidal section in formalised reach. Well rated by c/m. All but exceptional flows contained. Some truncation of peaks (at c8 m ³ s ⁻¹). Chart stage record extends back to 1953. # A mainly impervious catchment - principally Reading Beds and London Clay. Intensive suburban development since the early 1960s.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	673 806 900 852 1228	84 101 112 106 153	274 341 474 382 1024	48 59 82 66 178	0.15 0.18 0.26 0.21 0.55	6.5 7.4 7.7 8.0 8.2	11/02 27/08 31/10 24/12 06/11	0.03 0.02 0.04 0.02 0.02	28/09 14/05 09/07 10/06 06/08	0.3 0.4 0.6 0.4 1.4	0.08 0.12 0.13 0.11 0.20	0.03 0.03 0.05 0.04 0.05
042001 Wallington at North Fareham C.A: 111.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: 153309001 Sens: 25.0 B/full: 10.0m³s ⁻¹	5195	841		179		0.63	20.7	08/12 1994	0.00	01/07 1976	1.6	0.27	0.04
F,KKG Level 4m DE: 104 Fit: 0.481 Comment: Flat V weir (1:10 cross-slope, 6m wide) - peaks truncated at c20 m ³ s ⁻¹ - superseded, in 1991, a compound critical-depth flume (prior to 1993 flows truncated at c20 m ³ s ⁻¹ due to bypassing, missing data estimated using 42003). Flashy response, zero flow in exceptionally dry summers. Gw abstraction reduces runoff; spray irrigation can significantly reduce summer flows. Gw catchment	1996 1997 1998 1999 - 2000	740 835 975 913 1294 ~	88 99 116 109 154	96 93 162 149 338	54 52 91 83 189	0.34 0.33 0.57 0.53	19.4 7.5 20.3 20.5 - 20.7	09/01 28/11 31/10 24/12 12/12	0.01 0.01 0.02 0.01 - 0.02	18/09 16/08 31/08 27/07 24/08	0.7 0.9 1.3 1.2 3.2	0.17 0.11 0.29 0.24 0.42	0.02 0.02 0.03 0.03 - 0.05
042006 Meon at Mislingford C.A: 72.8 km² M.A: EA Local No: 152803001 Sens:: 15.0 B/full: 4.1m³s ⁻¹ EA.P./C Local No: 152803001 Sens:: 15.0 B/full: 4.1m³s ⁻¹	5895	918		419		0.97	5.3d	04/12 1960	, 0.05	, 06/08 1976	2.0	0.71	0.19
Comment: Flat V weir (breadth: 6.6m) superseded (in 2000) a critical depth flume (breadth: 3.66m, theoretical rating) u/s of a small five-arch bridge. Some local bypassing during flood flows. Some stage data missing during Dec 2000 flood but c11 ·m³s ⁻¹ gauging completed near peak. Groundwater abstraction has a noticeable impact on the flow regime; small net export of water from the catchment. # Predominantly a permeable catchment (Chalk - but considerable outcrops of the less permeable Lower and Middle Chalk); some superficial cover. Impervious Reading Beds in the south. A rural catchment with some uncultivated downland.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	823 856 1052 1007 1371	90 93 115 110 149	269 232 447 432 719	64 55 107 103 172	0.62 0.54 1.03 1.00 1.65	1.7 1.7 3.4 4.2 11.0	09/01 25/02 05/01 20/01 13/12	0.21 0.17 0.28 0.22 0.39	10/10 03/11 21/09 05/09 12/09	1.1 1.1 1.9 2.3 3.6	0.61 0.45 1.03 0.62 1.38	0.23 0.20 0.30 0.25 0.49
042011 Hamble at Frogmill C.A: 56.6 km ² M.A: EA Local No: 152502001 Sens.: 29.2 B/full: 5.5m ³ s ⁻¹	7295	868		234		0.42	8,9	02/03 1981	0.02	13/09 1989	0.8	0.28	0.10
Comment: Crump profile weir (crest: 3m broad). Local bypassing during flood flows; peaks flows truncated at c8 m ³ s ⁻¹ . Flows significantly reduced by gw abstraction. Substantial baseflow but lower catchment is very responsive. # A predominantly permeable (Chalk) catchment - the upper reaches of the Hamble are ephemeral - with some areas of Reading Beds. Land use: mainly rural - some urban development.	1996 - 1997 1998 1999 2000	752 799 949 944 1242	87 92 109 109 143	168 248 244 364	72 - 106 104 156	0.30 0.44 0.44 0.65	7.6 5.9 7.6 7.9 7.9	08/01 27/11 05/01 24/12 30/10	0.09 0.09 • 0.14 0.06 0.12	24/10 15/01 12/09 08/09 23/09	0.5 0.8 0.8 1.6	0.22 0.34 0.29 0.36	.0.12 0.16 0.11 0.17

	Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (^{m1e-1})	Pesk Row (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (^{m1} s ¹¹)	Data of min.	10 Percentile (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m ¹ s ¹)	95 Percentile (m ¹ e ⁻¹)
042009 Candover Stream at Borough Bridge C.A: 71.2 km² MA: EA Local No: 152203001 Sens.: 13.0 B/tult: 4.6m³s ⁻¹ F.A.F: RG Level: 54m UE: <.01	7095	822		236		0.53	1.9	13/01 1994	0.19	21/08 1992	0.8	0.47	0.28
Comment: Crump profile weir (crest: 3m broad). Modular, Monthly gaugings available from 1956. Runoff reduced by surface gw abstractions but augmentation of low flows is important in dry summers - 1976 and 1989. The gw and topographical drivides differ considerably. # An unresponsive catchment (Chark with some patches of superficial deposits). Many perennial springs - often supporting cress beds. Predominantly rural land use with some woodland.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	720 696 966 935 1151	88 85 118 114 140	212 157 208 263	90 67 88 111	0.48 0.36 0.47 0.59	1.0 0.6 0.8 1.4	09/01 12/03 23/12 24/01	0.23 0.21 0.26 0.32	21/09 03/11 23/09 09/09	0.7 0.5 0.6 0.9	0.46 0.33 0.50 0.50	0.26 0.22 0.28 0.34
042007 Aire at Drove Lane Alrestord C.A: 57.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: 152202007 Sens.: 3.9	7095	872		874		1.58	3.2d	07/03 1995	0.74	26/08 1976	2.1	1.50	1.83
F.A.R. RG Level: 57m UE: <.01 FAI: 0.881 Comment: Crump profile weir (crest: 2.5m), second Crump profile weir (crest: 1.5m) on side channel. No hits prior to 1992. Pre-1969 monthly c/m results available. From 1989, gw augmentation during drought conditions. Gw catchment (about 114 sq.km.) substantially exceeds topographical catchment. # Principally permeable catchment (Upper Chalk overlain in patches by daw,with-finits). Rural that catching and dwarfend of invied forming upper upmediand. Extension area body	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	794 738 1021 986	91 85 117 113	783 714 1012	90 82 116	1.41 1.29 1.83	1.9d 1.9 3.0	25/02 01/01 16/01	1.01 0.91 1.25	26/10 18/10 12/09	1.7 1.6 2.5	1.37 1.30 1.68	1.05 0.97 1.37
Odd2008 Cheriton Stream at Sewards Bridge CA: 75.1 km² MA: EA Local No: 152201001 Sens: 11.6 B/hdl: 2.8m³s ⁻¹ EA.P: N Local No: 152201001 Sens: 11.6 B/hdl: 2.8m³s ⁻¹	7095	894	144	264		0.63	2.5	03/03 1995	0.15	23/08 1976	1.0	0.55	0.27
Comment: Crump profile weir (breadth: 3.0m). All flows contained. Ephemeral in upper reaches. Low flows influenced by neighbouring R. Itchen augmentation scheme (from 1989) - slight reduction in discharge. Pre-1970 monthly series of gaugings available from the measuring authority. Contributing area differs considerably from topographical catchment. # A very permeable (Upper Chalk) catchment - isolated patches of clay-with-finits occur on high ground. Rural land use with considerable downland and wooded areas.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	819 792 1042 995 1293	92 89 117 111 145	224 180 264 298 483	85 68 100 113 183	0.53 0.43 0.63 0.71 1.15	1.3 0.9 1.3 2.1 4.8	08/01 19/03 09/11 27/01 12/12	0.27 0.24 0.32 0.34 0.39	17/10 04/10 25/09 12/09 12/09	0.8 0.7 0.9 1.2 2.9	0.55 0.40 0.69 0.58 0.85	0.28 0.25 0.35 0.37 0.44
042016 Itchen at Easton C.A: 236.8 km² M.A: EA Local No: 152204002 Sens.: B/full: 10.0m³s ⁻¹	7595	858		560		4.21	10.0	22/02 1995	2.08	13/07 1992	5.9	4.06	2.59
Comment: Electromagnetic gauging station with insulated bed. Installed 1983 - calibration confirmed by c/m. Limited stage and velocity range makes for effective operation. Superseded a velocity-area station heavily affected by weed-growth. Largely natural regime but gw augmentation during very low flows. # A predominantly Chalk catchment with patches of superficial deposits. Largely unal with some woodland.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	766 734 988 957 1206	89 86 115 112 141	505 523 626 765	90 93 112 137	3.78 3.93 4.70 5.73	6.6 6.1 8.9 12.8	08/01 23/12 26/01	2.62 2.66 2.91	26/07 22/09 01/08 12/09	4.9 4.8 6.8	3.81 4.22 4.19 5.54	2.70 2.78 3.07 3.60
042010 Itchen at Highbridge + Allbrook C.A: 360.0 km ² M.A: EA Local No: 152208001 Sens.: 4.9	5895	853	141	462	137	5.28	12.8d	23/02 1995	2.17	24/08 1976	6.5 7.8	4.83	2.93
F.A.R: RPG Level: 17m UE:.01 FAI:0.943 Comment: Crump weir (Highbridge, 7.75m)replaced, in 1971, a VA station with heavy weedgrowth - the latter can drown present weir) + thin-plate weir (Allbrook) in former navigabon channel. Rare bypassing (due to wrong sluice settings in early record). Confirmatory gauging supports remarkable Dec. 2000 peak (when noderate bypassing). Nov/Dec 1993 flows estimated (fish pass constructed). Gw augmentation during droughts. Gw catchment > sw catchment. Artificial influences (gw abstractions, cress farms) have minor, but increasing, impact on baseflow dominated regime; small net export of water. # Very permeable catchment (90% Chalk). Land use: mainly arable with scattered settlements.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	734 715 938 920 1155	86 84 110 108 135	417 345 472 501 672	90 75 102 108 145	4.75 3.94 5.39 5.72 7.65	8.7d 6.6 8.6 11.9 20.5	09/01 18/02 18/01 26/01 12/12	2.67 2.54 3.06 3.02 3.92	17/09 18/09 24/09 01/08 13/09	6.7 5.4 7.2 9.0 11.9	4.72 3.99 5.80 4.97 7.01	2.85 2.67 3.33 3.33 4.26
042018 Monks Brook at Stoneham Lane C.A: 43.3 km² M.A: EA Local No: 152104001 Sens: 47.8 B/full: 4.5m³s ⁻¹ E.A.B: N Local No: 152104001 Sens: 47.8 B/full: 4.5m³s ⁻¹	8795	800		160		0.22	9.1	27/01 1995	0.01	31/08 1991	0.6	0.09	0.02
Comment: Flat V weir (1:10 cross-slope) with c/m calibration for high flows. High flow gauging at footbridge and ford about 200m u/s; trapeziodal concrete channel between ford and gauging station. 1995/36 excepted, most peak flows truncated (c2.7 m ² s ⁻¹). Previously a velocity-area station (with pilling stabilised banks). # A mostly low-lying catchment developed on impervious Tertiary formations. Mixed land use: rural headwaters with considerable woodland, substantial urban development near the station (Chandler's Ford/Eastleigh).	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	676 741 873 871 1143	85 93 109 109 143	158 128 172 188 278	99 80 108 118 174	0.22 0.18 0.24 0.26 0.38	7.2 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.8	03/11 22/11 23/12 24/12 03/12	0.02 0.02 0.02 0.04 0.03	18/09 03/10 22/08 04/09 24/08	0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 1.0	0.11 0.07 0.11 0.14 0.18	0.02 0.02 0.02 0.04 0.04
042023 Itchen at Riverside Park C.A: 415.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: Sens.:	8295	839		408		5.37	25.1	18/08 1994	1.64	17/08 1995	9.1	5.10	2.75
FALS RPE Level: Im De:: FALS Comment: Ultrasonic gauging station (multi-path with reflector). Tidal effects occasionally evident (dependant on d/s sluice operation). Flows artificially influenced by two 45 MI/d surface water abstractions at Gaters Mill and Otterbourne and a large STW discharge at Eastleigh. Groundwater augmentation (in headwaters) can be important. H Principally a rural, Chalk catchment but with appreciable urban growth near the outfall (where impervious Tertiary formations predominate).	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	729 724 935 919 1159	87 86 111 110 138	389 322 454 496	95 79 111 122	5.11 4.24 5.98 6.53	19.4 11.3 17.5 21.1	09/01 17/02 05/01 16/01	2.47 2.45 3.11 2.80	26/07 18/09 13/08 01/08	7.3 5.7 8.4 10.5	4.98 4.17 6.06 5.62	2.93 2.72 3.47 3.59
042019 Tanners Brook at Milibrook C.A: 16.0 km ² M.A: EA Local No: 151901001 Sens:: 52.0 F.A.R: N Level: 4m UF: FAI:	7795	812		325		0.17	4.8	26/05 1993	0.00	19/09 1991	0.3	0.15	0.03
Comment: Velocity-area station in a trapezoidal concrete section. Initially a level onty station but stage-discharge relation now established for all but the highest flows. Pre- (and some post-) 1992 peaks truncated (c1.0 m ³ s ⁻¹). Responsive regime. # A largely urban (Southampton) catchment	1996 1997 1998	693 750 894	85 92 110	303 347	93 107	0.15 0.18	1.0 2.9	03/11 06/04	0.07 0.00	27/12 17/08	0.2 0.4	0.13 0.13	0.09
neveloped on impervious Teruary formations.	1999 2000	891 1173 813	110 144	441	136	0.22	5.0 13.7d	24/12	0.02	27/06	0.4	0.15	0.06
M.A: EA Local No: Sens.: F.A.R: N Level: 39m UE: FAI: Comment: Two Electromagnetic gauging stations (buried coil): Chilbotton Main (151805001) and	1996	656	81	346	91	4.96	8.1d	1995	2.90	1989	3.3 7.0	4.52	3.04
Chilbolton Back Carrier (151805002); flows are summed. Monthly c/m results substantially extend the overall record. Sensibly natural flow regime, # A Chalk catchment (limited superficial cover). Predominantly rural (some woodland), Whitchurch is the main settlement.	1997 1998 1999 2000	701 950 932 1098	86 117 115 135	253 376 441	66 99 116	3.63 5.40 6.33	5.8 8.0	25/02 18/01	2.23 3.34	03/10 24/09	4.9 6.6 9.9	3.73 5.79 5.48	2.34 3.53 4.07
342012 Anton at Fullenton C.A.: 185,0 km ² M.A: EA Local No: 15186001 Sens.: 7.2 Syful: 8.5m ³ s ⁻¹ ∴A.R: N Level: 41m UE: .02 FAI: 0.949	75-95	782		316		1.86	5.5d	01/02 1995	0.43	24/08 1976	2.8	1.69	0.96
Comment: Crump profile weir (crest: 4.75m broad) with a complementary Crump profile weir (crest: Im broad) on a bypass channel. Water levels influenced by local mill sluice operation. Cress beds in neadwaters. The gw catchment exceeds the topographical catchment area. Significant gw ubstraction. # An unresponsive (Chalk) catchment of rolling downland - the upper reaches of the Anton are ephemeral. Land use: rural with some urban centres.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	639 684 920 913 1086	82 87 118 117 139	280 200 312 343	89 63 99 109	1.64 1.17 1.83 2.01	2.7d 2.0 3.3 4.2	09/01 03/03 31/10 05/07	0.89 0.70 1.02 1.16	18/09 04/10 01/09 13/09	2.4 1.7 2.3 3.0	1.52 1.17 1.90 1.78	0.96 0.73 1.14 1.27
J42020 Tadburn Lake at Romsey C.A: 19.0 km² #.A: EA Local No: 151815001 Sens.: 21.4	7795	811		513		0.31	3.0d	07/02 1990	0.01	30/11 1978	0.7	0.23	0.04
Comment: Velocity-area station. Concrete channel. Calibration ongoing. Hydrological research mostly in the headwaters) undertaken initially by Southampton University. # Rural headwaters, with oxisiderable woodland, but urbanised in lower reaches (Romsey). A largely impervious catchment leveloped mostly on Tertiary formations (principally Barton, Bracklesham and Bagshot Beds).	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	673 750 877 871 1148	83 92 108 107 142	271 156 231 534	53 30 45 104	0.16 0.09 0.14 0.32	2.8 1.7 2.4 9.9	09/01 28/11 05/01 24/12	0.03 0.03 0.01 0.09	15/09 21/08 29/08 13/09	0.6 0.2 0.3 0.5	0.09 0.06 0.10 0.26	0.04 0.03 0.01 0.11

.

	Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m³s²¹)	Peak flow (m ³ s ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (m ³ s ⁻¹)	Date of mln.	10 Percentile (m³s²¹)	50 Percentile (m³s ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m³s*¹)
042004 Test at Broadlands C.A: 1040.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: 151816001 Sens.: B/full: 26.5m³s ⁻¹	5795	811		335		11.06	36.6d	11/01 1961	3.17	07/07 1976	16.7	9.89	5.88
F.A.R.N Level: 10m UE: DE: A D	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	649 712 930 912 1109	80 88 115 112 137	.280 215 321 353 450	84 96 105 134	9.20 7.07 10.59 11.63 14.81	21.9d 15.7d 22.3d 32.8d 28.2d	09/01 18/02 05/01 20/01 13/12	5.05 4.47 6.38 6.61 8.00	06/08 01/10 31/08 31/07 01/09	13.6 9.8 14.2 17.5 23.1	8.48 6.62 10.85 9.99 13.97	5.30 4.91 6.74 6.96 8.29
042014 Blackwater at Ower C.A: 104.7 km² M.A: EA Local No: 151817001 Sens.: 25.0 B/full: 10.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: N Level: 8m UE: <.01	7695	867		263		0.87	10.2	26/01 1984	0.10	07/08 1989	2.2	0.46	0.16
Comment: Crump profile weir (crest: 6m broad); drowns at approx. 0.4m but velocity-area calibration used for medium and high flows up to 1.85m (approx. 10.2 m ³ s ⁻¹) includes allowance for floodplain discharge but, latterly, peaks truncated. Negligible net impact of artificial influences on the flow pattern (very minor amount of spray imgation). # A catchment of meadows, woodland and heath underlain by Tertiary sands, gravels and clays (mainly impervious).	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	712 814 976 950 1193	62 94 113 110 138	185 156 283 261	70 59 108 - 99	0.61 0.52 0.94 0.87	6.2 2.8 6.0 6.0	19/11 31/12 10/12 23/12	0.12 0.12 0.15 0.14	17/09 29/07 19/08 30/07	1.2 1.4 2.4 2.2	0.38 0.26 0.49 - 0.43	0.14 0.13 0.16 0.15
042003 Lymington at Brockenhurst C.A: 98.9 km² M.A: EA Local No: 150509001 Sens.: 18.3 B/full: 7.9m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: N Level: 6m UE: FAI:	6095	849		318		1.00	14.9	10/12 1977	0.01	09/08 1976	2.6	0.43	0.05
Comment: Compound thin-plate weir, width 7.3m, Theoretically rated; gaugings used to extent $\frac{1}{2}$ rating to c30m ³ s ⁻¹ in 2000. Bypassing occurs above 7 m ³ s ⁻¹ ; Most pre-1999 flows truncated at approx. 10 m ³ s ⁻¹ . Pre-1996; a thin-plate weir with V notch (no divide piers) - total breadth 8.48m. Artificial influences have a negligible impact on flows, but drainage has a long history (and some - wetland restoration began in 1997). # Principally an impervious catchment (Tertiary clay; sand and gravel). Large tracts of heathland and forest - with valley bogs in the New Forest (where some recent village growth).	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	768 850 987 975 1174	90 100 116 115 138	298 385 363 593	94 121 114 186	0.94 1.21 1.14 1.86	10.7d 15.2 8.2 18.1d 24.3	12/02 28/11 09/12 24/12 06/11	0.04 0.05 0.05 0.07	23/07 22/08 28/07 12/08	2.9 3.3 2.5 5.4	0.29 0.57 0.50 0.64	0.06 0.07 0.06 0.09
101005 Eastern Yar at Budbridge C.A: 22.5 km ² M.A: EA Local No: 51002001 Sens.: 22.9 E.A.B: P.G.L Level: m. U.E. FAI:	8295	813		296		0.21	8.7	30/12 1993	0.05	13/07 1990	0.4	0.14	0.07
Comment: Flat V weir, cross-slope 1:10, 2.98m wide. Limited head for extended periods. Runoff reduced by surface and groundwater abstractions. From 1989, low flows augmented as part of the lsle of Wight Conjunctive Use Scheme. # The Eastern Yar rises on the Chalk of St. Catherine's Down, below the headwaters Upper Greensand and Gault Clay dominate. Very rural, Godshill is the main settlement.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	721 789 929 869 1142	89 97 114 107 140	240 232 325 297 472	81 78 110 100 159	0.17 0.17 0.23 0.21 0.34	3.6 3.8 4.8 8.3 9.0	11/02 28/11 09/12 24/12 09/10	0.05 0.03 0.07 0.06 0.07	22/07 23/07 23/09 27/07 20/07	0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.7	0.12 0.12 0.14 0.14 0.17	0.07 0.05 0.09 0.07 0.08
101004 ' Eastern Yar at Burnt House C.A: 59.6 km² M.A: EA Local No: 51001001 Sens.: 50.0 F.A.R: PG Level: m UE: FAI:	8295	827		208		0.39	7.9	21/01 1995	0.00	09/08 1984	0.8	0.19	0.04
Comment: Flat V weir, 1:10 cross slope. Limited head for long periods. Peak flows truncated at around 7.9 m ³ s ⁻¹ . Runoff reduced by surface and gw abstractions. From 1989, low flows augmented as part of the IoW Conjunctive Use Scheme, but also regular abstraction u/s of 70-801/s. # The Eastern Yar rises as springs on the Chalk of St. Catherine's Down, Lower Greensand dominates the lower catchment. Very rural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	733 822 941 861 1165	89 99 114 104 141	168 304 250	81 146 120	0.32 0.57 0.47	7.9 ,7.5 7.5	12/02 10/12 18/12	0.03 0.06 0.04	25/07 22/08 26/07	0.6 0.9 0.8	0.19 0.27 0.23	0.05 0.08 0.05

112

Map 9: SOUTH WEST



Area: 20,802 km²

Average Rainfall (1961-90): 1028 mm

Gauging Station Register

Station number	River name	Station name		Grid reference	Catchment area (sq km)	Station type	Period of record	Mesa zan, rzinfali (mm)	Mean ann. runoff (mm)	Mean ann, Iosa (mm)	Max, ann, runoff (mm)	Year of max.	Min. ธกก. runoff (ศก.)	Year of min.	Mean flow (m ^s e ⁻¹)	Min, mon, flow (m*s*1)	Month/Year of min.	Median ann, flood (m³e ⁻¹)	Base Flow Index	10 Percentite (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	\$5 Percentlie (m's'')
043014 043017 043005 043015 043012 043024 043008 043006 043004 043011	East Avon West Avon Avon Wytye Wytye Wytye Natder Bourne Ebble	Upavon Upavon Amesbury Longbr Devenil Norton Bavant Stockton Park South Newton Witton Laverstock Bodenham	SU SU ST ST ST SU SU SU SU SU SU SU	133559 133559 151413 868413 909428 975393 086343 098308 157304 165265	36.2 76.0 323.7 69.0 112.4 254.8 445.4 220.6 263.6 109.0	CCC TP CEM CC CVA	197100 1971-00 1965-00 197176 1971-00 1994-97 1967-00 1966-00 196500 197076	786 781 777 921 950 893 860 916 790 845	699 283 340 312 286 290 414 91 223	87 498 437 638 607 570 502 699 622	1132 547 598 499 391 506 723 169 292	00 00 95 00 95 72	432 117 139 183 186 130 219 36 198	76 97 76 97 76 73 76 73	0.80 0.68 3.49 1.11 2.31 4.09 2.90 0.76 0.77	0.35 0.05 0.37 0.19 0.28 0.69 0.66 0.60 0.07 0.06	08/76 08/76 08/76 10/75 07/76 10/96 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/70	3.8 5.8 12.6 4.7 12.3 15.2 2.3	.89 .72 .90 .94 .87 .90 .90 .82 .92 .90	1.2 1.6 6.7 2.1 4.4 8.6 5.8 1.4 1.6	0.44 0.11 1.09 0.45 0.70 1.15 0.92 0.19 0.40
043003 043001 * 043021 043009 043009 043010 043010 043007 043007 043002 * 043013 *	Avon Avon Shreen Water Stour Allen Allen Stour Moors River Mude	East Mills Ringwood Knapp Mill Colesbrook Hammoon Loverley Mill Watford Mill Throop Hum Court Somerford	SU SZ ST SU SU SZ SZ SZ	158144 143054 156943 8020147 006085 008007 113958 126969 184936	1477.8 1649.8 1706.0 29.1 523.1 94.0 176.5 1073.0 143.3 12.4	MIS VA US CC CC CC CC CC CC CC	196500 1960-65 197500 1973-00 1978-00 197000 1974-00 1974-00 1973-00 1973-00 1992-97 197183	835 809 840 909 875 906 879 881 . 873 791	325 383 363 592 453 349 341 404 341 252	510 426 477 317 422 557 538 477 532 539	439 496 514 908 866 625 602 683 430 323	77 61 00 00 00 00 94 77	178 244 188 410 154 173 192 180 267 158	76 64 76 97 73 76 73 76 73 97 73	15.24 20.06 19.66 0.55 7.52 1.04 1.91 13.74 1.55 0.10	3.04 5.89 2.70 0.16 0.35 0.11 0.10 1.36 0.27 0.00	08/76 11/64 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/95 08/76	43.7 61.3 117.0 3.5 7.1 106.9	.91 .87 .90 .68 .32 .91 .65 .66 .56	28.8 33.0 39.4 1.0 20.6 2.6 4.5 31.1 3.4 0.2	5.50 5.70 6.38 0.19 0.64 0.17 0.30 2.61 0.38 0.01
044002 044004 044008 044001 044009 044003 045004 045008 045013	Piddle Sydling Water Frome S Winterbourne Frome Wey Asker Axe Otter Tale	Baggs Mill Sydling St Nich's Dorchester Total Wbme Steep'ton East Suke Total Broadwey Bridgort Whitford Fenny Bridges Fairmile	SY SY SY SY SY SY SY SY SY	913876 632997 708903 629897 866867 666839 470928 262953 115986 088972	183.1 12.4 206.0 19.9 414.4 7.0 49.1 288.5 104.2 34.4	FL C C F V S F V C C C A V A	196300 1969-00 197100 197400 196500 197500 196600 1964-00 1974-00 197800	977 1086 1044 1090 911 997 1019 1072 929	417 478 470 151 487 1419 383 565 646 384	560 608 574 939 522 614 454 426 545	602 738 639 235 695 2171 566 763 913 463	00 94 94 66 94 00 99 00 82	229 262 249 55 300 847 197 291 439 280	73 73 76 73 89 73 73 75 85	2.42 0.19 3.07 0.09 6.41 0.60 5.17 2.13 0.42	0.43 0.05 0.35 0.01 1.25 0.07 0.14 0.55 0.28 0.08	08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 10/90 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/94	8.3 0.8 15.6 0.4 1.7 12.3 101.4 53.3	.89 .83 .89 .85 .94 .63 .49 .49 .52	4.8 0.4 6.1 0.2 12.1 1.1 11.0 4.5 0.8	0.78 0.06 0.87 0.01 2.17 0.09 0.20 1.21 0.52 0.12
045005 045006 * 045009 045011 045002 045011 045003 045012 045002	Otter Quarme Haddeo Exe Barle Exe Exe Cutm Creedy Teign	Dotton Enterwell Hartford Pixton Brushford Stoodleigh Thorverton Wood Mill Cowley Preston	SY SS SS SS SS SS SS SX SX	087885 919356 952294 935260 927258 943178 936016 021058 901967 856746	202.5 20.4 50.0 159.7 128.0 421.7 600.9 226.1 261.6 381.0	FVVA CB VA VA FVVA FVVA VA VA VA	1962-00 1964-67 1973-79 1966-00 196899 196000 1956-00 1962-00 196400 1956-00	997 1750 1226 1456 1607 1408 1298 987 924 1280	490 1073 695 909 1157 945 850 523 453 771	507 677 531 547 450 463 448 464 471 509	655 1178 1027 1405 1607 1318 1250 739 660 1298	00 65 74 00 99 00 00 74 60	322 1043 533 545 893 644 509 318 276 431	73 66 73 76 64 64 64 75 75	3.14 0.69 1.10 4.60 12.64. 16.19 3.75 3.75 9.32	0.54 0.12 0.03 0.15 0.30 0.62 0.69 0.57 0.15 0.47	08/76 08/67 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76	72.0 9.8 41.4 85.7 138.9 175.3 68.2 93.8 133.4	.53 .59 .51 .54 .52 .50 .53 .46 .55	6.3 1.5 2.5 11.5 10.8 29.5 38.9 7.9 9.0 22.5	0.95 0.19 0.63 0.60 1.66 1.95 1.02 0.32 1.14
046005 046007 046003 046008 046006 047007 047011 047010 047002 047005	East Dart West Dart Dart Avon Erme Yeatm Plym Tamar Tamar Ottery	Bellever Dunnabridge Austins Bridge Loddiswelł Ermington Pustinch Cam Wood Crowford Bridge Werrington Werrington Park	SX SX SX SX SX SX SX SX SX SX	657775 643742 751659 719476 642532 574511 522613 290991 343886 337866	21.5 47.9 247.6 102.3 43.5 54.9 79.2 76.7 232.1 120.7	VA VA VA VA FLVA CC CC VA VA	1964-00 197200 1958-00 197100 1973-00 1963-00 197100 1972-00 1956-61 196300	2112 2140 1865 1605 1800 1469 1552 1230 <i>1143</i> 1253	1835 1736 1430 1044 1389 961 909 930 793 783	277 404 435 561 411 508 643 300 350 470	2604 2334 1993 1525 1825 1359 1312 1599 1119 1310	74 - 98 94 94 94 74 74 60 00	1185 1078 930 625 867 518 521 530 587 374	76 73 75 73 73 73 73 97 57 64	1.25 2.64 11.23 3.39 1.92 1.67 2.28 2.26 5.84 3.00	0.10 0.20 0.71 0.20 0.11 0.06 0.16 0.03 0.04 0.02	08/76 08/76 08/95 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/84 09/59 08/95	39.1 75.7 213.1 65.0 47.2 22.7 45.6 54.9 60.0	.44 .52 .52 .52 .50 .29 .33 .40	2.7 5.9 25.1 4.4 5.4 5.4 5.0 15.6 7.7	0.19 0.35 1.49 0.41 0.25 0.20 0.30 0.09 0.13 0.18
047019 047018 047017 047008 047006 047001 047016 047014 047015 047003	Tamar Thrushel Wolf Thrushel Lyd Tamar Lumburn Walkham Tavy Tavy	Potson Bridge Hayne Bridge Combe Park Farm Tinhay Lifton Park Gunnislake Lumburn Bridge Horrabridge Denham / Ludbrook Lopwell	SX SX SX SX SX SX SX SX SX SX	353849 416867 419898 398856 389842 426725 459732 513699 476681 475652	470.3 57.6 31.1 112.7 222.9 916.9 20.5 44.6 197.3 205.9	VA VA FLVA VA MIS MIS	198900 1989-00 1977-99 1969-00 1963.00 1956-00 1976-00 1976-00 1981-00 195780	1261 1237 1210 1195 1285 1259 1344 1730 1660 1563	736 785 723 665 727 782 857 1264 1073 898	525 452 487 530 558 477 487 466 587 665	970 * 1240 929 1051 1045 1200 1269 1689 1605 1125	94 00 81 74 00 74 00 00 58	546 497 439 375 484 431 634 921 835 853	97 98 97 64 64 87 89 83 78	10.98 1.43 0.71 2.38 5.14 22.73 0.56 1.79 6.72 5.87	0.26 0.01 0.00 0.22 0.21 0.76 0.05 0.18 0.72 0.26	08/95 08/95 07/77 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/83 08/76	43.1 122.8 264.9 29.4	.39 .38 .42 .52 .46 .63 .61 .52 .48	28.5 3.8 6.1 12.3 56.2 1.3 3.8 16.5 15.2	0.54 0.04 0.02 0.11 0.62 2.07 0.07 0.36 0.93 0.54
047013 047004 047009 048010 048001 048009 048004 048004 048002 * 048003 *	Withey Brook Lynher Tiddy Seaton Fowey St Neot Warleggan Fowey Fowey Fal	Bastreet Pillaton Mill Tideford Trebrownbridge Trekeivesteps Craigshill Wood Trengoffe Restormel Restormel regony	SX SX SX SX SX SX SX SX SX SX	244764 369626 344596 299595 227698 184662 159674 098624 108613 921447	16.2 135.5 37.2 39.1 36.8 22.7 25.3 169.1 171.2 87.0	CC VA C CC CC CC CC CC CC VA FLVA	197200 196300 1969-00 195700 195700 1957-00 1969-00 1961-00 196184 1978-00	1752 1473 1321 1389 1700 1574 1497 1519 1494 1295	1193 1062 799 832 1189 1050 1057 917 939 766	559 411 522 557 511 524 440 602 555 529	1956 1575 1150 1140 1768 1645 1690 1388 1337 1082	74 74 00 74 00 74 00 74 74 00	816 679 505 527 808 709 762 633 468 546	89 64 73 71 89 89 75 89	0.61 4.56 0.94 1.03 1.39 0.76 0.85 4.92 5.09 2.11	0.06 0.34 0.08 0.15 0.12 0.08 0.12 0.34 0.23 0.35	09/96 08/76 08/76 09/59 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/75 08/89	45.3 5.7 6.4 15.9 8.4 9.1 43.7 54.5 13.4	.56 .60 .61 .73 .63 .63 .63 .65 .65	1.4 10.4 2.3 3.0 1.4 1.7 11.1 10.5 4.6	0.10 0.68 0.14 0.22 0.25 0.18 0.19 0.81 1.12 0.45
048005 048007 048006 * 049002 049004 049003 049001 050005 050011 050009	Kenwyn Kennal Cober Hayle Gannel De Lank Camel Camel West Okement Ukernent Lew	Truro Ponsanooth Heiston St Erth Gwills De Lank Denby Vellake Jacobstowe Nodey Bridge	SW SW SW SW SX SX SX SS SX SS	820450 762377 654273 549341 829593 133765 017682 557903 592019 501999	19.1 26.5 40.1 47.6 41.0 21.5 208.8 13.3 82.1 20.2	CC C CC CC CC VA MIS VA	1968-00 1968-00 1968-89 1957.00 1969-00 1967.00 1964-00 1975.00 1973.00 1988-00	1141 1350 1272 1124 1082 1695 1419 2110 1534 1312	644 614 779 676 545 1128 922 1643 1006 831	497 736 493 448 537 567 497 467 528 481	994 902 1055 882 735 1613 1448 2170 1495 1179	94 94 79 93 74 00 00 74 00	434 364 580 433 376 798 616 1103 692 559	71 89 83 71 89 76 71 76 97	0.39 0.52 0.99 1.02 0.71 0.77 6.10 0.69 2.62 0.53	0.03 0.04 0.09 0.17 0.03 0.42 0.06 0.14 >0.00	08/76 09/90 08/84 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 07/89 08/76 08/95	5.6 3.9 5.2 4.5 14.0 13.6 53.1 23.9	.67 .68 .74 .83 .69 .57 .62 .31 .49 .35	0.9 1.2 2.1 2.2 1.6 1.7 13.7 1.7 6.3 1.3	0.05 0.08 0.17 0.23 0.10 0.09 0.08 0.08 0.08 0.03 0.02

SOUTH WEST REGION

116								,	•.	H Y	YDR	0	LO	GΙ	CA	LĎA	ATA	: 19	96	-20	00
Station number	Rivername	Station name		Grid reference	Catchment area (**	Station type	Period of record	Mean ann. rainfall (mm)	. Mean ann. runoff 	. Mean ann. Ioss ' (mn)	, Max. ann: runoff (mm)	Уваг оf тах.	Min. ann. runoff (mm)	Year of min.	Mean flow (m³s -1)	Min. mon. flow (m²='1)	Month/Year of min.	Median ann. flood (m³• *¹)	Base Flow Index	10 Percentile (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m ³ * ⁻¹)
050008 050010 050002 050012 050006 050001 051002 051003 051001	Lew Torridge Taw Yeo Male Taw Horner Water Washford Doniford St	Gribbleford Br Rockhay Bridge Torrington Taw Bridge Veraby Woodleigh Umberleigh West Luccombe Beggearn Huish Swill Bridge	SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS ST ST	528014 507070 500185 673068 775267 660211 608237 898458 040395 088428	71.1 257.8 663.0 71.4 53.7 327.5 826.2 20.8 36.3 75.8	VA VA VA VA VA C FV	1988-00 1988-00 1960.00 1968.00 1968.00 1968-00 1958-00 1958-00 1966.00 1966.00	1287 1352 1203 1275 1361 1364 1180 1524 1206 950	717 922 762 872 995 858 705 725 728 442	570 430 441 403 366 506 475 799 478 508	1002 1375 1043 1407 1711 1284 1053 1029 1275 773	00 94 94 94 00 60 00 00	448 678 427 515 644 558 432 447 335 188	97 96 64 75 75 64 75 73 73	1.62 7.54 16.01 -1.98 1.70 8.91 18.48 0.48 0.84 1.06	>0.00 0.15 0.25 0.05 0.05 0.32 0.42 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.10	08/95 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 10/78 08/76	244.4 34.1 261.1 219.0 6.4 5.9 12.2	.31 .35 .38 .47 .42 .47 .43 .60 .62 .66	4.3 19.7 40.5 5.1 3.8 21.6 48.5 1.1 2.1 2.4	0.03 0.34 0.89 0.15 0.84 1.22 0.06 0.12 0.20
052020 052002 052006 052007 052004 052008 052014 052005 052025 052023	 Gallica St Yeo Yeo Parrett Isle Tone Tone Tone Hillfarrance Halsewater 	Gallica Bridge Sutton B' Res Pen Mill Chiselborough Ashford Mill Clatworthy Res Greenham Bishops Hull Milverton Halsewater	ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST	571100 555106 573161 461144 361188 043312 078202 206250 113270 206253	, 16.4 30.3 213.1 74.8 90.1 18.1 57.2 202.0 27.8 87.8	MIS C VA C VA C VA FVVA FV FV	196678 1956-68 1963-00 1966-00 1962-00 1960-68 196700 1961-00 1992-00 196100	948 998 904 929 912 1275 1150 1006 1186 893	465 411 375 508 474 559 578 492 640 407	483 587 529 421 438 716 572 514 546 486	623 752 629 960 737 671 964 738 807 668	67 60 00 66 70 66 70 99 00	263 146 162 238 176 204 400 250 489 182	75 64 73 64 64 89 64 96 73	0.24 0.40 2.53 1.20 1.35 0.32 1.05 3.15 0.56 1.13	>0.00 0.03 0.17 0.09 0.15 0.06 0.01 0.27 0.10 0.18	08/76 07/65 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/67 10/75 08/76 08/95 08/76	20.3 43.8 27.6 26.2 14.2 66.7 9.7	.27 .19 .42 .41 .47 .46 .61 .58 .68 .72	0.5 1.3 6.3 2.4 3.0 0.9 2.4 6.8 1.3 2.3	0.01 0.33 0.18 0.27 0.06 0.14 0.61 0.13 0.28
052016 052011 052026 052010 052009 052001 052017 • 052015 053023 053024	Currypool St Cary Alham Brue Sheppey Axe Congresbury Land Yeo Sherston Avon Tetbury Avon	Currypool Farm Somerton Higher Alham Lovington Fenny Castle Wookay Iwood Wraxall Bridge Fosseway Brokenborough	ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST	221382 498291 679411 590318 498439 527458 452631 483716 891870 914893	15.7 82.4 5.1 135.2 59.6 18.2 66.6 23.3 89.7 73.6	C VA CCVA FV C VA C VA FL C C FV FV	1971-00 1965-00 1983.00 1964.00 1964.00 1956-68 1973.00 1971.00 1976.00 1978-00	947 751 1055 902 977 1176 1009 952 873 865	434 313 905 445 582 988 382 357 350 301	513 438 150 457 395 188 627 595 523 564	649 571 1441 780 956 1260 709 658 549 446	00 00 00 00 60 00 00 00	225 180 579 269 337 688 237 215 217 148	73 75 97 73 64 59 90 73 90 97	0.22 0.82 0.15 1.91 1.10 0.57 0.81 0.26 1.00 0.70	0.04 0.01 0.13 0.17 0.08 0.17 0.03 0.09 0.04	08/76 09/84 08/76 09/64 10/59 08/95 08/76 10/79 10/79	2.6 10.0 48.0 7.5 7,7 2.5 6.9	.71 .37 .77 .67 .67 .69 .65 .61	0.4 2.1 0.3 4.4 2.3 1.1 1.7 0.6 2.4 1.7	0.06 0.05 0.03 0.24 0.26 0.12 0.22 0.05 0.12 0.05
053019 053020 053008 053013 053015 053002 053029 053029 053016 053025	Woodbr' Brk Gauze Brook Avon Marden • Avon • Spring Flow Biss • Spring Flow Mells	Crab Mill Rodbourne Great Somerford Stanley Melksham Tiswell Semington Trowbridge Dunkerton Vallis	ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST	946866 937840 966832 955729 903641 902524 907605 857576 803399 757491	46.6 28.2 303.0 99.2 665.6 0.0 157.7 77.6 1.2 119.0	TPCLANAV CLANAV C	1969-00 1968-00 1964-00 1970-00 1973-80 1973-77 1953-00 1984-00 1973-79 1980-00	763 809 834 771 779 748 795 955 1107	393 311 349 387 316 292 338 456	370 498 485 384 463 456 457 651	945 532 574 675 528 605 531 753	00 00 60 75 00 78 00	131 117 140 199 118 130 172 324	73 73 73 73 73 73 76 73 97 73 97	0.58 0.28 3.36 1.22 6.67 0.58 1.46 0.83 9.05 1.72	0.00 >0.00 0.15 0.55 0.25 0.19 0.11 4.57 0.17	08/76 08/76 08/76 10/55 09/76 07/76 0 9/96 10/73 08/89	22.1 3.6 36.8 15.0 59.6 25.9 20.8	.33 .51 .58 .64 .55 .94 .56 .50 .74 .57	1.1 0.7 8.2 2.6 15.1 0.8 2.8 2.0 15.6 4.0	0.03 0.02 0.34 0.26 0.26 0.26 0.13 4.49 0.22
053007 053009 053005 053028 053018 053013 053022 053017 053004 053026	Frome Wellow Brk Midford Brk By Brook Avon Avon Avon Boyd Chew Frome(Bristol)	Tellisford Wellow Midford Bathford Bath St James Bath ultrasonic Bitton Compton Dando Frampton Cott'll	ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST	805564 741581 763611 813688 785670 751651 738651 681698 648647 667822	261.6 72.6 147.4 102.0 1552.0 1695.0 1605.0 47.9 129.5 78.5	FL FV VA VS FL C	1961-00 1966-00 196100 1982-00 1969-00 193969 1976-84 1973-00 195800 1978-00	979 1035 994 903 850 837 903 821 1024 844	460 568 488 506 362 400 437 371 284 425	519 467 506 397 488 437 466 450 740 419	759 867 814 780 703 605 492 571 623 697	00 00 00 00 66 82 00 00 99	281 331 284 313 211 221 366 238 132 238	64 73 90 73 42 78 90 64 90	3.82 1.31 2.28 1.64 17.80 20.24 22.22 0.56 1.17 1.06	0.29 0.12 0.22 0.16 1.72 1.15 4.03 0.02 0.20 0.07	08/76 08/76 09/90 08/76 07/41 07/84 08/76 08/76 08/76	58.0 13.5 28.3 167.0 127.7 12.6 29.8	.53 .62 .61 .65 .59 .63 .59 .46 .61 .42	8.8 2.9 5.1 4.1 39.8 43.8 49.1 1.4 2.4 2.6	0.61 0.24 0.42 0.23 2.88 2.32 4.50 0.05 0.33 0.11
053006 054088	Frome(Bristol) Little Avon	Frenchay Berkeley Kennels	ST ST	637772 683988	148.9 134.0	FL VA	1961-00 1978-00	820 644	364 256	456 588	559 450	00 00	170 173	73 91	1.72 1.09	0.12 0,14	07/76 08/98	29.0 27.7	.39 .57	4.2 2.2	0.20 0.27

• •

-

Hydron	netric Sta	atistics		Period	Rainfail (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (^{m1} s ⁻¹)	Peak flow (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	Date of peak	MIn. daily flow (^{m1} 4- ¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m ³ e ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	95 Percentile [(^{m1} e ⁻¹)
043014 M.A: EA F.A.R: N	East Av Local No: 432110 Level: 92m	von at Upavon Sens.: 9.3 LIE: 02	C.A: 36.2 km ² S/full: 6.0m ³ s ⁺¹ FAI: 1.000	7195	776		689		0.79	6.2	03/02 1990	0.30	26/08 1976	1.2	0.68	0.44
Comment: Crump pro	ofile weir, crest 3.05m broad	I. Station adjacent to We	est Avon at Upavon (43017); ir confluence at Upavor, Full	1996 1997	621 693	80 89	627 446	91 65	0.72 0.51	2.2 1.5	08/01 20/11	0.44	08/08 21/07	1.0 0.7	0.62 0.51	0.47 0.37
range station. Occasi	ional u/s hatch action. # P	redominantly Upper Gr	reensand and Lower Chalk;	1998	912	118	711	103	0.82	2.8	25/12	0.47	20/08	1.1	0.73	0.50
some Gault. Upper predominantly pastors	Chalk and clay form N a al.	nd extreme S borders	s of catchment. Land use:	1999 2000	883 1084	114 140	817 1135	119 165	0.94 1.30	3.6 6.4	24/12 30/10	0.52 0.69	01/08 25/08	1.5 2.1	0.78 1.08	0.57 0.74
043017 M.A: EA F.A.R: G	West A Local No: 432120 Level: 92m	von at Upavon Sens.: 27.5 UE: .02	C.A: 76.0 km ² S/tuli: 9.2m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 1.000	7195	769		277		0.67	11.0	03/02 1990	0.02	27/08 1976	1.5	0.40	0.11
Comment: Crump pro	ofile weir, crest 4.57m broad	d. Station adjacent to Ea	ast Avon at Upavon (43014);	1996	598	78	200	72	0.48	3.1	24/02	0.10	17/09	1.1	0.28	0.11
the two weirs gauge the	he two branches of the Avor	n immediately u/s of thei	ir confluence at Upavon. Full	1997	683	- 89	117	42	0.28	2.0	26/12	0.07	20/08	0.6	0.20	0.10
Chaik: some Gault U	gw abstractions in catchme Ioner Chaik and clay form I	N and extreme S borde	pper Greensand and Lower ers of catchment. Land use:	1998	900	117	307	120	0.89	4.5	24/12	0.23	31/07	1.7	0.55	0.20
rural.	ppor grain and day lotin			2000	1088	141	549	198	1.32	10.6	30/10	0.28	07/09	2.6	0.93	0.30

	Perlad	Roinfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m's ')	Peak flow (m'e'')	Date of peak	Min. dally Row (m'a'')	Date of min,	10 Percentile (m ¹ e ¹⁺)	50 Percentile (m's'')	95 Percentile (m³s*1)
043005 Avon at Amesbury C.A: 323.7 km² M.A: EA Local No: 432130 Sens.: 9.8 Byfug: 1.4m³s ⁻¹	6595	772		337		3.46	28.5	04/02 1990	0.17	22/08 1976	6.6	2.76	1.12
F.A.R: G Level: 67m UE: .02 FAI: 1.000 Comment: Crump profile weir (cress 9.14m broad) flanked by broad-crested weirs. Small bypass channel approx. 2m t/s of weir - included in rating. Full range station, During summer, flows are naturally augmented from gw draining from northern half of R. Bourne catchinert. Some gw pumping also takes place within the catchment. # Predominantly permeable (Chark) catchment with a small infier of Upper Greensand and Gaut. Land use: rural. Topographical and gw catchments do not coincide.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	605 672 887 874 1071	78 87 115 113 139	278 157 372 381 600	82 47 110 113 178	2.85 1.61 3.82 3.91 6.14	7.4 4.4 11.8 14.4d 26.0	12/02 27/12 06/01 20/01 08/12	0.89 0.70 1.29 1.37 1.93	19/09 05/10 08/10 15/09 13/09	5.4 2.6 6.0 7.8 10.4	1.98 1.47 3.76 2.93 5.50	0.99 0.79 1.50 1.54 2.21
043012 Wytye at Norton Bavant C.A: 112.4 km² M.A: EA Local No: 432320 Sens.: 14.8 Syfull: 13.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A. P: CE Local No: 402320 Sens.: 14.8 Syfull: 30.0m³s ⁻¹	7195	937		307		1.09	7.3	03/02 1990	0.23	10/07 1976	2.1	0.81	0.44
FANC GE Level 97/m UE: U2 FAI: U5/78 Comment: Crump profile weir, crest 6.09m broad. Full range station. Out-of-bank flow may occur just u/s before bankfull at gauging station. Substantial groundwater abstractions and hatcheries u/s affect flow. Some augmentation from effluent returns. # Geology: Chalk with Upper Greensand and Gautt in higher parts of catchment. Land use: rural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	771 855 1083 1074 1296	82 91 116 115 138	273 213 348 351 . 500	89 69 113 114 163	0.97 0.76 1.24 1.25 1.78	3.2 2.7 5.7 5.9 7.0	12/02 17/02 31/10 26/12 30/10	0.44 0.41 0.49 0.49 0.56	31/08 30/09 20/09 23/08 10/09	1.7 1.4 2.4 2.5 3.2	0.77 0.61 1.06 0.95 1.54	0.49 0.45 0.53 0.53 0.63
043008 Wylye at South Newton C.A: 445.4 km² M.A: EA Local No: 432330 Sens.: 7.4 B/ful#: 36.9m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: N Level: 55m UF: 0.1 FAI: 0.072	67-95	848		288		4.06	29.8	02/02 1995	0.56	26/08 1976	8.6	2.99	1.17
Comment: Crump profile weir, crest 10.7m broad. Full range station. Subject to drowning at high discharges. Heavy weed growth during summer months. Stuice control us for river regulation. # Predominantly Chalk with Upper Greensand and Gault in higher parts of catchment. Land use: rural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	690 783 985 1000 1211	81 92 116 118 143	228 152 329 298 507	79 53 114 103 176	3.22 2.15 4.65 4.21 7.14	8.8 5.2 14.8 19.0d 27.9	12/02 31/12 06/01 20/01 13/12	0.97 0.86 1.36 1.06 1.68	13/10 03/11 15/10 13/09 13/09	6.6 4.1 8.5 10.4 13.1	2.06 1.73 4.23 2.68 6.38	1.05 0.97 1.47 1.19 1.88
043006 Nadder at Wilton C.A: 220.6 km² M.A: EA Local No: 432210 Sens.; 18.8 B/fult: 43.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: N Level: 51m UE; <.01	66-95	906		406		2.84	47.9	28/12 1979	0.49	24/08 1976	5.7	2.11	0.91
Comment: Crump weir, crest 18.3m broad. Crest tapping in operation for first few months and then abandoned - modular limit (0.6m) sedom reached. Flows greater than 18.3 m ³ s ⁻¹ measured u/s of weir at Bull Bridge. Stuices and hatches can regulate flow for short periods. Minor groundwater pumping in catchment. # Mixed geology - predominantly Chalk with clays in upper catchment. Land use: rural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	761 872 1013 1042 1228	84 96 112 115 136	357 315 463 482 725	88 78 114 119 179	2.49 2.21 3.24 3.37 5.06	16.5 14.0 22.4 23.3 34.9	20/11 21/11 05/01 25/12 06/11	0.93 0.81 0.98 1.07 1.30	23/10 03/10 23/09 15/09 09/09	4.8 4.4 6.7 6.9 9.5	1.98 1.60 2.59 2.42 4.25	0.99 0.86 1.08 1.25 1.49
043004 Bourne at Laverstock C.A: 263.6 km² M.A: EA Local No: 432410 Sens.: 13.2 S/full: 8.6m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: N Level: 46m UE: .02 FAL: 1.000	6595	783		91		0.76	8.0	10/08 1989	0.05	27/08 1976	1.5	0.54	0.20
Comment: Crump weir, crest 3m broad. Theoretically rated, Situated approx. 1.6m u/s of confluence with R. Avon. Out of bank flow may occur just u/s of station when flow exceeds 6 m ³ s ⁻¹ . Bypass channel u/s of gauging station, but shuice is closed and no longer operates. Heavy weedgrowth during summer months, needs regular maintenance. # Permeable Chelk catchurent. Land use rural with some small settlements.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	629 696 889 889 1104	80 89 114 114 141	66 43 83 99 166	73 47 91 109 182	0.55 0.36 0.69 0.82 1.38	1.4 1.3 2.0 3.4 6.7	12/02 24/02 05/01 26/01 12/12	0.16 0.13 0.21 0.24 0.26	17/09 03/10 29/08 30/07 13/09	1.0 0.6 1.1 1.8 2.2	0.43 0.35 0.75 0.55 1.08	0.18 0.15 0.24 0.28 0.33
043003 Avon at East Mills C.A: 1477.8 km² M.A: EA Local No: 432612 Sens.: F.A.P: N Level: m LIE: 0.1	6595	833		329		15.41	62.5d	01/02 1995	2.52	26/08 1976	29.3	12.40	5.67
Comment: Combined station: Critical depth rectangular flume (local no. 432610, C.A.:1477.8 sq.km) and complementary compound Crump profile weir with central notch fish pass (local no. 432620, C.A.:1448.0 sq.km). Low-medium flow range station. Small intgation carrier is fed from R. Avon 3km u/s at Burgate and bypasses gauging station (normally >3% total flow). High flows are channelled along carrier and, generally, peak at East Mills is unrepresentative. High flow gauged from Fordingbridge bypass bridge. Pre-Sep 1965 flows for flume onty. # Predominantly permeable (Chalk) catchment. Land use: rural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	677 767 950 957 1159	81 92 114 115 139	272 202 357 361	83 61 109 110	12.70 9.47 16.75 16.91	32.6d 24.6d 51.3d 53.3d	09/01 25/02 07/01 21/01	4.91 4.37 6.19 6.22	16/10 05/10 23/09 14/09	23.0 17.0 28.1 33.7	9.86 7.89 15.52 13.02	5.19 4.64 6.60 6.90
043021 Avon at Knapp MIII C.A: 1706.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: 432820 Sens.: B/full: 55.0m³s ⁻¹ EA B: D Local No: 432820 Sens.: B/full: 55.0m³s ⁻¹	7595	824		364		19.71	99.5	19/09 1978	2.49	22/08 1976	39.0	15.47	6.44
Comment: Ultrasonic station - dual path. The station level refers to mean bed level - 0.875m aOD. Both banks are piled and the bed is dredged to form a rectangular cross-section. Up to Aug 1988 - very limited number of flow readings logged per day. Monthly check gaugings confirm improved US performance. Substantial bypassing when flows in excess of 40-45 m ³ . Some abstraction for PWS in catchment. # Mixed geology - predominantly Chalk; lower catchment composed of sands, paralele and close L and upon prole	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	688 777 954 955 1160	83 94 116 116 141	302 231 365 515	83 63 100 141	16.29 12.48 19.73 27.81	49.3 38.9 <i>51.8</i> 63.3	10/01 26/02 20/01 12/12	5.59 5.42 6.59 8.13	18/09 05/10 01/08 13/09	30.5 22.8 43.3 46.6	12.35 10.31 15.10 28.24	6.12 5.74 7.34 9.19
943019 Shreen Water at Colesbrook C.A: 29.1 km² M.A: EA Local No: 433110 Sens.: 10.0 B/full: 6.8m³s⁻¹	7395	893		586		0.54	21.2	30/05 1979	0.14	22/08	1.0	0.38	0.19
F.A.R: G Level: 72m UE: FAI; Comment: Crump profile weir, crest 3m broad. Theoretically rated. Structure drowns at high flows below bankfull. Significant gw pumping in catchment. Some augmentation from effluent ratums. Runoff figures suggest topographical and hydrological catchment areas do not coincide. Flashy response. # Predominantly Kimmeridge Clay. Some Chalk and Upper Greensand in the north of the catchment. Land use: agricultural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	750 838 1029 1026 1248	84 94 115 115 140	457 409 644 666 911	78 70 110 114 155	0.42 0.38 0.59 0.62 0.84	4.5 12.9 14.8 10.8 22.9	11/02 20/11 03/11 24/12 29/10	0.18 0.14 0.22 0.24 0.29	18/09 28/10 23/09 11/09 07/09	0.7 0.7 1.0 1.2 1.5	0.31 0.25 0.39 0.44 0.59	0.19 0.16 0.25 0.26 0.32
043009 Stour st Hammoon C.A: 523.1 km² M.A: E.A. Local No; 433410 Sens.: 136.0 S/full: 60.0m³s ⁻¹	6895	861		432		7.16	231.4	27/12 1979	0.22	02/11 1975	19,7	2.25	0.62
F.A.R. PG Level: 41m UE: <.01 FAI: 0.993 Comment: Compound Crump profile weir with low flow crest 6.1m broad, total breadth 18,3m. Structure situated under road bridge. High flows calibrated up to 3.1m. Water meadow system operates - area floods during high discharges; bypassing of station occurs and gaugings are made d/ s at Haywoods Bridge (ST824120). Severe weed growth affects flow. Substantial ground and surface water abstractions within the catchment. # Predominantly impermeable (clay) catchment. Rural land use.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	759 842 988 980 1187	88 98 115 114 138	388 397 584 631 868	90 92 135 146 201	6.41 6.58 9.69 10.47 14.36	110.8 102.8 132.3 157.6 186.8	09/02 20/11 01/11 24/12 30/10	0.56 0.60 0.71 0.69 0.73	23/07 22/07 09/08 31/07 02/08	15.0 19.2 27.6 30.4 39.7	2.06 1.56 3.06 3.05 5.00	0.63 0.67 0.82 0.85 1.05
043010 Atlen at Loverley Mill C.A: 94.0 km ² M.A: EA Local No: 433530 Sens.: 12.2	70 9 5	888		343		1.02	8.1d	19/02 1990	0.08	07/09 1990	2.6	0.58	0.17
F.A.R: PGE Level: 37m UE: <.01 FAI: 0979 Comment: Crump weir situated under old mill house. Calculation of flows only possible under finite hatch settings at u/s hatches controlling flow into old mill pond. Frequent hatch action. Station full- range. # Chalk catchment. Rural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	769 864 997 981 1217	87 97 112 110 137	234 214 420 357 627	68 62 122 104 183	0.70 0.64 1.25 1.06 1.86	2.2 2.4 6.7 6.7 · 7.4	24/01 18/12 13/01 25/01 14/12	0,10 0,18 0,22 0,22 0,24	15/10 02/08 22/09 04/09 13/09	1.7 1.6 2.6 2.6 4.0	0.48 0.44 0.86 0.63 1.41	0.11 0.20 0.25 0.24 0.27
043018 Allen at Walford Mill C.A: 176.5 km² M.A: EA Local No: 433540 Sens.: 19.4 B/bill: 14.1m³s ⁻¹ EA DP. BC Lavel: 19m Utscot Et Local	7495	856		334		1.87	13.1	14/02 1990	0.07	23/08 1976	4.5	1.16	0,29
Comment: Two Crump profile weirs: main channel weir crest 6.1m broad; secondary weir in mill stream adjacent to main channel - 0.9m broad. Rating includes mill channel. Weed growth occasionally causes structure to drown out. Hatch activity u/s of station. Minor surface and gw abstractions in catchment. Compensation discharge maintains low flows. # Upper catchment - Chalk, lower catchment - sands, gravets and clays. Land use: predominantly rurat.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	761 850 975 940 1185	88 98 113 109 137	258 229 405 344 604	77 69 121 103 181	1,44 1,28 2,27 1,93 3,37	5.4 5.0 9.8 9.2 17.3	12/02 24/12 13/01 19/01 12/12	0.24 0.35 0.46 0.38 0.52	08/08 02/08 01/09 01/08 31/08	3.3 2.9 4.7 5.0 6.4	1:15 0.93 1.62 1,11 2.88	0.28 0.42 0.54 0.44 0.56

	Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m²a*')	Peak flow (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	. Date of peak	Min. dally flow (^{m3} s ⁺¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m³a ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m³a*1)	95 Percentlle (m ¹ 4- ¹)
D43007 Stour at Throop C.A: 1073.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: 433710 Sens.: 4.2 S/full: 128.0m³s ⁻¹	73-95	863		395		13.43	280.0	28/12 1979	1,12	13/08 1976	30.3	7.88	2.52
F.A.R: PGE Level: 4m UE: 02 UE: 02 UE: 02 UE: 02 AI: 0.990 Comment: Compound Crump profile weir, centre crest 5m broad and 2 higher flanking crests 18m broad. Site unapproachable in flood conditions and high flows are measured at Blackwater Bridge (\$2134959). Prior to 1977 high flows measured at Ensbury (3km u/s of station). Reting incorporates flow through two broass channels just u/s of station: mill channel and Lodden Stour. Substantial	1996 1997 1998 1999	774 861 992 966	90 100 115 112	339 301 462 449	86 76 117 114	11.51 10.24 15.71 15.29	86.5 73.6 129.2 157.6	14/02 22/11 06/01 25/12	1.95 2.31 3.13 2.81	21/08 02/08 30/08 01/08	24.1 25.6 34.2 34.2	7.78 5.86 10.24 8.70	2.53 2.60 3.30 3.09
ground and surface water abstractions. Some effluent returns. # Mixed geology - predominantly Chalk with some day. Land use: rural.	2000	1197	139	685	173	23.23	171.2	31/10	3.25	14/09	51.0	14.32	3.91
U44002 Piddle at Baggs Mill C.A.: 183.1 km² M.A.: EA Local No: 444510 Sens.: 7.9 S/full: 16.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: G Level; 2m UE: <.01	6395	963	03	411	63	2.38	.1 1. 9 6.8	08/01 1968	0.36	23/08 1976	4.8	1.84	0.76
m ³ s ⁻¹ station is bypassed - estimate of flows made through arches of railway bridge. Complex water meadow system 2-3km u/s can result in mixor short period fluctuations in the river flow. Major groundwater abstractions in catchment. # Upper catchment - Chafk; lower - sands, gravels and clays. Land use is predominantly agricultural.	1997 1998 1999 2000	1010 1116 1051 1321	105 116 109 137	354 506 441 604	86 123 107 147	2.05 2.94 2.56 3.50	7.9 9.2 8.9 10.9	28/11 08/01 20/01 13/12	0.82 0.95 0.89 0.98	29/07 22/09 15/09 14/09	4.3 5.4 5.6 6.9	1.55 1.58 2.66 1.83 3.02	0.95 1.03 0.99 1.09
044006 Sydling Water at Sydling St Nicholas C.A: 12.4 km² M.A: EA Local No: 445410 Sens.: 25.0 S/full: 1.0m³s⁻¹ F.A.R: N Level: 110m UE: <.01	6995	1055		463		0.18	1.6	30/05 1979	0.04	19/08 1976	0.4	0.14	0.06
Comment: Crump profile weir, crest 1.95m broad. Modular under all flow conditions. # Predominantly Lower Chalk with small outcrops of Middle and Upper Chalk forming higher ground flanking the catchment. Mainly pastoral with some arable agriculture on flatter ground.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1006 ,1144 1275 1251 1576	95 108 121 119 149	492 391 598 580 739	106 84 129 125 160	0.19 0.15 0.24 0.23 0.29	0.7 0.8 1.3 1.5 1.7	19/11 27/11 05/01 23/12 31/12	0.07 0.06 0.09 0.09 0.09	06/10 17/09 20/09 13/09 23/09	0.4 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.5	0.16 0.12 0.22 0.18 0.25	0.08 0.06 0.09 0.10 0.10
044004 Frome at Dorchester Total C.A: 206.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: 445512 Sens.: 15.1	7195	1037		470		3.07	16.7d	07/02 1990	0.27	27/08 1976	6.1	2.40	0.83
F.A.R: G Level: m UE: <.01 EA: 0.973 Comment: Combined station: Louds Mill (local no. 445510) - two Crump profile weirs: crests 10.66m (side-spilling) and 1.52m broad. Rating includes side channel and is modular to 10 m ³ s ⁻¹ . Complimentary Crump profile weir at Stinsford (local no. 445520), crest 3.04m wide, is modular to 4.6 m ³ s ⁻¹ . Stinsford may drown due to weed growth d/s. Minor gw abstractions in catchment. Flows exist prior to 10/71 for Loudsmill only. # Geology: predominantly Chalk with Upper Greensand and Gault, Lias and Oolites in headwaters. Land use: rural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	975 1112 1199 1170 1468	94 107 116 113 142	444 389 551 511	94 83 117 109	2.89 2.54 3.60 3.34	9.6d 11.8d 15.6d 14.3d	09/02 28/11 05/01 20/01	0.83 0.89 1.04 0.97	18/09 02/08 23/09 14/09	5.6 5.4 6.7 6.7	2.38 1.92 3.15 2.51	0.90 0.94 1.16 1.20
044008 Sth Winterbourne at W'bourne Steepleton C.A: 19.9 km² M.A: EA Local No: 445610 Sens.: 60.0	74.,95	1080		158		0.10	1.6	01/06 1981	>0.00	14/02 1976	0.2	0.05	0.01
F.A.R: G Level: 90m UE: <.01 FAI: 1.000 Comment: Crump V profile weir installed for low flow monitoring and year round enforcement of minimum prescribed flow conditions on PWS abstraction licence. Compensation water input 1km u/s of weir. # Chafk catchment. Rural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	923 1097 1143 1095 1353	85 102 106 101 125	102 82 160 123 202	65 52 101 78 128	0.06 0.05 0.10 0.08 0.13	0.3 0.3 0.9 0.4 0.8	23/02 30/12 05/01 23/01 14/12	0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.02	22/09 31/08 15/10 14/09 11/09	0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3	0.04 0.03 0.06 0.05 0.11	0.01 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.02
044001 Frome at East Stoke Total C.A: 414.4 km² M.A: EA Local No: 445912 Sens.: 5.7	6595	1001		495		6.50	25.9d	06/01 1994	0.95	27/08 1976	12.2	5.37	2.21
F.A.R. N. Level: In Level: The Level: The Level: DE: UE: AI: Comment: Comments datation of: rectangutar critical depth flume, 3,05m wide, bounded by two broad-crested weirs (local no. 445910) and complementary Crump profile weir on bypass channel, 3,565m wide (local no. 445920). Low floodbank constructed on its to confine all flows within designed measuring range of flume - 21.5 m ³ / ₈ ⁻¹ . Structure limit of weir 4.36 m ³ / ₈ ⁻¹ . Flows prior to 1966 for flume only. # Geology: Mainly Chalk; Upper Greensand and Gault, Lias and Oolites in headwaters;	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	930 1064 1135 1100 1343	93 106 113 110 134	411 372 502 457	83 75 101 92	5.39 4.89 6.59 6.01	17.5d 19.2d 23.2d 23.5d	12/02 28/11 08/01 20/01	1.75 1.79 2.18 1.83	13/09 04/10 30/08 15/09	9.8 10.0 12.5 12.1	4.56 3.86 5.68 4.60	- 1.93 1.94 2.33 2.07
sands, gravels and clays in lower catchment. 044009 Wey at Broadwey C.A: 7.0 km ²	7595	900		1397		0.31	5.5	30/12	0.06	08/10	0.7	0.22	0.09
M.A: EA Local No: 446020 Sens.: 20.0 B/hull: 3.3m*s F.A.R: G Level: 18m UE: <.01 FAI: 1.000 Comment: Flat V Crump profile weir, crest 4.5m broad. Full range station. Structure capacity 3.3	1996	807	90	1207	86	0.27	0.9	1993 09/02	0.09	1989 03/10	0.5	0.21	0.10
m°s . Substantial groundwater abstraction affecting headwaters at Upwey. Some hatch activity u/s. Runoff figures suggest topographical and hydrological catchment areas do not coincide. # Predom- inantly a limestone catchment. Land use: mainly pastoral.	1997 1998 1999 2000	958 1018 946 1108	106 113 105 123	1045 1656 1489 2032	75 119 107 145	0.23 0.37 0.33 0.45	1.6 1.8 5.1 ,	27/11 05/01 23/12	0.08 0.13 0.13	02/11 19/10 12/09	0.5 0.8 0.7 0.8	0,16 0.30 0.25 0.42	0.08 0.14 0.14 0.14
044003 Asker at Bridport C.A: 45.6 km² M.A: EA Local No: 476301 Sens.: 24.5 F.A.R: N Level: 6m UE: .01 FAI: 0.994	6680	988		374		0.58	30.0	30/05 1979	0.11	27/08 1976	1.1	0.39	0.20
Comment: From Mar96, Crump profile weir, 6.3m wide: above 0.618m channel is flanked by sloping shoulders to 7.3m wide, set in vertical walls. Third incarnation at various sites in Bridport. Earlier record inconsistent, incomplete and poor. Rapidly responding flow regime makes gauging difficult.	1996 1997 1998	858 983 995	67 99 101	337	90	0.53	28.3	27/11	0.17	24/09	1.1	0.30	0.18
# Responsive catchment due to steep slopes on Liassic clay and mart.	1999 2000	1038 1282	105 130	399 568	107 152	0.62 0.88	32.9 30.2	23/12 05/11	0.18 0.24	03/08 12/09	1.1 1.8	0.39 0.52	0.21 0.25
U45004 Axe at Whitford C.A: 288.5 km² M.A: EA * Local No: 5291052 Sens: 8.2 S/full: 75,0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: PGEI Level: 7m UE: <.01	6495	1009		550		5.03	244.0	27/12 1979	0.45	07/08 1976	10.7	2.82	1.18
Comment: Compound Crump proteie werr, total word 21.5m, low how section / Joim broad. Cableway on site. Structure limit 2m stage. Unique rating above modular limit. Overspill at 1.95m on left bank with some bypassing, included in the rating. Moderate groundwater and surface water abstractions affect lower flows. # Catchment of moderate relief draining Chalk and Greensand headwaters. Middle and lower reaches Mercia Mudstone; Lias days and more Greensand. Meadowland, low intensity agriculture, woodland. Minor industrial development.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	975 1130 1125 1230 1391	97 112 111 122 138	618 663 704 763	112 121 128 139	5.64 6.07 6.44 6.98	83.2 136.0 101.5 141.9	19/11 27/11 24/10 18/09	1.27 1.48 1.39 1.41	18/09 19/07 30/08 30/07	11.4 14.4 13.8 15.4	3.34 2.54 3.49 3.39	1.43 1.67 1.57 1.58
045008 Otter at Fenny Bridges C.A: 104.2 km² M.A: EA Local No: 5191052 Sens.: 13.7 B/full: 73.0m³s ⁻¹	7495	1045		625		2.06	113.8	20/12 1989	0.22	22/08 1976	4.4	1.11	0.50
r.A.K: P Level: 55m UE: <.01 FAI: 0.996 Comment: Velocity-area station with low level bed control and cableway, situated just u/s of road bridge. Bridge invert acts as control at high levels. Right bank likely to be over topped at 1.6m stage when bypassing likely. Minor surface water abstractions in catchment, sensibly natural flow regime. # Rises in the Greensand and Gault Clay of the Blackdown Hills. Keuper Marl in the lower reaches.	1996 1997 1998 1999	1012 1185 1162 1225	97 113 111 117	632 656 714 773	101 105 114 124	2.08 2.17 2.36 2.56	47.9 141.2 42.3 50.5	20/03 07/08 01/01 23/04	0.50 0.55 0.62 0.55	18/09 01/06 30/08 30/07	4.3 4.6 4.5 5.6	1.27 1.08 1.45 1.37	0.55 0.67 0.69 0.65
Od5005 Otter at Dotton C.A: 202.5 km ²	2000 6295	1339 980	128	915 483	146	3.02 3.10	164.3 347.0	07/12 11/07	0.64 0.44	12/08	5.9 6.2	1.55 1.84	0.68
M.A. EA LOCAI NO: 5081055 Sens.: 10.1 B/full: 88.0m*s** F.A.R: PGEI Level: 15m UE: <.01 B/full: 88.0m*s** Comment: Velocity-area station with cableway. Station rebuilt after 1968 flood. Flat V Crump profile weir installed 1921 Euli range station. Cablema stabilities bed and basis flats and basis for the flat of the state of the	1996 1907	948	97	477	99	3.05	62.0	1968 21/03	0.94	1976 18/09	6.0	1.90	1.00
level states of the full range statuti, Gaudins statutise bed and barris, Low emparitments at held level stated containment. Substantial groundwater and surface water abstractions in catchment. # Rises in Greensand and Gault Clay of the Blackdown Hills. Predominantly Keuper sandstones and marts. Extensive alluvium and valley gravels lower down. Some heathland, woodland and pasture, and a wide range of agriculture.	, 1997 , 1998 1999 2000	1092 1137 1233	111 116 126	473 523 561 657	90 108 116 136	3.04 3.36 3.60 4.21	57.6 70.0 144.6	31/10 18/09 07/12	1.03 0.95 1.05	30/08 30/07 12/08	6.4 7.7 8.3	2.12 2.05 2.23	1.12 1.06 1.12

				Period	Rainfail (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mn)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow {m'a''}	Peak flow (m's'')	Date of peak	Min. daily now (^{m*} a**)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m*e**)	50 Percentite (m*e*1)	95 Percentite (m ¹ s ⁻¹)
045009 MA: EA F A R: SRP	Exe a Local No: 1921014 Level: 128m	tt Pixton Sens≟ 13.3 UE: < 01	C.A: 159.7 km ² B/tal: 90.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FA1: 0.950	66_95	1418		883		4.47	71.6	19/12 1982	0.10	22/08 1976	11.2	2.51	0.59
Comment: Full range of bridge soffit u/s of st abstractions in catchin Exmoor. Predominant	VA station. Shallow rock bar ation is unestablished, atthou ient, low flows significantly at ly Devonian sandstones. Lar	dis of station is natural low gh rating is reliably extrapo fected by Wimbleball Res. Id use moortand, rough gra	faw control, influence fated to bankfull. Minor # Headwaters rise on azing, forestry.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1307 1502 1853 1755 1981	92 106 131 124 140	751 815 1187 1151 1409	85 92 134 130 160	3.79 4.13 6.01 5.83 7.12	27.3 46.5 59.4 45.1 70.2	03/11 27/06 24/10 19/01 29/10	0.71 0.74 0.86 0.77 1.15	21/08 31/01 25/08 13/08 14/08	10.7 10.9 13.7 14.1 16.2	1.90 1.68 2.83 2.77 4.37	0.77 0.92 1.06 1.19 1.32
045002 M.A: EA	Exe at : Local No: 1911008	Stoodleigh Sens.: 6.0	C.A: 421.7 km ² B/full: 150.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6095	1379		928		12.41	232.2	19/12 1965	0.42	25/08 1976	29.0	7.68	1.59
P.A.C. SKPE Comment: Velocity-ai controlled by a stone i backing up at bridge Bypassing included in # Headwaters drain catchment; moorland I	Level: / 3m rea station with cableway sit edge 50m d/s of the gauge. immediately u/s in highest \ rating. Significantly affects Exmoor. Devonian sitst headwaters, grazing and for	UE: <.01 ed on a straight, stable lea floods. Flood refief cutw d by Wimbleball Res. re and Cutm Measures. Ru stry.	FAI; 0.980 ngth of river. Low flow sove bankfull. Liable to ert under road on rb. gulation at low flows. elatively impermeable	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1250 1442 1800 1698 1903	91 105 131 123 138	788 845 1249 1133 1322	85 91 135 122 142	10.51 11.29 16.71 15.15 17.63	98.9 109.4 178.3 165.1 190.8	29/11 12/02 24/10 18/12 29/10	1.60 2.45 2.97 2.14 2.40	05/08 02/05 03/09 01/08 12/08	25.9 28.4 33.6 34.5 39.4	6.94 5.52 9.92 8.42 11.99	1.78 2.81 3.53 2.82 3.26
045001 M.A: EA	Exe at 1 Local No: 1901011	Thorverton Sens.: 11.8	C.A: 600.9 km ² B/fult: 185.0m ³ s ⁻¹	5695	1280		834		15.89	492.8	04/12 1960	0,44	27/08 1976	38.2	9.24	1.90
Comment: Velocity-ar unstable bed condition affected significantly by point for operational re Devonian sandstones the east. Moorland, for	e estation with cableway. Fla I. Minor culvert flow through r y Wimbleball Reservoir and b leases from Wimbleball. # H and Carboniferous Cutm Me restry and a range of agricut	t V Crump profile weir cons t V Crump profile weir cons initi u/s of station included in y exports to the Taw catch eadwaters drain Exmoor. C asures, with subordinate F ture.	rating. Low flows are n rating. Low flows are ment. Station is control Seology predominantly remnian sandstones in	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1146 1320 1607 1563 1707	90 103 126 122 133	682 753 1128 1086 1254	82 90 135 130 150	12.96 14.35 21.49 20.70 23.83	139.8 141.0 250.9 245.3 306.2	29/11 28/11 24/10 19/01 30/10	1.48 2.58 3.00 2.15 2.42	18/08 03/05 31/08 02/08 12/08	34.5 39.1 44.5 46.6 56.1	8.12 6.22 11.64 10.89 14.92	1,64 2,90 3,88 3,21 3,47
045003 M.A: EA F.A.R: PGEL	Cutm at Local No: 2001008 Level: 44m	Wood Mill Sens.: 13.7 UE: < 01	C.A: 226.1 km ² B/full: 42.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.996	6295	970		514		3.68	202.2	11/07 1968	0.46	27/08 1976	7.6	2.23	1.00
Comment: Velocity-ar structure drowned. Full s inundation during fic Moderate surface and Headwaters drain Gre- and marks. Extensive v	rea station with cableway. F I range, Aug 1965 river regrad bods; by-pass flows includer groundwater abstractions a ensand and Gauft Clay. Pre- valley gravels and altuvium. S	Tat V weir built in 1972. I led and d/s obstructions re l in the rating. Data unref ffact low flows. # Rises ir dominantly Permo-Triassic Subdued relief. Agricultural	Channel control when moved. Widespread u/ iable prior to 1/10/62. In the Blackdown Hitts, sandstones, breccias I catchment.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	919 1067 1112 1172 1226	95 110 115 121 126	459 471 583 661 741	89 92 113 129 144	3.28 3.38 4.18 4.74 5.30	43.1 53.1 65.6 81.8 185.4	19/11 06/08 24/10 18/12 07/12	1.01 1.11 1.41 1.31 1.48	18/09 01/06 12/08 30/07 06/08	6.3 6.7 8.1 9.6 10.9	2.25 1.83 2.73 2.85 3.17	1.08 1.26 1.47 1.54 1.53
045012 M.A: EA	Creedy Local No: 4991052 Level: 14m	at Cowley Sens.: 10.8	C.A: 261.6 km ² B/full: 110.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.995	6495	920		455		3.77	124.6	20/12 1993	0.08	17/08 1976	9.1	1.65	0.31
Comment: Velocity-ai contained by rock walls bridge 30m u/s. # A ver Predominantly Culm N Crediton. Low grade a	eastation in deep cutting. s and gabions on rb and by ra e-shaped catchment draining deasures s'sts and shales v griculture, grazing and forest	Rock bars form low flow alway tracks on Ib. C/m by moderate to high relief vali vith some Permo-Trias br ry.	v control. Flood flows wading or from a high leys from the N and W. eccias and sists near	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	806 857 1048 1056 1150	88 93 114 115 125	344 278 487 502 604	76 61 107 110 133	2.85 2.30 4.04 4.16 5.00	54.6 16.9d 85.1 186.7 196.0	08/01 18/11 01/10 18/12 07/12	0.23 0.30 0.39 0.41 0.41	06/09 31/07 31/08 27/07 13/09	6.5 6.6 8.9 9.2 11.0	1.59 1.08 2.00 2.16 2.56	0.27 0.41 0.46 0.56 0.48
046002 M.A: EA F.A.R: SRPE	Teign a Local No: 4871051 Level: 4m	t Preston Sens.: 9.3 UE: < 01	C.A: 381.0 km ² B/full: 86.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.984	5695	1274		770		9.31	312.8	30/09 1960	0.34	28/08 1976	22,4	5.07	1.13
Comment: Velocity-au Bypassing on rb occurs gravel shoal. 4 reservo system rises on Dartm shales, sists and chert agriculture and woodla	rea station, channel width a above 2.4m; some accomm ins and various WRW have n oor Granite moorfand; it trav s before its wide alluvial vall nd.	approx. 15m. Cableway odation for this in rating. Lo inor affect on low flow regi arses a complex of Devon ey crosses Tertiary sands	and steel footbridge. ow flow control is a d/s me. # Bulk of the river ian and Carboniferous and clays. Low grade	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1173 1220 1506 1483 1645	92 96 118 116 129	702 609 938 887	91 79 122 115	8.45 7.36 11.34 10.71	116.9 97.2 122.8 139.3	08/01 18/11 03/01 18/12	0.76 1.30 1.30 1.01	18/09 01/08 01/09 02/08	18.7 19.9 25.7 26.0	6.12 3.70 6.69 6.34	0.99 1.45 1.61 1.21
046005 M.A: EA F.A.R: N	East Dart Local No: 4671051 Level: 309m	at Bellever Sens.: 10.0 UE: <.01	C.A: 21.5 km ² B/full: 50.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 1.000	6495	2085		1801		1.23	67.1	27/12 1979	0.10	07/09 1976	2.7	0.68	0.18
Comment: Velocity-and A natural rock step prov Natural catchment. # \$ moorland. Responsive	ea station, channel width app vides the control, with a conta Steep, very wet upland catc catchment. Flood warning si	roximately 11.5m; cablewa imment berm on the lb. Not hment, draining peat cove lation.	ay approximately 24m. t bypassed, well rated. red Dartmoor Granite	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1917 2038 2730 2327 2494	92 98 131 112 120	1626 1611 2318 2206 2475	90 89 129 122 137	1.11 1.10 1.58 1.50 1.68	42.5 18.6 39.8 46.4 54.5	03/11 24/12 31/10 18/12 31/12	0.16 0.24 0.30 0.20 0.24	18/09 24/04 03/09 03/08 30/08	2.7 2.4 3.3 3.3 3.5	0.67 0.57 0.93 0.87 1.03	0.19 0.27 0.35 0.23 0.28
046007 M.A: EA F.A.R: P	West Dart a Local No: 4671052 Level: 284m	t Dunnabridge Sens.: UE: <.01	C.A: 47.9 km ² B/full: 69.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 1.000	7295	2086		1664		2.53	131.8	27/12 1979	0.14	23/08 1976	5.6	1.36	0.31
Comment: Informal Fil span 30m. In straight Upper 40% of catchme Res.); take varies with catchment of subdued r	at V low flow control 13.5m v reach between two right ha ent affected by interception in time. Responsive catchme relief, high on Dartmoor grani	vide between stone batter nd bends. Possibility of or from Devonport and Priso nt. Closed between 1981 te plateau. Low grade agric	wing walls. Cableway ut-of-bank flow on rb. n leats (feed Burrator and 1991. # Upland utture, peat moorland.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1963 2049 2661 2326 2502	94 98 128 112 120	1516 1584 2334 1992 2312	91 95 140 120 139	2.30 2.41 3.55 3.03 3.50	92.2 17.2d 87.1 88.6 120.5	03/11 17/11 31/10 18/12 31/12	0.32 0.42 0.65 0.43 0.55	16/09 24/04 26/02 02/08 11/08	5.7 5.4 7.1 6.7 7.5	1.27 1.24 2.03 1.59 1.79	0.37 0.54 0.80 0.46 0.64
046003 M.A: EA F.A.R: SR	Dart at Au Local No: 4761051 Level: 22m	stins Bridge Sens.: 7.8 UE: <.01	C.A: 247.6 km ² B/full: 418.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.996	5895	1841		1410		11.07	549.7	27/12 1979	0.59	27/08 1976	25.0	6.96	1.45
Comment: Velocity-an Channel contains the Reservoir operation an flows available. # Upp Granite; lower third is o and at the Granite bou	ea station, main channel ap MAF. Bypassing occurs or d exports via the Devonport er two thirds of catchment d Carboniferous shales and s ndary. Responsive. Low grad	pprox. 30m wide. Rock st h right bank above 4.2m. Leat affect low flows. Short drains moorland associate andstones. The relief is sta le agriculture and woodlan	ep forms d/s control. Well rated. Venford t period of naturalised ad with the Dartmoor sep in the headwaters id.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1692 1838 2247 2079 2325	92 100 122 113 126	1268 1299 1755 1636	90 92 124 116	9.93 10.20 13.78 12.84	224.3 120.4 203.7 328.9	03/11 17/02 31/10 18/12	1.23 2.16 2.21 1.67	19/09 01/08 31/08 03/08	23.9 24.7 28.8 29.5	6.26 5.33 8.61 7.90	1,49 2,40 2,90 1,95
046008 M.A: EA	Avon at I Local No: 4741051	Loddiswell Sens.:	C.A: 102.3 km ² B/futl: 67.0m ³ s ⁻¹	7195	1574		1026		3.33	88.9	27/12 1979	0.16	27/08 1995	8.0	2,11	0.39
Comment: Velocity-are Can be affected by wee ORS in lower reaches woodland in steeply inc	aa station. Cableway span 2: ad growth. # Drains southwar a, Culm Measures between. cised valley.	5.5m. Natural bed control, ds from Dartmoor Granite. Alluvium in valley bottom	re-rated at low flows. Predominantly Lower n. Rural, grazing and	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1559 1633 1944 1800 2031	99 104 124 114 129	971 963 1317 1217	95 94 128 119	3.14 3.12 4.27 3.95	55.7 21.0d 75.2 87.0	03/11 27/11 24/10 18/12	0.33 0.56 0.70 0.50	18/09 01/08 30/08 03/08	7.8 8.2 8.7 8.7	2.06 1.49 2.69 2.36	0.39 0.65 0.92 0.59
046006 M.A: EA F.A.R: PEI	Erme at Local No: 4651051 Level: 8m	Ermington Sens.: 16.6 UE: .02	C.A: 43.5 km ² B/full: 50.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 1.000	7395	1760		1350		1.86	93.4	23/06 1991	0.08	24/08 1976	4.4	1.07	0.23
Comment: Velocity-are by abstractions and div catchment draining S f saction in steep, deep blanketed with river gra	a station, with low level bed ersions for PWS, and sewag lank of Dartmoor Granite. H ly incised valley with short wel and alluvium. Responsiv	control. Well rated. Signific le from tvybridge. # Narrov leadwaters in plateau-like tributaries. Off granite, De e.	ant flow modifications w, linear N-S trending moortand; main river evonian slates widely	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1689 1813 2145 1951 2246	96 103 122 111 128	1272 1612 1663 1452- 1812	94 119 123 108 134	1.75 2.22 2.29 2.00 2.49	41.8 52.5 72.9 52.3 113.6	03/11 27/11 24/10 24/12 31/12	0.24 0.33 0.40 0.26 0.28	18/09 23/04 03/09 03/08 11/08	3.9 5.1 4.8 4.4 5.8	1.07 0.84 1.30 1.09 1.43	0.28 0.38 0.51 0.31 0.34

SOUTH WEST REGION

ł

	Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (^{m³} ª-¹)	Peak flow (^{m³a-1})	🗤 . Date of peak	Min. daily flow (^{m³a-1})	Date of mln.	10 Percentile (^{m³} a ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m ³ s ⁻¹)	95 Percentile
047007 Yealm at Puslinch C.A: 54.9 km ² MA: FA Local No: 4551055 Sens. 18.9 Bifull: 26 0m ³ c ⁻¹	6395	1453		946		1.65	- 30.3	30/12	0.03	23/08	3.8	1.04	0.19
F.A.R. PI Level: 6m ¹ UE: 01 FAI: 0.992 Comment: Low flow rectangular flume, 4.7m throat width, side and bottom contractions, superseded a velocity-area station (formalised trapezoidal channel, variable low flow rating) in Oct 1967. Station closed 23 Aug - 31 Dec 2001 for building works. Bankfull approx. MAF level; d/s bridge truncates peaks. Moderate influence from abstractions and imports. # Headwaters drain Dartmoor Granite and metamorphosed Devonian slates. Most of catchment undertain by Devonian shales and tuffs with subordinate l'st. Land use: meadowland, arable and lower grade agriculture.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1374 1419 1687 1592 1797	95 98 116 110 124	917 846 1163 1059 1344	97 89 123 112 142	1.59 1.47 2.03 1.84 2.33	21.9 26.2 26.2 24.9 26.5	03/11 27/11 24/10 24/12 31/12	0.17 0.19 0.25 0.18 - 0.26	18/09 20/08 30/08 03/08 13/09	3.9 3.8 4.3 4.4 5.4	- 1.09 0.73 1.28 1.14 1.31	0.21 0.28 0.39 0.21 0.31
O47010 Tamar at Crowford Bridge C.A: 76.7 km² M.A: EA Local No: 4291067 Sens.: 26.2 B/full: 66.0m³s ⁻¹ EA P: SPR Lovel: 84m. UE: -011 EA D: 0217	7295	1210		964		2.34	68.8	21/09 1980	0.01	03/08 1975	5.0	0.77	0.08
Comment: Compound Cump profile weir, total crest length 11m. Above 1.65m piers submerge (42 m ³ s ⁻¹). Rating used above this extrapolated from the within pier version. Flows substantially modified by the impoundment of the Tamar Lakes. # River drains coastal hills of W Cornwalt; relief is quite subdued, and rocks outcropping are shales and s'sts of Carboniferous Culm Measures. Wholly rural; moorland and low grade agriculture.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1069 1117 1455 1393 1607	88 92 120 115 133	541 530 921 825 1044	56 55 96 86 108	1.31 1,29 2,24 2,01 2,53	15.1 18.1 19.8 22.8 20.3	29/11 28/11 31/10 18/12 29/10	0.06 0.09 0.19 0.09 0.15	14/09 16/06 28/05 03/08 01/08	3.6 4.0 5.8 5.4 6.6	0.56 0.38 1.04 0.83 1.33	0.08 0.12 0.26 0.14 0.20
047005 Ottery at Werrington Park C.A: 120.7 km² M.A: EA Local No: 4381073 Sens.: 13.5 B/full: 79.0m³s ⁻¹ FA.R: GE Lavel: 55m UE < 01	63.,95	1229		741		2.84	138.3	27/12 1979	>0.00	22/08 1995	7. 2	1.28	0.15
Comment: Informal Fial V low flow control 10m wide with good straight approach. Cableway span (18m) extends over flood banks. Insensitive at low flows given wide section. Reaches bankfull on Ib in larger floods and then bypassed on rb. Responsive natural catchment. Closed 1981-91: # Catchment of moderate relief draining eastwards from coastal hills. Geology: mainly. Devonian shales and grits and Carboniferous Culm Measures. Wholly rural, grazing and low grade agriculture, minor forestry.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1156 1160 1486 1439 1628	94 94 121 117 132	751 682 1041 1069 1313	101 92 140 144 177	2.86 2.61 3.99 4.09 5.01	66.8 71.0 91.4 131.8 118.8	08/01 17/11 31/10 18/12 29/10	0.04 0.25 0.33 0.14 0.16	19/09 21/08 03/09 .14/09 12/08	7.6 7.3 10.9 11.2, 13.9	1.24 0.93 1.65 1.73 2.22	0.10 0.30 0.52 0.19 0.21
O47019 Tamar at Poison Bridge C.A: 470.3 km² M.A: EA Local No: 4381080 Sens.: 15.0 Br/full: 95.0m³s^{-1} F.A.B: Local No: 4381080 Sens.: 15.0 Br/full: 95.0m³s^{-1}	89-95	1221		714		10.65	209.1	12/06 1993	0.20	21/08 1995	28.0	4.1 1	0.49
Comment: Informal Flat V control 8m wide between high angle trapezoidal gabion wing walls with a reasonably straight approach. Cableway just d/s of Kensey trib. Comes out of b when Kensey in flood. Stage at bankfull above range of rating table. Significant modification of flow due to Tamar Lake operations. # Moderate relief catchment with Carboniferous sists in headwaters and remainder Culm Measures (shales, lists, grits). Essentially rural, low grade agriculture, some forestry.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1089 1095 1422 1399 1577	89 90 116 115 129	601 546 878	84 76 123	8.95 8.15 .13.09	139.7 137.5 182.3	08/01 18/11 31/10	0.35 0.78 1.20	17/09 01/08 03/09	24.6 24.5 33.3	3.79 2.61 5.95	0.48 0.95 . 1.80
047018 Thrushel at Hayne Bridge C.A: 57.6 km² M.A: EA Local No: 4481012 Sens.: 80.0 Bifull: 25.8m³s^{-1} E.A. E. Local No: 4481012 Sens.: 80.0 Bifull: 25.8m³s^{-1}	89-95	1182		750		1.37	43.7 _.	18/12 1992	0.00	05/09 1989	3.7	0.53	0.03
Comment: Informal Flat V control, between 7m wide, high angle, trapezoidal gabion wing walls, in less than ideal section on meandering stretch. Cableway extends over low lb. Likely to contain all flows. Natural flow regime. Responsive to rainfall. # Moderate relief catchment draining W flank of Dartmoor. Geology: Carboniferous Culm Measures and Upper Devonian Slates. Rural catchment.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1071 1025 1401 1413 1661	91 87 119 120 141	588 497 933 910 1243	, 78 66 124 121 166	1.07 0.91 1.70 1.66 2.26	29.3 19.6 39.1 40.8 41.7	29/11 17/11 31/10 18/12 29/10	0.01 0.07 0.15 0.04 0.12	18/09 20/08 03/09 02/08 12/08	3.1 2.4 4.0 - 4,1 5.8	0.47 0.34 0.88 0.82 1.13	0.03 0.10 0.20 0.08 0.16
047008 Thrushel at Tinhay C.A: 112.7 km² M.A: EA Local No: 4381071 Sens.: 32.5 Bifdlit: 139.9m²s ⁻¹ E.A.P: SH Local No: 4381071 Sens.: 32.5 Bifdlit: 139.9m²s ⁻¹	6995	1176		666		2.38	124.4	27/12 1979	[,] 0.01	22/08 1976	6.1	1.23	0.10
Comment: Three-bay compound Crump profile weir, crests of 3.66m and 10.97m (total) length. Weir claimed modular to structure full (2.74m); floodbanks would contain flow for a further 0.96m; such flow extrapolated from weir rating. Affected after 1988 by Roadford Reservoir (storage, pumped water transfers and HEP). Previously natural catchment. # Catchment of moderate relief draining shales and sists of Carboniferous Culm Measures. Significant terrace gravels lower down in main valley. Rural; grazing and low grade agriculture.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1059 1018 1396 1387 1614	90 87 119 118 137	448 375 738 774 962	67 56 111 116 144	1.60 1.34 2.64 2.77 3.43	34.6 26.8 62.5 65.4 80.7	08/01 17/11 31/10 18/12 29/10	0.20 0.19 0.34 0.21 0.28	17/07 21/08 03/09 25/07 01/08	4.2 3.6 6.4 6.9 8.7	0.77 0.55 1.37 1.43 1.75	0.25 0.24 0.43 0.27 0.33
047006 Lyd at Lifton Park C.A: 222.9 km² M.A: EA Local No: 4381072 Sens.: 11.4 B/full: 176.0m³s ⁻¹	6395	1263		718		5.07	226.5	17/11 1965	0.14	27/08 1976	12.1	3.03	0.53
F.A.K: SGEI Level: 48m UE: <0.1 FAI: 0.997 Comment: Shallow (0.38m) rectangular flume, side and bed contractions, throat 3.5m wide, flanked by broad crested weirs in channel 7.9m wide. Gentle approach bend. Cableway moved approx. 5m u/s prior to 1977. Superseded velocity-area station in 1968. Largest floods exceed bankfull and bypass station. Flows significantly affected after 1988 by Roadford Res. operation. Closed 1981-88, many other data missing. # Moderate to high relief catchment draining Carboniferous Culm Measures (shales and stats). Wholly rural; mooriand headwaters, forestry in main valleys, rough grazing, low grade agriculture.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1145 1098 1470 1458 1701	91 87 116 115 135	577 494 862 834 1047	80 69 120 116 146	4.06 3.49 6.09 5.89 7.38	69.8 56.6 118.9 133.6 172.1	08/01 31/12 31/10 19/01 29/10	0.53 0.60 0.92 0.52 0.88	23/09 19/08 01/09 26/07 01/08	10.3 9.5 13.4 13.3 17.9	2.31 1.68 4.10 3.53 4.38	0.61 0.74 1.23 0.71 1.00
047001 Tamar at Gunnisiake C.A: 916.9 km² M.A: EA Local No: 4471051 Sens.: 7.1 B/full: 550.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: SRPF(Level: 8m LIF < 0.1	5695	1245		776		22.55	714.6	28/12 1979	0.58	23/08 1976	55.7	11.91	2.00
Comment: Velocity-area station, wide, shallow channel. Cableway span 46.9m. Low flows measured at another, narrower, site. High flow gauging difficult owing to standing waves. Roadford Reservoir from 1989 may have significant affect at low flows. Informal Flat V control installed 1991. # Rural catchment of moderate relief, draining very disturbed lower Carboniferous states, shales, grits and volcanics. Significant alluvial flats in middle reaches, Devonian states low down. Fairly responsive. A range of agriculture, grazing and forestry as land use.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1155 1133 . 1469 1444 1665	93 91 118 116 134	652 × 576 923 907 1108	84 74 119 117 143	18.89 16.76 26.83 26.36 32.14	263.1 226.8 357.7 522.3 507.3	08/01 18/11 31/10 18/12 30/10	1.62 2.61 4.73 2.64 3.28	18/09 21/08 31/08 16/08 12/08	49.9 47.5 63.6 67.0 78.5	9.92 6.97 14.37 13.24 17.66	2.07 3.31 5.19 3.26 3.93
047016 Lumburn at Lumburn Bridge C.A: 20.5 km² M.A: EA Local No: 4471054 Sens.: 27.0 Bridli : 2.6m³s^-1 F.A.R: N Level: 67m UE: FAI:	7695	1315		826		0.54	17.9	18/12 1992	0.04	01/09 1995	1.2	0.31	0.07
Comment: Velocity-area station poorly sited on a sharp bend u/s of a road bridge. Peak flows likely to be throttled by the bridge but contained by it. C/m by wading or from the bridge. Natural catchment with very flashy regime. # Moderate relief rural catchment draining Carboniferous Culm Measures and Devonian State. Grazing, low grade agriculture.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1308 - 1240 1559 1490 1741	99 94 119 113 132	815 682 1110 1037 1273	99 83 134 126 154	0.53 0.44 0.72 0.67 0.83	3.9 3.9 11.4 16.5 26.9	08/01 27/11 26/12 19/01 31/12	0.06 0.08 0.17 0.04 0.11	11/10 15/06 12/10 05/09 26/07	1.2 - 1.2 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.9	0.38 0.24 0.49 0.43 0.45	0.08 0.11 0.21 0.09 0.13
047014 . Walkham at Horrabridge C.A: 44.6 km² M.A: EA Local No: 4561057 Sens:: 35.7 Bj/dli: 46.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A. B: PI Lavels 20° LIE: 0.1 FAI: 40.00	7695	- 1689		1236		1.75	50.9	30/11 1992	0.13	07/08 1989	3.7	1.22	0.33
Comment: Three-bay compound structure with 2.47m thin-plate weir, 9.48m triangular profile weir and an 8.53m broad-created weir, theoretically rated. Limited range calibration, high flows unreliable, (HIFs only held on NRFA from Jan 1981). Moderate flow modification by PWS abstraction. # Substantially moortand catchment draining western Dartmoor Granite. Steep, afforested valley flanks as the river leaves the granite and drains Devonian states, I'sts and volcanics.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1615 1684 2119 1902 2159	96 100 125 113 128	1125 1128 1560 1386 1694	91 91 126 112 137	1.59 1.60 2.21 1.96 2.39	35.6 18.2 31.1 35.0 57.2	03/11 24/12 31/10 19/01 31/12	0.34 0.51 0.59 0.34 0.48	19/09 24/04 03/09 14/09 11/08	3.6 3.3 4.3 4.1 4.8	1.07 1.06 1.58 1.37 1.54	0.39 0.60 0.69 0.40 0.55
047015 Tavy at Denham / Ludbrook C.A: 197.3 km² M.A: EA Local No: 4461003 Sens.: 12.0 Bjfull: 188.8m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R. Level: 10m Line EAL	8195	1623	,	1012		. 6.33	188. 8	18/12 1992	0.49	07/09 1984	15.8	3.41	0.88
Comment: Unconventional control comprised of triangular profile low flow veir set within shallow (0.3m) wing walts which curve through 90 deg, to fill the whole channel (20m). Cableway span 32m. Low flows dominated by abstractions for HEP, PWS for Plymouth and the Morwellham canal. Responsive, well contained, # Catchment drains from W flank of Dartmoor Granite plateau; valleys are steeply incised and forested below Tavistock, Moorland, rough grazing and low orade aariculture.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1524 1542 1984 1780 2028	94 95 -122 110 125	'939 937 1474 1258 1609	93 93 146 124 159	5.86 5.86 9.22 7.87 10.04	61.2 123.8 182.9 283.9	24/12 31/10 19/01 31/12	1.43 1.94 1.14 1.56	20/04 30/08 14/09 11/08	15.2 14.1 18.8 18.4 21.9	3.41 3.24 6.11 4.54 5.15	1.13 1.65 2.31 1.30 1.89

120

· i ita i

	Perlod	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean Row . (^{m3} e ⁻¹)	Pask flow (^{m*} *')	Date of pesk	Min. dally flow (^{m3} 0* ¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentlia (m ¹ a ¹¹)	50 Percentile (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m ¹ a ⁻¹)
047013 Withey Brook at Bastreet C.A: 16.2 km² M.A: EA Local No: 4271066 Sens.: 11.0 Bfdgll 8.4m³s ⁻¹ F.A.F: P Lease 220m UE: FAI:	7295	1738		1147		0.59	. 22.0	27/12 1979	0.03	11 <i>1</i> 08 1974	1.3	0.36	0.10
Comment: Three-bay compound Crump profile weir, crest lengths 0.91m and 2.54m (total). Affected by subsidence post-1990 (unquantified). Residual flow gauge for associated major PWS abstraction. Occasional substantial diversions into the catchment from Stbleyback Res. Associated climate station. # Moortand catchment of moderate relief entirely upon the granite of Bodmin Moor, wide- spread peat; main valley broad and marshy.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1648 1553 1886 1805 2123	95 89 109 104 122	1162 1009 1564 1452	101 88 136 127	0.60 0.52 0.80 0.75	10.9 12.6 16.0 24.2	08/01 17/11 24/10 18/12	0.04 0.09 0.12 0.08	18/09 01/05 30/08 14/09	1.4 1.2 1.8 1.8	0.33 0.25 0.45 0.36	0.06 0.10 0.18 0.09
047004 Lynher at Pillaton Mill C.4: 135.5 km² M.A: EA Local No: 4361069 Sens.: 13.8 B/full: 67.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.B: P Level 9m UF-<01	6395	1451		1038		4,46	150.1	04/11 1967	0.25	27/08 1976	10.1	2.77	0.66
Comment: Velocity-area station, channel approx. 10.6m wide, cableway span 16.9m. D/s shoal as control. Limited confidence to upper range rating. Imports from Sibleyback Res. exceed direct PWS abstraction, moderate net affect at low flows. # Headwaters rise on Bodmin peat covered granite moorland; thence Devonian slates and volcanics; middle reach crosses a Carboniferous shale and s'st initer. Drift restricted to alluvium. Generally low grade land gives rise to a variety of agriculture, grazing and forestry.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1427 1373 1719 1642 1932	98 95 118 113 133	1074 926 1346 1230 1529	103 89 130 118 147	4 60 3.98 5.78 5.28 6.55	54.5 43.3 55.9 72.5 71.9	14/01 27/11 26/12 18/12 30/10	0.47 0.94 1.34 0.78 1.06	18/09 25/08 30/08 14/09 11/08	10.2 9.4 11.1 11.6 13.7	3.14 2.31 4.03 3.28 3.95	0.59 1.11 1.80 0.90 1.40
047009 Tiddy at Tideford C.A: 37.2 km² M.A: EA Local No: 4351068 Sens.: 29.2 B/fbull: 48.9m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: N Level: 4m UE: < 01	6995	1288		772		0.91	10.2	27/12 1979	0.06	26/08 1976	2.2	0.56	0.13
Comment: Crump profile weir 5.5m wide, wing walls 2.3m high. Subsiduary floodbanks. Thought to be fully modular. Natural catchment. # Elongated, linear catchment, headwaters rise from southerm- most outcrop of Bodmin granite. Great bulk of the catchment on Devonian shales and slates interspersed with tuffs and lavas. Moderate relief, low grade agriculture, grazing and forestry.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1316 1279 1661 1535 1767	102 99 129 119 137	853 709 1036 933 1153	110 92 134 121 149	1.00 0.84 1.22 1.10 1.36	7.2 7.1 7.8 10.5 10.6	14/01 27/11 26/12 19/01 31/12	0.15 0.19 0.26 0.17 0.25	18/09 31/07 30/08 28/07 11/09	2.3 2.2 2.5 2.5 2.9	0.68 0.45 0.82 0.65 0.73	0.18 0.22 0.35 0.20 0.28
048010 Seaton at Trebrownbridge C.A: 39.1 km ² M.A: EA Local No: 4251064 Sens.: 13.6 B/full: 65.9m ³ s ⁻¹ F.A.D. Olivity Local No: 4251064 Sens.: 13.6 B/full: 65.9m ³ s ⁻¹	5795	1356		819		1.02	14.1	27/12 1979	0.12	22/09 1995	2.3	0.70	0.21
F.A.K. GIN LEVEL 27m Cell. 02 (1999) F.A.K. GIN Cell. 02 (1999) Comment: Three-bay compound Crump profile weir, crest lengths 3m and two of 4m. Wing walls and floodbanks at 2.05m. Thought to be fully modular. U/s subject to sittation. Minimal interference with natural flow regime. # Elongated, linear catchment springing from southermost outcrop of Bodmin Granite. Great bulk of the catchment on Devonian states and shales interspersed with tuffs and lavas. Moderate relief tow oracle actionation: orazing and forestry.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1375 1333 1735 1582 1831	101 98 128 117 135	786 698 1005 885 1130	96 85 123 108 138	0.97 0.87 1.25 1.10 1.40	6.0 8.4 7.7 15.1 14.4	14/01 27/11 26/12 19/01 31/12	0.18 0.24 0.38 0.23 0.31	16/09 31/07 03/09 22/08 11/08	2.1 2.1 2.3 2.1 2.8	0.75 0.55 0.97 0.77 0.97	0.21 0.26 0.47 0.25 0.37
O48001 Fowey at Trekelvesteps C.A: 36.8 km² M.A: EA Local No: 4261065 Sens.: 8.0 B/full: 49.4m³s ⁻¹	5795	1687		1167		1.35	38.8	27/12 1979	0.10	05/10 1959	2.9	0.98	0.25
F.A.R: SRP Level: 188m UE: <0.1 FAI: 0.938 Comment: Three-bay compound Grump profile weir, crestlengths 1.52m and 5.49m (total) superseded a broad-crested weir with central notch (limited accuracy, flow overestimated) on 4/10/68. Flood embankments ensure the full range is gauged. Substantial flow modification from associated PWS abstraction, Sibleyback Res. operation and exports. # Moderate relief, wet moortand catchment on the Bodmin Moor Granite. Extensive hill and valley peat deposits. Kaolinised granite moderates direct runoff	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1615 1513 1870 1765 2106	96 90 111 105 125	1146 999 1520 1358 1773	98 86 130 116 152	1.33 1.17 1.77 1.58 2.06	12.7 15.6 18.6 43.2 31.2	08/01 17/11 31/10 18/12 31/12	0.35 0.46 0.55 0.38 0.34	11/07 15/05 13/08 14/09 13/09	2.7 2.5 3.4 3.5 4.3	0.89 0.70 1.22 0.92 1.30	0.41 0.49 0.67 0.42 0.40
response. . 048009 St Neot at Craigshill Wood C. A: 22.7 km² M.A: EA Local No: 4161062 Sens.; 12.1	7195	1558		1085		0.78	21.1	27/12 1979	0.06	26/08 1976	1.5	0.63	0.17
F.A.R: SRPE Level: 71m , UE: <.01 FAI: 0.635 Comment: Three-bay compound Crump profile weir, crest lengths 1.75m and 5.5m (lotal). Wing walls at 1.7m. Flood banks contain flows up to wingwall neight, fully modular. Natural flow regime until 1983, when Colliford reservoir began to fill. Since, nver regulation and PWS exports. # 70% of upper catchment on granite intrusion of Bodmin Moor. Hill tops are rounded with some peat, valleys can be steep. Lower 30% underlain by metamorphosed Devonian states. Entirely rural before reservoir built;	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1496 1378 1719 1636 1944	96 88 110 105 125	866 708 815 984 1311	80 65 75 91 121	0.62 0.51 0.59 0.71 0.94	3.2 2.6 3.6 7.0 7.7	14/01 28/11 26/12 18/12 07/12	0.24 0.20 0.25 0.19 0.25	14/05 22/06 04/06 17/09 06/07	0.9 0.8 1.0 1.3 2.2	0.56 0.45 0.47 0.54 0.66	0.28 0.23 0.28 0.29 0.28
some abandoned china clay pits. Baseflow high from storage in kaolinised granite. 048004 Warleggan at Trengoffe C.A: 25.3 km² MA: FA Local No: 4161060 Sens: 10.0 Bfull: 40 8m³s ⁻¹	6995	1479		1027		0.82	15.4	28/11 1973	0.10	27/08 1976	1.7	0.63	0.19
F.A.R: N Level: 70m UE: <0.1 FAI: 0.973 Comment: Three-bay compound Crump profile weir, crest lengths 1.52m and 8.53m (total). Wing walls at 1.67m. Flood banks contain flows up to wing wall height. The only gauged natural catchment on Bodmin Moor. # The upper 70% drains the kaolinised granite. The relief is moderate to steep. The	1996 1997 1998	1464 1323 1663	99 89 112	1046 831 1324	102 81 129	0.84 0.67 1.06	8.0 9.4 8.2	14/01 17/11 24/10	0.16 0.23 0.32	14/09 20/08 30/08	1.8 1.4 2.1	0.60 0.41 0.75	0.18 0.25 0.38
lower 30% traverses metamorphosed Devonian slates. Baseflow high for an upland catchment owing to storage in the granite.	1999 2000 61.95	1607 1896 1506	109 128	1205 1695 913	117 165	0.97 1.36	22.4 16.5	18/12 31/12 03/11	0.22 0.30	14/09 13/09 28/08	2.0 2.9	0.60 0.91	0.25
WA: EA Local No: 4061058 Sens: 7.8 B/full: 145.8m ² s ⁻¹ F.A.F. SRP Level: 9m UE: <,01	1996	1462	97	827	91	4.42	55.9	1967 14/01	0.53	1976 13/09	10.4	2.59	0.91
walls at 2.5m. Flood banks contain flows up to wing wall height. U/s cableway, fish counter. Substantial modifications to flow from associated PWS abstraction, Colliford and Sibleyback reservoirs and other PWS exports. # Moderate relief catchment whose headwaters drain the kaolinised granite of Bodmin Moor. Middle and low reaches drain Devonian slates and grits. Some valley storage in gravels. Low grade agriculture, grazing and forestry.	1997 1998 1999 2000	1349 1687 1614 1901	90 112 107 126	654 1025 957 1291	72 112 105 141	3.51 5.50 5.13 6.90	34.1 43.0 108.1 84.9	27/11 26/12 18/12 07/12	0.80 1.20 1.02 1.18	14/08 27/08 17/09 27/08	8.4 11.9 12.2 16.0	1.84 3.51 2.93 3.71	1.07 1.55 1.20 1.39
048003 Fal at Tregony C.A: 87.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: 3941056 Sens.: 6.7 B/full: 13.0m³s^-1 F.A.R: EL Level: 7m LIF: 0.72 FAL: 0.988	7895	1263		737		2.03	48.2d	27/12 1979	0.21	08/09 1984	4.4	1.38	0.43
Comment: Originally a velocity-area station in a formalised trapezoidal channel; augmented by a low flow, side-contracted flume 2.8m wide in Aug 1967. Data available from June 1978, earlier data unreliable due to sitting of inlet pipes. Site not ideal for high flows (bankfull stage is above range of rating table), HIFS on NRFA from Jan 1981. Moderate modification to flows owing to industrial abstractions and returns. # Moderate to low relief catchment draining Devonian states, shales and grits. Upper reaches plateau-like alluvial flats. Traverses the kaolinised St Austell Granite. Low grade agriculture and grazing.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1273 1285 1552 1394 1613	101 102 123 110 128	783 680 985 828 1085	106 92 134 112 147	2.15 1.87 2.72 2.29 2.98	15.6 38.6 15.2 41.6 52.0	14/01 26/11 19/12 18/12 07/12	0.39 0.48 0.69 0.48 0.54	08/09 31/05 27/08 03/08 10/08	5.6 4.1 5.7 4.7 6.4	1.25 1.16 1.72 1.36 1.80	0.47 0.59 0.90 0.62 0.72
048005 Kenwyn at Truro C.A: 19.1 km² M.A: EA Local No: 3841054 Sens.: 20.0 Bifull: 23.9m³s ⁻¹	6895	1127		639		0.39	30.4	11/10 1988	0.02	20/08 1976	0.9	0.22	0.05
Comment: Three-bay compound Crump profile weir, crest lengths 1.2m and 3.05m (total). Pier and wing wall height 1.98m. Contains all flows; potential for non-modularity at the highest flows. Variable shoaling affects low flow precision. Suspect data 28 Jul - 23 Aug 2001 resulting from backing up from a temporary informal weir immediately ds of crump. Substantially natural catchment but flood retention ponds (from January 1991) atter high flow response. High baseflow for he reliaf. # Catchment of moderate relief, with wooded, incised valleys. Geology: Devonian grits and shales.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1094 1137 1311 1218 1350	97 101 116 108 120	634 556 777 637 761	99 87 122 100 119	0.38 0.34 0.47 0.39 0.46	5.2 3.8 7.7 8.7 11.0	11/01 05/06 19/12 18/12 07/12	0.04 0.06 0.09 0.07 0.05	18/09 31/07 22/09 14/09 13/09	0.9 0.9 1.0 0.9 1.0	0.25 0.20 0.31 0.20 0.31	0.06 0.08 0.11 0.08 0.07
048007 Kennal at Ponsanooth C.A: 26.5 km² M.A: EA Local No: 3731053 Sens.: 38.7 B/full: 42.1m³s ⁻¹ EA D: SDBCL Laud: 14m US: 04 EAU 0.507	6895	1334		600		0.50	6.3	27/12 1979	0.03	10/08 1990	1.2	0.32	0.07
Comment: Crump profile weir 4.88m crest length, height of wing walts and floodbanks: 2.05m. Modular at all recorded stages, Substantial modification to flows owing to exports from Stithians Res. Some industrial usage produces unpredictable hydrographs. # Moderate to steep catchment draining the Cammeneillis Granite, with small area of metamorphosed shales and grits. Granite well weathered, giving high baseflow. Responsive to heavy rainfall.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1235 1432 1528 1405 1633	93 107 115 105 122	521 568 821 722 837	87 95 137 120 140	0.44 0.48 0.69 0.61 0.70	3.5 2.9 4.9 6.5 7.6	12/02 03/08 26/12 18/12 07/12	0.06 0.08 0.15 0.14 0.12	25/07 30/05 22/09 01/08 12/09	1.1 1.1 1.5 1.6 1.5	0.30 0.34 0.44 0.33 0.44	0.08 0.11 0.18 0.15 0.13

3

•

. .

.

.

SOUTH WEST REGION

049002	Hay	le at St Erth	C.A: 47.6 km ²
M.A: EA	Local No: 3531051	Sens.: 7.3	8/full: 21.3m ³ s ⁻¹
F.A.R: GI	Level: 7m	UE: .01	FAI: 0.970
Comment: Con walls at 1:83m; affected by we catchment; mud catchment is und the floodplain. G	npound Crump profile weir, cres floodbanks at 3.8m. Supersed- ed growth. Mine drainage ma ch storage. # Headwaters drai derlain by grits and shales of De- Senerally low grade agricultural of	t lengths: 1.22m and 3 an unsatisfactory v ly affect the flows m n two moorland grani vonian age, crossed by use.	3.35m (total). Piers and wing elocity-area station seriously oderately. Slow responding te outcrops; majority of the dyke swarms. Mining spoil ir

049004 Gannel at Gwills		C.A: 41.0 km ²	
M.A: EA	Local No: 3851055	Sens.: 37.0	B/full: 40.0m ³ s ⁻¹
F.A.R: GEI	Level: 9m	UE: .01	FAI: 1.000
Comment: Crump	profile weir, crest length 6m, v	ving walls 1.9m, modula	r throughout its range. Flood
banks contain flow	up to 2.78m; they may be tr	eated as weirs for high	er stages. Insensitive at low
flows. Valley inund	lates u/s of the road bridge. N	atural catchment, but m	ine drainage may affect low
flows. # Moderate	ly steep catchment draining ca	Icareous slates and thir	I'sts of the lower Devonian.
Low grade agricul	ture, pasture. Subdued respor	nse.	

049003	De La	De Lank at De Lank	
M.A: EA	Local No: 4171063	Sens.: 15.7	B/full: 32.0m ³ s ⁻¹
F.A.R: P	Level: 226m	UE: <.01	FAI: 0.995
Comment: Three	e-bay compound Crump profile	weir, crest lengths 1.2	22m and 6.4m (total). Divide
piers at 1.01m, w	ing walls 1.62m. Unusually sma	Il difference between cre	est elevations (0.095m). Very
seidorn drowned	or outflanked, however, siltatic	in problems in summer	months. Flows substantially
modified by asso	ciated PWS works. # Moderate	relief, wet catchment of	on the Bodmin Moor Granite.
The river occupie	es marshy alluvial flats in the h	eadwaters. Responsive	L

049001	Car	nel at Denby	C.A: 208.8 km		
M.A: EA	Local No: 4061058	Sens.: 10.5	B/full: 43.0m ³ s ⁻¹		
F.A.R: SRPE	Level: 5m	UE: .01	FA1: 0.993		
Comment: Velocity	/-area station with a low flow	r control. Replaced an u	inreliable station at Grogley,		
1km d/s. Rating sh	nifts regularly, but is genera	lly sound. Floods conta	ained at the site but station		
bypassed. Flows si	ignificantly modified by PWS	and sewage from Bodr	nin. # The upper catchment		
drains Devonian sl	ates (variously affected by	the granite) and the Bo	odmin Moor Granite. Lower		
catchment drains E	evonian slates and grits. Mo	orland and low grade a	griculture and grazing.		

050005	West Okement at Vellake		G.A: 13.3 km ²
M.A: EA	Local No: 4591005	Sens.: 12.0	B/full: 9.5m ³ s ⁻¹
F.A.R: P	Level: 286m	UE: <.01	FAI: 0.983
Comment: Rectangula	ar thin plate weir flanked I	by compound broad-cres	ted weirs with a bridge over
Lack of suitable meteri	ng sites renders rating dif	fficult - some has been at	tempted at a bridge d/s. Ou
of bank above 1.1m ar	nd big floods will bypass. I	Low flows dominated by f	Prewley WTW abstraction u
s. Only chart recorder	at this site. # Drains north	wards from the highest a	area of Dartmoor. Wholly or
granite. Channel is with	de, meandering and rock	y. Moorland.	

		•	
050011	c	kement at Jacobstowe	C.A: 82.1 km ²
M.A: EA	Local No:	Sens.:	
F.A.R:	Level: m	UE:	FAI:
Company of the	. Incal had another another	and in 1001 (station as a second	

Comment: Low level bed control constructed in (1991 (station reopened on 11/9/91), previously natural bed control 2/11/73- 6/10/81 (station closed due to national cut-backs). Flows partially controlled by the influence of a reservoir/dam u/s (constructed in the early 1970s).

050009	Lev	Lew at Norley Bridge		
M.A: EA	 Local No: 	Sens.:	B/full: 18.0m ³ s ⁻¹	
F.A.R: N	Level: 103m	UE:	FAI:	
Comment: Infor	mai Flat V low flow control. 6	7m wide between high a	angle, trapezoidal gabion win	

comment: informal riar v low now control, 6./m wide between high angle, trapezoidal gabion wing walls. Gauging is by wading at low flows, off the u/s bridge at high flows. Responsive natural catchment but installed to monitor potential transfer from Roadford Res. # Catchment of moderate relief draining Carboniferous Culm Measures (shale, l'st, s'st). Wholly rural, rough grazing, low grade agriculture and a little forestry.

050008	Lew a	C.A: 71.1 km ²	
M.A: EA	Local No:	Sens.:	B/full: 50.0m ³ s ⁻¹
F.A.R: N	Level: 81m	UE:	FAI:
Comment: Inform	nal Flat V control 10.4m wid	e between high angle, tra	pezoidal gabion wing walls. On
gentie bend with r	reasonably straight approact	h. Cableway. Large flood	s inundate lb, larger will bypass
station. No back	water effects. Natural cato	hment but installed to r	monitor potential transfer from

station. No backwater effects. Natural catchment but installed to monitor potential transfer from Roadford Res. # Catchment of moderate relief draining Carboniferous Culm Measures (shales, l'sts, s'sts). Wholly rural, moorland and rough grazing, minor forestry.

050010	Torridge	Torridge at Rockhay Bridge			
M.A: EA	Local No: 1501060	Sens.: 11.9	B/full: 74.5m ³ s ⁻¹		
C A D: N	Laval, 61m	1.455	E 41.		

FA.R: N Level: 51m UE: FAI: Comment: Informal Flat V low flow control between high angle, trapezoidal gabion wing walls. Sited on a bend. Gauging from an u/s iron footbridge. Large flows inundate wide flood plain u/s of the bridge but the site contains most flows. Substantially natural catchment but installed to monitor potential transfer from Roadford Res. # Moderate relief catchment, wholly rural, draining Carboniferous Culm. Measures (shales and sist). Close to N Devon Coast. Land use is mostly grazing and low grade agriculture and minor forestry.

050002	Torridge at Torrington		C.A: 663.0 km ²
M.A: EA	Local No: 1511004	Sens.: 9.6	B/full: 187.0m ³ s ⁻¹
F.A.R: SRPEI	Level: 14m	UE: <.01	FAI: 0.998
Comment: Velocity	-area station, main channel 2	8m wide, cableway sp	an 32.5m. Overspilling begins
on left bank at abou	t 3.3m. Reconstructed in 197	Well calibrated throu	ghout range. Records prior to
Oct 1962 unreliable	. Moderate modification to flo	ws from Meldon Rese	voir. # Large rural catchment
draining coastal hill	s in west and Dartmoor Gra	nite in south. Geology	mostly Carboniferous shales
and sandstones of	the Cuim. Moorland, rough g	razing and generally k	ow grade agricultural land.

050007	Taw at Taw Bridge		C.A: 71,4 km ²
M.A: EA	Local No: 1601015	Sens.: 11.5	B/full: 90.0m ³ s ⁻¹
F.A.R; N	Level: 85m	UE: <.01	FAI: 0.989
Comment: Weir cons	tructed to replace velocity	-area station with natur	al bed conrol. Dmfs missing
from NRFA between :	24/08 - 30/11/98 due to co	instruction work. Flashy	regime, # Drains Dartmoor
(Granite) in the south	and is underlain mainly by	Culm shales and sands	toness of Carboniferous age
centrally. Mainly rural	catchment. •	•	

*

	۹.	R	% of pre	ĸ	% of pre	Mean (7	Peau	Date of	Min. daily	Date of	10 Perc. (r	50 Perc	95 Perc. (r
	5795	1117		667		1.01	9.2	31/01 1988	0.14	29/08 1976	2.2	0.69	0.22
	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1009 1163 1306 1132 1269	90 104 117 101 114	602 647 865 667 838	90 97 130 100 126	0.91 0.98 1.31 1.01 1.26	5.0 3.4 5.9 5.5 6.5	19/01 27/11 05/01 19/01 07/12	0.20 0.26 0.35 0.25 0.24	18/09 31/07 22/09 14/09 13/09	2.0 2.0 2.7 2.6 2.8	0.73 0.76 0.98 0.61 0.93	0.22 0.31 0.38 0.30 0.27
	6995	1065		536		0.70	26.7	11/10 1988	0.05	19/09 1984	1.6	0.44	0.10
	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1091 1062 1253 1101 1292	102 100 118 103 121	573 432 667 558 729	107 81 124 104 136	0.74 0.56 0.87 0.73 0.94	12.7 6.9 16.8 18.8 27.4	07/02 26/11 19/12 18/12 07/12	0.09 0.12 0.20 0.12 0.12 0.12	08/09 31/07 30/08 21/08 13/09	1.9 1.3 1.9 1.6 2.1	0.46 0.33 0.58 0.42 0.62	0.11 0.15 0.22 0.15 0.14
	6795	1682		1113		0.76	26.5	27/09 1974	0.01	06/07 1975	1.6	0.50	0.08
	1996 1997 1998 1999	1632 1506 1871 1746	97 90 111 104	1084 909 1366	97 82 123	0.74 0.62 0.93	8.8 6.9 12.7	08/01 18/11 31/10	0.06 0.13 0.22	04/08 20/08 03/09	1.8 1.4 1.9	0.47 0.37 0.68	0.11 0.16 0.29
	2000	2138	127	1618	145	1.10	17.7	29/10	0.15	11/08	2.4	0.73	0.18
	6495	1405		900		5.96	306.4	12/06 1993	0.36	28/08 1976	13.4	4.00	0.85
	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1378 1280 1600 1494 1805	98 91 114 106 128	964 753 1126 1012 1450	107 84 125 112 161	6.36 4.99 7.45 6.70 9.57	77.0 78.2 78.3 278.8 129.9	14/01 17/11 31/10 18/12 07/12	0.74 1.30 1.78 0.99 1.42	18/09 11/08 30/08 14/09 13/09	15.8 10.7 15.1 14.9 22.1	4.00 2.93 4.90 3.93 5.69	0.88 1.47 2.18 1.08 2.00
	, 7595	2097		1619		0.68	35.5	12/09 1993	>0.00	08/07 1981	1.6	0.33	0.08
	1996 1997 1998 1999	1851 1962 2645 2055	88 94 126 98	1451 1416 2090	90 87 129	0.61 0.60 0.88	21.0 11.6 21.1	03/11 24/02 31/10	0.08 0.10 0.10	05/08 06/04 23/05	1.7 1.5 1.9	0.27 0.24 0.44	0.09 0.11 0.11
	2000	2353	112	2176	134	0.92	36.5	31/12	0.09	11/08	2.3	0.45	0.10
	7395	1509		985		2.57	170.0	27/12 1979	0.09	23/08 1976	6.1	1.42	0.32
	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1347 1357 1864 1624 1863	89 90 124 108 123	839 743 1205 1051 1457	85 75 122 107 `148	2.18 1.94 3.14 2.74 3.78	59.6 16.5 29.9 37.8 72.8	03/11 12/02 31/10 19/01 29/10	0.27 0.40 0.58 0.33 0.43	05/08 02/05 01/09 07/08 12/08	5.6 4.8 7.4 7.1 8.4	1.26 0.93 2.03 1.47 2.16	0.31 0.47 0.66 0.36 0.52
	8895	1273		793		0.51	22.7	07/12 1994	>0.00	01/09 1995	1.3	0.20	0.02
	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1105 1100 1524 1470 1704	87 86 120 115 134	634 559 1055 1008 1182	80 70 133 127 149	0.41 0.36 0.68 0.65 0.76	16.1 9.5 24.7 21.5	03/11 17/02 1 8/12 29/10	>0.00 0.03 0.02 0.04	18/09 18/08 01/08 12/08	1.1 0.9 1.6 1.5 1.9	0.19 0.12 0.31 0.27 0.39	0.01 0.04 0.07 0.03 0.05
	8895	1258		704		1.59	82.2	01/01 1991	0.00	01/09 1995	4,3	0.56	0.03
	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1082 1076 1479 1412 1650	86 86 118 112 131	520 448 882 859 1005	74 64 125 122 143	1.17 1.01 1.99 1.94 2.26	42.4 24.3 87.2 1 10.4 98.5	03/11 17/02 31/10 18/12 29/10	0.00 0.05 0.11 0.02 0.06	19/09 31/07 31/08 02/08 12/08	3.3 2.9 4.9 4.8 5.5	0.47 0.29 0.86 0.68 1.09	0.07 0.16 0.04 0.09
	88.,95	1313		871		7.12	116.7	30/10 1994	0.09	21/08 1995	19.3	2.83	0.30
-	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1111 1191 1571 -1488 1709	85 91 120 113 130	680 698 1176 1099 1378	78 80 135 126 158	5.55 5.70 9.61 .8.98 11.24	87.4 103.4 121.0 124.7 119.8	29/11 28/11 31/10 18/12 29/10	0.12 0.38 0.87 0.38 0.68	20/09 18/06 27/05 02/08 26/07	15.1 15.8 24.8 23.3 27.8	2.48 1.70 4.51 - 3.69 5.76	0.22 0.57 1.16 -0.60 0.89
	6095	1183		751		15.78	730.0	28/12 1979	0.12	25/08 1976	40.1	7.32	0.86
	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1059 1122 1491 1411 1620	90 95 126 119 137	577 580 1010 935 1151	77 77 134 125 153	12.11 12.20 21.23 19.66 24.13	198.4 172.9 371.8 485.4	29/11 17/02 31/10 18/12	0.53 1.30 2.14 -0.79	19/09 01/08 31/08 02/08	31.3 33.4 52.7 47.4 61.3	6.07 4.12 10.52 8.10 12.91	0.68 1.69 2.56 1.11 1.89
	7395	1266		857		1.94	69.6d	27/12 1979	0.02 ,	23/08 1976	5.1	0.92	0.14
-	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1131 1159 1575 1451 1611	89 92 124 115 127	902 793 1044	105 93 122	2.04 1.80 2.36	22.1 19.1 107.7	29/11 24/02 18/12	0.27 0.43 0.25	18/08 01/08 14/09	4.9 4.4 5.9	1.33 0.92 1.04	0.31 . 0.49 0.26

•

050012 Yeo at Veraby C.A: 53.7 km² 6895 1331 981 1.67 60 MA: EA Local No: 1721024 Sens.: 12.2 Bruft 25.0 m³s ⁻¹ FAI: 6895 1331 981 1.67 60 FAR: R Level: 110m UE: FAI: 1995 1138 85 696 71 1.18 21 Low bows augmented by Exe/Taw Transfer Scheme (South West Water). Overspill, especiatly us of 1997 1312 981 110 128 841 240 99 bridge on rh, but al contained at station. # Drains Devonian stakes and sits of Exmoor and underlain 1998 1710 128 1412 144 240 99 torus Curm Measures in the centre. Rural. 1998 1710 128 1412 144 240 99 050006 Mole at Woodleigh C.A: 327.5 km² 6595 1343 838 8.70 188 MA: EA Local No: 1621002 Sens: 10.0 Bruft: 90.0m³s ⁻¹ 6595 1343 838 8.70 188	1 28/12 1994 10 29/11 9 28/11 3 31/10 6 18/12 7 29/10 0 09/01 1968 3 29/11 5 28/11 0 31/10 0 18/12	0.03 0.15 0.25 0.29 0.23 0.28 0.20	19/08 1976 18/08 07/05 25/05 15/08 01/07	3.7 2.8 3.2 4.3	0.83 0.67	0.15
$\begin{array}{c} PARK R \\ Comment: Velocity-ere station, Natural bed control, some loose stone so susceptible to change. Low flows augmented by Exe/Taw Transfer Scheme (South West Water). Overspill, especially uts of bridge on rh, but all contained at station. # Drains Devonian states and sists of Exmoor and undertain by Carbonaferous Cufm Measures in the centre. Rural. 050006 Mole at Woodleigh C.A: 327.5 km2 6595 1343 838 8.70 188 MA: EA Local No: 1621002 Sens.: 10.0 B(hull: 90.0m3s-1) FAI: 0.999 1591 120 1088 135 2.25 233 135 1328 135 2.25 233 136 1379 138 138 139 139 135 1328 135 131 $	1d 29/11 9 28/11 3 31/10 6 18/12 7 29/10 0 09/01 1968 3 29/11 5 28/11 0 31/10 0 18/12	0.15 0.25 0.29 0.23 0.28 0.20	18/08 07/05 25/05 15/08 01/07	2.8 3.2	0.67	
050006 Mole at Woodleigh C.A: 327.5 km² 6595 1343 838 8.70 188 M.A: EA Local No: 1621002 Sens.: 10.0 B/full: 90.0m³s ⁻¹ 6595 1343 838 8.70 188 M.A: EA Local No: 1621002 Sens.: 10.0 B/full: 90.0m³s ⁻¹ 6595 1343 838 8.70 188 Comment: VA station with rock ledges/gravel shoats as controls. Straight reach, weed affected. 1996 1118 83 636 76 6.5.8 97 Gauging by wading at low flows and off remote bridges at higher flows. Goes out of Ih bank. Low flows 1997 1316 98 737 68 7.66 116 responsive. # Moderate reside catchinent descending from Exmoor through incised, forested valleys. 1998 1678 125 1168 139 12.13 190 Geology s'sts and shales; headwaters Devonian, Carbon/ferous lower down. Predominantly rural; 2000 1761 131 1287 154 13.33 182 UB: Sense: 0.2 Rb/d!: 120 Taw at Umberrleigh C.A: 826.2 km² 5895 1165 <td>0 09/01 1968 3 29/11 5 28/11 0 31/10 0 18/12</td> <td>0.20</td> <td></td> <td>4.9 5.2</td> <td>0.51 1.15 0.87 1.41</td> <td>0.22 0.28 0.33 0.34 0.40</td>	0 09/01 1968 3 29/11 5 28/11 0 31/10 0 18/12	0.20		4.9 5.2	0.51 1.15 0.87 1.41	0.22 0.28 0.33 0.34 0.40
Comment: VA station with mock ledges/gravel shoals as controls. Straight reach, weed affected. Gauging by wading at low flows and off remote bridges at higher flows. Goes out of in bank, Low flows moderately affected by PWS abstraction and augmentation from Exe - Taw transfers. Quite responsive. # Moderate refiel catchment descending from Exmoor through incised, forested valleys. Geology sists and shales; headwaters Devonian, Carbon/ferous lower down. Predominantly rural; grazing and low grade agriculture. 050001 Taw at Umberleigh A 4: EA total Moderate in 1621001 Server 92 Refull: 120 Mm ² e ⁻¹ 5895 1165 694 18.18 644	3 29/11 5 28/11 0 31/10 0 18/12		27/08 1976	21.3	4.89	0.80
050001 Taw at Umberleigh C.A: 826.2 km ² 5895 1165 694 18.18 644	6 29/10	0.59 1.39 1.79 1.17 1.56	18/08 21/04 26/05 01/08 12/08	16.3 20.3 24.0 28.5 28.8	4.00 3.38 7.33 5.61 8.71	0.79 1.53 2.06 1.87 2.22
	9 04/12 1960	0.20	28/08 1976	48.1	9.01	1.19
F.A.R: RP Level: 14m UE: <.01 FAI: 0.997 Comment: Velocity-area station, main channel 34m wide, cableway span 40m. Rock step d/s forms 1996 1004 86 528 76 13.80 186 control. Bypassing begins at about 3.7m on right bank, but a good rating accommodates this. 1997 1128 97 566 82 14.83 181 Significant modification to flows owing to PWS abstraction and by augmentation from the Exe 1998 1452 125 931 134 24.39 453 Catchment at low flows. Some naturalised flow data available. # Large rural catchment - drains 1999 1395 120 896 129 23.48 537 Dartmoor (granite) in south and Devonian shakes and sandstones of Exmoor in north. Central area undertain mainly by Cutm shales and sandstones (Carboniferous). Agriculture conditioned by grade 3 and 4 soils.	9 29/11 7 28/11 3 31/10 6 18/12 6 30/10	0.84 1.88 2.49 1.48 2.02	18/08 31/07 30/08 02/08 12/08	35.8 39.8 54.1 59.6 62.4	7,76 5.56 13.15 10.61 16.46	0.97 2.26 3.23 2.39 2.89
051002 Homer Water at West Luccombe C.A: 20.8 km² 7395 1456 697 0.46 11 M.A: EA Local No: 510310 Sens.: 57.5 S/full: 6.4m³s ⁻¹ 5.4 m³s ⁻¹	3 18/12 1993	0.02	23/08 1976	1.1	0.28	0.06
Comment: Triangular profile Crump weir for low flows, crest 4.5m broad. Plus rated section. All flows 1996 1322 91 640 92 0.42 3 contained. Station closed from Sep 1979 to Apr 1985, reopened with telemetry facilities. Nutscale 1997 1469 101 678 97 0.45 7 Res. in headwaters. # Drains Exmoor. Steep catchment. Land use rural. Deciduous woodland on valley sides. Geology: composed of Mid Devonian Grits and Lower Devonian ORS. 1998 1940 133 902 129 0.59 9 valley sides. Geology: composed of Mid Devonian Grits and Lower Devonian ORS. 1999 1951 134 864 124 0.57 7	1 11/02 0 26/06 4 24/10 2 15/01 1 29/10	0.05 0.09 0.07 0.10 0.08	18/09 02/05 03/09 30/07 26/08	1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5	0.33 0.24 0.36 0.36 0.53	0.06 0.11 0.12 0.13 0.09
051003 Washford at Beggsam Huish C.A: 36.3 km² 6695 1171 677 0.78 9 MA: EA Local No: 510810 Sens: 18.6 Encel No: 510810 Life < 0.1	7 26/12 1985	0.02	26/10 1978	1.9	0.49	0.11
Comment: Flat V fibreglass weir, crest 4.5m width, installed in 1982. Vekocity-area station for 1996 1096 94 763 113 0.88 4 Washford, Williton and Watchet. Out of bank flow before bankfull at station. Fish farm and mill us 1997 1298 111 799 118 0.92 6 does not affect dmf. Station closed from Jul 1980 to Jun 1983. # Drains Brendon Hills, relief is steep 1998 1449 124 1041 154 1.20 8 with many deeply incised valleys. Geology Devorian States, Siltstones and Sists. Landuse 1999 1488 127 1078 159 1.24 9 predominantly rural. Coniferous woodland on valley sides.	0 03/11 6 27/06 8 31/10 8 26/12 6 07/12	0.10 0.22 0.18 0.21 0.16	18/09 02/05 30/08 01/08 12/08	2.2 2.3 2.7 3.0 3.4	0.59 0.49 0.68 0.77 1.00	0.12 0.25 0.21 0.27 0.19
051001 Doniford Stream at Swill Bridge C.A: 75.8 km² 6795 921 419 1.01 62 M.A: EA Local No: 510910 Sens: 18.0 B/full: 68.0m³s ⁻¹ 54.10 60.01	3 27/12 1979	0.08	27/08 1976	2.3	0.61	0.19
Comment: Flat V we'r installed in Aug 1983. Prior to this velocity-area station with rock control. High 1995 886 96 454 108 1.09 7 flows measured from a gauging bridge constructed u/s of the weir. Flow data unavailable Aug-Dec 1997 1071 116 475 113 1.14 17 1983. # Drains Devoniar/Triassic s'sts between Quantock and Brendon Hills. Land use rural. 1998 1123 122 568 136 1.36 144 19 2000 1330 144 776 185 1.86 54	7 12/02 3 26/06 0 05/01 2 19/01 5 07/12	0.25 0.36 0.31 0.32 0.21	18/09 17/06 23/09 30/07 11/09	*2.3 2.6 2.8 2.9 4.1	0.86 0.77 1.03 1.00 1.27	0.27 0.43 0.37 0.38 0.26
052006 Yeo at Pen Mill C.A: 213.1 km² 6395 889 368 2.49 138 M.A: EA Local No: 520240 Sens.: 14.1 B/full: 40.0m³s⁻¹ 5	9 27/12 1979	0,05	06/11 1971	6.3	1.07	0.32
Comment: Crump profile triangular cross-section weir for low flows. VA (affected by d/s weed 1996 827 93 328 89 2.21 53 growth) used to measure flows >1.55 m ³ s ⁻¹ . Flows >2m inaccurate. All but highest floods 1997 885 100 292 79 1.97 40 contained. 1989 station moved slightly - problems with stilling well, needs re-rating. Stution Bingham 1998 988 111 397 108 2.69 50 Res. in headwaters. Medium/low flows influenced by variable abstractions and compensation. 1999 1020 115 455 124 3.07 60 # Geology: Oxford Clay and Great Oolite in upper catchment; Yeovil Sands and Inferior Oolite in 2000 1235 139 630 171 4.25 68 lower catchment. Land use: predominantly rural.	3 09/02 9 28/11 8 05/01 9 24/12 8 31/12	0.29 0.27 0.34 0.38 0.49	18/09 31/07 01/09 01/08 12/08	5.0 5.8 6.2 6.3 9.6	1.10 0.74 1.25 1.46 2.10	0.34 0.33 0.42 0.47 0.57
052007 Perrett at Chise/borough C.A. ² 74.8 km ² 66.,95 916 486 1.15 57. M.A: EA Local No: 520310 Sens: 29.5 B/Mall: 11.6m ³ s ⁻¹ Ent.4 (mon.14) Ent.4 (mon.14)	2 30/05 1979	0.06	23/08 1976	2.3	0.51	0.18
PAR'S E Level: 21m Dec. 101 Dec. 101 PAR'S	8 09/02 0 28/11 4 01/01 3 24/12 9 31/12	0.15 0.16 0.17 0.17 0.19	18/09 31/07 31/08 13/09 12/08	2.4 3.3 3.2 3.0 6.8	0.53 0.42 0.58 0.59 0.80	0.17 0.18 0.19 0.19 0.22
052004 Isle at Ashford Mill C.A: 90.1 km ² 6295 890 458 1.31 44. MA: EA Local No: 520110 Sens.: 22.5 B/tult: 33.0m ³ s ⁻¹	2 28/09 1991	0.09	28/06 1954	2.9	0.67	0.26
Comment: Crump profile weir for low flows, crest 6.7 Im broad. Modular limit of 0.6m. Velocity-area 1996 884 99 462 101 1.32 22. station for higher flows (d/s weed growth affects the stability of the S-D relationship). Flood plain 1997 1022 115 480 105 1.37 27. storage in catchment. Bankfull: 2.438m. Bypassing of station occurs at high flows. Minor gw 1998 1021 115 554 121 1.58 25. predominantly Lower Lias clays. Very responsive. Land use: rural.	1 08/01 3 06/08 9 26/12 8 24/12 1 30/10	0.25 0.27 0.31 0.30 0.36	21/07 01/06 19/08 01/08 13/09	2.9 3.1 3.3 3.8 4.9	0.76 0.63 0.86 0.82 1.08	0.30 0.35 0.37 0.36 0.43
052014 Tone at Greenham C.A: 57.2 km² 6795 1113 563 1.02 37. MA: EA Local No: 520540 Sens: 12.1 B/bill: 19.0m³s ⁻¹ 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 1.02 37. 6 <td>5 09/02 1974</td> <td>0.01</td> <td>07/10 1975</td> <td>2.3</td> <td>0.61</td> <td>0,14</td>	5 09/02 1974	0.01	07/10 1975	2.3	0.61	0,14
Comment: Compound Flat V Crupp profile weit. Prior to Aug 1979 velocity-area station with 1996 1031 93 437 78 0.79 5. unstable bed. At high flows estimates made from debris marks as surrounding land floods. Since 1997 1259 113 545 97 0.99 7. 1981 flows above 9.66 m ² s ⁻¹ are truncated. Low hows maintained from Clatworthy Res. Abstractions 1998 1406 126 732 130 1.33 11. for supply, # The upper part of the catchment drains the Brendon Hills. Geology: predominantly ORS. 1999 1438 129 717 127 1.30 14. Land use: rural.	1 12/02 8 27/11 7 05/01 8 19/01 8 07/12	0.11 0.21 0.22 0.17 0.17	19/09 17/06 23/09 01/08 11/08	1.9 2.6 3.1 3.2 3.2	0.61 0.52 0.74 0.72 0.90	0.13 0.25 0.25 0.24 0.19
052005 Tone at Bishops Hull C.A: 202.0 km² 6195 982 478 3.06 112. M.A: EA Local No: 520560 Sens.: 17.7 S/full: 130.0m³s ⁻¹ 54.0 54	7 11/07 1968	0.18	22/08 1976	6.6	1.76	0.59
Comment: Crump profile weil (breadth 12.2m), original crest tapping now removed. Full range. Prior 1996 920 94 428 90 2.73 45. to March 1968, a velocity area station - flows were unreliable below 1.42 m ³ s ⁻¹ . Clatworthy and 1997 1107 113 488 102 3.12 98. smaller Luxhay Reservoirs in headwaters. Compensation flow maintains low flows. Reservoirs not 1998 1196 122 626 131 4.01 47. large enough to influence fairly rapid response to rainfall. Minor surface water abstractions for PWS. 1999 1242 126 659 138 4.22 62. # Geology: predominantly sandstone and marts. Land use: rural.	6 08/01 5 06/08 2 05/01 8 19/01 8 30/10	0.51 0.72 0.83 0.82 0.76	18/09 17/06 30/08 31/07 13/09	5.8 7.0 8.0 9.3 10.4	2.00 1.54 2.53 2.51 2.88	0.57 0.83 0.92 1.03 0.90

	Perlod	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m ³ s ⁻¹)	Peak flow (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (m ³ s ⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (^{m³s-1})	50 Percentile (^{m3} s ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m ¹ s ⁻¹)
052025 Hillfarrance at Milverton C.A: 27.8 km ² M.A: EA Local No: 520550 Sens.:	9295	1109		651 '`		0.57	12.4	30/11 1992	0.09	19/08 1995	1.4	0.32	0.12
F.A.R: Level: 63m UE: AR: Comment: Flat V designed by Fload Defence. STW us of site, with pig processing factory (with a stream support borehole) 100m u/s of that. Meanders d/s of the site cause backing up at high flows, with inundation before structure full (1.15m) and extensive bypassing.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	953 1196 1312 1351 1428	86 108 118 122 129	490 563 745 806	75 86 114 124	0.43 0.50 0.66 0.71	4.6 6.0 11.8 14.6	19/11 29/08 <i>13/05</i> 19/0 1	0.11 0.13 0.14 0.16	17/09 15/06 03/08 01/08	0.9 1.1 1.4 1.5	0.36 0.31 0.46 0.47	0.12 0.16 0.17 0.19
052003 Halsewater at Halsewater C.A: 87.8 km² M.A: EA Local No: 520580 Sens:: 12.6 B/full: 7.0m³s ⁻¹ E.A. EI Local No: 520580 Sens:: 12.6 B/full: 7.0m³s ⁻¹	6195	869		390		1.09	42.0	27/12 1979	0.13	23/08 1976	2.2	0.71	0.27
F.A.R. N Level: 1/m DE: <01 E: 1.0:990 Comment: Flat V weir, 0.5km u/s of confluence with R. Tone. Velocity-area station prior to July 1981. Flows in excess of 7 m ³ s ⁻¹ result in out of bank flow approx. 180m u/s of station and bypassing occurs. Above 18.7m aOD flows are affected by backwater from the R. Tone. # Catchment - mixed geology: predominantly Jurassic limestone, sandstone and mart. Land use: predominantly rural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	825 1019 1046 1113 1206	95 117 120 128 139	406 445 532 567 670	104 114 136 145 172	1.13 1.24 1.48 1.58 1.86	8.0 10.6 9.8 11.6 12.5	25/03 06/08 05/01 19/01 30/10	0.25 0.36 0.35 0.36 0.39	18/09 17/06 30/08 01/08 13/09	2.3 2.5 3.1 3.6 4.2	0.84 0.82 1.09 1.03 1.27	0.29 0.41 0.38 0.42 0.44
	7195	915		414		0.21	7.9	01/12 1976	0.03	26/08 1976	0.4	0.14	0.06
F.A.R: N Level: 49m UE: <.01 ' FAI: 1.000 Comment: Crump profile weir, crest 4m broad. Velocity-area station for flows >1.654 m ³ s ⁻¹ , # Headwaters drain the Quantock Hills. Geology: predominantly Old Red S'st and Mari. Land use: agricultural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	867 1051 1121 1160 1292	95 115 123 127 141	416 462 575 556 651	100 112 139 134 157	0.21 0.23 0.29 0.28 0.32	2.0 3.7 3.1 3.5 5.6	12/02 <i>05/08</i> 31/10 19/01 07/12	0.06 0.08 0.09 0.09 0.08	12/10 17/06 20/09 02/08 11/09	0.4 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7	0.17 ,0.16 0.21 0.20 0.24	0.06 0.09 0.10 0.10 0.10
052011 Cary at Somerton C.A: 82.4 km² M.A: EA Local No: 520810 Sens.; 38.0 B/full: 10.0m³s ⁻¹	6595	736		300		0.78	13.7	31/05 1979	>0.00	23/08 1976	2.0	0.26	0.04
F.A.R: GE Level: 9m UE: 01 UE: 01 UE: 01 AR: 1.000 Comment: Compound Crump profile weir, approx. 330m u/s of Cary Bridge. Centre section 3.05m broad, two side sections 1.22m broad. Velocity-area station for flows greater than 4.4 m ³ s ⁻¹ (d/s summer weed growth affects the stability of stage-discharge relationship). Full range station. Banks contain all but exceptional floods. Minor gw abstractions and some augmentation from effluent returns. # Geology: predominantly Lower Lias and Oolitic Limestone. Land use: rural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 - 2000	663 - 734 866 912 1003	90 100 118 124 136	251 252 405 523 572	84 84 135 174 191	0.65 0.66 1.06 1.37 1.49	8.1 8.7 10.2 11.5 12.5	12/02 07/08 02/11 26/12 31/10	0.04 0.05 0.08 0.06 0.08	18/09 02/08 01/09 31/07 13/09	1.6 1.8 2.3 4.4 3.8	0.27 0.21 0.47 0.57 0.73	0.05 0.06 0.10 0.08 0.11
052026 Alham at Higher Alham C.A: 5.1 km² M.A: EA Local No: 520910 Sens.:	8395	1017		875		0.14	2.2	20/12 1989	0.01	16/09 1984	0.3	0.10	0.03
F.A.R. Level: m UE: F-AI: Common Standard Flat V weir, 2.5m wide, 1:10 cross-slope. Station opened in June 1982 to investigate the effects on groundwater due to quarrying. Low flow control, structure drawns out at 0.2m Some flow in 0.1984 and 1086 aurona dw to a blate a blate other screed for a structure drawns out at 0.2m Some flows in 0.1984 and 1086 aurona dw to a blate a blate other screed for a structure drawns out at 0.2m Some flows in 0.1984 and 1086 aurona dw to a blate a blate activity and the structure drawns out at 0.2m Some flows in 0.1984 and 1086 aurona dw to a blate activity and the structure drawns out at 0.2m Some flows in 0.1984 and 1086 aurona dw to a blate activity and the structure drawns out at 0.2m Some flows in 0.1984 and 1086 and 1086 aurona dw to a blate activity and the structure drawns out at 0.2m Some flows in 0.2m Some flow	1996 1997	894 934	88 92	710 580	81 66	0.12 0.09	0.5 0.6	18/11 11/02	0.03 0.03	02/09 25/09	0.2 0.2	0.09 0.06	0.04 0.03
to chart recorder failure; replaced at end of 1986. # Limestone. Land use: pasture.	1998 1999 2000	1233 1415	129 121 139	1126	129	0.18	1.4	19/01	0.04	18/07	0.4	0.15	0.05
052010 Brue at Lovington CA: 135.2 km² M.A: EA Local No: 520920 Sens.: 21.9 B//kull: 80.0m²s ⁻¹ F.A.P: N Level: 200 Ull: - C.1 FAI: O.0	6495	888		431		1.85	95.5	30/05 1979	0.09	22/08 1976	4.3	0.95	0.24
Comment: Crump profile weir for low flows, crest 6.71m broad. Velocity-area station for flows >2.2 m [*] s ⁻¹ , (d/s summer weed growth affects the stability of the S-D relationship). Reliable extension of rating to bankfull: exceeding all flows lass reliable hut section is deep and contains all but extreme	1996 1997 1998	778 808 1095	88 91 123	328 301 \	76 70	1.40 1.29	23.6 27.2	25/11 28/11	0.17 0.21	18/09 05/10	3.1 3.3	0.79 0.55	0.20 0.23
peaks. Station rebuilt in 1998. no dmfs 27/7 - 1/11/98. # Headwaters fed by Mendip and Salisbury Plain springs. Geology: Oxford Clay and Great Oolite in upper catchment; Yeovil Sands and Inferior Oolite in lower catchment. Very pronounced hydrograph peaks. Land use: predominantly rural.	1999 2000	1063 1219	120 137	660 783	153 182	2.83 3.35	52.2 66.4	18/12 `30/10	0.35 0.38	26/07 13/09	6.8 7.3	, 1,31 , 1.99	0.43 0.52
052009 Sheppey at Fenny Castle C.A: 59.6 km² M.A: EA Local No: 521010 Sens.: 18.8 B/full: 12.0m³s ⁻¹ E.A.B: GE Level: 5m LIE: 03 EAL: 1.000	6495	955		570		1.08 .	9.6	17/12 1965	0.10	13/09 1964	2.2	0.80	0.25
Comment: Crump profile weir for low flows, crest 5.18m broad. Velocity-area station for flows greater than 1.84 m ³ s ⁻¹ (d/s summer weed growth affects stability of S-D relationship - station drowns out). Full trange station. All flows contained Minor ow abstractions in catchment Some summeration from	1996 1997 1998	880 932 1218	92 98 128	458 413 684	80 72 120	0.86 0.78 1.29	5.4 4.1	19/11 20/11 31/10	0.21 0.25 0.34	04/08 02/08 30/08	1.8 1.7 2.5	0.73 0.54 1.00	0.23 0.28 0.40
effluent returns. # Mixed geology: Upper catchment - Carboniferous L'st, Lower catchment - s'sts. Land use: rural.	1999 2000	1245 1352	130 142	737 959	129 168	1.39 1.81	8.0 8.8	26/12 29/10	0.28 0.30	01/08 10/09	2.9 3.6	1.01 1.56	0.36 0.36
052017 Congresbury Yeo at Iwood CA: 66.6 km² M.A: EA Local No: 521410 Sens.: 18.5 S/dul: 14.5m³s^{-1} F.A.R: S Level: 7m UE: 01 FAI: 0.890	7395	957		346		0.73	15.4	28/01 1975	0.14	17/10 1989	1.6	0.46	0.21
Comment: Crump weir, creat 5m broad. Bankfult 1.3m. Station bypassed at high flows. Station closed Feb 1975 to Aug 1985, reopened with telemetry facilities. Very patchy record prior to 1975. Flood warning station for Congresbury approx. 1km d/s. Blagdon reservoir (approx. 2 sq.km) situated	1996 1997 1998	917 985 1202	96 103 126	287 263 503	83 76 145	0.60 0.56 1.06	7.9 6.6 9.0	24/11 26/12 31/10	0.20 0.22 0.25	13/09 02/08 24/09	1.1 1.1 2.1	0.53 0.38 0.79	0.21 0.24 0.27
close to headwaters. # River rises from W slopes of the Mendips. Land use: predominantly rural with some small settlements. Geology: Carboniferous L'st, Keuper Marl and estuarine alluvium.	1999 2000	1288 1404	135 147	541 711	156 205	1.14 1.50	12.0 11.7	19/01 07/12	0.22 0.33	05/08 26/08	2.6 3.1	0.65 1.07	0.25 0.36
052015 Land Yeo at Wraxall Bridge C.A: 23.3 km² M.A: EA Local No: 521510 Sens: 52.0 B/full: 28.8m²s ⁻¹ F.A.R: S Level: 11m UE: .02 FAI: 0.939	7195	912		332		0.25	12.4	04/05 1988	>0.00	06/09 1976	0.5	0.15	0.05
Comment: Inangular profile Crump weir, crest 5m wide. All flows contained. Closed from Sep 1979 to May 1985. Recopened following installation of telemetry. River weedy but weir cleared regularly. Barrow Gumey reservoirs in catchment (approx. 0.75 sq.km). # Drains Dundry Hill. Moderate relief -in headwaters, low.relief.in.lower reaches. Mixed geology.of lower and middle. Coal. Measures, Carboniferous oolitic i'st and Triassic marks and s'sts. Land use predominantly rural, some urbanisa- tion.	1996 1997 1998 - 1999 2000	860 958 1130 1259 1320	94 105 124 138 145	305 296 476 546 660	92 89 143 164 199	0.22 0.22 0.35 0.40 0.49	1.3 2.0 4.6 7.1. 6.7	11/02 31/08 <i>31/10</i> – 19/01. 30/10	0.05 0.07 0.06 0.07 0.07	16/09 07/06 11/10 14/09 11/08	0.4 0.5 0.7 0.8- 1.0	0.17 0.13 - 0.25 - 0.28 0.37	0.06 0.07 0.07 0.09 0.09
	7695	859		339		0.96	11.9	30/11 1992	0.03	28/11 1978	2.4	0.54	0,11
F.A.R: G Level: 77m UE: <.01 FAI: 1.000 Comment: Flat V Crump profile weir, crest 7m broad. Full range station. Flows augmented by gw scheme in catchment. Gate activity u's may affect flows: Artificial influences produce the lowest flows on record in Nov 1978. # Geology: predominantly Oolitic L'st. Land use: rural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	696 791 955 1053 1140	81 92 111 123 133	277 246 410 477 550	82 73 121 141 162	0.78 0.70 , 1.17 1.36 1.56	3.5 4.2 7.4 12.3 13.6	12/01 26/12 05/01 19/01 30/10	0.13 0.15 0.15 0.17 0.17	27/09 21/06 28/07 30/07	1.7 2.1 2.9 3.1 3.6	0.62 0.36 0.68 0.91	0.15 0.17 0.18 0.23 0.19
053024 Tetbury Avon at Brokenborough C.A: 73.6 km ²	78-95	848		311		0.73	18.9	02/12	0.03	22/10	1.8	0.34	0.06
F.A.R. GE Level: m UE: FAI: Comment: Flat V Crump profile weir, crest 7m. Low flow station. Rating not extended above the measuring capacity of the weir and neaks on the hydrograph are truncated Groundwater stations	1996	692	82 92	154 149	50	0.36	1.4	1992 12/01 25/02	0.06	1990 27/07 27/07	0.8	0.28	0.09
tions in catchment. Some augmentation from effluent returns. # Geology: predominantly Oolitic Limestone. Land use; rural.	1998 1999 2000	965 1065 1169	114 126 138	265 318 447	85 102 144	0.62 0.74 1.04	5.9 11.4 13.6	04/01- 19/01 29/10-	0.09 0.10 0.12	27/07 05/08 24/07	0.9 1.4 1.4 1.9	0.42 0.49 0.57	0.10 0.11 0.15 0.14

,

				Period	Rainfail (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m1e**)	Pask flow (^{m1} s'')	Oute of peak	Min. datiy flow (m ¹ ='')	Date of min.	t0 Percentlle (m ¹ s ¹¹)	50 Percentile (m1s**)	95 Percentita (m ¹ e ⁻¹)
053019 M.A: EA	Woodbridge E Local No: 530130	Brook at Crabb Mill Sens.: 31.0	C.A: 45.6 km² S/full: 1.4m³s ⁻¹	6995	750		376		0.56	55.9	30/11 1992	; 6.00	01/09 1976	1.1	0.20	0.03
F.A.R: G Comment: Compound two 0.76m broad wings rating is only usable to catchment. Land use:	 Level: 66m I rectangular thin-plate weir Low flow station only. Mea estimate flows. Substantial predominantly rural. 	UE: <.01 (no divide piers). 1.52m w suring capacity of weir is 1. gw abstractions in catchme	FAI: 0.982 ride centre section and 4 m ³ s ⁻¹ , above this the nt. # Impermeable clay	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	573 688 926 936 1060	76 92 123 125 141	201 195 560 513 948	53 52 149 136 252	0.30 0.29 0.83 0.76 1.40	8.8 7.2 36.9 11.8 95.3	26/03 24/02 26/12 23/12 30/10	0.01 0.02 0.02 0.08 0.04	24/10 18/08 12/10 15/09 12/09	0.6 0.6 1.4 1.6 2.9	0.16 0.13 0.27 0.31 0.33	0.02 0.03 0.04 0.10 0.07
053020 M.A: EA	Gauze Broo Local No: 530140	sens.: 31.0	C.A: 28.2 km ² S/full: 0.6m ³ s ⁻¹	6895	796		305		0.27	7. 2	25/01 1985	>0.00	10/08 1976	0.7	0.13	0.02
F.A.R: G Comment: Rectangula this are estimated. Pr recharge on river flow: catchment. Land use:	, Level: 66m ar thin-plate weir. Measuring imarity a low flow station; may cause abrupt rises in fl rural.	UE: <.01 g capacity of weir 0.566 m ³ monitors the impact of gn ow in summer months. # P	FAI: 1.000 's ⁻¹ , discharges above pundwater abstraction/ redominantly limestone	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	651 770 942 983 1088	82 97 118 123 137	217 196 361 399 533	71 64 118 131 175	0.19 0.18 0.32 0.36 0.48	1.8 2.0 9.0 11.1 25.0	25/03 20/05 26/12 19/01 29/10	0.01 0.01 0.02 0.03 0.02	07/08 09/06 29/07 15/07 13/09	0.5 0.5 0.7 0.8 1.1	0.11 0.08 0.15 0.18 0.22	0.01 0.02 0.03 0.04 0.03
053008 M.A: EA	Avon at G Local No: 530150	reat Somerford Sens.: 16.1	C.A: 303.0 km ²	64-95	821		343		3.30	107.7	11/07 1968	0.11	02/09 1976	8.1	1.80	0.33
F.A.R: G Comment: Compound 90m d/s of Great Some contained. Flows augr tributaries draining off	Level: S8m, I Crump profile weir - low fl erford road bridge. Full rang mented by gw scheme in o clays. Land use: predomina	UE: <.01 low crest between two flan e station. All except extrem eatchment. # Geology: ma intly rural.	FAI: 0.989 king sections. Situated in flows (e.g. Jul 1968) inly Oolitic L'st with Ib	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	656 761 946 1013 1118	80 93 115 123 136	237 221 426 479 576	69 64 124 140 168	2.27 2.13 4.09 4.60 5.52	19.0 18.8 37.9 63.4 84.5	' 25/03 26/12 26/12 20/01 30/10	0.30 0.31 0.42 0.53 0.31	06/10 29/07 31/08 31/07 29/08	5.1 6.1 9.7 10.9 13.1	1.64 0.91 2.29 2.86 3.19	0.33 0.38 0.49 0.75 0.66
053013 M.A: EA F.A.R: PE	Marder Local No: 530850 Level: 47m	n at Stanley Sens.: 5.6 UE: .02	C.A: 99.2 km² S/full: 35.5m³s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.980	70-95	762		377		1.19	40.1	20/01 1985	0.10	26/08 1976	2.5	0.76	0.25
Comment: Trapezoida Bridge 100 150m u discharges in catchme rural.	al critical depth flume. Full (//s causes throttling at high nt. # Predominantly clay ca	range station. Prior to Jul h flows. Minor surface v tchment, Chalk outcrop in	1969 level only station. rater abstractions and headwaters. Land use:	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	585 697 928 895 1036	77 91 122 117 136	258 213 536 495 677	68 56 142 131 180	0.81 0.67 1.69 1.56 2.12	9.6 7.4 20.4 14.1 43.3	12/02 24/02 31/10 16/01 30/10	0.21 0.20 0.37 0.33 0.44	14/09 20/08 23/09 13/09 24/08	1.5 1.5 3.2 3.2 4.5	0.55 0.39 1.15 1.08 1.41	0.25 0.22 0.42 0.39 0.49
053002 M.A: EA	Semington Bo Local No: 530950	rook at Semington Sens.: 21.2	C.A: 157.7 km ²	5395	744		283		1.42	50.0	27/12 1979	0.06	03/08 1976	2.7	0.83	0.26
Comment: Formalise (superseded due to low prior to Apr 1970 are th water abstractions. Mill eastern boundaries. La	d trapezoidal section with w banks and backwater fror verefore poor. Station rated of operation u/s. # Catchmen and use: predominantly rura	n cableway, replaced vel n R. Avon at high flows). F up to 19.83 m ³ s ⁻¹ . Some g t flat and low lying, mainly il.	colty-area station d/s lood records for period w pumping and surface day with steeper Chalk	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	570 662 865 890 1022	77 89 116 120 137	226 182 395 446 611	80 64 140 158 216	1.13 0.91 1.97 2.23 3.04	15.9 13.9 25.8 29.3	12/02 20/11 01/11 25/12	0.34 0.37 0.49 0.46	24/07 14/11 12/08 29/07	1.7 1.5 3.5 5.5 7.4	0.71 0.57 1.13 1.09 1.44	0.50 0.45 0.52 0.56 0.68
053029 M.A: EA	Biss at Local No: 531050	Trowbridge Sens.: 16.1	C.A: 77.6 km ²	84-95	772 :		339		0.83	30.4	20/12 1989	0.08	04/08 1992	1.9	0.40	0.16
F.A.K: I Comment: Crump prol approach, large d/s fall relief catchment situate clays. Predominantly n	Level: 32m file Flat V weir (1;10), 7.13m Moderate influence on low ed along Frome gap. Drains ural; arable farming. Contai	vide, set in deep cutvert w flows by abstractions and o chalk scarp to SE. Under ns Westbury.	rAt: ith vertical walls. Good lischarges. # Moderate tying geology: Jurassic	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	632 700 912 939 1074	82 91 118 122 139	217 172 373 383 533	64 51 110 113 157	0.53 0.42 0.92 0.94 1.31	6.1 9.4 11.8 9.3 15.7	12/02 17/02 31/10 20/01 30/10	0.09 0.06 0.11 0.13 0.20	18/09 19/08 12/08 31/07 12/09	1.2 1.0 1.9 2.4 3.1	0.28 0.18 0.46 0.46 0.71	0.10 0.07 0.13 0.16 0.24
053025 M.A: EA	Mella Local No: 531240 Level: 68m	s at Vallis Sens.; 21.3	C.A: 119.0 km ² S/full: 36.4m ³ s ⁻¹ : FAI: 0.951	80-95	1082		43 3 ;		1.63	40.3	13/10 1993	0.11	29/08 1989	3.8	0.98	0.20
Comment: Crump pro returns. # Geology: pre	ile weir, crest 6m broad. Fu edominantly Carboniferous	Ill range station. Minor aug L'st with Coal Measures. L	and use: rural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	921 980 1299 1303 1453	85 91 120 120 134	346 324 616 598 755	80 75 142 138 174	1.30 1.22 2.33 2.26 2.84	11.6 12.0 32.2 20.4 33.5	24/11 17/02 31/10 19/01 29/10	0.20 0.16 0.44 0.27 0.38	15/09 05/10 24/09 25/07 08/09	2.8 3.0 4.5 5.1 6.0	1.05 0.63 1.58 1.50 2.11	0.24 0.31 0.55 0.46 0.44
053007 M.A: EA	Frome(Some Local No: 531160	rset) at Tellisford Sens.; 4.8	C.A: 261.6 km ² S/full: 113.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6195	965		, 451		3.74	108.1	10/07 1968	0.20	27/08 1976	8.6	2.14	0.60
F.A.K: PG Comment: Trapezoida but extreme floods con station. Substantial g impermeable clays in however, detention lak	Level: 35m al critical depth flume. Full ra tained (atthough some over roundwater abstractions i Frome Gap and Coal Me es 5 to 6km u/s may trunca	UE: .02 Inge station. Deeply incised bank u/s storage). Pumping n. catchment. # Predomi basures in Mells Valley. F tte peaks. Land use: predo	FAI: 0.967 I channel at station - all I station u/s of gauging nantly limestone with Responsive catchment, minantly rural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	826 876 1170 1170 1335	86 91 121 121 138	354 320 600 592 761	78 71 133 131 169	2.93 2.66 4.97 4.91 6.29	31.6 43.9 79.0 47.9 82.6	24/11 17/02 31/10 19/01 30/10	0.45 0.42 0.68 0.67 0.99	23/07 05/10 25/09 25/07 13/09	6.3 6.8 10.3 11.5 14.9	2.13 1.30 2.76 2.81 3.97	0.53 0.63 1.10 0.93 1.13
053009 M.A: EA	Wellow Ba Local No: 531360	rook at Wellow Sens.: 6.7	C.A: 72.6 km ² S/full: 42.5m ³ s ⁻¹	66-95	1019		554		1.27	29.5	10/07 1968	0.09	10/08 1976	2.8	0.84	0.23
F.A.R: N Comment: Trapezoida Backing up from bridg adequately. # Mixed ge :	Level: 44m el critical depth flume. Full ra je d/s occurred during Jul eology - Lias and Oolitic L's	UE: .04 ange station. Slight bypassi 1968 flood (flow circa 30 at. Land use: predominantly	FAI: 0.987 ng on right-hand bank. m ³ s ⁻¹). MAF gauged r rural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	880 974 1191 1271 1382	86 96 117 125 136	474 469 690 765 <i>869</i>	86 85 125 138 157	1.09 1.08 1.59 1.76 1.99	10.4 15.7 12.2 13.1	24/11 17/02 31/10 26/12	0.20 0.28 0.31 0.26	17/09 02/08 30/08 26/07	2.3 2.4 3.3 4.1 4.2	0.87 0.61 1.05 1.15 1.47	0.23 0.32 0.37 0.35 0.42
053005 M.A: EA F.A.B: PGE	Midford Be Local No: 531370 Level: 27m	rook at Midford Sens.: 4.9 LIF- 03	C.A: 147,4 km² S/full: 56.0m³s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.993	6195	978		473		2.21	55.7	10/07 1968	0.16	19/08 1976	4.9	1.43	0.41
Comment: Trapezoida Algal growth affects sei # Predominantly imper catchment, responds n	I critical depth flume 2.4km nsitivity at low flows, Bypass meable catchment - Lias v apidly to rainfall, Land use	u/s of confluence with R. A sing may occur on left-hand vith Coal Measures. Deep - rurai.	von. Full range station. bank above 3m stage. steep sided valleys in	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	856 939 1150 1222 1343	88 96 118 125 137	432 419 625 696 816	91 89 132 147 173	2.01 1.96 2.92 3.25 3.81	22.6 35.0 29.2 36.3 53.1	24/11 17/02 24/10 19/01 30/10	0.39 0.47 0.61 0.56 0.68	18/09 23/08 30/08 02/08 12/09	4.1 4.4 5.9 7.4 7.9	1.60 1.07 1.91 2.08 2.71	0.46 0.60 0.67 0.74 0.76
053028 M.A: EA	By Brook Local No: 530450	s at Middlehlli Sens.: 13.0	C.A: 102.0 km ²	82-95	884		490		1.59	13.1	30/11 1992	0.14	20/09 1990	4.1	0.90	0.22
F.A.K: P Comment: Flat V weir. water abstractions in ca Land use: rural.	Lever: zem Wing walls at 2m should co atchment. Gate movement u	oc: Intain most floods. Low flov /s. # Geology: pradominan	r Al. v station. Minor surface by Oolitic L'st and Lias.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	726 840 1019 1055 1164	82 95 115 119 132	377 368 589 637 782	77 75 120 130 160	1.22 1.19 1.91 2.06 2.52	4.8 5.2 12.3 12.3 13.2	13/01 02/12 05/01 26/12 31/10	0.14 0.24 0.26 0.32 0.27	23/09 23/08 23/09 02/08 12/09	2.6 3.4 4.6 4.5 5.6	0.99 0.61 1.07 1.40 1.78	0.21 0.31 0.30 0.39 0.33
				-							sou	тн	WES	TR	EGI	 ON

....

				Perlad	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (^{m1} s ⁻¹)	Peak flow (m³s⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (^{m3} s ⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m³s ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (^{m³s⁻¹)}	95 Percentile (m ³ s ⁻¹)
053018 M.A: EA F.A.R: RPGE	Avon a Local No: 530180 Level: 18m	H Bathford Sens.: 9.8	C.A: 1552.0 km ²	6995	835		344		16.91	300.5	28/12 1979	1.09	27/08 1976	36.7	10.37	2.90
Comment: VA station James 53003). Situate	with cableway, next to railwa ad immediately d/s of confi	y bridge 4km u/s of Bath (uence with Bybrook, Wid	replacement for Bath St lely inundated in flood	1996 1997	687 776	82 93	250 220	73 64	12.29 10.84	82.2	12/02	2.19	23/09	26.9 27.0	9.06 5.69	2.41 2.67
5 m ³ s ⁻¹ inaccurate, so Flows augmented by g eastern tributaries risin	i contained through bridge. D o synthetic values derived fi w scheme in catchment, # 1 ig from Chalk. Land use: ma	eep section and low veloc rom all sites above Bathf Mixed geology - predomin ainly rural, some urbanisa	ities render flows below ord (local no. 530179), antly clays and l'st with tion.	1998 1999 2000	994 1021 1149	119 122 138	537 574 705	156 167 205	26.42 28.25 34.60	192.0 191.0 272.7	01/11 25/12 30/10	3.04 3.64 3.88	30/08 02/08 30/08	62.6 70.1 81.8	14.60 17.17 21.15	3.63 5.04 4.76
053017 M.A: EA F.A.R: N	Boyd Local No: 530350 Level: 16m	at Bitton Sens.: 25.0 UE: .01	C.A: 47.9 km ² S/full: 94.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.999	7395	800		363		0.55	27.2	30/05 1979	0.01	28/08 1976	1.4	0.25	0.05
Comment: Flat V Crun deen, Full range statio	np profile weir, crest 8m broa	d. Situated in rectangular	sheet-piled section; 4m	1996	704	88	263	72	0.40	5.1	19/11	0.03	18/09	1.0	0.25	0.04
rural with some urbania	sation.	recommency clay catch	nem, cano use, mainiy	1997	956	120	426	117	0.43	5.9 13.9	26/12	0.05	20/08	1.1	0.1/	0.07
				1999	1036	130	497	137	0.76	18.7	19/01	0.06	28/07	1.7	0.39	0.08
				2000	1122	140	573	158	0.87	25.4	29/10	0.07	13/09	2.0	0.49	0.09
053004 M.A: EA F.A.R: SP	Chew at Co Local No: 531450 Level: 17m	Sens.: 4.8 UE: <.01	C.A: 129.5 km ² S/full: 85.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.843	5895	1008		267		1.10	67.5	30/05 1979	0.14	01/08 1962	2.2	0.66	0.32
Comment: Trapezoida	i critical depth flume. Full r	ange station but overesti	mates flows above 2m	1996	929	92	239	90	0.98	19.0	24/11	0.34	19/08	1.7	0.82	0.35
and accumulated debr	low record unreliable for a ye	ear after the July 1968 floo	d due to bank collapse	1997	978	97	233	87	0.95	26.5	17/02	0.40	02/08	1.8	0.60	0.45
compensation flow. Sig	nificant surface water abstra	ictions for PWS and indus	try. Monthly naturalised	1999	1271	126	544	204	2.24	52.9 61.8	19/01	0.42	23/09	3.7 5.1	1.23	0.47
flow series available to rural.	1980. # Mixed geology - pre	dominantly clay, some Co	al Measures. Land use:	2000	1380	137	625	234	2.56	75.9	29/10	0.45	31/07	5.3	1.56	0.50
053026 M.A: EA E A R: N	Frome (Bristol) a Local No: 530240	t Frampton Cotterell Sens.: 38.3	C.A: 78.5 km ² S/full: 48.0m ³ s ⁻¹	78-95	819		405		1.01	21.0	27/12 1979	0.03	11/08 1990	2.5	0.45	0.10
Comment: Crump prof	file weir, crest 7.5m broad. F	full range structure, but dr	owns out at high flows.	1996	702	86	347	86	0.86	7.6	25/03	0.17	03/08	2.0	0.58	0.19
# Geology: mainly Coa	I Measures E of R. Frome	and Lias to W. Responsi-	ve catchment, however	1997	822	100	330	81	0.82	8.2	13/02	0.07	18/08	1.8	0.42	0.14
detention takes 4 to bk	m u/s may truncate peaks. I	Land use: predom/nanuy i	rurai.	1998	952	116	479	118	1.19	12.9	07/03 20/04	0.09	03/09	3.0	0.45	0.13
				2000	1114	136	638	158	1.58	22.3	30/10	0.10	31/07	3.8	0.75	0.12
053006 M.A: EA	Frome(Brist Local No: 530270	ol) at Frenchay Sens.: 7.9	C.A: 148.9 km ² S/full: 56.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6195	804		356		,1 <mark>,68</mark>	.70.8	10/07 1968	0.08	10/08 1976	4.1	0.74	0.19
Comment: Trapezoida	al critical depth flume. Full i	range station. Flume des	igned on basis of pre-	1996	701	87	283	79	1.33	15.3	19/11	0.14	25/07	3.1	ò 83	0 19
urbanisation flow estim	ates - site swamped in ston	ms of 1965 and 1968, Ext	tra retaining walls have	1997	823	102	297	83	1.40	15.4	12/02	0.22	23/07	3.2	0.58	0.26
Coal Measures and M	ex geology; eastern and ce lercia Mudstone. West is in	entral catchment dominate	d by sandstones of the Idst. and Liassic clavs	1998	951	118	447 524	126	2.11	33.4	06/03	0.17	12/08	5.0	0.84	0.24
Superficial deposits are	meltwater gravels and terra	aces, mainly in west.		2000	. 1103	137	560	157	2.64	J1.4	19/01	0.22	20/07	6.7	1.28	0.21
054088 M.A: EA	Little Avon at I Local No: 542350	Berkeley Kennets . Sens.: 18.0	C.A: 134.0 km ²	7895	823		248		1.05	44.6	01/05	0.12	28/07	2.1	0.69	0.23
F.A.R: PGEI	Level: m	UE: .01	FAI: 0.987										1000			
comment: VA station i cope with coincidence of	In rectangular concrete chan of large tidal range of R. Sevi	inel; gauged from road bri em and extreme events. k	oge. Flood gates d/s to	1996	688 805	84 08	196 180	79 73	0.83	13.2	19/11	0.15	19/08	1.7	0.57	0.18
PWS abstractions and	spray irrigation. August 19	98 dmfs under investigat	ion, treat with extreme	1998	947	115	263	106	1.12	30.9	24/10	0.12	10/08	2.6	0.40	0.19
caution. Levels and rat	ting dubious at this station.	# Steep headwaters drain	complex sequence of	1999	1073	130	335	135	1.42	47.9	20/01	0.16	27/07	2.9	0.86	0.24
Cambrian infier, Keupe	r Mari and Lias clays. Agrici	utural catchment, quite re	sponsive.	2000	1121	136	452	182	1.91	75.4	29/10	0.18	13/09	3.4	1.11	0.23

.

Map 10: WELSH/RHANBARTH CYMRU



Area: 21,262 km²

Gauging Station Register

Station number	River name	Station name		Grid reference	Catchment area (sq km)	Station type	Period of record	Meen ann. reinfati (mm)	Меал алл. runoff (mm)	Mean ann. loss (mm)	Max. ann. runoff (mm)	Year of max.	Min. มหา. runoff (mm)	Year of min.	Mean flow (^{m3} e ⁻¹)	Min, mon, flow (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	Month/Year of min.	Median ann, flood (^{m¹} a⁺¹)	Base Flow Index	10 Percentile (^{m1} e ⁻¹)	95 Parcentita (m ¹ s - 1)
055034 055008 055035 055033 055010 055005 055026 055026 055030 055006 055032	Cyff Wye Iago Wye 'Wye 'Wye 'Wye 'Claerwen 'Elan Elan	Cyff furne Cefn Brwyn Iago furne Gwy furne Pant Mawr Rhayader Ddol Farm Dol-y-mynach Caban Coch Res Elan Village	SN SN SN SN SN SN SN SN SN SN SN SN SN S	824842 829838 825854 824853 843825 969676 976676 910620 926645 934653	3.1 10.6 1.1 3.9 27.2 166.8 174.0 95.3 184.0 184.0	FL CC FL FVVA FVVA FVVA FV B FV	197399 195100 197399 197399 195582 193769 193700 192650 190884 190800	2562 2487 2566 2714 2365 1627 1651 1825 1843	2167 2182 1949 2224 1927 1169 1212 1327 866 883	395 305 617 490 438 458 439 959 960	4039 5587 2724 3000 2439 1613 1918 1648 1563 1563	99 69 98 74 54 00 23 23	1282 1372 1061 1399 1351 909 780 847 239 239	76 76 76 76 45 76 33 76 76	0.21 0.73 0.07 0.28 1.66 6.18 6.69 4.01 5.05 5.15	0.01 0.05 >0.00 0.01 0.29 0.18 0.21 0.58 0.56	08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 09/59 08/76 07/49 10/84 10/84	5.6 18.1 1.9 8.5 51.8 115.0 116.3 90.9	.30 .31 .35 .31 .37 .37 .30 .34 .34	0.5 1.7 0.2 0.6 3.9 14.9 16.1 10.2 13.7 14.0	0.02 0.07 0.04 0.17 0.63 0.55 0.33 1.40 0.83
055011 055016 055017 055004 055012 055007 055025 055002 055031 055014	ithon ithon Chwefru irfon irfon Wye Lynfi Wye Yazor Brook Lugg	Llandewi Disserth Carreg-y-wen Abemant Cilmery Erwood Three Cocks Belmont Three Elms Byton	50 57 57 50 50 50 50 50 50	105683 024578 998531 892460 995507 076445 166373 485388 492415 364647	111.4 358.0 29.0 72.8 244.2 1282.1 132.0 1895.9 42.3 203.3	VA FV VA FVVA VA VA FV FV	195982 196800 196882 193782 196600 197700 1970.00 193500 197300 1966.00	1188 1123 1426 1815 1704 1411 1011 1250 707 1048	741 717 980 1463 1321 914 547 788 174 624	447 406 446 352 383 497 464 462 533 424	996 960 1410 1917 2074 1400 864 1284 320 877	60 81 66 98 00 00 94 00	480 444 661 927 795 536 283 453 82 360	64 71 76 76 64 73 76 73	2.62 8.14 0.90 3.38 10.23 37.16 2.29 47.37 0.23 4.02	0.03 0.09 0.01 0.14 0.25 2.62 0.07 3.34 0.02 0.41	08/76 08/76 05/80 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 09/89 08/76	54.9 104.2 20.5 55.3 202.8 556.7 48.0 421.0 27.5	.39 .38 .34 .37 .36 .41 .57 .46 .55 .65	6.4 21.1 2.2 7.6 25.0 93.0 5.5 113.6 0.4 9.0	0.14 0.32 0.04 0.31 0.68 4.49 0.16 6.14 0.04
055020 055021 055013 055003 055028 055018 055027 055036 055015 055029	Pinsley Brook Lugg Arrow Lugg Frome Frome Rudhall Brk Garren Honddu Monnow	Cholstrey Mill Butts Bridge Titley Mill Lugwardine Bishops Frome Yarkhill Sandford Bridge Marstaow Mill Tafolog Grosmont	50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50	462598 502589 328585 548405 667489 615428 641257 561194 277294 415249	24.2 371.0 126.4 885.8 77.7 144.0 13.2 91.0 25.1 354.0	VA VA VA FV VA FV US FVVA VA	1993-00 1969.00 1966.00 1939.00 1971.00 1968.00 1971.98 1997.00 1966.82 1948.00	812 927 1028 850 741 732 734 912 1402 1011	624 478 602 394 261 315 387 898 538	188 449 426 456 457 471 419 525 504 473	731 776 853 691 470 406 468 549 1092 971	00 82 60 81 96 00 72 60	360 263 327 175 130 147 100 206 513 244	97 73 64 97 73 73 97 73 73	0.48 5.62 2.41 11.07 0.70 1.19 0.13 1.12 0.71 6.04	0.17 0.51 0.11 0.57 > 0.00 0.06 0.01 0.19 0.04 0.36	\$ 09/96 08/76 08/95 08/76 08/76 08/76 09/97 05/82 08/76	37.4 36.4 51.7 21.7 17.3 131.4	.78 .55 .63 .48 .52 .73 .66 .54 .51	0.8 12.0 5.6 26.1 1.5 2.6 0.3 2.7 1.5 13.9	0.19 0.99 0.26 1.48 0.06 0.15 0.01 0.17 0.11 0.67
055009 * 055022 * 055023 056008 * 056014 056007 056006 * 056013 056003 * 056004 *	Monnow Trothy Wye Monks Ditch Usk Senni Usk Yscir Honddu Usk	Kentchurch Mitchel Troy Redbrook Llanwern Usk Reservoir Pont Hen Hafod Trallong Pontaryscir The Forge Brecon Llandetty	SO SO ST SN SN SN SO SO SO	419251 503112 528110 372885 840290 928255 947295 003304 051297 127203	357.4 142.0 4010.0 15.4 17.0 19.9 183.8 62.8 62.1 543.9	VA FVVA FL C C VA C C VA	194872 196982 1936-00 197076 197900 196700 1963-84 1972-00 1963-84 196581	1028 870 1038 923 1781 1980 1686 1437 1168 1501	521 351 582 432 746 1637 1119 1004 751 1045	507 519 456 491 1035 343 567 433 417 456	962 458 976 514 1054 2482 1598 1516 1050 1359	60 74 00 71 00 98 74 00 74 74	274 129 314 252 224 930 692 646 446 589	64 73 96 73 73 73 64 73	5.90 1.58 74.06 0.21 0.40 1.03 6.52 2.00 1.48 18.03	0.60 0.08 5.18 0.05 0.06 0.98 0.10 0.06 1.62	09/61 07/76 08/76 10/72 08/96 08/95 05/80 08/76 08/76 08/76	112.6 36.2 512.6 26.2 164.3 31.5 23.5 340.1	.50 .49 .54 .59 .49 .37 .44 .52 .49	12.9 3.5 174.5 0.4 1.0 2.4 14.7 4.8 3.4 38.5	0.77 0.12 11.54 0.05 0.07 0.10 1.00 0.19 0.16 2.35
056012 056001 056015 056005 056002 056002 057008 057011 057001	Grwyne Usk Olway Brook Lwyd Sirhowy Ebbw Rhymney Taf Fawr Taf Fechan	Millbrook Chain Bridge Olway Inn Ponthir Wattsville Rhivderyn Llanedeyrn Beacons Res Taf Fechan Res	SO SO ST ST ST ST SN SO	241176 345056 384010 330924 206912 259889 225821 987193 060117	82.2 911.7 105.1 98.1 76.1 216.5 178.7 5.1 33.7	C VA CC FVVA FVVA TP MIS	197100 195700 1975-00 1966-98 197083 195700 1973-00 197680 193673	1275 1406 992 1446 1492 1524 1468 2167 1976	787 980 465 1010 875 1078 997 2331	488 426 527 436 617 446 471	1074 1524 830 1358 1092 1541 1505 2387	00 60 94 81 82 00 77	431 515 280 513 457 509 512 1886 271	73 75 73 73 73 73 73 78 64	2.05 28.34 1.55 3.14 2.11 7.40 5.65 4.52 2.49	0.20 2.70 0.05 0.47 0.20 0.00 0.45 0.03 0.10	08/95 08/76 08/90 07/76 08/76 12/96 08/95 08/76 12/73	19.9 379.7 17.9 48.8 30.3 90.9 103.4	.59 .52 .56 .50 .57 .48 .32 .80	4.7 64.6 3.8 6.9 4.7 16.8 13.1 0.8 2.3	0.34 4.11 0.64 0.34 1.43 0.73 0.03 0.22
057012 * 057002 * 057015 057007 057004 057006 057005 057005 057003 * 057010 057009	Garwnant Taf Fawr Taff Cynon Rhondda Taff Ely Ely	Liwynon Res Liwynon Res Merthyr Tydfil Fiddlers Elbow Abercynon Trehafod Pontypridd Tongwynlais Lanelay St Fagans	SO SO ST ST ST ST ST ST	004129 012111 043068 089951 079956 054909 079897 132818 034827 121770	4.3 43.0 104.1 194.5 106.0 100.5 454.8 486.9 39.4 145.0	TP MIS FVVA FVVA FVVA VA VA VA FVVA	1976-80 193173 1978-00 1973-00 197500 197000 197000 1965-72 197400 1975-00	1761 1992 2014 1780 1851 2306 1920 1863 1704 1422	937 1093 1285 1820 1377 1365 1224 999	1055 921 682 566 486 543 498 480 423	1459 1662 1618 1764 2794 2107 1570 1795 1509	54 00 00 00 00 67 00	1471 399 753 690 644 1045 713 989 760 591	78 73 96 73 73 73 69 75 75	2.24 1.28 3.61 6.77 4.32 5.80 19.86 21.08 1.53 4.59	0.01 0.11 0.34 0.79 0.35 0.39 2.29 4.36 0.12 0.46	08/76 05/56 08/84 08/76 08/95 07/84 08/76 08/68 08/76 08/76	91.9 123.1 72.7 99.8 288.9 320.0 43.0 52.2	.70 .30 .46 .40 .41 .47 .44 .44	0.8 3.2 8.7 16.0 10.8 13.9 43.5 48.4 3.6 10.6	0.14 0.75 1.28 0.54 0.75 3.59 4.03 0.17 0.58
058011 058009 058003 058005 058007 058001 058012 058010 058006 058002	Thaw Ewenny Ogmore Llynfi Ogmore Afan Hepste Meilte Neath	Gigman Bridge Keepers Lodge Ewenny Priory Brynmenyn Coytrahen Bridgend Marctoft Weir Esgair Carnau Pontneddlechan Resolven .	ST SS SS SS SS SN SN SN SN	017716 920782 914780 904844 891855 904794 771910 969134 915082 815017	49.2 62.5 62.9 74.3 50.2 158.0 87.8 11.0 65.8 190.9	MIS FVVA FVVA FVVA FVVA CC FVVA FVVA FVVA	197600 1971-00 1962-65 1970.00 196300 196300 197800 197500 197100 196200	1206 1394 1185 2011 1856 1800 2166 2168 2083 2041	672 951 802 1609 1456 1328 1873 1720 1547 1458	534 443 383 402 400 472 293 448 536 583	1295 1444 787 2502 2235 2043 2584 2557 2300 2381	00 94 63 98 98 98 98 00	448 523 553 985 908 790 1469 1081 951 182	90 73 64 76 73 73 78 76 73 64	1.05 1.88 1.60 3.79 2.32 6.65 5.22 0.60 3.23 8.83	0.09 0.22 0.26 0.28 0.52 0.55 0.03 0.21 0.26	08/84 08/76 09/64 07/84 07/84 08/95 08/95 08/95 08/84 09/64	6.2 44.3 19.6 48.4 43.8 103.1 12.8 59.2 172.7	.68 .56 .49 .48 .48 .45 .21 .38 .35	2.4 4.0 2.9 8.5 5.2 14.7 11.9 1.7 7.8 23.0	0.15 0.38 0.26 0.54 0.36 0.97 0.84 0.04 0.36 0.66
058008 059001 059002 060008 060007 060005 060009 060012 060013	Dulais Tawe Loughor Tywi Tywi Bran Sawdde Twrch Cothi Cothi	Cilfrew Ynystanglws Tir-y-dail Ystradffin Dolau Hirion Llandovery Felin-y-owm Ddol Las Pt Ynys Brechfa Felin Mynachdy	SN SS SN SN SN SN SN SN SN	778008 685998 623127 786472 762362 771343 712266 650440 537301 508225	43.0 227.7 46.4 89.8 231.8 66.8 77.5 20.7 261.6 297.8	CC VA C VA MIS FV VA VA VA	197100 195700 196700 196800 196800 197000 197000 197100 197176	1825 1928 1570 1895 1748 1547 1794 1657 1494 1663	1465 1677 1412 1474 1360 1095 1353 1068 984 1211	360 251 158 421 388 452 441 589 510 452	2161 2411 2188 2034 2168 1753 1969 1665 1425 1768	00 86 00 90 98 74 00 74 00	904 1054 833 1031 494 660 823 699 644 760	76 76 96 76 73 96 73 73	2.00 12.11 2.08 4.20 9.99 2.32 3.32 0.70 8.16 11.44	0.14 0.57 0.20 0.83 0.34 0.03 0.26 0.00 0.62 0.36	08/95 09/59 08/84 01/96 08/95 08/76 08/76 09/90 08/75 08/76	44.1 225.3 68.7 119.0 38.3 97.2 14.7 120.4 154.1	.39 .37 .44 .58 .44 .38 .40 .33 .45 .44	4.9 29.3 4.8 8.6 22.9 5.6 7.5 1.8 20.2 26.8	0.25 1.46 0.33 0.97 2.06 0.13 0.39 0.04 0.71 0.97

n number	liver name	tion name		l reference	tment area (sq km)	tation type	l of record	nn. rainfall (mm)	inn. runoff (mm)	і алп. loss (mm)	nn. runoff (ուտ)	ar of max.	inn. runoff (mm)	aar of min.	Mean flow (m³a²¹)	mon. flow (m³s-1)	aar of min.	ann. flood (m³s-1)	low Index	Percentile (m ³ s ⁻¹)	Percentile (m ¹ s ⁻¹)
Static	Ľ	S N		Gro	Catch	ίΩ.	Perloc	Mean a	Mean a	Mear	Мах. а	Ye	Min. a	×		MIn	Month/Y	Median	Base F	9	95
060010 060003 060003 060004 061002 061001 061003 062002 062001 063003	Tywi Gwili Taf Dewi Fawr East Cleddau West Cleddau Gwaun Gwaun Teifi Teifi Wyre	Nantgaredig Glangwili Clog-y-Fran Glasfryn Ford Canaston Bridge Prendergast Mill Cilrhedyn Bridge Llanfair Glan Teifi Llanrhystyd	SN SN SN SN SN SN SN SN SN SN	485206 431220 238160 290175 072153 954177 005349 433406 244416 542698	1090.4 129.5 217.3 36.7 183.1 197.6 31.3 510.0 893.6 40.6	FVVA VA VA VA VA VA VA VA	195800 1968-00 196500 196500 196000 196500 196900 197182 1959-00 197000	1595 1656 1441 1524 1459 1309 1567 1406 1377 1188	1136, 1219 1089 1111 1048 861 1155 996 1017 822	459 437 352 413 411 448 412 410 360 366	1682 1938 1555 1619 1430 1238 1685 1367 1517 1160	00 00 98 86 00 74 00 00	651 678 635 693 580 808 641 666 597	76 73 73 73 73 73 73 73 76 64 75	39.27 5.01 7.50 1.29 6.09 5.40 1.15 16.10 28.82 1.06	1.52 0.21 0.33 0.00 0.81 0.37 0.07 0.63 1.07 0.04	09/59 08/95 03/92 07/62 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 08/76 09/59 07/76	312.8 82.4 73.6 17.2 80.3 53.5 15.4 132.0 190.1 26.0	.46 .56 .54 .55 .63 .60 .49 .54 .41	92.4 11.7 16.9 3.1 13.3 12.1 2.5 37.7 65.8 2.7	4.02 0.44 0.78 0.12 1.03 0.72 0.17 1.64 3.13 0.06
063004 063001 063002 064006 064004 064001 064002 064010 064003	Ystwyth Ystwyth Rheidol Leri Twymyn Dyfi Dysynni Afon Mawddach Glaslyn	Cwm Ystwyth Pont Llohwyn Llanbadarn Fawr Dolybont Cemmaes Road Dyfi Bridge Pont-y-Garth Tyddyn Gwladys Ganllwyd Beddgelert	SN SN SN SH SH SH SH SH SH SH	791737 591774 601804 635882 825047 745019 632066 735264 729233 592478	32.1 169.6 182.1 47.2 111.4 471.3 75.1 63.1 138.6 68.6	FV VA C VA VA VA VA	1984-00 196300 196500 1960-00 1995-00 196200 196600 1994-00 196774 196100	2133 1514 1823 1530 1645 1908 2182 2144 2020 3070	1953 1122 1831 846 1187 1550 1894 2069 1266 2654	180 392 684 458 358 288 75 754 416	2748 1752 1583 1616 2362 2512 2461 4190	00 00 00 00 98 98 98	1480 703 1079 165 893 964 1193 1306 1925	95 76 69 97 76 95 68	1.99 6.03 10.57 1.27 4.20 23.16 .4.51 4.14 5.57 5.77	0.08 0.18 1.02 0.03 0.21 0.66 0.28 0.15 0.94 0.31	08/95 08/76 07/84 06/70 08/95 08/76 07/84 08/95 07/69 08/76	90.3 78.0 16.8 316.6 63.0 93.8	30 .41 .49 .37 .39 .48 .21 .32 .33	5.0 14.3 20.0 3.1 10.3 54.9 9.7 9.9 9.4 13.5	0.19 0.58 1.97 0.05 0.31 2.09 0.62 0.17 0.81 0.58
065014 065007 065005 065015 065004 065008 065008 065002 066012 066011	Colwyn Dwyfawr Erch Llyfni Gwyrfai Nant Peris Deiont Dwyryd Lledr Conwy	Hafod Wydr Garndolbenmaen Pencaenewydd Pont Y Cim Bontnewydd Tan-Yr-Alt Peblig Mill Maentwrog Gethins Bridge Cwm Llanerch	SH SH SH SH SH SH SH SH SH	575504 500429 400404 441523 484599 608579 493623 670415 785538 802581	6.6 52.4 18.1 48.1 47.9 12.2 74.4 78.2 72.8 344.5	C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	1995-00 1975-00 1973-00 1995-00 1970.00 1982-00 1976.00 196777 1995.00 196400	3072 2076 1430 2026 2226 3537 2366 2220 2572 2199	2655 1548 1061 1424 1499 3174 2027- 1968 2107 1714	417 528 369 602 727 363 339 252 465 - 485	3441 2337 1721 1933 2040 4601 2980 2811 2609	• 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00	2056 1097 749 1239 978 2326 1539 1529 1216	96 73 96 96 96 96 96 71	0.55 2.57 0.61 2.17 2.28 1.23 4.78 4.88 4.86 4.86 18.72	0.04 0.10 0.06 0.38 0.14 0.07 0.41 0.30 0.13 0.65	08/95 07/84 08/76 08/95 08/95 08/95 08/76 08/95 08/95 07/84	33.8 11.0 20.5 40.6 143.1 367.2	.25 .39 .55 .59 .43 .23 .41 .35 .26 .28	 1.5 5.9 1.3 4.8 5.2 3.1 10.9 13.2 45.7 	0.05 0.29 0.10 0.65 0.30 0.09 0.67 0.34 1.30
066005 066004 066025 066001 066003 066006 066002 067018 067010 067011	Clwyd Wheeler Clwyd Clwyd Aled Elwy Elwy Dee Gelyn Aberderfel	Ruthin Weir Bodfari Pont Dafydd Pont-y-Cambwll Bryn Aled Pont-y-Gwyddel Pant yr Onen New Inn Cynefail Nant Aberderfel	3) 23 23 23 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25	122592 105714 044749 957703 952718 021704 874308 843420 851392	95.3 62.9 430.8 404.0 70.0 194.0 220.0 53.9 13.1 3.7	MIS C FL VA CC VA VA CC CB	·197100 197000 199500 1959-00 196395 1973-00 1961-74 1969-00 196600 196781	987 878 1013 938 1188 1224 1119 1985 2180 2008	464 379 494 491 630 690 642 1818 1651 835	523 499 519 447 558 534 477 167 529 1173	793 649 755 846 766 1094 777 2742 2412 1602	00 98 00 81 67 99 00 67	286, 251 324 225 383 447 393 1250 1172 324	75 96 64 96 64 76 76 75	1.40 0.75 6.74 6.29 1.40 4.24 4.48 3.11 0.69 0.10	0.01 0.19 0.62 0.51 0.09 0.24 0.33 0.09 0.03 >0.00	08/76 08/76 08/95 08/76 09/89 08/84 07/62 08/76 08/76 08/76	10.2 3.2 44.3 27.8 63.2 66.6 72.4 15.9	.57 .82 .54 .60 .49 .45 .45 .28 .27 .13	3.6 1.4 16.7 14.5 3.5 10.9 10.1 8.0 1.8 0.2	0.07 0.25 0.72 0.96 0.18 0.33 0.45 0.23 0.07 >0.00
067017 067001 067013 067028 067029 067003 067006 067007 067005 067015	Tryweryn Dee * Himant Ceidiog * Trystion * Brenig Alwen Dee Ceiriog Dee	Llyn Celyn Olf Bala Pias Rhiwedog Liandrillo Pen-y-felin Fawr Llyn Brenig Olf Druid Glyndyfrdwy Brynkinalt Weir Manley Hall	84 85 85 85 85 85 85 85 85 85 85 85 85 85	880399 942357 946349 034371 066405 974539 042436 155428 295373 348415	59.9 261.6 33.9 36.5 12.3 20.2 184.7 728.0 113.7 1019.3	CB MIS VA VA TP VA VA CB CC	1969-00 1957-00 196776 1978.00 197786 1922-96 1960-00 1964-69 1956.00 1937-00	2139 1888 1709 1553 1308 1318 1332 1563 1276 1414	1931 1566 1152 1232 826 868 862 1070 853 963	208 322 557 321 482 450 470 493 423 451	2944 2475 1405 1870 887 1764 1307 1208 1276 1418	00 74 00 79 84 00 67 60 00	973 1077 742 963 836 169 581 1088 470 633	96 76 95 78 77 64 68 64 64	3.67 12.99 1.24 1.43 0.32 0.56 5.05 24.70 3.08 31.14	0.35 1.06 0.04 0.09 0.01 0.03 0.39 4.74 0.18 3.05	11/76 06/61 08/76 08/90 08/83 09/59 08/76 06/64 08/76 09/49	24.3 14.8 72.4 182.0 30.5 217.1	.42 .51 .41 .46 .44 .42 .48 .50 .55 .52	9.1 29.9 2.8 3.5 0.8 1.4 11.6 57.8 7.1 71.3	0.38 2.46 0.10 0.12 0.03 0.06 0.68 6.07 0.43 5.74
067002 067025 067009 067008 067027 067026 067033	Dee Clywedog Aiyn Aiyn Dee Dee Dee	Erbistock Bowling Bank Rhydymwyn Pont-y-Capel Ironbridge Eccleston Ferry Chester Suspension Bridge	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	357413 396483 206667 336541 418600 415612 409659	1040.0 98.6 77.8 227.1 1674.1 1816.8 1816.8	C FL CC US S US	1932-70 1976-00 196500 1965-00 199300 1974-86 1994-00	1406 875 999 932 1242 1128 1208	937 435 288 335 745 663 634	469 440 711- 597 497 465 574	1352 590 495 558 1016 794 944	54 00 00 00 74 00	586 289 36 176 485 451 384	33 96 68 75 96 75 96	30.90 1.36 0.71 2.41 39.56 38.19 36.52	2.15 0.23 0.00 0.29 10.15 8.22 6.14	08/37 08/95 08/99 08/76 07/99 08/76 07/99	249.7 19.9 8.4 23.4	.50 .59 .35 .57 .56 .60 .50	70.8 2.8 2.0 5.7 96.0 89.7 97.8	3.81 0.35 0.47 9.68 10.24 5.23
067020 102001	Dee Cefni	Chester Weir Bodffordd	SJ SH	408659 429769	1816.8 22.3	VA CB	1984-98 1988-00	1107 1069	511 571	596 498	649 1 044	94 00	432 365	96 91	29.46 0.40	4.54 >0.00	09/89 08/90	189.6	.50 .51	78.3 1.0	3.70 0.02

.

• •

Hydrometric Statistics

055034 M.A: CEH	Local No: 107 Level: 356m	Cyff at C	Syff flume Sens.: UE: < 01	C.A: 3.1 km ²	7395	2553		2075		0.20	6.4	27 <i> </i> 01 1995	0.01	01/09 1976	0.5	0.10	0.02
Comment: Rectangu suitable for streams v Shoal formation com	lar, side contracted with steep gradients, mon, requiring prom	critical dep heavy sec ot removal	th flume designed by H fiment loads and high fl I to avoid drowning. Ga	ydraufics Research Ltd, ood/drought flow ratios. uged by Braystoke c/m	1996 1997 1998	2072 2143 3216	81 84 126	<i>1691</i> 1761 2781	81 85 134	0.17 0.17 0.27	5.2 6.1	09/12 27/10	0.02 0.02	22/04 25/05	0.4 0.4 0.6	0.08 0.09 0.15	0.02 0.02 0.03
and volumetric check Primary 15 minute da grits, shales and state natural or partly reserved	gauging at low flow ataset available. # C es and Siturian muds eded grassland, sup	s. Natural, trains Phyri stones, mo porting sh	CEH research catchme atimon upland massif: o istly covered by peaty s eep grazing.	nt nested within 55008. omposed of Ordovician oils. Vegetation: mainly	1999 2000	2998 3330	117 130	2400 2945	116 142	0.24 0.29	6.0 5.6	01/03 02/03	0.01 0.02	01/08 15/05	0.5 0.7	0.11 0.16	0.03 0.05
055008 M.A: CEH F.A.R: N	Local No: 55008 Level: 341m	Wye at C	efn Brwyn Sens.: 15.7 UE: <.01	C.A: 10.6 km ² S/full: 66.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 1.000	5195	2450		2164		0.72	48.9	05/08 1973	0.02	11/06 1963	1.7	0.36	0.07
Comment: 3-bay Crt built 1969, low crest 2 needs regular clearing Wallingford) experime database resides at (# Small, high relief, vi Silurian slates and sh	imp profile weir (no 2.43m broad, high cr g. Treat early record antal basin since 196 CEH). 11/9 - 8/10/97 ery wet (>2000mm) iales. Very responsi-	divide pier ests total { I with care: 8 (15 minu dmfs est. catchment ve.	rs), divide plates installe 9,13m broad. Very steep Natural regime. Opera- te flow data plus extensi from subcatchment wh t, grassland on peat ove	ad 1962; concrete piers o channel, u/s accretion ted as an IH (now CEH ive hydrometeorological list repairs to structure, nying weather resistant	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	2129 2207 3315 3069 3391	87 90 135 125 138	1644 1725 2883 2475 2953	76 80 133 114 136	0.55 0.58 0.96 0.83 0.99	21.1 16.6 25.1 22.4 17.9	31/10 09/12 27/10 28/02 03/03	0.05 0.06 0.08 0.05 0.09	23/09 22/04 31/05 01/08 30/07	1.4 1.2 2.1 2.0 2.5	0.26 0.31 0.53 0.40 0.56	0.07 0.08 0.14 0.09 0.12
055035 M.A: CEH	Local No: 109	lago at iz	ago flume Sens.:-	C.A: 1.1 km ²	7395	2544		1921		0.07	8.9	14/11 1991	>0.00	03/09 1976	0.2	0.03	0.01
F.A.R: N Comment: Rectangu suitable for streams v Shoal formation comu and volumetric check Primary 15 minute da composed of Ordovi peaty plateau; grassl bottoms.	Level: m lar, side contracted vith steep gradients, mon, requiring prom gauging at low flow taset available. Disc tan grits, shales ar and on free draining	critical dep heavy sec pt removal s. Natural, continued 1 nd states a g slopes (s	UE: <.01 - th flume designed by H timent loads and high fl I to avoid drawning. Ga CEH research catchme from 7/6/99. # Drains PI and Silurian mudstones supporting sheep grazin	FAI: 1.000 ydraulics Research Ltd, ood/drought flow rabios. uged by Braystoke c/m nt nested within 55008. ymlimon upland massif: . Vegetation: heath on ng) and mires in valley	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	2145 2209 3354 3081 3393	84 87 132 121 133	1690 1762 2719	88 92 142	0.06 0.06 0.09	1.7 1.6 2.7	31/10 03/02 27/10	0.02 0.02 0.03	25/06 07/06 04/12	0.1 0.1 0.2	0.03 0.03 0.04	0.02 0.02 0.03
055033 M.A: CEH	Local No: 105	Wye at G	iwy flume Sens.:	C.A: 3.9 km ²	7395	2692		2208		0.27	10.4	06/10 1980	0.01	21/08 1976	0.6	0.14	0.04
Comment: Rectangu suitable for streams v Shoal formation com and volumetric check Primary 15 minute dat Ordovician massive g Vegetation: heath on and mires in valley bo	tar, side contracted of with steep gradients, mon, requiring prom gauging at low flow: taset available. # Dra rist (unconfined aqu peaty plateau; gras potoms.	critical dep heavy sec pt removal s. Natural, ains highes ifer mainta sland on fi	th flume designed by H diment loads and high flu- to avoid drowning. Ga CEH research catchme t area of Plynlimon uplat ining baseflow), slates a ree draining slopes (sup	ydraulics Research Ltd, ood/drought flow ratios. uged by Braystoke c/m nt nested within 55008. nd massif: composed of and Silurian mudstones. sporting sheep grazing)	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	2252 2370 3510 3239 3566	84 88 130 120 132	1816 1861 2997 2569 3116	82 84 136 116 141	0.22 0.23 0.37 0.32 0.38	10.0 7.1 9.9 9.8 7.4	31/10 09/12 22/10 16/12 29/08	0.03 0.03 0.04 0.02 0.04	23/09 22/04 30/05 01/08 20/07	0.5 0.5 0.8 0.7 1.0	0.12 0.13 0.20 0.16 0.21	0.03 0.04 0.06 0.04 0.05
055026 M.A: EA	Local No: 55026	Wye at D	dol Farm Sens.: 10.4	C.A: 174.0 km ² B/futi: 235.0m ³ s ⁻¹	3795	1630		1189		6.56	291.4d	21/12 1991	0.08	15/08 1983	15.8	3.52	0.54
F.A.R: P Comment: Initially, g with rock bar as contri- but exceptional floods res. (flows from Elan v metamorphosed Silur sided and high gradie	Level: 193m lauged nearby at Rt ol. Informal Flat V in s contained. Lowest valley complex enter nan sediments. High ent streams. Moorlar	nayader (5: stalled 197 gauging st just d/s). # n relief, he nd and fore	UE: <.01 5005.1937-69); resited 2. Bankfull width 30m. (ation on Wye unaffecter 4 Wet, upłand catchmen adwaters reach over 60 estry.	FAI: 0.997 as velocity-area station Cableway span 54m. Atl d by large water supply t draining impermeable, 00m, and feature steep	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1440 1478 2138 2044 2224	88 91 131 125 136	1103 1082 1714 1618 1923	93 91 144 136 162	6.07 5.97 9.46 8.93 10.58	92.2 79.6 196.0 191.7 151.5	31/10 10/12 06/03 01/03 30/10	0.49 0.58 0.43 0.15 0.84	23/09 19/08 31/05 01/08 30/07	14.4 14.2 21.5 22.1 26.8	3.30 2.89 5.11 4.10 6.37	0.57 0.93 1.23 0.34 1.26
055032 M.A: EA	Local No: 55032	Elan at El	an Village Sens.: 16.8	C.A: 184.0 km ² B/full: 7.0m ³ s ⁻¹	0895	1833		881		5.14	331.9	11/11 1970	0.50	24/10 1926	14.0	1.58	0.86
Comment: Flat V Cr Entirely regulated apa compensation (1.5 m periods from older st Silurian shales and si	Level: 2 form ump profile weir 23 int from overspill. 5 u ³ s ⁻¹), regulation and ation. # Very wet (> ates. Forestry and r	m wide, 35 /s reservoi 1 freshets. >1800mm) noorland.	OE: 50m d/s of Caban dam; rs. Circa 4 m ³ s ⁻¹ to EA Monthty naturalised flo , high relief catchment	cableway spans 40m. Midlands. Releases for ws available for certain draining predominantly	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1606 1656 2286 2290 2458	88 90 125 125 134	330 482 1149 1186 1484	37 55 130 135 168	1.92 2.81 6.71 6.92 8.64	29.0 89.4 149.5 142.0 203.4	03/12 28/11 06/03 01/03 29/10	0.74 0.69 0.76 0.75 0.70	12/12 10/03 12/06 25/05 27/12	2.8 7.3 16.3 21.0 24.9	0.82 0.82 3.58 2.64 3.06	0.79 0.78 0.80 0.79 0.75
055016 M.A: EA	Local No: 55016	ithon at	Disserth Sens.: 20.3	Č.A: 358.0 km ² B/full: 115.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6895	1098		705		8.01	148.2	09/01 1992	0.01	25/08 1995	21.0	3.97	0.30
Comment: Flat V Cru channel control in 19 due to access restricti removed, from 19 Ju # Upper and western High moorland and e Noticeably reduced re	Transfer and the solution of t	cross-slop 27.5m. We Mouth out y high floc rdovician a intations o he u/s Wy	be: Color: <p< td=""><td>FALLOUSE elocty-area station with 5. Missing data in 2001 ing from drift correction b. Natural flow regime. ous complex in the SE. ixed farming in valleys.</td><td>1996 1997 1998 1999 2000</td><td>976 994 1380 1423 1494</td><td>89 91 126 130 136</td><td>560 552 948 893 962</td><td>79 78 134 127 136</td><td>6.34 6.27 10.76 10.14 10.89</td><td>94,4 81.6 171.2 128.7 167.6</td><td>12/02 19/02 27/10 01/03 30/10</td><td>0.17 0.34 1.09 0.15 0.54</td><td>18/09 19/08 31/08 02/08 25/08</td><td>16.8 15.6 26.0 29.7 26.2</td><td>3.65 2.70 4.48 4.50 5.78</td><td>0.26 0.74 1.39 0.43 0.85</td></p<>	FALLOUSE elocty-area station with 5. Missing data in 2001 ing from drift correction b. Natural flow regime. ous complex in the SE. ixed farming in valleys.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	976 994 1380 1423 1494	89 91 126 130 136	560 552 948 893 962	79 78 134 127 136	6.34 6.27 10.76 10.14 10.89	94,4 81.6 171 .2 128.7 167.6	12/02 19/02 27/10 01/03 30/10	0.17 0.34 1.09 0.15 0.54	18/09 19/08 31/08 02/08 25/08	16.8 15.6 26.0 29.7 26.2	3.65 2.70 4.48 4.50 5.78	0.26 0.74 1.39 0.43 0.85
055012 M.A: EA E A R: N	Local No: 55012 Level: 136m	irfon at	Climery Sens.: 11.6	C.A: 244.2 km ² B/full: 185.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.998	6695	1673		1275		9.87	357.5	07/02 1990	0.14	15/08 1983	24.2	5.13	0.65
Comment: Velocity-a 25m wide Crump pro Cableway spans 44m. Natural catchment. # I ments. The middle an	rea station, initially v file Flat V weir. Wei Above about 3m the Headwaters drain the d lower reaches are	vith a grave ir rebuilt b e rb floodpl e very wet on relative	el shoal control, improve etween 31/8/94 and 7/5 lain is inundated. 1998 fl Tywi Forest area on indu ily more permeable Silu	d in 1979 by installing a 9/94, no data available. ood peak under review. urated, Ordovician sedi- rian rocks. Responsive.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1388 1540 2121 2141 2300	83 92 127 128 137	1072 1167 2074 1801 1833	84 92 163 141 144	8.28 9.04 16.06 13.94 14.15	164.4 189.9 750.2 301.0 219.5	28/10 17/02 22/10 01/03 29/10	0.50 0.68 1.09 0.31 0.99	23/09 19/08 31/05 01/08 30/08	19.9 22.3 33.9 33.1 , 34.3	4.51 3.73 6.67 6.16 8.53	0.61 1.07 1.95 0.64 1.46
055007 M.A: EA	Local No: 55007	Wye at	Erwood Sens.: 18.8	C.A: 1282.1 km ² B/futl: 650.0m ³ s ⁻¹	.3795	1394		901		36.65	832.6	18/11 1986	1.41	29/08 1984	92.2	19.06	4.52
F.A.R: SPE Comment: Velocity-a cableway span 81m. regulation and abstra- available. # Large we igneous complex. Sur	Level: 106m rea station with a m . All but the highe ction from the Elan, at upland catchment mmit levels exceed (assive roci st flows o PWS and draining r 500m. Moo	UE: <.01 k bar as a control. Bank contained. Substantial sewage effluent. Some metamorphosed Palaeo. orland, forestry and she	FAI: 0.960 full width approx. 64m, flow modification from naturalised sequences zoic sediments and an ep grazing.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1217 1277 1782 1794 1917	87 92 128 129 138	704 724 1276 1215 1404	78 80 142 135 156	28.54 29.45 51.87 49.39 56.93	279.0 337.3 898.2 723.3 854.6	11/02 28/11 27/10 01/03 30/10	3.24 3.29 4.66 3.77 4.54	22/07 18/08 01/06 11/07 25/08	72.9 75.2 121.9 127,4 141.0	17.76 12.42 26.73 25.43 34.84	3.86 4.16 6.71 4.41 5.54
055025 M.A: EA	L Local No: 55025	lynfi at Ti	Sens.: 15.6	C.A: 132.0 km ² B/full: 30.0m ³ s ⁻¹	7095	987		531		2.22	319,4	09/01 1992	0.04	26/08 1976	5.4	1.29	0.15
F.A.R: N Comment: Velocity-a the natural rock bar o bridge. Natural catch expose ORS marks w	Level: 88m rea station with an in ontrol. Cableway se ment. # Headwaters hich have lower relie	formal broa ction forma s drain the of and sup	UE: <.U1 ad-crested, asymmetrica alised within the abutme or ORS of the Black Mo port arable farming. Cor	FAI: 0.951 al Flat V weir enhancing ents of a former railway untains; lower reaches ntains Llangorse Lake.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	837 • 920 1287 1225 1375	85 93 130 124 139	390 389 758 768 866	73 73 143 145 163	1.63 1.63 3.17 3.22 3.62	36.2 28.8 125.5 59.4 67.8	09/01 24/02 09/04 23/12 29/10	0.06 0.25 0.19 0.22 0.23	18/09 05/10 03/09 01/08 12/09	3.5 4.2 7.3 7.8 8.4	1.11 0.78 1.68 2.11 2.21	0.09 0.31 0.27 0.35 0.29

50 Percentile (m¹a⁺¹) 95 Percentile (m¹e¹)

Mean flow (m¹e⁻¹)

Min, daily flow (^{m1}s⁻¹)

Date of min. 10 Percentite $\binom{m^2 n^{-1}}{m}$

Date of peak

Peak flow (^{m1}a'')

Rainfall (mm) % of pre-1996

Runoff (mm)

% of pre-1986

Period

						Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (^{mª} s ⁻¹)	Peak flow (m³s⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (^{m1} s ⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m³s²¹)	50 Percentite (m ³ s ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (^{m¹s-1})
055002 M.A: EA	Local No: 55002	Wye at	Belmont Sens.: 3.3	− C.A: 1895.9 km² B/full: 522.0m³s ^{−1}	3595	1237.		773		46.48	1108.0	04/02 1989	2.14	01/09 1984	111.4	26.38	6.07
F.A.R: S Comment: Channel of 62m. Embankment bu Originally, stages take to 1932, data unrelia reservoirs in the Elan the lower third is a n supports arable famili	Level: 46m ontrol velocity-area ilit on the left exten 1 from 1908 at Herefe ble. Moderate flow Valley. # Above Erwa arrow corridor draini g.	station, v ds flood ord, 1.2kr modifica ood (550 ng ORS	UE: <.01 width at bankfull app containment. Sever n d/s; flows were mer tion. Naturlised disc 07) are wet uplands marls and subordin	FAI: 0.968 rrox. 49m; cableway span e weed growth problems. asured at current site. Prior harges take into account draining Palaeozoic rocks; ate glacial gravels, which	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1076 1142 1569 1577 1700	87 92 127 127 137	615 653 1147 1124 1288	80 84 148 145 167	36.89 39.25 68.98 67.56 77.22	310.6 362.1 469.9 551.5	12/02 29/11 03/03 31/10	4.14 6.20 7.64 10.12	18/09 20/08 02/08 06/09	88.2 95.2 167.8 172.6 186.4	23.68 18.29 35.58 34.25 47.61	4.47 8.24 14.86 9.04 13.98
055014 M.A: EA	Local No: 55014	Lugg a	t Byton Sens.: 9.1	C.A: 203.3 km ² B/full: 46.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6695	1029		613		3.95	54.3	14/01 1968	0.35	24/08 1976	8.8	2.60	0.66
F.A.R: P Comment: Flat V Cru 1970 a stable riffle wa abstractions for PWS bedrock is covered by baseflow and moderat	Level: 124m mp profile weir, 1:20 s the control. Above . # Headwaters dra extensive deposits of es flood peaks. Mos	cross-sid 2m left i in Siluria of gravel tly forest	UE: <.01 opes, 12.5m wide. Ca bank overtopped. Flo an rocks of the Rad in the valleys. This a ry and grazing.	FAI: 0.997 ableway span 21m. Before w moderately modified by inor Forest. Impermeable aquifer provides significant	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	917 1000 1238 1309 1354	69 97 120 127 132	530 452 773 812 879	86 74 126 132 143	3.41 2.91 4.98 5.23 5.65	24.8 22.3 45.9 29.2 51.2	08/01 28/11 27/10 25/12 08/12	0.40 • 0.67 0.87 0.59 0.62	13/10 05/10 03/09 15/09 12/09	. 6.7 6.8 11.1 12.5 12.2	2.48 1.62 2.90 3.37 3.59	0.44 0.81 1.01 0.69 0.78
055021 M.A: EA	Lu Local No: 55021	igg at B	utts Bridge Sens.: 11.1	C.A: 371.0 km ² B/full: 85.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6995	[*] 910	Ψ [*]	470		5.53	: 64.1	10/01 1986	0.44	15/08 1976	. 12 .1	3.66	0.93
F.A.R: P Comment: Velocity-ar at bankfull is 21m. # H relief in the lower valle gravels provide some	Level: 67m ea station with rough eadwaters drain Rac ay (mostly Old Red baseflow.	stone co Inor Fore Sandstor	UE: <.01 Introl (at low flows). S ist (developed on Silute). Impervious catch	FAI: 0.994 tation rebuilt in 1984; width urian formations). Subdued iment but extensive valley	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	802 874 1077 1138 1209	88 96 118 125 133	· 388 337 516 551 778	83 72 110 117 166	4.56 3.97 6.07 6.48 9.13	22.2 18.8 33.0 28.5 61.9	09/01 29/11 28/10 25/12 07/12	1.13 1.60 -1.69 2.02 1.48	20/10 18/08 03/09 15/09 17/09	7.8 7.7 11.9 12.8 19.1	3.99 2.96 4.54 5.16 6.41	1.26 1.69 2.07 2.09 1.88
055013 M.A: EA	Local No: 55013	Arrow at	Titley Mill Sens.: 10.8	C.A: 126.4 km ² B/full: 27.5m ³ s ⁻¹	6695	1010		595		2.39	101.1	10/01 1986	0.09	28/09 1990	5.5	1.46	0.27
F.A.R: N Comment: Velocity-ar 50m d/s is the control. 1994, treat data with o catchment. # Headwal catchment underlain b plateau supporting sho	Level: 129m ea station. Low flow o Gets out of bank bu aution. 1995 summe ers of moderate relie y Old Red Sandstor eep grazing and the	control is t not byp er flows s f, drainin ie marls, more pro	UE: <.01 a stable riffle; otherw bassed. Intake pipes a suspect and under in g durable Silurian sta Station is in a transi xductive lowlands.	FAI: 0.999 ise a three-bay road bridge silted up during summer of vestigation by EA. Natural ites and shales; otherwise, ition zone between upland	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	852 942 1239 1304 1330	84 93 123 129 132	451 409 775 766 817	76 69 130 129 137	1.80 1.64 3.11 3.07 3.27	21.8 21.4 83.0 32.6 39.9	11/02 24/02 27/10 24/12 29/10	0.17 0.22 0.29 0.25 0.30	10/10 16/09 03/09 14/09 12/09	4.1 4.1 7.0 7.8 7.5	1.20 0.81 1.43 1.72 1.90	0.19 0.25 0.38 0.29 0.36
055028 M.A: EA	Fror Local No: 55028	ne at Bi	shops Frome Sens.: 10.8	C.A: 77.7 km ² B/full: 12.0m ³ s ⁻¹	7195	.721		287		0.71	139.5	30/12 1981	0.01	21/08 1995	1.5	0.33	0.07
F.A.R: N Comment: Flat V Cru span 10m. Steep bank below bankfull. Natur Bromyard plateau: Natur	Level: 76m imp profile weir 5m s do not contain floor al catchment. # Lini- and drier area of W ills, arable otherwise	wide, rep d flows; s ear, rura /ye catch	UE: blaced velocity-area come throttling by d/s il catchment, headwa ament. Superficial de	FAI: station in 1975. Cableway road bridge whose soffit is aters cutting into ORS of posits confined to valleys.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	654 742 868 928	91 103 120 129	153 130 297	53 45 103	0.38 0.32 0.73	6.6 11.7 49.5	12/02 28/11 09/04	0.02 0.03 0.02	06/10 24/06 25/09	1.2 0.8 1.4	0.12 0.12 0.31	0.02 0.05 0.03
055018	i	Frome a	t Yarkhill	C.A: 144.0 km ²	6895	717	130	258	101	1.18	25.9	26/05	0.03	26/08	2.0	0.60	0.14
F.A.R: E Comment: Velocity-ar culvert as low and me tributary may bypass s the station, # D/s of 55	Level: 55m ea station using a roa dium range controls tation. Natural catchn i028 (Bishops Frome	id bridge , Broad i nent, No i) litholog	UE: .01 with a flat, insensitive floodplains operate a dmfs 15-26/9/98 due v chances from Old I	FAI: 0.997 invert and an adjacent box bove 2m when the Lodon to recalibration problems at Red Sandstone to Old Red	1996 1997 1998 1999	636 722 848 908	89 101 118 127	172 153 347	67 59 134	0.79 0.70 1.58	10.9 11.9 24.0	26/03 28/11 16/01	0.09 0.19 0.20	19/09 19/08	1.6 1.5 3.3	0.46 0.39 0.92	0.12 0.20 0.26
Sandstone marts. Sut livestock on higher gro	dued relief, lowish r und.	ainfall, E	ntirely rural, predomi	nantly arable farming with	2000	988	138	408	158	1.86	25.0	05/12	0.20	04/09	4.7	0.89	0.22
055029 M.A: EA F.A.R: N	Ma Local No: 55029 Level: m	onnow a	t Grosmont Sens.: 9.0 UE: <.01	.C.A: 354.0 km ² B/full: 160.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.997	4895	1003		529		5.94	201.6	24/01 1960	0.28	27/08 1976	13.6	3.17	0.67
Comment: Velocity-an Approx. 30m wide at b 72) which suffered fro deeply dissected Old F marts. Moorland head	ea station with an inf ankfull. Cableway sp. m shoaling. Natural (Red S'st plateau of th waters, arable lower	ormal Fla ans 42m. catchmer e Black M reaches.	It V weir enhancing th Replaced Kentchurd It. # Five parallel trib Mountains, the northe	e natural rock step control. h, 450m u/s (55009, 1948- utaries drain SE down the m-most exposing the ORS	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	894 971 1158 1173 1262	89 97 115 117 126	536 440 659 696 802	101 83 125 132 152	6.00 4.94 7.40 7.82 8.98	128.3 108.8 197.9 152.8 206.6	08/01 24/02 09/04 23/12 07/12	0.40 0.58 0.58 0.62 0.61	18/09 20/08 30/08 01/08 10/09	13.8 13.1 18.5 17.4 21.7	3.15 1.89 3.42 4.59 3.70	0.45 0.78 0.69 0.82 0.73
055023 M.A: EA	Local No: 55023	Wye at I	Redbrook Sens.: 2.2	C.A: 4010.0 km ² B/full: 612.0m ³ s ⁻¹	3695	1028		571		72,64	905,4	20/03 1947	2.54	08/08 1990	171.6	43.99	11.41
F.A.R: SPE Comment: Channel of flows incorporated in contained. Severe sun regulation. Some natu Ordovician to Carboni higher ground; arable	Level: 9m , ontrol velocity-area s the Redbrook serie imer weed growth pri- ralised data available ferous, wet in west, o practice in lower rea	station re es) which oblems.F e. # Very dry in eas ches. Lit	UE: <.01 eplacing Cadora (550 n was tidally affecte Flow regime moderate large catchment of i st and south. Moorlar the industrial develop	FAI: 0.879 V01, 1937-71; 4040 sq.km. d. All but extreme floods ely modified by exports and mixed Palaeozoic geology, nd, forestry and grazing on ment.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	897 969 1253 1283 1397	87 94 122 125 136	494 475 824 813 979	87 83 144 142 171	62.65 60.40 104.73 103.39 124.15	438.3 422.0 860.5 672.6 934.4	09/01 25/02 29/10 17/01 12/12	8.21 12.62 12.06 8.36 11.23	12/09 22/08 22/08 01/08 07/09	132.3 138.3 272.3 256.7 295.0	43.51 30.80 52.37 59.91 70.62	10.12 15.29 19.62 11.54 13.49
056007 M.A: EA	Sen Local No:	ni at Po	nt Hen Hafod Sens.:	C.A: 19.9 km ² S/full: 24.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6795	1937		1583		1.00	48.8	27/12 1979	0.03	23/08 1976	2.3	0.53	0.10
F.A.R: N Comment: Flat Vee w - 04/12/97. Crump wei	Level: 220m eir replaced Crump w r was full range, moo	veir (width Iular, the	UE: <.01 n: 7.01m) from Decen pretically calibrated a	FAI: 1.000 neber 1997. No dmfs 03/09 nd confirmed by gaugings.	1996 1997	1706 1847	88 95	1425	90	0.90	22.3	27/10	0.09	18/09	2.2	0.49	0.11
Fish pass removed in rainfall, upland area. I Catchment fully contain	1973. # Geology: Ol _ivestock farming an ined in the Brecon B	d Red Sa ea with n eacons N	andstone. Natural cat nainly peaty soils, se National Park.	tchment draining from high easonally wet. Forest: 5%.	1998 1999 2000	2687 2249 2669	139 116 138	2482 1877 2263	157 119 143	1.57 1.18 1.42	53.1 29.9 34.4	22/10 15/01 28/10	0.19 0.06 0.14	31/05 01/08 12/08	3.4 3.0 3.3	0.76 0.51 0.75	0.29 0.09 0.18
056013 M.A: EA	Y Local No:	scir at F	Sens.:	C.A: 62.8 km ² S/full: 84.0m ³ s ⁻¹	7295	1430		975		1.94	85.0	06/10 1985	0.08	23/08 1976	4.7	1.12	0.19
Comment: Crump w gaugings. Full range, draining from upland a areas, seasonally wet	Level: To Int eir (width: 9m) betw Rarely non-modula areas of Cambrian H	veen old r. # Geo ills. Most	railway abutments. dogy: Old Red Sand ly hill farming. Fores	Calibration confirmed by Istone. Natural catchment t: 3%. Peaty soils in upper	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1067 1150 1675 1643 1797	75 80 117 115 126	750 783 1375 1305 1520	77 80 141 134 156	1.49 1.56 2.74 2.60 3.02	15.3 20.5 62.9 34.1 56.6	08/01 12/02 22/10 01/10 29/10	0.12 0.17 0.35 0.19 0.25	18/09 19/08 31/05 02/08 13/09	3.7 3.8 6.2 6.4 6.9	0.94 0.71 1.38 1.47 1.95	0.13 0.24 0.44 0.28 0.32
056012 M.A: EA	G Local No:	rwyne a	t Milibrook Sens.: 26.5	C.A: 82.2 km ² S/full: 77.0m ³ s ⁻¹	7195	1246		766		2.00	. 74.2	27/12 1979	0.15	23/08 1976	4.5	1.40	0.34
F.A.R: S Comment: Crump we wide. Fish counter on marl. Landuse: princip	Level: 83m ir of reinforced conci d/s side of crest. # ally livestock farming	rete and Geology g with so	UE: <.01' local stone with phos y: predominantly OR- me afforestation.	FAI: 0.988 sphor bronze crest 10.67m S conglomerates, s'st and	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1168 1204 1572 1484 1635	94 97 126 119 131	686 655 988 980 1077	90 86 129 128 141	1.78 1.71 2.58 2.55 2.80	19.2 12.8 40.1 28.9 28.3	08/01 26/06 22/10 19/09 29/10	0.21 0.35 0.36 0.35 0.33	18/09 19/08 03/09 01/08 12/09	3.8 4.0 6.3 5.7 6.5	1.32 0.95 1.53 1.64 1.89	0.26 0.46 0.45 0.47 0.47
					Perlod	Reinfoll (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (^{m1} •* ¹)	Peak flow (m ¹ ='')	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m³e*1)	50 Percentile (m³e ⁻¹)	95 Percentite (^{m1} e ⁻¹)
--	--	--	--	---	--------------------------------------	---	--------------------------------	--------------------------------------	--------------------------------	--	--	--	--	---	--------------------------------------	--	--
056001 M.A. EA	Local No:	Usk at Ch	ain Bridge Sens.: 5.8	C.A: 911.7 km ² Byfull: 700.0m ³ s ⁻¹	57_95	1390		965		27.90	945.0	- 27/12 1979	1.61	27/08 1976	64.6	16.32	4.15
F.A.R: SRP Comment: Velocity-an Trostrey, a 27.43m with three large existing P naturalised flows availa dairy or livestock farm	Level: 23m ea station; pen de Crump weir WS reservoirs able. # Geology ing below; fore	nanent cablew) for flows <2 in upper cab r: mainly Old R st 3%. Peaty s	UE: <,01 ay, Refer to complementa 1 m ³ s ⁻¹ , Partial impact o chment, Intake to canal ted Sandstone, Hill farmin oils in uplands, seasonal	FAI: 0.982 ry station d/s (56010 - n flows resulting from u/s of gauge. Some g in upper areas, with ly wet.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1181 1275 1737 1670 1862	85 92 125 120 134	791 780 1306 1194 1461	82 81 135 124 151	22.79 22.56 37.74 34.48 42.14	300.2 361.7 654.1 492.4 548.3	08/01 17/02 23/10 16/01 30/10	2.64 3.38 4.88 3.09 4.54	27/09 20/08 03/09 07/08 18/08	52.7 53.9 99.8 77.8 99.2	15.41 9.96 18.74 20.54 23.34	2.87 4.45 6.14 4.32 5.42
056015 M.A: EA	Local No:	Ohway Brook	at Otway Inn Sens.: 9.1	C.A: 105.1 km ² S/full: 15.8m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 1.000	75- 9 5	970		444		1.48	21.5	07/02 1990	0.03	25/08 1976	3.7	0.65	0.10
Comment: Crump wei Lower Old Red Sandst woodland.	r 4.0m wide. By Ione, Drift free	passing occurs except for allu	s above 1.8m into surrouni vium in flat valley bottom.	ding fields. # Geology: . Entirely rural, patchy	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	863 978 1110 1161 1333	89 101 114 120 137	422 400 547 561 832	95 90 123 126 187	1.40 1.33 1.82 1.87 2.77	17.2 18.0 18.3 19.4 39. 8	10/02 24/02 04/03 24/12 30/10	0.12 0.15 0.12 0.15 0.13	05/08 19/08 23/09 02/08 12/09	2.9 3.2 5.1 4.4 7.7	0.89 0.45 0.85 0.98 1.10	0.14 0.21 0.14 0.18 0.17
056002 M.A: EA F.A.R: SPG	Local No: Level: 31m	Ebb w at I	thiwderyn Sens.: 8.3 UE: .05	C.A: 216.5 km² B/futt: 242.0m³s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.977	5795	1506		1067		7.32	249.5	07/02 1990	0.73	28/09 1990	16.5	4.61	1.40
Comment: Velocity-ar 1976. Weir refurbished MAF contained. 2000 p abstractions in valley. E Coal Measures. Livesto	ea station. Lov I, station compl eak may be ove Drainage water ock farming on	r flow Flat V w etely rebuilt so restimated. Sn from old coalm hilts. Forest: 7 ⁴	eir (width: 14.5m, cross-s no dmfs 19/07/96 - 05/01 nall water supply reservoir ines can also influence for %. Soits mainly have perm	lope 1:20) installed in /97. Discharges up to s in uplands. Some gw ws. # Geology: mainly reable substrates.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1321 1430 1863 1730 1945	88 95 124 115 129	970 1412 1330 1510	91 132 125 142	6.66 9.70 9.13 10.34	248.3 121.0 402.4	22/10 15/01 29/10	1.49 1.33 1.12	03/09 01/08 12/09	15.6 22.6 20.7 23.0	3.52 5.01 5.35 6.04	1.93 1.84 1.58 1.48
057008 M.A: EA	Local No:	Rhymney at	t Llanedeym Sens.: 11.1	C.A: 178.7 km ² S/full: 65.2m ³ s ⁻¹	73-95	1425		955		5.41	156.7	07/02 1990	0.22	16/09 1990	12.6	3.03	0.70
Comment: Flat V wei range. Impounding re- abstraction and effluen dairy and livestock far Forest 7%. Most of ca- wet.	ir (width: 15m, servoirs, for pu at returns. # Ge ming in lower tchment has so	cross-slope 1 iblic water su elogy: mainly catchment. Un pils with perma	bill, idd (:20); velocity-area statio pply, in upper catchmeni Coal Measures. Livestoci ban and industrial develo ban and industrial develo bable substrate; peaty soi	n for high flows. Full t. Some groundwater k farming on uplands; opment in the valleys. Is on hills, seasonally	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1276 1432 1855 1757 1952	90 100 130 123 137	891 930 1378 1247 1509	93 97 144 131 158	5.03 5.27 7.81 7.07 8.53	102.6 110.6 165.9 125.3 165.7	27/10 17/02 22/10 23/12 30/10	0.49 0.91 0.90 0.69 0.87	23/09 02/08 03/09 14/09 13/09	11.6 12.2 17.2 17.2 19.6	2.93 2.37 3.61 3.78 4.69	0.62 1.16 1.23 0.87 1.14
057015 M.A: EA	Local No:	Taff at Me	rthyr Tydfil Sens.: 11.4	C.A: 104.1 km ² S/full: 10.6m ³ s ⁻¹	7895	1986		1049		3.46	140.1	27/12 1979	0.28	22/08 1984	8.4	1.44	0.74
Comment: Flat V weir, flood, treat this HIF with Grit and Carboniferous Park - livestock farmin seasonally wet.	; velocity-area ; caution. Flows a L'st. Old Red g predominates	station for high s affected by la S'st in upper a s; some urban	flows, Full range, Weir di rge direct PWS reservoirs rreas. Upland area in Bred development. Forest: 25	estroyed by Dec 1979 . # Geology: Millstone con Beacons National %. Mainly peaty soils,	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	, 1622 1764 2484 2171, 2519	82 89 125 109 127	755 853 1622 1367 1666	72 81 155 130 159	2.49 2.81 5.35 4.51 5.49	52.8 59.3 258.2 98.2 146.0	26/10 17/02 22/10 15/01 29/10	0.61 0.79 0.88 0.75 0.72	18/09 02/08 31/05 01/08 12/08	5.6 7.2 11.8 11.5 14.2	1.28 1.20 1.78 1.60 2.09	0.66 0.85 0.99 0.81 0.81
057007 M.A: EA	Local No:	Taff at Fide	liers Elbow Sens.: 9.4	C.A: 194.5 km ² S/full: 76.0m ³ s ⁻¹	7395	1740		1062		6.55	320.5	27/12 1979	0.56	22/08 1976	15.4	3.40	1.25
Comment: Flat V weir Flows affected by mine in valley. # Geology: (Alluvium deposits in va 3%. 50% in Brecon Be	(width: 23m; cr ⊢water discharg Coal Measures alleys, Mainly u acons Nationa	oss-slope 1:20 ges u/s, also in with Millstone pland area wit I Park.	 b) velocity-area station for pounding reservoirs and or Grit and Carboniferous h livestock. Peaty soils, s 	high flows. Full range, industrial abstractions L'st in northem area, easonally wet. Forest	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1517 1667 2277 2053 2325	87 96 131 118 134	833 912 1586 1364 1622	78 86 149 128 153	5.13 5.63 9.78 8.41 9.98	84.0 123.3 348.4 173.0 261.8	27/10 17/02 22/10 15/01 29/10	0.93 1.32 1.54 1.26 1.53	18/09 02/08 03/09 01/08 11/08	11.5 13.7 21.2 20.5 23.1	2.94 2.41 4.05 3.83 4.83	1.08 1.50 1.82 1.44 1.70
057004 M.A: EA E A R: SE	Local No:	Cynon at a	Abercynon Sens.: 14.3	C.A: 106.0 km ² B/full: 200.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.980	5795	1820		1252		4.21	184.2	27/12 1979	0.25	12/09 1989	10.6	2.10	0.52
Comment: Flat V weir topped by extreme fl # Geology: Coal Meas upper areas. Livestock	(width: 14.24n oods. Small ir ures with Millst aming in upl	n; cross-slope npounding resonce Grit on no and area of pe	1:20) velocity-area station servoirs for PWS. Indus othern boundary. Open ca eaty soils, seasonally wet.	for high flows. Over- trial areas in valley. ast coal abstraction in . Forest: 17%.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1678 1761 2303 2214 2531	92 97 127 122 139	1194 1340 1761 1591 1769	95 107 141 127 141	4.00 4.50 5.92 5.35 5.93	62.8 95.9 143.5 102.7 122.2	27/10 <i>17/02</i> 22/10 15/01 29/10	0.40 0.49 0.66 0.45 0.62	18/09 25/07 03/09 01/08 12/08	9.9 11.4 13.7 14.1 14.3	1.93 1.90 2.40 2.53 3.18	0.53 0.78 0.82 0.64 0.75
057006 M.A: EA	Local No:	Rhondda a	at Trehafod Sens.: 15.5	C.A: 100.5 km ² B/full: 330.0m ³ s ⁻¹	7095	2246		1745		5.56	206.4	27/12 1979	0.30	21/07 1984	13.2	2.94	0.73
F.A.K: SPGE Comment: Velocity-and Flows affected by min Impounding reservoir deposits in valleys. Upl valleys. 24% forested.	Level: 66m ea station; trape e-water discha for PWS in u land area with I	ezoidal channe rge above sta pper 'catchme ivestock farmir	UE: 006 I formalised in 1980, bed withon, and Trehafod Flood nt. # Geology: Coal Me ng on hills. Urban and inde	FAI: 0.965 width 18m. Full range. I Alleviation Scheme. asures with alluvium ustrial development in	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	2041 2263 3001 2615 3165	91 101 134 116 141	1597 1711 2685 2199 2801	92 98 154 126 161	5.08 5.45 8.56 7.01 8.90	99.4 107.7 142.9 109.5 159.0	26/10 17/02 22/10 15/01 27/09	0.57 0.85 0.95 0.79 1.17	23/09 25/07 31/05 01/08 12/08	12.9 12.9 21.2 18.2 20.0	2.32 2.26 4.10 3.54 5.53	0.72 0.94 1.50 1.15 1.58
057005 M.A: EA F.A.R: SGEI	Local No: Level: 45m	Taff at P	ontypridd Sens.: 5.9 UE: .04	C.A: 454.8 km² S/full: 58.3m³s⁺¹ FAI: 0.951	7095	1872		1325		19.11	652.0	27/12 1979	1,70	23/08 1976	42.0	10.63	3.49
Comment: Flat V weir No dm/s 06/07 - 03/0 catchment. Some gw a	(width: 32m; cr 8/98 due to c bstractions and	oss-slope 1:20 bliapse of inle l effluent return) velocity-area station for l t pipes. Small impoundir is in valleys. # Geology: m livestock faming on bills	high flows. Full range. ng reservoir in upper nainly Coal Measures.	1996 1997 1998	1680 1839 2454 2225	90 98 131	1185	89 120	17.09	324.6 397.0	17/02	3.90	02/08	37.4 55.8	7.94	4.35
development in valleys	. Mainly peaty	soils on hills, :	seasonally wet.		2000	2573	137	2113	159	30.38	472.2	29/10	4.58	12/08	70.7	17.48	5.57
M.A: EA F.A.R: EI Comment: Flat V wei	Local No: Level: m r (width: 10.6m	Ery at Si ; cross-slope	Sens.: 12.7 UE: .03 UE:); velocity-area statio	FAI: 0.987 in for high flows, Full	70-90 1996	1275	93	əəə 879	92	4.03	03.3 45.8	1992 27/10	0.44	1984 18/09	9.4	2.01	0.51
range. Flows affected t (station 57805; 1957-60 Millstone Grit in norther with dairy farming. Soil	by sewage worf 0). Some indust m area; mixture Is have permea	is discharges of rial abstraction of Trias, Lias, ble substrate.	u/s. Some early - poorer q is, # Geology: mainly Coa I'st and ORS to the S. For	juality - data available I Measures with some rest 6%. Lowland area	1997 1998 1999 2000	1406 1829 1639 1954	102 133 119 142	917 1447 1192 1513	96 152 125 158	4.22 6.65 5.48 6.94	49.6 7 6.2 61.5 7 8.9	12/02 06/03 24/12 30/10	0.66 1.01 0.52 0.71	22/07 25/05 31/07 12/08	10.4 16.1 13.1 15.3	1.99 3.45 3.20 4.33	0.87 1.28 0.84 0.91
058011 M.A: EA F.A.R: GE	Local No: 580 Level: 7m	Thaw at Gig	man Bridge Sens.: 23.6 UE: .01	C.A: 49.2 km ² FAI: 1.000	7695	1179		542		1.00	6.9	30/11 1992	0.05	27/07 1984	2.3	0.71	0.15 }
Comment: BS Flat Ver Replaced non-standard s. Station was taken of	e weir for low and bed control weight of the second s	nd medium flow eir; velocity-are ember 1998 fo	vs, US for high flows, com ea calibration based on ga r complete rebuild. Flow	missioned April 1999. Jugings from bridge u/ s affected by effluent	1996 1997 1998	1006 1150 1492	85 98 127 112	568 577	88 90	0.88 0.90	5.4 5.7	29/11 03/09	0.15 0.17	23/09 25/07	1.9 2.1	0.73 • 0.55	0.18 0.22
Red Sandstone. Lowlar permeable substrate.	nd area in the \	ale of Glamon	gan with dairy and livestor	s cirresione and old ck farming. Soils have	2000	1600	136	1298	202	2.02	22.8	29/10	0.19	30/08	3.7	1.16	0.23

	Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m³s-¹)	Peak flow (m ¹ e-')	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (m³a^1)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (^{m³a~1})	50 Percentile (m³±*1)	95 Percentile (m ¹ s ⁻¹)
C.A: 62.5 km ² B/full: 85.0m ³ s ⁻¹	7195	1363		947		1.68	73.7	30/10 1994	0.16	23/08 1976	4.0	1.26	0.38
FAI: 1.000 mentl); velocity-area quality data (1962- i Measures. South - iosits. Lowland area ils have permeable	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1222 1343 1755 1557 1873	90 99 129 114 137	664 651 1241 981 1304	70 69 131 104 138	1.31 1.29 2.46 1.94 2.58	31.4 41.5 80.2 60.5 81.3	20/10 03/09 31/10 23/12 29/10	0.26 0.32 0.54 0.34 0.34	23/09 22/07 04/06 01/08 30/08	2.7 2.9 5.4 4.3 5.2	0.89 0.67 1.39 1.19 1.58	0.30 0.39 0.61 0.40 0.40
C.A: 74.3 km² B/full: 365.0m³s ⁻¹	7095	1948		1549		3.65	105.7	30/10 1994	0.15	20/08 1984	8.1	2.37	0.52
FAI: 0.999 Effluent discharge to urban and industrial y wet. Soils in lower	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1836 2026 2686 2313 2839	94 104 138 119 146	1410 1426 2458 1793 2509	91 92 159 116 162	3.31 3.36 5.79 4.23 5.90	57.5 55.6 1 35.9 53.1 85.5	23/05 11/02 06/03 02/03 29/10	0.36 0.59 0.76 0.60 0.86	05/08 25/07 31/05 01/08 12/08	7.7 7.5 11.9 10.6 12.1	2.08 1.74 3.54 2.47 3.99	0.43 0.71 1.07 0.79 1.23
C.A: 50.2 km ² B/full: 180.0m ³ s ⁻¹	7095	1812		1410		2.24	96.2	30/10 1994	0,17	26/08 1984	5.0	1.44	0.35
FAI: 0.997 nd effluent returns. h livestock farming.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1677 - 1772 2419 2055 2508	93 98 133 113 138	1216 1263 2235 1562 2168	86 90 159 111 154	1.93 2.01 3.56 2.49 3.44	52.3 56.3 88.3 44.4 64.2	20/10 03/09 24/10 15/01 27/09	0.24 0.42 0.47 0.36 0.44	21/09 31/01 31/05 01/08 12/08	5.0 4.9 7.6 6.3 7.1	1.10 0.88 2.12 1.42 2.30	0.32 0.46 0.59 0.47 0.61
C.A: 158.0 km ² B/full: 170.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6395	1758		1289		6.46	175.5	30/10 1994	0.33	20/08 1984	14.3	4.08	0.93
a Jul 1975). Channet ures. Forest 16%. N farming. Urban and er areas, soils have	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1653 1794 2394 2058 2513	94 102 136 117 143	1175 1187 2043 1471 2033	91 92 158 114 158	5.87 5.95 10.24 7.37 10.16	115.0 117.3 178.8 102.2 173.5	20/10 03/09 24/10 01/10 29/10	0.68 1.17 1.36 0.80 1.46	22/09 02/08 31/05 01/08 12/08	14.0 13.8 21.3 18.4 20.9	3.57 3.00 6.63 4.37 6.99	0.83 1.41 1.89 1.29 2.09
, C.A: 87.8 km ² 8/full: 313.0m ³ s ⁻¹	7895	2094		1833		5.10	137.0	01/12 1992	0.43	20/08 1984	11.6	3.02	0.80
rAI: een centre and side I steep valley sides. ty. # Geology: Coal evident, restoration	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1925 2037 2842 2381 2949	92 97 136 114 141	1533 1534 2583 1924 2535	84 84 141 105 138	4.26 4.27 7.19 5.36 7.04	92.0 118.4 146.5 118.2 148.9	23/05 03/09 22/10 15/01 27/09	0.62 0.83 1.04 1.00 1.16	23/09 31/01 31/05 01/08 26/07	9.9 9.4 16.4 12.5 14.8	2.37 2.07 4.02 3.15 4.93	0.69 1.00 1.52 1.19 1.58
C.A: 65.8 km ² B/full: 325.0m ³ s ⁻¹	7195	2052		1482		3.09	127.6	27/12 1979	0.17	21/08 1984	• 7.5	1.49	0.34
rai: 0.975 ction with heavy bed to N - Millstone Grit;	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1732 1836 2694 2294 2699	84 89 131 112 132	1354 1427 2290 1946 2306	91 96 155 131 156	2.82 2.98 4.78 4.06 4.80	58.7 58.2 129.4 80.8 77.3	28/10 17/02 22/10 15/01 29/10	0.34 0.51 0.58 0.45 0.56	22/09 20/08 31/05 01/08 12/08	6.9 7.2 9.9 10.3 10.9	1.31 1.20 2.70 1.84 3.12	0.37 0.55 0.82 0.57 0.70
C.A: 190.9 km ² B/full: 370.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6295	1999		1374		8.31	322.8	27/12 1979	0.05	02/10 1964	22.0	3.95	0.58
channel width: 28m. atchment. Industrial alogy: from S to N - catchment; livestock	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1777 1833 2645 2265 2688	89 92 132 113 134	1372 1370 2202 1915 2388	100 100 160 139 174	8.28 8.29 13.33 11.59 14.42	150.0 174.5 350.1 171.4 201.5	27/10 17/02 22/10 15/01 27/09	0.81 1.21 1.44 1.07 1.60	23/09 19/08 31/05 01/08 26/07	21.5 20.9 30.5 28.0 34.0	3.74 3.42 6.57 5.49 9.17	1.02 1.37 2.14 1.50 2.22
C.A: 43.0 km ² B/full: 180.0m ³ s ⁻¹	71.,95	1777		1418		1.93	85.4	04/11 1973	0.12	21/08 1984	4,7	1.04	0.24
FAI: 1.000 at V weir (1:10 cross on for high flows. D/s asures. Upland area ioits, seasonally wet.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1686 1678 2412 2067 2490	95 94 136 116 140	1265 1298 2055 1685 2166	89 92 145 119 153	,1.72 1.77 2.80 2.30 2.95	42.4 54.4 64.3 35.3 45.1	26/10 08/10 24/10 05/11 27/09	0.18 0.24 0.28 0.22 0.39	05/08 04/06 30/05 01/08 26/07	4.4 4.4 6.9 5.9 6.8	0.83 0.66 1.44 1.12 1.93	0.20 0.28 0.48 0.30 0.51
C.A: 227.7 km ² B/full: 460.0m ³ s ⁻¹	5795	1903	•	1670		12.06	461.3	27/12 1979	0.45	03/10 1959	29.1	6.34	1.41
me floods contained has partial effect on sures. Mainly upland Forest: 8%. 30% in	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1728 1695 2486 2127 2548	91 89 131 112 134	1375 1314 2180 1730 2063	82 79 131 104 124	9.90 9.48 15.74 12.49 14.86	272.0 241.3 373.4 228.6 245.5	27/10 17/02 22/10 15/01 27/09	1.24 1.64 1.69 1.29 1.85	05/08 23/07 31/05 01/08 26/07	24.5 22.8 35.7 32.3 34.9	4.91 4.13 7.50 6.79 8.95	1.47 1.86 2.68 1.86 2.49
C.A: 46.4 km ² B/full: 121.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6795	1545		1363		2.01	143.6	05/08 1973	0.08	11/06 1968	4.7	1.11	0.31
FAI: 0.999 ght bank overtopped e. Gw and industrial listone Grit, Carbon- Soils generally have	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1404 1408 1934 1761 2105	91 91 125 114 136	1315 1238 2063 1671 2194	96 91 151 123 161	1.93 1.82 3.03 2.46 3.22	58.2 53.0 122.0 66.9 75.5	26/10 17/02 22/10 05/11 29/10	0.33 0.40 0.62 0.37 0.53	23/09 02/08 05/06 01/08 12/08	4.5 4.1 6.0 5.8 7.3	1.04 0.84 1.61 1.41 1.92	0.39 0.44 0.74 0.46 0.64
C.A: 89.8 km²	8395	1821		1439		4.10	97.2	18/10 1987	0.37	15/11 1990	8.7	2.86	1.09
⊢AI: flow regime - station ne Res. # A mostly urian formations.	1996 - 1997 1998 1999 2000	1540 1627 2388 2328 2575	85 89 131 128 141	1034 1186 1843 1736 2040	72 82 128 121 142	2.94 3.38 5.25 4.94 5.79	30.8 34.2 58.7 41.3 56.0	11/02 28/11 22/10 02/03 30/10	0.70 0.85 0.83 0.76 0.82	01/01 05/02 10/05 27/10 19/03	4.6 6.4 10.2 9.5 11.9	2.80 2.81 3.25 2.97 3.57	0.85 0.94 0.95 0.89 1.16

 Kaki EA Local No: 56009. Sens.: 13.9
 F.A.R: E Level: 8m UE: .04
 Comment: Flat V weir (1:15 cross-slope terminating in a 1:2 sloping revet
 calibration for high flows. All flows contained. Channel width 12.25m. Poorer
 Ids5) available for u/s station Evenny Phory (56003). # Geology: north - Coa
 mixture of Millstone Grit; Carboniferous Limestone; Trias; Lias and alluvial deg
 with urbs and industrial devicement and drive and flow industrial with urban and industrial development and dairy and livestock farming. So substrate.

Ewenny at Keepers Lodge

058005	Ogmo	Ogmore at Brynmenyn			
M.A: EA	Local No: 58005	Sens.: 14.1	B/full: 365.0m ³ s ⁻¹		
F.A.R: E	Level: 43m	UE: .02	FAI: 0.999		
Comment: Fla river u/s. # Ge development in areas have pe	t V weir; velocity-area station for ology: Coal Measures. Livestor 1 the valleys. Forest 21%. Peaty meable substrate.	high flows. All flows con & farming in upland and soils in upper areas, so	tained. Effluent discharge to ea with urban and industria easonatly wet. Soils in lower		

058007	Lh	Llynfi at Coytrahen			
M.A: EA	Local No: 58007	Sens.: 16.2	B/full: 180.0m ³ s ⁻¹		
F.A.R: EI	Level: 50m	UE: .04	FAI: 0.997		
Comment: Flat V	weir and velocity-area	station. Industrial abstractions	and effluent return		
Channel width 15r	n: full range, # Geology;	Coal Measures. Upland area	with livestock farmin		
Forest: 16%, Main	ly peaty soils, seasonally	wet.			

058001	Ogm	ore at Bridgend	C.A: 158.0 km ²
M.A: EA	Local No: 58001	Sens.: 11.2	B/futl: 170.0m ³ s ⁻¹
F.A.R: PEI	Level: 14m	VE: .04	FAI: 0.998
Comment: Veloc width: 20m. Flow area - uplands w industrial develop permeable subst	sity-area station with Flat V w rs up to 170 m ³ s ⁻¹ contained ith livestock farming. S area - prinent in valleys. Peaty soils rate.	eir (1:20 cross-slope; ins 1. # Geology: mainly Cost lowland with dairy and li on hills, seasonally wet	italled in Jul 1975). Channe al Measures. Forest 16%. N ivestock farming. Urban and . In lower areas, soils have

058012	Afan	at Marcroft Weir	, C.A: 87.8 km ²
M.A: ËA	Local No: 58012	Sens.:	8/full: 313.0m ³ s ⁻¹
F.A.R: P	Level: 18m	UE:	FAI:
Comment: Non-	standard compound Crump p	rofile weir. No divide	walls between centre and side
weirs. Channel	width: 17.2m. High river veloc	ities due to steep gra	dients and steep valley sides.
Minewater disch	arges in upper catchment ha	we severly affected w	water quality. # Geology: Coal
Measures, 50-6	0% forested, remainder roug	h grazing. Past mini	ng activity evident, restoration
schemes employ	/ed.		

058006	Melite a	it Pontneddfechan	C.A: 65.8 km ²
M.A: EA	Local No: 58006	Sens.; 14.7	B/full: 325.0m ³ s ⁻¹
F.A.R: SP	Level: 86m 🕔	UE: <.01	FAI: 0.975
Comment: Flat	V weir and velocity-area static	in: channel width 15m. Ste	ep section with heavy be
load DWS recor	voir in catchment has nartial e	fact on flows & Geology:	from S to N - Millstone Cri

Carboniferous L'st and ORS. Mainly an upland, pasture catchment.

058002	Nea	th at Resolven	C.A: 190.9 km ²
M.A: ÉA	Local No: 58002	Sens.: 13.1	B/full: 370.0m ³ s ⁻¹
F.A.R: SPE	Level: 15m	UE: <.01	FAI: 0.987
Comment: Flat V wei	r (installed in 1978); vel	ocity-area station for high	flows; channel width: 28m
Some u/s right-bank	spillage during flood	s. PWS reservoir in u	oper catchment. Industria
abstractions and effu	ent returns. Some reco	rds from 1961 available.	# Geology: from S to N
Coal Measures; Millst	one Grit; Carboniferous	L'st and ORS. A mainty	upland catchment; livestocl
farming predominates	, urban and industrial de	avelopment in valley.	•

058008	Du	lais at Cilfrew	C.A: 43.0 km ²
M.A: EA	Local No: 58008	Sens.: 13.7	B/full: 160.0m ³ s ^{−1}
F.A.R:	Level: 42m	UE: <.01	FAI: 1.000
Comment: Com	pound Crump weir and Flat V	weir from Aug 1991. For	nerly Flat V weir (1:10 cros
slope) flanked by	horizontal side section - no di	vide piers; velocity-area o	alibration for high flows. D

of single arch railway bridge of limited discharge capacity. # Geology: Coal Me with livestock farming and open cast coal mining. Forest: 18%. Mainly peaty s

059001	Tawe	i at Ynystanglws	C.A: 227.7 km ⁴
M.A: ÉA	Local No: 59001	Sens.; 8.9	B/full: 460.0m ³ s ⁻¹
F.A.R: GEI	Level: 9m	UE: .02	FAI: 0.997
Comment: Velor	tity-area station. Gravel hed	- unstable control. Al	I but extreme floods contained

umment: velocity-area station. Gravel bed - unstable control, All but extre-since construction of floodbanks (1959). L'st outcrop at north of catchment baseflow. Gw and industrial abstractions also, # Geology: principally Coal Mea area with livestock farming. Urban and industrial development at lower levels. Brecon Beacons National Park.

059002	Loug	hor at Tir-y-dall	C.A: 46.4 km ²
M.A: EA	Local No: 59002	Sens.: 21.2	B/full: 121.0m ³ s ⁻¹
F.A.R: PGEI	Level: 31m	UE: .01	FAI: 0.999
Comment: Veloci	ty-area station with bed cont	trol built over sewer cross	sing. Right bank overtopper
on rare occasions	. Public water supply abstr	action from main spring	source. Gw and industria
abstractions and	affluent returns. # Geology:	mainly Coal Measures,	with Millstone Grit, Carbon
iferous L'st and C	ORS in northern half of cat	chment. Mainly dairy far	ming. Soils generally have
permeable substra	ate.		

060008		Tywi at Ystradffin	C.A: 89.	8 km²
M.A: EA	Local No: 60008	Sens.:		
F.A.R: SR	Level: 175m	UE:	FAI:	
Commonts Com	munda almala anna Cita	maximum of the strength of the strength of the	A mid-at-fit discussion and second	

Comment: Crump weir, single crest. Site owned by water company, Artificial used principally to monitor compensation and regulated flows from Ltyn Bria forested catchment with some rough grazing developed on Ordivician and Sil

058009

	Perlod	Rainfati (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1990	Mean flow (^{m1} s ¹¹)	Peak flow (""")	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (^{m1} a ⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m ¹ a ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m's'')
060007 Tywi at Dolau Hirion C.A: 231.8 km² M.A: EA Local No: 60007 Sens.: 9.5 B/full: 670.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: SREI Levet: 69m UE: <.01	68_95	1707		1326		9.75	162.0	02/12 1992	0.40	15/09 1971	22.1	5.60	2.02
Comment: Velocity-area station. Stable section with natural control. Channel width: 38m. Fiver regulated with large reservoir (Llyn Brianne) in upper catchment. Suspect flows Mar 95 - Oct 96, removed from NRFA pending investigation. # (ecology: principally Ordovician. Upland areas of Cambrian Hills. Mostly hill farming with some livestock at lower levels. Forest: 17%. Mainly peaty soils, seasonally wel.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1455 1543 2231 2160 2394	85 90 131 127 140	1178 2135 1763 2174	89 161 133 164	8.66 15.69 12.96 15.94	85.0 169.0 109.4 146.4	28/11 22/10 02/03 30/10	2.53 1.92 1.64 2.20	23/03 19/08 25/06 22/03	18.7 32.6 30.2 33.2	4.53 8.64 7.76 9.17	3.11 2.52 2.11 3.35
060005 Bran at Llandovery C.A: 66.8 km² M.A: EA Local No: 60005 Sens.: 29.4 B/full 56.0m³s ⁻¹ S.A. EL Local No: 60005 Sens.: 29.4 B/full 56.0m³s ⁻¹	6895	1510		1054		2.23	86.0	14/02 1971	>0.00	02/09 1995	5.4	1.15	0.12
Comment: Ultrasonic installed, record from Dec 1995, Flat V weir for low flows. Replaced velocity- area station with records from 1968, bed control installed 1972. Channel width: 7,5m. Agricultural abstractions have a minimal impact on flow records. # Geology: Ordovician with altuvium deposits on valley floor. Forest: 38%, Hill farming on uplands, dairy farming in valleys. Peaty soils, seasonally wet, in hill area. Soils have permeable substrate in lower areas.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1296 1442 2032 1922 2100	86 95 135 127 139	759 926 1753 1542	72 88 166 146	1.60 1.96 3.71 3.27	21.9 26.4 94.1 46.9	03/11 17/02 22/10 02/03	0.06 0.12 0.20 0.09	23/09 19/08 01/06 14/09	3.9 5.1 8.1 7.6	0.99 0.91 2.03 2.12	0.09 0.21 0.42 0.16
060009 Sawdde at Felin-y-cwm C.A: 77.5 km² M.A: EA Local No: 60009 Sens.: 15.4 B/full: 760.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: SP Level: 55m UE: <.01	7095	1758		1328		3.26	170.3	01/12 1992	0.10	14/09 1988	7.3	1.72	0.33
Comment: Flat V Crump profile weir. Channel width: 13.7m. Uyn Y Fan Fach in headwaters. Flows available from 1970. No dmfs 1991-1993 as station being rerated. # Geology: Old Red S'st at source; Siturian in middle section; Ordovician in lower reaches. Valley extensively covered with alluvium. Agricultural land use with grazing in higher reaches. Mostly within Brecon Beacons National Park.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1595 1592 2311 2066 2369	91 91 131 118 135	1141 1056 1782 1517 1883	86 80 134 114 142	2.80 2.59 4.38 3.73 4.62	71.9 70.8 364.0 96.6 177.7	08/01 17/11 22/10 01/01 29/10	0.35 0.44 0.59 0.46 0.74	05/08 19/08 31/05 31/07 12/08	5.9 5.6 9.1 8.6 10.1	1.63 1.16 2.24 2.18 2.89	0.42 0.57 0.91 0.57 0.90
060012 Twrch at Ddol Las C.A: 20.7 km² M.A: EA Local No: 60012 Sens.: 32.2 B/full: 36.0m³s ⁻¹ E.A.P. Local No: 60012 Sens.: 32.2 B/full: 36.0m³s ⁻¹	7095	1627		1054		0.69	28.9	27/12 1979	>0.00	27/08 1976	1.7	0.37	0.04
Comment: Velocity-rate station. Channel width 4.65m. # Geology: Lower Silurian shales, grits and mudstones, with no Drift cover except for peat at highest attitude in extreme north. Entirely rural catchment in southern Cambrian Mountains, forested in part.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1360 1416 1959 1900 2141	84 87 120 117 132	701 706 1125 1377 1670	67 67 107 131 158	0.46 0.46 0.74 0.90 1.09	8.1 9.6 23.6 13.7 19.2	28/10 19/02 22/10 24/12 29/10	0.01 0.02 0.03 0.03 0.09	05/08 19/08 31/05 30/07 15/05	1.3 1.3 1.9 2.2 2.7	0.21 0.15 0.33 0.55 0.69	0.02 0.03 0.06 0.05 0.17
060002 Cothi at Felin Mynachdy C.A: 297.8 km² M.A: EA Local No: 60002 Sens.: 11.0 B/full: 160.0m³s ⁻¹	6195	1645		1191		11.25	290.6d	18/10 1987	0.22	31/07 1984	26.1	6.66	0.93
Comment: Velocity-area station. Straight reach and natural rock control. Channel width: 20m. Stable section. Effectively a natural catchment. # Geology: mainly Silurian with Ordovician along SE boundary. Soils have permeable substrate. Upland pastures, livestock and dairy farming below. Significant forest cover (17%).	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1423 1441 1990 1832 2169	87 88 121 111 132	984 985 1625 1428 1773	83 83 136 120 149	9.27 9.30 15.35 13.49 16.70	115.8 118.4 308.3 149.7 219.9	28/10 17/02 22/10 24/12 30/10	0.69 0.96 0.98 0.49 1.33	05/08 23/04 31/05 01/08 27/07	24.6 23.8 34.9 34.6 38.1	5.01 3.67 7.72 7.50 9.07	0.90 1.14 1.81 0.90 1.98
O60010 Tywi at Nantgaredig C.A: 1090.4 km² M.A: EA Local No: 60010 Sens.: 6.2	5895	1574		1109		38.33	1200.0	19/10 1987	1.06	06/08 1989	90.2	23.59	3.81
F.A.R: RP Level: 8m UE: <.01 FAI: 0.983 Comment: Flat V weir (1:20) set in Crump profile flanking section. Shoaling d/s influences modular range; calibration based on gaugings. Channel width: 43m. High flows measured u/s - 60001 from which all pre-74 flows derive. Lyn Brianne in headwaters regulates flow down to major abstraction u/s of station (but d/s of 60001) and may be detected in hydrograph. # Geology: Ordovician and Silurian with Old Red Sandstone on southerm boundary. Peaty soils in headwaters. River levels. Forest: 17%.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1383 1429 2022 1874 2142	88 91 128 119 136	933 933 1666 1491 1686	84 84 150 134 152	32.15 32.25 57.62 51.54 58.15	251.1 265.5 398.7 298.8 376.8	28/10 17/02 23/10 15/01 30/10	2.89 4.40 8.76 3.24 4.72	21/09 01/02 30/05 11/09 12/08	75.7 81.9 130.5 128.3 135.4	18.87 13.41 36.31 35.02 38.42	4.22 5.65 11.37 6.15 7.26
060006 Gwill at Glangwili C.A: 129.5 km² M.A: EA Local No: 60006 Sens.: 11.8 B/tull: 370.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: PEIN Level: 8m UE: <.01	689 5	1628		1180		4.85	184.5	01/12 1992	0.15	28/08 1976	11.2	2.89	0,41
Comment: Velocity-area station; stable section. Channel width: 15.5m. Public water supply and agricultural abstractions and effluent returns have minimal impact on flow records. # Geology: Ordovician and Silurian. Mainly dairy farming, rural area. Forest: 18%. Soils generally have permeable substrate.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1455 1561 2107 1789 2244	89 96 129 110 138,	988 1049 1717 1478 1943	84 89 146 125 165	4.05 4.31 7.05 6.07 7.96	55.3 126.0 208.1 92.9 147.2	20/10 17/11 24/10 24/12 29/10	0.33 0.45 0.63 0.43 0.94	04/08 02/05 05/06 01/08 06/08	10.4 10.2 15.9 15.0 18.3	2.29 2.05 3.73 3.87 4.61	0.41 0.61 0.85 0.67 1.35
060003 Taf at Clog-y-Fran C.A: 217.3 km² M.A: EA Local No: 60003 Sens.: 10.2 B/bill: 50.0m³s^-1 F.A. P.N Loval: 7cr 0.00 EA P:N EA P:N	6595	1426		1061		7.31	101.0	25/08 1986	0.18	21/08 1984	16.5	4.73	0.73
Comment: Velocity-area station. Overspills during flood discharges. Channel width 13.9m. Natural catchment: # Geology: Ordovician with some narrow bands of igneous rock. Old Red S'st and alluvium deposits in S. Mainly rural - predominantly dairy farming. Soils have permeable substrate.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1241 1465 1742 1486 1804	87 103 122 104 127	970 1131 1454 1199 1560	91 107 137 113 147	6.67 7.80 10.02 8.26 10.72	48.7 56.6 56.8 55.7 58.1	14/01 18/11 22/10 20/12 30/10	0.58 1.48 2.17 1.23 1.71	22/09 02/05 05/06 02/08 11/08	16.3 16.5 21.1 19.1 24.5	4.40 4.77 6.34 5.56 6.61	0.80 1.86 2.58 1.57 1.87
060004 Dewi Fawr at Glasfryn Ford C.A: 36.7 km² M.A: EA Local No: 60004 Sens.: 34.9 B/full: 20.0m³s ⁻¹	6995	1486		1070		1.24	23.4	01/11 1977	0.01	21/08 1995	3.0	0.85	0.11
F.A.R: E Level: 30m UE:<.U1 FAI; 1.000 Comment: Velocity-area station. Concrete ford d/s acts as a bed control. Discontinued in 1982, reinstated in Apr 1990. # Mainly rural catchment with dairy farming.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1369 1535 1849 1641 1957	92 103 124 110 132	966 1094 1619 1245 1489	90 102 151 116 139	1.12 1.27 1.88 1.45 1.73	12.1 18.7 19.7 17.8	24/11 17/11 24/10 24/12	0.06 0.16 0.24 0.06	21/09 02/05 03/09 03/08	2.7 3.0 4.3 3.5 3.8	0.77 0.67 1.11 0.92 1.02	0.11 0.22 0.32 0.15 0.26
061002 Eastern Cleddau at Canaston Bridge C.A: 183.1 km² M.A: EA Local No: 61002 Sens.: 14.7 B/full: 85.0m²s ⁻¹	6095	1443		1037		6.02	205.7	25/08 1986	0.5 <u>9</u>	22/07 1970	13.2	3.83	1.00
Comment: Velocity-area station; artificial control installed in 1974. Channel width: 17.4m. Impounding reservoir for PWS in upper catchment regulates the river down to the gauging station. # Geology: mainly Ordovician with bands of igneous rock in the northern half of the catchment. Some ORS on southern boundary. Mainly dairy farming in hilly rural area. Soils mainly have permeable substrate.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1271 1530 1795 1503 1874	88 106 124 104 130	885 1081 1402 1004 1298	85 104 135 97 125	5.13 6.28 8.14 5.83 7.51	54.0 111.9 98.4 71.1 87.7	28/11 22/11 03/01 03/01 11/12	0.94 1.37 1.48 1.12 0.99	23/09 02/05 01/06 29/07 23/07	11.6 12.9 16.8 13.6 17.0	3.55 3.40 5.15 3.78 4.58	1.09 1.51 2.12 1.30 1.19
061001 Western Cleddau at Prendergast Mill C.A: 197.6 km² M.A: EA Local No: 61001 Sens.: 5.2 B/full: 60.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.R: PEI Level: 4m UE: <.01	6595	1296		851		5.33	101.1	12/06 1993	0.30	09/09 1976	11.8	3.70	0.69
Comment: Velocity-area station, Tidally affected but edited out. This station has been merged with 61004 (Redhill) to produce a continuous record, held as 61001. (Oct 65 - Dec 73 and Jun 90 - present data from 61001; Jan 74 - May 90 data from 61004.) # Geology: Ordovician with igneous intrusions. Natural catchment in rural area. Mainly dairy farming, some arable in lower ares. Soils in northern hills have impermeable substrata - seasonally wet. Soils in lower (southern) area have permeable substrates.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1150 1370 1475 1325 1611	89 106 114 102 124	686 859 997 850 1241	81 101 117 100 146	4.29 5.38 6.25 5.33 7.76	35.3 53.8 52.6 40.8 57.0	28/11 17/11 03/01 03/01 07/12	0.61 1.53 1.08 0.62 0.77	22/09 02/06 30/08 21/08 12/09	9.5 10.4 13.6 12.7 17.6	3.18 3.36 3.87 3.73 5.13	0.72 1.69 1.29 0.79 1.25

<u>136</u>

3

061003 Gwaun at Cilrhedyn Bridge C.A: 31.3 km² M.A: EA Local No: 61003. Sens.: 18.5 B/full: 25.0m³s⁻¹ F.A.R: N Level: 70m UE: <.01 FAI: 1.000 Comment: Velocity-area station in straight reach (width: 7.0m). Natural steep-sided catchment very responsive. Treat data with cattion, under review, station designated as flood warning only from 2000. # Geology: Ordovician with intrusions of igneous rock. Mainly dairy farming in lower areas. Livestock on hills. Forest: 7%. 100% within Pernbrokeshire Coast National Park. Peaty soils on hills, seasonally wet. In lower areas, soils have permeable substrate. 062001 Telfi at Glan Telfi C A⁺ 893 6 km² Sens.: 9.4 UE: <.01 B/full: 210.0m³s⁻¹ FAI: 0.995 M.A: EA F.A.R: SP Local No: 62001 Level: 5m Comment: Velocity area station. Straight reach (width: 35m), natural control. Flood flows spill over right bank. PWS impounding reservoirs in upland area where there is mostly hill farming. Tregaron bog (10 sq.km.) has partial effect on flows; sensibly natural regime. # Geology: mainly Ordovician and Siunan deposits. Dairy farming predominates in south. Forest: 5%. Peaby soils on hills, seasonally wet. Apart from Tregaron bog, most of the lower areas have soils with permeable substrate. 063004 Ystwyth at Cwm Ystwyth C.A: 32.1 km² M.A: EA F.A.R: Local No: 63004 Sens.: UE:

-

τ.

F.A.R: Level: 199m UE: FAI: Comment: Flat V weir with vertical side walls, channel width 13m. # Geology: mainly Silurian shales and grits. Upper reaches of the catchment are mainly used for sheep farming and forestry. There are numerous disused lead and zinc mines within the catchment.

063001	Ystwyti	n at Pont Llolwyn	C.A: 169.6 km ²
M.A: EA	Local No: 63001	Sens.: 13.8	B/full: 71.0m ³ s ⁻¹
F.A.R: N	Level: 12m	UE: <.01	FAI: 0.990
Comment: Velo	ocity-area station (channel wi	dth: 16m). Records fr	om 1963, with bed control
installed in 1973 m ³ s ⁻¹ are unreli - 27/09/98 (dmfs area with hill fa	EFoods spill over right bank. D table due to blockage of lower in sestimated by IH), new rating pr rming. Some livestock at low	ischarges from lead min hlet pipe, Charmel re-gra roduced, # Geology: Silu er levels, Forest 18%	es. Post-1985 flows below 3 aded and weir refurbished 21 man deposits. Mainly upland Peaty soils in eastern hills.
seasonally wet.	Most of western catchment ha	s soils with permeable	substrata.

 064006
 Leri at Dolybont
 C.A: 47.2 km²

 M.A: EA
 Local No:
 Sens.: 51.2
 St/liki 126.0m³s^-1

 F.A.R: S
 Level: 15m
 UE: <.01</td>
 FAI: 0.983

 Comment: A 10m wide single crest Crump profile weir in a straight floodbanked reach. Wing walls contain flows to high levels although rating has not been checked beyond medium flows. A small abstraction from Craig-y-Pistyll reservoir. # The catchment is predominantly moortand on impervious Silurian rocks.

064001	c c	Dyfi at Dyfi Bridge	C.A: 471.3 km ²
M.A: EA	Local No:	Sens.: 8.1	B/full: 500.0m ³ s ⁻¹
F.A.R: N	Level: 6m	UE: <.01	FAI: 0.995
Comment: A 40	m wide river section contr	olled by the invert and arch	nes of the historical Dyfi road
bridge d/s. A g	ood stable section althout	igh records in early years	arare marred by substantia
engineering world	ks carried out on the bridg	e. # A natural, largely mo	orland catchment on Siluriar
rocks. River allu	vium deposits in the flood	plain.	

064002	Dys	synni at Pont-y-Garth	C.A: 75.1 km ²
M.A: EA	Local No:	Sens.: 14.9	B/full: 170.0m ³ s ⁻¹
F.A.R: N	Level: 2m	UE: <.01	FAI: 0.952

FAR: N Level: Zm DE: <U1 FAR: 0.952 Comment: Weir constructed in 1997; station re-rated from Oct 1997. Following reconstruction (involved removing sheet-piling) station is more vulnerable to tidal influence, but allowed for in the stage-discharge conversion. Difficult to gauge at high flows. Recent flows should be treated with caution. Before April 1997: 40m wide section (between floodbanks) controlled by sheet piling d/s in straight channel. Insensitive at low flows; due to flashy response. # Natural flow regime arising from volcanic rocks with much outcropping. Tal-y-Llyn (southernmost ribbon lake in Britain) lies within catchment.

065001		Glasly	n at Beddgelert	C.A: 68.6 km ²
M.A: EA	Local No:		Sens.: 12.8	B/full: 100.0m ³ s ⁻¹
F.A.R: SH	Level: 33m		UE: <.01	FAI: 0.909
Comment: A 20m	wide river section ra	ated by c/r	n and, in the past, by dilu	tion gauging. Rating tends to
be insensitive at le	ow flows due to sub	tle moven	nents in the natural bed (control d/s. Large amount o

be insensitive at low flows due to subtle movements in the natural bed control d/s. Large amount of gravel removed in August 2001, rating updated. High flow gauging restricted to peaks and troughs because of rapid water level changes. Station bypassed at high flows. Flows in 2000 under review. Lakes (Dinas and Gwynant) and HEP discharge from the higher Llyn Llydaw marginally affect records. # Catchment drains southem flanks of Snowdonia with much bare rock exposure (impermeable Ordovician volcanics).

065007	Dwyfav	Dwyfawr at Garndolbenmaen						
M.A: EA	Local No:	Sens.: 11.9						
F.A.R: SRP	Level: 86m	UE: <.01	FAI: 0.969					
Comments & com	annund Chumo profile weir	with dividing walls congrating.	the 6 5m wide lower cr					

Comment: A compound Crump profile weir with dividing walls separating the 6.5m wide lower crest from two flanking crests each 5m wide. Station built as the control point for the Cwmystradlym. Reservoir/Afon Dwyfawr regulation scheme. Consequently not intended for high flow gauging and in fact bypassed at flows >10 year return period. # The catchment is mainly steep and with much bare rock of Lower Palaeozoic age.

065005	Erc	h at Pencaenewydd	C.A: 18.1 km ²
M.A: EA	Local No:	Sens.: 25.6	S/full: 75.8m ³ s ¹
F.A.R: N	Level: 56m	UE: <.01	FAI: 0.991
Comment: A 6m	wide Crump profile weir wi	th bigh wing walls containing	wide range of flows. Cher

Comment: A 6m wide Crump profile weir with high wing waits containing wide range or nows, unexc, gauged up to medium flows. The oustanding peak flow in August 2000 is estimated (but was contained within the structure) - and resulted from a localised but very intense thunderstorm. # A typical impervious lowland catchment on the Lleyn peninsula covered with Boulder Clay.

065004	Gwvr	fal at Bontnewydd	C.A: 47.9 km ²
M.A: EA	Local No:	Sens.: 17.1	S/full: 126.0m ³ s ⁻¹
F.A.R: SP	Level: 31m	UE: <.01	FAI: 0.868
Comment: A 1	Om wide single crest Crump	p profile weir containing	flows to high levels. Check
gauging sugges	ts some (constant) loss du	le to inadequate cutoffs	; hence low flows affected.
Significant abst	raction from Llyn Cwellyn i	reservoir u/s. # A steep	and typically Snowdonian
catchment: Low	er Palaeozoic geology.		•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

. •

	Ŀ	% of pr	_	% of pr	Меа	Pea	·- Date o	Min. dal	Date	10 Per	50 Per	95 Per	
6995	1532		1119		1.11	· 32.5	11/06	0.06	27/08 1976	2.4	0.79	0.16	
1996 1997 1998	1455 1679 1955	95 110 128	1136 1254 1456	102 112 130	1.12 1.24 1,44	11.0 25.7 25.4	13/01 - 17/11 02/01	0.28 0.37 0.37	04/08 02/05 31/05	2.3 2.2 2.8	0.86 0.86 0.99	0.31 0.46 0.45	
1999 2000	1617 2099	106 137	1169 1689	104 151	1.16 1.67	18.5 33.8	03/01 07/12	0.17 0.33	24/07 30/08	2.5 3.4	0.88 1.07	0.25 0.42	
5995	1355		1003	~~~	28.41	448.8	18/10 1987	0.73	25/08 1976	64.7	18.53	2.99	
1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1197 1310 1706 1600 1893	88 97 126 118 140	796 836 1301 1182 1521	. 79 83 130 118 152	22.50 23.70 36.87 33.51 42.99	196.4 225.1 256.2 202.2 309.9	08/01 18/11 24/10 24/12 30/10	2.28 4.22 5.55 2.66 5.96	05/08 23/04 01/06 02/08 13/09	59.7 52.7 88.9 79.0 99.8	14.03 11.92 21.96 22.59 25.90	2.98 5.10 - 7.78 4.08 7.23	
8495	2060		1881		1.91	56.4	-09 21/03, 1992	0.05	21/08 1995	4.7	0.98	0.18	
1996 1997	1774 1841	86 89	1544 1585	82 84	1.57 1.61	39.4 27.9	31/10- 28/11	0.11	23/09 23/04	3.9 3.8	0.84 0.81	0.15 0.21	
1998 1999 2000	2685 2497 2749	130 121 133	2488 2271 2755	132 121 146	2.53 2.31 2.80	42.4 47.2 33.6	06/03 01/03 30/01	0.18 0.07 0.21	31/05 01/08 30/07	5.9 5.4 7.1	1.51 1.22 1.63	0.40 0.19 0.35	
6395	1493		1100		5.92	210.4	12/12 1964	0.11	17/08 1994	14.0	3.39	0.55	
1996 1997 1998	1235 1340 1877	83 90 126	814 869	74 79 131	4.37 4.67 7.76	84.1 91.8 111.5	31/10 28/11 06/03	0.46	05/08 24/04 31/05	9.9 10.2	2.73 2.60 4.62	0.62	
1999 2000	1801 2053	121 138	1450 1757	132 160	7.80 9.42	109.5 112.4	02/03 29/10	0.34 0.85	01/08 30/07	- 19.6 22.9	4.03 5.81	0.65 1.20	
60,.95	1,503		792		1.18	52.4	05/08 1973	0.02	21/06 1970	3.0	0.69	0.04	
1996 1997	1330	68 90	994 884	126 112	1.48 1.32	18.1 18.5	31/10 · 21/06	0.35	05/08 17/06	3.1 2.6	1.02	0.43 0.31	
1998 1999 2000	1802 2084	132 120 139	1258 1588	159 201	1.88 2.37	29.7 21.1 25.9	02/03 29/10	0.24	03/08 01/08 30/07	4.2 4.2 5.0	1.48 1.20 1.82	0.31 0.50	
6295	1890		1518		22.68	580.5	12/12 1964	0.31	28/08 1976	53.6	12.76	1.98	
1996 1997	1476 1615	78 85	1167 1218	77 80	17.39 18.20	293.7 276.4	31/10 17/02	1.28	27/07 19/08	41.5 46.0	9.50 10.12	1.69 2.61	
1998 1999 2000	2342 2223 2491	124 118 132	2038 1921 2368	127 156	30.46 28.71 35.29	334.2 324.9 338.8	02/03 29/10	2.33 1.27 4.21	01/08 30/07	72.7 76.7	15.55 24.79	5.20 2.65 5.90	
66-95	2168		1860		4.43	121.3	21/11 1980	0.19	07/09 1976	9.5	3.04	0.58	
• 1996 1997	1736 1939	80 89	1448	78	3.44	45.0	31/10	0.46	23/09	7.4	2.04	0,70	
1998 1999 2000	2671 2355 2659	123 109 123	2512 2417 2499	135 130 134	5.98 5.76 5.94	64.4 <i>41.0</i> 71.1	03/03 <i>01/10</i> 29/10	0.65 1.62 1.30	31/05 01/08 15/05	12.4 11.5 12.5	4.25 4.36 3.94	1.02 2.14 1.46	
6195	3067		2604		5.66	.141.0	18/12 1993	0.04	09/07 1973	13.2	3.27	0.55	
1996 1997	2354 2745	77 90	2071 2741	80 105	4,49 5.96	83.2 89.3	31/10 17/02	0.46	05/02 12/07	10.4	2.49 3.57	0.69 0.88	
1998 1999 2000	3067 3764	100 123	2898 4202	111 161	6.30 9.11	90.8 92.8 104.6	05/01 11/01	0.23 0.36 0.70	31/05 31/07 25/07	14.9 14.4 20.0	4.06 6.13	0.64 0.69 1.38	
7595	2071		1509		2.51	81.6	01/10 1987	0.02	20/08 1984	5.7	1.54	0.26	
1996 1997	1660 1930	80 93	1146 1467	76 97	1.90 2.44	33.6 46.3	24/11 29/11	0.25 0.26	18/05 05/06	4.1	1.06	0.31 0.35	
1998 1999 2000	2293 2020 2620	111 98 127	1959 1660 2343	130 110 155	3.26 2.76 3.88	42.1 33.9 54.0	03/03· 05/01 26/10	0.40 0.39 0.35	01/06 01/08 14/05	7.0 6.1 9.0	2.27 1.95 2.43	0.53 0.54 0.54	
73-95	1409		1042		0.60	25.0	18/10 1987	0.04	27/08 1976	1.3	0.40	0.09	
1996 1997	1310 1365	93 97,	893 860	- 66 83	0.51 0.49	9.2 13.2	24/11 28/11	0.12 0.14	13/10 04/06	1.0 1.1	0.36 0.31	0.13 0.16	
1998 1999 2000	1565 1433 1946	111 102 138	1240 1029 1727	119 99 166	0.71 0.59 0.99	8.3 6.6 63.0	24/10 20/01 21/08	0.17 0.11 0.13	30/05 30/07 29/07	1.5 1.2 2.2	0.51 0.41 0.54	0.20 0.13 0.17	
7095	2222		1493		2.27	47.3	21/03 1981	0.06	07/10 1972	5.2	1.47	0.29	
1996 1997	1755 .2018	79 91	981 1314	66 88	1.49 2.00	14.9 18.0	28/10 03/09	0.17 0.29	20/09 19/08	4.2 5.3	0.73 1.04	0.23 0.34	
1998 1999 2000	2392 2319 2752	• 108 104 124	1710 1619 2046	115 108 137	2.60 2.46 3.10	15.7 22.3 27.9	03/03 05/01 12/01	0.32 0.23 0.30	31/05 31/07 24/07	5.7 5.3 7.2	1.95 1.73 1.99	0.41 0.32 0.46	

			· ·													
				· Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (^{m1} e ⁻¹)	Peak flow (m³∎'')	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (^{m1} a ⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m³e-')	50 Percentile (m*a**)	05 Percentile (m's*')
065008 M.A: EA	Local No:	Nant Peris at Tan-Yr-Ait Sens.:	C.A: 12.2 km ²	. ⁻ 8295	3394	l	3071		1.19	49.0	11/09 1987	0.02	1 <i>1/</i> 08 1995	2.9	0.54	0.09
F.A.R: Comment: Velocity-	Level: m Area station.	UE:	FAI	1996 1997 1998 1999	3160 3505 4401 3885	93 103 130 114	2334 3164 3653 3571	76 103 119 116	0.90 1.22 1.41 1.38	28.8 37.5 41.2 41.6	28/09 17/02 20/10 04/11	0.05 0.06 0.09 0.08	23/09 07/01 31/05 18/06	2.3 3.3 3.5 3.5	0.38 0.52 0.78 0.73	0.08 0.08 0.14 0.11
065006 MA: EA	Local No:	Selont at Peblig Mill Sens : 5.5	Č.A. [°] 74.4 km ²	7695	4711 5 234 8	139	4614 1968	150	1.78 4.64	45.5 75.7	27/09 18/10 1987	0.10	15/05 25/08 1995	4,4 10,4	0.99 3.12	0.15
F.A.R: H Comment: A rated ri by a roughly Crum construction of the D data with caution, une	Level: 19m ver section in a st p profile shaped inorwic pumped s der review. # A st	UE: <.01 raight reach which has not yet been structure originally built as par isorage scheme, which very margin sep catchument with much bare rock	FAI: 0.854 bypassed. Control provided t of investigations prior to ally affects the record. Treat surface. Contains two large	1996 1997 1998 1999	1881 2197 2595 2535	80 94 111 108	1543 1943 2385 2399	78 99 121 122	3.63 4.58 5.63 5.66	34.4 40.6 37.8 40.7	28/10 17/02 20/10 05/11	0.28 0.44 0.62 0.46	23/09 20/08 01/06 17/07	9.3 11.7 13.0 12.6	1.89 2.34 4.11 3.76	0.57 0.69 1.13 0.96
ribbon lakes, Padam 066011 M.A: EA F.A.R: P	Local No: Local No: Level: 7m	tter acting as the lower reservoir o Conwy at Cwm Llanerch Sens.; 11.9 UE: <.01	f the Dinonwic scheme. C.A: 344.5 km ² B/full: 390.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.980	2000 64.,95	2956 2188	126	2988 1667	152	7.03 18.21	48.5 509.7	12/01 12/12 1964	0.62 0.32	25/07 30/07 1984	16.0 43.9	4.57 8.74	1.00 1.24
Comment: A 50m w bed control. Record rating is kept accurat water is diverted by composed of volcani	ride river section is very importan te. Some bypassi means of leats in ic rocks.	requiring frequent recalibration (c. t in Conwy valley flood forecastin ng and u/s overbank storage at ve to Llyn Conwy. # The catchment	irrent meter) due to shifting g so much effort to ensure ry high flows. At such times is mainly mountainous and	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1656 1889 2453 2468 2793	76 86 112 113 128	1284 1610 2224 2225 2616	77 97 133 133 157	13.98 17.59 24.30 24.31 28.50	364.1 410.8 378.2 381.9 385.2	05/11 17/02 03/03 05/01 27/02	0.57 0.94 1.68 1.08 2.06	23/09 19/08 31/05 31/07 27/07	36.6 50.2 55.5 60.0 64.1	6.08 8.13 14.39 12.71 17.27	0.97 1.73 3.63 2.08 3.48
066005 M.A: EA F.A.R:	Local No: Level: 51m	Clwyd at Ruthin Weir Sens.: 82.5 UE: <.01	C.A: 95.3 km ² S/full: 39.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.993	7195	961		447		1.35	19.0	29/01 1990	0.01	18/08 1976	3.5	0.81	0.07
Comment: Non-star flume) leading to fisi continuity between g in area of impermeat	ndard 14m wide h passes. Levels /w and streamflo ble Ordovician ad	concrete weir with central low fit s recorded 14m u/s in float well a w along part of Afons Clywd and H ad Silurian rocks, with patchy Boul	w notch (short trapezoidal gairist left bank. Hydraulic lesbin. # Upper Clwyd rises` Ider Clay cover.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	804 898 1159 1269 1401	84 93 121 132 146	339 334 559 634 795	76 75 125 142 178	-1.02 1.01 1.69 1.92 2.40	15.6 9.7 18.6 16.8 24.4	25/11 19/02 03/03 29/09 06/11	0.04 0.06 0.14 0.06 0.27	19/08 03/10 22/08 31/07 29/06	2.4 2.6 4.4 5.2 5.0	0.63 0.54 0.91 1.22 1.57	0.06 0.09 0.21 0.11 0.42
066004 M.A: EA F.A.R: N .	Local No: Level: 55m	Wheeler at Bodfari Sens.: 13.7 UE: <.01	C.A: 62.9 km ² S/full: 8.1m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.995	70,.95	857		370		0.74 Å	5.3	11/02 1977	0.17	06/09 1976	1.4	0.60	0.25
Comment: Single le rectangular channel derived. # Geology: gravel deposits.	vel Crump weir : beneath disused L'st in north; Sili	3.034m wide, between vertical sid railway bridge. Station refitted in urian beneath and to south of rive	e walls. Immediately d/s of June 1997, and new rating rr, all overlain by sand and	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	748 830 1051 1081 1253	87 97 123 126 146	254 275 473 462 651	69 74 128 125 176	0.51 0.55 0.94 0.92 1.29	4.0 3.6 4.9 5.2 6.7	25/11 26/06 12/09 24/10 06/11	0.20 0.24 0.32 0.22 0.44	12/10 24/09 07/09 16/09 14/09	0.8 0.8 1.8 1.7 2.8	0.44 0.46 , 0.82 0.79 0.94	0.21 0.27 0.36 0.26 0.50
066001 M.A: EA	Local No:	Clwyd at Pont-y-Cambwll Sens.:	C.A: 404.0 km ² B/full: 50.0m ³ s ⁻¹	5995	919		482		6.17	81.5	26/09 1976	0.40	22/08 1976	14.2	3.86	0.95
F.A.R RG Comment: VA static undertaken) and san flow). Flood discharg 1990s. Station refitte Silurian shales and g Triassic Sandstone a use: grouse moors to	Level: 15m on. Affected by v d and gravel more es affected by flo ed June-Aug 199 prits of Denbigh M iquifer (with artes o lowland dairy fa	UE: < 01 veedgrowth (cleared as required : rement. Low flows augmented usin odplain storage in Vale of Clwyd uy 77 no dmfs. Rerated from Aug 1 Noors and Clwydian Hills, then flow ian heads over large areas). Rural imning.	FAI: 0.996 and current meter gauging g gw (approx. 12% of Q95 s. Control stabilised in mid- 997. # Headwaters rise in v across generally confined catchment with mixed land	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	762 872 1107 1188 1349	83 95 120 129 147	351 371 596 641 848	73 77 124 133 176	4.49 4.76 7.63 8.21 10.83	53.8 35.5d 52.3 42.1 76.4	26/11 26/06 04/03 12/12 06/11	0.75 0.80 1.08 0.78 1.77	19/08 05/10 22/08 31/07 28/06	8.8 11.2 18.6 20.9 24.1	3.12 2.83 4.48 5.54 7.05	0.90 0.93 1.35 1.00 2.45
066006 M.A: EA F.A.B: SRP	Local No:	Elwy at Pont-y-Gwyddel Sens.: 18.3	C.A: 194.0 km ²	7395	1209		672		4.14 /	143.0	15/10 1976	0.16	06/09 1976	10.5	2.22	0.32
Comment: Twin ard castellated manner w 97, data revised. Sor flow of 0.2 m ³ s ⁻¹ in A strata with shallow so	h bridge provide: hithin 10m wide a me bypassing at 1 Mon Aled from re pil cover. Mainly	s control at medium flow. 1m widt rchway to achieve low flow sensitiv evels >2m. Low flows affected >1 servoirs which drain 6% of catching sheep pastures. <10% forestry in	2 Crump weir blocks set in http://www.rating.from 01/08/ 10% by maintained residual ent. # Impermeable Silurian valleys.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	929 1101 1337 1448 1639	77 91 111 120 136	448 577 814 896 1097	67 86 121 133 163	2.75 3.55 5.01 5.51 6.73	49.1 59.3 74.4 60.3 127.8	25/11 19/02 27/10 15/01 09/11	0.24 0.28 0.54 0.21 0.70	05/08 05/10 31/05 31/07 30/06	7.6 10.5 12.4 15.4 16.2	1.35 1.22 2.52 3.11 3.93	0.28 0.39 0.69 0.34 0.94
067018 M.A: EA F.A.R: N	Local No: Level: 164m	Dee at New Inn Sens.: 18.9 UE: <.01	C.A: 53.9 km ² B/fufl: 38.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 1.000	6995	1940		1783		3.05	92.8	18/11 1978	0.04	23/08 1976	7.9	1.43	0.23
Comment: Origional sensitivity at low flows V concrete ford with controls have been ca excess of the annual naturalization indicate otherwise no water-b pasture.	control based or s. Formalised (be square blocks c librated by currer flood). Data is us or for upper Dee learing strata. Re	a rough stone paved ford with ste ween 04/98 and 04/99 - data infilled ast on the u/s base to mimic the a trimeter although station is by-pass- trimeter although station is by-pass- de operationally for flood alleviatio flows. # Mainly Ordovician rocks. pidly responding catchment comp	pping stones u/s to provide d using 67/10)into a shallow adjusted configuration. The ed at extreme food flows (in n, flood warning and a daily Patchy superficial deposits rising mostly rough upland	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1693 1778 2483 2361 2784	87 92 128 122 144	1369 1419 2059 2742 2439	77 80 115 154 137	2.33 2.43 3.52 4.69 4.16	72.0 76.0 40.2d 79.4 79.0	05/11 17/02 06/03 <i>16/12</i> 29/10	0.14 0.15 0.28 0.14 0.30	23/09 19/08 31/05 01/08 30/07	6.3 6.2 8.0 11.9 9.8	1.02 1.07 1.96 2.01 2.31	0.17 0.25 0.53 0.28 0.51
067010 M.A: EA F A R [,] N	Local No: Level: 306m	Gelyn at Cynefail Sens.: 20.4 LIE: < 01	. C.A: 13.1 km² S/full: 35.5m³s ^{−1} FAI: 0.969	6695	2173		1623		0.67	37.2	01/01 1981	0.02	01/09 1976	1.7	0.28	0.06
Comment: Compour since 1988. # Geolog shales. Drift cover mi	ini Crump profile gy: impermeable inimal. Rapid rur	weir. Station closed 1981 to 1987 Lower Ordovician volcanics with or off. Upland pasture, rural.	inclusive. Fully operational ccasional heavily indurated	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1664 1838 2466 2392 2669	77 85 113 110 123	1212 1393 1910 2032 2419	75 86 118 125 149	0.50 0.58 0.79 0.84 1.00	14.1 17.0 18.5 21.1 11.1	05/11 17/02 03/03 16/12 02/03	0.04 0.05 0.08 0.06 0.09	18/08 16/08 <u>:</u> 30/05 31/07 29/07	1.4 1.6 1.9 2.2 2.6	0.19 0.23 0.41 0.36 0.52	0.05 0.08 0.11 0.08 0.11
067001 M.A: EA F.A.R: SR	Local No: Level: 159m	Dee at Bala Sens.: 10.0 UE:	C.A: 261.6 km ² B/full: 186.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI:	5795	1867		1541		12.78	198.2	04/12 1960	0.80	18/03 1962	29.6	7.84	2.34
Comment: Original L Gauged by wading an flows. Low flows contr Celyn also in catching to rainfall is modified to with <10% forest.	proad-crested we of cableway with rolled by Bala slu ent. # Thin soil or by the natural sto	ir modified in 1968 to triangular pr some hydraulic model tests also. N ices about 750m u/s. These contro over over mostly Lower Ordovician rage of Llyn Tegid. Mainly open mo	ofile 1:1 u/s and 1:3.5 d/s. lay drown at about bankfull I flow from Llyn Tegid. Llyn rocks. The rapid response orland and sheep pastures	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1555 1649 2259 2221 2549	83 88 121 119 137	1080 1198 2077 1984 2482	70 78 135 129 161	8.94 9.94 17.23 16.46 20.53	59.0 62.1 112.4 114.3 127.1	03/11 13/02 25/10 03/03 30/10	1.72 2.46 2.50 3.02 2.67	05/02 07/01 04/02 01/05 01/04	22.5 22.0 38.0 37.8 43.6	6.42 6.71 12.09 9.53 14.94	2.45 2.70 3.23 5.18 3.51
067028 M.A: EA E A D: N	Local No:	Celdiog at Llandrillo Sens.:	C.A: 36.5 km ²	7895	1500		1132		1.31	29.7	07/12 1994	0.04	15/09 1990	3.3	0.70	0.10
Comment: Velocity-a flows only. Station or mudstones and shale provide rapid runoff ra	area station utilis priverted to a leve as with outcrops ates and low bas	oc: ing a series of avel traps as a c al-only site in 2001. # Geology: Lo of contemporaneous volcanic tuff: eflows.	rAL ontrol for low and medium wer and Middle Ordovician s and agglomerates which	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1404 1353 1845 1778 1991	94 90 123 119 133	998 992 1646 1644 1875	88 88 145 145 166	1.15 1.15 1.91 1.90 2.16	19.4 23.8 32.9 27.0 49.9	, 19/02 27/10 24/12 05/11	0.10 0.14 0.30 0.14 0.31	18/08 19/08 20/08 31/07 13/09	3.0 3.3 4.3 4.9 4.5	0.66 0.50 0.93 1.14 1.40	0.12 0.18 0.35 0.22 0.36

SURFACE WATER - REGISTER AND STATISTICS

2

WELSH REGION/RHANBARTH CYMRU

HYDROLOGICAL DATA: 1996-2000

		Period	Rainfali (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m³s²¹)	Peak flow (^{m³} ±' ¹)	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (^{m³} s ⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m³s ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m³s ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m³s ⁻¹)		
067006 M.A: EA	Alw Local No:	en at Druid Sens.: 14.7	C.A: 184.7 km ² B/full: 100.0m ³ s ⁻¹	60 95	1316		844		4.94	175.6	12/12 1964	0.33	07/07 1975	11.4	2.94	0.65
F.A.R: SRPI Comment: Natural riv revisions of rating from floods. Reservoirs con changed in 1976 to ex Ordovician/Siturian ge	FAI: 0.903 d in 1964. Some minor ated. Bypassed during ent. # Catchment area) over Boulder Clay on	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1067 1190 1520 1647 1831	81 90 116 125 139	614 656 1129 1261 1311	73 78 134 149 155	3.59 3.84 6.61 7.39 7.66	43.7 59.4 82.3 103.8 120.6	25/11 17/02 03/03 29/09 29/10	0.53 0.58 0.97 0.75 0.81	05/08 04/10 31/05 14/09 31/03	8.6 10.0 15.1 19.1 16.3	2.04 1.90 3.61 4.12 5.26	0.73 0.81 1.22 0.92 1.09		
067005 M.A: EA	C.A: 113.7 km ² B/full: 350.0m ³ s ¹	5695	1255		831		3.00	66.1	09/12 1965	0.14	26/08 1976	6.8	1.99	0.42		
F.A.R: N Comment: Compour Discharges > 15 m ³ s ²	Level: 64m d broad-crested weir m ¹ are estimated Data pric	UE: <.01 odified from original veloci into 1969 is suspect Station	FAI: 1.000 ty-area site in 1969.	. 1996 1997	1086 1160	87 92	736	89	2.65	32.3	11/02	0.30	19/08	5.9	1.89	0.35
Sept 1997; no flows, unconformably in E by deeply incised. Soils a	new rating thereafter. # Carboniferous L'st, Cefn- are thin and peaty, suppor	Geology: Ordovician and S y-Fedw S'st and Coal Measi ting pasture for sheep grazir	silurian strata overlain ures. River valleys are Ig.	1998 1999 2000	1483 1525 1675	118 122 133	1077 1073 1279	130 129 154	3.88 3.87 4.60	36.4 32.6 94.4	08/01 20/09 05/1 1	0.52 0.42 0.62	20/08 31/07 12/09	9.0 9.0 9.4	2.22 2.56 2.86	0.62 0.52 0.81
067015 M.A: FA	Dee a	t Manley Hall Sens : 5.4	C.A: 1019.3 km ² S/full: 121.0m ³ s ⁻¹¹	37 9 5	1402		958		30.96	665.4	14/12	1.93	30/07 1949	70.9	19.15	5.49
F.A.R: SRPI Comment: Asymmetr flows above 200 m ³ si Celyn and Brenig. Da 1040.0 sq.km.) flow re notable. # Geology: 7 and Carboniferous ro negligible.	FAI: 0.936 tractering. Drowns at regulating reservoirs: rhistock (67002, area: wer Dee flood plain is 5% extrusive igneous nainder arable. Urban	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1184 1263 1659 1709 1911	84 90 118 122 136	714 697 1150 1167 1422	75 73 120 122 148	23.02 22.51 37.16 37.72 45.83	159.3 167.1 289.2 218.2 440.6	12/02 19/02 24/10 29/09 30/10	7.14 6.89 8.31 8.07 8.44	08/02 10/09 09/07 08/07 01/04	52.0 55.9 78.5 88.2 96.5	14.53 12.30 23.87 24.28 30.98	8.78 7.76 9.03 9.04 10.31		
067025 M.A: EA	Clywedog Local No:	at Bowling Bank Sens.: 12.6	C.A: 98.6 km ²	76-95	852		436		1.36	47.8	25/09 1976	0.20	25/08 1995	2.8	0.87	0.40
F.A.R: GE Comment: Simple Cri 10 year (or more) retu when this discharge catchment. # Sand an Much mining in the ca	Level: 14m Imp profile weir 6m wide w Im period. 50% of low flow was piped directly to the d gravel deposits (in centra trchment which is >10% u	UE: .07 which drowns at 8 m ³ s ⁻¹ . Byp w was treated effluent from 1 R. Dee. Mine drainage and al part of catchment) overlying urban or industrial.	FAI: 0.990 assed by flood flows of Arexham until 7/10/92 d abstraction in upper g Carboniferous strata.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	739 820 980 1139 1153	87 96 115 134 135	290 296 462 530 592	67 68 106 122 136	0.90 0.92 1.44 1.66 1.84	10.6 16.7 21.9 21.3 28.0	10/02 26/06 04/01 29/09 06/11	0.21 0.27 0.28 0.25 0.40	18/08 09/08 19/08 31/07 13/09	1.9 1.7 3.2 3.5 3.7	0.60 0.58 0.88 1.08 1.14	0.23 0.32 0.32 0.30 0.49
067009 M.A: EA	Alyn a Local No:	t Rhydymwyn Sens.:	C.A: 77.8 km ² B/full: 73.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6595	986		282		0.69	66.1	09/12 1965	0.00	02/12 1995	1.9	0.01	
Comment: Trapezoid entering swallow hole impermeable Silurian Limestone escarpmer losses of river flow the	al flume in concrete trapez al flume in concrete trapez s in limestone u/s of site. rocks covered with Boul nt. Swallow holes frequen rough percolation to mine	DE. < 01 oldal channel. Discharge freq Data prior to 1968 suspect. der Clay and Drift, to the e t between Maeshafn and Rt discharge tunnels.	PAIL 0.900 uently zero due to flow # Geology: in the west ast lies Carboniferous hydymwyn, substantial	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	800 909 1125 1228 1385	81 92 114 125 140	173 155 378 429 496	61 55 134 152 176	0.43 0.38 0.93 1.06 1.22	9.0 8.4 8.0 11.5 36.3	25/11 26/06 04/01 25/10 06/11	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 >0.00	04/02 21/01 15/02 05/05 21/03	1.2 1.3 3.1 3.1 3.1	0.29 0.48 0.42	
067008 M.A: EA	Alyn a Local No:	t Pont-y-Capel Sens.: 16.1	C.A: 227.1 km ² S/full: 71.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6595	917		326		2.35	59.1	25/09 1976	0.24	24/08 1976	5.5	1.31	0.47
F.A.R: SEI Comment: The divide 1986 as debris regula after. # III-defined cata water from upper 70 s Coal Measures.	Level: 37m e wall of this (two part) as arly blocked the lower par himent boundary to NE ar q.km. in limestone and min	UE: .02 symmetrical compound Crum t. Current meter calibration d SE. 25% Carboniferous Li he drainage tunnels. Extensiv	FAI: 0.991 p weir was lowered in took place before and mestone. Major loss of re glacial deposits over	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	764 862 1072 1186 1295	83 94 117 129 141	250 235 437 474 559	77 72 134 145 171	1.79 1.69 3.15 3.41 4.02	14.8 21.1 25.5 24.3 58.9	25/11 25/06 03/03 01/10 06/11	0.39 0.46 0.51 0.46 0.69	18/09 05/10 19/08 31/07 13/09	4.0 3.7 7.6 7.7 8.9	1.04 0.94 2.04 2.32 2.36	0.41 0.51 0.59 0.54 0.85
067033 M.A: EA	Des at Cheste Local No:	er Suspension Bridge Sens.:	C.A: 1816.8 km ²	94-95	1117		596		• 34.35	221.0	01/01 1995	3.45	18/12 1995	100.2	11.07	5.25
Comment: Ultrasonia Superceded 67020 (r 40m wide, High flow Palaeozoic rocks with Limestone escarpment Sandstone, providing	rAU, ws) installed in 1994. River channel approx. nt impermeable Lower crosses Carboniferous asures and Sherwood	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	946 1024 1322 1403 1546	85 92 118 126 138	385 390 752 775 946	65 65 126 130 159	22.10 22.47 43.30 44.66 54.37	137.0 145.0 199.0 <i>186.0</i> 332.0	26/11 25/02 10/01 24/12 07/11	4.23 3.83 5.39 4.92 6.98	14/09 21/07 09/07 09/07 23/07	56.4 61.5 113.2 117.2 120.9	12.72 10.23 24.49 25.85 37.18	4.80 4.83 6.64 5.97 9.04		
102001 M.A: EA	Cefni Local No:	at Bodffordd Sens.:	C.A: 22.3 km ²	8895	1029		529		0.37	15.6	31/03 1994	>0.00	09/08 1990	0.9	0.17	0.01
F.A.R: Level: m UE: FAI: Comment: Compound broad-created weir rated at medium to high flows by current meter. Full range station - accumulation of debris may affect the intake in the summer/autumn. # Typical low- lying Angelsey catchment of impervious rocks overlain by thick Boulder Clay.						80 94 120 114 144	373 443 735 610 1047	71 84 139 115 198	0.26 0.31 0.52 0.43 0.74	5.7 14.5 7.5 8.5 17.8	24/11 <i>10/12</i> 03/03 12/01 06/11	0.01 0.03 0.04 0.02 0.02	22/09 19/08 20/08 01/08 26/07	0.7 0.8 1.3 1.0 1.8	0.14 0.11 0.29 0.24 0.31	0.01 0.03 0.06 0.03 0.03

Map 11: NORTH WEST



Area: 14,445 km²

Average Rainfall (1961-90): 1201 mm

Gauging Station Register

Station number	River name	Stetlon name		Grid reference	Catchment area (eq km)	Station type	Pariod of record	Mean ann. rainfall (mm)	Mean ann. runoff (mm)	Mean ann, toes (mm)	ann. runoff (mm) (mm)	Year of max.	Kin, ann, runaff (mm)	Year of min.	Mean flow (m ¹ a-1)	Min. mon. flow (m'**')	Month/Year of min.	Median ann, flood (m ¹ a*1)	Base Flow Index	10 Percentlle (m ¹ a·1)	95 Percentile (m'e-*)
068015 068020 068002 068005 068004 068001 068006 068003 068011 068007	Gowy Gowy Weaver Wistaston 8 Weaver Dane Dane Artey Brook Wincham Brk	Hudey Bridge Trafford Picton Audlem Marshfeld Br Ashbrook Hufme Watfield Rudheath Gore Farm Lostock Gralam	ឧឧឧឧឧឧឧឧ	497624 448711 443714 653431 674552 670633 845644 668718 696799 697757	49.0 156.0 156.2 207.0 92.7 622.0 150.0 407.1 36.5 148.0	VA FV VA TPVA VA VA FVVA FL MIS	197000 1979-00 194976 195300 195700 195700 195384 194900 197582 196200	728 726 748 740 752 752 1043 873 828 835	246 227 243 326 295 500 387 387 404	482 499 501 497 426 457 543 486 441 431	+ 478 455 401 412 572 540 941 951 414 774 -	00 74 00 66 00 54 78 78 00	46 114 101 108 133 140 289 181 256 167	78 64 64 96 64 74 59 75 96	0.38 1.12 1.23 1.59 0.96 5.81 2.38 5.00 0.45 1.89	0.00 0.17 0.22 0.07 0.14 0.64 0.23 0.63 0.01 0.16	10/78 08/95 01/64 08/76 09/96 08/76 08/75 09/59 08/76 08/94	7.9 23.0 16.2 20.6 11.7 47.1 51.1 54.8 7.4 24.1	.48 .45 .52 .61 .53 .48 .54 .37 .51	0.9 2.5 3.8 1.8 13.2 5.4 11.0 0.9 4.0	0.08 0.20 0.25 0.22 1.15 0.46 0.92 0.01 0.27
069004 * 069015 069017 069041 069027 069007 069001 * 069040 069044	Etherow Etherow Goyt Tame Tame Mersey Invell - Invell -	Bottoms Res Compstall Marple Bridge Broomstair Br Portwood Ashton Weir Irlam Weir Stubbins Bury Ground	នួ <i>ង </i>	023971 962908 964898 938953 906918 772936 728936 793188 800140	78.2 156.0 183.0 113.0 150.0 660.0 679.0 105.0 139.9	TP C C C C S MIS C B C B C B V A F V V A	194581 197100 196900 196900 196900 1976-00 192178 197600 199200	1480 1317 1146 1280 1189 1133 1101 1401 1154	529 624 644 992 864 590 657 1041 537	951 693 502 288 325 543 444 360 617	2 934 1106 956 1470 1252 985 985 1650 1018	: 80 00 00 70 00 44 98 98	230 367 388 616 545 401 332 332	76 96 76 76 96 55 96	1.31 3.09 3.74 3.55 4.11 12.34 14.15 3.47 2.38	0.15 0.61 0.49 0.74 1.02 2.45 1.79 0.35	10/76 09/89 08/76 09/90 10/72 07/84 08/55 08/95	40.8 48.3 57.3 54.5 172.7 153.4 91.8	.40 .52 .53 .59 .58 .53 .53 .43 .49	2.9 6.8 8.3 7.9 25.3 27.9 8.2 4.7	0.29 0.73 0.74 1.09 1.38 3.16 3.84 0.57 0.43
069035 * 069042 069022 069023 069024 069003 069002 069039 * 069020 069019	Irwell Ding Brook Irwell Roch :, Croal Irk Irwell Medlock Medlock Worsley Brk	Bury Bridge Naden Reservoir Irwell Vale Blackford Bridge Farrworth Weir Sottland Weir Adelphi Weir New Viaduct Str London Road Eccles	ក្រ ក ក ក ព ព ព ព ព ព	797109 850175 791201 807077 743068 841992 824987 863987 863987 849975 753980	155.0 2.2 101.0 186.0 145.0 72.5 559.4 55.9 57.5 24.9	VA MIS VA B CB B B MIS FL	197698 198200 1996-00 1976-00 1976-00 193700 194900 194976 1975-00 196900	1324 1429 1472 1258 1327 1043 1269 1066 1052 963	1028 1032 1033 847 661 779 1003 626 483 382	296 397 439 411 666 264 266 440 569 581	1680 1419 1342 1252 980 1345 1718 739 701 577	81 00 00 81 70 54 58 80 81	649 674 707 544 394 357 697 397 271 170	96 95 96 96 97 59 76 96 96	5.05 0.07 3.31 4.99 3.04 1.79 17.79 1.11 0.88 0.30	0.01 0.83 1.20 0.44 0.30 2.75 0.14 0.20 0.03	09/89 08/95 01/96 08/95 08/95 09/59 06/51 09/59 08/95 08/95	207.1 57.1 56.9 39.6 228.7 14.9 8.1	.33 .44 .51 .53 .50 .38 .53 .48	12.0 0.2 7.8 10.3 7.1 3.5 37.3 2.5 1.7 0.6	0.23 0.01 0.77 1.47 0.65 0.41 4.89 0.17 0.24 0.06
069005 069013 069012 069008 069006 069037 069030 069031 069032 069033	Glaze Brook Sinderland B Bollin Dean Bollin Mersey Sankey Brook Ditton Brook Alt Alt	Little Woolden Partington Wilmslow Stanneylands Dunham Massey Westy Causey Bridge Greens Bridge Kirkby Sefton	ភ ភ ភ ភ ភ ភ ភ ភ ភ ភ ភ	685939 726905 850815 846830 727875 617877 588922 457865 392983 359012	152.0 44.8 72.5 51.8 256.0 2030.0 154.0 47.9 90.1 100.0	VA CCC CCC VS VA VA VA VA	195400 1976-00 1976-00 197600 195500 195500 197700 197700 197700 197475	979 820 945 959 889 1081 909 885 881 <i>838</i>	689 372 548 477 527 560 537 853 479 727	290 448 397 482 362 521 372 32 402 111	982 551 800 834 959 851 723 1322 696 865	58 81 00 00 00 81 00 74	383 246 332 248 336 348 370 629 331 480	62 96 96 59 91 91 85 96 55	3.32 0.53 1.26 0.78 4.28 36.04 2.62 1.29 1.37 2.31	0.21 0.13 0.35 0.09 0.65 0.22 0.44 0.27 0.45 0.82	05/95 08/76 07/76 09/59 10/98 08/77 08/76 08/95 06/60	8.5 12.8 9.4 40.3	.52 .56 .61 .50 .57 .57 .56 .59 .55 .70	6.9 1.1 2.5 1.8 8.8 85.7 5.4 2.5 2.8 3.6	0.75 0.16 0.45 0.11 1.17 9.08 0.83 0.44 0.49 1.02
070001 * 070003 070002 070004 070005 071011 071005 071005 071002 071003 *	Douglas Douglas Douglas Yarrow Lostock Ribbte Bottorns Beck Hodder Croasdale	Rivington Res Wigan Wanes Blades Br Croston Mill Littlewood Br' Arnford Henthorn Bottoms Beck Stocks Reservoir Croasdale fume	SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD	631119 587061 476126 498180 497197 839556 722392 745565 719546 706546	39.4 55.3 198.0 74.4 56.0 204.0 456.0 10.6 37.0 10.4	MIS VA VA MIS VA FV CB FL B	195173 197700 197300 1976-00 1976.00 1966.00 1968-00 1968-74 193800 1957-74	1276 1159 1045 1037 1031 1504 1370 1543 1715 1864	307 669 636 794 729 1125 948 1032 416 1201	969 490 409 243 302 379 422 511 1299 663	800 973 1018 1286 1090 1520 1471 1318 891 1568	67 81 00 81 00 67 67 67	119 426 495 483 443 710 613 735 873	53 96 96 85 96 96 96 59	0.38 1.17 3.99 1.87 1.29 7.28 13.71 0.35 0.49 0.40	0.10 >0.00 0.38 0.30 0.22 0.55 0.03 0.03 0.05	07/56 07/94 07/83 08/76 05/85 08/95 08/95 08/95 06/70 10/00 09/59	16.4 34.2 33.9 17.5 120.3 226.9 15.5 13.3	.65 .58 .44 .48 .25 .30 .21 .19 .36	0.4 2.3 4.1 2.5 19.3 34.6 0.9 0.5 0.9	0.13 0.36 1.11 0.49 0.33 0.44 1.04 0.03 0.07
071015 071008 071010 071009 071001 071001 071013 071014 072016 072008	Dunsop Hodder Pendle Water Calder Ribble Ribble Darwen Darwen Wyre Wyre	Footholme Flume Hodder Place Barden Lane Whalley Weir Jumbles Rock Samlesbury Ewood Blue Bridge Scorton Weir Garstang	SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD	653529 704399 837351 729360 702376 587314 677262 565278 501500 488447	25.0 261.0 108.0 316.0 1053.0 1345.0 39.5 128.0 88.8 114.0	FL FV FV MIS VA MIS FV	1996-00 1976-00 1971-00 1963.00 1979-00 1976-00 1976.00 1976.00 1967.00	1648 1225 1228 1415 1348 1370 1231 1495 1411	+ 1227 1033 862 861 1004 915 953 1007 1261 924	615 363 367 411 433 417 224 234 487	1642 1595 1304 1232 1452 1381 1299 1436 1475	00 60 60 60 60 60 60	725 599 500 573 617 598 680 696 571	96 96 96 96 96 96 96 71	0.97 8.55 2.95 8.63 33.51 33.23 1.19 4.09 3.55 3.34	0.17 0.66 0.32 1.57 3.27 2.64 0.29 1.27 0.00 0.19	01/97 08/95 08/95 08/95 07/84 08/76 07/84 08/76 08/76	209.8 72.8 153.1 594.9 610.1 30.6 112.0 92.8	.24 .31 .37 .42 .33 .34 .46 .48 .29 .32	- 2.6 21.6 7.0 19.7 82.4 81.1 2.6 8.2 7.5 8.0	0.12 0.97 0.47 1.97 4.22 4.56 0.32 1.30 0.21 0.36
072007 072002 072014 072015 072005 072009 072004 072001 072001	Brock Wyre Conder Lune Rawthey Wenning Lune Lune Keer	U/S A6 St Michaels Galgate Lunes Bridge Killington Brigg Flatts Wennington Br Caton Halton High Keer Weir	SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD	512405 463411 401554 612029 622907 639911 615701 529653 503647 523719	32.0 275.0 28.5 141.5 219.0 200.0 142.0 983.0 994.6 48.0	B FVVA FVVA MIS CB VA FV CB VA FV	1978-00 1963-00 1976.00 1979.00 1969.00 1968.00 1976-00 1959-00 1959-76 1976.00	1431 1270 1231 1712 1653 1797 1343 1529 1459 1174	863 741 764 1391 1456 1470 996 1142 1069 399	568 529 467 321 197 327 347 387 390 775	1351 1217 1131 1881 2171 2008 1407 1621 1474 692	80 81 00 00 00 00 67 00	481 448 463 865 931 885 564 732 776 230	96 96 96 76 96 96 96 96	0.88 6.46 0.69 6.24 10.11 9.32 4.49 35.61 33.71 0.61	0.04 0.24 0.04 0.60 0.48 0.14 1.87 2.17 0.03	08/95 08/76 08/95 07/84 07/84 08/95 07/84 08/76 08/76	145.4 37.7 247.3 207.9 307.1 90.1 640.5 658.2 13.0	.34 .35 .32 .32 .22 .26 .32 .33 .40	2.1 15.8 1.7 15.2 24.9 23.9 11.0 86.9 81.3 1.3	0.07 0.59 0.06 0.50 0.52 0.28 3.13 3.12 0.06
073008 073003 073009 073011 073005 073014 073013 073006 073010 073002	Bela Kent Sprint Mint Kent Brathay Rothay Cunsey Beck Leven Crake	Beetham Burneside Sprint Mill Mint Bridge Sedgwick Jeffy Knotts Miller Bridge Ho Eel House Br Newby Bridge Low Nibthwaite	SD SD SD SD SD NY SD SD SD	496806 507956 514961 524944 509874 360034 371042 369940 367863 294882	131.0 73.6 34.6 65.8 209.0 57.4 64.0 18.7 247.0 73.0	FV VA FV CBVA VA VA VA VA VA VA	196900 198199 197600 197000 197600 197600 197600 197800 1939-00 1963-00	1326 1936 2168 1631 1757 2957 2528 2010 2180 2179	854 1678 1724 1163 1351 2398 2111 1541 1773 1749.	472 258 444 468 406 559 417 469 407 430	1259 2132 2286 1705 1923 3044 2685 2195 2788 2416	00 94 00 00 00 00 54 , 00	528 1100 1219 776 905 1724 1505 614 1174 1208	71 96 71 71 96 96 76 96 73	3.55 3.92 1.89 2.43 8.96 4.36 4.28 0.91 13.89 4.05	0.37 0.17 0.09 0.10 0.68 0.21 0.20 0.00 0.56 0.21	07/84 08/95 07/64 07/64 07/64 08/83 08/95 06/78 09/59 08/83	35.3 32.2 39.0 112.5 44.6 112.4 22.3	.49 .39 .40 .42 .30 .33 .41 .50 .58	8.4 9.0 4.6 6.0 21.2 11.0 10.3 2.3 31.2 8.7	0.50 0.27 0.16 0.20 1.12 0.31 0.35 0.01 1.25 0.59

										_											
Station number	River name	Station name		Grid reference	Catchment area (sq km)	Station type	Period of record	Mean ann. rainfail (mm)	Mean ann. runoff {mm}	Mean ann. Ìoss (mm)	Max. ann. runoff (mm)	Year of max.	Min. ann. runoff (mm)	Year of min.	Mean flow (m ^a s ⁻¹)	Min. mon. flow (m³a-1)	Month/Year of min.	Median ann. flood (^{m¹} s ⁻¹)	Base Flow Index	10 Parcentlle (m¹s-¹)	95 Percentlie (m's'')
072001		No. to Origina	60				1070 70												_		
073001	Durdon	Newby Bridge	5D SD	3/1803	241.0	CD	1970-76	19/4	1634	340	1934	74	1208	73	12.49	0.71	09/72	61.5	.48	28.9	1.03
074001	Duddon	Duddon Hell	ŝn	106806	97.3	60	1969 00	20/2	1776	317	2022	00	1020	70	3.12	0.22	05/80	400.0	.20	8.0	0.26
074007	Fsk	Cronnie How	SD	131078	70.2	VA	1976 00	22.30	2026	220	2210	00	4600	13	4.02	0.33	06/90	120.2	.29	11.6	0.45
074002	Lon. Int	Galesvke	NY	136038	44 2	VA .	1967 00	2732	2035	239	2/09	00	1396	30	4.03	0.18	05/60	20.0	.30	10.7	0.35
074006	Calder	Calder Hall	NY	035045	44.8	EV	1964 00	1706	1202	501	1774	70	4002	06	3.32	0.20	00/00	20.0	.41	1.2	0.42
074003	Ehen	Bleach Green	NY	084154	44.2	00	1973 00	2621	1769	853	2762	00	1173	76	7.04	0.14	00/70	40.0	.41	4.0	0.31
074005	Eben	Braystones	NY	009061	125.5	VA	1974-00	1915	1295	520	1704	00	005	76	5.16	0.57	08/76	07.3	.33	11.0	0.39
075007	Glend'mackin	Threikeld	NY	323248	64.5	VA	1969 00	1716	1668	020	11.54		769	73	3.41	0.00	07/86	68.1	.42	0.2	0.07
075001	St Johns Bk	Thirlmere Res	NY	313195	42.1	cc	193500	2679	614	2065	1297	54	150	76	0.82	0.03	10/75	00.1	37	1.2	0.20
								20.0		2000	1207	04	100		0.02	0.15	10/75		.01	1.0	0.15
075009	Greta	Low Briery	NY	286242	145.6	VA	1971-00	2013	1106	907	1648	00	597	73	5.11	0.44	08/95	112.4	.38	12.4	0.63
075005	Derwent	Portinscale	NY	251239	235.0	VA	197200	2278	1620	658	2279	00	946	73	12.07	0.45	05/80	114.8	.43	29.3	1.26
075006	Newtands Bk	Braithwaite	NY	240239	33.9	VA	196897	2221	1487	734	1925	74	911	96	1.60	0.00	08/95	45.5	.30	3.7	0.04
075003	Derwent	Ouse Bridge	NY	199321	363.0	VA	196800	2053	1457	596	2125	00	825	73	16.77	1.00	06/78		.51	39.8	1.86
075016	Cocker	Scalehill	NY	149214	64.0	MIS	197600	2364	1834	530	3218	00	1216	76	3.72	0.09	03/77		.40	8.9	0.36
075004	Cocker	Southwaite Br	NY	131281	116.6	VA	1967-00	2003	1439	564	2017	00	848	73	5.32	0.48	06/88	51.1	.43	12.7	0.63
075010	Marron	Ullock	NY	074238	27.7	FV	1972-77	1450	940	510	1113	77	648	73	0.83	0.11	08/76	17.6	.49	1.8	0.12
075002	Derwent	Camerton	NY	038305	663.0	VA	1960-00	1798	1241	557	1802	00	705	73	26.09	2.04	06/78	188.3	.49	60.3	3.28
075017	Ellen	Builgill Kidda Otaabaa	NY	096384	96.0	FV	197600	1130	762	368	1091	00	415	96	2.32	0.19	08/76	52.9	.50	5.3	0.28
076014	Eden	Kirkoy Stephen	NΥ	//309/	69.4	R A	197100	1442	1168	274	1645	00	763	96	2.57	0.09	08/95	123.8	.26	6.5	0.16
076005	Eden	Temple Sowerby	NY	605283	616.4	VA	196400	1170	738	432	1044	00	444	73	14.42	1 46	08/95	251.3	38	33.6	1 87
076001	Haweswater	Bumbanks	NY	508159	33.0	CC	195300	2524	530	1994	2046	54	256	96	0.56	0.10	10/84 -		49	0.5	0.21
076004	Lowther	Earnont Bridge	NY	527287	158.5	VA	196200	1885	706	1179	1148	00	384	76	3.55	0.47	07/84	101.7	40	7.8	0.67
076015	Eamont	Pooley Bridge	NY	472249	145.0	CC	1970-00	2247	1711	536	2357	00	861	73	7.87	0.62	09/95		.54	18.0	0.98
076003	Eamont	Udford	NY	578306	396.2	VA	196100	1851	1208	643	1955	00	550	73	15.18	0.59	06/80	168.9	.52	32.3	2.23
076002	Eden	Warwick Bridge	NY	470567	1366.7	VA	1959-98	1289	785	504	990	67	459	73	34.04	4,41	07/89	417.1	.50	72.8	6.82
076011	Coal Burn	Coalburn	NY	693777	1.5	СВ	196700	1286	946	340	1240	83	610	96	0.05	0.00	08/95	2.0	.18	0.1	>0.00
076008	Irthing	Greenholme	NY	486581	334.6	VA	196700	1077	707	370	964	87	413	73	7.50	0.82	08/76	194.3	.32	17.5	1.02
076010	Petteril	Harraby Green	NY	412545	160.0	MIS	197000	936	423	513	640	00	210	73	2,14	0.20	08/95	24.7	.47	5.4	0.27
076009	Caldew	Holm Hill	NY	378469	147.2	VA	196800	1436	967	469	1230	82	554	96	4.51	0.42	08/96	. 80.0	.49	10.3	0.71
076007	Eden	Sheepmount	NY	390571	2286.5	VA	196700	1214	716	498	1000	00	389	73	51 91	7 02	08/76	569 6	40	114 7	0.73
077001	Esk	Netherby	NY	390718	841.7	VA	196300	1461	988	473	1303	98	587	73	26.37	2.26	07/84	603.6	38	62.0	3 34
077005	Lyne	Cliff Bridge	NY	412662	191.0	FV	197699	1157	857	300	1200	98	533	96	5,19	0.38	08/76	122.9	28	13.4	0.48

Hydrometric Statistics

142

Hydro	metric Sta	atistics		Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m ³ a ⁻¹)	Peak flow (m ³ e ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (m²s-¹)	Oate of min.	10 Percentile (m³s ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m³s-¹)	95 Percentlia (m ¹ s ⁻¹)
068015 M.A: EA	Gow Local No: 684014	y at Huxley Sens.: 17.8	C.A: 49.0 km ²	7095	711		230		0.36	19.5	06/08 1981	0.05	26/07 1990	0.9	0.24	0.08
-A.R. PG Comment: Shallow his but not process lows above 1.5 m ² shares most of its v glacial Drift overlyin	Level: 37m V sheet pile control installed ed to flow. Some low flow feat 3 ^{s⁻¹} should be treated with alley with the Shropshire Unit og Triassic sandstone and mu	UE: <.01 in May 1979; some levels i tures caused by ponding a caution until high flow rat on Canal. Catchment most arl.	FAI: 0.993 available from EA prior to nd release u/s. However, ting established. # River tly in Cheshire plain; post	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	586 669 827 913 977	82 94 116 128 137	151 185 316 413 479	66 80 137 180 208	0.23 0.29 0.49 0.64 0.74	2.7 7.1 8.9 16.4 19.3	19/12 26/06 03/03 01/10 30/10	0.05 0.06 0.07 0.06 0.11	19/07 09/08 09/08 30/07 29/08	0.5 0.5 1.0 1.1 1.9	0.15 0.15 0.30 0.38 0.37	0.06 0.07 0.10 0.11 0.15
068020 M.A: EA	Gowy at Local No: 684027	Bridge Trafford Sens.: 13.4	C.A: 156.0 km ²	7995	707		217		1.07	38.4	06/08 1981	0.10	17/07 1990	2.3	0.53	0.20
Comment: Flat V C 3/79. Replaced Picto lows estimated by g over-estimated by ra	Level: 4m Frump profile weir (1:5) with ft on (68002), 1km d/s. Simitar t gauging from u/s bridge. Ratir gauging from u/s bridge. Ratir ating in current use. # The ca	DE: .01 anking broad-crested wein out less severe weed grow ig quite well defined to abo tchment is wholly on the (FAI: 0.395 s and cableway, installed th problems. Midsummer out 5 m ³ s ⁻¹ . Higher flows Cheshire Plain: Iow relief	1996 1997 1998 1999	598 669 821 897	85 95 116 127	114 132 258 357	53 61 119 165	0.56 0.65 1.28 1.77	11.6 12.1 16.5	19/12 28/12 11/04	0.15 0.13 0.22	21/07 03/06 12/08	1.0 1.1 2.8	0.36 0.37 0.68	0.18 0.19 0.30
lacial drift over Tri	assic s'st and mart.			2000	1001	142	456	210	2.25	20.8	06/11	0.36	30/08	5.9	1.17	0.30
068005 M.A: EA ^S .A.R: PGE	Weav Local No: 680301 Level: 45m	er at Audiem Sens.: 11.6 UE: <.01	C.A: 207.0 km ² B/full: 18.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.992	5395	734		239		1.57	28.3	17/04 1959	0.04	23/08 1976	3.7	0.83	0.23
Comment: Some le ectangutar thin-plat ecorder house in 1 eprocessed in 200 eturns. # The (ver)	evel measurement at site sin te weir was installed to contro 969 and modern rating assur 02, with substantial reduction y flat) catchment is covered	nce 1936 but continuous r ol low flows. C/m calibration med to apply from then, Fi n in high flows. Only min by post glacial deposits of	records from 1951 when a for medium flows. New lows from 1973 onwards hor gw abstractions and ver marl, clay and sand.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	591 693 834 908 966	81 94 114 124 132	114 154 313 355 . 413	48 64 131 149 173	0.75 1.01 2.05 2.33 2.70	10.8 10.6 18.1 34.5	19/12 28/12 22/10 06/11	0.07 0.17 0.22 0.29	19/08 10/08 19/08 30/08	1.8 2.2 5.5 5.5 6.7	0.38 0.54 0.99 1.56 1.39	0.10 0.19 0.30 0.27 0.37
Mainly mixed farmla 168004 M.A: EA	and with only a few villages. Wistaston Broo Local No: 680403	/ k at Marshfield Bridge Sens.; 13.0	C.A: 92.7 km ² 8/fuil: 14.0m ³ s ⁻¹	5795	741		331		0.97	21.0	23/08 1987	0.08	21/08	1.8	0.68	0.22
A.R: PGEI Comment: Initiatly Instable control obl nformal Flat V piled 0.7m less reliably me	Level: 30m a 6m wide section on a beni liged a move u/s in Sept 1972 weir in May 1980. Silt accum easured. Bankfuft at 2.3m, # H	UE: .08 d with chart records from tow flow control installed ulates behind weir in times leadwaters are in farmland	FAI: 0.985 1955, but data are poor. 1978 and modified to an of low flow. Flows above but central and southern	1996 1997 1998 1999	592 731 847 937	80 99 114 126	134 204 329 361	40 62 99 109	0.39 0.60 0.97 1.06	9.0 9.1 17.6 14.8	19/12 11/06 22/10 03/06	0.05 0.17 0.18 0.17	22/07 05/06 28/09 30/07	0.7 1.1 1.8 1.9	0.30 0.41 0.63 0.76	0.12 0.24 0.25 0.24
968001 4.A: EA 5.A.R: PGE	nate lower half of catchment. Weave Local No: 680504 Level: 16m	Otherwise, post glacial de r at Ashbrook Sens.: 11.6 UE: 02	c.A: 622.0 km ² B/full: 120.0m ³ s ⁻¹ EAI: 0.984	2000 3795	981 749	132	433 289	131	1.27 5.69	23.1 212.4	06/11 08/02 1946	0.23 0.39	30/08 17/08 1976	2.9 13.0	0.77 3.21	0.27 1.15
Comment: Initially a control. Data before fat V control and c Some bank slingan	a river section (from 1937). Ea e 1972, particularly low flows ableway in Aug 1978. Prone e in 1993: unlikely to have	arly gaugings lost; rating ac , unreliable. Relocated 40 to weed and algal growth affected data quality but	bound of the second of the sec	1996 1997 1998 1999	607 718 850 930	81 96 113 124	164 228 410 473	57 79 142 164	3.23 4.50 8.08	47.8 41:5 54.3 82.4	19/12 29/12 23/10 02/10	0.76 1.09 1.31	05/08 05/10 12/08	6.3 9.7 18.7	2.08 2.57 4.46 6.22	0.84 1.22 1.74
atchment includes	western half of Crewe. Post	glacial deposits over (mo	stly) Keuper Marl.	2000	970	130	542	188	10.65	79.9	06/11	1.60	29/08	28.3	5.79	1.84

HYDROLOGICAL DATA: 1996-2000

						Period	Rainfall {mm}	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (****)	Peak flow (m ³ e ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. dally flow (^{m1a++})	Data of min.	10 Parcentle (m³e ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m²a'')	95 Percentile (m ³ e ⁻¹)
068003 M.A: EA F.A.R: SPGEI	E Local No: 681210 Levet: 13m)ane at R	tudheath Sens.: 10.8 UE: .04	l	C.A: 407.1 km² 3/full: 63.0m³s ⁻¹ FA1: 0.977	4995	867		381		4.92	115.9	23/08 1987	0.43	03/10 1949	10.9	3.04	0.92
Comment: Originally a Gauged by wading or 1 and cableway installed Rudyard and Bosley re meanders over Cheshi	a VA section; charts in from an u/s bridge. M 1 10/81. Highest flows servoirs for canal usa ire plain with varying d	om May 1 obile cont s inundate age, # Hea lepths of p	949. Low flows poo rol gave unreliable b (3.6m). Headwa adwaters in S Penn lost glacial drift ove	r before results. I ater tran ines but, rlying Tri	6/57 (bed lowered). Informal Flat V weir sfers particularly to , for most part, river iassic s'st and mart.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	651 797 990 1012 1134	75 92 114 117 131	194 274 546 527 684	51 72 143 138 180	2.50 3.53 7.05 6.80 8.80	62.2 42.8 121.1 89.2 130.7	25/11 27/12 23/10 02/10 06/11	0.41 0.74 1.27 0.89 1.18	20/07 17/08 12/08 15/09 24/08	4,9 7,1 13.0 13.1 19.9	1.49 2.17 4.13 4.71 5.30	0.56 1.00 1.56 1.12 1.50
068007 M.A: EA F.A.R: PGEL	Wincham Local No: 681213 Level: 16m	Brook at	t Lostock Gralam Sens.: 10.1 UF: 01	l	C.A: 148.0 km ² 3/tuli: 14.5m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.958	6295	828		391		1.84	53.1	02/01 1976	0.00	11/09 1992	3.7	1.25	0.29
Comment: Open cha installed Nov 1981. Sil or cableway. Vandal-; beds of the Mercia Mu for SW Knutsford.	annel section from C tation problems have prone. Bankfull 2.0m. dstone blanketed by I	Oct 1960 led to the # Low re Boulder Cl	in straight reach, control being subm sef catchment with lay and glacial sand	Informa nerged. n mudsto is and g	I steel pile control Gauging by wading mes and saliferous ravel. Rural, except	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	654 767 963 949 1126	79 93 116 115 136	167 323 559 628 776	43 83 143 161 198	0.78 1.51 2.62 2.95 3.63	18.9 16.7 30.9 25.3 35.0	25/11 27/12 06/03 02/03 30/10	0.05 0.20 0.25 0.19 0.33	20/07 22/09 19/08 29/07 23/07	1.6 3.5 6.5 7.3 9.6	0.35 0.77 1.13 1.72 2.07	0.10 0.27 0.32 0.31 0.43
069015 M.A: EA F.A.R: SPGEI	Ett Local No: 692190 Level: 74m	nerow at	Compstall Sens.: 23.7 UE: .02	ŝ	C.A: 156.0 km ² Sytuli: 200.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.838	7195	1297		597		2.95	85.0	21/12 1991	0.30	05/09 1984	6.6	1.70	0.73
Comment: Crump pro 0.5 km u/s of Goyt con tapping no longer us Longdendale reservo catchment, peat cover catchment. Mixed urba	the weir 18m wide, w ifluence. Crest tappin ed. High flow gaugi irs, with significant red moorland in head an and farmland lowe	ving watts g reading: ngs not j effect uj waters, si er down.	2.8m high, Further s were used to esta possible. Half the pon flows. # Pre teeper slopes drift	r contain ablish a r catchme dominar free, Bo	ed by flood banks. hon-modular rating; ent drains through htty Millstone Grit ulder Clay in lower	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1110 1157 1563 1489 1750	86 89 121 115 135	370 509 953 830 1109	62 85 160 139 186	1.82 2.52 4.71 4.10 5.47	23.8 32.8 64.1 41.4 81.4	30/11 25/12 06/03 11/12 06/11	0.39 0.79 1.07 1.02 1.15	21/08 26/08 31/05 17/09 26/07	3.9 4.9 9.4 8.1 11.5	1.02 1.61 3.44 3.00 3.87	0.57 0.98 1.26 1.21 1.35
069017 M.A: EA F.A.R: SPGEI	Go Local No: 692370 Level: 74m	yt at Mar	p le Bridge Sens.: 10.5 UE: .01	S F	C.A: 183.0 km² S/full: 190.0m³s ⁻¹ *Al: 0.930	69.,95	1125		640		3.71	91.6	21/12 1991	0.40	26/08 1976	8.3	2.24	0.74
Comment: Compound piers 2.1m. Crest tappi stuices. Reservoirs in Millstone Grit and Coal Clay cover lower down	I Crump profile weir, c ing unreliable, subject headwaters. Moder Measures. Highest n h. Mixed farmland, sn	rest lengt to siltatio rate distur noorland p nall towns	hs 7m and 11m (tot m, data not used. Ti rbance to flow reg beat covered, steep and industry in m	tal). Wing he weir i gime. # xer slope ain valle	y walls 2.9m, divide s fitted with bypass Catchment mostly s drift free. Boulder y.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	921 1033 1391 1322 1582	82 92 124 118 141	389 457 812 719 961	61 71 127 112 150	2.25 2.65 4.71 4.17 5.56	26.3 21.1 72.7 37.9	25/11 27/12 22/10 11/12	0.52 0.77 0.94 0.72	05/08 16/08 01/06 17/09	5.4 5.6 9.0 9.1 12.6	1.17 1.81 3.00 2.82 3.91	0.59 0.92 1.13 0.60 1.19
069041 M.A: EA F.A.R: S	Tame Local No: Level: m	at Broon	nstalr Bridge Sens.: UE: .08	F	C.A: 113.0 km ²	7495	1264		980		3.51	115.7	09/12 1983	0.29	04/08 1990	6.6	2.57	1.09
Comment: Ultrasonic The weir, a control for r flow beneath it (dev. f immediately u/s. Bridg headwater affects low moors. Steeper valley catchment.	multi-path gauge repl nedium to high flows, rom rating up to 70% e arch shape likely to flows. # Millstone Gr sides drift free, other	aced (Fet was capp). Thus e affect high it and Coa rwise mixe	o 1995) a non-stanc ed with timber that I anly record poor. G h flows as it extend at Measures catchr ed glacial drift cove	dard sho had bowe Saugings Is to rive ment, pe er, Heav	rt-crested mill weir, ad allowing water to made from bridge r level, Reservoired at covered on high ity urbanised lower	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1099 1087 1485 1444 1669	87 86 117 114 132	681 736 1183 1166 1474	69 75 121 119 150	2,43 2,64 4,24 4,18 5,27	20.7 23.3 51.6 62.9	05/11 19/02 02/03 06/11	0.69 0.96 1.24	16/08 07/08 23/07	5.4 4.8 7.9 8.8 11.1	1.55 2.03 2.90 2.82 3.56	0.75 1.17 1.40 1.21 1.42
069027 M.A: EA	T Local No: 692423	ame at P	ortwood Sens.: 13.5		C.A: 150.0 km²	6995	1171		861		4.09	445.2	16/07 1973	0.61	11/01 1973	7.9	2.86	1.37
F.A.R: SPGEI Comment: Over 100) 2km above confluence stop banks. An old mit used before 1970 but effluent: upper catchn vatley network on the I half of catchment is or	Level: 43m rear old curved mill type with Goyt. Meanders I cut was closed in 19 superseded by one hent with many impo Willstone Grit with per povered by Boulder Cli	pe weir, 2 ring reach 667. Reco based of undments at moortan at moortan ay and is	UE: ,11 1m wide, 5m high ji i but bypassing on rds from 1943; a m n current metering i. # For the most j id and sheep grazir heavily urbanised.	F ust below rb flood hodel-ba: t. Low fl part a n ng in the	Al: 0.926 v 90 deg. bend and plain prevented by sed calibration was ows dominated by arrow, steep sided headwaters; lower	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1029 1027 1396 1365 1579	88 88 119 117 135	606 641 987 979 1197	70 74 115 114 139	2.87 3.05 4.69 4.66 5.68	27.2 25.3 70.5 52.1 64.4	05/11 05/05 22/10 11/12 06/11	1,15 1.27 1.54 1.41 1.39	19/08 20/08 31/05 31/07 23/07	5.8 5.4 8.6 9.2 11.8	1.83 2.40 3.14 3.19 3.87	1.26 1.42 1.74 1.61 1.60
069007 M.A: EA F.A.R: SPGEI	Mer Locał No: 692726 Level: 15m	rsey at A	shton Weir Sens.: 5.4 UE: .10	E	C.A: 660.0 km ² 8/full: 500.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.923	7695	1117		564		11.80	563.4	21/12 1991	1.90	26/08 1984	24.5	7.45	3.07
Comment: Replaced of curve. Compound broat complemented by gat streams rise mainly on of Greater Manchester	69001 but, despite the d-crested weir with ca igings. Longdendale western slopes of Pe r, lies on post-glacial of	eoretical s bleway; n reservoin nnines (N deposits o	uperiority at low flo o divide piers so the s control 10% of t falstone Grit). Lowe iver Triassic sandst	ws, still (coratical) the catch er catchn tone and	doubts about rating (and model) ratings hment. # Tributary hent includes much marl.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	934 991 1324 1281 1503	84 89 119 115 135	402 481 853 744 988	71 85 151 132 175	8.39 10.06 17.85 15.56 20.62	62.0 79.7 481.7 230.9 492.6	25/11 26/12 22/10 11/12 06/11	2.92 4.26 4.72 4.54 5.01	20/08 20/08 31/05 18/09 20/08	17.2 18.4 30.7 30.0 39.9	5.37 7.55 11.77 11.00 14.12	3.23 4.76 5.75 4.94 5.62
069044 M.A: EA F.A.R: SPGEI	ine Local No: Level: 80m	eliat Bu	ry Ground Sens.: UE:	F	C.A: 139.9 km ²	9295	1094		501		2.22	75.1	25/01 1995	0.30	22/08 1995	4,9	1.16	0.37
Comment: VA station cableway u/s 22m. C influenced by storage and industrial areas do over Carboniferous roo	with an old curved t Good approach. Rep reservoirs, abstraction prinating d/s station : cks.	proad-cres laces Bui ns and eff at Adelphi	sted weir as contro ry Bridge gauge (luent returns, #Cate i Weir (69002), Ger	x, Weir 300m d/ chmenti ology; po	width 28m, river at s (69035). Runoff mostly u/s of urban ost-glacial deposits	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	883 1040 1347 1315 1454	81 95 123 120 133	333 414 565	66 83 113	1.47 1.84 2.51	52.0 20.8 146.1 29.1	06/08 08/10 23/10 01/03	0.41 0.54 0.72 0.41	23/09 18/08 01/06 18/09	2.9 3.9 5.5 5.1	0.92 1.24 2.08 1.96	0.46 0.64 0.87 0.50
069042 M.A: EA F.A.R:	Ding Br Local No: 690268 Level: m	ook at Na	aden Raservolr Sens.: UF	F	C.A: 2.2 km ²	6295	1387		1018		0.07	2.7	31/01 1995	0.01	03/09 1995	0.2	0.04	0.01
Comment: Compound 7.76m on an inflow st crest plates. Gravel tra calibration. U/s chann moorland catchment o grass, bracken, scrub	a rectangular thin-pla ream to the reservoir op in steep approach let stope makes che on Coal Measures w and heather; sheep g	ite weir () Effective channel. ck gaugir ith hilltop grazing. D	leaking as of 2002 e record starts 13/7 All flows contained ng difficult. Natura peat and subordi isused quarry high	2), crest 7/82 folio 1, fully m 1 catchn nate Bo 1 up the	lengths 0.5, 2.48, wing fitting of new odutar. Theoretical tent. # High relief ulder Clay. Rough catchment.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1196 1358 1809 1589 1829	86 98 130 115 132	745 764 1298 1146 1425	73 75 128 113 140	0.05 0.05 0.09 0.08 0.10	2.2 1.1 2.2 2.0 2.2	05/11 09/12 24/10 29/09 03/06	0.01 0.01 0.02 0.01 0.01	05/08 22/04 30/05 31/07 26/07	0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2	0.03 0.03 0.06 0.05 0.06	0.01 0.01 0.02 0.01 0.02
069022 M.A: EA F.A.R: SPGEI	In Local No: Level: 140m	well at In ; i	well Vale Sens.: UE:	F	C.A: 101.0 km ²													
Comment: VA station gaugings by wading at bridge and inflows from # Moderate relief cato Coal Measures; peat of	with non-standard Fla t low flows only; bridg n River Ogden. Reser hment draining the F m highest moors, inte	at V install ge gaugin voirs in he orest of f ermittent g	led to replace Stubi gs u/s are unreliab adwaters have sig Rossendale, Solid glacial drift otherwis	bins gau Ne due ti Inificant : geology se. Urba	ge (69040). Sound o the nature of the affect on low flows. Millstone Grit and nised main valley.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1129 1214 1673 1529 1809		783 1279 1053 1345		2.51 4.09 3.37 4.30	74.9 221.6 87.6 182.4	17/02 24/10 01/10 29/10	0.62 0.76 0.61 0.67	20/08 31/05 31/07 26/07	6.1 7.8 7.6 9.2	1.32 2.32 1.86 2.44	0.72 0.97 0.68 0.85
069023 M.A: EA	Roch Local No: 690205	ı at Black	ford Bridge Sens.: 9.9	r	C.A: 186.0 km ²	76-95	1243		836		4.93	282.9	31/01 1995	1.07	26/08 1984	10,1	2.96	1.48
Comment: Broad-crest affected inlet pipe pre- notwithstanding doubts range. Several water s in lower half. Peat mod	ted mill-type curved v 1984. Original theoret a about state of weir in upply reservoirs in he orland tops. Mostly C	veir with d ical rating n earlier y eadwaters oal Measu	lamaged crest and unsafe; a c/m ratin ears. Cableway ins s. # Catchment is h ures with Millstone	affected g was ap talled 20 ighly urb Grit to t	by debris. Siltation splied back to 1949 01 to improve high vanised (Rochdale) he east.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1038 1054 1534 1410 1651	84 85 123 113 133	545 600 1090 967 1255	65 72 130 116 150	3.21 3.54 6.43 5.70 7.38	106.8 44.1 170.4 103.8 211.4	05/11 09/12 24/10 16/12 03/06	1.24 1.44 1.86 1.40 1.78	18/08 17/08 31/05 15/09 26/07	6.7 7.1 11.7 12.6 15.6	1.85 2.37 3.95 3.25 4.59	1.33 1.59 2.15 1.50 2.08

NORTH WEST REGION

HYDROLOGICAL DATA: 1996-2000

1.4 ۰.

	Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pm-1996	Mean flow (m ³ s ⁻¹)	Peak flow (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile	50 Percentile (m³s**)	95 Percentile (m ¹ e ⁻¹)
O69024 Croal at Farnworth Weir C.A: 145.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: 690408 Sens.: 30.3 B/du: 120.0m³s ⁻¹ E.A.P.: SPCEL Local No: 620408 Sens.: 30.3 B/du: 120.0m³s ⁻¹	7695	1311		656		3.02	101.6	27/10 1980	. 0.28	24/05 1980	7.0	1.59	0.67
F.A.G. SPGET EAVIER S2III Control to 2019 C	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1095 1203 1591 1472 1700	84 92 121 112 130	395 478 836 784 930	60 73 127 120 142	1.81 2.20 3.84 3.61 4.27	35.9 31.6 64.5 51.0 76.3	05/11 20/05 24/10 16/12 30/10	0.32 0.63 0.85 0.52 0.70	17/09 19/08 31/05 05/09 15/05	3.9 4.9 8.4 9.1 10.4	0.93 1.26 2.33 1.95 2.40	0.46 0.71 0.97 0.65 0.83
069003 Irk at Scotland Weir C.A: 72.5 km² M.A: EA Local No: 690612 Sens.: 22.0 E.A.P: SPCEL Local: 25m LIE: 20	3795	1033		819		1.88	72.9	11/06 1970	0.14	19/06 1961	3.6	1.38	0.48
Comment: An old weir, diagonal to flow and on a bend in a heavily polluted river. Ratings by model (1936) and c/m gauging at Redbank 1km u/s. Siltation, debris and weed growth are recurrent problems and throw particular doubt on low-flow records before 1976, although one are good. Weir damaged by Dec 1983 flood, subsequent flows under review. Station closed May 2001. Many industrial abstractions and effluent discharges. Replaced by Collyhurst in 1995. # Low to moderate relief catchment, extensively urbanised in northerm Manchester. Solid geology: Coal Measures and Permo -Triassic s'sts, fully overlain by post-glacial sands and gravel and subordinate boulder day.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	895 889 1241 1205 1388	87 86 120 117 134	410 357 463 408 578	50 44 57 50 71	0.94 0.82 1.06 0.94 1.33	24.9 28.1 39.5 30.9 49.1	05/11 05/05 06/03 11/12 03/06	0.31 0.27 0.30 0.22 0.31	18/08 17/08 07/10 29/10 23/07	2.3 1.7 2.3 2.1 3.0	0.53 0.54 0.53 0.48 0.61	0.37 0.29 0.32 0.26 0.34
069002 Inwell at Adelphi Weir C.A: 559.4 km² M.A: EA Local No: 690511 Sens: 9,5 F.A.R: SPGEL Level: 24m UE: 11 EA: 0.929	4995	1260		1007		17.86	486.4	31 <i> </i> 01 1995	1.05	29/07 1951	37.7	11 <u>,</u> 36	4.83
Comment: 40m wide broad-created weir subject to sillation, weed growth and drowning at high flow. Some records from 1935; routine data capture began in 1949, Rating established by model test and gauging u/s at the Manchester racecourse gauge (closed 2/86). Station rerated from 1/2/75. Presents intractable maintenance problems. Mary abstractions and storage reservoirs. # Most of the catchment comprises post glacial drift over heavity faulted Carboniferous grit, shale and s'st; includes the urban/industrial areas of Bolton, Bury and Rochdate.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1047 1110 1535 1420 1657	.83 88 122 113 132	707 748 1081 1042	70 74 107 103	12.51 13.26 19.18 18.32	221.2 121.9 306.2 200.6 248.6	, 05/11 17/02 24/10 02/03 30/10	4.61 3.25 5.21 3.25	22/09 26/05 24/05 01/06	25.8 25.7 37.8 39.1	8.11 9.19 13.02 11.35	5.05 5.78 5.83 5.48
069020 Mediock at London Road C.A: 57.5 km² M.A: EA Local No: 690713 Sens.: 21.2 Sffuil: 32.0m³s ⁻¹ FA B: SPGEL Level: 31m LIF: 25 c. FAU: 0.001	.7595	1034		516		0.94	43.5	17/10 1991	0.14	30/06 1984	1.9	0.63	0.26
Comment: A non-standard weir in a rectangular channel (brick and concrete panel walls). The weir was designed as an entrance sill to the culvert d/s. Theoretical formula in use to Nov 1976 when superseded by c/m based rating. Access is difficult and gauging hazardous. Greatly affected by effluent discharges with consequent heavy pollution; also problems with debris on weir. Very poor site. # The catchment is heavily urbanised. Any natural runoff is generated on soits derived from post-glacial deposits lying mostly over Coal Measures.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	910 923 1257 1177 1360	88 89 122 114 132	272 274 396 362 428	53 53 77 70 83	0.50 0.50 0.72 0.66 0.78	4.6 6.8 9.5 6.7 12.8	10/08 05/05 06/03 01/10 03/06	0.13 0.19 0.24 0.19 0.20	27/07 02/06 21/05 14/09 23/07	1.0 0.9 1.2 1.3 1.6	0.34 0.38 0.55 0.48 0.60	0.19 0.22 0.27 0.22 0.24
069019 Worsley Brook at Eccles C.A: 24.9 km² M.A: EA Local No: 690914 Sens.; Brfuil: 46.0m²s ⁻¹	6995	945		411		0.32	15.0	28/12 1978	0.03	16/07 1994	0.6	0.22	0.08
F.A.C.PGEL Level: 15m 10:00:20 FAI (1996) F.A.C.PGEL Level: 15m 10:00:20 FAI (1996) Comment: Critical depth trapezoidal flume in artificial channel; throat width 0.6m, side slopes 1:2. Structure full at 2.43m, flood banks at 3.13m. Flows fully contained. Twin box culvert 110m d/s with grids may block in flood, drowning flume. Data quality poor. Station closed April 2001. # Generally low relief catchment to the NW of Manchester. Solid geology is 80%. Coal Measures with Permo-Tnassic sists to the S, almost all covered with Boulder Clay. Urban areas cover about 40%, otherwise poor pasture and heathland with small area of woodland. Dense motorway network includes the M61, M62, M63, M602.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	791 848 1118 1117 1275	84 90 118 118 135	170 210 352 337	41 51 86 82	0.13 0.17 0.28 0.27	4.7 4.6 11.4 4.0	24/08 20/05 22/10 13/05	>0.00 0.04 0.05 0.05	04/04 11/08 08/10 30/07	0.3 0.4 0.7 0.6	>0.00 0.11 0.17 0.16	>0.00 0.05 0.05 0.07
069013 Sinderland Brook at Partington C.A: 44.8 km² M.A: EA Local No: 693132 Sens.: 14.8 Sr/uti: 38.0m³s ⁻¹ F.A.P. RCEI Local No: 693132 Sens.: 14.8 Sr/uti: 38.0m³s ⁻¹	7695	811		377		0.54	19,4	06/08 1981	0.10	22/08 1976	1.1	0.36	0.16
Comment: Compound Crump profile weir, crest lengths 2, 13m and 5,48m (total). Contained to wing wall height (2,0m). Weir much wider than u/s channel; big sittation problem, crest tapping usually blocked. Storm waters from Wythenshaw, Sale and the M56 are directed to the Mersey. Moderately responsive: # Very flat catchment, 60% urbanised although the bottom end is rural. Solid geology is Keuper Mari, 70%, and s'st, 30%; SE half Boulder Clay covered. Soils fine red loams or clays.	1996 1997 - 1998 1999 2000	665 714 941 891 1062	62 88 116 110 131	246 271 417 371 477	65 72 111- 98 127	0.35 0.39 0.59 0.53 0.68	4.6 4.2 7.4 4.8 8.4	31/10 10/11 22/10 02/03 30/10	0.11 0.15 0.19 0.14 0.18	15/08 19/08 23/09 31/07 25/07	0.7 0.7 1.2 1.0 1.5	0.24 0.29 0.40 0.37 0.46	0.14 0.17 0.21 0.16 0.20
069012 Bollin at Wilmstow C.A: 72.5 km² M.A: EA Local No: 693435 Sens.; 9.4 S/full: 48.0m³s⁻¹ F.A.R: SPGEL Level: 59m UF: 08 Fat: 0.965	76-95	925		542		1.25	23.7	25/01 1995	0.28	16/08 1977	2.4	0.91	0.46
Comment: Compound Crump profile weir, crest lengths 4.1m and 4.3m (total); divide piers 1.0m (probable drowning stage), wing walls 2.0 m. Silts up, cleaned quarterly. Crest tapping well bricked off. Calibration now by current metering; d/s for low flows, u/s off road bridge for high. Responsive. Substantial flow modifications. #. Moderate relief catchment with steep, reservoired headwaters. Upper catchment drains Millstone Grit, generally Drift free. Otherwise Boulder Clay and glacial sands and gravel over Permo-Triassic sandstone. Contains Macclesfield.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	753 871 1141 1102 1244	81 94 123 119 134	333 388 685 646 803	61 72 126 119 148	0.76 0.89 1.57 1.48 1.84	11.2 10.7 45.6 13.3 25.0	25/11 09/10 27/10 24/11 05/11	0.29 0.41 0.46 0.44 0.50	05/08 20/08 30/05 01/08 13/09	1.3 1.6 2.8 2.9 3.9	0.55 0.68 1.07 1.08 1.29	0.36 0.45 0.54 0.52 0.58
069008 Dean at Stanneylands C.A: 51.8 km² M.A: EA Local No: 693333 Sens.: S/full: 50.0m³s^{-1}	7695	934		466		0.76	13.5	30/12 1986	0.04	09/07 1976	1.7	0.47	0.11
F.A.R: SPGE1 Level: 57m UE::03 FAI: 0960 Commant: Compound Crump profile weir, low crest 3.05 m, two flanking crests, each 3.05m at 0.45m. Crest tapping no longer used. Low to medium flow range calibrated by c/m. High flows only possible to gauge since a footbridge 200m u/s of the structure has been built. Channel accretes at high flow requiring regular clearance. Significant flow disturbance from reservoir, abstractions and returns. # Steep moortand headwaters drain Millstone Grit from W Pennines and contain Lamaload Res. Lower catchment is on Boulder Clay covered Triassic s'st and contains Bollington.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	784 901 1142 1122 1302	84 96 122 120 139	248 309 635 601 836	53 66 136 129 179	0.41 0.51 1.04 0.99 1.37	5.6 6.3 20.1 9.7 15.8	25/11 27/12 27/10 01/10 06/11	0.04 0.08 0.23 0.13 0.23	21/07 20/08 31/05 18/09 24/08	1.0 1.1 2.0 2.1 3.2	0.21 0.33 0.68 0.68 0.94	0.06 0.13 0.27 0.16 0.31
069006 Bollin at Dunham Massey C.A: 256.0 km² M.A: EA Local No: 693536 Sens.: Bfd/ll: 76.0m³s ⁻¹	5595	880		513		4.17	63.0	31/05 1964	0,57	04/10 1959	8.5	2.92	1,14
Comment: V/A station with cableway a few kms u/s of confluence with the Manchester Ship Canal. Level records from 1937. Flows from 1954 but of poor quality. Rating only approx. owing to very unstable bed and weed growth. In 8/71, the Bridgewater Canal (crosses just u/s) burst its banks and disturbed the bed of the river - records were affected for at least 18 months. Reservoirs and many industrial abstractions and discharges. US gauge a possibility 1997/8. # Catchment includes Macclesfield. Post-glacial deposits over mart in lower parts; Millstone Grit higher up.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	711 820 1043 1003 1195	81 93 119 114 136	387 420 743 685 962	75 82 145 134 188	3.13 3.41 6.03 5.56 7.79	33.7 28.9 48.6 39.2 48.7	25/11 27/12 27/10 02/10 30/10	1.16 1.34 1.52 1.29 1.70	01/02 28/09 01/06 05/09 23/08	5.9 6.8 12.3 12.0 18.8	2.20 2.41 3.87 3.63 5.03	1.29 1.46 1.88 1.54 1.96
069030 Sankey Brook at Causey Bridge C.A: 154.0 km² MA: EA Local No: 694039 Sens.: 7.1 F.A.R: PEI Level: 7m UE: -	77. <i>.</i> 95	889		540		2.64	41.0	27/10 1980	0.26	17/08 1977	5.5	1.71	0.83
Comment: VA gauge, records from 1953. Backwater problems from sluice operation ceased with closure of adjacent canal in 1976. Frequent calibration changes followed continuit d/s channel works in 1976/7 (also caused by floods in 1981). New trench-piled bed control and stone pitched lb built 07/1983; acts as a weir up to 0.35m. Bankull 2.66m. Full reating for the structure 2001: Susceptible to sittation and weed growth. Industrial abstraction and effluent. # Mixed farmland predominates but extensive urbanisation (St Helens) in the centre. Boulder Clay over Bunter S'st in the S, Coal Measures to the north.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	735 846 1041 1045 1250	83 . 95 117 118 [:] 141	377 413 592 512 724	70 76 110 95 134	1.84 2.02 2.89 2.50 3.53	15.9 18.4 24.2 20.6 36.0	25/11 26/12 06/03 11/12 30/10	0.65 0.75 0.91 0.60 0.81	23/09 29/09 31/05 30/07 21/07	3.4 3.8 5.8 5.1 8.0	1.29 1.44 2.10 1.74 2.17	0.78 0.83 1.01 0.71 0.94

-

.

					Period	Reinfall (mm)	% of pre-1986	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m*e**)	Peak flow (m*e*')	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (m ¹ e ¹)	Date of min,	10 Percentile (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m³s*1)	95 Percentlle (m ¹ s ⁻¹)
069032 M.A: EA	Local No: 694744	Alt at K	linkby Sens.: 16.4	C.A: 90.1 km ²	77_95	856		473		1.35	21.4	04/09 1995	0.35	21/08 1995	2.7	0.89	0.52
F.A.R: GEI Comment: Originally removal prevented se permanently drowned	Level: 9m (from 1963) an open sible calibration un intet nine needs rem	n channe til 1977 w lar flushin	UE: I section but pattern rhen a Flat V bed co g Gaunings taken fro	FAI: s of silt deposition and ntrol was built. Weir is mus fonthridae Vandai	1996 1997 1998	733 804 969	85 93 112	332 367	70 78	0.94 1.05	10.0 15.9	24/11 10/11	0.32 0.42	21/09 15/08	2.0 2.0	0.62 0.68	0.35 0.45
prone. Industrial abst northern parts of Liver; Mostly blown sand dep	raction and discharg oool, also Kirkby. Ver posits over Triassic S	pes.#Ca vflat.effec vst.	atchment highly urba crive boundary on SW	nised (70%) containing side is difficult to define.	1999 2000	999 1163	115 134	698	148	1.99	23.0	30/10	0.30	16/07	4.4	1.26	0.49
070003 M.A: EA	Dougla Local No: 700325	s at Cent	ral Park Wigan Sens.: 22.4	C.A: 55.3 km ²	7795	1142		665		1.17	30.1	09/12 1983	0.00	01/08 1994	2.3	0.79	0.36
F.A.R. SRPEI Comment: Originally a control. Variable bed pr poor. Replaced 1995 b the main stand. Flow re catchment. Solid geolo	Level: 32m a VA station in a cu rofile from silt, dumpe y ultrasonic gauge be gime substantially af ogy, Coal Measures I	lverted se id debris a meath a d, fected by i but wholly	ction with a 0.45m se nd occasional redistrit /s footbridge. Recorde reservoirs in the headh blanketed by Boulder	r Al: 0.002 awer pipe as a low flow pution (9/1989). Data are r 'hut' is a room beneath waters. # Moderate relief r Clay.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	952 1051 1339 1310 1513	83 92 117 115 132	427 539 843	64 81 127	0.75 0.94 1.48	5.1d 9.1d	05/11 08/01	0.27 0.42	21/09 01/06	1.5 1.9 3.0	0.47 0.61 1.13	0.29 0.42 0.47
070002 M.A: EA	Douglas Local No: 700306	at Wanes	s Blades Bridge Sens.:	C.A: 198.0 km ² B/full: 32.0m ³ s ⁻¹	7395	1028		609		3.82	70.3	22/08 1987	0.00	01/07 1983	7.8	2.71	1.07
F.A.R. SRPEI Comment: V/A station section gave poor data wading, from u/s roac reservoirs and WRW. R Measures in upper half blown sand. Contains 1	Level: 4m , weed, silt and tidath . In 1984, a non-stan d bridge and by po Reptaced by ultrasonic , Permo-Triassic s'sta Wigan and Skelmers	y affected, idard flat v rtable cab : gauge in : in lower h dale but m	DE: 10 50m d/s of R. Tawd of vee was installed - dat leway. Flow regime 1996. # Moderate to k half, entirely covered b hostly rural.	FAI: 0.922 confluence. Original river a improved. Gauging by modified by headwater ow relief catchment, Coal y Boulder Clay, peat and	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	846 959 1214 1190 1392	82 93 118 116 135	661 590 803	109 97 132	4,14 3.70 5.04	37.1 20.1d 33.5d	07/11 26/12 06/03	0.68 1.04 0.82	20/07 27/09 31/05	9.0 7.4 10.7	2.67 2.66 3.44	1.27 1.33 1.28
070004 M.A: EA	Yar Local No: 700408	row at Cr	roston Mill Sens.: 18.7	C.A; 74.4 km ²	76-95	102 9		791		1.87	19 2.0	22/08 1987	0.24	22/08 1976	4.1	0.98	0.49
Comment: VA station; crest, susceptible to m flow calibration, gauged part of the original Yam total 7.1 MI/d. # Catch ordinate Millstone Grit : gravels.	control is an old, det ud build-up; insensitiv from u/s road bridge ow headwaters; com iment includes Chorl and Triassic s'sts. W	eriorating, ve at low fl . Rivington pensation ey. Solid holly blant	diagonal mill weir, wit ows but giving a reasu Res. (feeding mainly from inflow to Rivingto geology, principally C keted with Boulder Cla	All 0.991 h 3m wide and 10m long onable medium and high the R. Douglas) captures on and from the reservoir oal Measures with sub- ay and glacial sands and	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	823 910 1177 1119 1353	80 88 114 109 131	484 572 889 808 1289	61 72 112 102 163	1.14 1.35 2.10 1.91 3.03	22.4 68.1 38.9 48.0 121.2	05/11 17/05 06/03 .01/10 30/10	0.38 0.42 0.52 0.39 0.51	21/07 16/08 31/05 31/07 23/07	2.4 2.8 4.6 4.3 6.9	0.65 0.76 1.25 1.07 1.52	0.41 0.47 0.58 0.48 0.62
070005 M.A: EA	Lostoc Local No: 700509	k at Little	ewood Bridge Sens.; 8.8	C.A: 56.0 km ²	7695	1019		666		1.18	41.2	22/08 1987	0.11	01/06 1977	2.5	0.78	0.33
Comment: Natural rive Difficult to calibrate due Veshaped riled weir by	r section subject to tike to continual accretion	dal influen n and rem Feb. 1987	ce and weed growth du toval of silt by tidal act Cableway installed	ion. Data of poor quality.	1996 1997 1998	808 897 1182	79 88 116	479 516	72 77	0.85 0.92	22.0 20.5	24/08 17/05	0.29 0.31	08/05 20/04	1.8 2.1	0.47 0.54	0.31 0.34
formance. Substantially and Millstone Grit in the	y natural. # Low relief e extreme east. Isolat	catchmer ed hill pea	t on Boulder Clay whi It. Mixed farming and I	ch blankets Keuper Marl ight urban development.	1999 2000	1120 1387	110 136	715 1018	107 153	1.27 1.80	23.7 30.3	01/10 30/10	0.31 0.35	15/09 11/05	2.9 4.5	0.69 0.82	0.34 0.38
071011 M.A: EA F.A.R: N	F Local No: 710103 Level: 117m	Ribble at . S	Arnford Sens.: 13.8 UE: <.01	C.A: 204.0 km ² B/full: 210.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 1.000	6695	1498		1122		7.26	149.1	31/01 1995	0.17	11/08 1995	19.6	2,92	0.43
Comment: A Flat V wei 1966-73; 1km d/s; rated fared much better with p summer. Highest statio moorland. Carboniferou	ir with Crump profile, t I section) which had r problems of structura on on Ribble; wholly us L'st mostly with sor	ouilt 1972 t lot had a s I moverne natural flo ne Millstor	o replace earlier statio atisfactory rating histo nt due to a geological ow regime, # Long na ne Grit, Post-glacial de	n at Halton West (71802; ry. The new weir has not fault and weed growth in nrow catchment, mostly posits on the valley floor.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1144 ⁻ 1359 1713 1573 1951	76 91 114 105 130	712 942 1344 1211	63 84 120 108	4.59 6.09 8.69 7.83	97.7 112.0 108.9 124.1	05/11 05/05 06/03 06/12	0.29 0.32 0.62 0.50	25/09 17/08 01/06 05/08	11.5 18.8 22.0 19.2	1.81 1.90 4.31 3.47	0.37 0.47 0.92 0.61
071006 M.A: EA F.A.R: N	R Local No: 710305 Level: 39m	ibble at H ((lenthorn Sens.: 12.0 JE' < 01	C.A: 456.0 km ² S/full: 3.1m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.999	6895	1360		934		13.51	477.0	27/10 1980	0.42	11/08 1995	34.2	5,96	1.00
Comment: Original 19 Superseded in 8/68 by (total). Algal build-up at flows of questionable # Mixed farming over r iferous L'st overlain by	foos natural section a compound broad- nd leaks affect low fic accuracy. Largely n nost of catchment wi Boulder Clay in the	augmente rrested we ows. Origin latural run ith several valleys. M	d by bed control 5/65 ir, low notch 3.8m wid nal cableway damage soff pattern. Only mit I small towns. Moorlai lillstone Grit on the S	to improve calibration. le, flanking crests 20.6m d and not replaced; high for effluent discharges. nd tops. Mainly Carbon- E side.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1035 1226 1548 1462 1828	76 90 114 108 134	615 816 1137 1070 1475	66 87 122 115 158	8.87 11.80 16.45 15.47 21.28	211.3 230.4 249.2 338.2 494.0	05/11 05/05 08/01 06/12 30/10	0.84 0.88 1.69 1.20 1.36	23/09 18/08 27/05 17/09 26/07	22.5 33.1 37.8 37.3 53.9	4.20 4.33 8.77 7.15 10.91	0.96 1.28 2.30 1.45 1.87
071008 M.A: EA	Hod Local No: 711610	der at Ho	dder Place Sens.: 10.3	C.A: 261.0 km ²	76-95	1641		1007		8.34	488.5	23/10 1980	0.51	27/08 1976	21 .1	3.58	0.94
Comment: Compound flanking crests 14.6m records from 1960 unsi 200m u/s in support of ment. # Catchment has Cathorifornue Limpton	Level: 42m Crump profile weir, ft wide (total), built 9// table calibration). Ori modified theoretical mixed farming at low	at V centre 69 to repl ginal cable calibration ver levels l	JE: <.01 e section, 24.4m wide, lace Higher Hodder I eway removed. Rated I. Stocks Reservoir co but is mostly peat moc	FAI: 0.999 1:20 cross slopes, level 3ridge (71803 3km u/s; by gauging from bridge ntrols 15% of the catch- rland. Millstone Grit and	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1208 1532 1866 1697 2130	74 93 114 103 130	601 879 1490 1123 1599	60 87 148 112 159	4.96 7.28 12.33 9.29 13.20	169.1 227.7 230.3 248.5 383.1	05/11 05/05 06/03 06/12 30/10	0.97 1.04 1.16 1.43	23/09 19/08 05/09 30/07	11.2 22.0 28.7 21.3 33.0	2.40 2.55 7.81 4.53 6.72	1.10 1.18 1.59 1.48 1.63
071010 M.A: EA	Pendle Local No: 712113	Water at	Barden Lane Sens.: 10.4	C.A: 108.0 km² S/full: 894.0m³s ^{~1}	7195	1213		862		2.95	146.5	27/10 1980	0.29	22/08 1995	7.0	1.44	0.47
F.A.R: SE [‡] Comment: Flat V weir with earlier site at Qua Weir has proved unsta 1987; awaiting rebuild. areas. Peat moorland t	Level: 92m constructed 1971. Ca akers-in-Pendle (718i able (ground failure a Many polluting disch lops. Geology: largel	t alibration t 01; 1968-3 suspected arges. # y Carbonit	JE: .06 by c/m at the site itself 73; tube-mounted rec) and rating adapted. Catchment includes N ferous rocks overlain	FAI: 0.969 and by level correlation order; natural channel). Substantially damaged lelson and Colne urban by Boulder Clay.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	951 1038 1385 1406 1652	78 86 114 116 136	502 591 977 1001 1248	58 69 113 116 145	1.71 2.02 3.34 3.43 4.26	68.5 54.8 60.2 113.1 173.7	05/11 25/12 . 24/10 11/12 01/11	0.36 0.41 0.61 0.41 0.46	18/09 20/08 24/05 15/09 25/07	3.8 5.1 8.1 7.6 9.5	0.81 0.87 1.79 1.44 1.96	0.39 0.49 0.68 0.49 0.56
071004 M.A: EA	Cali Local No: 712615	der at Wh	alley Weir Sens.: 7.8	C.A: 316.0 km ² S/full: 9.6m ³ s ⁻¹	6395	1224		856		8.58	302.7	31/01 1995	1.04	07/09 1969	20.0	4.78	1.96
Comment: Natural rive weir commissioned 30r established from curren Few small reservoirs ir pollution. # Catchment i the towns (about 20% u	r section from 1963; n d/s in 10/70, 24.4m tt metering from u/s c n headwaters. Minor includes Accrington, rban overall). Boulder	unstable wide, 1:2 ableway. direct ab: Burnley ar Clay over	ratings from mobile by 0 cross slopes, struct Severe weed growth p stractions. Many indu nd Nelson but there is r Coal Measures and M	ed. Flat V Crump profile ure full at 0.94m. Rating roblems. Vandal-prone. strial discharges. Much a lot of moorland above fillstone Grit (Pennines).	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	950 1038 1373 1353 1600	78 85 112 111 131	575 648 992 999	67 76 116 117	5.74 6.50 9.94 10.01	147.6 107.7 180.1 207.3	05/11 10/12 06/03 11/12	1.71 1.78 2.38 1.83	21/07 17/08 31/05 15/09	12.3 14.8 21.8 21.3	3.31 3.51 6.17 5.29	1.85 2.00 2.74 2.10
071009 M.A: EA	Ribble Local No: 713056	at New J	umbles Rock Sens.:	C.A: 1053.0 km ²	7995	1409		997 _.		33.28	1209.0	27/10 1980	2.71	26/07 1984	82.1	15.42	4.14
F.A.R. SNP Comment: Velocity are Station resited 50m d/s dilution of the polluted confluence with R. Cald 71006 and 71008.	a station with a bedn in 1979 using same c Calder tributary by ler. For land use and	L ock contro ontrol and the Ribble geology, r	I (drowned at 1.3m). L cableway installed. Si tiself and the Hodd refer to the catchment	FAI: 0.978 evel records from 1964. tation was to monitor the er. # Station just d/s of descriptions for: 71004;	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1050 1244 1571 1484 1829	75 88 111 105 130	619 809 1178 1056 1456	62 81 118 106 146	20.60 27.03 39.34 35.58 48.48	542.1 516.8 639.6 737.6 905.7	05/11 05/05 06/03 06/12 30/10	3.40 3.59 6.20 4.37 4.58	21/09 22/08 31/05 05/09 26/07	47.4 80.7 87.7 79.5 121.2	10.96 10.95 22.34 17.67 25.06	3.77 4.30 7.27 5.40 5.91

145

HYDROLOGICAL DATA: 1996-2000

071001 M.A: EA F.A.R: SE Comment: Two : summer weed, jus Flat V weir with let from 1/1/76. Flood	Ribb Local No: 713018 Level: 6m sites, complex history. VA s st u/s of tidal limit. Good hig warning site. # Geology: Ca	le at Samlesbury Sens.: 5.6 UE: .02 section with gravel shoal n flow rating from cablewa Ikm u/s to capture low/m rboniferous Limestone and	C.A: 1145.0 km ² FAI: 0.980 control affected by silt and y. Compound Crump profile edium flows. Station rerated Millstone Gnit, Boulder Clay
071013	. Da	rwen at Ewood	C.A: 39.5 km ²
M.A: EA	Local No: 713120	Sens.: 13.0	
F.A.R: PEI	Level: 98m	UE: .09	FAI: 0.964
Comment: Open right. Bed rough, s	channel VA station, vertical c itony but stable, approach ch	oncrete wall forms the lb w annel silty. Flows affected	ith a high natural bank on the I by industrial abstractions u/

Figure bed rought, story out starting approach charmer sity, how a necked by moust and abstractions of s. Compensation flows are activated automatically. # Steep headwater catchment, particularly in W, that drains N to the outskirts of Blackburn. Solid geology, Millstone Grit and Coal Measures, with intermittent Boulder Clay, hill peat and glacial gravel in main valley - heavily urbanised at Darwen.

071014	Darwei	n at Blue Bridge	C.A; 128.0 km
M.A: EA	Local No: 713122	Sens.: 7.8	

F.A.R: PEI Level: 8m UE: 10 FAI: 0.958 Comment: Ultrasonic station since 30/7/97, previously an old mill weir modified (1974) into a V profile (oming the main control. Water levels are measured 800m u/s so, at low flows, bed control in the intervening reach probably applies; high flow gauging needed to determine whether channel control takes over. Some small reservoirs in headwaters. Effluent discharges, # Upper catchment almost wholly urbanised (Blackburn, Darwen); agricultural in lower haif. Caicial clays and gravels blanket Carboniferous grits and shales and Permo-Triassic S'st near the gauge.

072008	Wyr	Wyre at Garstang					
M.A: EA	Local No: 720107	Sens.: 16.7	B/full: 117.0m ³ s ⁻¹				
F.A.R: PG	Level: 11m	UE:	FAI:-				
Comment: Initially V	A station with a gravel con	trol. From 9/69 Flat V wei	r 1.2 1.2 and 1.20 slopes				

Comment: Initially versized in whith a grave to labor. From spor Frak well, F.2, F.2 and F.20 super installed. Rated by gaugings. Flows affected by Garstang intake immediately u/s, Lune transfers via Abbeystead, by Garstang. flood basin overspill during high flows and possibly by bankside gravel workings u/s. # Agricultural catchment with moorhand-fed headwaters. Geology almost entirely millstone Grit, peat on high moors, Boulder Clay covers lower catchment.

072007	, Bro	ock at U/S A6	: , C.A: 32.0 km
M.A: EA	Local No: 720215	Sens.:	
FARIN	Level m	UE:	FAI

Comment: Rectangular section broad-crested weir with a central low-flow notch set between stone sidewalls. A dis stilling pool with a further b-c weir with twin low flow notches next to the banks does not affect the control. High flows rated by current meter from u/s cableway. Coarse gravel shoals above weir on right bank. Natural catchment, flood warning site. # Moderate relief catchment with steep headwaters draining Millstone Grit in north-east and Carboniferous Limestone in south. Peat on high moors, lower catchment Boulder Clay covered. Entirely rural.

072002	Wyre	at St Michaels		C.A: 275.0 km ²
M.A: EA	Local No: 720517	Sens.: 13.1		B/full: 160.0m ³ s ⁻¹
F.A.R: SPG	Level: 4m	UE: <.01	-	FAI: 0.950

F.A.R: SPG Level: 4m UE: <.01 - FAI: 0.950 Comment: Natural section. Despite inclusion of artificial bed control, low flow calibration found insensitive and Flat V weir built 400m d/s in 1969. High flows still gauged at original site as weir drowns. Tidal effects at spring tide. Abstractions at Garstang but main distortions of flow are the Lune transfer (via Abbeystead) and bankside flood detention ponds. *H* Catchment is lightly oppulated, predominantly agricultural. Geology: marl, Bunter S'st, Millstone Grit in Wyre, Carboniferous L'st in Brock catchment.

072014	c	Conder at Galgate	C.A: 28.5 km ²
M.A: EA	Local No:	Sens.:	
F.A.R: 1	Level: 17m	UE: <.01	FAI: 1.000
Comment: Fl	at V Crump profile weir in co	infined concrete channel	to 1.775m, with concrete wa

above as a flood barrier. Weir operates to 0.41 mandred training training. Weed growth may cause drowning in summer if not controlled. Higher flows are c/m gauged; portable ultrasonic gauge installed to refine calibration. # Catchment to E of Lancaster draining steep moors of Littledale. Solid geology: Millstone Grit, mostly covered with Boulder Clay with hill peat at highest altitudes.

072015	Lun	e at Lunes Bridge	C.A: 141.5 km ²
M.A: EA	Local No: 722242	Sens.:	
F.A.R: N	Level: m	- UE: <.01	FAI: 0.998
Comment: Non-	standard, compound bed o	control built into the invert	of a road bridge. Erosion
condere low flows	eveneet. Couging by undin	a and apployeeu (150m u/c	for anough to mice doubt

renders low flows suspect. Gauging by wading and cableway (150m u/s - far enough to raise doubts about high flow calibration. Natural catchment, replaces Tebay (72010). # High relief, wet moorland catchment on Carboniferous L'st. About 20% of the catchment covered by Boulder Clay.

Lune at	Killington New Bridge	C.A: 219.0 km ²
Local No: 722421	Sens.: 10.1	S/full: 97.0m ³ s ⁻¹
Level: 83m	UE: <.01	FAI: 0.999
compound broad-creater	sted weir. Skew flow caused	by off-centre notch causes
ne section; that and sil	tation influences the rating.	Stilling well leakage until 2/
bove 1.6m (weir full)	extrapolation of theoretica	I rating to bankfull (4.0m).
Net, high relief catchr	nent. Silurian slates to the V	N, Carb. conglomerate and
ss on high moors to N	W, heather moss in N. Low	er valleys are Boulder Clay
ass, arable farming		
	Lune at Local No: 722421 Level: 83m compound broad-cree the section; that and sil bove 1.6m (weir full) Met, high relief catchr ss on high moors to N ass, arable farming	Lune at Killington New Bridge Local No: 722421 Sens: 10.1 Level: 83m UE: < 0.1 compound broad-crested weir. Skew flow caused he section; that and siltation influences the rating. bove 1.6m (weir full) extrapolation of theoretica Wet, high relief catchment. Silurian slates to the V ss on high moors to NW, heather moss in N. Low ass, arable farming

072011	Rawth	ey at Brigg Flatts	C.A: 200.0 km ²
M.A: EA	Local No: 723423	Sens.: 5.7	
F.A.R: N	Level: 84m	UE: <.01	FAI: 1.000
Commonte Matur	ol chonnol, concev 20m vádo	woll protoined within	realy books and a wall with a

Comment: Natural channel, approx 30m wide, well contained within rock banks and a wall, with a rock bed control. Cableway removed 9/75, so no good high range gaugings since. Stilling well siltation problems. Low and high range rating not good. Early record contains many gaps. Natural catchment, very flashy. # High relief moorland catchment draining Carboniferous U'st and Millstone Grit. Peat on highest moors, Boulder Clay on lower slopes and in valleys.

072009	Wennin	g at Wennington	C.A: 142.0 km ²
M.A: EA	Local No: 724326	Sens.: 17.5	
F.A.R: G	Level: 39m	UE: <.01	, FAI: 0.997

Comment: Flat V Crump profile weir. River well contained, stable rating. No permanent cableway. Algal growth and u/s silitation need regular attention. Gw abstraction for agriculture from the Millstone Grit aquifer. # Coal Measures and Millstone Grit faulted against Carboniferous L'st, small area of impervious Silurian slate in extreme east. Bouider Clay over most of catchment with some alluvium and hill peat. Rural; agricultural with heather moor in S.

		% of 1		% of t	Me	ď	Date	MIn, da	. Date	10 Pe	50 Pe	95 Pe
6095	1339		909		33.00	891.3	12/12 1964	1.88	22/07 1984	80.6	16.06	4.50
1996	1036	77	600	66	21.72	484.3	05/11	4.13	05/02	49.9	11.58	4,45
1997 1998	1233	92 116	786 1083	86 119	28.55 39.34	492.9 597.2	05/05 06/03	4.30 6.35	19/08 23/05	72.5 85.1	12.68 22.67	5.23 7.47
1999	1466	109	960	106	34.84	428.0d	06/12	3.15	05/09	82.2	17.26	4.36
2000	1007	135	1305	152	50.15	190.0	30/10	5.41	20/07	121.4	20.04	0.00
7695	1362		948		1.19	56.6	31/01 1995	0.20	05/09 1976	2.5	0.70	0.34
1996	1075	79	682	72	0.85	24.0	05/11	0.28	18/07	1.8	0.48	
1997	1192 1539	88 113	1165	74 123	0.88	18.4 30.0	24/10	0.24	20/08	2.1 3.1	0.48	0.28
1999	1476	108	1022	108	1.28	32 2	10/10	0.27	28/07	2.8	0.70	0.26
2000	1700	120	1002	101	1.00		10,10		20,01	0.1	1.07	0.01
7695	1224		994	_	4.03	206.8	27/10 1980	0.94	05/09 1976	7.9	2.39	1.35
1996 1997	962 1095	79 89	698 826	70 83	2.82 3.35	79.1 20.5d	05/11 06/12	1.03	06/04 20/07	5.8 7.5	1.66 1.95	1.11
1998	1377	113	1224	123	4.97	46.1d	06/03	1.24	31/05	10.6	, 3.02	1.39
1999 2000	1313 1555	107	1110	112 145	4.51 5.83	57.4d 68.7d	01/10 30/10	1.05	05/09 23/07	10.0 12.7	2.50 3.55	1.24
6795	1399		906		3.27	177.6	27/10 1980	0.03	27/08 1976	7.8	1.53	0.34
1996	1124	80	622	69	2.24	77.1	05/11	0.35	22/09	5.4	1.16	0.43
1997 1998	1342 1635	96 117	·796	88 134	2.88 4.40	101.3 107.5	05/05 27/10	0.35	22/07 31/05	7.8	1.13	0.45
1999	1463	105	1018	112	3.68	103.8	01/10	0.37	05/09	8.5	1.71	0.46
2000	1650	132	1479	163	0.00	139.1	30/10	0.40	21]01	13.7	2.30	0.50
7895	1429		872		0.88	74.5	21/08 1987	0.02	22/08 1995	2.1	0.44	0.07
1996 1997	1067	75 91	482.	55 81	0.49,	19.8 50.2	25/08	0.05	23/06	1.2	0.24	0.06
1998	1609	113	991	114	1.01	25.4	20/08	0.09	31/05	2.4	0.57	0.14
1999 2000	1387 1819	97 127	785 1203	90 138	0.80 1.22	27.0 51.4	02/03 30/10	0.08 0.07	05/09 27/07	1.8 2.9	0.44 0.67	0.11 0.11
6395	1258		730		6.36	180.4	23/10 1980	0.08	28/08 1976	15.5	3.03	0.58
1996	997	79	449	62	3.90	93.4	05/11	0.51	19/08	9.0	1.80	0.58
1997 1998	1185	94 116	624 981	85 .134	5.44 8.56	122.3 108.8	05/05 06/03	0.48	22/07 31/05	14.5 23.1	1.83 4.54	0.65
1999	1301	103	799	109	6.97	125.4	02/03	0.58	05/09	16.4	3.39	0.80
2000		133	1221	107	10.01	41.9	30/10	0.09	21/01	29.1	5.40	1.00
7695	1222	•••	767		0.69	27.4	08/12 1983	0.02	30/08 1995	1.7	0.34	0.06
1996 1997	972 [.] 1139	80 93	463 610	60 80	0.42	12.1 17.0	05/05	0.04	05/08 18/08	1.1	0.19	0.06
1998 1998	1387	114	870	113	0.79	23.1	27/10	0.08	31/05	1.7	0.47	0.12
2000	1605	131	1085	141	0.98	24.8	30/10	0.00	28/06	2.4	0.55	0.09
7995	1698		1376		6.18	456.3	20/12 1985	0.18	25/07 1984	14.9	3.00	, 0.47
1006		67	067	63	2 00	101.0	0514.4	0.22	12/00		4.00	0.40
1996	1581	93	1215	88 88	5.45	244.1	17/02	0.32	12/09	9.2 13.6	1.00	0.40
1998 1999	1921 1928	113	1650 1566	120	7.40	188.1 306.6	24/10 05/01	0.72	08/10	16.9	4.27	0.96
2000	2245	132	1887	137	8.44	243.4	11/01	0.53	27/07	21,1	4.01	0.84
6995	1629		1422		9.88	627.5	21/12 1985	0.41	29/06 1974	24,3	4.60	0.79
1996	1172	72	945	66	6.55	323.7	05/11	0.57	22/09	16.2	3.18	0.72
1997 1998	1584 1958	97 120	1371 1873	96 132	9.52 13.01	431.5 340.8	17/02 26/10	0.70	20/08 08/10	24.6 30.1	2.99 7.19	1.00
1999	1940	119	1784	125	12.39	667.1	05/01	1.03	12/08	27,4	5.52	1.29
2000	2284	140	2177	153	15.08	466.2	11/01	0.94	27/07	39.1	6.85	1.43
6895	1778		1466		9.30	744.2	31/01 1995	0.31	29/06 1992	23.7	3.66	0.62
1996	1318	74	889	61	5.62	298.2	05/11	0.31	25/07	16.8	1.74	0.38
1997 1998	1610 2052	91. 115	1224	83	7.77	422.9 314.4	19/02 24/10	0.19	20/08	22.0 27.3	1.35 4.58	0.31
1999 ,	2036	115	1642	112	10.41.	512.6	05/01	0.27	12/08	23.4	3.57	0.38
2000.	2423	130	2014	.37	12.74	389.7	11/01	0.27	21101	30.1	4.40	0.43
7695	1334		1002		4.51	265.3	01/10 1981	0.12	23/08 1995	11.2	1.74	0.26
1996	1000	75	565	56	2.54	103.8	05/11	0.21	22/09	6.1	1.07	0.26
1998	1488	112	1065	106	4.79	128.6	24/10	0.34	01/06	10.6	2.33	0.29
1999 2000	1453 1761	109 132	1050 1410	105 141	4.73 6.33	-181.4 189.5	06/12 30/10	0.28	05/09 30/07	11.5 16.2	1.84 2.83	0.34 0.41

						Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow {m ¹ e ⁻¹ }	Peak Now (^{m1} ***)	Date of peak	Min. daily now (m'e'')	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m'a'*)	50 Percentile (m ¹ a ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m ³ e ⁻¹)
072004 M.A: EA	Local No: 724629	Lune at	Caton Sens.; 4.8	Вл	C.A: 983.0 km² tuli: 329.0m³s ⁻¹	53-95	1519		1134		35.36	1182.0	31/01 1995	1.16	25/08 1984	85.2	17.25	3.05
F.A.R: SRP Comment: Compound used for low/medium ff Transfers to R. Wyre Flood warning site. A Carboniferous Limesto	Level: 11m broad-crested weir o lows; high flows from under Lancashire Co # Headwaters rise f ne; Siturian shales; Mi	perated Hatton njunctiv rom Sh listone (UE: <.01 after 10/6/77 as ful 3km d/s. High flows e Use Scheme. Ma ap Fell and the F Grit and Coal Measu	FA Il-range si s inundate ajor abstri Pennines, rres, subsi	V: 0.993 tation. Previously wide floodplain. actions for PWS. Mixed geology: tantial Drift cover.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1139 1411 1761 1740 2073	75 93 116 115 136	734 972 1377 1288 1626	55 86 121 114 143	22.81 30.28 42.92 40.16 50.54	494.0 639.6 510.5 877.4 782.4	05/11 17/02 24/10 05/01 11/01	2.12 2.35 4.34 4.14 2.97	24/09 20/08 01/06 06/09 27/07	54.3 79.6 95.5 86.3 133.5	11.43 10.38 25.71 21.15 25.92	2.78 3.15 6.69 5.24 5.21
Agriculture in valleys; (073015 M A: EA	prassiand rising to pe Keek Local No: 733020	at móss rat Higt	in highest areas. 1 Keer Welr Sens -		C.A: 48.0 km ²	7695	1158		362		0.55	23.9	31/01 1995	0.02	27/08 1976	1.3	0.26	0.06
F.A.R: Comment: Original op wide, set in vertical wir within bank. Rather fla from series of ridges of	Level: 8m en channel section a ng walls, circa 1m hig ishy regime from nat f moderate relief. Soli	supersed h, in 197 ural cato d geolog	UE: <.01 led by Crump profil (1. Structure perform timent. # NE-SW t ly: Carboniferous L'	FA le Flat V (ms well, al trending C 'st but don	ul: 0.986 (1:10) weir, 3.5m I flows contained atchment formed ninated by glacial	1996 1997 1998 1999	832 1022 1343 1245	72 88 116 108	231 341 522	64 94 144	0.35 0.52 0.79	14.4 15.1 16.4	05/11 17/02 24/10	0.05 0.04 0.10	05/08 19/08 27/05	0.8 1.3 1.7	0.17 0.18 0.47	0.06 0.05 0.14
deposits; Boulder Clay subordinate forest plan	with glacial sands an itations.	d gravel	and alluvium on va	alley floor.	Wholly rural with	2000	1582	137	694	192	1.05	26.5	11/01	0.08	2101	2.4	0.49	0.10
073008 M.A: EA F.A.R: SG	E Local No: 731013 Level: 11m	leta at E	leetham Sens.: 13.8 UE: <.01	S/I FA	C.A: 131.0 km² hufi: 22.2m³s ⁻¹ hl: 0.965	6995	1320		846		3.52	56.9	21/11 1980	0.29	07/08 1989	8.4	2.05	0.50
Comment: Flat V Crun medium/high flows, no weed problems. Mino # Predominantly Siluria catchment, giving rise	np profile weir, 1:20 c permanent cablewa r compensation disc an slate with Carbonil to arable farming and	ross-slog y. Bank harge fi erous L' perman	be, Top of wing wall: full 1.188m, no byp rom headwater res st in lower reaches, rent grassland. Rest	ls 0.917m. passing. S servoirs. (. Boulder t is rough	Velocity-area for Severe, algal and Gw abstractions. Clay covers 70% grazing.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	999 1138 1547 1381 1720	76 86 117 105 130	539 668 1105 899 1262	64 79 131 106 149	2.23 2.78 4.59 3.73 5.23	27.4 35.4 30.0 80.1 53.3	05/11 17/02 24/10 05/01 11/01	0,44 0.43 0.60 0.48 0.52	19/08 28/08 01/06 05/09 27/07	5.1 6.7 9.5 7.9 11.8	1.31 1.17 3.36 2.24 3.20	0.49 0.48 0.86 0.61 0.69
073003 M.A: EA	Ka Local No: 730102	ent at B	urneside Sens.: 12.5		C.A: 73.6 km ²	\$195	1964		1741		4.06	112.2	31/01 1995	0.07	21/09 1995	9.2	1.93	0.26
F.A.R: Comment: Natural cha temporary cableway. F Palaeozoic slate; flags supports permanent g steep descent to Kend	Level: m annel, no permanent o Full range of flows co tone and shale coven rassland, remainder at.	ableway Intained ed in mik for grazi	v, gauging by wading Station closed in Idle reaches of vall- ng. Rises in the m	g up to 0.1 1999. # 1 leys by Bo nountainou	n: 8m, high flows by mpervious Lower adder Clay which as Lake District -	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1454 1719 2239 1915 2412	74 88 114 98 123	1103 1228 1814	63 71 104	2.57 2.87 4.23	53.1 69.7 62.8	05/11 17/02 24/10	0.13 0.20 0.43	23/09 18/08 08/10	6.0 7.8 9.2	1.53 1.23 2.87	0.25 0.33 0.59
073009 M.A: EA	Sp Local No: 730203	orint at S	Sprint Mill Sens.: 24.5	S/	C.A: 34.6 km ² full: 8.6m ³ s ⁻¹	7695	2180		1715		1.88	58.2	20/12 1985	0.06	26/08 1984	4.5	1.04	0.14
F.A.H: N Comment: Flat V Crun flow regime, slightly in warning station for Ken Borrowdale Volcanics i and shales to Boulder	Lavel: born np profile weir for low fluenced by discharge dal. # High relief, very n extreme north, throu Clay covered lower n	and med as from wet cate igh grazi eaches.	ue: <.ur ium flows (up to 0.6 Gamett Bridge Stra chment drains an are ng lands on Silurian	i2m), Pred aining Plar ea of peat and Ordo	lominantly natural Iominantly natural It 4km u/s. Flood moss growing on Ivician state, flags	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1542 1874 2462 2088 2634	71 86 113 96 121	1222 1471 2066 1787 2293	71 86 120 103 134	1.34 1.61 2.27 1.94 2.51	48.4 53.0 40.5 56.6 43.1	28/09 17/02 24/10 05/01 28/11	0.09 0.12 0.17 0.17 0.14	23/09 19/08 08/10 12/08 27/07	3.4 4.2 4.9 4.5 6.3	0.69 0.73 1.44 1.06 1.39	0.14 0.19 0.26 0.23 0.23
073011 M.A: EA	Mi Local No: 730404	int at Mi	nt Bridge Sens.: 15.9		C.A: 65.8 km ²	7095	1623		1143		2.38	70.8	21/12 1985	0.05	26/08 1984	5.9	1.29	0.19
F.A.R: N Comment: Flat V Cruit flow slightly affected by from sludge disposal Predominantly impervi iferous L'st and basal o grazine with peat moo	Level: 50m mp profile weir, 0.837 r Meal Bank mill stuice works. Gaps in recor ous Silurian slate will xonglomerate, patchy l dand in extreme port	m weir f operatio d: 1977, h bands Boulder (UE: <.01 ull. Stable rating. Na on from 21/7/67 to 3, 78,80 and 89. # S of flags and shate, Clay cover in middle	FA atural cato (1/69 and Steep, very , small pa and lowe	AI: 1.000 chment, however, periodic releases y wet catchment, tches of Carbon- er reaches. Sheep	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1183 1417 1910 1718 2150	73 87 118 106 132	812 981 1505 1276 1710	71 86 132 112 150	1.69 2.05 3.14 2.66 3.56	44.4 68.2 52.0 108.5 70.8	05/11 17/02 26/10 05/01 11/01	0.14 0.13 0.31 0.24 0.19	19/08 19/08 08/10 24/08 27/07	4.1 5.1 6.9 6.1 8.8	0.91 0.76 2.01 1.42 1.82	0.16 0.18 0.44 0.33 0.30
073005 M.A: EA	Local No: 730511	°. Ient at S	edgwick Sens.:	S/	C.A: 209.0 km² full: 85.0m³s ⁻¹	6895	1753		1336		8.85	282.9	21/12 1985	0,43	25/08 1984	21.0	5.03	1.10
F.A.R: IN Comment: Compound 22/10/94. Occasional w with widely fluctuating catchment drains imp predominate. Carbonif	Level: 19m I broad-crested weir, 2 reed growth problems flows. Station rerat ervious Pre-Cambriar erous Limestone prov	27m wide Perman ed from n to Silu rides goo	UE: .01 a with 3m low flow n nent cableway for me 1/1/76. Predomina rian rocks where h od grazing, especial	FA notch, wide edium to h antly natur neather ma illy south c	AI: 0.984 ened to 9.16m on high flows. Flashy, ral. # High relief borland and peat of Kendal on Drift	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1310 1554 2062 1790 2249	75 89 118 102 128	968 1145 1706 1445 1928	72 86 128 108 144	6.40 7.59 11.31 9.57 12.74	140.2 223.5 169.8 309.1 206.0	05/11 17/02 24/10 05/01 11/01	0.71 0.65 1.40 1.14 0.99	23/09 18/08 08/10 12/08 27/07	14.8 19.7 24.1 21.8 30.1	3.96 3.30 7.71 5.49 7.17	0.92 1.14 1.86 1.49 1.63
073014	Brat Local No: 735123	hay at J	leffy Knotts Sens		C.A: 57.4 km ²	7695	2944		2392		4.35	71.5	31/01 1995	0.01	02/09 1976	10.9	2.29	0.27
F.A.R: Comment: Velocity an approx, 0.2m. Flows a # Steep, very wet m Ordovician volcanic tu cover.	Level: 42m ea station, Bed dredg affected by weed gro loorland catchment, iffs and lavas, much	jed betw wth and draining exposed	UE: <.01 een 19-24/7/94 cau heavily vegetated Langdale Fell, So at outcrop. Some	FA using wate banks. Na olid geolo hill peat a	Al: 0.922 ar levels to falt by atural catchment. xgy: Silurian and and Boulder Clay	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	2265 2785 3387 3077 3496	77 95 115 105 119	1729 2035 2741 2567 3052	72 85 115 107 128	3.14 3.70 4.99 4.67 5.54	44.9 49.8 53.9 67.6 56.7	28/09 17/02 11/02 06/12 02/03	0.15 0.29 0.35 0.41 0.38	23/09 05/06 08/10 12/08 15/05	8.6 10.0 12.1 11.0 13.5	1.68 1.81 3.44 2.80 3.26	0.28 0.41 0.49 0.60 0.53
073013 M.A: EA	Rothay Local No: 735022	at Mille	r Bridge House Sens.:	B/	C.A: 64.0 km² full: 80.0m³s ⁻¹	7695	2495		2108		4.28	206.5	01/01 1991	0.09	26/08 1976	10.3	2.23	0.32
F.A.R: N Comment: Velocity and the mobile bed. Data of (2002). Flood berm on taken 170m d/s or by wet catchment draining Amblaside.	Level: 41m as station. Initially a lo quality poor. A woode I b. High flows not co wading. Natural catcl g Silunan shales, s'sta	ose boul en low fil entained mment, c s and mo	UE: <.01 der control, but ratir ow control was insta (flows down road a ontains Rydal Wate adstones, virtually d	FA ng was un alled 2/91 and across er and Gra Irift-free, Is	AI: 0.867 stable because of but deteriorating s field). Gaugings asmere, # Steep, mmediately d/s of	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1989 2380 2879 2707 3242	80 95 115 108 130	1509 1839 2362 2179 2694	72 87 112 103 128	3.05 3.73 4.79 4.42 5.45	94.3 108.9 72.8 76.4 68.1	28/09 17/02 24/10 05/01 11/01	0.20 0.32 0.33 0.31 0.26	17/09 22/07 27/05 11/08 30/07	7.5 9.3 11.0 11.1 13.4	1.60 1.62 2.99 2.48 3.00	0.26 0.43 0.52 0.52 0.52
073006 M.A: EA	Cunsey E Local No:	leck at f	el House Bridge Sens.:		C.A: 18.7 km ²	7695	2001		1511		0.90	17. 8	03/01 1982	0.00	01/09 1978	2.2	0.45	
F.A.R: N Comment: VA station the early record), no c channel. The bulk of draining Silurian shale Windermere.	Level: 63m in an artificially straig ableway; bridge gaug the catchment drain as, mudstones and a	htened r ging use s throug l'sts. Mir	UE: each. Wooden sleep d for high flows. Su h Esthwaite Water tor superficial depo	FA per low flo uffers from r. J Steep osits. Wes	 A1: aw control (not for beavily weeded by wet catchment sterly tributary to 	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1553 1759 2268 2074 2565	78 68 113 104 128	1135 1306 1978 1578 2202	75 86 131 104 146	0.67 0.77 1.17 0.94 1.30	6.2 7.8 7.8 8.8 8.3	05/11 17/02 24/10 06/01 28/11	0.03 0.06 0.10 0.10 0.07	23/09 22/07 08/10 05/09 27/07	1.7 2.0 2.5 2.1 3.2	0.42 0.34 0.81 .0.57 0.73	0.06 0.10 0.16 0.13 0.14
073010 M.A: EA	Leven Local No: 735430	at Newt	y Bridge FMS Sens.:	S	C.A: 247.0 km ² full: 140.0m ³ s ⁻¹	39-95	2164		1767		13.84	135.8	02/12 1954	0.11	07/10 1972	31.0	10.00	1.21
F.A.R: SPE Comment: Level record 1939 to 1974 combine range. Just d/s of Lak compensation flow - oc abstractions for PWS. ; in south. Boulder Clay	Level: 37m rd since 1939 from fox rd into a single seque e Windermere (for wi ccasional very low flov # Predominantly impe along river valleys. N	ur differe ince. Sir hich ear vs (e.g. a rvious, t fainty gr	ut:: nt sites at Newby B ice 5/5/71 compoun ier level data are a autumn 1972) when sorrowdale Volcanic assland, very wood	FA Bridge, All nd Crump available)- avs fish p s fin north led in lowe	AI: flow records from profile weir. Full- highly regulated, ass closed. Major and Siturian state er reaches.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1758 2088 2601 2360 2843	81 96 , 120 109 131	1178 1491 2188 1937 2468	67 84 124 110 140	9.20 11.68 17.14 15.17 19.27	53.9 83.5 82.1 96.4 85.5	06/11 19/02 25/10 06/12 13/12	0.89 1.27 1.30 1.49 1.14	03/02 06/06 08/10 12/08 26/07	25.0 30.9 33.7 31.6 48.6	5.54 5.96 14.42 10.95 12.96	1.07 1.73 2.54 2.55 2.39

'HYDROLOGICAL DATA: 1996-2000

.

.

				Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow , (m²s-¹)	Peak flow (^{m³} a'¹)	Date of peak	Min. dally flow (^{m³s-1})	Date of min.	10 Percentlie (m³s`¹)	50 Percentile (^{m³s-'})	95 Percentile (m ³ = ⁻¹)
	 ←		-*			~			**							
073002 M.A: EA E A R: SP	Crake at L Local No: 737537 Level: 39m	ow Nibthwaite Sens.: 17.1	C.A: 73.0 km ² B/full: 37.0m ³ s ⁻¹ EAI: 0.737	6395	2167		1734		4.01	35.4	03/01 1982	0.07	07/10 1972	8.6	2.89	0.54
Comment: Open ston range of flows contai Headwater abstraction variation. # Predomin sures. Band of Boulde	e walled channel with inform ned. Permanent cableway, ns for PWS. Approx. 2km dj antly impervious Silurian L r Clay over centre of catchm empeload	al Flat V triangular weir Minimał weed growth. Is of Lake Coniston - he udlow slates with thin (ent. Mountains in N sup	control. Stable rating, full- Lowest flows unreliable. Ince subdued hydrograph Carboniferous Coal Mea- porting rough pasture and	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1716 1936 2557 2291 2704	79 89 118 106 125	1293 1431 2195 1889 2423	75 83 127 109 140	2.99 3.31 5.08 4.37 5.59	16.7 18.5 25.4 26.7 22.9	05/11 19/02 26/10 06/12 28/11	0.27 0.57 0.91 0.81 0.73	23/09 22/07 31/05 12/08 30/07	6.4 7.5 9.3 8.6 12.4	2.34 2.21 4.51 3.22 4.05	0.59 0.70 1.40 1.10
074008 M.A: EA	Duddo	n at Ulpha Sens.: 6.9	C.A: 47.9 km ²	7695	2571		2007	•	3.05	93.2	30/10 1977	0.03	29/08 1976	7.8	1.51	0.2
F.A.R: SP Comment: Non-stand widths, narrowest at 0 cableway, waded c/m PWS. Compensation	Level: 76m dard compound broad-cres .31m, second at 0.54m and 100m d/s of weir. Contains flow from Seathwaite Tam 6	UE: ted weir, three differer widest at 0.745m at ob s all flows. Major abstra km u/s. # Impervious C	FAI: at crest levels of varying tuse angle to channel. No action 10m u/s for Barrow provician andesitic lavas,	1996 1997 1998 1999	2062 2325 2964 2677	80 90 115 104	1627 1829 2614 2354	81 91 130 117	2.46 2.78 3.97 3.58	70.6 85.7 94.9 94.8	28/09 17/02 03/08 05/12	0.17 0.18 0.22 0.33	21/07 10/08 31/05 10/08	7.0 7.5 9.3 8.8	1.14 1.19 2.43 1.91	0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4
074001	eply sloping, thin soils, sup Duddon s	t Duddon Hall	C.A: 85.7 km ²	2000 6895	2847 2216	111	2830 1783	141	4.29 4.84	59.1 257.8	11/01 01/01	0.23 0.16	15/05 07/09	9.9 11.8	2.52 2.49	0.3i 0,4:
F.A.R: SP Comment: Compoun Drowning improbable. runoff. Abstractions for Seathwaite Tam. # F	Level: 15m d broad-crested weir, 22.9 High flows theoretically rate Barrow PWS from Ulpha pur lises at Wrynose Pass, flo	UE: <.01 UE: <.01 Im overall, centre cres Id. Low flows gauged by mping station u/s. Vanab ws through sparsely po	FAI: 0.986 t 7m, contains all flows. wading. Extremely flashy le compensation flow from pulated agricultural land.	1996 1997 1998 1999	1848 2031 2632 2328	83 92 119 105	1314 1410 2023 1755	74 79 113 98	3.56 3.83 5.50 4.77	143.5 220.1 326.9 244.2	28/09 17/02 03/08 06/12	0.37 0.34 0.43 0.49	15/09 22/07 31/05 11/08	8.1 9.0 11.5 10.9	1.91 1.88 3.48 2.82	0.4 0.4 0.6 0.6
Geology ëntirëly impe Boulder Clay. Thin soi	rvious Ordovician Borrowda Is. Peat moss in NW.	le Volcanics, andesitic la	avas with small patches of	2000	2551	115	2182	122	5.91	149.7	28/11	0.39	15/05	13.4	3.50	0.6
074007 M.A: EA F.A.R:	Esk at 0 Local No: 742006 Level: 6m	Cropple How Sens.: 30.0 UE:	C.A: 70.2 km² FAI:	76.,95	2253		1978	_	4,40	152.1	14/11 1980	0.08	14/08 1983	10.4	2.34	0.3
Comment: Velocity-a at low flows. Waded g Ordovician andesitic la catchment supporting	rea station. Stone ford forms auging at low/medium flows, avas and tuffs with massive rough pasture and moorlan	blow/medium control ap permanent cableway fo granitic intrusion, virtua d for sheep grazing, gra d for sheep grazing, gra	prox. 50m d/s, insensitive r high flows, # Impervious Ily Drift free. Mountainous assland in valley, Rural.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1929 2092 2660 2424 2694	86 93 118 108 120	1603 1849 2556 2776	81 93 129 140	3.56 4.12 5.69 6.16	100.1 105.3 118.7 109.7	28/05 16/09 03/08 28/11	0.14 0.30 0.41 0.26	23/09 22/07 27/05 27/07	9.4 10.5 12.6 14.2	1.82 1.86 3.56 3.52	0.3 0.4 0.6
074002 M.A: EA	Irt at Local No: 743008	Galesyke Sens.: 14.6	C.A: 44.2 km ² B/full: 31.0m ³ s ⁻¹	67.,95	2739		2317		3.25	47.1d	02/10 1968	0.13	08/05 1974	7.0	2.32	0.4
F.A.R: SPI Comment: Natural cl accretes and control e for PWS and major in Palaeozoic rocks with rivers - rapid purpoff. S	Level: 54m hannel with gabion control. submerges. Fully contained. ndustrial purposes, greatly Drift cover along river valley. here farming on rough has	UE: <.01 Gabion modified in Se 2km d/s of Wast Wate affecting low flows. # E , heavy rainfall in mount turse with beath and mo	FAI: 0.924 p 1968; unstable section outlet which is important intrely impervious Lower ains carried in short, steep ortand	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	2135 2409 2969 2824 3252	78 88 108 103 119	1886 2206 3122 2648 3501	81 95 135 114 151	2.64 3.09 4.38 3.71	15.0 23.1 20.9 26.4 23.8	05/11 16/09 03/08 06/12 01/02	0.24 0.45 0.54 0.49 0.47	15/09 06/06 08/10 12/08 15/05	5.8 6.6 8.1 6.7 10.5	1.87 2.04 3.77 2.99 3.44	0.4) 0.5) 0.9) 0.9
074006 M.A: EA	Calder a Local No: 743509	t Calder Hall Sens.: 15.5	C.A: 44.8 km ² S/full: 21.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6495	1790		1285		1.63	87.2	30/08 1989	0.08	23/08 1976	4.0	1,10	0.3
F.A.R: G Comment: Flat V Cn very high flows could contained within bank. Bees S'st. Abstraction Slates and Borrowda permanent pasture. M	Level: 2cm ump profile weir with 1:20 c drown out but a cableway i Flashy response. From 1/1, n by BNFL ceases below 0 le Volcanics; rough grazie ostv sheep farming, aporo;	UE: <.U1 ross-slope, measures k nstalled 2002 should ca /80 low flow augmentation /.153m. # Upper catchr g. Lower catchment Tr k. 5% afforested.	FAI: 1.000 bow and medium flows. At pture such flow. All flows on by pumping from the St ment impervious Skiddaw iassic s'st; meadow and	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1511 1575 2091 1833 2174	84 88 117 102 121	1005 1068 1628 1280 1775	78 83 127 100 138	1.42 1.52 2.31 1.82 2.52	41.0 35.1 108.2 44.2 59.3	05/11 16/09 03/08 05/11 24/10	0.23 0.29 0.39 0.35 0.32	20/09 22/07 08/10 05/09 30/07	3.3 3.3 4.8 3.8 5.6	0.78 0.85 1.55 1.20 1.52	0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4
074003 M.A: EA	Ehen at Local No: 744111	Bleach Green Sens.: 9.7	C.A: 44.2 km² S/full: 41.0m³s ⁻¹	7395	2626		171 2		2.40	49.9	24/10 1977	0.12	22/08 1976	6.1	1.03	0,3
F.A.R: SPI Comment: Compound Measures flood discha level - 0.157m. Ennem # 100% immervious SI	Level: 110m d Crump profile weir, from 1, arge and compensation wate dale Water used for PWS for ididaw Slates in NW Borrow	UE: /8/73, replaced narrow f in from Ennerdale Water West Cumbria and indi- idale Volcanics in SE wi	FAI; tume. All flows contained. 800m u/s. Compensation ustrial supply to Sellafield. th intrusions in the centre	1996 1997 1998 1999	2003 2281 2830 2817	76 87 108 107	1299 1594 2358 2101	76 93 138 123	1.82 2.23 3.31 2.94	19.3 47.8 39.9 38 1	05/11 16/09 03/08 06/12	0.40 0.41 0.47 0.51	21/09 31/01 07/10 10/08	4.2 6.1 7.3 6.2	0.76 0.72 2.31 1.80	0.4 0.4 0.5
Mostly rough sheep g 074005	razing, forestry on Drift cov Ehen at	er along river valley. Braystones	C.A: 125.5 km ²	2000	3083 1812	117	2759	161	3.86	33.9 115,9	11/01 30/10	0.50	27/07	8.7 11.8	2.35 2.90	0.6
M.A: EA F.A.R: SP Comment: Initially a ¹	Local No: 744312 Level: 10m VA station with unstable rati	Sens.: 14.6 UE: .01 ng - gravel bar low flow	FAI: 0.899 control. Non-standard flat	1996	1447	80	1017	80	4.04	66.0	1977 05/11	1.05	1976 24/06	9,1	2.31	1.1
vee control installed dominated by competibuilding) 20/2-17/3/97 Skiddaw States, overka Triassic s'st. Drift cov remainder sheep past	1997. Some weed growth p nsation from Ennerdale Wa ". # Upper catchment; in e ain in NW by Carboniferous I ered. Some urban develop ura.	roblems. Bypassed in e ter; major exports. Unn ast: impervious Borrov imestone, Coal Measur ment in lower catchmen	xtreme floods. Low flows eliable flows (due to weir rdale Volcanics, in west: res and patches of Permo- it, middle reaches arable,	1997 ⁻ 1998 1999 2000	1553 2035 1902 2195	86 112 105 121	1027 1645 1396 1799	80 129 109 141	4.09 6.55 5.56 7,14	75.8 89.2 103.9 70.6	16/09 03/08 05/11 27/09	0.69 1.06 1.09 1.05	25/02 21/06 05/09 27/07	9.8 14.0 11.3 15.9	1.88 4.78 3.75 4.94	0.9 1.2 1.2 1.3
075007 M.A: EA	Glenderama Local No: 750504	ckin at Threikeld Sens.: 27.0	C.A: 64.5 km ² B/full: 75.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6995	1686		1396		2.86	83.2	18/10 1987	0.04	26/08 1976	6.8	1,38	0.2
F.A.R: Comment: VA station concrete control instal 81 to Jan 86. Control revision of rating hist Lake District; broad Skiddaw Slates, with Valley Roar alkajium f	Level: 136m o set in gently curved reach, led 4/1998. Channel approx deteriorates regularly. Dat bry should improve record. main valley below 200m, f Borrowdate volcanics on so lited. Burei and moordand	UE; <.01 with basket gabion low i . 13m wide, cableway sp a quality poor (based o Natural catchment. # H lanking fells exceed 70 withern watershed and	FAI: 1,000 flow control; non-standard van 27m, Closed from Jun in pre-dosure rating), but ligh relief catchment in N Nom. Geology: principally granite boss S of gauge.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1284 1642 1943 2127 2196	76 97 115 126 130	1392 1780	100 128	2.84 3.64	62.4 81.8	05/11 19/02	0.66 0.83	22/09 24/06	6.4 8.4	1.66 1.87	0.8 0.9
075001 M.A: EA	St Johns Beck a Local No: 750605	t Thirimere Reservoir Sens.: 12.9	C.A: 42.1 km ²	3595	2667		622		0.83	96.4	31/01 1995	0.07	28/10 1975	1.9	0.21	0.1
F.A.R: SP Comment: Rectangul of Thirlmere Res. on 1 Modular limit approx. I entirely of impervious Rock outcrop, rough (Level: 160m lar thin-plate weir replaced b /1/73. Measures compensal 0.75m. Naturalised monthly Ordovician Borrowdale Voic pasture with heather. Sheep	UE: ny compound Crump pro- tion and flood spill discha- flows from 1964 to 1966 anics, runoff from these o grazino, some forestry	FAI: sfile weir, approx. 1km d/s arges from Thinmere Res. 5. # Catchment composed into the reservoir is rapid.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	2200 2495 3009 2997 3410	82 94 113 112 128	154 278 560 630 1071	25 45 90 101 172	0.21 0.37 0.75 0.84 1.43	1.1 11.5 13.1 34.3 27.8	05/11 01/03 26/10 05/01 05/12	0.17 0.17 0.17 0.18 0.18	20/10 27/06 18/10 16/02 25/01	0.2 0.2 2.1 1.9 4.6	0.19 0.19 0.19 0.21 0.22	0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1
075009 M.A: EA	Greta a Local No: 750806	t Low Briery Sens.: 10.0	C.A: 145.6 km ²	7195	1982		1092	-	5.04	202.7	21/12 1985	0.36	17/07 1989	12.2	2.61	0.6
F.A.K: S Comment: Velocity-a gradient steepens. Pe Station primarily leve predominating on the Volcanics and some ig	Level: 100m rea station with a berm actir rmanent cableway. All flows al only from June 1999. / rough pasture. Geology: im neous intrusions, Boulder Ct	UE: <.01 Ig as a control where th s contained. Thirlmere F # Entirely rural catcher pervious Ordovician Sk ay covered below 200m.	FAI: U.919 e channel divides and the Res. regulates catchment. hent with sheep farming iddaw Slatas, Borrowdale Moorland on high ground.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1594 1912 2279 2393 2607	80 96 115 121 132	692 932 1238 1370 1653	63 85 113 125 151	3.19 4.30 5.72 6.32 7.61	72.8 128.2 88.1 105.8 114.6	05/11 19/02 24/10 05/01 05/12	0.40 0.59 0.82 0.69 0.82	23/09 24/06 08/10 05/09 08/08	7.7 10.1 12.8 15.3 19.4	1,74 1.74 3.27 3.21 3.28	0.4 0.7 1.1 0.8 0.9

.....

.

				Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m ^a a'')	Peak flow (m's.')	Date of peak	Min. daliy flow - (^{m1} s ⁺¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m's'')	05 Percentile (m ¹ s ⁻¹)
075005	Derwent a	t Portinscale	C.A: 235.0 km²	7295	2251		1594		11.88	155.1	26/11 1979	0.00	17/07 1984	28.7	6.99	1.19
F.A.R: S Comment: Velocity-au particularly at the low extreme floods. Affect Borrowdale Volcanic Keswick. Extensively valley, remainder hea	Level: 73m - rea station with permanent ci end. Medium and high flow led by controlled releases fi series with Skiddaw Slates Drift covered except extent ther and moorfand.	UE: <.01 UE: <.01 ableway. No stable bed con ratings more stable. Static rom Derwent Water, imme is in the north and igneou e southern upland area. G	FAI: 0.852 httpl - shifting ratings, on bypassed on rb in diately u/s. # Mainly us intrusions east of rasslands along river	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1795 2197 2606 2616 2854	80 98 116 116 127	1113 1460 1892 1962 2285	70 92 119 123 143	8.27 10.88 14.10 14.62 16.98	82.2 111.1 96.9 110.6 100.6	05/11 17/02 24/10 05/01 12/12	0.73 1.45 1.67 1.56 1.51	23/09 17/06 08/10 12/08 30/07	20.9 26.9 30.7 35.7 41.4	4.87 5.13 10.26 9.20 9.12	1.20 1.81 2.52 2.35 2.38
075003 M.A: EA	Derwent at Local No: 751110 Level: 69m	Ouse Bridge Sens.: 12.3	C.A: 363.0 km² B/tuli: 140.0m³s ⁻¹ FAI:	6895	2029		1430		16.46	124.1	22/12 1985	0.30	26/07 1984	38.9	10.61	1.76
Comment: Velocity-ai Low flow control appro- higher flows, Substar moderate the effect of Lower Palaeozoic rock Entirely rural.	real station with permanent ci real station with permanent ci tital exports. Rarely overtop flood discharges in the low is supporting mainty rough pa	bleway immediately d/s of the u/s end of an istand. Ista ped. Derwent Water and er Derwent. # Catchment e sture and moorfand. Drift o	Bassenthwaite Lake. nd becomes control at Thirimere Reservoir intirely on impervious onfined to valley floor.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1622 1995 2371 2421 2631	80 98 117 119 130	994 1286 1756 1864 2131	70 90 123 130 149	11,41 14,81 20,22 21,46 24,46	66.9 104.9 96.1 110.6 109.4	06/11 19/02 25/10 06/01 13/12	1.02 2.12 2.94 2.63 2.31	23/09 18/06 08/10 12/08 30/07	28.5 36.8 42.4 50.0 58.4	7.04 7.51 14.81 14.34 13.69	1.62 2.50 4.06 3.67 3.64
075016 M.A: EA F.A.R: S	Cocker a Local No: 751612 Level: 95m	st Scalehill Sens.: 5.8	C.A: 64.0 km ²	7695	2360		1698		3.44	68.9	09/03 1989	0.08	03/07 1988	8.3	2.09	0.34
Comment: Non-stank (1.215m); above this s D/s of Crummock Wal suspect due to vanda moortand and rough p Substantial outcrop of	and compound weir with fi tructure completely drowned ler - flow regulated, mostly c ulsm and repair of shice g asture over impervious Ordov granitic intrusion. Drift cover	inter centre section. Stat flow over both banks. No ompensation at low flows. ates at Crummock. # Enti rician Skiddaw Slates and E red to the elevation of Crur	le rating to bankfull permanent cableway. 29/10 - 7/11/97 dmfs rely rural, heatbland, Borrowdale Volcanics. nmock Water.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1764 2113 2577 2652 2792	75 90 109 112 118	1402 2029 2566 2664 3227	83 119 151 157 190	2.84 4.12 5.21 5.41 6.53	43.0 146.5 46.8 133.8 87.6	05/11 16/09 24/10 05/01 12/01	0.34 0.37 0.41 0.39 0.42	01/01 13/06 06/10 10/08 27/07	6.5 10.7 11.9 11.4 16.7	1.41 1.36 3.22 2.69 3.10	0.39 0.41 0.69 0.57 0.55
075004 M.A: EA F.A.R: SP	Cocker at So Local No: 751613 Level: 60m	uthwaite Bridge Sens.: 20.1 UE: <.01	C.A: 116.6 km ² B/full: 130.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.832	6795	1992		1412		5.22	84.7	31/10 1977	0.20	05/07 1988	12.5	3.08	0.63
Comment: Velocity-ai insensitive at low flow sometimes responsive # Lower Palaeozoic r swathe of Drift in river	rea station with cableway. S rs. Futl-range. Suffers from te e despite Crummock Wate ocks, granitic intrusions; mo valley.	Station control is a mill we weed growth and minor be r, Buttermere and Lowes worland. Mainly grazing; so	ir 137m d/s. May be ad movements. River twater in catchment. ome arable on broad	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1517 1838 2250 2321 2435	76 92 113 117 122	1053 1272 1813 1792 2023	75 90 128 127 143	3.88 4.70 6.70 6.63 7.46	36.2 56.6 40.8 65.2 47.5	05/11 16/09 24/10 05/01 12/01	0.45 0.58 0.88 0.79 0.64	23/09 17/06 27/05 10/08 29/07	9.7 12.2 13.8 14.8 18.5	2.17 2.08 4.84 4.17 4.53	0.51 0.68 1.29 1.04 0.88
075002 M.A: EA	Derwent : Local No: 753015	at Camerton Sens.: 7.1	C.A: 663.0 km ² B/futt: 400.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6095	1784		1227		25.79	264.7	01/10 1968	1.15	06/09 1976	58.8	16.58	3.20
Comment: Velocity-ar Opened in 1960, relia releases from Thirtme central Lakes massif is Lower Palaeozoic roc Contains Keswick and	even 1/m ea station with permanent cal ble record since 1961. Reç re Reservoir. Naturalised mo one of the highest rainfall loc ks. Drift covered valley flor Cockermouth.	bleway. Full range catibratic jutated flow from Crummo unthly flows from 1962 to 1 ations in the UK. Upper thin ors support grazing and s	n, all flows contained, ck Water, Controlled 967, # Source in the d is moorland draining some arable farming.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1412 1710 2072 2103 2277	79 96 116 118 128	838 1071 1478 1531 1807	68 87 120 125 147	17.56 22.51 31.08 32.20 37.89	168.5 214.8 204.1 230.6 204.8	05/11 17/02 24/10 05/11 12/12	1.74 3.37 4.68 3.79 3.65	23/09 22/07 08/10 12/08 30/07	42.8 58.5 64.7 73.9 89.2	10.75 11.20 22.84 20.36 20.70	2.58 4.01 6.57 5.18 5.46
075017 M.A: EA	Ellen a Local No: 754016	st Bullgill Sens.: 16.8	C.A: 96.0 km ² B/full: 2.1m ³ s ⁻¹	7695	1126		757		2.31	39.7	21/09 1985	0.14	29/07 1976	5.2	1.39	0.27
F.A.R: Comment: Flat V weir flows to bankfull, Full- Abstractions in headwa drain Uldale Fells and broad, flat valleys, Bou	Level: 27m to measure low flows up to 0 range with stable rating. Per aters. Small discharges of se flow westward. Lower reach ider Clay covered below 200	UE: <.01 .359m, velocity-area station manent cableway. Suffers wage and industrial effluent as follow the E-W trend of Im. Lower Pataeozoic hills	FAI: 0.984 tor medium and high from slight accretion. # Steep headwaters the Coal Measures in to the S.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	812 1028 1305 1213 1425	72 91 116 108 127	416 584 927 887 1094	55 77 122 117 145	1.26 1.78 2.82 2.70 3.32	24.5 32.0 31.6 41.0 39.2	05/11 04/02 11/02 05/01 11/01	0.17 0.29 0.55 0.36 0.36	17/09 01/07 26/05 05/09 08/08	3.1 4.0 5.8 5.7 7.6	0.66 0.86 2.06 1.58 1.83	0.19 0.33 0.72 0.44 0.45
076014 M.A: EA E A R: N	Eden at Ki Local No: 760101 Level: 158m	rkby Stephen Sens.: 26.1 UE: < 01	C.A: 69.4 km ² B/full: 120.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 1.000	7195	1406	•	1153		2.54	189.4	02/01 1976	0.07	25/08 1976	6.4	1.02	0.16
Comment: Non-stand flow control. Insensitiv on the Eden. # High re Middle reaches floored	ard compound broad-crester e at low flows. Cableway mer lief catchment draining Carbo d by Permian s'st. Hill peat a	I weir, built to stabilise the asures full-range. Natural c niferous L'st which forms n ind moorland, variable Bou	bed and act as a low atchment, the highest nost of the watershed. Ider Clay cover.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1144 1392 1779 1735 1984	81 99 127 123 141	765 1016 1366 1370 1650	66 88 118 119 143	1.68 2.24 3.01 3.02 3.62	69.9 120.9 83.7 113.8 86.1	05/11 19/02 24/10 02/12 19/09	0.11 0.12 0.26 0.16 0.17	23/09 12/08 27/05 12/08 27/07	4.2 5.8 7.6 6.9 9.6	0.72 0.63 1.51 1.26 1.64	0.13 0.18 0.35 0.23 0.25
076005 M.A: EA F.A.R:	Eden at Ter Local No: 760502 Level: 92m	mple Sowerby Sens.: 8.9 UE: <.01	C.A: 616.4 km ² B/full: 260.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 1.000	6495	1161		734		14.34	346.4	21/12 1985	1.16	27/08 1976	33,1	7,38	1,90
Comment: Velocity-ai rating changes. Unsta on lb. Banks then raise erosion. Sewage disc covered Permo-Traise	rea station with cableway. S ble gravel bed. Before May ' ad to contain the previous hig harge d/s of Appleby. # Rur ic s'st in main valley supports mondand on biobast group	evere summer weed graw 95 floods above 3.3m inun hest flood. Floods cause or al catchment except for A arable farming; headwater	th requires numerous dated wide floodplain prisiderable scour and ppleby. Boulder Clay s drain Carboniferous	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	845 1073 1345 1304 1512	73 92 116 112 130	447 625 862 835 1047	61 85 117 114 143	8.72 12.22 16.84 16.32 20.41	170.4 289.7 294.9 276.6 242.8	05/11 19/02 24/10 15/01 12/01	1.00 1.30 2.47 1.65 1.83	23/09 12/08 29/09 12/08 23/07	21.0 28.3 42.8 38.7 53.4	4.40 4.36 9.44 7.50 10.61	1,17 1,72 3.00 2.03 2,19
076004 M.A: EA	Lowther at I Local No: 761104	Eamont Bridge Sens.: 11.6	C.A: 158.5 km² B/full: 175.0m³s ⁻¹	6295	1872		686		3.45	232.2	23/03 1968	0.36	27/08 1976	7.6	1.59	0.65
F.A.R: S Comment: Velocity-ar weed growth. Strongly Monthly naturalised flo moorland headwaters: Permo-Triassic s'st low	Level: 113m ea station with permanent cal influenced by Haweswater a ws from Oct 1962 to Sep 196 ; broad band of Carbonifero ver down. Extensive Boulder	UE: <.01 bleway. All flows contained and Wet Sleddale; 60% of i i5. # 50% drains Ordoviciar us L'st in middle reaches, Clay in valleys and lower ti	FAI: 0.906 Affected by seasonal catchment controlled. volcanics of the peat Coal Measures and hird. Mostty grazing.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1428 1835 2168 2044 2392	76 98 116 109 128	472 724 931 893 1151	69 106 136 130 168	2.37 3.64 4.68 4.49 5.77	85.2 146.1 146.0 123.8 100.3	05/11 19/02 24/10 15/01 12/12	0.72 0.78 0.86 0.77 1.02	23/09 12/08 08/10 16/09 30/08	4.6 6.4 10.2 10.4 13.3	1.41 1.25 2.41 1.67 2.58	0.78 0.86 1.16 0.99 1.22
076015 M.A: EA	Eamont at I Local No: 761605	Poolay Bridge Sens.: 11.8	C.A: 145.0 km ² S/tull: 46.9m ³ s ⁻¹	7095	2239		1699		7.81	74.2	09/03 1989	0.40	07/09 1976	17.7	4.88	0.91
F.A.R: SP Comment: Compound installed as drowning v variable compensation forming core of the Lal arable in lower reache	Level: 144m d Crump profile weir 29.3m vas expected, but rarety drow i releases from here and Ha ke District dome where shee is, moorland on high ground.	UE: wide with low crest 9.1m ns, crest tapping not used. weswater. # Lower Palaeco grazing on rough pasture Some Boulder Clay cover	FAI: wide. Crest tapping Just d/s of Utilswater - zoic shales and grits predominates. Some	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1733 2149 2496 2463 2618	77 96 111 110 117	939 1531 2046 2010 2363	55 90 120 118 139	4.31 7.04 9.41 9.24 10.84	34.8 73.5 60.5 56.2 65.9	06/11 19/02 24/10 09/12 12/12	0.62 1.37 1.48 1.40 1.22	23/09 26/08 27/05 12/08 30/07	11.6 16.3 18.9 22.4 24.1	1,45 3.23 6.65 5.76 6.02	1.07 1.60 1.93 1,73 1.85
076003 M.A: EA	Eamont Local No: 762006	at Udford Sens.:	C.A: 396.2 km ² B/full: 320.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6195	1844		1185		14.89	299.9	23/03 1968	0,45	25/08 1984	32.2	9.32	2.25
F.A.R: S Comment: Valocity-a flows. All flows contain by Uliswater, Hawesw Ordovician volcanics reaches; Coal Measur and lower reaches. Mo	Level: 91m rea station. Permanent cabil ed. Short term ratings derive ater and Wet Sleddale. Natu of peat moorland headwater es and Permo-Triassic s'st n osty grazing.	UE: <.01 away 120m u/s of recorde d because of weed growth, ralised monthly flows 1967 rs; broad band of Carboni earer station. Extensive Bo	FAI: 0.865 r, wading d/s for low Artificially influenced 2-1965. # 65% drains ferous L'st in middle pulder Clay in valleys	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1403 1765 2075 2024 2256	76 96 113 110 122	671 1112 1602 1486	57 94 135 125	8.40 13.96 20.13 18.67	136.2 232.6 223.7 185.1	05/11 19/02 24/10 03/12	1.20 2.97 3.91 4.19	23/09 31/01 27/05 05/09	22.2 30.9 38.2 42.9	3.69 6.20 14.80 10.49	1.72 3.17 5.50 4.74

149

				Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m³s²¹)	Peak flow (m³a⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (^{m³} ** ¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m³s-1)	50 Percentile (m ¹ a ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (^{m1} s ⁻¹)
076002 M.A: EA F.A.R: SP	Eden at Wa Local No: 762507 Level: 18m	rwick Bridge Sens.: 8.0 UF:<01	C.A: 1366.7 km ² B/full: 410.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.957	5995	1293		792		34.31	1343.0	01/04 1968	2.94	25/07 1989	73.8	21.60	6.74
Comment: VA cablew months 5-12 replaced rock step. Very respon # Horseshoe shaped Pennines; Lakes drain sandstone. Land use v	ay station subject to bypass in 1996 by non-standard trian sive. Influenced by major ab- outcrop of Carboniterous Lii Silurian volcanics. Main Vale - ariable, moorland to arable.	ing over 3.8m on LB and ngular profile compound w stractions from Haweswalt mestone forms south and of Eden is Boulder Clay cov	severe weed growth eir sited on a natural er and Wet Sleddale. I east watersheds in vered Permo-Triassic	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	974 1218 1490 1440 1647	75 94 115 111 127	543 746	69 94	23.45 32.31	258.9 555.0	06/11 19/02	6.85 9.94	24/09 22/07	49.2 61.1	15.49 17.19	6.14 11.00
076011 M.A: EA	Coal Burn Local No: 763117	at Coalburn Sens.:	C.A: 1.5 km ² B/full: 14.5m ³ s ⁻¹	6795	1288		967		0.05	5.9	29/08 1975	0.00	01/09 1995	0.1	0.02	>0.00
F.A.K: N Comment: Compound theoretically. Zero flows Commission. Small ex canopy closure. Natura catchment raingauges. with Boulder Clay and t	Level: 275m broad crested weir; full-range s common in summer months perimental catchment to she at catchment. Areal rainfall d # Tributary of R. irthing. Stee planket peat cover. Usage wa	UE: <.01 Replaced Crump profile we Jointly managed by EA, 0 we the affects of afforesta erived by CEH using a sm p catchment around 300m o s entirely moorland before	FAI: 1.000 eirin Aug 1991. Rated CEH and the Forestry tion from planting to all network of within- on Carboniferous L'st being afforested,	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	968 1172 1439 1290 1502	75 91 112 100 117	611 743 1107 961 1053	63 77 114 99 109	0.03 0.04 0.05 0.05 0.05	1.3 2.2 1.3 2.2 1.8	30/04 17/02 08/01 05/01 11/01	0.00 0.00 >0.00 0.00 0.00	18/06 01/06 19/05 02/08 01/07	0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1	0.01 >0.00 >0.00 >0.00 >0.00 >0.00	>0.00 >0.00 >0.00 >0.00
076008 M.A: EA	Irthing at C Local No: 763308	Sreenholme Sens.: 15.0	C.A: 334.6 km ² B/full: 180.0m ³ s ⁻¹	6795	1067		706		7.49	247.8	03/01 1982	0.08	31/05 1975	17.8	3.65	1.02
F.A.R: SP Comment: Velocity-arr most of flow range. D/ Flat V, insensitive at low Pennines are short, ste by Carboniferous L'st - and gravels. Land use:	Level: 18m sa station. Permanent cablev so gravel abstractions caused w flows. Moderately affected 1 ep and flashy through heathe outcorps on steep slopes. Ex moorland to arable.	UE: <,01 vay. Before 1/9/75 gabion I scour, rating changes fre by Castle Carrock Res. # Ti r and moorland cover. Soli tensive hill peat, Boulder C	FAI: 0.996 control effective over equent. Now informat ributaries rising in the d geology dominated lay and glacial sands	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	800 990 1298 1179 1302	75 93 122 110 122	437 571 881 780 903	62 81 125 110 128	4.62 6.06 9.35 8.27 9.56	85.6 146.7 124.4 264.9 257.6	19/12 17/02 07/03 05/01 11/01	0.74 1.04 1.11 1.05 1.17	24/09 30/08 26/05 11/08 22/07	10.9 13.4 20.4 17.1 20.1	2.33 2.73 5.65 4.52 5.13	0.83 1.09 1.68 1.47 1,42
076010 M.A: EA	Petteril at H. Local No: 764009	arraby Green Sens.: 25.1	C.A: 160.0 km ² B/full: 38.1m ³ s ⁻¹	7095	929		419		2.13	59.1	27/03 1987	0.17	22/08 1995	5.3	1.10	0.27
F.A.K: N Comment: Velocity-are full width of channel. Re in 1973 and 1974). Ne flowing N to Carliste. Ca Triassic s'sts covered in	Lever: 20m ea station with sharp-edged m arely overtopped. Permanent atural catchment. # Long, th arboniferous L'st in headwate with Boulder Clay and valley	UE: < 01 ectangular weir; d/s concre cableway. Weed growth af in catchment rising in mo rs; remainder: Upper Carbo gravel.	FAI: 0.994 te apron. Weir nearly ffects rating (severely orland W of Pennith, oniferous and Permo-	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	675 846 1050 1061 1205	73 91 113 114 130	243 315 483 518 641	58 75 115 124 153	1.23 1.60 2.45 2.63 3.24	23.6 35.4 34.3 36.9 33.4	10/02 17/02 24/10 03/03 12/01	0.18 0.22 0.34 0.23 0.30	19/09 26/08 16/07 05/09 12/08	2.8 3.7 5.9 6.2 8.2	0.54 0.58 1.36 1.22 1.87	0.19 0.25 0.41 0.26 0.35
076009 M.A: EA F.A.R: N	Caldew at Local No: 765011 Level: 60m	t Holm Hill Sens.: 10.2 UE: <.01	C.A: 147.2 km ² B/full: 190.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.999	6895	1436		999		4.66	181.4	25/11 1979	0.45	21/09 1995	10.5	2.79	0.81
Comment: Natural cha changes due to gabion cableway. Natural catcl	nnel with low flow gabion contr suffering damage at high velo iment. Station closed 10/04/2	ol, severely affected by gra- cities. Full range of flows c 2000. # Rises on impervious	vel deposition. Rating ontained. Permanent s Skiddaw States and	1996 1997 1998	974 1311 1546	68 91 108	555 671	56 67	2.58 3.13	61.5 85.7	05/11 19/02	0.30 0.34	1 9/08 26/08	5.9 8.3	1.39 1.18	0.34 0.43
flows northward over C 200m. Rural catchment	arboniferous L'st and Coai Me , heath and moorland in heady	easures. Hill peat; Boulder vaters, arable farming confi	Clay extensive below ned to lower reaches.	1999 2000	1592 1803	111 126	905	91	4.22	87.6	06/12	0.33	05/09	10.3	2.19	0.47
M.A: EA F.A.R: SP	Eden at Si Local No: 765512 Level: 7m	Sens.: 3.5 UE: <.01	C.A: 2286.5 km [*] B/full: 230.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.973	6795	1211	-	714		51.76	1357.0	24/03 1968	5.47	07/09 1976	114.3	31.46	9.71
immediate channel, Pri may block at high flows Highly influenced by U recalibration. # Rural Limestone of Pennine: moorland. Extensive B grazing.	ea station, Permanent cat e-1970 (when floodbanks cor ; gravel movement around d) Iltswater, Haweswater and V except for Carlisle, Penith s to east, impervious Lower oulder Clay covered Permo-	Neway, Full-Tange, Most sistructed) bypassed via Ca s bridge and weed growth Wet Steddale especially a and Appleby. Headwate Palaeozoics of Lake Dis Triassic sandstone in Vale	toobas contained in ildew floodplain. Inlet may affect low flows. t low flows. Periodic ers in Carboniferous strict massif to west; of Eden. Arable and	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	889 1115 1377 1325 1508	73 92 114 109 125	436 584 801 823 1003	61 82 112 115 140	31.54 42.35 58.10 59.65 72.53	357.9 685.7 666.0 785.0 701.1	06/11 ,20/02 25/10 06/01 12/01	5.49 8.82 12.42 10.42 11.48	24/09 22/07 26/05 12/08 24/07	71.2 83.5 117.3 135.1 179.7	19.00 20.51 40.12 36.87 45.76	7.19 9.85 15.74 12.54 14.51
077001 M.A: EA F.A.R: N	Esk at I Local No: 770201 Level: 14m	Netherby Sens.: 7.3 UE: <.01	C.A: 841.7 km ² B/full: 620.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.997	6395	1453		970		25.89	1112.0f	31/10 1977	1.85	25/07 1984	61.6	13.80	3.26
Comment: Velocity-ar after high flows and gra Black Esk Res. 47km (otherwise SEPA area, centre and Permo-Tria north, arable in S.	ea station. Permanent cable avel abstractions d/s affect ra i/s. Natural catchment. # EA Rural. Silurian rocks with ig ssic succession in S. Widely	eway. Full-range. Regrada ting. High flow gauging dif jurisdiction extends 9km u reous intrusions in north. blanketed by Boulder Clay	ng of natural control ficult because flashy. /s to Scottish border, Carboniferous L'st in y. Heavily forested in	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1261 1364 1693 1552 1706	87 94 117 107 117	877 1005 1303 1074 1235	90 104 134 111 127	23.35 26.82 34.77 28.67 32.87	482.1 900.8 570.9 541.6 629.2	05/11 17/02 20/10 24/01 24/10	1.96 4,72 4.36 3.03 2.64	20/09 22/07 26/05 24/08 28/07	56.5 62.2 80.6 66.4 72.2	13.54 13.39 23.37 15.36 19.58	2.41 5.47 6.21 3.72 4.24
077005 M.A: EA F.A.R: N	Lyne at C Local No: 770302 Level: 12m	l iff Bridge Sens.: 13.3 UE: <.01	C.A: 191.0 km ² B/full: 620.0m ³ s ⁻¹ FAI: 0.999	7695	1166		852		5.16	292.8	30/10 1977	0.27	25/07 1984	13.4	2.31	0.48
Comment: Flat V wei which disturb rating an relief catchment drainin the moorland and Boul	with a cableway 30m u/s. I d cause weir to drown early g the Bewcastle fells. Carbon der Clay on the lower slopes	Subject to severe accretio , Regular maintenance ne tiferous L'st solid geology i), Entirely rural.	n from gravel shoals cessary. # Moderate s covered by peat on	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	897 1033 1358 1184 1324	77 89 116 102 114	534 834 1200	63 98 141	3.23 5.05 7.27	123.3 142.2 140.2	05/11 17/02 16/08	0.30 0.70 0.58	21/09 22/07 26/05	7.6 12.8 18.9	1.51 2.22 3.84	0.40 0.84 0.86

.

Map 12: NORTHERN IRELAND



Area: 14,133 km²

Gauging Station Register

÷

Station number	River name	Station name		Grid reference	Catchment area (sq km)	Station type	Partod of record	Mean ann, rainfail (mm)	Mean อกก. runoff (mm)	Meen ann. Iosa (mm)	Max. ann. runoff {سس}	Year of max.	Min. ann. runoff (mm)	Year of min.	Mean flow (^{m*} •* ¹)	Min, mon, flow (m*=*!)	Month/Year of min.	Median ann. ftood (m'a'')	Base Flow Index	10 Percentite (m*e**)	95 Percentile (m ¹ e ⁻¹)
201006 201005 201002 201009 201008 201010 201007 202002 202001 202001 203043	Drumragh Carnowen Fairywater Owenkällew Derg Mourne Burn Dennet Faughan Roe Oonawater	Campsie Bridge Camowen Terrace Dudgeon Bridge Crosh Castlederg Drumabouy Ho Burndennet Br Drumahoe Ardnargle Shanmoy	Ξ 3 7 7 7 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	459722 460730 405757 419866 265842 348961 372047 464151 674246 780557	320.0 276.6 158.4 440.1 335.4 1843.8 148.3 273.1 364.4 94.1	VA VA VA VA VA VA VA FVVA	1972-00 1972-00 1971-00 1980-00 1975-00 1982-00 1975.00 1976-00 1975-99 1986-00	1174 1156 1342 1413 1727 1356 1208 1255 1269 1066	830 768 1047 1134 1343 998 867 956 867 576	344 388 295 279 384 358 341 299 402 490	1080 1033 1402 1325 1744 1207 1200 1213 1196 724	99 99 99 99 99 81 81 81 81 81	490 412 628 889 1006 789 560 721 596 451	75 75 89 87 87 87 83 97 97	8.43 6.74 5.26 15.82 14.28 58.36 4.08 8.28 10.02 1.72	0.39 0.61 0.19 1.97 0.42 2.93 0.58 0.93 0.76 0.01	07/89 07/89 08/76 08/83 08/83 08/95 08/76 08/95 08/95 08/95	106.7 87.8 67.3 291.9 200.7 604.0 78.5 140.7 147.7 74.5	.35 .43 .26 .39 .34 .42 .50 .36	21.8 15.1 13.4 36.1 35.4 144.1 8.8 18.5 24.5 4.4	0.63 1.02 0.38 2.72 0.74 6.33 0.87 1.40 1.22 0.09
203010 203025 203038 203033 203017 203024 203026 203042 203042 203042 203012 203029	Blackwater Caltan Rocky Upper Bann Upper Bann Cusher Glenavy Crumtin Batinderry Six Mile Wtr	Maydown Bridge Callan New Br Rocky Mountain Bannfield Dynes Bridge Gaenavy Cidercourt Br Ballinderny Br Ballinderny Br Ballinderne	エ王ととととと王王	821519 892525 243265 234341 043511 043511 047471 149725 134765 926798 282902	970.2 166.9 7,7 101.7 316.3 170.7 44.6 55.3 430.2 58.4	VA FV VA VA VA VA VA VA	1970-00 1971-00 1986-00 197500 1970-91 197100 197198 1981-00 1970-00 1973-90	999 925 1582 1286 1016 966 992 1006 1087 1179	569 523 1237 828 532 568 548 639 687 869	430 402 345 458 484 398 444 367 400 310	797 778 1581 1028 683 793 839 803 1023 1158	88 96 96 79 00 72 93 99 76	314 289 987 583 341 313 250 403 390 538	75 75 91 92 89 83 75 83 75 75	17.50 2.77 0.30 2.67 5.34 3.07 0.77 1.12 9.37 1.61	0.65 0.16 0.02 0.17 0.34 0.09 0.05 0.06 0.93 0.10	08/75 07/77 08/95 07/75 07/77 08/95 07/84 07/84 08/75 07/78	97.3 36.7 63.1 77.0 55.9 18.5 39.6 123.7	44 .33 .34 .36 .40 .44 .36 .51 .50	45.0 6.6 0.7 6.4 11.9 7.7 1.6 2.6 19.9 3.4	1.21 0.28 0.04 0.27 0.50 0.15 0.08 0.10 1.58 0.16
203018 203046 203039 203092 203011 203027 203021 203093 203020 203019	Six Mile Wtr Rathmore Clogh Main Maine Braid Keltswater Maine Moyola Claudy	Antrim Rathmore Bridge Tullynewey Dunminning Lw Dromona Ballee Curry's Bridge Share's Viaduct Moyola New Br Glenone Bridge	SICCODDCC	145867 197855 088111 051110 049090 098015 107971 087897 956905 961037	277.6 22.5 98.7 221.5 243.5 177.2 126.3 707.4 304.3 126.3	VA VA VA VA VA VA VA VA VA	1970-00 1983-00 1983.00 1983.00 1970.99 1972-00 1971-00 1983.00 1971-00 1972.00	1094 1103 1397 1240 1195 1191 1193 1174 1228 1117	690 586 876 812 735 851 786 884 874 874	404 517 521 428 460 340 407 290 354 300	898 893 1044 1019 945 1226 1026 1133 1126 1217	99 85 98 00 79 98 88 99 99 82	415 446 642 578 476 404 526 705 652 472	75 97 97 97 75 75 73 73	6.07 0.42 2.74 5.70 5.67 4.78 3.15 19.84 8.43 3.27	0.47 0.03 0.16 0.61 0.49 0.42 0.14 1.12 0.87 0.16	08/83 09/96 07/84 07/84 08/99 08/75 08/83 07/84 08/95 08/95	75.0 11.1 35.9 62.0 54.2 72.2 83.7 209.9 109.9 40.4	.53 .51 .45 .48 .32 .48 .43 .43	12.7 0.9 6.1 12.2 13.6 9.7 7.5 43.6 19.4 7.9	0.85 0.05 0.28 0.86 0.65 0.75 0.26 2.30 1.39 0.36
203040 203028 204001 205008 205010 205005 205004 205015 205020 205020 205011	Lower Bann Agivey Bush Lagan Lagan Ravernet Lagan Cotton Enler Annacloy	Movanagher Whitehill Seneirl Bridge Drumiller Banoge Ravemet Newforge Grandmere Comber Kilmore Bridge	CCCCCCC	931154 882193 942382 236525 123540 268613 328693 524818 459697 448507	5209.8 100.5 299.2 84.6 189.8 73.5 491.6 19.2 61.8 186.6	×	1980-00 1972-00 1972.00 1974.00 1974.94 1978-00 1972-00 1990-00 1983-00 1979-00	1024 1246 1132 1041 941 955 927 968 945 1000	577 891 702 571 433 521 546 388 386 584	447 355 430 470 508 434 381 580 559 416	690 1190 980 954 670 705 785 462 534 757	88 90 81 81 78 80 79 00 00 00	423 686 415 310 217 338 309 324 254 368	97 97 75 83 89 75 91 89 89	95.28 2.84 6.66 1.53 2.61 1.22 8.50 0.24 0.76 3.45	11.82 0.16 0.44 0.01 0.03 0.01 0.62 0.01 0.06 0.06	09/95 08/95 08/83 08/95 07/84 08/76 08/95 07/84 07/84	81.1 61.0 28.0 120.7 14.5 77.8 22.9 35.7	.68 .35 .43 .34 .22 .44 .45 .46	217.6 6.6 14.8 3.5 5.8 3.1 21.1 0.6 1.7 8.8	14.20 0.36 0.98 0.07 0.04 1.00 0.02 0.09 0.14
206001 206002 236005 236007	Clanrye Jerretspass Colebrooke Sillees	Mount Mill Br Jerretspass Ballindarragh Br Drumrainy Br	H I C C	086310 065331 332358 205400	120.3 107.8 313.6 166.3	VA VA VA VA	197400 197200 197500 1981-00	1000 894 1171 1441	545 240 790 1047	455 654 381 394	712 334 1080 1366	85 97 98 99	358 73 573 773	89 73 76 89	2.08 0.82 7.85 5.52	0.12 0.01 0.44 0.14	08/83 10/72 08/95 07/89	23.2 9.6 102.5 23.8	.50 .40 .38 .53	4,7 2.0 19.7 13.4	0.22 0.03 0.71 0.37

Hydro	ometric S	tatistics		Регіод	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	Peak flow (m ¹ a ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (m ¹ a ⁻¹)	Oate of min.	10 Percentile (m³e⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m³e**)	95 Percentile (m ¹ s ⁻¹)
201006	Drumra	igh at Campsie Bridge	C.A: 320.0 km²	7295	1150		818		8.31	245.1	21/10	0.16	15/07	21.2	4.20	0.60
M.A: RA	Local No:	Sens.: 11.0	541 0 000								1987		1977			
F,A.R: N	Level: 63m	UE: <.01	FAI: 0.998	1000	1400	07	700	øn	7 30	120 0	00000	0 59	20/07	20.7	2.05	0.76
Comment: Velo	city-area station with cable	way. Hows for entire period	or record reprocessed in	1990	1120	9/	702	03	7.30	01.0	10/00	0.50	24/08	20.7	2.00	0.1
2002. No water a	abstractions or significant re	sums. # Catchinent geology i	s applox 70% lower OKS	1002	1400	122	1004	123	10.10	116.9	22/11	0.00	05/06	26.5	5 36	1 1'
with some congic	bes and upload booth No	ninanuy (200%) improved	1000	1403	122	1080	132	10.15	154.2	03/12	0.52	02/08	30.8	4 84	1.05	
grassianu, some	i bog and upland neam. No	significant orban development		2000	1320	115	930	114	9.41	112.5	29/10	0.54	23/07	23.0	4.30	0.72
201005	. Camow	en at Camowen Terrace	C.A: 276.6 km ²	7295	1147		752		6.59	193.1	21/10	0.28	07/08	14.9	3.96	0.97
M.A: RA	Local No:	Sens.: 26.0									1987		1975			
F.A.R:	Level: 66m	UE: .02	FAI: 0.991													
Comment: Velo	city-area station with cable	way, informal broad-crested v	weir (for mill use) acts as	1996	1100	96	742	99	6.49	83.4	06/08	1.05	20/07	14.1	4.09	1.31
control. Flows fr	orn 1975 onwards reproces	sed in 2002. The net effect of	abstractions for PWS and	1997	1093	95	661	88	5.79	67.9	19/02	1.30	24/08	14.0	3.35	1.53
augmentations fi	rom effluent returns is mir	hor. # Catchment geology: n	nixed impermeable rocks	1998	1302	114	964	128	8.46	88.8	22/11	1.84	04/06	18.2	5.90	2.2
(granite, schist a	nd gneiss, and sandstone)	overlain by substantial deposi	its of till, sand and gravel.	1999	1368	119	1033	137	9.06	126.3	03/12	1.60	28/07	21.1	5.31	1.86
Largely upland - urban developme	 improved grassland is pre ent. 	dominant, some bog and upt	and heath. No significant	2000	1237	108	842	112	7.36	80.7	08/12	1.04	29/08	, 16.0 ,	4.27	1.2
201002	, Fairywa	iter at Dudgeon Bridge	C.A: 158.4 km ²	7195	1323		1027		5.16	120.6	19/01	0.09	09/07	13.1	2.45	0.37
M.A: RA	Local No:	Sens.: 17.0									1988		1984			
F.A.R: N	Level: 61m	UE: <.01	FAI: 0.999													
Comment: Velo	city-area station with cable	eway. Flows from 1977 repro	cessed in 2002. Natural	1996	1283	97	906	88	4.54	76.6	06/08	0.23	20/07	12.7	2.01	0.39
regime - no water	r abstractions or significant	returns. # Catchment geology	is 50% Carboniferous L'st	1997	1223	92	891	87	4,47	52.8	17/11	0.51	24/08	11.9	1.96	0.67
some exposed,	with extensive areas of till	and alluvium drift deposits or	h both banks of the river.	1998	1599	121	1367	133	6.87	66.7	23/10	0,77	08/07	18.4	3.46	0.87
Predominantly gr	rassland with some shrub h	eath, bog and coniferous wood	lland. No significant urban	1999	1566	118	1402	137	7.04	88.1	28/11	0.31	02/08	17.9	2.85	0.62
development.			•	2000	1490	113	1174	114	5.88	71.6	29/10	0.24	26/07	14.5	2.88	0.37

HYDROLOGICAL DATA: 1996-2000

					Period	Rainfail (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (^{m3} s ⁻¹)	Peak flow (m³s⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (m ¹ a ⁻¹)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m³e ⁻¹)	50 Percentlle (m ³ a ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m ¹ s-1)
201009 M.A: RA	Local No:	Owenkille	w at Crosh Sens.: 6.0	C.A; 440.1 km ²	8095	1404		1120		15.63	508.5	21/10 1987	1.54	14/08 1983	34.9	8.99	2.60
F.A.R: N Comment: Velocity-are No water abstractions Green Beds and schist gravels, peat and till, some shrub heath and	Level: 40m sa station with or significant s, basalts and alluvium near coniferous wo	cableway. Flov returns. # Co igneous comp watercourses. odland; no sig	UE: <.01 vs for full period of red mplicated faulted min lexes, with small area Predominantly grass nificant urban develop	FAI: 0.998 cord reprocessed in 2002. kture of Upper Dalradian of fist; overlain by sands, sland with significan bog, prment.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1337 1281 1506 1594 1503	95 91 107 114 107	1082 915 1271 1325 1304	97 82 113 118 116	15.06 12.76 17.74 18.50 18.15	284.2 211.8 245.0 355.1 215.5	05/08 19/02 24/10 28/11 04/12	2.25 2.56 3.11 2.79 2.35	20/07 24/08 04/06 02/08 24/07	33.9 31.7 37.7 44.9 40.4	8.87 6.62 11.64 10.14 11.54	2.94 3.06 3.47 3.43 3.08
201008 M A: BA	Local No:	Derg at C	astlederg Sens : 13.0	C.A: 335.4 km²	7595	1711		1317		14.01	244.8	21/09 1985	0.11	22/07 1989	34.8	7.40	0.65
F.A.R.: E Comment: Velocity-arc but there are no signifu mean catchment runol strata in Upper and Mi considerable rock dom marsh (>2%, high for	Level: 43m aa station with cant water abs if in NI. Flows ddle Dalradian iinanca. Predo NI). Contains (cableway. Hea tractions or eff from 1975 on Ouartzite serie minantly grass Castlederg (po	UE: <.01 dwaters contain Lough luent returns u/s of the wards reprocessed in es. Erratic overburden land, sig. coniferous p. 2,600).	FAI: 0.917 h Derg and Lough Mourne e station. Highest gauged n 2002. # Heavily faulted of till, peet and afluvium, woodland, some bog and	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1479 1528 1961 2017 1930	86 89 115 118 113	1073 1095 1670 1744 1662	81 83 127 132 126	11.38 11.64 17.76 18.55 17.63	174.0 154.1 198.1 228.9 181.5	05/11 16/09 22/10 28/11 02/03	0.61 0.83 0.96 1.35 0.74	23/06 10/07 28/05 12/06 18/07	29.4 32.2 41.2 47.3 39.9	5.76 5.46 11.02 9.93 11.32	0.90 1.19 1.59 2.04 1.10
201010 M.A: RA	M Local No:	lourne at Drui	nnabuoy House Sens.: 6.0	C.A: 1843.8 km ²	8295	1338		987		57.72	1058.6	21/10 1987	1.32	24/07 1989	140.3	32.30	5.69
F.A.R: S Comment: Velocity-an reprocessed in 2002. some Carboniferous L some shrub, bog and c no major industry) and	Level: 7m ea station with # Geology: m 'st W of Oma coniferous woo Castlederg (2	i cableway and ixed impermea gh. A mainly i dland) but with ,600).	UE: .01 I natural control, Flow toble (granite, schist a ural catchment (pred urban development a	FAI: 0.979 rs for full period of record ind gneiss, and sist) with lominantly grassland with at Omagh (pop. 17,3000 -	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1252 1231 1519 1570 1474	94 92 114 117 110	888 791 1166 1207 1117	90 80 118 122 113	51.79 46.24 68.20 70.58 65.14	575.9 479.1 547.9 884.9 507.5	06/08 19/02 20/10 28/11 08/12	4.37 5.41 7.48 7.05 4.02	20/07 25/08 05/06 24/08 26/07	123.7 124.9 164.7 182.1 158.8	30.85 23.44 43.53 39.23 39.48	6.32 7.24 9.55 8.51 6.24
201007 M.A: RA	Local No:	Burn Dennet	at Burndennet Sens.: 10.0	C.A: 148.3 km ²	7595	1193		868		4.08	149.8	21/10 1987	0.41	28/08 1976	8.9	2.73	0.85
F.A.R: E Comment: Velocity-a underlying gravels ma schist, timestone and q and gravel deposits eit grassland, some bog a	, Level: 0m rea station w ly be significa uartzite curtail her side of the ind shrub heat	ith cableway nt. No water a ed at Burndenr river, remaind h rising to abov	UE: < 01 and natural control; abstractions or signifi net Bridge by a major (er till and limited peat ve 500 mOD; no signif	FAI: 1.000 ; discharge through the icant returns. # Geology: fault drop. Extensive sand . Predominantly improved ficant urban development.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000,	1176 1131 1328 1478 1325	99 95 111 124 111	795 656 981 1040 869	92 76 113 120 100	3.73 3.09 4.61 4.89 4.08	123.7 58.8 108.4 130.3 76.3	05/08 19/02 22/10 28/11 08/12	0.87 0.75 0.92 0.66 0.75	20/07 25/08 08/07 24/08 24/07	7.9 6.8 9.0 11.8 9.2	2.26 1.77 2.91 2.66 2.49	1.08 0.88 1.16 0.76 0.91
202002 M.A: RA	Local No:	Faughan a	t Drumahoe Sens.: 11.0	C.A: 273.1 km²	7695	1243		955		8.27	253.4	21/10 1987	0.72	13/07 1992	18.3	5.35	1.32
F.A.R: PGEI Comment: Velocity-an period of record reproc - till, peat and alluvium, heath and bog. Subur upland basin. Importan	Level: 7m ea station with essed in 2002, some glacial ban developm it game anglin	n cableway ani # Geology: lay outwash near ient near coas g river.	UE: .01 d natural control alter rered Upper Datradian river. Predominantly g t - some light indust	FAI: 1,000 ed in 1985. Flows for full n with some quartzite. Drift rassland with some shrub ry; otherwise agricultural,	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1173 1179 1358 1449 1328	94 95 109 117 107	832 737 1067 1085 1084	87 77 112 114 114	7.18 6.38 9.24 9.39 9.36	175.6 105.0 160.0 245.1 151.5	05/08 19/02 22/10 28/11 08/12	1.15 1.38 1.78 0.94 1.47	20/07 19/08 07/07 24/08 16/07	15.8 15.5 18.7 22.9 20.4	4.51 3.77 6.32 4.91 6.14	1.71 1.70 2.09 1.20 1.56
202001 M.A: RA	Local No:	Roe at /	Ardnargie Sens.: 8.0	C.A: 364.4 km ²	7595	1267		867		10.02	185.9	02/10 1981	0.61	21/08 1995	24.5	5.14	1.20
F.A.R: SN Comment: Velocity-an d(s, at u/s limit of back flows removed from N yielding some 32 Mi/d cuttivated alluvial plain. igneous rocks. Predon woodland. Intensively c (pop. 2,800).	Level: 1m ea station with waters created RFA pending I. # High upla . Geology very ninantly grassi ultivated alluvia	cableway. Rou I by tides. Flow further validatis nd headwater varied with me and headwate al plain. Contain	UE: .01 gh profiled stone and . s for POR reprocesses on. Headwaters conta area sloping fairly st atamorphic, sedimenta rs with some shrub h ts towns of Limarady (p	FAI: 0.993 concrets weir immediately ed in 2002. 1982 and 2000 ain Altnaheglish reservoir, eeply onto an intensively any and contemporaneous weath, bog and coniferous pop. 10,800) and Dungiven	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1183 1127 1398 1423 1333	93 89 110 112 105	779 596 905 1180	90 - 69 104 136	8.98 6.88 10.46 13.64	151.4 119.4 170.1 176.8	05/08 17/11 02/11 28/11	1.14 0.79 1.27 0.71	20/07 24/08 27/05 13/07	25.4 18.5 23.0 30.9	3.92 2.90 5.52 9.06	1.41 1.03 1.55 1.84
203043 M.A: RA	Local No:	Oonawater	at Shanmoy Sens.:	C.A: 94.1 km ²	8695			5 68		1.70	42.9	21/10 1987	0.01	31/08 1995	4.3	0.84	0.07
F.A.R: RPI , Comment: Velocity-arr of record reprocessed habitation. Highest tota 76%).	Level: 36m ea station with in 2002. # Pre al grass cover (cableway; Flat dominantly im (92%) of gauge	UE: <.01 V weir constructed in proved grassland with d NI catchments (high	FAI: 0.984 1986. Flows for full period h no significant centres of hest improved grass also -	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	949 1131 1121 1061		539 451 678 659 631	95 79 119 116 111	1.60 1.35 2.02 1.97 1.88	17.9 19.9 40.2 43.5 29.1	24/10 19/02 24/10 24/12 08/12	0.06 0.09 0.12 0.10 0.07	24/07 23/08 04/06 02/08 23/07	4.3 3.7 4.5 5.3 4.5	0.83 0.61 1.14 0.92 1.01	0.08 0.13 0.25 0.16 0.13
203010 M.A: RA	B Local No:	lackwater at I	aydown Bridge Sens.: 7.0	C.A: 970.2 km ²	7095	987		563		17.32	157.1	23/10 1987	0.18	04/09 1976	44.9	9.56	1.09
F.A.R: GN Comment: Velocity-an 2002. Flows influencer catchment is in the fris significance is uncerta overlain by substantial with limited afforestatio urban centre.	Level: 15m ea station with 5 by major arte th Republic wh in. # Geology: amounts of till. m. Monaghan	cableway and i mail drainage s ere some grou Carboniferous A predominar Town (pop. 5,0	UE: .01 hatural control. Flows f ccheme - started in 15 indwater may be abst Limestone and Mills thy rural catchment - la 00) - in the Irish Repul	FAI: 0.983 for full POR reprocessed in 983. Substantial portion of racted but its hydrological tone Grit with sandslones argely improved grassland blic - is the only significant	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1011 958 1193 1112 1043	102 97 121 113 106	527 458 685 687 642	94 81 122 122 114	16.17 14.09 21.06 21.14 19.71	110.6 124.2 143.2 156.1 139.4	03/12 19/02 24/10 24/12 08/12	1.34 1.60 2.92 1.34 1.13	21/07 25/08 05/06 01/08 26/07	39.2 32.8 48.2 58.9 47.6	10.17 7.48 12.58 10.42 11.61	1.83 2.14 3.71 2.22 1.77
203025 M.A: RA	Local No:	Callan at M	artin's Bridge Sens.: 13.0	C.A; 166.9 km ²	7195	915		500		2.65	41.1	21/10 1987	0.07	18/09 1976	6.3	1.39	0.25
F.A.R: RPI Comment: Velocity-ar Flows from 1975 onwa PWS and industrial us (Ordovician), overlain t with some light industr	Level: 16m ea station with rds reprocesse e; minor net e by till. Predomin y, and Keady	cableway; nat d in 2002. Res ffact. # Geolo nantly improve (pop. 2,500).	UE: .03 ural control. U/s bridg ervoir storage in catch gy: mixed shales (Ca d grassland, Urban are	FAI: 0.959 le surcharged in high flow. ment with abstractions for rboniferous) and quartzite eas: Armagh (pop. 14,700)	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	924 914 1004 994 1018	101 100 110 109 111	621 558 654 660 681	124 112 131 132 136	3.26 2.95 3.46 3.49 3.59	31.0 33.2 39.5 40.5 42.2	09/02 19/02 06/01 24/12 08/12	0.30 0.33 0.60 0.35 0.39	21/09 03/10 26/09 04/09 27/07	7.3 7,4 7,7 9,7 7,9	2.12 1.45 1.98 1.41 2.00	0.51 0.46 0.69 0.49 0.51
203038 M.A: RA F.A.R: N	Local No:	Rocky at Ro	cky Mountain Sens.: 29.0 UE:	C.A: 7.7 km ² FAI:	86-95	1510		1192		0.29	17.1	01/09 1988	0.02	13/08 1995	0.7	0.14	0.04
Comment: Flat V weir, boulders may settle in gaugings (by wading) of 2002; pre-1985 flows ro be underestimated. # / Mountains. 51% shrub	, approx. 6.1 m measuring re- completed. All emoved from a A rugged, impl heath and 495	etres wide in si ach during floc but notable floc irchive, Natural arvious catchm % rough grass	deep mountain stream dds. Theoretical calibr ds contained. Flows for and responsive regiment - with some thin p cover (both maxima for	pebble/cobble bed, large abon - some confirmatory or full POR reprocessed in ve. Catchment rainfall may peat cover - in the Mourne or NI gauged catchments).	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1839 1521 1841 1618 1839	122 101 122 107 122	1587 1233 1395 1174 1247	133 103 117 98 105	0.39 0.30 0.34 0.29 0.30	9.3 11.1 17.3 15.5 9.9	03/01 26/11 23/10 20/09 03/12	0.04 0.04 0.05 0.02 0.03	20/07 18/04 27/05 30/07 24/07	1.0 0.7 0.9 0.7 0.8	0.16 0.13 0.17 0.13 0.15	0.05 0.05 0.06 0.04 0.04

					Perlod	Reinfell (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% at pre-1996	Mean flow (^{m1} s'')	Pesk flow (m's'')	Date of peak	Min. daily Now (m's'')	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m*a**)	50 Percentile (m'a'')	95 Percentile (m's'')
203033 M.A: RA	Local No:	Upper Ban	et Bannfield Sens.: 18.0	C.A: 101.7 km ²	75_95	1264		803		2.59	138.7	26/10 1992	0.12	10 / 07 1977	6.2	1.27	0.26
F.A.R: R Comment: Velocity-ei previously). Flows for Reavy) in catchment is to monitor a prescribe impermeable (granite The catchment is prev	Level: 7/m rea station with full POR report with abstraction d flow of 18 Mi and quartzite) dominantly gras	cableway and cessed in 200 is for PWS the Id. # The Upp overlain with ssland with so	UE: <.01 I Flat V control (installed 12. Reservoir storage (S net effact of which is m er Bann drains the Mous substantial amounts of a me shrub heath; no sign	FAT: U.SO I in 1989, natural control, ipelga and Lough Island inor. The station is used me Mountains. Geology: superficial deposits (1ii). hilicant urban fraction.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1455 1249 1369 1325 1487	115 99 108 105 118	1031 806 935 874 1018	128 100 116 109 127	3.32 2.60 3.02 2.82 3.28	70.7 67.2 75.7 65.7 65.0	04/01 26/11 06/01 20/12 07/12	0.26 0.20 0.28 0.22 0.35	29/06 20/04 27/05 05/07 24/07	8.0 6.3 7.0 5.6 7.6	1.36 0.85 1.15 1.15 1.40	0.37 0.28 0.34 0.28 0.41
203024 M.A: RA	Local No:	Cusher at G	amble's Bridge Sens.: 27.0	C.A: 170.7 km²	7195	960		539		2.92	73.3	21/10 1987	0.00	20/07 1980	7.1	1,50	0.14
F.A.R: N Comment: Velocity-a immediately d/s has st period of record repro Rural catchment, mos (pop. 2,900).	Level; 14m irea station wit lablised the me cessed in 2002 thy improved g	th cableway, I asuring sectio . # Geology: p rassiand with :	UE: <.01 informal concrete-block n. Effect of augmentation redominantly quartzite w some horticulture. Small	PAU: 0.3994 weir, installed in 1980, ns is minor. Flows for full ith basalt overlain by till, I urban area: Tandragee	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	911 943 1011 1021 1056	95 98 105 106 110	617 642 790 710 795	114 119 147 132 147	3.33 3.47 4.27 3.84 4.29	34.7 41.9 46.1 50.3 57.0	04/01 19/02 06/01 24/12 08/12	0.17 0.32 0.37 0.10 0.51	20/07 04/10 10/07 01/08 23/07	8.5 9.0 10.2 10.9 9.4	1.80 1.58 2.23 1.66 2.43	0.19 0.45 0.52 0.15 0.59
203042 M.A: RA	Local No:	Crumlin at Ci	dercourt Bridge Sens.: 21.0	C.A: 55.3 km ²	8195	994		624		1.09	79.4	21/10 1987	0.03	26/07 1984	2.5	0.57	0,10
Comment: Velocity-a reprocessed in 2002, upland - predominant 2,700), some scattere	# Catchment (# Catchment) ty improved g id light industry	th cableway a geology is imp rassland, No /.	nd natural control. Flo rermeable (mainty basal major urban areas, but	ws from 1983 onwards t) overlain by till. Mostly contains Crumlin (pop.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	982 959 1086 1059 1119	99 96 109 107 113	651 596 764 699 704	104 96 122 112 113	1.14 1.05 1.34 1.23 1.23	30.7 51.8 31.4 46.7 29.1	04/01 26/11 24/10 20/09 09/10	0.08 0.13 0.19 0.09 0.05	19/08 21/07 10/07 01/08 15/08	3.0 2.3 3.1 3.5 3.3	0.55 0.42 0.71 0.55 0.51	0.09 0.18 0.23 0.12 0.06
203012 M.A: RA	B. Local No: Level: 16m	allinderry at i	Ballinderry Bridge Sens.: 13.0	C.A: 430.2 km ²	7095	1077		652		8.90	209.2	21/10 1987	0.61	14/08 1975	19.0	5.60	1.50
Comment: Velocity-a reprocessed in 2002 Limestone overlain wit improved grassland) manufacturing works	rea station with # Very mixe th substantial a with signific nearby.	h cableway an ed geology: g mounts of till a ant upland a	d natural control. Flows ranite, schist, shale a nd gravel, Mainly rural c irea. Cookstown (pop	s for full period of record nd some Carboniferous atchment (predominantly . 10,500) has cement	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1034 1049 1220 1255 1124	96 97 113 117 104	745 714 946 1023 894	114 110 145 157 137	10.13 9.74 12.91 13.96 12.17	84.8 88.7 132.9 172.5 130.9	03/12 24/12 24/10 24/12 08/12	2.62 2.97 3.75 4.22 3.67	20/07 21/07 09/07 02/08 25/07	22.1 22.1 25.7 28.6 22.9	6.97 6.13 8.42 8.95 8.61	2.90 3.49 4.40 4.51 4.07
203018 M.A: RA	Local No:	Six-Mile W	ater at Antrim Sens.: 13.0	C.A: 277.6 km ²	7095	1087		671		5.91	163.8	21/10 1987	0.24	20/08 1977	12.3	4.00	0.82
F.A.R. KEI Comment: Velocity-a reprocessed in 2002, geology is almost enti upland – predominan 20,900) has substanti	Level: 13m area station wi The net effect rely basalt with thy improved al light industr	th cableway a of industrial a considerable grassland. Uri y and Ballycta	and natural control. Flo abstractions and effluent superficial deposits (till) ban and suburban dev re (pop. 7,800) is a sma	ws from 1975 onwards treturns is minor, # The Significant proportion of relopment: Antrim (pop. ill market town.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1050 1002 1207 1200 1216	97 92 111 110 112	699 624 878 899 830	104 93 131 134 124	6.14 5.50 7.73 7.91 7.29	80.2 106.8 81.4 104.8 88.2	04/01 26/11 24/10 24/12 09/10	0.44 1.35 1.83 0.79 0.70	21/09 21/07 05/06 24/08 27/07	13.0 11.6 15.4 18.6 15.8	4.10 3.03 5.00 4.56 4.23	0.69 1.69 2.19 1.05 0.86
203046 M.A: RA	Rat Local No:	thmore Burn	at Rathmore Bridge Sens.: 23.0	C.A: 22.5 km ²	8395			607		0.43	9.8	21/10 1987	0.02	19/08 1995	0.9	0.29	0.06
Comment: Velocity-a dominantly improved significant urban cent	grassland, bui res.	iows for full t rock outcrop	period of record reprov s also; some horticultur	cessed in 2002. # Pre- re (mainly potatoes). No	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	961 1134 1156 1152		535 446 559 600 551	88 73 92 99 91	0.38 0.32 0.40 0.43 0.39	6.4 7.8 7.9 10.1 7.8	03/12 26/11 24/10 24/12 09/10	0.02 0.04 0.04 0.04 0.02	19/09 18/07 07/10 01/08 27/07	0.9 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.0	0.25 0.20 0.26 0.25 0.20	0.02 0.07 0.06 0.05 0.03
203039 M.A: RA	Local No:	Clogh at	Tullynewey Sens.: 28.0	C.A: 98.7 km ²	8395			861		2.70	43.2	15/11 1995	D.10	03/07 1995	6.0	1.74	0.26
Comment: Velocity-a Headwaters contain D Agricultural area, spa	rea station with ungonnell reservery populated	n cableway. Fi rvoir, yielding : I - predominan	ows for full period of rec some 12 MI/d. # Geology thy grassland with some	ord reprocessed in 2002. r: a Lower Basalt stratum. shrub heath.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1116 1529 1469 1468		834 642 1044 1004 1033	97 75 121 117 120	2.60 2.01 3.27 3.14 3.23	35.0 33.4 40.1 38.8 25.4d	01/05 26/11 02/04 20/09 08/12	0.15 0.15 0.51 0.15 0.15	17/09 25/08 08/10 26/07 22/07	6.6 4.8 6.6 7.2 7.0	1.41 1.16 2.32 1.89 2.11	0.32 0.24 0.63 0.35 0.23
203092 M.A: RA	Local No:	Maine at	Dunminning Sens.: 8.0	C.A: 221.5 km ²	8395	1223		796		5.59	83.9	16/11 1995	0.37	27/07 1984	12.0	3.88	0.84
Comment: Velocity-a control structure. Flow to points d/s of the st improved grasstand b	vs for full POR ation, # Catchi ation, # Catchi ation catchment of	th cableway I reprocessed in ment develope contains Glarry	ocated immediately d/s 2002. U/s reservoir eff ad mainly on Lower Bas /ford bog.	of a radial gated flood ectively transfers 12 MI/d alt strata. Predominantly	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1201 1051 1417 1399 1371	98 86 116 114 112	763 579 697 1022	96 73 113 128	5.34 4.06 6.30 7.16	63.5 46.9 61.8 59.3	01/05 19/02 03/04 08/12	0.68 0.73 1.64 0.89	22/09 26/08 05/06 24/07	12.2 9.4 13.4 16.7	3.05 2.24 3.82 4.36	0.84 0.83 1.81 1.18
203011 M.A: RA	Local No:	Maine a	t Dromona Sens.: 7.0	C.A: 243.5 km² B/full: 26.7m ³ s ⁻¹	7080	1172		752		5.81	67.1	16/08 1970	0.39	06/07 1975	13.9	3.36	0.72
F.A.R: S Comment: Velocity-s Station was re-sited Dungonnell Res. (12. basalt with 70% overla centres of habitation.	Level: 71m area station w at ID 049 090 5 MI/d) - the m ain by till. A rura	ithout cablewa on 1/11/80, i ajority is return al catchment -	UE: <.01 ay, controlled by a weil retaining same name. V ned d/s of station. # Cat predominantly improved	FAI: 0.993 r of capped sheet piles, Vater is abstracted from chment is atmost entirely grassland. No significant	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1194 1046 1406 1393 1365	102 89 120 119 116	476 818 741	63 109 99	3.67 6.32 5.72	36.2d 46.0d 73.1d	19/02 02/11 20/09	0.70 1.30 0.17	25/08 08/10 01/08	8.6 13.0 15.6	1.91 4.23 1.87	0.80 1.53 0.22
203027 M.A: RA	Local No:	Braid	at Ballee Sens.: 5.0	C.A: 177.2 km ²	7295	1185		821		4.61	161.5	15/11 1995	0.28	18/08 1975	9.3	3.20	0.69
F.A.R: E Comment: Velocity-a Two small impounding Town effluent returned # Geology entirely U attuvium, sand and gr. woodland, rising to 44 (pop. 28,700).	Level: 35m area station wi g reservoirs (ca of to river; hea pper and Low avel near to the 00m; some inte	th cableway. I apacity 409 MI avy weed grow er Basatt exte a river. Predorr ensive pig and	UE: .03 Flows from 1980 onwar combined) for a public v wh in river at Ballee du nsively exposed with th inantly improved grasst poultry units. Ballymen	FAI: U.994 ds reprocessed in 2002. vater extraction of 5 Ml/d. e to effluent discharges. in covering of till. Some and with some coniferous a is the major settlement	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1118 1008 1353 1296 1309	94 85 114 109 110	835 789 1226 1131 980	102 96 149 138 119	4.68 4.43 6.89 6.35 5.49	107.7 77.8 125.9 130.0 95.9	01/05 26/11 02/11 20/09 08/12	1.00 1.55 2.09 1.23 1.02	04/08 23/08 25/02 03/09 23/07	10.5 9.2 12.6 12.6 11.6	2.63 2.97 5.37 4.02 3.23	1.13 1.77 2.83 1.62 1.34
203021 M.A: RA	Local No:	Keliswater a	t Curry's Bridge Sens.: 12.0 UE: < 01	C.A: 126.3 km ² FAI: 0.992	7195	1180		768		3.15	144.7	25/08 1986	0.09	11/08 1983	7.5	1.57	0.25
Comment: Velocity-a confluence with R. Ma reprocessed in 2002 minor. # Catchment grassland with some	area station with ain and there is . Reservoir sto geology: basi shrub heath a	h cableway an some backing rage in catch alt overlain by nd coniferous	d natural control. Gaugi -up at high flows. Flows ment and abstractions f / 'till and rock'. Mostly woodtand. No urban de	ng station is 1.5km u/s of from 1974 onwards were or PWS but net effect is upland - predominantly velopment.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1145 1075 1379 1317 1357	97 91 117 112 115	768 557 839 836 898	97 71 106 106 114	3.07 2.23 3.36 3.35 3.59	69.5 77.2 88.7 134.9 102.2	01/05 26/11 02/11 19/09 25/04	0.41 0.30 0.50 0.36 0.34	21/09 29/08 07/07 18/06 24/07	8.5 5.1 7.9 8.1 8.3	1.28 1.01 1.92 1.48 1.58	0.50 0.44 0.60 0.48 0.43

HYDROLOGICAL DATA: 1996-2000

						Period	Rainfall (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (m ¹ a ⁻¹)	Peak flow (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	Date of peak	Min. dally flow (m³u*t)	Date of min.	10 Percentile (m ¹ s ¹)	50 Percentile (m³e**)	95 Percentile (^{m³a-1})
203093	f and black	~ Maine at Sh	ane's Vladuct		C.A: 707.4 km ²	 8395	1163		862		19.33	298.2	21/10	0.56	 27/07	- 41.5	- 13.07	2.31
M.A: KA F.A.R: Ri Comment: Velocitye	Local No: Level: m	cableway an	UE: .02	f Flourt for f	AI: 0.995	1000							1987		1984			
reprocessed in 2002. It by till (covering over	Net effect of abs 50% of the ca	tractions and i	returns is minor. # . nificant unland an	Almostent eas oredo	inely basalt overlain	1990 1997 1998	1013	90 87 114	1052	94 122	15.12	184.4	24/01	0.66	20/07	47.0	10.75	1.63
grassland. Extensive industry), and Ranalds	bogland in the stown (pop. 4,3	north. Conta 00).	ins Ballymena (po	op. 28,700	- substantial light	1999 2000	1299 1292	112 111	1133 1054	131 122	25.41 23.57	256.3d 208.9	20/09 08/12	1.84 1.57	20/03 01/08 24/07	57.2 53.2	15.13 14.04	5.38 3.00 2.97
203020 M.A: RA E A R: SPGI	N Local No: Level: 13m	loyola at Moy	Sens.: 18.0		C.A: 304.3 km ² .	7195	1216		861		8.30	406.8	05/01 1980	0.31	12/07 1977	19.1	4.89	1.32
Comment: Velocity-ar piers revetted with ger full period of record re basalt, Carboniferous grassland with some	rea station with herally rounded processed in 2 Limestone, sch	cableway. Mul profile, crests 002. Reservoi ist and shale c	ti-arched bridge jus horizontal at same storage in catchr overlain with till, sa	st d/s of sta e level acri ment, # Mi. and and gra	Al, 0.999 Ition, area between oss river. Flows for ked geology: some ivel. Predominantly	1996 1997 1998 1999	1233 1193 1404 1376	101 98 115 113	862 764 998 1126	100 89 116 131	8.30 7.37 9.63 10.86	79.6 82.8 99.6 117.7	28/11 19/02 24/10 24/12	1.28 1.53 1.96 1.94	20/07 25/08 05/06 01/08	20.5 17.8 21.7 27.1	4.77 4.13 6.23 6.38	1.57 1.78 2.23 2.28
Maghera (pop. 3,600)) but no major i	industry.	B	nagneraren		2000				112	3.31	100.7	00/12	1.55	17]07		2.86	1.90
203015 M.A: RA F.A.R: N	Local No: Level; 14m	Claudy at G	Sens.: 13.0 UE: .02	F	C.A: 126.3 km*	7295	1104		811		3.25	60.0	23/10 1980	0.06	17/08 1977	7.9	1.92	0.32
Comment: Velocity-ar gauge gives insensitiv	e low flow con	cableway and trol. Three arc	natural control. Ro h-road bridge 50m	ick bar with n d/s gives	boulders 8m d/s of medium and high	1996 1997	1077 1061	98 96	708 671	87 83	2.83 2.69	23.7 26.4	04/01 19/02	0.44 0.48	20/07 30/08	6.7 6.4	1.52 1.41	0.60 0.62
some peat. Catchmen urban areas or major i	m 1980 onward It is predomina Industry.	s reprocessed ntly iproved g	in 2002. # Geolog rassland with som	gy: basalt c le shrub he	vertain with till and eath; no significant	1998 1999 2000	1277 1298 1199	116 118 109	964 989 • 905	119 122 112	3.86 3.96 3.61	28.2 35.0 34.3	24/10 24/12 08/12	0.95 0.58 0.45	05/06 01/08 23/07	8.7 10.3 8.4	2.39 2.12 2.15	1.10 0.82 0.54
203040	Local No:	Lower Bann a	at Movanagher		C.A: 5209.8 km ²	8095	1018		577		95.24	316.7	09/01	10.60	05/09	215.2	45.91	13.71
F.A.R: SR Comment: Velocity-ar	Level: 7m rea station, no e	cableway, con:	UE: UE: trol is masonry wei	F ir 800m d/s	AI: (built for angling).	1996	980	96	535	93	86.18	253.3	1994 14/01	13.81	1991 21/06	198.9	47.91	15.96
Flows for full POR rep sluices u/s at Portna an of water. Total net expx and drift deposits pre agricultural - predomin urban centres.	rocessed in 20 ad Toome, Loug ort of water from sent in N.Irela wantly improved	02. Station me h Neagh (385) n catchment is nd. Numerou: I grassland bu	easures flow from (sq.km) is within cate approx, 200 MI/d, s aquifers develop it with pop, approx	37% of NI. chment, co # Catchme ped for P ¹ x. 450,000	Flow regulated by intaining 3636 Mm ³ int contains all solid NS. Catchment is concentrated in 8	1997 1998 1999 2000	949 1123 1120 1082	93 110 110 106	423 639 620 686	73 111 107 119	69.89 105.52 102.47 112.97	246.5 290.8 360.9 343.0	26/11 02/11 24/12 20/12	14.71 9.46 14.16 11.27	09/06 22/03 30/08 16/08	197.7 228.9 226.8 254.5	30.16 78.90 53.62 63.53	16.11 16.66 16.00 12.74
203028 M.A: RA	Local No:	Agivey a	t Whitehill Sens.: 14.0		C.A: 100.5 km ²	7295	1229		894		2.85	144,1	21/10 1987	0.11	24/07 1989	6.6	1.57	. 0.35
F.A.R: N Comment: Velocity-ar	Level: 17m rea station with	cableway. Fl	UE: .01 ows from 1975 or	F nwards rep	AI: 1.000 rocessed in 2002,	1996	1173	95	794	89	2.52	54.6	22/08	0.23	20/07	7.3	1.24	0.37
# Geology: mainly bas inantly grassland with areas or major industry	alt overlain by significant bog y.	till with some and some sh	peat. Significant p rub heath and cor	noportion on niferous with	of upland, predom- codland. No urban	1997 1998 1999 2000	1145 1455 1506 1379	93 118 123 112	686 1006 1030 894	77 113 115 100	2.19 3.21 3.28 2.84	60.0 64.8 82.9 64.4	31/08 24/10 24/12 08/12	0.29 0.47 0.36 0.24	24/08 08/10 01/08 27/07	5.3 6.6 7.9 7,1	1.01 1.84 1.58 1.56	0.37 0.54 0.51 0.34
204001 M.A: RA	Local No:	Bush at Se	neirl Bridge Sens.: 9.0	_	C.A: 299.2 km ²	7295	1121		684	•	6.49	93.9	03/10 1981	0.22	01/09 1983	14.5	4.13	0.89
Comment: Velocity-ar	Level: 25m ea station with	cableway and	UE: <.01 I natural control, F	Flows for fu	AI: 0.993 Ill period of record	1996	1096	98	710	104	6.72	63.5	01/05	1.86	08/04	13.5	4.27	2.11
schists in upper reach some horticulture (ma urban centres.	# Predominant ies with a little inly potatoes),	ly basalts with greensand, M bog, conifero	i-a:major fault bis lixed catchment; p us woodland and	ecting the predominar shrub he	catchment. Some htly grassland with ath. No significant	1997 1998 1999 2000	995 1325 1315 1235	89 118 117 110	576 978 861 807	84 143 126 118	5.46 9.28 8.17 7.63	49.0 71.4 69.8 65.7	17/11 22/10 28/11 08/12	1.35 2.65 1.42 1.38	24/08 26/02 02/08 27/07	11.5 19.2 18.6 16.3	3.46 6.77 4.90 5.18	1.68 2.94 1.58 1.69
205008	Local No:	Lagan at	Drumiller Secs : 29.0		C.A: 84.6 km ²	7495	1032		583		1.56	43.2	27/12	>0.00	23/08	3.7	0.77	0.07
F.A.R: N Comment: Velocity-ar	Level: 81m	talibration by a	UE: .01	F installed in	Al: 0.992	1006	1072	104	cc7	A 6	1 40		1978		1995			
start of 1978 onwards # Geology: entirely Silu grassland. Catchment	reprocessed in irian overlain wi contains one la	n 2002. No wa th till. Catchme arge village.	ater abstractions o ent rises to over 50	or significa X0m. Predo	nt effluent returns. minantly improved	1990 1997 1998 1999 2000	1073 1056 1080 1063 1181	104 102 105 103 114	494 499 456 598	90 85 86 78 103	1.33 1.34 1.22 1.60	26.9 38.5 32.4 31.0 34.8	12/01 26/11 29/12 21/09 08/12	0.07 0.14 0.15 0.05 0.06	24/09 22/04 05/06 31/07 27/07	2,7 2,4 2,4 2,5 3,0	0.74 0.54 0.83 0.62 0.78	0.09 0.17 0.21 0.09
205005	1	Ravernet a	it Ravernet		C.A: 73.5 km ²	78-95	940		517		1.21	25.3	21/10	>0.00	25/08	3.1	0.63	0.04
F.A.R: N Comment: Flat V weir	Local No: Level: 31m installed autur	nn 1977, width	Sens.: 45.0 UE: <.01 8.64m Height of	F wing walts	Al: 0.949 2 fm Theoretical	1096	077	104	550	109	1 20	17.0	, ¹⁹⁸⁷	0.02	1984		0.00	0.05
rating applies up to bar accuracy, data remove significant storage in t overlain with 'till and	nkfull; exceeder d in 2002. Flow readwater loug rock'. Predom	nce very unlike s from start of hs, minimal s inantly improv	ety. Previously a V/ 1980 reprocessed oil cover in many /ed grassland with	A station - in 2002, N areas. # h some h	flow data of lesser aturat flow regime; Geology: quartzite orticulture (mainly	1997 1998 1999 2000	981 1001 931 1103	104 106 99 117	494 516 472 642	96 100 91 124	1.15 1.20 1.10 1.49	32.1 13.5 16.1 23.5	26/11 02/04 24/12 07/11	0.02 0.08 0.09 0.04 0.02	22/07 22/07 27/05 31/07 27/07	3.1 2.8 2.8 3.9	0.88 0.39 0.64 0.55 0.51	0.05 0.11 0.13 0.06 0.04
205004		Lagan at	Newforge		C.A: 491.6 km ²	7295	916		537		8.37	159.0	29/12	0.41	10/09	21.0	4.42	0.94
M.A: RA F.A.R: GEI Comment: Velocity-an	Local No: Level: 2m ea station with	cableway. Fio	Sens.: 7.0 UE: .04 ws from start of 1	B F SRC onver	/full: 104.1m³s ⁻¹ Al: 0.986 dt. reprocessed in	1006	070	101	661	104	8 73	75.0	1978	4.40	1991			
2002. Numerous PWS river. # Geology: 60% Hibernian Greensand deposits in lower valley	boreholes - pu 6 Silurian; rem and Lower Ba 9. Predominant	mping capacit ainder - She salts. Heavily ty improved gi	y total nearly 30 M rwood Sandstone overlain with till; rassländ, some ho	fi/d. All effi with som extensive	uents return to the e breccia, Chalk, sand and gravet mainly potatoes).	1990 1997 1998 1999 2000	946 989 960 1058	103 108 105 116	512 583 580 703	95 109 108 131	9.09 9.04 10.93	75.0 132.8 58.9 75.1 142.2	05/01 26/11 04/04 24/12 07/11	1.10 1.36 1.85 1.01 1.83	22/09 04/10 05/06 04/09 22/07	21.5 20.6 20.4 22.5 23.6	4.26 3.40 5.29 4.68 5.29	1.23 1.62 2.17 1.65 2.04
205015	Include Lisbur	Cotton at) and SW areas of Grandmere	i Belfast.	C.A: 19.2 km ²	9095			370		0.22	5.6	03/01	0.01	navoa	0.5	0 13	0.01
M.A: RA F.A.R: Comment: Volation	Local No: Level: 14m		Sens.: 64.0 UE:	F	Al:	400-							1994		1991	4.9		4.41
urban development. Sc	ea station, no bil is shallow br	own earth with	a in 2002. # Mos organic alluvium	& surface	vater gleys.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	990 891 1022		423 336 455 377 463	114 91 123 102 125	0.26 0.20 0.28 0.23 0.28	3.4 3.2 3.9 2.7 3.0d	04/01 04/05 02/11 24/01 08/12	0.01 0.02 0.04 0.02 0.02	25/09 26/09 08/10 01/08 05/08	0.6 0.5 0.7 0.6 0.7	0.12 0.10 0.17 0.11 0.13	0.02 0.03 0.05 0.03 0.02
205020 M A: BA	Locat No.	Enler at	Comber		C.A: 61.8 km²	8395	921		370	_	0.73	26.8	26/08	0.03	11/09	1,7	0.40	0.08
F.A.R: N Comment: Flat V weirii	Level: m trapezoidal.ch	annel containir	UE: .04 UE: .04 Ig the full range of fi	F. Tows, Ratin	Al: 1.000 grevised following	1996	958	104	412	111	0.81	15.0	1986 04/01	0.09	1991	20	0 4 1	0 11
high flow gaugings in reduction in highest flow and 5% Magnesian L'st potatoes)for any gauge Dundonald, pop. 12,900	2000/01 (up to vs). # Geology: . Predominantly d NI catchmen 0.	23.6 m ³ s ⁻¹) 70% Llandove grassland but t. Some urban	all flows reproce ry, 20% Sherwood highest proportion /suburban develop	essed (pro S'st, 5% D (26%) of h prment in th	ducing substantial olerite and Basalt, iorticulture (mainty e upper reaches	1997 1998 1999 2000	941 1025 934 1144	102 111 101 124	350 429 379 536	95 116 102 145	0.69 0.84 0.74 1.05	13.1 15.3 17.8 33.9	04/05 02/11 24/12 08/12	0.13 0.14 0.09 0.09	04/10 08/10 01/08 26/07	1.6 1.8 1.8 2.1	0.34 0.51 0.38 0.48	0.15 0.19 0.13 0.14

	Perlod	Rainfail (mm)	% of pre-1996	Runoff (mm)	% of pre-1996	Mean flow (ո՞∎*י)	Peak flow (^{m¹a⁻¹)}	Date of peak	Min. daily flow (^{m1} a ⁻¹)	D∎te of min,	10 Percentile (m ¹ e ⁻¹)	50 Percentile (m ¹ s ⁻¹)	95 Percentile (m ³ e ⁻¹)
205011 Annacloy at Kitmore Bridge C.A: 186.6 km ² M.A: RA Łocal No: Sens.: 19.0	79_95	985		562		3.32	51.5	03/10 1981	0.02	28/07 1984	8.7	1.58	0.12
FAR: Level: 9m UE: 02 FAI: 0.984 Comment: Velocity-area station in straight reach (bridge, with piers, 60m upstream). Weed growth can affect low flow levels. Flows for full period of record reprocessed in 2002. Responsive regime. # Sturain solid geology with scattered Tertiary and Caledonian intrusions, overlain by drumfin terrain. Predominantly improved grassland, some urban development (including Ballynahinch - 5,200).	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1026 1010 1050 949 1162	104 103 107 96 118	686 611 653 575 759	122 109 116 102 135	4.05 3.62 3.86 3.40 4.48	46.2 42.2 29.3 32.8 61.5	04/01 24/11 29/12 21/09 07/11	0.20 0.31 0.35 0.27 0.32	22/09 19/04 27/05 28/07 23/07	10.6 9.0 8.5 7.8 10.4	1.90 1.34 2.02 1.64 1.72	0.28 0.43 0.60 0.33 0.38
206001 Clanrye at Mountmill Bridge C.A: 120.3 km² M.A: RA Local No: Sens.: 10.0 B/fult: 18.9m³s ⁻¹ E.A.P: N Level: 16m LF: < 0.01	7495	988		551		2.10	33.1	29/12 1978	0.08	15/08 1983	4.8	1.17	0.21
Comment: Velocity-are station calibrated by wading and from footbridge. Flows for full period of record reprocessed in 2002. # Entirety Old Red Sandstone. Completely rural: predominantly improved grassland with some horiculture (mainly potatoes).	1996 1997 * 1998 1999 2000	985 962 1062 1078 1150	100 97 107 109 116	510 456 548 504 579	93 83 99 91 105	1.94 1.74 2.09 1.92 2.20	20.6 17.1 20.0 19.7 23.0	05/01 26/11 04/01 22/12 07/11	0.18 0.38 0.49 0.20 0.39	22/09 03/05 26/02 24/08 09/09	4.3 3.9 4.4 4.8 4.8	0.97 0.79 1.10 0.95 1.20	0.24 0.43 0.56 0.24 0.47
206002 Jerretspass at Jerretspass C.A: 107.8 km² M.A: RA Local No: Sens.: 12.0 Sea Di M Levelt Atra UE: of 2	7295	890		226		0.77	18.5	22/10 1987	>0.00	03/10 1972	1.9	0.33	0.02
Comment: Velocity-area station calibrated by wading and from footbridge. Flows from start of 1981 onwards reprocessed in 2002. Low catchment runoff - effective catchment area restricted to approx. 73 km ² by canal which intercepts western tributanes, except during high flows when spillage occurs to the Jerrettspass. # Geology: Llandovery in age. Occasional igneous intrusions. Catchment is entirely rural: predominantly improved grassland with some horticulture (mainly potatoes).	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	829 858 924 977 995	93 96 104 110 112	297 334 310 278 304	131 148 137 123 135	1.01 1.14 1.06 0.95 1.04	10.0 11.1 10.5 11.1 14.9	05/01 26/11 05/01 22/12 07/11	0.19 0.28 0.25 0.15 0.18	19/09 23/04 31/08 02/08 22/07	2.5 2.6 2.3 2.4 2.4	0.52 0.53 0.59 0.42 0.44	0.22 0.32 0.33 0.17 0.21
236005 Colebrooke at Ballindarragh Bridge C.A: 313.6 km² M.A: RA Local No: Sens: 12.0 F.A.D: No: Local Ko: Sens: 12.0	7595	1151		758		7.53	140.8	24/10 1995	0.22	03/11 1982	18.8	3.71	0.66
Comment: Velocity-area station with cableway and natural control. Flows from start of 1987 reprocessed in 2002. # Geology: ORS in headwaters, Carboniferous formations (I'st and s'sts) in lower catchment. Land use: predominantly grassland, significant conterous woodland, some bog, no significant urban development.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1175 1131 1447 1293 1218	102 98 126 112 106	804 659 1080 994 919	106 87 142 131 121	7.97 6.55 10.74 9.88 9.11	143.1 105.3 129.5 127.7 103.0	06/08 17/11 24/10 28/11 08/12	0.61 0.76 0.99 0.72 0.51	20/07 23/08 27/05 01/08 25/07	19.2 18.1 25.6 26.4 20.4	4.04 2.92 6.07 4.56 5.52	0.81 0.93 1.35 0.96 0.80
236007 Sillees at Drumrainey Bridge C.A: 166.3 km² M.A: RA Local No: Sens.: 18.0 5.4 P: 6 Level: 44m LE: < 0.1	8195	1432		1007		5.31	37.3	21/12 1991	0.04	09/08 1989	13.0	3.47	0.32
Comment: Velocity-area station with cableway. Flows from start of 1984 onwards reprocessed in 2002. Some natural storage provided by small lakes in headwaters. # Catchment developed mainly on Carboniferous formations (mostly 1'st and shales). Predominantly grassland with significant coniferous woodland. No significant urban development.	1996 1997 1998 1999 2000	1323 1344 1666 1562 1456	92 94 116 109 102	913 969 1362 1367 1220	91 96 135 136 121	4.80 5.11 7.18 7.21 6.42	22.5 23.0 30.0 28.5 23.4	11/02 30/12 29/10 02/12 02/03	0.21 0.52 0.74 0.67 0.27	21/09 26/08 28/05 18/06 27/07	12.0 • 11.4 15.5 17.6 14.8	3.05 3.63 5.43 4.96 4.70	0.42 0.81 1.07 1.02 0.44

Concise Register of Ganging Stations

The Concise Register of Gauging Stations lists the river and station names of all station featured in the Hydrometric Register tabulated in order of their National River Flow Archive number (see page 4) – the station locations are shown on the relevant regional maps. For a few stations (not operated by the UK environment agencies) an alphabetic code is given to identify the measuring authority (see page 201). The numbers in parentheses indicate the page(s) on which details of the NRFA data holdings of gauged and, if available, naturalised flows are summarised (see below).

Summary of Archived Data

This tabulation summarises – in decadal blocks – the river flow and catchment areal rainfall data held on the National River Flow Archive (to the end of 2000). Part I

Summary of Archived Data – Key

Gauged daily flows, monthly peaks and monthly rainfall

relates to daily gauged flows, monthly peaks and monthly catchment rainfall^{*}. Part II relates to holdings of naturalised daily and monthly flows. The key to the letters used to identify the data holdings for each year on the individual station records is given below. Emboldening is used to emphasise those years with complete daily gauged or naturalised flows.

To help data users select datasets most appropriate to their needs, the featured stations are grouped according to the length of their flow records. Two stations – the Lee at Feildes Weir (38001) and the Thames at Kingston (39001) – have continuous records commencing in 1883 and earlier monthly datasets are held for a few monitoring sites, e.g. Wendover Springs (39147). Sporadic additional historical data may be held by the measuring authorities who also maintain substantial data holdings for secondary and temporary gauging sites. The British Hydrological Society's Chronology of British Hydrological Events (see page 12) is a valuable source of historical river flow (and groundwater level) information.

Naturalised daily and monthly flows

Complete daily and complete monthly	А
Partial daily and complete monthly	в
Partial daily and partial monthly	С
Partial daily and complete monthly	D
No daily and complete monthly	Е
No daily and partial monthly	F
No naturalised flow data	

Incomplete or Complete rainfall missing rainfall Complete daily and complete peaks A Complete daily and partial peaks в h Complete daily and no peaks С с Partial daily and complete peaks D d Partial daily and no peaks Е е No flow data

Up-to-date summaries of data holdings may be found on the NRFA Website.

*For some recently commissioned gaûging stations, monthly catchment rainfall totals have been derived back to 1961. Gauging stations in this category appear in the section of the Summary of Archived Data featuring flow records commencing between 1950 and 1969.

Concise Register of Gauging Stations

Station	River and
number	Station name
001001	Wick at Tarroul, (170)
002001	Helmsdale at Kilphedir, (170)
002002	Brora at Bruachrobie, (170)
003001	Shin at Lairg, (166)
003002	Carron at Sgodachail, (170)
003003	Oykel at Easter Turnaig, (170)
003004	Cassley at Rosehall, (170)
003005	Shin at Inveran, (166)
004001	Conon at Moy Bridge. (165)
004003	Alness at Alness, (170)
004004	Blackwater at Contin, (186)
004005	Meig at Glenmeannie, (170)
004006	Bran at Dosmucheran, (170)
004007	Blackwater at Garve, (170)
004008	Newhall Burn at Newhall Bridge, (170)
004009	Peffery at Strathpeffer STW, (170)
005001	Beauly at Erchless (SE), (166)
005002	Farrar at Struy, (166)
005003	Glass at Kerrow Wood, (166)
005004	Glass at Fasnakyle, (166)
006001	Ness at Ness Castle Farm, (165)
006003	Moriston at Invermoriston, (166)
006006	Allt Bhlaraidh at Invermoriston, (166)
006007	Ness at Ness-side, (166, 173)
006008	Enrick at Mill of Tore, (170)
006008	Moriston at Levishie, (170)
007001	Findhorn at Shenachie, (166)
007002	Findhorn at Forres, (166)
007003	Lossie at Sheriffmills, (166, 172)
007004	Naim at Firhall, (170)
007005	Divie at Dunphail, (170)
007006	Lossie at Torwinny, (170)
008001 008002 008003 008004 008005 008005 008007 008008 008010 008010 008011 008013 008015 008016 008017	Spey at Aberlour, (165, 172) Spey at Kinrara, (166) Spey at Ruthven Bridge, (166) Avon at Deinashaugh, (166) Spey at Boat o Brig, (166) Spey at Boat o Brig, (166) Spey at Boat o Brig, (166) Tromie at Tromie Bridge, (166) Duhrain at Balnaan Bridge, (166) Spey at Grantown, (166) Livet at Minmore, (170) Feshie at Feshie Bridge, (166) Fiddich at Auchindoun, (166) Burn of Carron at Dailuaine, (166)
009001	Deveron at Avochie, (166)
009002	Deveron at Muiresk, (166)
009003	Isla at Grange, (166)
009004	Bogie at Redcraig, (170)
009005	Alt Deveron at Cabrach, (165)
009006	Deskford Burn at Cullen, (166)
009007	Forgue Burn at Inverkeithny, (166)
010001	Ythan at Ardlethen, (166)
010002	Ugie at Inverugie, (166)
010003	Ythan at Ellon, (170)
011001	Don at Parkhill, (166)
011002	Don at Haughton, (166)
011003	Don at Bridge of Alford, (166)
011004	Unie at Pitcaple, (170)
011005	Don at Mill of Newe, (166)
012001	Dee at Woodend, (165)
012002	Dee at Park, (170, 173)
012003	Dee at Polhollick, (170)
012004	Girmock Burn at Littlemill, (166, 173)
012005	Muick at Invergaim, (170)
012006	Gaim at Invergaim, (170)
012007	Dee at Mar Lodge, (170)
012008	Feugh at Heugh Head, (170)
012009	Water of Dye at Charr, (166, 173)
013001	Bervie at Inverbervie, (170)
013002	Luther Water at Luther Bridge, (170)
013003	South Esk at Stannochy Bridge, (170)
013004	Prosen Water at Prosen Bridge, (170)
013005	Lunan Water at Nikton Mill, (170)
013007	North Esk at Logie Mill, (170, 173)
013008	South Esk at Brechin, (170)
013009	West Water at Dalhouse Bridge, (170)
013010	Brothock Water at Arbroath, (166)
013012	South Esk at Gella Bridge, (166)
013017	Colliston Burn at Colliston, (166)
014001	Eden at Kemback, (166, 173)
014002	Dighty Water at Balmossie Mill, (166, 173)
014005	Motray Water at St Michaels, (170)
014006	Monikie Burn at Panbride, (170)
014007	Craigmill Burn at Creigmill, (166)
014009	Eden at Strathmiglo, (166)
014010	Motray Water at Klimany, (166)
015001	Isla at Forter. (166)

015002 Newton Burn at Newton, (166)

Station	River and
015003	Jav at Caputh (165-173)
015004	Inzion at Loch of Lintrathen, (165)
015005	Melgan at Loch of Lintrathen, (165)
015006	Tay at Ballathie, (166, 172)
015007	Tay at Pitnacree, (766, 773) Dean Water at Cookston, (166, 173)
015010	Isla at Wester Cardean, (170, 173)
015011	Lyon at Comrie Bridge, (166, 173)
015012	Turmel at Pitlochry, (170, 173)
015013	Almond at Almondbank, (166, 173)
015014	Almond at Newton Bridge (170)
015016	Tay at Kenmore, (170, 173)
015017	Braan at Ballinioan, (170, 173)
015018	Lyon at Moar, (166)
015021	Braan at Hermitage (170)
015024	Dochart at Killin, (170, 173)
015025	Ericht at Craighall, (170)
015027	Ordie Burn at Luncarty (170)
015029	Alyth Burn at Pitcrocknie, (166)
015030	Dean Water at Dean Bridge, (166)
015032	Ordie Burn at Jackstone, (166)
015034	Tummel at Kinloch Rannoch (170)
015038	Gaur at Bridge of Gaur, (166)
015039	Tilt at Marble Lodge, (166)
015041	Lyon at Camusvrachan, (166)
016001	Earn at Kinkell Bridge, (165, 172)
016002	Earn at Aberuchill, (166)
016003	Ruchill Water at Cultybraggan, (166)
016004	Earn at Forteviot Bridge, (170, 173)
010007	Rutiven water at Aberblinven, (700)
017001-	Carron at Headswood, (166, 172)
017002	Leven at Leven, (166, 172)
017003	Bonny Water at Bonnybridge, (170, 173)
017004	Avon at Polmonthill (170, 173)
017008	South Queich at Kinross, (170)
017012	Red Burn at Castlecary, (170)
017015	North Queich at Lathro, (170)
017018	Greens Burn at Damleys Cottage, (170)
	,,
018001	Allan Water at Kinbuck, (166, 173)
018002	Teith at Bridge of Teith (166, 172)
018005	Allan Water at Bridge of Allan, (170, 173)
018007	Devon at Fossoway Bridge, (170)
018008	Leny at Anie, (170, 173)
018010	Forth at Gargunnock, (170) Forth at Crainforth, (170)
018013	Black Devon at Fauld Mill, (166)
018014	Bannock Burn at Bannockburn, (170)
018015	Eas Gobhain at Loch Venachar, (166)
018017	Monachyle Burn at Balouhidder. (166)
018018	Kirkton Burn at Balquhidder, (170)
018019	Comer Burn at Comer, (170)
018020	Loch Ard Burn at Duchray, (166)
018021	Avon Ohu at Milton (170)
018023	Monachyle Burn at Upper Monachyle, (166)
040004	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
019001	Almond at Graigienail, (766, 172)
019002	Breich Water at Breich Weir, (166, 172)
019004	North Esk at Dalmore Weir, (166, 172)
019005	Almond at Almondell, (166, 172)
019006	Fish at Musselburgh (166, 172)
019008	South Esk at Prestonholm, (166, 172)
019009	Bog Burn at Cobbinshaw, (166, 172)
019010	Braid Burn at Liberton, (166, 172)
019011	North Esk at Dalkeith Palace, (166, 173) Water of Leith at Colinton, (166)
019017	Gogar Burn at Turnhouse, (170)
019020	Almond at Whitburn, (170)
019021	South Esk at Cowbridge, (170)
020001	Tyne at East Linton, (166, 172)
020002	West Peffer Burn at Luffness, (166, 172)
020003	Tyne at Spilmersford, (166, 172)
020004	East refier burn at Lochnouses, (166, 172) Birns Water at Sattoun Hall (166, 173)
020006	Biel Water at Belton House, (170, 173)
020007	Gifford Water at Lennoxlove, (166, 173)
021004	Equid Materiat Equid (1 BMO) (126, 172)
021001	Provid Water at Fruid (LRWD), (166, 172) . Whiteadder Water at Huppor Spoul, (166, 172)
021003	Tweed at Peebles, (166, 172)
021004	Watch Water at Watch Water Reservoir, (166, 172)
021005	Tweed at Lyne Ford, (166, 172)
021006	tweed at boleside, (766, 772) Ettrick Water at Lindean (186, 172)
021008	Teviot at Ormiston Mill, (166, 172)
021009	Tweed at Norham, (166, 172)
021010	Tweed at Dryburgh, (166, 172)
021011	Tanow water at Philiphaugh, (700, 772) Teviot at Hawick, (166: 172)
021013	Gala Water at Galashiels, (166, 172)

Station	River and
- 021014 -	-Tweed at Kingledores, (166, 172)
021015	Leader Water at Earlston, (166, 172)
021016	Etrick Water at Brockhoperic (166, 172)
021018	Lyne Water at Lyne Station, (166, 172)
021019	Manor Water at Cademuir, (166, 172)
021020	
021021	Tweed at Sprouston, (166, 172)
021022	Leet Water at Coldstream, (166, 173).
021024	Jed Water at Jedburgh, (166, 172)
021025	Ale Water at Ancrum, (166, 173) Tima Water at Deephone, (166, 173)
021027	Blackadder Water at Mouth Bridge, (166, 173)
021028	Menzion Burn at Menzion Farm, (165)
021030	Till at Etal, (166)
021032	Glen at Kirknewton, (166)
021034	Yarrow Water at Graig Douglas, (706, 172)
022001.	Coquet at Morwick, (166)
022002	Usway Burn at Shillmoor, (166)
022004	Aln at Hawkhill, (166)
022006	Blyth at Hartford Bridge, (166) Wansheck at Mitford, (166)
022008	Alwin at Clennell, (166)
022009	Coquet at Rothbury, (170)
023001	Tyne at Bywell, (166, 172)
023002	Derwent at Eddys Bridge, (166, 172)
023003	South Tyne at Havdon Bridge, (166)
023005	North Tyne at Tarset, (166)
023006	South Tyne at Featherstone, (166)
023008	Rede at Rede Bridge, (166, 173)
023009	South Tyne at Alston, (166)
023010	Kielder Burn at Kielder. (166)
023012	East Allen at Wide Eals, (170)
023013	West Allen at Hindley Wrae, (170) North Type at Kielder temporary (166)
023015	North Tyne at Barrasford (NEW), (165, 172)
023016	Ouse Burn at Crag Hall, (166)
023017	Ouse Burn at Woolsington, (166)
023022	North Tyne at Uglydub, (166)
023023	Tyne at Riding Mill, (166)
024001	Wear at Sunderland Bridge, (166, 172)
024002	Gauniess at Bishop Auckland, (166) Wear at Stanhope, (166, 172)
024004	Bedburn Beck at Bedburn, (166)
024005	Browney at Burn Hall, (166) Bookhope Burn at Eastcate (166)
024007	Browney at Lanchester, (166)
024008	Wear at Witton Park, (170)
024009	Wear at Burnhope Reservoir, (166)
025004	Tage at Basken Cons. (188, 179)
025001	Tees at Dent Bank, (166, 173)
025003	Trout Beck at Moor House, (166)
025004	Skerne at South Park, (166, 172) Leven at Leven Bridge, (166)
025006	Greta at Rutherford Bridge, (166)
025007	Clow Beck at Croft, (166) Tees at Barnard Castle, (166, 172)
025009	Tees at Low Moor, (166)
025010	Baydale Beck at Mowden Bridge, (166)
025011	Harwood Beck at Harwood, (166)
025013	Billingham Beck at Thorpe Thewles, (166)
025018	Leven at Eashy (170)
025020	Skerne at Preston le Skerne, (170)
025021	Skeme at Bradbury, (170) Balder at Balderbard Reservoir, (170)
025022	Tees at Cow Green Reservoir, (170)
006004	Mart Back of March Dides (466)
026001	Hull at Hempholme Lock, (166, 172)
026003	Foston Beck at Foston Mill, (166)
026004	Gypsey Race at Bridlington, (170) Gypsey Race at Boynton (170)
026006	Elmswell Beck at Little Driffield, (170)
026007	Catchwater at Withernwick, (166) Mires Back at North Covin (170)
026009	West Beck at Snakeholme Lock, (166)
037004	
027001	When the wear wear wear was a state of the wear and the wear an
027003	Aire at Beal Weir, (166, 172)
027004	Calder at Newlands, (166, 172) Nidd at Gouthwaite Reservoir, (165, 172)
027006	Don at Hadfields Weir, (166, 172)
027007	Ure at Westwick Lock, (166, 172)
027008	Ouse at Skelton, (166, 172)
027010	Hodge Beck at Bransdale Weir, (165)
027011	washourn at Lindley wood Res., (766, 172) Hebdee Mater at High Greenwood (166, 172)

-

027012 Hebden Water at High Greenwood, (166, 172) 027013 Ewden Beck at More Hall Res., (166, 172)

Station	River and
number	Station name
027014	Rye at Little Habton, (166)
027015	Derwent at Stamford Bridge, (166, 172)
027016	Little Don at Underbank Reservoir, (166, 172)
027017	Loxdey at Damflask Reservoir, (166, 172)
027018	Ryburn at Ryburn Reservoir, (166, 172)
027019	Booth Dean Clough at Booth Wood Mall, (166, 172)
027020	Scout Dike Stream at Scout Dike Res., (166, 172)
027021	Don at Doncaster (166, 172)
027022	Don at Rotherham Weir, (166, 172)
027023	Deame at Bamsley Weir, (166, 172)
027024	Swale at Richmond, (166, 172)
027025	Rother at Woodhouse Mal, (166, 172)
027026	Rother at Whittington, (166, 172)
027027	Wharfe at lidey, (166, 172)
027028	Aire at Armley, (166, 172)
027029	Calder at Elland, (700, 772)
027030	Colors at Colors Rodon (167, 172)
027032	Hebrien Reck at Hebrien (167, 172)
027034	Ure at Kildram Bridge, (167)
027035	Aire at Kildwick Bridge, (167)
027038	Costa Beck at Gatehouses, (170)
02703 9	Holme at Digley Reservoir, (167, 172)
027040	Doe Lea at Staveley, (170)
027041	Derwent at Buttercrambe, (167)
027042	Uove at Kirkby Mills, (770)
027043	whate at Addingham, (170)
027044	Blackfors Bock at Sandhills Bridge /1701
027047	Snaizeholme Beck at Low Houses (17/0)
027048	Derwent at West Ayton, (170)
027049	Rye at Ness, (170)
027050	Esk at Sleights, (170)
027051	Crimple at Burn Bridge, (170)
027052	Whitting at Sheepbridge, (170)
027053	Nidd at Birstwith, (170)
027054	Hodge Beck at Cherry Farm, (170)
027055	Rye at Broadway Fool, (170)
027050	Excerning Beck at lings Bridge, (170)
027058	Riccal at Crock House Farm (170)
027059	Laver at Rinop. (170)
027061	Colne at Longrovd Bridge, (170)
027062	Nidd at Skip Bridge, (170)
027063	Dibb at Grimwith Reservoir, (170)
027064	Went at Walden Stubbs, (170, 173)
027065	Holme at Queens Mill, (170)
027066	Blackburn Brook at Ashlowes, (170)
017067	Sheef at Highfield Read (170)
027069	Ryburn at Rinnonden (167)
027069	Wiske at Kirby Wiske (170)
027070	Eller Beck at Skipton, (170)
027071	Swale at Crakehill, (167)
027072	Worth at Keighley, (170)
027073	Brompton Beck at Snainton Ings, (170)
027074	Spen Beck at Northorpe, (170)
027075	Bedale Beck at Leeming, (170)
027076	Bielby Beck at Thornton Lock, (170)
027077	Bradford Beck at Shipley, (170)
027079	Aire at Lemonmut (170)
027080	Outton Beck at Easter Lane (170)
027082	Cundall Beck at Bat Bridge, (170)
027083	Foss at Huntington, (170, 173)
027084	Eastburn Beck at Crosshills, (167)
027085	Cod Beck at Dalton Bridge, (167, 173)
027086	Skell at Alma Weir, (167)
027087	Derwent at Low Marishes, (167, 173)
	Outday of California Reiden (687, 673)
027088	Calder at Caldene Bridge, (167, 173)
027069	Suble at Catterick Bridge (167)
027090	Swale at Callence Diloge, (107)
028001	Derwent at Yorkshire Bridge, (165, 172)
028002	Blithe at Hamstall Ridware, (165, 172)
028003	Tame at Water Orton, (167)
028004	Tame at Lea Marston, (167)
028005	Tame at Elford, (167)
028006	Trent at Great Haywood, (167)
028007	Trent at Shardkow, (167)
028008	Love at Rocester Weir, (107)
028009	Descret at Longhridge/St Mao/s Br. (165)
020010	Derwent at Longbridge/St.Mary's Dt., (100)
028012	Treat at Yoxall (167, 173)
028014	Sow at Milford, (167)
028015	Idle at Mattersey, (167)
028016	Ryton at Serlby Park, (167)
028017	Devon at Cotham, (167)
028018	Dove at Marston on Dove, (167)
028019	Trent at Drakelow Park, (167)
028020	Churnet at Rocester, (167)
u28021	Derwent at Draycott, (167)
	Treast at March 14 at the set (407)
028022	Irent at North Muskham, (167)
028023	wye at AShloro, (707) Wraska at Sveton Mill. (167)
0∠0024 ∩28∩2≂	Sence at Batcliffe Culey /167)
020020	Anker at Polesworth. (167)
028027	Erewash at Sandiacre. (167)
028028	Soar at Wanlip, (170)
028029	Kingston Brook at Kingston Hall, (167)
028030	Black Brook at Onebarrow, (167)
028031	Manifold at Ilam, (167)
028032	Meden at Church Warsop, (167)
026033	Loop at Triumob Road Notfingham (167)
	LEGA AL LAURINAL AVAILATING MUSIC [[07]

Station River and Station name Pouter at Twyford Bridge, (167) Derwent at Mytham Bridge, (170) Manifold at Hutme End, (167) number 028036 028037 028038 028039 Rea at Cathorpe Park, (167) Trent at Stoke on Trent, (167) Hamps at Waterhouses, (167) Derwent at Chatsworth, (167) 028040 028041 028043
 028044
 Poutter at Cuckney, (167)

 028045
 Meden/Maun at Bothamsall/Haughton, (167)

 028046
 Dove at Izaak Watton, (167)

 028047
 Oldcoates Dyke at Blyth, (170)

 028048
 Amber at WingSeld Park, (170)

 028049
 Ryton at Worksop, (170)

 028050
 Torne at Auckley, (170)

 028052
 Sow at Great Bindgford, (170)

 028053
 Penk at Penknidge, (170)

 028054
 Sence at Blaby, (170)

 028055
 Ecclesbourne at Duffeld, (170)

 028056
 Rothley Brook at Rothley, (170)

 028058
 Hemmore Brook at Ashbourne, (170)

 028059
 Maun at Mansfield STW, (167)

 028059
 Dover Beck at Lowdham, (170)
 Main at Mansheld S1W, (107) Dover Beck at Lowdham, (170) Churnet at Basford Bridge, (170) Cole at Coleshill, (170) Derwent at Church Wilne, (170) Burbage Brook at Burbage, (167) 028060 028061 028066 028067 028070 028072 Greet at Southwell, (170) 028073 Ashop at Ashop diversion, (170) 028074 Soar at Kegworth, (187) 028075 Derwent at Slippery Stones, (170) 028076 Tutbury Millfleam at Rolleston, (167) Meece Brook at Shallowford, (170) 028079 Tame at Lea Marston Lakes, (167) Tame at Bescot, (170) Soar at Littlethorpe, (170) 028080 028081 028082
 028082
 Soar at Littlethorpe, (170)

 028083
 Trent at Darlaston, (170)

 028085
 Berwent at St. Marys Bridge, (165)

 028086
 Sence at South Wigston, (170)

 028097
 Tame at Perry Park, (170)

 028093
 Soar at Pdrings Lock, (170)

 028093
 Soar at Ptilings Lock, (170)

 028102
 Bythe at Whitacre, (170)

 028103
 Hermore Brook at Carsington Outflow, (170)

 028115
 Maun at The Dykes, (170)

 028116
 Derwert at Whitstardve, (170)
 028116 Maun at Whitewater Bridge, (170 028117 Derwent at Whatstandwell, (170) 029001 Waithe Beck at Brigsley, (167) 029002 Great Eau at Claythorpe Mill, (167) 029002 Great Eau at Caynoppe Mill, (10. 029003 Lud at Louth, (167) 029003 Ancholme at Bishopbridge, (167) 029005 Rase at Bishopbridge, (170) 029009 Ancholme at Toft Newton, (170)
 030001
 Witham at Claypole Mill, (167)

 030002
 Barlings Eau at Langworth Bridge, (167)

 030003
 Bain at Fubby Lock, (167, 172)

 030004
 Lymn at Partney Mill, (167)

 030005
 Witham at Saltersford total, (167)

 030006
 Bea at Leasingham Mill, (170)

 030001
 Bein at Goulceby Bridge, (170)

 030012
 Stainfield Beck at Creampoke Farm, (170)

 030013
 Cringle Brook at Stoke Rochford, (170)

 030014
 Pointon Lode at Pointon, (170)

 030015
 Cringle Brook at Stoke Rochford, (170)

 030016
 Horington Beck at Heighington, (170)

 030017
 Witham at Colsterworth, (170)

 030018
 Horington Beck at Horington, (170)

 030039
 Brant at Brant Broughton, (170)
 030001 Witham at Claypole Mill, (167)
 031001
 Eye Brook at Eye Brook Res., (165, 172)

 031002
 Glen at Kates Br and King St Br, (165)

 031004
 Welland at Tailington, (167)

 031005
 Gwash at Beimesthorpe, (167, 173)

 031006
 East Glen at Kates Trowden, (167, 172)

 031008
 East Glen at Katerowden, (167, 172)

 031009
 West Glen at Shillingthorpe, (170, 173)

 031010
 Chater at Fosters Bridge, (167, 173)

 031010
 Chater at Fosters Bridge, (167, 173)

 031010
 Chater at Empingham, (177, 173)

 031011
 North Brook at Empingham, (177, 173)

 03102
 Worott Brook at Welham Br., (170, 173)

 03102
 Wereat Ashley, (170, 173)
 Moroott Brook at South Luffenham, (170, 1 Welland at Ashley, (170, 173) Jordan at Market Harborough, (167, 173) West Gien at Easton Wood, (170) Holywell Brook at Holywell, (170) Gwash South Arm at Manton, (170) Egleton Brook at Egleton, (170) Bourne Eau at Mays Sluice Bourne, (170) Courte Et Cluersh Bridge, (170) 031021 031022 031023 031024 031025 031026 031027 Gwash at Church Bridge, (170) 031028
 032001
 Nene at Orton. (165, 172)

 032002
 Willow Brook at Fotheringhay, (165, 172)

 032003
 Harpers Brook at Old Mill Bridge, (165, 173)

 032004
 Ise Brook at Harrowden Old Mill, (165, 172)

 032000
 Nene/Kislingbury at Upton, (165, 172)

 032000
 Nene/Kislingbury at Upton, (165, 172)

 032001
 Nene/Kislingbury at Dodlord, (165, 172)

 032012
 Wootton Brook at Lady Bridge, (167, 173)

 032020
 Vittering Brook at Kettering, (170, 173)

 032020
 Wittening Brook at Wansford, (170, 173)

 032020
 Flore at Experimental Catchment, (170)

 032021
 Wootton Brook at Wootton Park, (170)

033001 Bedford Ouse at Brownshill Staunch, (165, 172) 033002 Bedford Ouse at Bedford, (165, 172)

River and Station name Carn at Bothsham, (165, 172) Station number 033003 Station name Carn at Bothsham, (165, 172) Lark at Isleham, (165, 172) Bedford Ouse at Thomborough Mal, (167, 172) Wissey at Northwold, (167, 172) Nar at Matham, (167, 172) Little Ouse at Thetford No1 Staunch, (167) Edited Ouse at Harnold Mal, (167) Little Ouse at Thetford No1 Staunch, (167) Sapiston at Rectory Bridge, (167) Carn at Jeany Bridge, (165) Lark at Temple, (167) Ouzel at Willen, (167) Couzel at Willen, (167) Tove at Cappenham Bridge, (167) Thet at Metford Bridge, (167) Thee at Blumt Mal, (167) Nee at Blumham, (167) 033004 033005 033006 013007 033008 033011 033012 033013 033014 033015 033016 033018 033019 033020 033021 033022
 033023
 Lea Brook at Beck Bridge, (167)

 033024
 Cam at Demford, (165)

 033025
 Babingly at West Newton Mill, (167)

 033026
 Bedford Ouse at Offord, (170, 173)
 Bedford Ouse at Unture, (179, 179, 179) Rhee at Wimpole, (167) Fit at Shefford, (167) Stringside at Whitebridge, (167) Clipstone Brook at Clipstone, (167) Heacham at Heacham, (167) 033027 033028 033029 033030 033032 033032 033033 033034 033035 Hiz at Arlesey, (170) Little Ouse at Abbey Heath, (167) Little Ouse at Abbey Heath, (167) Ely Ouse at Denver Complex, (167, 172) Bedford Ouse at Newport Pagnell, (167) Bedford Ouse at Roxton, (170) Rhee at Ashwell, (167) Thet at Bridgham, (167) Wittle at Quidenham, (167) Thet at Red Bridge, (167) Larting Brook at Stonebridge, (167) Stanford Water at Buckenham Tofts, (170) 033037 033039 033040 033044 033045 033046 033048 033049 Snail at Fordham, (167) Cam at Chesterford, (167) Swaffham Lode at Swaffham Bulbeck, (167) Granta at Stapleford, (165) Babingley at Castle Rising, (170) Granta at Babraham, (167) 033050 033051 033052 033053 033054 033055
 033055
 Granta at Babraham, (167)

 033056
 Cuy Water at Lode, (167)

 033057
 Ouzel at Leighton Buzzard, (170)

 033058
 Duzel at Betchley, (170)

 033061
 Shep at Fowtmere One, (170)

 033062
 Guiden Brook at Fowtmere Two. (167)

 033063
 Little Ouse at Knettishall, (170)

 033064
 Whaddon Brook at Whaddon, (167)

 033065
 Granta at Linbin, (170)

 033066
 Granta at Linbin, (170)

 033067
 New River at Burwell, (170)

 033068
 Cheney Water at Gatley End, (170)

 034001
 Yare at Colney, (167)

 034002
 Tas at Shotesham, (167)

 034003
 Bure at Ingworth, (167)

 034004
 Wensum at Costessey Mill, (167)

 034005
 Tud at Costessey Park, (167)

 034006
 Waveney at Needham Mill, (167)

 034007
 Dove at Oakley Park, (167)

 034008
 Ant at Honing Lock, (167)

 034010
 Waveney at Bilingford Bridge, (167)

 034011
 Wensum at Fakenham, (167)

 034012
 Burn at Burnham Overy, (167)

 034013
 Waveney at Elinoham Mill, (170)
 034013 Waveney at Eilingham Mill, (170) 034014 Wensum at Swanton Morley Total, (034018 Stiffkey at Warham All Saints, (170) 034019 Bure at Horstead Mill, (170) (167)
 035001
 Gipping at Constantine Weir, (167)

 035002
 Deben at Naunton Hall, (167)

 035003
 Alde at Famham, (167)

 035004
 Ore at Beversham Bridge, (167)
 035008 Gipping at Stowmarket, (167) 035010 Gipping at Bramford, (167) 035013 Blyth at Holton, (167) 035014 Mill River at Newbourn, (165)
 035014
 Mill River at Newbourn, (165)

 036001
 Stour at Stratford St Mary (ESW), (165, 172)

 036002
 Glem at Glemsford, (167, 172)

 036004
 Chad Brook at Long Melford, (167, 172)

 036005
 Brett at Hadleigh, (167, 172)

 036006
 Stour at Langham, (167, 172)

 036007
 Belchamp Brook at Bardfield Br., (167, 172)

 036008
 Stour at Langham, (167, 172)

 036009
 Betchamp Brook at Bordfield Br., (167, 172)

 036000
 Betchamp Brook at Broad Green, (167, 172)

 036010
 Bumpstead Brook at Broad Green, (167, 172)

 0360112
 Stour at Kedington, (167, 172)

 036012
 Stour at Kedington, (167, 172)

 036013
 Brett at Higham, (167, 173)

 037001
 Roding at Redbridge, (165, 172)

 037002
 Cheimer at Rushes Lock, (165, 172)

 037003
 Ter at Crabbs Bridge, (165, 172)

 037004
 Blackwater at Langford, (165, 172)

 037005
 Can at Beach's Mill, (167, 172)

 037006
 Can at Springfield, (167, 172)

 037008
 Cheimer at Springfield, (167, 172)

 037009
 Brein at G

Station River and number Station name
 number
 Station name

 037012
 Colne at Poolstreet, (167, 172)

 037013
 Sandon Brook at Sandon Bridge, (167, 172)

 037014
 Roding at High Ongar, (167, 172)

 037015
 Cripsey Brook at Chipping Ongar, (167)

 037016
 Pant at Copford Hall, (167, 172)

 037017
 Blackwater at Stisted, (167, 172)

 037018
 Ingrebourne at Gaynes Park, (170, 173)

 037019
 Beam at Bretons Farm, (167, 172)

 037020
 Chelmer at Felsted, (167, 173)
 037021 Roman at Bounstead Bridge, (167, 173)
037022 Holland Brook at Thorpe le Soken, (167, 173)
037023 Roding at Loughton, (170, 173)
037024 Colne at Earls Colne, (170, 173)
037025 Bourne Brook at Perces Bridge, (167)
037027 Sixpenny Brook at Seltwater Bridge, (167)
037028 Bentley Brook at Saltwater Bridge, (167)
037029 St Osyth Brook at Cradle Bridge, (167)
037030 Holland Brook at Cradle Bridge, (167)
037031 Crouch at Wickford, (170)
037032 Eastwood Brook at Saltwood, (170) Eastwood Brook at Eastwood, (170) 037033 037034 Mar Dyke at Stifford, (167) 037038 Wid at Margaretting, (167) 037039 Blackwater at Langford (low flows), (170)
 037039
 Blackwater at Langford (low flows), (170)

 038001
 Lee at Feildes Weir, (165, 172)

 038002
 Ash at Mardock, (170)

 038003
 Mimram at Panshanger Park, (167)

 038004
 Rib at Wadesmill, (170)

 038005
 Ash at Easneye, (165)

 038006
 Ash at Easneye, (165)

 038007
 Canons Brook at Elizabeth Way, (167)

 038011
 Mimram at Fulling Mill, (167)

 038012
 Stevenage Brook at Edmonton, (167)

 038013
 Upper Lee at Luton Hoo, (165)

 038016
 Stansted Sp at Mounffichet, (167)

 038017
 Simmar at Fulling Mill, (167)

 038018
 Upper Lee at Luton Hoo, (165)

 038019
 Stansted Sp at Mounffichet, (167)

 038018
 Upper Lee at Water Hall, (170)

 038019
 Salmon Brook at Sewardstone Road, (170)

 038020
 Cobbins Brook at Sewardstone Road, (170)

 038021
 Turkey Brook at Adpeny Park, (170)

 038022
 Pymmes Brook at Edmonton Silver SL, (167)

 038022
 Lee flood relief at Low Hall, (170)

 038023
 Lee flood relief at Low Hall, (170)

 <t Small River Lee at Ordnance Road, (170) 038024
 038024
 Small River Lee at Ordnance Road, (1)

 038025
 Pymmes Brook at Alcazar, (167)

 038026
 Pincey Brook at Sheering Hall, (170)

 038027
 Stort at Glen Faba, (167)

 038028
 Quin at Griggs Bridge, (170)

 038029
 Quin at Griggs Bridge, (170)

 038020
 Beana at Hartham, (170)

 038031
 Lee at Rye Bridge, (167)

 038032
 Lee at Redide, (167)

 038032
 Lee at Lea Bridge, (170)

 039001
 Thames at Kingston, (165, 172)

 039002
 Thames at Days Weir, (165, 172)

 039003
 Wandle at Connollys Mill, (167)

 039004
 Wandle at Beddington Park, (165)

 039005
 Beverley Brook at Wimbledon Common, (165)

 039006
 Wandle at Beddington Park, (167)

 039007
 Blackwater at Swallowfield, (167)

 039008
 Thames at Eynsham, (167, 172)

 039009
 Thames at Bray Weir, (167)

 039010
 Colne at Denham, (167)

 039011
 Wey at Tillord, (167)

 039012
 Hogsmill at Kingston upon Thames, (167)

 039013
 Colne at Berygrove, (165)

 039014
 Wey at Tillord, (167)

 039015
 Whitewater at Lodge Farm, (165, 173)

 039016
 Kennet at Theale, (167)

 039017
 Lardbourn at Shaw, (167)

 0390202
 Coln at Bibury, (167)

 0390212
 Cherwell at Enslow Mill, (167)

 039022
 Lendward at Bibury (167)

 039022
 Lendward at Bibury (167)

 039024
 Lendward Shaw (167)

< 039022 Loddon at Sheepbridge, (167) 039023 Wye at Hedsor, (167) 039024 Gatwick Stream at Gatwick, (167) 039025 Enborne at Brimpton, (167)
 039025
 Enborne at Brimpton, (167)

 039026
 Chenwell at Banbury, (167)

 039027
 Pang at Pangbourne, (168)

 039028
 Dun at Hungerford, (168)

 039029
 Tillingbourne at Shalford, (168)

 0390301
 Lambourn at Shalford, (168)

 039031
 Lambourn at Shalford, (168)

 039032
 Lambourn at Best Shefford, (168)

 039033
 Lambourn at Est Shefford, (168)

 039034
 Extreme to State Ranger, (178)

 1039032
 Lambourn at East Shefford, (168)

 039033
 Winterbourne St at Bagnor, (168)

 039034
 Evenlode at Cassington Mill, (170)

 039035
 Churn at Cerney Wick, (168)

 039036
 Law Brook at Albury, (168)

 039037
 Kennet at Marlborough, (170)

 039038
 Thame at Shabbington, (168)

 039039
 Thame at Shabbington, (170)

 039030
 Thames at West Mill Cricklade, (170)

 039040
 Leach at Priory Mill Lechlade, (170)

 039043
 Kennet at Krighton, (168)

 039044
 Hart at Bramshill House, (170)

 039045
 Thames at Sutton Courtenay, (170, 173)

 039049
 Silk Stream at Colindeep Lane, (170)

 039051
 Sor Brook at Adderbury, (168)

 039052
 The Cut at Binfield, (168)

 039054
 Whet at Horder (168)
 039053 Mole at Horey, (168) 039054 Mole at Horey, (168) 039055 Yeading Bk West at Yeading West, (170) 039056 Ravensbourne at Catford Hill, (170)

Station River and number Station name Crane at Cranford Park, (170) Pool at Winsford Road, (170) 039057 039058 Letcombe Brook at Letcombe Bassett, (170) 039061 Letcombe Brook at Letcombe Bassett, (17 Ewelme Brook at Ewelme, (170) Mole at Castle Mill, (170) Mole at Kinnersley Manor, (170) Thanes at Royal Windsor Park, (170) Churn at Ciencester, (170) Ampney Brook at Sheepen Bridge, (170) Windrush at Worsham, (165) 039065 039068 039072 039073 039074 039076 039077 Og at Mariborough Poulton Fm, (170) Og at Manborougn Polition Fm, (170) Wey(north) at Farnham, (170) Wey at Weybridge, (170) Ock at Abingdon, (168) Brent at Brent Cross, (168) Wandle at Wandle Park, (165) Gatwick Stream at Gatwick Link, (170) 039078 039079 039081 039084 039085 039086 039087 Gatwick Stream at Gatwick Link, (170) Ray at Water Eaton, (170) Chess at Rickmansworth, (170) Gade at Bury Mill, (170) Cole at Inglesham, (170) Misbourne at Quarrendon Mill, (170) Dollis Brook at Hendon Lane Bridge, (170) Creat at Mach. Podr. (170) 039088 039089 039090 039091 039092 Dollis Brook at Hendon Lane Bridge, (170) Brent at Monks Park, (170) Crane at Marsh Farm, (170) Quaggy at Manor House Gardens, (170) Wealdstone Brook at Wembley, (170) Tharnes at Buscot, (170) Pinn at Uxbridge, (170) Ampney Brook at Ampney St. Peter, (170) 039093 039094 039095 039096 039097 039098 039099 039100 Swill Brook at Oaksey, (168) 039101 Aldbourne at Ramsbury, (170) 039102 Misbourne at Denham Lodge, (170)
 U39102
 Misbourne at Denham Lodge, (*)

 039103
 Kennet at Newbury, (170)

 039104
 Mole at Esher, (170)

 039105
 Thame at Wheatley, (170)

 039106
 Mole at Leatherhead, (170)

 039107
 Hogsmill at Ewell, (168)

 039108
 Churn at Perrott's Brook, (168)

 039108
 Chum at Perrott's Brook, (168)

 039109
 Coln at Fossebridge, (168)

 039110
 Coln at Fairford, (168)

 039111
 Thames at Staines, (166)

 039112
 Letcombe Brook at Arabellas Lake, (170)

 039113
 Manor Farm Brk at Letcombe Regis, (170)

 039114
 Pang at Frilsham, (168)

 039115
 Pang at Bucklebury, (168)

 039116
 Suham Brook at Suham, (168)

 039117
 Colne Brook at Hythe End, (170)

 039118
 Way at Alton, (168)

 039119
 Way at Alton, (168)
 039119 Wey at Kings Pond (Alton), (168) 039120 Caker Stream at Alton. (168)
 039120
 Caker Stream at Alton, (168)

 039121
 Tharnes at Walton, (170)

 039122
 Cranleigh Waters at Bramley, (168)

 039123
 Blackwater at Famborough, (170)

 039124
 Wraysbury River at Staines, (168)

 039125
 Ver at Redbourn, (168)

 039126
 Red at Redbourn, (168)

 039127
 Misbourne at Little Missenden, (168)
 039128 039129 Bourne (South) at Addlestone, (168) Thames at Farmoor, (170)
 039129
 Tharmes at Farmon, (170)

 039130
 Tharmes at Reading, (168)

 039131
 Brent at Costons Lane, (168)

 039133
 Ravensbourne East at Bromley South, (168)

 039134
 Ravensbourne East at Bromley South, (168)

 039135
 Quaggy River at Chinbrook Meadows, (168)

 039138
 Loddon at Twyford, (170)

 039140
 Cherwell at Oxford, (170)

 039141
 Way at Guildford, (170)

 039142
 Windrush at Bourton on the Water, (170)

 039143
 Dikler at Bourton on the Water, (170)
 039142 Windrush at Bourton on the Water, (1 039143 Dikler at Bourton on the Water, (170) 039144 Sor at Bodicote, (170) 039145 Yeading Brook East at Western Av. A40, (170) 039146 Mill Brook at Blewbury, (170) 039147 Wendover Springs at Wendover (BW), (168)
 040001
 Medway at Weir Wood Res. (SW), (168, 173)

 040002
 Darwell at Darwell Res. (SW), (168, 173)

 040003
 Medway at Teston, (168, 173)

 040004
 Rother at Udiam, (168, 173)

 040005
 Beuit at Stile Bridge, (158, 173)

 040006
 Bourne at Hadlow, (168, 173)

 040006
 Bourne at Hadlow, (168, 173)

 040007
 Medway at Chafford Weir, (168, 173)

 040008
 Great Stour at Wye, (168, 173)

 040009
 Teise at Stone Bridge, (168, 173)

 040010
 Great Stour at Horton, (168, 173)

 040011
 Great Stour at Horton, (168, 173)

 040012
 Darent at Ourlock, (170)

 040013
 Wingham at Durlock, (170)

 040014
 Wingham at Durlock, (178)

 040015
 White Drain at Fairbrock Farm, (168)

 040016
 Cray ford, (168)
 040016 Cray at Craytord, (168) 040017 Dudwell at Burwash, (170) 040018 Darent at Lullingstone, (168) 040020 Eridge Stream at Hendal Bridge, (170) 040021 Hexden Channel at Hopemill Br, (170) 040023 East Stour at South Willesborough, (170) 040024 Bartley Mill St at Bartley Mill, (170) 040027 Sarre Penn at Calcott, (168) 040029 Len at Lenside, (168) . 040033 Dour at Crabble Mill, (168) 041001 Nunningham Stream at Tilley Br., (168) 041002 Ash Bourne at Hammer Wood Br., (168)

 Station
 River and

 number
 Station name

 041003
 Cuckmere at Sherman Bridge, (168)

 041004
 Ouse at Barcombe Mills, (168)

 041003
 Couckine's at Sternian Brugg, (166)

 041004
 Ouse at Barcombe Mills, (168)

 041005
 Cuse at Gold Bridge, (168)

 041005
 Cuse at Gold Bridge, (168)

 041006
 Rother at Hardnam, (168)

 041007
 Rother at Hardnam, (168)

 041010
 Adur W Branch at Hatterell Bridge, (168)

 041011
 Adur E Branch at Sakeham, (168)

 041012
 Adur E Branch at Sakeham, (168)

 041013
 Hougletts Stream at Henley Bridge, (168)

 041014
 Arun at Palingham Cuay, (170)

 041015
 Erns at Westbourne, (168)

 041016
 Cuckmere at Cowbecch, (165)

 041017
 Combe Haven at Crowhurst, (168)

 041018
 Kird at Tanyards, (156)

 041019
 Arun at Alfoldean, (170)

 041020
 Bevern Stream at Clappers Bridge, (168)

 041021
 Clayhill Stream at Old Ship, (168)

 041022
 Lod at Halfway Bridge, (170)
 041023 Lavant at Graylingwell, (170) 041024 Shell Brook at Shell Brook, (170) 041025 Loxwood Stream at Drungewick, (170) 041026 Cockhaise Brook at Holywell, (170) 041027 Rother at Princes Marsh, (170) 041028 Chess Stream at Chess Bridge, (168) 041029 Will at Locleach (177) 041020 041027 041028 041029 041028 Util at Lealands, (170) 041029 Util at Lealands, (170) 041031 Fulking Stream at Fulking, (168) 041033 Costers Brook at Cocking, (168) 041034 Erns at Walderton, (168) 041035 North at Brookhurst, (170) 041037 Winterbourne Stream at Lewes, (168) 042001 Wallington at North Fareham, (168) 042003 Lymington at Brockenhurst, (168) 042004 Test at Broadlands, (168)

 042003
 Eyrimigun ar Biocheminus, (168)

 042004
 Test at Broadiands, (168)

 042005
 Wallop Brook at Broughton, (168)

 042006
 Meon at Mislingford, (168)

 042007
 Aire at Drove Lane Alresford, (170)

 042008
 Cheriton Stream at Sewards Br., (170)

 042000
 Cheriton Stream at Sewards Br., (170)

 042010
 Itchen at Highbridge + Allbrook, (168)

 042011
 Hamble at Frogmill, (177)

 042012
 Inton at Fulghtoridge, (171)

 042013
 Test at Longbridge, (171)

 042014
 Blackwater at Over, (168)

 042015
 Itchen at Easton, (171)

 042016
 Itchen at Easton, (171)

 042017
 Hermitage at Havant, (168)

 042019
 Tanners Brook at Stoneham Lane, (171)

 042020
 Tadburn Lake at Romsey, (171)

 042023 Itchen at Riverside Park, (171) 042024 Test at Chilbolton (Total), (168) 042025 Lavant Stream at Leigh Park, (171) 043001 Avon at Ringwood, (168) 043003 Avon at East Mills, (168) 043004 Bourne at Laverstock, (168) 043005 Avon at Amesbury, (168, 172) 043006 Nadder at Wilton, (168) 043007 043008 043009 Stour at Throop, (168) Wylye at South Newton, (168) Stour at Hammoon, (168)
 043009
 Stour at Hammoon, (168)

 043010
 Allen at Loverdey Mill, (168)

 043011
 Ebble at Bodenham, (171)

 043012
 Wylve at Norton Bavant, (168)

 043013
 Mude at Somerford, (168)

 043014
 East Avon at Upavon, (168)

 043015
 Wylve at Longbridge Devenil, (168)

 043016
 Wylve at Longbridge Devenil, (168)

 043017
 West Avon at Upavon, (168)

 043018
 Allen at Walford Mill, (171)

 043019
 Streen Water at Colesbrook, (171)

 043021
 Avon at Knapo Mill, (171)
 043017 West Avon at opavon, (100) 043018 Allen at Walford Mill, (177) 043019 Shreen Water at Colesbrook, (043021 Avon at Knapp Mill, (177) 043022 Woors River at Hum Court, (17) 043024 Wytye at Stockton Park, (171) (171) 044001 Frome at East Stoke Total, (168) 044002 Piddle at Baggs Mill, (168) 044003 Asker at Bridgort, (168) 044004 Frome at Dorchester Total, (171) 044006 Sydling Wtr at Sydling St Nicholas, (168) 044008 Sth Winterbourne at W. Steepleton, (171) 044009 Wey at Broadwey, (171)
 045001
 Exe at Thorverton, (168)

 045002
 Exe at Stoodfeigh, (168, 173)

 045003
 Culm at Wood Mill, (168, 173)

 045004
 Axe at Whitford, (168, 173)

 045005
 Otter at Dotton, (168, 173)

 045006
 Quarme at Enterwell, (168)

 045008
 Otter at Dotton, (168, 173)

 045009
 Bare at Frenny Bridges, (171)

 045001
 Haddeo at Hartford, (171)

 045010
 Barle at Brushford, (168)

 045011
 Barle at Brushford, (168)
 045012 Creedy at Cowley, (16 045013 Tale at Fairmile, (171) (168) 046002 Teign at Preston, (168, 173)
 U46002
 Teign at Preston, (168, 173)

 046003
 Dart at Austins Bridge, (168, 173)

 046005
 East Dart at Bellever, (168)

 046006
 Erme at Ermington, (171, 173)

 046007
 West Dart at Dunnabridge, (171)

 046008
 Avon at Loddiswell, (171)
 047001 Tamar at Gunnislake, *(168)* 047002 Tamar at Werrington, *(168)* 047003 Tavy at Lopwell, *(168)*

. .	
Station	River and
number 047004	Station name
047004	Lynner at Miaton Mal, (168, 173) Ottoou at Miatington Dark (169, 173)
047006	Judiat Liñon Park (168)
047007	Yeatm at Pustinch (158)
047008	Thrushel at Tinbay, (168)
047009	Tiddy at Tideford, (168)
047010	Tamar at Crowford Bridge, (171)
047011	Plym at Carn Wood, (171)
047013	Withey Brook at Bastreet, (171)
047014	Walkham at Horrabridge, (171)
047015	(avy at Dennam / Lucorook, (171, 173)
047017	Wolf at Combe Park Farm (171)
047018	Thrushel at Havne Bridge, (168)
047019	Tamar at Polson Bridge, (168)
048001	Fowey at Trekeivesteps, (168, 173)
048002	Fowey at Restormel one, (168, 173)
048003	Falat Tregony, (171)
040004	Waneggan at Trengotte, (168)
048006	Coher at Heiston (168, 173)
048007	Kennal at Ponsanooth, (168, 173)
048009	St Neot at Craigshill Wood, (171)
048010	Seaton at Trebrownbridge, (168)
048011	Fowey at Restormel, (158)
A 1000 4	0 () D ((00)
049001	Camel at Denby, (108)
049002	Delenket Delenk (168 173)
049004	Gannel at Gwills (168)
010001	Galatel de Galais, (100)
050001	Taw at Umberleigh, (168, 173)
050002	Tomidge at Tomington, (168, 173)
050005	West Okement at Veltake, (171)
050006	Mole at Woodleigh, (168, 173)
050007	Taw at Taw Bridge, (171)
050008	Lew at Grobbleford Bridge, (168)
050009	Lew at Norley Bridge, (168)
050010	Okement at Jacobstews (171)
0500112	Yeo at Verahy (168)
030012	
051001	Doniford Stream at Swill Bridge, (168)
051002	Homer Water at W. Luccombe, (171, 173)
051003	Washford at Beggearn Huish, (168)
052001	Axe at Wookey, (168)
052002	Yeo at Sutton Bingham Res., (168, 173)
052003	Halsewater at Halsewater, (168)
052004	Tsie at Ashtoro Mill, (168)
052005	Veg at Ban Mill (168, 172)
052000	Parrett at Chiselborough, (168)
052008	Tone at Clatworthy Reservoir. (168, 173)
052009	Sheppey at Fenny Castle, (168)
052010	Brue at Lovington, (168)
052011	Cary at Somerton, (168)
052014	Tone at Greenham, (168, 173)
052015	Land Yeo at Wraxall Bridge, (171)
052016	Currypool Stream at Currypool Fm., (1/1)
052017	Congresoury red at iwood, (177) Collice Streem at Collice Bridge (168)
052020	Hillfarrance at Milverton (171)
052026	Albam at Higher Albam, (171)
053001	Avon at Melksham, (168)
053002	Semington Brook at Semington, (168)
053003	Avon at Bath St James, (165)
053004	Chew at Compton Dando, (168, 173)
053005	Midford Brook at Midford, (168)
053006	Frome(Bristol) at Frenchay, (168)
053007	Aron at Great Someford (168)
053009	Wellow Brook at Wellow (168)
053013	Marden at Stanley, (171)
053015	Spring Flow at Tiswell, (171)
053016	Spring Flow at Dunkerton, (171)
053017	Boyd at Bitton, (171)
053018	Avon at Bathford, (168)
053019	vvoodbridge Brook at Crabb Mill, (168)
053020	Qauze brook at Rodbourne, (168)
053022	Sherston Avon at Fosseway (171)
053024	Telbury Avon at Brokenborough, (171)
053025	Mells at Vallis, (171)
053026	Frome (Bristol) at Frampton Cotterell, (171)
053028	By Brook at Middlehill, (171)
053029	Biss at Trowbridge, (171)
AC 100 -	Courses at Daniellou (405, 470)
054001	Seven at Bewaley, (165, 1/3)
054002	Avon at Evesnam, (700) Vymwy at Vymwy Besenvir, 7165, 1721
054003	Sowe at Stopeleigh (168)
054005	Severn at Montford. (168, 173)
054006	Stour at Callows Lane, (168)
054007	Arrow at Broom, (168)
054008	Teme at Tenbury, (168)
054010	Stour at Alscot Park, (168, 173)
054011	Salwarpe at Harford Hill, (168)
054012	Lem at Walcot, (168)
054013	Crywedog at Cholynau, (168, 173)
054014	Bow Brook at Besford Bridge (169)
054015	Roden at Redination (168)
054017	Leadon at Wedderburn Bridge. (168. 173)
054018	Rea Brook at Hookagate, (168)
054019	Avon at Stareton, (168)

Station River and number Station name number 054020 Peny at Yeaton, (168) Sevem at Plynämon Sume (IH), (168) 054022
 054023
 Badsey Brook at Offenham, (168)

 054024
 Worfe at Burcote, (168)

 054025
 Dufas at Rhos-y-pentref, (168)

 054026
 Chet at State M&, (168)

 054027
 Frome at Ebley M&, (168)

 054028
 Vymey at Llanymynech, (168)

 054029
 Teme at Knightsford Bridge, (171)

 054029
 Severn at Saxons Lode, (171)

 054030
 Dowles Brook at Oak Cottage, (171)

 054031
 Dowles Brook at Oak Cottage, (171)

 054035
 Isbourne at Hinton on the Green, (171)

 054043
 Genese at Tiberton, (177)

 054044
 Tem at Eaton On Tem, (171)

 054045
 Severn at Upton On Severn, (168)

 054044
 Tem at Tembill, (171)

 054045
 Perny at Perny Farm, (171)

 054045
 Perny at Ruyton Bridge, (171)

 054046
 Worfe at Coslord, (168)

 054047
 Perny at Ruyton Bridge, (171)

 054048
 Dene at Wetlesbourne, (171)

 054046
 Dene at Wetlesbourne, (171)
 054023 Badsey Brook at Offenham, (168) er, (171)
 054049
 Learn at Princes Drive Weir, (171)

 054050
 Learn at Eathorpe, (171)

 054050
 Learn at Eathorpe, (171)

 054052
 Bailey Brook at Ternhill, (171)

 054054
 Learn at Eathorpe, (171)

 054055
 Rea at Ludiow, (171)

 054056
 Orny at Onibury, (171)

 054057
 Rea at Nean Sollars, (171)

 054058
 Stoke Park Brook at Stoke Park, (171)

 054059
 Atliord Brook at Alford, (171)

 054050
 Dottord Brook at Alford, (171)

 054056
 Dioke Brook at Alford, (171)

 054056
 Dioke Brook at Stoke Park, (171)

 054056
 Dioke Brook at Alford, (171)

 054068
 Stoke Brook at Stoke, 1771)

 054069
 Dottord Brook at Stoke, (171)

 054068
 Stoke Brook at Stoke, (177)

 054063
 Stour at Prestwood Hospital, (171)

 054068
 Platt Brook at Platt, (177)
 Patt Brook at Platt, (171) Smestow Brook at Swindon, (171) Springs Brook at Lower Hordley, (171) War Brook at Walford, (171) Severn at Dolwen, (171) 054066 054067 054069 054070 054080
 054081
 Clywedog at Bryntail, (171)

 054081
 Clywedog at Bryntail, (171)

 054083
 Crow Brook at Horton, (171)

 054084
 Cannop Brook at Parkend, (171)

 054085
 Cannop Brook at Parkend, (171)

 054084
 Cannop Brook at Cannop Cross, (171)

 054085
 Cannop Brook at Childs Ercall, (171)

 054088
 Little Avon at Berkeley Kennels, (171)

 054098
 Avon at Bredon, (171)

 054099
 Severn at Harten Flume (IH), (171)

 054099
 Severn at Hore Flume (IH), (171)

 054099
 Strine at Crudgington, (171)

 054095
 Severn at Buildwas, (171)

 054096
 Hadley Brook at Wards Bridge, (171)

 054098
 Can at Cambridge, (171)

 054098
 Can at Cabel Mill, (171)

 054098
 Can at Cabridge, (171)

 054099
 Coley Brook at Coley Mill, (171)

 055002
 Wye at Belmont, (165, 172)

 055003
 Lugg at Lugwardine, (165)

 055004
 Irfon at Abernant, (165)

 055005
 Wye at Rhayader, (165)

 055006
 Elan at Caban Coch Res., (165)

 055007
 Wye at Rhayader, (165)

 055008
 Wye at Cefn Brwyn (IH), (169)

 055009
 Monnow at Kentchurch, (165)

 055010
 Wye at Cefn Brwyn (IH), (169)

 055011
 Ithon at Liandewi, (169)

 055012
 Irfon at Cilmery, (169)

 055013
 Arrow at Titley Mill, (169)

 055014
 Lugg at Byton, (169)

 055015
 Hondu at Tafolog, (169)

 055016
 Ithon at Varkhill, (169)

 055017
 Chwefru at Carreg-y-wen, (189)

 055018
 Frome at Yarkhill, (169)

 055019
 Pinsley Brk at Choistrey Mill, (179)
 (165, 172) Pinsley Brk at Cholstrey Mill, (171) Lugg at Butts Bridge, (169) Trothy at Mitchel Troy, (169) 055020 055021 055023 Wye at Redbrook, (165, 173)
 055023
 Wye at Redbrook, (165, 173)

 055025
 Llynfi at Three Cocks, (169)

 055026
 Wye at Ddol Farm, (165)

 055027
 Rudhall Brook at Sandford Br., (171)

 055028
 Frome at Bishops Frome, (171)

 055029
 Monnow at Grosmonl, (165)

 055030
 Claerwen at Dol-y-mynach, (165)

 055031
 Yazor Brook at Three Elms, (171)

 055032
 Elan at Elan Village, (165)

 055033
 Wye at Gwy flume (IH), (171)

 055035
 Lago at lago flume (IH), (171)

 055035
 Iago at lago flume (IH), (171)

 055036
 Garren at Marstow Mill, (171)

 056001
 Usk at Chain Bridge, (169, 173)

 056002
 Ebbw at Rhiwderyn, (169, 173)

 056003
 Honddu at The Forge Brecon, (169, 173)

 056004
 Usk at Llandetty, (169, 173)

 056005
 Lwyd at Ponthir, (169)

 056006
 Usk at Trailong, (169, 173)

 056006
 Usk at Trailong, (169, 173)

 056007
 Senni at Pont Hen Hafod, (169)

 056008
 Monks Dich at Llarwern, (171)

 056010
 Sintowy at Wattsville, (171, 173)

 056012
 Grwyne at Millbrook, (171, 173)

 056013
 Yscir at Pontaryscir, (171)

number 056014 Station name Usk at Usk Reservoir, (171) Olway Brook at Olway Inn, (171) Sirhowy at Shon Sheffrey, (171) 056015 056018
 057001
 Taf Fechan at Taf Fechan Res., (165, 173)

 057002
 Taf Favr at Lwynon Reservoir, (165, 172)

 057003
 Taf Fat Tongwinkis, (169, 173)

 057004
 Cynon at Abercynon, (169, 173)

 057005
 Taff at Tongwinkis, (167)

 057006
 Wondda at Trehafod, (171)

 057007
 Taff at Renders Elbow, (171)

 057008
 Rhymney at Llanedeym, (171)

 057009
 By at St Fagans, (171)

 057010
 By at St Fagans, (171)

 057011
 Ben Taf Favr at Beacons Res., (171)

 057012
 Garwant at Lwynon Res., (171)

 057015
 Taff at Merthyr Tydfil, (171)
 057001 Taf Fechan at Taf Fechan Res (165, 173)
 058001
 Ogmore at Bridgend, (169, 173)

 058002
 Neath at Resolven, (169)

 058003
 Ewenny at Ewenny Priory, (169, 173)

 058005
 Ogmore at Brynmeryn, (171)

 058006
 Mettre at Pontneddiechan, (171)

 058006
 Mettre at Pontneddiechan, (171)

 058006
 Dutais at cliftrew, (171)

 058006
 Ewenny at Keepers Lodge, (171)

 058001
 Hepste at Esgair Camau, (171)

 058011
 Thaw at Gigman Bridge, (171)

 058012
 Afan at Marcroft Weir, (171)
 059001 Tawe at Ynystanglws, (169, 173) 059002 Loughor at Tir-y-dail, (169)
 060002
 Cothi at Felin Mynachdy, (169)

 060003
 Taf at Clog-y-Fran, (169)

 060004
 Dewi Fawr at Glasfryn Ford, (169)

 060005
 Bran at Llandovery, (169)

 060006
 Gwili at Glangwili, (169)

 060007
 Tywi at Dolau Hirlon, (169)

 060008
 Tywi at Dolau Hirlon, (169)
 060004 060005 060006 060007 060008
 Volucity
 Tywi at Dotau Fillion, (715)

 060008
 Tywi at Systaffin, (771)

 060008
 Sawdde at Felin-y-own, (171)

 060010
 Tywi at Nantgaredig, (169)

 060011
 Tywi at Nantgaredig, (171)

 060012
 Tywi at Nantgaredig, (171)

 060013
 Cothi at Pont Ynys Brechfa, (171)
 061001 Western Cleddau at Prendergast Mill, (169) 061002 Eastern Cleddau at Canaston Br., (169, 173) 061003 Gwaun at Cilrhedyn Bridge, (169) 062001 Teifi at Glan Teifi, (169, 173) 062002 Teifi at Ltanfair. (171) Ystwyth at Pont Llotwyn, (169) Rheidol at Llanbadam Fawr, (169) Wyre at Llanrhystyd, (171) Ystwyth at Cwm Ystwyth, (171) 063001 063002 063003 063004 064001 064002 064003 Dyfi at Dyfi Bridge, (169, 173) Dysynni at Pont-y-Garth, (169) Mawddach at Ganilwyd, (169) Twymyn at Cemmaes Road, (171) Leri at Dolybont, (169) 064004 064006 Afon Mawddach at Tyddyn Gwladys, (171) 064010
 065001
 Glaslyn at Beddgelert, (169)

 065002
 Dwyryd at Maentwrog, (169)

 065004
 Gwyrfai at Bontnewydd, (171)

 065005
 Erch at Pencaenewydd, (171)

 065006
 Selont at Peblig Mil. (177)

 065007
 Dwyfawr at Gamdolbenmaen, (171)

 065008
 Colwyn at Hatod Wydr, (171)

 065015
 Llyfni at Pont Y Cim, (171)

 066001
 Clwyd at Pont-y-Cambwll, (169)

 066002
 Elwy at Pant yr Onen, (169, 173)

 066003
 Aled at Bryn Aled, (169, 173)

 066004
 Meeler at Bodfari, (171)

 066005
 Clwyd at Ruthin Weir, (171)

 066006
 Elwy at Pont-y-Gwyddel, (171)

 066006
 Clwyd at Ruthin Weir, (171)

 066007
 Clwy at Pont-y-Gwyddel, (171)

 066011
 Comwy at Cwm Lianerch, (169, 173)

 066012
 Lledr at Gethins Bridge, (171)

 066012
 Llewr at Pont Bridge, (171)
 066025 Clwyd at Pont Dafydd, (171)
 067001
 Dee at Bala, (169, 173)

 067002
 Dee at Erbistock Rectory, (165, 173)

 067003
 Brenig at Lyn Brenig outflow, (165, 173)

 067004
 Dee at Erbistock Rectory, (165, 173)

 067005
 Brenig at Lyn Brenig outflow, (165, 173)

 067006
 Alven at Druid, (169, 173)

 067007
 Dee at Glyndyfrdwy, (169, 173)

 067008
 Alven at Druid, (169)

 067009
 Alyn at Ponty-Capel, (169)

 067010
 Gelyn at Cynefail, (169)

 067011
 Nant Aberderfel at Nant Aberderfel, (169)

 067013
 Himant at Plas Rhiwedog, (169)

 067014
 Dee at Manley Hall, (165, 173)

 067015
 Dee at New Inn, (169)

 067025
 Clywedog at Bowling Bank, (171)

 067026
 Dee at Chester Weir, (169)

 067027
 Dee at Longitoge, (171)

 067028
 Ceidiog at Llandrillo, (171)

 067029
 Trystion at Pen-y-felin Fawr, (171)

 067020
 Dee at Chester Suspension Br., (171)
 067001 Dee at Bala, (169, 173) 068001 Weaver at Ashbrook, (165, 173) 068002 Gowy at Picton, (165)

Station River and

Station River and number Station name 068003 Dane at Rudheath, (165, 172)
 068003
 Dane at Rudheath. (165, 172)

 068004
 Wistaston Brook at Marshfield Br., (169, 173)

 068005
 Weaver at Audiem, (168, 173)

 068006
 Dane at Huime Walfield, (169, 173)

 068007
 Wincham Brook at Lostock Gralam, (169)

 068011
 Arley Brook at Gore Farm, (171)

 068015
 Gowy at Huxley, (171)

 068010
 Gowy at Bridge Trafford, (174)

 069001
 Mersey at Irlam Weir, (165)

 069002
 Inwell at Adelphi Weir, (165)

 069003
 Irk at Scotland Weir, (165)
 Irk at Scotland Weir, (165) Etherow at Bottoms Res. (NWW), (165, 172) Glaze Brook at Little Woolden Hall, (169) Bollin at Dunham Massey, (169) Mersey at Ashton Weir, (171) Dean at Stanneylands, (171) Bollin at Wilmslow, (171) Sinderland Brook at Partington, (171) Etherwise Commercie (171) 069004 069005 069006 069007 069008 069012
 069013
 Sinderland Brook at Partington, (171)

 069015
 Etherow at Compstall, (177)

 069017
 Goyt at Marple Bridge, (169).

 069019
 Worsley Brook at Eccles, (169)

 069020
 Medlock at London Road, (171)

 069023
 Roch at Blackford Bridge, (171)

 069024
 Croal at Farnworth Weir, (171)

 069025
 Time at Portwood, (169)

 069026
 Sankey Brook at Causey Bridge, (171)

 069027
 Ditton Brook at Greens Bridge, (171)
 069013 069032 Alt at Kirkby, (171)
 069032
 Alt at Kirkby, (171)

 069033
 Alt at Sefton, (169)

 069035
 Inwell at Bury Bridge, (171)

 069036
 Inwell at Bury Bridge, (171)

 069037
 Mersey at Westy, (177)

 069038
 Inwell at Stubbins, (169)

 069039
 Meclock at New Viaduct Street, (165)

 069040
 Inwell at Stubbins, (169)

 069041
 Tame at Broomstair Bridge, (169)

 069042
 Ding Brook at Nader Reservoir, (171)

 069044
 Invell at Bury Ground, (171)
 070001 Douglas at Rivington Reservoirs, (169, 173) 070002 Douglas at Valing bit Veservoirs, (10, 173) 070002 Douglas at Venes Biddes Br., (171, 173) 070003 Douglas at Central Park Wigan, (171) 070004 Yarrow at Croston Mill, (171) 070005 Lostock at Littlewood Bridge, (171) 071001 Ribble at Samlesbury, (169, 173) 071002 Hodder at Stocks Reservoir, (165, 173) 071003 Croasdale at Croasdale (NWW), (169) Calder at Whalley Weir, (169) 071004 Calder at Whalley Weir, (169) 071005 Bottoms Beck at Bottoms Beck (NWW), (169) 071006 Ribble at Henthorm, (169) 071008 Hodder at Hodder Place, (171)
 Oritog
 Hodder at Hodder Hace, (77)

 071008
 Hodder at Hodder Wace, (77)

 071010
 Pendle Water at Barden Lane, (171)

 071011
 Ribble at Arnford, (169)

 071013
 Darwen at Ewood, (171)

 071014
 Darwen at Blue Bridge, (171, 173)

 071015
 Dunsop at Footholme Flume, (171)

 072001
 Lune at Halton, (169, 173)

 072002
 Wyre at St Michaels, (169)

 072004
 Lune at Caton, (169, 173)

 072005
 Lune at Killington New Bridge, (169)

 072007
 Brock at U/S A6, (171)

 072001
 Brock at U/S A6, (171)

 072008
 Wyre at Garstang, (169)

 072009
 Wenning at Wennington, (171)

 072011
 Rawthey at Brigg Flatts, (169)

 072012
 Conder at Galgate, (171)

 072015
 Lune at Lunes Bridge, (171)

 072016
 Wyre at Scorton Weir, (169)

 073001
 Leven at Newby Bridge, (171)

 073002
 Crake at Low Nibthwaite, (169)

 073003
 Kent at Burneside, (171)

 073005
 Cunsey Beck at Eel House Bridge, (171)

 073006
 Cunsey Beck at Eel House Bridge, (171)

 073006
 Cunsey Beck at Eel House Bridge. (1/1)

 073008
 Bela at Beetham, (169)

 073009
 Sprint at Sprint Mill, (171)

 073010
 Leven at Newby Bridge FMS, (165, 173)

 073011
 Mint at Mint Bridge, (171)

 073012
 Bothay at Mille Bridge House, (171)

 073013
 Brathay at Jeffy Knotts, (171)

 073015
 Keer at High Keer Weir, (171)

 074001
 Duddon at Duddon Hall, (169)

 074002
 Int at Galesyke, (169)

 074003
 Ehen at Bleach Green, (171)

 074005
 Ehen at Braystones, (171)

 074007
 Eakler at Calder at Calder Hall, (168)

 074007
 Esk at Cropple How, (171)

 074008
 Duddon at Ulpha, (169)

 075001
 St Johns Beck at Thirlmere Res., (165, 173)

 075002
 Derwent at Camerion, (169, 173)

 075003
 Derwent at Ouse Bridge, (169)

 075004
 Cocker at Southwaite Bridge, (169)

 075005
 Derwent at Portinscale, (171)
 U75005 Derwent at Portinscale, (171) 075006 Newlands Beck at Braithwaite, (169) 075007 Glenderamackin at Threlkeld, (169) 075009 Greta at Low Briery, (171) 075010 Marron at Ullock, (171)

StationRiver andnumberStation name075016Cocker at Scalehili, (171) 075017 Ellen at Bullgill, (171) 076001 Haweswater Beck at Burnbanks, (169, 173)
 076001
 Haweswater, Beck at Burnbanks, (169, 076002
 Eden at Warwick Bridge, (169)

 076003
 Eamont at Udford, (168, 173)
 076005

 076004
 Lowther at Eamont Bridge, (169, 173)

 076005
 Eden at Temple Sowerby, (169)

 076008
 Irthing at Greenholme, (169)

 076009
 Caldew at Holm Hill, (169)

 076010
 Petteri at Harraby Green, (169)

 076011
 Coale war Loalum, (169)

 076011
 Coale um at Coalburn, (171)
 076014 Eden at Kirkby Stephen, (171) 076015 Earnont at Pooley Bridge, (171)
 077001
 Esk at Netherby, (169)

 077002
 Esk at Canonbie, (169, 173)

 077003
 Liddel Water at Rowanburnfoot, (171)

 077004
 Kirlle Water at Mosshnowe, (171)

 077005
 Liddel Water at Mosshnowe, (171)
 077005 Lyne at Cliff Bridge, (171) 078001 Annan at St Mungos Manse, (169) 078003 Annan at Brydekirk, (169) 078004 Kinnel Water at Redhall, (169, 173) 078005 Kinnel Water at Bridgemuir, (171) 078006 Annan at Woodfoot, (171) 079001 Afton Water at Afton Reservoir, (169)
 079001
 Afton Water at Afton Reservoir, (169)

 079002
 Nith at Friars Carse, (169, 173)

 079003
 Nith at Hall Bridge, (169, 173)

 079004
 Scar Water at Capenoch, (169)

 079005
 Cluden Water at Fiddlers Ford, (169)

 079006
 Scar Water at Fiddlers Ford, (169)

 079007
 Lochar Water at Kirkblain Bridge, (169)
 080001 Urr at Dalbeattie, (169) 080002 Dee at Gleniochar. (171) 080003 White Laggan Burn at Loch Dee, (171) 080004 Green Burn at Loch Dee, (171) 080005 Dargali Lane at Loch Dee, (171) 080006 Blackwater at Loch Dee. (171) 081001 Penwhim Burn at Penwhim Res., (169)
 081002
 Cree at Newton Stewart, (169)

 081003
 Luce at Airyhemming, (169, 173)

 081004
 Bladnoch at Low Malzie, (171)

 081005
 Piltanton Bum at Barsolus, (171)
 081006 Water of Minnoch at Minnoch Bridge, (171) 081007 Water of Fleet at Rusko, (171) 082001 Girvan at Robstone, (169, 173) 082002 Doon at Auchendrane, (171) 082003 Stinchar at Balnowlart, (171)
 083002
 Garmock at Dairy, (169)

 083003
 Ayr at Catrine, (169)

 083004
 Lugar Water at Langholm, (171)

 083005
 Ayr at Mainholm, (171)

 083006
 Ayr at Mainholm, (171)

 083006
 Ayr at Mainholm, (171)

 083007
 Lugton Water at Eglinton Castle, (171)

 083008
 Annick Water at Dreghorn, (171)

 083009
 Gemock at Kilwinning, (171)

 083010
 Ivrine at Newmillins, (171)

 083011
 Ivrine at Glenfield, (169)

 084001
 Kelvin at Killermont, (165, 173)

 084002
 Calder at Muirshiel (SRCW), (169, 173)

 084003
 Cyde at Hazelbank, (169, 173)

 084004
 Clyde at Sills of Clyde, (169, 173)

 084005
 Clyde at Sills of Clyde, (169, 173)

 084006
 Clyde at Sills of Clyde, (169, 173)

 084007
 South Calder Wir at Forgewood, (169, 173)

 084008
 Rotten Calder Wir at Forgewood, (169, 173)

 084009
 Nethen at Kirkmuirhill, (169, 173)

 0840012
 White Cart Water at Hawkhead, (169, 173)

 084012
 White Cart Water at Hawkhead, 1769, 173)
 084001 Kelvin at Killermont, (165, 173)
 084012
 White Cart Water at Hawkhead. (169, 173)

 084013
 Clyde at Daldowie, (169, 173)

 084014
 Avon Water at Fairholm. (169, 173)

 084015
 Ketvin at Dryfield, (169, 173)

 084016
 Luggie Water at Condorrat, (169, 173)

 084017
 Black Cart Wtr at Milliken Park. (169, 173)

 084018
 Clyde at Tulliford Mill. (169, 173)

 084019
 North Calder Wtr at Calderpark, (169, 173)

 084020
 Glazert Wtr at Milton of Campsie, (169, 173)

 084021
 White Cart Water at Netwerlee, (169, 173)

 084022
 Duneaton at Maidencots, (169, 173)

 084023
 Duneaton at Maidencots, (169, 173)

 084023
 Bothlin Burn at Auchengeich, (171, 173)

 084024
 North Calder Wir at Hillend, (171, 173)

 084025
 Lugie Water at Oxgang, (171)

 084026
 Allander Water at Milngavie, (171)

 084027
 North Calder Wir at Calderbank, (169, 173)

 084028
 Cander Water at Calderbank, (169, 173)

 084029
 White Carl Water at Overlee, (171)

 084030
 White Carl Water at Overlee, (171)

 084031
 Watstone Burn at Watstone, (169)

 084033
 White Carl Water at MacQuisten Br., (169)

 084034
 Auldhouse Burn at Spiers Bridge, (169)

 084035
 Kitoch Water at Water at Waterside, (169)

 084036
 Earn Water at Water at Waterside, (169)

 084036
 Earn Water at Water at Waterside, (169)

 084037
 Douglas Water at Happendon, (169)

 084023 Bothlin Burn at Auchengeich, (171, 173)

Station	River and
number	Station name
085001	Endrick Water at Gaidrew (169, 173)
085003	Falloch at Glen Falloch, (169, 173)
085004_	Luss Water at Luss, (17.1)
086001	Little Eachaig at Dalinlongart, (169, 173)
000002	Eachaig at Eckloru, (169, 173)
089002	Linne nam Beathach at Victoria Br (169)
089003	Orchy at Glen Orchy, (171)
089004	Strae at Glen Strae, (171)
089005	Lochy at Inverlochy, (171)
089006	Abbaing a' Bhealaich at Breevellich (171)
089008	Eas Daimh at Eas Daimh, (171)
089009	Eas a' Ghaill at Succoth, (171)
000000	0
090002	Creran at Laraphocain, (173) Nevis at Clangan, (173)
000000	
091002	Lochy at Camisky, (169)
092001	Shiel at Shielfoot (171)
032001	oner ar onenou, (117)
093001	Carron at New Kelso, (171)
094001	Ewe at Poolewe, (169)
095001	Inver at Little Assynt, (171) Broom at Invertment (160)
033002	Broom at inverbroom, (703)
096001	Halladale at Halladale. (171)
096002	Naver at Apigill, (171)
096003	Strathy at Strathy Bridge, (171)
096004	Strathmore at Alinabad, (171)
097002	Thurso at Halkirk, (169, 173)
101001	Eastern Yar at Alverstone Mill, (169)
101002	Lukely Brook at Newport (171)
101004	Eastern Yar at Burnt House, (171)
101005	Eastern Yar at Budbridge, (171)
101006	Wroxall Stream at Waightshale, (171)
101007	Scotchells Brook at Burnt House, (171)
102001	Cefni at Bodffordd, (169)
106001	Creed at Creed Bridge, (171)
201002	Esinovater at Dudgeon Bridge (171)
201005	Carnowen at Carnowen Terrace. (171)
201006	Drumragh at Campsie Bridge, (171)
201007	Burn Dennet at Burndennet, (171)
201008	Derg at Castlederg, (777) Owerkillew at Crosh (171)
201010	Mourne at Drumnabuoy House, (169)
202204	
202001	Roe at Aronargie, (177) Fauchan at Drumahoe (177)
	5,
203010	Blackwater at Maydown Bridge, (169)
203011	Ballinderry at Ballinderry Bridge (171)
203017	Upper Bann at Dynes Bridge, (171)
203016	Six-Mile Water at Antrim, (171)
203019	Claudy at Glenone Bridge, (171)
203020	Kellswater at Curry's Bridge, (171)
203024	Cusher at Gamble's Bridge, (171)
203025	Callan at Martin's Bridge, (171)
203026	Glenavy at Glenavy, (171) Braid at Balles, (171)
203027 203028	Agivey at Whitehill. (171)
203029	Six Mile Water at Ballyclare, (171)
203033	Upper Bann at Bannfield, (171)
203038	Rocky at Rocky Mountain, (171)
203039	Lower Bann at Movanacher. /169)
203042	Crumlin at Cidercourt Bridge, (171)
203043	Oonawater at Shanmoy, (171)
203046	Rathmore Burn at Rathmore Br., (171)
203092	Maine at Dunminning, (171)
203093	Maine at Shane's Viaduct, (171)
204001	Bush at Seneirl Bridge, (171)
00700-	
205004	Lagan at Newtorge, (169) Ravemet at Ravemet (171)
205008	Lagan at Drumiller, (169)
205010	Lagan at Banoge, (171)
205011	Annacloy at Kilmore Bridge, (171)
205015	Collon at Granomere, (1/1) Enjer at Comber (171)
200020	
206001	Clanrye at Mountmill Bridge, (171)
206002	Jerretspass at Jerretspass, (171)
236005	Colebrooke at Ballindarragh Br., (171)
236007	Sillees at Drumrainey Bridge, (171)

Summary of Archived Data — Gauged Flows

Flow records commencing prior to 1950

Station	1900	1910	1920	1930	1940	1950	1960	1970	1980	1990	2k
004001					fcf	CCCDAEAAEA	ВАВАВАААА	E AAAA	*******	*******	
006001			_	exxxe	BEBABBBBAA	. Е ЕХХХХХА	AAAE				
008001			f	cccccccc	cccccf						
009005				IÇ	11ccccccc	fffefffe		*****	0000001111		
012001			e	BEBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB	BABBAABCCC		COCCERANN	RTRANANAN	AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA		
015003					feC	СВАЛАЛАЛА	*****	******	ABCCCANANA		Î.
015004			ccc	CCCCCCEAe		EE E	AAAAAAEE				
015005			coc	CCCCCCBAe		KE EEE E	AEAAAAAE				
010001					Ce	CBAAbbAAAA	*****	******	ВАСССААЛАА	*********	. A
023015					fc	cic					
027001				ANT	FEEEEEE	EAFAFFBBB					
027002						FAAAA	AAAAABABAAAA	*********	1111111111		
027005				fCF	елала	ABCCCCCCCB	BEBBBBBAAAA	AABBCCCCCC	C CFCCCCCC	CCCCCCCAAE	, Â
027010				fefe	fffffffff	cfffbaaaaa	ВАЛЕЛАЛАЛ	ABAAAAEEAE			
028001				cccbAAA	BCCCCCCCCB	BAABBAAAAA	*******	AAAAAAEAAA	*****	*******	A .
020002				eXX	****	AABAAAAAA	AAAAAAADEE	ZAAAAEAAAA	AAAAE		
028085				EFFCC FRECC	CCCFCCCCCC	CCCCFCCCCC	ccccccccc	CCCCBAAAAA	*****		_
				IFFCC	ucruce	ceccreece	uuuuu	LULUBAAAAA	******		
Station	1900	1910	1920	1930	1940	1950	1960	1970	1980	1990	2k
031001				fCF	CCCCCf	fBBBBBBB	BBBBBBBAAFA	AABAAAAPAB	BAAAAAABF	CCP AFF	
031002							fcccccccc	ccccccccc	CCCCCCBBBB	AEEEBAAAAC	x
032001				f	еввавалала	авалалалав	BAAABAABCC	BEEBBBBCCBB	BAAAAAAEE	E EA	
032002				eA	AABABABABA	BABABBAAAB	алввалалал	вуууууууу	*******	AEAAEAAAE	Е
032003				eA	ABEAABAAAB	AAAAABABABAB	BBAABEAAAA	XXXXXXXXDX	ХВАААААЕА	AAEBAAAAEA	A
032006					RIALRAARA	ARAAAAAAAA	BERASSAAAB	AAAAAAEAAA	COCOCORDAN	AAAAABAAAA	Å
032007				e	AAAAABAABA	ABAABABAAA	BRAAABAAA	CCCCCCCCCCC	BCCCCCCBBR	FREELACEA	<u>,</u>
032008					eAAAB	ABAAABABAA	BEBBBBAFABA	*****	BAAAAAAAAA	AFFARMACCO	â
033001				fcCC	ECCCCCCCCC	FFCCCCCCCC	CCF				
033002				cCCcCBB	BBBBBCCCCC	CCCCCCCCB	BAAAAABBB	валалалев	валелалал	ААААВВАААС	в
033003				fccc	CCFCFCCCCC	BAEABBABCC	ВАААААССАА	BCCCCCCCCC	CCCCCPPP		
033004				fCCC	CCCCCCFFCC	CCCCCBABCC	CCCCCCFCFC	CCCCFCCCCC	CFCCCPP		
033013					IL	fifferent	eaaaaaaaea	BAAAAAAAAA	BAAAAABBA	AAABAAABAC	ç
033024					L F	FROCCORCO	CCCollins	******	AAAABABAAAA	ABAAAEAAAB	B
033053					f	ffeeccecce	CCFCFFBCC	000000000000000000000000000000000000000	CCRAARAA	ADAADAAAD	р С
035014					fe	cfcffccccc	CCCCCCCFF				-
036001			cc	FCCCCCCCC	ccccccccc	CCCCCCBARB	BBBAABAAAB	BEBBABCCCC	CCCCCCCCCC	CCP	
037002				FCCCCBBB	BBBBABABAA	BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB	BEBBBBBBBAA	Вааааааааа	******	AAEEAEBBBB	В
Station	1900	1010	1020	1020	40.40	4050		4070			
037003	1300	1910	1920	1930	1940	1950	1960	1970	1980	1990	2k
037004				feececc	cecceccecc	baaaabbabb	BRAARARA	AAAAAAAAAA	AAAAABAABA	AACAAAABBB	в
038001	cccfccccc	ccccccccc	ccccccccc	cccccccCCC	ecceccecc	CCCCCCCCCC	CCCCCAAAAA	AAAAAAF EA	********	********	A
038005							EAAAABDBAA	AAAAAAAAA	EE		~
038013							еллеввалал	AAAAAABAAA	алаалвалаа	ваааааааааа	A
039001	CCCCCCCCCC	ccccccccc	CCCCCCCCCC	ccccccccc	cccccccc	ccccccccc	0000000000	CCCCCBAAAA	ввалаалаа	******	λ
039002				fC	ccccccccc	ccccccccc	ccccccccc	ccccccccc	ccccccccc	CCBAAAAAAB	в
039004				eeeA	AAE EEEE	EAAAAA	AAAAEAEEEE	EEAEEAF E	EEEEAAAAAA	хеллалала	λ
039013				ANNA	*********	DABBBBBBBB	ARABASARA	AAAAABAARA	ALLOBAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAAA	A
039015			ccc	000000000000000000000000000000000000000	CCCCCCCCCCC	COCCCCCCCCC	CCEBAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAABCB	******	ALABABABA	2
039076					ffffffff	ffffffffff	fffffff	PFCC	CCCFCCCCCC	CFFFEDAAAE	Å
039085				eaea	āā e	еллал	е				
041016				F	<i>fffffffff</i>	FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF	FFFFFFFEAA	AAAAAAAA D	алалалал	AAAAAAAAA	х
053003				f	feebbbbe b	beabAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAE				
054001			FCCCCCCCC	CCCCCCCCCC	CCCCCCFCCC	ccccccccc	cccccccc	CCAAAABAAA	алалалала	AAAAAAAAAA	x
054002			coccepter	IDAA ccofoochaa	TAAAAAAAAABC	CCCCBAAAAA		BCBABABAAA	AAAAAAAAAA	********	A
055002			000000000000000000000000000000000000000	eEFAA	1111111111	AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	AADDDAAAAAA BBBFABAAAAA	CCCRAABABAB	AAAAAAAAAA		
055003				e	****	AAAAAAAAA	****	AAAABAAAAA	AEF EF		Å
				-							
Station	1900	1910	1920	1930	1940	1950	1960	1970	1980	1990	2k
055004				eAA	******	аааааааааа	***	алалалалаа	EBF		
055005	~~	CCCCCCCCC		eBA	*******	******	AAAEAAAAA		-00		
055007			accurect	LLLLLBARAR	AAAAAAAAAAAAA	*********	AAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAABCC	eCCFC		
055009				EAA	лалалала р Д	AAAAAAAAAA	AAAEAAAAAA	AAR	CAACCCAABB	ылалалалал	A
055023				fBAA	AABAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAA	*****	ccccccccc	CAAAAAAAAA	*********	
055026				eBA	алаалалаа	AAAAAAAAAA	AAAEAAAAAA	*****	RAAAAAAAA	BBBAAAAAAA	x
055029					eA	******	AAAEAAAAAA	*****	Валалалал	*****	Å
055030			fece	cccccccfc	cocccccc	c					
JJJJUJ2 157004	ce	LCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC	CCCCCCCCCCC	LCCCCBAAAA	******	******	******	AAAAAABCC	CAAABAAABB	EBDAAAAAAA	х
357001				eeEB	e 	AAABAAA	ABBBBBBAAEA	AAAB			
067002				CCCCChAA	AAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAAA	**********	A			
067003			еллалал	AAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAA	AAABBAAAAA	AABAABCAAA	AAACCAAAAA	ABBCBBF	
067015				ελλ	Валалалал	****	AAAAAAAABA	*****	*****	ABAAAAAAAA	A
068001				eAB	ААВСВВАВВВ	Валалала	AAAAAAEAE	алалаелела	*****	*****	x
068002					e	алалалала	алалалаеаа	аллалае			
JOB003					ee	*******	алалалела	алаллевала	алалалала	******	D
209001				ebabBB	BBBBBBBBBB	AAAAAAAAA	BAAAAABEA	AAABABAAA			-
10900Z					e	********	RAAAAAAEAA	AREARAAA	********	aradararad	D
Station	1900	1910	1920	1930	1940	1950	1960	1970	1980	1990	7⊾
069003				eE	E	*****	AAAAAAAEAA	AAAEAAAAAA	******	AE FAAAF	An A
69004					fBBBB	BBBBBBBBAA	AAAAAAAAE	BBCCCCCCCC	CC		
69039					e	EAAEEDAAAe		AFA			
071002				ee			Еллала	AAAbE eAAB	BAEEAAAAAA	AAAAAAAADE	Е
73010				C	cccccccc	CCCCBCCCCC	CCCCCCCCCC	CBBBCCAAAA	алалалааа	********	A
184001				EAE	· EAAAA	AAAAAAAAAAA	AAAHAAAAEE	E AAAAAA	******	AAAAAAAAE	A
					es	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	AAAAAAAAA	ллааладдад	-AAAAAAAAB	лалалияла	A

• -

Flow records commencing between 1950 and 1969

Station	1950	1960	1970	1980 .	1990	2k
003001	exaxe			FARAAAAA	******	x
004004	* *		-	Елалалаа	халалалал	A
005001	e aaaaaa	AAE		EAAA	алалалала	с
005003				EA	****	A
005004	ехлалав	BAe			EAAAAAAAAA	A
006007			AAAAAA	*******	******	х'
007001	eA	е лалалала Алалалалал	алалалала Алалалалал	алалалала	*******	Â
007003		еллала	ааавааааа	AAAAAADDAA	*****	A
008002	е лалвалал е лалалала	AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	aaabaaaaaa Aaaa	****	,	~
008004	ЕЛЛАЛАЛА	*******	******	аладелала	*****	A 3
008005	евалалала еалалала	алалалалал	AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	алалалала	AAAAAAAAA	Â
008007	елалалал	*******	******	*******	AAAAAA	. E
008008	eaaaaaaa Faeeaeea	******	*****	AAAACAAAAA	алалалала	Â
Station	1950	1960	1970	1980	1990	2k
008010	еллала	алалалала	алааааааа	AAAACAAAAA	*****	X
008013					EDDAAADAA	D
008016					EAAE	
008017	e	******	******	AAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAA	A
009002		елалалала	AAAABAAAAA	******	******	A A
009003		Е		E	ADAADAAEED	E
009007			******	300	EADDAE	
010001		LAAAA	ЕХАХАХАА	алалалала Алалалала	******	A
011001		E	AAAAAAAAAA CHAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAA Baabababaa	х 2
011002		P ^r	Е ллала	AAAACAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAA	A
011005		P	**********	D	аааае Ееа ааааа	A
012009	edd	dADEDDADEE	1000000000	CFFFFCF	ваалалалал	A
013010				*	AAAAAAAAA AAAAAAAA	A A
01-01-2	4050	4050	1070	1090	1990	26
013017	1920	1900	1970	1900	AAAAA	Å.
014001		EAA	******	AAAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	A b
014002		E		AAA	XXXXXXXXXXXX	A
014009					AAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	A A
015001	ee	еллалале				•
015002	e	AAAAAAAEE	*********	*********		A
015008	еллалла елл	AAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAA	AACCCARAAA	AAAAAAAAAA	Â
015008	EA	****	AAADAAAAAA	BACCCARARA	*********	A A
015013	cecce	-00000000000000000000000000000000000000	CCCBAAAAAA	ААВССААААА	*****	A
015018	eaaaae				****	
015030					Салалалала	A
015032					САААААА Аааааааааа	λ
015038					алалала	A
015039						A.
Station 015041	1950	1960	1970	1980	1990 AAAAAAA	2k A
016002	еллал	алалалала	******			
016003			EARAHARAAA	алалалала	алалалалал Салалалала	A A
017001		E	AAAAAAAAAB	********	AAAAAAADAC	c
017002		Е	*********	алаалаада Алаалаада	AABAAAADAC AAFACAAAFC	с С
018001	EAA	********	******	******	AACACAAACC	c
018002 018003	d 200	анаалалалал СССВАЛАЛАЛ	вораааааааа Хабааааааа	алаалалала Даалалала	ARABARARCC	c
018013			•	ACCA	AACACAAAACC	·C
018015				EDAAAAAA	BCCAAAA	
018020					ACCACCADCC	F F
018023				ccc	FCCCABD	-
019001	ала	******	AAAAAAAAAAA AAAcaaaaaaaa	***********	ARARARARA	с с
019002		EXXXXXXX	AAAAAAAAAA	D		
019004		*******	AAACAAAAAA	AAAAAABAA	BACACAAACC	с -
Station	1950	1960	1970	1980	1990 DACCARATICO	* 2k
019005		елалала Алалала	алалалалала Далалалала	*******	AACACAAAPCC	c
019007		BAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAA AAAA	*********	AACAAAADCC	F
019009		AAAAAA	алалалала	AAAAAA BEA	ADCEFFDEFC	c
019010		A CECCÓCO	AAAAAAAAA CCCCCCAAAA	AAAABEEBEA AAAAAAAAAAAA	AACACAAACC AACACAAAFC	c c
019012				EAAA	AAFBCADBCC	c
020001		аалаалаа Бааа	алаалалала Алаалалала	алалалалал Алалалалал	AAAAAAAAEAC AACACAAACC	C C
020003		*****	*****	алалалелал	AABACAAACC	В
020004		AAA 000000	алаалалалал ССССССАЛАЛ	. АЛАЛЛЕЛАЛ . ЛЛАЛЛАЕЛАЛ	AAFE AAFCCAAACC	с
020007			CCCAAAA	******	AACACAAACC	С
021001	e	ABCBAAAE				
021003	e	AAAAAABAA	*******	*******	******	A
021004		елелалал Елеллалал	алалалала	******		A
021006		DAAAAAAAA	******	*******	*****	λ.

, c	station	1950	1960	1970	1980	1990	2k
	021007		EAAAAAAAA	*********	********	*******	A 1
·•• • č	021009		DAAAAAAA	******		*****	A
0	021010		ff EAAAAAA	алалалавала	Α .		
9	021011		DAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAA	******	******	A >
	021012		DAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAAA	A A
Ċ	021014		EAAAAAAA	алалалала	*****	алалалал	¥
(021015		EAAA	****	*****	*****	A
	021016		EAA Faaaa	******	AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAA	A A
č	021018		DA	AAAAAAAAAA	****	*****	A
0	021019		EA	*******	алалалала	алаалалаа	A
(021020		EAA	*******	*****	AAAAAAAAAA	× ·
1	021021		E	*******	*****	AAAAAAAAAAA	A A
i	021023		_	ERRARAAAAA	*****	алалалала	A
(021024			DAAAAAAA	алалалала	аааааааааааа	A
	021025			FARARAR	111111111111	*******	Α λ
```	021020				10000002201		
5	Station	1950	1960	1970	1980	1990	2k
	021027		EA	AAAAAA	*********	******	A A
i	021031	eAAB.	AEAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAE	E		
1	021032		e <b>aaa</b>	алалалаела	AAAE E	EAAAAAADAA	A
	021034		FB	*******	AAAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	A >
	022001	e <b>AA</b>	FFFBAAA	******	E	-	•
,	022003	eAA	BAEAAAAAAA	******	E		
	022004	-	елла	алалалала	Е		
+	022006		eDAA	DAAAAAAAA	BAABAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAAA	A 2
1	022007		LA F	AAAAAAABAA	AAAE		
	023001	eAAA	AAAAEAAAAA	******	алалалала	ABEBAAAAAA	A
1	023002	fCCCCB	алалалала	алавалала	AAAAAAAAEA	DAADAAAAAA	A
1	023003 1	e e	AAAAAAAADA	AAAABAAAAA	EADAAAAAEA	AAAAAAAAAAA	A >
	023004		CAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	AREAAAABAA	AAABAAAAA	ADDAADAAAA	~
	023006		eaaa	AAAAAAAEEA	*****	AAAAAAAAAD	A
	023007		еллалла	AAAAAAAEAA	BAAAAAAEAD	алалалала	A
	023008		EA	AAAAAAAAAAA	AEAAAAAEAE	DADAAAAAAA	A
	Station	19 <b>50</b>	1960	1970	1980	1990	2k
	023009		e	AAADDAAAE	EAAE	EEEAAEDDD	D
	023010			EDADADARAA	E FAAAAAAEEF	DABAAAAAA	`A
	023014		fcccccccc	CBAEE			
	023016				E	DDDAAAADAA	A
	023018				CCARSEDS	AAAAADAA	D 1
	023022				D	AAAAAAAAAA	A
	024001	fCC	CCCCCCBAAA	алалалеала	Елалалала	EDADAAADAA	A
	024002	eA	алалалала	алалваала	алае		
	024003	eA	• AAAAAAAEAA	AAAAAAAAAAAA	AAAAADAAAA BBBBBBBBBBBB	DDAAAAAAAD BBBBBBBBBBBB	A 1
	024004	eeEAAA	AAAAAAAEAA	AAAAAAAEEA	AAAAABAADA	алалалала	A
	024006	fcc	<b>BAAAAAA</b> AAA	алалалала	E		
	024007		EA	AAAAAAAAAA	AAAE		
	2 C 1 2 L 1 2 2 3					ARAAAAAA	
	024011		******	*********	**********	********	A .
	025001	e <b>lla</b> ff e	алаалаладаа алаалалаав	алалалала Вааде	AAAAAAADAA	AADAAAAAAA	A A
	025001 025002 025003	e <b>RAA</b> ff e e <b>AA</b>	алаалалалаа Алаалалаав Алаелалааа	алаалалаа Вааде Заалалаава	aaaaaadaa E	AADAAAAAAA Eaaaaaaaa	A A
	025001 025002 025003 025004	eaaa ff e eaa eaaa	алалаладаа Валалалада Алаелалала Алаелалала	алаалаалаа Валас Алаалаалва Алаалаалва	AAAAAAAAAAAA E AAEADDDADA	аадаааааа Еалаааааа Аалаааа ВС	А А А
	025001 025002 025003 025004 Station	еваа ff е ела сала 1950	алалалалдаа Балалалала Галелалала Халалалала 1960	алаалаа Ваале Алалаалава Алалаалава Алалаалава 1970	E AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	ААДААААААА Еладааааа аалаааа вс 1990	A A A 2k
	025001 025002 025003 025004 Station 025005	елла ff е ела слад 1950 е	аллааласаа Балаалалав Алаелалаа Лааглалаа 1960 Аллаглала	алалалала Владе Алалалава Алалалава 1970 Алаввараа	AAAAAAAAAAA E AAEADDDADA 1980 AAAAAAAAA	алдалалала Балалалал Аллалал ВС 1990 Аллалалал	A A A 2k A
	025001 025002 025003 025004 Station 025005 025006 025006	елла ff е елл елла 1950 е	аллалара Залалалара Залелара Алеларара Алалалара 1960 Аллалара Салалара	алалалала Вала Алалалава Алалалава 1970 Алавалела Алавалела Алавалела	AAAAAAAAAA E AAEADDDADA 1980 AAAAAAAAA F	алдалалала Елалалала Алалалал ВС 1990 Алалалала Алалалала	A A A A 2k A A A
	025001 025002 025003 025004 Station 025005 025006 025006 025007 025008	елла ff е елл елла 1950 е	алалалада алалалала алеалалал алеалалал 1960 алалалал елалалал елалалал елалалал елал	алалалала Вала Алалалава Алалалава 1970 Алавалела Алавалела Аларалала Алалалала Алалалала	AAAAAAAAAA E AAEAADDDADA 1980 AAAAAAAAA AAAAAAAAA E AEAE F	алдалалал Елалалал Алдалал ВС 1990 Аллалалал Аллалалал Аллалалал	A A A 2k A A A
	025001 025002 025003 025004 Station 025005 025006 025006 025007 025008 025009	елла ff е ела елла 1950 е	алалалара Валалалар Алеалара Алеалара Алалалара Салалара Салалара Ерар Ерар Ерар Ерар Ерар	алалалала Вала Алалалава Алалалава 1970 Алавалела Алавалела Аларалала Алалалала Алалалала Алалалала Алалалала	AAAAAAAAA         E           AAEAADDAAA         1980           AAAAAAAAAA         E           AAAAAAAAAA         E           AEAA         F           AAAAAAAAAAA         F	алдалалала елалалала алалала вс 1990 алалалала алалалала алалалала алалалал	A A A 2k A A A A
	025001 025002 025003 025004 Station 025005 025006 025007 025008 025009 025010	евла ff е ела ела 1950 е	алалалара Валалалар Алегалара Алагалара 1960 Алалалара Валаларара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валалара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валар Вала Вала	алалалала Вале Алалалава Алалалава 1970 Алавалела Алавалела Алавалела Алавалела Алавалела Алавалала Алавалала Аваесалала Аваесалала	AAAAAAAAAA         E           AAEAADDDADA         1980           AAAAAAAAA         AAAAAAAAA           AAAAAAAAA         E           AEAE         F           AAAAAAAAAA         1980	алдалалала Балалалал Алалалал ВС 1990 Алалалала Алалалала Алалалала Алалалала	A A A A A A A A
	025001 025002 025002 025003 025004 <b>Station</b> 025005 025006 025006 025007 025008 025009 025010 025011	елла ff е ела ела 1950 . е	алалалара алалалара алагалала алагалалал 1960 алалалала салалалал салалалал салалалал	АЛЛАЛАЛА ВАЛА АЛЛАЛАЛАВА АЛЛАЛАЛАВА 1970 АЛЛВАЛЕЛА АЛЛВАЛЕЛА АЛЛВАЛЕЛА АЛЛАЛАЛАЛ АБАЛЕГАЛАЛ АБАЛЕЛАЛА АЛЛАЛАЛАЛА	алалаладаа е алеадоодада 1980 алалалалала е аеле р алалалалала алалалалала аладе алалалалалала	алдалалала едалалала алалала вс 1990 алалалала алалалала алалалалал алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала	A A A A A A A A
	025001 025002 025003 025004 Statlon 025005 025006 025007 025008 025000 025010 025011 025011 025012 025013	eraa ff e eaa cara 1950 e	алалалара Валалалара Алагалалара 1960 Валаларара Валаларара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарарара Валарарара Валарарара Валарарара Валарарара Валарарарара Валарарара Валарарара Валарарара Валарарара Валарарара Валарарара Валарарарара Валарарара Валарарарара Валарарара Валарарара Валарарара Валарарара Валарарарара Валарарара Валарарара Валарарара Валарарара Валарарара Валарарара Валарарара Валарарара Валарарара Валарарара Валарарара Валарарара Валарарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валарара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Валара Вала Вал	алалалала Вала Алалалалар 1970 Аларвалала Аларвалала Аларвалала Аларвалала Аларвалала Алалалала Валалалала Beaee	аллаладаа е алеаdddada 1980 аллалалаа е аеле р аллалалаа ала аллалалаа ала алас р	алдалалала елалалала алдалала ес 1990 аллалалал алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала	A A A A A A A A
	025001 025002 025002 025003 025004 <b>Station</b> 025005 025006 025007 025008 025009 025010 025011 0250112 025013 026001	елла ff е елл елл 1950 е еллаеве	алалалара алалалалар алалалалар алалалал	алалалала Вала Алалалара 1970 Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвараа Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларва Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларвара Аларва Аларвара Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Аларва Ал	алалаладаа е алеадоодара 1980 алалалалала е алалалалала е алалалалала алас р алалалалала алас р	алдалалала едалалала алдалала ес 1990 аллалалал алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала	A A A A A A A A
	025001 025002 025002 025003 025004 <b>Station</b> 025005 025006 025006 025007 025008 025009 025011 025012 025011 025012 025013 026001 026001	елла ff е елл елла 1950 е еллавев	АЛЛАЛАДДА ВАЛЛАЛАЛА АЛАБАЛАЛА АЛЛАЛАЛАА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА Е ЕВА ВВЕВВАВАВВ САЛЛЕВВЕ САЛЛЕВВЕ САЛЛЕВВЕ САЛЛЕВВЕ САЛЛЕВВЕ	АЛЛАЛАЛА ВАЛДе АЛЛАЛАЛАВА АЛЛАЛАЛАВА 1970 АЛЛАВЛАВАА АЛЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛЛАЛАЛАЛА	АЛЛАЛАДДА Е АЛЕАДОДДАДА 1980 АЛЛАЛАЛАЛА В АЛЛАЛАЛАЛА В ССССССССС ВАЛЛАЛАЛАЛА В ССССССССС	Алдалалал Едалалала Алдалала Алдалалал Алдалалал Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала СССССРС	A A A A A A A A A A A
	025001 025001 025002 025003 025004 <b>Station</b> 025005 025006 025008 025008 025009 025010 025011 025013 025013 025013 026001 026002 026003 026003	елла ff e eлл eлл 1950 e eллаеве e	алалалара алагалалара алагаларара алагаларара алагаларара алагалара салалара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларарара саларарара саларарара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара саларара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара са са са са са са са са са са са са са	алалалала Валас Залалалара 1970 Аларваеда Аларларас Аларлара Аларлара Аларлара Аларалала Алареала Аларалала Алареала Баларалар Еларе Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара	алалалараа е лаелооодара 1980 лалалалал лалалалал лалалалала лалалалалал лалалалалал в соссосос лалалалалала в сосососос	алдалалал Едалалала Алдалала ВС 1990 Алдалалал Алдалалал Алдалалал Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала ССССССРС Алдалалала	A A 2k A A A A A
	025001 025001 025002 025003 025004 <b>Station</b> 025005 025006 025007 025008 025009 025010 025011 025013 025013 025013 025001 025013 026001 026002 026003 026009	сала ff e eAa caaa 1950 e caaabe e caaabe e	алалалара алалалала алалалала алалалала салалалал	алалалала Валалалара Алалалара 1970 Аларварара Аларалала Аларалала Аларарала Алалалала Аларарала Алалалала Варар Алалалала Ераре Алалалара Елалалалар Баларара Алалалала Ераре Алалалара Баларара Алалалала Ераре Алалалара Баларара Алалалала Ераре Алалалара Баларара Алалалара Баларара Алалалара Баларара Алалалара Баларара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарарара Аларарарара Аларарарара Аларарарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларарара Аларара Аларарара Аларарара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Алара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Ала	алалаладаа е лагадоодара 1980 лагалалала е елее р лалалалала алалалалала алалалалала в соссососо алалалалала р сосососоо	алдалалала едалалала алдалала ес 1990 алдалалал алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала ссссссс сс	A A A A A A A A A C
	025001 025001 025002 025003 025005 025005 025006 025006 025006 025000 025010 025011 025012 025013 026001 026003 026003 026009 026009 026009 026009	сала ff e eaa caaa f eaa eaa caaab e eee eee	алалаласаа алалалалаа алалалалаа алалалал	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВАЛА ВАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛ	алалаладаа е лагадоодада 1980 лалалалала е агае р лалалалала в соссососо лалалалала в сосососоо лалалалала г с лалалалала	алдалалала Елалалала Алалала ес 1990 Алалалала Алалалала Алалалалал Алалалала	A A 2k A A A A A A A A A A A A
	025001 025001 025002 025004 Statlon 025005 025006 025007 025008 025009 025010 025011 025011 025011 025011 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025011 025011 025011 025011 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025000 025000 025001 025000 025000 025000 025000 025000 025000 025000 025000 025000 025000 025000 025000 025000 025000 025000 025000 025000 025000 025000 025000 025000 025000 025000 025000 025000 025000 025000 025000 025000 025000 025000 025000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000	елла ff е елл слла 1950 е сллавве е е е	АЛЛАЛАДДА ВАЛЛАЛАЛА АЛЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛЛАЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА	АЛЛАЛАЛА ВАЛА АЛЛАЛАЛАВА АЛЛАЛАЛАВА АЛЛАЛАЛАВА 1970 АЛЛВАВАРАА АЛЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛЛАЛАЛАЛА ВАЛАВАЛАВА ВАЛАВЕАА АЛЛАЛАЛАВЕ АЛЛАВЕАА FCCEFFCCCC АЛЛАЛВААА	алалаладаа е ласароодара 1980 лалалалала е асле р лалалалала е асле р лалалалала в в сосососос лалалалала г с лалалалала в с с с с с с с лалалалала а а ала алалалал	Алдалалала Елалалала Алдалала ес 1990 Аллалалал Алдалалала Алдалалала ССССССС сс Алалелала ССССССС сс Алалелала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алалалалала ССССССС сс Алалелала Алалалалала ССССССС сс Алалелала Алалалалала ССССССС сс Алалелала Алалалалала ССССССС сс Алалелала Алалалалала ССССССС сс Алалелала Алалалалала ССССССС со Алалелала	A A 2k A A A A A A A A
	025001 025001 025002 025003 025004 <b>Station</b> 025005 025006 025007 025009 025010 025012 025012 025013 026001 025012 026003 026003 026003 026003 026007 026003 026007 026003 027004 027006	елла ff e eлл cлла 1950 e eлллове e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e	алалалара алалалалара алалалалала алалалал	АЛЛАЛАЛАА ВАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛ	алалаладаа е ласадоодада 1980 лалалалала е леле р лалалалала е леле р лалалалала в е сосссссс лалалалала в с с с с с с с с с с с с с с с с с с с	алралалаа Едаралала Алалалала Алалалала Алалалала Алалалала	A A A 2k A A A A A A A A A
	025001 025002 025003 025003 025004 <b>Station</b> 025005 025006 025006 025007 025008 025010 025011 025012 025013 026001 026003 026003 026007 026003 026007 026003 026007 026003 026007 026007 027006 027006	елла ff е елл елл 1950 е еллавев е е е е е е е е е е е е е е е е е е	алалалара алагалалара алагаларара алагаларара алагаларара алагалара алагалара алагара алагара алагара алагара алагара алагара слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава слава с с с с с с с с с с с с с с с с с с	алалалала Валас Алалалалара 1970 Алавваеда Алавларара Алавларара Алавларара Аларалала Алареала Валалалала Беле Ралаларара Беле Алалеерара Беле Ссегресссе Алаларарар Беле Алаларарар	алалалалал е алеадодада 1980 алалалалал е деде р алалалалала алалалалала в сссссссс алалалалала гс алалалалала гс алалалалала алариалалала гс алалалалала алариалалала гс алалалалала алариалалала гс алалалалала алариалалала гс алалалалала алариалалала алариалалала алариалалалала алариалалала алариалалала алариалалала алариалалала алариалалалала алариалалалала алариалалалала алариалалалала алариалалалала алариалалалала алариалалала алариалалалариа алариалалалала алариалалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариа алариалариа алариалариа алариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариалариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алариа алари	Алдалалала Едалалала Алалалала Алалалала Алалалала Алалалала	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A
	025001 025002 025003 025004 <b>Station</b> 025005 025006 025008 025008 025009 025011 025012 025012 026001 026001 026002 026003 026000 026009 026009 027006 027006 027008 027008	eAAA ff e eAA eAAA eAAABBE e eAAABBE e e e e e e e aAAB	алалалара алалалалара алалалалала алалалал	алалалала Валалалара Алалалара Алалалара 1970 Аларалала Аларалала Аларалала Аларалала Аларалала Аларалала Валарара Баларара Ссергессе Алаларара Баларара Ссергессе Алаларалар Валалара Алалалала Баларара Ссергессе Алаларалар Валалара Алалалала Ссергессе Алаларалар	алалалала е алеалододод 1980 алалалала е аеле F алалалалала алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала калалалала в сосососос алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалал	Алдалалала Едалалала Алдалала ВС 1990 Алдалалал Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала ССССССГС Алдалалала ССССССС СС Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала ССССССС СС Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала СССССССС Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалала Алдалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалала Алдалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала	A A 2k A A A A A A B
	025001 025002 025003 025003 025004 <b>Station</b> 025005 025006 025007 025008 025010 025011 025012 025013 026001 025012 026003 026007 026003 026007 026003 026007 026003 026007 027008 027009 <b>Station</b>	елла ff е елл елла елла е елла 1950	алалалара алалалалара алалалалара алалалал	алалалала Валалалара Залалалара Залалалара 1970 Аларвареа Аларалала Аларалала Аларарала Валарарала Валарарала Валарарала Баларарала Балареалара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балараралара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балаларара Балараралара Балараралара Балараралара Балараралара Балараралара Балараралара Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларарана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана Баларана	алалаладаа е лаеадоодада 1980 лалалалала е деле р лалалалала е деле р лалалалала в соссоссос лалалалала в соссососос лалалалала р соссососос лалалалала р соссососос лалалалалала р соссососос лалалалалала р соссососос лалалалалала р соссососос лалалалалала р соссососос лалалалалала р соссососос лалалалалала р соссососос лалалалалала лала лалалалалала р соссососос лалалалалала лала лалалалалала лала лалалала	Алдалалала Езалалала Алалалала Ес 1990 Алалалала Алалалала Алалалалал Алалалала	A A 2k A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A
`	024011 025002 025003 025003 025004 025005 025006 025006 025007 025008 025007 025008 025007 025008 025007 025012 025013 026007 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025002 025002 025012 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 027004 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 0200000000	елла ff е елл елла 1950 е еллава е е е е е е алла 1950 fbbbbbb	алалаласаа алалалалаа алалалалала алалалал	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВАЛА ВАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛ	алалаладаа е лаелооодаа 1980 лалалалала е елее р лалалалала е елее р лалалалала в соссососо лалалалала го соссососо лалалалала го соссососо лалалалала го соссососо лалалалала го соссососо лалалалала го соссососо лалалалала го соссососо лалалалала го соссососо лалалалала го соссососо лалалалала го соссососо лалалалала го соссососо лалалалала го соссососо лалалалала го соссососо лалалалала го соссососо лалалалала го соссососо лалалалала го соссососо лалалалала го соссососо лалалалала го соссососо лалалалала го соссососо лалалалала го соссососо лалалалала го соссососо лалалалала го соссососо лалалалалала го соссососо лалалалала го соссососо лалалалалала го соссососо лалалалала го соссососо лалалалала го соссососо лалалалала го соссососо лалалалала го соссососо лалалалалала го соссососо го зо соссососо лалалалалала го соссососо го го соссососо го соссососо соссососо го соссососо соссососо соссосо сосососо	Алдалалала Елалалала Алдалала Ес 1990 Алдалала Ес 1990 Алдалалала Алдалалала СССССГС Аллалалала ССССССС СС Алласелала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала Алдалалала	A A A 2k A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A
	024061 1025002 025001 025003 025003 025003 025004 025006 025006 025006 025007 025008 025007 025008 025001 025002 026001 025012 026003 026007 026003 026007 026003 027004 027004 027008 027009 027004 027008 027007 027008 027007 027008 027007 027008 027007 027008 027001 027011 027012 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027010 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027011 027010 027010 027010 0000000000	елла ff е елл елла 1950 е еллавев е е е е е е е е а е а е а а в е а а в е а а а в е е а а а а	алалалала алалалала алалалала алалалала	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛ	алалаладаа е алеалооодаа 1980 алалалалаа е аеде г алалалалаа алалалалаа в сессессе алалалалаа гс алалалалаа гс алалалалала адаалалалаа адаалалалаа адаалалалаа адаалалалаа адаалалалаа адаалалалаа адаалалалаа адаалалалаа адаалалалаа адаалалалаа адаалалалаа адаалалалаа адаалалалала адаалалалаа адаалалалаа адаалалалаа адаалалалаа адаалалалаа адаалалалаа адаалалалаа адаалалалаа адаалалалаа адаалалалаа адаалалалаа адаалалалала адаалалалаа адаалалалала адаалалалала адаалалалала адаалалалала адаалалалала адаалалалалаа адаалалалала адаалалалала адаалалалала адаалалалала адаалалалала адаалалалала адаалалалала адаалалалала адаалалалала адаалалалала адаа адаалалалала адаа адаалалалала адаалалалала адаалалалала адаалалалала адаа адаалалалала адаа адаалалала адаа адаалалалала адаалалалада адаа адаалалалала адаа адаалалалада адаа адаалалалада адаа адаалалалада адаа адаалалалада адаа адаалалалада адаа адаалалалада адаа адаалалалада адаа адаалалалада адаа адаалалалала адаа адаалалалада адаа адаалалалада адаа адаалаладаа адаалалада адаалаладаа адаалаладаа адаалалалада адаалаладаа адаалаладаа адаа адаалаладаа адаа адаалаладаа адаа адаалалада адаа адааладаа адаа адаа адаа	алеалалала едалалала алалалала алалалала алалалала алалалалала алалалалала сссссес алалалалала ессссе са алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалалала алалалалала	A A 2k A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A
1	0240611 025002 025003 025003 025003 025006 025006 025006 025007 025008 025007 025008 025001 025001 025001 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025000 027003 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 02700000000	еллл ff е елл елл 1950 е елллее е е е е е е е е е е е е е е е	алалалара аларалара аларалара аларалара аларалар	алалалала Валас Алалалалар 1970 Алавваеда Алавларар Алавларар Алавларар Алараларар Аларалала Аларетала Калар Балаларар Балаларар Каларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарарар Баларарар Баларарар Баларарарарарара Баларарарарарарара Баларарарарарарарарарара Баларарарарарарарарарарарарарарарарара Баларарарарарарарарарарарарарарарарарара	алалалала алелорода алелорода алелорода алеларода алелалалала алеле алалалалала алалалалала в соссососо алалалалала б сосососос алалалалала б сосососос алалалалала алелалалала алелалалала алелалалала алелалалала алелалалала алелалалала алелалалала алелалалала алелалалала алелалалала алелалалала алелалалала алелалалала алелалалала алелалалала алелалалала алелалалала алелалалала алелалалала алелалалала алелалалала алелалалала алелалалала алелалалала алесососососососососососососососососососо	алдалалала едалалала алалалал вс 1990 алалалала алалалала алалалалал алалалалала сссссес алалералала сссссес алалералал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A
*	0240611 025002 025001 025002 025003 025004 025005 025007 025008 025007 025008 025007 025008 025007 025008 025001 025011 026009 025012 026009 025012 026009 025012 026009 025012 026009 025012 026009 025012 026001 025011 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025002 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 0270000000000	CANA ff e eAA cAAA 1950 e AAABBEB e CAAAA cBBBBB eA	алалалара алалалара алалалалара алалалал	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВАЛА ЗАЛАЛАЛАВА ЗАЛАЛАЛАВА ЗАЛАЛАЛАВА 1970 АЛАВВАВАВА АЛАЛВАЛАЛА АЛАЛВАЛАЛА АЛАЛВАЛАЗ ВАЛАВВАВВ БАЛАЛАВВАВСБ БАЛАЛАВСБЕ АЛАЛВВСБЕ АЛАЛВВСБЕ АЛАЛЕ АЛАЛВАСБЕ	алалалала е аледооодара 1980 алалалалала еле F алалалалала алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала алалалалала аларее алалалалала аларее алалалалала аларее алалалалала аларее алалалалала аларее алалалалала аларее алалалалала аларее алалалалала аларее алалалалала аларее алалалалала аларее алалалалала аларее алалалалала аларее алалалалала аларее алалалалала аларее алалалалала аларее алалалалала аларее алалалалала аларее алалалалала аларее алалалалала аларее алалалалала аларее алалалалала аларее алалалалала аларее алалалалала аларее алалалалала аларее алалалалала аларее алалалалала аларее алалалалала аларее алалалалала аларее алалалалала аларее алалалалала алареее алалалалала алареее алалалалала аларееее алалалалала алареееееееееееееееееееееееееееееееееее	алдалалала езалалала алалала вс 1990 алалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала ссессег алалалалал ссессе сс алалералал алдалалала ссессе сс алалералал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалала алалалалал алалалалалал алалалалала алалалалала алалалалалал алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалалала алалалалала алалалалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалала алалалала алалалала алалалала алалалалала алалалала алалалала алалалала алалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалала алалалалала алалалала алалалала алалалала алалалала алалалала алалалалала алалалала алалалала алалалала алалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалала	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A
	024011 025002 025001 025002 025004 025005 025006 025006 025006 025007 025008 025007 025008 025007 025009 025010 025011 026001 026001 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 027006 027006 027006 027006 027000 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027000 02700000000	сала ff е еда сала 1950 е салавев е ед ед 1950 fbbbbb салав сверев ед ед ед ед ед ед ед ед ед ед ед ед ед	АЛЛАЛАСА ЗАЛЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА ЗАЛЛАЛАЛАА ЗАЛЛАЛАЛАА ЗАЛЛАЛАЛАА ЗАЛЛАЛАЛА ЗАЛЛАЛАЛАВ ЗАЛЛАЛАЛАВ САЛАСЕВИВАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛАЛА ЗВВВВАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛАА ЗВВВВАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛАА ВВВВВАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛАВ ЗВВВВАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛАВ ЗВВВВАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛАВ ЗВВВВАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛАВ ЗВВВВАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛАВ ЗВВВВАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛАВ ЗВВВВАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛАВ ЗВВВВАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛАВ ЗАЛЛАЛАЛАВ ЗАЛЛАЛАЛАВ ЗАЛЛАЛАЛАВ ЗАЛЛАЛАЛАВ ЗАЛЛАЛАЛАВ ЗАЛЛАЛАЛАВ ЗАЛЛАЛАЛАВ ЗАЛЛАЛАЛАВА ЗАЛЛАЛАЛАВ ЗАЛЛАЛАЛАВА ЗАЛЛАЛАВА ЗАЛЛАЛАЛАВА ЗАЛЛАЛАВА ЗАЛЛАЛАВА ЗАЛЛАЛАВА ЗАЛЛАЛАВА ЗАЛЛАЛАВА ЗАЛЛАЛАЛАВА ЗАЛЛАЛАЛАВА ЗАЛЛАЛАЛАВА ЗАЛЛАЛАВА ЗАЛЛАЛАВА ЗАЛЛАЛАВА ЗАЛЛАЛАВА ЗАЛЛАЛАВА ЗАЛЛАЛАВА ЗАЛЛАЛАВА ЗАЛЛАЛАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА ЗАЛЛАЗАВА	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВАЛА ВАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛ	алалаладаа е лаеадоодара 1980 лалалалала е деле р лалалалала е деле р лалалалала е алалалалала в соссососо лалалалала в сосососос лалалалала г с лалалалалала в сосососос лалалалалала г с лалалалалала в сосососос лалалалалала го лалалалалала в сосососос лалалалалала г с лалалалалала лала лалалалалала г с лалалалалала г с лалалалалала лала лалалалалала г с лалалалалала лала лалалалалала лала лалалала	алдалалала Елалалала Алалалала БС 1990 Алалалала Алалалала Алалалалал Алалалала	A A 2k A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A
`	024011 025002 025003 025003 025004 025005 025006 025006 025006 025007 025008 025007 025008 025007 025008 025007 025010 025011 025011 025012 025013 026007 025012 025013 026007 025012 025013 026007 025012 025014 025017 025014 025017 025014 025017 025014 025017 025014 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025017 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 027004 027007 027006 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 00000000	сала ff е ела сала 1950 е елала е 1950 fbbbbb еалал евее еала евее еала евее еала евее еала	АЛЛАЛАСА ЗАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛЛАЛАЛАЛА ВАЛАЛАЛАЛ	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВАЛА ВАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛ	алалалалал е алелооодал 1980 алалалалал е аеле р алалалалал е аеле р алалалалал е алал алалалалал в соссоссос алалалалала гс алалалалала в соссоссос алалалалала гс алалалалалал гс алалалалалал гс алалалалалал гс алалалалалал гс алалалалалал гс алалалалалал гс алалалалалал гс алалалалалала гс алалалалалала гс алалалалалала гс алалалалалала гс алалалалалала гс алалалалалала гс алалалалалала гс алалалалалала ала алалалалалала ала алалалал	алдалалала елалалала ес 1990 алдалала ес 1990 алдалалал алдалалала алдалалала ссссссс алалелалал алдалалала ссссссс алалелалал алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала	A A A 2k A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A
:	0240611 025002 025003 025003 025003 025004 025006 025007 025006 025007 025008 025007 025009 025010 025012 025009 025010 025012 025003 025001 025012 025003 025001 025001 025002 025001 025002 025001 025002 025001 025002 025001 025002 025001 025002 025001 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 027004 0	елла ff е елл елла 1950 е елла е елла 1950 f bebbb елла евев елла евев ела евев ела евев ела ела	алалалара алалалара алалалалара салалалала салалалала салалалара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара са салара са салара са салара са салара са са салара са са са са са са са са са са са са са	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВАЛА ВАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛ	алалалала е алеалооодаа 1980 алалалалала е араде Г алалалалала алалалалала в сессессе алалалалала гс алалалалала гс алалалалала корсе алалалалала гс алалалалала корсе алалалалала гс алалалалала корсе алалалалала корсе алалалалала корсе алалалалала корсе алалалалала корсе алалалалала корсе алалалалала корсе алалалалала корсе алалалалалала корсе алалалалалала корсе алалалалалала корсе алалалалалала корсе алалалалалала корсе алалалалалала корсе алалалалалала корсе алалалалалала корсе алалалалалала корсе алалалалалала корсе алалалалалала корсе алалалалалала корсе алалалалалала корсе алалалалалала корсе алалалалалала корсе алалалалалала корсе алалалалала корсе алалалалала корсе алалалалала корсе алалалалала корсе алалалалала корсе алалалалала корсе алалалалала корсе алалалалала корсе алалалалала корсе алала корсе алалалалала корсе алалалалала корсе алалалалала корсе алалалалала корсе алалалалала корсе алалалалала корсе алалалалала корсе алалалалала корсе алалалалала корсе алалалалала корсе алалалалала корсе алалалалала корсе алалалалала корсе алалалалала корсе алалалалала корсе алалалала корсе алала корсе алалалала корсе алала корсе алала корсе алала корсе алала корсе алалалала корсе алала корсе алала корсе алала корсе алала корсе алала корсе алала корсе алала корсе алала корсе алала корсе алала корсе алала корсе алала корсе алала корсе алала корсе ала корсе алала корсе алала корсе ала алала корсе ала корсе алала корсе алала корсе ала корсе алала корсе алала корсе ала корсе ала корсе ала корсе ала корсе ала корсе ала корсе ала корсе ала корсе ала корсе ала корсе ала корсе ала корсе ала корсе ала корсе ала корсе ала корсе ала корсе ала корсе ала корсе ала корсе ала корсе ала корсе ала корсе ала корсе ала корсе ала корсе ала корсе ала корсе ала корсе ала корсе ала корсе ала	алдалалала едалалала лалалала алалалала алалалала алалалала алалалала сссссес алалалалал сссссе алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал	A A A 2k A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A
\	0240611 025002 025001 025003 025003 025004 025006 025007 025008 025007 025008 025001 025001 025001 025011 025002 025011 025002 025011 025002 025011 025002 025011 025002 025011 025002 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025002 027003 027000 027001 027002 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027001 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 027000 00000000	CANA ff e eAA cANA 1950 e AAABEE eAAAE cAAAE cAAAA cBBBBB cAAAA cBBBBB cAAAA cBBBBB cAAAA cBBBBB cAAAA cBBBBB cAAAA cBBBB cAAAA cBBBBB cAAAA cBBBB cAAAA cBBBBB cAAAA cBBBBB cAAAA cBBBB cAAAA cBBBBA cAAAAAAAA	АЛЛАЛАДА АЛЛАЛАЛАВ АЛЛАЛАЛАВ АЛЛАЛАЛАВ АЛЛАЛАЛАВ ВАЛЛАЛАЛА ВАЛЛАЛАВ ВАЛЛАВСКА СССССССССССССССССССССССССССССССССС	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВАЛАС ЗАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА 1970 АЛАВВАКЕЛА АЛАВВАКЕЛА АЛАЛВАЛАЛА АЛАЛЕЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛЕЛАЛАЛ ВАЛАВАЛАВА САЛЕРЕСССС АЛАЛАВЕНАВЕ АЛАЛАВЕНАВЕ АЛАЛАВЕНАВЕ АЛАЛАВЕНАВЕ АЛАЛАВЕНАВЕ АЛАЛАВЕНАВЕ АЛАЛАВЕНАВЕ АЛАЛАВЕНАВЕ АЛАЛАВЕНСЕ ВВЪВСЕЕЕЕ ВВЪВСЕЕЕЕ ЕЛАЛС ВВЗВЕВСЕЕЕЕ	АЛАЛАЛАДА Е АЛЕАДОДАДА 1980 АЛАЛАЛАЛАЛ АЛАЛАЛАЛАЛ АЛАД АЛАЛАЛАЛАЛ В СССССССС АЛАЛАЛАЛАЛ В СССССССС АЛАЛАЛАЛАЛ АЛАС АЛАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛ АДАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛ АДАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛ АДАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛ АДАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛ АДАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДАЛ АДАЛ АДАЛАЛАЛАЛ АДА АДА	Алдалалала Едалалала Алалалала Алалалала Алалалала Алалалала	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A
\	024061 / 025001 025001 025003 025004 025003 025004 025003 025004 025005 025007 025008 025007 025008 025007 025002 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 027018 027009 027011 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027019 027018 027018 027019 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018 027018	CANA ff e eAA cAAA 1950 e CAAABBB e CAAABBBB eAAAA cBBBBB eAAAA cBBBBB eAAAA cBBBBB eAAAA cBBBBB eAAAA cBBBBB eAAAA cBBBB eAAAA cBBBB eAAAA cBBBB eAAAA cBBBB eAAAA cBBBB eAAAA cBBBB eAAAA cBBBB eAAAA cBBBB eAAAA cBBBB eAAAA cBBBB eAAAA cBBBB eAAAA cBBBB eAAAA cBBBB eAAAA cBBBBB eAAAA cBBBB eAAAA cBBBBB eAAAA cBBBBB eAAAAAAAAAA	алалалара алалалалара алалалалара алалалал	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВАЛАС ЗАЛАЛАЛАВА ЗАЛАЛАЛАВА ЗАЛАЛАЛАВА ЗАЛАЛАЛАВА ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛА ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛАЛ АЛАЛАВЛАВА ВАЛАВЕРА ЗАЛАЛЕВАВЕ РАЛАЛАЛАВА СССЕРГСССС ЗАЛАВВАДО ВАЛАВЕРА ЗАЛАВВАДО ВАЛАВЕРА ЗАЛАВВАДО ВАЛАВЕРА ЗАЛАВВАДО ВАЛАВЕРА ЗАЛАВВАДО ВАЛАВЕРА ЗАЛАВВАДО ВАЛАВЕРА ЗАЛАВВАДО ВАЛАВЕРА ЗАЛАВВАДО ВАЛАВЕРА ЗАЛАВВАДО ВАЛАВЕРА ЗАЛАВВАДО ВАЛАВЕРА ЗАЛАВВАДО ВАЛАВЕРА ЗАЛАВВАДО ВАЛАВЕРА ЗАЛАВВАДО ВАЛАВЕРА ЗАЛАВВАДО ВАЛАВЕРА ЗАЛАВВАДО ВАЛАВЕРА ЗАЛАВВАДО ВАЛАВЕРА ЗАЛАВВАДО ВАЛАВЕРА ЗАЛАВВАДО ВАЛАВЕРА ЗАЛАВВАДО ВАЛАВЕРА ВАВВЕСЕРЕЕ ВАВВЕССЕРЕ ЗАЛАЛАВЕ ДА ВАВВЕССЕРЕ ЗАЛАЛАВЕ ДА ВАВВЕССЕРЕ ЗАЛАЛАВА	алалалалал е аледооодара 1980 алалалалал е деде F алалалалала алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала алалалалала ала алалалал	алдалалала езалалала алалалала алалалала алалалала алдалалала алдалалала алдалалала ссссссгс алалеелала алалалалал алалалалал ссссссс сс алалеелала алалалалал алалалалал алалалал	A A A 2k A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A
	024061 // 025002 025001 025002 025003 025004 Station 025005 025006 025006 025006 025007 025008 025007 025009 025010 025010 025011 025010 025011 025012 026001 025012 026001 025012 026002 025012 025011 025012 025011 025012 025011 025012 025011 025012 025011 025012 025011 025012 025011 025002 025012 025011 025002 025012 025011 025002 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 027002 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 0	CANA ff e eAA cAAA 1950 e cAAABEB e eA eAAAE cAAAAE cAAAA cBEBB eAA eBBB eAA eBBB eAA eBBB eAA eBBB eAA eBBB eAA eBBB eAA eBBB eAA eBBB eAA eBBB eAA eBBB eAA eBBB eAA eBBB eAA eBBB eAA eBBB eAA eBBB eAA eAA	АЛЛАЛАДА АЛЛАЛАЛАДА АЛЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛЛАЛАЛАЛА	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВАЛАС ЗАЛАЛАЛАВА ЗАЛАЛАЛАВА ЗАЛАЛАЛАВА ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛА 1970 АЛАВВАЛЕЛА ЛАЛАЛАЛАЛА ЗАЛАВАЛАС ВАЛАВАЛАВА СССГРСССС ЗАЛАЛАЛАВАЛО ЕХАЛЕ ЗАЛАЛАЛЕНА ЗАЛАВАЛОВ ЕХАЛЕ ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛА 1970 ЗАЛАВССЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ АЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛАСЕ ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛАЛА	алалаладаа е алеалододаа 1980 алалалалаа е аеле р алалалалаа е аеле р алалалалаа е алалалалаа в соссососо алалалалаа в сосососос алалалалаа р сосососос алалалалаа в сосососос алалалалаа гс алалалалала адаалалала адаалалала адаалалала в в в в в в в алалалалалаа алалалалала ала	алдалалала езалалала алалалала алалалала алалалала алалалала ссссссгс алалезала ссссссс алалезалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалалал алалалалалал алалалалалал алалалалала алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал	A A A 2k A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A
:	024011 025002 025003 025003 025004 025005 025006 025006 025007 025008 025007 025008 025007 025008 025007 025008 025007 025008 025007 025008 025007 025008 025007 025008 025007 025007 025008 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 025007 027006 027009 027007 027006 027007 027006 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 027007 00000000	CANA ff e eAA cAAA 1950 e cAAABEB e eA cAAABEB eA cBEBB eAAAA cBEBB eAAAA cBEBB eAAAA cBEBB eAAAA cBEBB eAAAA cBEBB eAAA cBEBB eAAA cBEBB eAAA cBEB eAAA cBEB eAAA cBEB eAAA cBEB eAAA cBEB eAAA cBEB eAAA cBEB eAAA cBEB eAAA cBEB eAAA cBEB eAAA cBEB eAAA cBAAA cBEB eAAA cAAAA cBEB cAAAAA cBEB cAAAAAAAAAAAA	аллалала аллалала алалалала алалалала алалалала еллалала еллалала еллалала алалалал	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВАЛА ВАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛ	алалалалала е алелооодол 1980 алалалалала е агле Г алалалалала е агле Г алалалалала в соссоссос алалалалала в соссососо алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала го алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалал	алалалалал едалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалал	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A
:	024061 1025002 025001 025003 025003 025003 025004 025005 025007 025006 025007 025006 025007 025007 025009 025012 025001 025012 025001 025012 025001 025012 025001 025012 025003 025001 025012 025003 025001 025012 026003 025001 025012 026003 026007 026003 027004 027004 027004 027004 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027012 027014 027014 027014 027012 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 027014 0	сала ff е еАа сала 1950 е сала е е е е е е е е е е е е е е е е е е	алалалара алалалара алалалара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара салара са салара са салара са салара са салара са салара са салара са салара са салара са салара са салара са салара са салара са салара са са салара са са салара са са салара са са са са са са са са са са са са са	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВАЛА ВАЛА ВАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛ	алалаладаа Е Алеадододод 1980 Алалалала В В В В В В В В В В В В В	алдалалала едалалалал алалалала алалалалал алалалала	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A
1	024061 11 025002 025001 025003 025003 025004 Statlon 025005 025007 025008 025007 025008 025007 025008 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025002 025001 025002 025001 025002 025001 025002 025001 025002 025001 025002 025001 025002 025001 025002 025001 025002 025001 025002 025001 025002 025001 025002 025001 025002 025001 025002 025001 025002 025001 025002 025001 025002 025001 025002 025002 025001 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 027003 027004 027002 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 02702 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02	CANA ff e eAA cAAA 1950 e AAABEE e e e e e e e e e e AAABE e BABBBB e AAAA e BBBBBB e AAAA e BBBBB e AAAA e BBBBB e AAA e BBBB e e AAA e AAA e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAAA e e AAAA e e AAAA e e AAAA e e AAAA e e AAAA e e AAAA e e AAAA e e AAAA e e AAAA e e BBBBBB e e AAAA e e AAAA e e AAAA e e AAAA e e AAAA e e AAAA e e AAAA e e AAAA e e AAAA e e AAAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAAA e e AAA e e AAAA e e AAAA e e AAA e e AAAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAA e e AAAA e e AAAA e e AAAA e e AAAA e e AAAA e e a e a	АЛЛАЛАДА АЛЛАЛАЛАВ АЛААЛАЛАЛА АЛААЛАЛАЛА ВАЛЛАЛАЛА ВВЕВВАЛАВ АЛЛАЛАЛА ВВЕВВАЛАВ АЛЛАЛАЛА ВВЕВВАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛА ВВЕВВАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛА ВВЕВВАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛА ВВЕВВАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛА ВВЕВВАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛА ВВЕВВАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛА ВВЕВВАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛА ВВЕВВАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛА ВВЕВВАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛА ВАЛЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАА САЛЛАЛАА САЛЛАЛАА САЛЛАЛАА САЛЛАЛАА САЛЛАЛАА САЛЛАЛАА	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВАЛАС АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛ	алалаларал е алеалорода алеалорода алеалорода алеалорода алеалалала алалалалала алалалалала в соссососо алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала алалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала в сосососос алалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала в сососососо алалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала в сососососо алалалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалала алеалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалала алеалалалала алеалалала алеалалалала алеалалала алеалалала алеалалала алеалалала алеалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалала алеалалала алеалалалала алеалалала алеалалала алеалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалалала алеалалала алеалалалала алеалалала алеалалала алеалалала алеалеалалана алеалалала алеалалала алеалалала алеала	алдалалала едалалала алалалала алалалала алалалала алалалала алалалалала сссссес алалералала алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A
	0240611 025002 025001 025003 025003 025004 025006 025007 025008 025007 025008 025007 025008 025001 025011 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025012 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 025002 027003 027004 027002 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 02702 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 027	CANA ff e eAAA cAAA 1950 e AAABBEB e eAAABE cAAAA cBBBBB cAAAAA cBBBBB cAAAAA cBBBBB cAAAAA cBBBBB cAAAAA cBBBBB cAAAAA cBBBB cAAAAA cBBBB cAAAAA cBBBB cAAAAA cBBBB cAAAAAAAA	АЛЛАЛАДА АЛЛАЛАЛА АЛЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛЛАЛАЛАЛА ВАЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА САЛЛАЛАЛА	алалалала алалалалар алалалалар алалалал	алалалала аледооодода аледооодода аледооодода алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала	алдалалала едалалала алалалала алалалала алалалала алдалалала алдалалала ссссссе сс алалеелала алалалалал алалалалал алалалал	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A
1	024061 11 025002 025001 025002 025003 025004 Station 025005 025006 025007 025008 025007 025008 025001 025010 025010 025010 025012 025013 026002 025013 026002 025013 026002 025013 026002 025013 026002 025013 026002 025013 026002 025013 026002 025013 026002 025013 026002 025013 026002 025013 026002 025013 026002 025013 026002 025013 026002 025013 026002 025013 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 026002 027003 027003 027004 027004 027004 027002 027014 027012 027012 027012 027012 027012 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702 02702	CANA ff e eAA cAAA 1950 e eA eAAABEB eA eAAA cABAAB eBBB eA eAAB eBBB eAA eBBB eAA eBBB eAA eBBB eAA eBBB eAA eBBB eAA eBBB eAA eBBB eAA eBBB eAA eBBB eAA eBBB eAA eBBB eAA eBBB eAA eBBB eAA eBBB eAA eBBB eAA eBBB eAA eAA	АЛЛАЛАДА АЛЛАЛАЛАДА АЛЛАЛАЛАДА АЛЛАЛАЛАЛА	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВАЛА ВАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛ	алалалалала е алеалорода 1980 алалалалала е аеле F алалалалала е аеле F алалалалала в соссососо алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала алалалалала в в в в в алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалал	алдалалала езалалала алалалала алалалала алалалала алалалала алалалалал ссссссе алалалалал ссссссе алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A
	024011 025002 025001 025001 025002 025003 025004 025003 025004 025003 025004 025005 025006 025007 025005 025007 025005 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025001 025002 026007 027005 027006 027008 027008 027008 027008 027008 027008 027008 027008 027008 027008 027008 027007 027028 027017 027028 027017 027028 027017 027022 027027 027028 027027 027028 027027 027028 027027 027028 027028 027029 027028 027029 027028 027029 027028 027029 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 027028 02708 02708 02708 02708 02708 02708 02708 02708 02708 02708 02708 02708 02708 0	CANA ff e eAA cAAA (AAABEB) e eA eAAAA fBABBBB cAAAA eBBB eAAAA eBBB eAAA eBBB eAAA eBBB eAAA eBBB eAAA eBBB eAAA eBBB eAAA eBBB eAAA	АЛЛАЛАДА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛА САЛАЛАЛАС САЛАЛАЛАС САЛАЛАЛАС	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВАЛАС ЗАЛАЛАЛАВА ЗАЛАЛАЛАВА ЗАЛАЛАЛАВА ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛАВА ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛАЛА ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛА ЗАЛАВАЛАСА ЗАЛАВАЛАСА СССРГСССС ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛАС ВАЛАССТРСССС ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛАС ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛАС ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛАС ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛАС ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛАС ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛАС ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛАС ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛАС ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛАС ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛАС ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛАС ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛАС ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛАС ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛАС ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛАС ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛАС ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛАС ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛАС ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛАС ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛАС ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛАС	алалалала е алелородаа 1980 алалалалала е деле Г алалалалала е деле Г алалалалала в соссососо алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала алалалалала в сосососос алалалалала алалалалала в сосососос алалалалалала алалалалалала в сосососос алалалалалала алалалалала алалалалал	алдалалала едалалала алалалала алалалала алалалалал алалалалал алалалалала ссессее ссассее алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалал алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала алалалалала	А А А 2k А А А А А А А А А А А А А

## Flow records commencing between 1950 and 1969 (contd.)

Cratica													
JULIUSI	1950	1960	1970	1980	1990	2k	Station	1950	1960	1970	1980	1990	2h
027031		******	AAAAAAFAFA	AAAAAAAAA		*	033040		PFFFF	CENTRY	AAAABBABAA	BRANAFACAC	С
027032		EEAA	AAAAAEFAAA	AFAAAAAAA	*******	*	033044		FCC	CCCABBAAAA	ARAAAABEBA	BAAAAADCAC	С
027034		eBA	BAAAAAAAA	*******		*	033045		FCC	CCCTTTTTTT	RARAABBAA	BARBAFAAAC	c
027035		PC	CCCCCABAAA	EMMAN		Α	033046		FCC	CCCAABAAAA	BRANABBAAA	MANEAR	c
027039		eAB	BRAF				033048		F	COCAMANAN	HEBAAAAAAA	BE EACAC	
027041			EAAAAAA	mmm	ALABCAA	λ	033050		fffffffccc	F FCCCCC	BCCBAFAAAB	ABAAAAAAAC	С
027068				FILLING	CARRARA	λ	033051		£00000	CAMERANA	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	E WWW	c
027071	ellis	******	ANAAAFBEAE	BUILDE	ANDREAM	λ	033052		CCC CCC	CAEFAAAAAA	MARAAAAAC	BAREAAP	С
027084				EÀ	*******	λ	033055		FOCCF	FRAM	ALAAAAABA	ABABAFDAAC	¢
027085					000000000	c	033056		CCFFC	CFCF7 (CCCB	BAAAAAAAAA	ANDANC	Ċ
027086				FAAADT		Å.	033062		FCP	FC	CCCCEBBAAAA	EXFACAC	F
027097				7		c	033064				EAAABAAAA	BBAEBAC	¢
027099				•	2000	č	034001	•	THE CONTRACTOR OF THE OWNER OWNE OWNER OWNER OWNER OWNE OWNER OWNE	*******		FEBLEEDEEB	в
027090					FOCOCOCC	č	034002	err	ATTERNAL CONTRACTOR	ENTRY THE STATE	AEBAAAAAE	FREEFRARE	в
027003					FAAAAAAA	Å	034003		********	AAAAAAAAB	AABAAAAABA	BAASBBAABB	B
021030					FARMAN		034004	-	*******	AAAAAAAAB	ABAAAABEC	CCFBEECFCF	С
020003	EAAAB	******	*******		Constants.	•	034005			RAAAAAAAA	ABAAAAAFAB	EAAEFFABBB	B
028004	TDAE	EALEANNAA		AA5			034006		elliphi	******	******	BAAFAADDBB	B
028005	fccbA	www.		AAAAE			0340007		ALR	*******	AAAAAAAAA	PREEEFAFRA	B
028006	eak	AAAAE					034007		TARA	ANAVENNAS	RTERBERF	PCREEAA ER	Ē
028007	eXA	NUMBER			EAAAAAAA	*	034000		CARA -		141 00000000		-
Ctatio-	1050	1060	1070	1986	1990	2k	Station	1950	1960	1970	1980	1990	2k
018000		1300				1	034010		EA	ALLELLALE	FABAABAAB	EAFEFFABB	В
020000		PEDEVELANE	*********	*******	********	ñ.	034011		BBA	ABAABAABBE	ABAAAAAABA	EFFAFFABBB	в
028011		FURRERAR	FFARMARA	*****	******	Å	034012		eλλλ	AADABAAAAA	ARAAAAABA	AAFAAFABBB	в
020011	-	ABBRADABY		*********	AAAAAAR CC	c	034014		F	CFCCFCCFFC	CCFFCBCCCC	EC FCCBEBB	
020012	e	PRESSOR 281	*******		FARADA	i.	035001		FEE	PPCPB	BEFABABBE	X	
020014		JOADDOL EAA	FFF	*******		ĩ	035002		e A A A A A	ANNEARANE	AAAAAAABAE	EAFFEEDBBB	в
020010				LAULANNA		-	035003		CAAAAAAAA	ABAAAAAAA	ABBAAAAAEA	EFFEE AABBB	Е
020010							035004		EXXX	алалалала	ABBAAAAAEE	FAREEEABBB	8
020017			31338888833	*********	*********		035008		FFEAAA	******	ABBAAAAAEB	EBAABAAABB	Э
020010		allo	*********	ALLANDER			035010		e	AAAAAAAAA	ABBAAAAABB	AAAAAABBB	в
020019	600000	BODDARD-	A	ANF			035013		ŭ	EXAAAAAAB	ABAAAAAEE	EFFEE	в
020020	ICPOFC	DDDDDDAAEEE		ARE			036002		CAARAAAAA	******		AABEEAACEB	в
020021		FUNE	66666 <b>666</b>	*********	********		036002		(BAAAAAAAA	******	*******	AAAEAAABBB	в
028022		EA .		~~~~	71111	1	036004		FRIN	********	*******	AAAAAEABBB	в
028023		EXXX	ABAAAAB		*****		036006		-211110 - 211110	*********	AAARAAAAAA	AABAAAABB	B
028024		EDA	DEVYNYYYY	AEEADEAAAA	********	~	030003			*********	AAAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAA	R
028025		EAAE	*******	AAAAE			030000		CODDAAAA	*********		FAAFAAABB	
028026		EEAA	XAAADAAAA	******	<b>NUTRY VIEW</b>	λ	036007		ICCFBDABAA	~~~~~		LAACAAABBB	
028027		ENERN	BAAAAB	EAAE	EEAAAAAAAA		036008		EAAABBAAAA	*****		ANAL DADD	
028029		SEEE	ECENNARY	AAAAE			030009		24	*******	*********	ANTELEASE	5
028030		eEE	AREAAAAAAA	AAAAE			036010		EA	******	*******	AREAEAADDD	
64-41	4050	4060	1070	1080	1000	25	Station	1950	1960	1970	1980	1990	2k
0000001	1330	1300	3-333455533		*********	•••	036011		EA	*******	<b>XXXXXXXXX</b> B	ABAAEEA888	Э
020031			11111117111	ACANO			036012		EB	******	******	AAAEAAABBB	Э
020032		OPENE	1.11111111	AAP		-	036013			EEEEEEFF	FFFFFFFFF	FFF	
028035		FF		FAAE	EEAAAAAAEA		037001	елалалала	*****	******	*******	*****	λ
028035		20	AAAFAF		EAAAAA		037005	e	AAAABAAAAB	AAAAAAAAAA	*******	алалеллала	в
020030		2	ALTRAPAS	337			037006		exxxxxX	****	******	алалалаевв	в
020030		510	3-010111111		*********		037007		евалал	*****	алалвалала	AAEEEEABBB	в
020035		- EAU AR		*********	********		037008		еуууу	*****	******	AAAAAAABB	в
020040			LOBBARRADO	337			037009		ехвалала	*****	******	AREAAAAEBB	в
020041			1011111111	****	*********	1	037010		eBAAAAAA	*****	******	ABAAAAAFBB	в
020043		5.A	7-1111111	ANALE PP	FREEMANNE		037011		EXXXXX	*****	<b>AAAAAAAA</b> B	AAAAAFABBB	в
020044		CD	1-11101111	ADDDE		~	037012		<b>eBAAAAA</b>	AAAAAAABAAA	AAAABAAAAE	EAAEAEAE B	Е
028040		EBAAA		*****	********		037013		eryyyyy	******	AAAABAAAA	AAAAAAEBB	Ð
028040		9 7117		ARARAAAAAA		^	037014		eBAAAAA	******	*****	******	
020009		CAR	22222223334	AND			037015		F EEE	EAAAEEEE E	EEAAAAAAAA	******	
020070		ezere	ELECTION	AADAT			037016		ENNY	*****	*******	<b>алала</b> елеве	E
020074			EA	TALLE AND	11111111111		037017		E	*****	******	AAAAFAABBB	в
028076				LAAAL AAA	11111111111	ŝ	037019		FAAAA	AAAAAAAEEA	******	*****	E
020000	eve		1111111117	11111111111		A .	037020			EXAMAMAA	алааваалаа	AAAAAAEBB	в
029001		CRAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	11111000000	1111112110	ARRANDO	<u>^</u>	037021			EXAMAMAA	алалалаела	AAAAAEAEE	
029002		CARAAAAA	AAAAADAAAAA	AAAAAA MAAAAAA	100000000000	•							
Station	1950	1960	1970	1980	1990	2k	Station	1950	1960	1970	1980	1990	2k
029003		EA	*****	*****	AAADAAAAAA	A	037022			EXAXAXAAA	алалвевале	AAEEAEAEBB	ε
020004		FA	******		ABBBBBBBB		037026						
020001	F	11111111111					031023		CBAAE	EEEE			
030001	5		*********	*********			037025		СВААЕ ЕВААЕВААА	EEEE AAAAAEE			
030002			********	AAAAAAAAAA		A A	037026		СВААЕ ЕВАЛЕВАЛА ГЕЕЕЛЕВАЛА	EEEE XXXXXEE XE			
030003		~111330"		AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВАЛАЛ АЛАЛАЛАЛАЛА	λ λ λ	037025 037026 037027 037028		СВААЕ ЕВААЕВААА ГЕЕЕАЕВААА ГЕЕААЕВААА	EEEE AAAAAEE AE AAAAEEE			
40004		eaaaaabe		АЛАЛАЛАЛАЛ ЕЕЕЕЛЕЛА АЛАЛЛЕЛАЛА	22222222222222222222222222222222222222	λ λ λ	037025 037026 037027 037028 037029		СВААЕ ЕВАЛЕВАЛА ГЕЕЕЛЕВАЛА ГЕЕЛЛЕВАЛА СЕЛЛАВСАЛА	EEEE AAAAAEE AAAAEEE BAAAEAE BAAAEAE			
00000		eaaaabe eeabaabe		АЛЛАЛАЛАЛА ЕЕЕЕЛЕЛА АЛЛАЛЕЛАЛА АЛЛАЛЕЛАЛА АЛЛАЛАЛАЛА	AAAAAAAAAA EAAAA AAAAAAAAAAA AAAAAAAAAA	Х Х Х	037025 037026 037027 037028 037029 037030		СВАЛЕ ЕВАЛЕВАЛА feealebaaa feealebaaa feealebaaa eealabcaaa eebbaab	EEEE AAAAAEE AE AAAAEEE BAAAEAE G			
030005		eaaaabe ezabaabb fC		АЛЛАЛАЛАА ЕЕЕЕАЕАА АЛЛАЛЕАААА АЛЛАЛЕАААА ССССГ А	АЛЛАЛАЛА ВАЛЛА АЛЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛЛАЛАЛАЛА	2 2 2 2 2	037025 037026 037027 037028 037029 037030 037034		СВААЕ ЕВААЕВААА feeaebaaa feeaaebaaa feeabebaaa eeabaab eeebbaab	EEEE AAAAAEE AE AAAAEEE BAAAEAE e PE7141	AAEDAPAABA	AAAEAEDEB	
030005		eAAAAABE eEABAAAB FC FCC		АЛЛАЛАЛАЛА ЕЕЕЕАРАА АЛЛАЛЕЛАЛА АЛЛАЛЕЛАЛА АЛЛАЛЕЛАЛА АЛЛАЛЕЛАЛА ССССССВЕВ	алалалаа салалалала алалалалала алалалал	2 2 2 2 2 2 2	037025 037026 037027 037028 037029 037030 037030 037034 037039	<b>58666</b> 4-	СЕЛЛЕ ЕВЛАГЕЛЛА ГЕЕГАЕВАЛА ГЕЕЛАЕВАЛА ЕГАЛАВСЛАА ЕКЕРВАЛВ	EEEE AAAAAEE AE AAAAEEE BAAAFAE C PEZAAA ABBAR	aaeda2aaba	AAAEAEDÊB	
030005 031004 031006		EAAAAAABE EEABAAAB FC FCC EAA	AMAMAMAS AMAMAMAS AMAMAMAS AMAMAMAS COCCCCCCC CCCCCCCCC BABAAAAAA	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ЕЕЕЕАЕДА АЛАЛАНАЛА АЛАЛАНАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛАЛ СССССЕВЕВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАЛ	АЛАХАЛААА ЕХАЛА АЛАХАЛАААА АЛАХАЛААДА АЛАС АДВАЛАСССА АДВАЛАСССА АДВАЛАСССА	λ λ λ λ λ λ λ	037025 037026 037027 037028 037029 037030 037034 037038 037038	68089 G8	СВАЛЕ ЕВЛАГВАЛА feerebaaa feerebaaa efaabcaaa eerbbaab beefbabbab	EEEE AAAAAEE AE AAAAEEE BAAAEAE e FEZAAA ABBAE	ALEDA2AABA	AAAEAEDEB	*
030005 031004 031006 031007		CANAAAABE CEABAAAB FC FCC EAA EE	АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАВАААВ СОССССССС ВАВАЛАЛАА ВВСССВСВА	АЛАЛАЛАЛАА ЕЕЕЕАЕДА АЛАЛАНАЛАА АЛАЛАНАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАЛАА ССОСССЕВЕВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАЛАА	алалалала елал алалалала алалалала алалалал	አ አ አ አ አ	037023 037026 037027 037028 037029 037030 037034 037038 038003 038003	е <b>л</b> ово са Васео са Сладања	СВААЕ ВВААЕВААА ГЕЕРАЕВААА ГЕРАЕВААА СЕАЛАВСААА ВЕЕЕВАВВАВ ААЛАЛАЛАВ СВАЛАЛАВА	ЕЕЕЕ ХАКААЕЕ ХЕ ХАКАЕЕЕ ВАХАЕЕЕ ВАХАЕЕЕ РЕДХАХ АВВАЕ ХАКААХАХА АВВАЕ	ALEDALAABA AAAAAAAAAA REE	AAAEAEDEB AAAAAAAAAA	λ
030005 031004 031006 031007 031008		EAAAAAABE EEABAAAB FC FCC EAA EE FF	АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВ СОССССССС ССССССССС ВАВАЛАЛАА ВВСССВСВАА EEEEEEDEE	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ЕЕЕЕАРАА АЛАЛАВАЛА ССССГ А СССССИВЕВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛ	АЛЛАЛАЛА АЛЛАЛАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛАА АДЛАЛАЛАА Деееегадаа Eee салга	λ λ λ λ λ λ λ λ λ λ	037023 037026 037027 037028 037029 037030 037034 037034 037038 038003 038006 038005	40 00040 4444449 2003	СВАЛЕ ЕВЛАЕВЛАА ГЕЕЛАЕВЛАА ГЕЛАЕВЛАА «ЕЛАВСЛАА ЕЕЕРВАВВАВ АЛАЛАЛАДА СВАЛАЛАДА БАЛАЛАЛАДА	ЕЕЕЕ Алалаее Ае Алалеее Валаеае е Реглая Аввае Алалалала Алалалала Алалалала	<b>ALEDALAABA</b> Alaaaaaaa Ree Alaaaaaaa	AAAEAEDEB AAAAAAAAAA AAAAAAAAAA	λ
030005 031004 031006 031007 031008 031010		eAAAAABE eFAEAAAB FC FCC EAA EE FF EA	АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА СОССССССС ВАВАЛАЛАА ВВСССВСВАА ВВСССВСВАА ВВСССВСВАА ВВСССВСВАА ВВСССВСВАА	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ЕЕЕЕАЕЛА АЛАЛАВАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА ССССГ А ССССССВЕВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЕЕЕЕЕЕЕЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВАЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛ	Х Х Х Х Х Х Х Х Х Х Х Х	037023 037026 037027 037028 037029 037034 037034 037038 038003 038003 038006 038007	ap 69883 AAAAAs 2021 2458889	СВААЕ ЕВЛАЕВАЛА ГЕЕЛЕВАЛА ЕЕЛАЕВАЛА ЕЕЛАВСАЛА ЕЕЕВВАВ АЛАЛАЛАДА СВЛАЛАЛАВА БАЛАЛАЛАВА БАЛАЛАЛАВА	ЕЕЕЕ АААААЕЕ АЕ ААААЕЕЕ ВАААЕАЕ е РЕДДАА АВВАЕ АЛААААЛАА АЛААААЛАА АЛААААЛАА АЛААААЛАА АЛААААЛАА	аледаралва Халалалал ЕЕЕ Халалалала Халар	алаеледев алаалаалаа алаалаалаа гар	х х
030005 031004 031006 031007 031008 031010 031013		eAAAAABE eEABAAAB FC FC EAA EE FF EA EA E	АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВ ССССССССС ВАВАЛАЛАА ВВСССВСВАА ВВСССВСВАА ВВСССВСВАА ВВСССВСВАА ВВСССВСВАА БВСССВСВАА БВСССВСВАА БВСССВСВАА БВСССВСВАА БВСССВСВАА БВСССВСВАА БВСССВСВАА БВСССВСВАА БВСССВСВАА БВСССВСВАА БВСССВСВАА БВСССВСВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВСССССССС БАВАЛАЛАЛА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВССВАА БВСССВСВАА БВСССВСВАА БВСССВСВАА БВСССВСВАА БВССВССВАА БВССВСВСВАА БВССВСВСВАА БВССВСВСВАА БВССВСВСВАА БВССВСВСВАА БВССВСВСВАА БВССВСВСВАА БВССВСВСВАА БВССВСВСВАА БВССВСВСВАА БВССВСВСВСВСВАА БВССВСВСВАА БВССВСВСВСВСВСВСВСВСВСВСВАА БВССВСВСВСВСВСВСВСВСВСВСВСВСВСВСВСВСВСВ	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ЕЕЕЕАЕЛА АЛАЛАВАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА ССССГ А ССССССВВЕВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА АВЕЕЕЕЕЕЕЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВЕЕЕЕЕЕЕЕЕ АЛАЛАВАЛА DEEEEEEEE	алалалала алалалала алалалала алалалала	A A A A A A B A A A	037023 037026 037027 037028 037029 037030 037034 037038 038003 038006 038007 038011	esees AKAKAAs COD1 SOD2 SOD2 SOD2 SOD2	СВААЕ ВВААЕВАЛА feefaebaлa feefaebaлa efaabbab beefbabbb baraaaaba cbaaaaaba cccccbbbbb	ЕЕЕЕ АААААЕЕ АЕ ААААЕЕЕ ВАААЕАЕ е FEZAAA ABBAE АААААААА АААААААА ААААААААА ВАВВААА АААААА	аледарада Халаалаал Еее Халаалала Халаалаала Халаалаа	АЛАЕЛЕДЕВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАЛАА ЕЛЕ АЛАЛАГАТ	X X
030005 031004 031006 031007 031008 031010 031013 031016		eAAAAABE eEABAAAB FC FC EAA EE FF EA EA E E	АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВ ССССССССС ССССССССС ВАВАЛАЛАА ВВСССВСВАА еЕЕЕЕЕЕЕ АВАЛАЛАЛА ЕЕВВВЕЕЕДА АВАЛАЛАЛА	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ЕЕЕАРАА АЛАЛАВАЛА СОССБ & СОСССВВЕВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА АСССССВВЕВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЕЕЕЕЕЕЕЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА ДЕЕЕЕЕЕЕЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА	алалалала елал алалалала алалалала алалалал	а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а	037023 037026 037027 037028 037029 037030 037030 037034 037038 038003 038006 038007 038011 038012	so coose AAAAAA Dool Dool CC CC	СВААЕ ЕВААЕВАЛА ГЕЕРАЕВАЛА «РАЛВСАЛА ЕЕЕВАЕВАВ БЕЕЕВАЕВАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА СССССЕВВЕВ	ЕЕЕЕ ААЛААЕЕ АЕ ААЛАЕЕЕ ВАЛАЕАЕ е РЕДЛЛА АВВАЕ АЛЛАЛАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛАА ВАВВЕВЕВАЛА ЕЛЛАЛ	аледарадава Валалалада Есе Валалалала Валалалала Валалалала	алаелерев алалалала алалалала еле алалалала алалалал	۸ ۸ ۱
030005 031004 031006 031007 031008 031010 031013 031016 031022		CAAAAABE CEABAAAB CEABAAAB FC FC EA EE FF EA E E E	АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВ СОССССССС ВАВАЛАЛАЛА ВВСССВСВА ВВСССВСВА ВВСССВСВА ВВСССВСВА ВВАЛАЛАЛА ЕЕВВВЕЕЕД АВАЛАЛАЛА ЕЕЕВВЕЕЕЕ	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ЕЕЕЕЛЕДА АЛАЛАЛАЛА СССС БА СССССВЕВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЕЕЕЕЕЕЕЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА ДЕЕЕЕЕЕЕЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА ЕЕЕЕЕЕЕЕЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА ЕЕЕЕЕЕЕЕЕ	АЛЛАЛАЛАА ВАЛАЛАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛА АЛЛАЛАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛАА DEEEEEAAAA EEEEEEAAAA АЛЛАЛЕЛАЛА EEEEEEAAAA АЛЛАЛЕЛАБА EEEE EAAAA	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	037023 037026 037027 037028 037029 037030 037034 037034 038003 038006 038006 038007 038011 038012 038014	as seess AAAAAA 2001 zdzass 201 201 AAAs	СВААЕ ЕВАЛЕВАЛА ГЕЕАЛЕВАЛА «ЕЛАВСАЛА ЕЕЕВАЛВА БЕЕЕВАВВАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА СССССВВВВВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА	ееее лалалее ле лалалеее е устала левае лалалала вабеввала валевеввала лалалала валевеввала лалалалал валелала	алерарава Халалала Еее Халалала Хала Хала Салалала Салалалал	алаеледев алаалаалаа алаалаалаа еле алаалаала алаалаала алаалаала	۸ ۸ ۸
030005 031004 031006 031007 031008 031010 031013 031016 031022 032012		eAAAAABE eFAEAAAB FC FC EAA EE FF EA EA E FF EA E	АЛЛАЛЛА АЛЛАЛАЛА АЛЛАЛАЛА АЛЛАЛАЛА АЛЛАЛАЛА СССССССС	АЛАЛАЛАА ЕЕЕЕАРАА АЛАЛАРААЛА АЛАЛАРААЛА АЛАЛАРААЛА АЛАЛАРААЛА АЛАЛАРААЛА АЛАЛАРААЛА ВЕЕЕЕЕЕЕЕЕ АЛАЛАРААЛА ЕЕЕЕЕЕЕЕЕЕЕ ЕЕЕ	АЛЛАНАНА ВАЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА БЕЕБЕРАЛА АЛЛАРАЛАА ЕЕБЕРАЛА АЛЛАРАЛАА ЕЕБЕ БАЛА АЛЛАРАЛАА ЕЕБЕ БАЛА АЛА	а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а	037023 037027 037027 037029 037038 037038 038003 038006 038007 038011 038012 038014 038015	as seeas AAAAAA 2001 zdamas 201 AAAs	СВАХЕ ЕВАЛЕВАЛА feealbana e2AAAbcaaa e2EABbaba beeebbabb baaaaaba cccccbbbbb baaaaaba baaaaaba baaaaaba baaaaaba baaaaaba baaaaaba baaaababa baaaababa baaaababa baaaababa baaaababa baaaababa baaaababa baaaababa baaababab baaababab baaababab baaababab baaababab baabababab baabababab baabababab baabababab baabababab bababababbab	есев лалалее ле ялалеее влалеле е регала лалалала лалалала влеввелал елала лалалала халалала калалала сале	алерарала алалалала алалалала алалалала елалалала	алаеледев алалалала алалалала еле алалалала алалалал	<b>X</b> <b>X</b> X X
030005 031004 031006 031007 031008 031010 031013 031016 031022 032012 033005	съсссоссос	EAMAABE	АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВА СОССССССС ВАВАЛАЛАА ВВСССВСВАА «ЕСЕЕЕДОЕЕ АВЛАВАНАА ЕСЕВЕЕДОЕЕ АВЛАВАНАА ЕСЕВВЕЕДОЕ ЕСЕВВЕЕСЕ БСВВЕВВЕССЕ	АЛЛАЛАЛА ЕБЕЕЛЕЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВАЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВАЛА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА АЛЛАВА	АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНАНА ВЕЕВ ЕЛЛЕА АЛЛАНЕЛОЕВ ЕЕЕ ЕЛЛАА АЛЛАНЕЛОЕВ ЕЕЕ ЕЛЛА АЛЛАНЕЛОЕВ	а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а	037026 037027 037028 037029 037030 037034 037034 038003 038006 038007 038011 038012 038011 038015 038016	49 99943 AAAAAA 2003 2013 2013 AAAs	СВААЕ ЕВААЕВААА feeaabaa e2aabcaaa e2aabcaaa beeebabbab aaaaaaba baaaaaba baaaaaba baaaaaba baaaaaba baaaaaba baaaaaba baaaaaba baaaaaba baaaaaba baaaaaba baaaaaba baaaaaba baaaaaba baaaaaba baaaaaba baaaaaba baaaaaba baaaaaba baaaaaba baaaaaba baaaaaba baaaaaba baaaaaba baaaaaba baaaaaba baaaaaba baaaaaba baaaaba baabaa	ЕЕЕЕ АЛАЛАЕР АЕ АЛАЛАЕРЕ е FEZJAA ABBAE АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА EABSBEBAAA EAAMA ANAAAAAA ANAAAAAA ANAAAAAA CEBBCCCEA	алерарала Алалалала Еее Алалалала Алале Алалалала Салалала А с Аларосссеа	алаеледев алалалалал влалалалал еле алалалалал алалалалал алалалал	
030005 031004 031006 031007 031008 031010 031013 031016 031022 032012 033005 033006	232322245 2269	еллалала едлаларе селелала FCC Едл Е Е Е Едлаларсва Валаларева	AMAMAMA AMAMAMA AMAMAMA AMAMAMA AMAMAMA AMAMAMA AMAMAMA ESCOCCCCC CCCCCCCC CCCCCCCC BABAADA BBCCCBCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAA ESCOCCAAA	АЛАЛАЛАА ЕБЕАРАА АЛАЛАВАЛАА АЛАЛАВАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА ССССС F & ССССССВЕВ АЛАЛАЛАА АЛЕЕРЕРЕРЕР АЛАЛАВАЛА DEFEDENCE EDE EDE BRODBABBBB AF FCCF C	АЛЛААЛААА АЛЛААЛААА АЛЛААЛААА АЛЛААЛААА АЛЛААЛАА	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	037026 037027 037028 037029 037034 037034 037038 038006 038006 038007 038011 038012 038014 038016 038016	as seeds AMAMAA AMAMAA Sooj Sooj AMA AMAs AMAs	СВААЕ ЕВАЛЕРАЛА feeaebana feeababab eebbabbb beeebabbbb baaaaaaba cbaaaaaba cbaaaaaba cbaaaaaba cbaaaaaba cccccbbbbb baaaaaaba cccccbbbbb baaaaaaba cccccbbbbb baaaaaaba cccccbbbbb baaaaaaba cccccbbbbb baaaaaaba cccccbbbbb baaaaaaba cccccbbbbb baaaaaaba cccccbbbbb baaaaaaba cccccbbbbb baaaaaaba cccccbbbbb baaaaaaba cccccbbbbb baaaaaaba cccccbbbbb baaaaaba cccccbbbbb baaaaaaba cccccbbbbb baaaaaba cccccbbbbb baaaaaba cccccbbbbb baaaaaba cccccbbbbb baaaaaba cccccbbbbb baaaaaba cccccbbbbb baaaaabaaba cccccbbbbb baaaaaba cccccbbbbb baaaaababb ccccbbbbb cccbbbbb baaaaaababb ccccbbbbb baaaaababb ccccbbbbb baaaaababb ccccbbbbb baaaaababb ccccbbbbb baaaaababb ccccbbbbb baaaaababb ccccbbbbb cccbbbbb cccbbbbb cccbbbbb cccbbbbb cccbbbbb cccbbbbb cccbbbbb cccbbbbb cccbbbbb cccbbbbbb	есее Алалаее Аг Алалаее Влалеее Влалеае Ф Резлал Аввае Алалалала Алалалала Алалалала Алалалала	аледаралаа Халалалала Еее Халалалаа Хала Хала Еалалалаа А в Алассссва Халалалаа	алагаедеве алаалаалаа алаалаалаа калаалаала алаалаалаа алаалаалаа алаалаал	
030005 031004 031006 031007 031008 031010 031013 031016 031022 032012 033005 033006 033007	20000045 20569 200589	eANAAABE e2NEANAB e2NEANABE FCC EAA EE EF EAAAABCCB EAAAABCCB EAAAABBCB CCCCCBBAAB	AMAMAMA AMAMAMA AMAMAMA AMAMAMA COCCCCCCC BABANANA ESCECCCA ABACCECAN ESEBEEED ABAAADAA ESEBBEEEA ABAAADAA ESEBBEEEE SCBBBBBCB ABAABAAA	АЛАЛАЛАА ЕБЕЕ ВАБАВАВА АЛАЛАВААА АЛАЛАВААА АЛАЛАВААА АЛАЛАЛААА АЛАЛАЛААА АЛАЛАЛААА АЛАЛАЛААА ВЕЕБЕВЕТЕ ВАБАВАВВВ АЕ АЛЕВАЛАЛААА	АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА ВЕЕЕ ЕЛАЕА АЛЛАНАНАН ЕЕЕЕ ЕЛАЕА АЛЛАНАНАН ЕЕЕЕ ЕЛАЕА АЛЛАНАНАН ЕЕЕ ЕЛАЕА АЛЛАНАНАН ЕЕЕ ЕЛАЕА АЛЛАНАНАН ЕЕЕ ЕЛАЕА АЛЛАНАНАНАН ЕЕЕ ЕЛАЕА АЛЛАНАНАНАН ЕЕЕ ЕЛАЕА АЛЛАНАНАНАН ЕЕЕ ЕЛАЕА АЛЛАНАНАНАН ЕЕЕ ЕЛАЕА АЛЛАНАНАНАН ЕЕЕ ЕЛАЕА	а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а	037028 037028 037027 037028 037030 037030 037030 037030 038006 038007 038011 038012 038014 038015 038014 038015 038012 038014	as seeas AAAAAs zdamas SOl SOl AAAs amadds amadds	СВАХЕ ЕВАЛЕВАЛА feealbana feealbana efanabana beeebaaba baalaanaba baalaanaba baalaanaba baalaanaba baabaanaba	есек лалалее ле ялалеее валагае е регала лалалала лалалала ваквавала салал лалалала лалалала халалала халалала халалала калалала салал халалала халалала салал халалала халалала салал халалала халалала салал халалала халалала салал халалала халалала халалала халалала халалала халалала халалала халалала халалала халалала халалала халалала халалала халалала халалала халалала халалала халалала халалала халалала халалала халалала халалала халалала халалала халалала халалала халалала халалала халалала халалалал	Алерарала Аларарала Алалалала Алалалала Алалалала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларарала Аларара Аларарала Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Алара Аларара Аларара Аларара Алара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Аларара Алара Аларара Аларара Аларара Алара Аларара Аларара Алара Алара Аларара Алара Алара Аларара Алара Алара Аларара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара	алаеледев алалалала алалалала еле алалалала алалалал	
030005 031004 031006 031007 031008 031010 031013 031016 032012 033005 033008 033007 033008	200000049 2089 20000289 20000289	eAMAABE e2ABAAB e2ABAAB FCC EAA EE FF EAAABBC BAAAABBC COCCCBBBAB COCCCBBBAB	АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА СОССССССС ВАВАЛАЛАА ВВСССВСВАА «ЕСЕВЕДОЕЕ АВЛАВААЛАА ЕСЕВВЕДОЕЕ АВЛАВАДАВ АСВВАВАВАСЭ АВЛАВАВАДЭ ВАЛАЛАВААЗА	АЛАЛАЛАА ЕБЕЕЛЕЛА АЛАЛАВАЛА АЛАЛАВАЛА ССССССВЕВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛЕКЕЕКЕЕЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВЕКЕКЕЕЕЕЕЕЕ ЕБЕ ВКОЙОВВВВ АЕ FCCF C АЛВВАЛАЛА	АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНАНА АЛЛАНАНАНА ВЕЕ ЕЛЛЕН АЛЛАНЕЛОЕВ ЕЕЕ ЕЛЛЕН АЛЛАНЕЛОЕВ ЕЕЕ ЕЛЛЕН АЛЛАНЕЛОЕВ ЕЕЕ ЕЛЛЕН АЛЛАНАНАНА ВЕ СССРЕРССССС ВВЕЛАЛАНАН	А А А А А А А А А А А А А А А А А А В В А А В В В В В В В В В В В В В В В В В В В В	037026 037027 037028 037029 037030 037030 037034 037038 038003 038003 038007 038011 038012 038016 038015 038016 038015 038016 038025 038027	ab peess SOO1 SOO1 SOO2 SOO2 AAAS AAAS Basadde Basadde	СВААЕ ЕВАЛЕВАЛА feeлebana feenbarban beeebarbab baaaaaaaa cccccbbbbb алаалаала cccccbbbbb алаалаала cf алаалаала f f алаалаала cf f алаалаала cf	есее Алалаее Ав Ав Валеее Валеее Валеее Алалала Аввае Алалалала Вавеввала Алалалала Вавеввала Алалалала Севвессер Аввалалала Алаг	аледараава еее алалалала алас алала алас алалалала алассоссва алалалала алассоссва алалалала	алаеледев алаалалала бар алалалала бар алалалала алалалала алалалала алалалал	х х х х х х х х х
030005 031004 031006 031007 031008 031010 031010 031010 031013 031016 032012 032012 032005 033007 033008	202020249 20289 2020289 2020289	еллалана едлаларе езавлар гсс еда ее гсс гсс га гсс гсс гсс гсс гсс гсс гсс	АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВААВ ССССССССС ССССССССС СССССССС ВВССССССС	АЛАЛАЛАА ЕБЕЕЛЕЛА АЛАЛАЛАА ССССС А ССССССВВЕВ АЛАЛАЛАА АЛЕНЕЕВЕЕ БЕВ ВАВАВАВВВВВ АЕ FCCF C АЛЕЛАВАВАА 1980	АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАРАЛА ЕЕЕ ЕЛАРА АЛАЛАРАЛАА ЕЕЕ ЕЛАРА АЛАЛАРАЛАА ЕЕЕ ЕЛАРА АЛАЛАРАЛАА ЕЕЕ ЕЛАРА АЛАЛАРАЛАА ВЕ ССРРГССССС ВВЕЛАЛАЛАР 1990	А А А А А А А А А А А А А А А А А А А	037026 037026 037027 037028 037030 037034 037034 037034 038006 038007 038011 038012 038014 038015 038016 038016 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 038017 00000000000000000000000000000000000	eases ea eanaan foco easan foco easan foco eanaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa ennaa enna ennaa enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enna enn enn	СВААЕ ЕВАЛЕРАЛА feealeana feealeana eeababe analana cbaanana cbaanana cbaanana cbaanana cccccbbbb analanan e f analanan e f analanan e f analanan e f analanan e f f analanan e f f analanan f f f f f f f f f f f f f f f f f f	ЕСЕВ АААААЕС АЕ АЕ ВАААЕСЕ ВАААЕСЕ ВАААЕСЕ ВАААЕСЕ ВАААЕСЕ ВААААААА ААААААААА ААААААААА ВАВАВАААА АААААААА	AAEDAEAABA         AAAAAAAAA           EEE         AAAAAAAAA           AAAAAAAAAA         AAAAAAAAA           AAAAAAAAAA         AAAAAAAAA           AAAAAAAAAA         AAAAAAAAA           ABAAAAAAAAA         EDDDE           1980	алагаедев алалалала алалалала еае алалалала алалалал	۰ ک ۲۰ ک ۲۰ ک ۲۰ ک
030005 031004 031006 031008 031008 031010 031013 031016 032012 033005 033006 033008 Station	ebccccccc eBcc eBccccc fe 1950	еллалаве едлалаве едлалаве гсс едл ее еллавсев валалавее сосссевява сосссевява сосссевява сосссевява	АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА СОССССССС ВАВАЛАЛАА ВБСССБССА ВВССССССС ВВСССССС ВВССССССА ВВСССССА ВВССССА АВАЛАЛАВА ЕБВВЕЕЕЕ АВАЛАЛАЛА БЕЛЕВЕЕЕЕ ССВВЕВЕСЕ АВАЛАВАЛАВ ВАЛАЛАВАЛАВ ВАЛАЛАВАЛАВ ВАЛАЛАВАЛАВ	АЛАЛАЛАА ЕБЕЕЛЕЛА АЛАЛЕВАЛА АЛАЛЕВАЛА СССССС СВБЕВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА ОССССС СВБЕВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛЕНЕВЕЕЛЕВЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА ПЕРЕБЕЛЕВЕ ВАЗВАВАВАВА АЕ FCCF C АЛАЛАЛАЛА ЕБЕЕ ВАЗВАВАВАВА АЕ FCCF C АЛАЛАЛАЛА 1980	АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА СЕЕБЕРАЛАН АЛЛАНАНАН ЕЕЕБЕРАЛАН АЛЛАНАНАНА ЕЕЕБЕРАЛАН АЛЛАНАНАН ЕЕЕБЕРАЛАН АЛЛАНАНАН ЕЕБЕРАЛАНАН АЛЛАНАНАН ЕЕБЕРАЛАНАН ВЕССТРУССССС ВЕРЕЛАЛАНАН 1990	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A B C B 2k	037028 037028 037027 037028 037030 037030 037030 037030 038003 038006 038007 038011 038012 038014 038015 038016 038015 038022 038025 038027 <b>Station</b> 038031	erooo or eanith fccc canal fcc cana ebbbbb 1950	СВАЛЕ ЕВАЛЕВАЛА feealbana eeanbacaa eeebbanb beeebbabb baaaaaaba cccccbbbbb aaaaaaaba cccccbbbbb aaaaaaaba cf faabaaaabb baabaaaabb baabaaaabb baabaaaabb baabaa	есек лалалее ле ялалеее валагае е гезала лавае алалалала алалалала вабевавала слава лалалала алалалала алалалала алалалал	алебаралва алалалала алалалала алалалала еалалалал	алаеледев алалалала еле алалалала еле алалалала алалалал	х х х х х х х х х х х х х х х х х х
030005 031004 031006 031007 031008 031010 031013 031013 031012 032012 032012 032005 033008 033007 033008 Station 033009	cbCCCCCCC eBCC eBCCCCCC fc 1950 eABCC	еллалаве едаалаве едаалав гсс еда еда е е е е е е е е е е е е е е е е	АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА СОССССССС ВАВАЛАЛАА ВВСССВСВАА «ЕСЕЕЕЕОЕЕ АВАЛАЛАА ЕСЕВВЕЕЕОЕЕ АВАВАВАЕ АБАВАВАЛАА 1970 ВАБВАЛАЛАА	АЛАЛАЛАА ЕБЕЕЛЕЛА АЛАЛЕВАЛА АЛАЛЕВАЛА ССССССВЕВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА АССССССВЕВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛЕКЕВСКЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВЕКЕВСЕВСЕ ЕБЕ ВКОВОВОВОВ АССССССТ АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВКОВОВОВОВОВОВОВОВОВОВОВОВОВОВОВОВОВОВО	АЛЛАЛАЛА АЛЛАЛАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛАА ВЕЕ ЕЛЛЕА АЛЛАЛЕЛАЛА ЕЕЕ ЕЛЛЕА АЛЛАЛЕЛАЛА ЕЕЕ ЕЛЛЕА АЛЛАЛЕЛАЛА ВЕ ССРРГССССС ВВЕЛАЛАЛАВ 1990 СРР	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	037026 037026 037027 037028 037030 037034 037034 038003 038006 038001 038011 038012 038016 038016 038015 038016 038025 038027 Station 038031 039031	eacec ca eANANAA fccc caasaba fcc cANA ebbass ebbbbb	СВААЕ ЕВАЛЕВАЛА feeлebana feenbarbana eebbarbab beeebbarbab baaaaaaaba cccccebbarb aaaaaaaaa f f aaaaaaaab baaaaaaab f f aaaaaaaa	есее калалее ак алалеее валеее валеее алалелее в редал аввае алалелала ваввае алалалала ваввае алалалалал ваввае алалалалал ваввае алалалалал ваввае алалалалал ваввае алалалалал ваввае алалалалал ваввае алалалалал ваввае алалалалал ваввае алалалалал ваввае алалалалал ваввае алалалалал ваввае алалалалал ваввае алалалалал ваввае алалалалал ваввае алалалалал ваввае алалалалал ваввае алалалалал ваввае алалалалал вавае валалалалал вавае алалалалала вавае вавае алалалалала ваввае алалалалала вавае алалалалалала вавае алалалалала вавае алалалалала вавае алалалалала вавае алалалалала вавае алалалалала вавае алалалалала вавае алалалалала вавае алалалалала вавае алалалалала вавае алала вавае алалалала вавае алала вавае алалалала вавае алала вавае вавае алала вавае вавае алала вавае вавае алала вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вава вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вава вавае вавае вава вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вавае вава вавае вава вавава вавае вава вовава вовава вовава вовава вава	алераелава елер алалалала елер алала елер алалалала а с аларосссева аларосссева алалалала ероре 1980 валалалала	алаеледев алалалала еле алалалала еле алалалала алалалал	х х х х х х х х х х х х х х х х х х х
030005 031004 031007 031007 031007 031008 031010 031013 031016 031012 032012 032012 033005 033007 033008 Station 033009 033012	ebccccccc eBCC eBCCCCC fc 1950 eABCC	еллалала едлалаве езавлав гсс гсс еда евс гге валалавес сосссввав сосссввав сосссввав сосссввав валалавея 1960 вагалалара салалара	АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА СССССССС	АЛАЛАЛАА ЕБЕЕ ВАБАВААА АЛАЛАВААА АЛАЛАВААА СССССАВЕВ АЛАЛАЛААА АЛАЛАВАА ВЕЕБЕЕБЕЕ ВАБАВАВААА ВАЛАВАААА АЛАЛАЛААА 1980 ВАЛАВАААА	АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНАНА ВЕЕСЕЛАЛА ВЕЕСЕЛАЛА ВЕЕСЕЛАЛА ВЕССРГРССССС ВВЕЛАЛАЛЭ 1990 ССРР АЛЛАНАНАН	A A A A A A A A A A A B A A A B A A B A B A B B B B C B B 2k A B B B B B B B B B B B A A B B A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	037026 037026 037027 037028 037029 037030 037030 037034 038003 038003 038004 038011 038014 038014 038016 038016 038017 038022 038027 038027 038031 039003 039003	eacco ca eAAAAAA fCCC easaba fCCC eAAA ebbaaa ebbbbb 1950	СВААЕ ЕВАЛЕВАЛА feenaeana eenabacana eenbaaba beeebarbab aaaaaana cocccbbbbb aaaaaaaaa f aaaaaaaaa e f aaaaaaaaa baaaaaaaa f aaaaaaaaa baaaaaaaa	есее Алалаее Ае Аралалее Власее Власее Резла Аввае Алалалала Алалалала Алалалала Алалалала	AAEDAEAABA AAAAAAAAA EEE AAAAAAAAAA AAABCCCCCBA AABCCCCCCBA AAAACCCCCBA BAAAAAAAA	аллеледев аллалалаа аллалалаа еде аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа 1990 Евалала аллалалаа	λ λ λ λ λ λ λ λ λ λ λ λ λ λ
030005 031004 031006 031007 031007 031008 031010 031013 031018 031012 032012 032012 033008 033008 033008 Statlon 033008	ebeccecce eBec eBecce fe 1950 eABCC	еллалаве едлалаве езавлала гсс едла ее гсс едла ев еллалевсев валалевсев валалевсев валалевсев валалевсев сезслеввае сезалавет 1960 ваедалава свалалер	АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА СОССССССС ВАВАЛАЛАА ВССССССС ВАВАЛАЛАА ЕСЕВЕВЕЕД АВАЛАДАА ЕСЕВЕВЕЕД ССВВЕВЕСЕ АВАЛАДАА ВАЛАЛАЛАА 1970 ВАВВАЛАЛАА БАЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАЛА	АЛАЛАЛАА ЕБЕЕРАРАА АЛАЛАВААА АЛАЛАВААА АЛАЛАВААА АЛАЛАВААА ВЗЗВВВВВВ АЕ ГССР С АЛАВАЛААА 1980 ВАЛВАЛААА АЛАЛАЛААА ВЗЗВВАВАВААА АЛАЛАЛАЛАА	АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНАНА АЛЛАНАНАНА АЛЛАНАНАНА АЛЛАНАНАНА БЕЕБЕЛАНА ВЕСКОРГРОСССС ВВЕЛАНАНАН 1990 СГР АЛЛАНАНАНАН ВЕЕВЕЛАНАН ВЕЕВЕЛАНАН ВЕЕВЕЛАНАН ВЕЕВЕЛАНАН	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A B B A B B C B B C B B C B B C B B C B B C B B C C B C C C B C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	037026 037026 037027 037028 037029 037030 037034 037034 038003 038006 038011 038012 038014 038015 038016 038027 038025 038027 Station 03803 039006 039006	слоналала самалала сос сала сос сала сос сала сос сала сос сала сос сос сос сос сос сос сос сос сос со	СВААЕ ЕВАЛЕВАЛА ГЕЕЛЕВАЛА ГЕЕЛЕВАЛА БЕЕЕВАВВАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА СССССЕВВВВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА БАЛАЛАЛАЛА БАЛАЛАЛАЛА БАЛАЛАЛАЛ	ЕЕЕЕ АААААЕЕ АЕ АААААЕЕ ВАААЕАЕ е РЕДЛА АВВАЕ АЛАЛБАААА АААБААААА АААБААААА АААБААААА ААЕБР 1970 ееелеееса	алераралаа сере лалалалаа алаа салалалаа салалалаа салалалаа ероде 1980 валалалаа салалалаа салалалаа соде	алаелеоев алалалала еле алалалала еле алалалала алалалал	х х х х х х х х х х х х х х х х х х х
030005 031004 031007 031007 031007 031008 031010 031018 031018 031018 031018 031018 033008 033008 <b>Station</b> 033009 033012 033012 033012	ерссссссс евсс евссссс fc 1950 елвсс	еллалала едлаларе езавлар гсс едла ее валаларе селларе 1960 варалалара едлалалара едлалалара салалалара	АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВАА АЛАЛАЛАВАА ССССССССС ССССССССС СССССССС ВВССССССС ВВСССССС	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ЕБЕЕЛЕЛА АЛАЛАВАЛАА АЛАЛАВАЛАА СССССС ВАЕВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛЕКЕРЕКЕРЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВЕКЕРЕКЕРЕ ВВЗВАВВВВВ АЕ ГССГ С АЛЕВАЛАЛА 1980 ВАЛАВАЛАЛЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВАЛАВАЛАЛЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛАЕВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАЕВ СОССССЕВИЕВ АЛЕКЕРЕКЕРЕ ВВЗВАВВВВВВ АЕ ГССГ С АЛЕВАЛАЛАЕ ВВЛАВЛАЛАЕВ СОССССЕВИЕВ АЛЕЛАНИИ СОССССЕВИЕВ АЛЕЛАЛАЛАВА СОССССЕВИЕВ АЛЕЛАЛАССИВИЕ СОСССЕВИЕВ АЛЕЛАЛАСНИЕ СОСССЕВИЕВ АЛЕЛАЛАССИВИЕ СОСССЕВИЕВ АЛЕЛАЛАЛАВА СОСССЕВИЕВ АЛЕЛАЛАССИВИЕ СОСССЕВИЕВ АЛЕЛАЛАСНИЕ СОСССЕВИЕВ АЛЕЛАЛАЛАВА СОСССЕВИЕВ АЛЕЛАЛАЛАВА СОСССЕВИЕВ АЛЕЛАЛАЛАВА СОСССЕВИЕВ АЛЕЛАЛАЛАВА СОСССЕВИЕВ АЛЕЛАЛАЛАЛАВА СОСССЕВИЕВ АЛЕЛАЛАЛАВА СОСССЕВИЕВ АЛЕЛАЛАЛАВАВАВА АЕ СОСССЕВИЕВ АЛЕЛАЛАВА СОСССЕВИЕВ АЛЕЛАЛАВАВАЛА СОСССЕВИЕВ АЛЕЛАЛАВА СОСССЕВИЕВ АЛЕЛАВАЛАВА СОСССЕВИЕВ АЛЕЛАВАВАВАВА АС СОСССЕВИЕВ АЛЕЛАВА СОСССЕВИЕВ АЛЕЛАВАВАВАВА СОСССЕВИЕВ АЛЕЛАВА СОСССЕВИЕВ АЛЕЛАВАЛАВА СОСССЕВИЕВ АЛЕЛАВАВАВАВ АС СОСССЕВИЕВ АЛЕЛАВАВАВАВАВА СОСССЕВИЕВ АЛЕЛАВА СОСССЕВИЕВ АЛЕЛАВА СОСССЕВИЕВ АЛЕЛАВАВАВАВАВАВАВА СОСССЕВИЕВ АЛЕЛАВАВАВАВАВАВАВАВА СОСССЕВИЕВ АЛЕЛАВАВАВАВАВАВАВАВАВАВАВАВАВАВАВАВАВАВ	АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА ВЕЕ ССРГРССССС ВВЕЛАЛАНАНА ВЕЕВЕЕДААВ ВЕЕВЕЕДАВ ВЕЕВЕЕДАВ ВЕЕВЕЕДАВ ВЕЕВЕЕДАВ ВЕЕВЕЕДАВ ВЕЕВЕЕДАВ	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	037026 037027 037028 037029 037030 037030 037038 038003 038003 038007 038011 038012 038014 038015 038015 038015 038027 <b>Station</b> 038031 039003 039007 039007	еллала еллала fccc елла fcc елла еррате еррате врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета во врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета во врета врета врета врета врета во врета врета во врета врета во врета врета во во врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета врета во во врета во во во во врета во во во врета врета во во во во во во во во во во во во во	СВААЕ ЕВАЛЕРАНА feenaeaaa eenababa beeebabbab aaaaaaaaa cbaaaaaaa cccccebbabb aaaaaaaaa e f aaaaaaaaa baaaaaaa e aaaaaaaaaa	есее Алалаее Аг Алалаее Валаеле Валаеле Валаеле Валалала Алалалала Алалалала Алалалала Алалалала	АЛЕДАРЛАВА ЗАЛАЛАЛАЛА ЕЕЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА ЕАЛАЛАЛАЛА ЕАЛАЛАЛАЛ	алаеледев алалалала каралалала еле алалалала алалалала алалалал	х х х х х х х х х х х х х х
030005 031006 031006 031006 031010 031010 031013 031010 031013 031016 032012 033005 033005 033008 033007 033008 <b>Station</b> 033009 033012 033014 033016	ebccccccc eBccccc fc 1950 eABCC	еллалала едлаларе селелар гсс едларе едларе едларе селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селера селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар селерар сел	АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА ВЗСССССССС СССССССС ВВЗСССССАВА еБЕРЕЕРЕР ВЗСССССАВА еБЕРЕЕРЕР ВЗБЕЛАЛАЛА ВАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАВА	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ЕБЕЕКЕРЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА СССССС ВЪЕВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛЕКЕРЕКЕРЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА ПЕКЕРЕКЕРЕ ВАВЛАЛАВАЛАЛЕ АЛЕВАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВАЛЕВАЛАЛЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВАЛЕВАЛАЛЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛАР ВАЛЕВАЛАЛЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛАР ВАЛЕВАЛАЛЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛАР ВАЛЕВАЛАЛЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛАР ВАЛЕВАЛАЛЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛАР ВАЛЕВАЛАЛЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛАР ВАЛЕВАЛАЛЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛАР ВАЛЕВАЛАЛЕ	АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА ВЕЕ ЕЛАЕА АЛЛАНАНА ЕЕЕ ЕЛАЕА АЛЛАНАНА ВЕЕ ЕЛАЕА АЛЛАНАНА ВЕ ВЕЗАЛАСССА ЕВЕЗАЛАСССА ВЕЗАЛАСССА ВЕЗАЛАСССА ИССООССООС ВЕЗАЛАЛАНА ВЕЕВЕЕДАВ ВЕВЕЕДАВ ВЕВЕЕДАВ ВЕВЕЕДАВ ВЕВЕЕДАВ	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	037025 037026 037027 037029 037030 037030 037034 037038 038003 038003 038007 038011 038012 038014 038015 038016 038025 038027 Station 039003 039008 039008	eacee ea eAAAAAA fCCC eaaaba fCC eAAA ebbaaa ebbbbb 1950 eAAAAAAAA fCCCCCCCC	СВАЛЕ ЕВАЛЕВАЛА feenebana eenbana beeebanbab baananana cocccebbabb haananana f inananana baananana f inananana habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananba habbaananbaananba habbaananbaananba habbaananbaananbaananbaananba habbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaananbaan	есее Алалаее Ас Алалаее Валаее Валаее Валаее Реглал Алалалаа Ваввевала Соввесса Соввесса Алалалал Алералала Алерг 1970 еселетесо Алалалала Алалалала Алерг	Алебаралара Алалалала Еее Алалалала Алар Алалалала А в Алалалалала Ерооре 1980 Валалалала Алалалалала Алалалалала Алалалала	алаеледев алалалала алалалала еле алалалала алалалал	х х х х х х х х х х х х х х х х х х х
030005 031004 031007 031007 031008 031010 031013 031018 031012 032012 032012 033008 033008 033008 033008 033008 033008 033012 033014 033015 033018	ebccccccc eBCCC eBCCC fc 1950 eABCC	еллалае едлалае селелае гсс едл ес гсс елл е еллалее селелае селалае салалае салалае салалае салалае салалае салалае салалае салалае салалае салалае селелае селе сел	АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА СОССССССС ВАВАЛАЛАА ВВСССЕССС ВАВАЛАЛА ЕЕВВЕЕЕЕЕ ВСВАВЕЕЕЕ АВАЛАДАЛА ЕЕЕВВЕЕЕЕЕ ВСВВВВВСЕ АВАЛАВАЛАЛ 1970 ВАВВАЛАЛА ВАЛАЛАЛАЛА ВАЛАЛАЛАЛА ВАЛАЛАЛАЛ	АЛАЛАЛАА ЕБЕЕКАРАА АЛАЛАВААА АЛАЛАВААА АЛАЛАВААА АЛАЛАВААА ВВЗВЗВЗВВВВ АЕ FCCF C АЛАВАЛААА 1980 ВАЛВАЛААА АЛАЛАЛААА ВВЗВЗВВВВВВ АЕ FCCF C АЛАВАЛААА АЛАЛАЛААА ВВЗВЗВВВВВВ АЕ FCCF C АЛАВАЛААА АЛАЛАЛААА ВАЛВАЛААА АЛАЛАЛААА ВАЛВАЛААА АЛАЛАЛААА ВАЛВАЛААА АЛАЛАЛААА	АЛЛАЛАЛА АЛЛАЛАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛЛАЛАЛАЛА ВЕЕВЕРЕЛАЛА ЕЕВЕ ГАЛЕЛ АЛЛАЛЕЛАРА ВЕЕВЕРЕЛАЛА 1990 СРР АЛЛАЛАЛАЛА ВЕЕВЕРЕЛАЛА ВЕЕВЕРЕЛАЛА	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A B C B C	037025 037027 037028 037029 037030 037034 037038 038003 038006 038011 038015 038016 038016 038016 038015 038016 038015 038016 038015 038027 <b>Station</b> 038031 039006 039009 039009	елеее ел еллала fccc еллагь fcc еллагь fcc еллагь еррава еррава еррава еррава fccccccc f	СВААЕ ЕВАЛЕВАЛА feeлabaлa eeanabaaa beeebaabaa baaaaaaaa cccccbbabb aaaaaaaaa f f aaaaaaaaa cf f aaaaaaaaa baaaaaaaa baaaaaaaa baaaaaaaa	есее Алалаее Ае Алалаее Валеее Валеее Алалала Алалалала Вавве Алалалала Вавве Алалалала Вавве Алалалала Вавве Алалалала Севесссе 1970 Ссесссссс Ссссссссс Ссссссссс	алераелава еле алалалала еле алалалала еле алалалал	алаеледев алалалала алалалала еле алалалала алалалал	х х х х х х х х х х х х х х
030005 031004 031006 031006 031007 031008 031013 031013 031013 032012 033005 033008 033008 Station 033009 033012 033014 033015 033016 033018	ebccccccc eBCCCCC fc 1950 eABCC f	еллалала едлалаве езавлав гсс гсс еда е е е е е е е е е е е е е е е е е е	АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА ВЗССССССС СОСССССС ВЗССССССА ВЗССССССА ВЗСССССАА еЕЕЕЕЕЕЕЕ АЗАВАЛАА ВЗССССАА ЕЕЕЕЕЕЕЕЕ СОВВЕЗВСС ВСВВЕЗВСС ВСВВЕЗВС ВСВВЕЗВС ВСВВЕЗВС ВСВВЕЗВС ВАЛАЛАЛАА ВАЛАЛАЛАА ВАЛАЛАЛАА ВАЛАЛАЛАА ВАЛАЛАЛАА ВАЛАЛАЛАА	АЛАЛАЛАА ЕБЕЕ ВАЛАЛААА АЛАЛАААА ССССС ВЬЕВ АЛАЛАЛААА АЛАЛАААА АЛАЛАААА ВЕЕЕБЕЕБЕЕ ВАЛАБАААА ВАЛАВААЛЕ СССС ВАЛАВААВЕ АЛАЛАААА	АЛЛААНАНА АЛЛААНАНА АЛЛААНАНА АЛЛААНАНА АЛЛААНАНА АЛЛААНАНА ВЕЕСЕЛАА ВЕЕСЕЛАА ВЕЕСЕЛАА АЛЛААРАНА ВЕ ССРГРССССС ВВЕЛААЛАР ВЕВЕСТАНА ВЕЕЛАА 1990 ССРР АЛЛААНАЛАА ВЕЕЛАСТА ВЕЕЛААС	A A A A A A A A A A A A A B C B Zk A B C C A A	037026 037026 037027 037028 037030 037030 037038 038003 038003 038007 038011 038012 038014 038014 038016 038016 038022 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038026 039007 039008 039007 039008 039007 039008	езеее ел еллллл fccc езазьа fcc еллл ерраав ерраав ерраав ерраав ерраав ерраав ерраав ерраав ерраав ерраав ерраав fcccccccc f езлллллл fcccccccc f	СВААЕ ЕВАЛЕРАЛА feealeana feealeana eeanacaa cbaalaana cbaalaana cbaalaana cccccbbbb aaalaana f faalaanaa cccccbbbb aaalaana cccccbbbb aaalaana f f saalaanaa baalaanaa f f saalaanaa baalaanaa baalaanaa baalaanaa f f saalaanaa baalaanaa cccccccccc ccccccccc cccccccccc	есее Алалаее Ас Алалаее Власее Власее С Резла Аввае Алалалала Алалалала Алалалала Алалалала	алераралра халалалала еее халалалала елалалала елалалала а е лалалалала еродре 1980 валалалала халалалала халалалала халалалал	аллеледев аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа 1990 Евлалал аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа аллалалаа алаа алалалалаа алаа алалалалаа алаа	х х х х х х х х х х х х х х
030005 031004 031006 031006 031010 031010 031010 031011 031012 032012 032012 032012 033005 033008 <b>Station</b> 033009 033014 033015 033016 033016 033018 033019 033029	ebccccccc eBcC eBcCcc fc 1950 eABCC f	еллалаве езавлаве езавлаве гсс ела ее гсс ела е е елалавесев валалевсев валалевсев валалавес свалавесев свалаеве свалаеве елалалар валалара елалалар валалара елалалар валалара елалалар валалара елалалар валалара елалара валалара елалара валалара елалара валалара елалара валалара елалара валалара елалара валалара елалара валалара валалара елалара валалара валалара елалара валалара елалара валалара елалара валалара елалара валалара елалара валалара елалара валалара елалара валалара валалара елалара валалара елалара валалара елалара валалара валалара валалара елалара валалара еланалара ела	АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА СОССССССС ВАВАЛАЛАА ВССССССС ВАВАЛАЛАА СЕЕВЕВЕЕВЕ АВАЛАВАЛАВ ВССВАВЕВСВ АВАЛАВАЛАВА 1970 ВАВВАЛАЛАА ВССВАВАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВССССССС АЛАВАЛАЛА ВСССССССС АЛАВАЛАЛА	АЛАЛАЛАА ЕБЕЕЛАЛА АЛАЛАВААА АЛАЛАВААА АЛАЛАВААА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛЕКЕВЕКЕ АЛАЛАЛАА ВЕВЕВЕВЕВЕ АЛАЛАЛАА ЕБЕЕ ВВЗВВВВВВ АЕ ГССР С АЛАВАЛААА 1980 ВАЛВАЛААА АЛАЛАЛААА АЛАЛАЛААА БЕЕЕ ВВЗВАВВВВВ АЕ ГССР С АЛАВАЛААА АЛАЛАЛААА БЕЕЕ ВВЗВАВВВВВВ АЕ ГССР С АЛАВАЛААА АЛАЛАЛААА АЛАЛАЛААА АЛАЛАЛААА	АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A C	037025 037027 037028 037029 037030 037034 037038 038003 038003 038007 038011 038015 038016 038016 038016 038016 038016 038017 038018 038027 <b>Station</b> 038031 039006 039007 039009 039011	елено на едилия fccc earreds fccc earreds fccc earreds ebbbs 1950 earreds fcccccccc f earreds fccccccc f earreds fccc earreds fccc earreds ebbbs fccc earreds fccc earreds fccc earreds fccc earreds fccc earreds fccc earreds fccc earreds fccc earreds fccc earreds fccc earreds fccc earreds fccc earreds fccc earreds fccc earreds fccc earreds fccc earreds fccc earreds fccc earreds fccc earreds fccc earreds fccc earreds fccc earreds fccc earreds fccc earreds fccc earreds fccc earreds fccc earreds fccc earreds fccc fcc fcc fccc f f earreds fccc fcc fcc fcc fcc fcc fcc fcc fcc f	СВААЕ ЕВАЛЕВАЛА feenaeman feenaeman eenaeman beeebaabab aaaaaaaaa cccccebbbb aaaaaaaaa f faaaaaaaaa baabaaaaab baabaaaaab 1960 eaaeeeee aaaaaaaaaa aaaaaaaaa aaaaaaaa	есее калалара калалара калалара калалара калара ка	алераралаа елераралаа елер алала елер алала елерара алар алар	алаеледев алалалала алалалала еле алалалала алалалал	<ul> <li>А</li> <li>А</li></ul>
030005 031004 031006 031007 031008 031010 031013 031013 031013 031013 031015 033005 033008 033007 033008 <b>Station</b> 033001 033011 0330116 0330116 0330116 0330116 0330116 0330116 0330116 0330117	ebccccccc eBCC eBCCCCC fc 1950 eABCC f	еллалала едлалаве езделала гсс еда е е е е е е е е е е е е е е е е е е	АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА ВЗССССССС СОСССССС ВАВАЛАЛА ЕВВАССЕСАНА СССССССС ВЗССССАНА СССССА ВЗСССССАНА СЕЗВВЕРЕЕР ВСВВВЗВСТ ВАБАЛАЛАА ВАЛАЛАЛАА ВАЛАЛАЛАА ВЗССССССССС АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ ВСССССССССССССССССС	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ЕБЕЕ ВАЛАВАЛАЕ ВАЛАВАЛАЕ 1980 ВАЛАВАЛАЕ ВАЛАВАЛАЕ ВАЛАВАЛАЕ ВАЛАВАЛАЕ ВАЛАВАЛАЕ ВАЛАВАЛАЕ ВАЛАВАЛАЕ ВАЛАВАЛАЕ ВАЛАВАЛАЕ ВАЛАВАЛАЕ ВАЛАВАЛАЕ ВАЛАВАЛАЕ ВАЛАВАЛАЕ ВАЛАВАЛАЕ ВАЛАВАЛАЕ ВАЛАВАЛАЕ ВАЛАВАЛАЕ ВАЛАВАЛАЕ ВАЛАВАЛАЕ ВАЛАВАЛАЕ СССС	АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A B A A A B A A A B C B A A C A	037026 037027 037028 037029 037030 037030 037038 038003 038003 038007 038011 038012 038014 038015 038016 038015 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 038025 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 039005 03005 0005 0	eannan food eannan food eannan food eannan food food food f eannan food f eannan food f eannan food f eannan food f eannan food f eannan food f eannan food f f f f f f f f f f f f f f f f f	СВААЕ ЕВАЛЕРАЛА feenaeaaa eenababa beeebarbab aaaaaaaa cbaaaaaaa cbaaaaaaa cccccebbbb aaaaaaaa e f aaaaaaaaa baaaaaaa e f aaaaaaaaa baaaaaaaa baaaaaaaa baaaaaaaa	есее Алалаее Аг Алалаее Влагее Влагее Влагее Влагее Влагее Влагее Влалее Влалаее Алалалала Алалалала Влазвавала Алалалала Алалалала Алалалала Алалалала	Алебаралаа Еле Алалалала Еле Алалалала Елалалала А е Алалалала Ебобе Валалалал Ссесссесс Сср Алалалала Алеералалала Алалалала Але	аласаедев алалалала каралалала каралалала алалалала алалалала тералала алалалалар алалалалар алалалалар алалалал	А А А А А А А А А А А А А А А А А А А
030005 031004 031006 031007 031008 031010 031010 031010 031012 032012 032012 032005 033005 033005 033008 Station 033008 Station 033001 033014 033016 033018 033018 033018 033018 033020 033021 033022	ebccccccc eBCC fc 1950 eABCC f	еллалала едлаларе езьеллар гсс едлалар ер ел ел ел ел ел ел ел ел ел ел ел ел ел	АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА ССССССССС СВАВАЛАЛАА ВВСССБСАВА СССССССС ВВСССБАА СССССССС ВВСССБАА СССССАСС ВВССССАВА ВВССССАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАВАЛАЛАА ВАВАЛАЛАВ ВАВАЛАЛАВ ВССССССССС АЛАВАЛАЛА ВАВАЛАЛАВ ВВССССССССС АЛАВАЛАЛАВ ВССССССССС АЛАВАЛАЛАВ ВВССССССССС АЛАВАЛАЛАВ ВССССССССС АЛАВАЛАЛАВ ВССССССССС АЛАВАЛАЛАВ ВССССССССС ВВВАЛАЛАВ ВССССССССС ВВВАЛАЛАВ ВСССССССССС	АЛАЛАЛАА ЕБЕЕЛЕЛА АЛАЛАВАЛА ССССССИВЕВ АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАВАЛА ССССССИВЕВ АЛАЛАЛАА АЛЕКЕВЕКЕЕ АЛАЛАЛАА ВЕРЕБЕРЕЕ ВАЗБАВАВАВА ЕБЕЕ ВАЗБАВАВАВА АЛАЛАЛАА 1980 ВАЛАВАЛАЕ АЛАЛАЛАА ВАЛАВАЛАЕ АЛАЛАЛАА СССССССССС ВАЛАВАЛАЕ АЛАЛАЛАА СССССССССС ВАЛАВАЛАЕ АЛАЛАЛАА СССССССССС ВАЛАВАЛАЕ	АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНАНА АЛЛАНАНАНА АЛЛАНАНАНА ВЕЕВЕРАЛАН АЛЛАНАНАНА ВЕЕВЕРАЛАН АЛЛАНАНАНА ВЕЕВЕРАЛАНАНА ВЕЕВЕРАЛАНАНА ВЕЕВЕРАЛАНАНА ВЕЕВЕРАЛАНАНАНА ВЕЕВЕРАЛАНАНАНА ВЕЕВЕРАЛАНАНАНА ВЕЕВЕРАЛАНАНАНА ВЕЕВЕРАЛАНАНАНА ВЕЕВЕРАЛАНАНАНАНАНАНАНАНАНАНАНАНАНАНАНАНАНАНА	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	037025 037026 037027 037028 037029 037030 037030 038003 038003 038003 038012 038011 038015 038016 038016 038015 038016 038015 038016 038027 03803 039007 039008 039007 039011 039012 039012	ERGEO GE ERANANA f(CC eREELSE f(CC eRANA ebbass ebbass ebbbbb 1950 eANNANA f(CCCCCCCC f eANNA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA eANA	СВААЕ ЕВАЛЕВАЛА ГЕЕЛЕВАЛА ГЕЕЛЕВАЛА БЕЕЕВАВВАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА СССССЕВВВВВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА БАЛАЛАЛАЛА БАЛАЛАЛАЛА 1960 еАЛЕЕЕЕЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА СССССССССС СССССССССС СССССССС	есее Алалаее Ас Алалаее Валаее Валаее Валаее Реглал Аввае Алалалала Ваввевала Соввесса Соввесса Соввесса Сосессосс Соссоссосс Соссоссосс Соссоссосс Соссоссосс Соссоссосс	алераралаа ере алалалалаа алаа еле алалалала еле алалалал	алаеледев алалалала алалалала еле алалалала алалалал	А А А А А А А А А А А А А А А А А А А
030005 031004 031006 031007 031008 031010 031013 031016 031013 031016 031012 032012 032012 033005 033008 033007 033008 033009 033012 033016 033016 033016 033016 033016 033021 033022	ebccccccc eBCCC eBCCC fc 1950 eABCC f	еллалаве езавлаве езавлав гсс езавлаве гсс ела е е е е е е е е е е е е е е е е е е	АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВЗССССССС СССССССС СССССССС ВАВАЛАЛАА ВЗССССССА ВЗСССССА АВАЛАЛАЛА ВЗСССССА ВЗСССССА ВЗСССССССС ВЗСССССССС ВЗСССССССС ВЗСССССССС	АЛАЛАЛАА ЕБЕЕХАРАА АЛАЛАВААА АЛАЛАВААА АЛАЛАВААА АЛАЛААААА ССССССССС ВАВАВААА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВАА АЛАЛААВВАА АЛАЛААВВАА	АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A B C B B B	037026 037027 037028 037027 037028 037030 037034 037038 038003 038006 038011 038015 038016 038016 038016 038016 038016 038027 038027 038027 038031 039006 039007 039008 039009 039011 039014 039014 039014	eadee ea eAJAAAA fccc eaaaba fcc eAAA ebbaaa ebbbbb 1950 eAAAAAAA fcccccccc f eAAAAAAA eAAAAAA eAAAAAA eAAAAAA eAAAAA eAAAA eAAAA	СВААЕ ЕВАЛЕВАЛА feeлabaлa eeanabaaa beeebabbaa baaaaaaaa cccccebbabb aaaaaaaaa f faaaaaaaaa f f aaaaaaaa	есее Алалаее Ае Алалаее Валееа Валееа Алалалаа Алалалала Ваввевала Алалалала Ваввевала Алалалала Ваввевала Алалалала Севессеа Сесесссос Соссоссос Соссоссос Алалалала Алалалала Алалалала Севессеа Соссоссос Соссоссос Алалалала Алалалала Алалалала Аларалала Алалалала Аларалала Севессеа Соссоссос Соссоссос Алалалала Алалалала Аларалала Аларала Аларалала Аларалала Аларалала Аларалала Аларалала Аларалала Аларалала Аларала Аларала Аларалала Аларалала Аларала Аларалала Аларалала Аларалала Аларалала Аларалала Аларалала Аларалала Аларалала Аларалала Аларалала Аларалала Аларалала Аларалала Аларалала Аларалала Аларала Аларалала Аларала Аларала Аларалала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Аларала Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Алара Ала	алераелава еее лалалалал еее лалалала елалалала а с лалалалал ероре 1980 Валалалал алалалала алалалала алалалала	алаеледев алалалала алалалала алалалала алалалал	<ul> <li>А</li> <li>A</li></ul>
030005 031006 031007 031008 031008 0310108 0310108 0310108 0310108 0310108 0310108 031012 032012 033008 033007 033008 033007 033008 033007 033008 033012 033014 033018 033018 033018 033018 033020 033021 033022 033022 033022	ebccccccc eBCCCCC fc 1950 eABCC f	еллалала едлаларе езавлала гсс езавла еслаларе едлаларе сволалере едлаларе едлаларе едлаларе едлаларе едлаларе едлаларе едлаларе едлаларе едлаларе едлаларе едлаларе	АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА СССССССС	АЛАЛАЛАА ЕБЕЕ ВАЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАВААА СССССЕВЕВ АЛАЛАЛААА ОССССЕВЕВ АЛАЛАЛААА АЛАЛАЛААА ВЕЕЕЕЕЕЕЕЕ ВАЛБАЛААА ВАЛБАЛААА ВАЛБАЛААЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛААЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛААЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛААЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛААЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛААЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛААЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛААЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛААЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛААЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛААЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛААЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛААЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛААЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛААЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛААЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛААЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛААЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛААЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛААЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛААЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕ ССССС ВАЛБАЛАЕ ССССС ВАЛБАЛАЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕ ССССС ВАЛБАЛАЕ ССССС ВАЛБАЛАЕ ССССС ВАЛБАЛАЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕ ВАЛБАЛАЕ СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕВА СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕВА СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕВА СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕВА АЛАЛАААВАА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕВА СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕВА СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕВА СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕВА СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕВА СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕВА СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕВА СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕВА СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕВА СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕВА СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕВА СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕВА СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА СССС ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВАА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВА ВАЛБАЛАЕВ	АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА ВЕЕ ЕЛАЕА АЛЛАНАНАНА ЕЕЕ ЕЛАЕА АЛЛАНАНАН ЕЕЕЕЕЛАНА ВЕЕСЕЛАНА АЛЛАНАНАНА ВЕ ССРРГОСССС ВЕРАЛАНАНА ВЕАВАЛАНАН ВЕАВАЛАНАН ВАВАЛАЛАН ВА ВАЛАЛАН ВА ВАЛАЛАН ВА ВАЛАЛАН ВА ВАЛАЛАН ВА ВАЛАЛАН ВА ВАЛАЛАН	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A B C C B C C B C C B C C B B B B	037025 037026 037027 037028 037029 037030 037030 038013 038003 038003 038014 038012 038014 038015 038016 038025 038027 <b>Station</b> 039003 039005 039005 039005 039001 039011 039011 039014 039016 039016 039016	easee ea eanama fccc eassbs fcc eana ebbaas ebbbb 1950 eanama fcccccccc f eanama fcccccccc f eanama eanama cana eana eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eanama eana ean	СВААЕ ЕВАЛЕРАЛА ГЕЕЛАВАЛА ГЕЕЛАВАЛА ВАЛАЛАЛА СССССЕВАВВА АЛАЛАЛАЛА СССССЕВАВВА АЛАЛАЛАЛА СССССЕВВАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА СССССЕВВАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА СССССЕВВАВ 1960 еАЛЕЕЕЕЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛ	есее Алалаее Ас Алалаее Власее Власее Власее Власее Власее Власее Власеее Власееееееееееееееееееееееееееееееееееее	алераралра алаалалала еее алаалалала еалалалала еалалалала а е лалалалала еродре 1980 Валалалала алаалалалала алерассссс алалалалала алерассере алалалалала алерассере алалалалала алерассере алалалалала алерассере алалалалала алерассере алалалалала алерассере алалалалала алерассере алалалалала алерассере алалалалала алерассере алалалалала алерассере алалалалала алерассере алалалалала алерассере алалалалала алерассере алалалалала алерассере алалалалала алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассере алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассерее алерассереерее алерассерее	алагаарар алалалала алалалала алалалала алалалал	
030005 031004 031006 031007 031008 031010 031013 031018 031018 031018 032012 032012 032012 033008 033008 <b>Station</b> 033008 033018 033018 033018 033018 033018 033019 033021 033022 033022 033025 033025	ebCCCCCCC eBCC eBCCC fc 1950 eABCC f	еллалата едлаларе еслаларе гсс ела есла есла ела есла есла есла есла	АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА СССССССС	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ЕБЕЕЛАЛА АЛАЛАВАЛА АЛАЛАВАЛА АЛАЛАВАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛЕКЕВЕКЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА СССССССВВЕВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА СССССССС ВАЛАВАЛАЛЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА СЕСС СССССССС ВАЛАВАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВАЛ АЛАЛАЛАВАЛ АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛ	АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	037025 037026 037027 037028 037029 037030 037034 037038 038003 038003 038007 038011 038015 038016 038027 038027 038027 038027 038027 038027 038029 038027 038029 038027 038029 038027 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 038029 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 039009 03900000000	елеео са елллал fccc салагьс fccc салагьс fccc салаг еррэва еррэра воросссс f cananana fcccccccc f cananana fcccccccc f cananana cananana canananananananananan	СВААЕ ЕВАЛЕВАЛА £ ЕВАЛЕВАЛА £ ЕЕЛАЕВАЛА £ ЕЕЛАЕВАЛА В ЕЕВВАВВА АЛАЛАЛАЛА СССССЕВВВВВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА СССССЕВВВВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА Е АЛАЛАЛАЛА 1960 еАЛЕЕЕЕЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛ	есее калалара калалара калалара калалара кара к	алераралаа еле алалалала еле алала еле алала еле алалалал	алаелерев алалалала алалалала еле алалалала алалалал	а а а а а а а а а а а а а а
030005 031004 031006 031007 031008 031010 031013 031018 031018 031018 031018 033005 033008 033008 033008 033008 033008 033019 033018 033018 033018 033018 033019 033021 033022 033023	ebccccccc eBCCccc fc 1950 eABCC f	еллалала едлаларе езделалар гсс едлаларе е е е е е е е е е е е е е е е е е е	АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА СССССССС	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ЕБЕЕЛЕЛА АЛАЛАВАЛА АЛАЛАВАЛА СССССС ВА АЛАЛАЛАЛА ССССССВВЕВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА ССССССВВЕВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВЕВЕВЕВЕВЕ ЕБЕ ВАЛАВАЛАЛАВ ВАЛАВАЛАВВА АСССССИССССС ВЛАВАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВАЛА ССССССССССССССССС ВЛАВАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВВАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВВАЛАВВ	АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	037026 037027 037028 037027 037028 037030 037030 037038 038003 038003 038007 038011 038012 038014 038015 038012 038015 038015 038027 <b>Station</b> 038015 038027 <b>Station</b> 038013 039003 039003 039001 039011 039012 039014 039011 039012 039014 039019 039019 039019 039019	eannair eannair fccc eannair ebbana ebbabb 1950 eannair fcccccccc f eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair eannair ea	СВАЛЕ ЕВАЛЕРАЛА f EEAAEBAAA f EEAAEBAAA EEEBBABBAB AAAAAAAAA CCCCCEBBABB AAAAAAAAAA E f AAAAAAAAAA E AAAAAAAAAA	есее в алалаее а валаее в валаее в алалала алалалала алалалала алалалала	Алебарларл Реге Лалалалала Реге Лалалалала Ралалалала Реборссссва Лалалалала Реборс Валалалала Алалалалал Алессссссссссссссссссссссссссссссссссс	алаелецев алалалала алалалала алалалала алалалал	<ul> <li>Х</li> <li>Х</li></ul>
030005 031004 031006 031007 031008 031010 031013 031016 031013 031016 031013 032012 032012 032012 033008 <b>Statlen</b> 033009 033015 033015 033015 033015 033015 033015 033015 033012 033021 033022 033022 033022 033027 033028	ebccccccc eBCC fc 1950 eABCC f	eAMAAAA e2ABAAAA e2ABAAAA FC FC EAAAABCCB FF EAAAABCCB EAAAAABCCB EAAAAABCCB EAAAAABCCB EAAAAABCA CCCCCBBAA CCCCCBBAA CCCCCBBAA CCCCCBBAA EAAAABCA EAAAABCA EAAAAAA eAAAAAAA eAAAAAAA eAAAAAAA eAAAAAA	АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА ВЗССССССС СОСССССС ВЗСССССА ВЗСССССА ВЗСССССА ВЗСССССА ВЗССССА ВЗССССА ВЗССССА ВЗССССА ВЗСССА ВЗСССА ВЗСССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗССА ВЗСА ВЗ	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ЕБЕЕРЕРЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА СССССС СВБЕВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛЕКТЕРЕТЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА ПЕРЕТЕРЕТЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА ПЕРЕТЕРЕТЕРЕ ВАЛБАЛАЛАЛА СССССССССС ВАЛБВАЛАР СССС ВАЛБВАЛАР СССССССССС ВАЛБВАЛАР СССС ВАЛБВАЛАР СССС ВАЛБВАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР АЛАЛАР	АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНАНА АЛЛАНАНАНА ВЕЕ ЕЛЛЕА АЛЛАНАНАНА ВЕЕ ЕЛЛЕА АЛЛАНАНАНАНА ВЕЕ ЕЛЛЕА АЛЛАНАНАНА ВЕЕ ЕЛЛЕА АЛЛАНАНАНА ВЕЕ ЕЛЛЕА АЛЛАНАНАНА ВЕЕ ЕЛЛЕА АЛЛАНАНАНА ВЕЛЛАНАНАНА ВАЛЛАНАНАНА ВАЛЛАНАНАНА ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАВ ВАЛЛАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ ВАЛЛАНАВ	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	037025 037027 037028 037027 037028 037030 037030 038003 038003 038003 038007 038012 038011 038015 038016 038017 038016 038027 038027 03803 039006 039007 039008 039007 039008 039011 039012 039011 039012 039011 039012 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 039019 0390000000000	easee ea eAAAAAA fCCC easaba fCC eAAA ebbaaa ebbbb 1950 eAAAAAAAA fCCCCCCCC f eAAAAAAA eAAAA EAAA eAAAA eAAAA eAAAA	СВААЕ ЕВАЛЕВАЛА feerbarbar feerbarbar beeebbarbar baraaaaaa cccccbbbbb алаалаааа E saaaaaaaa 1960 eAAEEEEE алаалаааа ссссссссссс cccccccccc cccccccccc	есее Алалаее Ас Алалаее Власеа Власеа Власеа С Резлал Алалалал Алалалала Алалалала Алалалала	алераралаа ере алалалалаа ере алалалала елалалалаа ероре 1980 Валалалаа ссссссссс ССС ССС ССС Алалалала Алералела Алалалала Алералела Алалалала Алералела Алалалала Алералела Алалалала Алералела Алалалала Алералела СССССССССС ССС ССС Алалалала Алералалала Алералалала Алералалала Алералала Алералалала Алералалала Алералалала Алералалала Алералалала Алералала Алералалала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералалала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алерала Алерала Алерала Алерала Алерала Алерала Алерала Алерала Алера Алерала Алерала Алерала Алерала Алерала Алерала Алерала Алерала Алерала Алерала Алерала Алерала Алерала Алерала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералала Алералалала Алералала Алералалала Алералалала Алералалала Алералалала Алералалала Алералалала Алералалала Алералалала Алералалала Алералалала Алералалала Алералалалана Алералалала Алералалана Алералалана Алералалана Алералана Алералалана Алералана Алералана Алералана Алералана Алералана Алералана Алералана Алералана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алерана Алер	алаелерев алалалала алалалала алалалала алалалал	А А А А А 28 А А А А А А А А А А А А А А
030005 031004 031006 031007 031008 031010 031013 031016 031013 031016 031013 032012 032012 033008 033008 033008 033008 033008 033012 033012 033015 033018 033018 033019 033021 033022 033022 033022 033022 033022	ebccccccc eBcC eBcCc fc 1950 eABCC f	еллалала едлалаве езелалаве гсс едлалаве еве еллалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлалавеств едлавеств едлавеств едлавеств едлавеств едлавеств едлавеств едлавеств едлавеств едлавеств едлавеств едлавеств едлавеств едлавеств едлавеств едлавеств едлавеств едлавеств едлавеств едлавеств едлавеств едлавеств едлавеств едлавеств едлавеств едлавеств едлавеств еднавеств еднавеств едлавеств едлавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств една еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств еднавеств една една еднавеств една една една една една една една една	АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА ВЗССССССС СССССССС СССССССС ВАВАЛАЛАА ВЗСССССА АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВЗСССССА ВЗСССССА ВЗСССССА ВЗСССССА ВЗСССССА ВЗСССССА ВЗССССССА ВЗССССССА ВЗССССССА ВЗСССССССА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЗГАЛАЛАЛА АЗГАЛАЛАЛА АЗГАЛАЛАЛА АЗГАЛАЛАЛА АЗГАЛАЛАЛА АЗГАЛАЛАЛА АЗГАЛАЛАЛА АЗГАЛАЛАЛА АЗГАЛАЛАЛА АЗГАЛАЛАЛА	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ЕБЕЕРЕЕРЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА СССССС БАЕВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛЕКТЕЕРЕЕРЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВЕВЕВДВЕВВВ АЕ ГССГ С АЛЕВАЛАЛА ЕБЕ ВЗБЭДВЕВВВ АЕ ГССГ С АЛЕВАЛАЛА ВАЛАВАЛАЛЕ ССССС ВАЛАВЛАЛЕ АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАЛЕ ССССС ВАЛАВЛАЛЕ АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА ВЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВАВА АЛАЛАВВА АЛАЛАВАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА	АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА	а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а	037025 037027 037028 037027 037028 037030 037034 037038 038003 038006 038012 038014 038015 038016 038016 038016 038015 038027 <b>Station</b> 038031 039006 039007 039010 039011 039012 039016 039017 039018	елене ел елллал (сос еллагар еррат еррат еррат (осссссо с с лу еррат елуу (осссосо с с елуу елуу елуу елуу елуу елуу елуу	СВААЕ ЕВАЛЕРЕРЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА ГЕРАЛЕВАЛА ЕРЕЛВАЛВА БЕЕЕВАВВАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА СССССЕВВАВВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА СССССЕВВАВВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА Г Г АЛАЛАЛАЛА ССССССЕВВАВ 1960 еАЛЕРЕРЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛ	есее валалала валаса валаса валаса валаса валаса валалалала валаса валалалала валаса валаса валаса валалалала валаса валалалала валаса валалалалала валаса валалалалала валалалалала валалалалала	алераелава еле алалалала еле алалалала еле алалалал	алалалала алалалала алалалалал алалалал	Д Д Д Д Д Д Д Д Д Д Д Д Д Д Д Д Д Д Д
030005 031006 031006 031007 031008 031010 031013 031013 031013 031012 032012 032012 032015 033008 Station 033009 033012 033018 033018 033018 033019 033021 033023 033023 033022 0330225 0330228 033029 0330228 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 033029 03029 03029 03029 03029 03029 03029 03029 03029 03029 03029 03029 03029 03029 03029 03029 03029 03029 03029 03029 03029	ebccccccc eBCC eBCCCCC fc 1950 eABCC f f f	eAMAAABE e2ABAAB e2ABAAB FC FC FC EAAAABCCB E E EAAAABCCB E BAAAAABCCB CCCCCBBAB CCCCCBBAB CCCCCBBAB CCCCCBBAB CCCCCBBAB CCCCCBBAB CAAABBCB BACAAAAAA CAAABE CAABBCB CAABBCB CAAAACAA CAABBCB CAABACB CAAAACAA FAAAAA CAABBCB CAABBCB CCCCCBBAAA CAABBCB CAABBCB CAABBCB CAABBCB CAABBCB CAAAACAA CAABBCC CCCCCBAAA CAABBCB CAAAACAA CAABBCC CCCCCCABCAA CCCCCCCBCAA CAABCC CCCCCCCC	АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА СССССССС	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ЕБЕЕ ВАЛАЛАЛАЛА СССССЕВЕВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА СССССЕВЕВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВЕЕЕБЕЕЕЕЕЕ ВАЛБАЛАЛАЛА ВАЛБАЛАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛБАЛАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛБАЛАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛБАЛАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛБАЛАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛБАЛАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛБАЛАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛБАЛАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛБАЛАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛБАЛАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛБАЛАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛБАЛАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛБАЛАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛБАЛАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛБАЛАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛБАЛАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛБАЛАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛБАЛАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛБАЛАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛБАЛАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛБАЛАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛБАЛАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ СССГ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛААВАВА ВАЛАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАВАВА ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАЛАЕВ ВАЛАВАВАВАВАВАВАВАВАВАВАВАВ ВАЛАВАВАВАВАВАВАВАВАВАВАВАВАВАВАВАВАВАВ	АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНАНА ВЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ВЕЕЛОО ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ВЕЛОО ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕЕЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ЕЕЕЕЕЛОА ВЕЛОО ЕЕЕСЕЛОА ВЕЛОО ЕЕЕСЕЛОО ЕЕЕСЕЛОО ЕЕЕСЕЛОО ЕЕЕСЕЛОО ЕЕЕСЕЛОО ЕЕЕСЕЛОО ЕЕЕСЕЛОО ЕЕЕСЕЛОО ЕЕЕСЕЛОО ЕЕЕЕЕЕЛОО ЕЕЕЕЕЛОО ЕЕЕЕЕЛОО ЕЕЕЕЕЛОО ЕЕЕЕЕЛОО ЕЕЕЕЕЛОО ЕЕЕЕЕЛОО ЕЕЕЕЕЛОО ЕЕЕЕЕЛОО ЕЕЕЕЕ	A A A A A A A A A A A A A B B A A A B C C B C C B C C B C C A B B B B	037026 037027 037028 037027 037028 037030 037030 037038 038003 038007 038011 038012 038014 038015 038012 038015 038015 038027 038027 038027 038027 038027 039008 039007 039010 039011 039016 039011 039016 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039011 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 0390010 0390010 039000 030000 0300000 030000000000	eannan fccc eannan fccc eanna eanna eannan fcccccccc f eannan fcccccccc f eannan eannan eannan fcccccccc f eannan eannan eanna eanna fcc cannan focccccccc f eannan fcc cannan fcc cannan focccccccc f eannan fcc cannan fcc cannan focc f eannan fcc cannan fcc cannan fcc cannan fcc cannan fcc cannan fcc cannan fcc cannan fcc cannan fcc cannan fcc cannan fcc fcc cannan fcc fcc cannan fcc fcc fcc fcc fcc fcc fcc fcc fcc fc	СВААЕ ЕВАЛЕРЕНАЯ feenaeaaa feenaeaaa ceanaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaa	есее Алалаее Аг Алалаее Валаеле Валаеле Валаеле Валасае Валалала Алалалала Алалалала Алалалала Алалалала	Алебарларл Аларалалар еке Алалалала еле Алаларалар елалалалар елалалалар ебоде 1980 Валаралалар Аларалалар ебоде 1980 Валаралалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Алара Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Алараларар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар Аларалар	алаеледев алалалала алалалала алалалала алалалал	а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а
030005 031004 031006 031007 031008 031003 031013 031013 031016 031013 031016 031016 031016 032012 033008 <b>Station</b> 033008 <b>Station</b> 033009 033015 033016 033016 033016 033018 033012 033022 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023	ebccccccc eBCC fc 1950 eABCC f f f	eAMAAAAA e2ABAAAAAAA e2ABAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА ВВССССССС СССССССС ВАВАЛАЛА СЕВЕВЕЕР АВАЛАЛАЛА ЕБЕВЕВЕЕ СВВВВВСВ АЛАЛАВАЛАЛА ВАЛАЛАВА БАЛАЛАВАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛАЛА АВАЛАЛА АВАЛА АВА	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ЕБЕЕ ВАЗБАВАВАА ССССССОВЕВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛЕКЕЕКЕЕЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА ДЕЕЕЕКЕЕЕ ВАЗБАВАВАВА ЕЕЕ ВАЗБАВАВАВА АНАЛАЛАЛА СССССССССС ВАЛАВАЛАЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АВВАЛАЛЕВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАВА АЛА	АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА ВАЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНА АЛЛАНАНАНА АЛЛАНАНАНА АЛЛАНАНАНА ВЕЕ ЕЛАЕА АЛЛАНАНАНА ВЕЕ ЕЛАЕА АЛЛАНАНАНАНА ВЕЕ ЕЛАЕА АЛЛАНАНАНА ВЕЕ ЕЛАЕА АЛЛАНАНАНА ВЕЕ ЕЛАЕА АЛЛАНАНАНА ВЕЕ ЕЛАЕА АЛЛАНАНАНА ВЕЕ ЕЛАЕА АЛЛАНАНАНА ВЕЕ ЕЛАЕА АЛЛАНАНАНАНА ВЕЕ ЕЛАЕА АЛЛАНАНАНАНА ВЕЕ ЕЛАЕА АЛЛАНАНАНАНАНАНА ВЕЕ ЕЛАЕА АЛЛАНАНАНАНАНАНАНАНАНАНАНАНАНАНАНАНАНАН	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	037025 037026 037027 037028 037029 037030 037030 038003 038003 038003 038007 038012 038015 038016 038015 038016 038015 038016 038015 038016 038015 038016 038017 038016 039007 039008 039000 039011 039012 039011 039012 039011 039012 039011 039011 039012 039011 039012 039011 039012 039011 039012 039011 039012 039011 039012 039012 039011 039012 039011 039012 039011 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039012 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 00	елерууну елерууну елерууну ерурага ерурууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну елерууну сооосоосоосоосоосоосоосоосоосоосоосоосо	СВААЕ ЕВАЛЕВАЛА (ЕЕЛАЕВАЛА ЕЕЛАЕВАЛА БЕЕЕВАЕВАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА СССССЕВВЕВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА СССССЕВВЕВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА Е 1960 еЛАЕЕСЕЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА СССССССССС СССССССССС СССССССС	ееее калалара калалара калалара калалара калалара калара	алераралаа ере алалалалаа ере алаларала елаларала елаларала ероре 1980 Валаралала ссссссссс ссс алалалала алерара алалалала алерара валаралала сссссссссс ссс алалалала алерара алалалала алерара алалалала алерара сссссссссс ссс алалалала алерара алалалала алерара алалалала алерара алалалала алерара алалалала алерара алалалала алерара алалалала алерара алалалала алерара алалалала алерара алалалала алерара алалалала алерара алалалала алерара алалалала алерара алалалала алерара алалалала алерара алалалала алерара алалалала алерара алалалала алерара алалалала алерара алалалала алерара алалалала алерара алалалала алерара алалалала алерара алерара алерара алалалала алерара алалалала алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алера алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алерара алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера алера ал	алаелерев алалалала алалалала алалалала алалалал	А А А А А А А А А А А А А А А А А А А
030005 031004 031006 031007 031008 031010 031013 031013 031016 031013 031016 031012 032012 032012 033008 033008 033008 033008 033008 033018 033018 033018 033018 033018 033018 033021 033022 033022 033022 033022 033022 033023 033022 033023 033023 033024 033032	ebccccccc eBCCccc fc 1950 eABCC f f f f f c	еллалала едлалаве ездела гсс гсс гал ее гсс гсс гал ее гсс гсс гсс гсс гсс гсс гсс гсс гсс	АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАЛА СССССССС	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ЕБЕЕ ВАВДДАВААА ССССССАВСЕВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛЕКЕЕБЕЕЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВЕВЕДДАВАЛА ЕБЕ ВАВДДАВАЛАЛА ВАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА АЛАЛАЛАЛА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА ВАЛАЛАЛАВА	АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	037025 037027 037028 037027 037028 037030 037034 037038 038003 038006 038012 038014 038015 038016 038015 038016 038015 038016 038015 038027 038027 039008 039006 039007 039014 039011 039012 039014 039012 039014 039015 039014 039012 039014 039012 039014 039012 039014 039012 039014 039012 039014 039015 039014 039015 039014 039015 039014 039015 039014 039015 039014 039015 039014 039015 039014 039015 039014 039015 039014 039015 039014 039015 039014 039015 039014 039015 039014 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039015 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 039020 03	езаерууу езаярууу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езаяруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу езааруу о о о о о о о о о о о о о о о о о о	СВААЕ ЕВАЛЕРАЛА f EEAABAAA f EEAABAAA EEEBAABAA AAAAAAAAA EEEBAABAA AAAAAAAAA CCCCCBBABB AAAAAAAAA f AAAAAAAAA CCCCCBBABB AAAAAAAAA CAAAAAAAAAA	есее Алалаее Ае Алалаее Валаеле в Резала Аввае Лалалала Алалалала Алалалала Алалалала Алалалала	Алераелара еге лалалалала еге лалалалал еле лалалала еле лалалалал ероде 1980 Валалалала сссссссссс сср лалалалала лалалалала лалалалала але егоде 1980 Валалалала але ссссссссссс сср лалалалала лалалалала лалалалала лалалалала але сссссссссс	алалалала алалалалалалалалалалалалалала	а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а а
030005 031004 031006 031007 031008 031001 031013 031013 031013 031013 031015 032012 032012 032012 033008 Station 033009 033003 Station 033009 033014 033016 033018 033019 033021 033021 033022 033022 033022 033022 033022 033022 033022 033022 033022 033022 033023 033022 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033023 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 033025 03305 03305 03305 03305 03305 03305 03305 03305 03305 03305 03305 03305 03305 03305 03305 03305 03305 03305 03305 03305 03305 03305 03305 03305 03305 03305 03305 03305 03305 03305 03305 030	ebccccccc eBCCCCC fc 1950 eABCC f f f f fcc	eAMAAAAA e2ABAAAA e2ABAAAA FC FC FC EAAAABBCEB BAAAAABBCEB BAAAAABBCEB BAAAAABAA eAAABBCEB BAAAAABAA eAAAABA eAAAABA eAAAABA eAAAABA eAAAABA eAAAABA eAAAABA eAAAABA eAAAABA eAAAABA eAAAABA eAAAABA eAAAABA eAAAABA eAAAABA eAAAABA eAAAABA eAAAABA eAAAABA eAAAABA eAAAABA eAAAABA eAAAABA eAAAABA eAAAABA eAAAABA eAAAABA eAAAABA eAAAABA eAAAABA eAAABA eAAAABA eAAABA eAAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAABA eAAABA eAABA eAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAABA eAAABA eAABA eAAABA eAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA AABA eAAABA eAAABA eAAABA A AAABA AAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA AAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA EAAABA	АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА АЛАЛАЛАА СССССССС	АЛАЛАЛАЛА ЕБЕСВСВБАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА ССССС ВЕВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА ССССС ВЕВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА ОБЕСЕБСВЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА ОБЕСЕССВСВАВ ВАЛБАЛАЛЕ ОСССС ВАВ ВАЛБАЛАЛЕ ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА СССС ВАЛБАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАНАЛА ОДАЛАЛА ОДАЛАЛА ОДАЛА ОДАЛАЛАЛА ОДАЛАЛА ОДАЛАЛА ОДАЛАЛА ОДАЛАЛА ОДАЛАЛА ОДАЛАЛА ОДАЛАЛА ОДАЛАЛА ОДАЛАЛАЛА ОДАЛАЛАЛА ОДАЛА ОДАЛАЛАЛА ОДАЛАЛА ОДАЛАЛА ОДАЛАЛА ОДАЛАЛАЛА ОДАЛАЛАЛА ОДАЛАЛАЛА ОДАЛАЛАЛА ОДАЛА	АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	037026 037027 037028 037027 037029 037030 037030 037038 038003 038003 038007 038011 038012 038016 038025 038027 039006 039007 039008 039009 039010 039011 039012 039011 039012 039011 039013 039010 039011 039013 039010 039011 039013 039010 039011 039013 039010 039011 039013 039010 039011 039013 039010 039011 039013 039010 039011 039013 039010 039011 039013 039010 039011 039013 039010 039011 039013 039010 039011 039013 039010 039011 039013 039010 039011 039013 039010 039011 039013 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039010 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 039000 0390000 0390000 0390000 0390000 0390000 0390000 0390000 0390000 0390000 0390000 0390000 0390000 0390000 03900000000	езеерууу езеерууу езеерууу езеерууу езеерууу езеерууу езеерууу езеерууу езеерууу езеерууу езеерууу езеерууу езеерууу	СВААЕ ЕВАЛЕРАЛА feenaeaaa feenaeaaa ceanaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaa	есее Алалаее Аг Алалаее Валаеле Валаеле Валаеле Валаеле Валалала Алалалала Алалалала Алалалала Алалалала	Алебаелара еге лалалалар еге лалалалар елалалалар елалалалар елалалалар еборо 1980 Валалалала ссссоссссс ссс лалалалала алеселаера алалалала алеселе ссс ссс лалалалала алеселе алалалалар алеселе ссс ссс лалалалала алеселе алалалалар алеселе ссс ссс лалалалала алеселе алалалалар алеселе ссс ссс лалалалала алеселе алалалалала алеселе алалалалала алеселе ссс ссс лалалалала алеселе алалалалала алеселе алалалалала алеселе алалалалала алеселе алалалала алеселе алалалала алеселе алалалала алеселе алалалалала алеселе алалалала алеселе алалалала алеселе алалалала алалалала алеселе алалалала алеселе алалалала алалалала алалалала алалалал	алалалала алалалала алалалала алалалала	А А А А А ХАААА А АЛДАЛАААА Е А

. .

## Flow records commencing between 1950 and 1969 (contd.)

Station 039027	1950		1960 е <b>л</b>	1970 <b>алаалаала</b>	1980 ******	1990 Алалалала	2k A	Station 043015	1950	1960	1970 FFFFFF	1980	1990	2k
039028			EA	********	*******	*****	<u>х</u>	043017			ЕЛЛЛАЛАЛА	AAABABBBBEA	*****	A
039031	•		eaaaaaaaa	*****	AAAE		^	044001		eXXXXX	CCCCCCCCCC	AABAAAAFAA	CCFCCCCCCC	
039032			eXAX	*****	AAAE			044003		EAAA	алалаввала	E	EA A	Â
039035			E	******	******	AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	λ λ	044006	e a a a	E	AAAAABBAAA	AAAABBBBCB	*****	A
039036			eA	******	AAAAAEEAAA	AAADAAAEAA	λ	045002	0.000	fealalaab	алалалала	AAAAABAAAA	*****	Â
039038			еА еЕлллллл	******	AAEEBEEDAA	AAAAE AAAAAE		045003		CYYYYYYY	*****	*******	*****	λ
039051			EAA	*****	AAEAAAAAE		~	045005		FDAAAAAA	*****	********	*****	
0390521		eλλ	EDAAAAAAAA	*****	*****	*****	X	045006		eaAE				
039054			errandar errandar	*******	*********	AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	E	045009		FCCC	CCCCCCCCCC	CARAAAACCA	*****	λ
039081			e <b>aaaaaa</b>	алалалалее	*****	AABAAAAAA	A	045012		FCFCCC	000000000000000000000000000000000000000	CCCCCCAABB	САЛАЛДАСАА	λ
039100					A EEDDEA	BDEDAER R	*	046002	exxx	******	*****	алалалааса	*****	
039107					EA	DAAAAAAEEE	E	046005	Ç <b>A</b>	Ελλλλ	******	AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	******	x
039108						EAREBADAAB	E	047001	елла	AAAAAABBBB	*****	******	*****	x
						CADRARAAAA	£	047002	e#44	<b>8</b> E				
039110	1950		1960	1970	1980	1990 Ebbarrate	2k	Station 047002	1950	1960	1970	1980	1990	2k
039111						EAAADDAABE	B	047004	ebt	еллеава	XXXXXXXXXXX	*	*****	A
039114						FBAAAAAB	с	047005		еллллл	DEE EA	AF FCCCC	*****	A
039116						EDAAAAADAE	x	047006		exxexee exaese	EE EAAAE	AF FF	CAAAAAAAAA	A
039118						елалалал	λ	047008		E	*****	****	****	Â
039120						FAAAAAADD	A R	047009		E	<b>XXXXXXXXXX</b> B	******	*****	À
039122						EDABAAAAAD	8	047019				Â	AAAABAAAD	D
039124						EBADA		048001	eXX	AAAAEAAEEE	****	****	*****	X
039126						EXANADA	Â	048002		E	AAABABABACCC	AAAAAAAAAAA	*****	λ
039127						EXEADDA	<b>X</b>	048005		EA	****	*****	*****	A
039130						ERARARA	J	048006		EA	*******	AABAABAACF		,
039131						еллалал	λ	048010		F	ССВАААААА	AAAAAAAAAA		Â
039134						EAAAAAE	λ λ	048011		FCDAAABBA	*******	*****	*****	A
039147					F	00000000000	ĉ	049002	EE	EA	AAABAAAAAAA	*****	*********	A
040001	EA	INNNN	AAAAABAE					049003		eEB	CEBBERARDA	алалалава	<b>araaraaa</b> d	λ
Station	1950		1960	1970	1980	1990	2k	Station	1950	1960	1970	1980	1990	2k
040002		еллл еллл	AAAAAABEEFF	FFCFCCCCCC	CBBABACCCC	ССААССВВВВ	в	049004	<b>a</b> 1	Е	*****	AAAABAAAA	******	X
040004		_	fccccffc	CCCCCFCCCF	CCCCCFCCCC	CFEDCEBAAA	в	050002	e.s	f ellele	Валалалала	****	*****	Ď
040005		eA	AAAAAAAAABB AAAAAAAABBEB	AABEAEAAAS	AAAAADDDAD		B	050006		DAAAA	*****	AAAAABAAAA	*****	À
040007		÷	<b>eAAAAAEEEB</b>	BABAAABBAE	DEAAAAAAADA	AAADDABBEB	B	050009				EA EA	******	A A
040008			eEAAAABA	AAAABEDAEE	AADAAADDDA	AAAAAAAADA	_	050010				EA	****	λ
040010			елбебалел Еллаллел	AAEAEBEDBB	DADAAADDDD	AAAAEEBCCB	B	050012		FC	CCCCCCCCCC	CF FCCCA	AAAAADBAAA	A
040011			EAABAA	алалававав	BADDAAAAAA	*****	À	051003		FEBB	BBBBAABFEE	E EEAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAAA	Â
040012			e <b>aaaaba</b> E	AAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAA	AADAAAAAAA DAAAAAAAAA	λ >	052001	eaaa	244daaaaa	-			
040015			Е	DDAAAAAAAE	DDEADDEAAA	AAAAAAAAAA	D	052003	CARD	CENTRAL	BBBAAAAAAA	AEAAAAAAA	*****	A
040016			E	*********	*******	DAAAAAABAA	A.	052004		exxxxxx	*****	******	алалалала	λ
040027			Ľ	FFFF	EDDADAADDA	BABBE	^	052005		еллалал	********	********	*********	A A
040029					EDDDDE	ADADAABCBA	P	052007		еллл	алаалаала	*****	****	Â
041001	еллая	АВАВА	****	AAAAAAADA	EDEEEDAEFB	AAABABAAAAA AAADABBAAA	A C	052008		OBBBBBAAE				
0410021	<b>eBAA</b>	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	AAAAABAAAD	алаваалаа	ADDDDDDAAA	AADAADAAAA	Ä	052010		exxXX	****	AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAA	Â
Station	1950		1960	1970	1980	1990	2k	Station	1950	1960	1970	1980	1990	24
041003		e	****	*****	DDDDDDDDDA	BBE EBAAAA	λ	052011		exxxx	ААВАААААА	AAAAAABAAA	*****	A
041005		EAN	елллалала	XXXXXXXXXX	ADDAAAAAA	CFFFFFFE AAEEEEDAAA	λ.	052014		EAA	BAAAEEEEE	EEXANBAAA	*******	x
041006		_	eBAAAA	****	*****	аллалалае	B	053001	елллал	****	****	Е		
041009		F	eEAEADDAA	BBEDDDDDDA	DDDADADDAD		х х	053002	`e <b>λλλλλ</b>	******	*****	*******	алалалыла	D
041011			EAAA	ABAAAAAAA	AAADAAAAA	AAAAAAADAA	X	053005		EAAAAAAAA	*****	AAAAAAAAAAA		A
041012			EAA			AAADEAAAAA		053006		евалалала	*****	*****	*******	D
041015			EAA	EAADDDADDD	DDAAAAAAAA			053007		еллалала ЛЛЛЛЛЛ	*********	********	AAADAAAAAA AAAAAAAAAA	A A
041017			e	AREARAAADA		****	E	053009		****	******	*****	******	D
041020			e	ANBANANAA	AAADAAAAAA	AAAADAAEAA	Â	053018		e R	******		******	X X
041021			9	EBABAABBED	AABBBABAAB	BAAABBBEAA	_	053020	-	EA	******	****	*****	A
041031			FC	CCCBAAADDA	AAAAAADDAD	DABFEE AE	в	054004	f CBAAAAA		BEEEBAAAAE	******		λ
041033				EXAMA	AAAAAAE D	AAAAABE EE		054006	<b>FBAAAA</b>	*****	BCBAAABBAB	*****	AAAAAAA	D
041034			EBBB	BBBCBBBBBB	BBEEF BBBEBBBBBC	BBBEFERCCBB	c	054007	eAA	*****	BCEEBBBBAAA		алалалелал	x
042001	fCCC	CCCCC	ccccccccc	CCCCCBEAAA	AEDAAAAAA	AEAAAAAAAA	Ă.	054010	e	*****	BCDAAAAADD	AADE	******	*
Station .	1950		.1960	1970	1980	1990	2k	Station -	1950	1960	1970	1980	1000	. 76
042003		-	fcccccccc	CCCCCCBAAA	DAAAAAAAA	AAABAAEBAC	λ.	054011	1000	елллалав	CCRABBARAB	AAAAE	EAAAAAA	- 2K A
042004		fCCCC	FCCCCCCCCC	CCCCCCCCCCCC	FCCCCCCEDAR	CCCCCCCCCC	в	054012	_	еллалалав	ABAAABBAAA	******	*****	x
042006		ÍC	2020000000	CCCCCBAAAA		AAAADAAAAB	8	054014	•	f BAAAAAB	BAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	*****	******	x
042010 042014		fC	000000000000000000000000000000000000000	00000000000	000000000000000000000000000000000000000	CCCCCCAAA	*	054015		E	EEEEEEAAAA	AAAA DAAA	AAAAAEAAAA	x
042017				2.444	EAD	AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	*	054016		еллалала еллалала	наалаалаалаа Веллаалаа	****	*********	A A
042024			-11117		F	FCADCCCAAD	D	054018		CYYYYYY	ANANANAEA	AAAAE DAAA		Ä
043003			EAAAAE fccccc	000000000000000000000000000000000000000	CCCCCCCCFC	CFCCCCCCCC		054019 054020			********	*******	******	A .
043004			елела	AAAAAEAAAA	BEEEEBEDEB	*******	A	054022	eAEABE	EB	AEAAADAAAA	*******		ŝ
043006			2222	*********	ABAAAAABRRA AAAAAABRRA	*******	A A	054023		eA	BBAE BAAA	-	AAAADEAABA	A
043007				******	AAAAAAABAA	*****	X X	054025		e E	**************************************	AADAAAAAAA	*******	A
042000												-		
043008 043009			<b>۸۸۸</b> هم	**********	ABBBAABBBAA AAAARABARA	ABAAAAAAAB	A A	054026		F	EAAEAAAAA	AAEA		
043008 043009 043010			ллл ел	алвалалаа Алалалала Елалалела	АВВВААВВВА Алалеалава Ал	авалалалав Алалалала Гсвалалал	A A A	054026 054027 054028		F	ЕЛЛЕЛАЛАД Алалалада FBBалалалад	алел Лаладалала Лалалалала	******	А А
043008 043009 043010 043012 043013			λλλ eλ	АЛВАЛАЛАЛА Алалалала Елалаларал Елаларал Елаларал	ABBBAABBBA AAAABAAABA AA AAABABAAABB AFFF	АВАЛАЛАЛАВ Алалалал Гсвалалал Алалалал	λ λ λ	054026 054027 054028 054043	fecce	F E CCCCFCCCCC	ЕЛЛЕЛАЛАЛ Алалалала FBBлалалал F	алеа алаадаалаа алаалаалаа	****	А А
043008 043009 043010 043012 043013 043014			ллл ел	алалалада Алалалада Елалалада Елалалда Еларуула Еларуула	АВВВААВВВА Алаавааава Ал Алававааев Леее Лававалеал Алвавалеал	АВАЛАЛАЛАВ АЛАЛАЛАЛА ГСВАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА	х х х	054026 054027 054028 054043 054046 054097	fecce	F E CCCCFCCCCC	БАЛЕЛАЛА Алалалала FBBAAAAAAA F FAAAA	алеа алаадалала алаалалала алаалалала алааеелале елада	алаалалала алаалалала елаалалала албабабала	А А А
# Flow records commencing between 1950 and 1969 (contd.)

	4040	1000	1070	1020	1990	24	Station	1950	1960	1970	1980	1990	24
Suluon	1930	1900	1310	1900			072016		FAT	FRARALS	*******	AAAAAAEEE	A
055008	e AAAAEE aA	AAAEAAAEED	<b>AXXBEBAXX</b>	YYYYYYYYY	CTTTTTTTTT	*	0/2010		LAS			********	
055010	e <b>alla</b>	AAAFAAAAA	XXXXXXXEXX	BFF			073002		EAAAADA	EXECALARIA	AAAAAAAAAAA	ARAAAAAA	<u>.</u>
065014			*********	087			073005		EB	EELELLLLL	*******	********	A
055011	e	****	AAAAAAAAAA				072009			AND ASDARS.	*******	TTTTTTTTT	A
055012		exxx	YTTYYYYYY	****	<b>WYYYYYYY</b>	*	073000					3333309337	
055013		ελλλ	XXXXXXXXXX	<b>MANAAAAB</b>	ATTY TO A	λ	074001		EC:	CUBCCUBAAA	*****	AAAAADDAAE	<u>.</u>
055014		4114	*******	AAAAAAAB	********	A	074002		eBB	TYTTERY IY	*******	EXTERNAL	A
055015			*********				074006		fccfcc	COFERBRARA	****	*****	λ
000010		CAN	AAAAAAAAA			•	074008			3350	ARRARARA D	AACAAAAAE	λ
055016		eA	EXEXXXXXX	<b>TYTYTYTY AND</b>	YYYYYY DYYYY	*	074000						
055017		el	BAAEEAAAAA	AEF			075002		f CBCBBBBBBB	*****	HAAAAAAAAAAA	*****	<u>^</u>
055019				*********	********	2	075003		eA	BAABAACAAA	******	*******	x
000010		Ç.A.				-	075004		<b>FRA</b>	RRARABRAAA	******	******	λ
055021		E	*****	ANE FARRES	*****	•	013004						
055022		e	<b>YYYYEYYYY</b> E	FF						4070	1000	1000	21
055025			********	ABBABBBBBB	BRARAARAAA	λ.	Station	1950	1960	1970	1300	1330	**
033023							075006		eA	*****	λ	ELAE	
056001	EAA	******	AAABAABAAA	*****	*******	<u>^</u>	075007		e	ANNANANE	DAAA	AAEEADAADE	x
056002	eAA	<b>XXXXXXXXX</b> E	YYYYYE SYY	алалалвала	XXXXXXDEXX	λ	070001			P F FB	*********	ABBABBBBB	
056003			AAAAARAAAA	AACCF			076001	EABAS	CARDRAAAAA	5 5 10			•••
000000				770			076002	e	******	<b>AAAAABAAAA</b>	*****	AAAAAAAE	
000004		EAAAA	******	E.F			076003		<b>eXXXXXXEX</b>	AAAAAADAAD	EXXXXXXXXX	*****	D
056005		ENNA	******	алалалвала	XXXXXXXXE		076004			303030303033	*********	AAAAAAAAA	D
056006		exxxXXX	*****	AACCF			070004		CANADAN				
055007		232	F111111111	*********	**********		076005		<b>eaaees</b>	AAAABEDAAA	*****	******	~
030007			Contraction of the second s				076007		EAA	халалвалал	DYYYYYYYYY	****	X
<b>.</b>			4070	4000	1000	<b>7</b> 1	076008		<b>68</b> 4	FARAAEAAAA	******	<b>XXXXXXXXXX</b> E	A
Station	1950	1960	1970	1300	1330	TK .	070000				********	********	
057003		e <b>XXXX</b>	AAA				076009		es	BAAAAAAAAA	******		-
057004			*********	*******	AAAAAABAA	λ.	076010			EARAADDAAA	*****	<b>XXXXXXXXXXX</b>	•
057004	CAR				********		076011		222	AAEEEBAAAA	AEEADDAAAA	DADAAAAAAA	X
058001		errarr	******	AAABABEAAA	~~~~	2	077004		OBERAR		F333333333	******	x
058002		FCCF	AAEEB	EAADAAAAB	*****	*	0//001		CURLERE	EELDMANN			
058003		e <b>bb</b> E					077002		FCCBAAAA	ABBABAAAAA	*****	******	•
060004					*********	*	078001	eA	AE				
009001	erA	AAADAAAAA	ACADEAAAAA				072002		<b>751</b>	**********	********	*******	x
059002		FFB	AABBBBAAAA	лалалалалав	SAAAAAAAAA	~	070003					*********	
060002		<b>eaaaaaab</b> C	BAAAAAABB	BAADAAABAA	алалалала	λ.	076004		EBEEAAA	AADAAAAAA	*******	~~~~~~	~
060002			ARRALIALA	AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	AFBABAAAA	λ	079001		EBBEF	FFOCCFCCCC	CF		
000003		LAAAA		1100	C10010117	 D	079002		*********	********	******	******	λ
060004		E	REVERSES	AAUC	LAUBABAAAA	2	075002	C.M.A		********	*******	********	
060005		Fe	BAAAAAAAAA	******	<b>AAAAAEAAAA</b>	D	079003	e	AAAAAAAAA	*******	~~~~~	~~~~~	~
060006		5°P	BBBABAAAAA	********	BAAAAAAAAA	A					4000	1000	<b>~</b> .
000000						•	Station	1950	1960	1970	1980	1990	∠ĸ
060007		FA	*****	AAAAAAAAAA	ERRADELMAN	~	079004		FCBAAAA	λελεελαλλ	AAAAAAAAAA	********	A
060010	eB	*****	ANANANAEC	BYYYYYYY	******	*	070005		PALANAA		*********	*******	A
061001		<b>e A E A E</b>	BAABCCCCCC	2222222222	BBBBBBBAAAAA	λ.	079005		CANANA				
001001		- IDIIII			*********		079006		EAA	****	<b>XXXXXXXXXX</b>	*******	A
061002		EVENYAYOON	AABADAAAAA			-	079007					AAAEAAAA	
061003		E	YEYYYYYYY	AAAAAAEEA	EAAAAAAAA	~	000001		*******	*********	*******	*******	A
062001	E	AAAAAAAAAA	валалалала	ABAAAAAAAA	<b>XXXXXXXXXX</b>	λ'	000001						
062001	-	~******	*********	BRARABAR	RAAAAAAAAA		081001		евве				-
003001		CARAAAA	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,				081002		ЕУУУУУ	<b>AAAAAAAA</b> AA	aaaaaaaaaaa	*****	
063002		eABAA	AAAAAAABB	AAAAD	CELAD	Ъ	081003		***	AAAAAAAAAAA	******	******	A
						**	001000			*********	*********		c
Station	1950	1960	1970	1980	1990	2K	082001		EAAAAAA	*******	AMARA MARAD		-
064001		FAAAAEAA	AE EEAAAA	алалалала	алалалала	λ.	083002		eBAAAaa	<b>WYYYYYY</b>			
004007		IDDI	DDBBBBBBBBBB		BAAAAAADAR	2	083003			EXAAAAAAAA	<b>AAAAAAAA</b> AA	алалалалал	A
004002		ADDA	BDAAAAAAAA				092012				EBOBEAAA	BABAAAAAA	x
064003		EED	EE E				003013					P	
064006		fcccccccc	CEAAAAAAAA	алалалала	XXXXXXXXXXX	А	084002	eA EAEEE	AAEEAEEEFC	AAEEEEE		E	
005004		AADAADAD		*********	BAAAAAAAAA	λ	084003	eBDA	алалалала	алаалалал	алалалала	XXXXXXXXXX	A
000001		GUUDUNERD	ALL AND AND A				094004	035	********	ABRAABBEER	AAAAAAAAAAD	DAAAABAAAA	А
065002		EEE	EEEEE EE				004004	CAA				**********	
066001	e	AAAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAACCCC	CCBAAAAAAA	алалалаваа	A	084005	eA	AAAABAAAA	AAAAAAAAAA	~~~~		
066002		ABBABABAC	BAAAE				084006		Елалала	AAAAAAAEAA	AAAE		
000002			000000		PPPPPP		084007		eEAAA	AAAAAABBA	алаалавлав	ADBDEDAAAA	A
066003		ÇAE EA	EREFER	AND ANAX	FFFFCF	_	004000			**********	*********	AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	A
066011		<b>eEEEEA</b>	<u>алвааааааа</u>	aaaaaaaaaaa	BAAAAAAAAA	A	064006		enna	*****			
067001	e <b>11</b>	******	ABAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAA	XXXXXXXXXX	A	084009		EBAA	AAAAAAAAAA	AAAE EAA	AAAAAAAAAAA	A
007005					FAAAAAFAA								
067005	EAAA	AAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAA			2	Station	1950	1960	1970	1980	1990	2k
067006		ехалалала	Baaaaaaaaa	<b>AAAAAAAA</b> AA	алалалала	*	094042		FRANKS	*********	AAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAA	A
067007		FARARE					004012		ERANA			10110111133	
007000		UDAAA	*********	*********	*********	А	084013		eBBAAAA	XXXXXXXXXXX	AAAAAAAAAA	ADAADAAAAA	~
007000		LUNNA		,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,			084014		еллала	алаалалала	<b>aaaaaaaaa</b>	XXXXXXXXAAAA	
067009		EE BB	BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB	BAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAA	*	094015		73533	BBBBBBBBBBB	AAAAAAAAAA	ADAAAAAAAA	
067010		EAAA	AAAAAADAAA	A EE EBB	BAAAAAAAAA	λ	004013				*********	*********	
067011		000	COFFCOCCFF	FF			084016		EEUA	AAAAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAA		
007011				••			084017		EXA	алалалалал	AAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAA	•
067013		EDE	AAAAAAA				084018		A	AAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAA	AABBABAAAA	
067017		В	алалалала	aaaaaaaaa	ABBCBBAAAD	*	004040		APILIPI	*********	*********	AAAAAFAAAA	с
							064019		ADAAADA	~~~~~~	10000000000		
Station	1950	1960	1970	1980	1990	2k	084020		eΞ	ADAAADAEAE	AAAAAAAAAA	ABAAAAUAAA	
007040			*********	**********	AAAAAAAAAA	*	084021		E	AAEFF			
067018		E	лааалалала				08/022		 	REFATEATA	ARAAAABAAD	ADAAADAAAA	A
067020				CCCCCC	CCCCCCCF		004022		errr			FOODPORTS	
068004		AAAAADADAAA	алалавалаа	AAAAABAAAAD	<b>AAAAAAAA</b> E	D	084027		EA	EAAEBEEDE	EEEAA	ADDUBURARA	•
000004			BARDAULARS		AAAAAAAAAAAA	A	084031				EAAD	AAAE	
000000	BARAAAA	AAAAAAAAA					084032				AE	EDEDAAE	
068006	eaaaaaa	алалалаееа	AAAAAEE	EEAA			004032					FARMANANA	
068007		<b>ebaaaaa</b> a	AAAAAEAAED	AAADAAAAAA		A	084033					E-CONTRACTOR OF	•
069010					EAAAE	E	084034					EAAAAAAA	. А
000019						- n	084035					EAAAEAAAA	A
069005	елелля	алалаллеал	AAAEAREEEA	CARE	E	2	004000					EDAADACA	
069006	еллал	алалалала	DAAEAEAAAA	алалалала	AAAAAAAAE	A	084036				_		
060017		F	DE AAAD	*******	AAAAAAAAAAA	D	084037				Е	ARAADDAABA	
000017		-		ANDE	TABABAA	E	085001		EAAAAAA	*****	алалалала	AAAADDAAAA	. А
069019		E	*******	mau/B		ž							
069022					DAAA		Station	1950	1960	1970	1980	1990	21
069027		E	EEDE AADA	алалалала		λ	COROCO	1300				*********	
060020			AT.				U85002		EAAAAA	лававала	MARAALAAAA		•
009033	Garvee	¢					085003			EAAAAEAAEE	<b>AAAAAAAA</b> D	aaaaaaaaaa	A A
069040			EADD	DADAAAAAAA	AADAAAAAA	- <u>-</u>	086001		72	AAAAAABBBBB	AAAAABAEAD	ADEADDDAAA	c
069041			EADAAA	алалалала	AAAADAAADA	A	000001			003110-11-		DAADABAAR	_
070004	OR/PDDAPA	ABARCRAAPD	FBAE				086002		EE	BBAAABBAAA	AAAAAAAA	UNNERNAL	-
070001	COLOODADA				*******	à	089002				EAAAAABAB	EBBBADDBAA	A
071001		LCCCBAAAAA	BUBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB	ALAAAAAAA	AAAAAAABU	~	089006				EAABEEAAAB	AAAADDAAAD	A
071003	eaa	*****	AAAaE				004000				FARABBARSS	AAAAAAAAA	
071004		GRAAAAA	AE AFAAAA	AAAAAAAAAA		D	091002						
07.1004							094001			елаллалла	алаалала <b>ла</b>	ARRARA	
	4050	1060	1970	1986	1990	2k	095002				DAAAA	<b>AAAAAAAA</b>	λ
Station	1930	1900	1214	1200			007000			*******	AAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAA	A I
071005		CARRENARA	AABBE				09/002						
071006		, FG	CFCCARAAAA	алалалала	AAAAAAAAAAA	. λ	101001		FCFFFcfFF	FUCUPUC			
074044			CCREDIALSA	*********	*********	D	101002		EEeEF	EEEBBEEEEE	EBEABAAAAA	AAABAAEE	
071011		FFFG				-	102001				F.B.	алалальна	× ×
072001	c	CCCCCCBCC	СААААВ				102001				TRIPULL	ABBRADAD	
072002		<b>eaaaaa</b> a	AAABCCAAAA	*******			201010	l i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i			LBABBAAA	ADDARGADAA	
072004	÷	CCCCCCCPB	CCCCCCC >	*******	*******	. <b>X</b>	203010	I		EABAABBBBA	BAABABBAAB	BEBAABBBAA	В
072004	C					- P	203040	ł			EBABBBBBBB	ABBBABBBB	в
072005		F	CCCCCEBAAE	EXAMAAAAAAA			200040			FOCCOCRE	FARRADAA		
072008		FFE	EABCCCARAA	*****	. АЛЛЛЛАЛААЕ	A	205004			FUCUUEB	CANDANDARA		
072011		FC	F DAAA	EDAAAAAAAA		. A	205008	ļ.		FCCCBA	BABBBBBBBBB	ALBBABBER	
11/2/11													

- - - -

## Flow records commencing after 1969

Station 001001 002001	1970 Алала	1980 Халалалаа	1990 еллла Аллаллала	2k A A	Station 027054 027055	1970 FFFAAE fCCEAE	1980 Халалалал Алдалалал	1990 Халалалал Халалалала	2k A	Statio 03601 03701	п 1970 5 елалалал 3 балалалал	1980 Алаваласаа Алаваласаа	1990 AAAEEEABBE	2k B	
002002			eaaaaa	A	027056	<i>f</i> FCEAE	*****	алалалала		03702	валалала	AAE A	AAAAAAAA	D	
003003	eaa	λλλλλλλλλ		λ.	027057	fcceae	*********	AAAAADAAAA BAAABABABAB	D	03702	EAAAAAAAA	AAABBBAEAA	AABAAAAEBB	В.	
003004	Ë	******	******	A	027059	EAE	EAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAA	Â	03703	еная В еллла	AAABAAAE AABAAEEBBB	AABBB	В	
004003	aaaaa	*****	алалалала	X.	027061	eA	алалалала	алалалала	. ж	03703	FEEEBEE	EEEEEEEE	EBAEAEABB	E	
004005		E	*****	A	027062	e	DEAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAE	c	03800	2	EAAAAAAAAA	*****	A	
004007		. E	EEAADAAAAA	A	027064	E	AAAAADAAAA	λλαλΟλλλα	λ	03801	е Гевалалала	*******	*****	A	
004008			EADD	A	027065	E	ADAAAAAAA	*****	A	03801	earaaaaaa	AAAAAAAAAA	*****	Ä	
004009	E	********	EADDE	2	027066		DAAAAAAAA	******		03801	eBAE E				
006009	-		εελλλλ	à	027069		FADAAAAAAA	*********	. A 	03802	EAAAAAAAA	AREEAAAAAA	AAAAEAAAAA	A.	
007004	A	алалалала	алалалалаа	A	027070		EDADAAAAA	алалалала	A	03802		λεθλαλαλα	********	A A	
007005	FFF	F AAAAAAA	******	A	027072		EDAAAAAAAA	алаалаала	A	03802	EAAAAAA	*****	алалалала	Ä	
008011	FF	FEXAAAAAAA	*****	Ā	027073		ENANANAEA	******	A	03802	EAAAAA	*****	*****	A	
009004		ЕАЛАСААААА	алаалаала	A	027075		EAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAA	Â	03802	e A	AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	A 1	
010003		EAAAAAA	алалалала	A	, 027076		елалала	AAACBBBBAC	A	03803	) e	*****	AAAAAAAAAAA	Â	
Station	1970	1980	1990	2k	Station	1970	1980	1990	2k	Statio	1976	1000	1000	46	
011004		, A	алалалала	A	027077		EAAAAAA	Алалалала	A	03803	2	1900	EADDAE	28	
012002	EAAAAAAA	******	*****	A	027079		FC	ccccccccc	C	03903	EAAAAAAAAA	алалалала	*****	λ	
012005	EDAA	AAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAA	Â	027081		FAAAA	ARAAAAAAA	X	03903-	елалалала	*****	алалалала	A	
012006	EA	алалалала	*****	x	027082		AAA	AAAAAAAAA	D	03903	)	*********	RAAAAAAAAA FDA	<u>,</u>	
012007		EXAXAAAC	*****	A	027083		FCC	CCCCCF CCC	С	03904	EARAAAA	алалалала	*****	Ā	
013001	Ē		*******	A	028028	EAAE E	AE			039043	елаллала	*****	AAAAADAAAA	Е	
013002	-	CCCAAAAA	алалалала	A	028047	EAABAAAAAA	AAEEE DAAA	λλλλλλλλλ	A	03904	eAAAAAAA eAFFFFA	F FORDAD	AAAABAAAAD DADDADAAAAD	D	
013003	c	CCC			028048	елалалала	алааааааа	*****	A	039049	EEE E	DAABEAAAAA	хахахахаха	Â	
013004		ECCLARA	*********	A	028049	EARAAAAAAAA	AAAAE DAAA	*****	X	03905	Е	ЕЕЕААААААА	халае		
013007	CCCC	CCCAAAAAAA	алалалал	Â.	028052	eadaaaaaaa	******	AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	A	039050	EAE	AEAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAA	A .	
013008		алаалаа	аллалалал	A	028053	EAAA	AAAE	DAAAAAAAAA	Ä	039058	EA EA	DAEAAAAAAA	******	Â	
013009		CANAR	******	A	028054	еллалала	AAAAE			03906	EAAAAAAAA	AECEADDEBB	CEAAAAAAEB	Е	
014006	-	CAA	BA	*	028055	eaaalaaaa Ebbaala	AAE AARAE ARA	EAAAAAAAAAA	A N	039065	EAAAAAE	EBEEBBAABB	CEARAAAAAA	A	
015010	CAAAAAAA	ACCCCAAAAA	алалалала '	A	028058	EAAAAA	AAAAE	EAAAAAA	Â	039069	eaaaae ea	********	AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	A A	
015012	· BAAAAAA	AACCCACCAA	*****	A	028060	EAAAAAAA	AAAEE EDA	алалалала	A	039072	E	EDDDEDDEDA	DAADAAAAAA	Â	
010014		ACAAA	*******	^	028061	AAAAA	AAAABCCAAA	<b>AAAAAAAA</b> A	A	039073	E	алалалала	алалалалал	x	
Station	1970	1980	1990	2k	Station	1970	1980	1990	2k	Station	1970	1980	1990	2k	
015015	831138	CCAA ABCCCAABAA	AAAAAAAAAA	A N	028066	eaaaaaa	******	алалалала	A	039074		AAAAAAAAAAA	BAAAAEEAAA	A	
015017	ЕАААА	A	ARADOMARA A	A	028072	EAAAAA Faaaa	AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	A	039077		Елалалала	алалалала	A	
015021		AACCCC	салалала	A	028073	EEEA	AAAEE			039079	EA	DDEDEDDAAA	ARARAAKAA AEDAADADBA	A E	
015023		CCANAAA	*****	A	028075	E	AAE			039086	елала	*****	AAAAADAAAA	Ā	
015025		AAAAA	XXXXXXXXXXX	A A	028079		FAFAAAAAA	******	A X	039087	eaaaaa	****	AADAADAAAA	D	
015027		CAA	алалалаал	A	028082	EAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAA	*****	Â	039085	FARAA	ARAAAMAAAA		A	
015028		CCAC	алалалала	A	028083		EAADDE E	алалалала	A	039090	EAAA	AAAAAAAAAA	****	E	
016004	еллалал	*****	AAAAAAAAD	A A	028086	e <b>araaaaa</b> a	AAAADDAAAA	*****	A	039091	EE	AAAAAE			
017003	Елалалал	*****	ACCACAAACC	ĉ	028091		EDAAAA	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	A	039092	E	AAEAEAAAAA	EAAAAAAAAA	A	
017004	EAAAAAAA	алалалалал	AACACAAACC	¢	028093		EAAE	ADAAAAAAA	Ð	039094	FEA	BAAAEAAAAA	*****	A A	
017005	EAAAAAAB	AAAAAAEAAA	AACACAAACC	c	028102		EDD	AAAABEE		039095	EA	DAEEAAAAAA	*****	A	
017012		EÁAA`	AACACAADCC	ĉ	028103			AA 8888	A	039096	E	AEEAEAAAAA	****	A	
017015		ADA	AACACAADCC	c	028116			DBA	Â.	039098		EDDAAA	DAAADADADA	F	
017018			CC	с	028117			ABA	λ	039099		EAAAAAA	****	Ĩ.	
018007	LIVENDER	AAAA	AE	C.	029005	EAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAAA	ARAEAAAAAF	A N	039101		EAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAE	Е	
Chatlan	4070	4470				0	(	AND ARCHINE	~	039102		EDAAAA	<b>AAAAA</b> AAAAA	A	
018008	19/0	1980	1990	2k	Station	1970	1980	1990	2k	Station	1970	1980	1990	2k	
018010		8888	AACAAAAACC	c	030008	ЕВВВАА	ABERAAAAAAE	BAEAEEAAAE	*	039103		E	AAEDDDAAEA	A	
018011		FCARAAAA	AACAAAAACC	с	030012	Елалалала	DEBABBEEEA	AAAEBEBEEB	Â.	039105		EDE EA	DADAADEEDD		
018014		ABAA	AACACAAAACC	c	030013	eaaa	алалалала	AAAAAAAAED	λ	039106		FFFF	FFFFFFFFFF	F	
018018		AAAAAB	BCBAAAA	F	030014	eEAABAAA	BAAAAAAAAE	AAAAAA	A N	039112		-	EBAAADAA	X	
018019		AC			030017	eA	AAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	Å	039113			ERARARAE	F	
018022			ACCCCCADCF	_	030018		еллала	AAE AAAAD	A	039121			EADEDDDDD	D	
019020		AAAAA	AACBFDAACC	c	030033	FERBEREFE		EADDEEEDAA	D	039123			ЕУУУ	в	
019021	_		- CC	Ċ.	031017	EEBEEBEEEF	EEEEEE	SEE CANNA	~	039129			EARAAAAE	A A	
020006	CCCAAAD	AAAAAAAADA	AACACAADF		031020	EEEBBEEFEE	EEEEE			039139			EDEE		
023012	EBAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	MANAAAAAAA	A	031021	ERAPBOAP	AEEEEEEEE	EREEEEAAAA	A N	039140			EAEA	Е	
023013	EAAAAAAAA	A			031024	EAABBBBBB	BBAAAAAAAE	аллаалалал Е Еллал	Â	039141			EAAB	DB	
023017			EAADDAAAA	A	031025	eλ	EAAAAAABAA	AAAEAAADAA	A	039143			EAAAA	Ä	
024008	ERAALAAL	AREARAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	A A	031026	EA	AAAAAAAAA	<b>XERAREAAA</b> A	в	039144			FAAAA	A	
025018	EEAAAAAAA	AEEAAAAAAA	*****	A	031028		f BAEAAAE	AAEAEAAADD	A	039145			EAAAA	A	
025019	EAAAAAAA	алаалаала	AAAAAA		032019	FFFEEEEEE	EEEEEEF	A AAB	A	040014	e EEEEDEE	DEDEEABBBB	BDEEDED	А	
Station	1970_	1980	_1990	2k.	. Station.	1970	1980	1990 -	.24.	Station	1070	1090	4000		<u>.</u>
025020	EAAAEAEA	алалалавв	BEAAAAAAAA	A	032020	EAAAABABAB	ABAEAE		•n '	040017	BEAEEBBDF	EEDEE DOAD	1990	ZK`` B	•
025021	EBAAAAA	AAAAADAAAA	AADAADAAAA	A	032023	FÉBEBEEEEE	EE EE			040020	eEBEEDE	EEAE AAD	AAAAAAAAA	в	
025023	EABERA EABERAERA	AAEE F		A	032029	EAEEEAE	AFFEEDER	FIFFFFFFFF		040021	EEEAE	DDEDE	EAAAADAEAA	x	
026004	EE BEFEBA	AAAAAB			033026	Feeccecce	CCCCCCCCCCC	CCCCFCCCFC		040023	DEEA	ADDAEEDDDD RF	AAAABDAAA	x	
026005		DARAAAAAA	*****	A	033033	EAAAAAA	AAAAAAABAA	AABEAAABAB	в	• 041014	eBDAAAAAAA	AAADDAADAA	ААВВЕЕЛЛАЛ	х	
026008		LAADAAAAB AAAA	********	A A	033039	EAAADAAA	AABBABABBB	BABBBAACEC	c	041019	еллалалал	AAADAAAAAA	AABBAAAAA	λ.	
027038	Елалалала	EXADADAAAA	AAAAAAAAAA	E.	033054	лаалала Гсал	AABAABAAAA	AABBRAAAAP	в	041022 041023	e <b>ARAAA</b> DDDD f <b>BBCBBBBBB</b>	AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAD	D	
027040	EBAAAAAAA	****	алалалала	λ	033057	FBAB	AAAAAAABAE	EE ACAF	F	041024	EAAAAABBA	DAAAAADAAA	AAAABEAAAD	^ እ	
027042	ERARAÀÀÀ Pàrais	DAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	ARAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	A	033058	EB	алаааааааа	F EAEEABAE	в	041025	EBAAADDDA	DAAAADAAAA	AAAAAAAAD	Ä	
027044	EAAAAA	AAAADAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAA	Â	033063		FAAARAARAA	EACCE	с с	041026	EAAAADAAA	AAADAAADAA	AAAAAAAEEA		
027047	EAAAAAE	AEADAEDDAA	алааааааа	x	033065		fcccaaabe	EEEECEC		041029	EA	алалалала Алалалала	**************************************	۲ ۲	
027048	EAAAEEAA	AAADDADADA	DDAAAAAAAA	A .	033066		еллаввала	BAEBBAAAAC	с	041035		EDAAAAA	AAAABAAAAB	A .	
027050	FCCFFFFEAD	ADDABDAAAA	AAAAAAAAA	•	033067 03306A		CREANA	AEAACAC	с	042007	CCCCFCCeC	CFCCCCCCCC	CCAACCCA A		
027051	CAAEAAAE	AADAAAAAAA	******	X	034013	BFFCFBEB	AEEEEEEEE	ABAEE A		042008	fCCCCBAAAA	**************************************	**********	A	
02/052 ·	EAAA	*****	ADAAAAAAA	A	034018	FFCCADDE	AAAAAEAEAB	BAEEEEAEBE	Е	042011	fCCBAAAA	****	AAAAAADDAA	A	
			~~~~~~~	*	034019	EAAABB	RAAAAAABE	EACECEDBBB	Е	042012	EBBBC	ccccccccc	CCAACCCAAA		

#### Flow records commencing after 1969 (contd.)

ABAABCAAA AAAAAAAAD A Aaaaaaaaa eaaaaaadee a Aaaaacaaab aaaaaaaaa a Caaaaaaaa chaaaadaaa a

АЛССР РЕ ЕЛАЛАЛАЛА А Алалалала Алалалала А ЕЕДГ ЕЕДЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА Д ААССССССЕВА АЛАЛАЛАЛА Д ЕВРРГССССЕ АЛАЛАЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛА А

ЕЕССАЛЛАЛА АЛАЛАЛАЛАА А Алалалалаа Алалалалаа А Алалалалаа Алалалалаа А алалалала алалалала а алалалалар алалалала а валалалар алалалалар а

ADAAAAAAA

EEDDDAAA

ВАЛЛАЛАЛА А Еллалалал А Еллалалал А

ГЛАЛА ЕЛЛАЛ X X

ECF**A**E E**AAA**E A F

EABAAAA D

DAAAAB A

*****

FCCFCC BAAAAAAAAA A EAAAA A ЕЛЛАЛА A

1980 1990 ... Аллалала Валалалала А Аллалалал Аллалалала А Аллалалар Елакалала А Аллалалар Аллалала А Аллалалар Аллалала А

AAAAAAAAA EDAEAAAAAE A

1950 1990 2) Лалалалала халалалала а Лалалалала халалалала а Лалалалала халалалала а Халалалала халалалала а

-АВАСССАЛАА АЛЛАЛАЛАА А АЛАДРАДВАА ДДААЛАЛАА А

21

.

2k

X X X

X X X

λ

2k

X X X

λ

2k

х Х

х

λ

п

D D

Ā

λ

Е

A

2k

A A D A C

X A A

A

A

х

A

A A

A

A A

AAE A

			•		•	'		
Station	1970	1980	1990	21	Station	1970	1980	1000
042013					34400		1300	1330
042016		FF CADDO		ι D	055027	eaaaaae	FF	ELYNYYEDE
042013	E	ADAAABAAAA	DEFEDE		055028	emme	<b>XEXXXBCXAX</b>	TTTTTTTT
042016	PCFFF	CFCFFEADDD	AFAAAAA	A	055031	EXXXXXX		EALAAADE
042018		EXA	*******		055033	EDAADAA	AAAAACAAAB	********
042019	EAD	ANNALANE	AADAAFA AA		055034	FOCADAA	CRASSASSAS	DESERTION
042020	<b>F</b> ÅÅ		RAUSSABBBBB		055034	FICILIA	1313333300	COULDER DO
042023		FFFFF		•	055030	CALINARA		ULANALARA
042026		LALAL	LILLIAAAAAAA		000030			~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
042023		LAALUULAU	AADADEAAAA	•	056008	EBAAAEE		
043011	EECCFFF				056011	Ebakkkkkk	AAFF	
043018	еллал	AAARRARBBB	********		056012	ARAAAABB	AACCF FE	EAAAAAAAA
043019	EXAMANA	AABAABAABB	*******		056013	FRANKS	11111111111	
043021	BRARS	BBBCCCCCFC	FFRAMAAADB		056014			
043022			DINAN	•	050014	E	EEDF REDE	AAAAAAAAAA
043034			SAAAA		000013	BAAAB	AACCCCCCBA	AAAAAAAAA
043024			EXXX		056018		EBFFFCCCCF	
044004	1000000000	CCCCCCCCCCC	CCFCCCCCCC		057005	EXTERNEL	******	AAAAAADADA
044008	EFAAAA	AD .	FANNAN	. <b>A</b>	057006	ertrunner	EECCAAAAAA	******
044009	елала	ABAABBABEB	ABAAAAAAAA	D	057007	FARRAR		********
045008	EAAAAA	ABAAAAAABA	*******		057008	111111		
045010	000000		10101010101010101010101	-	057000		~~~~~	~~~~~
045013					057009	~~~~	AAAAAAAAAA	
045015	FC	citatice a	DAABAACD D		05/010	exxxx	елалалала	YYYYYYYY
Cantil	4574							
Susuon	1970	1980	1990	ZK	Station	1970	1980	1990
046006	EXXXXXX	<b>XXXXXXXXX</b> CX	******	A	057011	EARE	E	
046007	еллалал	AF	FCADADACAA	λ	057012	EAAB	E	
046008	EXTERNO	AF	FCDAAAACAA		057015	el	ABACCCANAN	
047010	FAAAAAAA	ABBARCABRA	*********		058005	~11111111	******	
047011	FAAAAAAAA	N.F.		~	050000	CANANAAAA	AAADEADBAA	ULANANANA
047043		A.:		_	00000	EAAAAAAAA	PAAAAAAAAB	ADAMAAAA
047013	FDAAAAAA	AAAAAAAACA	******	D	058007	ebaaaaaaa	EXAXXXXX	авалалала
047014	FCCC	CANABAACC	сучуууууу	A	058008	EXXXXDAX	EDADAAACAA	λεγγγγγγγ
047015		EAAAAABB	<b>AAAAAADAAA</b>	A	058009	EXYMME	AAADAADAAA	www
047016	FCCF	FFFFCCCCFC	******	х	058010	EXANA	EEFC	EEDDOAA
047017	FCC	COCCCCA	33		058011	-111	*********	*********
048003	PC.	CAABAAAAA	*****	A	058012		FCFCCCC	
048000	FARMERS	1			000012	00	r Gr GG GBCE	
05000		A UC	CURRENT ANA		050008		FAAADAA	HAAAAAAAA
050005	FCCCC	CCCCCCAAFA	AAAAAAAAAD	λ	060009	FCCCCCCCCC	CCCCCCFFFF	Елалалала
050007	FCCCCCC	CCCFCCCFCC	XXXXXXXXXDX		060012	FAABBBAEEA	EE	EAAAAAAAA
050011	елалала	<b>A</b> E	EYYYYYYYY	A	060013	EBCCCF		
051002	EAAAADE	EAABA	AAAAADAAAA	λ	062002	EBAAAAEAB	EBC	
052015	AAAAAAAA	EAAAA	ARALLANDA	Ä	063002	RRAFADERS		-
052016	FARBARAAR		1103333000	-	000000	DOMESTICAL		
052010	LANNAAAA		AADAAAADAA	<u>.</u>	003004		FCCFCC	BAAAAAAAAA
052017	EEE	EAAAA	AAAAAAAAAA	•	064004			EAAAA
052025			EXXXXAR	E	064010			EAAAAA
Station	1970	1980	1990	2k	Station	1970	1980	1990
052026		AADADAA	DDAAAAAADA	D	065004	еЕВВАААААА	*****	BAAAAAAAAA
053013	*****	*****	AAAAAAAAAA	λ	065005	******	********	*********
053015	88886				065006	ohhh	ABABBBBBBBB	F3333333333
053016	1111117				000000			LANAAAAAAA
052017	71111111				000007	EAAAA	AAAAAAAAAAA	******
053017	LAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAA	•	065008		FCAABBAA	аааваааааа
053022	eXXX	AAAAE			065014			FAAAA
053023	<b>eaa</b> e	алааааааа	алалалалал	A	065015			ЕХХАХ
053024	<b>XX</b>	хаааааааа	AAAAAAABAA	A	066004	алалалавала	AAAA EAAAA	********
053025		AAAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAA	A	066005	FAFAAAAAA	ABBAR FA	
053026	33	**********	********	2	066006	FALLAN	********	
053029					000000	ENNANA	алалалалал	ABARARARA
000020		~~~~~~	****	<b>^</b> .	000012			ECFAE
053029		XXXXXX	алаалалал	x	066025			EXXXE
054029	PBBAAAAAAA	******	<b>AAAAAAAA</b> DA	A	067025	****	алалалала	AAAAAAAAAA
054032	FBBAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAA	*****	c	067026	CCCCCC	cccccc	
054034	EANNANN	AAAADAAAAA	*****		067027			FARAAAA
054036	FARRARS	ARARE DARA	********		067029	73	PPP	
054028				<u> </u>	007020	EA	EEF	AAAAAAAAAA
054030	LADAAAA	AAAAEAAAAA	AULAAAAAAA		067029	EAA	EEDEFDD	
054040	FABAAAA	*****	<b>AAAAAAAAA</b> A	x	067033			DAAAAB
054041	FCCCAAAA	<b>AAAAAAAAA</b> A	XXXXXXXXXXX	x	068011	AAAAE	EE	
054042	EASABEE				068015	D	AAAAAAAAAA	EDAFAAAAAE
Station	1970	1980	1990	2k	Station	1970	1980	1990
054044	ЕЛЛАЛАЛА	*****	*******		068020		*********	
054045	33333F				0600020			
054047					005007	LAAA	******	~~~~~
054047	PBAE				069008	AAAA	<b>XAAADAAAAA</b>	AAAAAAAAAE
054048	eana	AAAAE AAAA	XXXXXXXXXXX	x	069012	AAAA	****	<b>AAAAAAAAA</b> A
054049	E	алалалары	******	λ	069013	DAAA	AAAADDAAAA	AAAAAAAAE
054050		<b>AAA</b>	алалалала	x	069015	EAAEAAABA	*****	AAAAAAAE
054052	FBDAAAAAAA	AAAABAAAAA	Ваааааааа	A	069020	FARAS	********	
054053	EABAR			-	060022	22.2.2	********	122122222
054054	FAAAF				060001			MANANAA
054055	DECLO				005024	2888 	AAAAAAAAA	
004000	LOLAS				069030	DAA	AAADAAAAAA	********
054050	NEEEE				069031	E EAAA	AAABDAAAAE	EDAAAAE
054057	FCCCBBAAA	*****	*****	λ	069032	EAA	AAAAAAEADA	AAAAAAADE
054058	EAABBEE				069035	****	AAAAEAADAA	AAAAAAAAE
054059	EAABAEE				069037		COFF	DDEEEDADDA
054060	EBAAAAAF	FCFF FAAS	*********		060040		F3313454	333333333
054061	FRACEC				000042		LINARALA	
054000					005044			SEAAAAAA
004002	LABEBEAE				070002	EDEDAAA	******	AAAAAAABCP
054063	EABABAAE	AAAE	EDAAA	x	070003	AEE	AAAAAADADA	AAAABBBFCP
054065	EAABEAE				070004	AAAA	****	AAAAAAAAE
054066	EBBBBAAA	AAAA			070005	****	ABAAADAAAA	*******
Station	1970	1980	1990	<b>э</b> ь	Station	1970	1980	1990
054067	REPAC				071000			
054060					071000	AAAA		
004008	64486				0/1009	E	алалалалал	AAAAAAAAE
054070	EABAAA	AAAA			071010	FCCCCBAAA	AAAAAAAAA	алалалале
054080	FED	AAAE			071013	EEAE	DAAAAAAADD	алалалалы
054081	EBA	*****	AAAAAAEAAA	A	071014	****	EAAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAARCC
054083	EA	****			071015			
054084	73	****			51013		********	4440
00-100-	5 <b>6</b>				072007	EA	******	*****
054085	E	AAAA			072009	DAAA	алалалала	******
054087	BAEE	AAEE EAAAA	BAAAADE BA	A	072014	EDED	AADAAADAAE	******
054088	EA	******	алалалаваа	A	072015	E	EXAXAAAAA	*****
054089		EA	AAAAAAEAAB		073001	FCCCCCF		
054090	EDADDAA	AAAAAAAAAA	DAAAADDAAA	λ	073003		********	AFFSASSAS
054091	1812	*****	8888800884		073000		-MARAAAA	ACCONTANT
054001			ADD D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D	2	073000	DAAE	LAAS EAXAA	лалалалала
034092	LUAAAAA	*******	ADAAADDAAA		073009	DDAD	DAAAAAAAAA	*******
054094		EEEDEDAA	авалалелал	X	073011	FCCCCCEDEA	EAAAAAAED	алалалале
054095		EEEDAA	алалалелал	x	073013	EE	*****	AAEAAAAAE
054096			еллалаелла	λ	073014	EE	EDAAADAAAD	*****
054098			DA	A	073015	AAFF		EABAAAAAA
054099			333	A	074002			ABBBBBBB
					074000	GLADAAA		
055020								

<b>D</b>				
Station	1910	1980	1990	Z
074007	AAAA		ALLEAAAAE	
075005	AAAKAAAA		ANCIANAR	A
075009	<b>entrent</b>	ALTERNAL AND	<b>MANANA</b> E	
075010	<b>exxxx</b>			
075016	DDDD	********	DAAAAAAAA	
075017	ADDA	CHIMAN	*******	
076014	EXAMPLE	XXXBXXXXII	*******	A
076015	ЕЛАВЛАЛАЛ	*******	ANNANNA B	
077003	DAAAAAA		*******	
077004	D	******	*******	λ
077005	EAFA	E EAAAAAE	AAAAAAAAE	
078005		*******	*****	A
078006		FAAAAAA	********	
080002	daa		*******	
080003		FRANKLAR	******	î
080004		DAN AN		÷.
020004			~~~~~	÷.
000005		EAA AA	*****	<u> </u>
080006	<u>.</u>	AAB AA	AAAAAADDAD	D
081004	d A A	*******	*****	×
081005		EAAAA	*******	А
<b>6</b>				
Station	1970	1990	1990	ZK
081006		EXXX	********	D
081007		EA	*******	A
082002	EXXXXX	XXXXXXXXXD	******	A
082003	ARAEEAR	YYYYYYYYD	*****	λ
083004	еллалал	<b>YYYYYYYY</b> D	AAAAAADAAA	С
083005	EAAAAAAA	*******	DAAAAAAAAA	
083006	EDAB	*******	********	
083007	711		DARABBBBBA	÷.
093009	E.AA			÷.
000000		EAAAAAAEEB	ADBABBAAAD	•
003009	AA	*********	********	
003010		*******	алалалалава	A
084023	EAAAAEA	*****	*******	A
084024	ехалалае	AAFAAAABA	ADEDAAAAAA	Ε
084025	AAAAE	*****	алалалала	x
084026	EAABAE	*****	алаларалал	λ
084029	EAAAA	AAAAAAAAA	AAABBEAAA	A
084030		EAAAAAAA	ADAAAAAAA	2
085004		ABAT FARMA	ABURRARA	
080003		ANNE EANNA	-DDDDDDDDDD	÷.
003003	~~~~	AAADAAAAB:	COSSIADARD	÷.
003004	E	AAAAAEAABA	<b>EABBBAEAAE</b>	
Station	1070	1000	4000	-
080005	1970	1300	1990	ZK
089005	EA	AAAAAEEAAA	ABABASDAAD	x
089007		EABEEAAAA	алвааваааа	A
089008		EEAAEEAEB	AEE	
089009		EERAEEAAA	AAEE	
090002	EAA	λe		
090003		EDDABAAA	*****	A
092001			PAAAA	
093001		*********	*********	5
095001	FAA	********	*********	÷.
006001	1111		********	<u>.</u>
0060001		******	AAAAAAAAAAAA	<u>^</u>
090002	eaa	AAAAAAAAA	******	A
090003		EAAAA	AAAAAAAAAA	С
096004		EAA	*****	A
101003		F EDDDAAA	AAAEAAAEDE	
101004		EAAAAAA	******	
101005		EAAAAAA	AADDAAABAA	λ
101006		EAAAAAAD	DDE E	
101007		EEADAADA	AABBDEE	
106001			EE EA	А
201002	FCCCCBABB	AAAAAABAAA	ABAAAAAAA	в
		-		_
Station	1970	1980	1990	2k
201005	FCCBEEBA	REBRAARARR	RRRAARARAS	
201006	FRARAA	PRABABBABB	RERABARES	
201007		RARRADONOS	1911101010	
201000		DESCRIPTION	ADARABABAB	•
201000	eAAAB	DADABB8BAB	ABAAABAAAB	A
201009		LABBABBAAA	ABBAABABAB	A
202001	ebaab	DA BABBBAA	ABBAAABBAB	
202002	EABA	BABBABBAAA	ABBAABABABA	A
203011	еллалалал	E	ccc	
203012	EBAABAABBB	BABBBBBAAA	ABBBABBBAA	A
203017	fcccccccb	BABBAABABB	BE	
203018	FCCCCBAABA	BABBAABAAA	ABABAABBAB	в
203019	FCCCCCCE	BABBABBAAB	ABBBBBBBBBB	A
203020	EBBAAABBB	BCEBABBAAA	ABBAAAABAA	λ
203021	FCCBAAARA	BARAARPAAN	ARAAARARAR	
203024	FRARADURA	DAARBADDAD	EDI1121010	
203025	FUCCEMENT	REPERDENCE		5
202020	FOULDABBA	DIPPOLICIES	JOONADAAKA	4
203020	FORCE	DADDDAHABB		
200027	FUCUCCCC	DAADABBAAA	ABOBAAABAA	A
203028	FCCBAAAB	МАНИАВЕЛЛА	ABBAABABABAB	A
203029	EXAMAN	*****	E	
<b></b>				
oution '	1910	1900	1990	ZK
203033	PARAR	HABBBBBBBB	ABABAAAABB	λ
203038		BBAA	хвалалаава	λ
203039		fbbeaaa	abbaaaaBAB	с
203042		FCBAABAAB	ABAAABABABA	A
203043		fbaa	bbaaabbBAB	A
203046		fbabbab	ababaabBAB	A
203092		EDSBAR	APRALIADAD	P
203032		SUDBAAB	ADDARAABAD	-
203093		TUBBAAA	ABBRABAEAD	
204001	EABAAEDB	DAAABBBAAB	ABBAAABBAA	*
205005	cc	BABABBBAAB	BBABBBBBBB	B
205010	FCFCCC	CCCCBABAAA	BBABE	
205011	£	BABBBBBBBBB	BBABBAABBA	X.
205015			ebaaaaaAA	с
205020		FBBBBBA	ABABAABBAB	x
206001	fb <b>BBBA</b>	BBBBBDABABB	BBABBBBBB	в
206002	ccccccc	BAFBBBBBAAA	BBBEBBBBBB	в
236005	FCF	FCCCCFCBA	BBBAABABAA	A
236007		FCBBBBBBB	BBBBBBBBBBB	в
				-

# Summary of Archived Data — Naturalised Flows

Flow records commencing before 1950

Station	1900	1910	1920	1930	1940	1950	1960	1970	1980	1990	
008001				- 'FR	FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF		. सत्र य जनग	-		· -	
023015					TREFFERE	REFERENCES	LEDDA				
027001				77	FEFE	FFFFFF	FFFFFFFF F	F			
027005						FFFFFFFFFF	FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF	-		*****	
027000	PUPPE	PERFORMETE	PEPERPERPE	PPPPPPPPPP	POPPPPPPPPP	PEPPEEPPEP	PPPPPPARA	****		100000	
028002	1 2004	0.000000000	400000000000000000000000000000000000000	DEBEGEE	FFFFF	REFERENCE	PEFFERANCO	00 00			
031001	•				FFFFF	FFFFFFF	FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF	FELEEBSAAA	CR		
032001					FEFFEFFFF '	FFFFFFFFFF	FEFFEFEFEFE	FEFEF	<b>C.</b>		
032002				FC	FFFFFFFFFF	FFFFFF	REFERENCE	FFFFFF			
032004				••	FFFFFF	FFFFFFFFFF	FFFFFFFFFFF	FEFEEF			
032006				P	FEFFEFEFE	EFEFFFFFFF	REFERENCE	( diam			
032007				P	FFFFFFFFFF	FFFFFFFFFF	FFFFFFFFF				
032008					FFEEE	EFFEREEFE	REFERENCES	REFER			
033004					FFFEE	EEREFEEF					
036001				салалала	*****	*****	*****	*****	*****	AAD	
037002				CAAAAAAA	*****	****	****	****	****	AAD	
037003				CARAAAAA	*****	*****	AC CAAAAA	AAAAAAC			
037004				DAAAAAAA	******	*****	*****	*****	AAAAAAAAA	AAD	
038001	****	*****	*****	*****	******	*****	*****	ANAAAAC CA	*****	*******	λ
039001	*****	*****	*****	*****	****	*****	*******	*****	*****	******	λ
Station	1900	1910	1920	1930	1940	1950	1960	1970	1980	1990	2k
039002				CA.	*****	*****	*****		******	AAAAAAADAC	с
054003	SECRECEEEEE	EEEEEEEE	EEEEEEFEE	FAAAAAAAAA	*****	*****	******	*****	AAAACEEEEE	EEEEE	
055002				FEE	EEEEEEEEE	EEEEEEEEE	EEEFFEEEEE	*****	AAD		
055006				FEEEE	<b>EEEEEEEE</b>	EESEEEEEE	EEEEEEEEE	EEEEEEF			
055007				FE	EEEEEEEE2	EÉÉEEEEÉÉ	EEEFPEEEFE	*****	ADA		
057002				FEE	EEEEEFEEEE	EEEEFFEF	FEEEBAAA	с			
068003					F	EEEEEEEEE	EEEEF	FE			
069004					FEEEE	EEEEEEEEE	EEEEEEEF				

#### Flow records commencing between 1950 and 1969

Station	1950		1960	1970	1980	1990	2k	Station	1950	1960	1970	1980	1990	2*
007003			FEEEE	EEEEEEEEE	F EE	E EE		027007	PE	EEEEEEEEE	EF			
015006			FEE	F EEEEEE	EEEEEE			027009		F	EF		****	
016001			FEEEEE	EEEEEEEEE	EEEEE			027011	FEEEEE	EEEEEEEEE	EEEF			
017001			F	EF E				027012	FEEEEE	EEEEEEEE	EF			
017002			, F	EF E				027013	FEEEEE	EEEEEEFE	EF			
018002			-	R F				027015		CRAC				
018003			FFFFFF					027016			FF			
010003		DDD	FELER	EF E				027017	FFFF	FEFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF	FFFF			
010001		LCL	DESESSESSE	EBEBBEE				027019	PPPD	PREFERENCE	EFER			
019002			ELELEE	EEE EEA				027010	FEEE	REFERENCE	ELEF			
019003			FEEEEEEE	EEEEEEE				027019	FEEE	EEFESSEEFF	7 6F			
019004			EEEEEEEEE	EEE EKE				027020	FFEF	FFEREEEFE	FEEF			
019005			FEEEEEE	EFEEEEE				027021		FFFEEFEEE	EF			
019006			EEEEEEE	EEEEEE				027022		FEEEEB	FF			
019007			FEEEEEE	EEEEEE				027023		FEEEEE	EF			
019008			FEEEEE	EEEEEE				027024		FEEEF				
019009			EEEEEE	EEFFEEE				027025		FEEEEEE	EF			
019010			E	EEEEEE				- 027026		FEEEEF				
020001			EEEEEEEE	EEEEEE				027027		FEEFFEEFE	EEEF			
020002			EE	EEEEEE				027028		<b>EEEEEEE</b>	EF			
020003			EEEEE	EEEEEE				027029		FEEEEFEEF				
Station	1950		1960	1970	1980	1990		Station	1950	1960	1970	1980	1990	
020004			EEE	EEEEEE				027030		FEEEEE	EF			
021001		F	REFERENCE					027031		EEEEEE	EF			
021002		F	FFFFFFFFF					027032		FFEF				
021002		F	PERFERENCE		FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF	VEFVEFFFFF	R.	027039		PPP	22			
021003		r	REFERENCE	CORRECTERS	LEEDELEELE	SECCESSES 55	<u>n</u>	020003		20	6F			
021004			r ser Brecorer	PPPPPPPPPP			-	031007		FF 87				
021005			FEELESEE	DEEEEEEEE	ESPERANCE	LEELEELEE	5	031007						
021000			EEEEEEEE	ELLELLELE	EFFEREEFE	2CECCECE25	-	033001	FEEEEF					
021007			EFFEFEFE	REFERENCE	EEEEEEEE	EFFEFEFEFE	E	033002		FELBAAAA	*****			
021008			EFEFEFER	EFFEREERS	REFERENCE	EFFFFFFFFF	E	033003	FF FEEEF					
021009			EEEEEEEEE	EEEEEEEEE	EEEEEEEEE	EEEEEEEEE	E	033005	PEEEEEE	EEEEEBBAA	AC			
021010			FEEEEE	EF FF EE	E			033006	FEEE	EEEEF				
021011			SEEEEEE	EEEEEEEEE	EEEEEEEEE	EEEEEEEEE	Е	033007	FEEEEE	EEEFEECCCF	EF			
021012			EEEEEEEE	EEEEEEEEE	EEEEEEEEE	EEEEEEEEE	E	033011		FEEF				
021013			BEEEEE	EEEEEEEEE	EEEEEEEEE	EEEEEEEEE	E	033035	C <b>A</b>	<b>XXXX</b> BXXXX	AAAAAC			
021014			FEEEEEEE	EEEEEEEEE	EEEEEEEEE	EEEEEEEEE	Е	036002		CANNANANA	AAAAAC			
021015			EEE	EEEEEEEEE	EEEEEEEE	EEEEEEEEE	E	036003		салалалал	AAAAAAC			
021016			EE	EEEEEEEEE	EEEEEEEEE	EEEEEEEE	E	036004		САЛАА	AAAAAAC			
021017			EEEE	EEEEEEEEE	EEEEEEEE	EEEEEEEEE	Е	036005		салалала	XXXXXXXC			
021018			EEEEEEE	EEEEEEEEE	EFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF	EEEEEEEEE	E	036006		СУУУУУУ	AAAAAAC			
021019			FE	EEEEEEEEE	EEEEEEEE	EEEEEEEE	E	036007		саааа	AAAAAAC			
Station	1950		1960	1970	1980	1990	2k	Station	1950	1960	1970	1980	1990	
021020			EE	BEEEBEEEEE	EEEEEEEEE	EEEEEEEEE	E	036008		СУУУУУУУУУУ	AAAAAAC			
021021			F	BEEEBEEEEE	<b>SEEEEEEEE</b>	EEEEEEEEE	E	036009		cc	AAAAAAC			
021022			F	EEEEEEEEE	EEEEEEEEE	SEEEEEEEEE	Е	036010		CA	AAAAAAC			
021024			FEREEREEE	EEEEEEEEE	REFERENCE	EEEEEEEEE	Е	036011		CA.	AAAAAAC			
021030			E	EFEEEEEEE	EREREEEEEE	EEEEEEEEE	Б	036012		Ċ <b>A</b>	AAAAAAC			
021034			- -	FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF	FFFFFFFFFFFFFFF	FEFFFFFFFF	E	037001	CARAAAAAAA	********	CAAC			
023001		FFFF	FFFFFFFFF	CC	DELEDEDOOD	ADDD	-	037005		********	AAAAAAC			
023007		L' L'ALSES	C1333	10	D'DALLAR	AL () ()		037006	-	CARABABA	ALLAND			
023002		5	0000001111	1110	******	NOND		037007		CARDONA	ALAALAC			
023003		r	CLILL	BCAC	ALLANDA	AUAI)		037008		C3133	ALBANDO			
023007				BCAC				037000		(1) 11111				
024001								037010		CARACAR				
024003		F 5	ELLEEBRCAA					037010			AAACCAC			
020001		FEEE	EEEEEBAAAA	AC CAAAC	****	AADA		037011		CAAAAAA	AAAAACC			
025004		PEE	EEEEEBAACC	c				037012		CARAAAA	AAAAAAC			
025008			CAAB	BBEF				037013		CARAAAA	AAAAAAC			
020002			FFEEE	LEEEEEEEE	********	алалаеа		037014		CARAAAA	AAAAAC			
027002		FEEEE	EEEEEEEEE	E				037016		CAAAA	AAAACAC			
027003			FEEEEEE	EP				037017		c	AAAACAC			
027004			FEEEEEEF					037019		CAAAC	AAAAC			-
027006			FEEEE	EF				039008	CHANNAN	********	********	*******	********	

# Flow records commencing between 1950 and 1969 (contd.)

Station 039015 040001	1950 PEE	EEF	1960 PBC	1970		1980	1990	2k	Station 058001 058003	1950	1960 FEF C	1970 C	1980	1990
040002		PPEF	FFFFFFFFFF						050003		FEEF			
040003		CAN	********	****					061007	F 5	EFERENCE			
040004			FFFFP						062001	-	FEEEBLU			
040005			FER						064001	F	TEADERED			
040006			FFP						066002		FF	PPP		
040007									066002		PLEASER	115		
040008			FEE						066011		F2F F2	10		
040009			222						067001	****		A.		
040010			FFF						007001	FLE	LEEPINGERE	******		
040011			PPPP						Station	1960	1060	1070	1090	1000
043005			FEERF	EF					067002	PPtutuu		1210	1300	1334
045003			FFFFFFF	-					067003	FBBBBBB	EREFERT FEF			
045004			CA.	c					067006		FA	EREE		
045005			FEEFCA	č					067007		VEVVD			
046002			FEFFEFEFE	C					067015		FEECE	*******		R
046003			C)	c					067017		<b>•</b>	FF	*****	r
047004			FBCEFF	~					068001		FFFFFFFFFF	EE 17		
047005			c						068004		FFFFFFFFF	E		
-			-						068005		SEDEEDED	r B VP		
Station	1950		1960	1970		1980	1990		068006		PPPPPPPPP	r B		
047015		222	****	****	*****	****			070001	FFFFFF	FEFFERENCO	~		
048001			FEACCC	10000					071001	FREEF	FLEEDANCC			
048002			FF C						071002		PDRARK	11110		
048006			cc.						072001		FEFFEFE	8788		
048007			cc						075001		PFF	<i>r</i> : or		
049003			222						075002		PPEFPP			
050001		DA	******	****		AAAAAAAA			076001	REPRE	FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF	P		
050002			FEEBBEBA	c					076003		FFFFFF			
050006			DAAAA		*****	*******			076004		FFFF			
052002		FEEE	REFERENCE						077002		PEEP	<b>FF</b>		
052005			FEEEBEEEE	EEEE	EEEP							51		
052006			FEEEEE	EEEEE	ZEEF				Station	1950	1960	1970	1980	1990
052008			FEEEBEEF						079002		FFFFFFFFFF	FF		1000
052014			FEE	FEEE	FFFF				079003	- F	EFFEFEFEFE	REF		
053004		FE	EEEEEEFF	FEEEE	EEEAAA	X			079006		PEE	EF		
054001			CAAA	****	*****	****			081003		FE	FF		
054005		FEEE	EEEEEBAAC		ÅÅ				082001		FEEEER	ÊF		
054010			CC						084002		FE	EEFFF		
054013			CACA	С	AA .				084003		FEEEE	EEEF		
054014			CAA	С	λλ				084004	FEE	EEEEEEEE	FFEEF		
									084005	FE	EEEEEEEE	EEEEF		
Station	1950		1960	1970		1980	1990		084007		FEE	FEEEF		
054017			cc						084008		FEE	FEEEF		
055023			F	,,,,,,,	AAAAA	AAA			084009		FFF	EEEEF		
056001		FEE	EEEEEEEEE	FEEEE	ÊFF				084012		FEEEEEE	EEEEF		
056002		FEE	EEEEEEEEF	ÉEEEE	F				084013		FEE	EEEEF		
056003			FEF						084014		FEEEEE	EEEEF		
056004			FEEEE	EEEEE	EF				084017		FEE	EEEEF		
056006			FEEEEE	FFEEE	EF				084018		F	EEEEF		
057001	FEEE	EEEE	EEEEEEBC						084019		FE	EEFFF		
057003			CAAAC						085001		FEEEEE	EEEF		
057004		FEE	EFFEEBAAAC						085002		FEE	ÉEÉEF		

## Flow records commencing after 1969

Station 006007 012002 012002 012004 012009 013007 014001 014002 015003 015008 015010 015011 015012 015012	1970 E E E E E E E E F E F E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E	1980 F B AAA EEEEEE EEEEEE EEEEEE EEEEEEE EEEEEE	<b>1990</b> <b>E</b> EEE	EE	2k	Station 027089 028012 031006 031010 031010 031013 031016 031017 031020 031021 031022 032003 032012	1970 FEEEP FFF FFF FFF FFFF FFFF FFFFF FEEEP FFFFPF	1980	1990 а Сладаа ад		Station 084016 084020 084022 084023 084023 084024 084027 085003 086001 086002 097002	1970 FEEEF FEF FF FF FF FF FEEF FEEEF FEEEF EEEEF	1980	1990
015013	EEEEEE	EEEEEE				032019	FFF							
015016	EEEEEE	EEEEEE				032020	FEEEFF							
015017	F					032023	F FFF							
015024		EEEE				033026	CAAAAC							
016004	EEEEE	E				036015	CARAC							
017003	E					037018	CARAC							
Station	1970	1080	1000			Station	1070	4000	4000					
017004	1310	1300	1330			037020	1970	1900	1990					
017005	5					037020	CARAAAC							
018001	E					037021	CRAARAC							
018005	Ē					037023	CRAC							
018008	F					037024	CABAAC							
019011	Ē					039046		םממממת מ		c				
020005	Ē					046006	AAAAAA	******	DADUMENT	L				
020006	Ē					051002	FFFFF	10000000						
020007	Ē					056011	PERFERE							
021023	EEEEEEEE	EFFEEEEEE	EEEEE	SEEEEE	Е	056012	REEERF							
021025	FEEREEE	EEEEEEEE	EEEEF	REFER	Е	067026	AAAAAA	******						
021026	EEEEEE	EEEEEEEE	EEEEE	EEEEE	E	070002	CECAAAA	AAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAABAC					
021027	EEEEEE	EEEEEEEEE	EEEEF	EEEEE	Е	071014	AAAC	CAAAAAAAAA	AAAAAAAAAC					
023008	CC					072004		F						
025002	FFFF					073010		F						
027064		AAAAA	AAAAD	2		076007		F						
027079		CA	алал			078004	F							
027083		CA	алала			084001	FEEEP							
027085		λ	AAAAA	AA		084006	FEEEF							
027087				Е		084015	FEEF							

# GROUNDWATER – REGISTER AND STATISTICS

### Background

Groundwater is present in the sub-surface almost anywhere in the British Isles. Where rocks are sufficiently permeable for water to flow readily into a well or borehole, the rock is defined as an aquifer. Sedimentary rocks such as sandstones and limestones often form the most productive aquifers, but water is also found in igneous and metamorphic rocks, in smaller quantities.

The most important British aquifers are listed in Table 1. The Chalk, the Upper Greensand, the Lincolnshire Limestone and the Permo-Triassic sandstones have the highest average yields and are the most important from the viewpoint of public supply, with borehole yields that can reach 3000 to 4500 cubic metres per day. Next in importance are the Lower Greensand and the Magnesian Limestone aquifers where yields to individual wells of 1500 to 3000 cubic metres per day can generally be expected. In the other aquifers listed, while occasional sources sufficient for large supplies may be developed, they tend to be important only locally. The outcrop areas of the major aquifers are shown on Figure 1. This map shows how the major aquifers are concentrated in England; aquifers in Wales, Scotland and Northern Ireland are less extensively developed and tend to be only of relatively local importance. In rocks that are not generally recognised as aquifers, water may still be available, but well yields tend to be small (of the order of only a few cubic metres per day), uncertain as a continuous source (tending to fail in prolonged droughts), often with an indifferent water quality, and the sources are vulnerable to pollution in some areas.

The groundwater resources of an aquifer are naturally replenished from rainfall. The normal recharge of an aquifer takes place during the winter months when the cool and damp weather means that potential evapotranspiration is low and soil moisture deficits are negligible; a substantial proportion of the winter rainfall is therefore available to replenish groundwater resources. Groundwater levels rise in response to the infiltration of rainwater through the soils and any rock above the aquifer. During the summer months, when the potential evapotranspiration is high and soil moisture deficits are appreciable, little infiltration takes place. Water levels in the aquifer fall as storage is depleted by flow to rivers (baseflow), flow to springs and by pumped abstractions. During recharge the rate of infiltration is affected by the nature of any deposits through which water must pass to reach the aquifer. Where these deposits have low permeabilities there will be a consequential reduction in recharge rates, and a delay between rainfall events and the time when water levels begin to rise. Where the water level in an aquifer is at a considerable depth below

ground level, the aquifer will also take longer to respond to recharge than where the unsaturated zone is thinner.

The extent of fluctuation of water levels in a given aquifer is a reasonable surrogate for the volume of water that is available within the aquifer to support natural river flows and artificial abstractions. The actual magnitude of the fluctuations will be affected not only by the amount of infiltration but also by the value of the specific yield (which is that proportion of the volume of voids in the rock, which may store useable groundwater, expressed as a fraction of the total volume of rock). Where the specific yield is small, the addition of a given volume of water will result in a greater rise in water levels than would be the case where the specific vield is larger, and the capacity for storage greater. To fully understand the relationship between levels and available water resources in a given aquifer requires a detailed knowledge of local geological conditions. In aquifers where the natural drainage of groundwater (appearing as springs, seepage lines or 'risings') is rapid, water levels rise more slowly during recharge periods because large quantities are simultaneously being discharged. Other aquifers may respond more rapidly if fewer natural outlets are available.

The (annual) cyclical pattern of recharge is not, however, constant. Changes in weather patterns – rainfall in particular – can significantly influence soil moisture conditions and infiltration rates, producing conditions that vary both spatially and temporally. It is not uncommon for the amount of recharge, and consequently the water level fluctuations, to vary by a factor of four or more between dry years and wet years. This variability is particularly evident in eastern England where, on average, the margin between annual rainfall totals and annual evaporation losses is small.

Groundwater plays an important role in the overall water resources of the British Isles, constituting about one third of public water supplies. Groundwater supplies are often reliable when surface water supplies are stressed. Only the largest artificial reservoirs in the United Kingdom have sufficient capacity to support demands through the driest summers, assuming that they are full at the start of the summer, without some continuous contributions from river intakes. Prolonged dry spells lead, in many rivers, to reduced flow, particularly where the natural groundwater contribution (baseflow) is limited. By way of contrast, a groundwater drought is caused by a lack of winter rainfall. Potentially, the most serious droughts occur when, as in 1975/76 or 1995/96, a dry summer succeeds a notably dry winter, or as in 1988/92 in eastern England, recharge is significantly below average over a series of successive winters. When recharge is significantly above average high groundwater levels may exacerbate surface water flooding, as in the winter of 2000/01.

ŝra	System	Subsystem	Age (10 ⁶ yrs)	Aquifer	Importance
_	Quaternary	Holocene	0.01	Superficial deposits	*
		Pleistocene	1.8	Upper & Middle Pleistocene Crag	*
זחק	Neogene	Pliocene	5	Coralline Crag	**
<b>J</b> NC		Oligocene	38		
3	Paleogene	Eocene	65	Bagshot Beds	**
				Lower London Tertiaries Blackheath & Oldhaven Beds Woolwich & Reading Beds Thanet Beds	**
	Cretaceous	Upper	100	Chalk	****
		Cretaceous		Upper Greensand	***
		Lower	<u> </u>	Lower Greensand	***
ڔ		Cletaceous	145	Hastings Beds	**
1070%	Jurassic	Upper Jurassic	····	Portland & Purbeck Beds (with Spilsby Sandstone)	* (**)
			160	Corallian	**
		Middle Jurassic	180	Gt and Inferior Oolitic limestones (with Lincolnshire Limestone)	** (****)
		Lower	· ·	Bridport & Yeovil Sands	**
		Jurassic	210	Marlstone Rock	
<u> </u>	Triassic	Upper Triassic	230		****
		Lower Triassic	245	<ul> <li>Permo-Triassic sandstones</li> </ul>	
>	Permian		 285	Magnesian Limestone	***
	Carboniferous	Upper Carboniferour		Coal Measures	**
-		Carbonnerous	320	Millstone Grit	**
		Lower Carboniferous	360	Carboniferous Limestone	**
	Devonian		410	Devonian canditone	<u>-</u> *

TABLE 1 GENERALISED LIST OF AQUIFERS IN THE UNITED KINGDOM

**

aquifer producing small, but useful, local supplies aquifer of local importance, often providing local supplies ***

***** aquifer of major importance

Note: There is no formal system for naming aquifers in the UK and some aquifer names reflect common professional usage, and do not represent the latest lithostratigraphic nomenclature. For more information on geological nomenclature, refer to The British Geological Survey Lexicon of Named Rock Units, which can be accessed via the Survey's website at: http://www.bgs.ac.uk/.



Figure 1 Principal aquifers and abservation well locations

#### The Observation Borehole Network

Groundwater level observation wells (in this context, a well includes both shafts - constructed by hand digging - and boreholes - constructed by machinery) are generally used for one of two purposes: either to monitor levels regionally within an aquifer and thus to estimate groundwater resource fluctuations, or to monitor the effects locally of groundwater abstractions. Monitoring networks are generally operated by the Environment Agency in England and Wales, by the Scottish Environment Protection Agency in Scotland and by the Department of the Environment, Northern Ireland. In total there are approximately 5000 sites where groundwater levels are monitored, with the overwhelming majority of wells concentrated in England and Wales. The wells used within the National Groundwater Level Archive, for periodical assessments of the national groundwater situation, consist of a small subset of approximately 170 of these sites, selected by the British Geological Survey (then the Institute of Geological Sciences) in 1981¹. The selection was based upon the hydrogeological units identified in an investigation of the groundwater resources of the United Kingdom²; one site was chosen for each aquifer present within each unit. For Scotland and Northern Ireland, this was not possible due to the very limited number of potential observation wells available.

Since the 1980s a number of changes have been made to the list of selected wells. At some locations observations could no longer be continued and new sites have been added from time to time. Details of the wells currently in this national network are given in the Well Register and Statistics (pages 184 to 196) and are available on the NRFA website (see page 203).

# Measurement and Recording of Groundwater Levels

Many of the observation wells in the national network are equipped with continuous water level recorders. These recorders measure level either by a float or with a pressure transducer. Data are recorded, usually digitally but occasionally on paper charts. Telemetry of groundwater levels is still relatively uncommon; aside from a few monitoring sites used as part of local flood warning schemes, rates of groundwater fluctuation are generally low enough to ensure that instant management response is rarely required. Apart from key wells, the majority of the 5000 observation wells nationally are still measured manually, either weekly or monthly. The usual instrument is an electric probe suspended upon a graduated cable or tape, contact being made by the water to complete a circuit that gives either an audible or visual signal at the surface. Measurements are normally made to the nearest 10 millimetres, although instruments may be capable of greater accuracy.

#### Factors Affecting Level Observations

In addition to responding to recharge from rainfall, some aquifers exhibit short period fluctuations, and water levels can be affected by changes in atmospheric pressure, or by the tidal cycle if close to the coast.

The national observation well network was selected. wherever possible, to reflect natural fluctuations in water levels in response to climatic events. While aquifers respond to recharge from rainfall they are also influenced by pumping abstractions. There are few aquifers in Britain that have not had their natural regime altered to some extent by pumping. The water level in the area surrounding a pumping borehole is lowered, and some observation wells are so seriously affected by pumping that no useful estimates of the annual natural fluctuations can be made. In some aquifers the effect of longterm groundwater abstraction patterns has been to totally alter natural levels, to the point that groundwater levels are dominated by changes in abstraction. This has led to long-term declines in levels in some aquifers, or, if pumping has diminished or ceased, steady increases in levels from historical lows.

Where the aquifer is confined by impermeable rocks, and the site is located at some distance from the outcrop, the seasonal fluctuation may be so small as to be undetectable. These aquifers also tend to be very sensitive to pumping influences, making their monitoring problematic.

#### Groundwater Levels 1996-2000

The range of groundwater levels in observation wells and boreholes over the 1996-2000 period was remarkable, across southern Britain especially. A representative set of groundwater level hydrographs is featured on pages 179 and 180. For each index well the 1996-2000 groundwater levels are shown as a continuous trace, together with the average (lighter trace) and extreme monthly levels (the shaded envelopes) for the pre-1996 record. In many areas, the magnitude of the recovery following the severely depressed groundwater levels recorded in 1996 and 1997 has no close parallel in the instrumented era. Above average recharge in the winters of 1997/98 and 1998/99 set the scene for exceptional hydrogeological conditions in many UK aquifers over the 2000/2001 recharge season. The September 2000 -April 2001 period was the wettest 8-month sequence on record for England and Wales (in a series from 1766). This resulted in record high groundwater levels in many aquifers. By late 2000 groundwater levels exceeded previous maxima throughout most of the Chalk aquifer, and generally were still rising. In the slower-responding Permo-Triassic sandstones, levels continued to rise well into 2001 and, commonly, levels in the early spring were substantially higher than any previously recorded. The groundwater statistics presented in this volume relate to the preceding

#### GROUNDWATER-REGISTER AND STATISTICS







recharge season but the start of the exceptional conditions can be seen in the hydrographs at the end of 2000. For further details of the impact of the 2000/01 recharge on groundwater levels see: http://www.nwl.ac.uk/ih/nrfa/water_watch/index.htm

# Scope of the Register and the Statistical Tabulations

The groundwater data are presented in two parts. The first (the Well Register and Statistics table) provides a register of reference details relating to the individual wells alongside a statistical summary of fluctuations over the featured period. In the second part (Table 2) these data are used to assess recharge and groundwater resource changes for the major aquifers in the United Kingdom over the period 1996–2000.

The sites listed in the borehole Register were selected so as to give a reasonably representative cover for aquifers throughout. England and Wales; three sites are featured for Northern Ireland and one for Scotland. The wells are grouped according to the aquifer to which the water level variations in the wells are attributed. A generalised list of aquifers (Table 1) provides the conventional names of the major UK aquifers; the aquifers are tabulated in stratigraphical order but the local names for individual strata are mostly omitted, and the intervening aquicludes are not shown. The location of the wells featured in the Register, and the outcrop areas of the main aquifers, are shown in Figure 1.

#### WELL REGISTER AND STATISTICS

The following explanatory notes will assist in the interpretation of particular items in the tabular material.

#### Well Number

The well numbering system is based upon the National Grid. Each 100 kilometre square is designated by prefix characters, e.g. SE, and is divided into 100 squares of 10 kilometre sides designated by numbers 00 (in the south-west corner) to 99 (in the north-east corner). Thus, the site SE94/5 is the fifth well or borehole recorded in the National Well Record Archive within the 10 kilometre square SE94. A suffix such as A, B, etc., defines the particular well when there are several at the same site. This numbering scheme is used by the BGS for all identified water wells and boreholes. For Northern Ireland, which is on the Irish Grid, the first of the prefix characters is always 'I'.

A complete set of prefix letters for the UK is shown in Frontispiece I.

#### Name

The name by which the well is normally referenced. All the monitoring sites featured in the Register are shown on Figure 1.

#### Hydrometric Area – H.A.

The Hydrometric Area is either an integral river catchment having one or more outlets to the sea or tidal estuary, or, for convenience, it may include several contiguous river catchments having topographical similarity with separate tidal outlets – see page 4.

#### Grid Reference - NGR

The eight-figure references given in the Register relate to the 100 kilometre National (or Irish) Grid square designated by the two-letter code appearing as the prefix characters in the Well Number.

### Measuring Authority - M.A.

The measuring authority refers to the body that is responsible for taking groundwater level readings at the particular site. In England Wales this is normally the appropriate regional office of the Environment Agency. A full list of codes, together with the corresponding names and addresses appears in the Directory of Measuring Authorities (page 201).

#### EEC Unit

Sub divisions of the principal aquifers as defined in a major study of the ground water resources of the  $UK^1$ . These units are used in the areal assessment of recharge (see below).

#### Level

The altitude of the point from which measurements are taken at a particular site, given in metres above Ordnance Datum.

#### Comment

A short commentary relating to important characteristics of the well and its associated record of groundwater levels; particular reference may be made to the effect of local or regional pumping on the water levels at the observation site. Levels at a representative selection of sites are updated at relatively frequent intervals, usually monthly. Such sites are used when an immediate assessment of the national groundwater situation is required; wells and boreholes used for this purpose are designated as *index wells*.

### Period

The first and last years of data on the National Groundwater Level Archive used in the analysis for this current volume. For various reasons, the full period of record may not be used in all analyses.

#### Mean Annual Range

The increase in the level measured in a well over a given period will be approximately proportional to the recharge over that period. By monitoring levels over a recharge season, defined as the end of the summer recession of groundwater levels and the beginning of the summer recession of the following year, an estimate of annual recharge (proportional to previous years) can be arrived at. This method was first introduced in the Hydrometric Register and Statistics 1981–85 volume. It is most suited to circumstances when a single peak is readily identifiable in each recharge season.

Calculations are made for a standard recharge season, defined as the first day of August to the last day of the following July. The water level at each site is estimated, by extrapolation where necessary, for the last day of each month. The use of end-of-month levels was dictated to a large extent by the existence of endof-month data only for the longest pre-1990 records. However, where some sites are measured at close time intervals (weekly or daily), the summed cumulative rises give a significantly larger total than the rise determined by end-of-month levels alone. To compare sites with differing intervals between measurements, it is thus necessary to use a common base.

The next stage of the calculation sums the monthly rises over the recharge season. Months during which water levels fall are ignored. This cumulative rise may be the same as the difference between the *trough* and *peak* levels, but only if infiltration has a sensibly uninterrupted impact on groundwater levels throughout the recharge season.

The summed rise for each year is called the *annual fluctuation*, and the mean of the annual fluctuations over the period of record is termed the *mean annual range*. This is assumed to be proportional to the mean annual recharge at the site over the same period. In turn, this also assumes that the natural discharge (via, for example, springs and seepages) is constant. The cumulative rise has less utility as an index of ground-water replenishment when recharge is particularly episodic.

For most wells, the errors caused by this assumption will be small, but at some observation sites, levels have been seriously affected by pumping for part of the period of record. At other sites, data for some years may be suspect or missing. Consequently, the determination of the mean annual range may not always be made for the full period of record but only for those years where reliable data are available. The method is only applicable to wells with a distinct response to recharge events.

#### Maximum Annual Range

The largest annual fluctuation determined for the period of record.

#### Minimum Annual Range

The smallest annual fluctuation determined for the period of record.

#### - Trough Level

The groundwater level, in metres above (or below) Ordnance Datum, at the end of the summer recession. In slow-responding wells the trough may be reached towards the end, or beyond the end, of the calendar year. During periods of drought some wells may be dry for extended periods.

#### Peak Level

The groundwater level, in metres above (or below) Ordnance Datum, at the beginning of the summer recession. If no recharge occurs during the recharge season, the peak level is taken as the highest level recorded between the beginning of August and the end of the following July.

#### Fluctuation as a % of Mean Range

The cumulative end-of-month rises for that particular recharge year expressed as a percentage of the mean annual range.

#### Areal Assessment of Recharge

The values of annual range for individual monitoring wells are considered to be proportional to recharge for the aquifer in which the site is located. Calculations . have been made of the actual mean annual replenishment of aquifers, and so by combining the annual range, expressed as a percentage of the long term mean, with these estimates, it is possible to arrive at figures for total aquifer recharge in a particular year. The estimates are given in Table 2, tabulated by EA region and by aquifer unit. The mean annual replenishment figures were calculated in 1982 as part of a comprehensive assessment of the groundwater resources of the United Kingdom². There are insufficient water level monitoring data for the calculation to be extended

	MAR		Rep	lenishment (m ³ >	< 10 ⁶ )	
EA Region	$(m^3 \times 10^6)$	1995-96	1996-97	1997-98	1998-99	1999–00
Chalk and Up	per Greensand a	quifer		-		
Anglian	955	575 (60)	930 (95)	1250 (130)	1185 (125)	690 (70)
Southern	1230	805 (65)	790 (65)	1600 (130)	1495 (120)	1300 (105)
South West	1150	1165 (100)	910 (80)	1435 (125)	1180 (100)	1445 (125)
Thames	975	640 (65)	705 (70)	1370 (140)	1270 (130)	1160 (120)
North East	320	245 (75)	180 (55)	435 (135)	375 (115)	315 (95)
Totals	4630	3415 (75)	3755 (80)	5805 (125)	5475 (120)	4610 (100)
Lincolnshire Li	imestone aquifer					•
Anglian	85	95 (110)	105 (125)	90 (100)	85 (100)	61 (70)
Permo-Triassic	sandstones aqui	fer		- <u>-</u>		
North East	310	230 (75)	320 (100)	470 (150)	345 (110)	265 (85)
North West	330	115 (35)	280 (85)	270 (80)	380 (115)	255 (75)
Midlands	530	485 (90)	290 (55)	710 (135)	805 (155)	545 (105)
South West	245	270 (110)	130 (55)	370 (150)	215 (90)	294 (120)
Welsh	30	35 (125)	20 (75)	25 (95)	45 (170)	60 (220)
Totals	1445	1135 (80)	1045 (70)	1850 (130)	1795 (125)	1420 (100)
Magnesian Lin	nestone aquifer					
North East	205	120 (55)	140 (65)	360 (175)	245 (120)	190 (90)
Midlands	40	35 (85)	45 (110)	35 (90)	45 (115)	40 (100)
Totals	245	155 (60)	180 (75)	400 (160)	295 (120)	230 (95)

TABLE 2 ANNUAL REPLENISHMENT TO THE MORE IMPORTANT AQUIFERS IN ENGLAND AND WALES OVER THE PERIOD 1995/1996 TO 1999/2000

MAR = Mean Annual Replenishment

Percentages of the annual mean are shown in parentheses. Values have been rounded to reflect the uncertainty in source data and recharge calculation.

outside England. Given the nature of the data upon which the estimates are based, and the limitations in the

procedure for assessing recharge, the results should be used as a general guide only.

#### References

- Monkhouse, R.A., and Murti, P.K. 1981. The Rationalisation of Groundwater Observation Well Networks in England and Wales. Institute of Geological Sciences, Unpublished Report No. WD/81/1, 18p.
- 2. Monkhouse, R.A., and Richards, H.J. 1982. Groundwater Resources of the United Kingdom. Commission of the European Communities, published Th. Schaeffer Druckerei GmbH, Hannover, 252p.

Well Regist	er and Statisi	tics			Perlod	Trough level (m)	Peak level (m)	ctuations as a % the mean range
Aquifer: Superficial D	eposits							Ξ ² δ
IJ28001 NGR: IJ 22488620 EEC Unit: 4 Comment: Influenced by artificial	Templepatrick M. Levei: 43.83m AOD drainage which suppresses groundwate	H.A: 203 A: DOE Northern Ireland r peaks.	<b>Period:</b> 1984–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	1.70m 2.51m 0.98m	1995—96 1996—97 1997—98 1998—99 1999—2000	41.88 40.48 40.55 40.65 42.12	44.2 44.2 41.52 43.15 43.65	89 15 62
SO44004 NGR: SO 46834253 EEC Unit: Comment: No data for 1997, data	Stretton Sugwas, Roman Road Level: 68.04m AOD quality problems and gaps in data 199	H.A: M.A: EA Wales 7–2000.	Period: 1973-1999 Mean ann, range: Maximum ann, range: Minimum ann, range:	1.61m 4.96m 0.00m	1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	58.2 57.9 57.86 57.2 57.2	60.73 60.12 60.44 60.44 60.37	**
Aquifer: Chalk								
ID30001 NGR: ID 36630310 EEC Unit: 6 Comment: Index well Good repre	Killyglen (NI) Level: 139.23m AOD sentative site with no known artificial inf	H.A: 205 A: DOE Northern Ireland Ivences.	Period: 1985–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	6.56m 9.24m 4.09m	1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	112.6 112.7 113.4 113.3 113.0	119.9 119.4 118.9 117.9 119.9	11 10 80 66 11
SE94005 NGR: SE 96514530 EEC Unit: 32 Comment: Index well. Logger ins 16 hour recovery before levels meas outlets	Daiton Holme Level: 34.5m AOD tatled. Licensed abstraction well. Pumpi ured. Maximum water level possibly contr	H.A: 26 M.A: EA North East ng was stopped to allow olled by the level of spring	Period: 1889–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	6.26m 11.40m 0.34m	1995 - 96 1996 - 97 1997 - 98 1998 - 99 1999 - 2000	11.02 10.09 10.73 14.11 13.91	22.1 15.14 21.27 21.38 21.38	47 66 12 11 92
SE95006 NGR: SE 95785939 EEC Unit: 26 Comment: Index well Logger inst	Wetwang Level: 42.28m AOD alled.	H.A: 31 M.A: EA North East	Period: 1971–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	9.41m 16.80m 1.43m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	17.8 17.41 19.22 19.24 19.26	31.42 25.56 31.1 31.1 30.5	10 52 17 12 10
SE97031 NGR: SE 93457079 EEC Unit: 30 Comment:	Green Lane Level: 92.73m AOD	H.A: 26 M.A: EA North East	Period: 1971–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	11.20m 21.00m 1.24m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	55.6 54.77 55.6 59.31 57.49	70.81 64.05 71.43 80.72 80.72	73 41 12 14 11
SP90026 NGR: SP 94700875 EEC Unit: 17 Comment: Closed 1999.	Champneys Level: 183,14m AOD	H.A: 39 M.A: EA Thames	Period: 1962–1996 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	8.05m 19.40m 0.00m	1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	122.7 120.9	138.3 126.5	
SP91059 NGR: SP 93801570 EEC Unit: 9 Comment: Influenced by abstrac natural conditions.	Pitstone Green Farm Level: 110.14m AOD tions from Pitstone Cement Works: leve	H.A: 33 M.A: EA Anglia els may be lower than in	Period: 1970–1999 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	0.64m 2.07m 0.01m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	108.8 108.8 108.9 108.9 108.9	109.5 109.5 109.4 109.6 109.5	15 18 13 58
SU01005B NGR: SU 01601949 EEC Unit: 4 Comment: Index well.	West Woodystes Manor Level: 110.88m AOD	H.A: 43 M.A: EA South West	Period: 1942–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	26.80m 36.20m 4.72m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	69.54 69.48 70.91 72.01 71.47	103.4 93.93 98.71 104.0 104.0	89 92 12 10 15
SU17057 NGR: SU 16557174 EEC Unit: 12 Comment: Index well. Telemetry	Rockley Level: 146.57m AOD site.	H.A: 39 M.A: EA Thames	Period: 1933–2000 Mean ann. range: . Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	9.93m 14.60m 0.38m	1995 - 96 1996 - 97 1997 - 98 1998 - 99 1999 - 2000	129.1 128.7 128.5 131.1 130.6	143.9 137.0 141.4 143.6 143.6	76 35 13 12 12
SU32003 NGR: SU 38172743 EEC Unit: 33 Comment:	Baileys Down Farm Level: 88.22m AOD	H.A: 42 M.A: EA Southern	<b>Period:</b> 1964–2000 Mean ann, range: Maximum ann, range; Minimum ann, range;	14,50m 30.00m 0.48m	1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	35.44 34.21 33.68 35.12 35.77	60.26 51.15 39.82 47.33 49.74	11 33 98 96 14
SU34008D NGR: SU 32224902 EEC Unit: 34 Comment: Replaced SU34/8A in	Clanville Lodge Gate Level: 101.55m AOD 1986.	H.A: 42 M.A: EA Southern	Period: 1963-2000 Mean ann, range: Maximum ann, range: Minimum ann, range:	6.23m 11.90m 0.00m	199596 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	78.86 77.16 73.65 79.27 60.71	91.57 85.04 79.96 83.87 87.24	16 12 11
SU35014 NGR: SU 33155645 EEC Unit: 34 Comment:	Woodside Level: 135.15m AOD	H.A: 42 M.A: EA Southern	<b>Period</b> : 1960–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range; Minimum ann. range;	14.70m 28.70m 0.30m	1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	98.3 96.15 96.16 99.19 99.85	127.4 109.8 99.8 110.2 121.7	20 10 14 12

÷

---

•

groundwater

					Period	Trough level (m)	Peak level (m)	Fluctuations as a % of the mean range
SU51001 NGR: SU 59151685 EEC Unit: 30 Comment: Boretole shows increa	Upper Hill Farm Level: 92.81m AOD Ised magnitude of seasonal fluctaution after 1	H.A: 42 M.A: EA Southern 1993, limiting reliability	Period: 1973-2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range:	1.60m 4.30m	1995 - 96 1996 - 97 1997 - 98	44.3 44.21 44.18	48.54 44.83 44.82	29 39
of Mean Annual Recharge data.			Minimum ann, range:	0.16m	1998-99 1999-2000	44.47 44.34	45.46 45.44	10 48
SU53094 NGR: SU 55863498 EEC Unit: 31 Comment:	Abbotstone Level: 94.82m AOD	H.A: 42 M.A: EA Southern	Period: 1976–2009 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	0.68m 1.33m 0.19m	1995 - 96 1996 - 97 1997 - 98 1998 - 99	65.54 65.43 65.35 65.52	66.63 66.01 65.96 66.25	55 50 81 93
SU57159 NGR: SU 56287530	Calversleys Farm	H.A: 39 M.A: EA Thames	Period: 1974-2000	6 F.Q	1999-2000 1995-96	65.63 68.8	66.27 78.7 73.85	87 81
EEC Unit: 13 Comment:	Level: 123.74m AOD		Mean ann, range: Maximum ann, range: Minimum ann, range:	5.52m 10.40m 0.00m	1995-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	67.24 66.68 68.63 69.86	73.86 71.8 76.9 78.56	86 13 15
SU61032 NGR: SU 65781775 EEC Unit: 29 Comment:	Chidden Farm Level: 104.79m AOD	H.A: 42 M.A: EA Southern	Period: 1958–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	15.40m 23.70m 3.90m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99	64.79 64.94 66.51 68.09 67.32	88.41 77.83 80.51 87.74 85.64	. 78 93 12 10
SU61046 NGR: SU 68901532 EEC Unit: 28 Comment: No data since mid 199	Hinton Mannor Farm Level: 141.41m AOD 99.	H.A: 42 M.A: EA Southern	Period: 1953-1999 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	13.90m 27.20m 0.20m	1995 - 96 1996 - 97 1997 - 98 1998 - 99	39.94 34.06 34.59 37.36	64.91 40.86 40.61 51.17	41 13
SU64028	Lower Wield Farm	H.A: 42 M.A: EA Southern	Period: 1961-2000		1999 - 2000 1995 - 96	42.1 95.04	54.26 99.36	57
EEC Unit: 32 Comment:	Level: 158.95m AOD		Mean ann, range: Maximum ann, range: Minimum ann, range:	2.40m 7.29m 0.20m	1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	93.74 92.1 94.12 95.22	96.45 95.14 95.56 98.02	55 12 14 12
SU68049 NGR: SU 64428525 EEC Unit: 14 Comment: Dipped monthly since	Well Place Farm Level: 90.47m AOD 1999.	H.A: 39 M.A: EA Thames	Period: 1976–1999 Mean ann. range: ·. Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	5.53m 17.50m 0.00m	1995 - 96 1996 - 97 1997 - 98 1998 - 99 1999 - 2000	66.57 57.48 54.92 57.97 65.35	73.26 70.91 68.62 71.28 71.28	66 0 25 11 10
SU71023 NGR: SU 77561491 EEC Unit: 27 Comment: Index well. Previously	Compton House Level: 81.37m AOD numbered SU14/1.	H.A: 41 M.A: EA Southern	Period: 1894–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	21.10m 38.10m 0.39m	1995 - 96 1996 - 97 1997 - 98 1998 - 99 1999 - 2000	28.74 29.14 30.03 31.49 30.97	66.1 41.45 58.14 61.95 61.95	48 55 13 13 88
SU73008 NGR: SU 70483491 EEC Unit: 21 Comment:	Faringdon Station Level: 120.7m AQD	H.A: 39 M.A: EA Southern	Period: 1966–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	11.40m 21.80m 2.06m	1995 - 96 1996 - 97 1997 - 98 1998 - 99 1999 - 2000	93.18 92.78 92.4 96.61 95.79	116.5 104.0 102.5 107.3 115.2	72 73 95 14 10
SU76046 NGR: SU 73676251 EEC Unit: 18 Comment: Borehole shows minin	Riseley Mill Level: 52.35m AOD nal seasonal response.	H,A: 39 M,A: EA Thames	Period: 1975-2000 Mean ann. range: : Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	1.88m 7.80m 0.03m	1995 - 96 1996 - 97 1997 - 98 1998 - 99 1999 - 2000	32.26 32.57 32.77 33.16 34.05	34.22 34.25 34.25 35.32 35.68	
SU78045A NGR: SU 74198924 EEC Unit: 15 Comment: Index well. Telemetry	Stonor Park Level: 121.29m AOD site.	H.A: 39 M.A: EA Thames	Period: 1961–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	7.90m 18.70m 0.00m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1998–99	71.41 63.02 62.02 64.97 71.2	85.17 76.54 73.91 81.79 81.79	64 0.4 15 17 12
SU81001 NGR: SU 83521438 EEC Unit: 27 Comment: Index well, longest cor Levels have been known to be affe	Chilgrove House Level: 77.18m AOD ttinuous record held on archive. Possibly lar acted by local abstractions. Occasionally over	H.A: 41 M.A: EA Southern vgest record in world. erflows.	Period: 1836–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	25.20m 48.00m 0.93m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	34.12 34.47 36.03 38.74 38.06	76.18 53.45 70.28 74.72 74.72	55 65 13 12 98
SU87001 NGR: SU 83367885 EEC Unit: 19 Comment: No data for Apr 1998	Folly Cottage Level: 50.99m AOD to Mar 1999.	H.A: 39 M.A: EA Thames	Period: 1950-2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Misimum ann. range:	5.91m 11.10m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99	29.88 29.02 28.89 31.47	40.57 35.52 33.42 34.45	88 27

					1999-2000	31.35	35.97	86
SU89007	Piddington	H.A: 39						
NGR: SU 81039417		M.A: EA Thames	Period: 1966-2000		1995-96	96.26	103.9	71
EEC Unit: 16	Level: 110.11m AOD		Mean ann, range:	4.26m	1996-97	93.6	99,52	4
Comment: 6 months data r	missing 2000.		Maximum ann. range:	11.40m	1997-98	92.54	99,91	16
			Minimum ann, range:	0.00m	1998-99	95.79	103.9	14
					1999-2000	97.13	103.9	
SY68034	Ashton Farm	H.A: 44						
NGR: SY 66168805		M.A: EA South West	Period: 1974-2000		1995-96	63.98	71.35	11
EEC Unit: 5	Level: 72.16m AOD		Mean ann, range: -	5.93m	1996-97	64.16	71.01	11
Comment: Index well. Could	d be affected by local abstractions. The chalk in th	e area is well faulted	Maximum ann, range:	7.95m	1997-98	64.22	71.2	11
which could have a significa	ant effect on the hydrogeology. Local layering of t	he aquifer will affect	Minimum ann. range:	1.18m	1998 - 99	64.82	71.36	10
oroundwater					1999 - 2000	64.98	71.36	12

#### HYDROLOGICAL DATA: 1996-2000

-

-

.

					Perlod	Trough level (m)	Peak level (m)	Fluctuations as a % of the mean range
TA06016 NGR: TA EEC Unit: 31 Comment: Logger installed.	Nafferton Pumping Station Level: 80.02m AOD	H.A: 26 M.A: EA North East	. Period: 1964–2000 Mean ann, range: Maximum ann, range: Minimum ann, range:	5.29m 12.40m 1.26m	1995–96 .1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	17.12 16.71 17.98 18.25 18.18	24.06 20.94 → 23.83 24.85 24.85	72 55 14 10 98
TA07028 NGR: TA EEC Unit: 27 Comment: Logger installed.	Hunmanby Hall Level: 79.73m AOD	H.A: 27 M.A: EA North East	Period: 1976–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	5.68m 13.60m 0.00m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	28.33 26.73 26.88 30.79 30.69	36.21 32.12 36.15 37.98 37.98	65 16 15 10 82
TA10006 NGR: TA EEC Unit: Comment: No data Sep '51 to A	Pimlico Level: 66.28m AOD ug 59 and 1976. Manually dipped. Re	H.A: 29 M.A: EA Anglia liable data, but	Period: 1929–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	10.60m 24.90m 0.00m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	9.83 9.82 9.82 12.22 12.03	25.03 11.48 20.56 24.44 24.44	11 10
TA10063 NGR: TA EEC Unit: Comment: index well replaced K	Aylesby Level: 31.25m AOD eelby Grange. Telemetry installed 1997	H.A: • M.A: EA Anglia 7, manually dipped monthly.	Period: 1978–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	5.48m 11.30m 0.15m	- 1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	7.65 5.98 6.28 8.64 13.02	19.9 9.36 16.75 20.5 20.5	38 17 13 12
TA11158 NGR: TA EEC Unit: 1 Comment: Telemetry removed o	Keelby Grange Level: 29.32m AOD tue to access problems 2000, replaced	H.A: 29 M.A: EA Anglia d as index well by Aylesby.	. Period: 1980–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	4.70m 11.10m 0.66m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	4.92 4.07 4.92 6.56 10.72	16.48 6.97 13.12 16.92 16.92	16 43 17 14
TA21041A NGR: TA EEC Unit: 33 Comment: Previously numbered	Church Farm (Sunk Island) Level: 3.2m AOD I TA21/14. No data 1996, 1997.	H.A: 26 M.A: EA North East	Period: 1971–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	0.59m 1.09m 0.21m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	0.79 1.57 1.49 1.55	1.79 1.78 1.93 2.01	57 82
TF29049 NGR: TF 26049823 EEC Unit: 1 Comment: Telemetry removed 1	Grainsby Level: 45.91m AOD . 1999. Reliable data.	H.A: 29 M.A: EA Anglia	Period: 1977–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	5.77m 11.40m 0.09m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	6.43 5.27 5.36 7.89 10.96	17.9 7,97 15.01 19.38 19.38	16 28 14 13 11
TF72011 NGR: TF 77102330 EEC Unit: .18 Comment: Represents naturally	Off Farm Level: 81.12m AOD occuring conditions, Reliable data. No	H.A: 33 M.A: EA Anglia , data after 1998.	Period: 1971–1997 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	5.90m 16.80m 0.58m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	26.17 25.55 27.62 29.16	34.94 30.29 34.71 34.71	13 75
TF73009 NGR: TF 77903270 EEC Unit: 20 Comment: Represents naturally reduce confidence in Mean Annu	Coe Ltd. Bircham Level: 55.97m AOD / occuring conditions. Reliable data. Li al Recharge figures.	H.A: 33 M.A: EA Anglia imited seasonal fluctuations	Period: 1971–1999 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	2.50m 6.83m 0.00m	1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	42.53 40.48 40.82 43.81 46.37	48.55 43.87 46.49 48.32 48.32	9 80 22 17 21
TF80033 NGR: TF 87300526 EEC Unit: 15 Comment: Represents naturally	Houghton Common Level: 73.25m AOD occuring conditions. Reliable data.	H.A: 33 M.A: EA Anglia	Period: 1971–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: `Minimum ann. range:	2.25m 4.84m 0.64m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	32.7 31.45 33.5 34 33.23	37.4 34.45 36.02 38.8 39.3	35 14 10 70
TF81002A NGR: TF 81381960 EEC Unit: 17 Comment: Index well. Previou Reliable data. The chalk in the ar	Washpit Farm Level: 80.2m AOD sly numbered TF81/2. Represents na rea is unconfined.	H.A: 33 M.A: EA Anglia aturally occuring conditions.	Period: 1950–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range;	2.94m 7m 0.00m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	41.55 40.77 41.36 43.03 43.57	46.83 43.08 46.43 47.74 47.74	80 17 13 80
TF83001 NGR: TF 85783606 EEC Unit: 20 Comment:	South Creake Level: 23.41m AOD	H.A: 34 M.A: EA Anglia	Period: 1952–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	1.86m 4.82m 0.00m	1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	19.69 19.46 18.84 20.13 20.76,	22.85 20.36 22.02 22.88 22.88	16 12 57
TF92005 NGR: TF 98692183 EEC Unit: 28 Comment:	Tower Hills Pumping Station Level: 45.52m AOD	H.A: 30 M.A: EA Anglia	Period: 1974–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	1.23m 2.95m 0.19m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	24.18 24.13 24.19 24.7 24.95	26.45 25.2 25.86 26.09 26.09	16 96 14 10 60
TG00092 NGR: TG 04400020 EEC Unit: 30 Comment: Represents naturally means that Mean Annual Rechai	High Elm Farm Level: 59.92m AOD occuring conditions. Reliable data, but rge values are unreliable.	H.A: 33 M.A: EA Anglia limited seasonal fluctuations	Pariod: 1972–1999 Mean ann. rànge: Maximum ann. rànge: Minimum ann. rànge:	4.58m 11.30m 0.48m	1995-96 • 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	45.82 45.82 45.82 46.83 47.25	53.19 47.75 51.79 53.85 53.85	10 48 16 14 46
TG03025B NGR: TG 03823583 EEC Unit: 22 Comment: Borehole occasional	Brinton Farm Level: 43.2m AOD - Iy artesian.	H.A: 34 M.A: EA Anglia	Period: 1952–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	1.36m 3.86m 0.16m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1998–99	39.3 39.57 41.12 41.12 41.81	43.06 42.62 42.8 43.38 43.38	13 13 55

•

					Period	Trough level (m)	Poak level (m)	Fluctuations as a % of the mean range
TG11005 NGR: TG 16911101 EEC Unit: 29 Comment:	The Spinney, Costessey Level: 17.92m AOD	H.A: 34 M.A: EA Angéa	Period: 1952–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	1.12m 2.37m 0.17m	1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	8.29 8.29 8.56 8.95 9.03	10.55 9.59 10.12 10.24 10.24	12 13 11 70
TG12007 NGR: TG 11262722 EEC Unit: 24 Comment:	Heydon Pumping Station Level: 44.98m AOD	H.A: 34 M.A: EA Ang§a	Period: 1974–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	0.81m 1.78m 0.00m	1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	40.55 40.55 40.89 41.21 41.59	42.51 41.52 41.8 42.19 42.19	61 10 10 11 60
TG21009 NGR: TG 24001657 EEC Unit: 25 Comment:	Frettenham Depot Level: 6.73m AOD	H.A: 34 M.A: EA Ang≌a	Period: 1952–1998 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	1.07m 2.11m 0.23m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	4.56 4.55 4.42 4.61	6.47 5.26 5.91 5.91	27 64 14
TG21010 NGR: TG 26911139 EEC Unit: 32 Comment: No data 1997, 1998.	Grange Farm Level: 35.52m AOD	H.A: 34 M.A: EA Anglia	Period: 1984–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	0.68m 2.25m 0.00m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	18.03 18.11 17.89 17.89	18.54 18.54 18.12 18.3	
TG23021 NGR: TG 29323101 EEC Unit: 26 Comment:	Melbourne House Level: 17.18m AOD	H.A: 34 M.A: EA Anglia	Period: 1994–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	0.42m 0.70m 6.81m	1995 - 96 1996 - 97 1997 - 98 1998 - 99 1999 - 2000	12.72 12.72 12.77 12.77 13.25	13.83 13.29 13.28 13.75 13.75	23 11 18 24 10
TG31020 NGR: TG 33651606 EEC Unit: 27 Comment:	Woodbastwick Hall Level: 3.04m AOD	H.A: 34 M.A: EA Anglia	<b>Period:</b> 1974–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	0.28m 0.49m 0.11m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	0.47 0.47 0.48 0.48 0.61	0.95 0.76 0.86 0.93 0.93	82 91 60 12 46
TG32016 NGR: TG 37002682 EEC Unit: Comment:	Brumstead Hall, Stalham Level: 7.56m AOD	H.A: 34 M.A: EA Anglia	<b>Period:</b> 1978–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	0.50m 1.22m 0.06m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	0.86 0.86 0.91 1.22 1.46	2.17 1.35 1.57 1.92 1.94	12 88 12 12 88
TL11046 NGR: TL 15601555 EEC Unit: 1 Comment: Previously numbered drought.	Mackerye End Farm Level: 122.38m AOD TL11/4 Removed 1999, borehole consistent	H.A: 38 M.A: EA Thames y dried during mild	Period: 1963–1998 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	0.80m 2.70m 0.10m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	82.92 82.92 82.92 82.92 82.92	84.67 83.92 83.43 82.92	17 62
TL1109 NGR: TL 16921965 EEC Unit: 2 Comment: Pumping Aug 2000. T	The Holt Level: 138.17m AOD o be replaced by TL12/122 Lilley Bottom.	H.A: 38 M.A: EA Tharnes	<b>Period:</b> 1964–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	2.20m 5.59m 0.00m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	86.19 84.45 83.87 83.89 85.43	91,04 87.35 85.88 89.07 89.07	23 1 89 15 52
TL12122 NGR: TL 15702274 EEC Unit: Comment: Replaced The Holt, re	Lilley Bottom Level: m. AOD cords since 1979, recorder installed.	H.A: M.A: EA Thames	Period: Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. Minimum ann. range:	m m m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1998–99	·		
TL13024 NGR: TL 12003026 EEC Unit: 10 Comment: Represents naturally (	West Hitchin Level: 81.58m AOD occuring conditions. Reliable data.	H.A: 33 M.A: EA Anglia	<b>Period:</b> 1970–1999 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	1.63m 3.90m 0.00m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	73.06 72.5 73.17 73.68 73.71	75.29 74.6 74.69 75.48 75.48	10 12 11 10
TL33004 NGR: TL 33303720 EEC Unit: 4 Comment: Index well. To be repla have been corrected for measuring lag between infittration and recharg	Therfield Rectory Level: 154.81m AOD liced by TL33/67 Hay Farm. Early measuremer line shrinkage or stretching assuming a unifor ge.	H.A: 38 M.A: EA Thames hts (c 1883 to 1949) m change. Lengthy	Period: 1883–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	5.70m 16.20m 0.00m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	76.44 71.5 71.5 71.61 73.26	88.2 78.29 73.03 79.28 79.28	31 0 25 12 85
TL42006 NGR: TL 45362676 EEC Unit: 5 Comment:	Hixham Hall Level: 111.34m AOD	H.A: 38 M.A: EA Thames	<b>Period:</b> 1964–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	2.59m 7.29m 0.00m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	71.14 68.56 67.93 68.73 70.43	76.22 72.63 70.1. 73.26 73.26	24 14 81 16 95
TL42008 NGR: TL 46692955 EEC Unit: 6 Comment:	Berden Hall Level: 107.89m AOD	H.A: 38 M.A: EA Thames	<b>Period:</b> 1964–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	2.37m 5.26m 0.00m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	68.39 66.38 66.19 66.83 68.07	73.6 70.77 68.65 71.29 71.7	47 76 10 19 14
TL44012 NGR: TL 45224182 EEC Unit: 12 Comment: Index well. Represent layering of the aquifer in the area	Redlands Hall Level: 76.19m AOD Its naturally occuring conditions. Reliable da which will affect groundwater movement.	H.A: 33 M.A: EA Anglia ta. There is some	<b>Period:</b> 1963–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	8.29m 17.10m 0.00m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1998–2000	36.09 32.95 32.3 32.34 36.35	51 42.56 37.12 44.64 44.64	70 55 11 89

#### HYDROLOGICAL DATA: 1996-2000

-

					Period	Trough level (m)	Peak level (m)	luctuations as a % of the mean range
TL55109 NGR: TL 59255605 EEC Unit: Comment: Represents naturally of	Lower Farm Level: 57.65m AOD occuring conditions. Reliable data.	H.A: M.A: EA Anglia	<b>Period:</b> 1983–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	4.58m 9.87m 1.06m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99	14.79 12.36 11.81 11.81	25.08 17.9 16.85 21.5	44 -; 22 99 13
TL72054 NGR: TL 79822516 EEC Unit: 46 Comment:	Rectory Road Level: 67.63m AOD	H.A: 37 M.A: EA Anglia	<b>Period:</b> 1968–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	1.42m 6.69m 0.00m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99	17.75 13.74 13.74 13.78 15.29	21.5 15.49 15.33 15.82 19.47	65 84 60 11
TL84006 NGR: TL 84654106 EEC Unit: 44 Comment:	Smeetham Hall Cottages Level: 55.03m AOD	H.A. 36 M.A. EA Anglia	<b>Period:</b> 1963–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	1.25m 2.36m 0.00m	1999-2000 1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1998-99	15 25.43 25.36 25.21 25.54 26.37	19.47 28.32 26.29 26.85 27.31	33 , 25 22 12 15
TL86110 NGR: TL 88506470 EEC Unit: 13 Commont: Represents naturally of	Cattishall Farm Level: 61.65m AOD occuring conditions. Reliable data.	H.A: 33 M.A: EA Anglia	<b>Period:</b> 1969–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	2.72m 7.35m 0.00m	1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1998-2000	31.61 30.91 30.57 32.24 33.48	37.19 32.64 34.21 34.85 35.05	11 38 13 92 55
TL89037 NGR: TL 81319001 EEC Unit: 15 Comment: 'No data June '95 to F	Grimes Graves Level: 17.22m AOD eb '96 Represents naturally occuring condition	H.A: 33 M.A: EA Anglia ns. Reliable data.	<b>Period:</b> 1971–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	2.87m 5.21m 0.09m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	6.24 5.76 6.9 7.41 8.58	12.16 7.91 10.71 11.36 11.36	68 11 13 67
TL92001 NGR: TL 96572562 EEC Unit: 45 Comment: ,	Lexden Pumping Station Level: 15.6m AOD	H.A: 37 M.A: EA Anglia	<b>Period:</b> 1961–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	3.05m 6.98m 0.48m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	0.13 0.25 0.68 1.88 4.56	6.24 3.86 4.84 5.22 5.6	40 14 13 45
TM15112 NGR: TM EEC Unit: 43 Comment: Index well.	Dial Farm Level: 64.6m AOD	H.A: 35 M.A: EA Anglia	Period: 1968–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	0.45m 1.07m 0.05m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1998–99	25.07 24.69 24.61 24.62 25.22	25.89 25.31 25.26 25.61 25.99	11 18 13 12 13
TM26095 NGR: TM EEC Unit: 39 Comment: Missing data, late 199	Strawberny Hill Level: 48.57m AOD 5, late 1998.	H.A: 35 ⁻ M.A: EA Anglia	Period: 1974–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	0.37m 0.80m 0.03m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	26.61 26.56 26.51 26.63 26.9	27.23 26.97 26.91 27.13 27.17	87 11 7 <del>5</del>
TQ01133 NGR: TQ EEC Unit: 24 Comment:	Chantry Post Sullington Level: 166.33m AOD	H.A: 41 M.A: EA Southern	<b>Period:</b> 1977–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	12.20m 23.40m 7.71m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	93.41 92.98 94.31 95.96 94.33	117.3 103.0 105.9 106.2 106.2	69 76 99 71 84
TQ21011A NGR: TQ EEC Unit: 23 Comment: Previously numbered	Old Rectory Pyecombe Level: 106.38m AOD TQ21/11. No significant seasonal fluctuations.	H.A: 41 M.A: EA Southern	Perlod: 1958–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	3.64m 11.00m 0.40m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	70.98 70.9 71.4 70.62 70.62	78.62 72.64 76.37 76.59 76.59	
TQ28119 NGR: TQ EEC Unit: 20 Comment: Previously numbered influence from abstractions. Recor- London.	Trafalgar Square Level: 12.6m AOD TQ28/119B. Logger installed. Confined aquif very in levels since 1950's symptomatic of ris	H.A: 39 M.A: EA Thames er. Major long term ing groundwater in	Perlod: 1875–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	2.63m 12.00m 0.69m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	-43.69 -41.55 -39.8 -38.25 -36.11	- 39.5 - 38.3 - 37.2 - 35.2 - 34.8	
TQ31050 NGR: TQ EEC Unit: 22 Comment:	North Bottom Level: 120.15m AOD	H.A: 41 M.A: EA Southern	Period: 1979–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	16.70m 30.00m 4.66m	1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 _1999-2000	64.52 64.99 68.48 68.44 67.15 -	90.37 76.5 91.05 91.05 84.83 -	43 92 15 63
TQ35005 NGR: TQ EEC Unit: 22 Comment: No data 1947 to 1962	Rose and Crown Level: 87.81m AOD	H.A: 39 M.A: EA Thames	<b>Period:</b> 1876–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	11.10m 23.30m 0.00m	1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	66.07 60.96 60.84 73.4 68.49	86.61 74.03 80.93 85.49 85.49	65 63 17 99 11
TQ38009B NGR: TQ EEC Unit: 7 Comment: Previously numbered records began in 1953, symptome	Hackney Public Baths Level: 16.8m AOD TQ38/9 No data 1968–1973, 1996. Consistent stic of rising groundwater levels in London ba	H.A: 38 M.A: EA Thames trise in levels since sin.	<b>Period:</b> 1953–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	0.61m 1.41m 0.16m	1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	-23.83 -23.55 -23.55 -23.26 -22.93	-23.5 -23.0 -22.8 -22.6 -22.3	
TQ40045B NGR: TQ EEC Unit: 21 Comment:	Blackcap Farm No. 2 Level:* 39.85m AOD ·	H.A: 41 M.A: EA Southern	Period: 1970–2000 Mean ann. ranġe: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	1.28m 3.82m 0.21m	1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	0.1 0.62 0.71 0.78 0.76	4.79 1.05 4.79 4.79 2.44	72 66 12 49

-

					Perlod	Trough level (m)	Peak lovel (m)	Fluctuations as a % of the mean range
TQ50007 NGR: TO	The Old Rectory Folkington	H.A: 41 M.A: FA Southern	Period: 1965-2000		1995-96	29.87	43 29	94
EEC Unit: 20 Comment: No data 1973–1977	Level: 65.71m AOD		Mean ann, range: Maximum ann, range: Minimum ann, range:	6.58m 13.20m 2.25m	1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	31.56 32.07 30.5 30.5	36.2 41.07 40.95 38.66	59 15 97 10
TQ56019 NGR: TQ	West Kingsdown	H.A: 40 M.A: EA Southern	<b>Period: 1961-1998</b>		1995-96	83.97	97,41	
EEC Unit: 23 Comment: Datum raised by 0. fluctuations.	Level: 129.57л AOD I2m from 129.57 с. 1991. Logger instat	led. No significant seasonal	Mean ann, range: Maximum ann, range: Minimum ann, range:	3.27m 12.90m 0.08m	1996 - 97 1997 - 98 1998 - 99 1999 - 2000	82.85 82.16 84.05 83.2	85.13 85.98 87.82 87.84	
TQ57118 NGR: TQ	Thurrock A13	H.A: 37 M.A: EA Anglia	Period: 1979-1999		1995-96	-0.95	1.29	
EEC Unit: 48 Comment: Intermittent data fror	Level: 20.78m AOD n 1995. No data after end 1999.		Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	1.30m 2.20m 0.19m	1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	-0.95 -0.11 -0.29 -0.43	0.21 0.17 0.71 0.71	
TQ58002 NGR: TQ	Bush Pit Farm	H.A: 37 M.A: EA Thames	Period: 1967-2000		1995-96	-13.22	-11.9	
EEC Unit: 8 Comment: Previously numbered	Level: 21.32m AOD t TQ58/2B. No data for 1974 and 1975	. Dipped twice a year from	Mean ann, range: Maximum ann, range:	0.70m 1.09m	1996-97 1997-98	- 12.66 - 12.66	-11.9 -11.6	
1998. Levels show consistent rise	e since monitoring began in late 1960s.		Minimum ann. range:	0.26m	1998–99 1999–2000	-12.28 -12.62	-11.1 -10.7	
TQ86044 NGR: TQ	Little Pett Farm	H.A: 40 M.A: EA Southern	Period: 1982-2000		1995-96	25	37.91	
EEC Unit: Comment: No data June '97 to	Level: 78.33m AOD Mar '98 as data suspect or borehole de	y. Logger installed.	Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range:	3.72m 9.22m	1996–97 1997–98	22.6 22.33	28.39 23.8	
			Minimum ann. range:	0.00m	1998 - 99 1999 <b>- 2000</b>	22.33 24.13	28.68 28.68	14 73
TQ99011B	Burnham-on-Crouch	H.A: 37 M A: EA Applia	Period: 1975_2000		199596	- 18.03	- 17 4	
EEC Unit: 47	Level: 15.29m AOD	rise since records bench in	Mean ann, range:	0.68m	1996~97	-17.56	- 17.0	
early 1970s.		nse since records oegan in	Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	0.44m	1997 - 90 1998 - 99 1999 - 2000	- 16.73 - 16.35	- 13.5 - 15.6	
TR14009	Little Bucket Farm	: H.A: 40	D-d-d- 4074 0000		4005 00	<b>50 0</b>	00.50	
EEC Unit:	Level: 87.33m AOD	M.A: EA Southem	Mean ann. range:	12.20m	1995-96	58.3	65.38	68
Comment: Index well, Logger in	Istalled. Unlikely to be affected by abstr	acuons.	Maximum ann, range: Minimum ann, range:	1.38m	1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	62.07 61.99	78.3 78.3 78.3	14 13 12
TR14050	Glebe Cottage, Stowing	H.A: 40				<b>6</b> 0.00	~~ ~~	
EEC Unit:	Level: 107.94m AOD	M.A. EA Southern	Mean ann. range:	3.14m	1995-96	92.82	- 97.86 94.5	
Comment: Logger installed. Low	vest levels, recorded in 1971, maybe in	error due lo datum change.	Maximum ann, range: Minimum ann, range:	0.61m ,	1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	94.27 94.27	96.98 96.98	
TR24036	Church House	H.A: 40 M.A: FA Southern	Perind: 1971-2000		1995-96	31.6	35.69	
EEC Unit: Comment: Logger installed	Level: 135.21m AOD		Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range:	8.38m	1996-97	31.34	32.46	
сопшена. годуст и знакоо			Minimum ann. range:	0.39m	1998-99 1999-2000	32.67 32.67	42,19 42.83	
TR36062	Alland Grange	H.A: 40	Redad: 1969-2000		1005-06	1 3 1	5.69	
EEC Unit: 13	Level: 40.99m AOD	M.A. EA Sodalem	Mean ann. range:	1.67m	1996-97	2.32	3.31	
Comment: NO 0978 1991,1990.	Logger installed.		Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	4.33m 0.36m	1997 - 98 1998 - 99 1999 - 2000	3.19 3.79 3.17	5.09 5.09	
TV59007C	Westdean No.3	H.A: 41	<u> </u>					
NGR: TV 52909920 EEC Unit: 19	Level: 13.48m AOD	M.A: EA Southern	Pariod: 1940-2000 Mean ann. range:	1.44m	1995-96 1996-97	1.15	4.76	27 57
Comment: Index well			Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	4.58m 0.32m	1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	1.26 1.35 1.35	3.83 3.83 2.94	14 11 10
Aquifer: Upper Green	sand							
ST30007 NGR: ST 37630667	Lime Kiln Way	H.A: 45 M.A: FA South West	Period: 1969-2000		1995-96	125.2	126.4	11
EEC Unit: 1	Level: 129.913m AOD	MAR EN OUDER MOST	Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range:	0.78m	1996-97	125.3	126.2	20
Comment. most web. Datan ci			Minimum ann. range:	0.00m	1998-99 1999-2000	125.2 125.3	125.9 125.9 125.9	68 81
Aquifer: Lower Green	sand	<u></u>						
SU82063	Madams Farm	H.A:	Deriod. 1004 0000		1005 00	107 P	106 1	<b>33</b>
EEC Unit:	Level: 143.64m AQD	M.A. CA Southern	Mean ann. range:	0.45m	1996-97	107.5	108.1	12
Comment. No data for 1994.			Minimum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	0.10m	1998-99 1999-2000	107.4 107.3	108.0 108.0	10 63

• • • •

-

_					Period	Trough level (m)	Paak level (m)	luctuations as a % of the mean range
SU8408A	Tilford Pumping Station	H.A: 39				•	•	ш
NGR: SU 87164087 EEC Unit: 21 Comment: Borehole shows cor regional and local abstraction.	Lavel: 67.92m AOD nsistent long term tren of lowered water lev	M.A: EA Thames vels, possibly due to	Period: 1971~1999 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	0.69m 1.52m 0.11m	1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	55.15 54 54 54.75 54.95	56.59 55.99 55.21 55.87 55.87	52 26 17 15
TQ41082	Lower Barn Farm	H.A: 41						
NGR: TQ EEC Unit: 21 Comment:	Level: 18.02m AOD	M.A: EA Southern	Period: 1975-2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range; Minimum ann. range;	0.74m 1.63m 0.04m	.199596 199697 199798 199899 1999-2000	10.47 10.28 10.19 10.84 10.67	12.52 10.81 11.81 11.81 11.79	50 12 23 87 72
TR23032B	Morehall Depot	H.A: 40						
NGR: 1R 20/53650 EEC Unit: 15 Comment: Previously numbered	Level: 51.35m AOD TR23/32. No data for 1998. Logger installed	M.A: EA Southern I.	Period: 1978-2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	0.43m 1.87m 0.00m	199596 199697 199798 199899 19992000	39.82 39.59 39.52 40.31 40.15	40.39 40.15 40.15 40.55 40.55	
Aquifer: Hastings Bec	ds							
TQ2201 NGR: TQ EEC Unit: 25 Comment:	The Bungalow, Lower Beeding Level: 90.31m AOD	H.A: 41 M.A: EA Southern	Period: 1964–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	1.99m 2.79m 0.79m	1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	86.55 86.97 87.25 86.96 86.96	89.35 89.13 89.46 89.3 89.25	12 11 14 10 12
TQ42080A	Kingstanding	H.A: 40						
NGR; TQ EEC Unit: Comment: Logger installed.	Level: 203,28m AOD	M.A: EA Southern	Period: 1979-2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	6.51m 10.90m 2.46m	1995-96 . 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	171.8 169.6 172.8 174.2 173.6	182.6 179.9 183.4 183.4 181.5	88 15 13 97 13
TQ61044	Dallington Herrings Farm	H.A: 41	B1-4, 4054, 2000		4005-00		440.7	
EEC Unit: 18 Comment: No data 1973 to 197	Level: 120.37m AOD 8	M.A: EA Southern	Period: 1964–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	3.23m 6.67m 0.99m	199596 199697 199798 199899 19992000 -	114.1 113.3 115.2 115.0 114.6	118.7 118.7 118.9 118.8 118.5	14 22 23 14 13
TQ62099 NGR: TQ EEC Unit: Comment: Logger installed. Rena calculation of Mean annual Recha	Whiteoaks, Heathfield Level: 155.28m AOD amed Ticehurst Grange by EA. Borehole influe arge unreliable.	H.A: 40 M.A: EA Southern anced by abstraction -	Period: 1978–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	3.40m 9.21m 1.03m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	136.6 136.5 136.7 136.7 136.7	139.3 139.9 141.2 145.1 145.1	
<b>TQ71123</b> NGR: TQ EEC Unit: 16	Red House	H.A: 40 M.A: EA Southern	Period: 1974–2000 Mean ann, range:	3.80m	1995–96 1996–97	25.12	27.47 28.14	15
Comment: No data June '94 to i	Feb '96. Logger installed.		Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	5.55m 1.22m	1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	24.75 25.48 25.48	29.77 29.08 28.52	15 11 11
Aquifer: Upper Jurass	sic		<u> </u>	•		<u>_</u>		
SE68022E NGR: SE 68908590 EEC Unit: 25 Comment: Previously numbered	Kirbymoorside Level: 46.04m AOD SE68/16. No data after December 1998.	H.A: 27 M.A: EA North East	Period: 1975–1998 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	2.24m 3.77m 0.92m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99	37.75 37.73 37.89 37.98	40.02 39.57 40.84 40.84	63 40 14
					1999-2000			
SE77076 NGR: SE 76907300 EEC Unit: 25 Comment:	Broughton Level: 33.51m AOD	H.A: 27 M.A: EA North East	<b>Period:</b> 1975–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	3.32m 5.63m 1.24m	1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	15.61 15.46 15.73 16.13 16.21	20.09 18.78 20.1 20.49 20.49	10 50 12 10 90
SE98023 NGR: SE 98938567	Seavegate Gili	H.A: 27 M.A: EA North Fact	Period: 1080_2000		1995-96	32 65	34 20	
EEC Unit: 27 Comment: Replaced SE98/19 in	Level: 38.09m AOD 1994. Logger installed. No data 1996–199	7.	Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	2.02m 3.15m 0.80m	1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	32.74 32.38 32.31	35.86 35.86 35.54	10 14
SU49075B NGR: SU 46519736 EEC Unit: 11 Comment: No data July-Decen	Marcham Level: 59.65m AOD iber 1993.	H.A: 39 M.A: EA Thames	Period: 1988–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range; Minimum ann. range;	0.59m 1,02m 0.28m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	58.52 58.36 58.35 58.47 58.5	59.4 59.09 58.91 59.2 59.22	65 11 13 16

•

-----

Aquifer: Middle Jura	ssic				Period	Trough level (m)	Pesk (evel (m)	Fluctuations as a % of the mean range
SP00062 NGR: SP 05950190 EEC Unit: 9 Comment: Index well. Telemet	Ampney Crucis Level: 109.54m AOD y site. Borshole highly responsive.	H.A: 39 M.A: EA Thames	Period: 1958–2000 Mean ann, range: Maximum ann, range: Minimum ann, range:	3.68m 6.45m 0.96m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	99.14 99.15 99.8 99.75 99.95	103.1 102.8 103.1 103.0 103.0	99 12 11 10 85
SP20113 NGR: SP 27210634 EEC Unit: 9 Comment: No data for 1996, 1/	Alvescot Road Obs. Level: 86.31m AOD 997.	H.A: 39 M.A: EA Th <del>ames</del>	Period: 1983–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	3.35m 5.17m 1.00m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	81.31 83.92 82.91 82.59	91.06 87.96 87.96 85	27 83
ST51057 NGR: ST 59101690 EEC Unit: 6 Comment: Good reliable data a	Over Compton Level: 67.24m AOD and representative of natural conditions.	H.A: 52 M.A: EA South West	Period: 1971–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	2.71m 4.33m 0.56m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	55.88 55.6 55.52 55.88 55.95	59.39 58.8 58.69 58.69 58.84	10 51 12 98 10
ST88062A NGR: ST 82758743 EEC Unit: 7 Comment: Good reliable data a	Didmarton 1 Level: 113.88m AOD and representative of natural conditions.	H.A: 53 M.A: EA South West	Period: 1977-2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	18.80m 28.90m 8.53m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	60.4 66.49 66.27 71.34 80.98	95.23 89.86 92.85 94.65 94.65	15 10 13 11 50

Aquifer: Lincolnshire Limestone

SK97025 NGR: SK 98007817 EEC Unit: 1 Comment: Manually dipped.	Grange De Lings Level: 48.21m AOD Reliable data.	H.A: 30 M.A: EA Anglia	Period: 1975–2000 Mean arun, range: Maximum ann, range: Minimum ann, range:	3.38m 5.07m 2.01m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	38.22 39.14 39.69 39.77 39.6	42.12 42.1 43.11 42.41 42.71	14 13 99 99 74
TF03037 NGR: TF 08853034 EEC Unit: 3 Comment: Index well. Telem	New Red Lion Level: 33.98m AOD letry removed in 1998. Refiable data. Noi	<ul> <li>✓ H.A: 30 M.A: EA Anglia</li> <li>affected by abstraction.</li> </ul>	Period: 1964–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	8.46m 19.20m 0.00m	1995 - 96 1996 - 97 1997 - 98 1998 - 99 1999 - 2000	7,44 5.09 6.54 11.58 11.57	20.82 15.1 20.37 21.21 21.21	88 12 12 12 72
TF04014 NGR: TF 04294273 EEC Unit: 2 Comment: Manually dipped.	Silk Willoughby Level: 34.29m AOD Reliable data.	H.A: 30 M.A: EA Anglia	Period: 1972–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	6.08m 16.40m 0.00m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	11.29 9.13 11.38 14.62 14.78	21.01 16.93 20.74 21.11 21.11	92 11 98 96 70
TF06047 NGR: TF 04726938 EEC Unit: 2 Comment: Manually dipped.	Stow No. 2 Level: 7.49m AOD Reliable data.	H.A: 30 M.A: EA Anglia	Period: 1972–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	6.03m 9.31m 1.83m	1995 - 96 1996 - 97 1997 - 98 1998 - 99 1999 - 2000	1.87 1.58 3.82 3.6 3.91	9.72 7.85 9.52 9.62 9.62	84 10 87 10 93

#### Aquifer: Permo-Triassic Sandstones

.

IJ26001	Dunmurry	H.A: 205						
NGR: U 29136950	•	M.A: DOE Northern Ireland	Period: 1985-2000		1995-96	27.27	28.03	
EEC Unit: 6	Level: 31.31m AOD		Mean ann, range:	1.27m	1996-97			
Comment: Replaced IJ26/2 Good	d representative site with no known a	artificial influences.	Maximum ann. range:	2.11m	1997-98	28.17	28.76	
			Minimum ann. range:	0.33m	1998-99	27.37	28.78	24
					1999-2000	27.33	28.11	78
NX97001	Redbank	H.A: 79						
NGR: NX		M.A: Scottish EPA	Period: 1981-2000		1995-96	7.14	8.6	71
EEC Unit: 14	Level: 13.52m AOD		Mean ann. range:	1,14m	1996-97	7.15	8.25	66
Comment: Index well.			Maximum ann, range:	1.63m	1997-98	7,13	8.25	82
			Minimum ann. range:	0.80m	1998-99	7.19	8.22	67
					1999-2000	7.19	8.45	10
NY00328	Brownbank Layby	H.A: 74						
NGR: NY		M.A: EA North West	Period: 1976-1999		1995-96	23.76	24.87	35
EEC Unit: 17	Level: 30.49m AOD		Mean ann, range:	0.59m	1996-97	23.22	24.36	57
Comment: No data for 1997 and	1998.		Maximum ann, range:	1.43m	1997-98	23.02	23.94	
			Minimum ann. range:	1.88m	1998-99	23.57	24.69	
					1999 - 2000	24.07	24.69	
NY14004	New Cowper	H.A: 75						
NGR: NY	-	M.A: EA North West	Period: 1989-2000		1995-96	11.66	12.77	62
EEC Unit: 20	Level: 14.05m AOD		Mean ann. range:	0.53m	1996-97	11.61	12.32	68
Comment: Limited seasonal fluct	uations, Mean Annual Recharge figu	res unreliable.	Maximum ann. range:	1.24m	1997-98	11.21	12.4	
			Minimum ann. range:	0.16m	1998-99	11.95	12.87	13
					1999-2000	11.56	12.98	24
NY45016	Corby Hill	H.A: 76						
NGR: NY		M.A. EA North West	Period: 1977-1996		1995-96	49.87	50.84	
EEC Unit: 20	Level: 51.46m AOD		Mean ann. range:	0.52m	1996-97	49.73	50.17	
Comment: Removed from networ	rk in 1996.		Maximum ann. range:	0.96m	1997-98			
			Minimum ann. range:	0.07m	1998-99			
					1999 - 2000			

#### HYDROLOGICAL DATA: 1996-2000

	-				Period	Trough level (m)	Peak level (π)	fluctuations as a % of the mean range
NY63002	Skirwith	H.A: 76	Barlad: 1978 2000		1005 06	129.6	121 7	25
EEC Unit: 20 Comment: Index well Barometric	Level: 133.25m AOD	which can cause variations	Mean ann. range:	0.81m	1996-97	129.3	130.1	80 11
in the water level of up to 0.3m. No	o data March 2001-February 2002.		Minimum ann. range:	0.20m	1998-99	129.9	131.0	13
NZ41034	Northern Dairles	H.A: 25					10110	
NGR: NZ 48611835 EEC Holt: 10	Level: 9.6m AOD	M.A: EA North East	Period: 1974–2000 Mean ann, ranne:	0.70m	1995-96 1996-97	0.2 0.28	0.63	45
Comment:			Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	2.63m	1997-98	0.42	0.75	56 84
			monnum una, range.	0.0014	1999-2000	-0.07	1.31	82
SD27006B NGR: SD 21727171	Furness Abbey	H.A: 74 M.A [:] FA North West	Pariod: 1972-2000		1995-96	9.64	10.65	
EEC Unit: 16 Comment: Previously numbered	Level: 19.31m AOD SD27/8		Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range:	3.28m 5.14m	1996-97 1997-98	9.4 10.2	12.52 13.57	77 10
			Minimum ann. range:	1,54m	1998-99 1999-2000	11.46 11.29	14.26 14.26	45 75
SD400137	Moor Hall	H.A: 69			+			
NGR: SD 41280521 EEC Unit: 10	Level: 48.14m AOD	M.A: EA North West	Period: 1983-2000 Mean ann, range:	0.68m	1995-96 1996-97	22.17 22.53	23.13 23.07	15 49
Comment: Borehole has shown January-June 1998.	consistent rising trend since monitorin	g began in 1983. No data	Maximum ann, range: Minimum ann, range:	1.20m 0.30m	1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	22.31 22.28 22.37	22.8 23.08 23.2	38 83
SD41032	Yew Tree Farm	H.A: 70	Barkade 1072 2000		1005 06	10.67	14.01	
EEC Unit: 10	Level: 23.69m AOD	M.A. EA NORTH West	Mean ann. range:	0.64m	1996-97	12.93	13.6	
affected by local pumping.	s very subdued seasonal nucluation, c	any data in 1972 possibly	Maximum ann, range: Minimum ann, range:	0.23m	1998-99 1998-2000	13.59 13.54 13.54	13.95 14.11	
SD44015 NGR: SD 43964928	Moss Edge Farm	H.A: 72 M.A: EA North West	Period: 1961-2000		1995-96	2.1	3.88 •	· 56
EEC Unit: 13 Comment:	Level: 4.99m AOD		Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range:	1.20m 4,19m	1996–97 1997–98	2.17 2.3	3.05 3.33	62 86
			Minimum ann, range;	0.26m	1998–99 1999–2000	2.83 3.2	4.07 4.53	12 57
SD53025	Red Scar Wood	H.A: 72						
NGR: SD 58603133 EEC Unit: 13	Level: 15.77m AOD	M.A: EA North West	Period: 1989-2000 Mean ann. range:	1.70m	1995-96 1996-97	9.29 9.35	12.14	10 60
Comment: Borenoie behaviour d	langes after 1999, possibly due to loca	al influences, *	Maximum ann, range: Minimum ann, range:	2.38m 0.42m	1997-98	10.19	11.48	
8526047	i Kalbula Café	LI A. 97			1999-2000	8.55	15.52	
NGR: SE 39456575		M.A: EA North East	Period: 1981–2000 Mean ann, ranne:	Ú 31m	1995-96	18.93 18.53	19.62 19.23	29 4
Comment: Added 1985.			Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	0.70m 0.00m	1997-98	18.41	19.18	22 10
					1999-2000	19.13	19.46	76
SE39020B NGR: SE 30049244	Scruton Village	H.A: 27 M.A: EA North East	Period: 1969-2000		1995-96	26.64	27.7	67
EEC Unit: 23 Comment:	Level: 34.69m AOD		Mean ann, range: Maximum ann, range:	0.37m 1.01m	1996–97 1997–98	26.4 26.4	27 27.07	35 17
			Minimum ann. range:	0.02m	1998–99 1999–2000	26.76 26.88	27.3 27.3	98 85
SE45003	Cattal Maltings	H.A: 27						
NGR: SE 44705580 EEC Unit: 21	Level: 30.86m AOD	M.A: EA North East	Period: 1969-2000 Mean ann. range:	0.52m	1995-96 1996-97	25.38 25.27	26.46 25.77	35 23
Comment:			Maximum ann, range: Minimum ann, range:	1.59m 0.00m	1997-98 1998-99	25.24 25.65	26.11 26.18	15 64
6563004	9	11.4. 07			1999-2000	25.79	26.18	60
NGR: SE 54732363		M.A: EA North East	Period: 1955-2000	0.69m	1995-96	9	10.25	
Comment: No data for 1996,199	7. Logger installed 2002.		Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	3.37m	1997-98	9.27	9.95 10.1	
			wantanun ann, range.	0.0011	1999-2000	9.7	10.15	
SE54032A	Bilborough	H.A: 27 M.A: EA North East	Period: 1984-2000		1995-96	9 74	11 18	
EEC Unit: 20 Comment: No data for 1996 1997	Level: 45.52m AOD Looper installed, Borehole with minima	I seasonal fluctuations. Not	Mean ann, range: Maximum ann, range:	0.27m 0.52m	1996-97	9.62	10.72	
possible to calculate Mean annual	Recharge.		Minimum ann. range:	0.08m	1998-99 1999-2000	9.62 10.6	10.87	
SE60076	Woodhouse Grange	H.A: 28					2000	
NGR: SE 67840709 EEC Unit: 3	Level: 4.35m AOD	<ul> <li>M.A: EA Midlands</li> </ul>	Period: 1980–2001 Mean ann. range:	0.41m	1995-96 1996-97	-1.05 -1.05	-0.17 -0.65	48
Comment: Replaced SE60/24 in	1981. Shows natural seasonal variation	n in water levels.	Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	0.76m 0.00m	1997–98 1998–99	-0.99 -0.99	~0.44 0.07	12 15
	,				1999-2000	-0.45	0.13	86
SE61011 NGR: SE 62701710	Sykehouse	H,A: M.A: EA North East	Period: 1971-2000		199596	-1.49	-0.41	39
EEC Unit: Comment: Logger installed.	Level: 4.77m AOD		Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range:	0.52m 1.03m	1996-97 1997-98	-1.61 -1.58	-1.07 -0.88	10 13
			Minimum ann, range;	0.05m	1998-99 1999-2000	-1.35 -1.05	-0.73 0.51	10 95
SE83009	Holms-on-Spalding Moor	H.A: 26	Badad. 40 000-		4005 00		<b>*</b> * *	
NGK: SE 80403640 EEC Unit: 34	Level: 5m AOD	M.A: EA North East	Mean ann, range:	0.45m	1995-96 1996-97 1997-92	-0.83 	0.14 0.36	97 11
Gomment, NO Gata 1962, 1983,			Minimum ann. range:	0.10m	1998-99 1999-2000	-0.32	0.29 0.3	11 78

				Period	Trough level (m)	Poak levol (m)	Fluctuations as a % of the mean range
SJ15013 Llamfair D.C NGR: SJ 13745556 I EEC Unit: 13 Level: 83.08m AOD Comment: Index well. Previously numbered SJ15/15. Good reliable data. Unlikely to abstractions.	H.A: 66 M.A: EA Wales be affected by	Period: 1972–2001 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	0.75m 1.31m 0.08m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1998–99	78.81 78.67 78.7 79.18 79.51	80.42 79.56 79.69 80.07 80.39	11 16 14 12 13
SJ33039 Eastwick Farm NGR: SJ 38143831 EEC Unit: 14 Level: 74.57m AOD Comment: Influenced by pumping from abstraction borehole.	H.A: 67 M.A: EA Wales	Period: 1974–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	0.23m 0.47m 0.02m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	67.22 67.15 67.15 67.07 67.07	67.53 67.5 67.3 67.31 67.44	13 70 93 17 22
SJ56045E         Ashton No 4           NGR: SJ 50426953         M.A: I           EEC Unit: 4         Level: 37.26m AOD           Comment: No data for Apr 1995 to Nov 1996, Borehole showing some influence from possible to calculate Mean Annual Recharge.	H.A: 68 EA North West n pumping. Not	Period: 1970–2000 Mean ann, range: Maximum ann, range: Minimum ann, range:	1.57m 4.70m 0.25m	1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	21.47 21.83 21.93 22.18 22.67	21.67 22.07 22.42 23.11 23.67	23 45 31
SJ590147         Sandy Lane           NGR: SJ 59509782         M.A: 0           EEC Unit: 11         Level: 40.06m AOD           Comment: No data for May 85 to Apr 91, June 99 to July 2000. Borehole appears to regional abstractions.	H.A: 69 EA North West be affected by	Period: 1971–1999 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	1.03m 1.92m 9.00m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	32.09 31.81 31.74 31.95 33.74	35.33 33.44 32.98 34.72 35.13	24 11 17
SJ620112         Heathlanes           NGR: SJ 61952105         M.A           EEC Unit: 9         Level: 68.61m AOD           Comment: Index well. Hydrograph shows groundwater system responsive to seasona natural seasonal variation and is not effected by the Shropshire Groundwater Scher	H.A: 54 A: EA Midlands al recharge and no.	Period: 1996–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	0.49m 1.42m 0.00m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	61.45 60.53 60.22 60.31 61.31	62.78 61.91 61.25 61.78 62.56	0 20 15 16
SJ690138         Kenyon Lane           NGR: SJ 63119620         M.A: 6           EEC Unit: 9         Level: 40.23m AOD           Comment: Borehole shows influence of regional pumping, with distinct lowering of 1970s.	H.A: 69 EA North West If levels during	Period: 1968–2000 Mean ann, range: Maximum ann, range: Minimum ann, range:	0.31m 0.82m 0.00m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	-8.33 -8.33 -7.96 -7.39 -6.85	-7.66 -7.72 -7.34 -5.92 -4.42	
SJ83001A         Stone           NGR: SJ 89693474         M.A           EEC Unit: 9         Level: 102.62m AOD           Comment: Hydrograph shows an open groundwater system very responsive to seal and natural variations.         Statement of the system very responsive to seal and natural variations.	H.A: 28 A: EA Midtands sonal recharge	Period: 1974–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	0.96m 1.80m 0.20m	1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	89.6 89.34 89.54 89.79 90.24	91.47 89.95 90.69 90.99 91.2	21 66 98 11 80
SJ87032         Dale Brow           NGR: SJ 89697598         M.A: I           EEC Unit: 8         Level: 138.66m AOD           Comment: No data for Feb 1995 to June 1996.         -	H.A: 68 EA North West	Period: 1973-2000 Mean ann, range: Maximum ann, range: Minimum ann, range:	1.08m 1.88m 5.76m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	94.37 94.34 95.13 95.75 95.99	96,94 95.78 96.61 96.9 96.93	13 13 11 79
SJ88093 Bruntwood Hall NGR: SJ 86118645 M.A: 6 EEC Unit: 8 Level: 62.56m AOD Comment:	H.A: 69 EA North West	Period: 1976–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	0.77m 2.83m 0.24m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	48.28 48.04 48.04 48.18 48.3	48.83 48.71 48.35 48.77 48.91	34 56 63
SK00041         Nuthall Farm           NGR: SK 06700120         M.A           EEC Unit: 10         Level: 141.79m AOD           Comment:         Index well. Groundwater system responsive to seasonal recharge, bu annual fluctuation.	H.A: 28 A: EA Midlands It limited inter-	Period: 1974–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	0.56m 1.65m 0.00m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	129.1 128.1 128.1 128.1 129.7	130.6 129.9 128.9 130.3 131.0	
SK10009         Weeford Flats           NGR: SK 14400464         M.A           EEC Unit:         Level: 96.21m AOD           Comment:         Index well. Hydrograph shows an open groundwater system responsive recharge. Dry during 1976, 1992 and 1998–1999.	H.A: 28 A: EA Midlands to to seasonal	Period: 1966–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	0.51m 1.50m 0.00m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	88.73 88.61 88.61 88.61 88.61	90.71 89.83 88.61 89.71 90.11	0 0 20 13
SK21111         Grangewood           NGR: SK 27311419         M.A           EEC Unit: 8         Level: 98.03m AOD           Comment: Hydrograph shows an open groundwater system responsive to seasona	H.A: 28 A: EA Midlands I recharge.	Period: 1967-2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	1.31m 2.86m 0.00m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	88.24 87.13 87 88.13 89.4	92.08 89.18 89 91.25 91.25	0 15 21 91
SK24022         Burtonshuts Farm           NGR: SK 25394431         M.A           EEC Unit: 2         Level: 154.84m AOD           Comment: Hydrograph shows an open groundwater system responsive to seasona	H.A: 28 A: EA Midlands I variation.	Period: 1972-2000 Mean ann, range: Maximum ann, range: Minimum ann, range:	0.65m 2.09m 0.00m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	135.8 135.1 135.1 135.9 136.6	138.0 136.8 136.5 137.5 137.5	0 18 20 16 19
SK56053         Peafield Lane           NGR: SK 56326440         M.A           EEC Unit: 5         Level: 112.97m AOD           Comment: Hydrograph shows minimal seasonal response to recharge but there are lo of recession and recovery superimposed on a gradual decline and influenced by abs	H.A: 28 A: EA Midlands Ing term cycles traction.	Period: 1969-2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	0.34m 1.68m 0.00m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	77.59 76.34 76.06 76.06 76.56	78.57 78.35 76.94 76.83 77.02	35 0 22 18 60
SK67017         Morris Dancers           NGR: SK 64487257         M.A           EEC Unit:         Level: 54.83m AOD           Comment:         Index well. Possible delayed recharge occurring but hydrograph indici decline in groundwater level due to overabstraction from the aquifer. Not possible to annual Recharge.	H.A: 28 A: EA Midlands ates long term alculate Mean	Period: 1969-2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	0.16m 0.55m 0.00m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	32.33 31.88 31.58 31.4 31.4 31.4	32.69 32.69 32.17 31.69 31.75	

#### HYDROLOGICAL DATA: 1996-2000

					Period	Trough level (m)	Peak level (m)	fuctuations as a % of the mean range
SK68021 NGR: SK 61008374 EEC Unit: 4 Comment: Hydrograph shows sor decline in water level commencing	Crossley Hill Wood Level: 52.37m AOD ne seasonal response to recharge but domin early 1970's. Influenced by abstraction.	H.A: 28 M.A: EA Midlands nant trend is long term	Period: 1969–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	- 0.21m 0.94m 0.00m	1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	25.55 25 24.87 24.85 25.03	26.01 25.97 25.23 25.31 25.44	0 19 64
SK73050 NGR: SK 76933228 EEC Unit: 6 Comment: Hydrograph shows an Layered and confined aquifer. Son	Woodland Farm Level: 56.66m AOD 8 year lag in response to the 1976 drought ne data missing mid 1995 and late 1997. F t	H.A: 28 M.A: EA Midlands followed by recovery. Removed 1998.	<b>Period:</b> 1980–1998 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	0.59m 1.41m 0.09m	1995~96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	15.73 15.16 15.16 15.79	16.76 16.11 15.85 15.85	
SO71018 NGR: SO 71701970 EEC Unit: 16 Comment: Borehole shows natur	Stores Cottage Level: ⁶ 66.4m AOD al seasonal variation.	H.A: 54 M.A: EA Midlands	<b>Period:</b> 1973-2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	3.44m 5.69m 1.62m	1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	61.55 61.46 62.11 61.82 62.49	65.59 64.56 65.2 65.2 65.38	99 11 85 77
SO87028 NGR: SO 81607970 EEC Unit: 14 Comment: No data 1968–1972 probably confined by marl horizon:	Hillfields Level: 97.66m AOD 2. Borehole responds with natural season s within the sandstone.	H.A: 54 M.A: EA Midlands variations. Aquifer	Period: 1961-2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	0.69m 2.17m 0.05m	1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	72.9 72.52 72.44 72.67 73.17	74.27 73.62 73.4 73.84 73.86	10 13 11 70
SX99037B NGR: SX 95289872 EEC Unit: 1 Comment: Index well. Datum cha	Bussels No.7A Level: 27.016m AOD anged from 26.97 20/01/00.	H.A: 45 M.A: EA South West	Period: 1971–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	1.06m 2.36m 0.12m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	23.43 23.4 23.33 23.56 23.83	24.99 24.58 24.77 24.77 25.06	10 50 13 95 12
SY09021A NGR: SY 06659235 EEC Unit: 1 Comment: No data for Jan '60 to I	Heathlands Level: 102.805m AOD Mar '68, Jan '83 to June '84 Datum changed	H.A: 45 M.A: EA South West from 102.76 10/06/02.	Period: 1968–1999 Mean ann, range: Maximum ann, range: Minimum ann, range:	1.30m 2.39m 0.29m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	91.85 91.26 91.26 .91.61 91.70	93.24 93.24 93.15 93.04 92.99	- 12 54 15 78 13
Aquifer: Magnesian Li	mestone							
NZ21029 NGR: NZ 25211995 EEC Unit: Comment: Index well, replaced N	Swan House Level: 94.9m AOD IZ22/22 July 2001.	H.A: 25 M.A: EA North East	Period: 1969–1999 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	4.85m 9.74m 0.80m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	81,19 80.57 80.28 82.75 81.87	87.88 85.46 86.9 86.9 86.9	86 57 12 78 72
NZ22022 NGR: NZ 28752896 EEC Unit: 10 Comment: Replaced as Index seasonal variation.	Rushyford NE Level: 92.65m AOD by NZ21/29 - mine water pumping. Well	H.A: 25 M.A: EA North East shows no significant	Period: 1968-2000 Mean ann, range: Maximum ann, range: Minimum ann, range:	1.01m 5.86m 0.00m	1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	75.61 75.61 75.49 76.31 76.39	76.74 76.4 76.92 77.1 77.1	
NZ32019 NGR: NZ 35752650 EEC Unit: 10 Comment: Borehole shows signifigures suspect.	Heley House (NRA K) Level: 81.49m AOD nificant short term influences, making Me	H.A: 25 M.A: EA North East an Anniual Recharge	Period: 1985–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	4.29m 12.70m 0.28m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	37.43 36.21 36.21 36.37 38.07	43.18 43.65 43.43 43.14 44.6	15 18 20 92
NZ33020 NGR: NZ 33493501 EEC Unit: 7 Comment: No data 1988	Garmondsway Level: 102.49m AOD	H.A: 24 M.A: EA North East	Period: 1974–1999 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	6.71m 13.80m 0.73m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	75.97 75.73 75.85 79.3 78.85	83 82.17 84.12 85.96 85.96	95. 76 14 11 11
SE35004 NGR: SE 38305830 EEC Unit: 21 Comment: No data for 1996, 199	Castle Farm Level: 44.15m AOD 37.	H.A: 27 M.A: EA North East	Period: 1970-2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann, range:	0.63m 1.46m 0.04m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	36.03 36.06 36.06 36.2	36.87 36.53 36.56 36.66	43 61
SE43009 NGR: SE 45353964 EEC Unit: 20 Comment: Index well.	Peggy Ellerton Level: 51.4m AOD	H.A: 27 M.A: EA North East	Period: 1968–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	1.26m 3.59m 0.00m	1995 - 96 1996 - 97 1997 - 98 1998 - 99 1999 - 2000	32.92 31.74 31.68 33.9 35.87	34.78 34.02 35.06 36.56 36.97	28 11 16 49
SE43014 NGR: SE 46603550 EEC Unit: 24 Comment: Logger installed.	Coldhill Farm No. 35 Level: 37.89m AOD	H.A: 27 M.A: EA North East	Period: 1971–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	0.59m 0.94m 0.24m	1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	33.67 33.62 34.01 33.88 33.83	34.56 34.38 34.42 34.38 34.38	87 14 55 62 11
SE51002 NGR: SE 52101530 EEC Unit: 9 Comment: Possible datum chan	Westfield Farm Level: 30m AOD ge between 1970s and 1980s data.	H.A: 27 M.A: EA North East	Period: 1971–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	1.00m 3.21m 0.03m	1995–96 1996–97 1997–98 1998–99 1999–2000	11.45 10.51 10.51 11.18 10.95	13.43 12.28 12.27 12.55 12.61	32 19 15 12 11

---

٠

					Period	Trough level (m)	Peak level (m)	Fluctuations as a % of the mean range
SK46071	Stanton Hill	H.A: 28	Derind: 1073 2000		1005-06	167 A	169 1	85
NGR: SK 46006030 EEC Unit: 5 Comment: Responds to natura	Level: 176.31m AOD I seasonal variation.	MLPL EM MARKANIS	Mean ann, range: Maximum ann, range: Minimum ann, range:	1.67m 3.06m 0.29m	1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-2000	167.4 167.9 167.8 167.8	169.0 169.3 169.4 169.0	11 89 11 10
SK58043	Southards Lane	H.A: 28			1005 00	00.44	03.04	25
NGR: SK 52488018 EEC Unit: 4 Comment: No data March - connections to deeper groundw ponsive to seasonal recharge.	Level: 98.43m AOD December 1990. Borehole backfilled ater units. Hydrograph shows an op	M.A: EA Midlands I from 411m so may have en groundwater system res-	Period: 1973–2000 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	6.03m 14.30m 0.00m	199596 199697 199798 199899 19992000	82.41 82.07 82.59 82.8 82.46	92.61 85.92 88.03 89.44 89.04	35 60 83 13 83
Aquifer: Coal Measu	res							
SE23004	Silver Blades Ice Rink	H.A: 27						
NGR: SE 28503414		M.A: EA North East	Period: 1971-2000		1995-96	28.54	29.12	
EEC Unit: 17	Level: 31.24m AOD	tarian bases in east, 1070a	Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. magai	0.49m	1995-97	28.4	28.50	
Comment: Borehole shows sa	indicant increases in level since moni-	Lonng began in early 1970s,	Maximum ann. range: Minimum ann. range:	1.30m	1997-90	20.4	28.59	
response to changes	in total ababaction regime, this reven	stablised doning the 1990s.	initiani di di di ge.	0. TEIN	1999-2000	28.26	28.58	
Aquifer: Millstone G	it							
SE02046	Thrum Farm	H.A: 27						
NGR: SE 07712528		M.A: EA North East	Period: 1977-1999		1995-96	193.4	198.0	
EEC Unit:	Level: 228.23m AOD		Mean ann. range:	4.32m	1996-97		400.0	
Comment: No data 1996 - 199	7. Logger installed.		Maximum ann. range:	8.75m	1997-98	195.1	198.6	
			Minimum ann. range:	U.51M	1998-99	194.5	200.8	D: 12
00000								
SEV4007 NGR: SE 02954792	Lower Heights Farm	M.A: EA North East	Period: 1971-2000		1995-96	249.3	255.2	
EEC Unit: 15	Level: 258.32m AOD		Mean ann. range:	2.05m	1996-97			
Comment: No data 1996 and 1	997. Possibly affected by pumping.		Maximum ann, range:	4.12m	1997-98	251.9	255.5	
			Minimum ann. range:	0.67m	1998-99	251.9	255.9	1(
					1999-2000	250.4	255.9	2'
SE240028	Green Lane Dye Works	H.A: 27						
NGR: SE 20674053		M.A: EA North East	Period: 1971-2000		1995-96	133.6	140.0	
EEC Unit: 16	Level: 145m AOD		Mean ann. range:	6.22m	1996-97	132.2	139.0	
Comment: Health and safety a	ccess problems. Borehole shows very	little seasonal fluctuation.	Maximum ann. range:	17.30m	1997-98	131.8	137.9	
			Minimum ann, range:	1.48m	1998-99	132.1	134.3	
					1999-2000	131.5	134.5	
SE27008	Kirby Moor Farm	H.A: 27						
NGR: SE 21207380		M.A: EA North East	Period: 1971-2000		1995-96	153.5	153.8	
EEC Unit: 22	Level: 173.98m AOD		Mean ann. range:	0.69m	1996-97	153.5	153.8	
Comment: Records in early 19	Os show significant effects of abstract	ion, followed by a recovery to	Maximum ann. range:	2.96m	1997-98	153.5	154.2	
stability in the 1980s. Not possit	ile to calculate Mean Annual Recharge	3.	Minimum ann. range:	0.14m	1998-99	153.5	154.2	
					1999-2000	103.0	103.8	
							•	

#### Aquifer: Carboniferous Limestone

SE06001	Jerry Laith Farm	H.A: 27						
NGR: SE 02416183	· · ·	M.A: EA North East	Period: 1971-2000		1995-96	132.5	161.2	
EEC Unit: 19	Level: 178.25m AOD		Mean ann, range:	11.40m	1996-97	132.5	154.4	
Comment: Blocked at 29m. Unr	eliable; shows c. 29m drop in level after 19	93.	Maximum ann. range:	43.20m	1997-98	132.5	154.4	
			Minimum ann. range:	1.04m	1998-99	138.4	153.7	
					1999-2000	138.4	154.2	
SK15016	Alstonfield	H.A: 28						
NGR: SK 12925547		M.A: EA Midlands	Period: 19742000		, 1995-96	174.9	216.1	39
FEC Unit: 2	Level: 280.25m AOD		Mean ann, range:	31.10m	1996-97	175.0	194.5	55
Comment: Index well, Hydrograp	h shows an open groundwater system very	responsive to seasonal	Maximum ann, range:	43.50m	1997-98	175.6	208.2	95
recharge.	······································		Minimum ann, range:	12.70m	1998-99	175.7	208.2	84
			Ū		1999-2000	175.7	206.1	78
SK17013	Hucklew South	H.A: 28						
NGR' SK 17787762		M.A: EA Midlands	Period: 1969-2000		1995-96	250.1	279.2	73
FEG Unit: 1	Level: 301.82m AOD		Mean ann. range:	24.60m	1996-97	248	276.8	10
Comment: Hydrograph shows at	n open groundwater system verv responsive	to seasonal recharge.	Maximum ann, range:	37.80m	1997-98	256.0	276.8	51
			Minimum ann, range:	10.00m	1998-99	255.6	273.4	56
					1999-2000	253.0	273.4	63
ST64033	Oakhill No. 1	H.A: 53						
NGR: ST 65604790		M A: FA South West	Period: 1974-2000		1995-96	148.2	154.3	85
EEC Linit: 7	Level: 159.88m AOD		Mean ann, range:	4.83m	1996-97	147.0	151.5	11
Comment: Good reliable data ar	nd representative of natural conditions		Maximum ann, ranne:	12.80m	1997-98	147.0	156.9	
Comment. Cood reliable data a	a representance of therein contraction		Minimum and, range:	1.15m	1998-99	148.0	153.9	13
					1999-2000	148.7	154.0	86

#### Aquifer: Fell Sandstone

NT94003B	Royalty Observation	H.A: 21						
NGR: NT		M.A: EA North East	Period: 1990-2000		1995-96	42.23	43.19	11
EEC Unit:	Level: 56.68m AOD		Mean ann, range:	0.85m	1996-97	42.39	43.19	49
Comment:	,		Maximum ann, range:	1.77m	1997-98	42.24	44.08	22
			Minimum ann, range:	0.23m	1998-99	43	44.61	95
					1999-2000	42.98	44.61	43

---

# HYDROLOGICAL DATA: 1996-2000

		_	e s La constante		Period	Trough level (m)	Peak level (m)	Inctuations as a % of the mean range
NT95021 NGR: NT EEC Unit: 1 Comment: No significant seas 1990s, possibly in response to	Middle Ord Lavel: 64.96m AOD onal fluctuations. Borehole shows consist regional abstraction.	H.A: 21 M.A: EA North East ant drop in fevels since early	Period: 1974–1999 Mean ann. range: Maximum ann. range; Minimum ann. range;	0.48m 1.16m 0.05m	1995 - 96 1996 - 97 1997 - 98 1998 - 99 1999 - 2000	28.74 28.04 27.44 27.06 27.06	29.98 29.22 28.65 27.92 27.92	Ē

.-

# THE NATIONAL RIVER FLOW AND GROUNDWATER LEVEL ARCHIVE DATA RETRIEVAL SERVICES

In order that the contents of the National River Flow (NRFA) and National Groundwater Level (NGLA) Archives may be readily accessible a suite of standard programs has been developed to provide a comprehensive selection of retrieval options. In response to user requirements these data retrieval facilities are being continually updated and extended. A wide range of specialist analyses and presentations is now available. An outline of the data retrieval facilities is given below; further details are available by application to the National Water Archive (email: nwamail@ceh.ac.uk) or via the relevant websites which serve as a gateway to a range of data/information retrieval services (see below and page 202).

#### **Cost of Service**

To cover the computing and handling costs, a moderate charge may be made depending on the output options selected. Estimates of these charges may be obtained on request; the right to amend or waive charges is reserved.

#### **River Flow Data Retrieval**

The National River Flow Archive comprises around 44,000 station years of daily river flows and incorporates data from over 1400 gauging stations throughout the United Kingdom. In addition to gauged flow data, naturalised datasets have been derived for a small number of gauging stations. Catchment areal rainfall and the highest instantaneous flow, when available, are also archived on a monthly basis. Note, however, that the principal sources of nationally archived flood data are the Peaks-Over-Threshold (POT) and Flood Event archives held at CEH Wallingford. A range of validation procedures is applied to most of the contemporary river flow and rainfall data but the quality control of much of the historical data will have been more rudimentary. As a consequence, significant variation in the precision of archived datasets is to be expected.

All retrieval programs have been designed to allowed flexibility in the presentation of options, particularly those producing graphical output. Most data is now disseminated electronically and a choice of output formats is available to suit user needs. Normally, appropriate reference and descriptive information is provided to help interpret analyses based on the data.

Before finalising a data request it is recommended that the Tables of Hydrometric Statistics be consulted as a guideline to the suitability of the river flow data for particular applications. Details of the availability of data on a monthly basis are provided in the 'Summary of Archived Data' (pages 165 to 173). A list of standard data retrieval options is given on page 199. For details of the latest enhancements to the retrieval suite please visit the NRFA website: http://www.nwl.ac.uk/ih/nrfa/index.htm

### Groundwater Level Data Retrieval

The National Groundwater Level Archive holds borehole level data and site details for around 170 representative wells and boreholes throughout the United Kingdom. Some characteristics of individual wells, and well records, are given in the Groundwater-Register and Statistics section but it is recommended that data users contact the Hydrogeology Group (see below) before finalising any data request.

Six standard options are available for retrieving data. A description of each option is given overleaf. Options 1 to 4 give details of the well site, the period of record available, and maximum and minimum recorded levels in addition to the output specific to each option. Data may be retrieved for a specific well or for groups of wells by well reference numbers, by area (using National Grid References), by aquifer, by hydrometric area, by measuring authority, or by any combination of these parameters.

At the present time not all the data contained within the Archive have been validated.

For details of the latest enhancements to the NGLA retrieval suite please visit the BGS Hydrogeological Group's Website:

http://www.nwl.aciuk/bgs/

#### **Requests for Retrieval Options**

Requests for data should include: the name and address to which the output should be directed, the sites, or areas, for which data are required together with the period of record of interest (where appropriate) and the title of the required option. Where possible, a daytime telephone number should be given.

Requests for retrieval options should be addressed to:

Surface Water Data:

National Water Archive Office Institute of Hydrology Maclean Building Crowmarsh Gifford WALLINGFORD OXFORDSHIRE OX10 8BB

Tel: +44(0) 01491 838800 Email: nwamail@ceh.ac.uk Groundwater Level Data:

The British Geological Survey Hydrogeology Group Maclean Building Crowmarsh Gifford WALLINGFORD OXFORDSHIRE OX10.8BB

Tel: +44(0) 01491 838800 Email: hydroeng@bgs.ac.uk

### The National Water Archive

The National Water Archive (NWA) is one of the Natural Environment Research Council's seven Designated Data Centres. These Centres, located at NERC Institute sites, exist to hold data for distinct functional areas and provide information and advisory services to a wide range of users.

The National River Flow and National Groundwater Level Archives form the kernel of the National Water Archive holdings at Wallingford but a very broad range of hydrological – and related – data sets are being assimilated into the co-ordinated management that the NWA provides. Data holdings range from the catchment scale (e.g. detailed climatological and hydrological data for a network of experimental catchments) to national (flood event data) and international coverage (world floods archive). The utility of the archived time series data is enhanced by the availability of complementary spatial information (for example the digitised river network and UK soils hydrology map) and by the manipulative potential provided by modern data handling systems and analytical packages.

Staff at the NWA maintain close contacts with measuring authorities and keep under review developments in the field of network design, instrumentation and information technology. A continuing dialogue with both data suppliers and an active community of users ensures that the databases and retrieval facilities are reviewed continuously to provide an effective and responsive service across a broad range of applications.

Datasets of particular hydrological interest include an archive of 89,000 flood peaks from over 1000 catchments, a flood event archive comprising causative rainfall and river flows at short time intervals for over

•· **-** ••

4000 individual events, and experimental catchment data for Plynlimon (mid-Wales) and Balquhidder (Scotland). Equivalent European data also exists as part of the FRIEND project of the International-Hydrological Programme. Data from NERC Thematic Programmes (e.g. the LOIS Rivers Database), water quality information from the Acid Waters Monitoring Network and pesticide studies, and major overseas projects from Brazil and the Sahel are also held.

Data may be retrieved, from these sources in a variety of formats but, for some, access restrictions may apply.

#### The National Well Record Archive

The British Geological Survey maintains the National Well Record Archive (NWRA) for England and Wales. Currently this archive includes hydrogeological details and reference information for over 150,000 shafts, boreholes and some springs – predominantly constructed or used for water supply or the monitoring of groundwater levels or quality. The archive is organised into paper files based upon the 10 kilometre squares of the National Grid. Each file includes a register which details the accession number, the depth, the national grid reference and certain other details. This material is an essential component in the hydrogeological enquiry service operated by BGS and the register details are in the process of being transferred to a digital format.

The archive is located at the Wallingford Office of BGS (address above) and all the non-confidential records are open to inspection by the general public. Those wishing to avail themselves of this facility should contact the BGS Records Section in advance to discuss access procedures and costs.

#### National Geosciences Information Centre

The NWRA is associated with the National Geosciences Information Service (NGIS), one of a number of computer-based data centres established at NERC Institutes. The NGIS is located at the BGS Headquarters, Keyworth, near Nottingham (Telephone: 0602 363100) and provides access to a broad range of geological information (for example, geophysical and hydrogeological logs, core samples and chemical analyses).

## STANDARD DATA RETRIEVAL OPTIONS

#### National River Flow Archive

#### OPTION TITLE

No.

- 1 Table of daily mean gauged discharges
- 2 Table of daily mean naturalised discharges
- 3 Yearbook data tabulation (daily)
- 4 Table of monthly mean gauged discharges
- 5 Table of monthly mean naturalised discharges
- 6 Yearbook data tabulation (monthly)
- 7 Table of monthly extreme flows
- 8 Table of catchment monthly rainfall
- 9 Table of catchment monthly areal rainfall and runoff
- 10 Hydrographs of daily mean flows
- 11 Hydrographs of monthly mean flows
- 12 Flow duration statistics
- 13 Table of gauging station reference information
- 14 Table of hydrometric statistics
- 15 Gauging station descriptions
- 16 River flow pattern plots
- 17 Gauging station summary sheet

## National Groundwater Level Archive

#### OPTION TITLE

No.

- 1 Table of groundwater levels
- 2 Table of annual maximum and minimum groundwater levels
- 3 Table of monthly maximum, minimum and mean groundwater levels
- 4 Hydrographs of groundwater levels
- 5 Site details
- 6 Site details and statistics as presented in the 'Borehole Register and Statistics' section.

# DIRECTORY OF MEASURING **AUTHORITIES**

	Address	Code
Environment Agency	Rio House, Waterside Drive, Aztec West, Almondsbury, BRISTOL, BS12 4UD	EA
Environment Agency Regional I	Headquarters ¹	
Anglian Region	Kingfisher House, Goldhay Way, Orton Goldhay, PETERBOROUGH, PE2 0ZR	
North East Region	Rivers House, 21 Park Square South, LEEDS, LS1 2QG	
North West Region	Richard Fairclough House, Knutsford Road, WARRINGTON, WA4 1HG	
Midlands Region	Sapphire East, 550 Streetsbrook Road, SOLIHULL, B91 1QT	
Southern Region	Guildbourne House, Chatsworth Road, WORTHING, BN11 1LD	
South West Region	Manley House, Kestrel Way, Sowton Industrial Estate, EXETER, EX2 7LQ	
Thames Region	Kings Meadow House, Kings Meadow Road, READING, RG1 8DQ	
Environment Agency Wales	Rivers House/Plas-yr-Afon, St Mellons Business Park, CARDIFF, CF3 0LT	
Scottish Environment Protection	n Agency ²	
Corporate Office	Erskine Court, The Castle Business Park, STIRLING, FK9 4TR	
National Contact for Hydrological Information	SEPA National Hydrology Manager, 7 Whitfriars Crescent, PERTH, PH2 0FA,	

# Scottish Environment Protection Agency - Area Offices

North Region (Highlands, Islands and Grampien)	Graesser House, Fodderty Way, DINGWALL, IV15 9XB	SEPA-N
East Region (South East)	Clearwater House, Heriot Watt Research Park, Avenue North, Riccarton, EDINBURGH, EH14 4AP	SEPA-E
West Region (South West)	5 Redwood Crescent, Peel Port, EAST KILBRIDE, G75 5PD	SEPA-W

¹ Although the administrative boundaries of some of the EA regions (see Frontispieces) differ appreciably from the hydrological regions featured in this publication, hydrometric data collection is generally organised on a basin or catchment basis. For further details relating to the monitoring sites featured on the Maps 4–11 initial contact should normally be made with the EA headquarters in the hydrological province in which the particular site is found.

 $^{^{2}}$  As of April 2001 SEPA's regional structure was replaced by a national structure with regions being replaced by areas (with the same geographic boundaries) - the area designations are shown below the pre-2001 regional designations. For most hydrometric data requests, the appropriate area office will normally be the initial contact point.

# Northern Ireland - Rivers Agency Headquarters

Hyd	bank, 4 Hospital Road, R.	A
BEL	FAST, BT8 8JP	

# Other measuring authorities

East of Scotland Water Authority [†]	West Grove, Waverley Road, MELROSE, TD6 9SJ	ĖSWA
British Waterways	Willow Grange, Church Road, WATFORD, WD1 3QA	BW
Essex & Suffolk Water Plc	Hall Street, CHELMSFORD, CM2 OHH	ESW
Geological Survey of Northern Ireland	20 College Gardens, BELFAST, BT9 6BS	GSNI
North of Scotland Water Authority [†]	Denburn House, 25 Union Terrace, ABERDEEN, AB10 1NN	NSWA
CEH Wallingford	Maclean Building, WALLINGFORD, OX10 8BB	CEH
Northumbrian Water Group Plc	Northumbria House, Regent Centre NEWCASTLE UPON TYNE, NE3 3PX	NEW
North West Water Plc [★]	Dawson House, Liverpool Road, WARRINGTON, WA5 3LW	NWW
Southern Water Plc	Southern House, Yeoman Road, WORTHING, BN13 3NX	şw
West of Scotland Water Authority [†]	419 Balmore Road, GLASGOW, G22 6NU	WSWA
Yorkshire Water Services Ltd	Western House, Halifax Rd, BRADFORD, BD6 2LZ	YW

# Websites of the principal data suppliers

Environment Agency	http://www.environment-agency.gov.uk/
Scottish Environment Protection Agency	http://sepa.org.uk/
Rivers Agency (Dept. Agriculture and	http://www.dardni.gov.uk/
Rural Development)	

 †  Superceded by the creation of Scottish Water in April 2002.

* Now United Utilities.

Note: The measuring authorities listed in this directory provide (or have provided) daily flow data to the national archive for primary flow measurement stations.

. . .

# PUBLICATIONS — in the Hydrological data UK Series

#### Introduction

Using the resources of the National River Flow and National Groundwater Level Archives, the Hydrological data UK series of Yearbooks has provided documentation and interpretation of hydrological conditions and water resource variations throughout the UK since the inception of the series in 1981.

Following a readership consultation exercise in 1995, a review of the Hydrological data UK series was undertaken. A major objective was to exploit the opportunities afforded by new information dissemination options to ensure that nationally archived hydrometric datasets are more widely accessible. Accordingly, it was decided to publish future Yearbooks on the World Wide Web; the first electronic Yearbook (for 1996) was posted on the NRFA website (see below) in December 1997. Subsequently the website was restructured to provide access to a broader range of information, and greater flexibility in its presentation. The pace of technological change and, in particular, the user demand for new forms of data presentation will continue to help shape the future structure of the Hydrological data UK series.

#### The National River Flow Archive Website

The NRFA website was established in 1996 to provide a gateway to a range of UK hydrological information and validated datasets. It can be accessed via:

http://www.nwl.ac.uk/ih/nrfa/index.htm

Currently the website comprises six main components:

River Flow Data – Daily flow data for 200 index gauging stations throughout the UK together with details of the NRFA data retrieval facilities.

Water Watch – Annual and monthly summaries of hydrological and water resources variability throughout the UK together with other material related to the National Hydrological Monitoring Programme (see below).

*UK Gauging Station Network* – Location maps, reference information, hydrographs, flow duration curves and descriptive material relating to all primary gauging stations in the UK.

*Publications* – Details of publications in the Hydrological data UK series and other associated publications, reports and teaching resources.

*Hydrological Trends* – Regional and site-specific trends for a range of river flow and groundwater level variables, including UK climate change indicators.

National Groundwater Level Archive - Provides access to groundwater data retrieval options and links to the

comprehensive hydrogeological information holdings of the British Geological Survey.

#### The National Hydrological Monitoring Programme

Since the winter of 1988/89 monthly reports on hydrological and water resources variability throughout the UK have been prepared jointly by CEH Wallingford and the British Geological Survey on behalf of the Department of the Environment, Food and Rural Affairs, and the Environment Agency (and their precursors). Financial support towards their publication costs is also provided by the Scottish Environment Protection Agency, The Rivers Agency (Department of Agriculture and Rural Development) in Northern Ireland and OFWAT.

The programme utilises networks of index monitoring sites to document variations in rainfall (the majority of the rainfall data is supplied by the Met Office), river flows, groundwater resources and overall reservoir stocks. The programme relies on the active cooperation of measuring authorities throughout the UK to provide contemporary hydrometric and water resources information.

Reports are published within 10 working days of month-end. Subscription to the UK Hydrological Summaries – currently £48 per year – may be arranged through the National Water Archive Office – see page 197. The bulk of the material is subsequently posted on the 'Water Watch' website – where an archive of monthly reports back to March 1997 is maintained. The same site also provides access to the Hydrological Reviews of the Year (published in the Yearbooks prior to 1996).

#### Hydrological data UK Publications

#### Hydrometric Register and Statistics Volumes

Earlier editions of this current publication are available covering 1981–85, 1986–90 and 1991–95. A proportion of the featured material is now posted on the NRFA website but the Hydrometric Register and Statistics volumes will continue to be published in hard-copy format at 5-yearly intervals.

#### Yearbooks

Copies of most Yearbooks in the Hydrological data UK series (1981–95) may be obtained through the National River Flow Archive Office. Each Yearbook brings together the principal datasets relating to river flows, groundwater levels and areal rainfall throughout the United Kingdom. A comprehensive hydrological review of the year is featured in each Yearbook. Also included in the editions for 1986–95 are water quality data for a representative selection of river basins throughout -Britain.

Details of availability and concessionary prices may be obtained on application to the NRFA Office (Tel: +44(0) 01491 692468; email: nwamail@ceh. ac.uk).

#### The 1988-92 Drought

This report provides comprehensive documentation of the 1988–92 drought within a hydrological framework and establishes a benchmark against which future periods of severe rainfall deficiency may be compared. The spatial and temporal variations in the drought's intensity are examined and its severity assessed within the perspective provided by long-term rainfall and hydrometric records. The synoptic backcloth to the drought's development is also reviewed and the European perspective is examined using selected rainfall and river flow records to index drought severity.

#### The 1984 Drought

The first occasional report in the Hydrological data UK series concerns the 1984 drought. The structure of the report follows the hydrological cycle with chapters devoted to rainfall, evaporation, runoff and water storage in surface reservoirs and aquifers. The report documents the drought in a water resources framework and its development, duration and severity are examined with particular reference to regional variations in intensity.

#### **Other Publications**

#### Long Term Hydrographs

In 1990 the British Geological Survey launched a series of wallcharts depicting long term variations in groundwater levels. Long term hydrographs are currently available for the Chilgrove House (1836-) and Dalton Holme (1883-) boreholes and Therfield Rectory (1883-) well in the Chalk of the South downs, Yorkshire and Hertfordshire respectively. Copies of the groundwater level hydrographs may be obtained from the British Geological Survey (for further details visit the BGS Website).

Long term hydrographs of daily or monthly flows are also available for selected gauging stations (e.g. the River Thames at Kingston with records from 1883) and for England and Wales as a whole, for details contact the National River Flow Archive Office.

#### The Flood Estimation Handbook

Published in 1999, the Flood estimation Handbook represents the outcome of a 5-year research programme at the Institute of Hydrology (now CEH Wallingford) to develop and implement new generalised procedures for rainfall and flood frequency estimation in the UK. The Handbook – which largely supersedes the Flood Studies Report – seeks to improve decision making about flood risks in the UK. Volume 3 contains summary details of annual maximum flows and Peaks over a Threshold; the corresponding time series are contained on an accompanying CD Rom.

Further details relating to the Handbook and associated software may be found on the FEH Website: www.nwl.ac.uk/feh.
This glossary of terms is intended primarily to help explain some of the technical vocabulary used in the section of the gauging station register. Where possible, the definitions given below are based upon those developed by the International Standards Organisation¹.

## Surface Water

:

Afflux .	The rise in water level immediately upstream of, and due to, an obstruction.	
Backwater (curve)	The profile of the water surface upstream when its surface slope is generally less than the bed slope. The backwater curve generally occurs upstream of an obstruction or confluence.	
Broad-crested	A weir of sufficient breadth (in the direction of the flow) such that critical flow occurs on the crest of the weir. The term long-crested is sometimes also applied to such structures.	
Cableway	An assembly of winches and ropes and a carrier for placing the current meter at any desired point in the cross section.	
Calibration	The establishment of a discharge relationship (or rating) with the measured stage values. Sometimes used as a synonym for the stage-discharge relation.	
Compensation	A minimum flow which a water authority is under an obligation to discharge into a watercourse as condition of carrying out their undertaking. Commonly the obligation relates to the maintenanc of a discharge rate below a reservoir. The term 'residual flow' is preferred by some authorities.	
Compound weir	A weir containing two or more sections, which may be of different types, each section normally having a different height.	
Control	The physical properties of a channel, natural or artificial, which determine the relationship between stage and discharge at a location in the channel.	
Crest-tapping	A means of measuring the pressure head near to the crest of a weir – the ratio of this head to the upstream measured head can be used to determine the reduction factor necessary when flows are non-modular.	
Critical flow	The flow in which the total energy head [*] is a minimum for a given discharge; critical flow conditions are created by the installation of most standard weirs and flumes (as well as by natural obstructions and constrictions).	
Depth of approach	The depth of the upstream bed at the tapping point below the lowest point of a weir crest.	
Drawdown curve	The profile of the water surface where its surface slope exceeds the bed slope, for instance, immediately upstream of a weir or flume.	
Drowned (or submerged)	A weir in which the upstream level is affected by the downstream water level (and the 'modular' stage-discharge relation no longer applies).	
Flume	An artificial channel with clearly specified shape and dimensions which may be used for the measurement of flow. A standing-wave flume, for instance, contains a constriction which causes the flow to change from sub-critical [*] to super-critical [*] and in which the measurement of upstream water level (alone) allows the discharge to be computed.	
Freshets	The periodical release of discharge rates over and above the basic compensation flow. These artificial floods are intended to benefit the aquatic environment, particularly fisheries.	
Gaugeboard	A device with a graduated scale installed at a gauging station for measuring the level of water relative to a datum. Gaugeboards can be either vertical or inclined.	
Hydraulic jump	The sudden change of flow from super-critical flow to sub-critical flow. The transition is marked by a standing-wave.	
Hysteresis	The effect on the stage-discharge relation at a gauging station subject to variable water surface slope where, for the same gauge height, the discharge on a rising stage differs from that on a falling stage.	

Influent stream	One which flows above the water-table and contributes to it by natural leakage through the bed of the channel (sometimes termed a 'losing' stream; conversely a 'gaining' stream has its flow naturally augmented by inflow through the bed or banks).
Invert	The lowest part of the cross-section of a natural or artificial channel.
Modular limit	The submergence ratio when the flow just begins to be affected by the downstream level.
Nappe	The jet formed by the flow over a weir. A clinging nappe is one held in contact with the downstream face of a weir.
Rhymer weir	A simple form of variable geometry weir consisting of fixed horizontal beams which support vertical timber posts to form a series of rectangular openings - these may be closed by means of timber gates.
Stage	The elevation of the free surface of a stream relative to a datum; sometimes also referred to as the gauge height.
Stage-discharge	An equation, table or formula which expresses the relation between the stage and the discharge in an open channel at a given cross-section.
Stilling well	A well connected with the main stream in such a way as to permit the measurement of stage in relatively still liquid.
Submergence	The ratio of the downstream total head (measured head plus velocity head) to the upstream total head over a weir.
Suppressed weir	A weir whose sides are in the same plane as the open channel thus eliminating (suppressing) side contractions of the stream.
Thin-plate weir	A weir constructed of a vertical thin plate with a thin crest shaped in such a manner that the nappe springs clear of the crest.
Triangular-profile weir	A weir having a triangular profile in a vertical direction in the direction of flow. The 'Crump' and 'Flat V' weirs are examples of such structures.
Unstable channel	Channel in which there are frequent and significant changes in control.
Velocity of approach	The mean velocity in an open channel at a specified distance upstream of a measuring device.
Velocity head	The head obtained by dividing the square of the mean velocity (in the measuring section) by twice the acceleration due to gravity.

* For definitions of these terms see reference 1.

## Groundwater

Aquifer	A rock formation containing groundwater that can be abstracted economically in useful quantities.
Artesian well	A shaft, or more commonly a borehole, within which, when the aquifer is penetrated, water rises within the well to a level above the top of the aquifer, i.e. above the base of a confining layer. The term is usually reserved for wells that naturally overflow at the ground surface; where the water level rises, but does not reach the ground surface, the term sub-artesian is sometimes used.
Borehole	A well constructed by machinery, usually less than one metre in diameter. Usually constructed vertically, but inclined boreholes are occasionally constructed.
Confined aquifer	An aquifer in which groundwater is held under pressure by a confining layer (see also artesian well).
Confining layer	An impermeable rock formation that immediately overlies an aquifer, and which may contain water in the latter under pressure.

Groundwater	Sub-surface water contained within the saturated zone.
Observation well	A shaft or borehole used for observing groundwater head or quality.
Permeability	The ability of a material to allow the passage of a fluid.
Piezometric	The surface that represents the static head of the groundwater surface in a confined aquifer; in practice, the static head is taken to be the water level measured in a well penetrating a confined aquifer.
Potentiometric	The surface that represents the static head of the groundwater surface in both confined aquifers and water-table aquifers (i.e. where the water or pressure surface is at atmospheric pressure). This term includes piezometric surface and water-table.
Rising	A term used particularly in South West England for a continuous outflow of subterranean water of such dimensions as to be regarded as the emergence of a stream rather than a spring; characteristic of Karstic aquifers such as the Carboniferous Limestone in the Mendip Hills.
Saturated zone	That part of an aquifer, normally beneath the deepest water-table, in which ideally all voids are filled with water under pressure greater than atmospheric.
Shaft	A well constructed by hand and generally greater than one metre in diameter.
Unsaturated zone	That part of an aquifer between the ground surface and the water-table.
Water level	In this context, the altitude (or depth) of the water surface as measured in a well.
Water-table	The surface of a groundwater body at which the water pressure is atmospheric. Unless the water- table is coincident with the ground surface, an unsaturated zone will be present.
Well	A term used to include both shafts and boreholes although occasionally used for shafts only.

G/s

Gw

HEP

Hifs

Ho

Hosp

Gauging station

Hydro-electric power

Highest instantaneous flows

Groundwater

House

Hospital

## **ABBREVIATIONS**

Note: The following abbreviations do not purport to represent any standardised usage; they have been developed for use in the Hydrological data UK series of publications only. Where space constraints have required alternative forms of these conventional abbreviations to be used, the meaning should be evident from the context.

		IH	Institute of Hydrology
Adf	Average daily flow	L	Loch or lake
ALF	Alleviation of Low Flows	Lb	Left hand river bank
AOD	Above Ordnance Datum		(looking downstream)
B-c	Broad-crested	Ln	Lane
Bk	Beck	L'st	Limestone
Blk	Black	Ltl	Little
Br	Bridge	MAF	Mean annual flood
Brk or B	Brook	Mkt	Market
Brn	Burn	Ml/d	Megalitres per day
BNFL	British Nuclear Fuels Ltd	Mnr	Manor
BS	British Standards	N	North
Ch	Channel	NERPB	North East River Purification Board
C/m	Current meter(ing)	NSHEB	North of Scotland Hydro-Electric Board
Com	Common	Ntch	Notch
Dk	Dike	NW	North West
Dmfs	Daily mean flows	OD	Ordnance Datum
Dr or D	Drain	O/f	Outfall or outflow
D/s	Downstream	ORS	Old Red Sandstone
E	East	Pk	Park
EM	Electromagnetic gauging station	Рор	Population
F&M	Foot and Month disease	POR	Period of record
Frm	Farm	PS	Pumping station

...

Pt	Point	SE	South East
PT	Permo-Triassic (sandstones)	SOE	Scottish Office Environment Department
PWS	Public water supply	SI	Sluice
QMED	Median annual flood	.Sp	_Spring
RAFT	Rising Air Float Technique	St	Stream
Rb	Right hand river bank	STW	Sewage Treatment Works
	(looking downstream)	SW	South West
R/c	Racecourse	TS	Transfer scheme
RCS	Regional communications system	US	Ultrasonic gauging station
Rd	Road	U/s	Upstream
Res	Reservoir	VA	Velocity-area gauging station/method
Rh	Right hand	W	West
RPB	River Purification Board	W'course	Watercourse
S	South	WBGS	West Berkshire Groundwater Scheme
S'st	Sandstone	Wd	Wood
Sch	School	Wr	Weir
S-D	Stage-discharge relation	WRW	Water reclamation works
SDD	Scottish Development Department	Wtr	Water
	(now SOE)	WTW	Water treatment works

For a full explanation of the letter codes used to categorise flow measurement stations, see page 5.

## Reference

1. International Standards Organisation, 1978. Liquid flow measurement in open channels. Vocabulary and symbols, ISO 772,1978.















British Geological Survey